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INTELLIGENCE ACTIVITIES-FEDERAL BUREAU OF
INVESTIGATION

TUESDAY NOVEMBER 18 1975

U.S SENATE
SELECTCOMMITTEETo STUDYGOVERNMENTALOPERATIONS

WITH RESPECTTOINTELLIGENCEACTIVITIES
Washington D.C

The committee met pursuant to notice at 10:05 a.m in room 318
Russell Senate Office Building Senator Frank Church (chairman)
presiding

Present Senators Church Hart (Michigan) Mondale Huddleston
Morgan Hart (Colorado) Goldwater Mathias and Schweiker

Also present William G Miller staff director Barbara Banoff
John Eliff Michael Epstein Mark Gitenstein professional staff

members
The CHAIRMANThe hearing will please come to order
The subject of the hearing this morning is the domestic intelligence

activities of the Federal Bureau of Investigation The committee has
adopted a different procedure for this hearing We have directed com
mittee counsel Mr Schwarz and Mr Smothers to present a report
on our investigation of FBI domestic intelligence operations Repre
sentatives of the FBI will appear tomorrow for a discussion of these
matters

These public hearings on the FBI concentrate on its domestic sur
veillance programs The committee has also undertaken an inquiry
into FBI intelligence activities relating to foreign espionage and na
tional defense However the committee is conducting this latter part
of its investigation in executive session so that vital FBI operations
necessary for the national defense will not be impaired Our final
report and recommendations will address both the domestic and for
eign sides of FBI intelligence

For 50 years the Federal Bureau of Investigation has been an
outstanding law enforcement agency The Supreme Court in the land
mark Miranda case praised the FBI for its exemplary record of effec
tive law enforcement and respect for the rights of suspects in criminal
cases But the FBI is not only a criminal law enforcement agency It
has a domestic intelligence role which is separate from its criminal
investigations

The very nature of our democracy demands that these activities
undergo periodic public scrutiny Yet there has never been a full pub
lic accounting of FBI domestic intelligence operations Therefore
this committee has undertaken such an investigation Its purpose is
not to impair the FBI's legitimate law enforcement and counter
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espionage functions but rather to evaluate domestic intelligence ac

cording to the standards of the Constitution and the statutes of our
land If fault is to be found it does not rest in the Bureau alone It
is to be found also in the long line of Attorneys General Presidents
and Congresses who have given power and responsibility to the FBI
but have failed to give it adequate guidance direction and control

Information is a powerful resource One of the FBI's most signifi
cant features is its system for efficiently processing filing and re
trieving the data it gathers The potential dangers in this system are
obvious The late Francis Biddle Attorney General in the 1940's
warned the Nation about and I quote his words "The future use of
this great machine of detection with its 10 million personal files its
reputation grown sacrosanct its obvious possibilities of misusing the
power it has won. Attorney General Biddle did not believe the FBI
could safely continue with what he called "the virtual freedom from
control. As our technological sophistication increases the warning
of Francis Biddle grows ever more urgent

Over 4 years ago the Senate Subcommittee on Constitutional Rights
exposed the massive surveillance of Americans by the U.S Army
intelligence system Earlier this year we learned of extensive domestic
intelligence gathering by the Central Intelligence Agency Now we
look at the FBI the most important domestic intelligence agency of
all The Bureau's reports provided much of the raw material for both
Army intelligence and CIA domestic intelligence operations Our own
hearings in September showed that FBI intelligence officers helped
develop the 1970 Huston plan with an eye toward an even greater
expansion of surveillance programs directed against American
citizens

Today we are here to review the major findings of our full investi
gation of FBI domestic intelligence including the COINTELPRO
and other programs aimed at domestic targets FBI surveillance of
law-abiding citizens and groups political abuses of FBI intelligence
and several specific cases of unjustified intelligence operations

These hearings have one overriding objective The development of
sufficient information for Congress to legislate appropriate standards
for the FBI Attorney General Levi has undertaken a similar task
within the Justice Department and we intend to work with him in
framing proper FBI guidelines The Attorney General and Director
Kelley of the FBI will be invited to appear before the committee in
December to discuss recommendations for the future

Now before I turn to Senator Tower for his opening comments
there is one other important point that I would like to stress and ask
members of the committee as well as the staff to give this point special
attention as we proceed this morning Investigations such as these
which are designed to determine whether Government agencies are
infringing on the rights of citizens run the risk themselves of injuring
private citizens rights unless great care is taken The disclosure of
the contents of raw FBI files or characterizations or other derogatory
information in the course of this investigation should be avoided at
all costs by this committee its staff and its witnesses

For that reason I want to instruct the staff to refrain from men
tioning the names of private citizens as being the subject of FBI
surveillance unless permission has been given in advance by that person
or unless the information is already in the public domain The docu
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ments the committee is releasing have already been excised and I hope
that committee members in their questions will exercise the same
due care

Now I would like to turn to the vice chairman of the committee
Senator Tower

Senator TOWERThank you Mr Chairman
First at his request I would like to explain the absence of Senator

Baker He is the ranking Republican on the Public Works Com
mittee which is at this moment considering some very vital and
critical environmental legislation and therefore he cannot attend
the hearing

Today in a sense the select committee comes home For today
the select committee begins hearings designed to shed light upon the
Nation's domestic intelligence activities Our purpose however is
not to conduct a legislative trial In conducting these hearings we
do not seek either to assign fault or to apportion blame Rather our
aim is to illuminate the policies and the practices of our domestic
intelligence agencies Our hope in so doing is that a complete record
and an informed public will assist the select committee in its difficult
task of evaluating the important intelligence work being done by
the FBI

These matters of course must be seen in perspective and we must
always guard against magnifying at hearings what has been in prac
tice only a very small segment of the undeniably valuable work done
by the FBI in the vital areas of crime detection and crime prevention
While the select committee has been fully informed of those allega
tions which have charged the Bureau with mistakes and excesses we
are no less vividly aware of the great difficulties and the complex
problems which the Bureau's intelligence arm has confronted over
the years

As the chairman's remarks have indicated today's hearing will
focus on the FBI the most recent subject of our ongoing examination
of domestic intelligence functions As with other governmental
agencies our concern today is with the issues of authorization for
domestic intelligence activities and the privacy and other civil rights
considerations raised by Government intervention in the lives of
citizens It is not our contention that all invasions are unwarranted
However our charter is to reassess current activities To this end the
staff's presentation will touch upon such controversial topics as con
fidential sources informants indexes general warrants disruptive
techniques "black bag jobs COINTFLPRO and subversive activi
ties In an attempt at full disclosure reference will be made to such
widely divergent concerns as the Communist Party Black Hate the
Ku Klux Klan Women's Liberation the New Left and radical
terrorism

These next sessions will provide a full and forthright look at the
domestic intelligence mission of the Bureau By so doing by estab
lishing a complete and oven record of Bureau activity the select com
mittee hones fully to discharge its responsibilities under Senate Resolu
tion 21 by adding to our nearly completed review of intelligence
action abroad the critical and perhaps overriding element of what
hannens to our citizens at home

Thank you Mr Chairman
The CHAIRMANThank you very much Senator Tower
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Now I have two further recommendations to make I note by the
schedule that there will be a series of Senate votes this morning and
that means that we need to come to some kind of understanding before
we commence

There is an old story told about a justice of the peace in Idaho who
was a farmer and he used to so the story goes get his trial going and
both sides giving their testimony and then he would say "Now you
fellows just go ahead with your testimony while I go out and irrigate
the north 40. And today we

Senator TOWERThat is a Texas story by the way
The CHAIRMANIt cannot be because you do not have water enough

to irrigate 40 acres
We may be faced with that problem with the votes today so I would

suggest that as the votes come on Senators leave individually and
return so that the hearing itself is not constantly interrupted That
way Senators will always be present We will do that rotating and the
hearing can go forward

The only other recommendation I have is that to the extent possible
and of course this will not apply to the chairman and the vice chair
man but to the extent possible other members of the committee are
requested not to ask questions that will interfere too much with the
continuity of the presentation and then the questions can follow the
presentation If Senators can restrain themselves that would be
appreciated

Now I think that covers all of the announcements I have to make
and I believe in accordance with the custom of the committee Mr
Smothers and Mr Schwarz should stand and be sworn

Do you the counsel of this committee solemnly swear that all the
testimony you are about to give in these proceedings will be the truth
the whole truth and nothing but the truth so help you God

Mr SCHWARZI do
Mr SMOTHERSI do

TESTIMONY OF FREDERICK A O SCHWARZ JR. CHIEF COUNSEL
AND CURTIS R SMOTHERS COUNSELTO THE MINORITY SENATE
SELECT COMMITTEE TO STUDY GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS
WITH RESPECT TOINTELLIGENCE ACTIVITIES

The CHAIRMANMr Schwarz would you please proceed
Mr SCHWARZMr Chairman Mr Vice Chairman may I first state

that Mr Smothers and I have divided this presentation We are
entirely at one in our view as to the facts and our view as to what
should be presented It has been an entirely cooperative and helpful
venture between the minority and majority staffs here

I am going to start by outlining the subjects we are going to cover
Before I do that I want to pick up on a comment that both the chair
man and the vice chairman made about the objective of this set of
hearings being to develop the facts upon which decisions can be made
as to what should be done and go back to 1938 when this whole pro
gram of domestic surveillance started for the second time in this
country and put into the record what Director Hoover the Attorney
General and the President of the United States said to each other at
that time about the necessity to keep secret from the American people
the facts as to domestic surveillance by the FBI This was written in
1938 and it reads as follows



5

In consideringthe steps to be taken for the expansion which then occurred "of
the present structure of intelligence work it is believed imperative that it be
proceededwith the utmost degree of secrecy in order to avoid criticism or objections which might be raised to such an expansion by either ill-informed personsor individuals having some ulterior motive. .. "Consequently it would seem
undesirable to seek special legislation which would draw attention to the factof what is beingdone,

And as you know no legislation no special legislation relating to
the subject of the FBI and its domestic surveillance has been sought
or enacted since that time

Now we intend this morning to cover six broad subjects Mr
Smothers will follow and deal with the size and the scope of FBI's
domestic intelligence activity In essence the proof will establish that
the targeted investigations directed specifically at American citizens
and groups have numbered in the hundreds of thousands that general
intelligence that is the simple collection of information about Ameri
cans and what they are doing and what they are thinking is infinitely
bigger than that and that the requests the annual requests to the FBI
for intelligence data on Americans number in the millions

Mr Smothers will also briefly cover the history of the FBI intelli
gence program and demonstrate how there have been periodic changessince the 1920's periods when people have believed this kind of activity
is improper and other periods where people have believed this kind of
activity is essential albeit kept secret

We will then briefly discuss what the FBI collects and what the
grist is for the mill of the Intelligence Division There we will make
points about the extraordinary breadth of the desire for data and the
vagueness of the requirements by which the agents are instructed to
collect this extraordinary mass of data for example all information
on racial matters whatever that may be

We will put before you the fact that there have been repeated ex
amples of the actual collection of personal data about the private lives
of American citizens that that has not only been done but that has been
done pursuant to instructions and that there have been instructions to
use that material to specifically injure particular American citizens or
groups

Now we will also put before you the fact that there have been
instructions to collect the views of people on issues the views of groups
on issues This part of the hearing will also demonstrate that the in
telligence investigation once started may just go on and on like a
river without stop and without regard to whether or not information
has been collected which is of any use whatsoever to a purpose of look
ing for a criminal violation or for dealing with any purpose con
cerning which one would have thought the Federal Government
ought to be collecting information

For example we will cite the case of Women's Liberation and will
read to you from a document in which the agent based on several in
formants collects information about the 'Women's Liberation move
ment concludes women are interested in liberating themselves and im
proving their lives and wish to be freed from the humdrum existence
of being only a wife and mother and what conclusion is reached after
that valuable information is delivered to the Bureau "Continue to
investigate.

We will demonstrate that in the case of a particular person in this
case Martin Luther King the Bureau continued for 7 years to have
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the most intensive possible investigation into him and his organiza
tion We will have another example of a religious group not the
Southern Christian Leadership Conference but another religious
group where for 20 years the Bureau continued to collect information
on the group hoping and hoping that it might find at some time that
it was genuinely a danger and finding that it was not The Justice
Department also instructed the Bureau to keep collecting information
in this case so that it just never stops

We will put before you information on an attitude which is prev
alent in the intelligence field that in effect indicates that a subject
for surveillance is to be regarded as guilty until proven innocent For
example I will read a quote relating to a civil rights leader in New
York where the New York office reported to the Bureau that the man
was not sympathetic to Communist causes and the response from the
Bureau was as follows

The Bureau does not agree with the expressed belief of the New York Office
that Mr X is not sympathetic to the Party cause While there may not be any
direct evidence that Mr X is a Communist neither is there any direct substan
tial evidencethat he is anti-Communist

Therefore the instruction is keep going keep going and hope to
find it

That gentleman was subjected in the months surrounding that docu
ment to three COINTELPRO actions designed to discredit and
destroy him on the basis of a record where they said they could not
say he was a Communist but the instructions were to keep going you
might find that he is and it has not been proven that he is not

We will then turn to the subject of how the Bureau collects informa
tion We will tick off some of the particularly invasive techniques that
have been used and pay special attention to the subject of informants
which turns out to be by far the greatest source of information We
will identify some of the key problems in the informants area for
which there is a whole day's hearing scheduled after Thanksgiving

We will then turn Mr Chairman to the question of dissemination
and use talk about official dissemination to agencies ranging from
local law enforcement to Presidents and then we will talk about
unofficial dissemination whereby the Bureau uses what they call
friendly or cooperative news media to put out stories from their files
based upon information which they regard as harmful to the in
dividuals whom they wish to injure

We will then turn to certain examples of particularly troublesome
programs and incidents programs to disrupt discredit and destroy
groups and individuals examples of the use of what is called misin
formation to prevent dissenters from meeting or engaging in protest
activity examples of efforts to neutralize people by breaking up their
marriages or ruining their jobs examples of where decisions have
been made to risk the death of suspect individuals by intentionally
exacerbating tensions between groups known to be violence prone and
known to have a desire to injure each other where there were inten
tional acts taken by the Bureau with full authority to exacerbate
that tension We will give you some examples of the Bureau's electing
to in effect enter into the political arena I mean political with a
small "p and not party politics but political arena in the sense of the
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great social issues of this country For example in the instance of the
civil rights area the Bureau at one point had a plan to select a leader
who they thought ought to lead the blacks in this country and at the
same time to depose Martin Luther King against whom they ran their
most sustained and toughest program of any that we have seen

As another example of choosing sides on issues of importance to
society we will show you that after the 1968 Democratic Convention
the instructions went out to Bureau officials to collect evidence to dis
prove any allegations that police had mistreated demonstrators

Finally in the area of troublesome problems we will identify for
you instances where the Bureau had been misused politically by higher
authority selecting some examples of the Bureau's having been asked
to intercede and to spy on people for directly political reasons and
where higher authority has used the Bureau's information-gathering
resources to collect material on newsmen

If we have time Mr Chairman after that litany of facts we will
discuss serious problems with respect to oversight and serious prob
lems with respect to control that are illustrated by such matters as
the plan to lock up dissenters For 20 years there was a plan to lock
up dissenters for 15 years perhaps and it was a different plan than
the plan that Congress had approved And the Justice Department
and the Bureau agreed to go ahead with their plan a broader plan to
lock people up beyond that time which the Congress had approved in
the Internal Security Act of 1950

That is a broad outline of the subjects we are going to cover Mr
Smothers is going to discuss the history and the size and the scope of
these operations

Mr SMOTHERSThank you Fritz
Mr Chairman our discussion of domestic intelligence has been and

will be very largely limited to the FBI and those executive agencies
charged with its supervision largely because these agencies the At
torney General and the White House together with the FBI have the
primary responsibility for the domestic intelligence in this country

Now there are some activities undertaken by other agencies Our
own investigation indicates that those raise identical issues or are
rather minimal conducted in cooperation with the Bureau

Now the issues that we will not cover in detail in this presentation
are really those that have been previously examined in our look at the
Huston plan CIA domestic operations and of course the use of the
IRS for nontax purposes

I think that it might be helpful before a detailed examination of
some of the points Fritz has mentioned for us to present a very brief
overview of how the FBI is organized the nature if you will of the
animal which we are discussing here today The functional organiza
tion chart which is exhibit 1,1 indicates that the headquarters of the
Bureau is organized primarily in three divisions As with many gov
ernmental entities you will see it is heavily weighted in the area of
administration the second division engages planning evaluation and
inspection and the third division is the one with which we will be
primarily concerned today the so-called investigation division
Actually our concern will be with a small component of the Intelli
gence Division
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The general Intelligence Division is really organized into two basic
elements You will see to the right of the chart which is exhibit 21
the denomination "Counterintelligence. Now we will not be discus
sing the counterintelligence method today This involves primarily
the FBI's efforts to deal with the activities of unfriendly foreign gov
ernments in the United States largely counterespionage

In looking to the internal security functions the remainder of the
Intelligence Division outlined on the chart we see that the FBI has
taken the approach that there are really two primary areas of concern
in addition to an item appearing as IS 3 which is largely the re
search effort in the intelligence organization

The first organization you see as IS 1 concerns itself with the so
called extremists and we see here the so-called black nationalist
groups the white hate groups the other groups promoting civil
disorder

And then we turn to IS 2 the unit concerned with another kind of
extremist activity largely the so-called subversive activity the pre
occupation with the Communists the Trotskyites and other people
believed to be motivated primarily by foreign nationals

It should be pointed out that the Intelligence Division really rep
resents a small share of the investigative effort of the FBI The Gen
eral Investigative Division that we saw on the larger chart deals with
many of the traditional law enforcement issues We're talking here
about bank robbery kidnapping civil rights violations mail frauds
The minority of issues dealt with by the Intelligence Division really
does not amount to an even near majority of the allocation of the FBI's
resources In fiscal 1975 approximately 18 percent of the $440 million
budget approximately $82 million was devoted to the entire intelli
gence effort

Now any breakdown between counterespionage and domestic intel
ligence becomes extremely:difficult for two reasons

First the manner of the FBI's recordkeeping in terms of costs has
not been very defined or precise and second the FBI has indicated to
us and we are impressed by the fact that a further breakdown would
really result in a significant revelation of how much is going into coun
terintelligence and we feel that revelation of that would serve no
useful purpose and indeed might do a significant harm

In looking at the headquarters operation I think it is important
that we not lose sight of the assets the capabilities employed by the
Agency in the total organization the resources it brings to bear in the
carrying out of any policies developed at headquarters level The
Bureau with its 59 field offices staffed by more than 9,500 special
agents maintains a data bank on citizens which includes criminal in
formation and this investigative data bank contains more than 50
million cards The resource of the bank grows daily as the FBI con
ducts more than 2 million of the name-check kind of investigations
that we will talk about later more than 2 million name checks annually

Since 1939 the Bureau has compiled more than 500,000 dossiers on
American citizens adding 65,000 to this total in 1972 alone This bank
of information is constantly fueled by arrest records fingerprint files
taps information of informants and a myriad of other sources we
will discuss a little later And I think when we talk about the tremen



9

dous capability we ought to have some concern for the fact that we
are not raising what is essentially new business The debate on the
propriety of this effort has really gone on for some time In fact it
might be helpful to take just a brief look at the evolution of the
intelligence function

In 1919 the then-Director J W Flynn decided that the Bureau
and I quote "required a vigorous and comprehensive investigation of
anarchists and Bolshevists along with kindred agitations advocating
change in the present form of government.

He took the position at that time that the FBI's effort should not
be limited to investigations of violations of existing law but indeed
could extend to investigations of legislation that may be enacted in the
future

This is an important determination because in 1919 the general in
telligence effort was then vested in the office of the Attorney General
Mr Hoover was then in charge of that effort and it was the Flynn
endorsement that led to the development or the first development
of an indexing system for information retrieval on the activities of
these radicals and activists and other persons of a revolutionary
character

It was after objection to this kind of collection by such legal scholars
as Roscoe Pound Felix Frankfurter and Charles Evans Hughes that
we begin to see the first debate on the question The debate of course
was speeded by actions that the FBI was involved in such as the
famous Palmer Red raids

In 1924 Harlan Fiske Stone became Attorney General of the United
States and took the position that the Bureau's activities in this regard
should become more circumspect He raised the danger of a police
state and indicated that the business of inquiring into political or other
opinions was to be avoided by the agency

At this time Mr Hoover readily agreed with Mr Stone and indicated
that except for investigations of matters concerning penal statutes or
the violation of penal statutes such investigations would not cease
and our records and investigation indicate that they probably did cease
until we become concerned later in the developing political atmosphere
raising the specter of Fascism and Communism

In 1936 coincidentally the then-Attorney General was away from
Washington Mr Roosevelt became very concerned about what we were
doing about the Fascists and Communists in this country and invited
Mr Hoover to come over and discuss the matter with him Mr Hoover
did and indicated that indeed we could be concerned about the busi
ness of domestic intelligence There was some problem with author
ization but it was resolved that it would not be difficult to seize upon
a little-noticed provision in the FBI's appropriation allowing the FBI
to conduct domestic intelligence when requested to do so by the De
partment of State Our research does not indicate that this was a
budgetary problem but largely one of finding some authorization for
the agency to hang its hat on

We get a second authorization of this in 1939 when we involve the
military again pursuant to an F D R direction in the business of
assisting the FBI on matters of espionage counterespionage and
sabotage
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The next significant development of the process comes in 1962 when
we recognize that the function has not only becomes somewhat bifur
cated but maybe difficult to be controlled centrally The then-Presi
dent Kennedy transfers the oversight authority with respect to this
function to the Attorney General

While some specific programs that we will talk about later have
been discontinued the Intelligence Division remains essentially intact
and the intelligence effort does go on

In a general sense it is important that we have some feeling for the
nature and form of this effort Basically intelligence conducted by the
Bureau breaks down into two forms so-called general intelligence
which is a collection of information regarding groups movements or
categories of individuals which is basically trend and development
kind of reporting the second category is the so-called targeted investi
gation or targeted intelligence which is designed to determine whether
an individual or a group is in fact subversive extremist or other
wise objectionable

Now to get a feeling for what general intelligence has meant to the
Bureau it is useful to note some of the matters that have been looked
into under the mandate to conduct general intelligence In a memo of
November 1970 the FBI noted that it was conducting general intelli
gence investigations of all black student unions and similar campus
groups In 1968 the same kind of standard was applied to any demon
strations by persons opposing intervention in Vietnam A 1972 memo
points to the need to identify and report back to headquarters on the
identities of organizations and speakers together with any leading
activists involved in any protest demonstrations without further de
fining protest demonstrations They seem to conduct the general in
telligence with a fairly even hand

In 1968 the issue of busing was already alive and the FBI deter
mined that there was a need to investigate neighborhood groups known
to sponsor demonstrations against integration orbusing

New Left organizations entered the general investigation spectrum
in 1970 when all individuals belonging to whatever was to be defined
as "New Left were to be investigated as a part of the general intelli
gence effort

Now the problem with the distinction offered here is that when one
tends to look at the effect of this investigative effort it is virtually im
possible to assess the impact of general intelligence We have some data
on the business of targeted investigations The targeted figures though
also are of fairly limited value because they only tell us what has been
targeted by the headquarters of the Bureau We do not know for ex
ample the targets identified in the field We are unable to determine
in terms of any cause-effect analysis anv first amendment impact any
chilling effect that may simply result from knowledge of the target
Keeping this in mind it may be helpful though to look at the process
of targeting investigation as we have been able to find it

We will begin with the investigation of the so-called subversive in
vestigations You will note that on the investigation of subversives
and we will talk a little further about the question of definitions here
largely we are talking about Communists Communist-infiltrated orga
nizations organizations or persons involved in the overthrow or per
ceived overthrow efforts against the Government As we see from ex
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hibit 3,1 we go through a series of ups and downs after the late fifties
a period of relative dormancy through the sixties until we get to the
1971 72 time frame where we see a new emergence of interest

Now the labels here are exceedingly dangerous because as we will
develop later on the labeling of subversive activities was often used
as a basis to investigate organizations which did not at least publicly
advocate a subversive purpose The subversives are largely a fore
runner effort

About 1959 we introduced a new category of dangerous persons to be
investigated the so-called extremists

Exhibit 4 2 is a chart depicting investigations of extremists Until
the termination of some of these significant programs about 1973 and
1974 we see a fairly steady climb in the investigation of extremist
activities We are in and moving relatively rapidly through a period
of the development of the so-called New Left of the emergence of the
so-called Black Nationalists and the Bureau decision to concentrate
on the so-called White Hate groups the Klan and kindred kinds of
organizations

An interesting observation from a look at both the subversive and
the extremists charts though is a coming together in the 1971 72
time frame the highlight of this aggressive investigation technique

Now again in any attempt to say "what did it all add up to or
"was it really worth the effort ?" 1 think even a mild view of the sit
uation would reflect that we are really trying to analyze what
amounted to a kind of vacuum-cleaner approach to the area of inves
tigation We see here a move into the views on politics and personal
life When we add that kind of complicating data to the raw infor
mation of whether an individual belongs to a certain group or espouses
certain views it becomes difficult to make any significant kind of cost
benefit analysis

As we will see later on this matter is further skewed by the Bureau's
own meddling in the areas that it was investigating the so-called
C'OINTELPRO efforts which may have indeed changed the results
of some of the facts found as a result of the investigations

But one attempt that has been made with respect to the issue of as
sessment was attempted by the General Accounting Office earlier this
year after a review of FBI efforts Taking the approach of looking at
the prosecution's or law enforcement initiatives resulting from the
FBI efforts GAO in looking at 675 cases studied identified 16 of them
that had been referred for prosecution less than 3 percent 7 prosecu
tions actually initiated and a total of 4 convictions

If we look at it as a purely intelligence effort the results are not
significantly more impressive In fact one could argue that they are
less impressive In only 12 instances of the cases looked at did the
FBI gain any advance knowledge of planned activities and 51 per
cent of those cases revealed no association with objectionable organiza
tions or no illegal objectionable activities

I guess the bottom line comes very close to raising questions of why
we should do this if we are faced with one a paucity of prosecutions
and two no indication of a preventive effectiveness no indication that
this effort is going to assist the FBI in stopping the commission of il
legal or subversive activities
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With that overview of where we have been and what the result has
been from it I think it might be helpful if we could turn our attention
back to a point that Fritz had mentioned earlier and look at the men
tality the theme the approach of the Bureau with respect to what
it was going to go after and who were going to be its targets

Senator TOWER[presiding] Mr Schwarz
Mr SCHWARZMr Chairman before turning to that let me make

one observation about the exceeding danger of these labels that the
Bureau throws into its programs subversive extremist dangerous
persons violent revolutionary Let me just give two examples

The Southern Christian Leadership Conference is a group of min
isters nonviolent no doubt about that in our history and we all know
that But they were labeled by the Bureau assigned the label of "Black
Hate group, for the purpose of an attack against them designed
to destroy and disrupt them They were characterized as being among
the groups having violent leaders So we have to be extremely care
ful of these labels A language has lost its meaning if groups like the
SCLC become labeled as Black Hate groups or as violence-prone

Second let us remember the danger of the attitude that says the facts
don't matter and my example of Mr X where the New York office of
the Bureau came in and said "there's no evidence that he supports
the Communists, and the Bureau said "well keep going because
there is no clear evidence that he doesn't.

And finally picking up on that point Justice Jackson when he was
Attorney General spoke of the terrific problems in the past and today
that result from using these labels like "subversive and "extremist,
saying "Some of our soundest constitutional doctrines were once
punished as subversive We must not forget that it was not so long
ago that both the term republican and the term democrat were epi
thets with sinister meaning to denote persons of radical tendencies
that were subversive of the order of things then dominant.

I see Senator Tower there laughing and you always have a better
quote when we give one

Senator TOWERThat suspicion may linger in some minds yet
Mr SCHWARZBefore turning to the subject of overbreadth I want

to add a comment about the material made available to us by the
Bureau The Bureau commencing in July when we reached an agree
ment with the Attorney General has been exceedingly cooperative
We had great difficulties before then but after that point once there
was an agreement with the Attorney General they were indeed very
cooperative and we did see the full files absent only the names of
informants

However this staff in the course of the past few weeks has made
an analysis prepared by Mark Gitenstein which indicates very
strongly that after the death of Director Hoover substantial numbers
of relevant highly pertinent and sensitive Bureau documents were
destroyed This came to our attention first in the spring when the
Attorney General revealed that there was something called the Official
and Confidential files of the Director himself

The Attorney General then on his own motion and at our request
had an investigation of another kind of file which had come to our
attention called the personal file and an extensive investigation was
undertaken by the Attorney General and the results [exhibit 51]
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were furnished to us a couple of months ago
Now you all will remember the "black bag job memo with the "Do

Not File procedure In the course of examining that document very
closely it became clear to us that in a very dim handwritten indication
in the upper right hand-corner

Senator TOWER Mr Schwarz would you yield at that point
Mr SCHWARZYes
Senator TOWER On the matter of destruction of documents is it

correct that the responsibility for the destruction has not been pin
pointed on any specific basis

Mr SCHWARZThat is correct We are not going to allege respon
sibility or knowing destruction We are going to describe the facts
as to what we have now discovered and deduce from the indicia on
these documents Yes indeed it could have happened before his death
Senator

In handwritten form there is the notation "PF in the upper right
hand corner of the "black bag job memorandum and we determined
that PF meant personal file But this document [exhibit 61] was found
in the O & C file Then pursuing the investigation we determined
that what had happened is that before his death Mr Hoover had the
opportunity to go through at least letters A through C on the so-called
personal files and transfer certain official documents into the so-called
Official and Confidential files but that that effort was not continued
for the files after letter D and all of the personal files the so-called
personal files were destroyed after Mr Hoover's death and therefore
what was lost to the ability to assess what happened in the past we
cannot know We can only guess that there may well have been docu
ments like the "black bag job "Do Not File documents which hap
pened to be at letter B in letters D through Z that are now lost to
scrutiny We do not know that but that is a surmise

The CHAIRMAN[presiding] Now the Department undertook its
own mvestaption as to why the personal files of Mr Hoover were
destroyed did it not

Mr SCHWARZYes it did Senator
The CHAIRMAN And have you testified while I was voting that

the investigation of the Department a copy of which was furnished
to this committee turns out to be incomplete

Mr SCHWARZWell I wouldn't want to
The CHAIRMANI want to ask you about that because I wanted it to

be fairly stated
Mr SCHWARZWe have been able Senator to go further than they

have because of the hint that was given by that PF initial up in the
upper right-hand corner of the "black bag job document We have
no reason to think that they intentionally failed to find that They just
did not

The CHAIRMANIn other words you are not charging the FBI with
having furnished the Attorney General with an incomplete report out
of any intention to deceive him

Mr SCHWARZNo sir
The CHAIRMANAnd the only reason it turned out to be incomplete

was because of later information that was turned up by the commit
tee staff
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Mr SCHWARZTurned up by our staff people who then analyzed
the matter further

The CHAIRMANIt was turned up initially by our staff then it was
analyzed further by the Bureau and now it has been turned over to
the Attorney General

Mr SCHWARZWell I assume it has been turned over to the Attor
ney General I do not think I have said anything he does not know
Senator Yes I am correct

The CHAIRMANVery well thank you
Mr SCHWARZNow getting back to this problem of the extraordi

nary breadth of the investigative activity I read a portion to you of
the Ydocument concerning Mr X where despite the finding and the

suggestion from New York that he was not a Communist the instruc
tion was "continue continue until you have been proven negative.
That document went forward to set forth the standard in that case but
it appears to be the generally applicable standard within the Bureau
as to the kind of coverage that is necessary on any matter in which
they are interested And reading into the record what was said "The
Bureau cannot adjudge as adequate any coverage which does not

positively provide to the Bureau 100 percent of the intelligence relat
ing to the Communist influence in racial matters.

Now in fact the Bureau not only sought 100 percent of the evidence
with respect to that matter but simply 100 percent of the information
that could be obtained with respect to racial matters generally Every
demonstration every protest was to be reported to the Bureau

In the area of what they characterize as the New Left an example of
the overbreadth of the requirements for information laid on the field
can be found in the document that is exhibit 17 1 and in this document
the Director of the FBI issued an instruction to all special agents of
the Bureau as to the kind of information that he wanted them to
collect and report on

Now the number of items in the report are in letters from A through
R and numbers under each one of those entries I will just refer to
a couple of the specific examples of what the FBI agents are required
to report in from the field

In the area of finances it sought the so-called angels for the group
In the area of publications describe all the publications In the area
of religion the policy of the organization relating to its approach to
religion and any vehement statements made against religious bodies
by leaders conversely any statements of support for the movement by
religious groups or individuals In the area of political activities any
and all political activities in which so-called New Left leaders are
involved and details relating to their position taken on political mat
ters including efforts to influence public opinion the electorate and
government bodies In the area of education all information concern
ing courses given together with any educational outline and together
with what is the assigned or suggested reading In the area of so-called
social reform all information on activities in connection with demon
trations aimed at social reform whatever that may be In the area of
labor all information including all activity in the labor field With
respect to the public appearance of leaders the identity of any leader

1Seep 393



1Seep 360

15

who makes a public appearance on radio and television and who
appears before groups for example labor church and minority
groups And in connection with such appearances the identity of the
group sponsoring the speaker and a succinct summary of the subject
matter discussed In the area of mass media influence of the New Left
on mass media and any indication of support of the New Left by the
mass media a wholly comprehensive listing of everything those peo
ple thought or did on any subject you can imagine their having a
concern with

As the next example of how the FBI seeks out information scarcely
relevant to subjects that we had thought the Bureau was concerned
with as in the area of Women's Liberation there is report after report
about meetings of women who got together to talk about their prob
lems Now how the Bureau got this information is not entirely clear
but it is apparently by informants So we have informants running
all over the country checking up about what housewives are talking
about in their efforts to decide whether women should have a different
role in this society reports on particular women who said why they
had come to the meeting and how they felt oppressed sexually or other
wise reports on such important matters as the release of white mice
by women at a protest demonstration reports on such other important
matters as the interest of the Women's Liberation movement in zap
ping the Miss America Pageant in Atlantic City by protesting the
standards and whatever else they protested in Atlantic City

And my favorite example concerning the Baltimore Women's Lib
eration movement is a document exhibit 7 which was sent not only
to the FBI but to three military agencies for some reason a document
in which there is a long discussion of the origins aims and purposes
of the group its location its pamphlets and in concluding on the pur
poses of the group it comes up with such important findings as that
women that wanted a purpose and that was to free them from the
humdrum existence of being only a wife and mother They wanted
equal opportunities that men have in the working society and so forth
nothing to do with violence nothing to do with these labels of subver
sion and extremism And what is the conclusion on the document
"We will continue to follow and report the activities of the Women's
Liberation movement.

The CHAIRMANHow did they find any time to investigate crime
Mr SCHWARZI don't know Senator I don't know There is a lot

of effort going into this stuff There is a lot of effort going into it
There is paper after paper We see tracks of informants and what does
it ,all do What is it worth

I have talked already about those labels "subversive and "ex
tremist and how loose they are and how they are applied They say
"violence for nonviolent groups Under subversive and extremist
subjects they are instructed again to look at all of the ideas all of
the associations women's matters and groups farmers matters and
groups youth matters and groups the "Negro question, legislative
activities third party movements I am reading from the instructions
to the Bureau in the manual in 1960 "Candidates for public office
veterans matters religion and religious bodies bookstores education
mass organizations industry including labor unions, again the most
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wide catalog that could be imagined of the affairs of American citi
zens I have nothing further on the subject of the breadth of these
activities these investigations I have made the point previously that
they go on and on and on 7 years for King 15 years for a religious
group which they couldn't prove was subversive or not but the instruc
tion was to keep trying

Mr Smothers has the subject now of the gathering techniques the
ways in which the FBI collects information

Mr SMOTHERSIn looking at the question of how they gather in
formation we begin to focus on perhaps the most serious problem
before this committee and the most serious issues faced by the staff
and that is the question of control and indeed what should be
controlled

The easier questions although they have been the subject of some
of the more extensive invasions center around control of the machines
the wiretaps the bugs We have had an example of Attorney General
approval of wiretapping We have indeed court procedures for the
approval of such efforts The situations with the bugs has become a
more refined problem and one that has gone with much less regula
tion indeed for a very long time with the belief that the Bureau
could do it when appropriate particularly in cases that would be
labeled counterespionage efforts

We do not have a lot of data on the machines We know that with
regard to the electronic surveillance conducted without a warrant
the number probably never exceeded 100 in any given year and that
this kind of invasion was for all practical purposes stopped in 1972

While we were focusing though on the machines in much of the
legal discussion the investigative effort the intelligence effort of the
Bureau was gradually stepping up the use of the so-called human
resources Of course the primary example of human resources is the
so-called informant

We are going to talk a little bit about the kinds of informants later
but we should be particularly aware of the fact that unlike the activi
ties conducted with machines no warrant was required to use an in
formant as the basis for invasion into an individual's privacy

If you would look to the chart which is exhibit 8,1 we see a survey
conducted by the GAO to try to trace for us the sources of the infor
mation gathered by the Bureau Up in the No 1 position we have the
use of informants the warrantless invasion in one person's affairs by
another ranking 83 percent police confidential sources account for
74 percent of techniques employed by the Bureau to gather intelligence
We get a little bit away now from law enforcement and we get into
things like motor vehicle departments of the various States the
utilities companies They are great for locating people for determin
ing matters such as the expenditures of individuals or organizations
Educational records and State employment agencies also help to locate
individuals

Fifty percent of the time this kind of source was utilized according
to GAO I must say "according to, as we are now under oath and rely
ing upon somebody else's research with respect to these areas In
fact when we get to electronic surveillance here we find that it ac
counts for only 5 percent and that other kinds of human efforts like
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surreptitious entry and mail openings which we discussed earlier
account for a mere 1 percent of what is gained in the way of informa
tion And this chart tells a part of the story and gives us some idea of
where the Bureau might reach for information

What it leaves out and what I think we must spend just a moment
on here is how we define some of these categories Let us take our
informants for example In examining the FBI's approach to the
question of informants we found that we were looking at a fairly
structured program in terms of gaining information from individuals
who may have had contact with subjects Perhaps one of the largest
programs was the so-called ghetto informant program The FBI
pointed out that it was necessary in situations of potential violence
to gain information from laborers clerks housewives businessmen
anybody

In August 1968 we had 3,248 racial ghetto-type informants as they
were called in this country The number goes to 4,500 in March of
1970 By October we were at 6,000 It reached its peak in 1972 with
7,500 ghetto informants spread across the country the FBI sort of
encouraging and even some indication of enforcing a kind of quota
program with respect to the development of ghetto informants

This rather terse definition here as to why the ghetto informant
was necessary and what he was supposed to do is merely a reflection
of the fact that we could use persons outside of the groups in question
to provide the kind of general intelligence information that was
necessary for the FBI to gather

In addition to the ghetto informants we found that there was a sep
arate and rather structured informant program aimed directly at
extremists This was kind of a successor effort after we abandoned the
ghetto informants in 1973 and the target now is to get information on
extremists

By an FBI memorandum of March 1973 we find the development
of a new category actually three new categories of informants 
and here the rigidity of bureaucracy helps us explain to the field the
purpose of our efforts The first category is the potential extremist in
formant a person who might be in a position to know something
They weren't terribly sure about him He was to be taken on a 1-year
trial After 6 months the potential extremist informant would be
evaluated If he was not producing anything they would consider
whether or not to get rid of him If he did not get elevated to the level
of extremist informant within a period of 1 year then he was to be
eliminated

Extremist informants have obtained a new status a special kind of
qualification under the Bureau's guidance It took at least 6 months
to move from potential extremist informant to full blown extremist
informant Then to be sure they had covered the neighborhood the
confidential sources extremist informant was developed and he is
defined by the Bureau as "an individual who is willing to cooperate
with the Bureau by furnishing extremist information brought to his
attention by virtue of his position in the community his employment
or in view of his background in extremist activities.

I guess the shorthand for that would be the turncoats We discovered
still another source of human information or human source informa
tion with the Bureau's development of what we have loosely labeled
"notionals and what I call fake or quasi-fake organizations



18

One such effort is noted in a letter from an internal FBI memoran
dum calling the Director's attention in 1967 to the fact that the
Bureau had set up an entire klave.rn of the Klan composed of Bureau
informants and that they paid the expenses of setting up the orga
nization And apparently at its height this group of informants was
designed to attract membership from one of the main Klan groups

Now in paying the expenses of the new person if you will the
purpose was to develop here a separate source of information The idea
with respect to the Klan (lid not involve an entire group of Klansmen
This was a core group developed and based on informants and ex
panded later to 250 members The entire group development was done
with respect to the W.E.B Dubois clubs which had in its rolls an
entire group of Bureau informants and fictitious individuals The pur
pose of this chapter was to really frustrate the efforts of the American
Communist Party by causing the Party the additional expense of
sending organizers into an area and funding the organization's effort
mediums and literature.

Another effort that has become a product of the human sources and
which was used as a kind of spur to spark the surfacing of additional
information was the use of fake correspondence or fake newsletter-kind
of information which by virtue of the articles presented therein would
cause other persons to come forth and either challenge or supplement
material

Now we have talked a bit about the use of State agencies and other
police agencies that would provide the FBI with information

I think we have talked previously to the fact that the FBI also relied
upon the efforts and assistance of the Internal Revenue Service from
time to time as a source of information gathering

We will talk a little more on this later on when we come to the
COINTELPRO but we must be aware of the fact that this informa
tion gathering was closely allied to the use of this very same infor
mation as a basis for spurring agencies to create problems for the
individual or to conduct investigations or in the case of IRS to
conduct audits or other efforts that would detract from the person's
organizational activity or protest efforts

In addition to IRS our investigation reveals that other sources were
indeed the Postal Service the Passport Agency Immigration and
Naturalization the CIA of course and to some limited extent the
Customs officials

After the Bureau gathered this tremendous reservoir of information
utilizing the various techniques one of the things we found important
to track was what happened to the information We know that on
these 15 million data cards and the tremendous files we have up there
there is information as to what the Bureau is doing who gets the
intelligence data and under what circumstances

Fritz will start with a review of the official dissemination of that
information

Mr SCHWARZI want to add one further example of another kind
of problem

In 1965 and running for at least 3 years the Bureau created a fictional
organization called the Committee for Expansion of Socialist Thought
in America which was set up to publish a newspaper purporting to
be from genuine persons and which newspaper was designed to attack
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the Communist Party U.S.A from the so-called Marxist right This
was a wholly fictional organization which was presented to the Ameri
can public as if it were a real publication by real people instead of
being a pseudopublication by members of the FBI

Mr SMOTHERSFritz we might add too to that information on
sources that during much of the period we looked at the FBI's access
to banking records which appeared to be fairly extensive particularly
when the investigation was initiated by the indication that it had to
do with the investigation of subversives as opposed to extremists

Mr SCHWARZNow the gamut of official distribution runs as we
said earlier from the local police to the President of the United States

I call your attention to a memorandum which is exhibit 9,1 which
deals with the so-called FBI intelligence letter for the President a
program that commenced in 1969 The document sets out the kind of
information which the Bureau instructed its agents to collect and send
in to headquarters for transmission by the Bureau to the President
of the United States It was initially sent only to the President and
the Attorney General At some point the name of the Vice President
was added to the list of persons who received this special letter known
as the "Inlet letter The kind of information which is called for is
set forth I call your attention to item 6 in which the agents were
instructed to collect and the Bureau intended to disseminate to the
President "items with an unusual twist or concerning prominent per
sonalities which may be of special interest to the President or the
Attorney General.

The Inlet program was stopped as a particular program in Decem
ber of 1972 The document which suspended the particular program
however instructed the field to continue to collect the information
and noted that changes in communications capability including the
ability to afford immediate teletype disseminations of such data to
the White House made the special letter on that necessary

In connection with other examples of official dissemination we have
called to your attention previously a case prior to the Democratic
Convention in 1968 in which the FBI obtained information which
they believe to be used to neutralize a professor who sought to go to
the Democratic Convention and the FBI field office proposed and
the Director approved that that information be sent to the IRS for
the express purpose of seeking to induce an investigation of this
professor's tax matters for the express purpose of making it harder
for him to go to the Democratic 1968 convention

Curt Smothers is going to deal now with the general subject of
unofficial dissemination

Mr SMOTHERSA use or a dissemination of information which has
often been referred to as an illegal use of the Bureau at the 1964
Democratic Convention showed how information which may have
indeed been relevant to law enforcement or had a basis in law enforce
ment was used as a start and then simply expanded There was an indi
cation in the 1964 Democratic Convention that violence may erupt and
the Bureau was called upon to supply information regarding the
potential for violence I am assuming both on a Federal level and to
assist local law enforcement officials
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In addition to that after infiltration of various groups the chal
lenged plan to the Mississippi convention the plans of those who
challenged the official delegation were developed by the FBI and
submitted to the White House through the White House staff The
plans of Dr King the plans of CORE the plans of SNCC with re
spect to activities at the convention were also communicated both as
they related to efforts to disrupt as well as general political strategy at
the convention

This was accomplished really through a complete infiltration of
these groups and when it became apparent as in the case of the Mis
sissippi challenge that it might be politically expedient to have some
information to discredit the group the FBI provided that also by
providing some bookkeeping data on the organization and its funding
sources

We see this same kind of unofficial dissemination occur after the
critics of the Warren Commission began to surface and the White
House was a bit concerned about these persons who were criticizing the
Warren Commission The FBI is directed here to gather information
on those persons information which extended to their personal lives
indeed down to their sex activities

The name-check process was often used as a basis of getting a clearer
fix on people who had begun to criticize the administration

In several cases we have identified news correspondents of major
networks who apparently at one point or another earned the White
House's ire and were the subject of name checks The names of a num
ber of reporters from major newspapers pop up immediately after
revelations or accusations about misconduct or activities of the White
House

We even got to the point where the name-check process was used as
a basis to gather the views or information on private citizens that
objected to Vietnam policy and this information was subsequently
distributed to persons who may be in a position to point up adverse
information in the individual's background

This took the form for example of going to political figures and
saying to those figures "If you have an occasion to comment on so and
so you might want to have this information.

We will talk a little more about that when we come to COINTEL
PRO activities The use though in the political arena virtually cov
ered the spectrum In one case we adduced information regarding
the FBI's reporting efforts to influence the Speaker of the House re
garding a prominent civil rights figure using information that had
been gained through various investigative techniques and accomplish
ing this unofficial over-lunch kind of dissemination

Another kind of dissemination that was particularly troublesome
was the dissemination of information gained to the enemies of individ
uals or organizations Again when we come to COINTELPRO we
will see examples of this use and how it was used as a means of pro
moting factionalization and in some cases even promoting violence

Some of the information communicated was true Other information
was purely false One of the favorite tactics was to communicate or
disseminate information that so-and-so was a Bureau informant im
mediately calling his existence or role in an organization into suspicion
and creating internal dissension in the organization The dissemi
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nation of information was also used as a basis to attack family situa
tions to which Mr Schwarz alluded earlier

When we talk about dissemination we come very close to the so
called COINTELPRO or the COINTEL Program because it is the
active use of the product of investigative technique together with false
information and other investigative tactics The use of this in a manner
which goes beyond collection beyond law enforcement and into an
active attempt by the FBI to right perceived wrongs begins to create
a program that has been of particular concern to many in this area

Fritz do you want to cover the aims of the COINTEL Program
Mr SCHWARZI thought of two things Curt before doing that that I

would like to put on the record. This all-pervasive desire for informa
tion concerning political matters Mr Smothers mentioned the 1964
Democratic Convention and the information that was gathered there
The same thing was done at the Republican Convention in 1964 and
again Dr King was one of the targets of the Bureau and the Bureau
put both the tap and the bug on Dr King's phone when he was out at
the Republican Convention having stated prior to that that

it would be desirable to reflect as much technical coverage that could be safely
done to cover King's activities on the west Coast He undoubtedly will attempt
to inject himself into the conventionproceedings

And then they instruct people not only to find out information
about the convention but about the current Mississippi situation the
current St Augustine Fla situation where there were demonstrations
going on at that time and in general they said to get all of the infor
mation you can on the man because he is out in Los Angeles on a
political convention They did it they put on a tap and they put on
a bug

Second a footnote on the 1964 Democratic Convention a technique
which was used there was the furnishing to the FBI of false press
credentials by one of the major networks which the FBI then used
in order to insert an agent as a bogus newsman into legitimate dis
cussions of political persons and protest groups and acquire informa
tion concerning their plans pretending to be a reporter and in fact
acquiring it for the purposes of the Bureau and transmission to
higher authority

Now turning to COINTELPRO CONTELPRO is an abbreviation
of the words "counterintelligence program. COINTELPRO is the
name for the effort by the Bureau to destroy people and to destroy
organizations or as they used the words "disrupt and neutralize.

May I call your attention to exhibits 10 2 and 11.3 Remember the
slipperiness of these labels which we have talked about before But
the five labels were the Communist Party IT.S.A. the Socialist `York
ers Party White Hate groups including the Klan persons labeled as
Black Nationalists and Black Hate groups and the so-called New
Left

The rhetoric of the Bureau as these programs advanced from the
initial program relating to the Communist Party U.S.A to the ulti
mate programs of Black Nationalist and New Left became tougher

i The SelectCommitteedecidednot to publishdocumentsconcerningthe FBI and Dr
MartinLutherKingwiththesehearingsout of considerationfor the privacyof Dr Kin's
familyPertinentmaterialswillbeincludedin the SelectCommittee'sreportto the Senate9Seep 3703Seep 371
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and tougher and what began as efforts to disrupt the word used for
the Communist Party and in the case of the Klan some indication that
they genuinely were looking after violence and not simply to destroy
the groups became in the case of Black Nationalists and New Left as
we will illustrate copiously the most extreme rhetoric of a plan to
destroy political protest groups that you could imagine

For example from the Black Nationalist-initiated document in
1967 agents of the FBI were instructed to "expose disrupt misdirect
discredit or otherwise neutralize. Then when they got along to the
New Left they added "misinform, and we are going to come to a
series of actual instances where efforts were made to misinform and
thereby prevent protest activities from taking place

The CHAIRMANDoes that category "New Left mainly refer to the
protest groups that opposed the war

Mr SCHWARZOne of the Bureau witnesses was asked what the
term "New Left meant It has never been defined It was defined in
practice as being largely students and people opposing the war You
will notice in the New Left chart on the kind of activity undertaken
that there is by far the largest amount there percentagewise of No 1
type activity

No 1-type activity is the effort to prevent people from teaching
and meeting and speaking and a large number of the New Left
targets were professors and instructors at universities

What we are going to try to do now is to just briefly touch on each
of the programs and then concentrate on certain of the techniques

Mr SCHWARZYes The only point about exhibit 11 1is that its tech
niques kind of vary The black nationalists get hit in the family and
sectionalization where the New Left gets hit more in the campuses
as far as meetings go But this shows the aggregate of the
COINTELPRO activities

Now we are going to briefly as I say go through what the programs
were and then we are going to come back to particular techniques

Mr SMOTHERSThe first effort or the forerunner for the so-called
COINTELPRO effort began with the decision to initiate an effort
against the Communist Party U.S.A The decision grew largely out
of frustrations with the lack of success in attempts to enforce the
Smith Act and the FBI's determination that law enforcement in a
traditional sense was simply not enough to neutralize or discredit the
Communist Party

So in 1956 the Bureau directs a counterintelligence program against
the Communist Party U.S.A. designed to

capitalize on incidents involvingthe party and its leaders in order to foster fac
tionalization bring the CommunistParty and its leaders into disrepute before
the American public and cause confusion and dissatisfaction among rank and
filemembers

[Exhibit 12.2]
Now they indicate that prior to this time their action had really

constituted more harrassment than disruption but that it was time to
move on a positive initiative on the broader scale "a program that not
only will harass from the outside but will work from within 'by feed
ing and fostering from within the internal fight currently raging.
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There we can see an active effort not only to infiltrate or misinform
but the idea coming to fruition that the way to deal with the Corn
munist Party is to aggressively get about the business of its down
fall get about the business of its downfall outside the court structure
outside the various administrative actions proceeding against the
party and its members

Mr SCHWARZTurning to the Socialist Workers Party it is a rela
tively small program in scale and milder in its rhetoric What I found
interesting in the initiating document of October 1961 is what the
Bureau thought was important to tell its agents this party which now
they were instructing their agents to disrupt had been doing This is
exhibit 13 1 and it is a very simple quotation The Bureau told its
agents here's the problem "The Socialist Workers Party (SWP) has
over the past several years been openly espousing its line on 'a local and
national basis through running candidates for public office and
strongly directing and/or supporting such causes as Castro's Cuba
and integration problems arising in the South.

After that introduction it said in effect "Let us go get them.
And a program was started against the Socialist Workers Party It is
smaller in scale only some 57 instances but the key thing appears to be
that here was the first situation where an organization which beyond
any doubt is a domestic organization was to be targeted because of the
nature of its public positions and the way in which it ran candidates
for officeand the positions which it was supporting

The next target is the so-called White Hate group [Exhibit 14.2]
Mr SMOTHERSThe White Hate and the Klan It is never really

clear but they are apparently used interchangeably here The focus
does not really change an awful lot in terms of how we view it except
that the memorandums now start relying upon the experience gained
by the Bureau in prior COINTELPRO actions and the memoran
dums begin to speak of calling upon one's experience in the initiatives
against the Communist Party calling upon one's experience in the
initiatives against Socialist Workers as the basis for the how to do
this

This is expanded a bit more when we get requests for specific recom
mendations from the field as to what would be a good disruptive pro
gram what would be a good COINTELPRO effort and some of the
'things recommended show the enthusiasm that the Director had urged
with respect to how we are going to attack this effort ideas like anony
mous correspondence either from existing or nonexisting klaverns or
leaders one accusing the other of improper conduct ideas about get
ting involved in disputes regarding tactics between the two groups
and indeed ideas about how we might infiltrate a particular Klan
change or direct its policy in such a manner that it would become
embarrassing and promote factionalism

Mr SCHWARZTurning to that Mr Sullivan who was the Assistant
Director for the FBI in charge of intelligence for much of this period
was questioned on a weekend about 2 weeks ago about the COIN
TELPRO and about what they really stood for and what the Bureau
had done Here is the man who had been behind much of this activit-y
and how he now views it looking back upon the activity speaking
about techniques designed to destroy a person's family life
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He said "This is a common practice rough tough dirty business
Whether or not we should be in it or not that is for you folks to decide
We are in it To repeat it is a rough tough dirty business and dan
gerous It was dangerous at times  that is dangerous to the persons
who are being affected not to the Bureau persons when you are try
ing to disrupt someone's family life "It was dangerous at times no
holds were barred We have used that technique against foreign espio
nage agents and they have used it against us.

"Question The same methods were brought home
And then he answered "Yes brought home against any organiza

tion against which we were targeting We did not differentiate This is
a rough tough business.

And then the Senator who was presiding on that occasion said this
"Would it be safe to say that the techniques we learned in fighting
Bundists and Silver Shirters true espionage in World War II came
to be used the techniques came to be used against some of our own
American citizens

And Mr Sullivan answered "That would be a correct deduction.
So the war was brought home and the techniques of destruction that
had become involved in the fight against Communist intelligence serv
ices or Nazi intelligence services overseas were by the admission of the
man who was in charge of these programs brought home and used
against the American citizens and there is no better example of that
than the language and the activity used against the so-called Black
Nationalist Hate groups which I remind you again included such non
violent and gentle movements as the Southern Christian Leadership
Conference and the New Left

The program against the so-called Black Nationalist Hate group
was started in August of 1967 [exhibit 15].1 And now there was not as
with the Klan merely an effort to go after the group that were most
violent or the persons who had the greatest propensity for violence
but the instruction was to go after the leadership the spokesmen the
membership and the supporters of these groups The instruction
again now concentrating hard on the vulnerability of individuals as
far as their personal lives are concerned the instruction was that the
agents were to collect personal information concerning so-called Black
Nationalist Hate groups and then use it against them

In a document dated February 1968 [exhibit 161,2 where the Black
Nationalist program was expanded instead of it being directed against
some it was expanded to greater groups and more groups and more
FBI offices and again let me concentrate on the attitude expressed in
this document. I have already pointed out that they label groups like
the SCLC as violence prone and in the objectives what the Bu
reau trying to do as it attacked these black groups here is what they
were instructed to do "Prevent the rise of the `messiah who could
unify and electrify the militant black nationalist group.

Here is what they said about Martin Luther King in that connec
tion "Martin Luther King * * *

aspires to this position * * *

King could be a very real pretender for this position should he
abandon his supposed `obedience to `white liberal doctrines (non
violence) and embrace black nationalism. So the theory as expressed
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in this document [see footnote page 21] was that a man recognized
in the document as being someone who supported nonviolence ought
to be destroyed because someday he might abandon nonviolence and
become thereby what they regarded as a greater threat as a messiah

In this same document the Bureau praises activities which have
already taken place under COINTELPRO giving as an example of
an apparently highly desirable activity the fact that the Washington
field office had furnished information about a Nation of Islam as the
Black Muslim movement grade school to appropriate authorities in
the District of Columbia who were induced to investigate the school
to determine if it conformed to the District regulations for private
schools And again praising that effort it was noted that in the proc
ess the Washington field officeobtained background information on the
parents of every single pupil in that school What possible bearing
does that activity have upon the activities which the FBI seeks legiti
mately to do Is that within the legitimate sphere

They said that our job in the Bureau is to prevent the long-range
growth of these movements especially among youth so they should
be targeted they should be destroyed so they no longer appeal to
young people in this country

Now we are going to cover similar attitudes as displayed in the
New Left initiating documents and then turn to certain of the
techniques

Mr SMOTHERSPerhaps the most dangerous aspect of the New Left
initiative involved the failure really to define what New Left was and
the kind of no-holds-barred approach in terms of techniques that the
Bureau authorized

In 1968 we see the initiating document and it is interesting to note
some of the reasons why the New Left is identified as a problem
Quoting from the document exhibit 17,1 dated May 1968 "Some of
these activitists urge revolution in America and call for defeat of the
t'nited States in Vietnam They continually and falsely allege police
brutality and do not hesitate to utilize unlawful acts to further their
so-called causes The New Left has on many occasions viciously and
scurrilously attacked the Director and the Bureau in an attempt to
hamper our investigation of it and to drive us off the college cam
puses. "Trying to drive us off college campuses, refers to the Bureau

With this initiation came some subsequent requests for ideas and
the development of guidance kind of memoranda One such appears
in your books as exhibit 18 2and we see in the catalog of things which
are permitted or should be attempted against the New Left perhaps
the most open or wholesale authorization for attacks under the
COINTELPRO label The field is advised that they should do such
things as prepare leaflets designed to dispel the impression that Stu
dents for a Democratic Society and other groups speak for a majority
of the students and the leaflet campaign is to try to include "the most
obnoxious pictures one can find with respect to the activities of the
membership of these groups

The use of pictures was also to be a ploy in the anonymous sending
of letters or other information to the parents and employers of New
Left people again to try to depict them in the most obnoxious light
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That was the direction Whenever you can bolster your assertion
with a picture

Another technique adopted was to try to create the impression that
any of the New Left leaders were in fact informants and wherever
one could the field was directed to implant that impression The di
rection included taking advantage of any personal conflicts known
to exist among New Left personalities They were told to plant news
paper articles They identified specific hostilities such as the one be
tween the SDS and the Socialist Workers Party and they were told to
promote that hostility and of course were told that whenever and
this is the first time this one appears whenever the Bureau received
information of a disruptive or immoral activity the first action to be
taken was to notify the media not the law enforcement officials but the
media and hope that they could promote some coverage and indeed
if pictures came out of this effort to get some of those to use for
further dissemination

It is perhaps the most broad-ranging attack and really reflects
a kind of cataloging of the various techniques that had been gained
and the view in the Bureau at least that a certain level of expertise in
the business of discrediting disrupting and neutralizing was being
achieved

In talking about many of the techniques we have alluded to many
of them as we have gone we have talked about the business of mis
information One of the other techniques utilized was to destroy the
job or family life and family life was a particularly opportune tar
get in the Bureau's view and played on some fairly tender sensitivities

Without mention of the name reflected therein if you look at ex
hibit 19 ~

you will see the Bureau's report on a COINTELPRO effort
against a white female who was involved as an officer in what was
resolved as a local black activist group The way to discredit or neu
tralize this leader was to take attention away from activities of the
group by creating another kind of distraction The distraction read as
follows "Dear Mr [deleted] Look man I guess your old lady doesn't
get enough at home or she wouldn't be shucking and jiving with our
black man in ACTION you dig Like all she wants to integrate is the
bedroom and us black sisters ain't gonna take no second best from
our men So lay it on her man or get her the hell out of [deleted]. It
is signed "a Soul Sister.

A particularly effective technique as reflected by the memorandum
It did succeed in distracting her

Mr SCHWARZThe same techniques were used against members of
the Klan You will see in your books [exhibit 20] 2 the instructions
from the headquarters of the Bureau about how to prepare letters
with spelling mistakes and so forth so that they would look credible

On the New Left I mentioned in my opening statement what was
done by the Bureau immediately following the Democratic Convention
in Chicago in 1968 and you will all remember that there were great in
cidents between the local police and demonstrators and charges made
of excessive action by the police

Seepp 39Sthrough4022Seepp 403through405
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Now what did the Bureau do after those charges were made We
have been given documents which have the curious heading COIN
TELPRO New Left dealing with the subject of how to investigate
the charges of police brutality in the Chicago 1968 Democratic Con
vention and here is the instruction by telegram from the Director to
all agents in all major Bureau cities

"In view of recent accusations against Chicago authorities relating
to their handling of demonstrations at the Democratic National Con
vention the Bureau desires to collect all possible information regard
ing provocations of the police by the demonstrators.

And then it goes on to indicate that what the Bureau desired its
agents to collect in that telegram and in the preceding memo of Au
gust 20 1968 was the following "The Bureau should be alert to this
situation and be in a position to refute the allegations Along these
same lines you should also consider measures by which so-called co
operative news media may be used to counteract these allegations.

Now turning to the technique of misinformation or disinformation
which at paragraph 12 of the instructions on the New Left from which
Mr Smothers was reading Bureau agents were told to attack the New
Left by disinformation and misinformation and I will give you six
quick examples of what was done pursuant to that program

There was a body called the National Mobilization Committee To
End the War in Vietnam At the time of the Democratic National
Convention in 1968 that body attempted to obtain housing in Chicago
for demonstrators who had come to the convention The FBI local
office in Chicago obtained 217 of those forms and filled them out with
fictitious names and addresses of persons who purported falsely to
have houses in which the demonstrators could stay The tactic had its
designed effect because according to FBI documents the persons who
went out to look for these houses made "long and useless journeys to
locate the addresses and the efforts to find housing were canceled.

What effect that had upon the attitude of the persons who were there
in Chicago and what contribution that made to what happened there
after I suppose we will never know

Precisely the same tactic and program was carried out by the Bureau
with respect to the 1969 Presidential Inauguration where they again
filled out false housing forms to confuse and disrupt efforts by per
sons coming to Washington to find places to stay

During those 1969 inauguration ceremonies the Washington field
offices of the FBI discovered persons who were attempting to coordi
nate and control the demonstrations or marshals And this commit
tee has examined in executive session Mr Egil Krogh who was respon
sible for coordinating law enforcement at that demonstration and he
has told us that the marshals of the demonstrations were a very useful
and very helpful group of persons in order to keep the demonstration
orderly

Now what did the FBI do They found out what citizen band was
being used for walkie-talkies and they used that citizen band to supply
the marshals with misinformation and pretending to be a unit of the
National Mobilization To End the War in Vietnam recountermandetl
the orders issued by the movement
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In 1967 there was a rally in Washington protesting the Vietnam
war A newspaper in New York City indicated that its contribution to
this rally was to be the symbolic act of dropping flowers on the meet
ing and the newspaper put an ad in the newspaper asking for a pilot
who could help them do that The Federal Bureau of Investigation
answered the ad and it kept up the pretense that it was a genuine pilot
up to the point when the publisher of the newspaper showed up with
200 pounds of flowers and there was no one there to fly the plane

In these two examples I am now going to give the files that have
been produced demonstrate a field suggestion and demonstrate no dis
approval from headquarters when the proposal was made to headquar
ters However the Bureau has been unable to determine whether the
next two activities took place actually as compared to the ones I have
already given you

The New York officeof the FBI proposed that it sabotage a printing
press which was being imported to be used by the Communist Party
of the United States The documents we have indicate that this request
was handled by telephone There is no indication of disapproval The
Bureau however is unable to tell us whether it actually occurred

Similarly with another publishing organization in Detroit called
the Radical Education Project which published pamphlets and
papers the Detroit office of the FBI asked the headquarters lab to
prepare a quart of a solution "capable of duplicating a scent of the
most foul-smelling feces available. The Bureau is unable to tell us
whether that was done but the paper record indicates clearly that
that was not disapproved

Now Mr Smothers I guess is going to deal with violence and
factionalism

Mr SMOTHERSWe talked a little bit about factionalism earlier and
a little bit about the increasing development or honing of various
techniques Perhaps the culmination of the ability to apply certain
kinds of techniques that have been learned in the early efforts against
the Communists and the Socialist Workers took place when the Bureau
looked at the competing efforts of groups they defined as Black Na
tionalists and thought of ways to neutralize or destroy those groups

Exhibit 21 1is a correspondence from 1968 a Bureau document indi
cating just how far the Bureau had departed from its law enforce
ment mission It is shown on the chart at your left

Reading from that document the Bureau pointed out that a serious
struggle was taking place between the Black Panther Party and an
other west coast organization known as US "The struggle has reached
such proportions that it is taking on the aura of gang warfare with
attendant threats of murder and reprisals.

Recognizing these threats of murder and reprisals and the clear
threat of violence the FBI does not talk about law enforcement but
talks about initiating COINTELPRO activities designed "to fully
capitalize upon Black Panther Party and US differences as well as to
exploit all avenues of creating further dissention in the ranks of the
BPP recipient offices are instructed to submit imaginative and hard
hitting counterintelligence measures aimed at crippling the BPP
(Black Panther Party) .
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What we see here is the Bureau deciding that not only is law enforce
ment an adequate tool but indeed that violence now or the promotion
of violence becomes an acceptable technique as a basis for doing away
with objectionable groups and organizations

A chart [exhibit 221 that may help us some if we like bright colors
represents our attempt and the attempt of our staff here to translate
our rather vague directions and (10 a composite picture of
COINTELPRO activity

I think the chart is particularly helpful because what it does is
indicate to us what was happening in terms of frequency from the
period of 1956 up through about 1966

We see very intensive activity against the Communist Party With
the involvement of the Socialist Workers who are viewed by the docu
ments as a minor element we see really a kind of trickling curve that
hovers along the bottom of the graph as shown there in black

As the social issues began to change the Bureau's efforts and inten
sity changed The first is the effort here against the Klan which
reaches its peak in 1966 They are immediately followed by a literal
preoccupation with the activities of the New Left and blacks

In 1968 that activity is at its peak The initiatives against the New
Left began to drop off as we see some change in the war sentiment in
this country However either there was no perceived sentiment or the
FBI did not get the message in terms of Black Nationalists because
the intensity of that effort is shown to continue right through the last
showing of the chart in the 1971 time frame

Now one of the questions that emerges when we examine all of this
activity is certainly the obvious one of who told them they could do it
And with respect to who told them they could do it the answer is
largely one of the Bureau deciding that it was a good idea

However this should not be taken to mean that there was no com
munication and no attempt to advise important officials of at least some
of the Bureau's efforts It is pretty clear from our look at this area
that with respect to efforts against the Communist Party and efforts
against the Klan Mr Hoover sent letters to Attorneys General in
cluding Rogers Kennedy Katzenbach Clark and Mitchell which he
believed constituted a notification of the existence of these efforts
against the Communist Party and the so-called White Hate organiza
tions

There is some indication that the Cabinet was briefed in 1958 regard
ing the Communist Party COINTELPRO efforts and that a House
Appropriations Subcommittee was given information on both the
Communist Party and White Hate COINTELPRO

What we have been unable to find are disclosures relating to the Bu
reau's efforts against the New Left against Black Nationalists

The issue of authorization then seems to be one of the FBI assuming
the authority and the need to take on certain actions and then a sub
sequent communication of what had been done to the Attorney General
and to officials in the White House one can only assume relying upon
the do-not-do-it-again or the failure of a do-not-do-it-again directive
as the basis for continuing the action

Now in discussing whether many of these efforts are continuing to
day I believe Fritz has looked at the terminating documents with
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respect to COINTELPRO and has some observations in that regard
before we turn our attention to what we have found in our estimation
to be probably the best example of COINTELPRO in action the effort
against Martin Luther King

1L SCHWARZFirst let me observe that whatever effort there was
to turn off COINTELPRO occurred only after it had been exposed
exposed by the theft of documents from the Media Pennsylvania office
of the FBI and exposed in the press pursuant to a Freedom of In
formation Act lawsuit

In April of 1971 a notice was sent out that the extant COINTEL
PROs naming five domestic COINTELPROs there since that it
has been discovered that there were more but that apparently head
quarters had forgotten about that those COINTELPRO operations
should be discontinued However the document goes on to indicate
"In exceptional instances where it is considered counterintelligence
action is warranted recommendation should be submitted to the Bu
reau under the individual case caption.

We have determined through testimony moreover that the line
between so-called COINTELPRO operations and intensive investi
gation another term used within the Bureau is one which is exceed
ingly fuzzy and that the same kind of activity which was carried in
some cases under COINTELPRO has been carried in other cases under
the label of intensive investigation

Senator MONDALE[presiding] In fact the evidence we are about
to hear on the Martin Luther King case occurred under a title other
than COINTELPRO did it not.

Mr SCHWARZYes the most vicious kinds of acts that we have
discovered occurred under a label which was not even called counter
intelligence

Now finally the current leadership of the FBI has declined in its
testimony before Congress in situations where the evidence that we
have was not available to Congress Indeed until we got this evi
dence not even the Justice Department in their review of the so
called COINTELPRO saw what actually existed in the documents
But the current leadership of the FBI has taken the position in defense
of COINTELPRO that "for the FBI to have done less under the cir
cumstances would have been an abdication of its responsibilities to the
American people, and has declined to condemn the programs or to
date the kind of activity which we have been discussing

Of course the Bureau witnesses are going to be coming in begin
ning tomorrow and we shall see what their position is in light of the
evidence as to the actual activity which has been put forward to this
committee

Now on King Mr Smothers is going to start with respect to the
aims as they appear from the documents

Mr SMOTHERSIt appears that the Bureau's effort against Dr King
starts with a response to the perceived dissatisfaction or complaints
raised by Dr King against the Bureau There is the early suggestion
that they should look at him because SCLC or the movement had
been infiltrated by Communists [See footnote page 21.]

A total examination of the record though indicates a very limited
kind of almost nonexistent concern of the Communist issue except as
it related to trying to get information on this point regarding people
with whom King spoke
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But in the period from 1956 when King begins his emergence we
begin to see developing if not a dispute certainly no love lost be
tween Dr King and Mr Hoover In fact by January of 1962 Mr
Hoover has already typed Dr King as "no good. Hoover is par
ticularly disturbed after 1963 when it became clear that the concept
of nonviolence was gaining adherence adherence to be made even more
clear by the time the march on Washington came around

This development of a concept of nonviolent confrontation or non
violent protest was seen as a threat to law enforcement and some
thing the Bureau was indeed unhappy about This was aided ap
parently by what the Bureau regarded as Dr King's direct attacks on
Mr Hoover and the Bureau and the public controversy was pretty
much full blown at the time in 1963 when Mr Sullivan who should
be able to give us some assistance on this matter communicates to
Mr Hoover a plan for dealing with Dr Martin Luther King

Quoting from a memorandum the plan here is to completely dis
credit Dr King by "taking him off his pedestal and to reduce him
completely in influence.

in its effort to reduce Dr King's influence to take him off his
pedestal and to change if you will his image before the masses we
begin to get some insight into the thought process of the FBI at this
time The thinking was that this would not be a terribly difficult task
The memo indicated for example that this can be done and will be
done

"Obviously confusion will reign particularly among the Negro
people The Negroes will be left without a national leader of suffi
ciently compelling personality to steer them in the proper direction.

So the FBI decided that if they were going to take King off his
pedestal it was a part of their task to find and bring into prominence
a new national Negro leader

To this end the FBI did research and identify a personality a per
son not a civil rights leader incidentally whom the Bureau believed
would qualify and should be promoted as the new national Negro
leader

In addition to the efforts to discredit King and to knock King off
his pedestal if you will the FBI felt that it had a need to gain as much
information as possible regarding every aspect of the activities of Dr
King and of the Southern Christian Leadership Conference

To this end the FBI set about a path of authorizing some 16 wire
taps against Dr King microphone bugs if you will in addition to
wiretaps which were also planted The bugs were to be used for the
most complete surveillance imaginable That is to get everything we
can on Dr King

I think when we look at or attempt to evaluate the purpose here
what we really see is that not only are the attacks on or the dispute
against King a part of the Bureau's concern at this point but the
whole concept of civil disobedience as the Bureau thought was per
sonified by Dr King is getting to be a problem The FBI sees no alter
native to doing away with the growing adherence to civil disobedience
as a means of redressing grievances no alternative other than begin
ning or embarking upon a rather presumptuous course of replacing
Dr King and establishing a new national Negro leader

Fritz I believe you have some information on some of the things
that they attempted in that regard
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Mr SCHWARZYes the extraordinary thing is to look at the timing
of the effort the Bureau made to discredit and destroy Dr King They
come to crescendos at every single point where Dr King touched the
issues in this country After the march on Washington there was an
acceleration He was defined because of his speech in that demonstra
tion in Washington as the most dangerous and effective leader in the
country and there was a paper battle within the Bureau as to how
best to attack him He was attacked after Time magazine named him
as the Man of the Year Again the Bureau finds that reprehensible
believes it must attack and destroy When he was given the Nobel Prize
again they seek to discredit I)r King with the persons who welcomed
him back from that award When he began to speak out against the
Vietnam War there was a new crescendo of efforts by the Bureau to
discredit and destroy Dr King When the Poor People's Campaign
took place once again they go after Dr King And their activity to go
after Dr King did not even cease when he died because as Congress
began,to consider the question of whether or not Dr King's birthday
should be made a national holiday the Bureau developed plans to call
in friendly Congressmen for off-the-record briefings concerning King
in the hopes that those Congressmen could keep any such bill from
being reported out of committee

The period surrounding the march on Washington and immediately
following is particularly revealing A report is written for the Di
rector by his chief intelligence officer reporting that the Communist
Party in fact for 40 years had been trying to control the Negro move
ment and that it had always failed and that its efforts in connection
with the march on Washington were infinitesimal This was not ac
cepted by the Director of the FBI He found that thinking wrong un
acceptable and said that it must be changed And it was changed and
then we find paper coming in in which the lower level people in the
FBI apologized for having misunderstood matters and on they go with
this effort to discredit and start the bugs on Dr King

The efforts to discredit him range from political people to founda
tions to universities A particular university was selected as a target
because it was thought unseemly that since it had once granted an
honorary degree to the Director of the FBI for it to grant one to
Dr Martin Luther King The FBI sought to prevent the Pope from
meeting with Dr King It intervened with a Cardinal

The CHAIRMANTo prevent the Pope from meeting with Dr KingMr SCHWARZYes the Pope And when the Pope despite that
effort did meet with Dr King the FBI documents record the adverb
"astounding.

The CHAIRMANIt must have been Pope John was it
Mr SCHWARZIt was in 19M Someone has got to help me on that

Who was the Pope Pope Paul
But in any event that effort did not work The paranoia the belief

that American citizens could not deal themselves with Dr King is
indicated by this story At one point Governor Rockefeller was plan
ning a trip to Latin America and the Bureau felt that it had to ap
proach Governor Rockefeller so he could be he was planning to see
Dr King before going so that he could be warned of what a great
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danger Dr King was This effort went on and on and on Each time
he was doing something important there was an effort to discredit him
Each person he met who the Bureau felt could give further credit
further recognition to Dr King an effort was made to stop that from
happening The Bureau went so far as to mail an anonymous letter to
I)r King and his wife shortly before he was awarded the Nobel Peace
Prize and it finishes with this suggestion [See footnote page 21.]
"King there is only one thing left for you to do You know what it
is You have just 34 days in which to do it This exact number has been
selected for a specific reason It has definite practical significance. It
was 34 days before the award "You are done.

Senator MONDALEThat was taken by I)r King to mean a suggestion
for suicide was it not

Mr SCHWRZ That is our understanding Senator
The CHAIRMANWho wrote the letter
Mr SCHwARZ That is a matter of dispute It was found in the files

of Mr Sullivan who was the Assistant Director of the FBI and was
heavily involved in these programs He claims that it is a plant in his
files and that someone else in the Bureau in fact wrote the document
The document which was found is a draft of the letter the anonymous
letter which was actually sent

The CHAIRMANIs there any dispute that the letter did in fact come
from the FBI

Mr ScnwARz We have heard no dispute of that
Mr SMOTHERSOne thing that is very clear as we examine the King

information is that the FBI is not only presumed to know an awful lot
about the movement which Dr King headed but that many of its
fumbling efforts many of its failures to convince people that Dr King
should be discredited were born out of the ignorance and if you will
the very clear racism at large then in the Bureau

A particularly revealing aspect of the Bureau's approach to the
question even at a time when they were examining the so-called Negro
question is evidenced by the response to a memorandum which then
Attorney General Kennedy wrote to Mr Hoover Mr Kennedy wrote
a memorandum asking Mr Hoover how many Negro special agents he
had Mr Hoover wrote back "We do not catalog people by race creed
or color, and now reading from Mr Sullivan's transcript on the
point "It was assumed by Mr Hoover that this would take care of Mr
Kennedy Mr Kennedy came back with another very nice letter that's
a laudatory attitude you are commended to have it but I still want to
know how many Negro special agents do you have. So we were in
trouble

"It so happened that during the war he had five Negro chauffeurs so
he automatically made them special agents It did not matter whether
they finished college or high school or grammar school or had a law
degree So now we wrote back and said we had five Then Mr Kennedy
came back and said this was atrocious. At the time according to Mr
Sullivan the FBI had 5,500 special agents "Out of that number 5,500
and you only have five Negro agents.

Mr Sullivan again "Of course we did not say in that memorandum
that none of them conducted investigations they were just drivers.
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This is 1961 Is it any wonder that the FBI was later presumptuous
enough to feel that it could determine the next new national Negro
leader A part of their problem is that they attempted to translate the
tactics first used against the Communist Party against virtually every
perceived enemy as they looked across the landscape and decided who
should be neutralized discredited or destroyed

The CHAIRMAN I think this is a time when the committee might
consider breaking We have a cloture vote coming up now We will be
coming back this afternoon as we examine by what legal authority the
FBI presumed to conduct operations directed toward discrediting
even endangering American citizens and that hearing will commence
at 2 o'clock this afternoon

Immediately following the conclusion of the staff presentations
members of the committee will then address questions to the staff So
we are adjourned until 2 o'clock this afternoon

[Whereupon at 12:28 p.m. the committee recessed to reconvene at
2 p.m the same day.]

AFTERNOONSESSION

The CHAIRMANThe hearing will please come back to order
Mr Schwarz you and Mr Smothers had not yet completed your

presentation to the committee when we had to break for votes and for
lunch I suggest that you proceed now to complete that presentation
before we go to questions

Mr SCHWARZMr Smothers has a historical note he wants to make
first and then I'm going to return to the subject

Mr SMOTHERSI have a historical note because you told me you were
going to talk about indexing

Mr SCHWARZYou're right
Mr SMOTHERSAnd I think it is worth noting that at the time we

talked about the very beginnings when Mr Hoover was then in charge
of the Intelligence Division of the FBI we see the starting of the first
indexing system the system being established there as the basis to in
sure the ability for retrieval of information against the anarchists and
Communists and other kinds of revolutionaries if you will that Mr
Hoover identified And he considered the indexing system to be a val
uable aid in the efforts to link radicals to the steel and coal strikes in
1919 and 1920 and the railroad strikes

The CHAIRMANIn other words you are talking about the origins
of this indexing system going back to 1918 1919 1920 right

Mr SMOTHERSI think Mr Chairman it would be fair to say that
in terms of the techniques we have talked about what we have really
seen as we have looked at the development of this thing is that not
very much is terribly new It changes in intensity it changes in targets
but the origins have been with us a long time

Mr SCHWARZThe issue of indices and how they came to be used
as devices to plan to lock up American citizens in a kind of emergency
evolved from the initial start that Mr Smothers referred to to a plan
that lasted from at least 1939 until the 1970's if it is indeed gone
now to prepare lists of American citizens who would be locked up
in effect on the order of the President or the Attorney General and
without the intervention of the court at a time of emergency
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I want to tell that story briefly for the purpose of illustrating some
of the problems of oversight and relationships between the FBI and
on the one hand the Justice Department and the FBI and the Con
gress because in the course of telling the story all of the types of
relationships come out We get the situation of the FBI complying
with the orders of Attorneys General We get situations where the
FBI secretly defied orders of the Attorneys General We get situations
where the FBI is complying with the Congress and we get times where
the FBI in coordination with an Attorney General is planning to
secretly defy the orders of Congress on the subject of indices for times
of national emergency

In 1939 the FBI established an index called the Security Index
which was a list of individuals both aliens and citizens I am now
quoting from exhibit 23

On whom there is information available to indicate that their presence at
liberty in this country in time of war or national emergencywould be dangerous
to the public peace and safety of the United States Government

The documents which notified all FBI offices of such lists and noti
fied them to prepare names indicated that the Bureau should make
certain that the fact that it was making such investigations does not
become known to individuals outside of the Bureau Nevertheless the
Department of Justice was then informed and in 1941 the Depart
ment of Justice commenced to work with the Bureau on classifying
persons as to degree of dangerousness

In 1943 however the Attorney General then in office Mr Biddle
wrote a memorandum for J Edgar Hoover [exhibit 24] 2 in which he
instructed J Edgar Hoover to get rid of the lists and to stamp on
each document in which a person had been given a classification for
the purpose of being locked up the following legend "This classifica
tion is unreliable It is hereby canceled and should not be used as a
determination of dangerousness or of any other fact. Attorney Gen
eral Biddle told J Edgar Hoover that after full reconsideration of
these individual clanger classifications

I am satisfied that they serve no useful purpose There is no statutory
authorization or other present authorization for keeping a "custodial deten
tion list of citizens The Department fulfills its proper functions by investigat
ing the activities of persons who may have violated the law It is not aimed in
this work as to classifying persons as to dangerousness

Within a few days of that very flat instruction from the Attorney
General the Director of the FBI indicated to all FBI agents that the
instruction in effect should not be carried out He told them that what
they should do is simply to change the label on the files to "Security
Matter from "Custodial Detention and instructed the agents of
the FBI that the Bureau "will also continue to prepare and maintain
security index cards [exhibit 25.] This was for the same purpose
of knowing who the Bureau might lock up And he further instructed
them "The fact that the Security Index and Security Index Cards are
prepared and maintained should be considered as strictly confidential
and should at no time be alluded to in investigative reports or dis
cussed with agencies or individuals outside the Bureau other than

I Seep 4092Seep 412
Seep 414
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representatives of the military intelligence agencies who were going
to be let in on the secret

In 1948 there was a new Attorney General in office and he con
trary to Attorney General Biddle who instructed that this be
turned off instructed the FBI to prepare an emergency detention pro
gram following something called the Attorney General's Portfolio
This included plans to suspend the writ of habeas corpus It ulti
mately included plans for a master warrant of arrests whereby on a

signature of the Attorney General and only that signature without
reference to the courts thousands of people could be locked up

The CHAIRMAN What Attorney General was this who succeeded
Mr Biddle

Mr SCIIWARZIn 1948 it was Attorney General Clark
In 1950 the Congress passed the Internal Security Act That act also

provided for an emergency detention system but it was far more re
strictive It gave less power to the Government than the Attorney
General's program It did not provide for the suspension of the writ
of habeas corpus It was more restrictive in its standards as to who
could be apprehended It did not permit apprehending people on a
master warrant but rather it had to be an individual warrant based up
on probable cause It provided for hearings and hearings in courts
within 48 hours instead of under the plan of the Justice Department
no hearings in court and no hearing at all for up to 45 days

There then ensued after the passage of the Internal Security Act a
lengthy exchange of correspondence

The CHAIRMANThe Internal Security Act was passed in 1950
Mr SCHWARZ1950
A lengthy exchange of correspondence in which the Bureau and the

Department were discussing whether they should comply with the
Internal Security Act and change the custodial detention program to
which they previously agreed to comply with its standards or whether
they should despite the passage by the Congress of the Internal
Security Act stick to their tougher standards that let them lock up
more people and kept the courts out of it

So the decision was made in 1952 November of 1952 and the Depart
ment in the person of the Attorney General decided to notify the
Director of the Federal Bureau of Investigation that the Bureau
should continue the plan to proceed under the Department's own port
folio instead of proceeding under the Internal Security Act [Exhibit
26.] I

The CHAIRMANTinder what claim of authority
Mr SCHWARZInherent executive power I suppose. These authority

matters are ones which it seems have been focused on more in retro
spect in the last couple of years as opposed to things that were thought
about at the time. and the legal authority issue does not seem to have
been discussed at all as far as the FBI's right to pursue any of these
programs until the summer of 1973

The list which was prepared under the stricter Justice Department's
FBI program called at one time for the locking up of 19,436 Ameri
cans By the time of the repeal of the Internal Security Act it num
bered in 1971 approximately 12,000 persons

1Seepp 416through427
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The CHAIR1MANSince the repeal of the Internal Security Act have
they continued to maintain these files for lockup purposes

Mr ScnwArz Your key question is your last three words Senator
They have continued upon the agreement of the Department of
Justice to maintain the salve files The numbers have now been re
duced to 1,200 persons The name has been changed to something called
the Administrative Index What purpose that serves and whether it
still is used as a reserve list of persons to lock up I think we are going
to ask the Bureau I cannot give you a definitive answer

Now in addition to the so-called Security Index there was through
out this period of the fifties and sixties also a reserve index As to this
we have not been able to discover any notification to the I)eparttment of
Justice about the reserve index The reserve index was composed of
persons who did not meet the criteria of the Security Index but whom
the Bureau felt should have special attention in a time of national
emergency

In 1962 there were approximately 10,000 names on the reserve in
dex A special section of that list was reserved for educators labor
union organizers and leaders media personnel lawyers doctors
scientists and other potentially influential people And the point I
make in connection with these lists is not only their existence but the
problems as revealed by the different areas of times when the Bureau
appears to be acting without anybody knowing it times when the
Bureau is acting pursuant to coordination with the Department of
Justice and times when the Bureau and the Department appear to be
acting beyond the authorization of the Congress

Mr Smothers has another case study of the problem of oversight
Mr SMOTHERSYes I think as we have gone through the materials

today there might be some suggestion that the Bureau did not make
an effort to secure guidance from the Department of Justice While
I think that may be true in some cases we have others in which the
effort was made and which the Department is either unresponsive
or merely takes a see no evil hear no evil kind of approach and at the
same time nods to the Bureau go ahead or at least go ahead if you
wish to

The case in point is the effort initiated against the Nation of Islam
the so-called Black Muslims At least as far back as World War II
the FBI had been keeping track of the Nation of Islam and on a
number of occasions we can only document a 20-year period had
gone to the Department of Justice seeking guidance in its efforts

If I might just a bit of that 20-year chronology that we have to
see that even when the Bureau attempted to gain guidance and clarifi
cation there were some who thought that it was in the best interests
of the Government to leave them unadvised

In 1952 the Department of Justice was advised that the Nation of
Islam may be "a fit group for the Attorney General's list. Here they
were operating under the Federal employee loyalty program In
May of 1952 that information is communicated In 1953 the Depart
ment of Justice says we will not prosecute this group under the Smith
Act but "the group would under certain circumstances represent a
serious threat to our national security. This is February 9 1953

The CHAIRMAN Can you give us a word of description of the
group
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Mr SMOTHERSThe Nation of Islam Well not having had first
hand experience with it the Nation of Islam formerly led by Elijah
Muhammed claims to be and was operated as a religious group The
thing generating concern here was apparently the group's rhetoric
regarding its dislike for white persons and its belief that the war of
Armageddon was near that the time of the dominance if you will
of the white race is about to come to an end and in preaching this
philosophy it certainly soon came to the attention of the FBI And
I will come to what happened with the FBI's efforts Mr Chairman

Senator TOWER Mr Smothers hasn't that group somewhat mod
erated its or at least deescalated the rhetoric

Mr SMOTHERSWell the latest information I have Senator is it
would be true In fact I understand that breaking with all precedent
in a recent social gathering some white persons were invited So I
think that the history of the group certainly was not different or
changing during most of the time that the FBI sat in on it And the
concern was that there was some kind of very softly expressed danger
to the national security a concept expressed both by the FBI and
by the Department of Justice

For example there was a question regarding the refusal to partici
pate in the draft under the claim which many of you may recall that
led to a prosecution of Muhammed Ali the claim being that every
member was in fact a minister of the church of the religion

In 1954 the Department of Justice advised the group would not be
prosecuted for any conspiracy to violate the Selective Service Act
They continued their efforts with respect to some individual violations

In 1955 the FBI goes to the Department of Justice and says "re
view the file of the group and advise us whether the 150 most active
members should continue on the Security Index, which Fritz has
just mentioned Avoiding the question the Department 5 months
later comes back noting only that a potentially dangerous instru
mentality is represented here in the event of a national emergency

The next entry we have is 1959 There the Department indicated
that the group would not be prosecuted or designated for the Attorney
General's list and Hoover upon receiving this communication said
in essence "they always come up with excuses for not doing anything,
and he asked or noted that they should take a constructive approach
He was asking them for advice

In 1960 the Department gave the same advice saying that the group
was not subversive as defined by the employee security program How
ever the FBI was requested to continue its investigation of the group

Hoover noted on the bottom of that memorandum after he received
it that Justice was "lust stalling. It is interesting to take a look at
that particular memo [exhibit 27],1 that one of September 23 1960
Walter Yeagley then Assistant Attorney General of Internal Secu
rity Division in a fairly clear discussion notes that the first amend
ment requires something more than language of prophesy and predic
tion and implied threats against the Government to establish the
existence of a clear and present danger He further notes in the memo
randum that the evidence is insufficient to meet the criterion of advo
cating the overthrow of the Government but then he apparently comes
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to the same bottom line that the FBI had reached "Because of the
semisecret and violent nature of this organization and the continuing
tendency on the part of some of its members to use language of im
plied threats against the Government it is requested that the Bureau
continue its investigation of the Nation of Islam and its leaders.

In 1962 we are on the same merry-go-round The Department re
peats the advice and says "Continue to investigate.

In 1963 the Department said there would not be a prosecution and
did not request further investigation but in 1964 the members are
still on the list the investigation is continuing The Department is
advised of that In its response to the FBI the Department does not
even mention the fact the investigation is continuing

For 7 years from 1966 to 1973 there are no further instructions
to the Department and the FBI did not ask

In 1973 the FBI comes up again and asks the Department of Jus
tice if they should continue It took the Department nearly a year to
answer them At that point the Department replied that the investiga
tion should continue because the group represented "a potential threat
to the public safety.

The FBI was asked to consult the Department if the group "changed
its tactics and objectives. And the Department the next time advised
that another reason for continuing the investigation might be the
antiriot law The employment security program comes up again

Finally after 20 years of exchange with the Department of Justice
late in 1974 the FBI decided that it would not bother investigating
any more In this 20 years of back and forth reading the correspond
ence the memorandums it is virtually impossible to decipher anything
that approaches the decision guidance firmness or direction So it
is not all the Bureau run wild There was some very clear advice here
as to at least some of what was going on and this is a good case in
point

Mr SCIHWARZThe final part Mr Chairman is the lack of legal
authority and the ambiguity the uncertainty This has troubled the
FBI and the Attorney General's office seriously since 1972 Prior to
that time there is no evidence that consideration was given to issues
of whether there is legal authority except the kind of hint you get in
that 1938 memo where they say "Let us not go to Congress because
if we seek a statute people are going to get upset about this kind of
spying on Americans.

But in 1972 and 1973 the Bureau did focus on the problem They
wrote in 1973 to the then Attorney General saying "We are very con
cerned about whether we have legal authority to act in these intelli
gence areas. They indicated then that the theory which had been used
for the 30 years which were the rather ambiguous and vague Execu
tive orders many of which were secret from Presidents Roosevelt and
Truman and Eisenhower at least Those had been the bases on which
the Bureau said they can go ahead and spy on the people Really
those orders just said to look at subversives They had no real con
tent to them They had certainly nothing about tactics and activities
no specificity

By the summer of 1972 and 1973 the Bureau was very concerned
and concluded internally that they probably did not support its in
telligence activities and asked the Attorney General to please help
get a statute passed and get some Executive orders passed
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The CHAIRMANWhich Attorney General We had three in 19
Mr SCHWARZThat was Attorney General Elliot Richardson I think

he left fairly soon after that request was made and in any event
statutes have not been sought The current Attorney General has been
very diligently at work thinking about the issue of guidelines at least
internal guidelines We have not seen any proposed statutes but per
haps that is the work of this committee

But the FBI and the Attorney General are now it appears gen
uinely concerned about the issue of legal authority

Mr SMOTHERSMr Chairman it is not clear in terms of the chain
of that motivation I do not think there is doubt that some of it is
being actively considered now but unless we focus it on an isolated case
and point out that the volume the sheer volume of information being
received by the Department of Justice from the FBI appears to
have been sufficient to put the Attorney General the various Attor
neys General on notice that an awful lot of information was com
ing in from somewhere

For example in 1967 the Internal Security Division received pe
riodic reports on approximately 400 organizations an annual total of
about 14,000 memorandums about 150 reports a day And yet we see
little evidence that anybody asked "Where are you getting this stuff
from What is the source of all of this

I think that is a question the real legal authority's point that i
now beginning to focus

The CHAIRMAN How much of that enormous volume of infor
mation ever meant anything to the Government How many man
days how much money was spent in such a massive and continuing
effort of surveillance through the years

These are questions that occur to me as we watch the organized
crime in this country the general level of crime that keeps rising from
year to year

Is it any wonder that we are not dealing effectively with it if so
much of our attention and resources are diverted into activities of this
kind That bothers me very much

Mr SMOTHERSMr Chairman that is a hard question to get at in
terms of the complete answer I think it might be a question we could
raise with the Bureau

You recall earlier we talked about the combination of the intelli
gence functions both counterespionage and domestic intelligence
What we get is a lumped figure fiscal 1975 of about $82 million That
includes both our foreign and domestic effort The Bureau does not
wish to break it out further and I think for some good reason e.g
because it would tend to disclose the amount of the counterintelligence
budget That figure lumped together is about 18 percent of the re
sources The actual resource application though in terms of man
hours one records that the Bureau did not keen and two if you look
at the memorandums you see designations of half an agent's time
designate an agent to do this We saw the peaks and valleys in the
activity It is anybody's guess as to how much of personnel costs has to
be outlined in this

The CHAIRMANBefore I am going to pursue my own questions I
would like to reco'tnize after some weeks of absence that we have
Senator Phil Hart back with us and we are so pleased that he is back
that he is here today participating at this hearing and all the members
of the committee feel that way
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So I thought it would be entirely appropriate Senator Hart to
turn to you first with whatever questions you would like to ask

Senator HARTof Michigan I do not recommend that others pursue
the course I took in order to get this advantage but thank you very
much

Having the benefit of not having heard anything until yesterday for
all of these months I would just react very generally to what you
have told me today

As I'm sure others have I have been told for years by among others
some of my own family that this is exactly what the Bureau was
doing all of the time and in my great wisdom and high office I assured
them that they were it just wasn't true It couldn't happen They
wouldn't do it

What you have described is a series of illegal actions intended
squarely to deny first amendment rights to some Americans That is
what my children have told me was going on Now I did not believe it

The trick now as I see it Mr Chairman is for this committee to be
able to figure out how to persuade the people of this country that
indeed it did go on And how shall we insure that it will never happen
again But it will happen repeatedly unless we can bring ourselves to
understand and accept that it did go on

And now my last note Over the years we have been warned about
the dan,ter of subversive organizations organizations that would
threaten our liberties subvert our system would encourage its mem
bers to take further illegal action to advance their views organizations
that would incite and promote violence pitting one American group
against another

And I think the story you have told us today shows us that there is
an organization that does fit those descriptions and it is the organiza
tion the leadership of which has been most constant in its warning to
us to be on guard against such harm The Bureau did all of those
things

And I say that as one who worked as a U.S attorney with the
Bureau I have enormous respect for its capacities in the field of
kidnapping bank robbery and a lot of other things but am appalled
to learn if that is correct of the intelligence side that the Bureau has
been up to for so long

I am glad I got back in time to be persuaded of what my own family
had not been able to persuade me of

Thank you
Mr SCHwARZ Of course there are actually violent groups There

are people who do act violently in the country and there is a role to be
played there The problem is the process no check no control no
neutral person checkinn how they draw the line and no apparent
effort to balance with the values of the first amendment

The CHAIRMAN I would like to recognize Senator Mondale next
Senator MONDALEThank you very much Mr Chairman
I think we all on this committee join with Senator Hart in ex

pressing our admiration for the FBI and the conduct of its criminal
investigating and prosecutorial functions I just do not think there is
any professional law-enforcement organization in the world that per
haps equals the FBI in its ability and its training in that field
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As an old law-enforcement officer myself I wanted the point made
clear What we are confronting here however is another matter
beyond the law which is called counterintelligence or internal security
And it is a matter which strangely has troubled the FBI in the past
In fact the abuse of that internal security function by the old Bureau
of Intelligence so led to its disgrace that a new organization known
as the FBI was created precisely for the purpose of staying out of
this dirty work in the future

So here we are again The case of Martin Luther King strikes me
as being the central case to demonstrate precisely what was involved
and the profoundly serious danger of those tactics

I would like to ask a few questions about it which I think demon
strate the elements of that matter

What was the threat that the FBI believed that Martin Luther
King posed to this country

Mr SCHWARZYou get different feelings on that Senator from the
documents but it is a threat of change There is a flavor running in
there of an assertion that he was influenced by Communists but that
does never seem to be followed through on or proven what his actions
were It was the threat of change I would say

Senator MONDALEWas there any evidence at any time that they
were suspicious that he was about to or had committed a crime

Mr SCHWARZNone that we have seen
Mr SMOTHERS I think it is easy to underestimate the impact

the concept of civil disobedience had on the Bureau in general and
Mr Hoover in particular

Senator MONDALEI want to get into the flavor of that later
Mr SMOTHERSIt was a big part
Senator MONDALEBut I'm trying to find out what it was that

impelled some part of the FBI to pursue Martin Luther King with
such an obsession and what I understood that answer to be was first
of all it was not any suspicion of the commission of a Federal crime
None of the literature showed up a single suggestion that Martin
Luther King had committed or was about to commit a crime

Is that correct
Mr SCHWARZThat is correct
Mr SMOTHERSYes sir but at this point much of what was being

done did involve challenges to local laws and there is a very strong
suggestion that King was seen as rallying the lawbreakers and
would-be lawbreakers albeit for a cause that sounded pure looking
now in terms of if you look at what might have gotten the Bureau
started remember at the same time he is extremely critical of the
Bureau's own law-enforcement efforts

We see throughout these documents the New Left documents it is
taboo to criticize the Bureau and particularly the Director

Senator MONDALEWas he ever charged with fomenting violence
Did he ever narticipate in violence Was it ever alleged that he was
about to be violent

Mr SCHWARZ That was the very opposite of his philosophy
Senator

Sentaor Mo\n,\LE So it was neither the fear of commission of a
crime nor the commission of violence

Was there any serious charge that he himself was a Communist
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Mr SCHWARZNo such charge whatever
Senator MONDALESo that what was left was the decision on the

part of some persons or person within the FBI that he should neverthe
less be pursued The basis for that decision apparently was political the
decision that he was dangerous or potentially dangerous to someone's
notion of what this country should be doing and a theory that the
FBI possessed the ability to enter into this field and to investigate
and to intimidate and seek to neutralize and indeed replace a civil
rights leader whom they thought to be politically unacceptable

Is that correct
Mr SCHWARZYes
Mr SMOTHERSThat is correct
Senator MONDALEAll right And the tactics they used apparently

had no end They did not however include direct physical violence
They did not include incarceration But they included practically
everything else did they not

Mr SCHWARZYes
Senator MONDALE They included wiretapping They included

microphonic surveillance of hotel rooms They included informants
They included sponsoring of letters signed by phony names to rela
tives and friends and organizers They involved even plans to replace
him with someone else whom the FBI was to select as a national civil
rights leader Is that correct

Mr SCHWARZYes that plan did not get very far but they had
that plan

Senator MONDALEYes it was seriously considered and Mr Hoover
pinned a note to that suggestion commending its authors did he not

Mr SCHWARZYes
Senator MONDALEIt also included an indirect attempt to persuade

the Pope not to see him
Mr SCHWARZAnd many other people
Senator MONDALEIt directed him to persuade one of our major

universities not to grant him a doctorate degree
Mr SCHWARZThat is correct I think there were two universities
Senator MONDALEIt included an attempt to send him a letter prior

to the time he received the Nobel Peace Prize which Dr Martin
Luther King and close associates interpreted to mean a suggestion
that King should attempt suicide

Mr SCHWARZThat's right Included in that were materials which
the Bureau had gathered illegally or improperly through taps and
bugs and so forth

Senator MONDALEWell I must conclude that apart from direct
physical violence and apart from illegal incarceration there is nothing
in this ease that distinguishes that particular action much from what
the KCTB does with dissenters in that country

I think it is a road map to the destruction of American democracy
and I would hope as we lead to the strengthening of the FBI in the
criminal field we impose very clear and unquestioned limits so that
this kind of unrestrained illegal secret intimidation and harassment
of the essential ability of Americans to participate freely in the Amer
ican political life shall never happen again

One final question What is the position of the FBI now as to
whether it continues to have the authority to pursue tactics such as
this against someone like Dr King
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Mr SCHWARZOf course the FBI witnesses are now commencing to
come Senator There is on the COINTELPRO subject which is re
lated to the testimony of the current director in effect defending that
program as appropriate for the times in which it took place

Whether he gave that testimony after knowing the fullness of what
was done or not I don't know

Senator MONDALEThank you very much Mr Chairman
Senator TOWER[presidingl Senator Huddleston
Senator HUDDLESTONThank you Mr Chairman
First I too would like to say that I think all of us are well aware

of the outstanding work that the Federal Bureau of Investigation
does in many areas and that they do have a large number of diligent
and dedicated agents who are doing outstanding work in the field of
crime and in protecting this country against our foreign enemies

I think it probably is unfortunate but the fact of the matter is it is
not what they are doing right and correct that is of major interest to
this committee Our major interest first of all is to discover and
identify what is not correct not right and to take whatever action may
seem to be necessary in order to correct those abuses

So the fact that we dwell on incorrect actions and abuses should not
in itself indicate that the entire Bureau is guilty of gross impropriety
in the performance of its duty But we are in an area here that must
concern all of us and all of the citizens of this country

It seems to me that we have moved away from concern by the Bureau
for actual actions that might be violent or might be criminal toward
action toward ideas that might be unpopular or may not be acceptable
to some people

But within the Bureau within the administration would it be ac
curate to say on the basis of the information you have presented at
this time that in fact the motivating factor behind much of the FBI's
concern in this area was not that there was likely to be some direct
violent action taken by some individual or some crime committed but
simply that ideas were being expressed that were not acceptable to the
Bureau

Is that a correct inference from the information you have given
us

Mr SMOTHERSYes sir I believe that is an accurate summary I be
lieve it is particularly true when we look at the subversive investiga
tions

Senator HUDDLESTONNow where is there any mandate for the FBI
or Executive order or any other authority to move in this particular
direction

Mr SCHWARZWell there are claims of authority For example title
XXVIII section 533 of the United States Code permits the Attorney
General to appoint officials to detect and prosecute crimes

Now that is read as implying the authority to pry into these
matters Whether that is a correct reading or not I suppose other
people should fudge

Senator HUDDLESTONBut in case after case and in particular the
Martin Luther King case there was certainly no direct evidence that
there was about to he a crime committed that could be identified as a
specific crime

Is that correct
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Mr SCHWARZCertainly not You are certainly correct
Senator HL-DDLESTONWe have talked some this morning when you

gave the presentation of the various targets that had been selected
and one relating to the New Left seems to be a particularly nebulous
type target

Was there ever any written description or any kind of understand
ing on the part of the agents that you talked to or those who were en
forcing the program that would indicate that they had a very definite
clear understanding of just what this was

Mr SCHWARZIt was a loose term that started and it appears to re
main a loose term in its application

Senator HLDDLESTOXIt would be very difficult then to identify very
clearly just what the threat of a so-called New Left would be to the
security of the United States

Mr SMOTHERSThat is correct Senator Some of the guidelines pro
vided and it changed from time to time included everything from op
posing the war to saying bad things about the Director of the Bureau
and it just started to be a catchall

Senator HL-DDLESTOXDid you in fact find officials or agents who in
dicated that they had no clear understanding as to what it meant

Mr SCHWARZYes we did Of course some of them might have said
as one Supreme Court Justice said about obscenity you can tell it when
you see it but they couldn't describe it

Senator HUDDLESTONNow this information the files that were built
upon all of these individuals aside from the manner in which it was
disseminated which you have reported in great detail what was final
ly done with this evidence Was it left in a file within the Bureau

Mr SCHWARZIt is still there
Senator HL"DDLESTO\It's still there now
Mr SCHWARZIt does not matter how it was obtained Even the ma

terial for example obtained through illegal mail openings is still there
and still usable If the Government asks for a name check on somebody
they would get back information from those sources

Senator HUDDLESTONDoes the Bureau have a clearly defined policy
on how long it should stay there or what would be done with it

Mr SCHWARZI think we ought to turn to some of our staff experts
on that one

Mr GITENSTELNThe basic investigative files remain in the files for
ever as far as we know

Senator HLDDLESTOXNo matter how the material was gained no
matter whether or not it was accurate or true or how damaging to an
individual it might be it rests there to be plucked out at someone's
whim to be disseminated in whatever way they might want to dissem
inate it

Mr GITExSTEIS In fairness to the Bureau in recent months the
Bureau has talked about a destruction program based on age

Senator HL-DDLESTONThey are talking about a destruction program
but so far as you know they have not put it into effect

Mr SCrrwARZ There is a great problem along that line Senator
Even if you are willing to assume some right to collect some informa
tion that is a very doubtful assumption the Bureau collects all
information Let us say a wiretap was authorized in order to check
if someone was likely to commit some kind of an act They do not
limit the information which is obtained to that There are some
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efforts now to say do not listen in when lawyers are talking on the
phone for example but by and large once you target on the individual
or group you get all of the information

Senator HLDDLESTONThat would certainly be a broad application
of the search and seizure warrant requirement that requires a specify
ing of first of all where you are going to search and what you are
searching for

Mr SCHWARZYes and do you remember on the chart which showed
that 80 percent of the information comes from informants Of course
there is no warrant procedure whatsoever for the use of informants to
infiltrate groups

Senator HLDDLESTONDid you find any report within the FBI or
any assertion by them that they were in fact able to prevent violent
acts or criminal acts because of the information they had gathered

Mr SCHWARZYes and I'm sure it is true there have been instances
That GAO study however indicated they were a very small percent
age But of course they undoubtedly have managed to deal with some
violent acts in the course of this work and I'm sure the witnesses that
come in tomorrow will have samples where they have in fact done it.

Senator HUDDLESTONThank you Mr Chairman
Senator TOWERSenator Hart
Senator HART of Colorado Thank you Mr Chairman
Gentlemen would you discuss an incident which reportedly hap

pened in the closing days of Dr King's life in Memphis when he had
gone to the marches in connection with the sanitation workers strike
and which related to the Bureau's involvement in the question of what
hotel he may have been staying at in Memphis

Mr ScxwARZ Yes Senator I would like to ask Mr Epstein of our
staff who has conducted the main investigation of the Dr King
matter to answer the question

Mr EPSTEIN This is a document dated March 29 1968 [See foot
note page 21.] It is an internal Bureau memorandum The caption
on it is Counterintelligence Program Black Nationalists Hate
Groups Racial Intelligence Martin Luther King

The purpose is to publicize hypocrisy on the part of Martin Luther King
Background Martin Luther King has urged Negroes in Memphis Tenn. to
boycott white merchants in order to force compliance with Negro demands in
the sanitation workers strike in Memphis Violencebroke out during the march
King led in Memphis On March 28 1968 King disappeared There is a first-class
Negro hotel in Memphis the Hotel Lorraine but King chose to hide out at the
white-owned and operated Holiday Inn Motel

Recommendation The above facts have been included in the attached blind
memorandum and it is recommended it be furnished to a cooperative news
media source by the Crimes Records Division for items showing King is a
hypocrite This will be done on a highly confidentialbasis

The attachment reads as follows and March 29 1968 is the date at
the top of it "Martin Luther King during the sanitation workers
strike in Memphis Tennessee" and by the wav this is headed "do
as I say not as I do. and this apparently is the item that was recom
mended to be distributed

Martin Luther King during the sanitation workers strike in Memphis Ten
nessee has urged Negroesto boycottdowntownwhite merchants to achieveNegro
demands
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On March 29 1968 King led a march for the sanitation workers Like Julius
leading lambs to slaughter King led the marchers to violence and when the
violence broke out King disappeared The fine Hotel Lorraine in Memphis is
ownedand patronized exclusivelyby Negroes but King did not go there from his
hasty exit Instead King decided a plush Holiday Inn Motel white-owned
operated and almost exclusively white patronized was the place to "cool it.
There will be no boycottof white merchants for King only for his followers

Senator HART of Colorado Mr Epstein do you know for a fact
whether the Bureau distributed that information to members of the
press

Mr EPSTEIx The only notation that would shed any light on that
on this document is as follows There is a notation that says "OK
H, which is the usual OK that Mr Hoover signed on various FBI
documents And then there is a notation also on the document which
says "handled, and there is a date next to it which has been illegible
for us We have inquired of the Bureau as to what that date is and
the Bureau maintains that it is April 3 1968 We have not yet seen
the original of the document

The FBI also asserts that Martin Luther King Jr had already
moved into the Lorraine Hotel prior to April 3 1968

Senator HARTof Colorado He did change hotels
Mr EPSTEIN That is correct
Senator HART of Colorado Did we ask the Bureau whether or not

they distributed that information
Mr EPSTEIx We did not discover anything additional with respect

to this incident There apparently were newspapers at the time that
stated that Dr King was staying in the Holiday Inn motel I think
described as a "plush Holiday Inn motel in a counle of newspaper
articles There was no indication that those particular articles were
written as the result of this particular COINTELPRO recommenda
tion There is no proof one way or the other

Senator HARTof Colorado Are there date coincidences between the
memo dates and the dates of the stories

Mr EPSTEIx Other than the same 5 or 6-day time-period I do
not have any additional facts

Senator HART of Colorado What day was Dr King killed On
April the 4th

Mr EPSTEIN The chain of events as I understand it was he was
in Memphis for a period of several days left Memphis apparently and
went back to Atlanta for a weekend or for a couple of days And
it was when he returned to Memphis that he checked into the Lorraine
Hotel

Senator HARTof Colorado And that was where he was killed
Mr EPSTEIN That is correct
Senator HARTof Colorado Thank vou very much
Mr Schwarz I would like to ask v_ou about the tangible results of

the entire COINTEL Programs
Do we have specific instances where the programs "succeeded"
Mr SCHWARZYes Out of some 2.600 COINTELPROs  
Ms BAxoFF Twenty -two percent of them have results
Mr ScHWARZ Can I ask Ms Banoff of our staff to deal with that

question
Senator HARTof Colorado Yes
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Ms BAroFF The Bureau did not define success it defined result
The Bureau agents field agents were also instructed from the very
beginning to resolve any doubts in their favor and in fact our in

vestigation in some instances showed the result that was claimed was

not in fact produced by the counterintelligence action
Senator HARTof Colorado What was the result
Ms B ANoFE Some concrete thing that happened supposedly as a

result of the Bureau action Bureau counterintelligence action that
fulfilled the purpose of the action

For instance Senator in the dissemination act it is one of the letters
to wives In fact to husbands One that Mr Smothers showed shows
as a result in the status letter and this is how it was shown to report
ers that the husband and wife separated This was claimed as a tangible
result

Senator HARTof Colorado You have all indicated that the Bureau

began concentration on COINTELPRO as a result of the Smith Act
convictions being overturned and the Bureau's feelings that it was im
possible to use ordinary law enforcement techniques against Commu
nist Party members

What indications are there in the records or your interviews with
Bureau personnel that the Justice Department or the Bureau itself
ever addressed themselves to the legality of the techniques that were

being used in the program
Mr SCHWARZNo evidence that any produced any theory under

which those programs were legal
Senator HART of Colorado Was it discussed within the Bureau or

between the Bureau and the Department
Mr SCHWARZNo
Mr SMOTHERSThere were after the fact notifications of the activi

ties against the Communist Party and against the Klan The Bureau
sent over a memorandum after the fact In some cases it said there
apparently were some brief intelligence activities

Mr SCHWARZIt does not make it legal
Senator MONDALEWould the Senator yield
Senator HARTof Colorado I yield
Senator MONDALEWe interrogated a very prominent high-level

FBI official who had been in a top role throughout all of this period
and he was asked whether anyone had questioned the legality or consti
tutionality of these actions He said no one I never heard anyone raise
the question of legality or constitutionality Never

M"r SMOTHERSAnd yet they were going to Justice daily with infor
mation not COINTELPRO but information and the product of
information was coming over

Senator HART of Colorado Did the Bureau ever actively conceal
from the Justice Department the techniques it was using in these
programs

Mr SMOTHERSI think so The general prohibition on all the
COINTEIPRO activities was there should be no disclosure outside
the Bureau

Now the subsequent or after-the-fact notification on the Communist
Party the plan it appears that the Bureau felt a little safer about
There is no indication that the Bureau ever believed information
against the other groups would be discussed and there is no indication
that we found that they disclosed the background



49

Senator HART of Colorado With respect to COINTELPRO spe
cifically is it your respective or collective judgments that the Bureau
was operating under the control of the Department of Justice or out
of control of the Department of Justice

Mr S_MOTFIERSI do not see how one can charge the Department
with control at least outside the Communist Party plan area I think
there may have been sufficient evidence some evidence of a pattern
where they could have at least said don't do it again But no advance
notice And with respect to the other activities I think the record is
very clear that they did not with Justice or anyone else

Senator HART of Colorado So I take it your answer is that there
was not sufficient control of the COINTELPRO

Mr SMOTHERSNo question
Senator HART of Colorado Mr Schwarz do you agree with that
Mr SCnwARZ Yes I do
Senator HART of Colorado Thank you very much Mr Chairman
Senator TOWERSenator Hart
Senator HARTof Michigan No I have no questions
Senator TOWERNO questions
Senator Mondale
Senator MONDALEWould it be fair to say that the tactics used

against I)r King had been borrowed from tactics used against foreign
risks spies agents and the rest who could and did pose a threat

Mr ScnwARZ Mr Mondale your own examination of Mr Sullivan
seems to me brought home that point as clear as it could be

Senator MONDALESo that the techniques which were used were
techniques that we knew about through experience against foreign
enemies So that for all practical purposes Dr King was treated as
though he were one of them

Mr SCHWARZI do not thick he was the only person but that is
certainly accurate

Senator MONDALEI raised the Dr King example because I think
that is the classic example which shows all of the elements and the
dangers involved in this tactic

When did counterintelligence programs stop
Mr SCITWARZWTell that is in question
In 1971 after they had been exposed through the media there was

an instruction that they should stop The instruction says however
"If anythinn like this is really important please advise headquarters.
And as I think some of the witnesses indicated the line between
counterintelligence and intensive investigation is one that really can
not be drawn and has not been drawn

Senator MO\DALE So are you saving we cannot be sure that
COINTELPRO in all of is elements has been terminated

Mr SenwARZ I would not want to use that label Senator and I
think that is a matter better directed to the FBI witnesses But it is
a problem when you have a Director of the FBI who declines to say
that the activities were improper as he did when he testified in 1973

Senator MONDALETo provide some of the flavor of the kind of con
centration that was directed against Dr Kin r do you have available
an agenda that was prepared for a meeting of FBI officials to decide
how to deal with Dr King

Mr SCHWARZI think Mr Epstein who has 2 feet of documents
Senator ought to be able to pull that one out
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Senator MONDALEMaybe Mike Epstein could testify directly on
this because I think he went through this with us

Could you tell us about this meeting Who came What was the
purpose of the meeting What was discussed there

Mr ErsTEIN Senator apparently there was a meeting convened at
FBI headquarters in December 1963 The memorandum recommend
ing the meeting recommended that it be convened in order to explore
fully the Communist influence in racial matters as it pertained to
Martin Luther King Jr

The summary memo with respect to the meeting itself was written
afterward

Senator MONDALEAs I recall there was an agenda or a memo
written about tactics that could be used against him

Mr EPSTEIy That's right
Senator MONDALE Can you list some of the tactics that were

discussed
Mr ErsTEix "Can colored agents be of anv assistance to us in the

Atlanta area and if so how many would be needed Possibilities
of contacting anonymous sources at the home of King and/or SCLC
is a tactic that was also discussed "Would tesur's or misur's on King's
associates help to set up a counterintelligence move

Senator MONDALEWhat does that mean
Mr ErsTEIN Tesur's means telephone surveillance and misur's

means microphone surveillance
What are the possibilities of using Mrs King Are there any disgruntled em

ployeesat SCLCand/or former employeeswho may be disgruntled or disgruntled
acquaintances Does the officehave any contacts among ministers both colored
and white who are in a position to be of assistance and if so in what manner
couldweuse them

Do we have any information concerningany shady financial dealings of King
which could be explored to our advantage Has this point ever been explored
before And what are the possibilities of placing a good-lookingfemale plant
in King's office

Senator MoyDALE So this meeting was called to bring together FBI
agents to explore every possibility of spying upon and intimidating
Dr Martin Luther King

Is that right
Mr EPSTEI\ There are a total of 21 different ideas that are on this

document which is headed "Questions To Be Explored at Confer
ence. ISee footnote page 21.]

Senator MONDALEThank you Mr Chairman
The CHHAIRMAIrrpresiding] Senator Schweiker I believe has not

questioned vet
Senator SCHWEIKERThank you Mr Chairman
Mr Smothers earlier in your presentation when talking about

activities of the FBI against people and targets you mentioned that
Warren Commission critics were singled out for some kind of special
treatment I wonder if you would just elaborate a little bit more on
what kind of special attention people who criticized the Warren
Commission Report got

Mr SMOTHERSSpecial attention started with a request for infor
mation on them and the information requests were made by the then
Special Assistant to the President and we must assume that the
requests were at the President's direction or maybe at the initiative of



51

the Special Assistant We do not know but our evidence tends to
show that it reflects a Presidential concern What came back were a
series of monographs or biographical statements

Senator ScnwEIKER Would this be raw file material probably
Mr SMOTHERSYes it appears to reflect all of what the FBI had on

that individual Some of them are very brief One person in question is
described as "a person who thrives on dissension and causes much
local dissension and arguments in his community. They talk about
his educational background the marital status and that is a one
pager The next one is a one-pager We have not contacted these people
Senator

Senator SCHWEIR.ERI understand there were some derogatory ma
terial also included in some of this Without getting into specifics

Mr SMOTHERSYes there is one that reflects a morals arrest It
appears again to be a vaccuum cleaner situation though because in
the same discussion of the alleged morals violation in two preceding
paragraphs they note traffic fines imposed by a municipality

Senator ScfrwEIKER And this was an attempt then on the part of
the White House in this case a request to the FBI so we set the record
straight to discredit people who disagreed with the findings of the
Warren Commission or to use material against them in some way or
to be knowledgeable about the material in the raw files any derogatory
information on critics of the Warren Commission

Mr SMOTHERSTo be fair Senator I do not think they were asked
to make use of it It was certainly asked to provide it and every indi
cation that we have is that the FBI merely provided it They took no
further steps to disseminate it Now what the White House did with
it we do not know

Senator SCHWEIKERSo that the request initiated from the White
House It was not an internal FBI request

Mr SMOTHERSThat is correct
Senator SCHWEIKERI think that is very interesting because it indi

cates that to some extent you became an intelligence target of some
body's or interest certainly if you disagreed strongly with the Warren
Commission

I think we do have to ascertain if the material was used in some
way There certainly had been some allegations that this material was
in fact used in some way Whether it was in fact used by the White
House or by somebody else I do not know But I think this is the first
time we have an indication that the White House requested such dero
gatory or personal material

Mr Smothers what in your judgment could have been the purpose
of fermenting antagonism between the Black Panther Party and the
Black Nationalist group United Slaves

Mr SMOTHERSWell it apppears to me at this Point what we see
with the Black Panther Party-United Slaves (US) dispute is the
FBI's taking the concept of neutralization the concept they have used
earlier with the Communists and the Socialist Worker Party one step
further

It is really an indication I believe and we see some from the other
documents not insensitivity hut outright racism on the part of the
Bureau I think they view it as another neutralization effort except
when it came to blacks the most violent kinds of techniques were
accepted
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I think they proceeded with the assumption that we would sure like
to be rid of both of them They appear to have a little bit more antag
onism against the Black Panthers But if they were going to have
gang fights if they were going to kill each other then it appeared to
be a wonderful opportunity for the Bureau to promote

Senator SCHWEIKERSo in this case instead of acting to calm the
violence and to actually have it subside they really were inciting it
and encouraging it and confronting it and causing it Is that a fair
summation

Mr SMOTHERSI think that would be a fair statement Senator The
memo urges the aggressive kinds of efforts the coming up with crea
tive ideas as to how one might fuel the fires if you will

This is not the only incident where I think the FBI got in the
middle of a situation when they saw that violence was apparent The
Blackstone Ranger-Panther conflict in Chicago had shades of the
same problem The resolution therefore when they couldn't find a
rival group as the experience was with the revolutionary action move
ment in Philadelphia they simply worked on the local police as a
means of taking them out of existence

On one occasion a series of memos and communications reflected
that any charge whatsoever was to be utilized by the Philadelphia
police to get these people off the streets prior to a planned activity
And they then commend the Philadelphia operation for being suc
cessful in defeating this demonstration by putting them all in jail on
one charge or another

Senator SCHWEIgER Mr Schwarz you described one of the pur
poses of the Inlet letter which is exhibit 91 as reporting items with an
unusual twist or concerning prominent personalities The letter was
discontinued Do we have any knowledge or information as to whether
that kind of reporting was discontinued

Mr SCHWARZWell the discontinuing letter says in effect it is not
necessary any longer to have the Inlet letter because we now have better
means of communicating and it instructs the agents to continue to
refer to headquarters the same kind of information What has in fact
been furnished I cannot answer for you Senator

Senator SCHWEIgER Does this particular situation indicate that it
would vary on the particular personalities of the issuing of the au
thoritative people as to what kind of material would be of interest
or what kind of material would particularly be looked for that would
sort of win their fancy of whoever was requesting it

Mr SCHWARZThere were no standards Senator
Senator SCHWEIKERAnd how Mr Schwarz do we prevent this kind

of thing from happening In other words I think it is interesting to
note that it happened but the question in my mind is how do we stop
this abuse of power where a person may get a kick out of reading
about somebody else's human failures and may or may not pass these
human failures on to other people What is your surmise as to how
we might proceed to stop this in the future

Mr SCHWARZLess secrecy and tougher laws Senator which I am
sure are going to come

Mr Elliff do you have a comment on the Inlet letter
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Mr ELLIFF Senator Schweiker I did have an opportunity at the
Bureau to review the Inlet letters I did not have an opportunity to
review everything that has gone on since that program was discon
tinued by teletype to the White House The definition of items with an
unusual twist appears from my review of these documents to be
information that otherwise came to the Bureau in the course of its
intelligence activities The Bureau did not go out and look for items
to put in the Inlet letter but if they did happen to in the course of
their ordinary activities come across such items on prominent persons
in one instance I recall an actress the Bureau did learn through its
intelligence coverage of an extremist organization of something as to
the personal life of that actress and that was indeed disseminated to
the White House in the Inlet letter

Senator SCHWErKERAnd once again in fairness to the Bureau this
was originated in the 'White House in terms of the use and procedure
It was collected and gathered in the normal course of their activities
but the focusing and whatever use was or was not made or the receipt
of it was initiated by the White House

Mr ELLIFF That is not clear The Bureau memoranda indicate that
this had gone on for several administrations and indeed we have let
ters from J Edgar Hoover to President Truman and Presidents since
then in which he volunteers similar information saying we thought
this might be of interest to the President

Senator SCHWEIKERThat is one of the prerogatives of the Presi
dency

In fiscal year 1974 the FBI received requests for name checks on
more than 2 million cases Over the years the Bureau has maintained
actual intelligence files for more than 500.000 U.S citizens and or
ganizations I think my question here is obviously a lot of the ma
terial is pure raw file material some of it uncorroborated some of it
allegations some of it sources of questionable reliability and I am
sure some of it is quite accurate

My question is has the FBI taken any steps to destroy files of
persons who never should have been subjected to surveillance at all
and what procedure for cleaning out past errors of judgment exists
or do these files just go on in perpetuity when you have situations of
this kind Can anyone shed any light on that

Mr SMOTHERSAs to what the Bureau is doing now Senator
The best information we have is that a system for cleaning out

the files or a system for retiring information or determining what
should be held is at this time being worked on between the Depart
ment of Justice and the Bureau I do not know of any prior efforts
to purge or update the files

Mr SCHWARZSenator in your question about name checks I think
the record should be supplemented with this fact that in 1967 name
check information was sent to the 'White House on seven Senators
who I am not going to name because we have not snoken to them but
I can see from looking at them that they are all antiwar Senators

Senator SCHWEIKERIn the area of insnection I would like to ask
in the military they have an Insnector General system whose job is
to ferret out allegations of imnroper actions on the part of people
within that particular unit or that particular function
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I wonder what you can tell us in terms of how the Inspection Divi
sion operates and what we might learn from comparing that say
to an Inspector General system

Mr SCHWARZI think Mr Gitenstein is our expert on that
Mr GrrExsTEIx There is a separate division within the FBI called

the Inspection Division It conducts annual inspections of all of the
other divisions of the FBI as well as all of the field offices It also
responds to allegations of abuse within the FBI but the inspections
are all conducted internally by FBI agents and rarely if ever are
there inspections or investigations by other personnel within the
Department of Justice of what the FBI does although in recent
months there have been investigations of allegations of illegality by
the Criminal Division of the Justice Department concerning mail
opening and other allegations

Senator SCHWEIKERThank you Mr Chairman
The CHAIRMANThank you Senator Schweiker
Senator Tower do you have any questions
Senator Huddleston did you have some further questions
Senator HrDDLESTONJust one quick question or two on the matter

of oversight Was the Congress or were Members of Congress or
appropriate committees informed by the Bureau of the COINTEL
program

Mr SCHWARZ The evidence on that as provided to us by the
Bureau is that the House Appropriations Committee I've got to be
very careful how I put this there are documents which indicate
remarks were prepared for off-the-record comments to the House
Appropriations Committee 'Whether in fact those comments were
delivered is not revealed by any record Moreover it is perfectly clear
that those comments concerned only the CPUSA and the Klan COIN
TELPRO's and did not concern the others

Senator HUDDLESTONThe other three were not mentioned at all
Mr SCHWARZAnd they were scanty on the details with which the

individual techniques were disclosed
Mr SMOTHERSTo supplement that I think it should be pointed

out that the Bureau claims that this kind of briefing occurred on six
separate occasions

Senator HUDDLESTONThere were briefings on six separate occasions
Mr SMOTHERSYes beginning apparently in 1958 and ending

apparently in 1966
Senator HUDDLESTONNo indication that they touched on any except

the first two COINTELPRO targets and no indication as to what
degree of completeness was in the testimony as to the techniques used
or the objectives or what was accomplished

Mr SCHWARZWell there was an indication that if the testimony
was given that it was riot at least as detailed as what we have brought
before you today Senator

Senator HUDDLSTON Did the Bureau make anv explanation or any
assertion as to why more thorough briefings or more thorough infor
mation was not given to the proner congressional committees

Mr SCHWARZThe person who gave those briefings is no longer
alive

Senator HUDDLESTONThank you
The CHAIRMANSenator Mondale
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Senator MONDALEI would like to put a few more questions to Mr
Epstein Since this is the first time we have ever had a good look
at this COINTEL Program and the so-called internal security pro
gram I think it is important to review briefly how the risk of so-called
Communist influence in the direction of the civil rights movement
was arrived at

And perhaps you can testify about that peculiar set of memos which
began with one memo saying that Communist influence was infini
tesimal and was unimportant and within a month resulted in a final
memo saying that it was terribly dangerous and threatened to sub
vert the civil rights movement [See footnote p 21.]

What kind of steps led to that remarkable change in assessment
Mr EPSTEIN Senator shortly before the Poor People's March

which was in late August of 1963 the Domestic Intelligence Division
of the Bureau prepared a detailed memorandum concerning the ef
forts of the Communist Party U.S.A. to exploit the American Negro
and that included a conclusion which stated "The Communist Party
in the next few years may fail dismally with the American Negro
It has in the past Time alone will tell. And a note was inscribed on
the end of it

Senator MONDALEBut wait Was that the one in which they said
the influence of the Communist Party is infinitesimal

Mr EPSrEIN I believe that was another memorandum in which the
Director noted something next to the fact that there were only 200
members of the party in attendance at the march which had 200,000

Senator MONDALEAll right Proceed
Mr EPSTEIN The note that the Director inscribed on this memo

which also detailed the history of the party's efforts in the past to
infiltrate the Negro movement "This memo reminds me vividly of
those I received when Castro took over Cuba You contended then
that Castro and his cohorts were not Communists and not influenced
by Communists Time alone proved you wrong I for one can't ignore
memos about [various people] as having only an infinitesimal effect on
the efforts to exploit the American Negro by the Communists.

Senator MONDALESo the first memo from the Intelligence Division
told the Director that the Communist influence was very speculative
and minor

Mr EPSTEIN That's right
Senator MONDALEHoover then in that memo said "That is not

right this is just like you told me about Castro. Then what hap
pended

Mr EPSTEIN The context of these of course is the fact that the
Director of the Domestic Intelligence Division expected that this
was what was going to hannen His testimony to us has been that when
they were asked to nut this document together informinn the Di
rector as to how substantial_ the Communist influence problem was
that they were concerned that the facts were not going to add up to
what the Director expected to hear

Senator MONAALEAll right
So he got this memo he did not like and he sent it back So then

what happened
Mr ErsTEix That's right

66-0770 76 5
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Now there was a response to that several clays later which by then
was after the march which referenced that note from the Director
which had said "this memo reminds me vividly of those I received
when Castro took over Cuba and then said "the Director is correct
When investigating and writing about communism and the American
Negro we had better remember this and profit by the lessons that it
should teach us, meaning Cuba He concluded with comments such as
"It may be unrealistic to limit ourselves as we have been doing to

legalistic proof or definitely conclusive evidence that would stand up
in testimony in court or before congressional committees that the Com
munist Party U.S.A. does wield substantial influence over Negroes
which one day could become decisive.

"The memorandum which the Director questioned while showing
the details of the Communist impact on Negroes did safer from such
limitations, and at the end he wrote "We regret greatly that the
memorandum did not measure up to what the Director has a right to
expect from our analysis.

Senator MONDALEWhat did he say about that
Mr ErsTEIN There was no response at all and what the Director

of the Domestic Intelligence Division apparently interpreted by the
silence was that action was desired because that was the next thing
that happened

Senator MoxnALE Did Hoover write another memo saying I cannot
understand you you just said the Communist Party wasn't influential
and now I get another memo saying it is influential Have you got
that memo

Mr Ers-rEix Following that apologetic memo which is my charac
terization of it a recommendation went in

The CHAIRMAN That's not apologetic It is simply a recognition
that intuition is one of those sources for investigative information
that ought not be ignored

Senator MONDALEI think it is a source of survival I think this is
very interesting because this led to the official determination by all
hands that the Communists were a very serious influence in the civil
rights movement In fact the department which was in charge of
inspecting it did not think so at all

Mr EPsTEIN The memo I am about to read [see footnote p
211 which was in mid-September of 1963 the Director of Domestic
Intelligence Division informed us he wrote because he believed that
he at that point had to give the Director words he believed the
Director wanted to hear and he wrote a memorandum recommending
"increased coverage of Communist influence on the Negro

The field is being instructed to intensify our coverage We are stressing the
urgent need for imaginative and aggressive tactics to be utilized through our
counterintelligenceprogram
and recommending that such instructions be sent out to the field

This is the memorandum on which the Director inscribed the fol
lowing note

Senator MONDALEWhat did Hoover say In other words this is the
memo in which the Department said yes you're right Mr Director
let us get going

What did he say
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Mr EPSTEIN [reading]
No I cannot understand how you can so agilely switch your thinking and

evaluation Just a few weeks ago you contended that the Communist influence
in the racial movement was ineffective and infinitesimal This notwithstanding
many memosof specificinstances of infiltration Nowyou want to load the field
down with more coverage in spite of your recent memo deprecating CP influ
ence in racial movement I do not intend to waste time and money until you
can make up your mind what the situation really is

Senator MoNDI,E All right What then happened
Mr Eps'rmN Ten days later this memorandum again from Mr

Sullivan
Senator MONDALETo the Director
Mr EPSTEIN To the No 3 man in the Bureau Mr Belmont

stated it is prepared not on an official office memorandum but rather
on plain bond "believing that this discussion need not be a matter of
official record

On returning from a few days leave I have been advised of the Director's
continued dissatisfaction with the manner in which we prepared a brief on the
above-captionedsubject and subsequentmemoranda on the same subject matter
In this memorandum I seriously and sincerely try to clarify a most regrettable
situation

The essence of the situation seems to be this We presented what facts there
are in our files in the Brief in question and I know the Director certainly
would not want us to do other than this It is obvious to us now that we did
not put the proper interpretation upon the facts which we gave to the Director

And then again he reiterates the recommendation that was made to
intensify coverage and states again which in his testimony he has
informed us that this is what he believed the Director wanted to hear
as we stated before in a memorandum [see footnote p 21.]

We regard Martin Luther King to be the most dangerous and effectiveNegro
leader in the country May I repeat that our failure to measure up to what the
Director expected of us in the area of Communist-Negrorelations is a subject
of very deep concernto us We are disturbed by this and ought to be I want him
to know that we will do everything that is humanly possible to develop all of
the facts

It was 3 months after this memorandum that the December confer
ence was convened and it was 1 month after that in January of 1964
that the first microphone was installed

Senator MONDALEIn other words the first factual summary of the
risk of Communist influence and control over Dr King and the civil
rights movement reported that there was a very small risk indeed
Didn't the Assistant Director also testify that the role of the
Communists in the civil rights rally of 1963 was practically nil

Mr EPSTEIN That's right
Senator MONDALEThat there were about 250,000 people and only

about 190 as best they could count Communists around and they had
no role to play at that rally

Mr EPSTEIN I think he added that his recollection was that there
was some leader from the Party that they had to get on a fishing boat

Senator MONDALEThey had to plead with him to leave a fishing
trip and he stayed an hour and left Then this memo went to the
Director saying that it's not much of a risk The Director got mad
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and responded that he rejected that advice and then they began to

try to change their position in accord with the Director's expectations
Is that right And it took two memos of that kind in which they

disregarded the facts pumped up the fear before they finally per
suaded the Director that they accepted his point of view Is that right
And didn't testimony suggest that the person who wrote that memo
those memos did not believe them but in fact was only doing what
he thought he had to do in order to keep his job

Mr EPSTEIN That's right
Senator MONDALEThen it was on the basis of this pressured assess

ment of the threat of Communist control of the civil rights movement
that they then proceeded to pursue these COINTEL Programs of

harrassment neutralization spying and intimidation against Dr Mar
tin Luther King Is that correct

Mr EPSTEIN That appears to be the period of time when it began
And it was at that time the recommendation went to the Attorney
General requesting his authorization for wiretap and then 3 months
later was the December conference and in January the microphones
were put in use

Senator MONDALEDo you have the quotation from that testimony
about the fear that the agents had toward the protection of their

jobs
Mr EPSTEIN I do not have it tabbed Senator but if you like I will

find it and when I locate it I will read it in
Senator MONDALEYou do not have that
Perhaps you could summarize based on your recollection of what

we were told about why they reacted as they did
Mr EPSTEIN I think he said if they didn't they would be

transferred
Senator MONDALEAnd that they knew what they were doing which

was namely just writing a memorandum to please the Director is
that right

If I may ask one other question did this same Assistant Director
also testify about the FBI official estimates on the number of Com
munist members in the United States

Mr EPSTEIN Yes he did
Senator MONDALEWhat did he say
Mr EPSTEIN It was my recollection that he said that for years

they submitted the total number of members of the Communist Party
who were in the United States I do not remember the exact totals

Senator MONDALESomething like 80,000
Mr EPSTEIN When it started in the first report but that fact was

reported each year to the Department and that when the numbers
began to diminish as the years went along and when it reached some
level very very few in the thousands very few thousand the Director
instructed at that point that the figures should no longer be revealed
to the Department and the Bureau should hereafter take the position
that that information was classified

Senator MONDALESo that what happened for years when the public
would write in and say how many Communist Party members are
there the answer would come back about 80,000 members in the United
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States But slowly the number of members in the United States
dropped down to half of that or less than that Then according to
this Director a teacher wrote in and said what is this about the mem
bership of the OPUS A It stays 80,000 every year It does not go
up it does not go down Why does it stay so constant They did not
know how to answer that teacher because membership was then about
30,000 so they finally decided it was a matter of such high classifica
tion that they should not talk to the public about it Is that correct

Mr EPSTEI\ That is right
Senator MONDALESo the public was left with the impression then

uncorrected that there were about 80,000 members in the country
Mr EPSTEIN And in addition refused thereafter to provide the

figures to the Department of Justice
Senator MONDALERefused to provide to the public the revised

figures indicating a much lesser Communist Party membership in
this country

Is that correct
Mr EPSTEIN That is right
Senator MONDALEThank you Mr Chairman
Mr EPSTEIS I might add Mr Chairman I do not have the docu

ment in front of me but the document that recommended the dis
crediting of Dr King and the appointing of a new leader which was
in January of 1964 which was the recommendation from Mr Sullivan
and he was soliciting in that memorandum the Director's authoriza
tion to pursue that possibility further a recommendation that ap
proval be given for him to explore this whole matter in greater detail
as set forth above and underneath it is "OK H. And then there
is the note from the Director which says "I am glad to see that light
has finally though dismally_ delayed come to the Domestic Intelli
gence Division I struggled for months to get over the fact that the
Communists were taking over the racial movement but our experts
here couldn't or wouldn't see it H.

Senator MOyDALE That was the memo in which it was proposed
that King be destroyed as a civil rights leader and that the FBI
ought to sponsor his replacement by another person not in the civil
rights movement

Mr EPSTEIN That is correct
Senator MONDALEAnd Hoover personally appreciated that sugges

tion is that correct
Mr EPSTEIN He OK'd it
Senator MONDALEThank vou Mr Chairman
The CHAIRMANAnv gnestions Senator Tower
Senator TowER No nuestions
The CTIATRMANI think I might point out in concluding the hearing

that staff has reviewed the m,estion of legal authority of what we
have been discussing today and has concluded that there is not and
never has been specific statutory authority for the FBI's internal
security intelligence program The onli statute which the Bureau
cites as authority is section 533 of title XXVIII of the United States
Code which reads as follows
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"The Attorney General may appoint officials to detect and prose
cute crimes against the United States.

Now we have had in the course of the hearings today a long recital
of crimes that have in fact been undertaken by the FBI itself That
is a very sad proposition as the distinguished Senator from Michigan
Phil Hart pointed out when it comes from a Bureau that has received
as much applause that has been held in as much esteem that has
rightly been regarded as a prestigious law enforcement agency for
the many things that it has done in its efforts to track down major
criminals throughout what has often been an illustrious past

But the FBI has never had any statute clearly defining its authority
and after all of these many years this is the first serious congressional
investigation of its activities and we have seen today the dark side
of those activities where many Americans who were not even sus
pected of crime were not only spied upon but they were harassed they
were discredited and at times endangered through the covert opera
tions of the Federal Bureau of Investigation

Such revelations place serious responsibility upon this committee
to see to it that that cannot happen again I think there are many
lessons to be drawn from the testimony today but chief among them
is the necessity to draw the lines much more carefully in the statutes
that this committee should recommend and to subject the counter
intelligence activities and other internal security activities of the FBI
to the same kind of congressional oversight to which others have sug
gested that the CIA and the NSA and other foreign intelligence agen
cies of this country should be subject to

And I hope that the committee in the light of these revelations
will give very serious consideration to that whole problem area

I want to thank the members of the staff for the excellent presenta
tion that you have made today and tomorrow the FBI of course will
be here to reply to these disclosures and respond to questions of the
committee

Senator MONDALEMr Chairman I would just like to join with youin commending the staff for I would say an almost historic presenta
tion These materials are new they were hard to find and I think
we have now got a record that will help us move toward reform and
I want to thank the staff

The CHAIRMANSenator Tower
Senator TOWER Mr Chairman I would like to join with you and

others in commending the staff for I think an excellent job done in a
cooperative and bipartisan spirit one that is characterized by energyand objectivity and by the most comprehensive work of this kind that
has been done I suppose in this body especially to Mr Schwarz Mr
Smothers but not to overlook the excellent work done by the peopleback in the trenches who I suspect might have even done more work
than they have done

Mr SMOTHERSYour suspicion is correct
The CHAIRMANThank you very much gentlemen
This hearing is adjourned until 10 o'clock tomorow morning
[Whereupon at 3:55 p.m. the committee recessed to reconvene at

10 a.m. Wednesday November 19 1975.]
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U.S SENATE
SELECTCOMMrrIEE To STUDYGOVERNMENTALOPERATIONS

WITII RESPECTTO INTELLIGENCEACTIVITIES

Washington D.C

The committee met pursuant to notice at 10:05 a.m. in room 318
Russell Senate Office Building Senator Frank Church (Chairman)
presiding

Present Senators Church Tower Hart of Michigan Mondale
Huddleston Hart of Colorado Baker Goldwater Mathias and
Schweiker

Also present Frederick A O Schwarz Jr. chief counsel and
Curtis R Smothers counsel to the minority

The CHAIRMANThe hearing will please come to order
Our witnesses today are Mr James B Adams the Deputy Associ

ate Director of the FBI and Mr Raymond Wannall who is the As
sistant Director in charge of the Intelligence Division of the FBI

Before I swear the witnesses Senator Mondale has asked if he might
make an opening statement And for that purpose the Chair recog
nizes the distinguished Senator from Minnesota

Senator MONDALEThank you very much Mr Chairman I have
always supported the FBI It is clearly the finest most professional
law enforcement agency in the Nation and probably in the world In
apprehending robbers foiling kidnappers catching fugitives the FBI
has an outstanding record This is based on my own experience with
the FBI in my own state where I served as attorney general The
vast bulk of its work is devoted to law enforcement and legitimate
counterespionage

In these fields the FBI deserves fully the admiration and respect
which Americans traditionally held for the Bureau and its personnel
But in one area domestic intelligence the FBI in my opinion has
clearly gone astray It now appears that there was an underworld
within the FBI which took the tools techniques and zeal which was
so effective against the real foreign threats and turned them in upon
some of the American people

Yesterday this committee heard some of the most disturbing testi
mony that can be imagined in a free society We heard evidence that
for decades the institutions designed to enforce the laws and Consti
tution of our country have been engaging in conduct that violates the
law and the Constitution We heard that the FBI which is part of
the Department of Justice took justice into its own hands by seeking
to punish those with unpopular ideas We learned that the chief law
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enforcement agency in the Federal Government decided that it did not
need laws to investigate and suppress the peaceful and constitutional
activities of those whom it disapproved

We heard testimony that the FBI to protect the country against
those it believed had totalitarian political views employed the tactics
of totalitarian societies against American citizens We heard that the
FBI attempted to destroy one of our greatest leaders in the field of
civil rights and then replace him with someone of the FBI's choosing

From the evidence the committee has obtained it is clear that the
FBI for decades has conducted surveillance over the personal and

political activities of millions of Americans Evidently no meeting
was too small no group too insignificant to escape their attention It
did not seem to matter whether the politics of these Americans were

legal or radical or whether the participants were well known or obscure
It did not matter whether the information was intimate and personal
The FBI created indexes more commonly called enemy lists of
thousands of Americans and targeted many of the Americans on these
lists for special harassment Hundreds of thousands of Americans
were victims of this surveillance program Most of this was done in
secret Much of it was kept from Congress and the Justice Department
and all of it from the American people No one outside the FBI has
ever had an opportunity to know and appreciate the full extent of the
domestic surveillance program that was then being conducted

Thus we see that just as in the case of the CIA the key issue was
accountability how we can assure that the secret instruments of gov
ernment are accountable to the people the Congress and the law

It is clear that the FBI's authority for these programs is essential
ly nonexistent I am not persuaded that the secret Presidential orders
of President Roosevelt support the domestic intelligence program
and even if they did I do not believe that any President has the au
thority to order the FBI or anyone else to spy on Americans to
burgle their homes to wiretap them to open their mail or to black
mail them

One of the most disturbing aspects of this affair is that the FBI
never paid very much attention to whether their activities were au
thorized or not or whether they were legal and constitutional One
former senior intelligence officer has testified that he never once heard a
discussion about legality or constitutionality Most governments in
history have relied on some form of police power to determine what
views would prevail in their society However America was based
on the revolutionary concept that the people should decide what is
right and what is wrong what is acceptable and what is not

That is what we meant by a free government and our forefathers
were convinced that it can exist only through the greatest tolerance
of speech and opinion They placed their faith in the people to re
main alert to encroachments on their liberty

The founders of our country knew that the greatest danger to
freedom comes from the efforts of government to suppress the opin
ions of its opponents They set up a system which limited the powers
of government bound it in the contraints of the law and prohibited
it from infringing on the rights of people to free expression And
through the separation of power the system of checks and balances
they tried to assure that the Executive would be accountable to the
people throughthe Congress
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For the 200 years of our existence as a nation the preservation of
liberty has been a constant struggle 'Whether it has been the Alien
and Sedition Acts during the French Revolution the Red Scare and
the Palmer Raids of World War I McCarthyism after World War
IL or Army spying during the Vietnam war the Government has let
a fear of unorthodox opinion lead it into the trap of infringing upon
the Constitution in the name of internal security

The issues we confront today are a part of a continuing drama of
American democracy It is proof if we ever needed it that the price of
liberty is eternal vigilance

Revelations of abuse of power do not threaten domestic security
These hearings do not weaken the FBI What weakens it is its failure
to adhere to the proper role of law enforcement Somehow it forgot
that this was its job It began to use its energy to spy on Americans
whose only offense was in expressing opinions that some in the FBI
did not like It confused talk of violence with acts of violence and all
too often paid more attention to the talk than to the act

The answer of course is that violence justifies prosecution not
surveillance Our security is not improved by watching those who
commit crimes Security from violence lies in active and vigorous law
enforcement against those who are committing crimes Security from
dangerous ideas if we need any security should come not from the
FBI but from the merit of better ideas and the good sense of the
American people

Our liberty is best protected by scrupulous adherence to the law
and the Constitution by the agencies of Government No Government
agency likes to be the subject of public scrutiny I know these have
been difficult times for the present leadership of the FBI many of
whom were not involved in these programs at all But if they have
been spending a lot of time responding to congressional investiga
tions they cannot forget that this is the first time in 50 years that the
FBI has been subjected to public scrutiny

As painful as this process is I hope the FBI itself would welcome
the opportunity to let in some fresh air and come to grips with the
problems in candor and not retreat into past patterns of stirring up
public fears to distract our attention from the necessity of reform

Mr Chairman may I say that yesterday I am told following
our hearing the FBI responded exactly in the spirit that I had
hoped it would If they can take this constructive approach I have no
doubt that the FBI will benefit from this attention I want to see a
strong FBI an FBI strong in law enforcement in the detection of
crime and in gathering of legal evidence for prosecution and convic
tion but an FBI without abuses

As we proceed with these hearings today we should also bear in
mind that the responsibility for the abuses we have uncovered does
not rest on the FBI alone We in the Congress have been derelict
It should not have taken until this date for us to discharge our respon
sibility for investigating the FBI and other domestic intelligence

We should also realize that the FBI has been performing a func
tion which many Americans and at times the vast majority of Ameri
cans have wanted to see undertaken When popular opinion brands
a group un-American and subversive merely because of its political
views all too often the FBI has responded to public expectations and
from pressure from a higher authority in government
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While this does not excuse what happened we should temper our
criticism of the FBI's excesses by understanding that in large part
it was only the instrument of our own intolerance Indeed I believe
that is why our laws and the charter of the FBI must be carefully
redrawn to protect the FBI's integrity from political pressures and
hysteria

Finally it would be a mistake to regard the abuses of the FBI as
those of evil men The FBI has always been composed of dedicated
and hard-working public servants who seek to do their jobs as best
they can The lesson we learn from this history is that we cannot
keep our liberty secure by relying alone on the good faith of men
with great power

As Mr Justice Brandeis once wrote

Experience should teach us to be most on guard to protect liberty when
government's purposes are beneficient The greatest dangers to liberty lurk
in the insidious encroachment of men of zeal well-meaningbut without under
standing

It is my hope that the FBI witnesses we will hear today can en
lighten us as to how it can conduct internal security surveillance
programs which do not infringe on our constitutional liberties I hope
they can suggest ironclad assurances that the abuses of the past will
not be repeated We need more protection than promises of self-re
straint by men of good will

Thank you Mr Chairman
The CHAIRMANThank you Senator Mondale That is an excellent

statement with which I would like to be fully associated
Senator HART of Michigan I would Mr Chairman also except

that I want to make clear my family certainly did not support en
courage or by its vocal position give any indication to the Bureau
that they could do what they did I don't want to go too far in sug
gesting that what we heard yesterday was simply responding by the
Bureau to the mood of those years In those years if we had known what
you were doing I lay dough most families would have said stop it

Senator MONDALEThat is true I think one of the points that we
might aver to is the Huston plan and the tremendous pressure the
FBI was placed under to again resume techniques that it had aban
doned in 1966 There is no question that they were getting private pres
sure from higher authority to do things In that instance they didn't
want it

The CHAIRMANWell I was struck with the fact that the Huston
plan as illegal as it was was limited to techniques far more restric
tive than the far-reaching methods that were employed by the FBI
during the years that we have reviewed in yesterday's hearings They
led beyond anything that was ever contained in any official docu
ment requesting additional authority from the President

Now I think Mr Adams Mr Wannall in addition to swearing
you both if you are going to have occasion to ask others who are
with you to testify in response to certain questions that it would be
well at this time to swear them also So if that is the case anyone
who anticipates that the may be testifying in this morning's hearing
in response to questions if you will all stand and take the oath at
this time
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Do you and each of you solemnly swear that all of the testimony
that you will give in these proceedings will be the truth the whole
truth and nothing but the truth so help you God

Mr ADAMSI do
Mr WANNALLI do
The CHAIRMANAfter yesterday's hearing I asked the staff to fur

nish me with the statutory authority that presently exists that could
be said to relate to the FBI's intelligence activities which was of
course the subject of yesterday's hearings And I am furnished in
response to that request title XFIII section 533 of the United States
Code which reads as follows

The Attorney General may appoint officials 1 to detect and prosecute crimes
aganist the United States 2 to assist in the protection of the person of the
President and 3 to conduct such other investigations regarding official mat
ters under the control of the Department of Justice and the Department of State
as may be directed by the Attorney General

Now yesterday Mr Wannall we were told about a series of activi
ties that were undertaken by the FBI and indeed initiated within the
FBI the purpose of which was to harass and discredit Dr Martin
Luther King I am not referring to the results of any FBI investiga
tive activity but rather I am referring to these kinds of initiatives
that were undertaken for the purpose of either harassing or em
barrassing or otherwise discrediting Dr King himself My first ques
tion is was Dr King in his advocacy of equal rights for black
citizens advocating a course of action that in the opinion of the FBI
constituted a crime

TESTIMONY OF JAMES B ADAMS DEPUTY ASSOCIATE DIRECTOR
OF THE FBI AND RAYMOND WANNALL ASSISTANT DIRECTOR
FBI INTELLIGENCE DIVISION

Mr ADAMSNo sir
The CHAIRMANSo he was not then thought to be engaged in any

criminal activity In fact he was preaching as I remember those
days nonviolence was he not as a method of achieving equal rights
for black citizens

Mr ADAMS That's right his advocacy for civil rights
The CHAIRMAN His advocacy of civil rights was nonviolent and

therefore legal in character
Mr ADAMS That was not the basis of our investigation of him
The CHAIRMANBut as you have said he was not engaging in any

unlawful activity in connection with his advocacy of equal rights for
black citizens Is that correct

Mr ADAMSYes sir
The CHAIRMANWell is it true that at one time the FBI undertook

to discourage an American college from conferring an honorary degree
on Dr King

Mr ADAMSYes sir
The CHAIRMANOn what legal basis does the FBI have a right to

interfere in an effort to discourage a college from conferring an
honorary degree upon a man like Dr Martin Luther King who was
not engaging in or suspected of engaging in criminal activity

Mr ADAMSI know of no basis
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The CHAIRMANWhy did the FBI do it
Mr ADAMSWell we have to approach two parts in my estimation

Senator Church One the basis for our investigation of Martin Luther
King which was to determine Communist influence on him my hands
are tied in discussing that somewhat on the basis that there is certain
information which today from an ongoing operation is sensitive and
which of course we have made known to you and certain staff mem
bers I would like to say on the basis that from our review we feel
that we initially had a basis for investigating Martin Luther King
Now as far as the activities which you are asking about the discredit
ing I know of no basis for that and I will not attempt to justify it

The CHAIRMAN You never made a finding did you that Martin
Luther King was a Communist.

Mr ADAMSNo sir we did not We were investigating Communist
influence and the possible effect on him We never made such a deter
mination

The CHAIRMANVery well Then there was no justification for the
FBI to interfere

Mr ADAMSTo discredit him
The CHAIRMANIn conferring an honorary degree upon him
Mr ADAMSI cannot find any justification for that
The CHAIRMANIs it true that the FBI on another occasion inter

vened in an attempt to prevent Dr Martin Luther King from seeing the
Pope

Mr ADAMSI believe that is correct sir There were approximately
25 incidents I believe of actions taken in this regard I think Mr
Schwarz has those available that I would lump basically all of them
into the same situation of I see no statutory basis or no basis of justifi
cation for the activity

The CHAIRMANBut what was the motive there being no statutory
or other valid basis What was the motive for attempting to prevent
Dr Martin Luther King from visiting with the Pope

Mr ADAMS In looking at absolute motive I don't think the files
which we have reviewed and made available to the committee give me a
clear picture of what the motive was I think that there were the
motive was certainly known to Mr Hoover It was known to one top
official who is no longer with the Bureau and maybe known to others
all of whom have been interviewed by the committee Matters bearing
on what might have been the real motive or the possible motive I again
feel because of reasons of privacy and delicacy are not a proper sub
iect of discussion at a public hearing I think we know what could have
influenced this but one the primary individual Mr Hoover is not
with us Individuals who were closest to him in this effort are not with
us And the committee itself has interviewed them So I really am not
in a position to discuss this motive issue

The CHAIRMANNevertheless you would agree that whatever the
motive it was a very improper thing to do

Mr AnAMS I cannot find any justification no sir
The CHAIRMANIs it true that after Dr Martin Luther King had

been nominated for the Nobel Peace Prize that an anonymous letter
was sent to him and to Coretta King his wife 34 days before he was
to receive the Nobel Peace Prize [See footnote p 21.]
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Mr ADAMSI do not think those dates are correct
The CHAIRMANWell it was sent
Mr ADAMSIt was before he was to receive it I think 34 days upon

reconstruction by one of the members of my staff 34 days would have
been Christmas Day and whether that 34 days

The CHAIRMAN It is hard to believe that such a letter would be
written on Christmas Day

Mr ADAMSIt was not written on Christmas Day but 34 days the
Nobel Peace Prize I think was on December 10 the letter 34 days
from the date of the mailing of the letter as has been reconstructed as
best as possible would have been Christmas Day

The CHAIRMANWas the letter written and sent by the FBI
Mr ADA_msWe have no information to that effect All we know

is that the draft or original of what may have been the letter was
found in papers of the FBI left after a former official departed the
FBI We know that based upon inquiries that we have conducted
and you have conducted we know that the letter was not I mean it
was in connection with other material So I think we can assume

The CIL1IRMANOther materials which were sent
Mr ADAMS That's right So I can assume that the letter was sent

I have determined nothing from my review of the files and neither has
your staff to my knowledge or has been reported back to me which
would indicate that this action was duly recorded in any file or was
a part of any authorized program or anything else This is a void that
I do not think any of us has been satisfactorily able to resolve

The CHAIRMANWe know the letter appeared in the files We know
that the letter was received We know it was associated with other
matters that were sent by the FBI to Dr Martin Luther King

Mr ADAMSThe letter was never in our files in the sense that it was
entered into the official files of the FBI It was among papers

The CHAIRMA\ It was among papers
Mr ADAMSLeft by an individual who had departed
The CIIAI i rAN That individual being Mr Sullivan
Mr ADAMSYes sir
The CHAIRMANThe letter read "King there is only one thing left

for you to do You know what it is You have just 34 days in which
to do it this exact number has been selected for a specific reason It has
definite practical significance You are done There is but one way out
for you.

Now if you had received such a letter how would you have inter
preted it What would you have thought it meant

Mr AnAMS I have read that statement I have heard the conclu
sions of your staff that it was a suicide urging I can't find any basis
upon which they drew that conclusion I think that approaching it
from an objective standpoint as I read it I don't know what it means
I think rather than a conclusion it should be a speculation in a realm
of possibilities as to what was intended but I cannot I don't under
stand the basis for it It is a possibility but I certainly would not reach
such a conclusion from my reading of that statement

The CHAIRMANNow if you had received a letter of this kind and
it had been directed to you and you were in Dr King's position and
you read "King there is only one thing left for you to do You know
what it is You have just 34 days in which to do it. Now that hap
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pened to correspond to the time before which he was to receive the
Nobel Peace Prize What would you think that it meant

Mr ADAMSI would have to consider what I was being accused of I
would have to consider what the facts were I would have to consider
what the intent was of the person writing such a note coming just
before Christmas I don't know if it means it is an urging to repent
from something this person whoever he was that had sent it I have
no idea what it meant

The CHAIRMANIt is certainly no Christmas card is it
Mr ADAMSIt is certainly no Christmas card
The CHAIRMANIt reads "You are done There is but one way out

for you. What does that mean
Mr ADAMSI don't know I don't know if it means confession I don't

know if it means suicide as has been raised I have no idea You have
the statement I am not in a position to say I haven't interviewed any
one that was with him at the time he received it

The CHAIRMANWould you disown this statement and say that any
connection the FBI had with it was utterly improper and grotesque

Mr ADAMSI certainly would say it was improper and I can't justify
its being prepared or sent yes sir

Senator MONDALE_Mr Chairman if I might just interrupt
The CHAIRMANSenator Mondale
Senator MONDALEWhat I asked the staff yesterday was what Dr

King took it to mean I have no knowledge of what those who framed
this letter intended and those who were with him at the time he read
it including Congressman Young who was one of his assistants at the
time said that they took it to mean a suggestion that he take his own
life

Mr ADAMSI am not in possession of that information I am being
put in a position I don't know what the staff determined They did not
report back to me on their findings

The CHAIRMANThe letter will speak for itself You personally have
disowned it

Mr ADAMSAbsolutely
The CHAIRMANIt was a highly improper thing for the FBI to be

connected with in any way Do you agree with that
Mr ADAMSYes sir yes sir
The CHAIRMANNow without going through the many different and

specific undertakings that were intended to publicly discredit Dr King
because my time will not permit that and others will want to question
you on other specific matters I have just one further Question to put
to you Yesterday there was a document of the FBI which suggested
that in the opinion of the Bureau Dr King was an unsuitable leader
for the civil rights movement and that another man should be looked
for and indeed another candidate was actually suggested to Mr
Hoover as one who should he nromoted in various ways so that he
might assume the leadership of this movement

Now can you tell me of anything in the law or any other ittstifica
tion given the mission of the FBI that would entitle it to decide
who should lead political movements in this country or to undertake
to degrade a man who had fought and won s vh leadership and hnd
the support of a great many black people in this country and white
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people as well and to substitute in his place someone of the FBI's selec
tion or someone who stood in the FBI's favor Can you think of any
justification for such activity on the part of a law enforcement agency

Mr AnAMs I can't think of any offhand no sir
The CHAIRMANNeither can I Senator Tower
Senator TOWERThank you Mr Chairman
What is your understanding of the underlying causes of the feud

between Mr Hoover and Dr King
Mr ADAMS Senator Tower I feel if we got into any discussion of

that I think we would have to take into consideration certain material
which I feel should not be disclosed publicly and I would respectfully
ask that a question of motive of Mr Hoover and the spat with Mr
King should be discussed in executive session if at all

Senator TOWER In 1965 Attorney General Katzenbach was in
formed by Mr ,Hoover of the Bureau's surveillance of Dr King What
was the Attorney General's reaction What was his position once he
was informed by Mr Hoover of this surveillance

Mr ADA_msI don't recall having seen it
Senator TowER In other words did the Attorney General give any

direction to the Bureau in the matter that you know of
Mr ADAMS Yes sir I knoll that of course on the wiretapping on

Martin Luther King it was approved by the Attorney General I know
that the President of the United States and the Attorney General spe
cifically discussed their concern with Dr King over Communist in
fluence on him I do know there was concern but I don't tie in this
date 1965

Senator TOWER Do you know whether or not Mr Hoover ever
sought direct authorization from Mr Katzenbach for this very sensi
tive surveillance of Dr King

Mr ADAMSI don't know Attorney General Kennedy approved the
actual surveillance that was instituted on Dr King I don't know of
any correspondence between Attorney General Katzenbach

Senator TowER Or any personal communication between them that
would have indicated the level of the Attorney General's involvement

Mr ADAMS No If my recollection serves me correctly as far as
Attorney General Kennedy was concerned he requested coverage on
Dr King The Bureau responded with a request in writing which is
our normal procedure He declined to approve that request and then
we came back later a few months later and requested it again at which
time he did approve That is my recollection of that

Senator TowER Why did the Attorney General change his mind
Do you have any idea or is that again a matter of sensitivity

Mr ADAMS I don't know why he actually changed his mind from
originally requesting then declining when it was submitted and then
approving it on the second go-round It may be in the files If it is I
would be glad to see what I could determine

Senator TOWERIf you could we would like to have that [See foot
note p 21.]

Mr ADAMSYes sir
Senator TowER Mr Adams you have been familiar with the Bu

reau's domestic intelligence work for many years How did the Bureau
come to launch the COINTELPRO and what in essence did
COINTELPRO accomplish
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Mr ADAMSWell the program as such as I can reconstruct from the
files was indicated as concern over conspiratorial efforts of certain
groups and a decision made that perhaps more affirmative action
should be taken to neutralize violence which was becoming of more
concern to the FBI in that regard I believe these are some of the basic
considerations that went into the launching of the COINTELPRO

Now as far as the first one which was the Communist Party of
course there was the concern here to neutralize the effectiveness of the
Communist Party in the United States In fact out of all of the
COINTELPRO operations that were approved 59 percent of them
were directed at the Communist Party The bulk of the concern mi
tially was with the Communist Party and it was a desire to create fac
tionalism within the Communist Party and try to neutralize its efforts
The Communist Party Congress itself still has a determination on
the record as to the threat of the Communist Party in a statute The
Supreme Court has held that the Communist Party is an instrument of
the Soviet Union The Soviet Union certainly has not relinquished
its interest in the United States as a target All of these considerations
went into should we do something not only to follow the activities of
the Communist Party but should we destroy its effectiveness in the
United States That was the first program I believe that was initiated

Senator TOWERNow did the Bureau ever seek direction and counsel
from the Attorney General on any of its COINTELPRO efforts or
specific programs

Mr AnAMS As best as I can reconstruct Senator there was no direct
authority requested from any Attorney General for the initiation of
these programs and it is only a question as your staff presented yester
day that the Attorneys General Presidents Congress had been made
aware of certain aspects of programs after the fact and those were
primarily concerned with the Communist Party and on one other
organization but not the New Left and these other types So I cannot
find any evidence and I have no reason to believe that there would be
any evidence that the Bureau initiated these programs other than as
an internal decision

Senator TOWERWere reports on these programs made to the Attor
ney General Was he informed of them Was he kept informed on a
continuing basis

Mr ADAMSHe was kept informed by letters which again the staff
has alluded to letters reporting certain developments For instance
one of them that went to one Attorney General reading of that letter
outlined almost in complete detail Klan activities activities taken to
disrupt the Klan It used terms of neutralize disrupt There were a
clear explanation of what we were doing against the Klan in that
regard

Senator TowER How is it that you came to believe that you had the
authority to neutralize or disrupt these organizations rather than pro
ceed against them frontally through prosecuting them for violations
of the law

Mr AnA`rs I guess you would have to say in a position like this
that it is just the Smith Act of 1940 which is designed to prevent
revolutionary groups from advocating the overthrow of the Govern
ment and then subsequent interpretations as to the constitutionality
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of it leaves us with a statute still on the books that proscribes certain
actions but yet the degree of proof necessary to operate under the few
remaining areas is such that there was no satisfactory way to proceed
and it was an area where

The CHAIRMANWill the Senator yield at that point please What
you are saying Mr Adams is that you (lid not operate within the
law because the law didn't give you sufficient latitude Therefore you
undertook direct action to disrupt and otherwise undermine these
organizations

Senator TowER Did you proceed on the assumption that these
organizations would eventually break the law and therefore you sought
to neutralize and disrupt them before they did

Mr ADAMS I can't say that sir I think that the investigations of
them were based on this belief that they might break the law or they
were breaking the law The disruptive activities I can't find where
we were able to relate to that What it boils down to is what we have
gotten into a question on before in our review of the situation we see
men of the FBI recognizing or having a good-faith belief that there
was immediate danger to the United States

Senator TOWERAll right but to repair to Senator Church's question
you don't say that you really had specific legal authority

Mr ADAMSNo And this is the hang-up with the whole program and
which we are not trying to justify that there is some statutory basis
I would not make that effort whatsoever All I'm trying to do is say
that at the time it was initiated we had men who felt that there was
an immediate danger to the country They felt they had a responsibility
to act and having felt this responsibility did act And this is the whole
problem we have at the present time because we do have one we can
see good evidence of their belief there was a threat We had cities being
burned we had educational institutions being bombed We had deaths
occurring from all of these activities We had a situation that we didn't
know what the end was going to be

We never can look around the corner in intelligence operations We
don't know if ultimately this might bring the destruction of the coun
try All we know is we had an extremely violent time So I don't find
any basis in my mind to argue with their good-faith belief they were
faced with a danger

Now when they move over to the second area of responsibility here
is where we have the problem and I think it is the whole purpose of
this committee the Attorney General Mr Kelley all of us realizing
we can't operate in these areas where we feel responsibility but we
don't have a mandate by Congress So in that area this feeling of
responsibility I feel came from the fact that Presidents as your staff
said yesterday Presidents Congressmen the Attorney General no one
really provided direction and guidance or instructions don't do this
do this don't do that or what are you doing and how are you doing it

For instance there is some feeling on the part of some that our whole
domestic intelligence operations was secret The COINTELPRO
operation was I mean I think we all agree that this was to be effec
tive they felt it should be secret But back in our this is printed ap
propriation testimony which went to the members of the committee It
was mailed out to newspapers friends anyone that was interested in it

56-0770 76 6



72

back in 1967 talking about Internal Security's operations the New
Left movement Young Socialist Alliance Chicago trial nationwide
demonstrations student agitation antiwar activities the Committee
of Returned Volunteers Communist Party > .S A. Progressive Party
Socialist Party extreme organizations Black Panther Party

All of these items and statements about extremists white extremists
and hate-type groups the Republic of New Africa Minuteman our
coverage of subversive organizations there are several groups orga
nizations and movements which I discussed showed the wide coverage
we must maintain to follow on their activities and changing tactics
and in spite of the proliferation of these organizations our informant
coverage at all levels has been of great value and assistance enabling
us to keep abreast of our investigative responsibilities This is the
same way through all of our public appropriation testimony We have
told the world we are investigating black hate groups New Left
groups So I merely mention this to try to put in the frame of ref
erence of these men feeling they know we are investigating them
They didn't tell them though in sufficient detail other than scantily
before the Appropriations Committee what we were doing to disrupt
these activities and my feeling is that the men recognized the danger
they pointed out the danger to the world They said we are investi
gating these organizations and they felt then that the comfortable
climate of leave it up to the FBI we should do something more And
that is what we are looking for guidelines on the Attorney General
Mr Kelley you to give us the guidelines under which we should
operate

Now there are certain guidelines that we don't need to be given
we shouldn't do this We don't have such activities today programs
designed to disrupt and neutralize in the domestic intelligence field
But beyond that we need guidelines on what does the whole of Con
gress representative of the people by passing of legislation say this is
the FBI's role in domestic intelligence

Senator TowER Mr Chairman my time has long since expired
But I would like to note that I saw Mr Kelley on the "Today Show
this morning indicating strong support for a response to congres
sional oversight and that is a healthy attitude

The CHAIRMAN Well I think it must come because as you have
conceded you shouldn't have ever had to have had the guidelines
that the Federal Government's chief law enforcement agency ought
not to disobey the law and really you don't need explicit guidelines
to tell you that or you shouldn't Wouldn't you agree

Mr ADAMS I would say that looking at it today we should have
looked at it that way yesterday but I do feel I don't have any doubt
about the good faith of people recognizing the danger feeling they
had a responsibility no matter whose fault it was our's internally or
because we weren't given the supervision we should have been given
and taking what they considered to be appropriate action

The CHAIRMANSenator Hart
Senator HART of Michigan I should apologize both to witnesses

and my colleagues on the committee for scrambling around loosely
but in explanation to the witnesses I have not been able to give atten
tion to the evolution of the files that are now at hand until the last
couple of days and I am not sure what is in the files for the public
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record and which of the materials I have been shown in the last couple
of days are still under seal So just out of memory I am going to sum
marize certain activities which have been acknowledged that the
Bureau undertook but without being specific with respect to location
and names I do it for this reason it is right that the committee
and the press be worried about the treatment of a Nobel Prize win
ner Dr King but there are an awful lot of people who never got
close to a Nobel Prize whose names are Jones and Smith that my
review of the files show had violence clone to their first amendment
rights Nobel Prize winners will always get protection but Joe
Potatoes doesn't and the Committee should focus on him too

Included in these COINTELPRO activities were anonymous
letters drafted by Bureau offices in the field sent to headquarters in
Washington approved and then put in the mail intended to break
up marriages not of Dr King but of Mary and John Jones because
one or the other was thought to be a dissenter might have dressed
strangely or showed up at meetings in company of others who dressed
strangely Anonymous letters were sent to university officials and to
the several newspapers in that city to prevent university facilities from
being made available to a speaker of whom the Bureau disapproved
and it was not a topflight bigname speaker

In that case an anonymous letter was sent to me making protest
Being an anonymous letter it never occurred to me that it came from
the Federal Bureau of Investigation The series of anonymous letters
one with the spelling very poor the grammar sloppy and another more
sophisticated protesting the employment of a man by a city alleging
that he was a Communist or came from a Communists family and
there are loyal Americans out of work what are you doing mayor
And to the press isn't this an outrage And again the letter the
anonymous letter sent to me saying what are you going to do about this
There are loyal Democrats in this town who need work And in that
case I happened to have known the man about whom the protest was
made and the Bureau's facts were wrong as hell on that man's
loyalty He was as loyal as you or I Now yes or no are those actions
regarded now by the Bureau as within bounds

Mr ADAMSNo sir
Senator HART of Michigan Why were they regarded as within

bounds when they were approved by the Bureau
Mr ADAMSWell I think even under the guidelines of COINTEL

PRO as established the programs were not designed for the purpose
of harassment of an individual The memorandums indicate they were
designed to disrupt the organizations Some of the turndowns were
turned clown on this specific wording This is mere harassment.

The rationale would have been and of course here I say some of
these you mentioned wouldn't even appear to me to meet the criteria of
the program and should have been disavowed even under the existence
of the program However in the total context of the program activities
were to be directed toward the organization itself but we do not
do that at the present time

Senator HARTof Michigan Yes But everything I have summarized
rather poorly was approved by the Bureau at the time by headquarters
not by the field officeagents
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Mr ADAMSI do not think that there were improper actions taken
under the program even under the program as it existed Mr Kelley
has so stated his recognition of that fact The Attorney General cer
tainly has Yet the majority of the actions taken even the Department
concluded were lawful and legal proper investigation activities but
are

Senator HARTof Michigan You see my feeling is that it isn't a ques
tion of techniques that are bad The concept of the program seems to
do violence to the first amendment because everything you did sought
to silence someone or threaten someone to silence or deny someone a
platform or create an atmosphere in which people were in fact afraid
to assemble Now sometimes law enforcement legitimate law enforce
ment has what we call this chilling effect when it is legitimate law
enforcement Oftentimes that chilling effect is a necessary though
regretable side effect But what I am talking about and what these
files are full of are actions the only purpose of which is to chill It
isn't in pursuit of any crime at all Indeed when a court of general
jurisdiction approved the use of that university premise by the
speaker the Bureau had stirred so much controversy with its
anonymous letters when that judge wrote an order after the sponsor
ing group went to court what was the Bureau's reaction from head
7uarters Investigate the judge

Mr ADAMSI'm not familiar with that fact
Senator HARTof Michigan Well neither was I until last night
Mr ADAMSThe instruction was to investigate the judge
Senator HARTof Michigan This is the sort of thing that I came out

of the hospital to find and it is the sort of thing as I said yesterday
that my children have been telling me for years you were busy doing
and I simply didn't believe them And they were right and I was
wrong

Mr ADAMSWell there were about 3,200 activities and about 2,300 I
believe or so were approved under the COINTELPRO and over 59
percent were addressed to the Communist Party That leaves 1,000
And out of 1,000 perhaps I don't know what the actual figure was
of ones that just clearly stand out as improprietous under the pro
gram even as it existed at the time but I do feel that well it is a
very difficult area

Senator HART of Michigan My time is up too I am sure but
regarding the Communist Party if your theory continues to be that
any socially active group of citizens who organize whether women's
libbers or fight the bomb or anything else might be a target for
infiltration by the Communist Party and therefore you can move
in your agents That means almost not as an overstatement that any
and every citizen's activity could be made the target of the kind of
activity that I have just described because every individual is apt
during his lifetime to engage in violence If that is justification then
you are justified in running surveillance on everybody

Mr ADAMSWell that was not
Senator HARTof Michigan Everybody has that privilege and that

clearly is a police-state concept
Mr ADAMSThat is not our criteria
Senator HARTof Michigan All right but if the criteria is three or

four of us get together and we have a sort of nutty idea just the
kind of thing the Communists would like to exploit and therefore you
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seek to justify shutting off the forum for that group or to survey it
the potential for Communist infiltration then if that continues to be
your theory then I say you are going to pursue the same wretched
road that these files show you have been pursuing before If that is
the predicate the fact that a Soviet or Marxist or Maoist Hottentot is
liable to think there is an idea that we can exploit. then you people are
going to be spending how many man-hours how many tax dollars
doing the kind of things that I summarized so briefly here That in
my book is the 20th century version of what the Founding Fathers
intended to prevent when they wrote the first amendment Is it the
position of the Bureau when a Communist participates associates with
and promotes an idea that this justifies you trying to figure out if
you can bust up a marriage if two of the people are in the group

Mr ADAMSIt does not and it is not our criteria no sir
Senator HARTof Michigan What does it justify
Mr ADAMSIt justifies our doing nothing in the way of COIN

TELPRO activities I still feel it has a justification that you agree
with to investigate the Communist Party It is when you get into
the disruptive areas where the program does beyond investigation
that we have no statutory authority

Senator HART of Michigan Well we have been emphasizing
COINTELPRO Would it justify tailing these people

Mr ADAMSWhat just a
Senator HARTof Michigan Or putting an informant into the group
Mr ADAMSIf it is a Communist group
Senator HART of Michigan No if it's me and somebody else that

thinks we oughtn't to have something that a majority of people think
we should We organize and you people say "Well there is something
the Communists can take and run with.

Mr ADAMSNo sir
Senator HARTof Michigan Does that justify a surveillance of them
Mr ADAMS It does not and we would not Before we would even

open a preliminary inquiry we should have an indication that the
Communist Party has attempted to infiltrate or is infiltrating In
other words where you have some evidence of a subversive group
participating in the functions of that organization and there are grey
areas here in the spectrum of anything where I am sure we have opened
investigations where we should not because there has been scant evi
dence of such infiltration And this is a supervisory problem It is a
criteria problem And it is also an oversight problem which we are
responding to

Senator HARTof Michigan My time is up and I haven't gotten into
some of the other material

The CHAIRMANWell Senator you have not been with us
Senator HARTof Michigan No no I just
The CHAIRMANIf you want more time you have a lot of time stored

up If you want to use it now go right ahead
Senator HART of Michigan Well let me ask the justification for

this sort of business I have been talking about the things I have seen
in the files that bear on direct denial of first amendment rights and
again this does not deal with the treatment of a distinguished Ameri
can Indeed it involves groups that are generally viewed with very
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sharp disapproval The ground rules for the treatment should be
precisely the same whether he is a good popular guy or a dirty
smelly guy What was the purpose of the Bureau in trying to stir up
strife perhaps I shouldn't say what was the purpose what possible
justification for the Bureau trying to sic the Black Panthers on that
outfit out in California or between the Black Panthers and the Black
stone Rangers in Chicago Was it with the hope that by fomenting it
they would kill each other off

Mr ADAMS Absolutely not and I think the committee staff can
inform you that during their review of all of these matters they
haven't come up with one instance of violence resulting from any of
these actions In that particular case there was a communication in
the same file which I believe the staff had access to which showed that
we did get information that one of these groups was going to put out a
contract on one of the others and we notified the police and the indi
vidual of the fact that their life was in danger None of our programs
have contemplated violence and the instructions prohibited it and
the record of turndowns of recommended actions in some instances
specifically say that we do not approve this action because if we take it
it could result in harm to the individual So I think this is one
charge and the staff did not make such a charge I might add when
they presented the picture but I think any inference that we were
trying to result in violence is wrong

Senator HART of Michigan Let me explain for the record why I
reached the conclusion I did

Mr ADAMSThe wording of that memorandum
Senator HART of Michigan And why I continue to hold to that

conclusion
On January 30 1969 the Bureau headquarters in Washington

approved sending an anonymous letter to the leader of the Blackstone
Rangers Jeff Fort which indicated that the Black Panthers had puta contract out on his life as a result of conflicts between the two
organizations [exhibit 28 11 Now you say that was to warn him
I ask wasn't the principal purpose of the letter to encourage the
Rangers to shoot some or all of the leadership of the Panthers
Otherwise what does this quote mean and I will read it It is from
a memorandum from the Chicago office of the FBI asking approvalto undertake this Here is the way it reads "It is believed that the
above this anonymous tip that a contract is out on you "It is believed
that the above may intensify the degree of animosity between the
two groups and occasion Fort to take retaliatory actions which could
disrupt the BBP, the Black Panthers "or lead to reprisals against
its leadership Consideration has been given to a similar letter to the
Panthers alleging a Ranger plot against Panther leadership How
ever it is not felt that this will be productive principally because the
Panthers at present is not believed as violence prone at the Rangers
to whom violent type activity shooting and the like are second
nature. [Exhibit 29.2]

Now how can you reach any conclusion other than a purpose was to
generate the kind of friction that would induce the killing

Seep 430
2Seep 432
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Mr ADAMSWell if that purpose was for that rather than generat
ing factionalism disagreements disrupting it it would be contrary to
the communication I referred to in the other file the Black Panthers
versus Ellis where we notified the police of the contract we notified
the individuals of the contract and took every action at our command
to prevent direct violence and also the fact that the files showed that
we turned down these situations where violence was involved

Senator HART of Michigan Well we have differing views with re
spect to motives and the purpose of the Panther situtaion in Chicago
I still do not understand why we sought to set the Panthers and this
US group in California against each other as they were Also I don't
know whether it is in the record open or not what purpose other than
to occasion violence moved the Bureau to approve of forged signa
tures of Communist Party personnel on letters addressed to Mafia
owned businesses attacking the employment practices of those busi
nesses Why would the Bureau think there was any value to be served
in concocting a forged letter Let us assume Phil Hart is a local Com
munist in this city The Bureau forges Phil Hart's name to a racket
owned business notorious for using muscle protesting that fellow's
business practices Certainly it was not intended to improve the em
ployment practices

Mr ADAMSI think if the full communication were available it did
show a purpose unrelated to violence I don't recall the exact wording
now but I think it was to create a lack of support or something like
that This was part of that HOODWINK program I believe that
was one of four actions that were involved in HOODWINK and I
think there have been some public descriptions of that program that
indicate that it was not the greatest thing coming down the pike

Senator HARTof Michigan Well that is the sort of thing I found
that persuaded me to say very openly that I do not buy the idea that
the American people ultimately are responsible for that kind of non
sense because I am certain that virtually every family in the country
would have screamed in protest no matter how much they disliked
Dr King or the Panthers or the Communists

Mr AnAMS Sir
Senator HARTof Michigan If they had known that tax money and

Federal personnel were busy around the country notwithstanding
bank robberies that were going on at the same time pounding out that
kind of correspondence and inciting that kind of conflict and curbing
speech

Thank you Mr Chairman
The CHAIRMANThank you very much Senator Hart
Senator Mondale is next
Senator MoNDALEMr Adams I realize that you were not a part of

this particular event But being an experienced FBI hand I wonder if
you could help us understand the psychology that led to this kind of
memorandum

Mr AnAMS I feel it coming but go ahead
Senator MONDAIE This is a memorandum to the Director It has

been referred to before It calls for removing King from his pedestal
and replacing him bs someone else The memo is dated January 8
1964 and was written a week following the time that King was named
man of the year by Time Magazine [See footnote p 21.]
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This memo as you know received the following comment from Mr
Hoover "I am glad to see that light though it has been delayed has
come to the Domestic Intelligence Division, and so on I would just
quote part of the language and maybe you can help us understand
the psychology that led to it The first part of the memo says "We
have got to remove King from his pedestal. Then it says

The Negroes will be left without a national leader of sufficientlycompelling
personality to steer it in a proper direction This is what could happen but need
not happen if the right kind of national negro leader could at this time be gradu
ally developedso as to overthrow Dr King and be in the position to assume the
role of leadership of the Negro people when King has been completely dis
credited

For some months I have been thinking about this matter One day I had an
opportunity to explore this from a philosophicaland sociologicalstandpoint with
X [the name of the leader] whom I have known for someyears As I previously
reported he is a very able fellow and one on whom I can rely I asked him to
give the matter someattention and if he knew any Negroof outstanding intelli
genceor ability let meknowand wewouldhave a discussion

He has submitted to me the name of the above-namedperson Enclosed with
this memorandum is an outline of X's biography which is truly remarkable In
scanning this biography it will be seen that X does have all of the qualifications
of the kind of a Negro I have in mind to advance to positions of national
leadership

And skipping
I want to make it clear at once that I don't propose that the FBI in any way

becomeinvolved openly as the sponsor of a Negro leader to overshadowMartin
Luther King If this thing can be set up properly without the Bureau in any way
becomingdirectly involved I think it would be not only a great help to the FBI
but wouldbe a finething for the country at large

While I'm not specifyingat this moment there are various ways in which the
FBI could give this entire matter the proper direction and development There
are highly placedcontacts at the FBI whoit might be very helpful to further such
a step This can be discussed at a later date when I have probed more fully into
the possibilities and this recommendationis that approval be given for me to
explorethe wholematter as set forth above

And to that Mr Hoover says
I'm glad to see the light has finally come I have struggled for months to get

over the fact that the communists were taking over the racial movementsbut
our experts here couldn't or wouldn't see it

Now I think you testified earlier that you do not accept this as
proper FBI activity but can you help us understand how at one point
in American history someone thought it was proper apparently in
cluding the Director

Mr ADAMSI would have to say for one thing that this gets into the
real motive of the discrediting of Martin Luther King which I don't
feel can be fully explored I think that the people most directly in
volved in that are not available because I don't know from my experi
ence what they had in mind in this regard I have no doubt from this
memorandum and other memorandums that the two individuals in
volved felt very strongly that Martin Luther King was a threat to the
success of the Negro movement and that steps should be taken to get
him out of that what the reason for it was or the motivation I am
just not in a position to say I do say it is improper to inject yourself
into that type of activity but I don't know what the real motive was

Senator MONDALEDr King was investigated as I think you testi
fied earlier because of fears of Communist influence upon him

Mr ADAMSYes
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Senator MONDALEIs that a proper basis for investigating Dr King
or anyone else

Mr ADAMS It is where you have information indicating that the
Communist Party is and has made efforts to try to influence an in
dividual I would say that that would normally be considered within
the current criteria

Senator MONDALEYou would consider that to be a valid basis for
investigating today

Mr ADAMS The movement itself but not the individual
Senator MONDALEHow do you investigate a movement without in

vestigating individuals
Mr ADAMS You do get into a gray area The main thing would be

if we had an organization today that we saw the Communist Party
gravitating to trying to work in positions of leadership we would be
interested in opening an investigation on Communist infiltration of
that organization to see if it was affecting it

Senator MONDALEAll right now let's go back specifically I gather
there never was any question raised about whether Dr King was a
Communist That was never charged

Mr ADA_msNot as a Communist Party member no sir
Senator MONDALEThat's right Or that he was about to commit or

had committed acts of violence
Mr ADAMSNo
Senator MONDALEBut the reason for investigating him apparently

was that he was subject to Communist influence Now what makes that
a justified reason for investigating him Is it a crime to be approached
by someone who is a Communist

Mr ADAMSNo
Senator MONDALEWhat is the legal basis for that investigation
Mr ADAMSThe basis would be the Communist influence on him and

the effect it would have on the organization It would be in connection
with our basic investigation of the Communist Party

Senator MONDALEWell as I understand the law to read it is not a
crime to be a member of the Communist Party

Mr ADAMSThat is correct
Senator MONDALEHow can it be a crime to know someone who is a

member of the Communist Party
Mr ADAMSIt is not
Senator MONDALEHow do you investigate something as tenuous as

that 'What is the basis for it legally
Mr ADAMS'Well it falls into the area of one the intelligence juris

diction of the activities of the Communist Party to have a situation
where an individual in an organization a leader of an organization
efforts are being made to influence him and to achieve control over the
organization and it is part of the overall investigation of the party
trying to exert this influence as to are they successful are they taking
over the black movement or the civil rights movement It is just like
we tried to make clear in investigations that were more prevalent years
ago but still occur on the Communist influence in labor unions 'We
tried to tell everybody we interview we are not interested in labor mat
ters We are not trying to inquire into that We are interested in the
effect of the Communist Party on this union
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Senator MONDALEMr Adams I am trying to get at the legal basis
in this particular case for investigating Dr King on the grounds that
he might be subject to Communist influence Can you cite any legal
basis for that or is it based entirely upon a generalized authority
thought to exist in the FBI to investigate internal security matters

Mr ADAMSIt would fall also in the Presidential directives of in
vestigating subversive activities

Senator MONDALEThen the question would return to what authority
the President had

Mr ADAMSThat's right
Senator MONDALENow Dr King was investigated among other

things for matters of I think you call it delicacy Would that be a
basis for investigating an American citizen by the FBI

Mr ADAMSNo
Senator MONDALEWould you say then that those investigations

were improper
Mr ADAMSI don't believe that there is an allegation that we investi

gated him for that I think there were certain by-products of informa
tion that developed and I think at a point you had a situation where
the tail was wagging the dog perhaps but I don't see any basis for
such investigation And I find it very difficult to get into a discussion
of this in view of the prohibitions that I think

Senator MONDALEYou answered my question That by itself would
ndt be a basis for investigation

Mr ADAMSNo sir
Senator MONDALEWould you agree with me Mr Adams that this

area of the assignment that the FBI had been tasked which they
thought they possessed or could use to investigate Americans is an
exceedingly vague difficult if not impossible area to define It is not
an area where there were allegations of crime or suspicion that crimes
were about to be committed or that violence was about to be committed
but rather this whole generalized area to investigate Americans in
terms of ideas that they have or might be persuaded to have ideas
that might hold potential for danger to this country This vague area
has got the FBI into an awful lot of trouble including today's
hearings

Mr ADAMSYes sir
Senator MONDALEAnd because of that there is a very important

need to sit down and redefine the guidelines and have those guidelines
known specifically by all so that the FBI can know precisely what
it can do and what it cannot do

Mr ADAMS I think this is why the country is fortunate in this
particular time to have an Attorney General who is a legal scholar and
a lawyer of unquestioned repute who has indicated a willingness to
address these problems which as the staff has determined was not
always the case over the years But we have an Attorney General we
have a Director who has offered his complete cooperation just as
he has to the committee in this inquiry that we are not trying to avoid
embarrassment The only thing we are trying to hold back are identi
ties of informants and sensitive ongoing operations that we have a
concern on the part of Congress that not only recognizes there
have been abuses but recognizes that there still always has to be some
degree of flexibility
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We are going to have situations where you have a "Weatherman
working for the waterworks and in college he was a scientific student
and he makes a comment to a fellow employee that there is going to
be some spectacular event that is going to bring the attention of the
world on this city

Senator MONDALEWouldn't you have probable cause then to inves
tigate the commission of a crime

Mr ADAMSWe might have to investigate but to disrupt we have
the authority to tell the supervisor of the waterworks you had better
get him out of there before the city water is poisoned and 100.000 people
die and I think the committee is going to find the same problems we
do in coping with that situation and even the Attorney General in
his speech in Ottawa pointed out that there is still possibly a necessity
for some flexibility to take appropriate action under extreme condi
tions But it should be controlled It is like Mr Kelley says go to
the Attorney General explore the legal issues lay the problem up
there It should not be handled internally in the FBI

Senator MONDALEBut do you also agree that the Congress ought to
redefine the rules legislatively

Mr ADA11fsYes because the problem I have with it is we talk about
oversight and Mr Kelley and the Attorney General and I believe
this committee agrees that we should have joint oversight which would
avoid the proliferation of hearings and the sensitive knowledge among
many people which always poses the risk of an inadvertent leak of
information But yet even with oversight under the plan you dis
cussed yesterday or some of the observations that were discussed yes
terday having people conservative liberal black and the other quali
fications you put in can a committee speak for the will of Congress
At one time we had Congressmen making speeches all over the country
if we don't stop these bombings if somebody doesn't do something
about it this country is in trouble Is that the will of Congress

Until it is embodied in legislation where the whole will of Congress
is expressed we are going to have problems

Senator MONDALEI am glad to hear that because there is a way
Congress speaks It is not through the buddy system or a person It
speaks through the law

Mr ADAMS That's right
Senator MONDALEAnd now for the first time we have this whole

issue it is not denied by the FBI The elements are known What I
hear you saying is that you would like the Congress now to define
and redefine specifically and carefully what it is we expect the FBI
to do and what it is we wish to prevent the FBI and will prohibit the
FBI from doing

Mr Amens Right What is our role in society After World War II
if you'll remember a congressional committee met and raised all sorts
of storm over the fact that there was not enough in the way of intelli
gence investigations Never again should it happen in the United
States that we be caught with our pants down After the Kennedy
assassination if you recall the FBI was properly criticized for hav
ing too restrictive dissemination policies in connection with Secret
Service because they depend upon us for the intelligence necessary to
provide protection for the President against extremist groups We did
that but just before the recent incidents in California there was going
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to be committee concern not this committee over has there been too
much dissemination

So the FBI is in the position of at different times in our history
being damned for doing too much and damned for doing too little
And it is because of reacting to what we try to judge is what they want
us to do and this is what we are not in a position to do We need the
will of Congress expressed in some definitive measure yet providing
the latitude because as you have seen from these problems there are
many that there are no black and white answers to There have to be
occasions where when you are confronted with an extreme emergency
someone can act and I don't think you or anyone else wants to tie the
hands of law enforcement when today we have over 10 million serious
crimes in the United States We have ~1million crimes a year involving
violence and there has to be a capability to react But we need to know
in better terms what is our role in this especially in domestic
intelligence

Senator MONDALEThank you Mr Chairman
Senator TowER [presiding] Senator Schweiker
Senator SCHWEIKERThank you Mr Chairman Mr Adams in 1966

a letter written by the Bureau to Marvin Watson Special Assistant
to the President at the White House and the gist of this letter was
in reference to his request and I want to make it clear it was his
request not the Bureau's authors of books that were critical of the
Warren Commission report on the assassination of President Ken
nedy were requested to file any pertinent personal data information
dossiers et cetera on seven individuals whose names I will not discuss

Do you have any knowledge as to why the White House requested
this kind of material on the Warren Commission critics

Mr ArAMS I don't recall I am familiar with the material I did
review it some time ago when we were testifying before the House
Committee in February but I don't recall that I saw in there any
specific motivation on the part of the White House group requesting
this information

Senator SCHWEIKERNow in the same letter it also says a copy of
this communication has not been sent to the Acting Attorney General

Mr ADA S Yes
Senator SCHWEIKERNumber one is that a normal procedure when

you get requests of this kind that the Acting Attorney General is by
passed and why was the Attorney General bypassed in this instance

Mr ADAMSThis is not a normal procedure It is not the procedure
followed today There was a period of time where at the President's
directions Mr Hoover reported more directly to him in certain areas
and it was apparently a feeling that he did not want the Attorney
General to know certain things

Senator SenwEIKET One of the dossiers specifically included photo
graphs of sexual activities

Mr ADAMS Yes sir
Senator SCHWEIKERAnd my question is how is that relevant to

being a critic of the Warren Commission What standard do we use
when we just pass photographs of sexual activities to the White
House Is this a normal proceeding when a dossier is requested Is
this normally included or did they specifically request photographs
of this kind or what light can you shed on this
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Mr ADAMS I can't shed much I know they requested information
on him I think there was other material concerning that individual of
a security nature that was included Why the information in that re
spect was submitted I am unable to answer I do know at the time
there was a lot of concern following the Warren Commission report.
Had all the answers been explored Was the Soviet Union involved
Was Cuba involved And who were the critics who now are attacking
this But I have seen nothing which would explain the rationale for
requesting the material

Senator SCHWEIKERI think what concerns the committee is that
whenever you get to the nitty-gritty of investigations and it doesn't
relate to the Warren Commission I will leave that alone we
get back to something like a photograph or a tape recording or some
letter referring to some kind of human weakness or failing that is
really very irrelevant to the investigation is sandwiched in here
It just seems to me that it was a tactic This just happens to be the
Warren Commission I singled out but it was a tactic that was used
rather frequently as a lever or for reasons which I am trying to dis
cover as an instrument of investigative policy Would you differ with
that or dispute that What rationale would you use Do we use
sexual activities as a standard criterion for investigations

Mr ADAMSWe do not use sexual activities as a criterion but during
the course of our investigation we did have an investigation on that
individual at one time and during the course of the investigation
in checking the records of a local police department or a district
attorney's office they had conducted an investigation for a criminal
act involving these photographs and they made that available to us
So it went into our files Now the request of the President he is the
Chief Executive of the United States He in effect has custody of
everything There are problems involved when the man who is in
charge of everything requests information I would like to add how
ever that following the cleansing effect of Watergate that I don't
know of any such requests coming over to the FBI anymore There is
a direct line between the Attorney General and the Director and the
Director certainly recognizes that in a case of extreme disagreement
he would have the alternative to tell the Attorney General I need to
no directly to the President or feel I should but we do not have this
line of communication at the present time

Senator SCHWEIKER It seems that if they had just listed what
was alleged in the other investigation that certainly would have
sufficed for whatever purpose But it seems to me that when you
enclose living photographs you are really attempting to discredit
these critics What other purpose would a photograph of this nature
have other than to discredit critics

Mr AnAMs I can't answer that
Senator SCHWEIKEROne area that I think this gets into which we

really touched on in the assassination probe Mr Adams is where
the Bureau stops when they get some of these requests You touched
on it a moment ago The President asked for something I don't
know in this case whether or not the President asked to see photo
erranhs of this nature but the point is nobody said no and he got them
So the question is where do you see the Bureau's responsibility and
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what can this committee do to insure that there is some kind of a
test that we either put in the law or that the FBI applies that pre
vents the White House from using police power in this way

Mr ADAMS I don't think Congress can ever fill the responsibility
of trying to draw up guidelines even in conjunction with the executive
branch to guarantee that all abuses won't take place The organization
is made up of human beings and these things occur Certain corrective
actions are self-initiated such as this The President for instance you
know we had an incident a few years ago about investigating a news
man where we were requested and if I recall from our information we
thought he was being considered for an appointed position which
would have been a logical basis As facts turned out that was not the
purpose that the information was requested To stem or stop abuses
like that the President the current administration has issued instruc
tions that any requests for investigations under the special inquiry
or White House investigation such as for appointment must clear
through the office of his counsel in other words not let the lower line
people come over and say we need this information or we need this
request They come through the office of Phil Buchen through an
employee that is assigned to that office with responsibility

Now we do still make certain name check requests for the White
House and those too have to clear through his office So we do have
that Then we have the responsibility if we get something which on
its face appears political or improper then our responsibility under
that would be to go to the Attorney General and ask him to intercede
by finding out is this a proper request on the Bureau And I can assure
you that as Mr Kelley has testified and has made it perfectly clear
he has not had any such improper requests and he would go right
to the Attorney General if it was necessary Otherwise he would reject
the request

Senator SCHWEIKERWhat steps are you taking to make sure that
we catch some of these things in the present that maybe we either over
looked or did not catch or somehow got sidetracked in the past

Mr Ans We have been working with the Attorney General and
his staff It started even when Attorney General Saxbe was there to
look at all of our procedures all of our investigative operations Are
they proper Do they fit criteria Do we have a legal basis for them
And we have guidelines committees which have been established in the
Department that meet every day on questions of the overwhelming
problem of collection and maintenance of information What do we
get Why do we get it What should we do with it

I feel there is a very active program going on in that regard and
I feel certain that it will continue to make sure that we are aware of
everything and take appropriate action

Senator SCHWEIKERI wonder if you might share some of these with
the staff so that we may have the advantage of taking a look at those
too

Mr ADAMS I would have to secure the approval of the Attorney
General on the guidelines He did tell the House committee which
originally raised the question on maintenance of information that
once we get something and they are nearing completion in the De
partment that he does intend to take it up with Congress So I am
sure there would be no problem at that point in bringing it to this
committee as well
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Senator SCHWEIKERIt seems to me that the problems in the past
have arisen in not having clearly defined standards I think this is
the crux of it

Mr ADAMSThat is true
Senator SCHWEIKERThat's all I have Mr Chairman
Senator TOWER Mr Adams what use does the Bureau presently

make of its intelligence informants and have they ever been used as
provocateurs or as magnets for action

Mr ADAMSNo sir
Well you asked two questions
Senator TOWERYes
Mr ADAMSLet me take the last one first provocateurs Our policy

has not or our policy has been to discourage any activities which
in any way might involve an informant doing something that an agent
cannot do which would be in the area of being a provocateur which
basically is entrapment And we have had some allegations of entrap
ment come up We feel we have satisfactorily answered them This is a
very technical legal field which boils down of course to the fact that
if a person is willing to do something and the Government merely
provides the opportunity that is not legally entrapment So if a
person comes to us and says "I have been asked to participate in a
break-in of a Federal building I would like to help you, then the law
basically would indicate we have the authority to continue to let him
operate The question comes up if he assumes the whole direction
and causes people to do something which they would not otherwise have
done That is the entrapment issue So we are very alert to this We
have instructions clear guidelines instructions to our field offices
that they are not to use an informant for anything that an agent
cannot legally do I don't say there haven't been some mistakes in
that regard but I don't know of any at the present time

Senator TOWER Senator Huddleston
Senator HuDDLESTONThank you Mr Chairman
First I think to keep this activity in proper perspective it might

be well to remember that even though a great deal of the testimony
and the questioning has been relating to the question of Dr King this
is by no means an isolated situation Dr King's case is indeed a
classic example utilizing all of the various techniques of the Bureau
both in intelligence gathering and action against an individual in
order to discredit him or embarrass him and indeed destroy him But
the record is replete and indeed here is an entire sheaf of similar
targets who are certainly not as well known Some of them are high
school students some of them are high school teachers college students
college teachers broadcasters and journalists people whose names
would be almost totally unfamiliar to the vast majority of Americans
So the activity was not confined to those that are immediately rec
ognizable public figures

I want to just proceed along the question of informants that Senator
Tower just raised for just a moment or two You say that your in
formants are not expected to do anything that an agent himself could
not do In the gathering of information do you have any safeguard
at all any rule as to how the informant proceeds in order to gather
the information you are looking for

Mr ADAMS Only that he proceed through legal means
Senator HrlDLESTON Is that specifically stated to him when he is

employed
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Mr ADAMSYes sir
Senator HUDDLESTONAre most informers paid on the basis of a

regular fee or regular salary or are they paid on the basis of the in
formation they gather

Mr ADAMSEven those who are paid on what you could say a salary
that salary is determined on a COD basis as to the value of the in
formation furnished In other words in a criminal case for instance
you could have a person come in and give you the identity of three
individuals who just robbed a bank You might pay him a lump
sum amount and never go back to him In the security field where
informants do ,finally manage to work into a revolutionary type
organization their continued activities on our behalf do set up more
of a program for payment

Senator HUDDLESTONIf information that may be supplied to you
happens to be of a sensational nature or of a surprising nature do
you ever question the informer on how he obtained it

Mr ADAMS I am sure this takes place In any handling of an in
formant over a sustained period of time you do have a rapport which
they don't just come in and say Joe Blow said this Joe Blow did that
There is a conversation that goes through which I feel certain would
if it looked like he had something that came from some improper
source I think the agent would say "Where did you get this

Senator HUDDLESTONIf you found it had been taken improperly
or if some improper action had been taken would it be put in the
files

Mr ADAMSIf he violated the law we would have an open investiga
tion if it were within our jurisdiction

Senator HUDDLESTONNow the Bureau disseminates this information
on individuals that is collected in various ways How many other
agencies can request for instance an individual check that would
result in your supplying to it information from these personal intelli
gence files

Mr ADAMSEvery agent in the Federal Government under the em
ployee security program has an obligation to check with the FBI
doing name check search of our files to see if there is any subversive
derogatory information which might militate against appointing that
individual to a Federal position

Senator HUDDLESTONDo you take any precautions as to how they
will use that information once it is supplied to them by your agents

Mr ADAMSAll we do is indicate to them on the report that it is the
property of the FBI and is not to be disseminated outside their agency

Senator HUDDLESTONYOU have no way of knowing whether or
not indeed it is

Mr ADAMSNo sir we do not
Senator HUDDLESTONWhat internal precautions do you have against

the Bureau itself misusing information that it gains from other
agencies

Mr ADAMS Strong prohibitions First we don't allow access to
files except on a need-to-know basis Any employee of the FBI knows
that if he improperly divulges information or leaks information out
of the files he will be subject to administrative action We had a
case where an agent obtained an identification record and made it out
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improperly and I think that agent was separated from the rolls But
we had asked and of course we share in CIA's request to this extent
that there be a criminal penalty attached to misuse of information
and leaking it or making it available outside of an agency This is
another issue before Congress

Senator HUDDLESTONThere is also an instance that the committee
has evidence of where the Bureau at least proposed taking informa
tion gained from the Internal Revenue Service and drafting a letter
a fraudulent letter over a forged signature of a civil rights leader
mailing it to the contributors of that organization indicating that there
was some tax problem and hoping to discourage further contribu
tions I)id this in fact happen to your knowledge

Mr ADAMS I am not familiar with that case I can easily say it
would not be proper

Senator HtDDLESTONBut you don't know whether it happened or
whether the act was carried out

Mr ADAMSI do not know
Senator HUDDLESTONMr Adams getting on to another subject

one of the techniques used very frequently by the Bureau in its
attempt to discredit individuals was to utilize the press It was cus
tomary to send anonymous letters on many occasions to editors broad
casters commentators and columnists around the country containing
information or suggesting information about an individual that the
Bureau wanted to discredit in some way There is also some evidence
that the Bureau utilized within the press itself on a regular contact
basis certain columnists or broadcasters for the purpose of disseminat
ing information that the FBI wanted to get out about individuals
How extensively was this utilized

Mr ADAMS I don't believe it was very extensive In fact I think
there were probably very few incidents where untrue information
was put out That is my recollection On disseminating public source
information there were a number of instances of that which is still
proper to date under our guidelines I just don't know of many in
stances where untrue information was used and I do not know of too
many instances overall where that was done

Senator HUDDLESTONDo you know of any instances how many
actual journalists or practitioners were regular disseminators of FBI
information

Mr ADAMS I don't know of any today that are in that regard
I know there have been situations where it happened and people still
do They come to us and say we would like to do an article on orga
nized crime Can you be of assistance And if we can be of assistance
within the guidelines established by the Attorney General we do
assist We have a pull and a tug over privacy acts and freedom of
information and also the need to know but we try to satisfy

Senator HUDDLESTONDo you know of any at the present time or in
the past who have been paid by the FBI for their services

Mr ADAMSNot personally I don't know of any
Senator HUDDLESTONNot personally Do you know of any evidence

that indicates that
Mr ADAMS That's what I mean I don't have any evidence that

indicates that

66-0770 76 7
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Senator HUDDLESTONI think it would be helpful to our inquiry if
we could review or you would review the files and make a determina
tion as to whether or not it might be the case that the FBI has paid
journalists who are amenable to disseminating information supplied
by the FBI

Mr ADAMS I am told we have I don't know what files we have re
viewed but we have reviewed them and we haven't found any

Senator HUDDLESTONYOU haven't found any What is the mass
media program of the FBI

Mr ADAMSTo try to get the truth out to get a proper picture of
the FBI's jurisdiction its activities

Senator HUDDLESTONIs it also to suppress other publications or
other commentators or journalists who might be disseminating other
views

Mr ADAMSNo
Senator HUDDLESTONDid the FBI not take some action against a

number of newspapers most of them student newspapers that they
thought should be suppressed

Mr ADAMSWe may have in the past I don't recall any specific case
You are talking about some of the "Weatherman support papers or
Black Panther paper I don't know of any in that regard but I'm
not saying that such action was not taken

Senator HUDDLESTONAre you familiar with the special correspon
dence list

Mr ADAMSYes
Senator HUDDLESTONWhat is this list
Mr ADAMS My recollection is that the special correspondence list

was a list of individuals that had requested from time to time various
Bureau publications and were kept on a continuing list and such com
munications were mailed to them

Senator HUDDLESTONIt was a list that was considered to be friendly
towards the FBI view

Mr ADAMSYes I would say anyone on that list would normally be
friendly

Senator HUDDLESTONDo you have knowledge of a number of in
stances in which the Bureau carrying out its COINTELPRO ac
tivities utilized the existing press in order to attempt to discredit some
individual

Mr ADAMS I don't have an idea of the number but I don't think
there were very many

Senator HLDDLESTONDo you have a list of the instances in which
the Bureau attempted to discredit other publications

Mr ADAMSNo I don't know
Senator HUDDLESTONI)o you know that they did occur
Mr ADAMSI can ask I get "No, as far as any knowledge in that

regard
Senator HUDDLESTONAs far as knowledge
Mr ADAM That means knowledge of what we have come up with

in our current review I would assume
Senator HUDDLESTOXIt seems to me that this is an area in which

we are particularly troubled and rightly should be If there is any
right that is specifically called for in our Constitution and has been
upheld and reaffirmed in court decision after court decision it is the
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right to publish in this country The first amendment speaks not only
of freedom of speech but also freedom of the press And yet it seems
that we have a pattern here of the chief law enforcement agency of the
country attempting to suppress that very right

Mr ADAMS I haven't seen I think any effort to manipulate the
press of this country I just don't see any possibility in that regard
and I don't see the logic of anyone even attempting such

Senator HUDDLESTONBut it did happen
Mr AD.1Jrs It may have happened in
Senator HUDDLESTONIn a rather extensive field
Mr ADAMSI disagree with that rather extensive field I just don't

know the extent that you are talking to here
Senator HUDDLESTONWe are talking about the cases where
Mr ADAMSAre you lumping in cases where we disseminated public

source information Are you lumping in a case where we may have
gone to a

Senator HUDDLESTONI think disseminating public source informa
tion is somewhat different from furnishing a TV commentator with
derrogatory information about a specific individual who has been
targeted as one that apparently the Bureau thinks is dangerous or
that his ideas ought to be suppressed

Mr ADAMSIs that manipulating the press though Here you have
a situation where an individual is going around the country advocating
off-the-pig or kill-the-police or something like that And a newspaper
man was furnished say some background information on him which
would have been in the area of public source material which he could
use in an article Are we really if the information is true the final
decision it would seem to me would be the newspaperman as to
whether he would use any such information

I think if we concealed our motives from the newspaperman or
furnished false information which I think we did in one anonymous
letter or something that I saw in all of this I would say that was
improper

Senator HrDDLESTONOr
Mr ADAMSI think newsmen have sources I think
Senator HUDDLESTONOr convincing a cartoonist for instance to

draw a derogatory cartoon about a college professor who certainly did
not constitute a threat to the violent overthrow of the Government

Mr AnAMs If anyone accuses us of having any great success in try
ing to influence the press I think that their objectivity stands very
high

Senator HUDDLESTONI think the point is not whether there was
success or not there was an effort made I'm glad to hear you acknowl
edge now that it is almost an impossibility But more than that it
seems to me at the beginning when these type of techniques were used
it seemed to indicate a lack of confidence or faith in the American
people to believe that they could not hear ideas that might be con
trary to their own without being seriously damaged One of the great
freedoms we have is the freedom of hearing other ideas whether we
agree with them or not I think this is an area that we are concerned
with and one technique which I hope is being discontinued and one
that will be by the time these hearings conclude and by the time
proper legislation is drawn
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Mr ADAMS Well I think you can be assured that any such tech
niques in that area died with COINTELPRO in 1971

Senator HU-DDLESTONThat is comforting
Mr ADAMSYes
The CHAIRMAN [presiding] Thank you Senator I have been

forced in and out by virtue of votes and other committee business I
am not sure which Senators have had their opportunity to question
and which have not

Senator Goldwater were you next
Senator GOLDWATERI will not take much time I apologize for not

having been here in the last 2 days It is going well I have heard We
have heard testimony regarding the voluminous records I believe
500,000 maintained by the Bureau How in your view have these
records come to be kept For what purpose have they been kept and
has the Bureau ever undertaken to destroy or prune down any of these
records

Mr ADAMS We have a number of records We are a businesslike
organization We record our activities And as the staff knows they
had access to a lot of recorded material that is the product of what
the FBI has done over the years When we conduct an investigation
we maintain the results We do have destruction procedures where
after the passage of certain time limits approved by the Archives
authority we are allowed to destroy certain files Other information
we are required to put on microfilm There is a regular standard pro
cedure for the destruction of FBI files This has been suspended of
course during the initiation of these hearings and our files probably
have increased considerably during this period because we are not al
lowed to destroy anything since the committee commenced its hear
ings But we do have procedures for destruction of files They are
approved by the Archives A problem inherent in that is maintaining
information What should we keep What should we obtain during an
investigation What should we record In the past we have been pretty
consistent in recording everything we thought was relevant to the
investigation The passage of the Privacy Act put certain restrictions
in We cannot collect or maintain anything unless it is relevant to an
ongoing matter of which we have investigative jurisdiction

But beyond even the Privacy Act the Attorney General instituted
a guidelines committee in this area that we have been meeting dili
gently with every day and hopefully have tried to avoid this idea
that we are for no good reason maintaining gossip scandal unneces
sary and irrelevant material So once these guidelines are in some sort
of final form not to be adopted then the Attorney General has indi
cated that he is going to take it up with the various congressional
committees to get their input into it after which they will be
published

Senator GOLDWATERWell now these dossiers I think you can call
them that probably

Mr ADAMSI prefer not to but I accept the fact that that is how they
are referred to

Senator GOLDWATERWhat do you call them
Mr ADAMS I call them files

you
me I guess we all have our little

hang-ups but to me that is usually used in some sinister connotation
It is probably not to you But I will use whatever terminology you
want to use on this
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Senator GOLDWATERI hope what you have on me is not called a
dossier

Mr ADAMSNo sir it's a collection of material
[General laughter.]
Mr ADAMSOf which you are aware
Senator GOLDWATERThat's right Now let me ask you the informa

tion you have would probably be on computer tape
Mr ADAMSNo sir
Senator GOLDWATERIt's not Information that IRS would have

is that computerized
Mr ADAMS It may be I'm not familiar with the extent of theirs

We do have certain computer activities such as the National Crime
Information Center or we have I guess 7 or 8 million records This
is not the usual file material This consists of individuals concerning
whom a warrant is outstanding stolen property material such as
this and also some documented criminal history information in the
nature of prior arrest history but not what I think you are referring
to in the way of file material reports intelligence this type of
information

Senator GOLDWATERWhat I am trying to get at is there a central
source of computerized material that would include your information
the information that IRS may have gathered information that had
been gathered off of personnel records of the Pentagon

Mr ADAMSNo sir
Senator GOLDWATF,RThere's no such list that you know of
Mr ADAMS I don't know what other agencies have but the FBI

does not have such a list does not have such capability to interface
with such a list if such a list exists

Senator GOLDWATERDo you feel rather safe in saying then that
no agency of Government has put together such a computerized total
of all the information on the people that you have surveilled

Mr ADAMSOh I think it is safe to say I don't know of any Today
I am not saving what does exist or doesn't exist elsewhere

Senator GOLDWATERIn addition to the 500,000 records that you
have would I be correct in saying that you have 50 million data cards
and that there's $82 million spent on intelligence in the fiscal year
1975 to maintain this library

Mr ADAMSNo I don't think that is correct I think the figure of
$82 million is what our budget people have drawn up as being the
total cost in a given year of our intelligence operations security
criminal organized crime the whole intelligence field But I don't
relate it to the maintenance of any data cards

Senator GOLDWATERNow one other area and I think it probably
according to the records goes back to 1970 How did the Bureau
come to place the so-called Women's Lib movement under surveillance
and I say so-called because I think we discovered that there was no
such organized movement

Mr AnArs There were a lot of movements It is my recollection 
I have not reviewed the file in detail but it is my recollection that
the case was originally opened because of indications that certain
<rroups were attempting to infiltrate or control the Women's Libera
tion movement The investigation was conducted and was terminated
several years ago as far as I know
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Senator GOLDWATERDo you know of any actions that were taken
by the Bureau as to the women's liberation movement except to
monitor it

Mr ADAMS No And the monitoring was for the purpose of de
termining the infiltration and I don't know of any actions taken
against them

Senator GOLDWATERThat's all I have Mr Chairman Thank you
The CHAIRMANThank you Senator Goldwater
Senator Hart have you had an opportunity to question
Senator HART of Colorado No I have not
The CHAIRMANSenator Hart
Senator HART of Colorado Thank you Mr Chairman In the

testimony yesterday developed by the staff concerning the last few
days of Martin Luther King's life we learned that the Bureau in
March of 1968 developed information to be given to the press criticiz
ing Dr King for staying in a white-owned and operated hotel the
Holiday Inn in Memphis instead of the Lorraine

At some point during Dr King's stay in Memphis he moved from
the Holiday Inn to Lorraine To your knowledge Mr Adams was
that information ever given to the press [See footnote p 21.]

Mr ADAMSI have been unable to determine that This question was
raised to me by the Civil Rights Division of the Department Appar
ently they had had some inquiry along the same lines several months
ago But my recollection of it at the time we saw that this action had
been proposed and the memorandum bore the initials I believe it
was the initials statement handled and the initials of the agent in
the external affairs division who assumed the responsibility of saying
handle it and initiated it They contacted him and he said that he
had no recollection of the matter but the fact that he did say "handled
didn't mean that lie was able to do anything with it He was just
clearing that memorandum so it would show action was taken and
he doesn't know if he gave it to anyone or not

Senator HARTof Colorado Well suffice it to say that the facts are
that subsequent to the time the Bureau developed this information
to pass on to the press it did appear in the local papers in Memphis

Mr ADAMS There was some statement in the local papers not
according to the terminology of the proposed statement that was to
be given to him There was some comment made if I recall that
Martin Luther King gave a press conference following the riots that
followed one of his appearances and that he gave that press conference
in a hotel the Holiday Inn Hotel But it didn't have any at least the
newspaper article itself didn't have any direct relation to acts taken

Senator HARTof Colorado Well according to some historians and
people who have commented on the circumstances they were fairly
explicit in stating that the local press was critical of him during that
neriod of staving in the white hotel_ but I don't want to make a big
issue out of that What was the name of the anent that you talked to

Mr AD.vMST didn't talk to him personally People in the Bureau
that were working on this did and T believe his name was Linbaugh

Senator HvuT of Colorado If you could provide that name to us
Twould appre.eiate it

Mr ADAMSI would be glad to
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Senator HARTof Colorado Mr Adams was any effort made during
this entire COINTELPRO period to objectively define what the "New
Left meant ! What was your understanding of the "New Left.

Mr ADAMSThey did have a definition of the New Left distinguish
ing it from the Old Left It was primarily to distinguish it in the
area that the New Left was trying to separate itself from the old hide
bound policies of the Communist Party or some of its links to the
Communist Party Perhaps Mr Wannall has a better definition of
that

Senator HART of Colorado It very definitely included those who
were opposed to the war organized groups that opposed the war and
felt strongly about racial injustice in this country leaving the Commu
nist Party aside

Mr ADAMS People involved in the New Left movement were of
course also involved in the anti-Vietnam war effort

Senator HARTof Colorado What do you mean also That's what I'm
trying to get out What was the New Left If you didn't oppose the
war and you weren't involved in civil rights groups who else might
you have been

Mr ADAMSWell the New Left did involve a revolutionary philos
ophy It wasn't related solely to the anti-Vietnam effort

Senator HART of Colorado Thomas Jefferson embodied a revolu
tionary philosophy

Mr ADAMSThat's right And the New Left activity exceeded Thom
as Jefferson's philosophy in that it did fit in with the basic Commu
nist philosophy

Senator HARTof Colorado Every group that was placed under the
efforts of the COINTELPRO supported the violent overthrow of this
country

Mr ADAMS The concept of COINTELPRO was directed toward
those organizations I would have to refresh my memory on each one
of the organizations that were targets of it but they were basically
New Left Communist Party Social Workers Party black extremists
white hate groups those were the five basics

Senator HART of Colorado The Southern Christian Leadership
Conference

Mr ADAMSThe Southern Christian Leadership Conference I don't
know if it was involved specifically in COINTELPRO Three minor
actions were taken against the Southern Christian Leadership Con
ference

Senator HARTof Colorado Well its leader I think you could say for
8 years was subject to a lot more than three minor actions

Mr ADAMSThat's right and that gets into the other area that the
activities taken against him were primarily COINTELPRO-type
activities but weren't really under the control of

Senator HARTof Colorado You're saying that basically every orga
nization and individual that was swept into the five COINTELPRO
nets supported the violent overthrow of this country

Mr AnAMS Well not just the violent overthrow of the Government
It would have been organizations that were threatening and foment
ing violence I don't believe it had to be related to the actual over
throw of the Government

Senator HARTof Colorado Is a street demonstration violent
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Mr ADAMSIt depends on where you are in relation to what is taking
place If there are a lot of activities in connection with street demon
strations that are not violent and there are a lot of street demonstra
tions that have resulted in deaths so it just depends on the activity
taking place and the circumstances Our problem is we are given the
responsibility by the Attorney General to monitor demonstrations
which have the potential of violence The question is how do you find
out at what point do you get in any monitor demonstrations to deter
mine if that has a potential violence

Senator HARTof Colorado Well obviously we have received testi
mony to the effect that the FBI went out of its way to foment violence
itself to encourage disruptions internally to encourage hostilities and
conflict between and among these groups in the hope that violence
would occur Therefore you could go back to the Director or the press
or whomever and say look this is a violent group

Mr ADAMSI accept the allegation but I don't accept the fact The
conclusion from what I have seen in reviewing these files in connec
tion with our investigations is that we don't foment violence We don't
permit as a matter of policy our informants to act as provocateurs to
engage in violence I am not denying it may have happened but the
FBI does not foment violence and the FBI you know has no

Senator HARTof Colorado You are using present tense verbs
Mr ADAMSWe didn't then I don't agree that our actions in any

event were designed to foment violence
Senator HART of Colorado I think there is plenty of documenta

tion of the attempt to set the Black Panthers against the Blackstone
Rangers in Chicago

Mr ADAMSWell I don't consider that plenty of evidence I think
the evidence to the contrary is that one of the organizations when we
got word that the Black Panthers versus United Slaves we notified
the local police that this activity was going to take place and the
individual so that we would prevent the killing which had come to
our attention and was going to take place and then the turndowns
of various COINTELPRO actions there were specific statements
made that this action will not be approved because it might result in
harm to an individual physical harm and we have no indication from
any of these actions under COINTELPRO that any violent act
occurred and I have not been presented with any by the staff from
their far more extensive inquiry

Senator HART of Colorado "Tune 3 1968 a memorandum from the
special agent in charge of Cincinnati to the Director of the FBI
captioned Counterintelligence Program Disruption of the New
Left a five-page memorandum having to do with Antioch College
in Ohio [exhibit 301] It is a long description of the college and
background There is a recommendation on page 3 "Cincinatti
recommends that counterintelligence action be taken to expose the
pseudointellectual image of Antioch, and it gives specific ways of
doing that then the next page page 4 the desired result of action
`"force Antioch to defend itself as an educational institution. Where
in the laws of this country or the charter of the Federal Bureau of

I Seepp 434through438
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Investigation does it say that that agency should be forcing any
educational institution to defend itself

Mr ADAMSI know of none
Senator HARTof Colorado You would say this is stepping beyond

the bounds of your authority
Mr ADAMS I would say I'm not familiar with the total action

of what was there but just on the surface I don't see any basis for it
Senator HART of Colorado It is my understanding that field

officers participating in COINTELPRO activities were required to
send results in status letters and in annual reports Is that correct

Mr ADAMSYes
Senator HART of Colorado What kind of results generally were

you looking for What was considered success
Mr ADAMSWell it would be considered success if in one instance

an action was taken to create factionalism in the highest level of
the Communist Party and the results were that we were advised
that the Communist Party influence declined appreciably as a direct
result of factionalism created at that level That to us was a concrete
result We had other results that you get in various degrees The above
is an extremely favorable degree We had others I think one was
alluded to yesterday or today where a letter went out setting up
marital strife on the part of someone I don't see any basis or justifica
tion for that I think that is the other extreme I think in the middle
there were ones that fell into a different degree The only thing that
I feel is we had 3,000 actions recommended I don't know if the docu
ment shows whether this Antioch one was approved or not I doubt
that it was approved

Senator HARTof Colorado I believe it was We can document that
Mr ADAMSOK Because there would be one I would say that the

judgment in approving is in question But out of 3,000 recommended
the fact that 2,000 approved shows that there was some concern to try
to keep these to a proper level and I think the actual number of
grossly improper activities fortunately is rather small I think there
are a lot in there The whole program we feel should have been dis
continued and we don't have a program like it now and we wouldn't
institute a program like it now

Senator HARTof Colorado It would be helpful to us if now or in
the future you could recommend what steps we should take both as
the committee and this Congress to make sure that doesn't happen
aside from just the assurances we are being given here

Mr ADAMSWell the main recommendation I make is that we don't
wind up on the point we have been on in the past years that one time
in our history Congress is saying we ought to be doing something to
stop violence in the streets murders blowing up of buildings and
at another time they are saying you shouldn't have done what you
did and that we make a mistake when we react and try to identify one
area and say that is the voice of the people What we need is a legis
lative mandate which is the will of Congress in order to tell us what
our role should be in this area I think that the main thing that would
come out of all of this I hope is some more definitive guideline
where we all know what the will of the people is as expressed by
Congress
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Senator HARTof Colorado I believe my time is up
Senator TowER [presiding] Mr Adams to return to the business

of informants which I initiated and was interrupted by a vote who
selects an informant

Mr ADAMS The basic responsibility is on our special agent per
sonnel who develop informants the agent on the street

Senator TOWER Does the special agent in charge in a given area
have control over the activities of an informant or a veto on the use
of a particular informant

Mr ADAMS Not only the special agent in charge but FBI head
quarters We maintain the tightest possible control of the utilization
of informants We require Bureau approval to utilize a person as an
informant

Senator TOWERThe special agent in charge has the power to veto
the use of an informant

Mr ADAMSYes sir
Senator TowER Does headquarters know who all the informants are
Mr ADAMSAbsolutely We do not allow hip-pocket informants We

require
Senator TOWER You don't have the agents informed by their own

special informants
Mr ADAMSAbsolutely not
Senator TowER Are the criteria different for paid and for nonpaid

informers
Mr ADAMSWe have some informants over the years that have re

fused to accept payment but generally the criteria for both I mean
for ones that are paid is that it must be on a c.o.d basis evaluated
as to the value of the information

Senator TOWERWhat protections are afforded to informants
Mr ADAMSProtections afforded them individually
Senator TOWERYes
Mr ADAMSThe greatest protection in the world we can afford them

is to maintain the confidential relationship which they have adopted
with the FBI and the fact that those citizens of the united States
who for whatever reason decide to cooperate with the FBI and
cooperate with their Government in the criminal and security field
have that confidentiality maintained Beyond that confidentiality
we are unable to afford them any protection any physical protection
We have had informants murdered through disclosure We have had
them subjected to other violence and criminal activities and the only
protection beyond maintaining the confidentiality is once we have
used them or had to expose them for some purpose we do have pro
cedures for relocation and maintenance of them which is utilized
quite frequently in the top hoodlum and the Cosa Nostra-type inves
tigations

Senator TowER It is my understanding now that 83 percent of all
cases involve some use of informants so that means that the use is
pretty widespread and apparently very essential What kind of guid
ance does the FBI give to these informants Do you give them any
special training Could you describe that kind of relationship in terms
of guidelines control authority that you have
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Mr ADAMSWell when an individual is being developed as an in
formant our main concern is whether lie provides reliable information
and that the information he collects is collected by legal means We
don't permit an informant to engage in any activity that an agent
couldn't do legally himself In other words you can't have an extension
of the agent out here engaging in illegal acts and the agent saying I
abide by the law This creates some problems of course in the criminal
field where you don't recruit informants from Sunday schools You
recruit informants in areas where they do have knowledge of criminal
activities But we even had to open investigations and prosecute some
of our informants because we do not bend from this that they are
not going to enjoy favorite status as a result of their relationship with
us So the agent covers all of this with an informant during the
discussions

We secure background information on the informants We do this
to insure as best as possible we are dealing with a reliable stable in
dividual even though he may be engaged in an unstable activity
We go through this period and consider them more or less in different
terminology probationary potential verifying information that he
furnishes us and everytime when they report on the status of an in
formant they have to tell us what percentage of his information has
been verifiedVby other means by other informants or sources So we
do have a continuing indoctrination which is supervised at FBI
headquarters

Senator TowER You said you don't recruit your informants from
Sunday school class Being an ex-Sunday school teacher I resent that
but

Mr ADAMSI am talking in the criminal field Many of our security
informants come from a very fine background

Senator TOWER But this leads me into this Sometimes then you
might recruit people that you know have committed criminal acts

Mr ADAMSThat's true
Senator TowER Do you promise him immunity from future prosecu

tion in many instances to secure their cooperation
Mr ADAMS No Now the only exception to that would be we may

have an ongoing it is what you call an informant I believe your
question is addressed to someone that we are actually considering in an
informant status

Senator TowER Yes
Mr ADAMS We do have situations where during an investigation

we target on one individual the lower rung and the U.S Attorney
and the Department offer immunity We don't And say you coop
erate and we go up the ladder to the next level and in some of these
cases we have gone up through successive stages until we get the main
honcho who we feel is the proper target of our investigation

Senator TOWER Getting on another subject does the FBI still re
quest bank audits

Mr ADAMS Bank audits Do you mean do we still have access to
bank records

Senator TOWERYes
Mr ADAMSYes sir we do
Senator TOWERAnd do you obtain access with or without warrants
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Mr ADAMSWe obtain access without warrants
Senator TowER Without warrants
Mr ADAMSYes sir
Senator TOWERIs the subject notified in advance by the FBI when

you obtain one without a warrant
Mr ADAMSNo sir
Senator TOWERAre they notified by the bank or is he notified sub

sequently by the FBI
Mr ADAMS No We do get subpenas in many cases not warrants

but we do get subpenas in many cases but in some cases a bank will
make available to us records without subpena When it comes time
for utilizing that information we do issue a subpena for the
information

Senator TOWERDo you have legal authority to gain access to these
records

Mr ADAMSYes sir we do
Senator TOWER Without a subpena without a court document
Mr ADAMSThere is no law that I know of that forbids us access
There have been several court decisions including some circuit

courts that disagree with each other but I think the current finding is
that the bank records are the records of the bank and this does not
violate any first amendment or other amendments in connection with it

Senator TOWERDo you make similar requests of S & L.'s and others
and credit unions and other financial institutions

Mr ADAMS I would assume the same would provide there
The CHAIRMAN[presiding] Thank you Senator Tower
I just have a question or two We are going to try to conclude this

morning because the committee has a hearing a business meeting at
2 o'clock this afternoon and for the information of the members that

meeting will take place in room 3110 of the Dirksen Senate Office
Building And while I am making announcements I think I should

say that tomorrow between the hours of 9 o'clock in the morning and
1 o'clock in the afternoon the committee will report its findings and
make its recommendations to the Senate in connection with our in

vestigation into alleged involvement of the United States in certain
assassination plots and attempts directed against foreign leaders

The committee as you know has made an exhaustive investigation
of this issue It has taken some 6 months 75 witnesses have been inter
rogated over 8,000 pages of testimony have been taken mountains
of documents have been analyzed and digested and the report will
be a detailed accounting to the American people of that evidence
together with the findings and recommendations of the committee
Initially these disclosures will be made to the Senate in secret session
after which the renort will be made public as previously approved by
committee vote Therefore it is anticipated that at 2:30 tomorrow
afternoon in this room the caucus room following that secret session
of the Senate the committee will meet with the press for the purpose of

answering such questions as the press may wish to address to the
committee on the assassination report

Now the last few questions T would like to put to you Mr Adams
have to do with some confusion in my mind concerning the purpose
of the FBI in monitoring the women's liberation movement 'What
was the purpose of that surveillance Why were you involved in

monitoring that movement
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Mr ADAMS It was basically as I recall I have not reviewed the
files but from the information that I have acquired it would indicate
there were groups that were believed to be infiltrating and attempting
to exert control over it That investigation was based or initiated on
this fact

The CHAIRMAN But you never found did you that the Women's
Liberation Movement was seriously infiltrated influenced or controlled
by Communists

Mr ADAMS No and the case was closed I would put them in the
position of comments we have made earlier about the press that I
don't think anyone is going to dominate or control That is a very
independent group

The CHAIRMANWell we are trying to keep the country that way
Mr ADAMSThat's right
The CHAIRMAN And the kind of thing that disturbs me is what

the documents reveal If you will turn to exhibit 7.1
Mr ADAMSYes
The CHAIRMANThen if you will turn to where you find the caption

"Origin Aims and Purposes, a description of the Women's Libera
tion Movement in Baltimore Md I call your attention to this because
it seems to typify the whole problem of this generalized kind of sur
veillance over the activities of American citizens Here is the report
If you will read with me this paragraph

The women'sliberation movementin Baltimore Md began during the summer
of 1968 There was no structure or a parent organization There were no rules
or plans to go by It started out as a group therapy session with young women
who were either lonely or confined to the home with small children getting
together to talk out their problems Along with this they wanted a purpose
and that was to be free womenfrom the humdrum existence of being only a wife
and mother They wanted equal opportunities that men have in work and in
society They wanted their husbands to share in the housework and in rearing
their children They also wanted to go out and work in whatever kind of jobs
they wanted and not be discriminatedagainst as women

Now can you find anything in that report that in any way suggests
that these women were engaged in improper or unlawful activity

Mr ADAMS Not in that one I believe there was another report
though giving the origin of it which went into a little more descrip
tion of what our basic interest was

The CHAIRMAN Can you tell me because this is the report I
have

Mr ADAMS'Well I am given here
The CHAIRMANWhat other if there was some sinister activity con

nected with this group that isn't laid out in the document
Mr ADAMS I was given a workpaper here which read
Women's Liberation Movement Investigation of captioned movement was

initated by our New York Officein April 1969 as the Women'sLibber movement
is described as a looselystructured women'smovementcomprisedof individuals
with varying ideologiesfrom liberal to New Left persuasion some of whom had
exhibited an affiliationwith and/or sympathy for several organizations of investi
gative interest to this Bureau namely the Students for a Democratic SocietyBlack Panther Party the Vietnam Peace Parade Committee venceremos
Brigade the Socialist Workers Party with its youth group the Young Socialist
Alliance

The CHAIRMANMay I stop you at this point
Mr ADAMSYes
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The CHAIRMAN You are reading from a paper which has to do
with the origination of an investigation coming out of New York are
you not

Mr ADAMSYes
The CHAIRMANI am reading from a document that relates to the

Women's Liberation Movement in Baltimore and the findings con
cerning it in the summer of 1968 My question hasn't to do with
whatever original purpose the FBI sought by initiating this kind of
surveillance in New York but with a finding made concerning the
Women's Liberation Movement in Baltimore which I have just read
to you I think you would agree with me that women do have the
right to get together to talk about humdrum existence and equal
opportunities with men and equal opportunities for work in our so
ciety don't they That is not a subversive activity

Mr ADAMS Well but what you have here is the set up of our in
vestigative activity We had New York which was the office of
origin of the investigation You have other offices that were checking
to determine what influence there was In addition in New York to
the New York office lay the fact that interwoven with the Women's
Liberation Movement goal for equal rights for women there was an
advocacy certainly of militancy and violence in achieving their goals
Now Baltimore is one office and I believe that even there in one of
the reports

The CHAIRMANYou keep taking me back to New York
Mr ADAMSRight
The CHAIRMANAnd I keep taking you back to Baltimore And the

reason I do that is because if you turn 2 pages back from this particu
lar report which has to do with the Baltimore organization the ques
tion is whether based upon that finding the investigation should con
tinue of the Baltimore group and the decision is that you will continue
to follow and report on the activities of the group And I just won
dered why

Mr ADAMSThis is a problem that we have that we do have organiza
tions where sometimes the the Women's Liberation group is not a
good example because that was washed out but we do have organiza
tions where

The CHAIRMANWhat was washed out Not the Women's Liberation
Movement

Mr ADAMS No the investigation indicated there was no concern
or no reason to be concerned about it But where you do have an or
ganization that has branches in many areas of the country and you
start with one place and it looks like you have a subversive organiza
tion you do have to see well is this carried out throughout the or
ganization or is it just one chapter or one group In other words not
even an organizational problem

The CHAIRMANBut you see the trouble with that is in this Balti
more organization you say in your own report that it was independent
there was no structure or parent organization no rules or plans so it
isn't a part of a nationally controlled and directed organization by
your own admission

Mr ADAMS I believe this report had some subsequent pages that
aren't included in here that did show some additional activity or
influence
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The CHAIRMANI am told by the staff that this summary is accurate
and the only other thing contained was that these women had affilia
tions with an organization that had protested the war in Baltimore

Mr ADAMSI think there were some other items
The CHAIRMAN That is the only other association that we have

been able to determine Apparently the women's liberation move
ment is no longer under suspicion by the FBI and the case has been
closed What happens when the case is closed Are those women's
names still left in the files Are they forevermore contained

Mr ADAMSYes
The CHAIRMANIn the system
Mr ADAMSYes
The CHAIRMANPretty soon you will have us all in the system If

there is no way even after surveillance has been terminated to elimi
nate the references of individuals through the files of the system
you will one day have us all won't you

Mr ADAMSWell I would say as part of a normal business record
when we do make a judgment that an organization should be investi
gated and we investigate it and then we find activities but we make
a conclusion that there is no additional problem here this is a record
of our official action Now if we destroy it at what point do we get
into a situation of being accused of doing things and then destroying
things to keep from showing what we do The critical thing is whether
we are able and we do set up safeguards where information in our
files is not misused at a later date and that is what these guideline
committees are all about

The CHAIRMAN Do you have any idea of how many names of
Americans you keep in your files all as a result of the cumulative
effect of all these surveillances in all of these cases

Mr ADAMSNo I don't
The CHAIRMAN It's in the millions isn't it
Mr ADAMSWe have 61/2million files
The CHAIRMANYou have 6 million files
Mr ADAMSYes sir
The CHAIRMANAnd there are surely names of more than one per

son typically in a file aren't there
Mr ADAMSBut it is a rather large country
The CHAIRMAN That's a large number of files to start with and

if you have multiple names in them you are quickly up into 20 30
40 million

Mr ADAMSRight But many of these files are applicant files They
are not all subversive files They are not all criminal files We have
a million crimes of violence each year There is a million people

The CHAIRMANI wish you had more time to spend on those crimes
of violence

Mr ADAMSI do too
The CHAIRMANThere we agree
Mr ADAMSRight
The CHAIRMANWhat I worry about is this You say there's no way

to know when to close a file These were surveillance files originally
opened to determine whether organizations might have subversive
connections There are names in these files so some demagogue comes
along and says that the name of some public figure is contained in a
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certain file to be found in the subversive files of the FBI and there
it is He has not made a misstatement at all But to the American
people that man's name and reputation have been scarred

Mr ADAMS And I hope this committee recognizes that and rec
ommends legislation that would enforce strong punitive or criminal
violations against misuse of information in the files We feel this

way CIA feels this way We recognize we have a lot of sensitive infor
mation in it We fire our employees if we find them misusing informa
tion We feel we need additional sanctions in this area I don't think
we can ever stop the accumulation of information I don't know an
investigative agency in the world a law enforcement agency that
does not have to accumulate information And we are working on

guidelines as to how to get rid of the irrelevant information how to
eliminate material that really does not need to be kept We hope we
will be able to come to Congress with these guidelines before too long
which will help address itself to just some of these problems

The CHAIRMAN Well you may be assured that the committee
shares your objective in this regard and we will be working with you
and the Department of Justice and others to try and change the laws
to give a greater measure of protection to the first amendment rights
of the American people

I have no further questions Are there any other questions
Senator Mondale
Senator MONDALEMr Adams earlier in inquiring about the basis

for investigating Dr King I thought I heard two basic justifications
One was suspicion and fear of Communist influence or infiltration
The second was "that he constituted a threat to the success of the
Negro movement. Did I understand that second basis

Mr ADAMSNo The first I was talking about was not suspicion but
information indicating Communist influence The second was on this
question of motivation that you have raised I don't know what their
motive was to get to some of these other activities in order to discredit
and remove him but it was a question Apparently they must have
felt that he was a threat to either as shown in the files the President
and Attorney General expressed concern about the civil rights move
ment and his continued affiliation with some of these people

Senator MONDALEWould you agree that it would not be a proper
basis for an investigation for the FBI or any other Government official
to be concerned about the success of the negro movement

Mr ADAMSI have no problem
Senator MONDALEAll right So let us take the one ground that

appears to have justified the investigation of Dr King and the
investigation of the women's liberation movement the fear that
"dangerous influence might infiltrate these organizations. Suppose it
is true Suppose that a Communist did have influence over Dr King
or suppose an SDS member infiltrated and became a dominant influ
ence in a chapter of the women's liberation movement and you
established it as a fact What would you do Assuming that we can't
get into this harassing and so on you agree that that no longer has any
validity What do you have

Mr ADAMSWe have potential violations which might arise which
rarely come to fruition and haven't for many years but we do have
an intelligence responsibility under the directives from the President
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and the Attorney General That is when a revolutionary group like
the Communist Party has taken over control of a domestic group and
the Communist Party is operated by the Soviet Union We would
furnish that information as we do Every copy of our reports goes
to the Department of Justice

Senator Mo\DALE Right but I just want to use the King case
because as I understood he was being investigated for the reason that
it was feared that a Communist or those who were suspected of being
Communists or known to be Communists were gaining influence
over him Suppose you established that What present use or need is
there for that information

Mr ADAMS I feel that the President the Attorney General the
executive branch needs to know the extent of a foreign-directed
Communist organization its influence and effect on the United States
of America

Senator MONDALEAll right so if such information is valid and an
investigation to seek it is necessary is there any limit on the investiga
tive authority of the FBI

We have just heard about the women's liberation movement where
we were fearful that New Left SDS types might have an influence
That justified that investigation We now have your statement that
we were fearful that some Communists might have influence over Dr
King and therefore he was thoroughly investigated Are there any
limits then on who can be investigated

Mr ADAMS Well the only limits are that we must relate it to a
statutory basis of one of the Presidential guidelines we have or the
criteria we have which criteria are receiving scrutiny at the present
time by Congress They have in the past by the Department of Justice
and this is the area of guidelines This whole area of domestic scrutiny
is what we need guidelines in

Senator MONDALERight and you would agree we talked about this
earlier that being a Communist is not a crime

Mr ADAMSNo it has not been a crime
Senator MONDALESo that the whole basis for this has to apparently

stem from a Presidential directive which you think has tasked you
to do this

Mr ADAMSYes
Senator MONDALEJust a few other points In 1970 November 6

1970 a telegram from Newark to the Director went forth proposing
that the following telegram be sent [Exhibit 31.1]

Word received food donated to party by anti-liberation white pigs contains
poison Symptoms cramps diarrhea severe stomach pains Destroy all food
donated for convention suspected of poison however still required to meet
quota Signed Ministry of Information

This was a telegram that was to be sent from Oakland Calif. to the
Jersey City N.J. headquarters The telegram went on further

It is suggestedthat the Bureau then consider having the laboratory treat fruit
such as oranges with mild laxative-type drug by hypodermic needle or other
appropriate method and ship fruit as a donation from a fictitious person in
Miamito the Jersey City headquarters

The answer then from the Director of the FBI

Seepp 440through442
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The Bureau cannot authorize the treating of fruit to be shipped to Jersey City
because of lack of control over the treated fruit in transit However Newark's
proposed telegram regarding food collected for the Revolutionary People's Con
stitutional Conventionhas merit

How did you ever get to a point like that
Mr ADAMSI don't know What was the response from Newark and

then the final answer taken
Senator MONDALEIt was turned down because they couldn't control

transit but they thought it was a good idea Do you think that's a good
idea

Mr ADAMSNo I don't I think that
Senator MONDALEHow did we ever get to the point that this kind of

insane suggestion was considered a suggestion which violated every
one's civil liberties and was based on Government-sponsored fraud
How does anyone ever consider something like that

Mr ADAMSI don't know
Senator MONDALEOne final point When we interviewed one of your

former employees he referred to something I never heard of before
called a no-contact list He did it jokingly because he said when the
Pope agreed to see Martin Luther King he was sure he would be put on
the no-contact list thereafter Can you tell me what this list is

Mr ADAMSNot in any specific detail I know that at one time there
was a there would be a list that if an agent interviewed an individual
and this individual created a storm or a ruckus and we didn't want
some other agent stumbling out there and interviewing the same per
son that we would make sure that they were aware of the fact that
further contacts of this individual would result in a problem

Senator MONDALEAll right Now in a memo to Clyde Tolson it
refers to a conference on August 26 1971 with certain it looks like
about 10 members of the FBI And this is what it says [Exhibit 32.1]

Pursuant to your instruction membersof the conferencewere briefed concern
ing recent attempts by various newspapers and reporters to obtain information
about or from FBI personnel Memberswere specificallyadvised that there would
be absolutely no conversations with or answers from any of the representatives
of the Washington Post New York Times Los Angeles Times CBS and NBC
The onlyacceptableanswer to such inquiries is nocomment

Now Senator Huddleston earlier asked about efforts to influence
newspapers and media outlet Does a decision not to answer questions
from certain selected media outlets trouble you

Mr ADAMSIt is not the policy today I think this has been aired in
the past There was a period of time wherein Mr Hoover in reacting
to criticism from some of these newspaper men where he felt he hadn't
been given a fair shake or for some other reason that he felt that they
should be told no comment and he instructed they be told no comment
The motivations I am not in a position to discuss but I can tell you
that there has been no such policy in the last several years that
I know of

Senator MONDALEIf you could submit the no-contact list for us if
you can find it I would appreciate it

I have some other questions I will submit for the record Mr
Chairman

The CHAIRMANVery well I just have one final follow-up question
on Senator Mondale's interrogation I continue to be somewhat fas

Seep 443
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cinated by how long these investigations go and when if ever they
are stopped Apparently they never come out of the files whatever is
found But Senator Mondale raised the point of a suspicion that in
the Martin Luther King case that he was getting advice from a per
son who had or was thought to have Communist leanings And so
without using the name because we are trying to protect privacy as
we conduct this investigation

Mr ADAMS I think we have a little more problem than that too
Senator

The CHAIRMANI am using a Mister X in place of the name What
I am trying to get at is what the criteria is for pursuing an investiga
tion and this is the kind of a statement that leaves me so perplexed
This has to do with a reply to the New York office by headquarters
here in Washington The part I read to you is as follows

The Bureau does not agree with the expressed belief of the New York office
that Mr X is not sympathetic to the party cause While there may not be any
direct evidence that Mr X is a Communist neither is there any substantial
evidencethat he is anti-Communist

And so the directions are to continue the investigation of this
matter In cases of this kind do you pursue the investigation until
you prove the negative

Mr ADAMS No I believe in that particular case if it is the one
I am thinking about that there was evidence that at one time he had
been a Communist and that there was a question of whether the
office felt well it's like we have had some situations where a person
comes out and publicly disavows their former leanings Do you take
them at words right away after they have been engaged in violent
activities or do you wait until you determine that they really have
carried through the disavowed practice That's a gray area This one
seems that on the wording itself would seem like an extreme philoso
phy leaning toward everyone has to prove in the United States they
are not a Communist and I can assure that is not a policy of the
Bureau and does not fit into the criteria of our general investigative
matters

I just feel that there is more to it than just that brief paragraph
The CHAIRMAN That particular kind of philosophy has come up

in our life from time to time I remember during the days of Mc
Carthyism in this country we cane very close to the point where
people had to prove that they were not now nor ever been a Com
munist in order to establish themselves as patriotic citizens

Mr ADAMSThat's right That's true
The CHAIRMANAnd when I see standards of this kind or criteria

of this kind emerging it worries me very much
I have no further questions I want to thank you both If there are

no further questions I want to thank you both for your testimony
this morning It has been very helpful to the committee and the
committee will stand adjourned until 2 p.m

We will stand adjourned in public session Our next public session
will be 2 :30 tomorrow afternoon for purposes of press questioning on
the assassination report

[Whereupon at 1:07 p.m. the committee adjourned to reconvene
at 2:30 p.m. Thursday November 20 1975.]
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U.S SENATE
SELECTCOMM1PPEETo Sricur GOVERNMENTALOPERATIONS

WITH RESPECTTO INTELLIGENCEACTIVITIES
Washington D.C

The committee met pursuant to notice at 10:10 a.m. in room 318
Russell Senate Office Building Senator John Tower presiding

Present Senators Tower Hart of Michigan Mondale Huddleston
Morgan Hart of Colorado Goldwater and Schweiker

Also present William G Miller staff director Frederick A O
Schwarz Jr. chief counsel and Curtis R Smothers counsel to the
minority

Senator TOWER The committee will come to order
Senator Church is unavoidably detained today and therefore I

will preside
Today and tomorrow we shall continue our examination of domestic

intelligence activities Our focus should continue to be the activities
of the Federal Bureau of Investigation because of the Bureau's preeminent role in domestic law enforcement and intelligence gathering

Again I must emphasize the limited scope of the committee's charter
and therefore today's inquiry insofar as its impact upon the Bureau
For example in previous sessions we examined the Bureau's use of
mail openings electronic and other means of surveillance surrepti
tious entry individual and organizational bank records income tax
returns and other sources of intelligence information

It is clear that under proper judicial scrutiny as mandated by the
Congress and the courts limited invasions of individual privacy in
volving any or all of the foregoing could be properly undertaken in
aiding the Bureau's law enforcement commission

The focus of our inquiry has been and will continue to be the use
of these and other techniques without the sanction of judicial authority
and for purposes often unrelated to law enforcement as it has been
traditionally defined in our country I stress that the mandate of this
committee is to examine the intelligence-gathering activities of gov
ernmental agencies and does not in any way encompass an assess
ment of the overall FBI law enforcement effort We make no attempt
at overall assessment

With respect to those FBI activities that have come to be known
as domestic intelligence our inquiry has revealed a further bifurcation
of the Bureau's areas of concern As previously discussed by the com
mittee's counsel in our last session approximately 20 percent of the
Bureau's budget is devoted to intelligence activities This is divided
between so-called domestic intelligence and counterespionage activities
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We have accepted and we support the Bureau's position that a fur
ther budgetary breakdown detailing precise expenditures for each
category might adversely affect the national interest by revealing
the exact amount of expenditures for counterespionage Therefore
while the nature and extent of these activities is less than precise
from a budgetary standpoint this inquiry nevertheless represents
a critical area of our investigation

Testimony and other evidence received by the committee to date
indicate that a variety of techniques not limited to those just cited
were employed against individuals and organizations without even
the cover of legislative or judicial authority The impact of these
abuses on individuals and on legitimate political social religious and

philosophical interests represents a dangerous corrosion of our con
stitutional guarantees

In counsels survey of this issue during our last session we ex
amined a range of activities extending from information gathering to

disruption of the lives of individuals and organizations We witnessed
intelligence functions at their admitted worst and a few of the so
called Counterintelligence Programs against Dr Martin Luther King

Today we turn to an in-depth review of intelligence methods
through an examination of the Bureau's most widely used technique
informants The concept of informing is usually distasteful How
ever the informant technique is a valid and recognized one in the
intelligence field and often leads to very solid results Additionally
the Bureau's use and employment of this technique and its abuse is
partially due to the absence of clear guidelines concerning intelligence
informants and the lack of appropriate constitutional guarantees

The legitimate concern of the FBI in investigating criminal con
duct and preventing criminal activities can never justify an in
formant's or law enforcement agent's operating outside of the law
without regard to the rights of others When an informant is used to
penetrate an organization to provide intelligence information the
possible impact of this influence or his influence on that organization
cannot be ignored Surely the infiltration of informants into groups
and organizations who seek to bring about political socio-economic or
other changes in our society represents at the very least a chilling
effect upon the freedom of citizens to gather and to debate and to
work for such changes

The fact that an informant in carrying out his role may hinder or
alter the advancement of legitimate objectives sought by members of
organizations is a matter with which we must all be concerned

Furthermore the Bureau's use of informants in large numbers and
in circumstances where the propriety of having .an informant is du
bious in the first place poses an additional item of concern As I have
already noted the Bureau's use of the informant is part of the FBI's
catalogue of techniques for carrying out its work

Our hearing today will focus first on the roles actally played by
two informants one who infiltrated the Ku Klux Klan another who
infiltrated Vietnam Veterans Against the War The other witnesses
from the Bureau are here to discuss the policy considerations pre
sented by the need for informants and the proper role of informants
in the FBI's mandated investigative and intelligence functions
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The first witnesses today and will the staff bring them forward
please and have them seated at the witness table the first witnesses

today will be Mary Jo Cook and Gary Thomas Rowe Mr Rowe will
be wearing a hood so that he cannot be physically identified He be
lieves that physical identification will be inimical to his personal
safety He now resides at a location not to be disclosed under an alias
which has been given to him by the government It was at his request
that we allow him to testify today hooded so that he cannot be physi
cally identified

Now for some preliminary matters to be entered into the record
I recognize the chief counsel of the committee Mr Schwarz
Mr SCHWARZMr Chairman just before the witnesses I would

like to put in some general facts First the chart which is exhibit 8,1
indicates statistically how absolutely essential the use of informants is
to the Bureau's intelligence activities Based upon a representative
sample of cases collected this spring by the General Accounting Office
it was found that in 83 percent of the cases intelligence cases in
formants were a prime source of information You can contrast that
with the findings that in only 5 percent of the cases was any form of
electronic surveillance used and in only 1 percent of the cases were
surreptitious entry or mail openings used That contrast demonstrates
how absolutely vital to the Bureau's intelligence activities the inform
ant program is

The second group of statistics I would like to enter into the record
relates to the number of informants first today and through time
in the past As of June 30 1975 there were 1,040 domestic intelligence
informants That is not to include persons who are informants in
connection with criminal matters That 1,040 can be further subdi
vided into so-called subversive informants and so-called extremist
informants the definitions of which were discussed before In essence
extremists are persons in the racial area blacks Klan American In
dian and subversives are everybody else who are pursued in the intel
ligence field

In addition to actual informants of whom there are 1,040 there
are today 554 potential informants

In the past these figures have been higher For example in 1971
there were instead of today's 1,040 1,731 actual informants and of
course as we brought out in the hearing 2 weeks ago there were in the
early seventies up to 7,000 so-called ghetto informants

The final clarification before hearing from the witnesses is that
in addition to informants there are in Bureau terminology confi
dential sources The difference as I understand it between an in
formant and a confidential source is that an informant is paid and
directed by the Bureau whereas a confidential source is not paid and
is either not directed or directed to a lesser extent

Some examples in the Bureau manual of confidential sources spe
cific examples are bank officers and telephone company employees
Obviously there are others and the numbers of those are great

I have no further opening statistics Mr Chairman
Senator TOWERThank you Mr Schwarz
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Ms Cook and Mr Rowe will you rise and be sworn please
Do you solemnly swear that the testimony you're about to give be

fore this committee is the truth the whole truth and nothing but the
truth so help you God

Mr RowE I do
Ms Cook I do
Senator TOWERThe witnesses are represented by counsel today
Would counsels please identify themselves for the record
Mr GEERDESFranklin Geerdes for Mr Rowe
Mr LENCHEK Allen Lenchek for Ms Cook Ms Cook is also repre

sented by Ms Ann Garfinkel
Senator TowER The Chair now recognizes the counsel to the mi

nority of the committee to pursue a line of questioning

TESTIMONY OF MARY JO COOK INFORMANT AGAINST VIETNAM
VETERANS AGAINST THE WAR IN BUFFALO 1973-74 ACCOM
PANIED BY ALLEN LENCHEK COUNSEL AND ANN GARFINKEL
COUNSEL AND TESTIMONY OF GARY THOMAS ROWE INFOR
MANT AGAINST KU KLUX KLAN IN BIRMINGHAM ALA. 1960

65 ACCOMPANIEDBY FRANKLIN GEERDES COUNSEL

Mr SMOTHERSThank you
I will begin the inquiry with examination of Ms Cook and Ms

Cook if you will I would like to begin by starting with your first
affiliation with the Federal Bureau of Investigation

It is my understanding that your contact began in the summer of
1973 If you could just briefly for the committee explain how that
contact came about

Ms Cook Yes I was living with a man who was working for the
Bureau and had been working for the Bureau for about a couple of
months as an informant He asked me I observed his activities we
discussed his activities and then he subsequently asked me if I would
consider becoming an informant

Mr SMOTHERSWhich group was he informing for
Ms Cook He was informing for the FBI
Mr SMOTHERSAnd on whom was he informing
Ms Cook The Vietnam Veterans Against the War Winter Soldiers

Organization (VVAW-WSO)
He took me to a meeting After we returned from the meeting we

discussed in more detail how he felt about being an informant what
he did why he did it and when I said that I would be open to talking
about being an informant with the FBI he set up a meeting and then
the FBI came to my house to discuss it with me

Mr SMOTHERSAn agent came to visit you to discuss your becoming
an informant

Ms Cook Yes
Mr SMOTHERSWhat was the nature of that discussion
What were you asked to do if anything
Ms Cook The major understanding that I got from the meeting

was that VVAW-WSO was an organization primarily of veterans
who were possible victims of manipulation They had been through
the Vietnam war They had legitimate readjustment needs and the
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Bureau was afraid that they could become violent or could become
manipulated in a cause or social concern and they wanted me to go in
there and participate in the organization and make sure that the vet
erans didn't get ripped off

So I was to be you know they used words like "be a voice of
reason be a big sister be sort of a guiding force in the organization
and keep things calm cool and collected. That sounded like a
legitimate thing to do so I agreed to work for the FBI

Mr SMOTHERSIn addition to maintaining reason and keeping things
calm and cool what other functions were you assigned by the FBI

Ms CooK Well this whole scenario that was presented was called
being an informant so I was to go to meetings write up reports or
phone in reports on what happened who was there in some way to
try to totally identify the background of every person there what
their relationships were who they were living with who they were
sleeping with to try to get some sense of the local structure and the
local relationships among the people in the organization

So I'd go to a meeting identify the people who were present and
identify them as individuals and then identify the substance of the
meeting

Mr SMOTHERSYou identified the attendees by name
Ms Coos Yes or by physical description if I didn't know the name
Mr SMOTHERSDid you identify friends of persons who were as

sociated with the organization
Ms COOKYes I did
Mr SMOTHERS Did you provide information on these persons

places of employment
Ms CooK Yes I did
Mr SMOTHERSAnd you said you provided information on their

personal relationships
Ms CooK Yes I did
Mr SMOTHERSHow did you come to gain this kind of information
Ms CooK Much of it would be initially it would be gathered at a

meeting People would joke and in personal conversations they would
drop information about themselves As I got to know them as per
sonal friends later then much more information I had access to much
more information

Mr SMOTHERSDid you report back to the Bureau all the informa
tion gained

Ms CooK No I did not report back to the Bureau all information
gained Initially when I worked for the Bureau I did I had little
say I was alien to the situation They said "go into this, so I had no
way of really knowing what was important and what wasn't im
portant so in a sense I was a vacuum cleaner .for information just
gathering it And as I became more familiar with the context within
which I was working I was able to make decisions about what was im
portant information and what was not

Mr SMOTHERSWas this on your initiative or were you given guid
ance as to what to exclude

Ms CooK This was on my own initiative
Mr SMOTHERSDid you report information on the political views of

these persons
Ms CooK Yes I did
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Mr SMOTHERSMs Cook how many people were involved in this
reporting process How many people did you report on

Ms CooK I figured that there were about 50 core people in the or
ganization in the local chapter in Buffalo and if you look at it in con
centric circles there were perhaps 250 people in the Buffalo coin
munity whose names I identified as being leadership one way or the
other in the social issues that they were active in and then perhaps
400 people nationally when you take a look at the national VVAW
WSO and all the organizations that I came into contact with and
then when you add to that the mailing lists that I turned over and the
names that came into my hands as being active or interested members
of VVAW WSO that may be as many as 1,000 names

Mr SMOTHERSWith respect to the value of what you have given
the Bureau was there any formal process of identifying what was
important as opposed to the trivia or end result of your communica
tions

Ms COOKCould you repeat the question
Mr SMOTHERSWhat I'm really 'asking is what system if any was

communicated to you regarding the importance of certain kinds of
information Was it determined on the basis of some guidance by the
Bureau Was it determined based on the amount of information you
got Was there any way that was described to you as to what was
important

Ms CooK OK Beyond the general guidelines identifying people
who were present and being aware of people with a propensity for
violence there were no guidelines as to what information was impor
tant or wasn't important My financial arrangement with them was
on the basis that I would turn over all information gathered They
would think it over they would decide what was of value to them
and what wasn't of value to them and pay me accordingly but not
necessarily identifying what they considered essential They rarely
gave me information They didn't define my context and then ask me
to go into it They just said "We want you to go in there We're not
going to tell you anything about it You figure it out.

I figured that was fair
Mr SMOTHERSAnd your pay was based on the Bureau's assessment

of the value of the information which you turned over
Ms CooK Yes
Mr SMOTHERS,How long were you involved in the effort of inform

ing against the Veterans Against the War
Ms CooK From June 1973 through November 1974 That's approxi

mately 11/2years
Mr SMOTHERSDid there come a time when you were either dissatis

fied with or raised questions about your activities as an informant
Ms CooK Yes
Mr SMOTHERSWhen did this occur
Ms Coox This occurred very very much so after July of 1974 I

had come here to Washington attended the only large demonstration
I've ever been in The Bureau had asked me not to go It advised me
not to go I came and I saw people people I had met in the course of
my activities with blood running down their heads

I came back from Washington very upset and I started talking with
the FBI about all of the contradictions that I was starting to see I
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didn't understand what my involvement was any more So I started
asking them "I don't see the reason for my continuance It seems to
me that you don't understand what I'm telling you These people
don't need me functioning in their midst and if you can't give me as
surances that the information that I'm giving you which you seem
to strip the context away from isn't going to be used against these
people then I cannot continue. And they couldn't They tried to give
me assurances They brought someone from Washington to talk to
me and he talked to me in humanist philosophical terms about why
I should continue and about how everything was fine and good but I
was very dissatisfied with those conversations and I insisted on quit
ting I gave them a month's notice and I quit

Mr SMOTHERSThis person from Washington who talked to you
in philosophical terms do you recall the substance of that conversa
tion In his efforts to get you to remain as an informant what kinds
of reasons were advanced

Ms Coox Mostly they were trying to assure me that the FBI was
part of our conversations were really far-ranging We discussed all
sorts of social issues from poverty to the space program to ecology
They tried to assure me that things were going fine that the status quo
was really fine

I was involved with a group of people who had really bad really
desperate needs as veterans who didn't have social programs that were
sufficient for them I was also involved in welfare rights and I was con
stantly meeting people who lived with a degree of poverty that pro
voked them and irritated and frustrated them and they turned to self
help programs

So here I have on one hand a man telling me that things are fine and
that my work for the Bureau is part of making sure that dissidents 
they had no sympathy for the poverty and the consequences of that
poverty that I was viewing firsthand and living with day to day

So that we were really very much miles apart in our discussions
about what was fine and what was not fine in America And they could
not give me any assurances that this information would not be used
against people I could no longer trust that their interest in these peo
ple they were just not sensitive to what the real needs of these people
were

Mr SMOTHERSAnd wasn't it shortly after this that your role as an
informant was terminated that you indicated that you no longer
desired to work in this capacity

Ms Coox Yes
Mr SMOTHERSLet me just raise one final area of inquiry with you
In our previous discussion you indicated that there came a time

when you had become involved in the Attica Defense Project repre
senting the Vietnam Veterans Against the War And as a part of that
you had become involved in things like the jury survey effort My
question is did you communicate to the Bureau any of your efforts in
this regard as they related to the Attica Defense Effort

Ms Coox Yes I did I was put in the position I was told not to
bring to the FBI's attention any information that legally they
shouldn't have But I'm not a lawyer and most average citizens cannot
make decisions about what is legally significant and what is not legally
significant There are many instances where I passed information
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thinking that I could legitimately pass that information and I now
understand that that information legally the FBI should not have
had that information and I feel badly about that but I also know that
I was put in the kind of position where I was required to make profes
sional decisions and I could not make a professional decision

Mr SMOTHERSMs Cook did the information passed include corre
spondence between you and Attica defendants

Ms CooK Yes
Mr SMOTHERSMr Chairman that concludes my examination of

the witness at this point I would like to put into the record at the
witness request the witness statement four pages dated today's date
and that will be a part of the record of these proceedings

Senator TOWERWithout objection it is so ordered
[The statement of Mary Jo Cook follows :]

STATEMENTOFMARYJO COOK

In June 1973 I agreed to work in a program for veterans A flexible appren
ticeship in socialwork developedthat finallypaid from month to month as much
as my 1972State University teaching fellowship As the first-born in a family of
fourteen people a "big sister program appealed to me The outline of the job
included evaluating emotional stability rationally defusing hair-brained
schemes and protecting potential victims of manipulation My assignment was
Vietnam Veterans Against the War/Winter Soldier Organization (VVAW/
WSO) the Buffalochapter

I became an informer not fully realizing what that meant In 1975 I feel
bitterly the mockery that has been made of my values and the idealistic com
mitment I made A 1984 female Big Brother is a monstrous violation of my
identity as a sister

Being an informant was a serious exploitation of my familial identity I grew
up in a very large and very Catholicfamily I am a big sister to my eight brothers
and three sisters A big sister sets an example assumes adult responsibilityat an
early age and is allowed the freedom and duty of constructive criticism I was
trained to be a leader both in my communityand in my home This was a collec
tive decisionwhich met the needs of my family and tried not to be insensitive to
my needs as a person In my family being 'a sister is a serious and loving com
mitment to other human beings I made this commitment to VVAW/WSOun
aware that the FBI had no intentions of honoring it

The more I understood and definedVVAW/WSOas a process the more I be
came aware that the FBI's response to this process was inimical The picture
painted for me by the FBI of a groupof "crazies was replacedby my experience
of VVAW/WSOas an extended family a community of people engaged demo
cratically in a self-help program I became confused and then alarmed that a
real involvementin the democratic process was not regarded as a positive thing
I resigned from the FBI in November 1974 certain that VVAW/WSOwas a
legitimate and valid organization This resignation was a matter of moral prin
ciplesand patriotic duty

Perhaps the most exciting thing about VVAW/WSOas an organization was
that it gave people a real feel for democracy It was a place where people de
veloped their ideas by putting then into practice Your voice your vote and
your hands made a difference as you sought with others to find new and better
ways of solving problems This process was a bulwark against violence the
legacyto which the nation in its silencehas abandonedveterans

Veterans have always been a group with special needs for those needs there
should be programs If the self-interest of the individual and the mutual interest
of a communityhave a meetingpoint then a program is both possibleand neces
sary A program is a volunteer activity only input from veterans can determine
the exact nature of the readjustment needs at this time The special program
that I worked in did not concern itself with the consent of the participants it
was a secret program for their own good But the fact that Big Brother was
keeping a eye on things did not result in more concrete programs based on real
needs The program was itself a recognition of special needs and a refusal to
search for answers because real programs are too costly an investment in some
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thing as unpredictable and fragile as a human being The idea was to contain
the problem not solve it

Containment is certainly less embarrassing than programs which would be
come an open forum on military conduct in Vietnam If such programs do not
take place then both the Americanpeopleand the veterans that have served them
will suffer one from ignorance and the other from isolation

The Vietnam veterans that I know are interested in changes in the military
changes in their communities and special programs for those among themselves
who need help in rebuilding a life that is honestly worth living My father's re
adjustment as a veteran who had not seen combat but had lived through the
depression hand-to-mouth was accomplishedbecause he believed that his hard
work in the pursuit of happiness would be fruitful My father's vision and
experience of America was exciting and his children grew up believing that
America was a magic land in which all good things were possible For Vietnam
veterans vision and experience have also united the nightmare that began for
themhalfway around the worldis found deeplyrootedat home

The nightmare that many veterans weave of the American Dream is a very
intense part of their experience as Americans In a genocidal war which
deprived them of heroism with honor they came to grips with the inherent
fascism of a war of containment which would subject a civilian populace of
color to years of death and terror all in the name of democracy It is our
national dishonor that democracycan inspire death but not the average citizen
to vote with an educated interest

Senator TOWER Gentlemen I would remind you that we operate
under the 5-minute rule for questioning of these two witnesses and
the Chair recognizes Senator Hart If you will suspend Senator Hart
I think we will go ahead and hear from Mr Rowe and then proceed
with the Senator's questions

Mr SCHWARZMr Rowe were you an informant in the Klan
Mr RowE Yes I was
Mr SCHWARZFrom when to when
Mr RowE From approximately 1959 to 1965
Mr SCHWARZIn 1955 did you surface in connection with a murder

case
Mr RowE Yes I did
Mr SCHWARZWhose murder and what role did you play in that

ease
Mr RowE I was in the automobile the evening that Mrs Viola

Liuzzo was killed by a Klansman
Mr SCHWARZAnd this was the situation in connection with the

Selma march where a woman from Detroit was killed while she was
riding in a car after the march

Mr RowE Correct
Mr ScHwAxz And you surfaced and testified at pretrial which

ultimately resulted in the conviction of the persons who had com
mitted that murder

Is that right
Mr RowE That is correct sir
Mr ScHwAxz NOWI want to go back Mr Rowe to how you came

to that point and what you did as an informant before performing
that service Had you served in the Government prior to being a Klan
informer in military service

Mr ROWE Yes
Mr ScHwAxz You had been a marine
Mr RowE Yes
Mr SCHWARZHow old were you when you became a marine
Mr RowE I joined the Marine Reserves at 1-P/2years of age
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Mr SCHWARZAnd the FBI recruited you to infiltrate the Klan
Is that right

Mr RowE That is correct sir
Mr SCHWARZWhat kind of information did you report back to

the FBI about the Klan
Mr RowE Any and everything that I observed or heard pertain

ing to any Klansmen
Mr SCHWARZNow did that include information relating to Klan

planned violence or actual violence
Mr RowE Yes sir
Mr SCHWARZDid it also include information relating to political

matters
Mr RowE Yes sir
Mr SCHWARZWhat is an example of that
Mr RowE Sir an example of that is that we had a former FBI

agent running for mayor of Birmingham I was instructed to attend
meetings observe who was there whether the people were Republicans
or Democrats as I could best describe them and give their names
and if they were in fact active political people

Mr SCHWARZNow in addition to reporting back political informa
tion relating to violence did you report back information relating to
the social life of the members of the Klan

Mr RowE Yes I did
Mr SCHWARZIncluding the most intimate details of their social

life their personal life
Mr RowE That's what I was instructed to do sir
Mr SCHWARZYou were instructed to do that by the Bureau and

you did that
Mr RowE That is correct sir
Mr SCHWARZDid you also go to meetings of civil rights organiza

tions and report back what was being said at those meetings
Mr RowE Yes I did
Mr SCHWARZDid you report the same information to the Bureau

and to the Klan about the civil rights organizations
Mr RowE Basically the same information yes
Mr SCHWARZYou were a member of something called the KBI

or the Klan Bureau of Investigation Is that right
Mr RowE That's correct
Mr SCHWARZSo you were in effect informing on the civil rights

organizations to both the Bureau and the Klan
Mr RowE That is correct
Mr SCHWARZTurning to the subject of violence what instructions

if any were you given at the outset of your employment by the FBI
with respect to participation in violent activity

Mr RowE Sir I was instructed under no conditions should I par
ticipate in any violence whatsoever

Mr SCHWARZNow did those instructions subsequently change
Mr RowE Yes they did
Mr SCHWARZDescribe the change will you please
Mr RowE Sir I was contacted by my contact agent and he stated

to me he says "I know there's a lot of crap going on that you aren't
reporting. He says "I know what's happening I don't understand
why you don't see it. I said "Well it isn't happening in the open
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meetings I can tell you that I give you every night a written report
of our meetings. And I said "There's absolutely nothing pertaining
to violence discussed in these open meetings However I see a group
that stayed after the meeting's over I see a certain group remaining
and they don't come out when we do.

The agent stated that I should try to get closer to members of this
certain group and find out who they were and try to get closer to
them

Mr SCHWARZDid you do that
Mr RowE Yes I did
Mr..SCHWARZ And then did you begin to participate yourself in

the violent acts
Mr RowE Yes I did
Mr SCHWARZAnd did you tell the FBI that you would participate

in violent acts
Mr RowE Before I participated in the acts yes I did
Mr ,SCHWARZWhat were some of the acts that you participated

in the violent acts
Mr RowE Sir the major one was the Birmingham Freedom Ride
Mr SCHWARZI'll come to that in a moment but did you also

participate in acts of beating people with chains at a county fair
Mr RowE Yes There was a county fair in Alabama and I per

sonally gave the FBI several days notice a good week notice that
this was going to occur My instructions were to hang in to go and
see what happened

Mr SCHWARZDid the FBI ever tell you when you went to these
violent events that you should stand back and not participate or
did they say you were on your own and do whatever you think is
necessary

Mr RowE Sir they said "We have to by law instruct you that you
are not to participate in any violence However I know you have to
do this We know it's something that you have to do and we under
stand it and we need the information That's the important thing
get the information.

Mr SCHWARZTo get the information was it necessary in your
judgment to participate in the violent acts themselves

Mr RoWE Some of the information I think yes and some of it I
would say no sir

Mr SCHWARZ In connection with the Freedom Riders incident
that you mentioned did you inform the FBI about planned violence
prior to that incident

Mr RowE I gave the FBI information pertaining to the Freedom
Riders approximately 3 weeks before it happened

Mr SCHWARZWhat did you tell them
Mr RowE I stated to him I had been contacted by a Birmingham

city detective who in turn wanted me to meet with a high ranking
officer of the Birmingham Police Department to have a reception for
the Freedom Riders

Mr SCHWARZ You mean the Birmingham policemen set up the
meeting of the Freedom Riders and you told the FBI that

Mr RowE Yes
Mr SCHWARZAnd then they were beaten
Mr RowE They were beaten very badly yes
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Mr SCHWARZDid the Birmingham police give you the time that

they promised to give you to perform the beating
Mr RowE We were promised 15 minutes with absolutely no inter

vention from any police officer whatsoever The information was

passed on to the Bureau We had our 15 minutes Approximately 15
minutes after the Freedom Riders were attacked a police officer ran
over to me and stated "Godammit godammit get out of there Get
'em out of here Your 15 minutes are up and we're sending the crew.

Mr SCHAWRZIn that fight did you have your neck cut
Mr RowE Yes sir my throat was cut very severely
Mr SCHWARZWere any arrests made
Mr RowE Absolutely none sir
Mr SCHWARZDid you ever ask the Bureau why no arrest was

made
Mr RowE Yes As a matter of fact I quit very shortly after work

ing of the Freedom Riders right up and own city hall You could
wasn't something done There were 1,000 men at least on that morn

ing of the Freedom Riders right up and down city hall You would
look over from the bus station and see city hall and you would see
as many as 100 police officers walking They couldn't help but see us
We had baseball bats we had clubs we had chains we had pistols
sticking out of our belts It was just unbelievable Not one officer in
the Birmingham Police Department asked us what was going on

Mr SCHWARZBut that was the problem with the Birmingham
Police Department What about the FBI Did you ever discuss with
them why they didn't do anything

Mr RowE Yes sir I was told by the FBI they said "Well who
the hell are we going to report it to The police department was in
volved in it The police department helped set it up We are an inves

tigating agency not an enforcement agency All we do is gather infor
mation. Thas was my answer

Mr SCHWARZNow sometime after that were you told that the FBI
had declared war on the Klan and given the name of something called
COINTELPRO

Mr RowE That is correct sir
Mr SCHWARZAnd what were you told to do under the COINTEL

PRO
Mr RowE Sir under COINTELPRO I had been instructed to dis

rupt discredit or disorganize that organization to the best of my
knowledge

Mr SCHWARZWhat did you do in that connection
Mr RowE I was instructed to give information if I found out who

was sleeping with who if someone was sleeping with another Klans
man's wife I was trying to pass the word around to the different peo
ple so as to cause dissension in their homes try to break up their
homes I was also instructed to attend church services in the regular
church services and see if any political activities were going on or
mention the church services as opposed to the Klan meetings Many
Klan meetings were held in churches

Mr SCHWARZYou were also instructed personally yourself to at

tempt to break up marriages by sleeping with wives of members of
the Klan

Mr RowE Yes I was My instructions were to try to sleep with as

many wives as I could That's probably the best information we could

gather
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Mr SCHWARZThat's all I have Mr Chairman except that there
after you did help solve the Liuzzo murder by providing information
to the FBI as to the solution of that crime

Mr RowE Yes I did pass information
Senator TOWERSenator Hart
Senator HART of Michigan I'd better confess that when you were

inside the Klan I was one among many who had praise of Mr Hoover
and the Bureau because they seemed to know every Communist cell
and half a dozen agents and why weren't they doing the same thing
about the Klan

Now in their defense my notion was that they would have some
body in a crowd in order to be able to report planned violence and
as a result prevent the violence which was occurring I was too dumb
to realize that your presence in there did not prevent violence and
indeed maybe contributed to it

Ms Cook as I get it you concluded that the aims of this Buffalo
chapter of Vietnam Veterans Against the War had as its aim the end
ing of our involvement in Vietnam

Ms Coox Yes
Senator HART of Michigan Amnesty for resistors upgrading cer

tain military discharges and getting better health care and drug treat
ment for Vietnam veterans Is that right

Ms Coon Yes that's right
Senator HART of Michigan Did you ever see and if you did did

you ever report to the Bureau any activities or efforts by that chapter
or other Vietnam veterans to overthrow or destroy our Government
by force or violence

Ms Coon No sir
Senator HART of Michigan And you said that as a lay person you

were not in a position to judge what information appropriately could
be passed on to the FBI and as a result you passed on whatever and
all that you got leaving it up to the Bureau to make the judgment as
to what was and wasn't appropriate

Ms Coon Yes sir
Senator HARTof Michigan Did anyone ever indicate that they only

wanted information about violence or the threat of violence
Ms Coox Did anyone ever indicate that they only wanted informa

tion about violence
Senator HARTof Michigan Yes
Ms Coon No Violence was definitely the priority but they would

never say "only gather information about violence.
Senator HART of Michigan And in the period of a year or a year

and a half in your service as an informant you provided the Bureau
with about 1,000 names of various members

Ms Coon That's my estimate
Senator HART of Michigan During this period in which you were

an informant did you also report on groups and individuals outside
the Vietnam Veterans such as other peace groups or individuals not
members of Veterans Against the War but individuals who were
opposed to the war with whom you came into contact because they
were cooperating with the Vietnam Veterans Against the War in
connection with protest demonstrations and petitions

66-0770 76 9
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Ms CooK There were a lot of groups that were very sympathetic
to the aims of the Vietnam Veterans Against the War Winter Soldier
Organization So that I ended up reporting on groups like the United
Church of Christ the American Civil Liberties Union lawyers the
National Lawyers Guild and liberal church organizations Many
groups went into coalition with Vietnam Veterans Against the War

Those people were reported on as part of the normal course of my
work

Senator HART of Michigan So as the expression goes you were
looking out not just inward at the veterans You were looking out
ward and included in that estimate of 1,000 names were some of those
names individuals associated with these outside groups who were
associated in concert with the effort to end the war

Ms CooK Yes If I understand the question correctly yes
Senator HART of Michigan Let me make it clear You mentioned

the ACLU and clergy groups and so on associated with the efforts to
end the war Were some of the 1,000 names that you submitted to the
Bureau members of those other groups the ACLU and clergymen

Ms CooK Yes
Senator TowER Senator Goldwater
Senator GOLDWATERYes Ms Cook I think the answer you gave to

Senator Hart's last question might be the answer I'm seeking You
turned in information on about 1,000 names How many of those did
you identify as actual veterans

Ms CooK I had a running proportional estimate of how many
veterans there were per chapter or per meeting that I would go to
It's easy to identify when the subject is veterans concerns how many
people are veterans But as to estimating how many of those thousand
that ballpark figure of veterans themselves I would say probably un
der 50 percent Perhaps 35 to 40 percent might be veterans but that's
off the top of my head

Senator GOLDWATERDuring the meetings that you attended was
there any discussion of how the group was financed

Ms CooK Yes There would be financial reports given as the normal
course of the general membership meeting All finances came as dona
tions from the individuals involved out of their paychecks and that
information was something that the FBI wanted They wanted to
know if there was any foreign money coming into the organization
and there was no evidence whatsoever of foreign money

Senator GOLDWATERNo evidence of money coming from other or
ganizations like the ACLU and so forth

Ms CooK The only time I ever heard of any money coming into the
organization from an outside source was that I understood that back
before I joined the organization in 1973 that there were some liberal
movie stars or organizations that donated money for either discharge
and upgrading projects or something along that line There was one
detail like that that I heard as part of a speech at an April 1974 meet
ing but the context of that remark was that all funding from other
American sources had ended because money was drying up rapidly
so that the organization had to fund itself very definitely out of the
pockets of its membership

Senator GOLDWATERThat's all I have Mr Chairman Thank you
Senator TowER Senator Mondale
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Senator MONDALEMs Cook you indicated that you would be paid
by the FBI based upon their evaluation of the value of the informa
tion that you submitted

Ms CooK Yes
Senator MONDALEApproximately how much money did you receive

from the FBI during that period in which you informed
Ms CooK Approximately $300 a month which is the same amount

of money that I received from a teaching fellowship at the university
I understood that that was $300 was the limit for a category for

my category of informant
Senator MONDALEWhat was your category
Ms CooK They told me I existed in a category but they never de

fined what that was
Senator MONDALEApproximately how much did you receive totally

from the FBI
Ms CooK I would think totally I received something like $5,000

during the time that I worked for them I think that's a good approxi
mate figure

Senator MONDALECan you tell from how you were paid what kinds
of information were preferred

Ms CooK I could tell sometimes Like for instance when I was
attempting to become a full-time operator and only on a partial basis
for the FBI I quickly learned that by moving away from the commu
nity of VVAW WSO to do support work that I would be paid less
and that that information was considered less significant

There was one point in the summer where I attempted to stay on
the committee that did political defense work to work on a local wel
fare fraud case That summer that month I got paid less money so I
had to go back doing the active Attica work to in fact get the full
amount of money

Senator MONDALESo when they made this contact with you and
asked you to help guide the Vietnam Veterans Against the War into a
sort of peaceful way as well as informing when you did try to par
ticipate in that way you received very little When you informed you
received up to your quota

Ms CooK You can't really separate them off There was no way
that like one of the things I was supposed to do was go to as many
regional and national meetings as possible to be able to get a good sense
of how the local chapter fit into the national context of the national
organization You went to such meetings as an elected representative
It was a very democratic process so that there was no way that I could
go to the national meeting and fulfill the request of the FBI to go to
regional or national meetings without actually becoming part of the
elected leadership of the chapter

Senator MONDALEBut did they pay your expenses
Ms CooK They would pay my expenses
Senator MONDALEWas that over the $300
Ms CooK I would think the actual limit was $325 so the expenses

would have to fit within the $325
Senator MONDALEDid I hear you say that you were attempting at

one time to be taken on full-time
Ms CooK At one time earlier when I was first approached I did
Senator MONDALEBut you wanted to be full-time
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Ms Cook I preferred working it was more exciting working as an
informant than working as a teller in a bank yes I was working as a
teller in a bank and I found working as an informant a much more

satisfying lifestyle and involvement than working as a teller in a bank
Senator MONDALEBut you couldn't do that on $300 a month
Ms Cook I'm personally bankrupt so no you can't do it on $300

a month I'm in debt up to my ears
Senator MONDALEBut I thought you said earlier you were trying

to get into some kind of full-time permanent status from the FBI
Ms Cook I preferred working for them I had a teaching fellow

ship in 1972 with the State University of New York and I taught
composition and attended graduate school there

That was the amount they paid to graduate students $300 a month
You are expected to live on that I thought I could live on that As
inflation kept going I found that I could not live on that But most

graduate students are expected to live on $300 a month
Senator MONDALEWere there other informants whom you were

aware of
Ms Cook The man that I had been living with was an informant
Senator MONDALEDid he inform on the veterans
Ms Cook Partially He had connections with the veterans club on

the campus who had many members of VVAW WSO but he gradually
moved into different areas

Senator MONDALEWere there other informants in this veterans

group of whom you were aware
Ms Cook No
Senator MONDALEWere they aware at all or suspicious of you that

you might be an informant at these meetings
Ms Cook They constantly talked about harassment feeling that

you know some of their mail had been opened They thought that

they were being followed that their lines were being tapped
The FBI occasionally would go to people and talk to them talk

to their employer One man that happened to work at a place where
the FBI met was fired 3 weeks after I told the FBI that he had to

change our meeting place because it wasn't secure
Could you restate your question
Senator MONDALEI was just wondering to what extent they were

suspicious that there might be informers around and what effect that

may have had on their activities
Ms Cook They were generally suspicious they were generally

worried But they didn't ever indicate that they thought that I was an
informant and I never told them I was an informant and when I

finally did tell them I was an informant they were almost in a state
of shock There was a kind of confusion

I was a trusted person I was someone who had developed you
know pretty human relationships with them and I was a friend They
considered me a friend and I quit the FBI because I became a friend
and had come to like those people very much

Senator TOWERSenator Schweiker
Senator SCHWEIKERThank you Mr Chairman
Ms Cook what kind of information did the FBI pay the most for

In other words since it was some kind of a scale of value what was
worth the most to them what kind of information
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Ms Cook I can only make general conclusions about that I know
that the work that I did in political defense earned me a full-time liv
ing and that that work in political defense was fully within my
participation in VVAW WSO as an organization But beyond trying
to pinpoint the exact information it was more or less all I can say
is it was political information and I would never be able to tell if
information given by the individuals was particularly significant to
them because they would never tell me something like that

Senator SCHWEIKERWhen you were working as an informant and
would work with groups or people that interacted with the Vietnam
Veterans Against the War who weren't members of that specific
group such as some of the church groups that you mentioned were
you to report on their activities and political views as well as people
in the outside groups that interacted with the VVAW or not

Ms Cook If they were agreeing to work with VVAW WSO on a
common project then the kind of positions and the way in which they
would vote on a particular issue would be very relevant

Senator SCHWEIKER SO if the United Church of Christ were to
agree to a joint project of some kind or work with them then they
would be fair game too

Ms Cook The United Church of Christ's position on unconditional
amnesty was of interest to the FBI yesSenator SCHWEIKERMr Rowe in your job were you to determine
and report on the positions on the issues of candidates for public
office Was it part of your job or part of the information that you
supplied to include where candidates for political office stood on
issues

Mr RowE Yes that is correct I was instructed to do this and I
did do it

Senator SCHWEIKERWas this a matter of all the positions that
candidates took or just positions that relate to civil rights

How would you define the kind of information that they were
interested in on political candidates

Mr RowE Sir I was instructed to obtain information of any
description that I could report I had no boundary line I was
instructed to cover and monitor everything

Senator SCHWEIKEROn a political candidate All of his views
Mr RowE Yes sir that's correct
Senator SCHWEIKER In previous questioning you have cited one

or two cases where you had warned that violence was about to occur
and nothing was done and you felt that something should have been
done Were there other instances where you knew from what youhad heard or told the FBI that violence was about to occur and
that you were trying to not only inform them but warn them to seek
to prevent it in some way Were there other instances besides the one
or two you mentioned

Mr RowE Yes sir there were several of them
Senator SCHWEIKERIn view of that what did you feel their pur

pose was in terms of violence In other words what do you infer from
the fact they let the violence proceed anyway What really was their
objective as you saw it
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Mr RowE Sir that's a question that's very difficult for me to
answer because I really don't know at this time I had that question
myself and I asked that question but all my reply was I was serving
my country well and it was information that had to be obtained or
they wouldn't be there

That was my reply to that
I think that myself I have the greatest respect for the field agents

in the FBI I think that the problems that you're trying to find out
and I'm trying to help you with come up from higher echelons

I think that they were just telling me something that someone else
told them to do I think they were simply following instructions

Senator SCHWEIKEROn the matter of intervening before violent
activities did you feel that what you reported pretty well went on up
the chain of command that it did not just stop with your contact of
ficer Did you get the feeling that it went pretty well up into the
hierarchy in terms of that policy

Mr RowE Certainly Up until yesterday I had no way of knowing
I briefly saw several reports that I had turned in through the years
indicating that they did in fact get back here to Washington in ample
time to have these things stopped and apparently nothing was done
about them

Senator SCIIWEIKERSo it raised the question and I gathered this is
part of the reason that you decided to not continue your activities of
what the real purpose of your activity was when you saw violence that
might have been prevented by some kind of action by someone in the
Department When it wasn't done you felt that actually violence and
stopping violence really wasn't part of the function that you were
engaged in even though that's what you thought you were engaged
in Is that about right

Mr RowE That's basically the answer sir
Senator SCHWEIKERDo you think that informants if used properly

can prevent violence if people want to prevent violence In other
words given what you know now would it be possible to prevent
violence if the policies of the FBI would be toward preventing
violence

Mr RowE Sir if I may explain to you I obtained the name of a
preacher during my 5 years in the Klan organization because I would
see things that I felt they were fixing to go on and I would say "come
on it's not worth the hassle We can do it another time Don't get
involved because we're going to blow the damn thing open, and all
this type of information

I was just simply trying to deter these things I had met with some
of the higher echelons of the Jefferson County Sheriff's Department
the Birmingham Police Department and movements of violence with
2 3 several days notice and I was just concerned I would say "look
you really think this is the answer And they would say "this is what
we need to get done We've got to stop this right now American peo
ple have to keep these people out of here.

Senator SCHWEIKERI just have one quick question As I understand
it because you were with the Klan and wanted to keep people in the
Klan the Birmingham Police Department gave you complete access
to the intelligence files of the police department You were pretty
well allowed to see what you needed to see to promote the Klan's
activities by the Birmingham Police Department Is that correct
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Mr RowE That is correct sir
Senator SCHWEIKERThat's all I have Mr Chairman
Senator TowER Senator Huddleston
Senator HUDDLESTONThank you Mr Chairman
Ms Cook what instructions were you given by the FBI relative to

the secrecy of your mission as to how you were supposed to keep from
the public or other individuals that you were in fact an informant

Ms CooK I think I was generally instructed that I was not to tell
anybody I didn't take it that seriously because I went home and I told
my eleven brothers and sisters I told my parents and I told a few girl
friends I did not tell anyone in the political organization that I
infiltrated

Senator HUDDLESTONBut that would have been a violation of in
structions you received

Ms CooK I was told that the reason for me to remain in secret the
reason why I was supposed to keep my work secret was for my own
protection I didn't see that telling my family about the work that I
was doing for the FBI was going to be any violation of my protection
or any danger to me

Senator HUDDLESTONWould that same attitude have prevailed dur
ing discussions between your friend and yourself about his involve
ment as an informant assuming that he had the same instructions

Ms Coox You mean did our instructions mean that we shouldn't
mutually discuss our work

Senator HUDDLESTONRight Or his work prior to your becoming
an informant You apparently discussed your friend's role which led
you to become an informant

Ms Coox I suppose he shouldn't have discussed it with me except
that he trained me He constantly talked with me about the activity the
work that I was doing what his perspective was on it and then we
came to really severely disagree about what we were supposed to be
doing

Senator HUDDLESTONNow you indicated that you became quite dis
enchanted with your role after your Washington experience Prior to
that instance in Washington had any of the information that you
had furnished the FBI been of such a nature that would have led
them to believe that there would be violence at that particular demon
stration

Ms CooK Although I was finally disenchanted with the FBI none
of the information that I provided the FBI about the coming demon
strations for universal unconditional amnesty or ending the war none
of that information suggested that there would be violence

Senator HUDDLESTONDid any of it suggest that this organization
was in fact being manipulated by Communist influences

Ms CooK No
None of it suggested there was any manipulation of any kind
Senator HUDDLESTONDid any information suggest that they were

engaging in illegal or violent operations
Ms Coox No
Senator HTDDLESTONYou indicated that part of your disenchant

ment too was that information you furnished was being used against
these people

What did you mean by that
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Ms Coos I mean going to someone's employer and telling them that
the person 'that is working with them is a Communist and a dangerous
person and ought not to be employed and people being fired People
were very afraid that the FBI was watching them because the FBI did
not agree with their policies and when the FBI would come to their
door to talk to them they didn't want to talk with the FBI The fact
that their employers were being talked to and that their political
views were being discussed with their employer with an eye toward
terminating their employment that worried them it upset them

Senator HUDDLESTONYou did not feel it was justified on the'basis of
their participation or activity in the Vietnam Veterans Against the
War

Ms CooK Definitely not
Senator HUDDLESTONIn your judgment did the FBI have an

exaggerated concern about this organization as far as it being a threat
to the United States

Ms CooK Yes and nothing I could say could change that
Senator HIDDLESTONThey persisted in that attitude despite the

fact that the information you had given them tended to lead in the
other direction

Ms CooK Yes
Senator HUDDLESTONDo you have any idea what happened to the

information they collected on the 1,000 persons you estimate you sup
plied to them Was it set up in files Is it still maintained

Ms CooK My information was that they say that most of the in
formation I gave them was going to be kept at the local level except
that I got several telephone calls relayed to me through Gary from
Washington based on the reports I was turning in so that I knew that
information wasn't just remaining at the local level It was going
to Washington and decisions were coming from Washington Other
than that I don't know where the information went

Senator HUDLESTONMr Rowe certainly on the event of Mother's
Day 1961 there was complicity with the Birmingham police officials
in the violent actions that occurred Were there ever instances in your
experiences where police officials collaborated in or were accomplices
to violent and illegal acts

Mr RowE Absolutely sir We on several occasions rode around in
Birmingham police automobiles surveilling some of the churches

Senator HUDDLESTONRode around in the automobiles
Mr RowE In the automobiles yes sir There were as many as three

to five Klansmen on the police department
Senator HUDDLESTONWas the FBI made aware of this
Mr RowE Yes sir absolutely on many occasions
Senator HUDDLESTONWere there any instances where the FBI

reported that fact to the Attorney General or any other legal official
with the U.S Government

Mr RowE Sir I really wouldn't know I wouldn't be in a positionto answer that I really don't know I was just involved with my con
tact agent

Senator HUDDLESTONYou didn't see the result of any action alongthat line
Mr Rows Absolutely none
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Senator HUDDLESTONJust one other question
You switched from being a nonparticipant in violent actions in the

Klan to a participant when the FBI changed to so-called COINTEL
PRO which involved disruption During this phase of your par
ticipation were there serious efforts to prevent violent actions from
occurring

Mr RowE Sir to the best of my personal knowledge only in one
or possibly two instances I know of one incident that they did pre
vent violence but that was the only one There were many that they
could have prevented but they did not

Senator HUDDLESTONIn the May 21 incident the FBI did send
additional agents into Birmingham prior to that march did they
not

Mr RowE That is correct
Senator HTDDLESTONBut as far as you know none of them made

any efforts to prevent the violence from occurring
Mr RowE Sir if I may at the time of the incident itself along

with the Birmingham incident I observed I observed several FBI
in fact taking movies of the beatings at the bus station

Senator HUDDLESTONAnd they did nothing to stop it
Mr RowE No
Senator TowER Senator Hart of Colorado
Senator HART of Colorado Mr Rowe during the period we are

discussing here you attended a number of civil rights rallies or meet
ings Is that correct

Mr RowE Yes sir
Senator HARTof Colorado And at the time that you were gathering

information for the FBI about Klan activities you were also in effect
gathering information for the Klan about civil rights activities is
that correct

Mr RowE That is correct sir
Senator HARTof Colorado Were there ever occasions in this double

agent capacity when information you gathered in your capacity as an
FBI informant information that had to do with civil rights groups
or activities was passed on to the Klan to the detriment of those
civil rights groups

Mr RowE Sir I don't believe I understand the question but if I
understand it correctly I at no time used any information that I
knew of or was aware of and passed it on to the Klan absolutely not

Senator HARTof Colorado I'm sorry I missed the last part of that
You didn't use that information in what way

Mr RowE I passed on absolutely nothing to the Klan that I learned
or obtained from various agents in the Bureau I'm not sure what you
are asking

Senator HARTof Colorado I'm merely trying to find out if in cov
ering or attending the civil rights meetings on the one hand for the
FBI as a Klan informant were you also gathering information about
the civil rights activities for the Klan in a way that would encourage
the Klan to act adversely to those civil rights groups

Mr RowE No sir
Senator HARTof Colorado One other question
We've had considerable testimony in the last few weeks about the

Federal Bureau of Investigation in relationship to Dr King [See
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footnote p 21.] Part of their animosity to Dr King sprang originally
from late 1962 in which he gave an interview critical of the FBI
and I think that interview appeared in the Atlanta Constitution in
November of 1962 He said among other things agents of the FBI
in Albany Ga. are siding with segregationists This apparently agi
tated the Bureau considerably and in early 1963 Bureau memo
randums indicate that at the direction of Mr Hoover Mr DeLoach
and Mr Sullivan tried to contact Dr King to set him straight about
the fact that the Bureau is not siding with segregationists and so on

In one memorandum January 15 1963 when their attention to
Dr King first began a DeLoach memorandum says "It would appear
obvious" after Dr King refused to talk to him "It would appear
obvious that Reverend King does not desire to be told the true facts
He obviously uses deceit lies and treachery as propaganda to further
his own cause.

This memorandum and other memorandums go ahead to indicate
Dr King didn't know what he was talking about that he was lying
about the Bureau's involvement with the Klan and other groups

Now from that began the Bureau's harassment if you will of Dr
King that continued for a number of years ending only with his death
It seems to me that from what you have told us here today and from
other information gathered by the staff that in fact Dr King was
right and the Bureau was either deceiving itself or just not telling
the truth internally when it indicated that Dr King was lying about
the Bureau's own involvement with Klan activities Is that correct

Mr RowE Sir that's very difficult to answer but I believe that
you're on the right track yes

Senator HARTof Colorado Thank you very much
Senator TOWER I should inform my colleagues that there is a

record vote in progress on the Senate floor
Ms Cook you have testified that the FBI urged you to remain as an

informant after you had informed them of your decision to terminate
Did they at any subsequent time ask you to return to your role as an
informant

Ms Coox I believe that the telephone call that I received in Febru
ary 1974 was that kind of a telephone call I had been working in a
plant for 3 months I had been fired twice Within 2 days of my second
firing at that plant the FBI called and asked me a couple of questions
as to whether or not the local chapter would be leaving the national
organization indicated that if the chapter would resign that there
would be no longer any necessity for an informant and I refused to
tell them the political position that I was going to take in relationship
to that and I said "I don't want to talk to you any more, and I hung
up

It was my feeling that the coincidence of my losing my job and
their calling me was perhaps more than a coincidence

Senator TOWERMs Cook in addition to the $300 or $400 a month
that the FBI paid you did they provide you with any other financial
incentives to perform as an informant any other kind of assistance
job assistance or anything

Ms Coca Well they did get me a job They got me the job at
M & T Bank They also got the man that I was living with a job at a
gun supply store where the agents bought their guns As part of work
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ing for M R T Bank I went into teller training and part of that
training taught me how to identify weapons how to identify a per
son who just walks in and leaves I didn't see the significance of that
kind of training I mean I see the significance for a bank but I would
assume that my getting a teller's position when I went through that
kind of training also did not hurt the purposes of the Bureau in hiring
me also

Senator TOWER Mr Rowe how often did you report to the FBI
Was it once or twice a week or daily or what

Mr RowE Certainly when I first entered the organization I was
reporting on an average of one to three times a week Just prior to
leaving the organization I was reporting as many as seven times a
day

Senator TOWERSeven times a day
Mr RowE Yes telephonically
Senator TOWERMr Rowe in 1961 Dr Martin Luther King charged

that the FBI was cooperating with violence-prone local police Mr
Hoover strongly challenged this allegation In your view did the
Freedom Riders incident represent an aberration or was it indicative
of the general policy of refusing to prevent violence even when the
FBI was warned or advised in advance of the occurrence

Mr RowE I believe my answer to that would be that there were a
couple of times that violence was prolonged I can't say it was stopped
it was prolonged but in general the Birmingham Police Department
and the sheriff's office of Jefferson County were definitely involved in
the violence I was there and I was a witness to it and nothing was
done about it

Senator TOWER Are you aware of any other similar instances in
which the local police were involved

Mr RowE Yes sir I am
Senator TowER So this was indicative of something that occurred

fairly generally then and the Freedom Riders is not an isolated
incident

Mr RowE No sir it's definitely not isolated
Senator TOWERThank you Mr Rowe
Senator Hart
Senator HARTof Michigan On this business I'm still not sure what

benefit could accrue to the FBI with its informants contributing to
violence There were instances where you advised the FBI in advance
of planned violent activity by the Klan right

Mr RowE Yes sir
Senator HART of Michigan How many times would that advance

information prevent the anticipated violence Anytime
Mr RowE Yes sir Actually
Senator HARTof Michigan Usually
Mr RowE Not normally but on several occasions it did yes sir

But not as often as they could have in my belief I believe that each
and every instance that I reported to the Bureau with the advance
knowledge that they had someone in this country could have been
there to prevent that I believe that That's all I can say

Senator HARTof Michigan Can you give us an estimate as to how
many such reports of anticipated violence you gave the Bureau

Mr RowE Sir well in the high dozens
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Senator HART of Michigan In the high dozens How many times
were those planned violent activities prevented

Mr RowE Two to my knowledge that I can actually testify to and
I understand from another agent one other time But I can testify
as to two times

Senator HARTof Michigan Was there any difference in the type of
report that you made in those two cases and the several dozen other
cases

Mr RowE No sir absolutely not
Senator HART of Michigan And were the two cases where your

report did result in the prevention of violence toward the end of your
association with the Bureau

Mr RowE No sir I would have to say along the middle almost in
the middle of the time

Senator TowER You have testified that there were several instances
in which local police were cooperating with the Klan in acts of
violence

Mr RowE That's correct sir
Senator TowER And the FBI had been forewarned of some of these

instances that this violence would occur and that they would occur
at a certain time

Mr RowE In every instance that I was aware of yes
Senator TowER To your knowledge did the FBI do anything to

circumvent the local police in an effort to prevent this violence from
occurring

Mr RowE Sir I think maybe I should just state it briefly and see
if I can answer the question On one occasion the Klan was on the
way to Tuscaloosa to the university at a time when Governor Wal
lace was going to have his stand in the doorway to prevent integra
tion of the university I along with several other Klansmen were
arrested outside of Tuscaloosa Ala by the highway patrol and ele
ments of the FBI They seized various types of weapons from us We
were incarcerated that afternoon in the Tuscaloosa County Jail We
remained in jail throughout the evening until Bobby Shelton came
down and arranged the release for approximately 35 of us The weap
ons were confiscated and the release was on our own recognizance
but we would have to have a hearing on it The next morning I received
a call from Robert Thomas who was the Exalted Cyclops like the
president of the Klan and he said to me that he wanted me to go to
Tuscaloosa with him I went to Tuscaloosa went to the courthouse
We spoke with the judge The judge took us over to the district at
torney The district attorney says "is it all right if we release the boys
weapons to them now, and the judge says yeah He slapped me on
the shoulder personally and then he turned around and shook my
hand and he said "I want to congratulate you for being an outstand
ing goddam American We need some more people down here like
that But I want you to be careful because somewhere in your group
you have a goddam snitch. That's exactly what the judge said to me
he said "because I had to put you boys in jail last night If I didn't the
troops would probably come into Alabama and I don't want that. He
says "take your weapons and use them well. He returned our weapons
to us I then returned to Birmingham advised the agents what had
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transpired that I had the weapons back in my possession and the
agents were aghast They said you can't have these weapons back in
your possession They are locked in our vault And I said "well you'd
better come down and look because in the trunk of my automobile 
the agents came out took the serial numbers of the weapons to confirm
the fact that we had been given our weapons back and that's the last
of the incident I ever heard

Senator TOWERSo the FBI then apparently went to the State police
to try to prevent this violence

Mr RowE That's what I believe yes
Senator TOWER So there was a level of cooperation there
Mr RowE Limited yes sir
Senator TOWERAnd what other instances were there of local police

cooperation What others specifically can you name that you know of
Mr RowE Sir on the same occasion when we were incarcerated in

Tuscaloosa there was a State investigator A couple of Klansmen were
very upset very nervous highly nervous during interrogation and
they gave us a quick interrogation as to why we were coming up to
Tuscaloosa with all these weapons A State investigator called me
outside the room and said "go back in there and tell that goddamn
Klansman to keep his mouth shut that something may come up about
the bombing and you tell him to shut up I may have to ask him some
questions. I related this information to the Bureau the same night

On another occasion the chief deputy of the Jefferson County Sher
iff's Department contacted me and I in turn on each occasion con
tacted higher authorities of the Klan when they wanted something
done I at no time left this to my discretion I left it to the higher
echelon of the Klan The agreement was set up with the cooperation
of the Jefferson County Sheriff's Department There was a country
club on the outskirts of Birmingham called the Sand Ridge Country
Club This country club was set up where the Klansmen were there
were approximately 35 Klansmen involved along with approximately
20 county deputies and the chief deputy We went out to this club
on Saturday night We were supplied evidence to place in this club
They told us all you do at a quarter to midnight you get this stuff in
the various places and they described where the various places were
We left the merchandise At 12 o'clock the prearranged agreement was
that they had two female deputies there also When the female deputy
got up to dance with her escort that was the signal for the raid At that
point everybody participated in the raid They arrested several peo
ple that night took them away and subsequently padlocked the coun
try club That is the last time we heard of this This was reported to
the FBI approximately a week and a half two weeks prior to its taking
place

Senator TOWERThank you Mr Rowe I believe there are no further
questions

I want to thank you Ms Cook and you Mr Rowe for your co
operation with the committee and your very significant and helpful
testimony

Thank you very much
The committee will stand in recess for 3 minutes while we bring

forth the other witness
[A brief recess was taken.]
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Senator TowER The next witnesses to appear before the committee
are Mr James Adams Assistant to the Director-Deputy Associate Di
rector (Investigation) responsible for all investigative operations
Mr W Raymond Wannall Assistant Director Intelligence Division
responsible for internal security and foreign counterintelligence
investigations Mr John A Mintz Assistant Director Legal Counsel
Division Joseph G Deegan section chief extremist investigations
Mr Robert L Shackelford section chief subversive investigations
Mr Homer A Newman Jr. assistant to section chief supervises
extremist informants Mr Edward P Grigalus unit chief supervises
subversive informants Joseph G Kelley assistant section chief civil
rights section General Investigative Division

Gentlemen will you all rise and be sworn
Do you solemnly swear the testimony you are about to give before

this committee is the truth the whole truth and nothing but the truth
so help you God

Mr ADAMSI do
Mr WANNALLI do
Mr MINTz I do
Mr DEEGANI do
Mr SCHACKELFORDI do
Mr NEWMANI do
Mr GRIGALUSI do
Mr Kria.Ey I do
Senator TowER It is intended that Mr Wannall will be the principal

witness and we will call on others as questioning might require and
I would direct each of you when you do respond to identify yourselves
please for the record

I think that we will spend just a few more minutes to allow the mem
bers of the committee to return from the floor

[A brief recess was taken.]
Senator TOWERThe committee will come to order
Mr Wannall according to data informants provide 83 percent of

your intelligence information Now will you provide the committee
with some information on the criteria for the selection of informants

TESTIMONY OF JAMES B ADAMS ASSISTANT TO THE DIRECTOR 
DEPUTY ASSOCIATE DIRECTOR (INVESTIGATION) FEDERAL
BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION W RAYMONDWANNALL ASSIST
ANT DIRECTOR INTELLIGENCE DIVISION ACCOMPANIED BY
JOHN A MINTZ ASSISTANT DIRECTOR LEGAL COUNSEL DIVI

SION JOSEPH G DEEGAN SECTION CHIEF ROBERT L SHACKLE

FORD SECTION CHIEF HOMER A NEWMAN JR. ASSISTANT TO
SECTION CHIEF EDWARD P GRIGALUS UNIT CHIEF AND
JOSEPH G KELLEY ASSISTANT SECTION CHIEF CIVIL RIGHTS

SECTION GENERAL INVESTIGATIVE DIVISION

Mr WANNALL Mr Chairman that is not FBI data that you have
quoted That was prepared by the General Accounting Office

Senator TowER That is GAO
Mr WANNALLBased on a sampling of about 900 cases
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Senator TOWER Would that appear to be a fairly accurate figure
Mr WANNALLI have not seen any survey which the FBI itself has

conducted that would confirm that but I think that we do get the
principal portion of our information from live sources

Senator TOWERIt would be a relatively high percentage then
Mr WANNALLI would say yes And your question is what criteria
Senator TOWER What criteria do you use in the selection of

informants
Mr WANNALL Well the criteria vary with the needs In our cases

relating to extremist matters surely in order to get an informant who
can meld into a group which is engaged in a criminal-type activity
you're going to have a different set of criteria If you're talking about
our internal security matters I think we set rather high standards We
do require that a preliminary inquiry be conducted which would consist
principally of checks of our headquarters indexes our field office
indexes checks with other informants who are operating in the same
area and in various established sources such as local police departments

Following this if it appears that the person is the type who has
credibility can be depended upon to be reliable we would inter
view the individual in order to make a determination as to whether
or not he will be willing to assist the FBI in discharging its responsi
bilities in that field

Following that assuming that the answer is positive we would
conduct a rather indepth investigation for the purpose of further
attempting to establish credibility and reliability

Senator TowER How does the Bureau distinguish between the use
of informants for law enforcement as opposed to intelligence col
lection Is the guidance different or is it the same

Mr WANNALLWell Mr Adams can probably best address the use
of informants on criminal matters since he heads the operational
division on that

Mr ADAMS You do have somewhat of a difference in the fact that
with a criminal informant in a law-enforcement function you are
trying to develop evidence which will be admissible in court for
prosecution whereas with intelligence the informant alone your
purpose could either be prosecution or it could be just for the purposes
of pure intelligence

The difficulty in both is retaining the confidentiality of the indi
vidual and protecting the individual and trying through use of
the informant to obtain evidence which could be used independently
of the testimony of the informant so that he can continue operating
as a criminal informant

Senator TowaR Are these informants ever authorized to function
as provocateurs

Mr ADAMSNo sir they're not We have strict regulations against
using informants as provocateurs This gets into that delicate area of
entrapment which has been addressed by the courts on many oc
casions and has been concluded by the courts that providing an in
dividual has a willingness to engage in an activity the Government
has the right to provide him the opportunity This does not mean
of course that mistakes don't occur in this area but we take whatever
steps we can to avoid this Even the law has recognized that informants
can engage in criminal activity and the courts have held that espe
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cially the Supreme Court in the Newark County case that the very
difficulty of penetrating an ongoing operation that an informant him
self can engage in criminal activity but because there is lacking this
criminal intent to violate a law we stay away from that Our regu
lations fall short of that

If we have a situation where we felt that an informant has to be
come involved in some activity in order to protect or conceal his use
as an informant we go right to the U.S attorney or to the Attorney
General to try to make sure we are not stepping out of bounds inso
far as the use of our informants

Senator TOWER But you do use these informants and do instruct
them to spread dissension among certain groups that they are in
forming on do you not

Mr ADAMSWe did when we had the COINTELPRO which were
discontinued in 1971 and I think the Klan is probably one of the best
examples of a situation where the law was in effect at the time We
heard the term "states rights used much more then than we hear it
today We saw in the Little Rock situation the President of the United
States in sending in the troops pointing out the necessity to use local
law enforcement We must have local law enforcement to use the
troops only as a last resort

And then you have a situation like this where you do try to preserve
the respective roles in law enforcement You have historical problems
with the Klan coming along We had situations where the FBI and the
Federal Government were almost powerless to act We had local law
enforcement officers in some areas participating in Klan violence

The instances mentioned by Mr Rowe every one of those he saw
them from the lowest level of the informant He didn't see what action
was taken with that information as he pointed out in his testimony
Our files show that this information was reported to the police depart
ments in every instance We also knew that in certain instances the
information upon being received was not being acted upon We also
disseminated simultaneously through letterhead memorandums to the
Department of Justice the problem and here here we were the FBI
in a position where we had no authority in the absence of instruction
from the Department of Justice to make an arrest

Sections 241 and 242 do not cover it because you don't have evidence
of a conspiracy and it ultimately resulted in a situation where the
Department called in U.S marshals who do have authority similar to
local law enforcement officials So historically in those days we were
just as frustrated as anyone else was and when we got information
from someone like Mr Rowe good information reliable information
and it was passed on to those who had the responsibility to do some
thing about it it was not always acted upon as he indicated

Senator TOWERIn none of these cases then was there adequate evi
dence of conspiracy to give you jurisdiction to act

Mr ADAMSThe departmental rules at that time required and still
require departmental approval where you have a conspiracy Under
241 it takes two or more persons acting together You can have a mob
scene and you can have blacks and whites belting each other but
unless you can show that those that initiated the action acted in concert
in a conspiracy you have no violation
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Congress recognized this and it wasn't until 1968 that they came

along and added section 245 to the civil rights statute which added
punitive measures against an individual that didn't have to be a con
spiracy But this was a problem that the whole country was grappling
with the President of the United States Attorney General We were
in a situation where we had rank lawlessness taking place as you know
from a memorandum we sent you that we sent to the Attorney General
The accomplishments we were able to obtain in preventing violence
and in neutralizing the Klan and that was one of the reasons

Senator TOWER What was the Bureau's purpose in continuing or

urging the continued surveillance of the Vietnam Veterans Against
the War Was there a legitimate law enforcement purpose or was the
intent to halter political expression

Mr ADAMSWe had information on the Vietnam Veterans Against
the War that indicated that there were subversive groups involved

They were going to North Vietnam and meeting with the Communist
forces They were going to Paris attending meetings paid for and
sponsored by the Communist Party the International Communist
Party We feel that we had a very valid basis to direct our attention to
the VVAW

It started out of course with Gus Hall in 1967 who was head of the
Communist Party USA and the comments he made and what it

finally boiled down to was a situation where it split off into the Rev
olutionary Union which was a Maoist group and the hardline Com
munist group and at that point factionalism developed in many of the
chapters and they closed those cases where there was no longer any
intent to follow the national organization

But we had a valid basis for investigating it and we investigated
chapters to determine if there was affiliation and subservience to the
national office

Senator TOWER Mr Hart
Senator HARTof Michigan But in the process of chasing after the

Veterans Against the War you got a lot of information that clearly
has no relationship to any Federal criminal statute

Mr ADAMSI agree Senator
Senator HART of Michigan Why don't you try to shut that stuff

off by simply telling the agent or your informant
Mr ADAMS Here is the problem that you have with that When

you're looking at an organization do you report only the violent
statements made by the group or do you also show that you may have
one or two violent individuals but you have some of these church
groups that were mentioned and others that the whole intent of the
group is not in violation of the statutes You have to report the good
the favorable along with the unfavorable and this is a problem We
wind up with information in our files We are accused of being vacuum
cleaners and you are a vacuum cleaner If you want to know the real
purpose of an organization do you only report the violent statements
made and the fact that it is by a small minority or do you also show
the broad base of the organization and what it really is

And within that is where we have to have the guidelines we have
talked about before We have to narrow down because we recognize
that we do wind up with too much information in our files
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Senator HARTof Michigan But in that vacuuming process you are
feeding into departmental files the names of people who are who have
been engaged in basic first amendment exercises and this is what
hangs some of us up

Mr ADAMS It hangs me up But in the same files I imagine every
one of you has been interviewed by the FBI either asking you about
the qualifications of some other Senator being considered for a Presi
dential appointment being interviewed concerning some friend who
is applying for a job

Were you embarrassed to have that in the files of the FBI
Now someone can say as reported at our last session that this is an

indication the mere fact that we have a name in our files has an oner
ous impression a chilling effect I agree It can have if someone wants
to distort what we have in our files but if they recognize that we inter
viewed you because of considering a man for the Supreme Court of the
United States and that isn't distorted or improperly used I don't see
where any harm is served by having that in our files

Senator HART of Michigan But if I am Reverend Smith and the
vacuum cleaner picked up the fact that I was helping the veterans
Vietnam Veterans Against the War and 2 years later a name check is
asked on Reverend Smith and all your file shows is that he was asso
ciated 2 years ago with a group that was enough if you believed them
to be of doubtful patriotism to justify turning loose a lot of your
energy in pursuit of them

Mr ADAMSThis is a problem
Senator HART of Michigan This is what should require us to

rethink this whole business
Mr ADAMSAbsolutely And this is what I hope the guidelines com

mittees as well as the congressional input are going to address them
selves to

Senator HART of Michigan We've talked about a wide range of
groups which the Bureau can and has had informant penetration and
report on Your manual the Bureau manual's definition of when an
extremist or security investigation may be undertaken refers to
groups whose activity either involves violation of certain specified
laws or which may result in the violation of such law and when
such an investigation is opened then informants may be used

Another guideline says that domestic intelligence investigations
now must be predicated on criminal violations The agent need only
cite a statute suggesting an investigation relevant to a potential viola
tion Even now with an improved upgraded effort to avoid some
of these problems;we are back again in a world of possible violations
or activities which may result in illegal acts

Now any constitutionally protected exercise of the right to
demonstrate to assemble to protest to petition conceivably may
result in violence or disruption of a local town meeting when a contro
versial social issue might result in disruption It might be by hecklers
rather than those holding the meeting Does this mean that the Bureau
should investigate all groups organizing or participating in such a
meeting because they may result in violence disruption

Mr ADAMSNo sir
Senator HART of Michigan Isn't that how you justify spying on

almost every aspect of the peace movement
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Mr ADAMS No sir When we monitor demonstrations we monitor
demonstrations where we have an indication that the demonstration
itself is sponsored by a group that we have an investigative interest in
a valid investigative interest in or where members of one of these
groups are participating where there is a potential that they might
change the peaceful nature of the demonstration

But this is our closest question of trying to draw guidelines to
avoid getting into an area of infringing on the first amendment
rights of people yet at the same time being aware of groups such
as we have had in greater numbers in the past than we do at the
present time But we have had periods where the demonstrations
have been rather severe and the courts have said that the FBI
has a right and indeed a duty to keep itself informed with respect
to the possible commission of crime It is not obliged to wear blinders
until it may be too late for prevention

And that's a good statement if applied in a clear-cut case Our
problem is where we have a demonstration and we have to make a
judgment call as to whether it is one that clearly fits the criteria of

enabling us to monitor the activities and that's where I think most
of our disagreements fall

Senator HARTof Michigan Let's assume that the rule for opening
an investigation on a group is narrowly drawn The Bureau manual
states that informants investigating a subversive organization should
not only report on what that group is doing but should look at and
report on activities in which the group is participating

There is a section 873B dealing with reporting on connections with
other groups That section says that the field office shall "determine
and report on any significant connection or cooperation with nonsub
versive groups. Any significant connection or cooperation with non
subversive groups

Now let's look at this in practice In the spring of 1969 there was a
rather heated national debate over the installation of the antiballistic
missile system Some of us remember that An FBI informant and two
FBI confidential sources reported on the plan's participants and activi
ties of the Washington Area Citizens Coalition Against the ABM
particularly in open public debate in a high school auditorium which
included speakers from the Defense Department for the ABM and a
scientist and defense analyst against the ABM

The informants reported on the planning for the meeting the dis
tribution of materials to churches and schools participation by local
clergy plans to seek resolution on the ABM from nearby town coun
cils There was also information on plans for a subsequent town meet
ing in Washington with the names of local political leaders who would
attend

Now the information the informant information came as part of an
investigation of an allegedly subversive group participating in that
coalition Yet the information dealt with all aspects and all partici
pants The reports on the plans for the meeting and on the meeting
itself were disseminated to the State Department to military intelli
gence and to the White House

How do we get into all of that
Mr ADAMSWell
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Senator HARTof Michigan Or if you were to rerun it would you
do it again

Mr ADAMSWell not in 1975 compared to what 1969 was The prob
lem we had at the time was where we had an informant who had
reported that this group this meeting was going to take place and it
was going to be the Daily Worker which was the east coast Commu
nist newspaper that made comments about it They formed an organi
zational meeting We took a quick look at it The case apparently was
opened on May 28 1969 and closed June 5 saying there was no prob
lem with this organization

Now the problem we get into is if we take a quick look and get out
fine We've had cases though where we have stayed in too long When
you're dealing with security it is like Soviet espionage where they can
put one person in this country and they supported him with total
resources of the Soviet Union false identification all the money he
needs communications networks satellite assistance and everything
and you're working with a paucity of information

The same problem exists to a certain extent in domestic security
You don't have a lot of black and white situations So someone reports
something to you which you feel you take a quick look at and there's
nothing to it and I think that's what they did

Senator HARTof Michigan You said that was 1969 Let me bring
you up to date closer to current a current place on the calendar This
one is the fall of last year 1974 President Ford announced his new
program with respect to amnesty as he described it for draft resistors
Following that there were several national conferences involving all
the groups and individuals interested in unconditional amnesty

Now parenthetically while unconditional amnesty is not yet the law
we agreed that advocating it is not against the law either

Mr ADAMSThat's right
Senator HART of Michigan Some of the sponsors were umbrella

organizations involving about 50 diverse groups around the country
FBI informants provided advance information on plans for the
meeting and apparently attended and reported on the conference
The Bureau's own reports described the participants as having repre
sented diverse perspectives on the issue of amnesty including civil
liberties and human rights groups GI rights spokesman parents of
men killed in Vietnam wives of expatriates in Canada experts on
draft counseling religious groups interested in peace issues delegates
from student organizations and aids of House and Senate Members
drafting legislation on amnesty

The informant apparently was attending in his role as a member
of a group under investigation as allegedly subversive and it described
the topics of the workshop

Ironically the Bureau office report before them noted that in view
of the location of the conference at a theological seminary the FBI
would use restraint and limit its coverage to informant reports

Now this isn't 5 or 10 years ago This is last fall And this is a
conference of people who have the point of view that I share that the
sooner we have unconditional amnesty the better for the soul of
the country

Now what reason is it for a vacuum cleaner anproach on a thing
like that Don't these instances illustrate how broad informant intel
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ligence really is that would cause these groups in that setting having
contact with other groups all and everybody is drawn into the vacuum
and many names go into the Bureau files

Is this what we want
Mr ADAMS I'll let Mr Wannall address himself to this He is

particularly knowledgeable as to this operation
Mr WANNALL Senator Hart that was a case that was opened on

November 14 and closed November 20 and the information which
caused us to be interested in it were really two particular items One
was that a member of the steering committee there was a three-marl
steering committee and one of those members of the national confer
ence was in fact a national officer of the VVAW in whom we had
suggested before we did have a legitimate investigative interest

Senator HART of Michigan Well I would almost say so what at
that point

Mr WANNALL The second report we had was that the VVAW
would actively participate in an attempt to pack the conference to
take it over And the third report we had

Senator HARTof Michigan And incidentally all of the information
that your Buffalo informant had given you with respect to the goals
and aims of the VVAW gave you a list of goals 'which were com
pletely within constitutionally protected objectives There wasn't a
single item out of that VVAW that jeopardizes the security of this
country at all

Mr WANNALLWell of course we did not rely entirely on the Buf
falo informant but even there we did receive from that informant
information which I considered to be significant

The Buffalo chapter of the VVAW was the regional office covering
New York and northern New Jersey It was one of the five most active
VVAW chapters in the country and at a national conference or at the
regional conference this informant reported information back to us
that an attendee at the conference announced that he had run guns into
Cuba prior to the Castro takeover He himself said that he during the
Cuban crisis had been under 24-hour surveillance There was also
discussion at the conference of subjugating the VVAW to the Revo
lutionary Union There were some individuals in the chapter or the
regional conference who were not in agreement with us but Mr Adams
has addressed himself to the interest of the Revolutionary Union

So all of the information that we had on the VVAW did not come
from that source but even that particular source did give us informa
tion which we considered to be of some significance in our appraisal
of the need for continuing the investigation of that particular chap
ter of the VVAW

Senator HARTof Michigan But does it give you the right or does it
create the need to go to a conference even if it is a conference that
might be taken over by the VVAW when the subject matter is how
and by what means shall we seek to achieve unconditional amnesty
What threat

Mr WANNALLOur interest of course was the VVAW influence on a
particular meeting if you ever happened to be holding a meeting or
whatever subject it was

Senator HARTof Michigan What if it was a meeting to seek to make
more effective the food stamp system in this country
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Mr WANNALL Well of course there had been some organizations
Senator HART of Michigan Would the same logic follow
Mr WANNALL I think that if we found that if the Communist

Party U.S.A. was going to take over the meeting and use it as a front
for its own purposes there would be a logic in doing that You have
a whole scope here and it's a matter of where you do and where you
don't and hopefully as we've said before we will have some guid
ance not only from this committee but from the guidelines that are
being developed But within the rationale of what we're doing today
I was explaining to you our interest not in going to this thing and not
gathering everything there was about it

In fact only one individual attended and reported to us and that
was the person who had who was not developed for this reason an
informant who had been reporting on other matters for some period
of time

And as soon as we got the report of the outcome of the meeting and
the fact that in the period of some 6 days we discontinued any fur
ther interest

Senator HARTof Michigan Well my time has expired but even this
brief exchange I think indicates that if we really want to control the
dangers to our society of using informants to gather domestic political
intelligence we have to restrict sharply domestic intelligence investi
gations And that gets us into what I would like to raise with you when
my turn comes around again and that's the use of warrants obliging
the Bureau to obtain a warrant before a full-fledged informant can
he directed by the Bureau against a group or individuals

I know you have objections to that and I would like to review that
with you

Senator MONDALEPursue that question
Senator HARTof Michigan I am talking now about an obligation to

obtain a warrant before you turn loose a full-fledged informant I'm
not talking about tipsters that run into you or you run into or who
walk in as information sources The Bureau has raised some objections
in this memorandum to the committee exhibit 33.1The Bureau argues
that such a warrant requirement might be unconstitutional because it
would violate the first amendment rights of FBI informants to commu
nicate with their Government

Now that's a concern for first amendment rights that ought to
hearten all the civil libertarians

But why would that vary why would a warrant requirement raise
a serious constitutional question

Mr ADAMS Well for one thing it's the practicability of it or the
impracticability of getting a warrant which ordinarily involves prob
able cause to show that a crime has been or is about to be committed

In the intelligence field we are not dealing necessarily with an
imminent criminal action We're dealing with activities such as with
the Socialist Workers Party which we have discussed before where
they say publicly we're not to engage in any violent activity today
but we guarantee you we still subscribe to the tenets of Communism
and that when the time is ripe we're going to rise up and help over
throw the United States
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Well now you can't show probable cause if they're about to do it
because they're telling you they're not going to do it and you know
they're not going to do it at this particular moment

It's just the mixture somewhat of trying to mix a criminal pro
cedure with an intelligence-gathering function and we can't find any
practical way of doing it We have a particular organization We may
have an informant that not only belongs to the Communist Party but
belongs to several other organizations and as part of his function he
may be sent out by the Communist Party to try to infiltrate one of these
clean organizations

We don't have probable cause for him to target against that orga
nization but yet we should be able to receive information from him
that he as a Communist Party member even though in an informant
status is going to that organization and don't worry about it We're
making no headway on it It's just not feasible from our standpoint 
an impossibility to obtain warrants to use informants The Supreme
Court has held that informants per se do not violate the first fourth
or fifth amendments They have recognized the necessity that the
Government has to have individuals who will assist them in carrying
out their governmental duties

Senator IIART of Michigan I'm not sure I've heard anything yet
in response to the constitutional question the very practical question
that you addressed

Quickly you are right that the Court has said that the use of the
informant per se is not a violation of constitutional rights of the
subject under investigation But Congress can prescribe some safe
guards some rules and some standards just as we have with respect
to your use of electronic surveillance and could do it with respect
to informants

That's quite different from saying that the warrant procedure itself
would be unconstitutional

But with respect to the fact that you couldn't show probable cause
and therefore you couldn't get a warrant therefore you oppose the
proposal to require you to get a warrant It seems to beg the question

Assuming you say that since we use informants and investigate
groups which may only engage in lawful activities but which mightalso engage in activities that can result in violence or illegal acts you
can't use the warrant But Congress could say that the use of inform
ants is subject to such abuse and poses such a threat to legitimate
activity including the willingness of people to assemble and discuss the
antiballistic missile system that we don't want you to use them unless
you have indication of criminal activity or unless you present your
request to a magistrate in the same fashion as you are required to do
with respect to in most cases wiretaps

This is an option available to Congress
Senator Tow-ERSenator Schweiker
Senator SCHWEIKERThank you very much
Mr Wannall what's the difference between a potential securityinformant and a security informant
Mr WANNALL I mentioned earlier Senator Schweiker that in de

veloping an informant we do a preliminary check on him before
talking with him and then we do a further in-depth background check
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A potential security informant is someone who is under consider
ation before he is approved by headquarters for use as an informant
He is someone who is under current consideration On some occasions
that person will have been developec4 to a point where he is in fact

furnishing information and we are engaged in checking upon his

reliability
In some instances he may be paid for information furnished but it

has not gotten to the point yet where we have satisfied ourselves that
he meets all of our criteria When he does the field must submit its
recommendations to headquarters and headquarters will pass upon
whether that individual is an approved FBI Informant

Senator SCHWEIKER SO it's really the first step of being an in
formant I guess

Mr WANNALL It is a preliminary step one of the preliminary
steps

Senator SCHWEIKERIn the testimony by Rowe that we just heard
what was the rationale again for not intervening when violence was
known

I know we asked you several times but I'm still having trouble un
derstanding what the rationale Mr Wannall was in not intervening
in the Rowe situation when violence was known

Mr WANNALL Senator Schweiker Mr Adams did address himself
to that If you have no objection I'll ask him to answer that

Senator SCHWEIKERAll right
Mr ADAMS The problem we had at the time and it's the problem

today is that we are an investigative agency We do not have police
powers like the U.S marshals do Since about 1795 I guess or some
period like that marshals have had the authority that almost borders
on what a sheriff has We are the investigative agency of the Depart
ment of Justice and during these times the Department of Justice had
us maintain the role of an investigative agency We were to report on
activities and we furnished the information to the local police who
had an obligation to act We furnished it to the Department of
Justice

In those areas where the local police did not act it resulted finally
in the Attorney General sending 500 U.S marshals down to guarantee
the safety of people who were trying to march in protest of their civil
rights

This was an extraordinary measure because it came at a time of civil
rights versus Federal rights and yet there was a breakdown in law
enforcement in certain areas of the country

This doesn't mean to indict all law enforcement agencies in itself
at the time either because many of them did act upon the information
that was furnished to them But we have no authority to make an ar
rest on the spot because we would not have had evidence that there was
a conspiracy available We can do absolutely nothing in that regardIn Little Rock the decision was made for instance that if anyarrests need to be made the Army should make them and next to the
Army the U.S marshals should make them not the FBI even thoughwe developed the violations And over the years as you know at the
time there were many questions raised Why doesn't the FBI stopthis Why don't you do something about it
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Well we took the other route and effectively destroyed the Klan
as far as committing acts of violence and of course we exceeded statu
tory guidelines in that area

Senator SCHWEIKERWhat would be wrong just following up your
point there Mr Adams with setting up a program since it's obvious
to me that a lot of informers are going to have foreknowledge of vio
lence of using U.S marshals on some kind of a long-range basis to
prevent violence

Mr ADAMSWe do We have them in Boston in connection with the
busing incident We are investigating the violations under the Civil
Right Act But the marshals are in Boston they are in Louisville I
believe at the same time and this is the approach that the Federal
Government finally recognized was the solution to the problem where
you had to have added Federal import

Senator SCHWEIKERBut instead of waiting until the state of affairs
reaches the point it has in Boston which is obviously a pretty advanced
confrontation shouldn't we have a coordinated program so that when
you go up the ladder of command in the FBI that on an immediate
and fairly contemporary basis that kind of help can be sought in
stantly instead of waiting until it gets to a Boston state I realize it's
a departure from the past I'm not saying it isn't But it seems to me
we need a better remedy than we have

Mr ADAMSWell fortunately we're at a time where conditions have
subsided in the country even from the sixties and the seventies and
periods or fifties and sixties We report to the Department of Justice
on potential troublespots around the country as we learn of them so
that the Department will be aware of them The planning for Boston
for instance took place a year in advance with State officials city offi
cials the Department of Justice and the FBI sitting down together
saying "how are we going to protect the situation in Boston

I think we've learned a lot from the days back in the early sixties
But the Government had no mechanics which protected people at that
time

Senator SCHWEIKERI'd like to go if I may to the Robert Hardy
case I know he is not a witness but he was a witness before the House
Select Committee But since this affects my State I'd like to ask Mr
Wannall Mr Hardy of course was the FBI informer who ultimately
led planned and organized a raid on the Camden draft board And
according to Mr Hardy's testimony before our committee he said
that in advance of the raid someone in the Department had even ac
knowledged the fact that they had all the information they needed to
clamp down on the conspiracy and could arrest people at that point in
time and yet no arrests were made Why Mr Wannall was this true

Mr WANNALLWell I can answer that based only on the material
that I have reviewed Senator Schweiker It was not a case handled in
my division but I think I can answer your question

There was in fact a representative of the Department of Justice
on the spot counseling and advising continuously as that case prog
ressed as to what point the arrest should be made and we were being
guided by those to our mentors the ones who are responsible for mak
ing decisions of that sort

So I think that Mr Hardy's statement to the effect that there was
someone in the Department there is perfectly true
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Senator SOHWEIii R That responsibility rests with who under your
procedures

Mr WANNALL We investigate decisions on making arrests when
they should be made and decisions with regard to prosecutions are
made either by the U.S attorneys or by Federals in the Department

Mr ADAMS At this time that particular case did have a depart
mental attorney on the scene because there are questions of conspiracy
Conspiracy is a tough violation to prove and sometimes a question
of whether you have the added value of catching someone in the
commission of the crime as further proof rather than relying on one
informant and some circumstantial evidence to prove the violation

Senator SCHWEIKERWell in this case though they even had a dry
run They could have arrested them on the dry run That's getting
pretty close to conspiracy it seems to me They had a dry run and they
could have arrested them on the dry run

I'd like to know why they didn't arrest them on the dry run Who
was this Department of Justice official who made that decision

Mr ADAMSGuy Goodwin was the department official
Senator SCHWEIKERNext I'd like to ask back in 1965 during the

height of the effort to destroy the Klan as you put it a few moments
ago I believe the FBI has released figures that we had something
like 2,000 informers of some kind or another infiltrating the Klan out
of roughly 10,000 estimated membership I believe these are either
FBI figures or estimates That would mean that one out of every
five members of the Klan at that point was an informant paid by the
Government And I believe the figure goes on to indicate that 70 per
cent of the new members of the Klan that year were FBI informants

Isn't this an awfully overwhelming quantity of people to put in an
effort such as that I'm not criticizing that you shouldn't have in
formants in the Klan to know about the potential for violence but it
seems to me that this is the tail wagging the dog

For example today we supposedly have only 1,594 total informants
for both domestic informants and potential informants and that here
we had 2,000 just in the Klan alone

Mr ADAMSWell this number 2,000 did include all racial matters
informants at that particular time and I think the figures we tried
to reconstruct as to the actual number of Klan informants in relation
to Klan members was around 6 percent I think after we had read some
of the testimony

Now the problem we had on the Klan is the Klan had a group called
the Action Group This was the group if you remember from Mr
Rowe's testimony that he was left out of at the meeting He attended
the open meetings and heard all of the hurrahs and this type of thing
but he never knew what was going on because each one had an action
group that went out and considered themselves in the missionary
field

Theirs was the violence
In order to penetrate those you have to direct as many informants

as you possibly can against it Bear in mind that I think the news
papers the President and Congress and everyone was concerned about
the murder of the civil rights workers the Lemuel Penn case the
Viola Liuzzo case the bombings of the church in Birmingham We
were faced with one tremendous problem at that time



145

Senator SCHWEIKERI acknowledge that
Mr ADAMS Our only approach was through informants Through

the use of informants we solved these cases the ones that were solved
Some of the bombing cases we have never solved They are extremely
difficult

These informants as we told the Attorney General and as we told
the President that we had moved informants like Mr Rowe up to the
top leadership He was the bodyguard to the head man He was in a
position where he could forewarn us of violence could help us on
cases that had transpired and yet we knew and conceived that this
could continue forever unless we could create enough disruption that
these members will realize that if they go out and murder three civil
rights workers even though the sheriff and other law enforcement
officers are in on it if that were the case and with some of them it was
the case that they would be caught And that's what we did and that's
why violence stopped because the Klan was insecure and just like
you say 20 percent they thought 50 percent of their members ulti
mately were Klan informants and they didn't dare engage in these
acts of violence because they knew they couldn't control the conspiracy
any longer

Senator SCHWEIKER My time is expired I just have one quick
question Is it correct that in 1971 you were using around 6,500 in
formers for black ghetto situations

Mr ADAMS I'm not sure if that's the year We did have one year
where we had a number like that which probably had been around
6,000 and that was the time when the cities were being burned Detroit
Washington areas like this We were given a mandate to know what
the situation was where was violence going to break out what next
They weren't informants like an individual penetrating an organiza
tion They were listening posts in the community that would help tell
us that we have a group here that's getting ready to start another fire
fight or something

Senator TOWERAt this point there are three more Senators remain
ing for questioning If we can try to get everything in in the first
round we will not have a second round and I think we can finish
around 1 o'clock and we can go on and terminate the proceedings

However if anyone feels that they have another question that they
want to return to we come back here by 2 o'clock

Senator Mondale
Senator MONDALEMr Adams it seems to me that the record is now

fairly clear that when the FBI operates in the field of crime investiga
tion and prosecution it may be the best professional organization of
its kind in the world But when the FBI acts in the field of political
ideas it has bungled its job it has interfered with the civil liberties
and finally in the last month or two through its public disclosures
heaped shame upon itself and really led toward an undermining of the
crucial public confidence in an essential law enforcement agency of
this country

In a real sense history has repeated itself because it was precisely
that problem that led to the creation of the FBI in 1924

In World War I the Bureau of Investigation strayed from its law
enforcement functions and became an arbiter and protector of political
ideas And through the interference of civil liberties and Palmer raids
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and the rest the public became so offended that later through Mr
Justice Stone and Mr Hoover the FBI was created And the first
statement by Mr Stone was that never again will this Justice Depart
ment get involved in political ideas

And yet here we are again looking at a record where with Martin
Luther King with antiwar resisters we even had testimony this
morning of meetings with the Council of Churches Secretly we are
investigating this vague ill-defined impossible to define area of in
vestigating dangerous ideas

It seems to be the basis of the strategy that people can't protect
themselves that you somehow need to use the tools of law enforcement
to protect people from subversive or dangerous ideas which I find
strange and quite profoundly at odds with the philosophy of Ameri
can government

I started in politics years ago and the first thing we had to do was
to get the Communists out of our party and out of the union We did
a very fine job I'm beginning to wonder but as far as I know we had
no help from the FBI or the CIA We just ran them out of the meet
ings on the grounds that they weren't Democrats and they weren't
good union leaders and we didn't want anything to do with them
Yet we see time and time again that we're going to protect the blacks
from Martin Luther King because he's dangerous that we're going to
protect veterans from whatever it is and we're going to protect the
Council of Churches from the veterans and so on and it just gets so
gummy and confused and ill-defined and dangerous Don't you agree
with me that we have to control this to restrain it so that precisely
what is expected of the FBI is known by you by the public and that
you can justify your actions when we ask you

Mr ADAMS I agree with that Senator and I would like to point
out that when the Attorney General made his statement Mr Hoover
subscribed to it we followed that policy for about 10 years until the
President of the United States said that we should investigate the
Nazi Party

I for one feel that we should have investigated the Nazi Party I
feel that our investigation of the Nazi Party resulted in the fact that
in World War II as contrasted with World War I there wasn't one
single incident of foreign directed sabotage which took place in the
United States

Senator MONDALEAnd under the criminal law you could have in
vestigated these issues of sabotage Isn't sabotage a crime

Mr ADAMSSabotage is a crime
Senator MONDALECould you have investigated that
Mr ADAMSAfter it happened
Senator MONDALEYou see every time we get involved in political

ideas you defend yourself on the basis of crimes that could have been
committed It's very interesting

In my opinion you have to stand here if you're going to continue
what you're now doing and as I understand it you still insist that you
did the right thing with the Vietnam Veterans Against the War and
investigating the Council of Churches and this can still go on This
can still go on under your interpretation of your present powers what
you try to justify on the grounds of your law enforcement activities
in terms of criminal matters
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Mr AnAMS The law does not say we have to wait until we have been
murdered before we can

Senator MONDALEAbsolutely but that's the field of law againYou're trying to defend apples with oranges That's the law You can
do that

Mr ADAMSThat's right but how do you find out which of the 20,000Bund members might have been a saboteur You don't have probablecause to investigate anyone but you can direct an intelligence operation against the German-American Bund the same thing we (lid after
Congress said

Senator MONDALECouldn't you get a warrant for that Why did
you object to going to court for authority for that

Mr ADAMS Because we don't have probable cause to go against an
individual and the law doesn't provide for probable cause to investi
gate an organization

There were activities which did take place like one time they were
going to outlaw the Communist Party

Senator MONDALEWhat I don't understand is why it wouldn't be
better for the FBI for us to define authority which you could use in
the kind of Bund situation where under court authority you can in
vestigate where there is probable cause or reasonable cause to suspect
sabotage and the rest

Wouldn't that make a lot more sense than just making these deci
sions on your own

Mr AnAMS We have expressed complete concurrence in that We
feel that we're going to get beat to death in the next 100 years you're
damned if you do and damned if you don't when we don't have a
delineation of our responsibility in this area But I won't agree with
you Senator that we have bungled the intelligence operations in the
United States I agree with you that we have made some mistakes Mr
Kelley has set a pattern of being as forthright as any Director of the
FBI in acknowledging mistakes that had been made but I think that
as you said and I believe Senator Tower said and Senator Church
that we have to watch these hearings because of the necessity that we
must concentrate on these areas of abuse We must not lose sight of
the overall good of the law enforcement and intelligence community
and I still feel that this is the freest country in the world I've traveled
much as I'm sure you have and I know we have made some mistakes
but I feel that the people in the United States are less chilled by the
mistakes we have made than they are by the fact that there are 20,000
murders a year in the United States and they can't walk out of their
houses at night and feel safe

Senator MONDALEThat's correct and isn't that an argument then
Mr Adams for strengthening our powers to go after those who com
mit crimes rather than strengthening or continuing a policy which
we now see undermines the public confidence you need to do your job

Mr ADAMSAbsolutely The mistakes we have made are what have
brought on this embarrassment to us

I'm not blaming the committee I'm saying we made some mistakes
and in doing so have hurt the FBI But at the same time I don't feel
that a balanced picture comes out as you have said yourselves because
of the necessity of zeroing in on abuses
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I think that we have done one tremendous job I think the accom
plishments in the Klan was the finest hour of the FBI and yet I'm
sure in dealing with the Klan that we made some mistakes But I
just don't agree we bungled

Senator MONDALEI don't want to argue over terms but I think I
sense an agreement that the FBI has gotten into trouble over its
involvement in political ideas and that that's where we need to have
new legal standards

Mr ADAMSYes I agree with that
Senator TOWER Senator Huddleston
Senator HUDDLESTONThank you Mr Chairman
Mr Adams with these two instances we have studied at some length

there seems to have been an inclination on the part of the Bureau to es
tablish a notion about an individual or a group which seems to be very
hard to ever change or dislodge In the case of Dr King where the sup
position was that he was being influenced by Communist individuals
extensive investigation and surveillance was undertaken and reports
came back indicating that this in fact was not true and directions con
tinued to go out to intensify the investigation There never seemed to
be a willingness on the part of the Bureau to accept its own facts

Ms Cook testified this morning that something similar to that
happened with the Vietnam Veterans Against the War that every
piece of information that she supplied to the Bureau seemed to indi
cate that the Bureau was not correct in its assumption that this organi
zation planned to commit violence or that it was being manipulated
and yet you seemed to insist that this investigation go on and this
information was used against the individuals

Now are there instances where the Bureau has admitted that its
first assumptions were wrong and they have changed their course

Mr ADAMSWe have admitted that We have also shown from one
of the cases that Senator Hart brought up that after 5 days we closed
the case We were told something by an individual that there was a
concern of an adverse influence in it and we looked into it On the
Martin Luther King situation there was no testimony to the effect that
we just dragged on and on or admitted that we dragged on and on and
on ad infinitum The wiretaps on Martin Luther King were ,all ap
proved by the Attorney General Microphones on Martin Luther
King were approved by another Attorney General This wasn't only
the FBI .and the reason they were approved was that there was a
basis to continue the investigation up to a point

What I testified to was that we were improper in discrediting Dr
King but it's just like

Senator HUDDLESTONThe committee has before it memorandums
written by high officials of the Bureau indicating that the information
they were receiving from the field from these surveillance methods
did not confirm their supposition

Mr ADAMSThat memorandum was not on Dr King That was on
another individual who I think somehow got mixed up in the discus
sion one where the issue was do we make people prove they aren't
a Communist before we will agree not to investigate them

But the young lady appearing this morning making the comment
that She never knew of anything wrong told us that she considers
herself a true member of the VVAW WSO inasmuch as she feels in
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general agreement with the principles of it and agreed to cooperatewith the FBI in providing information regarding the organization to
aid in preventing violent individuals from associating themselves with
the VVAW WSO She is most concerned about efforts by the Revolu
tionary Union to take over the VVAW WSO and she is working
actively to prevent this

I think that we have a basis for investigating the VVAW WSO in
certain areas today In other areas we have stopped the investigation
They don't agree with these principles laid down by the

Senator HUDDLESTONThat report was the basis of your continuing
to pay informants and continuing to utilize that information against
members who certainly had not been involved in violence and appar
ently to get them fired from their job or whatever

Mr ADAMSIt all gets back to the fact that even in the criminal law
field you have to detect crime and you have to prevent crime and
you can't wait until something happens The Attorney General has
clearly spoken in that area and even our statutory jurisdiction pro
vides that we don't have to wait

Senator HUDDLESTONWell of course we've had considerable evi
dence this morning where no attempt was made to prevent crime when
you had information that it was going to occur But I'm sure there
are instances where you have

Mr ADAMS We disseminated every single item which he reported
to us

Senator HUDDLESTONTo a police department which you knew was
an accomplice to the crime

Mr ADAMSNot necessarily
Senator HUDDLESTONYour informant had told you that hadn't he
Mr ADAMS Well the informant is on one level We have other in

formants and we have other information
Senator HUDDLESTONYes but you were aware that he had worked

with certain members of the Birmingham police in order to
Mr ADAMS Yes He furnished many other instances also
Senator HUDDLESTONSo you weren't really doing a whole lot to

prevent that incident by telling the people who were already part of
it

Mr ADAMSWe were doing everything we could lawfully do at the
time and finally the situation was corrected so that the Department
agreeing that we had no further jurisdiction could send the U.S
marshal down to perform certain law enforcement functions

Senator HUDDLESTONNow the committee has received documents
which indicated that in one situation the FBI assisted an informant
who had been established in a white hate group to establish a rival
white hate group and that the Bureau paid his expenses in setting up
this rival organization

Now does this not put the Bureau in a position of being responsible
for what actions the rival white hate group might have undertaken

Mr ADAMSPd like to see if one of the other gentlemen knows that
specific case because I don't think we set up a specific group

This is Joe Deegan
Mr DEEGAN Senator it's my understanding that the informant

we're talking about decided to break off from the group he was with
He was with the major Klan group of the United Klans of America
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and he decided to break off This was in compliance with our regula
tions We did not pay him to set up the organization he did it on his
own We paid him for the information he furnished us concerning
the operation We did not sponsor the organization

Senator HUDDLESTONConcerning the new organization that he set
up he continued to advise you of the activities of that organization

Mr DEEGAN He continued to advise us of that organization and
other organizations He would advise us of Klan activities

Senator HUDDLESTONThe new organization that he formed did
it operate in a very similar manner to the previous one

Mr DEEGANNo it did not and it did not last that long
Senator HUDDLESTONThere's also evidence of an FBI informant in

the Black Panther Party who had a position of responsibility within
the party who with the knowledge of his FBI contact was supplying
members with weapons and instructing them in how to use those
weapons Presumably this was in the knowledge of the Bureau and he
later became came in contact with the group that was contracting for
murder and he participated in this group with the knowledge of the
FBI agent and this group did in fact stalk a victim who was later
killed with the weapon supplied by this individual presumably all
with the knowledge of the FBI How does this square with your en
forcement and crime prevention responsibilities

Mr DEEGAN Senator I'm not familiar with that particular case
It does not square with our policy in all respects and I would have
to look at that particular case you're talking about to give you an
answer

Senator HUDDLESTONI don't have the documentation on that par
ticular case but it brings up the point as to what kind of control you
exercised over this kind of informant in this kind of an organiza
tion and to what extent an effort is made to prevent these informants
from engaging in the kind of thing that you are supposedly trying to
prevent

Mr ADAMS A good example of this was Mr Rowe who became
active in an action group and we told him to get out or we !would no
longer use him as an informant in spite of the information he had
furnished in the past We have had cases Senator where we have
had

Senator HUDDLESTONBut you also told him to participate in vio
lent activities

Mr ADAMSWe did not tell him to participate in violent activities
Senator HUDDLESTONThat's what he said
Mr ADAMS I know that's what he said But that's what lawsuits

are all about is that there are two sides to the issue and our agents
handling this have advised us and I believe have advised your sitaff
that at no time did they advise him to engage in violence

Senator HUDDLESTONJust to do what was necessary to get the in
formation I believe maybe might havebeen his instructions

Mr ADAMS I don't think they made any such statement to him
along that line and we have informants we have informants who have
gotten involved in the violation of the law and we have immediately
converted their status from an informant to the subject and have
prosecuted I would say offhand I can think of around 20 informants
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that we have prosecuted for violating the laws once it came to our
attention and even to show you our policy of disseminating informa
tion on violence in this case during the review of the matter the agents
told me that they found one case where their agent had been working
24 hours a day and he was a little late in disseminating the informa
tion to the police department No violence occurred but it showed up
in a file review and he was censured for his delay in properly notifying
local authorities

So we not only have a policy I feel that we do follow reasonable
safeguards in order to carry it out including periodic review of all
informant files

Senator HUDDLESTONWell Mr Rowe's statement is substantiated
to some extent with an acknowledgment by the agent in charge that
if you're going to be a Klansman and you happen to be with someone
and they decide to do something that he couldn't be an angel These
were the words of the agent be a good informant He wouldn't take
the lead but the implication is that he would have to go along and
would have to 'be involved if he was going to maintain his credibility

Mr ADAMSThere's no question but that an informant at times will
have to be present during demonstrations riots fistfights that take
place but I believe his statement was to the effect that and I was
sitting in the 'back of the room and I don't recall it exactly but some
of them were beat with chains and I didn't hear whether he said he
beat someone with a chain or not but I rather doubt that he did be
cause it's one thing to be present and it's another thing taking an
active part in criminal actions

Senator HUDDLESTONHe was close enough to get his throat cut How
does the gathering of information

Senator TOWER Senator Mathias is here and I think that we prob
ably should recess a few minutes

Could we have Senator Mathias questions and then should reconvene
this afternoon

Senator HUDDLESTONI'm finished I just had one more question
Senator TOWERGo ahead
Senator HUDDLESTONI wanted to ask how the selection of informa

tion about an individual's personal life social sex life and becoming
involved in that sex life or social life is a requirement for law enforce
ment or crime prevention

Mr ADAMS Our agent handlers have advised tis on Mr Rowe that
they gave him no such instruction they had no such knowledge con
cerning it and I can't see where it would be of any value whatsoever

Senator HUDDI.ESTONYou aren't aware of any case where these
instructions were given to an agent or an informant

Mr ADAMSTo get involved in sexual activity No sir
Senator HUDDLESTONThank you Mr Chairman
Senator TOWERSenator Mathias
Senator MATHIASThank you Mr Chairman
I would like to come back very briefly to the fourth amendment con

siderations in connection with the use of informants and in posing
these questions we're not thinking of the one-time volunteer who
walks in to an FBI office and says I have a story I want to tell you
and that's the only time that you may see him I'm thinking of the

66-0770 76 11
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kind of situations in which there is a more extended relationship which
could be of varying degrees It might be in one case that the same
individual will have some usefulness in a number of situations But
when the FBI orders a regular agent to engage in a search the first
test is a judicial warrant and what I would like to explore with you
is the difference between a one time search which requires a warrant
and which you get when you make that search and a continuous search
which uses an informant or the case of a continuous search which
uses a regular unaercover agent someone who is totally under your
control and is in a slightly different category than an informant

Mr ADAMSWell here we get into the fact that the Supreme Court
has held that the use of informants does not invade any of these
constitutionally protected areas and if a person wants to tell an
informant something that isn't protected by the Supreme Court

An actual search for legal evidence that is a protected item but
information and the use of informants have been consistently held
as not posing any constitutional problems

Senator MATHIAS I would agree if you're talking about the fellow
who walks in off the street as I said earlier but is it true that under
existing procedures informants are given background checks

Mr ADAMSYes sir
Senator MATHLASAnd they are subject to a testing period
Mr ADAMSThat's right to verify and make sure they are providing

us with reliable information
Senator MATHIASAnd during the period that the relationship con

tinues they are rather closely controlled by the handling agents
Mr ADAMSThat's true
Senator MATHIAS So in effect they can come in a very practical

way agents themselves to the FBI
Mr ADAMSThey can do nothing
Senator MATHIAS Certainly agents in the common law use of the

word
Mr ADAMS That's right they can do nothing and we instruct our

agents that an informant can do nothing that the agent himself can
not do and if the agent can work him.elf into an organization in an
undercover capacity he can sit there and glean all the information
that he wants and that is not in the Constitution as a protected area
But we do have this problem

Senator MATHIAS But if a regular agent who is a member of the
FBI attempted to enter these premises he would require a warrant

Mr ADAMS No sir it depends on the purpose for which he is
entering If a regular agent by concealing his identity was admitted
as a member of the Communist Party he can attend Community Party
meetings and he can enter the premises he can enter the building and
there's no constitutionally invaded area there

Senator MATHIASAnd so you feel that anyone who has a less formal
relationship with the Bureau than a regular agent who can undertake
a continuous surveillance operation as an undercover agent or as an
informant

Mr ADAMSAs long as he commits no illegal acts
Senator MATHIASLet me ask you why you feel that it is impractical

to require a warrant since as I understand it headquarters must ap
prove the use of an informant Is that degree of formal action
required
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Mr ADAMS The main difficulty is the particularity which has to be
shown in obtaining a search warrant You have to go after particular
evidence You have to specify what you're going after and an inform
ant operates in an area that you just cannot specify He doesn't know
what's going to be discussed at that meeting It may be a plot to blow
up the Capitol again or it may be a plot to blow up the State Depart
ment building

Senator MATHIASIf it were a criminal investigation you would have
little difficulty with probable cause wouldn't you

Mr ADAMS We would have difficulty in obtaining probable cause
for a warrant to use someone as an informant in that area because
the same difficulty of particularity exists We can't specify

Senator MATHIAS I understand the problem because it's very sim
ilar to one that we discussed earlier in connection with wiretaps on a
national security problem

Mr ADAMS That's it and there we face the problem of where the
Soviet an individual identified as a Soviet spy in a friendly country
and they tell us he's been a Soviet spy there and now he's coming to the
United States and if we can't show under a probable cause warrant
if we couldn't show that he was actually engaging in espionage in the
United States we couldn't get a wiretap under the probable cause
requirements which have been discussed If the good fairy didn't
drop the evidence in our hands that this individual is here conducting
espionage we again would fall short of this and that's why we're
still groping with it

Senator MATHIAS When you say fall short you really you would
be falling short of the requirements of the fourth amendment

Mr ADAMS That's right except for the fact that the President
under his constitutional powers to protect this Nation and make sure
that it survives first first of all national survival and these are the
areas that not only the President but the Attorney General are con
cerned in and we're all hoping that somehow we can reach a legis
lative middle ground in here

Senator MATHIASWhich we discussed in the other national security
area as to curtailing a warrant to that particular need

Mr ADAMSAnd if you could get away from probable cause and get
some degree of reasonable cause and get some method of sealing in
definitely your interest say in an ongoing espionage case and can work
out those difficulties we may get there yet

Senator MATHIAS And you don't despair of finding that middle
ground

Mr ADAMS I don't because I think that today there's more of an
open mind between Congress and the executive branch and the FBI
and everyone concerning the need to get these areas resolved

Senator MATHIASAnd you believe that the Department if we could
come together would support would agree to that kind of a warrant
requirement if we could agree on the language

Mr ADAMS If we can work out the problems the Attorney Gen
eral is personally interested in that also

Senator MATHIASDo you think that this agreement might extend to
some of those other areas that we talked about

Mr ADAMSI think that that would be a much greater difficulty in
an area of domestic intelligence informant who reports on many dif
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ferent operations and different types of activities that might come up
rather than say in a Soviet espionage or a foreign espionage case
where you do have a little more degree of specificity to deal with

Senator MATHIASI suggest that we arrange to get together and try
out some drafts with each other but in the meantime of course there's
another alternative and that would be the use of the wiretap procedure
by which the Attorney General must approve a wiretap before it is
placed and the same general process could be used for informants
since you come to headquarters any way

Mr ADAMSThat could be an alternative I think it would be a very
burdensome alternative and I think at some point after we attack the
major abuses or what are considered major abuses of Congress 
and get over this hurdle I think we're still going to have to recognize
that heads of agencies have to accept the responsibility for managing
that agency and we can't just keep pushing every operational problem
up to the top because there just aren't enough hours in the day

Senator MATHIAS But the reason that parallel suggests itself is of
course the fact that the wiretap deals generally with one level of in
formation in one sense of gathering information You hear what you
hear from the tap

Mr ADAMS But you're dealing in a much smaller number also
Senator MATHIAS Smaller number but that's all the more reason

When an informant goes in he has all of his senses He's gathering
all of the information a human being can acquire from a situation and
has access to more information than the average wiretap

And it would seem to me that for that reason a parallel process
might be useful and in order

Mr ADAMS Mr Mintz pointed out one other main distinction to
me which I had overlooked from our prior discussions which is the
fact that with an informant he is more in the position of being a con
sential monitor in that one of the two parties to the conversation
agrees such as like consential monitoring of telephones and micro
phones and anything else versus the wiretap itself where the individual
whose telephone is being tapped is not aware and neither of the two
parties talking had agreed that their conversation could be monitored

Senator MATHIASI find that one difficult to accept If I'm the third
party overhearing a conversation that is taking place in a room where
I am and my true character isn't perceived by the two people who
are talking in effect they haven't consented to my overhearing their
conversation Thev may consent if they believe that I am their friend
or a partisan of theirs But if they knew in fact that I was an in
formant for someone else they would not consent

Mr ADAMSWell that's what I believe Senator Hart raised earlier
that the courts thus far have made this distinction with no difficulty
but that doesn't mean that there may not be some legislative com
promise which might be addressed

Senator MATHIAS Well I particularly appreciate your attitude in
being willing to work on these problems because I think that's the
most important thing that can evolve from these hearings so that we
can actually look at the fourth amendment as the standard that we
have to achieve But the way we get there is obviously going to be a
lot easier if we can work toward them together



155

I just have one final question Mr Chairman and that deals with
whether or not we should impose a standard of probable cause that
a crime has been committed as a means of controlling the use of in
formants and the kind of information that they collect

Do you feel that this would be too restrictive
Mr ADAMSYes sir I do
When I look at informants and I see that each year informants

locate 5,000 fugitives they locate subjects in 2,000 more cases they
recover $86 million in stolen property and contraband and that's
irrespective of what we give the local law enforcement and other
Federal agencies which is almost a comparable figure we have almost
reached a point in the criminal law where we don't have much left
And in the intelligence field when we carve all of the problems away
we still have to make sure that we have the means to gather informa
tion which will permit us to be aware of the identity of individuals
and organizations that are acting to overthrow the Government of
the United States And I think we still have some areas to look hard
at as we have discussed but I think informants are here to stay They
are absolutely essential to law enforcement Everyone uses informants
The press has informants Congress has informants you have indi
viduals in your community that you rely on not for ulterior purposes
but to let you know what's the feel of the people am I serving them
properly am I carrying out this

It's here to stay It's been here throughout history and there will
always be informants And the thing we want to avoid is abuses like
provocateurs criminal activities and to insure that we have safeguards
that will prevent that But we do need informants

Senator TOWERSenator Hart do you have any further questions
Senator HARTof Michigan The groups that we have discussed this

morning into which the Bureau has put informants are in popular
language liberal groups To give balance to the record I would ask
unanimous consent that there be printed in the record the summary
of the opening of the headquarters file by the Bureau on Dr Carl
McIntyre when he announced that he was organizing a group to
counter the American Civil Liberties Union and other "liberal and
communist groups. This is not only a preoccupation with the Left

Senator TOWERWithout objection so ordered
[The material referred to follows :]
STAFFSUMMARYOFFBI ACTIONSWITHREGARDTODR CARLMCINTYRE'S

AMERICANCHRISTIANACTIONCOUNCIL(1971)
The FBI relied on a confidential source and an informant for information

about the formation of this group by Dr McIntyre to act as a counter group
to the AmericanCivil Liberties Unionand other "liberal and communistgroups
and to the Clergy and Laymen Concerned About Vietnam The initial report
from a confidential source mentioned plans to picket NBC TV studios in Phila
delphia Baltimore and Washington D.C and named all the members of the
Board of Directors But the report makes no mention of potential for violence
Subsequent reports from an informant described the group's plans to opposethe
President's trip to China and to support prayer in the public schools The in
formant also reported on the group's convention held jointly with Dr Mc
Intyre's missionary group and on plans for the groups future organization and
activities

The FBI apparently had this confidentialsource and this informant watch and
report on the group under a "civil disturbance theory It must have been
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assumed although there was no indication of potential violence that the group
might provoke an "incident. On that theory the FBI Manual today would per
mit the same use of informants and sources to watch and report on the plans
leadership and organization of a similar group

Senator TowER Any more questions
Then the committee will have an executive session this afternoon in

room 3110 in the Dirksen Building at 3 p.m. and I hope everyone
will be in attendance

Tomorrow morning we will hear from Courtney Evans and Cartha
DeLoach Tomorrow afternoon former Attorneys General Ramsey
Clark and Edward Katzenbach

The committee the hearings are recessed until 10 a.m tomorrow
[Whereupon at 1 :10 p.m. the hearing in the above-mentioned

matter was concluded to reconvene on Wednesday December 3 1975
at 10 a.m.]
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WEDNESDAY DECEMBER 3 1975

U.S SENATE
SELECTCOMMITTEETo STUDYGOVERNMENTALOPERATIONS

WITH RESPECTTOINTELLIGENCEACTIVITIES
Washington D.C

The committee met pursuant to notice at 10:22 a.m. in room 318
Russell Senate Office Building Senator John Tower (presiding)

Present Senators Tower Hart of Michigan Mondale Morgan
Hart of Colorado and Schweiker

Also present Frederick A O Schwarz Jr. chief counsel Curtis R
Smothers counsel to the minority and John Elliff professional staff
member

Senator TowER The committee will come to order
I should first like to apologize to the witnesses for the late start The

Senate is in the process of a record vote and other members of the com
mittee will assemble as they have completed voting on the Senate
floor

Our hearings today provide the committee with its most important
opportunity thus far to examine the question of authorization of do
mestic intelligence activity Yesterday and in earlier sessions we
looked at the methods and techniques employed by the Federal Bureau
of Investigation in conducting investigations particularly in gather
ing general intelligence information The testimony has revealed many
instances in which the FBI has applied legitimate investigative and
intelligence techniques broadly The situations in which their use was
overly broad in its scope are wholly inappropriate under the American
view of civil liberties

We have been told of distressing and dangerous abuses of freedom
of speech freedom of assembly the right of privacy and other con
stitutional guarantees so essential to our way of life and system of
government The FBI is regarded by many as the very best investiga
tive organization in the world Its law enforcement techniques and
standards are cited as the fairest and most efficient anywhere That
reputation was earned over the years by the hard work and dedica
tion of thousands of loyal employees and agents and their sincere ef
forts do make these current revelations of abuses and overzealous pro
grams especially painful

The FBI of course does not exist in a vacuum Its operations fall
within the purview of the Department of Justice and the President
does often direct the Bureau to investigate certain matters One of
the most disturbing aspects to surface during our investigation is the
use of FBI resources by various Presidents for their own political
purposes The committee counsel touched on the history of political
use and abuse by Presidents
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Today we seek additional testimony on this point and on the ques
tion of whether Justice Department officials were aware of and exer
cised proper supervision over the Bureau's activities We are also
concerned about the Department's role in authorizing encouraging
or condoning these improper FBI activities and the degree to which
Attorneys General may have discouraged prevented or prohibited
such activities The witnesses today will address these issues

There is one important point that I would like to make and that I
would like to stress and I ask members of the committee as well as the
staff and the witnesses to give this point special attention as we pro
ceed this morning Investigations which are designed to determine
whether governmental agencies are infringing on the rights of citi
zens run the risk themselves of injuring private citizens rights unless
great care is taken Disclosure of the contents of raw FBI files Bureau
characterizations or other derogatory information obtained in the
course of this investigation should be avoided at all costs by the com
mittee the staff and the witnesses For that reason I want to instruct
the staff to refrain from mentioning the names of private citizens
unless permission has been given in advance by that person or unless
the information is already in the public domain

The documents the committee is releasing have already been care
fully excised and I hope the committee members in their questions
will exercise the same care And I may say too that this injunction
applies to the witnesses

First we will have a presentation of background on this matter by
Mr John Elliff of the staff of the select committee

Mr Elliff

STATEMENT OF JOHN ELLIFF PROFESSIONAL STAFF MEMBER
SENATE SELECT COMMITTEETO STUDY GOVERNMENTALOPERA
TIONS WITH RESPECT TO INTELLIGENCE ACTIVITIES

Mr ELLIFF Thank you Senator Tower
The political abuse of the FBI and by the FBI did not begin in the

1960's Although this committee has concentrated its investigations on
the events of the 1960's and 1970's the story cannot be fully under
stood by looking at 'just the last 15 years Therefore the first objective
of this report is to lay out some of the historical context for more re
cent political abuses of the FBI

The second objective is to describe some of the results of our in
vestigation which show the various types of political abuse to which
the FBI is susceptible Some have been in response to the desires of
the Bureau's superiors Others have been generated by the Bureau
itself And there is the added possibility suggested by some of the
documents we have seen and some of the witnesses we have inter
viewed that certain political abuses resulted from the inexorable
dynamics of the FBI's intelligence-gathering system itself In other
words that the FBI intelligence system developed to a point where no
one inside or outside the Bureau was willing or able to tell the differ
ence between legitimate national security and law enforcement in
formation and purely political intelligence
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Whether any particular abuse resulted from outside demands from
the Bureau's own desires or from the nature of the intelligence process
is a question for the committee to answer when all the evidence is in

The historical background of political abuse of the FBI involves
at least three dimensions The first is the Bureau's subservience to the
Presidency its willingness to carry out White House requests without
question When L Patrick Gray as Acting FBI Director destroyed
documents and gave FBI reports to Presidential aides whom the FBI
should have been investigating after the Watergate break-in he just
carried to the extreme an established practice of service to the White
House The other side of this practice was the Bureau's volunteering
political intelligence to its superiors in response to no specific request
The third historical dimension was the FBI's concerted effort to pro
mote its public image and discredit its critics

Early examples of the Bureau's willingness to do the Presidents
bidding occur under Franklin D Roosevelt Materials here are found
in exhibit 34.1In 1940 the Bureau complied with a request to run name
checks open files and make reports on hundreds of persons who sent
telegrams to the President that were to quote the letter from the Presi
dent's secretary to J Edgar Hoover "all more or less in opposition to
national defense, or that expressed approval of Col Charles Lind
bergh's criticism of the President

Another example from the Truman period came to light in recent
years when Maj Gen Harry Vaughn President Truman's military
aide disclosed that President Roosevelt had ordered wiretaps on the
home telephones of his closest aides Shortly after Mr Truman had
taken office someone had presented General Vaughn with transcripts
of the wiretaps He took them to President Truman who said accord
ing to General Vaughn "I don't have time for that foolishness. This
story is generally confirmed by the committee staff's examination of
J Edgar Hoover's "Official and Confidential files where an index
to the logs of these wiretaps on President Roosevelt's aides was located

Historical illustrations of the FBI's practice of volunteering politi
cal intelligence to its superiors appear in virtually every adminis
tration President Roosevelt's Attorney General Francis Biddle re
called in his autobiography how J Edgar Hoover shared with him
some of the "intimate details of what his fellow Cabinet members
did and said "their likes and dislikes their weaknesses and their asso
ciations. Attorney General Biddle confessed that he enjoyed hearing
these derogatory and sometimes "embarrassing stories and that Direc
tor Hoover "knew how to flatter his superior.

President Truman and his aides received regular letters from
Hoover labeled "Personal and Confidential and containing tidbits
of political intelligence Copies of many of these letters which the com
mittee obtained from the Truman Library are contained in exhibit 35.2
These letters sometimes reported on possible Communist influence be
hind various lobbying efforts such as activities in support of civil
rights legislation They reported allegations that a Communist sym
pathizer had helped write a Senator's speech Some of the letters were
undoubtedly of political value to the President For example one
related the activities of a former Roosevelt aide who was trying to

I Seep 452
Seep 455through469
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influence the Truman administration's appointments Another advised
that the FBI had learned from a confidential source that a "scandal
was brewing and that it would be "very embarrassing to the Democ
ratic administration. A third contained the report of a "very con
fidential source on a meeting of newspaper representatives in Chi
cago to plan publication of a series of stories exposing organized
crime and corrupt politicians stories which were going to be criti
cal of the Attorney General and the President The Truman White
House also received a copy of an FBI memorandum reporting the con
tents of an in-house communication from Newsweek magazine re
porters to their editors about a story they had obtained from the
State Department

An example from the Eisenhower administration shows how White
House requests and FBI initiative were sometimes mixed together
President Eisenhower asked Director Hoover to brief the Cabinet on
racial tensions in early 1956 What the Cabinet received was a report
not only on incidents of violence but also on the activities of Southern
Governors and Congressmen who were members of groups opposed to
integration the NAACP's plans to push for civil rights legislation
and the role of Communists in civil rights lobbying efforts No one
appears to have questioned the propriety of the FBI reporting such
political intelligence or Director Hoover's competence to do so

The third source of abuse throughout the Bureau's history was its
concern for its image and hostility to its critics An example from the
Truman years shows how the Bureau checked and reported on its
critics In 1949 the National Lawyers Guild planned to issue a report
denouncing FBI surveillance activities which had been revealed in a
court case The FBI provided the Attorney General with advance in
formation from its sources about the Lawyers Guild plans as well as
a full report on everything concerning that group in Bureau files At
torney General Howard McGrath passed the reports on to the Presi
dent and J Edgar Hoover advised the White House directly of last
minute changes in the Guild's plans The FBI's inside information
allowed the Attorney General to prepare a rebuttal well in advance of
the expected criticism

A second example of the Bureau's reporting occurred during the
Eisenhower administration in 1960 The Tennessee Advisory Com
mittee to the U.S Civil Rights Commission had announced it would
investigate charges by the Knoxville Area Human Relations Council
that Federal agencies including the FBI were practicing racial dis
crimination The Bureau conducted name checks on all 11 members of
the Council's board of directors and forwarded the results to Attorney
General William Rogers Deputy Attorney General Lawrence Walsh
and Special Assistant to the Attorney General Harold R Tyler Jr
Derogatory information developed on four of these individuals in
cluded allegations of subversive connections from as far back as the
late 1930's and early 1940's an allegation that one board member had
"corrupt political associates in 1946 and the characterization of an
other as having "unorthodox attitudes and sending flowers and
"mash notes to a woman in his church The FBI's report also made
the flat statement "As you know this Bureau does not practice racial
segregation or discrimination. The committee will recall that it has
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previously received information as to the number of black FBI agents
in the early 1960's Thus the Bureau's early history shows the develop
ment of its political services for higher authorities and its concern for
its own political position

The staff's investigation of alleged abuses in the 1960's and 1970's
discloses a wide variety of questionable name checks sometimes for
Presidents and sometimes in the Bureau's own interest An examination
of these name check reports shows the peculiarly damaging nature
of this practice No new investigation was done to verify allegations
stored away for years in FBI files Anything anyone ever told the FBI
about the individual was pulled together including charges that the
Bureau may have never substantiated FBI files inevitably include
misinformation because people bear grudges or make mistakes Some
times the Bureau verifies the charge but frequently there is no reason
to do so and it is just recorded in the files Such charges can be re
trieved by a name check and reported without further substantia
tion

A request by the Nixon White House for a name check on CBS
news correspondent Daniel Schorr which the FBI turned into a full
field investigation has been extensively examined elsewhere The staff
has determined that President Johnson asked for similar name check
reports on at least seven other journalists including NBC commentator
David Brinkley Associated Press reporter Peter Arnett who at about
that time won a Pulitzer Prize for his reporting on Vietnam and
columnist Joseph Kraft

Another political abuse of FBI name checks occurred in the clos
ing days of the 1964 Presidential election campaign when Johnson
aide Bill Moyers asked the Bureau to report on all persons employed
in Senator Goldwater's office Moyers has publicly recounted his role
in the incident and his account is confirmed by FBI documents The
committee may be interested in questioning Mr DeLoach later today
about this incident

Some of President Johnson's requests parallel those of President
Roosevelt 25 years earlier In 1965 for example the FBI complied
with White House requests for name checks on dozens of persons who
signed telegrams critical of U.S Vietnam policy The names of other
Presidential critics were also sent to the Bureau to be checked and
reported on as were names of critics of the Warren Commission The
FBI has also volunteered reports on Presidential critics Once again
Mr DeLoach might be questioned on the practice of volunteering such
information to the White House

The White House requests for name checks are episodic in com
parison to name checks conducted as a matter of systematic Bureau
policy for the use of FBI Director Hoover The Crime Records Divi
sion which was headed for a long period of time by Mr DeLoach
prepared name check memorandums for Director Hoover regularly
on Congressmen other public officials and prominent persons of inter
est to the Director Many of these special memorandums were filed by
the Crime Records Division Others found their way into Director
Hoover's "Official and Confidential files The committee staff has
located in these "0 and C files such special memorandums on the
author of a book critical of the FBI and on all members of the Senate
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subcommittee chaired by Senator Long which threatened to investi
gate the FBI in the mid-1960's Some of these name check reports
and special memorandums contained derogatory information and in
the case of the author information about his income tax returns and
personal information about his wife The reports on members of the
Long subcommittee were compiled in a briefing book with tabs on
each Senator

These incidents demonstrate the inherent potential for abuse in the
Bureau's unregulated name check procedure White House requests
bypassed the Attorney General and the FBI Director's own requests
rook place totally within the Bureau The real meaning of the long
standing fear that the FBI had so-called dossiers on Congressmen and
other prominent persons was the FBI officials could have name
check reports prepared for their use on anyone about whom they
desired to know more

The next category of abuse involves the Bureau's investigative
powers A vivid example of this type of abuse occurred during the
Kennedy administration when the FBI conducted late night and early
morning interviews of a steel company executive and several report
ers who had written stories about that steel executive Former Assist
ant FBI Director Courtney Evans who will testify later this morn
ing may be questioned about this case

Another example arises out of the Bobby Baker case In 1965 the
FBI declined a request of the Criminal Division Justice Department
to wire a witness in the investigation of former Johnson Senate
aide Bobby Baker Although the FBI refused on grounds that there
was not adequate security the Criminal Division had the Bureau of
Narcotics in the Treasury Department wire the witness as a legiti
mate alternative These events were revealed in 1967 when the Baker
trial began Presidential aide Marvin Watson informed the FBI that
President Johnson was quite "exercised and in 1965 the Bureau
was ordered to conduct a discrete rundown on the head of the Crim
inal Division and four persons in Treasury and the Narcotics Bureau
These rundowns were specifically to include any associations with
former Attorney General Robert Kennedy Once again Mr DeLoach
may be questioned on these matters

Another incident occurred in 1966 when Mr Watson requested that
the FBI monitor the televised hearings of the Senate Foreign Rela
tions Committee on Vietnam and prepare a memorandum comparing
the statements of Senators Fulbright and Morse with "the Communist
Party line. Once again the documents in the committee's possession
indicate Mr DeLoach was involved in these activities

At the direct request of President Johnson to FBI executive Cartha
DeLoach the Bureau passed purely political intelligence about U.S
Senators to the White House which was obtained as a byproduct of
otherwise legitimate national security electronic surveillance of for
eign intelligence targets This practice also continued under the Nixon
administration at the request of Mr H R Haldeman This mattter
cannot be explored further in public session and must be reviewed in
executive session because the details remain classified

It is more difficult to automatically place the label "abuse on
Presidential requests for electronic surveillance to investigate leaks of
classified information In 1962 Attorney General Robert Kennedy
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authorized wiretaps on New York Times reporter Hanson Baldwin
and his secretary These wiretaps lasted for about 1 month I would
ask the Senators to turn to exhibit 36.1 In addition to the 1962 wiretap
on Hanson Baldwin the committee has just received materials from
the FBI reflecting authorization by Attorney General Robert Ken
nedy of a wiretap on a reporter for Newsweek magazine in 1961 as
part of the investigation of another leak of classified information
Further materials provided only last night by the FBI and the Justice
Department reflect authorization by Attorney General Nicholas Katz
enbach of a wiretap on the editor of an anti-Communist newsletter
in 1965 again during the investigation of a leak of classified infor
mation

The committee has received materials from the FBI reflecting
authorization by Attorney General Robert F Kennedy of wiretaps on
at least six American citizens including three executive branch offi
cials a congressional staff member and two registered lobbying agents
for foreign interests The materials also reflect that these wiretaps
related to an investigation of efforts by foreign interests to influence
U.S economic policies The FBI has asked me to stress that the wire
tap on the congressional staff member was not placed on a Capitol Hill
office but was rather placed on the residence so that the FBI was not
wiretapping on Capitol Hill

The wiretaps under the Nixon administration of journalists and
current or former White House and other executive officials have been
widely publicized The staff's inquiry into this matter has determined
that according to available records at least one of these wiretaps had
nothing to do with leaks and was conducted solely for personal
information about the target Nevertheless the wiretapping Attorney
General Kennedy authorized to investigate leaks and the taps of
President Roosevelt's aides were undoubtedly precedents J Edgar
Hoover had in mind when he told President Nixon and Dr Kissinger
in 1969 that wiretaps had been used for these purposes in the past

Another abuse of FBI investigative powers under the Johnson
administration was the surveillance conducted at the 1964 Democratic
National Convention in Atlantic City This will be explored later
with Mr DeLoach The most sensitive details of the plans and tactics
of persons supporting the Mississippi Freedom Democratic Party
delegate challenge were reported to the White House from the FBI's
wiretap on Dr King and other types of FBI surveillance The re
sponsible White House official at the time Mr Walter Jenkins has
told the committee that he can recall no political use made of these
reports Nevertheless an unsigned document has been located at the
Johnson Library recording at least one political use of Mr DeLoach's
phone reports

As Theodore H White's account of the 1964 campaign makes clear
the most important single issue that might have disturbed President
Johnson at the Atlantic City Convention was the Mississippi chal
lenge And the FBI's own inquiry into the Atlantic City events reports
several FBI agents recollection that one purpose of the Bureau opera
tion was to help avoid "embarrassment to the President. The com
mittee must weigh all the evidence in deciding whether this abuse of
the FBI resulted from a White House request from FBI officials vol
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unteering information to serve and please the President or from a
legitimate civil disorders intelligence operation which got out of hand
because no one was willing to shut off the political intelligence by
product

It should also be noted that an aide to Vice President Hubert
Humphrey contacted the FBI to request assistance at the 1968 Chi
cago convention Nothing appears to have come of this largely be
cause Attorney General Ramsey Clark turned down FBI requests for
authorization to wiretap protest demonstration leaders at the Chicago
convention An additional instruction recorded in Bureau files from
J Edgar Hoover to the field office in Chicago prior to the Democratic
convention directed that none of its activities should involve politi
cal intelligence

I would like now to turn to the first addendum of the staff report ex
hibit 36 According to materials provided to the committee by the
FBI President Johnson asked the Bureau to conduct physical sur
veillance of Mrs Anna Chennault a prominent woman Republican
leader on October 30 1968 in the final days of the election cam
paign The FBI instituted this surveillance to cover her activities in
Washington D.0 and New York City The results of this physical
surveillance were disseminated to J Bromley Smith Executive Secre
tary of the National Security Council who had conveyed Johnson's
request to Cartha DeLoach of the FBI On November 7 1968 Smith
called DeLoach and stated that President Johnson wanted the FBI
to abandon its physical surveillance of Mrs Chennault On Novem
ber 13 1968 at the instruction of President Johnson the FBI checked
the toll call telephone records in Albuquerque N Mex. to determine if
Vice Presidential Candidate Spiro Agnew had called Mrs Chennault
or the South Vietnamese Embassy during his November 2 1968 visit
to Albuquerque No such records were located President Johnson was
furnished this information on November 13 1968 Agnew's arrival
and departure time to Albuquerque on November 2 1968 were also
verified at the request of the White House The FBI has reviewed its
files on this matter and has advised that the apparent reason the White
House was interested in the activities of Mrs Chennault and Spiro
Agnew was to determine whether the South Vietnamese had secretly
been in touch with supporters of Presidential Candidate Nixon pos
sibly through Mrs Chennault President Johnson apparently was
suspicious that the South Vietnamese were trying to sabotage his
peace negotiations in the hope that Nixon would win the election and
then take a harder line toward North Vietnam The FBI also states
that physical surveillance of Mrs Chennault was consistent with
FBI responsibilities to determine if her activities were in violation
of certain provisions of the Foreign Agents Registration Act and of
the Neutrality Act

The committee has also inspected copies of reports to the White
House of the physical surveillance of Mrs Anna Chennault These
include her leaving the Watergate apartments leaving her residence
proceeding to New York visiting the Embassy of Vietnam travel
ing again to the Embassy of Vietnam and being transported by cab
from the vicinity of the Vietnamese Embassy to the Investment Build
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Mg on K Street in Northwest Washington D.C Further details of
these events involving electronic surveillance remain classified "Top
secret.

Finally there are two additional examples of political abuse of or
by the FBI in the seventies In July 1971 3 months after the supposed
end of FBI COINTELPRO operations the FBI leaked to a newsman
derogatory public record information about Daniel Ellsberg's lawyer
[exhibit 37].i Copies of the article were sent to the Attorney General
the Deputy Attorney General and Presidential Aide H R Haldeman
with the specific approval of Director Hoover with no indication it
was generated by the FBI Nevertheless the committee should note
that Charles Colson who pleaded guilty to a civil rights offense for
leaking information about Daniel Ellsberg's lawyer to a journalist
had said that he believed that the FBI was doing the same thing

In May of 1970 the FBI provided derogatory public record in
formation and other allegations about the Reverend Ralph David
Abernathy president of the Southern Christian Leadership Con
ference to Vice President Agnew at his request [exhibit 38].2 This
occurred following a telephone conversation between FBI Director
Hoover and Mr Agnew during which according to Bureau records
the Vice President "said he thought he was going to have to start
destroying Abernathy's credibility.

In summary political abuse of the FBI and by the FBI has ex
tended over the years through administrations of both parties

Senator TowER Thank you Mr Elliff
Our witnesses this morning are Mr Cartha DeLoach and Mr Court

ney Evans former special agents of the FBI
Mr Evans and Mr DeLoach would you please seat yourselves at

the witness table
Senator TOWER Gentlemen would you please rise and raise your

right hand
Do you solemnly swear that the testimony you present before this

committee will be the truth the whole truth and nothing but the truth
so help you God

Mr Evans I do
Mr DELOACHI do
Senator TowER Will your counsel please identify himself
Mr MCNEras Charles A McNelis Washington D.C. attorney with

the firm of Welsh &Morgan
Senator TOWERAnd who are you counsel for
Mr MCNELIS Mr DeLoach Mr Tower

TESTIMONY OF COURTNEYEVANS AND CARTHA DeLOACH FORMER
FBI OFFICIALS ACCOMPANIEDBY CHARLES A McNELIS COUNSEL

Senator TowER Gentlemen I understand you have no statements
to make Proceeding with the questioning will be the chief counsel
of the committee Mr Schwarz

Mr SCHWARZMr Chairman I am going to attempt and Mr
Smothers is going to attempt to get out of the way certain facts re

2Seep 4862Seepp 490through494
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lating to authorization or lack of authorization in the King matters
So we're not going to pursue the political abuse and propaganda areas
which Mr Elliff covered and to which these witnesses are here to
respond I'm going to deal with Mr Evans and Mr Smothers is going
to deal with Mr DeLoach

Mr Evans beginning at the time of the commencement of the
Kennedy administration what was your job at the FBI

Mr EVnxs I was Assistant Director in charge of the Special Investi
gative Division

Mr SCHWARZDid you have an informal function as liaison to the
Justice Department

Mr Evans Yes Since I had known the new Attorney General as
Chief Counsel for a Senate Select Committee he called upon me from
time to time after he became Attorney General for certain information
And the liaison relationship developed at this time

Mr SCHWARZNow before we get into specifics on the King matter
I would like to have you state for the record your understanding of
the sorts of information you were authorized to provide to the At
torney General or other persons in the Department of Justice

Mr EVANS The procedure was very definite in line with Mr
Hoover's request in that if a request was received from the Attorney
General or if information was received from him this was put in
memorandum form and presented to Mr Hoover with some kind of
recommendation as to action that should be taken other times just for
his information But action was taken only after that procedure was
followed

Mr SCHWARZSo the substance of that answer is that you are not
authorized to provide information to an Attorney General without the
specific permission of Mr Hoover

Mr Evnxs Yes that is correct
Mr SCHWARZNow was it your general understanding that Mr

Hoover believed that confidential matters particularly relating to
investigative techniques ought not generally to be disclosed outside
of the Federal Bureau of Investigation

Mr Evnxs I understood this policy to be very firm in that these
matters were confidential within the Bureau itself

Mr SCIIWARZAnd that meant confidential even with respect to the
Department of Justice which had nominal charge of the FBI

Is that correct
Mr Evnxs That is correct insofar as my actions were concerned
Mr SCIIwARZ All right Now again before turning to specifics on

the King matter in the early sixties the time when you served in the
liaison role what was your understanding of whether or not authori
zation was required from the Attorney General with respect first to
taps and second to bugs

Mr Evnxs It was my understanding at the time that any tap re
quired the written authorization of the Attorney General but that
no such authorization was required for the use of microphone surveil
lances

Mr ScuiwARZ And when you sav microphone surveillance that's
what the ordinary citizen calls a bug

Mr Evnxs Yes
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Mr SCHWARZNow turning then to the taps on 1)r King without
getting to details on authorization did Robert Kennedy at some point
authorize placing a tap upon the home phone of I)r King upon the
office of the SCLC in Atlanta and upon the office of the SCLC in
New York

Mr Evnxs I have no specific recollection My memory has been re
freshed by the record and I understand this is true He did so approve
them

Mr SCHWARZAnd in referring to the record do you mean the docu
ments dated October 7 1963 and October 21 1963 which are in the
documents you have furnished previously

Mr EvANs That is correct
Mr SCHWARZNOWI'm going to come back to the details on those

documents in a moment but before doing so I would ask you some
questions about July 1963 and whether or not Robert Kennedy sug
gested in July 1963 that the Bureau put a tap on Martin Luther King

Mr Evnxs These are events that occurred 12 years ago and my
recollection is necessarily very dim with regard to them

On the basis of documents that have been shown to me however
my memory has been refreshed to some extent and it is my recollection
that at that period of time in early 1963 there had been a rather fre
quent exchange of information between the Bureau and the Attorney
General The Bureau had frequently furnished information to the
Attorney General with regard to the background and activity of cer
tain associates of Dr King and it is my recollection that the action
taken with regard to wiretaps resulted from this information

Mr SCHWARZAll right Now let's look at the documents that were
shown to you to refresh your recollection starting with the document
dated July 16 1963 [See footnote p 21.]

This is a document from you to Mr Belmont reporting on a conver
sation with Robert Kennedy

Is that correct
Mr EVANS That's correct
Mr SCHWARZWould you either read into the record or summarize

paragraphs 2 and 3
Mr EVANS[reading] "The purpose of this contact with the Attor

ney General related to the possibility of effecting technical coverage on
both

Mr ScilwARz Let's use the name of Mr Y
Mr Evnxs [continuing] On Mr Y and Martin Luther King And

on that occasion * * *. The memorandum reflects I told the At
torney General that I wasn't acquainted with the activities of Mr Y
but that insofar as Dr King was concerned he traveled a great deal
and I doubted for that reason whether surveillance of his home or
office would be very productive The memorandum reflects that I
also raised the question as to the repercussions should it ever become
known that a surveillance had been put on Dr King It was the At
torney General's view according to the memorandum that this did not
concern him

Mr SCHWARZYou might read into the record precisely the language
of that third paragraph
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Mr EvANs [reading] "The AG said this did not concern him at all
that in view of the possible Communist influence in the racial situa
tion he thought it advisable to have as complete coverage as possible
I told him under the circumstances that we would check into the mat
ter to see if coverage was feasible and if so would submit an appro
priate recommendation to him.

Mr SCIIWARZNow within a week of that document turning to
a document dated June 25 1963 in other words 9 days later did
the Attorney General tell you he had concluded that there should
not be a wiretap placed upon Dr King

Mr EvANs That is correct
And for the record my memorandum was apparently misdated

June 25 it should have been July 25
Mr SCHWARZAll right What was the reason for your offering

testimony about the prior history of memos from the Bureau to the
Attorney General which had been pressuring him to do something
about looking into allegations of Communist connections between
certain persons and Dr King Why did you offer that testimony

Mr EVANS I offered that testimony because I had no specific recol
lection of exactly what was said at the time with regard to the instal
lations and to try to put into perspective the conditions that existed
at the time

Mr SCHWARZSo even though the first of those documents can
directly indicate that the Attorney General suggested the coverage
on Dr King are you stating that there is a background to that which
is inconsistent with the document What are you stating Mr Evans

Mr Evnxs I am saying generally that there is a background that
throws some question as to the exact nature of the request and the
motivation for it and to point out that the memorandum does not
purport to be a complete story of all of the facts

Mr SCHWARZAll right Now turning to the terms under which the
taps were actually put on in October or authorized in October would
you turn to the document dated October 10 1963 and read into the
record the first sentence of the fourth paragraph please

Mr EvANs [reading] "After this discussion the Attorney General
said he thought we should go ahead with the technical coverage on
King on a trial basis and to continue it if productive results were
forthcoming.

Mr SCHWARZNow turning to the document of October 21 1963
did the Attorney General in that document make more specific what
he meant by a trial basis

Mr EVANS Yes He pointed out that by trial basis he was referring
to 30 days

Mr ScIIwARZ Will you read into the record the fourth paragraph
of the document dated October 21 1963

Mr EVANS[reading]
The Attorney General advised that he was approving the October 18 1963

memorandum but asked that this coverage and that on King's residence be
evaluated at the end of 30 days in light of the results secured so that the con
tinuance of these surveillances could be determined at that time This will be
done

Mr SCHWARZTo your knowledge was any evaluation of the taps
authorized in October furnished to Robert Kennedy within 30 days
or at any time
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Mr EvANs I have no personal knowledge in this regard but I
would point out for the information of the committee that the assassina
tion of President Kennedy occurred within that 30-day period and
that this had a great effect on what Robert Kennedy was doing

Mr Sciiwtuz Yes but why didn't the Bureau furnish the evalua
tion to the Attorney General within the 30-day period as he requested
in the document of October 21 Is that connected with the assassina
tion

Mr EVANS I don't know that It was not a matter within my juris
diction I just don't know

Mr ScilwAEz Turning to the bugs with Robert Kennedy as At
torney General was any authorization sought for the bugs that were
placed on Dr Martin Luther King from Robert Kennedy

Mr EVANSNot to my knowledge
Mr ScitwARz And to your knowledge was Robert Kennedy told

about the bugs that were placed upon Martin Luther King
Mr EVANSNot to my knowledge
Mr SCIIwARZ Finally would you turn to the document dated

March 4th 1964 [See footnote p 21.]
Mr EvANs Yes this is the memorandum from Mr Baumgardner to

Mr Sullivan
Mr SCHwRZ Yes Are certain instructions directed to you in that

memorandum regarding Dr King and the Attorney General
Mr EvANs Yes
Mr SCHWARZAnd were you instructed to deliver something to the

Attorney General
Mr EvANs Yes I was
Mr SCHWARZAnd was that a memorandum containing informa

tion derogatory to Dr King
Mr EVANSThat is my understanding
Mr ScllwARZ And did you deliver that memorandum tc Robert

Kennedy
Mr EvANs I have no specific recollection that I did so I noted on

the memorandum I took the action I was instructed to take and there
fore on the basis of that handwritten notation I assume today that I
did follow those instructions

Mr SCHWARZWell let me put in the record that the handwritten
notation says "done 3/10/64, and that's in your handwriting

Mr Evnxs It is
Mr SCHWARZWere you given a second instruction in the memoran

dum of March 4 1964 the second one in addition to the instruction
to deliver material to Robert Kennedy

Mr EVANSYes I was
Mr SCHWARZWould you read into the record the second sentence

of the paragraph No 2 at the bottom of page 2 of the March 4 memo
Mr EVANS
It is also believed Mr Evans should indicate to the Attorney General that if

King was to become aware of our coverage of him it is highly probable that
we will no longer be able to develop such information through the means
employedto date that we of course are still desirous of continuing to develop
such information

Mr SCHWARZNow did you carry out that belief as it is expressed in
the document the belief that you should make such an indication to
the Attorney General
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Mr EVANS The answer to that question is identical to the answer
as to whether or not I delivered it namely that I have no present
recollection that I did but I interpret the notation in my handwriting
"clone to mean I followed explicitly the instructions that were given
to me

Mr SCHWARZOne final question Mr Chairman Mr Evans would

you examine the document dated April 14 1964 which I have pre
viously shown to you and turn to the fourth page of it [See footnote

p 21.] Senators this is the document that led up to the Mr X

exchange we had 2 weeks ago the report from New York that Mr X
was not proven to be a Communist to which the Director responds
"well Mr X is not proven not to be a Communist so continue to

investigate him.
On page 4 a reference is made to a man that we have agreed to call

Mr A Was Mr A the principal alleged Communist connection with
Dr King

Mr EvANS That is my understanding
Mr SCHWARZI will now read into the record what is said about

Mr A and the report from the New York field office to the Director

[reading]
Mr A is not now under CP discipline in the civil rights field There has been

no indication however that Mr A has not continued his ideologicaladherence
to communism

Were you told and to your knowledge was the Attorney General
told at any time by the FBI that Mr A whose alleged connection
and control by the Communists had been the justification put forward
for the tap of Dr King was found by the New York office to "not
be now under a CP discipline in the civil rights field

Mr EvAxs Not to my knowledge
Mr SCHWARZNothing further Mr Chairman
Senator TOWER The next line of questioning will be directed to

Mr DeLoach The Chair recognizes the counsel to the minority Mr
Smothers

Mr SMOTHERSThank you Mr Chairman
Mr DeLoach I would like before turning directly to the King

matters to examine with you the role of the Crime Records Division
and your role personally as head of the Crime Records Division
Then upon completion of the King matters I would like to turn
briefly to your knowledge of the FBI's activities regarding the 1964
Atlantic City Democratic Convention Beginning with the Crime Rec
ords Division Mr DeLoach when did you become head of the Crime
Records Division of the FBI

Mr DELoACH I believe Mr Smothers that was 1959 sir
Mr SMOTHERSAnd how long did you serve in that capacity
Mr DELoACH Until December 1965 when I became Assistant to

the Director
Mr SMOTHERSWhat was the function of the Crime Records Division

during your tenure
Mr DELoACH Liaison with the Congress Mr Smothers the han

dling of the Top 10 Fugitive Program dealing with the communica
tions media of the United States preparation of memorandum for Mr
Hoover and other Bureau officials matters of that nature
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Mr SMOTHERSWould it be an incorrect characterization to say
that the Crime Records Division handled much of the Bureau's pub
lic relations effort

Mr DELOACII That was part of it sir
Mr SMOTHERSWith respect to that public relations effort was

it a part of your job to insure that stories or television programs
were reviewed and to make sure you were constantly in touch with
information regarding the Bureau that was reaching the public

Mr DELOACH That is correct sir
Mr SMOTHERSWas part of your responsibility also related to the

use of liaison with the media in connection with the Bureau's CO
INTELPRO activities

Mr DELoACH I can't satisfactorily answer the question specifically
Mr Smothers I do recall after my mind being refreshed by a memo
randum you have shown me that part of the COINTELPRO or Coun
terintelligence Program the Domestic Intelligence Division did have
a segment or phase of it called the mass media program and from time
to time the Domestic Intelligence Division would prepare memo
randa and send to Mr Hoover for his approval and then over to me
information which was to be given to newspapers in connection with
that program

Mr SMOTHERSThen would it be fair to say Mr DeLoach that if
the Domestic Intelligence Division wished to have a story planted
against a COINTELPRO target that it would have been your respon
sibility and the responsibility of the Crime Records Division to facili
tate this

Mr DELOACH Only if it pertains to the communications media
Mr SMOTHERSYou're talking about press and television
Mr DELoAcIr That would have been the only part of it
Mr SMOTHERSDid the Crime Records Division also have responsi

bility for the name checks program
Mr DELOACH No sir that would have been in the General Inves

tigative Division I believe Mr Smothers The Crime Records Division
did have responsibility for preparing summaries of information for
Mr Hoover whenever he instructed that it be done and also for those
individuals that were requesting appointments with Mr Hoover from
time to time But that was the only responsibility they had with respect
to name checks Name checks per se were over in another division of
the FBI

Mr SMOTHERSDid you have any contact Mr DeLoach with the
White House in connection with requests for information on individ
uals members of the press or public personalities

Mr DELOACH After the assassination of President John F Ken
nedy Mr Smothers Mr Johnson became President and requested
Mr Hoover through Mr Hoover that I assume the responsibility of
liaison with the White House in addition to my other duties From
time to time we did receive extensive requests for name checks from
the Secret Service and from White House personnel concerning those
individuals that the President desired to appoint to jobs or commit
tees or commissions or those individuals who were being invited to go
to state functions at the White House and matters of that nature

Mr SMOTHERSIn this connection
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Mr DELOACH And incidentally Mr Smothers that would not have
been handled by the ('rime Records Division as such It would have
been handled by the name check section which would have been in an
other division

Mr SMOTHERSBut to the best of your knowledge there is some

blurring of the lines here isn't there Didn't you have frequent contact
with Mr Jenkins Mr Moyers Mr Watson at the White House in con
nection with these kinds of requests

Mr DELoAC r I would say rather infrequent contact Mr Smothers
I did have contact with them from time to time They would call me
from time to time It was rather infrequent The greater majority of
that would be handled by straight requests from the Secret Service to
the name check section of the FBI

Mr SMOTHERSIf we were trying to establish the point of contact in
the Bureau for political matters liaison information regarding polit
ical groups and information regarding individuals and their political
positions where would the point of contact have been during your
tenure Would it have been you Mr DeLoach

Mr DELoecH Well what you term "political information, Mr

Smothers was not exactly political information to us I was an inves

tigator not a politician and information was brought to my attention
I didn't know whether it was political or not We didn't know what
was in the minds of the White House personnel or the President of
the United States requesting such information But with Mr Hoover's
instructions we followed it

Mr SMOTHERSAfter your review of some of the information this
committee has provided you have you now concluded that some of those

requests were indeed political
Mr DELoACH Well again Mr Smothers I'm not a politician and I

did not know what was on the minds of the White House personnel or
the President so I cannot answer your question

Mr SMOTHERSLet's move on then to the King matter We had pre
viously called your attention to a memorandum originated by you dated
November 27 1964 The memorandum reports on a meeting with Mr

Roy Wilkins the Executive Secretary of the National Association for
the Advancement of Colored People and the subject matter of the
conversation was apparently Dr King Let me read from that memo
randum for you just two brief excerpts and then I will ask several
questions regarding the state of your knowledge of these matters

Mr DELoACH Certainly sir
Mr SMOTHERSThe first on page 2 and you are writing this
I told him [Mr Wilkins] that the Director of course did not have in mind

the destruction of the civil rights movementas a whole I told him the Director
sympathized with the civil rights movement as exemplified by the Director's
provision of the FBI's many brilliant accomplishmentsin this field I added
however that we deeply and bitterly resented the lies and falsehoods told by
King and that if King wanted war we certainly would give it to him

Later in the memorandum you report
I want to reiterate once again less strongly that if King wanted war we were

prepared to give it to him and let the chips fall where they may
Wilkins stated that this would be most disastrous particularly to the Negro

movement and that he hoped this would never come about I told him that the
monkey was on his back and that of the other Negro leaders He stated he
realized this we shook hands and he returned to New York
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Mr DeLoach what was the nature of this war or threatened war
between the Bureau and Dr King as you understood it

Mr DELOAcII I will be glad to relate that to the best of my recol
lection Mr Smothers As well as I can remember Dr King in

Albany Ga. while there was considerable rape strife and violence

going on at that particular time made the statement publicly that
Southern born reared and educated FBI agents were not to be trusted
were biased and could not properly conduct civil rights investigations
Mr Hoover to the best of my knowledge became very resentful of
this as did personnel of the FBI because they felt it was extremely
difficult under conditions at that particular time to conduct civil rights
investigations very difficult to get information from all parties all
sources You're damned if you do and damned if you don't in con

ducting such investigations However Mr Hoover also felt that this
cast a slur it was an aspersion upon the integrity of FBI agents So
consequently Mr Hoover later on I'm trying to recollect to the best
of my memory had a press conference with about approximately 22
women I think the National Capital Press Club at that time and
made the statement that he considered Dr King to be a notorious
liar

I was with Mr Hoover at the time as I believe was Inspector
Robert E Wick I passed Mr Hoover a note indicating that in my
opinion he should either retract that statement or indicate that it was
off-the-record He threw the note in the trash I sent him another note
He threw that in the trash I sent a third note and at that time he
told me to mind my own business However the statement was made
at that time

Following that statement when it became public the girls could

hardly wait to leave to get to the telephone Dr King made the state
ment publicly that Mr Hoover apparently bowing under the pressure
of his work had become senile This further angered Mr Hoover and
at that time we had a full-scale feud going on with many pawns in
between two men of great stature Dr King on the one hand who was
the symbol of leadership of 12 million blacks in the United States and
Mr Hoover on the other hand who in my opinion had built the
greatest investigative agency in the world I personally considered it 
while the facts were somewhat objective in saying that Dr King was
wrong about Southern born reared and educated agents because I
have yet to have anyone show me any investigative case in which the
FBI has shirked a civil rights investigation or any other investiga
tion whether they were Southern born Eastern or what have you But
I considered this to be unfortunate in the public relations image of the
FBI because you cannot win in such a feud

I was responsible for recommending to Mr Hoover that he have
a meeting with Dr King and that we try to settle the situation and
I)r King would not return my telephone calls I did talk personally
with Mr Andrew Young who I believe is now a Congressman We
agreed to a mutual informal meeting between Mr Hoover and Dr
King There was a meeting in Mr Hoover's office which was attended
by Reverend Abernathy Congressman Young one other individual
and Dr King Mr Hoover and myself It was more of a love feast
it was not a confrontation It was a very amicable meeting a pleasant
meeting between two great symbols of leadership Mr Hoover on
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the one hand telling Dr King that in view of your stature and
reputation and your leadership with the black community you should
do everything possible to be careful of your associates and be careful
of your personal life so that no question will be raised concerning
your character at any time I)r King on the other hand told Mr
Hoover that he would attempt to cooperate with the FBI in civil
rights investigations in the future and that there would be no difficulty
involved Dr King left Mr Hoover's office after approximately 1 hour
and 17 minutes and issued a press release more or less concerning the
peaceful meeting between I)r King and Mr Hoover That in essence
Mr Smothers was the situation I would like to repeat it was a love
feast more or less rather than a bitter confrontation between these
individuals

Mr SMOTHERSIs it your testimony and your belief then Mr
DeLoach that this dispute between King and Hoover culminating
in the Bureau's determination to remove Dr King as a leader in the
civil rights movement was the result of some unfortunate and maybe
childish reaction to who said what about whom Is that all there
is to it

Mr DELoncn Well I think unfortunately Mr Smothers there
was a very unfortunate feud that went on and I hope as Assistant
Director the head of the Crime Records Division in charge of the
Bureau's public image that it had not occurred in the least but it did
and it went on

Mr SMOTHERSWas this feud this alleged telling of lies the basis
for the wiretaps on I)r King

Mr DELOACII I was not iii the Domestic Intelligence Division
at the time Mr Smothers I was not on the operational side of the
FBI I was strictly in the administrative side the Crime Records
Division and it would be difficult for me to answer that question I
can only speculate as Mr Evans has previously testified as shown
by the record and as indicated by Mr Schwarz that the reason for
the electronic surveillance was brought about by a simple intelligence
operation rather than any feud or personal pettiness

Mr SMOTHERSDo you have any knowledge of the involvement
of Mr Walter Jenkins in the approval of these wiretaps or did you
ever discuss them with him

Mr DELOACII I don't recall discussing with Mr Jenkins the
approval or disapproval of wiretaps Mr Smothers

Mr SMOTHERSTo the best of your knowledge was he involved in
or knowledgeable of the taps

Mr DELonc,IT Would you repeat the question
Mr SMOTHERSTo the best of your knowledge was Mr Jenkins

either involved in or knowledgeable of the taps against Dr King and
the authorization of these taps

Mr DELoAC-H Mr Smothers you have refreshed my memory by
showing me memoranda several days ago showing that on one occa
sion Mr Hoover instructed me to take written information prepared
by the Domestic Intelligence Division over to Mr Jenkins for the
information of the President concerning the fruits of I believe one
or two of those surveillances

Mr SMOTHERS,Just passing briefly then to the 1964 Democratic
Convention were you in charge of or responsible for coordination
of surveillance at that convention
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Mr DELoncn Well the word "surveillance connotes a rather
unsavory term Mr Smothers That's not a correct term

Mr SMOTHERSInvestigation of individual groups participating
in the convention

Mr DELoACH Well to relate to you as refreshed again by the
memoranda you have shown me and my recollection of the situation
12 years ago over 12 years ago Mr Jenkins called one day called
me and asked if the FBI would send a team of men to Atlantic City
during the convention I told him in my opinion that this was some
thing that he or the President should discuss with Mr Hoover Mr
Jenkins or the President to the best of my recollection later called
Mr Hoover and asked that this be done Mr Hoover then gave me
instructions to proceed to Atlantic City and to gather a team of men
to go there to assist in gathering intelligence concerning matters of
strife violence et cetera

Mr SMOTHERSDid your investigation go beyond matters of strife
and violence Did you in fact report on political matters as a result
of your investigation of the 1964 convention

Mr DELOACH Mr Smothers we passed on to the Secret Service
we passed on to Mr Jenkins and Mr Moyers Those are the only indi
viduals I recall that we did pass information to all information that
we received Again I am not a politician I was an investigator

Mr SMOTHERSI have nothing further at this time Mr Chairman
Senator TowER I would urge my colleagues to adhere to the 10

minute rule because of the lateness of the hour The questions will
begin at the end of the table with Senator Hart of Colorado

Senator HARTof Colorado Thank you Mr Chairman
Mr DeLoach I would like to confine my questions to the period Mr

Smothers toudhed on August 22 through August 28 1964 at Atlantic
City It is my understanding that the special squad as you described
was established at the request of Mr Jenkins Is that correct

Mr DELOACH Either at Mr Jenkins request or if the President
called Mr Hoover later on it would have been the President's specific
request But I told Mr Jenkins that either he or the President should
call Mr Hoover concerning the matter

Senator HARTof Colorado Was there any written request from the
White House about this operation

Mr DELoACH Senator I do not recall any written request
Senator HART of Colorado What was the purpose as Mr Jenkins

outlined it to you of this operation
Mr DELOACH He gave me no specifics as I recall Senator He

just indicated he wanted a team of men there because the President
might have expected violence or strife or something of that nature

Senator HART of Colorado That latter part is your speculation
or what he said

Mr DELOACH Senator I do not recall It has been 12 years ago
but let me put it in this perspective The President of the United
States following the assassination of President John F Kennedy
became somewhat obsessed with the fact that he himself might be
assassinated As a matter of fact strangely enough to the FBI the
President would call from time to time as would his assistants and
indicate that an FBI agent should be on Air Force One when Air
Force One would take off for foreign countries or would take off for
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distant cities in the United States FBI agents for the first time in
the history of the FBI we have never served as bodyguards we
were investigators we determined facts we do not offer bodyguard
assistance found themselves on street corners with Secret Service
agents that the President's line of motorcade would come through on
that particular street This became somewhat of a lengthy practice
Senator So it was very apparent to personnel of the FBI that the
President was obsessed with fear concerning possible assassination
and he therefore was asking the FBI to supplement Secret Service
Now to further that before leaving for Atlantic City I called the
Director of the Secret Service Mr James Rowley and told him of
the President's request and told him that we would be there to assist
his men in reporting information to them concerning possible violence

Senator HART of Colorado Did you and Mr Jenkins talk about
the flow of political information

Mr DELoACH I have never talked with anyone at the White House
to the best of my knowledge concerning the fact that the FBI should
furnish political information Senator

Senator HART of Colorado Did you discuss with Mr Jenkins the
Mississippi Freedom Party delegation and the credentials dispute

Mr DEL0ACH Senator I've been shown no memorandums and I
know nothing  I recall nothing which would point out that Mr
Jenkins had mentioned this specific group to me prior to leaving for
Atlantic City I do recall and I have here certain memorandums
which the committee has shown me which showed that while at Atlan
tic City there were definite potential indications of strife and violence
These were reported to Mr Jenkins

Senator HARTof Colorado Well we'll get to that in a minute
To whom did you report while you were in Atlantic City
Mr DELoACH Senator the committee reported at least the group

of men that I had the special agents reported matters to Mr Jenkins
and Mr Moyers and they also reported to the Secret Service They re
ported some parts of it to the State police

Senator HARTof Colorado Well I meant specifically in the White
House Did you have a direct telephone line in your residence to the
White House to Mr Johnson's office

Mr DELoAcx I'd be glad to explain that Senator At one time to
the best of my recollection Mr Johnson instructed that about 65 tele
phones be placed around Washington to people he would try to contact
from time to time I have seven children Senator and it was necessary
for me to put a rule in my own home that no child could talk on the
phone for over 3 minutes but in most families that have children of
that nature particularly teenagers those rules are often broken I had
a teenager who talked one night for 18 minutes to one of her friends
The President was trying to get me to discuss a matter concerning an
applicant type investigation concerning an appointment he wanted
to make Hebecame very irate The next morning when my family and
I were trying to go to church we were met in the driveway of my home
by two men from the White House They told me they had instruc
tions from the President to put a direct line in my home I told them to
go ahead and put it in the den and they said no the President said
put it in your bedroom [General laughter.]
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Senator HART of Colorado Did you have any direct contact with
President Johnson while you were in Atlantic City

Mr DELoACii No sir not to the best of my knowledge and I had
no direct line from Atlantic City to the White House

Senator HARTof Colorado All right On August 29 1964 immedi
ately after the close of the convention you wrote a summary memoran
dum for Mr Mohr [exhibit 39 '] The lead paragraph goes as follows
"In connection with the assignment of the special squad to Atlantic
City N.J., it gives the dates "at the direction of the President I wish
to report the successful completion of this assignment By means of
informant coverage by use of various confidential techniques by in
filtration of key groups through use of undercover agents and through
utilization of agents using appropriate cover as reporters we were able
to keep the White House fully apprised of all major developments
during the convention's course. About those techniques did you use
wiretaps

Mr DELOACH Senator to the best of my recollection there was one
electronic surveillance an ongoing surveillance which would have been
in Atlantic City or any other city where Dr King might have been
if domestic intelligence had recommended it and Mr Hoover had ap
proved it There was an electronic surveillance at that time on Dr
King and now that you've refreshed my memory from showing me
memorandums of 12 years ago there was an additional electronic sur
veillance on the Student Nonviolent Coordinating Committee I believe
sir Let me make it very clear Senator that I did not place either one
of those electronic surveillances but I was aware that they were there

Senator HARTof Colorado Who placed them
Mr DELoACH That would have been the Domestic Intelligence

Division the Newark office following the instructions of the Domestic
Intelligence Division

Senator HART of Colorado So there was more than one ongoing
operation That is to say you had the special squad and you were
using other resources of the Department as well

Mr DELoACH Both were ongoing surveillances electronic surveil
lances as far as I can recall Senator

Senator HART of Colorado Not by this special squad but were
operating out of another Bureau office

Mr DELOACH They were operating at the instructions of FBI
headquarters the Domestic Intelligence Division but were not part
of the responsibilities of the special squad Senator

Senator HART of Colorado They were not operating under your
supervision

Mr DELOACH No sir they were not but we did get the fruits of
those particular surveillances Senator

Senator HARTof Colorado On the second page of that memorandum
it says additionally "We utilized highly successful covers with coop
eration of blank and then it goes on to say "furnishing us creden
tials. What is the name that goes in that blank

Mr DELoACH Senator I'd be glad to answer that question if the
chairman insists upon it I want to cooperate to the fullest extent with
the Committee
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Senator HART of Colorado Well Mr Chairman I'll read in the
blank if you like

Senator TowER I'm informed that's already in the record
Senator HARTof Colorado In a wrap-up memorandum to Callahan

on this whole operation dated January 28 1975 based upon interviews
with you and others they talk about coverage of CORE and SNCC
and so forth and say "the cooperation of management of NBC News
our agents were furnished NBC press credentials [exhibit 40] Is
that correct

Mr DELOACH Senator that is correct to some extent But let's
put it in a very objective light There was one agent that accompanied
me to Atlantic City from FBI headquarters who had a friend among
the employees of NBC who were attending the convention On one
occasion this agent expressed to the friend that he saw from time
to time during the 6 days that we were in Atlantic City the fact that
it was difficult to obtain sufficient information to report to the White
House on Secret Service matters concerning violence and strife The
agent was given whether at his request or not or whether it was
voluntarily given a couple of pieces of cardboard where you filled in
your own name and as to the uses of these the extent of the usage
I don't know Senator

Senator HART of Colorado You don't know how many of your
agents used bogus press credentials

Mr DELOACH I do not sir
Senator HART of Colorado Well at the same time it says one of

our "reporters, so there must have been several
Mr DELoACH There could have been Senator but I have no recol

lection of that
Senator HART of Colorado Well were you aware of the fact that

this was going on
Mr DELoACH Senator the memorandum clearly reflects that so

I must have been
Senator HART of Colorado Let me go very briefly into this matter

of whether you were a politician or an investigator In your memo
randum you say during our convention coverage we disseminated
44 pages of intelligence to Walter Jenkins and you attached those to
Mr Mohr

Additionally I kept Jenkins and Moyers constantly advised by telephone
of minute by minute developments This enabled them to make spot decisions
and could adjust convention plans to meet potential problems before serious
trouble developed

We have no way of knowing of course whether that was political
trouble or some other kind of trouble

"We also prepared thumbnail sketches on all key dissident groups" 
one might ask how you qualify to be a dissident group

expectedat the convention and we maintained separate fileson the activities
of King Communist Party Groups area hoodlums informants the Mississippi
Freedom Democratic Party and other groups We alerted White House repre
sentatives regarding compromiseproposals proceedingof the MFDP Through a
highly confidential source we learned that CORE and SNCChad been advised
that the President was bringing pressure to bear on the delegates of 15 states
to preclude their support of a move to bring the Mississippi Delegates to the
floor of the convention We advised Jenkins that the MFDP delegates flatly
rejected the compromiseproposalto seat the MFDPdelegation

1Seepp 503and509
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It goes on and on like that and there are a couple of more quotes from
the summary done by the Bureau in 1975 of this effort

Mr DELOACH I believe you mean 1964 Senator instead of 1975
Senator HART I'm sorry No it's a January 1975 study done

by Mr Bassett for Mr Callahan The Bureau files reflect a memoran
dum from Mr Hoover wherein Walter Jenkins Special Assistant to
the President called and stated the President wanted him to call the
Director to say that the job that the Bureau had done in Atlantic
City was the finest the President had ever seen In discussions with
you presumably by the authors of the memorandum and this is a
quote from a special agent in charge "It was obvious that DeLoach
wanted to impress Jenkins and Moyers with the Bureau's ability to
develop information which would be of interest to them. The author
denies that this was for political reasons but states "I do recall
however on one occasion I was present when DeLoach was on a lengthy
telephone conversation with Walter Jenkins They appeared to be
discussing the President's `image. At the end of the conversation
DeLoach told him something to the effect `that man sounded a little
political to you but this doesn't do the Bureau any harm.

One final quotation Mr Chairman and I'll be done A letter from
Mr DeLoach to Mr Moyers addressed Dear "Bishop which I as
sume is either a nickname or a code name "Thank you for your very
thoughtful and generous note concerning our operation in Atlantic
City Please be assured that it was a pleasure to be able to be of assist
ance to the President and all the boys that were with me felt honored
in being selected for the assignment I think everything worked out
well and I'm certainly glad that we were able to come through with
vital tidbits from time to time which were of assistance to you and
Walter, etc. etc. Signed C D DeLoach [exhibit 41].1 That's all

Senator TOWERSenator Schweiker
Mr DELOACII Senator may I inject just one note here if I may

please
Senator TOWERAll right
Mr DELoACH I'd like to answer a few of those statements if I may

Senator with due respect You're talking about tidbits of informa
tion First let me say that the name Bishop given to Moyers because
of his ministerial background He was called that I called him that
and so did a number of other people But with respect to tidbits of
information and the information furnished to Mr Moyers and to Mr
Jenkins let me give you several examples One example was and this
was the coverage on the Student Nonviolent Coordinating Committee
Headquarters "While I don't want any killing I don't mind if some
one gets a little scorched I do not want any more killing. Another
quote "If the Mississippi Freedom Democratic Party is not seated
the Independent Citizens Committee will rush a motorcade from
Philadelphia to assert pressure on the convention. Another one "If
the Mississippi Freedom Democratic Party is not seated by the
Democratic Credentials Committee the leadership of CORE and the
Student Nonviolent Coordinating Committee will abandon their vigil
and resort to direct action.

1Seep.510
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There was an instance where information was picked up and passed
on that an Atlantic City hoodlum who requested that a strong arm
man come to Atlantic City from New Jersey for the purpose of tak
ing care of a few people who needed to have their skulls cracked One
individual in CORE was quoted as stating "that if all persons ar
rested in civil rights riots were not given amnesty then direct action
would be taken to dramatize the cause of racial strife. Another one
"Seven to thirteen busloads of demonstrators are coming in tonight
the night of the 9th a do or die effort.

We reported to Mr Jenkins and to Mr Moyers and to the Secret
Service of course "Banning the most unusual circumstances, this is
on August 27 1964 and was taken from the memorandum which you
have shown me which came originally from FBI files "Banning the
most unusual circumstances the FBI feels the potential for difficul
ties is considerably less than there was the previous 2 days. Another
report was that was passed on "Apprehension concerning personal
safety continues to be expressed by members of the Mississippi Free
dom Democratic Party.

Senator the only thing I'm trying to point out is we passed on all
information We did not decide what was political or what represented
potential strife and violence Not being politicians we let other people
decide that We were an investigative agency and we passed on all data

Senator HARTof Colorado To that I can only respond here I have
copies of 44 reports that went up if they are not political documents
I don't know what are

Senator TOWERSenator Schweiker
Senator ScH`VEIKERThank you very much Mr Chairman
Mr DeLoach I want to read from a memorandum This is a memo

randum that you addressed to Mr Hoover I don't want to mention the
name of the political leader involved for obvious reasons I will read
aloud just a paragraph This is forwarding some personal and de
rogatory material relating to a political leader You were writing a
memorandum from Mr DeLoach to Mr Hoover The last part of this
reads "I told Jenkins, that is Walter Jenkins of the White House
that Director Hoover indicated I should leave this attachment with him if he
desired to let the President personally read it Jenkins mentioned he was suf
ficiently aware of the facts that he could verbally advise the President of the
matter Jenkins was of the opinion that the FBI could perform a good service
to the country if this matter could somehowbe confidentiallygiven to members
of the press I told him the Director had this in mind however also believedwe
should obtain additional information prior to discussing it with certain friends

Have you had a chance to see that paragraph
Mr DELOACH Yes sir Senator
Senator SCHWEIKER Obviously it's personal and derogatory ma

terial My question to you is as a matter of policy and procedure how
often was this kind of personal discrediting of a political figure used
How would you describe that particular memorandum and its sig
nificance

Mr DELoACH Senator to the best of my knowledge this is the only
time that the White House refers to such a possibility insofar as Dr
King was concerned The only other possible recollection I could have
after 12 years would be the previous reference of the counterintelli
gence program where the Domestic Intelligence Division would pre
pare a memorandum under the mass media category of that program
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and send it to Mr Hoover for approval suggesting that someone in
the various organizations which were promoting strife and violence
something of that nature be given to the press That is my only recol
lection Senator

Senator SCHwEII ER In the deposition you were shown the letter
to Marvin Watson from J Edgar Hoover dated November 8 1966
[exhibit 42 1] "Reference is made to your request regarding authors
of books dealing with the assassination of President Kennedy At
tached are summary memoranda setting forth pertinent information
contained in the FBI files concerning the following individuals. Then
seven individuals are listed some of their files of course not only in
cluded derogatory information but sex pictures to boot It also says
a copy of this communication has not been sent to the Acting Attorney
General

Certainly here is some kind of a pattern whenever somebody was
in disagreement or in political difference first the name check then
derogatory material and then photographs were sent out I know
specifically that Congressman Boggs son has testified that the White
House passed material of this nature to him that was being received
here from the FBI As you recall we came across another letter several
months later on another of the critics personal files I think it is
January 30 1967 Here almost 3 months apart is an ongoing cam
paign to personally derogate people who differed politically In this
case it was the Warren Commission This wasn't a pattern to you
Wasn't this standard operating procedure when they were out to get
somebody politically

Mr DELoACH No Senator I recall no specific pattern in that re
gard You have shown me the memoranda concerning the request on
the part of the President of the United States for the FBI to furnish
name checks concerning critics of the Kennedy assassination Those
instructions after being shown to Mr Hoover and Mr Hoover in
structed that it be done were complied with What the White House
did with those I don't know

Senator SCHWEIKERWell the question is what does a name check
normally include Does it normally include all of the adverse mate
rial that is in the files on a particular person whether it's substantiated
or unsubstantiated What in general does a name check include

Mr DELOACH It would include information in a file concerning the
individual the subject of the inquiry Senator If there was no informa
tion it simply would be stamped and sent back to the White House As
I say at that particular time I was not in charge of the name-check
section I'm not totally familiar with what all it did include But that
is my understanding

Senator SCHWMKEn Well it's true you were not in charge but on
these carbon copies it was marked "Sent direct to Mr DeLoach.

Mr DELoACH Strictly in a liaison capacity Senator
SenatorSCHWEIKER You were passing it on I recognize that
Mr DELOACHCertainly
Senator SCHwEIKERSo that you were a conduit in this case and that

is why I'm asking you in these terms Did it also normally include
sexual activities of the person involved as we've twice seen evidence
that it did
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Mr DELoncx Senator I did not prepare the name-check memoran
dum as I testified previously and I'm not aware of the fact of what
information was contained in those memorandums

Senator SCHWEIKER Here's another memorandum that I had a
chance to review just briefly with you during the deposition I'll just
briefly read from it It's a memorandum from you to Mr Tolson dated
April 4 1967 and it says "In this connection Marvin Watson called
me" that's you "late last night and stated the President" Presi
dent Johnson "had told him in an off moment that he was now con
vinced that there was a plot in connection with the assassination" this
is the Kennedy assassination You go on to say "Watson requested
that any further information that we could furnish in this connection
would be most appreciated by him, the President Then you say "I
reminded Watson that the Director had sent over to the White House
some weeks back all of the information in our possession in connection
with the CIA's attempts to use former agent Robert Maheu and his
private detective outfit in contacts with Sam Giancana and other hood
lums relative to fostering a plot to assassinate 'Castro. The interesting
thing to me is why did you at that time and why did the White House
consistently link the Kennedy assassination to the attempts against
Castro Here they are both discussed in the same paragraph They
are hooked together in the same paragraph

I note that at the time of your deposition you said you could not
recall I just wondered if since we had our deposition hearing any
thing might have come to light which would refresh your memory or
help reconstruct why the White House you or Watson might have
thought there was a link between the Kennedy assassination and at
tempts to kill Castro

Mr DELOACHWell Senator you have shown me that memorandum
and I appreciate being allowed to be refreshed concerning the matter
The only possible reason it could have been brought up is because of
Mr Watson's remark quoting the President that the President felt
that a certain agency may have been involved in a conspiracy I felt
this to be sheer speculation and Mr Watson did not follow up neither
was any information furnished to the FBI to follow up the sheer
speculation That's the only reason why'I can think I brought up the
name of the Agency

Senator SCHWEIKERYou testified that the FBI was asked to put out
a statement saying Lee Harvey Oswald acted in a singular capacity 
without any plot involved Is that correct

Mr DELOACII That's absolutely correct sir and it should be a mat
ter of record in the FBI files

Senator SCHWEIKERThe White House was asking the FBI to put
out this statement Is that not correct

Mr DELoacIT That's correct Senator
Senator SCHWEIKERDo you have any recollection about the time

frame during which the White House asked the FBI to put out that
statement

Mr DELoncx Senator I don't But out of sheer speculation it would
have to be I think 1966 1967 1968

Senator SCHWEIKER YOU don't know whether it comes before or
after this memorandum here that I just read

Mr DELO\CT--TI do not sir
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Senator SCHWEIKERMr DeLoach did you brief Attorney General
Ramsey Clark on the COINTELPRO activities

Mr DELoACH Shortly after Mr Clark became Attorney General
or Acting Attorney General Mr Clark instructed me on one occasion
to brief him to assist him in his knowledge concerning FBI activities
to brief him concerning all ongoing programs I do distinctly recall
that on one occasion briefing Mr Clark concerning programs of the
FBI I did generally brief him concerning COINTELPRO or the
Counterintelligence Program yes sir

Senator SCUWEIKERHow would you describe the extent and the
depth of the briefing in terms of his fully understanding what was
going on Not necessarily all the specific details the names or places
but in terms of the import the thrust the purpose the objectives
of it how do you feel the briefing conveyed that

Mr DELoACH Senator I can't fully answer that question because
nothing's been shown to me to refresh my memory concerning a con
versation that took place 7 8 9 years ago However I do recall that
at the same time I do specifically recall that again at Mr Clark's
instruction I briefed him concerning electronic surveillances that
had been previously authorized by Attorneys General and were on at
the time that he was to take office At that specific time I believe it
was Mr Clark that laid down the policy that we were to keep the
Attorney General's office advised more frequently concerning justi
fication of such surveillances

Senator SCHWEIKERThank you Mr Chairman My time is up
Senator TOWERSenator Morgan
Senator MORGANMr Evans I believe you testified that you were

the liaison officer with the Attorney General throughout most of the
Kennedy administration

Mr EVANS Yes sir
Senator MORGANAnd you testified in response to Mr Schwarz's

question that you did confer with the Attorney General in July of
1963 with regard to some wiretaps and technical surveillance of Mar
tin Luther King

Mr Evans Yes sir
Senator MORGANBut up until that time for nearly 3 years or 21/2

years you had regularly briefed the Attorney General on the FBI
had you not

Mr EVANS No that is not a correct characterization
Senator MORGANHow often did you brief him
Mr EvAxs I never briefed him with reference to the activities of

the FBI as a whole Mr Sloover ordinarily met with the Attorney
General and I assume for that purpose My role was to respond to
a specific request from the Attorney General for action by the FBI
or to supplement a written record that the FBI had sent to the At
torney General where some action was necessary

Senator MORGANTo put it your way during that period of time
you had responded to his request on numerous occasions prior to
July 1963 had you not

Mr EVANSThat is correct
Senator MORGANHad you ever at any time declined to furnish

the Attorney General any information that he requested
Mr EvAxs I never did after I cleared it with Mr Hoover

66-0770 76 13



184

Senator MORGANDid you misinform the Attorney General of any
activities of the FBI of which he had inquired

Mr EVANS Not to my recollection
Senator MORGANOn July 16 1963 according to your memorandum

at his request you contacted him Is that correct
Mr Evnxs That is correct
Senator MORGANDuring that time he told you that Mr Burke

Marshall was concerned about some of the activities of Martin Luther
King with regard to possible Communist influence of the civil rights
movement

Mr Evnxs That is my recollection
Senator MORGANWas Mr Burke Marshall present
Mr Evnxs I don't remember
Senator MORGAN Do you have any recollection as to who was

present
Mr EVANS No I do not My memorandum doesn't reflect I assume

it was only the Attorney General
Senator MORGANThe fact is at that time there had been little or no

evidence of Communist involvement with Martin Luther King's activ
ities had there

Mr Evnxs Senator I can respond to you by saying that my knowl
edge in this area was necessarily very limited My jurisdiction within
the FBI had nothing to do with internal security matters Conse
quently the only knowledge I had in that area was when a particular
incident or situation would arise wherein I was requested to take
action either by the FBI or by the Attorney General So I am not
knowledgeable enough to characterize that

Senator MORGANMr Evans I find it hard to believe that a man who
occupied the very important position of liaison between Mr Hoover
and the Attorney General would not be knowledgeable at least gen
erally about what was going on It is true that never more than two
or three known Communists were ever involved with Martin Luther
King's operation Is that not true

Mr EVANSThat is the extent of the information that was called to
my attention yes

Senator MORGANYou never received any information that their
involvement was to any extent further than occasional moral
encouragement

Mr EvANs I don't know that I am qualified to characterize it in that
manner

Senator MORGANWell to your knowledge those two or three that
you did know about were not leaders in the Martin Luther King move
ment were they

Mr Evnxs They were leaders to the extent that it was my under
standing that they exercised great influence with Dr King

Senator MORGANIsn't it true that the records reflect and you've
reviewed these records that the extent of their involvement was con
versations with Martin Luther King by telephone and maybe one or
two meetings with him

Mr EVANS I think generally that is it although I don't know that
one or two meetings is necessarily correct

Senator MORGANBut at any rate in July of 1963 the Attorney Gen
eral asked you or asked the Bureau to engage in a technical sur
veillance of Dr King did he not
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Mr EvANS That is correct
Senator MORGANAnd you advised them at that time you didn't

think that was practical or feasible because he was traveling a great
deal and due to possible repercussions if their surveillance were
discovered

Mr EvANS The record so reflects yes sir
Senator MORGANThe Attorney General responded that he was not

afraid of the repercussions because he feared the dangers of Commu
nist influence

Mr EVANSYes sir
Senator MORGANSo thereafter acting on his directions you did

submit a request for approval for wiretaps did you not or the Bureau
did

Mr Evans The Bureau did yes I had no personal involvement
Senator MORGANWhen that request was submitted Mr Schwarz

asked you if the Attorney General did not turn it down He did turn it
down didn't he

Mr EVANSThat is my understanding
Senator MORGANBut according to your memorandum of October 10

1963 he turned it down because of the reason you had stated to him
previously the difficulty in obtaining or following through on such
technical surveillance and the possible repercussions

Mr EvANS It was just my understanding that he had second
thoughts about this matter and was not going to approve it

Senator MORGANHe noted that the last thing we could afford was to
have a discovery of a wiretap on King You stated that in your memo
randum of October 10 1963

Mr EVANS Yes sir that is correct
Senator MORGANAnd in one other place you stated that his reasons

were substantially those that you had given to him in the beginning
Mr EVANSI assume that to be true yes sir
Senator MORGANAll right but later on he did approve technical

surveillance of Dr King in a number of places
Mr EVANSThat is my understanding
Senator MORGANAnd you testified that you did not advise the Attor

ney General of the bugs that were placed in his hotel rooms and
around the country

Mr EVANS I did not
Senator MORGANDo you know whether he was advised of that fact
Mr EVANS No I do not
Senator MORGANDo you not know if he was given information

obtained by this type of surveillance
Mr EVANS On the basis of the memorandums that have been shown

to me it appears that one or more documents were transmitted to him
which logically could have arisen from such sources But I have no
personal knowledge that he was ever told specifically the identity of
the source

Senator MORGANYou say you have no personal knowledge but
logically it could have been concluded that it came from such sources
And the truth is that it could only come from such sources Isn't it
Mr Evans

Mr EVANS Not necessarily
Senator MORGANFrom where else could it have come
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Mr Ev_1Ns It could well have come from a live individual present
at the time

Senator MORGANHow long did you continue in your role of briefing
the Attorney General

Mr EVANSUntil December 1964
Senator MORGANAfter December what role did you assume Did

you retire from the Bureau then
Mr EvANS I retired from the Bureau
Senator MORGANI have a few questions for Mr DeLoach
Mr DeLoach I believe you testified that you knew nothing about

the name-check business
Mr DELOACH That's not exactly correct sir I said it was not under

my jurisdiction at the particular time the questions were concerned
Senator MORGANWell whether or not it was under your super

vision you knew about it and your successor Mr Bishop was respon
sible for it Didn't Mr Bishop succeed you in that role

Mr DELOACrr No sir Mr Wick succeeded me as Assistant Director
in charge of the Crime Records Division Mr Bishop came later after
Mr Wick retired

Senator MORGANBut the name-check system was a system whereby
the names of individuals could be pulled out of all of their criminal
records files and put together wasn't it.

Mr DELOAOH Senator I believe that I testified that the Crime
Records Division had only certain minor responsibilities with respect
to preparing memorandums in-house for the most part concerning
name checks The name check section was over in one of the investiga
tive divisions of the FBI

Senator MORGANBut you were familiar with that were you not
Mr DELOACx Bas tally Senator I knew what was going on

yes sir
Senator MORGANIt was often used against defense attorneys by a

prosecuting attorney who would call for a name check against a
defense attorney wasn't it

Mr DELOACH I have no knowledge of that Senator
Senator MORGANDo you know that it's not true
Mr DELOACrr I am not aware of what you're talking about Senator

I am sorry
Senator MORGANIsn't it a fact when U.S attorneys would be

involved in litigation and defense attorneys would be defending indi
viduals of some repute quite often you would conduct a name check
on the defense attorney to find what information you could about him
at the request of U.S.'attorneys

Mr DELoACx That may have happened in the field Senator I don't
have any specific recollections of it happening at the seat of govern
ment at FBI headquarters However if the Attorney General re
quested such information we would furnish it to him Here again
this would be handled by the name-check section and most probably
not by the Crime Records Division

Senator MORGANThe truth is that you did a full background memo
on Leonard Bodine who was attorney for Dr Spock in 1968

Mr DELOACIr The Crime Records Division
Senator MORGAN Yes Was it Crime or the Federal Bureau of

Investigation Don't pin it down
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Mr DELOACH Senator I don't recall any specific memorandum on
Mr Bodine It may have been prepared but I don't recall it

Senator MORGAx You're not in a position to say that it didn't
happen

Mr DELoACH I don't recall any such memorandum Senator It
may have been shown to me but I don't recall it at this time Senator

Senator MORGANIt was shown to you in your deposition wasn't
it

Mr DELOACH It could have been I had approximately 750 or over
700 memorandums shown to me Senator

Senator MORGANYou just don't recall that one at all
Mr DELOACHThat's correct sir
Senator MORGANLet me go on Mr Chairman if I could have a

minute or two Mr DeLoach is it a matter of routine for the Bureau
to do a background check or to gather information on all candidates
who vie for the U.S Congress or the U.S Senate

Mr DELoACH Senator to the best of my recollection there was such
a program where information was furnished to Mr Hoover concern
ing candidates for the Congress and if such a candidate were elected
Mr Hoover would send him a note of congratulations

Senator MORGANThe information sent Mr Hoover also contained
summaries of the candidate's background personal habits and wheth
er or not he might be friendly toward the Bureau did it not

Mr DELoACH I recall specifically that it contained a paragraph or
a statement or a sentence what have you as to whether or not they
were friendly to the Bureau yes sir

Senator MORGANThey were also used in your lobbying with Con
gressmen on the Hill One of the purposes of having this information
was that it might be helpful in dealing with the Congress Is that cor
rect

Mr DELOACHI am certain that's correct sir
Senator MORGANThat practice not only extended to members of the

Congress but to candidates for State office did it not such as candi
dates running for attorney general of a State or even Governors

Mr DELoACH I don't recall that Senator
Senator MORGANWell I'll ask you sir if you didn't do one on me

in 1968 when I filed for the office of the attorney general of the State
of North Carolina

Mr DELoACH I don't recall that specifically but I'm sure if it was
done I'm sure there was no derogatory information

Senator MORGANYou are sure that it was done on me and other
candidates because it was the practice at that time wasn't it

Mr DELoACH I can't state that Senator because I cannot recall
such a practice concerning State officers

Senator MORGANYou followed it up by sending so-called liaison
agents to various conferences of State officials Liaison agents who
submitted memorandums to the criminal records file concerning the
activities of those officials at these national conferences didn't they

Mr DELOACH Senator I do not recall such a program concerning
State officials To me that would be a considerable waste of time It
may have been done in some minor instances but I do not recall it and
I say again I'd like to reiterate it would be a considerable waste of time
considering the backbreaking responsibilities of the FBI
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Senator MORGANI'll agree with you that it would be a consider
able waste of time and a contemptible action but I will also state to
you that you did it and you made memorandums as to whether or
not the officials were considered friendly or unfriendly to the Bureau
Thank you

Mr DELOCIi You have information I do not have
Senator MORGANIt is in my file
Senator TowER Senator Baker
Senator BAKER Mr Chairman thank you very much I am sorry

I haven't been here for the entire testimony of these witnesses be
cause I am sure it has been very helpful This is not my first oppor
tunity to question Mr DeLoach I remember previously in 1973 in the
Watergate inquiry that we had an opportunity to interview him and
I have here with me an abstract of the substance of that interview at
that time Mr DeLoach do you remember that interview

Mr DELoAcn I do
Senator BAKER Do you remember what response you gave me at the

time as to whether you had any telephonic link or communication be
tween the Democratic National Convention in 1964 and the White
House

Mr DELOACH Senator I believe you asked me the question whether
I had a direct telephone to the White House from Atlantic City and
I believe I answered in the negative That would be my answer today
again sir

Senator BAKER I don't have the full transcript here I'm not trying
to trap you

Mr DELOACHCertainly I understand Senator
Senator BAKER But do you remember whether you indicated there

was effective communication link between the FBI observation post at
that convention and the White House

Mr DELoAc1I There was a definite effective link between the office
maintained by the special squad in Atlantic City and those individ
uals Mr Jenkins and Mr Moyers as assigned by the President to their
offices Senator

Senator BAKER Do you recall telling me at that time that your con
tacts with the White House were Mr Jenkins Mr Califano Mr
Moyers and Mr Marvin Watson

Mr DELoACII I do not remember saying Mr Califano I could
have Senator and I do not remember saying Mr Watson To my
knowledge to the best of my recollection I met Mr Watson only once
in Atlantic City and I don't recall any contacts with him

Senator BAKER The information I have here is not the original
transcript The staff memorandum is that your reply in that respect
was on page 9 line 21 of your testimony Your contacts at that time in
the White House were Walter Jenkins Joe Califano William Moyers
and Marvin Watson Do you know anything now that would dispute
that in your mind or contradict that in your mind

Mr DELOACH I distinctly recall communicating and the agents on
the squad being in communication with Mr Jenkins and Mr Moyers

But Senator may I say when you interrogated me approximately 2
years ago 10 years had elapsed since the Democratic National Conven
tion in 1964 I had been shown no memorandums whatsoever to refresh
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my memory and I was testifying strictly on recollection of another era
10 years ago

Senator BAITER And your memory and recollection has been
refreshed now

Mr DEL0AC13 To the extent of what you just read to me and its
entirely possible that I did talk to Mr Califano and Mr Watson I do
recall meeting Mr Watson on one occasion at the convention but I do
not recall transmitting anything to him and I do not recall trans
mitting anything to Mr Califano

Senator BAKER Do you know whether or not the FBI had made a
practice of similar observation at other political conventions in the
past or was this unique in the 1964 Democratic National Convention

Mr DELOACH Senator I think the FBI historically has attempted
to maintain its intelligence responsibilities as laid down in the Execu
tive order of 1939 with respect to any matter concerning strife or vio
lence that would interrupt a convention or any other time and possibly
information previous to that Now to go further the FBI covered the
1968 Democratic convention from a local standpoint a local field office
standpoint in Chicago because they anticipated such massive amounts
of violence which actually did occur The FBI as I recall and al
though I was not in the Bureau I left the Bureau as you recall in July
1970 which has been almost 6 years but I do know that the FBI cov
ered the convention the Republican convention in 1972 in Miami
because again I understand there was a potential for considerable
violence and strife

Senator BAKER Without trying to differentiate between the cover
age of the several conventions haven't they covered virtually every
Republican and Democratic convention since 1936

Mr DELOACHSenator I can't answer that
Senator BAKER To your knowledge
Mr DELOACH To my knowledge I do not know sir and I would say

that so far as I know the 1964 convention was the first time that the
special squad was sent to a convention Otherwise it had been handled
by the local field office

Senator BAKER One other question on the telephone link in 1964 I
have here a letter from A.T & T dated September 17 1975 [see
exhibit 43 1] addressed to this committee saying in part that "private
lines for security purposes were established from the FBI and Secret
Service temporary communications center Atlantic City to FBI head
quarters in the District of Columbia and to the White House PBX.
Does that conform with your understanding Was there in fact an
FBI line directly to the White House PBX

Mr DELOACII Not to my mind Senator We had a direct line to
the Washington to the FBI headquarters

Senator BAKER Well the letter is unclear It says it was estab
lished to the FBI headquarters and to the White House PBX for
the FBI and the Secret Service I don't know if that means they
were done for the FBI at both places or to just one You have no
recollection

Mr DELoACII Senator I do not recall any specific instance where
we had a direct line to the White House from Atlantic City We did
have a direct line between Atlantic City and FBI headquarters in
Washington
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Senator BAKER Do you know anything about an FBI surveillance
of Senator Goldwater and his staff during the time of the 1964
Convention

Mr DELOACHWould you repeat that
Senator BAKER Yes sir Do you have any personal knowledge of

FBI surveillance of Senator Goldwater or his staff during the 1964
Convention

Mr DELOACH I have no personal recollection whatsoever and I
would doubt seriously whether such thing ever happened I would
have known about it if it had happened Let me go one step further if
I may Senator

The statement has been made here today concerning name checks or
investigations so to speak I forgot whether they said name checks or
investigations concerning Senator Goldwater's staff and I believe
that occurred in 1963 or 1964 the request was made of me to make
so-called name checks of Senator Goldwater's staff I came back and
told Mr Hoover about it and Mr Hoover said what do you recom
mend and I told him I recommended we do nothing and he said I
agree with you And that's exactly what we did nothing I told .the
White House nothing

Senator BAKER Mr DeLoach for my own personal information tell
me in a general way how you received authorization at the FBI to
install technical surveillance a telephone tap What procedure did
you go through

Mr DELoACfi Senator to the best of my recollection as I say most
of my experience was in the Crime Records Division which has been
previously described to you as the public relations arm of the Bureau
but later on I became Assistant to the Director An interested division
say the Domestic Intelligence Division for example would receive a
communication from a field officeof the FBI indicating a recommenda
tion that a wiretap be placed on a specific individual and containing
justification in that communication Now the Domestic Intelligence
Division would then prepare a memorandum to Mr Hoover where
they would reflect fully the name of the individual and the proposed
justification It would go up the line through the various officials to
Mr Hoover's office and attached to that-communication would be a
letter of communication to the Attorney General requesting his ap
proval and setting forth the so-called justification

Senator BAKER From Hoover to the Attorney General
Mr DELoAcTI Yes sir that is correct sir Mr Hoover if he

approved it I would then ask one of his secretaries I believe it was
Ms Edna Holmes for the most part to take this communication to
the Attorney General's office and to wait there for the answer or to
go back after it personally for personal delivery and personal return
to Mr Hoover's office regarding the wishes of the Attorney General
concerning the matter When she received a telephone call or when
she was given the approval by the Attorney General she would bring
that communication back to Mr Hoover and he would route it back
to the interested division

Senator BAKER Generally the memorandum from Hoover to the
Attorney General would carry an approval space for the Attorney
General's name or initials on the bottom is that correct

Mr DEI o cn I believe so sir Let me say that he always either gave
approval or disapproval of such a matter on a personal basis
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Senator BAKER And the FBI never did wiretaps to your knowledge
without the approval of the Attorney General

Mr DELoACx I can't recall any instances Senator no It was a

very established policy I believe Mr Evans will agree with me here
that you must have the agreement of the Attorney General to establish
an electronic surveillance

Senator BAKER As far as you know that was adhered to strictly
Mr DELoACx So far as I know yes sir
Senator BAKER I take it that on occasion there may have been re

quests by Attorneys General to the Bureau to initiate technical sur
veillance

Mr DELoACx Yes I believe there have been such instances
Senator BAKER Do you know of any such instances related to news

men or radio or television personalities which involved wiretaps
Mr DELOACH Senator the only recollection I could have was with

respect to the Nixon administration where the Attorney General Mr

Mitchell called over to FBI headquarters on one occasion and indi
cated or instructed that the President wanted this done and it should
be done

Senator BAKERWho was that about
Mr DELOACHI don't recall that sir
Senator BAKER I've just been notified that my time has expired I

would like to pursue that line of questioning further but Mr Chair
man if I may I would ask instead that the witness provide us with a
list of newsmen or women who may have been wiretapped by the
Bureau during the time that he was there

Mr DELoACx Senator with due respect to that and in complete
courtesy to you and the committee again reasserting my desire to be of
complete cooperation I have been out of the FBI for many years now
It would be better if that request could be directed to FBI head
quarters I believe sir

Senator BAKER Well I think we could help you with that We'll
show you a memorandum and ask you if you can verify it

Mr DELOACHYes sir
Senator BAKER Thank you
Senator TOWERSenator Hart of Michigan
Senator HART of Michigan Mr Chairman I am developing a di

lemma this morning I thought with a deep conviction that the worst
thing we could have at the FBI would be a politician Now I'm be
ginning to wonder if that isn't what we need more than anything else
someplace along the line As I hear you your statement to us is that
because you're a policeman you can't make any judgment as to the
propriety of if a request comes to you from the White House or the
Attorney General

Mr DELOACHSenator may I say something there please
Senator HARTof Michigan Sure
Mr DELoACx The FBI has always been established as simply an

investigative agency The FBI does not make recommendations has
never made recommendations insofar as investigative activities are
concerned and in my opinion in the future should not make recom
mendations but it should simply investigate determine the facts and
furnish the facts to the Attorney General and/or the Department of
Justice including the U.S attorneys where the final approval should
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be given as to prosecution or not Under no circumstances m my
opinion should the FBI ever become a determining factor whether
there should be prosecution or action taken concerning a specific mat
ter They should simply ascertain the facts They should pass on all
data

Senator HARTof Michigan Yes But if the White House calls you
and asks you to do a check on a critic is there any hope that somebody
in the Bureau would be willing at least to question or second-guess
the White House as to whether this relates to national security or the
enforcement of criminal laws or if it really is a misuse of the FBI

Mr DELoACII Senator I think there are several things that need
to be done here if I may say so sir if you'll allow me to First the

guidelines as laid down in the Executive order for domestic intel

ligence jurisdiction in 1939 by President Roosevelt and later reiterated

by President Truman represents strictly an Executive order The FBI
has been operating in the domestic intelligence field without any guide
lines or statutory authority from the Congress for many many years
This needs to be done and this should be the responsibility of this
committee with respect to those recommendations I am not trying
to throw this off on the committee I am simply stating facts But I

strongly feel that this committee should take that responsibility and
should lay down definite guidelines for the FBI not only pertaining
to domestic intelligence jurisdiction Senator but also with respect to
the questions being asked of us as witnesses today

Senator HARTof Michigan Were you aware of any instances where
requests to the FBI made by the White House or by other adminis
tration officials in the executive branch were rebuffed by Mr Hoover
by yourself or anybody else in the Bureau on the basis that the re
quest was an improper use of the FBI

Mr DELoACH Senator I do not recall any specific instances I'm
sure there have been I do know that on occasion requests from the
Department of Justice were considered by Mr Hoover to be not with
in the jurisdiction of the FBI and he sent one of us lesser lights over
to discuss the matter with the appropriate Assistant Attorney General
and/or the Attorney General and either the request was withdrawn
or the Department insisted upon it and we did it But information
from the White House I am sure was rebuffed by Mr Hoover from
time to time too But I have no specific recollection

Senator HARTof Michigan I think the record is left hanging a little
with respect to the Bureau's reactions to requests made by the White
House for name checks on Senator Goldwater's staff It is my im
pression

Mr DELo AcH Well Senator we felt that to be purely political and
that's why I made the recommendation to Mr Hoover

Senator HART of Michigan I'm told the next day he went ahead
and did it

Mr DELOACITWe did no name checks Senator We furnished no
information as far as I know to the best of my recollection

Senator HART of Michigan I stand corrected You are correct
Mr DELo Acir Thank you sir
Senator HART of Michigan That is an instance where the Bureau

rebuffed a request as inappropriate
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Mr DELOACII Thank you sir
Senator HART of Michigan Now the incident I had in mind bore

on another public figure Spiro Agnew A request was made to get
telephone records of candidate Agnew What happened on that
request

Mr DELOAcTI I received a call from Mr James Jones who was
the top assistant to the President at the time Senator to the best
of my recollection late one evening and he indicated the President
wanted information concerning either Mr Nixon or Mr Agnew inso
far as toll calls being made from Albuquerque N.Mex were con
cerned I told Mr Jones I felt this was not a correct thing to do
particularly at this time of night and while we would try to comply
with the President's specific request we would not do it that night
The President then called me personally in my office late that night
and indicated that did he understand my refusal to Mr Jones cor
rectly and I said yes he did I said I thought that it would be
wrong for us to try to obtain such information that late at night
The President then proceeded to tell me that he was the Commander
in Chief and that when he needed information of that nature he
should get it However the conversation ensued that I reiterated my
objections to it and the President indicated all right try to get it
the following day The Domestic Intelligence Division did get in touch
with Albuquerque and did obtain toll call slips Now this was no
electronic surveillance Senator This was merely a matter of going
to the telephone company and getting the results of toll calls made
from a certain number several days prior to that to Washington D.C
I believe there were five all total and this has 'been made a matter of
record in FBI files

Senator HART of Michigan I thought I was throwing you a slow
ball I thought that was a case where you did reject the request Ap
parently the rejection hinged on it is too late at night we'll do it in
the morning

Mr DELOACHYou're absolutely right Senator
Senator HART of Michigan There was the period when as opposi

tion to Vietnam mounted in this country the Senate Committee on
Foreign Relations under Chairman Fulbright prepared for public
hearings

Do you recall the incident involving the White House request
that the Bureau monitor statements by the Senate Foreign Relations
Committee members in those television hearings

Mr DELOACH Yes Senator my memory's been refreshed by com
mittee staff showing me memorandums in that regard That was a
specific request from the White House As I recall sir it was not a re
quest to monitor the television program It was a request to have an
agent present at the hearings We refused to do that. We had agents sit
by a television set and monitor the hearings and then later furnished
reports to the White House in that regard

Senator HART of Michigan Whether it was an agent present in a
hearing room or sitting elsewhere in front of a television set the re
quest was that the Bureau monitor a legislative hearing a congres
sional hearing The Bureau was then to analyze statements by mem
bers of that committee questioning our Vietnam involvement to see if
parallels could be found between them and statements by Communists
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Mr DELOACH Senator I believe those were the expressed instruc
tions by the White House as given to the FBI

Senator HART of Michigan How did you hear those instructions
Were they instructions of a neutral sort to see whether such parallels
exist or to see if you can't find some parallels

Mr DELoAcn I don't recall specifically Senator I received the
instructions I believe or Mr Hoover received them and gave them to
the Domestic Intelligence Division but as to the philosophy there I
don't recall

Senator HART of Michigan Do you recall any discussion as to the
propriety of responding to that request

Mr DELoAC$ Well I think we were somewhat upset by it but again
we complied with the instructions of the White House

Senator HARTof Michigan Did you resolve your upset by conclud
ing that maybe some of the Senators or witnesses were acting as agents
of the international Communist conspiracy

Mr DELoACH I would doubt that very seriously Senator I was not
aware of what was thought at the White House but I would doubt that
very seriously

Senator HART of Michigan You were upset but you went ahead
why just because the White House asked you

Mr DELoACH We complied with the instructions of the President
of the United States Senator Mr Hoover approved it after getting
the instruction from the President and we followed our orders

Here again Senator
Senator HARTof Michigan I pause only because I suspect this isn't

the kind of exciting action we associate with Dr King's experience with
the Bureau But to me this one is equally bad Communists and I
espouse many similar goals I hope they are sincere and I hope I am
sincere But if you get up to make a speech advocating improvements
in civil rights or the elimination of hunger I am sure some Communist
is making the same speech somewhere else

Mr DELoACH That could be sir
Senator HART of Michigan I would hope that the Bureau is not

viewing somebody like me as a potential threat just because somebody
like that other fellow is saying the same thing That is my concern
here

For the record Mr Chairman I think and in fairness to the Bu
reau we should invite the Bureau to furnish specific instances where

requests have been made by Presidents of the United States or persons
acting in their behalf requests to undertake an investigation or some
activity which the Bureau has declined and continues to decline on
the grounds that it involved neither national security nor the enforce
ment of the Federal criminal laws

Senator TOWERThe staff will be so directed
Senator HARTof Michigan Let me tell you what my very able staff

man is telling me in this memo Let me return to the question regard
ing the name checks on the staff of Senator Goldwater in 1964 You
said no information was provided Was that because you refused or
because you did the check and found nothing Let me read from an
FBI memorandum indicating the check was done and you reported
back to Mr Movers the negative results This is dated January 31
1975 "A record copy of a letter to Mr Moyers dated October 27 1964
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is in the file and was hand delivered by Mr DeLoach on October 28
1964 This letter advised that there was no derogatory information
in our files on 13 of the individuals mentioned. I assume those 13 were
Goldwater staffers "But on two others there was and those two and
the information bearing on them were furnished the 'White House.
[Exhibit 52]. Does that refresh your recollection

Mr DELOACII To the best of my recollection Senator as I recall
the incident no information was given to the White House concern
ing Senator Goldwater's staff Not because of the fact that we did not
have information in the Bureau's files but simply because the Bureau
did not desire to be involved in such a request

Senator HART of Michigan We will put this in the record Some
body is marching out of step here somebody is clearly out of step
This memorandum says that there were two individuals whose names
I won't state

Mr DELoncII Were those members of the Senator's staff sir
Senator HARTof Michigan Yes
Mr DELoaca I can only recall to the best of my recollection sir
Senator HARTof Michigan I would ask that with the deletion of the

names that would be made part of the record and your clarification
will be welcome

Senator TOWER Without objection that will be made part of the
record at exhibit 52

Mr DeLoach did the FBI institute physical surveillance of Mrs
Claire Chennault on October 30 1968 at the direction of the President
of the United States

Mr DELOACH Senator to the best of my recollection on that specific
case the Executive Director I believe the Executive Secretary of the
National Security Council Mr J Bromley Smith called me on one
occasion and indicated the President of the United States wanted this
done I told Mr Smith that I thought what he should do is call the
Attorney General concerning this matter and I believe either Mr
Hoover or I later received a call from the Attorney General indi
cating that this should be done

Senator TOWERWas it done
Mr DELoACH There was a physical surveillance on Mrs Chennault

yes sir
Senator TOWERWhat did it include
Mr DELOACH The usual physical surveillance as I recall Senator

following her to places where she went in the city of Washington and
as I recall a statement made this morning also a trip that she made to
New York

Senator TowER Did it involve the constant monitoring of any and
all of her incoming and outgoing telephone calls

Mr DELoACrr I believe the instructions of the President and the
specific instruction and approval of the Attorney General that a
wiretap was placed on her telephone sir

Senator TOWER So during the period of time between October 30
and November 7 all of her telephonic communications were monitored
by the Bureau

1Seep 539
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Mr DELOACH I don't recall the specific dates Senator but I do
know that such surveillance was established

Senator TOWER Who was the Attorney General at the time
Mr DELoAcii In 1968 sir
Senator TowER Yes sir
Mr DELOACH I believe that would have been Mr Clark
Senator ToWER Would the FBI have undertaken this surveillance

on its own initiative had they not been directed by the Attorney Gen
eral to do so

Mr DELOACII That was the reason I referred Mr Smith to the
Attorney General I felt that we should have the Attorney General's
concurrence and as I testified earlier to my knowledge the FBI did
not place wiretaps on individuals unless it had the approval of the
Attorney General The answer therefore would be "no.

Senator TOWER Turning to Dr King was Attorney General Kat
zenbach ever informed of the Bureau's surveillance on Dr King

Mr DELOACFHSenator I cannot answer that. I did not maintain
liaison with Attorney General Katzenbach and I was not on the
operational side of the house at the time side of the FBI Conse
quently I cannot answer that

Senator TOWERDid the White House did the President or anyone
acting in his behalf at any time request or receive political intelli
gence on Members of the U.S Senate

Mr DELOACH Senator there may have been such instances on the
part of the 'White House requests from them I don't recall specific in
stances but there could have been

Senator TOWERWas such intelligence gathering ever undertaken
Mr DELo aoii I don't recall any instance where the President of the

United States requested the FBI to specifically investigate a Senator
or a Member of the Congress unless that person was being considered
for an appointment to a commission or a committee Now I do recall
one specific instance where the White House specifically requested
the FBI they made the request I believe of Mr Hoover that Sen
ators or Members of the Congress entering a certain establishment
diplomatic establishment that those matters be brought to the atten
tion of the President

Senator TowER Mr Evans
Mr EvANs Yes sir
Senator TowER During your tenure as the liaison with Attorney

General Kennedy did he direct you to place Hanson Baldwin of the
New York Times under surveillance

Mr EvANs I believe Senator on the basis of the record that has
been exhibited to me that this was a request from the Attorney Gen
eral to Mr Hoover It did not come to me personally

Senator TOWERWho implemented that Was that under your
Mr EvANs That was not under my jurisdiction I would be glad to

explain the very limited knowledge I had of the whole affair if you
like

Senator TOWER I would like to know why he was placed under
surveillance

Mr Evans That sir I cannot answer for you My knowledge does
not go to that area
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Senator TowER Were any other journalists or personalities in the
mass media placed under surveillance by orders of the Attorney Gen
eral or the President to your knowledge

Mr EVAN-SThe only other example that I might cite is that in
connection with the Baldwin coverage there was also coverage of one
of his assistants

Senator TowER Thank you Mr Evans Do counsel have any ques
tions Mr Schwarz

Mr SCHWARZMr DeLoach we've been talking largely about re
quests from the White House for name check information or informa
tion about critics Has the Bureau in your experience volunteered to
the White House information about persons believed to be critical of
the White House

Mr DELOACH Mr Schwarz I've been gone from the FBI for ap
proximately not quite 6 years and my recollection therefore is some
what hazy concerning the matter but I don't recall any specific
memorandums It may have happened but I don't recall

Mr SCHWARZDidn't we show you a memorandum which showed
you precisely that relating to a person who had written a play critical
of President Lyndon Johnson

Mr DELoACH Mr Schwarz the committee staff has showed me over
700 memorandums I do not recall the specific memorandum

Mr ScIIwARZ All right There is such a memorandum but you
turned it over and it was volunteered

Senator TowER Do you have any questions Mr Smothers
Mr SMOTHERSNothing Mr Chairman
Senator TOWER Thank you Mr DeLoach and Mr Evans
Mr DELOACII Senator I would like if I may to say one thing

Senator Morgan in his remarks or closing comments made it appear
somewhat that I personally was responsible for keeping tabs on him
I would like the record to reflect that I have never met Senator Mor
gan I knew nothing about him and I certainly did not keep any tabs
on him

Senator TowER I don't think he intended to mean that you had done
so personally but that the Bureau had and it was in his file So that is
an established fact Thank you very much gentlemen for appearing
and cooperating with the committee

The witnesses this afternoon let's have order please--the witnesses
this afternoon will be former Attorney General Katzenbach and for
mer Attorney General Clark The committee will stand in recess until
2 p.m this afternoon

[Whereupon at 12 :45 p.m. the committee recessed to reconvene at 2
p.m. the same day.]

AFTERNOONSESSION

Senator TOWERWill the committee please come to order Our wit
nesses this afternoon are former Attorneys General Nicholas Katzen
bach and Ramsey Clark They are here not only to provide us with
factual information but I believe they have some views which we
should value considering their experience on reform measures that the
committee might consider

I have been asked to announce that the general counsel of the com
mittee Mr Schwarz has disqualified himself from participating in
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the questioning of Mr Katzenbach and has disqualified himself from
any preparation in the questioning of Mr Katzenbach in that he has
represented Mr Katzenbach on occasion in a legal connection

Gentlemen would you rise and be sworn please Do you solemnly
swear that the testimony you're about to give before this committee is
the truth the whole truth and nothing but the truth so help you God

Mr CLARKI do
Mr KATZENBACHI do
Senator TOWERDo you gentlemen have counsel with you
Mr KATZENBACHNo I have friends who are lawyers here but I'm

not being repre anted by counsel
Senator TOWERAnd you Mr Clark
Mr CLARKNo I'm here by myself
Senator TowER We will first hear opening statements by the wit

nesses Mr Katzenbach you may proceed if you wish

TESTIMONY OF NICHOLAS deB KATZENBACH

Mr KATZENBACHThank you Mr Chairman As you know I have
submitted a long statement to the committee and I would like now
just to read a brief summary of it

Senator TOWER Your full statement will be printed in the record
and you may summarize if you like

Mr KATZENBACHThank you Mr Chairman
[The prepared statement of Nicholas deB Katzenbach follows:]

STATEMENTOFNICHOLASDEB KATZENBACHFORMERATTORNEYGENERAL
OFTHEUNITEDSTATES

Mr Chairman and members of the select committee this committee has un
covered and publicly exposed activities of the Federal Bureau of Investigation
which were unlawful grossly improper and a clear abuse of governmental au
thority Accordingto the testimonybefore this committee someof those activities
took place while I was Attorney General or Deputy Attorney General

Someof those revelations have surprised me greatly Some such as the extent
of the FBI's attempt to intimidate to harass and to discredit Dr Martin Luther
King have shocked and appalled me Those activities were unlawful and repre
hensible They served no public purposes They should be condemned by this
Committee

My surprise and shock stem more from the fact that these activities occurred
with the apparent knowledgeand approval of J Edgar Hoover than from the
fact that I as Attorney General or Deputy Attorney General was unaware of
them Mr Hooverdedicated his life to building a Federal Bureau of Investigation
which enjoyed a great and deserved reputation for integrity efficiencyand
dedication to public service Even in a world which he believedwas questioning
and rejecting someof the values which Mr Hoover so esteemed patriotism re
spect for law sexual mores grounded in marriage and family the work ethic
I would not have expectedhim to risk the Bureau's reputation his life's work 
by resorting to unlawful or impropertactics

I was aware of the fact that the Director held political views far more con
servative than my own or those of the administrations which I served I knew
that on occasionhe promoted those views on the Hill without consultation with
me and sometimesin oppositionto administration policy I knew the intensity of
his views on the dangers of communism on the decline of moral standards on
the evils of permissiveness on the lack of respect for law and order I knew that
as Mr Hoovergrew older and the country changed for the worse in his view 
the intensity of those feelings and his frustration at what was taking place
grew I knew that Mr Hoover was extremely sensitive to any criticism whatso
ever and that he deeply and personally resented public criticism by civil rights
leaders and especiallythat madeby Dr King
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I knew all these things and so I believe did the Congress the press and
muchof the publicat large

As background I think that it is important that I recall that some of the
Bureau's activities being investigated by this committeehave long been a matter
of public record Many of them are well known to any schoolboy Others were
discussed in executive session every year in the Director's annual appearance
before the House Appropriations Committee Much of what apparently con
stituted the concernand focus of the so-calledCOINTELProgram was discussed
by Mr Hoover in testimony before the ViolenceCommissionin 1968 Still other
activities have been written about in books and periodical literature and have
longbeenthe subject of publiccommentand interest

For example
DomesticIntelligence Activities
The Bureau's responsibility includes domestic intelligence activities Mr

Hoover annually described those activities to the House Appropriations Com
mittee The bulk of that testimony was off the record Nevertheless it is clear
that each year at budget time the Congress had ample opportunity to explore
those activities in somedepth with Mr Hoover

Useof ConfidentialInformants
It has never been a secret that the FBI has used a substantial number of con

fidential informants to assist in its criminal and subversive activities investiga
tions Mr Hoover annually disclosedthat fact to Congress In 1959 for example
Hoover testified that "it is obvious that maximum results cannot be obtained
without informants in the criminal and subversive fields The record shows the
value of these informants in bringing to justice the criminal and the subversive.
(Testimony of J Edgar Hoover before House Appropriations Committee Feb
ruary 5 1959 p 271.) In 1960 Hoover testified that the Bureau's confidential
informants supplied information that led to the arrest of over 1,800suspects and
the recovery of more than $2 million in contraband and stolen property in just
one fiscal year alone In addition information obtained by the Bureau from its
confidential informants led directly to the arrest of more than 2,000suspects
by state local and other law enforcementorganizations (Testimony of J Edgar
Hoover before House Appropriations Committee February 8 1960 pp 339-40.)
Ever since the publication of I Led Three Lives it has been common knowl
edge that much of the Bureau's knowledgeof CommunistParty activities came
from inside information Indeed Art Buchwald wrote a brilliant parody of the
extent of this activity in one of his more famous columns

Files
The fact that the FBI maintained extensive files on individuals has also been

well known For example Mr Hoover informed Congress in 1960that the FBI
maintained in its central record file over five million files and over 47 million
index cards Those files according to Hoover's testimony were kept pursuant
to the Bureau's "responsibility of coordinating and disseminating security and
intelligence data.... (Testimony of J Edgar Hoover before House Appropria
tions Committee February 8 1960 p 369.)
4 Wiretaps and Electronic Surveillances

'(a) Wiretaps
Ever since FDR's claim of a governmentalright to tap telephoneconversations

the fact of governmental use of this technique at least in internal security mat
ters has been known to the Congressand to the public CongressionalCommittees
have often inquired as to the number of taps and Mr Hoover regularly gave
this information to the House Appropriations Committee It was also public in
formation that the Department's procedures required that all wiretaps be per
sonally approved by the Attorney General and this was in fact the practice
There was not however any procedure for followingup on authorizations until
March 30 1965 when I established a new procedure requiring re-authorization
every six months and notice to the Attorney General of any termination Nor
until President Johnson's directive of June 30 1965 was there any similar con
trol over wiretaps by agencies other than the FBI That directive required all
federal departments and agencies to obtain the written authorization of the At
torney General for any wiretap

66-0770 76 14
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'(b) Electronic Surveillances
Curiously "bugs, which in my judgment are far more serious invasions of

privacy than are taps were not subject to the same authorization procedure in
the Department of Justice until I so directed on March 30 1965 Theretofore the
Bureau had claimed an authority to install bugs at its sole discretion under a
memorandumfrom then Attorney GeneralBrownelldated May20 1954 I thought
the claim that Attorney General Brownell's memorandum authorized the wide
spread use of bugs was extremely tenuous The Attorney General's personal ap
proval was not sought nor was he even directly advised of any microphonesur
veillance despite their increased use through the late 1950's and early 1960's
Neither Mr Kennedynor I was aware of their use by the Bureau until just before
Mr Kennedy resigned his officein September 1964 though in retrospect it may
be fair to say that we probably should have inferred its existence from memor
anda we received and Mr Hoover may have believewe did in fact know Unlike
wiretaps the Congressand the publicwere not so far as I know generally aware
of this practice

Useof Mail Covers
A mail cover is a procedure by which information on the outside of mail such

as the address of the sender is recorded It is a well-knownprocedure and has
been approved by the courts when carried out in compliancewith postal regula
tions on a limited and selectivebasis The use of such an investigative technique
was fully disclosed by the Long Committee hearings in 1965 and indeed that
Committeepublished the numbers of requests made to the Post OfficeDepartment
by the FBI as well as by other Federal agencies

Investigation of the Ku Klux Klan
The Bureau's intensive investigation of the Klan's criminal activities in the

South in the mid-1960'shas also been well-knownand widely reported Indeed
the fact that 153FBI agents were thrown into the successfulGoodman Chaney
Schwerner murder investigation in 1964 the fact that that investigation had
the Klan as its principal focus and the fact that most of those ultimately con
victed were associated with the Ku Klux Klan are all facts that have been fully
disclosednot only in the press but even in books and movies Don Whitehead's
book Attack on Terror published in 1970 contains a thorough descriptionof the
FBI's extensive use of confidential informants inside the Klan as an integral
part of that investigation

Being in the Department of Justice I was perhaps more aware of and con
scious of the above practices and some of the problems they raised than others
may have been There was especially in the area of civil rights a good deal of
tension between the Director on onehand and the Attorney Generaland his prin
cipal assistants on the other I was very consciousof the fact that there was often
a lack of candor in relationships between the Bureau and the Department that
Mr Hoover was opposed to many of the views of Mr Kennedy Mr Clark and
myself and that he expressedhis viewsprivately and occasionallypublicly that
the Bureau leaked stories to the press which were embarrassing to me and to my
predecessor I did occasionally pursue those leaks but the Bureau invariably
denied that it was the source

Having said that let me say that I did respect the Bureau's reputation for
integrity and propriety in law enforcement matters and that it never occurred
to me that the Bureau would engage in the sort of sustained improper activity
which it apparently did

Moreover given these excesses I am not surprised that I and others were
unaware of them Would it have made sense for the FBI to seek approval for
activities of this nature-especially from Attorneys General who did not share
Mr Hoover's political views who would not have been in sympathy with the
purpose of these attacks and who would not have condonedthe methods

The Director of the FBI is a subordinate of the Attorney General In the 1960's
J Edgar Hoover was formally my subordinate indeed I had the formal power
to fire him Mr Hoover was also a national hero and had been for 30 years or
more I doubt that any Attorney General after Harlan Fiske Stone could or did
fully exercise the control over the Bureau implied in that formal relationship
It is also important to note that Mr Hooverhad great "clout in the Congressand
with the Presidents he served That position resulted naturally from his great
public reputation and the respect which members of Congress and Presidents
had for him and for the Bureau I do not think the practices this Committeehas
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brought to light could have been exposed other than by Congressional investi
gation It is also true I suggest to the committee that a Congressionalinves
tigation of the Federal Bureau of Investigation was not a political possibility
during Mr Hoover's tenure as Director not simply because of his enormousand
unique public prestige and power but also because of the Bureau's reputation
for total integrity Certainly no such investigation was conducted during Mr
Hoover's tenure

Anyone contemplating an investigation of Mr Hoover's Bureau would have
had to face the strong likelihoodthat Mr Hooverwouldhave vigorouslyresisted
At least lie would have asserted that the investigation was unnecessary unwise
and politically motivated At worst he wouldhave denouncedthe investigation as
undermining law and order and inspired by Communist ideology No one risked
that confrontation during his lifetime

Those points are key to understanding the role of the Attorney General in
"supervising Mr Hooverand the Bureau I can think of no career public servant
who even approachedMr Hoover's stature in the publiceye or with the Congress
Under Mr Hoover the FBI becamethe finest investigative agency in the world
Absent strong and unequivocalproof of the greatest impropriety on the part of
the Director no Attorney General could have conceivedthat he could possibly
win a fight with Mr Hoover in the eyes of the public the Congress or the Presi
dent Moreover to the extent proof of any such impropriety existed it would
almost by definitionhave been in the Bureau's possessionand control unreach
able except with Bureau cooperation This Committeehas heard testimony that
the Director ordered that certain fileswere not to be released outside the Bureau
and that certain others were kept personally by Mr Hooverand were destroyed
at his death

Let me emphasize briefly some further considerations Mr Hoover exercised
total control over the Bureau and its personnel and brooked no interference
with that process He demanded total loyalty and enforced total dedication to
the Bureau and to himself as Director Agents had no job protection from Civil
Service or otherwise they were reprimanded demoted reassigned and dis
missed at his direction Complaints by the agents and certainly public com
plaints or complaints to the Attorney General were not tolerated and given Mr
Hoover's political position wouldhave had little prospect for success

Mr Hoover's total control over personnel and management was reenforced by
encouraging predominantly formal relationships with those outside the Bureau
including the Attorney General and his principal subordinates Mr Hoover nor
mally dealt with the Attorney General in writing personally or through a
designated liaison officer He maintained discipline and control by actively dis
couraging efforts by the Attorney General to deal directly with agents in the
field or anyone in the Bureau other than himself and his principal assistants

Mr Hoover was proud of the absence of partisan political interference in the
work of the FBI His absolute control was in fact a protection against politi
cally motivated investigations by a politically minded Attorney General or a
politically appointed United States Attorney At the same time keeping the
Bureau free from political interference was a powerful argument against efforts
by politically appointed officials whatever their motivation to gain a greater
measureof controloveroperations of the Bureau

The Committee should remember also that the Bureau is an extremely im
portant resource of the Department and key to its success No Attorney General
can carry on the work of the Department without the full cooperation and
support of the FBI Animosity between an Attorney General and the Director
was a losing proposition for the work of the Department and for the successof
the Administration as well as for the Attorney General involved Certainly I
sought in many ways to avoid wherever possible too direct a confrontation

Whenever the Bureau came in for public criticism as it occasionally did
Mr Hoover could count on a defense and expression of confidenceby the Attor
ney General He found great value in his formal position as subordinate to the
Attorney General and the fact that the FBI was a part of the Department of
Justice He was very consciousof the fact that an independent Federal Bureau
of Investigation would be far more vulnerable to public suspicion and publiccriticism than one formally under the control of the Attorney General In
effect he was uniquely successful in having it both ways he was protectedfrom publiccriticism by having a theoretical superior who took responsibilityfor
his work and was protected from his superior by his public reputation
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Mr Hoover was a permanent fixture in government Attorneys General came
and went Surely he must have with somejustification regarded Attorneys Gen
eral as rank amateurs in the investigative techniques in which the Bureau
was so expert While he accepted their view of the law with respect to prosecu
tions he controlled both the resources and the methods of investigation While
he was enormously sensitive to any accusation that a particular activity was
not authorized by the Department this did not mean that the incumbent
Attorney General or any of his principal subordinates knew of the activity As
far as Mr Hoover was concerned it was sufficientfor the Bureau if at any time
any Attorney General had authorized that activity in any circumstance In fact
it was often sufficient if any Attorney General had written something which
could be construed to authorize it or had been informed in someone of hundreds
of memoranda of some facts from which he could conceivablyhave inferred the
possibility of such an activity Perhaps to a permanent head of a large bureauc
racy this seems a reasonable way of proceeding However there is simply no
way an incomingCabinet officercan or should be charged with endorsing every
decision of every predecessor and particularly those decisions which even the
predecessordid not knowhe was making

Let me briefly cite an example The Bureau used terms of art or euphemisms
without informing the Attorney General that they were terms of art I do not
think it is excessively naive to assume that a "highly reliable informant was
precisely that and not a "bug Why were such euphemismsused I don't know
but one of the results of their use was to make precise communicationdifficult
The extremes to which the FBI would go in charging an Attorney General with
knowledge of its activities based on the use of such euphemisms came most
dramatically to my attention in connection with papers filed in the Supreme
Court in the Black case in 1966 That case involved the use of a "bug and I
strongly urge the Committee to review my correspondence with the Director
on that occasion a correspondencewhich incidentally led to precisely the kind
of confrontation which persuaded me I could no longer effectively serve as
Attorney General because of Mr Hoover's resentment towards me

I do not think informing the head of a Department is or ought to be a guessing
game Responsiblesubordinates know or ought to know when a particular policy
or practice is in the circumstances questionable and should seek guidance from
their superiors The process of government should not depend on guess or
inference when it is easily open to the process of inquiry recommendationand
decision It was not my practice and I believenot the practice of others in the
Department of Justice to avoid difficultdecisionsby lookingthe other way or by
using ambiguous language which left subordinates free to act as they chose
I did not seek to be left with a "plausible denial

But perhaps more important than all the foregoing was the simple fact that
while I did not in all respects share the public adulation of Mr Hoover I did
respect the Bureau's reputation for integrity and propriety

I would like to turn to three areas in which I understand the Committee
has particular interest the opening of mail the so-called COINTEL program
particularly regarding the Klan and the CommunistParty and the FBI's activ
ities with respect to Dr King including wiretaps and bugs In this connection
I am sure that the Committee appreciates that I have had to depend largely
upon my recollection of events taking place some ten years ago To assist this
recollection I have had access to my own calendars to the recollectionof a few
colleagues and to the few documents provided to me by the Committee staff
I have spent some substantial time trying to reconstruct events and to refresh
my recollection but obviouslyI make no claim that my recollection is complete
or in all cases precisely accurate It is simply my best recollection

I OPENINGOFMAIL

The press and perhaps the Committee staff have drawn an inference from
certain internal FBI memoranda (not previously available to me) that I was
aware of the FBI's program with respect to mail opening in violation of law
That is not the fact I do not recall any such program and had I been made
aware of such a program I am sure that I would recall it since I would not
have tolerated it

Let me discuss the documents involved and the surrounding circumstances
The first document is an internal Bureau memorandum from Mr D E Moore
to Mr W C Sullivan apparently viewed by Mr Hoover and dated October 2
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1964 [see Exhibit 711] That memorandum discusses the case of USA v
Baltch an espionagecase then going to trial on October2 1964 the date of the
memorandum in the Eastern District of NewYork It reveals that a "mail inter
cept" an FBI euphemismthat the Committeestaff tells me meant an unlawful
mail opening2 had been utilized in the case that Department lawyers had not
theretofore been informed of the fact of this tainted evidence and that the
Bureau would rather drop the case than to admit to the existence of the "inter
cept The case was in fact dropped that day at my direction on the ground that
it could not be further prosecuted without revealing national security informa
tion From those facts the inference is drawn that I was personally aware of the
opening of mail and directed that the case be dropped for that reason That in
ference is not correct

I was not aware of any mail openingin connectionwith this case I do recall
that prosecuting the case raised two problems (1) the repatriation of certain
alleged co-conspirators virtually destroyed the case against the Baltches and
(2) there was a bug and I believe an unlawful entry into the Baltch apartment
The United States Attorney had not been informed of the bug despite his inquir
ies of the FBI and in fact he had denied its existence in opencourt on Septem
ber 28 The next day the United States Attorney again advised the court that he
had checked with the Department of Justice and stated that no leads had been
secured from eavesdroppingor any other illegal activity It was not until Octo
ber 2 that the United States Attorney was advised that there had in fact been a
microphone in the apartment Although he had been assured that no tainted
evidenceresulted from the bug when I was informed of the bug and his state
ments to the court I directed that the United States Attorney advise the court
immediately that his earlier representations had been incorrect I did this with
out knowinganything about mail being openedin the investigation

To understand this sequenceof events it is necessaryto read Mr Moore'smemo
randum carefully to note that it reports three separate conversations and to
focus carefully on their order Having done this it is obvious to me that the
first of these conversations between Mr Hall and me (reported third hand in
the memorandum) took place in the morning of October 2 before the United
States Attorney or anyone outside the Bureau was aware of the so-called "mail
intercept and before any decision had been made to drop the case Thereafter
Mr Hall apparently told Mr Moorethat he wouldpass whatever information he
in fact received about the "mail intercept on to Mr Yeagleyand Mr Hoey in
NewYork not to me in Washington Both of these facts are confirmedby my own
calendar because the only time that I talked with Mr Hall on October2 was at
9 a.m for no more than ten minutes clearly before he could have received an
answer to the inquiry about the "mail intercept In other words I was quite
aware of difficultiesin pursuing the prosecution though the Bureau was pushing
it and I hoped it could be done quite apart from and indeed before I could pos
sibly have known of the additional problems raised by the so-called "mail
intercept

Mycalendar reflects that I talked with Mr Hoey twice on October2 and that
accords with my recollection The first time was on his recommendation to
authorize him to dismiss the crucial counts in the indictment the second time
was to find out how this had been received by the Judge and what publicity we
werelikely to get

If I learned about any mail opening in this case on October 2 I had to learn
about it from the United States Attorney because my calendar reflects that he
is the only person I talked with who was knowledgeableabout the case after my
early morning discussion with Mr Hall Neither he nor the Assistant Attorney
General both of whomwere familiar with the case in a detail that I was not
have any recollection of being told about mail opening in connection with this
matter on that date or previously Their recollectionaccords with my own Mr
Moore as I read his testimony believes that he did tell Mr Yeagley about a
"mail intercept but does not know if Mr Yeagleyknew that that term meant
mail opening Given all the circumstances of that case I frankly doubt that
Department lawyers were in fact advised about mail opening It wouldhave been
sufficientfor the Bureau to have told them that there were problems in the case

'Seepp 828through835
2I do not recalleverhavingpreviouslyheardthe term "mail intercept and certainlynot Its use in connectionwith any mail openingIn this statementI acceptthe staff's

definitionalthoughI querywhether"mall intercept was used only to describemail
openings
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arising from an unlawful entry and an unlawful search and seizure and that
under the circumstances the Bureau recommended dropping the case That
wouldbe far more consistent in my judgment with the Bureau's prior refusal to
acknowledgethe bug or that there was tainted evidenceof any kind in the case
And it would clearly have both satisfied and relieved the United States Attor
ney who was anything but enamored of the case and its prospects for success.

The other incident concerns the investigation by Senator Edward Long of
activities conducted by the Post OfficeDepartment the Internal Revenue Serv
ice and others not including the FBI Here again there are two internal FBI
memoranda that have led to some speculation that I might have been aware of
the Bureau's opening of mail I believe that a little background may be helpful
to the Committeein evaluating that correspondence

Rightly or wrongly I and my colleagues perceived the investigation by
Senator Long as an effort to discredit the Organized Crime Program and the
prosecution of James Hoffa while not taking on the FBI directly This view is
consistent with a handwritten note which appears on Mr Belmont's memorandum
to Mr Tolson of February 27 in Mr Hoover's handwriting [see Exhibit 712]

Since 1962Senator Long had been making inquiries of the Post OfficeDepart
ment about the use of "mail covers Late in 1964Senator Long requested that
the Post OfficeDepartment supply him with a list of names and addresses of all
persons on whommail covers were placed after January 1 1963 The Postmaster
Generalcontacted the Department in this regard and Assistant Attorney General
Herbert J Miller wrote him on December22 that it was inadvisable to disclose
such information to the Senator I discussed this personally with both Mr Miller
and with the Postmaster General

In January 1965 Senator Long and his staff continued to press for this iii
formation particularly as it involved IRS investigations During this period
I had a number of conversations with the Postmaster General members of my
staff and members of his as to whether the Postmaster General would provide
a list of the persons on whom mail covers had been requested On February 19
in response to a request by the Senator for such a list the Postmaster General
formally declined stating that "many of the mail covers include names of persons
who are being investigated for national security reasons or because of their
affiliationwith syndicated crime Release of these names would seriously impair
the effectivenessof such investigations and could in some cases be inimical to
our national security. (Emphasis added)

Mr Montague the Chief Postal Inspector testified before Senator Long's
Committeeon February 23 and 24 regarding mail covers During the course of
that testimony Senator Long directed Mr Montagueto prepare a list of all mail
covers in the past two years and further stated that he would not commit to
keep that list confidential This raised obvious questions of executive privilege
(as well as national security) and it is my recollection that it was for that
reason President Johnson asked me to coordinate all matters before the Long
Committee as reflected in Mr Belmont's memorandum to Mr Tolson of
February 27

During that testimony Mr Montaguestated that mail being coveredwas never
openedor examined and that such mail was never permitted to be taken out of
the post officefacility

On February 27 a Saturday I met with Mr Belmont and Mr Evans I have
no precise recollectionof that meetingnor do I recall that Mr Moorewas present
I am however content to accept his recollection that he was as well as his
recollectionof the meeting His specificrecollectionof the meeting is not different
from my general recollectionof the subject matter It is Mr Moore's testimony
before this Committee that he has no recollection that "mail openings were
discussed and that is confirmedby Mr Evans Indeed I am confidentthat they

i Evenif onewereto concludethat the Bureaudid in fact revealthat mailhad been
openedand that this fact was relayedby the lawyersinvolvedin the caseto me I amcertainthat that factwouldhavebeenrevealedbytheFBI and I wouldhaveacceptedit as an unfortunateaberration just then discoveredin the contextof a Sovietespionageinvestigationnotasa massivemail-openingprogramIn that eventnothingwouldhaveledmeto deducethat theBureauwas as a matterof policyandpracticeopeningletters2Seepp 828through8353I wouldnot wishthe Committeeto concludethat the Longinvestigationwasthe principalfocusofmyattentionat that time Thiswastheperiodofvotingrightsdemonstrationsin the South in Washingtonandin the DepartmentofJusticebuildingitself Thebeatingsin Montgomerythe conductof GovernorWallaceSheriffClarkandothersled to Congressionaldemandsand publicdemonstrationsfor troops It was an extraordinarilytense
period especiallyforanAttorneyGeneralsworninonFebruary13
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werenever discussedat any meeting I ever attended I do recall that Mr Belmont
raised a question about the technical accuracy of Mr Montague's testimony
and I believethat Mr Mooreis correct in his recollectionthat it did not concern
mail openings but the question of custody It is my recollection that in some
cases the outside of mail might have been examined or even photographed by
persons other than Post Officeemployees (Indeed I believe that the Baltch
case involved a microdot under a postage stamp.) I also recall that in his
first testimony before the Committee Mr Montague did not mention the fact
that certain Internal Revenue Service mail levies resulted in the transfer of
mail from the Post Officeto the IRS I have a clear recollection that my evalua
tion of Montague's testimony was that it was essentially truthful I could not
have arrived at this conclusionif I were aware that mail was being opened by
the Bureau

It seems to me that Mr Hoover's handwritten note on Mr Belmont's memo
randum strongly confirms the fact that I was not told about the Bureau's ex
tensive program of opening mail which has since been revealed by the Commit
tee If I had been so informed it is impossibleto imagine Mr Hoover writing
"I don't see what all the excitement is about.

On March 1 the Postmaster General wrote to Senator Long again declining
to turn over a list of mail covers Senator Long responded by asking whether
executive privilege was being claimed My diary for that day indicates that I
talked with Mr Hoover the Postmaster General personnel on my own staff
saw Senator Long in the late afternoon talked again with the Postmaster Gen
eral and saw his General Counsel that evening My recollection confirmed by
my dairy is that all of this was on the subject of "mail covers and Senator
Long's demand for the names of those people subject to them My diary for
March 3 reflects that I again spoke to the Postmaster General Senator Long
and personnel in the Criminal Division about this problem and that on March 5
I saw Senator Long's committee counsel in the companyof Justice Department
personnel My diary again confirmsthat the subject was "mail covers

There is nothing in Mr Hoover's memorandum of March 2 which differs in
any way from my recollection [see Exhibit 711] That memorandum refers to
"mail coverage et cetera Although the addressees of that memorandum I
would think were familiar with the Department's mail openingprogram there
is no reference in that memoto such a program or to the fact that I was aware
of it Had I been aware of it I am sure that such a reference would have been
made Indeed Mr Hoover refers to his conversation with me about laxity in the
use of mail covers scarcely the conversation to be expected if it were between
two peopleaware of the Bureau's illegal program with respect to mail openings

There are two points in Mr Hoover's March 2 memorandumfrom which an
inference that I knew about mail openings could be taken The first is to treat
the words "et cetera in the phrase "mail coverage et cetera as a code word
or euphemism for "mail openings No one could reasonably suggest such a
meaning and certainly it has no such meaning to me The secondis the following
passage

"The Attorney General stated that Mr Fensterwald [Senator Long's counsel]
was present for part of the meeting and Fensterwald had said that he had some
possiblewitnesses who are former Bureau agents and if they were asked if mail
was opened they would take the Fifth Amendment The Attorney General stated
that before they are called he wouldlike to knowwho they are and whether they
were ever involved in any program touching on national security and if not it
is their own business but if they were we wouldwant to know.

I generally recall the conversation described by Mr Hoover but as is the
case with all internal memoranda it is hard to know whether I concurred in a
suggestion made by him or whether I initiated the suggestion and whether it is
accurate in other ways In addition it is important to remember that he was
writing to people who were privy to information that I was not

But assuming the accuracy of the memo it is not consistent with my being
aware of the Bureau's mail opening program Had I been aware of that pro
gram I naturally would have assumed that the agents had been involvedin that
program and I would scarcely have been content to leave them to their own
devices before Senator Long's Committee Moreover it would have been ex
tremely unusual for ex-FBI agents to be interviewed by the Senate Committee
staff without revealing that fact to the Bureau In those circumstancesboth the
Director and I would have been concerned as to the scope of their knowledge

1Seepp 828through835
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with respect to the very information about mail covers which the Senator was
demanding and which we were refusing as well as about any other matters of a
national security nature If the witnesses in fact existed (which I doubted
strongly) then both the Director and I wanted to know the extent of their
knowledgeabout Bureau programs and the extent of their hostility towards the
FBI That is a normal concern that we would have had anytime any ex-FBI
agent testified before any Congressionalcommitteeon any subject

I do not wish to belabor the point To infer knowledge on my part is to
assume that I was prepared to deceive many of my closest advisers within the
Department with respect to the Bureau's mail opening program to enter into
an unlawful conspiracy with the Director and to deny knowledge to the Post
master General and his staff to the head of the Criminal Division and his
First Assistant to my own Executive Assistant and to many others It also
assumes that I was unconcernedabout what I would have known to be a flatly
untrue statement under oath by the Chief Postal Inspector before a Congres
sional committee And at the very momentthat I was attempting to bring order
into the FBI's program with respect to electronic surveillance it assumes that
I was prepared to condonethe opening of mail in flat violation of the statutes
Such a far reaching set of assumptions is to me obviousnonsense I did none of
those things and there seems to me to be no reason to suggest that I did

One final point It would be my conclusion from some experience with the
FBI's practices that no subordinate of Mr Hoover's would have told me about
the mail opening program without the express authority of the Director him
self That would almost certainly appear in written memoranda In addition
if I had condonedthis practice I feel confidentthere would be a memorandum
in the Bureau's files expressing my approval in no uncertain terms pointing
out that the Attorney General had "authorized the mail opening program
Finally there would be a memorandumin the Bureau files telling me that the
program which I had "authorized had been discontinued as I understand it
was in 1966 I understand that no such memorandaexist

TI THEKUKLUXKLANANDTHECOMMUNISTPASTY

Let me state at the outset that during my term in the Department to the
best of my recollection I never heard the terms "COINTEL or "COINTEL
PRO I was of course familiar with the fact that the FBI had responsibility
within the United States for counterintelligenceand investigation of subversive
activities That the Bureau gathered intelligence with respect to the Commu
nist Party and other organizations deemed to be "subversive or potentially
so was throughout this period very well known to the Congressand to the gen
eral public That it engagedin the extensive use of informers in this regard and
employedwiretaps was also very well-knownand had been knownand repeatedly
described to the Congressby the Director for many years That it gathered such
intelligence and that in accordancewith Executive Orders it disseminated such
information to interested government agencies was also very well-known In
addition to these intelligenceactivities and to a degree as part of them the FBI
also had domestic responsibilities for enforcement of espionage statutes and
related laws Indeed the Bureau's activities in this area were generously pub
licized by the Bureau itself and were the subject of books television programs
and moviesand were undoubtedlya reason for Mr Hoover's great public acclaim

Certainly as Attorney General I was aware of Mr Hoover's strong feelings
about Communismand subversive activities So also were the Congress and
the general public Mr Hoovertestifiedannually before the HouseAppropriations
Committeeabout the successof the FBI's counterintelligenceoperations against
the CommunistParty He made innumerable public speechesand wrote articles
and a bookon those subjects

I think it fair to assume that the facts I knew as did the Congress and the
public were about activities that unquestionably had a disruptive effect upon
the Communist Party and splinter organizations I think it was a matter of
public knowledge that membership in the Communist Party would likely to
be known to the FBI and that this constituted an employmentrisk certainly
with the Federal Governmentand defense contractors and perhaps with other
organizations

It is not my purpose here to either attack or defend this program of the
Bureau in so far as I was aware of it My point is simply that it was not a
secret Indeed there were many of us in the Department who thought that
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in view of the Smith Act cases and in view of the changing nature of the
CommunistParty of the United States the intelligence program was excessive
wasteful and perhaps unwarranted But it continued to have strong support
in Congressand from the Director himself

Indeed after I left the Department Mr Hoover went even further again
with full public knowledge and related the activities of the CommunistParty
with those of many other organizations including the following the Students for
a Democratic Society the Nation of Islam or Black Muslims the Student Non
violent Coordinating Committee the Black Panthers and groups which came
to be called the "New Left To Mr Hoover and the Bureau these groups all
advocated violent overthrow of our government and were hence subject to scru
tiny These attitudes were publicly known and supported by large segments of
the publicand the Congress

Leaving aside the propriety of Mr Hoover's preoccupationwith such organiza
tions some of which were not even in existence when I was in the Department
I did not then and do not now regard the Bureau's program with respect to
the Ku Klux Klan as in any sensecomparableto these programs as I have heard
them described I did not think of the Bureau's Klan effort in any meaningful
sense as involvedwith "counterintelligence

The Klan program involved the investigation and prosecution of persons who
had engaged in and who were committed to the violent deprivation of constitu
tionally guaranteed rights of others through murder kidnappings beatings and
threats of violence all in contraventionof Federal and State laws

If you will remember for a moment the names of Lemuel Penn Viola Liuzzo
Vernon Dahmer Medgar Evers James Chaney Andrew Goodman Michael
Schwerner and the bombingsand beatings so frequent in the mid-1960's you
may perceive the differencesas clearly as I did then The FBI did a magnificent
job in Mississippi and parts of Alabama and Louisiana in bringing to justice
the perpetrators of those acts The Bureau was investigating and attempting to
prevent violence To equate such efforts with surveillance or harassment of
persons exercising constitutionally guaranteed rights is in my view unmitigated
nonsense

I have previously in Executive Session describedat some length the program
of the FBI in the South as I understood it I see no need to repeat that testi
moneyhere and I am attaching it to this testimony (See p 213)

The central point of that testimony and my testimony here is that some Klan
members in those states using the Klan as a vehicle were engaged in repeated
acts of criminal violence It had nothing to do with preaching a social point
of view it had to do with proven acts of violence The investigation by the FBI
was hard tough and outstandingly successful

It is true that the FBI program with respect to the Klan made extensive use
of informers That is true of virtually every criminal investigation with which
I am familiar In an effort to detect prevent and prosecute acts of violence
President Johnson Attorney General Kennedy Mr Allen Dulles myself and
others urged the Bureau to develop an effective informant program similar to
that which they had developedwith respect to the CommunistParty

It is true that these techniquesdid in fact disrupt Klan activities soweddeep
mistrust among the Klan members and made Klan membersaware of the exten
sive informant system of the FBI and the fact that they were under constant
observation Klan members were interviewed and reinterviewed openly a fact
which appeared in the public press at the time They were openly surveilled
These techniques were designed to deter violence to prevent murder bombings
and beatings In my judgment they were successful I was aware of them and
I authorized them In the same circumstances I would do so again today

I was not to the best of my recollection aware of any activities which I
regarded as improper I did not for example know of the use of anonymous
letters to wives of Klan memberssuggesting their infidelity or practices of that
kind Even in the context of the Klan I do not regard this technique as proper
There may have been other overreaching by Bureau agents in an investigation
of this size that is always possible But I continue to believe that taken as
a whole the Bureau did an exceptional job in that investigation a job which
was important and essential to the restoration of law in the South and to the
welfare of this country Again I say I would authorize that type of action where
necessary again today

I hope this Committee will do nothing which would prevent or inhibit such
proper conduct
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III MARTINLUTHERKING

The Committee's investigation has revealed some grossly improper acts with
respect to Dr Martin Luther King Jr I am appalled by the impropriety of some
of those acts But beyond impropriety they suggest an irrationality which I did
not believe the FBI or the Director was capable of endorsing I certainly was
unaware of them at the time but I cannot claim ignorance of at least a part of
the motivation and of oneinstance of highly improperconduct

In order to focus on this situation somebackgroundis necessary
Dr King emerged as the most influential Civil Rights leader in this country

at a crucial time in our history There is no doubt that the Kennedy administra
tion (both the President and the Attorney General) sympathized with and sup
ported Dr King's dramatic efforts to demonstrate the extent of discrimination in
this country and to right those wrongs By and large Dr King sought only to es
tablish constitutional rights and so long as he adhered to that objective it was
right and proper that the Attorney General supported the efforts that he made to
achieve equality Mr Kennedy clearly did so He did so with courage and
conviction

The leadership and support of Dr King for civil rights for all citizens was an
essential ingredient in the Kennedy administration and its dedication to that
objective That basic identity of constitutional and political interest between
Dr King and the Kennedy and Johnson administrations is the necessary pred
icate of all subsequent events Anything which discredited Dr King or his
non-violent Civil Rights movement would have been a disaster to the Kennedy
administration and after President Kennedy's death to the Johnson administra
tion Moreimportantly it wouldhave beena disaster to the country

This Committee with its political experience can understand what I mean
when I say that in the United States in the early and middle60sa Governmental
effort to discredit Martin Luther King Jr. could have led to civil strife of an
incrediblyserious nature As it was this country came through an extraordinarily
difficultperiod In my judgment it could not have done so without the leadershipof Dr King and his dedicationto non-violence

These points underline the problempresented by Mr Hoover's vendetta against
Dr King That vendetta had the very real potential of causing civil strife in this
country infinitely greater than that which we suffered in our attempts to bring
equal rights to blackcitizens

Mr Hoover's capitulation to his personal pique was irresponsible and clearly
contrary to the interests of Presidents Kennedyand Johnson constitutional gov
ernment and the Nation

From the outset Mr Hoover had little sympathy with Dr King's movement
and with sit-ins marches and other demonstrations which were part of that
movement This may have represented nothing more than the typical distaste of
law enforcement officialsfor situations which however peaceful their intention
and however constitutionally protected can lead to violence it may also have
been a reflectionof the fact that no law enforcement officialsat that time reallyknew how to copewith acts of civil disobedience Surely Mr Hooverfound it distasteful to investigate local law enforcementofficials as the Civil Rights Division
occasionallyasked the FBI to do Clearly those investigations strained relation
ships between local FBI agents and local law enforcement It is a fair statementthat those Bureau investigations did not approach the quality of the normalBureau excellence

Throughout Mr Kennedy's administration of the Department of Justice and
mine there was considerable tension between the FBI and the Department on
civil rights matters In voting rights matters much of the work which shouldhave been done by the Bureau ended up beingdoneby youngcivil rights lawyersThe quality of Bureau investigations again was not up to its standards of excel
lence and repeatedly the Civil Rights Division had to give the most detailedinstructions to the FBI as to what the Divisionwisheddone instructions almostunheard of in any other context in terms of their detail While the Departmentas a whole was heavily and enthusiastically involved in such matters as the
Montgomerybusing the integration of the Universities of Mississippiand Ala
bama and similar events the role of the FBI was by comparison marginal andsomewhatgrudging

In part I believe the Bureau's attitude was grounded in the difficultproblemof what the proper role for the Bureau in such unprecedented situations reallywas The Bureau did not in principle wish to involveitself in those law enforce
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anent responsibilities which were the obligations of local law enforcement
whether or not those obligationswere beingeffectivelyor constitutionally carried
out In a sense the Bureau performed its normal functions in a situation which
was anything but normal This continued to be largely the case until mid-1961
when the Bureau made its massive effort with respect to the violenceinitiated by
the Klan and its members

This tension between the Bureau and the Department and betweenthe Bureau
and the CivilRights Movementincreased as the Department's activities increased
and as the CivilRights movementgrew in its intensity It was greatly aggravated
when Civil Rights leaders and particularly Dr King increasingly voicedpublic
criticism of the FBI That criticism was bitterly resented by the Director

It is almost impossible to overestimate Mr Hoover's sensitivity to criticism
of himself or the FBI It went far beyond the bounds of natural resentment to
criticism one feels unfair The most casual statement the most strained impli
cation was sufficientcausefor Mr Hooverto write a memorandumto the Attorney
General complainingabout the criticism explaining why it was unjustified and
impugningthe integrity of its author

In a very real sense there was no greater crime in Mr Hoover's eyes than
public criticism of the Bureau and Dr King's repeated criticisms made him a
Bureau enemy Not only his criticisms but also his character and reputation
became subject to attack Mr Hoover frequently viewed such criticism as
and probably believed it to be Communist or Communist-inspired All public
critics of the Bureau if they persisted were treated in this fashion The only
thing unique about Dr King was the intensity of the feeling and the apparentextremes to which the Bureau went in seeking to destroy the critic

Nobodyin the Department of Justice connectedwith CivilRights couldpossiblyhave been unaware of the intensity of Mr Hoover's feelings Nobodycould have
been unaware of the potential for disaster which those feelings embodied But
given the realities of the situation I do not believeonecouldhave anticipated the
extremes to which it was apparently carried

Apart from the general concern I have already expressed about Mr Hoover's
attitude towards Dr King and his Civil Rights movement I cannot speak in
great detail of what occurred when I was Deputy Attorney General to Mr
Kennedy either because I did not know or I do not now recollect Mr Kennedyworked directly with Mr Marshall and Mr Doar on Civil Rights matters and
less often with me I do recall seeing in 1962(I believe) one or more memoranda
stating in substance that an important secret member of the CommunistPartyknown to be such to the FBI was in close contact with Dr King and might be
influencingthe actions of Dr King's movementin ways amicable to the interests
of the Soviet Union and contrary to those of the United States It is my impression that at this time the Bureau asked for authorization to tap the phones of
Dr King and that Mr Kennedyturned that request down Myrecollectionis that
Mr Kennedy at that time had a representative of the Civil Rights Divisioncall
upon Dr King and suggest strongly to him that it was not in his interest nor in
the interest of his movementto have further contact with this person Mr Hoover
knew of this call

I believe that for a period of time Dr King did follow this suggestion but
subsequently the contacts were resumed and the Bureau informed the AttorneyGeneral of this fact in one or more memoranda I believethere were subsequentcautions in this regard to Dr King In any event the contacts did continue the
Bureau again recommendeda wiretap be placed on the phone of Dr King and
ultimately Mr Kennedy approved that wiretapI associate in my mind the approval of this wiretap with another event al
though I cannot clearly recollect the timing At one point I believe in 1963 Mr
Hoover prepared a detailed memorandumabout Dr King referring to the fact
of Communist infiltration into the movementand discussing questions of moral
character Initially he gave that memorandumwide circulation in the Govern
ment Upon hearing of this fact Mr Kennedy was furious and directed Mr
Hoover to withdraw all copiesof the memorandumto other Departments of the
Governmentand not to circulate it further

Mr Kennedy resigned as Attorney General on September3 1964 and I served
as Acting Attorney General from that date until my confirmation as AttorneyGeneral on February 13 1965 Throughout this period I did not of course know
from day to day whether or not President Johnson would nominate me or some
one else to be Mr Kennedy's successor Obviously my authority might be tem
porary and for this reason I did not take certain actions particularly with re
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spect to clarifying the Bureau's procedures on electronicsurveillance until after
my nomination and confirmation I felt this was a matter of important policy
for a new Attorney Generalto determine

During this interim period on November 10 1964 Mr Hoover held an un
precedented press conference with some women reporters In response to a
question at that press conferenceMr Hoover called Dr King the "most notorious
liar in the country That comment received extensive publicity The reference
as the Committeemay remember was to the criticisms that Dr King had made
of the FBI

I spoke to Mr Hoover in connection with that press conference He told me
that it was not his practice to have press conferences had not done so in the past
and would not do so again in the future Perhaps the depth of his feeling with
respect to Dr King was revealed to me by his statement that he did not under
stand all the publicity which the remark had attracted becausehe had beenasked
a simplequestionand givena simpletruthful answer

Late on the afternoon of Wednesday November 25 1964 (the day before
Thanksgiving) I was informed by the head of the Washington bureau of an im
portant news publication that one of his reporters covering the Justice Depart
ment had been approached by the FBI and told that he could if he wished
listen to someinteresting tapes involving Dr King The nature of the tapes was
described The reporter after consultinghis boss declined

I was shockedby this revelation and felt that the President should be advised
immediately On November28 I flew with Mr Burke Marshall the retiring head
of the Civil Rights Division to the LBJ Ranch On that occasion he and I in
formed the President of our conversation with the news editor and expressed in
very strong terms our view that this was shocking conduct and politically ex
tremely dangerous to the Presidency I told the President my view that it should
be stopped immediately and that he should personally contact Mr Hoover I
receivedthe impressionthat President Johnson took the matter very seriouslyand
that he woulddoas I recommended

On the followingMonday I was informed by at least one other reporter and
perhaps two of similar offersmade to them the prior week I spoketo the Bureau
officialwho had been identified as having made the offer and asked him about it
He flatly denied that any such offerhad been made or that the FBI wouldengage
in any such activity Thereupon I asked at least one of the reporters perhaps
all of them whether they would join me in confronting the Bureau on this issue
Theydeclinedto doso

I do not know whether President Johnson discussed this matter with Mr
Hoover or what if anything was said However I was quite confidentthat that
particular activity ceased at that time and I attributed it to Mr Johnson's inter
vention From that time until I left the Justice Department I never heard from
any person of subsequent similar activity by the Bureau and I assumed it had
ceased I should add only this I believedthat the tapes in questionwerenot tapes
resulting from Bureau surveillance but tapes acquired from State law enforce
ment authorities and that such a representation was made to the reporter at the
time

While I have no specificrecollection I am sure that I received many memo
randa concerningDr King and his activities during this period and I am sure
many of those were highly critical of Dr King's conduct his reputation and his
morals I am sure similar memorandawent to the White House

Let me turn now to how I dealt with electronic surveillance after I was con
firmed as Attorney General On March 30 1965 after extensive discussionsand
negotiations with the FBI I introduced with Mr Hoover's acquiescence new
procedures with respect to electronic surveillance which required the Bureau
to treat bugs and taps in the same way that is to secure the prior written ap
proval of the Attorney General in each instance I also directed the Bureau to
notify me whenever an approved device had been discontinued and to seek my
approval on any device which had been in existence for six months and to seek
a renewedapprovalevery six monthsthereafter

In late April 1965 in accordance with this program I receiveda request from
the Bureau to continue a tap on Dr King's personal phone I ordered it discon
tinued It is however possiblethat a request for a continuation of a pre-existing
tap on the headquarters of the Southern Christian Leadership Conferencewas
made about the same time and I may have approved that tap I do not recall
the date or the circumstanceswhichwouldhave led meto doso

Subsequently on June 30 the President issued a memorandumconfiningtaps
solely to national security matters and requiring that all taps and practices re
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lating to electronic surveillances be reviewed with and approvedby the Attorney
General He did that at my insistence

I think it is important for the Committee to recall the racial tensions and
demonstrations which were going on during this period of time and which ulti
mately led to the President's introducing the Voting Rights Act and to its Con
gressional approval These events included Dr King's demonstration in Birming
ham the beating of Civil Rights demonstrators by Sheriff Clark demonstrations
by Civil Rights sympathizers in Washingtonand repeated Congressionaldemands
upon me to send troops to the South for the protection of Civil Rights workers
The Committee will also recall that Governor Wallace called upon President
Johnson and that President Johnson and I had numerousmeetingswith Dr King
and other Civil Rights leaders during this period of time I wish to remind the
Committee of those events because there was nothing in this period of time of
more concern to me which occupiedmore of my time and energies or which I
regarded as more seriousfor this country

The Committee staff has shown me four pieces of paper from the Bureau's
files which are of major concern to me because they are inconsistent with my
policies Three of these are information memoranda from the FBI dated I be
lieve in May (three weeks after I had disapproved a tap on Dr King's tele
phone) October and December1965[see footnote p 21] Each of these purports
to have informed me that without prior authorization a bug had been put in a
hotel roomoccupiedby Dr King in New York City and removedwithin 24 hours
Each of these bears my initials in what appears to be my handwriting in the place
where I customarily initialed Bureau memoranda I have no recollectionof read
ing or receiving these memoranda and given the circumstances I have described
in this statement I strongly believe that I would have such a recollection

Further in view of the circumstances which I have discussed above I find it
virtually inconceivablethat I could have received these memoranda at that time
and not written or discussedthe matter with the Bureau

The fourth document is a note in my handwriting addressed to Mr Hoover
and dated December10 1965 I am informed by the Committeestaff that that
note was attached in the Bureau files to the memorandumfrom the Bureau dated
December 1 which also bears the handwritten date 12/10/65 in what I do not
believeis my handwriting That note commentson the sensitivity of surveillances
and the importance of not involving persons other than the Bureau agents in
their installation I recall writing that note I do not recall the circumstances
and nothing in my possession including my calendar has refreshed my recollec
tion on that point.

I am puzzledby the fact that the handwritten note if related to the December1
memorandumfrom the Director is written on a separate piece of paper It was
then and is now my consistent practice to write notes of that kind on the in
comingpieceof paper providedthere is roomto do so

These memoranda do not indicate on their face the Bureau sought any prior
authorization or state any reasons why it was not sought They appear to
present me with information after the fact and request no authority to perform
similar surveillances in the future I believe the Bureau knew full well that
I would not authorize the surveillances in question not only because of the
circumstances surrounding Dr King but particularly because the bugs were to
he placed in a hotel room That is among the worst possibleinvasions of privacy
and would demand the strongest conceivable justification Indeed I believe
this position had been made clear in written memoranda to the Bureau dating
back to the 1950's and I have a clear recollectionof being critical of the Bureau
for installing a bug in the bedroom of a leading member of the Mafia I re
affirmedthis position to the Bureau sometimein 1965or 1966 but that reaffirma
tion may have postdated these memoranda

Finally I cannot recall any memoranda at any time informing me that the
Bureau had installed a tap or a bug without my prior authorization While I
authorized Mr Hoover to do so in emergencycircumstances in a memorandum
written in the summer of 1965 not only does the May memorandum predate
that authorization but there is nothing in the memoranda which suggests that
on any of these occasionswas there an "emergency

I Mycalendardoesshowthat onthat dateI hada meetingalonewiththeDeputyDirectorof theCIA Mr Helmswhichhe hadrequestedthe previousafternoonThemeetingwasabriefoneandwouldbeconsistentwitha requestby the CIAfor domesticsurveillancesbythe FBI I rarelysawMr Helmsalone and he didon oneor twooccasionsmakesucha
request But I haveno recollectionof the subjectmatter of that particularmeetingandcannotthereforesaythat thishandwrittennoteis relatedto it
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Further my calendars which are in the possessionof the Committee indicate

my general availability to the Bureau on two occasions involving these

memoranda and my total availability to the Bureau on the third Nor do I have

any recollection that the "emergency procedure was ever invoked by the
Bureau during myterm in office

ObviouslyI do not believe that I received these memoranda Equally obvious
is the fact that if I initialed them I am mistaken in mybelief

Whatever the explanation for these memoranda it is undisputed that the
Bureau never sought my authorization to bug Dr King at any place and at
any time for any purpose and that in these three instances they did not comply
with the procedures I had directed Not only was I available but there could
have been no conceivable"emergency on any of these three isolated occasions
which would have justified the Bureau proceeding on its own authority The
memorandastate none

It seems to me clear that the Bureau did not seek my authorization on these
three occasions because Mr Hoover knew it would not be given And he was
absolutelycorrect in that conclusion

CONCLUSION

Revelations of improper conduct as dramatic as those uncovered by this
Committeewould seem to demand equally dramatic recommendationsto prevent
their future recurrence

The Committeecould recommendlegislationin a numberof areas
It could recommendthat certain methods be forbidden entirely to the Bureau

For example use of all electronic devices could be banned and their sale or
transportation in interstate commerceprohibited or their use could be severely
restricted or limited bystrict safeguards

The Committee could recommend greater accountability of the Bureau
within the executive branch or oversight by the Congress It could also limit
the tenure of any Bureau director or make his reappointment subject to sub
stantial scrutiny by the Senate through its right to Advise and Consent

I hope the Committee will not recommend Draconian measures They are
not necessary they wouldnot work

The nub of the problems you have disclosed as I see it is the historical
accident of J Edgar Hoover a man of great dedication and great talent who
built an insignificant law enforcement agency into the powerful Federal Bureau
of Investigation He was able to do this not only because of his unquestioned
abilities but also because he became Director at the threshold of the explosive
growth of federal government because of prohibition because of World War
II with its internal security demands and because the Cold War continued
and expanded those demands vis-a-vis the Communist Party For almost half
a century marked by increasing demands on federal law enforcement Mr
Hoover headed the FBI In doing so he became one of the most respected and
feared men in Americanhistory

Thus my view is that even if this Committeedid nothing beyondwhat it has
already done through public exposure the odds against any future Director
achieving the political power and political autonomy of Mr Hoover are over
whe'ming In demonstrating the dangers of permitting that power and prestigeover such an extended period even to a principled man and Mr Hoover was 
the Committee has performed a significant public service

My own philosophy of government is to place responsibility for the faithful
execution of the laws squarely where the Constitution places it on the Presi
dent This principle is promoted when the President is responsible for the con
duct of Executive Departments and Agencies through his appointments and
through the ability of Department heads to run and control their DepartmentsThe more Congress intrudes on Executive decision in non-legislative ways the
more it not only destroys the Executive's ability to faithfully carry out the laws
lint also diffusesgovernmentalresponsibility

In short I believe despite the events of recent years in a strong Executive
I believe our political system has and has demonstrated the capability to
hold him responsible for the performance of his Constitutional duties

Forcommunicationspurposesit wasmyconsistentpracticeto hemetbyBureauagentswheneverTtraveledIn additionI kepttheWhiteHouseoperatorinformedofhowto reachmeat all timesOnthefirstoccasionI leftmyofficefor a flightto Chicagoat 2:30a.m andwas as a practicalmatter unavailableto the Bureauonlyduringthe two-hourflight OnthesecondoccasionI leftmyofficeat 12:35p.m fora one-hourflightto NewYorkandwassimilarlyunavailableonlyduringthe flightOnthe thirdoccasionI wasin myWashingtonofficeallday andwasthusalwaysavailableto theBureau
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In the final analysis I hope the Committeewill recognizethat decent law en
forcement is almost always less a matter of legislative proscription than the
judgment right or wrong in retrospect of people It is extraordinarily hard to
legislate judgment it is not so hard to legislate responsibility

I have said some harsh things about Mr Hoover There are many more good
things that could be said about him personally and about the remarkable service
he gave to this nation He did build from modest beginnings the best and most
principled law enforcement agency in the world I will accept every wart the
committeehas uncoveredand without condoningthose activities and accepting
that there may be more feel that the positive achievementsof Mr Hoover and
the 13BIshouldendure

There is I think a note of sadness on which I should conclude Mr Hoover
served with distinction but he served too long That was the fault of others and
of circumstance Certainly those who had recent contact with him knew that
age increasingly impacted his judgment We all the Presidents the Congress
the Attorneys General the press and many segments of the public knew that
and yet he stayed on struggling against change and the future

I hope the Committee will weigh the great service he gave this Nation and
the great institution he created and dedicated to the public interest favorably
against what I regard as largely the transgressions of an elderly man who served
with great distinction but toolong

STATEMENTOFNICHOLASDEB KATZENBACHIN EXECUTIVESESSION
NOVEMBER12 1975

Mr Chairman and membersof the committee I understand that my testimony
today is to deal primarily with the investigation by the FBI of the Ku Klux Klan
Since the only investigations with which I am familiar occurred about 10 years
ago I think that a brief statement putting those investigations into the context
of that time wouldbe useful to the Committee In my opinion they have nothing
to do with any abuse of governmentalpower

Let me say at the outset that the Bureau did to my certain knowledge in
vestigate penetrate and disrupt activities of the Ku Klux Klan It did so
vigorously actively overtly and with outstanding success In fact I believethat
the Bureau's thorough and unceasing investigation and the Department's
prosecution of Klan activities was one of the major factors in bringing to an
end the Klan's criminal conspiracyof violencethat scourgedthe South especially
Mississippi in the middle 1960's Let me also say as emphatically as I can that
our concernabout the Klan was not related to its political activities or its social
action programs distasteful as they were to those of us who believe in racial
equality Our concern was with the Klan as a secret criminal conspiracy with
enormouspower especially in rural areas of the South that both advocated and
employedviolent methods Its members have been tried and convicted for such
atrocities as murder arson felonious assault and kidnapping

Its violence was far from anything "theoretical protected by the First
Amendment It was actual real brutal and would have been but for the FBI
and the Department of Justice effective in its denial of constitutional rights
through violenceand intimidation

The Committeewill recall that in the early 1960's the Civil Rights Division
of the Department of Justice was actively engaged in efforts to secure com
pliance with the Civil Rights Acts of 1957and 1960 paying special attention
to voter registration activities

Voter registration activities were then relatively new to the Department
and of course were uncharted waters to the FBI In retrospect I believe that
for some time the FBI failed to devote sufficient resources to that effort and
jurisdictional friction between the Department and the Bureau rendered our
efforts less effective than they might have been Such activities were however
not only new to the Bureau but they were quite different from typical criminal
investigations in whichthe Bureau excelled

As a consequence neither the Department nor the Bureau fully appreciated
the significanceor indeed the genesisof the repeated acts of violenceand blood
shed being committedever more frequently throughout the South on blacks and
civil rights workers As the activities of civil rights groups increased so too
did opposition to them One was lawful one was unlawful one was peaceful
onewas violent

The Bureau was badly understaffed in the South and much of its information
about the ever increasing violent episodes in the South came from indirect
sources such as clergy educators students and the like Moreover because
local law enforcement organizations the traditional first line of defense
against (and the Bureau's primary source of information about) such violence 
were infiltrated by the very persons who were responsible for much of the
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violence the net effect was that there was in many sections of the South a
total absenceof any law enforcementwhatsoever

By the Spring of 1964 incidents of violence in Mississippi parts of Georgia
Alabama and Louisiana reached truly alarming proportions In Mississippi
alone there were more than 50 fire bombings shootings beatings and killings 
all aimed at lawful Civil Rights activities in the first few months of 1964
Local law enforcement officials were powerless or unwilling to stop the
bloodletting

Two things became apparent to us in those months First the episodes were
not random They were part of a conscious campaign a criminal conspiracy
and our information pointed directly to the Klan Second they were directed
almost entirely at black citizens and civil rights workers whose goal was to
exercise the rights guaranteed to them by the Constitution and the laws of this
country Thus the jurisdiction to investigate and prosecute these wanton
violations of civil rights fell squarely to the FBI and to the Department under
18 U.S.C. Section 241 and Section 242 (In addition the "Summer Project" 
the influx of young people into the South was a tremendous concern to all of
us in the Department.)

Federal efforts already under way did not crystallize until June 21 1964
the day that three young civil rights workers Goodman Chaney and Schwerner
were brutally murdered in Neshoba County Mississippi Those murders later
characterized by a Federal Court of Appeals as a "calculated cold-blooded
merciless plot shocked the nation They also sent the Department of Justice
into action in an investigation that I think was probably unparalleled for its
thoroughness vigorand success

The murders were traced to an organization known as the White Knights
of the Ku Klux Klan of Mississippi The White Knights organized just five
months earlier had as their stated goal to protect and promote white supre
macy and segregationof races with violenceif necessary In the months between
February and June 1964 Klaverns were established in at least 29 Mississippi
counties and repeated acts of violence including other murders were traced
to the White Knights during that period

The situation seemed uncontrollable and it deteriorated daily In early
June 1964 before the murders Attorney General Kennedy had written to
President Johnsonabout the Mississippisituation

"In addition it seems to me that consideration should be given by the Federal
Bureau of Investigation to a new procedure for identificationof the individuals
who may be or have been involved in acts of terrorism and of the possiblepar
ticipation in such acts by law enforcementofficialsor at least their toleration of
terrorist activities In the past the procedures used by the Bureau for gaining
information on known local Klan groups have been successful in many places
and the information gathering techniquesused by the Bureau on Communistsor
Communist related organizations have of course been spectacularly efficient

"The unique difficultyas it seems to me to be presented by the situation in
Mississippi (which is duplicated in parts of Alabama and Louisiana at least) is
in gathering information on fundamentally lawless activities whch have the
sanction of local law enforcement agencies political officialsand a substantial
segment of the white population The techniques followedin the use of specially
trained special assignment agents in the infiltration of Communistgroups should
be of value If you approve it might be desirable to take up with the Bureau the
possibilityof developinga similar effort to meet this newproblem.

Acting on his own Kennedy sent a team of experiencedcriminal lawyers from
the Department of Justice to Mississippifor a first-hand report on the growing
violence The President in total agreement with the Attorney General directed
a full-scaleFBI investigation of the murders of Goodman Chaneyand Schwerner
Working closely with Mr Kennedy and using all the powers of his office he
asked AllenDulles to confer immediatelywith Mississippiofficialsas his personal
emissary On June 23 Mr Hoover sent Inspector Joseph Sullivan one of the
toughest and most experienced agents in the Bureau to Mississippi and the
next day sent Assistant Director AlRosento join him

When Mr Dulles returned to Washington two or three days later he recom
mendeda far greater Federal law enforcementpresence in Mississippi It is also
my belief and that of my colleaguesin the Department that Inspector Sullivan
made a similar recommendationto the Director and that he was highly critical
of the Bureau's performance to (late in Mississippi In any event at the direct
request of President Johnson Mr Hoover flewto Mississippion July 10 opened
an FBI field officein Jackson Mississippi and announced that the number of



215

FBI agents in Mississippihad been increased from a very few less than ten 
to over 150 Most of those agents workedaround the clockon the NeshobaCounty
case Hoover also appointed Boy Moore another experienced tough top-flight
agent as special agent in charge of the Jackson office Because of the Bureau's
typical passion for individual anonymity those two gentlemen Sullivan and
Moore have never beenaccordedthe recognitiondue them

The Bureau did in fact crack the case The Committeewill undoubtedly recall
the grisly details of the discovery of the burned-out station wagon the decom
posedbodiesburied under an earthen dam and the arrest and convictionof those
responsible including a deputy sheriff and ultimately the Imperial Wizard of
the White Knights

I refer to that case in some detail not because it represented a high mark in
the Bureau's long list of outstanding criminal investigations which it did but
because it commencedand typified I believe the Bureau's successful "war
against the criminal elementsof the Ku Klux Klan

During that investigation because of that investigation and as an integral
part of that investigation the criminal conspiracy was indeed penetrated and
disrupted Because there was so little physical evidence for months we could
not even find the bodies a full scale investigation of the Klan was mandated
Agents of the FBI interrogated and reinterrogated every known member of the
Klan in Mississippi Many were openly followed using surveillance techniques
that the Bureau had developed in connection with organized crime eases We
learned more about the Klan activities in those months than we had known in
years I have no doubt that as an integral part of that investigation members
of the Klan on whomwe were focusingour efforts becamedisoriented distrustful
of other members and ultimately persuaded that cooperationwith the ubiquitous
FBI agents was the onlysafe recourse

That case could not have been solved without acquiring informants who were
highly placed members of the Klan Whereas before the murder the Bureau
had few such informants as the conspiracy began to fall apart due to FBI
pressure many Klansmen became frightened and began to pass on valuable
information to the FBI This took time in fact Imperial Wizard Sam Bowers
who was sentenced to ten years in prison for his role in the killing was not
even indicted until February 1967 2i/2 years after the bodies had been dis
covered

Let me be quite direct I have no doubt that the Bureau's investigation of the
criminal activities of the Klan was tough intensive harassing and thorough
I expected no less the President asked for no less and the Nation deserved no
less

But let me also distinguish as forcefully as I can the Bureau's efforts against
the Klan from any disruption of groups composedof ordinary citizens seeking
only to exercise their Constitutional rights This situation was the preciseopposite
of that situation

Klansmen in Mississippi the Klan leadership were not ordinary citizens
They were lawbreakers of the most vicious sort terrorists who intimidated
bombed burned and killed often under the watchful and protective eyes of
their brethren in the local law enforcement agencies In the words of Judge
John MinorWisdom for a three judge Federal Court

"The compulsionwithin the Klan to engagein this unlawful conductis inherent
in the nature of the Klan This is its ineradicable evil

"We find that to attain its ends the Klan exploits the forces of hate prejudice
and ignorance We find that the Klan relies on systematic economiccoercion
varieties of intimidation and physical violence in attempting to frustrate the
national policy expressed in civil rights legislation We find that the Klansmen
whether cloakedand hoodedas membersof the Original Knights of the Ku Klux
Klan or sulking in anonymity as members of a sham organization 'The Anti
Communist Christian Association, or brazenly resorting to violence on the
openstreets of Bogalusa are a 'fearful conspiracyagainst society * * *[holding]
men silent by the terror of [their acts] and [their] power for evil'. United
States v OriginalKnights of the Ku Klux Klan 250F Supp 330 (E D La 1965)

We should be justly proud of the Bureau's efforts in smashing the Klan's
criminal conspiracy of terror and violenceand bringing so many of its members
to the bar of justice

This Bureau presence and Bureau activities and Department prosecutions 
did not by any means put an end to violence That took time But it did solve
the Schwerner Chaney Goodmanmurder case it did result in the quick appre
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pension of the murderers of Mrs Liuzzoin the fall of 1964 and those of Vernon
Dehmerand others later as the pace of violencein Forest County Pike County
Greenwood McComb Bogalusa and innumerable other places picked up so
too did the Bureau activity Acts of violenceand terror by the Klan were seen
and exposedto legal process for what they were raw criminal conduct Massive
investigations by the FBI resulting in arrests and convictions by the score
throughout the South was an important event in our history It was as I have
said a magnificent performance and one the Bureau should be proud of I
certainly am

Mr KATZENBACIIThis committee has publicly exposed activities of
the FBI which were unlawful grossly improper and a clear abuse of
governmental authority According to the testimony before this com
mittee some of those activities took place while I was Attorney Gen
eral or Deputy Attorney General I am surprised and shocked by some
of these activities particularly those which reflect an effort to dis
credit Dr Martin Luther King Jr Those activities were unlawful and
reprehensible and should be condemned by this committee My sur
prise and shock stems from the fact that these activites occurred with
the apparent knowledge and approval of J Edgar Hoover rather
than from the fact that I as Attorney General or Deputy Attorney
General was unaware of them Mr Hoover dedicated his life to build
ing a Federal Bureau of Investigation which enjoyed a great and de
served reputation for integrity efficiency and dedication to public
service I would not have expected him to risk the Bureau's reputa
tion his life's work by resorting to unlawful or improper tactics

I was aware of the fact that the Director held political views far
more conservative than my own or those of the administrations which
I served I knew that on occasion he promoted those views on the Hill
without consultation with me and sometimes in opposition to admin
istration policy I knew the intensity of his views on the dangers of
Communism on the decline of moral standards on the evils of per
missiveness on the lack of respect for law and order I knew also that
as Mr Hoover grew older and the country changed for the worse
in his view the intensity of those feelings and his frustration at what
was taking place grew I knew too that Mr Hoover was extremely
sensitive to any criticism whatsoever and that he deeply and person
ally resented public criticism by civil rights leaders and especially
that made by Dr King I knew all these things and so I believe did
the Congress the press and much of the public at large

When you look at these activities from the perspective of 1975 I
am surprised at how much was public information If one rereads
Mr Hoover's testimony in 1968 before the Violence Commission one
sees what appears to be almost an outline of the COINTEI Program
I do not suggest of course that he revealed publicly those activities
which the committee has uncovered But I respectfully suggest that
not only Attorneys General but the Congress and the general public
were on notice as to the general thrust of these activities In my more
detailed statement I point out the extent of congressional and public
knowledge with respect to domestic intelligence activities the use of
confidential informants the extent of FBI files public knowledge
with respect to wiretaps and electronic surveillances the use of mail
covers the intensity of the investigation of the Ku Klux Klan and
other matters The general thrust of the Bureau interests and the rea
sons therefore were not in any sense secret
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Being in the Department of Justice I was perhaps more aware of
and conscious of those facts and some of the problems they raised than
others may have been There was especially in the area of civil rights
a good deal of tension between the Director on the one hand and the
Attorney General and his principal assistants on the other I was very
conscious of the fact that there was often a lack of candor in relation
ships between the Bureau and the Department that the Bureau was
opposed to many of the views of Mr Kennedy Mr Clark and myself
that Mr Hoover expressed views privately and occasionally publicly
that were at odds with those of the administration that the Bureau
leaked stories to the press which were embarrassing to me and to my
predecessor I did occasionally pursue those leaks but the Bureau
invariably denied that it was the source Having said that let me say
that I did respect the Bureau's reputation for integrity and propriety
in law enforcement matters and that it never occurred to me that the
Bureau would engage in the sort of sustained improper activity which
it apparently did Moreover given these excesses I am not surprised
that I and others were unaware of them Would it have made sense for
the FBI to seek approval for activities of this nature especially from
Attorneys General who did not share Mr Hoover's political views
who would not have been in sympathy with the purpose of these at
tacks and who would not have condoned the methods

Mr Hoover was a national hero I doubt that any Attorney General
after Harlan Fiske Stone could or did fully exercise the control over
the Bureau implied in the formal relationship which made him sub
ordinate to Attorneys General Mr Hoover had great "clout in Con
gress and with Presidents That position resulted naturally from his
great public reputation and the respect which Members of Congress
and Presidents had for him and the Bureau I do not think the prac
tices this committee has brought to light could have been exposed other
than by congressional investigation And I suggest that a congressional
investigation of the FBI was not a political possibility during Mr
Hoover's tenure as Director Mr Hoover exercised total control over
the Bureau and its personnel and brooked no interference with that
process Neither the Congress which always voted the appropriations
he asked and sometimes more questioned that control no more did
his nominal superior in the Department of Justice Exercising that
control Mr Hoover built the FBI into the finest investigative agency
in the world

I think the Congress and the general public probably viewed Mr
Hoover's control over the Bureau as a protection against a politically
motivated Attorney General or a politically appointed U.S Attorney
What may have been less appreciated is the fact that the Bureau was
an extremely important and necessary resource of the Department and
the key to its success at any time No Attorney General can carry on
the work of the Department without the full cooperation and support
of the FBI Animosity between an Attorney General and the Director
was a losing proposition for the work of the Department and for the
success of any administration as well as for the Attorney General in
volved Certainly I sought in many ways to avoid wherever possible
too direct a confrontation Mr Hoover was very conscious of the fact
that an independent FBI would be far more vulnerable to public sus
picion and public criticism than one formally under the control of the
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Attorney General He would always count on a defense and expression
of confidence by his formal superior In effect he was uniquely such
cessful in having it both ways He was protected from public criticism
by having a theoretical superior who took responsibility for his work
and was protected from that superior by his public reputation

Mr Hoover was a permanent fixture in the Government Attorneys
General in fact 18 of them came and went Surely he must with some
justification have regarded Attorneys General as rank amateurs in
the investigative techniques in which the Bureau was so expert While
he was enormously sensitive to any accusation that a particular in
vestigative activity was not authorized by the Department this did
not mean the incumbent Attorney General or any of his principal
subordinates knew of that activity Mr Hoover was satisfied if the
Bureau at any time had been authorized by any Attorney General to
conduct a particular activity in any circumstance whatsoever Per
haps to the head of a large bureaucracy in which Attorneys General
come and go this is a reasonable way of proceeding But there is sim
ply no way an incoming Attorney General can or should be charged
with endorsing every decision of every predecessor and particularly
those decisions which even the predecessor did not know he was mak
ing And as the committee has discovered Mr Hoover especially in
later years went beyond any semblance of authorization The Bureau
constantly resorted to terms of art or euphemisms without bother
ing to inform the Attorney General that they were terms of art I don't
think it is excessively naive to assume that a "highly reliable inform
ant is precisely that and not a microphone surveillance I don't think
that the Nation's chief law enforcement officer is or ought to be in
volved in a guessing game particularly without being told the rules

I don't wish to belabor this point but I most strongly urge that the
committee review my correspondence with the Director on the occasion
of the Justice Department's filings in the Supreme Court in the Black
case in 1966 It was at that time that I became dramatically aware of
the lengths to which the Bureau would go in trying to justify its au
thority My correspondence with Mr Hoover at that time unavoidably
became a bitter one and it persuaded me that I could no longer effec
tively serve as Attorney General because of Mr Hoover's obvious
resentment toward me

My prepared statement then turns to the three subjects in which the
committee has expressed a particular interest I have discussed these
in considerable detail and I have made every effort to insure my recol
lection is as accurate as it can be But despite the effort and time in
volved in trying to reconstruct events of 10 years ago from very lim
ited resources I can make no claim that my recollection is complete or
in all cases precisely accurate It is simply my best recollection

I discuss first the opening of mail a program as to which I am vir
tually certain I had no knowledge The press and perhaps the com
mittee staff has mistakenly drawn the inference from certain internal
memorandums of the FBI that I was aware of this program My state
ment discusses these memorandums in detail..I do not recall any such
program and had I been aware of it I am sure that I would recall it
since I would not have tolerated it

The second subject I discuss in some detail is the Ku Klux Klan and
the outstandingly successful investigation which the Bureau conducted
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in that regard I say that I did not then and do not now regard the
Bureau's program with respect to the Klan as in any sense comparable
to so-called "counterintelligence programs The Klan program in
volved the investigation and prosecution of members of organizations
who had engaged in and who were committed to the violent depriva
tion of constitutionally guaranteed rights of others through murder
kidnappings beatings and threats of violence all in contravention of
Federal and State laws If you will remember for a moment the names
of Lemuel Penn Viola Liuzzo Vernon Dahmer Medgar Evers
James Chaney Andrew Goodman Michael Schwerner and the bomb
ings and beatings that became so frequent in the mid-1960's you may
perceive the differences as clearly as I did then The FBI did a mag
nificent job in Mississippi and parts of Alabama and Louisiana in
bringing to justice the perpetrators of those acts To equate suchef
forts with surveillance or harassment of persons exercising constitu
tionally guaranteed rights is in my view unmitigated nonsense

Third I discuss what I knew about the wiretaps bugs and other
surveillance with respect to Dr Martin Luther King Jr I point out
the tension between the Department and the Bureau with respect to
the civil rights movement a tension which increased as civil rights
leaders especially Dr King were publicly critical of Mr Hoover and
the Bureau I have tried to describe fully all my knowledge about taps
and bugs on Dr King including my order to terminate a tap on
his home phone and the Bureau's alleged after-the-fact advices about
three subsequent overnight bugs of Dr King's hotel rooms without
prior authorization It is important here. as with the Klan investiga
tion for the committee to recall the events of that time and the tre
mendous stake the Nation had in preventing civil strife and Dr King's
important contribution through his commitment to nonviolence In
this context Mr Hoover's capitulation to personal pique stemming
from public criticism of the FBI was particularly reprehensible and
clearly contrary to the interest of Presidents Kennedy and Johnson
constitutional government and the Nation His vendetta against Dr
King if successful could have led to civil strife of frightening
magnitude

My conclusion after hearing what information I have and that
revealed by the committee hearings to date is that the problems which
the committee has disclosed rest more with the historical accident of
I Edgar Hoover a man of great dedication and great talent who
built an insignificant law enforcement agency into the powerful Fed
eral Bureau of Investigation than they do with the need for much
legislation to prevent future abuses It is my view that if the committee
did nothing more than it has already done through public exposure
the odds against any future Director achieving the political power
and political autonomy of Mr Hoover are overwhelming In demon
strating the dangers of permitting that power and prestige over such
an extended period of time even for a principled man and Mr Hoover
was the committee has performed a significant public service

Mr Hoover built from modest beginning the best and most prin
cipled law enforcement agency in the world That should not be for
gotten Therefore I conclude with a note of sadness I believe that
Mr Iloover served with distinction but he served too long That was
the fault of others and of circumstance Certainly those who had
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recent contact with him knew that age increasingly impacted his
judgment We all the Presidents the Congress the Attorneys Gen
eral the press and many segments of the public knew that and yet
he stayed on struggling against change and the future I hope the
committee will weigh the great service he gave this Nation and the
great institution he created and dedicated to the public interest favor
ably against what I regard as largely the transgressions of an elderly
man who served with distinction but too long

Senator TOWER Thank you Mr Katzenbach Mr Clark we have
your complete statement You may summarize it or read it in its
entirety as you choose In any case it will be printed in full in the
record

TESTIMONY OF RAMSEY CLARK

Mr CLARKThank you Mr Chairman
I ask that my 7-page statement be put into the record and I make a

few comments so we can get on with the questioning
It seems like we have been through an intolerable series of revela

tions of Government misconduct As we approach our 200th anni
versary I hope we will remember that freedom made this country
possible and freedom has been our credo and that we will act with
strength and determination now to see that we can begin our third
century in freedom It has been imperiled I believe by Government
misconduct

I served 8 years in the Department of Justice beginning with the
Kennedy administration and ending at the end of the Johnson admin
istration I was no stranger to the Department When I first officially
entered there I padded the halls as a 9-year-old kid beside my father
I love the place I believe its importance in our social fabric is enor
mous I believe it is a durable institution but I believe it needs help and
I think the Congress must be a principal source of that help

I have sadly come to the conclusion that the revelations regarding
the FBI and other governmental activities concerning Dr Martin
Luther King Jr. require the creation of a national commission not
legislative not executive although it certainly could contain members
of both of those branches but involving the people

I think we have a crisis among other things in credibility I would
like to see people on this commission who were close to Dr King who
believed in his moral leadership and participated in his movement
lawyers from his past people who worked with him like Congress
man Andy Young many others broad based

I think the commission should have the power to compel testimony
to subpena witnesses and documents I do not believe we can afford to
leave a stone unturned in exposing for the scrutiny of a democratic
society every activity of government that related to Dr King to his
friends his associates his church the Southern Christian Leadership
Conference any of his activities to his work

That is a sad thing for me to have to recommend I was Attorney
General when I)r King was murdered I followed that investigation
more carefully than any investigation while I was Attorney General
I had confidence at the time that we were doing everything that could
be done to determine the facts But my confidence and my judgment
don't matter The confidence and the judgment of the people is
imperative
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Beyond the revelations concerning Dr King we've had so many
that required drastic action I listed again a number of recommenda
tins that I've made from time to time here before discussions with
staff here this morning I realize I left some out I think for instance
the Director of the FBI should be limited to a term of 4 years I
suggested this before I think the term ought to begin at the end of the
second year of the Presidency so that a President would serve a
Director appointed before his term for 2 years and then 2 years
with someone that he appointed I don't think that's extreme I think
it's essential In fact I think we have many analogies to indicate the
desirability Take the Chief of Staff in the military and things like
that We are considering our freedom here I believe that a society
committed to democratic institutions aspiring to freedom and hope
and to live under the rule of law must have faith in its agents can
fully protect their interest and serve their needs by fair conduct by
honorable conduct

The Congress will have the courage to come to grips and enact laws
to prohibit investigative and enforcement activities that are unaccept
able to the moral standards of the American people I think we need
as a first requisite specific statutes that address every form of investi
gative and enforcement activity prohibiting those that are judged
unacceptable and I would hope that would be a long list attaching
criminal sanction to their violation I would hope that conduct that is
permitted would be specifically authorized in statute so that no agent
on the street would ever wonder what he is authorized to do And if
Congress determines there is a twilight zone that it would vigorously
regulate that twilight zone Some consider the use of electronic surveil
lance to be such a zone I don't I think it ought to be prohibited as
I said when I was Attorney General If it is permitted I think it
would require rigorous regulation well beyond what we have consid
ered in the title III of the Omnibus Crime Control Act That shows
the concern of Congress and it shows I 'think the potential of law to
protect the people from abuse of governmental powers

I think that any disruptive activities such as those that you reveal
regarding the COIN TEL Program and the Ku Klux Klan should be
absolutely prohibited and subjected to criminal prosecution I believe
the police investigation the criminal investigation and accumulation of
data files or dossiers should be prohibited except in actual ongoing
criminal investigations initiated where there was probable cause to
believe 'the crimes have been committed or is about to be committed

I think information obtained by police by agents of the FBI or
other Federal bureaus from public sources for general informa
tional purposes and I am not a know-nothing I think that those
who have the duty to protect us must know public information about
the society in which they live I think that should be made available
always to the public and to the press in the form in which it is
received

Where techniques inherently inimical to freedom such as paid in
formants which I oppose are authorized by law they should be
stringently regulated I think the standards should exceed those that
the courts have now imposed upon fourth amendment procedure
regarding search and seizure I think vigorous internal compliance
should be required regular inspection and reporting to the highest
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authorities within the executive congressional oversight and regular
public reporting with the times number and duration of all such
activities Every individual or organization should be entitled to notice
of and on demand to review any information possessed by any investi
gative or enforcement agency concerning him her or it unless that
information is part of an ongoing criminal investigation and in
those circumstances it be subject to judicial rules of discovery I believe
it will better serve the public safety and the freedom of the people and
under any circumstances I think there should be full disclosure not
less than 2 years after the date of the receipt of the information

When Government agencies act unlawfully I think responsible per
sons should be subject to criminal sanction civil damages and injunc
tion I think the law should strictly prohibit unauthorized public
agencies or private persons from engaging in authorized criminal
investigations assigned to another jurisdiction Illustrations that ex
plain what I'm talking about are such things as the plumbers as they
were called the use of IRS agents to engage in general criminal

investigation which can destroy the confidence in the integrity of
the taxing power that is essential to any Government I think the law
should prohibit and punish leaks of information from Government
investigations which can either damage reputations or prejudice fair
trials and I think we need to be rigorous about that I guess I need
only note some of the revelations regarding Martin Luther King to
suggest to the Department what I'm talking about

We need far more effective Freedom of Information Acts and both
Mr Katzenbach and I were deeply involved in the formulation of
the existing basic statute that exists today I think we both had higher
hopes for it. I know I did I was deeply disappointed when I argued
the first case under it in the Supreme Court to find that the exceptions
which had been created by the Congress were as great as they were I
think democracy is premised upon an informed public

Secrecy in Government is one of the great perils to the continuation
of democracy and freedom in this society I think that only rights of
privacy and the integrity of ongoing criminal investigations should
exempt information from disclosure I think civilian review boards
comprised of the broadest citizen representation with the power to
subpena witnesses and documents compel testimony should be created
for all police departments and investigative agencies by the appro
priate legislative bodies Federal State and local They should have
the power to oversee to check to initiate studies to review and deter
mine complaints of wrongful conduct and report regularly to legisla
tive the executive the judiciary the public and the fourth estate

If this sounds burdensome it is in my judgment a small price to
pay and I would like to end with the words of a great man and a
uniquely free American William O Douglas on the subject of discre
hon because I think they tell us what we risk if we continue to permit
unbridled discretion in Federal investigative agencies or for that
matter those at State and local levels He said

Law has reached its finest momentswhen it has freed from unlimited discre
tion some ruler some civil or some military official some bureaucrat Where
discretion is absolute man has always suffered At times it has ,beenhis property
that has been invaded at times his privacy at times his liberty of movement at
times his freedom of thought at times his life Absolute discretion is a ruthless
master It is more destructive of freedom than any of man's other inventions



223

I urge you to enact laws that will inform every agent investigatingor enforcing for the Federal establishment of the limits of that dis
cretion

Thank you
[Prepared statement of Ramsey Clark follows :]

STATEMENTOFRAMSEYCLARKFORMERATTORNEYGENERALOFTHEUNITEDSTATES
Must we remind ourselves This is America Freedom is our credo Because we

overcamefear and live free our imagination and energy burst across the conti
nent and built this incredible place Fulfillment is the flower of freedom born
of noother tree Freedomis the child of MotherCourage

What utter outrage that as we approach our two hundredth anniversary of the
quest for freedom striving still to "secure the blessings of liberty to ourselves
and our posterity we should turn frightened careless or unscrupulous to policestate tactics Have we forgotten who we are and what we stand for

Recent years have seemeda constant revelation of growing abuses of freedom
Frightened hateful insecure craving power a thousand ignoble emotions have
justified means to obtain ends We have felt the hot breath of tyranny in America
Manyhave found it comforting

Someseemingparalysis grips us Raised to believethe truth will set you freewe are told the truth is too dangerous and not for the people to know A year in
the wake of Watergate the Congresshas not enacted a single law to prevent its
recurrence while Senate Bill 1 from the Committeeon the Judiciary imperilsfreedom

If we love freedom we will demand a full accounting by government federalstate and local of past conductthreatening liberty
Your partial disclosures about FBI efforts to destroy the desperately needed

moral leadership of Martin Luther King Jr are an important first service We
need to know more For years I have pleaded for full disclosure Five years ago
writing in Crimein America I observed

"There have been repeated allegations that the FBI placed bugs in hotel rooms
occupiedby Dr Martin Luther King Jr. and subsequently played the tapes of
conversations recorded in the room for various editors Senators and opinion
makers The course of the civil rights movement may have been altered by a
prejudice caused by such a practice The prejudice may have reached men who
might otherwise have given great support including even the President of the
United States The public has a right to know whether this is true If it is those
responsibleshould be held fully accountable A free society cannot endure where
such police tactics are permitted Today they may be used only against political
enemies or unpopular persons Tomorrow you may be the victim Whoever the
subject the practice is intolerable.

What you have now revealed demands the creation of a national commission
empowered to investigate thoroughly all governmental activity relating to
Martin Luther King Jr. his movement family friends associates church the
Southern Christian Leadership Conference his activities and his murder The
commission broad based and fully financed with the power to subpoena docu
ments and compel testimony should report to the Congress the President and
the People When the evidencewarrants it a special grand jury should consider
its findings The commissionshould develop draft and present legislation regu
lations and review procedures to prevent recurrences of wrongful conduct it
uncovers

We must recognizethe far greater danger and injury flowingfrom government
misconductthan from any threat claimed to justify it Governmentcan only be
effectivewith the support of the people The peoplewill only support government
which earns its respect People do not respect "a dirty business.

Law enforcement will not long respect itself when it engages in wrongdoing
Integrity will be destroyed Goodpeopledrawn to public service will abandon it
A mystique of cunning and surreptition will drive out objective lawful investiga
tive priorities and practices America too can be a police state The only special
immunity we have known has been our commitment to freedom

The notion that moderate Machiavellianmeans are required by dangerous con
ditions and can prevail over a radical Machiavelli is twice wrong An unbridled
discretion in police power is the sure road to despotism We should learn from
the wordsof a great and uniquelyfree man WilliamO Douglas
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"Law has reached its finest moments when it has freed from the unlimited
discretion of some ruler some civil or military official some bureaucrat Where
discretion is absolute man has always suffered At times it has been his property
that has been invaded at times his privacy at times his liberty of movement
at times his freedom of thought at times his life Absolutediscretion is a ruth
less master It is more destructive of freedom than any of mans other inven
tions.

The onlyacceptablecourse is constitutional principle
Now as Lincolnurged at CooperUnion in the darkening year before the Civil

War "Let us have faith that right makes might and in that faith let us to the
end dare to do our duty as we understand it.

A society aspiring to freedom to the rule of law and democratic institutions
can prevent domesticinsurrection crime and wrongdoingwithin its own borders
by fair lawful honorable means To adopt lesser means is to kill the American
Dream

We gave somecause to the Soviet newspaper Tass to report as it did in Janu
ary of this year with regard to CIA-FBI activities "And now it is obvious that
fundamental rights of citizens are flouted in the leading country of the `free
world. It is for you and me now to redeemour pledgeto freedomfor humanity
Andwemust beginat home

From a larger number of recommendations I will outline nine proposals
I have urged to control domestic surveillance preserve freedom and protect
society I urge the enactment of laws implementingthem

Specificstatutes should authorize prohibit or regulate every investigative
and enforcement practice for federal state and local government Obviously
disruptive governmentactivities such as those revealed in Cointelproor against
the Ku Klux Klan should be subjected to criminal sanction Every authorized
act must be founded in law Governmentagents should not have to guess what is
permitted

Police investigation and accumulation of data files or dossiers should be
prohibited except in criminal investigations initiated only where there is prob
able cause to believea crime has been committed Information retained by police
from public sources for general informational purposes such as newspapers
should be kept equally available in its original form to the public and the press

Where techniques inherently inimical to freedom such as paid informants
or electronic surveillances (I oppose both) are authorized by law they should
he stringently regulated Court orders meeting Fourth Amendment standards
should be required Internal compliance inspectionand reporting to the highest
authority should be rigorous and regular public reporting of times numbers and
duration required

Every individual and organization should be entitled to notice of and on
demand to review any information possessed by any investigative or enforce
ment agency concerning him her or it unless that information is part of an
ongoing criminal investigation where it should be subject to judicial rules of
discovery and full disclosure not more than two years after receipt

When government agencies act unlawfully responsible persons should be
subjected to criminal sanctions civil damagesand injunction

Law should strictly prohibit unauthorized publicagencies or private persons
from engagingin authorized criminal investigation

Law should prohibit and punish leaks of information from government in
vestigations which can either damage reputations or prejudice fair trials

Freedom of Information Acts at all levels of government should open in
vestigative agencies to public scrutiny Democracyis premised on an informed
public Only rights of privacy and the integrity of ongoingcriminal investiga
tions shouldexemptinformation from disclosure

Civilian Review Boards comprised of the broadest citizen representation
with power to subpoena witnesses and documents and compeltestimony should
be created for all police departments and investigative agencies They should
oversee check initiate studies review and determine complaints of wrongful
conduct and report regularly to the legislature executive judiciary the public
and the Fourth Estate

If this sounds burdensome it is a small price to pay for freedom Without
such safeguards we will enter our third century with liberty exposed to clear
and present danger We must ask ourselves in the words of Justice Hugo Black
"whether we as a people will try fearfully and futilely to preserve democracy
by adopting totalitarian methods or whether in accordance with our traditions
and our Constitution will have the confidenceand courage to be free.
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Senator TOWERThank you Mr Clark
Before we proceed with the questions I would like to instruct the

witnesses to refrain from mentioning the names of private citizens
unless permission has been given in advance by that person or unless
the information is already in the public domain This is of course de
signed to protect people who may appear in raw FBI data files and
that sort of thing We don't want ourselves unwittingly to infringe on
anybody's rights here and we are investigating the fact that it has
been done by Government agencies

The questioning of Mr Katzenbach will be initiated by the counsel
for the minority Mr Smothers

Mr SMOTHERSThank you Mr Chairman
Mr Katzenbach your statement suggests that for much of the

activities we reviewed or much of the activities of the FBI these
represented matters that started with Mr Hoover and were pursued
without opposition certainly without opposition at the Attorney Gen
eral's level I think it would be fair to say that from some of the docu
ments which you have been shown there is at least a suggestion that
Hoover did communicate some information regarding his activities
and may have believed that there was some authority based on those
communications

What I would like to do briefly with you is to concentrate first on
the area of electronic surveillance beginning with your own attention
to the area of bugs or regulation of those and then to move briefly to
the three matters we have indicating surveillance of Dr King and
then to the information regarding your knowledge on those and
then finally with regard to asking information regarding the
COINTELPRO activities of the Bureau during this time In the
interest of saving time let me just briefly indicate what our record
reveals with regard to the regulation of electronic surveillance the
bugs here as distinguished from the wiretaps

We know that wiretapping had required the prior approval of the
Attorney General Without respect to bugs the Bureau apparently
relied upon a 1954 memorandum by Brownell when he was Attorney
General indicating either inherent or delegated authority by the
Bureau to plant electronic bugging devices

On March 30 1965 you indicated dissatisfaction with this and
established a rule essentially requiring the Bureau to conform to the
wiretap procedure that is come to the Attorney General for permis
sion to use any such devices

I see an amendment to that in 1965 where you indicate in emergency
situations the Bureau could indeed plant such devices but that notice
would immediately follow notice to the Attorney General

Is that account substantially correct
Mr KATZENBACIIYes it is Mr Smothers except that I did a good

deal more than just put bugs on the same basis as taps because taps
were not on a very good basis at that time either So that my proce
dures did equate the two but they in addition required formal notice
to the Attorney General of any discontinuance and they required a
formal re-permission for anything that had been on 6 months

Mr Saio'rmuts To the best of your knowledge did the Bureau com
ply with those procedures
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Mr KATZENBACIITo the best of knowledge it complied with those
procedures I don't recollect ever having any occasion of seeing the
emergency power that you referred to used by the Bureau

Mr SMOTHERSAll right In your statement you referred to three
alleged incidents of after the fact advices regarding electronic
bugging I have a memorandum dated May 17 1965 entitled "Memo
randum for the Attorney General Re Martin Luther King Jr.
[See footnote page 21.]

Reading from the first paragraph of that memorandum the memo
randum is signed by Mr Hoover Mr Hoover reports to you that
"This Bureau's investigation of the Communist influence in racial
matters has developed considerable information indicating the influ
ence upon Martin Luther King Jr. It then proceeds to name indi
viduals previously discussed individuals which the chief counsel
indicated in his discussion this morning had been shown at least by
reporting from the Bureau to not be directly under the control of the
Communist Party Further down in the memorandum the end of the
first paragraph Mr Hoover reports the purpose of the surveillance
activity or the purpose of the FBI in looking at King here He indi
cated that "results in obtaining evidence of influences upon King, I
continued to quote "as well as information concerning the tactics and
plans of King and his organization and the civil rights movement.

Mr Katzenbach there are initials on this document in the upper
right hand corners Are those your initials

Mr KATZENBACH'Yes those are my initials
Mr SMOTHERSDo you recall this information received by Mr

Hoover
Mr KATZENBACHNo I do not and I do not know whether I wrote

those initials or not
Mr SMOTHERSI don't understand
Are they your initials
Mr KATZENBACHYes my initials are N deB K. and that's

N deB K. as I customarily write in the place where I would custom
arily write it

Mr SMOTHERSDoes that look like your handwriting
Mr KATZENBACHIt looks like it
Mr SMOTHERSDo you believe it to be your handwriting
Mr KATZENBACHI don't have any recollection of ever receiving this

memorandum or the two subsequent memorandums or the same memo
randums of the same kind Mr Smothers I have no recollection of that
and I very strongly believe that I would have recollected it

Mr SMOTHERSMr Katzenbach if we can stay with my question
please

That is does this look like your handwriting
Mr KATZENBACHYes it looks like my handwriting
Mr SMOTHERSDo you have any reason to believe that you did not

initial this document
Mr KATZENBACIIYes because I do not recollect the document and

I believe very strongly that I would recall this document
Mr SMOTHERSCan we turn to the next document please the docu

ment dated October 19 1965 stating substantially the same information
as was in the first paragraph of the May 17 document looking again
to the upper right-hand corner
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Are those your initials
Mr K_1'rZENB_vcHYes they are and the same situation as before
Mr SMOTHERSDo they appear to be in anyone's hand other than

your own
Mr KATZENBACHNO That is the way I would write initials
Mr SMOTHERSWill you turn to the document dated December 1

1965
Again going to the upper right-hand corner do those appear to be

your initials there
Mr KATZENB:1crrYes the initials appear to be mine The handwrit

ing immediately underneath that does not appear to be mine
Mr SMOTHERSMr Katzenbach in the normal course of events

would one be reasonable in assuming that these three documents sepa
rated by some months in time from the Bureau's files with initials that
you indicated appear to be yours reflect the fact that you had seen and
initialled these documents

Mr K_1TZEyBA(IIIn the normal course of events
Mr SMOTHERSWhat is wrong with that assumption
We are talking about three documents months apart that appear to

be your initials according to your testimony Is there anything that
would suggest that someone else had initialled these documents

Mr KATZErB.vCITThe only thing that would suggest that anybody
else could have initialled these documents are a series of reasons that
I have set forth in some length in my prepared statement that I think
you are familiar with Mr Smothers as to why I am confident that I
would have recollected these memorandums

It is also to my mind I don't understand and I never saw any
memorandums to the best of my recollection where the Bureau had
put a microphone surveillance in anyplace and notified me afterward

Mr SMOTHERSI'll come to the substance of the documents in a
moment Mr Katzenbach but let's be very clear on the record in this
matter

Are you suggesting that what appears to be your initials on these
documents in fact represent forgeries

Mr KATZExB:1cII Let me be just as clear about that as I can I have
no recollection of receiving these documents and I seriously believe
that I would have recollected them had I received them If they are
my initials and if I put them on then I am clearly mistaken in that
recollection

Mr SMOTHERSVery well
May we go to the substance of the documents for a moment and

we'll turn to the document of May 17 [See footnote p 21]
Senator M.1THLuSMr Chairman if counsel would suspend for just

a minute there is no doubt in your mind that you would have remem
bered that document if you had seen it

Mr K:1TZESB_1crrI have no doubt in my mind that I would have re
membered it Senator On the other hand if that in fact are my ini
tials then for reasons that I cannot now explain to the committee and
which I find difficult to conceive the memorandum must have been
seen by me and initialled by me

Senator MATHILASBut you wouldn't have considered it routine
memorandum passing over it
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Mr KATZENBACHI would have considered it anything but a routine
memorandum

Mr SMOTHERSIn that connection Mr Katzenbach is it your testi
mony then that you would not have approved of an objective of the
Bureau as stated in the May 17 memorandum to gain information
concerning the tactics and plans of Dr King and the civil rights
movement Would you have considered this an improper objective on
the part of the FBI

Mr KATZENBACHYes I would have considered that an improper
objective The Communist influence is another question and if I might
just go back to something you said a minute ago Mr Smothers I
think it was not my information You said the Bureau and all of
these people had said that they were not under Communist influence
If my understanding of that is correct then I believe your statement
is not correct At least I do not believe it ever came to my attention
that one of these individuals was not still believed to be a secret and
important member of the Communist Party as far as information
coming to me was concerned

Mr SMOTHERSThat may well be There is a matter of some dispute
there We talked about information coming from the New York of
fice in regard to that individual I do not wish to pursue that at the
moment. I grant you that certainly information which may have been
received by the Bureau would indicate there was Communist influence

My question regarding the Communist influence though is rather
assuming again that you received this memorandum it would not have
raised questions in your mind as to the nature of this information
this considerable information which the Bureau had developed

Would this have in the ordinary course of things sparked a re
quest from you to Mr Hoover about the nature of this considerable in
formation the same language which appears in three memoranda

Mr KATZENBACHI think I can best answer that question Mr
Smothers to say that to gain that kind of information through a
microphone surveillance and particularly one in a hotel seems to me a
crazy way to try to get that information in the first place but to gain
it in that way I would have thought was wrong

Now for the Bureau or the Attorney General to be interested in in
formation concerning the tactics and plans of Dr King's movement
in those times I am sure would have been something that I would
have been interested in Indeed we talked to him often about

Mr SMOTHERSAccording to the May 17 memorandum wouldn't
the action have been in violation of your own instructions regarding
the use of these devices They are reporting to you after the fact
regarding a microphone placement and they tell you "because of the
importance of the meeting, the meeting between King and these
other persons "and the urgency of the situation a microphone
surveillance was effected.

Mr KATZENBACIIYes that would have been in violation I cannot
see this as an emergency There's nothing in the memo to suggest
that it's an emergency It comes to me some days afterward I was
virtually available to the Bureau every minute prior to the time this
was put in My conclusion is that the reason they didn't ask for my
authorization is that they knew they wouldn't get it
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Mr SMOTHERSMr Katzenbach the exact same language except
for a change in date appears iii the October 19 memorandum and in
the December 1 memorandum all reporting after the fact

Now I am a little puzzled by the fact that none of this information
three occasions of reporting here came to your attention or at least
no recollection came to your attention Are we suggesting that these
memoranda were not forwarded to the Office of the Attorney General

Mr KATZENBA(H I don't know the answer to that question Mr
Smothers and I assure you that I am much more puzzled than you
are and much more concerned

Mr S_MOTIIERSLet me turn to the last document [See footnote
p 21] That one is also the source of some concern This document
is on stationery indicating Office of the Attorney General The docu
ment is handwritten and reads as follows

Mr Hoover Obviously these are particularly delicate surveillances and we
should be very cautious in terms of the non-FBI people who may from time to
time necessarilybe involvedin someaspect of installation

There are initials at the bottom Are those your initials or signa
tures Mr Katzenbach

Mr KATZEyBACIHYes
Mr SMOTHERSIs this note in your hand
Mr KATZENBACHIt is in my hand and I recall writing it
Mr SMOTHERSThe date of the note is December 10 1965 9 days

after the last memorandum regarding the surveillances of Dr King
You will also note written across and apparently not in your hand
printed are the words Martin Luther King Jr

This document was found in the Bureau's King file Do you remem
ber writing this note I)o you remember what surveillances you were
making references to what delicate surveillances

Mr KATZEIB:vCSII don't recall and I have nothing in my possession
that has served to refresh my recollection and nothing has been
shown to me by the committee staff that serves to refresh my recollec
tion

Mr SMOTHERSIn your opinion could this note have referred to
the three mentioned electronic surveillances against Dr King

Mr KATZENBACHOn its face it says that it did If I remember any
recollection whatsoever of the first three documents then it would
seem to me that would be a possibility I point out that it could refer
to almost anything

My opinion is obviously since I don't recall getting the first three
that this was not associated with it and I really don't have enough
recollection of what was assoicated with it to say I do or I did see
Mr Helms on that date Whether it relates to something he asked
for I don't know

Mr SMOTHERSLet me raise this question Mr Katzenbach
Had these memoranda come to the Office of the Attorney General

would your immediate staff or those persons in your office who would
have been receiving these memoranda without regard to whether you
actually initiated them would these persons have called these matters
to your atteniton

Mr KATZExB_uCIIIf they had seen them yes they would I would
certainly assume so yes
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Mr SMOTHERSWas your immediate staff aware of the disagree
ment you alluded to earlier between Mr Hoover and the Attorneys
General including yourself on the question of civil rights

Mr KATZENBACHOh yes certainly
Mr SMOTHERSThen unless we are willing to assume that these

documents never reached the Office of Attorney General we have a
true puzzle

Mr KATZENBACHYes I am very puzzled
Mr SMOTHERSLet me just raise a question about one bit of in

formation concerning Dr King which may have come to your
attention

Do you recall in 1964 information coming to you regarding a re
porter who had been offered access to certain information regarding
Dr King certain information that would assist in the ruin of
Dr King

Mr KATZENBACHYes I do I covered that incident in much detail
as I can presently recollect in the longer prepared statement

Mr SMOTHERSSo that you did as early as 1964 have some in
formation to suggest that the FBI may have been interested in an at
tack on Dr King

Mr KATZENBACHOh yes
If your question is did I know the animosity between Mr Hoover

and Dr King absolutely yes sir and I knew that this one incident
had taken place

Mr SMOTHERSWould you agree then that with this information
in your mind it would have been a clear dereliction to merely initial
or approve the matters not approve to initial without taking further
action on the matters mentioned in the memoranda that we have just
been talking about

Mr KATZENBACHI would certainly expect that if I read the mem
orandums then I would have done something about it

Mr SMOTHERSLet me move along very briefly to one matter
Mr Katzenbach

Mr KATZENBACHI would point out that the action in each case was
completely finished and done but I would have done something about
it I did do something about the other Mr Smothers [see p 210.] I
did I went to the President with that

Mr SMOTHERSThat's correct and the record does reflect that
Do you recall receiving information in September of 1965 in mem

orandum form [exhibit 44 '] from the Bureau directed to the At
torney General indicating that the Bureau was about the business of
disruptive activities against the Klan

Mr KATZENBACxI recall a memorandum the committee showed
me which speaks for itself I wouldn't characterize it that way
Mr Smothers

Mr SMOTHERSDo you recall a memorandum [exhibit 45 2] origi
nating from you back to Mr Hoover indicating your satisfaction with
the Bureau's efforts against the Klan as reflected by that memorandum

Mr KATZENBACIIYes sir I do and they were magnificent
2Seep 513
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Mr SMOTHERS Did you approve the Bureau's COINTELPRO
effort against the Klan

Mr KATZENBACHI never heard the word COINTELPRO as such
I certainly approved everything described to me in that memorandum

Mr SMOTHERSYou approved the disruption
Mr KATZENBACHI approved I think there's a terribly important

distinction for this committee to make There was a great deal of
evidence with respect to the Klan's being investigated that they had
engaged and they were the instrumentality of violence and I would
have approved of activities not only to punish that violence but ac
tivities within the law to do everything that they could to prevent
violence in those situations The situation in 1964 in Mississippi was
a desperate one There was no law enforcement agency in Mississippi
that was worth a damn and none would protect the rights of clients
It wasn't until the Bureau went in there and went in with a massive
investigation under one of its most able inspectors Joe Sullivan
after the Chaney Goodman Schwerner murders and I think the
committee basically has to understand the difference between that
situation and the Communist Party or the New Left or something
else

If you can't make that distinction then I despair I think that is
an extremely important distinction

Senator MONDALEIn fairness to the committee we're not arguing
at all As a matter of fact we are fully supporting the FBI in the
discharge of its essential traditional responsibilities to enforce the
law The matters you are talking about are all clearly and classically
law violations and insofar as the FBI went down there and investi
gated those who committed or were about to commit crimes of violence
I don't think there is a person on this committee who would not but
say hurrah

But we are talking about matters that went clearly beyond this
and that's what concerns us

Mr KATZENBACHThose matters are not contained in that memo
randum

Senator MONDALEBut I thought I heard in your lecture to us that
you didn't see a difference

Mr KATZENBACHBecause of that memorandum That memoran
dum is the basis because it uses the word "disruption. You cannot
do a criminal investigation of any organization properly without
having some disruptive influence where you have reason to know that
that organization and its members are engaged in acts of violence
then by George you want to disrupt those acts of violence And part
of the disruption of those acts is to create open surveillance We did
that with the Klan openly surveyed them followed them around all
day

Senator MORGANDid you break into their headquarters in Louisiana
in 1962

Mr KATZENBACHNot to the best of my knowledge
Senator MORGANWere you in the Department of Justice in 1962

Weren't you involved in civil rights activities in 1962
Mr KATZENBACHCertainly I was Senator
Senator MORGANWell do you recall or did in fact the Department

of Justice instruct the FBI or did they break into the Klan head
quarters and steal the roster of the membership
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Mr KATZENBACnI don't have any recollection
Senator MORGAN Would that be within your definition of

disruption
Mr KATZENBACHBreaking and entering No sir
Senator MORGANDid the Bureau with your knowledge do any

breaking and entering in any of these matters
Mr KATZENBACHNo sir
Senator MORGANAre you sure
Mr KATZENBACHI am sure about my knowledge Senator
Senator MORGANAre you saying that it did not happen or you just

don't recall
Mr KATZENBACHI am saying that I had no recollection of that

event I don't know whether it happened and I have no recollection
Senator MORGANWhile you headed the Department of Justice were

instructions given to keep under surveillance all members of the black
student activist organizations regardless of whether they had been
involved in disruptions or not

Mr KATZENBACHKeep under surveillance all members of black
Senator MORGANStudent organizations regardless of whether they

had been involved in disruptions or not and surveillance should in
clude a number of things which were enumerated including taxes
checking audits of their taxes

You know nothing of that
Mr KATZENBACHI don't know what you're talking about Senator
Senator MORGANYou have no knowledge of it
Mr KATZENBACHI have no knowledge of it Is there a document on

that subject I'd like to see it
Senator TOWER I wonder if we might withhold the production of

that document until such time as the question evolves to the Senator
The questioning of Mr Clark will be initiated by the chief counsel

of the committee Mr Schwarz
Mr SCHWARZMr Clark sir has someone put in front of you Mr

DeLoach's testimony from this morning
Mr CLARK I have a page clipped on top of another page
Mr ScnwARz Well I don't know if you were here then but he

testified as follows He was asked did you brief Attorney General
Ramsay Clark on the COINTELPRO activities And reading his full
answer

Shortly after Mr Clark becameAttorney General or ActingAttorney General
Mr Clark instructed me on one occasionto brief him to assist him in his knowl
edge concerning FBI activities to brief him concerning all ongoing programs

I do distinctly recall that on one occasionbriefing Mr Clark concerningpro
grams of the FBI that I did generally brief him concerning COINTELI'RO or
the counterintelligenceprogram yes sir

Now was that testimony of Mr DeLoach's true and accurate to the
best of your knowledge

Mr CLARK NO
Mr SciiwARz And in what respects is it inaccurate
Mr CLARK I do not believe that he briefed me on anything even

as he says generally concerning COINTELPRO whatever that means
The next question as you see there Senator Schweiker asked for some

specification of what he was talking about and he said nothing has
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been shown to me to refresh my memory This is DeLoach talking I
briefed him concerning electronic surveillance that had been previously
authorized by the Attorney General

Well I don't know what that is supposed to mean It is certainly a
non sequitur from the question

I had been in the Department for 51/2years or longer when I became
Acting Attorney General in September roughly of 1966 I don't recall
being briefed about any activity in the Department Ordinarily when
a new Attorney General comes in there are big books that they bring
around and tell you what everything was supposed to be But I guess
the assumption was that I had been around for a while and I'd been
Deputy Attorney General for a couple of years and I was supposed to
know by now

I noticed in the morning that Mr DeLoach said that I asked him to
instruct me but I believe I saw in a document that was handed me this
afternoon that he earlier said that Mr Hoover asked him to give me
those instructions

I had difficulty with Mr DeLoach It finally resulted in a discon
tinuation of our relationship an unhappy event but I think they knew
my disposition When I became Acting Attorney General I had al
ready opposed the death penalty officially I had already opposed wire
tapping and other things and the probability that they were going
to be briefing me very much about something that had I heard of I
would have stopped is not high

Mr ScrrwARZ Is it your testimony then that you had no knowledge
concerning COINTELPRO from Mr DeLoach or any other source

Mr CLARK I never heard the word as far as I know until the last
couple of years It came out in the press

Mr Scrrw_1RZ Apart from the word did you have any knowledge of
Bureau programs to disrupt or neutralize any of the five target groups
the Communist Party the Socialist Workers Party the Klan the
Black Nationalists or the New Left

Mr CLARK Well cases would arise It's hard to think of the best
illustration

I will recall I had been sent to Selma to enforce Johnson's court
order protecting the marchers from Selma to Montgomery and that
Friday night I was flying back and got a radio message that Mrs Viola
Linzzo had been murdered And I well remember my dismay and I
believe it was Monday perhaps Nick can recall lo and behold the
FBI had solved the case so to speak And it seemed like a wizardly
piece of investigative work But it turned out from what I under
stand that actually there was a paid FBI informer in the murder car
Certainly I knew about that I remember being deeply concerned at
the time I remember discussions in the Department whether there was
any possibility that that murder could have been prevented and that
is something that will always haunt me Certainly law enforcement
has as its first responsibility the prevention of crime

Mr SCIIw_1RZDid you have from the Bureau any knowledge that
the Bureau had a program to disrupt the Ku Klux Klan

Mr CLARK I had no knowledge You all showed me a memo of
December 1967 I believe that indicates I had a conversation with
Mr IkLoach in which I asked him apparently for a briefing on what
is going on with the Klan
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When I was interviewed by your staff people I couldn't recall why
I asked him about the Klan at that time because that was really well
after the Department focus on the Klan as a major enforcement
problem

My assumption now is it must have been related to the Neshoba
County prosecution which was just about wrapping up at that time
This comes not from any recollection I had but from a conversation
with the subsequent Assistant Attorney General in charge of the Civil
Rights Division and that perhaps John Doar or others in the prosecu
tion in the case put the idea in my head because the Klan is not some
thing that we were focusing on.~We had bad riots that summer We
were deeply concerned about what would happen the following year
We had riots now three or four summers in a row

Mr SCrlw1RZ Could you just look at the document and we'll go
through a couple of words in it It is a memorandum dated December
19 1967 [exhibit 46]

Now let me just take you through a couple of the words in it the
language and ask you after doing that whether you recollect receiving
the information and whether you now read the document as putting
in a notice of a program to disrupt the Klan

The cover sheet describes the conversation as a request for FBI
coverage and penetration of the Klan Then in the attachment under
FBI responsibility Mr Clark the second page of the attachment it
talks of the objectives as including "second we conduct intelligence
investigations with the view toward infiltrating the Ku Klux Klan
with informants neutralizing it as a terrorist organization and deter
ring violence.

And then starting on the sixth page under "Special Projects, they
describe various States and I am picking out just particular examples
And the other material in the document has no connection with CO
INTELPRO type activity so I'm just picking little excerpts and ask
ing whether they put you on notice

Under Florida it states that the Bureau had made an effort to bring
personal misconduct to the attention of the Klan rank and file of a
certain leader And then on the next page also under Florida we
found that by the removal of top Klan officers and provoking scandals
within the State Klan organization through informants the Klan in
a particular area can be rendered ineffective

And then under Mississippi a leader of the Klan has been removed
and discredited Then under Louisiana referring to some other leader
this action contributed to the organization and disruption of the
United Klans in Louisiana And then under Virginia an effort is
described to contain the growth of the Klan

Now in a sense what I've done is a little unfair to you because I have
taken isolated words in the document But given those words why
didn't they put you on notice or in fact inform you that the Bureau
was engaged not merely in seeking to prosecute crime and not merely
seeking to deter violence but also on attempting to neutralize disrupt
through tactics such as causing scandal

Mr CLARKI don't think it's unfair I don't know how else you would
get at a document like this

1Seep 516
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Did they put me on notice No Why I either did not read them or
if I read them didn't read them carefully

You know I grew up in the South and the Klan wasn't any outfit I
ever cared about I don't recall concern or focus on Klan activities

Even things like the Neshoba case were just late coming to trial
There was something that they're as anguished as we had all been
It was 4 years before it came to trial Or 3 years I guess

I had long since discovered that the Bureau's investigative capacity
in many types of southern criminal activities that they had jurisdic
tion over were inadequate and we had on occasion to preempt their
function often with young attorneys who had no significant investiga
tive experience

So I guess I think I didn't read this I think perhaps I had asked
for it for someone else and either bucked it onto them or I never saw it

I haven't found anybody in the Civil Rights Division who was
aware and these were people who worked in the South intimately I
had been down there virtually every year after I came into office By
that I mean as Assistant Attorney General We were aware of pro
grams that were disruptive and other than prevention of threat of
crime in a sense and I guess that's all I can tell you about that

Mr SCHWARZ'We'll come back to some other subjects Mr Clark
if you want

Senator TOWERSenator Mondale
Senator MONDALEMr Katzenbach I read your full statement It

was placed in the record In the recommendations section there are
many observations with which I agree You have to understand the
times during which these occurred You have to understand some of
Hoover's predispositions You have to understand the enormous popu
larity he enjoyed with the American people with the Congress every
where You have to understand the risk and fears that Americans felt
deeply during much of this I buy that

Yet my problem with your recommendations is that you indicate
there isn't much we need to do about it except make certain we have
good oversight and that we never again let someone stay there too
long and this recommendation seems to flow from what you say was a
general awareness of what Hoover was up to and Hoover's eccentric
ities in later life

I have a good deal of difficulty with that analysis First of all while
many may have been aware of Mr Hoover's prejudices I think very
few apparently from your testimony even the Attorneys General were
unaware of some of the excesses that go beyond the law beyond con
stitutional rights that were being practiced

Of course the classic case is Dr King which occurred while you
were Attorney General while both of you served under the then Attor
ney General and during which almost a classic KGB type of ha
rassment program was going on against a major moderate civil rights
leader How then can we say that this agency was accountable in the
light of this record

Mr KATZENRACHI don't think that you can
Senator MONDALEDid I misunderstand what you were saying
Mr KATZENRACHNo I think you characterized it slightly different

than I would have characterized it Senator I believe as I said that
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simply exposing this gets you a long way toward solving it and makes
it much more difficult for it to re-occur with the gentleman serving al
most half a century in that job with his own views

If we have similar problems the Congress ought to think of them in
other agencies I didn't mean to say that that was the end of what the
Congress could do I think you can certainly do things tighten up the
wiretapping legislation I have no problem with doing something on
surveillances I think we have got a problem in terms of being sure
that you can hold the Attorney General responsible

I would think for example that an Attorney General ought
to have access to Bureau files If he wants them and wants to put
people in for a particular access that I don't think even the staff of this
committee has and I don't think the Attorney General has it today

Senator MO DALE Well I think many of them disappeared in
smoke The OC files just disappeared one day

Mr KATZENBACHI think an attorney trying the ease the principal
trial attorney ought to have full access to all Bureau files in that case
I think procedures of that kind which you could prescribe by legisla
tion or which an Attorney General can prescribe help to hold him
responsible for what's going on

Senator MONDALEIn order to have responsibility you have to have
standards to judge them by

Mr KATZENBACHYes
Senator MONDALEOne of the problems here is to define what are

those standards But our failure to have them specifically defined has
brought us to a point where these agencies have been in disgrace and
where even the spokesman for the FBI yesterday was pleading for a
definition of their authority so they wouldn't continue to be kicked
around the way they are

Your second point was that a good deal of this was simply traceable
to Mr Hoover But how do you explain that while this was going on
we had Operation CHAOS in the CIA which was just about as bad
maybe just as bad You had the IRS freely participating in CO
INTELPRO using the IRS in my opinion illegally for general in
vestigative and surveillance purposes You had another agency of Gov
ernment freely tapping the international lines of communications You
had the postal department opening up thousands of letters illegally
You had all of these agencies participating directly and indirectly not
only on illegal intelligence gathering but harassment neutralization
and all of the rest

Then of course you had the creation of such things as the plumbers
and the infamous Huston plan about which for I think irrelevant
reasons Mr Hoover was the only one to say no Everyone else said
yes including the former Attorney General and the generals in the
services everybody liked it except Mr Hoover He didn't like it

So how can we be content with the notion that we've solved this
problem when we've carefully analyzed Hoover's historic role in the
FBI and we never should let anybody get in that position again

Mr KATZENBACHI don't think we can Senator
Senator MONDALEThen you've written inartfully
Mr KATZENBACHCan I urge you to think of two buckets One is

what kind of rules ought to be legislated what kinds of rules what
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can you do things what procedures you're going to set up by leg
islation Go to it Make them as clear as they can be made Fine

The other side of the problem is administration and that is the
side I was directing it to Make that responsive not merely because
you prescribe the rules but because they're going to be carried out Be
cause Senator the Bureau's rules the Bureau's manual with respect to
informants are pretty good rules There may be areas that ought to be
covered more but they're pretty good they weren't followed

So you have to have the two You have to insure that you're not
going to have an administrative system if you had an agency as not
as severely controlled as the FBI by Mr Hoover or the Attorney Gen
eral you would have heard about that because one of the agents would
have told him or if they were scared to tell him would have told the
press and it would have come out in almost any agency of the Govern
ment It seems to me those kinds of activities would have been leaked
to someone

Senator MO\DALE You talked of Hoover's popularity There's no
question about that He also had a tremendous power of fear over
everybody including Presidents What he knew how he could em
barrass them gave him his chance I think Stalin used to shoot his
KGB agents every 3 years to take care of that problem I don't think
that remedy is available But it's almost similar to trying to get civil
ian control of the military You need civilian control of the investiga
tive agencies to keep them in a place where they are responsive ac
countable and must comply with the law

Mr KATZENBACHI agree with that and I don't think it's the sort
of thing that Mr Clark is talking about the committee ought to seri
ously consider I think they ought to be looked at and examined to see
what you can do by legislation I don't have any problems with that

Senator MONDALEThen I misread your statement I thought you
were saying we just made a mistake in letting one man stay on too long
I remember you said "I believe in a strong executive. Do you see any
thing inconsistent in believing in a strong executive and insisting that
the executive restrain its activities to those permitted by the law

Mr KATZENBACHAbsolutely not and I think that the major func
tion the Congress can perform and perform well is to lay down the
rules and then see through the kind of investigation that you're doing
now whether they are being complied with

Senator MONDALEWell I am past my time I'll ask one question
and I'll ask both of you to respond to it

The history of the FBI is that it was created under the leadership
of Mr Justice Stone for the precise purpose of getting it out of politics
and restraining it to the role of law enforcement to enforce crimes to
enforce the civil laws of the land

Then as the years went on and the fears of the Nazis developed and
of the Communists in the 1930's World War II the cold war civil
strife here at home they forgot that charter and increasingly went
beyond the law into a new role of one imposing political and moral
orthodoxy upon the American people I don't know how else you could
describe it It was this crucial and fateful step beyond the law enforce
ment role that in my opinion turned the FBI to the same kind of
posture of embarrassment that finally led to the termination of its
predecessor the Bureau of Investigation
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Would you agree with me that one of the essential and crucial steps
to be taken if we're going to prevent the recurrence of this problem is
to somehow very carefully and effectively restrain all of these orga
nizations from ever again getting into the so-called political ideologi
cal roles that we have seen

Mr KATZENBACHYes I do agree with that Senator I think you'll
have to face the problem in the future that will not be the problem of
the Communist Party I will make it somewhat simpler You will have
to face the problem of political ideological groups who are going to
be engaged in acts of violence Violence is getting easier and easier
and you're going to have to face the problem and set up procedures to
determine not on the political beliefs but that will permit an investi
gation where there is some reason to believe the group might actually
be engaged in violence And I think it's important to concentrate on
that

Senator MONDALEThat could be defined couldn't it
Mr KATZENBACHAt least you could define the procedure and you

could define some standard You cannot get rid of all discretion
Senator MONDALEYou could make it subject to a warrant couldn't

you
Mr KATZENBACHNo I don't think so
Senator MONDALEWhy not
Mr KATZENBACHWell you could Obviously you could Congress

can legislate anything that's not unconstitutional I don't think a war
rant would be the proper way to go about it It might be for what 
depending upon what technique you're talking about

I would concentrate on the question of who is going to be investi
gating as a more important question than the means of investigation
If you're talking in the political area the standards are the who not
the how

Mr CLARK Senator I agree with your statement of the historical
development It is as perceptive and brief a statement as could have
been made on the situation as I see it I agree that the failure was
that the Bureau became ideological and that is the antithesis of the
uninhibited investigator who has to follow any fact any place it
leads him

I think the solution is to limit investigations to criminal matters
defined by statute I believe it is improper to use public funds to gather
information about people we don't like or we are afraid of I think
if we continue to permit that not only will we inhibit the discovery of
truth and the testing of unpopular ideas and personalities in the mar
ketplace of public opinion but that we will risk a police state because
we have seen pervasive police activities and we shouldn't blink at it
I think the investigator must not be a know-nothing but that the
information that he has generally about activities and people and
ideas should come from public sources and be publically available
when you get to the place of assembly and if you do that then I
don't think that we need to fear except by violation of the law abuse
of investigative power that can get us back into the situation we've
just been through

Senator MONDALEI just want to conclude that I talked to an old
high-level retired FBI agent and he put it simply He said we were
a great organization until we got into politics and politics ruined us
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Senator TOWERSenator Mathias
Senator M:1'rIII:1s Thank you Mr Chairman
I basically have one comprehensive question which I would ad

dress first to Mr hatzenbach The committee's investigation of the
domestic intelligence function in a very real sense is a historical
study And history can be nothing more than an afternoon's amuse
ment if you can call it that unless we make some use of it And it is
in that spirit that I would like to explore what I think is one of the
fundamental issues now on the record first that everything we've
talked about mail openings COINTELPRO informants bugs wire
taps whatever the technique may be is always preceded by one con
scious deliberate human act and that is the decision to undertake
domestic intelligence investigation of a group or of any individual
Some human being has to make that decision or some group of human
beings

In the past that decision has been primarily within the sole discre
tion or largely in the sole discretion of the Bureau and I think it is
fair to the Bureau to say that in the overwhelming number of cases it
has been a discretion that has been exercised soundly and properly

But the Constitution recognizes that whether it's the Congress that's
involved or whether it's the Presidency that's involved or whether
it's the courts that are involved you have to have some check and
balance in the exercise of discretion

Now you have said in your statement that decent law enforcement
is always less a matter of legislative prescription than the judgment
of people I would set up against that the man who appears to be the
favorite source of quotations for this committee to date and that's
James Madison who said that if men were angels no government
would be necessary and although a dependence on the people is no
doubt the primary control on the government experience has taught
mankind the necessity of auxiliary precaution So I suppose to use
that phrase from Madison what kind of auxiliary precautions do you
and I hope that Mr Clark would address himself to the same question
what kind of precautions would you suggest to us in the light of your
experience as Attorney General

Mr KATZESBACHI think you're quite right in saying that in the
sort of a political area it spilled over when the Communist Party
perhaps the Nazi party a little bit but primarily the Communist Party
and into the cold war period and so forth it just spilled over into other
radical groups That's an awful standard The Communist Party it
self I still don't know if faced with that situation really how to deal
with if you assume the Communist Party is a disciplined organiza
tion operating under the control of a foreign power that is a very
difficult problem to know how you deal with it It shouldn't spill over
into other ideological groups

I think today the point I was trying to make in a way with Sena
tor Mondale you can proscribe certain techniques but I think the
problem of who is investigated is a difficult one I agree with Mr
Clark it should be today when you have reason to believe that crimes
are committed or are about to be committed then investigate I think
when you're talking about political groups and some political groups
will resort to violent activities an open investigation into that group
to determine which members are spawning violence I think that pro
cedures should be set up which puts that decision squarely in the hands
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of the Attorney General with a written memorandum which he
preserves as to what facts were presented to him

Senator MATHIAS Could you analogize what you are suggesting to
the Attorney General's fourth amendment role in wiretaps for ex
ample under the present practice

Mr KATZENBACHWell I wouldn't want to because I think the
present statute goes further and probably requires less because it uses
national security a term I think virtually is undefined and is virtually
undefinable I think I would limit it to today I would limit it to reason
to believe that crimes have been committed or are going to be
committed

But because it's a political organization I think particular care
should be taken in terms of opening up an investigation for the reason
that I think any investigation is obviously an invasion of privacy
otherwise enjoyed obviously can have some disruptive effects And
then I think I would concentrate some on the techniques that ought
to be permitted and the procedures there

Senator MATHIAS Mr Clark would you like to comment on that
Mr CLARK I think you have asked the most critical question and

I guess I think this is the question that my paper basically addressed
certainly the nine points that I made

You have an assumption however that I have to disagree with I
don't believe that ordinarily these things begin with a conscious
deliberate decision that there's nothing that's gone before and sud
denly there's a decision and everything flows after it I think when I
try to analyze my experience with different investigations what I see
is a long preliminary period where there are beginnings and there's
information coming in

Senator MATHIAS You find a bottlecap manufacturer who hasn't
paid his sales tax and it leads you to a bootlegger sooner or later

Mr CLARK Well you take the slow development of the FBI's ad
dressing the phenomenon of organized crime I think as late as the
mid-1950s Mr Hoover was saying organized crime or the Mafia didn't
exist but finally there was an accumulation of both FBI cases and
investigations and a bunch of little statutes that gave them very little
reach into it of knowledge that to challenge that assumption

The very thing with wiretaps Mr Hoover opposed the use of wire
taps late into the 1930's 1937 1938 as I recall So I think those things
go slowly

I believe if we are going to be a Government of laws that we have
to have regular procedures that we have to inform agents of activi
ties that are permitted I really do not believe that group investigations
unrelated to facts and acts pertain to every member of the group In
other words I don't think the group can be larger than the number of
people that you have probable cause are acting or are about to act
In other words inevitably you're getting into the Boy Scouts and
everybody in the Boy Scouts is going to be involved In the Ku Klux
Klan everybody in the Ku Klux Klan was suddenly involved That's
a dangerous way to address the problems of crime and antisocial con
duct by people who want to live in freedom They ought to be based
on acts and individuals and not organizations or beliefs

Senator MATHIASThank you very much Mr Chairman
Senator TOWERSenator Morgan
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Senator MORGANMr Clark would you go a little further
Did I understand from your last statement that you thought the

investigation should be based on acts of individuals rather than neces
sarily their views

Am I following you correctly
Mr CLARKYes
I even believe that and I have for many years Senator our

conspiracy law I think the body of conspiracy law so to speak has
developed to such a state that it is inherently unfair We ought to get
away from it and address acts The law should address acts individu
ally

Senator MORGANMr Clark I certainly agree with you that the
conspiracy law constitutes one of the greatest threats to our freedom
of any law that I know of

Now Mr Katzenbach am I correct in my recollection that some
where along the way you did know that bugs were being placed in Dr
Martin Luther King's offices or hotel rooms or someplace that he was

Mr KATZENBACHI have no recollection of that I do have a recol
lection of a wiretap in the SCLC office I do have a recollection of the
wiretap that I took off from Dr King's home phone

Senator MORGANI think I remember some other document that
we had

Mr KATZENBACHThere were three documents and we discussed
them earlier Senator where I said I had no recollection and I
strongly believed I would have a recollection of them if I had seen
them They do bear my initials in what appears to be my handwrit
ing and that is a problem for me because clearly if I did initial them
I did see them And they did constitute notice after the fact of instal
lation for less than 24 hours on three separate occasions installation
without my prior authorization and installation not in accordance in
my judgment with the practices that I had laid down And I believe
if they had been presented to me in advance and I assume in fact
they occurred from these documents

Senator MORGANWell one of the things I find in your statement
and I heard that interests me on page 42,1 you state that you were
informed by a reporter that the reporter had been offered a tape by a
member of the FBI which contained derogatory materials concern
ing I)r Martin Luther King which I believe he said I can't find the
exact statement '`that came from bugs or tapes, and you went to the
President but you never at any time asked Mr Hoover where the tape
was whether there was such a tape in existence

Did you pursue that in any way
Mr KATZENBACHI did not pursue that with Mr Hoover myself

I did pursue it with the Bureau agent involved The reporter in my
recollection Senator the reporter identified the Bureau agent in
volved and identified that tape as a Georgia Bureau of Investigation
tape not as a Bureau tape

Senator MORGANMr Katzenbach I don't quite understand unless
I take your statement on the whole that you frankly were afraid to
deal with Mr Hoover

Mr KATzENBACI3No sir frankly I felt that the President would
deal with Mr Hoover and I believed that he did
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Senator MORGANBut you went to the President You didn't go to
Mr Hoover about this tape and I assume that's why the President had

appointed you as Attorney General
Mr KATZENBACIII wasn't at that time Attorney General I was

acting
Senator MoRGAN You were Acting Attorney General
Mr KATZEyBACIII was acting
Senator MORGANBut you still had the responsibility for the direc

tion of the Federal Bureau of Investigation didn't you
Mr KATZENBACHYes sir I certainly did
Senator MORGANAnd you did not inquire of Mr Hoover or any

other high official if such a tape existed in the Georgia office or any
where else

Mr KATZENBACHIt was denied to me Senator
Senator MORGANBy whom
Mr KATZENBACHBy the agent who did it
Senator MORGANYou didn't pursue it any further than that
Mr KATZENBACHI certainly slid I went to the President
Senator MORGANYou're implying Mr Katzenbach in your state

ment. that you resigned over a disagreement or because of the bitter
ness that had grown up between you and Mr Hoover

Mr KATZENBACIIThat was certainly a factor Senator
Senator MORGANWas any such reference made to that point when

you resigned and did you warn the public about what you conceived
to be a threat from the Federal Bureau of Investigation

Mr KATZENBACHNo I certainly didn't Senator I didn't conceive
it to be that threat at that time

Senator MORGANWell did you not conceive the situation in which
the Attorney General who had responsibility over the conduct of the
Bureau the Federal Bureau of Investigation you didn't conceive of
that relationship as being a threat to the orderly operation of the

Department of Justice over the Bureau
Mr KATZENBACHOh I felt that it was I didn't think that fact

was secret Senator I think Mr Hoover's reputation and knowledge
and power were known to the public on the Hill everywhere I don't
think anybody in either House of Congress thought that any Attorney
General could exercise the theoretical power he had in firing Mr
Hoover

Senator MORGANDid you ever ask Mr Hoover for any information
that he refused to furnish you

Mr KATZENBACHI don't recall ever asking for any information
that he refused to furnish to me Whether the information I got was
accurate or not I don't know or whether it was all the information in
the files but I don't recall him ever saying "you have asked me for
this and I will not give you that information.

Senator MORGANWell did he ever fail to satisfy you with regard
to any requests to the extent that you went back and asked for more
information

Mr KATZENBACF7Well there were a number of occasions where I
wanted the Bureau to get into something and they didn't want to

get into it I guess that's really what you're talking about
Senator MoRGAN Did he ever fail to carry out any instructions or

orders that you gave him
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Mr KATZENBACHIt seems clear to me that if he installed these
three bugs he failed to carry out the orders and instructions that 1
gave him but I did not know that or 1 have no recollection of knowing
that at the time

Senator MORGANNow earlier you made the statement that in light
of the horrible experiences and crimes that were committed you
thought that anything you could do to disrupt the Klan was justifiable
Do you place all Klan members all across the country in that category

Mr KATZENBACHSenator I never said that or even made a state
ment like that and I don't think that kind of characterization of my
testimony is a worthy one

Senator MORGANWell Mr Katzenbach you did make it a little
earlier You even said "not like the Communist Party. We'll ask the
reporter to read it back

Mr KATZENBACHAll right sir On what I said about the Klan on
disruption if I said anything at all which is what you just now said
of course I didn't say that Senator

Senator MORGANWell if you did not I misunderstood you But
you said that you cited a number of crimes that had been committed
which we all applauded You said as I understood you to say "we're
not dealing with anything like the Communist Party, and you named
some other organizations the Southern Christian Leadership Con
ference but you're dealing with I forgot exactly how you char
acterized it but would you now subscribe to Mr Clark's theory that
you must deal with individuals and investigate individuals and not
characterize a whole group

Mr KATZENBACHI don't think that I would Senator because if
we'd have been dealing with individuals we would have been dealing
with the members of that group

Senator MORGANAll of them
Mr KATZENBACHWell you'd want to find out which ones and

the way you would find out would be through informants within the
group and indeed that is what happened in the case of the White
Knights that's exactly what happened I think you have justice I
don't see the distinction I hate to disagree with Ramsey because he's
often right and I'm wrong but I don't see any distinction to go after
the six top members of the group that it's any different from going
after the group

Senator MORGANWell because there were some in the group do
you justify discrediting all of the members of the group

Mr KATZENBACHWe were not talking about all Klans Senator
but we were talking about certain segments of the Klan in certain
places We were talking primarily about the White Knights I believe
that all of the members of that group were dedicated to and preached
violence and other unlawful deprivations of the rights of individuals

Now members went to different extremes as to what they did but
I believe that they were all dedicated to an unlawful purpose to be
carried out by unlawful means

Senator MORGANSo by your belief that they were all then youwere willing to disrupt their activities whether you had evidence on
those individuals or not

Mr KATZExBAcrr Senator I described this in my opening statement
Tsay that I was not to the best of my recollection aware of any activi
ties that I regarded as improper and then I name them
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Now even in that context
Senator MORGANI'm sorry I can't hear you Mr Katzenbach
Mr KATZEyBACHI'm sorry Previously I described what I regarded

as the Klan investigation, an investigation of their violent acts to
be and I don't see anyplace on there where I say what you characterize
as my testimony

Senator MORGANWell didn't you just say a moment ago that all
members of the White Knights were dedicated to violence You said
that just a moment ago

Mr KATZENBAGHYes sir I said criminal deprivations and I think
that they were And if saying all is too broad a statement let's take 98

percent They talked at their meetings they took credit at their meet

ings for the murders of Chaney and Schwerner and Goodman open
at their meetings

Senator TOWERAll right Now you've made a broad statement Doc
ument it When

Mr KATZENBACHYes sir I will I would be happy to supply doc
umentation [See Appendix A page 841]

Senator MORGANAll right Would you please supply it and let's

go on to something else
We talked about Mr Hoover I want to ask you if you didn't testify

informally yesterday afternoon before some staff members that you
personally asked Hoover to float a false rumor that James Meredith
was going to register at the University of Mississippi and that Mr
Hoover refused because you wanted to see what the KKK's reaction
was

Mr KATZENBACHThat is substantially correct sir
Senator MORGANSo you did
Mr KATZENBACHI didn't say the KKK part of it was not correct

We had information at the time of the integration of the University
of Mississippi that there were many persons who were going to come
to that campus and come with guns and prepared to commit violence
We got information it was Bureau intelligence they expected people
from as far as Texas and Florida and other States I suggested at that

time and I suggested it to the Assistant Director Al Rosen I said
"since Meredith is going to go on Sunday why don't we float the rumor
that the university will be integrated on Wednesday and see what hap
pens See where there is a lot of convergence of traffic the preceding
Wednesday to see what would happen. And Mr Rosen talked to Mr
Hoover and said Mr Hoover declined to do it because the Bureau
would not be involved in the spreading of any false information So
I dropped it

To this day I think that would have been a useful thing and a lot of
people who got hurt would not have been hurt if we had had that much
intelligence in advance Maybe I was wrong or unethical but I'd do it

again
Senator MORGANIn other words in your mind the ends justify the

means
Mr KATZEyBACHWell I think there are times when the ends justi

fy the means and it depends on what the means are and the ends
are

Senator MORGANWell you were Attorney General in September
1964
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Mr KATZENBACHYes sir I was Attorney General Acting Attor
ney General from September 4 1964 on

Senator MORGANAnd Mr Clark you were Attorney General in
August of 1967

Mr CLARK Yes sir
Senator MORGANI want to read to both of you a comparison of two

memorandums that went out from the Federal Bureau of Investiga
tion while both of you while both of you were Attorney General
It was under your direction even though you may not have exercised
that direction

One was a letter dated September 2 1964 to the Georgia office con
cerning White Hate groups under your administration

Mr KATZENBACHNot technically it wasn't under mine
Senator MORGANWhy wasn't it under your administration
Mr KATZENBACHBecause Mr Kennedy resigned September 3
Senator TOWER Would the Senator suspend for a moment These

gentlemen appear to be coaching the witness If they are acting as
counsel they are acting pro bond Would you please identify your
selves

Mr CUTLERMy name is Lloyd Cutler Senator I'm a friend of Mr
Katzenbach

Mr BARR My name is Thomas Barr Senator and I'm also a friend
of Mr Katzenbach

Senator MORGANWere these gentlemen associated with you in the
Department of Justice

Mr KATZENBACHNo sir
Senator MORGANDo they have any personal knowledge of the mat

ters that we're talking about
Mr KATZENBACHSO Sir
Senator MORGANI believe you said Mr Kennedy resigned 1 day

later
Mr KATZENBACHYes
Senator MORGANThe letter to the
Mr KATZENBACHI don't mean to make a point of that though
Senator MORGANWell at this point what I'm trying to do is to

show that the tactics used by the Bureau went from one side of the
spectrum to the other One went to Atlanta with regard to White
Hate groups under your administration or Mr Kennedy's The other
went to Albany N.Y. to the Black Nationalist under Mr Clark and
I don't mean to say that either one of you had personal knowledge
of it

The first one on the White Hate groups the purpose to "expose
disrupt and otherwise neutralize. With regard to the Black Nation
alists the purpose "to expose disrupt misdirect discredit or other
wise neutralize. No distinction made as to what activities just Black
Nationalists

The second No 2 with White Hate groups there were no individ
uals targeted With the Black Nationalists they were instructed to
target Stokely Carmichael H Rap Brown Elijah Muhammad Max
well Stanford

Three the White Hate group was instructed to concentrate that is
"subject to continuing counterintelligence on "action groups "the
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relatively few individuals in each organizations who use strong-arm
tactics to achieve their ends Often these groups act without the ap
proval of the Klan organization or membership. With regard to the
Black Nationalists no similar distinction was made between violent
and nonviolent Instructions to "counter their propensity for violence
and civil disorder.

With the White Hate No 4 target was "various Klans and hate

organizations their leadership and adherents. With Black Nation
alists target "black nationalist hate-type organizations and group
ings their leadership spokesmen membership and supporters.

Five with the White Hate the "devious maneuvers and duplicity of
these groups must be exposed to public scrutiny. Black Nationalists
the "pernicious background of such groups their duplicity and de
vious maneuvers must be exposed to public scrutiny.

Six with regard to both groups we must frustrate any effort of the

groups to consolidate their forces or to recruit new and youthful
adherents.

Seven with White Hate "capitalize upon organizational and per
sonal conflicts of their leadership. Seven with Black Nationalist "ex

ploit organizational and personal conflicts of the leaderships and
where possible capitalize upon existing conflicts between competing
black nationalist organizations.

With the White Hate when using media "furnish assurances the
source will not reveal the Bureau's interest or betray our confidence.
With the Blacks "insure the targeted group is disrupted ridiculed or
discredited through the publicity and not merely publicized.

I think both of you all have already heard testimony or read docu
ments where false press releases were used

With White Hate groups list of targets 17 Klan organizations
9 hate organizations Alabama States Right Party American Nazi

Party Council for Statehood (also known as Freemen) Fighting
American Nationalists National States Rights Party National Ren
aissance Party United Freemen Viking Youth of America White
Youth Corps Black targets Student Nonviolent Coordinating Com
mittee Southern Christian Leadership Conference Revolutionary Ac
tion Movement Deacons for Defense and Justice Congress of Racial
Equality and Nation of Islam

Ten on both sides "The agent must be alert for information which
has a disruptive potential The information will not come to him he
must look for it.

With regard to the Black Nationalists [reading]
Many individuals currently active in black nationalist organizations have

backgrounds of immorality subversive activity and criminal records Through
your investigation of key agitators you should endeavor to establish their un
savory backgrounds Be alert to determine evidenceof misappropriation of funds
or other types of personal misconducton the part of militant nationalist leaders
so any practical or warranted counterintelligencemay be instituted

With regard to the Black Nationalists [reading]
Consideration is to be given to techniques to preclude violenceprone or rabble

rousing leaders of hate groups from spreading their philosophy publicly or for
various mass media

You are urged to take an enthusiastic and imaginative approach to this new
counterintelligenceendeavorand the Bureau will be pleased to entertain any sug
gestionsor techniquesyoumay recommend
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I think it's true that the Bureau is interested in whole groups and
not just individuals who were subject to this kind of harrassment

I'm sorry Mr Chairman I went over my time
Senator TOWERThat's quite all right You can thank your colleague

from Colorado Mr Hart
Senator HARTof Colorado Gentlemen as with our investigation of

the subject of assassination attempts on foreign leaders in this whole
area there is a constant tension between the theory the runaway
agency in this case the Federal Bureau of Investigation versus the
theory all the Bureau was doing in any of these periods was what they
thought the political leadership of the country wanted them to do
This was as I'm sure you are aware a very difficult problem for this
committee to try to pin down not only responsibility but also to iden
tify how these institutions can prevent some of these abuses in the
future and I think that second goal is more the purpose of this com
mittee than to try to pin blame for the past

And in that connection I would specifically like to ask Mr Clark a
question or two about a specific case in point that I think he was
involved in in the fall of 1967 And that was the establishment of
something called the Interdivision Information Unit within the De
partment of Justice And there are several documents in the period
from September to December 1967 that I think came from the Attor
ney General himself with regard to the establishment of this unit

I'd like to quote you some very brief portions from these documents
and then ask a couple of questions along with the institutional lines
that I started out with

In a memorandum dated September 14 1967 signed by you Mr
Clark [exhibit 47 1]

"In view of the seriousness" all of these relate to riot activities and
I'm sure you can recall some of this

In view of the seriousness of the riot activity across the country it is most
important that you use the maximum available resources investigative and in
telligence to collect and report all facts bearing upon the question as to whether
there has been or is a Schemeor conspiracyby any group of whatever size effec
tiveness or affiliation to plan promote or aggravate riot activity

In the last paragraph of that same memo
Moreover sources or informants in black nationalist organizations SNOCand

other less publicizedgroups should be developedand expanded to determine the
size and purpose of these groups and their relationship to other groups and also
to determine the whereaboutsof persons who might be involvedin instigating riot
activity in violationof federal law

And then in the confidential memorandum that follows it is dated
November 9 1967 relating to the establishment of this unit [ex
hibit 48 2]

To carry out these responsibilities we must make full use of and constantly
endeavor to increase and refine the intelligence available to us both from in
ternal and external sourcesconcerningorganizations and individuals throughout
the country who may play a role either in instigating or spreading disorder or in
preventingor checkingthem

The last paragraph of the memo "You are free to talk with the
FBI and other intelligence agencies" this is the establishment of a
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special unit inside Justice "in the Government to draw on their ex
perience in maintaining similar units in exploring possibilities of
obtaining information we do not now receive and to carry out other
purposes relative to this assignment.

And then finally in a memo from the Attorney General to several
other people involved on December 18 1967 [exhibit 49 1]

It shall be the responsibilityof this unit for reviewing and reducing to quickly
retrievable form all information that may tome to this Department relating
to organizations and individuals throughout the country who may play a role
whether purposefully or not either in instigating or spreading civil disorders
or in preven-ingor checkingthem

Well I think that nobody including the members of this com
mittee are in favor of riots or civil disorders and I don't think the
line of questioning should suggest that anybody condones that The
questioning I think as to Mr (lark should be obvious how do you
carry out your functions as the principal law enforcement officer
using the devices at hand and at the same time do so without estab
lishing or suggesting a mandate to agencies like the FBI that can be
used to infringe upon people's constitutional rights

So is it more caution in use of language What is it What is it
that can be done to prevent this intelligence unit from as apparently
it did being the focal point of the computer list that made its way to
the IRS and became their special list of people in the tens of thou
sands to watch

What can we do in retrospect in your experience to prevent riots
to prevent the breaking of law but not to give institutions like the
FBI the kind of running room that apparently they used to violate
people's constitutional rights

Mr CLARK Well I think the best answer that I can give is con
tained in Nos 1 and 2 of the nine recommendations that I have made
and what they basically do is to divide your knowledge into that
accumulated in the course of the criminal investigation based upon
probable cause to believe that a crime has been or is about to be
committed based upon obviously statutory authorization and hope
fully very soon based upon a legislative prescription prohibited pro
hibitive and regulated investigative technioues and a method of
publicly acumulating knowledge that is essential to be aware simply
be aware of what's going on in your own country and your own town
and your own part of town where there may be trouble

What we found I should say something about IDIU Of course I
was deeply involved in its creation and it began shortly the ideas
that led to it began shortly after the Detroit riots where we found an
unacceptable ignorance of basic data

The Army for instance having to stop at filling stations to get
roadmaps to know which way town was and things like that not
knowing who the Attorney General or the mayor's assistant was
Public information It's a big country and it wasn't accumulated
Also not knowing what was going on locally even though it's public
information reported on the radio there reported in the press You
didn't know where there was a raid on cars that led to the riot Now
I think you cannot function with a know-nothing philosonhv in our
complex society and you have to be able to accumulate knowledge
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that you need to know You have to have quick call on that knowl
edge We found many Federal agencies with knowledge We found
three divisions of the Department of Justice with knowledge that
other divisions didn't have what they needed to know to enforce the
statutes that they had responsibility over The IDIU was initially
an effort to bring together to coordinate to analyze the data that
was available and to hopefully stimulate more information And
the three divisions were the Criminal Division the Civil Rights
Division and the Internal Security Division which had respon
sibility primarily because they have all the manpower and nothing
to do which should have been abolished and I recommended that a
couple of years ago but they were still there and we needed the help
and we called on them

We started out with one young woman a very able young woman
but that was the dimension She couldn't even keep up with the memos
that were coming in from all these agencies I couldn't keep up with
the ones that were coming in to me alone Of course there were many
more going to the Assistant Attorneys General than I ever saw A total
of 700,000 investigations FBI investigations You heard about that
time 'What we were trying to do was get our knowledge together
where we could use it I believe in a bureaucracy I think it's essential
in mass society But I find it frequently a very unresponsive phe
nomenon You have to prod And I think that language was using
some of their terms to get them to move

Senator HARTof Colorado You think that language was too broad
in retrospect

Mr CLARK I don't like the language and I think it should be you
know a much in the best of all worlds it would be much cooler lan
guage if you will but we would be way beyond where we are now We
would have not just a law and a guidance but a practice and procedure
that would tell us you know what is permissible and what is impermis
sible in that area

I don't think the unit ever had investigative capacity It had no
manpower to investigate It never had the capacity to even organize
the information it got by the time we left as far as I know and what
happened later I can't say for sure I think the idea was right It does
not always help to recall the past but in August of that year or per
haps early September there was for instance an article in Life maga
zine with pictures of people with rifles on tops of buildings saying that
the same groups are causing riots throughout the cities The then Gov
ernor of Maryland was quoted on the front page of the WashingtonPost one morning saying that he had information that the same peo
ple it was Mr Agnew had caused the riot in Newark and Detroit
and we tried to find out how come he knew so much more about it
than we did

That was the temper of the country There was a real belief as there
always is when you're afraid that there were some evil conspirators
out there that are causing all of your problems And I think that
needed to be addressed And the idea that this was done secretly is
wrong The information you know was publicly announced The
White House referred to it on a number of occasions It was something
that we felt essential and was not a secret operation at all

Senator HARTof Colorado Well I don't believe I suggested it was
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Mr CLARKWell you said a confidential document and it may have
been a confidential document in the formulative stage but we
announced it

Senator HARTof Colorado Well the November document says that
"Planning and creation of the unit must be kept in strictest
confidence.

But I think you said in a passing phrase it was quite a comment
that you said "I don't know what happened to it after I left. That is
part of the problem People with good intentions often leave and they
are replaced with people whose intentions are not the same as theirs

It is the capability of computer lists and enemies of the state that
bothers all and I think any help that you can give us on the guidelines
however beneficial and helpful and necessary such an operation may
have been at that time what can be done to head it about so that it
isn't used by someone who doesn't have the same constitutional ideals
as someone who put it together

Mr CLARK Well we never know what happens when we leave We
have to operate on faith finally don't we the assumption that our suc
cessors will act in as good faith as we do

Senator HARTof Colorado No
Mr CLARK Well above all you can't refuse to do anything out of

fear that someone won't later fulfill their responsibility and the idea
that I could bind some subsequent Attorney General see I didn't
know that Mr Mitchell was going to replace me at the time In fact
I didn't know who he was until several years after he was Attorney
General

Mr KATZENBACIIWell you did know he wasn't going to use you
Senator HARTof Colorado Well I would quarrel with you I think

that is why we have laws I think we can use the laws and the regula
tions that spring from it to prevent the kind of abuses that we've had
in the last few years But I do think that you have to take the worst
case assumption about human nature sometimes particularly with the
kind of power that we're talking about here to see what can be done
to regulate and control them and not just say that I hope the fellow
that follows me is as good as I am

Mr CLARKWell I hoped that he was better but I am not sure that
we really disagree I believe the checks are central I have gone beyond
what I have ever believed the Congress would do in checks It's all
there But with all those the idea that you can proceed finally other
than with faith with cautions and prudence but faith is wrong You
have to believe finally in the good will of the people and the good will
of future administrations and the idea that you can bind them now
and watch the night watchman is wrong There are 7,700 FBI agents
and how I could ever hope to know of their individual activities is
beyond I think the capacity of technology or humanity You have to
believe that they care You have to believe that they know what their
duty is and you have to believe that in the main they will do their
duty and then you have to have systems that will hopefully reveal
their failure

Senator HARTof Colorado Well I share your faith in the people of
this country perhaps less in future administrations Thank you

Senator TowER Mr Clark in your printed statement that you sub
mitted for the record you said where techniques inherently limited
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freedom "such as paid informants or electronic surveillance I oppose
both are authorized by law they should be stringently regulated. I
believe that in your oral statement you did say you felt they should be
outlawed

Mr CLARKThat is correct
Senator TowER Or that electronic surveillance should be outlawed
Mr CLARKI would outlaw both
Senator Tower You'd outlaw both
Mr CLARK Yes I think that paid informants finally destroy the

faith I was talking about earlier and when you meet some of the paid
informants on the other side of the counsel table in cases that I've met
in the last 5 years you don't like what our Government has been doing
It is an inherently corrupting phenomenon and it is not necessary to
effective investigation and the sooner we break away from that the
sooner we will be more effective and freer

Senator TOWER According to documents in the possession of the
committee and according to the testimony of Mr DeLoach this morn
ing you on October 29 1966 ordered the physical surveillance of
Mrs Anna Chennault which included electronic surveillance is that
correct

Mr CLARK That's ridiculous Senator I don't think I ever heard
anything like that before in my life Absolutely false I don't know
what you're reading from that I ordered it

Senator TowER Let me read Mr DeLoach's testimony
To the best of my recollection on that specificcase the Executive Director

I believe the Executive Secretary of the National Security Council Mr J
Bromley Smith called me on one occasion and indicated the President of the
United States wanted this done I told Mr Smith that I thought what he should
do is call the Attorney General concerning this matter and I believe either
Mr Hoover or I later received a call from the Attorney General indicating that
this shouldbedone

Mr CLARKI never heard of it
Senator TowER We have in hand an FBI document a memoran

dum from Mr Sullivan to Mr John Dean in the White House dated
February 1 1975 It's

Mr CLARK 1975
Senator TowER Yes This is a recent investigation It says on

October 29 1968 Mr J Bromley Smith on the White House staff
the Executive Secretary of the National Security Council was in tele
phone contact with Cartha D DeLoach former assistant to the Direc
tor of the Federal Bureau of Investigation Smith advised that he
was speaking on behalf of President Lyndon B Johnson requested a
telephone surveillance be installed on the Embassy of South Vietnam
He stated there was urgent need for the White House to know the
identity of every individual going into the South Vietnamese Em
bassy for a 3-day period Physical surveillance of the embassy was
instituted immediately Director Hoover sent in a written request to
then Attorney General Ramsey Clark on October 29 1968 The At
torney General authorized the installation

Another reference to the South Vietnamese Embassy installation
and then on October 30 1968 Smith advised that President Johnson
desired immediate physical surveillance of Mrs Anna Chennault the
widow of Gen Claire Chennault of Flying Tiger fame Physical
surveillance was instituted on Mrs Chennault to cover her activities
in Washington D.C
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So you had no knowledge of that
Mr CLARK Senator you didn't ask me about the Vietnamese Em

bassy did you
Senator TOWERNo I did not That was just included in here
Mr CLARK I authorized electronic surveillance on a good many

embassies in the national security field
Senator TowER I understand that That's not part of my reasons
Mr CLARK But the rest I never heard of
Senator TowER You did not authorize electronic surveillance on

Mrs Chennault
Mr CLARK Or physical surveillance
Senator TOWER DeLoach testified to our committee earlier "The

usual physical surveillance as I recall Senator following her to
places where she went in the city of Washington and as I recall a
statement made this morning also a trip that she made to New York.

I then asked DeLoach "Did it involve the constant monitoring of
any and all of her incoming and outgoing telephone calls

Mr DeLoach replied "I believe the instructions of the President
and at the instruction and approval of the Attorney General that a
wiretap was placed on her telephone sir.

Mr CLARKWell he believed wrong
Senator TowER So you never authorized that
Mr CLARKNever authorized it never heard of it until this moment
Senator TowER Do you think M'r DeLoach perjured himself before

this committee
Mr CLARK Well I can't read his mind You'll have to examine

him to determine that
Senator TowER Well apparently the FBI did do it You will not

state that the FBI did not do it
Mr CLARKI don't know whether the FBI did it I know that I had

never heard of it until this moment
Senator TowER Well there were a lot of reports on Mrs Chennault's

comings and goings also included here in memorandums that were sent
to the White House on the surveillance of Mrs Chennault

Mr CLARK Do any of them show a copy going to the Attorney
General

Senator TOWER No This is directly from the FBI to the White
House These reports of Mrs Chennault's movements they do not
indicate anything to the Attorney General

Mr CLARKI never heard of them
Senator TOWERYou were not aware this was going on
Mr CLARK I never heard of them I turned down scores of

requests
Senator TowER If you had been aware of it would you have ordered

it stopped or suggested to the White House
Mr CLARK Well I would have to know what the grounds for it

were
Senator TOWERBut you were not aware that it was occurring
Mr CLARK I never heard of it T never heard anything about it I

didn't know what the grounds were How could I
Senator TOWERThe FBI resisted it originally on the grounds that

according to the testimony and according to this document the FBI
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insisted that the order come from the Attorney General because the
FBI apparently reasoned that this was a political surveillance

Mr CLARKWell the President's Executive order Perhaps it wasn't
done on Executive order at least a memo from the President in
structed to all agencies that there be no electronic surveillance without
the approval of the Attorney General so it would I guess he could
countermand his own order but it would be required by his own order
But there is no I never heard of it

Senator TOWER Well in the absence of any grounds of suspected
criminal activity would you suspect that that would be a violation of
Mrs Chennault's rights

Mr CLARK Certainly
Senator TowER Thank you
Mr Katzenbach you've indicated that if the documents mentioned

by Mr Smothers were in fact initialed by you that they would con
stitute some evidence of dereliction of your duty as Attorney General
Now you've further indicated that although the initials on these docu
ments appear to be in your hand you would remember these documents
if you had seen them Is there any plausible reason or any rationale
which comes to your mind which should lead the committee to conclude
that these documents and your handwritten note of December 10 of
the same year are anything other than genuine

Mr KATZENBACHThe handwritten note is genuine I testified to
that I think that "dereliction of duties was Mr Smothers words not
my own I think I would have certainly remembered if I had seen
them

Senator TOWER You're suggesting then that your initials are
forged

Mr KATZENBACHI suppose that has to be a possibility The other
possibility Senator is that for some reason on three separate occasions
these documents came to my office I saw them I initialled them and
in some way was careless about the reading of them because against
all of the facts I put in my statement I believe very strongly that I
would have recollected it It is hard for me to see how I could have 
on one occasion sure I might have missed a sentence at the end and
thought it was just another information memo on Martin Luther
King It's hard for me to believe that I could miss that on three And
of course if the December 10 note in fact refers to the December 1
memorandum then clearly I read that one

Senator TOWERThank you Mr Katzenbach
Mr Schwarz
Mr SCHWARZMr Clark I want to discuss a remedy problem that

you haven't gotten into and get your views on it
Does the FBI frequently rely on local police to provide them with

information
Mr CLARK Yes a great deal of information more than that liter

ally cases are turned over to the FBI by the local police
Mr SCHWARZAnd that's a relationship which is of course impor

tant for the FBI carrying out its investigative activities
Mr CLARK I think it is essential to effective investigation in the

Federal system
Mr SCFiwARZNow I asked one of the associate counsel to show youtwo documents from Director Hoover written shortly after the Demo

cratic Convention in 1968
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Have you got those
Mr CLARKWell it looks like I'm about to have them
Mr SCHWARZWell before I question you about the documents did

you in your capacity as Attorney General look into the beating of
demonstrators that occurred at that convention

Mr CLARK Oh yeah you see I had sent Roger Wilkins who was
head of the Community Relations Service out there a month before
I sent out Wes Pomeroy who was special assistant for the law en
forcement experience The Deputy Attorney General went out at the
time Bob Owen from the Civil Rights Division was out there We
had urged the city to give permits to demonstrate to give a permit
to take the stadium over where Lakeshore Drive is We had an in
vestigation underway I think by the Saturday a formal investiga
tion I was working with the principal people involved by that
weekend

Mr SCHWARZThe weekend after the convention
Mr CLARKAt the end of the convention
Mr SCHWARZAnd did you involve the Bureau in the events which

had taken place in Chicago
Mr CLARKWell I'm sure we did
Mr SCHWARZThere's no evidence you ever got these documents

and I'm not in any way suggesting that you did but I'd like to read
into the record what Director Hoover instructed his Bureau chiefs to
do in connectior with that investigation First from the document of
August 28 1968 [Exhibit 50] 1 He refers in the first paragraph to
the fact that the police had been criticized for using undue force and
then in the next paragraph instructs the agent in charge in Chicago as
follows "The Bureau should be alert to the situation and be in a posi
tion to refute unfounded allegations whenever possible.

And then in the telegram of September 3 to about 14 Bureau offices
he instructed them as follows [exhibit 51] 2

In view of recent accusations against Chicago authorities relating to their
handling of demonstrators at the Democratic National Convention the Bureau
desires to collect all possible information regarding provocations of police by
demonstrators and the reactions of the policethereto

Those excerpts indicate that what Director Hoover was interested
in was refuting the charge that the local police had beaten the demon
strators and the question first did you know that Director Hoover
had issued those instructions

Mr CLARKNo That's contrary to anything I ever heard
Mr SCHWARZWould you regard those instructions as proper
Mr CLARKNo they are highly improper
Mr SCHWARZNow the problem or remedy I'd like you to focus

on given the fact that the Bureau must necessarily depend upon
good close relationships with local police and given this instance of
attempting to disprove allegations against local police what if any
thing should the committee focus on as far as that relationship and
that problem

Mr CLARK Well the question raises all the issues that cause me to
place as the number one civil rights enforcement priority official mis
conduct In the Orangeburg massacre for instance we finally had to

1Seep 5352Seep 537
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take the investigation essentially away from the FRI In this Chicago
situation I sent two teams out one from the Civil Rights Division
with its statutes to enforce and one from the Criminal Division with
its statutes to enforce and eight police officers had true bills returned
against them while I was Attorney General had true hills voted against
them They were not fornially returned until later

This is the problem that we had throughout the South particularly
while the so-called resident agent policy was in operation where an
agent could opt out of promotion or opt out of promotion possibilities
and remain as a resident agent and soon came to identify more closely
with the local sheriff's office and the local police department than he
did with his own superiors because that's where he lived and that's
where he operated every day And I guess the operational solution
that we found was the general intercession in these critically impor
tant cases because they really test the integrity of governments and
they will act to redress wrongful conduct by their own at some other
level or other levels of government

I guess we found it necessary to use the Civil Rights Division and
that is basically what we did

Now what can be done better than that I hope we can find some
thing better than that to do That is awfully hard I think rotation
of personnel I think interchange of personnel for instance I think
you could enact into law or you can see that the offices of investiga
tion have a policy if there are charges of police misconduct against
the sheriff's office in Los Angeles for instance that agents will be
used for investigation from Chicago or someplace else But there's
that sort of problem or that sort of possible technique

I would be inclined against the establishment of an investigative
agency exclusively for this purpose Those too get out of hand You
need to have an institution with overall integrity that can function
that way but I think there are techniques that can reduce the problem

At Orangeburg it took us weeks to discover that the Special Agent
in Charge was sharing a hotel room with the head of the State
police who had been at the scene of the killings and those are hard
lessons to learn We just pre-empted the FBI in those cases I guess
I think that's something that really requires some legislative evalua
tion and perhaps resource because it is imperative that official mis
conduct be the highest priority in Federal enforcement

Senator TOWERSenator Morgan do you have any more questions
Senator MORGANNo
Senator TOWER Gentlemen thank you for appearing today and

thank you for your cooperation with the committee
Tomorrow afternoon the committee will reassemble at 2 o'clock

The witnesses will be Mr Corey and Mr Dungan former Ambas
sadors to Chile preceded by a staff briefing

The committee will stand in recess until 2 p.m tomorrow after
noon

[Whereupon at 4 :40 p.m. the committee recessed to reconvene at 2
p.m. Thursday December 4 1975.]
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U.S SENATE
SELECTC10MMIIIEETo STUDYGOVERNMENTALOPERATIONS

WITH RESPECTTO INTELLIGENCEACTIVITIES
Washington D.C

The committee met pursuant to notice at 11 :05 a.m. in room 318
Russell Senate Office Building Senator Frank Church (chairman)
presiding

Present Senators Church and Schweiker
Also present William Miller staff director Frederick A O

Schwarz Jr. chief counsel and Curtis R Smothers counsel to the
minority

The CHAIRMAN The hearing this morning marks a transition in
the work of the committee Heretofore we have been focusing on abuses
unlawful conduct wrongdoing which together have constituted the
investigative phase of the committee's work

Today and in future public hearings of the committee we shall be
concentrating on remedies

We have three witnesses this morning Our first witness is William
Ruckelshaus who under the Nixon administration served as Assistant
Attorney General for the Civil Division in the Justice Department
and then as head of the Environmental Protection Administration
Following the resignation of L Patrick Gray in 1973 Mr Ruckels
haus was appointed Acting FBI Director for several months until
the nomination of Director Kelley He then was appointed Deputy
Attorney General under Elliot Richardson and began a full-scale
study of the FBI This was interrupted by his departure in October
of 1973 which is sometimes referred to as the Saturday Night Mas
sacre He is currently in the private practice of law

Our second witness is Mr Henry Petersen He was appointed head
of the Criminal Division's Organized Crime Section in the mid-1960's
He served as Deputy Assistant Attorney General in 1969 and As
sistant Attorney General in 1972 Attorney General Saxbe directed
him in 1974 to head an interdepartmental committee to study FBI
COINTELPRO activities that have been heretofore disclosed by the
committee in its investigatory work The Justice Department's Inter
nal Security Division was a bold issue and its function transferred to
the Criminal Division under Assistant Attorney General Petersen He
retired from the Department in early 1975 and he is currently in the
private practice of law

Our third witness is Mr Norman Dorsen who will be here shortly
He is currently a professor of law at New York University and Gen

( 257 )



258

eral Counsel of the American Civil Liberties Union and president of
the Society of American Law Teachers He has written extensively on
Government secrecy executive and legislative powers and their rela
tionship to individual rights under the Constitution

Mr Ruckelshaus I know that you have an opening statement you
would like to make at this time I wonder if you will proceed with your
statement and then we will go to questions

TESTIMONY OF WILLIAM RUCKELSHAUS FORMER ASSISTANT AT
TORNEY GENERAL CIVIL DIVISION FORMER ACTING DIREC

TOR FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION FORMER DEPUTY
ATTORNEY GENERAL HENRY PETERSEN FORMER DEPUTY AS
SISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL AND ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GEN

ERAL AND NORMAN DORSEN PROFESSOR OF LAW NEW YORK

UNIVERSITY AND GENERAL COUNSEL AMERICAN CIVIL LIBER
TIES UNION

Mr RUCKELSHAUSMr Chairman I have a short opening state
ment that I would like to make in order to set the framework for an
approach to the problems that the committee is addressing In the
first place I do appreciate the opportunity to appear before this com
mittee The approach I would like to take in testifying is not to con
tribute to the litany of condemnation of past abuses by the FBI I
think given the committee's investigation to date we are in a posi
tion to stipulate abuse The question really is what should be done about
the abuse now so as to avoid it in the future

The nature of the problem facing the committee is I believe in
herent in any free society It is an examination of tension that exists
between individual rights and the common good and it calls for Gov
ernment to strike a balance between them How that balance is struck
depends among other things on our Constitution the will of Congress
the individual making the decision and the historical moment in which
the decision is made These hearings have focused attention on how
the FBI has for decades failed to weigh properly individual rights in
seeking to protect their perception of the common good To attempt to
place all of the blame for the abuse on the FBI or on J Edgar Hoover
is in my opinion to fail to face the fact that both the Congress and the
executive branch ignored a fundamental concern of the Founding
Fathers of this country and permitted too much unchecked power to
accumulate in one man's hands

I think the fact that Hoover greatly abused his power is true But to
paraphrase the old adage when we consider his opportunities we must
marvel at this moderation For more than 40 years he reigned supreme
virtually unchecked by either the executive or legislative branches
This much power must never be permitted amain to be possessed by
one man in our society And I am sure that this committee is attempt
ing to act wisely to prevent its reoccurrence I believe that whatever
power we gave to the FBI or any agency to detect and prevent internal
subversion must be carefully controlled monitored and checked by all
three branches of Government There should be clear statutory au
thority for the FBI to investigate individuals or groups who may
through violence present a threat to other individuals or groups in
the society
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The FBI's power while necessarily general should be spelled out
as carefully as possible in a statute The statute should provide for the
Justice Department to issue guidelines as to how this power will be
implemented These guidelines should be subject to congressional and
public review and comment The guidelines will deal I think neces
sarily primarily with the processes by which individual freedom will
be protected as the FBI seeks to protect the common good The FBI
should be under the control and supervision of the Attorney General
The Director should be appointed for a term of years Eight or 9 years
I think is long enough His appointment should be subject to congres
sional approval He should communicate with the President only
through the Attorney General

The Congress itself needs to establish a strong responsible and re
sponsive oversight committee preferably a joint committee to review
all activity of the FBI including ahead of time before the fact in
vestigative techniques the FBI intends to use in a given class of cases
I am not talking about the specific application of one of these tech
niques in a given case but the technique should be reviewed ahead of
time as to their application to a general class of cases

Assuming adequate safeguards to individual rights and assuming
the protection of material the publication of which could adversely
affect the internal security of the country the committee should be
privy to all information the FBI has relating to any specific investi
gation for the purpose of reviewing the general discharge by the FBI
of its responsibilities This extraordinary power of the committee
must be very cautiously and selectively exercised for the above pur
pose alone And the committee must seek to avoid merely nitpicking
or second guessing a given investigation I think further the commit
tee should avoid injecting itself into an investigation while it is
ongoing if at all possible The committee should operate as openly as
possible given the strictures above mentioned

It is my judgment that all wiretaps should be subject to court order
The standards for so-called foreign wiretaps will be different from
the probable cause standards that apply to criminal wiretaps But
these standards can be developed

Mr Chairman these process changes are not impossible nor overly
complicated They will not insure the total elimination of abuse by
the FBI or any agent given the nature of the power Granted they
will only lessen the likelihood of abuse We must remember that when
ever we are dealing with the grant of power to institutions created
and run by human beings we are subjecting that power to potential
abuse All a free society can do is attempt to create processes to min
imize that potential or in the alternative not locate the power
anywhere

I believe we have an obligation to the common good in this country
to protect the public against violence This necessitates the careful
placing of that protective power and subjecting its exercise to rigorous
control and review That is this committee's charge As a citizen I
certainly wish you well

Mr Chairman one final word As you mentioned in your opening
statement. I spent 80 days as an Acting Director of the FBI And I
left the FBI with two dominant impressions one that the Director
possessed too much unchecked power Your committee is attempting
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to help the country and the executive branch in remedying this prob
lem The second impression that I left the FBI with was the incred
ible dedication and devotion to duty that the individual agent of the
FBI has It is in my experience unmatched in any other institution
in this country And I think that properly channeled and controlled
this esprit de corps that the FBI has is a priceless asset of our country
and we ought not to fritter it away if we can avoid it Thank you Mr
Chairman

The CHAIRMANThank you very much Mr Ruckelshaus We have
a vote Mr Petersen do you have an opening statement of any kind

Mr PETERSENNo I do not Senator
The CHAIRMANAll right since we have a vote on at the moment

and we are waiting for Mr Dorsen why don't we take a brief recess
so that the committee can vote

[Recess.]
The CHAIRMANThe hearing will please come back to order Another

vote is anticipated in a few minutes So we will move along in between
Mr Norman Dorsen has arrived since the hearing began I under
stand Mr Dorsen you have an opening statement you would like to
make

Mr DoRSEN I do It will be very brief I don't know if you
introduced me before. I would like to say that I am general counsel
to the American Civil Liberties I-nion and president of the Society
of American Law Teachers but I am speaking here as an individual
and expressing my own personal views

This committee of course is very familiar with the widespread
evidence of systematic interference with constitutional rights under
the first and fourth amendments that has occurred pursuant to the
program of domestic surveillance There are three broad questions
First should such domestic surveillance be carried out at all Second
if so to what extent in what way pursuant to what guidelines And
third what control can Congress provide what oversight and what
other forms of maintenance of public control are there over this im
portant and dangerous activity

I will make -lust two preliminary comments before getting to these
issues specifically One is that the aspect of domestic surveillance that
disturbs me the most is that since the public and the Congress are fre
quently unaware of what is being done in the people's name there
is no opportunity for public discussion there is no opportunity for
public debate Certain activities are conducted which I am sure many
members of Congress were anpalled at when they became publicly
known What I infer from those facts are (a) to the greatest ex
tent possible there must be public discussion and open government
on these issues and (b) in a sense even more important the ultimate
power to control must he in the Congress and Members of Congress
must not he timid or they must not he fearful or they must not be
apologetic in exercising this resnonsihilitv Second on a much more
detailed level most of the nnblic debate in this area has centered
around wiretapping an eavesdropping and other forms of electronic
or mechanical surveillance

Personally T am much more concerned about informers and inform
ants who are infiltrated into private groups frequently without
any control and certainly without any knowledge of these groups
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in a way that is bound to interfere with their rights of association
I will refer to only one decision of the Supreme Court that is very
important in evaluating and appraising those activities NAACP v
Alabama where the court in 1958 unanimously held that the State of
Alabama did not have the constitutional right to acquire the private
membership lists of the NAACP Now if one has informants secret
informants in organizations all over this country one of the ob
vious purposes is to acquire those membership lists This is a way
very simply of evading a clear unanimous decision of the U.S
Supreme Court written by Mr Justice Harlan and carefully con
sidered within the court itself I don't think it is telling tales out of
school because I was a law clerk to Mr Justice Harlan that year
to say that this was regarded as one of the Court's most important
decisions in that year

The vacuum cleaner of informants picking up all kinds of infor
mation is not only inconsistent with the decision of the Supreme
Court but is inconsistent with the very power of the fourth amend
ment A major purpose of the fourth amendment with precedent
going all the way back to the British Lilburne case is to deal with
what is known as general warrant General warrants do not identify
specifically what the seeker after information wants It permits the
seeker after information to roam at large pick up any kind of infor
mation that he or she can acquire and then do what he wants with
that information An informant is the modern equivalent of the
general warrant I believe it is vital that that particular form of in
filtration be given careful scrutiny and controlled by the Congress

Let us turn now to what I suppose may be a key question before the
committee should covert domestic infiltration and surveillance be
conducted at all The very easy answer to that question and I am
sure it is an answer that many people will express is well this is a
very bad idea in general constitutional rights are involved but con
stitutional rights are not absolute and it is very important to the
security of the country that certain types of information be obtained
We want to be very careful in the way we go about it we therefore
must use the kind of balancing test that the Supreme Court has said
is relevant to some other first amendment and fourth amendment
cases we therefore must have guidelines and we must have some spe
cific form of control But here is the key we don't want to abolish
covert activities and domestic surveillance of the kind that has been
conducted in the past

If I may say so that sounds like a very reasonable position It is a
very easy position to take But I question whether it is the correct
position At the very least it seems to me that a heavy burden of proof
should be placed upon those who want to conduct anticonstitutional
surveillance in the future The reasons for this are very simple stem
ming from the record as I understand the record to be That record
shows one important thing large scale violations of constitutional
rights It does not show another thing It does not show what the
value of the infiltration has been what crimes have been prevented
the nature of the success that the Bureau and other law enforcement
officials have obtained In other words one side of the balance is com
pletely empty as far as the public record is concerned and the other
side of the balance shows severe restrictions on constitutional rights



262

What does that mean In answering this question I recognize I am
not privy as my colleagues in the panel have been to some of the
secret information which might explain what has happened in the
past But there are two inferences that I think can be drawn One is
that there is a heavy burden of proof on anyone who wants to justify
any kind of surveillance of this character This burden of proof is
the product of a constitutional mandate not only the constitutional
mandate that I have already expressed the fact that there has been
admitted violations of individual rights but a constitutional mandate
as recently and frequently expressed by the U.S Supreme Court
in some of the most conspicuous decisions of the past generation

I will mention several right now One is Youngstown Sheet & Tool
in which the Supreme Court rejected President Truman's claim of
inherent power to seize the steel mills during a time of hostility in
the Korean war President Truman argued that his action was neces
sary to protect national security Here we had an opponent with
which we were at all but formal war The Supreme Court rejected
that line of argument and rejected quite decisively the claims of
inherent authority A second aspect of that case is this 'Whatever one
may think about the validity of certain forms of covert action whether
domestic or foreign that opinion I think almost unanimously had
been read to mean that the Congress has the ultimate authority to
decide how much of it to permit and how much not to permit and
that ultimate power is not in the executive branch but in the Congress
The key opinion in that case although not the formal opinion of the
Court was by Mr Justice Jackson He pointed out that congressional
power is at its lowest ebb when Congress has acted inconsistently with
what the executive wants to do A very recent decision is the Keith
case a unanimous decision of the Supreme Court rejecting a claim
of implied power to wiretap domestic groups thought to be a threat
to national security Once again the Court has made it very clear
that not only is there a heavy burden a compelling burden on the
executive but in that case although the executive claimed that the
wiretapping was essential the Court unanimously rejected the claim

In United States v Nixon the Pentagon Papers case and in other
decisions the Court has refused to buy diehard executive claims I par
ticipated as amicus curiae in both the Pentagon Papers case and
United States v Nixon The executive said in briefs and oral argu
ment in both cases that the power was essential for national security
The Court as we all know rejected the claims

I have discussed the first inference I draw from the proven record
And that is the heavy burden of proof on the Government The second
inference I draw is that whatever is allowed whatever types of covert
domestic surveillance are ultimately approved if any they must be tied
as tightly as possible to specific violations of law and that broad man
dates to infiltrate particular groups whether they are the Weathermen
or the Minutemen are no substitute for explicit relationships to par
ticular crimes that individuals are accused of performing We cannot
allow the kind of limitless infiltration of groups that are in politicel
disfavor or labeled as extremists I don't have to repeat now what the
consequences of such infiltration have been and what injustices have
been done in the Government's name
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Another aspect of this point is that whatever infiltration whatever
surveillance may ultimately be approved it must be strictly limited in
time or place It is not enough to say that if we have a tip that some
body is going to assassinate the President and blow up the Statue of
Liberty and that that person is a member of the Weathermen we
should use that as a formula for infiltrating the organization on a per
manent and widespread scale There must be tight time deadlines they
must be reviewed within the Department of Justice and there must be
a clear commitment to a refusal to go beyond what is absolutely neces
sary to investigate a crime or the likelihood of a crime Once again
there is a constitutional doctrine that is relevant You are all familiar
with the rule that the Supreme Court has stated on many occasions
that if the Government is trying to achieve a lawful objective by
impinging on constitutional rights in some way the Constitution re
quires that this be done with the least possible infringement on those
rights Therefore even those who support domestic infiltration of the
kind that has now come to light are bound by Supreme Court deci
sions such as Aptheka and Shelton that that power must be limited
to the narrowest possible means of achieving a governmental end It is
very important also in this connection to realize that criminal laws are
not fungible There are differences in criminal laws Some criminal
laws prohibit acts of violence against property or persons

Other criminal laws prohibit speech The most conspicuous of these
of course is the Smith Act which prohibits the advocacy of the over
throw of the Government by force and violence That law has not only
been applied in its own terms but it has also been applied in tandem
with the conspiracy laws In other words people have been indicted
convicted and sent to jail for conspiracies to advocate the overthrow
of the Government by force or violence two steps prior to action
Now if informants and undercover agents and wiretaps and other
forms of domestic infiltration can be used against people who are ac
cused of "conspiring to advocate the overthrow of the Government,
that would bring the constitutional intrusion three steps before any
possible acts to violate the law Parenthetically I might say that some
of the troubles many of us are having with the pending S.1 legisla
tion is that it does not give adequate countenance to these constitu
tional fears and to the constitutional rights of individuals who would
be subject to that law

When we get to the question of oversight and control one argument
that is made is that no system is any better than the individuals who
run it that ultimately we must rely on the good faith the intelligence
and the honor of the Attorney General the Director of the Federal
Bureau of Investigation and other law enforcement officers The
danger with that argument is that if it is carried to its logical ex
tremity those people would not be subject to controls at all There
fore although I agree in part with the assertion that while the honor
of these people the ability of these people and the sensitivity of these
people to constitutional concerns is vital it is not all that this country
has a right to rely on We have a right also to rely on explicit con
trols explicitly stated deadlines making sure that particular actions
by the Attorney General and the Director of the FBI are subject to
review

66-0770 76 18
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What should those controls be I understand that one of the other
members of the panel suggested that proposed guidelines by the Attor
ney General should be sent to the Congress for comment T think that
is an excellent idea I think consideration ought also to be given to
require the guidelines to be approved by the Congress as in certain
other circumstances specifically regulations of the executive branch
which must be approved

I know there will be some questions so I don't want to go on too
much longer I do want to make one other point that I think is very
important well two other points I want to emphasize as explicitly
as I can that one cannot accept on faith or syllogistically the argu
ment that the information acquired by domestic surveillance is neces
sary important or even valuable That is a proposition not to be
accepted on faith but a proposition to be proven I understand that
the GAO has filed a study which casts some doubt on the degree to
which this information helps our law enforcement officers I urge the
committee not to take anybody's word for it I remember a meeting
with one of the former Directors of the FBI Patrick Gray in his
office 2 or 3 years ago Several of us went down to discuss certain
problems with him And he said I can assure you there is no such
thing as a central file or secret file in the Bureau there is -just no such
thing Well it would have been very hard at the time to call him either
a fool or a knave But we now know the record And therefore I urge
the committee not to accept the word of anybody that this information
is useful and necessary for national security or any other purpose of
government

Finally I would like to close on this note I do not know but I
assume that Mr Kelley Mr Levi and others will be able to show
specific cases where covert surveillance has helped law enforcement
I do not think that their ability to do this is the last word on this issue
Even assuming there is a certain value that could be proven for this
information the ultimate question is whether the value is enough to
counterbalance the cost in terms of individual rights in terms of con
stitutional values What this means at the bottom I think is that the
country has to be a little courageous and the Congress has to be
courageous willing to accept the fact that we are not going to have
total security in this country The best expression I know of that
philosophy which I think should guide this committee is a con
curring opinion by Justice Brandeis in the case called Whitney v
California decided in 1927 This is what he said

Those who won our independence believed that the final end of the State
was to make men free to developtheir faculties and that in its Governmentthat
the liberative forces should prevail over the arbitrary They valued liberty both
as an end and as a means They believed liberty to he the secret of happiness
and happinessithe secret of liberty They recognizedthe risk to which all human
institutions are subject

There is a risk ihhanything less then total security But those are
the very risks that the founders or this country and M'r Brandeis was
n.ot the only one that took this position accepted in terms of the
overriding value of liberty I therefore urge the committee not to
permit even confirmed examples of cases in which national security of
some kind has been aided by covert means to be the end of the dis
cussion It seems to me that that is the beginning of discussion I hope
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that this committee will do what it can to limit unconstitutional inter
ferences with the rights of individuals to the greatest extent possible
Thank you Mr Chairman

The CHAIRMANThank you very much Mr Dorsen
Beginning with you first on questions you have indicated that the

committee ought not to overlook the importance of dealing with the
whole problem of informants and not to develop any myopic tenden
cies to consider only electronic devices wiretaps and bugs so-called I
think that is a very valid position since 85 percent of the cases involve
the use of informants as compared to only 5 percent of the cases that
involve any kind of electronic device But it isn't as clear to me just
what you mean when you say that at the very least a much heavier
burden of proof should be required before either informants or wire
taps I suppose are used What burden of proof would you suggest
Do you make a distinction between so-called national security cases
and ordinary criminal cases Is the standard that normally applies
in criminal cases that is probable cause to believe that crime may be
or is being committed a different standard than that should apply to
national security cases And in addition I would like you to comment
on to whom such a heavier burden of proof needs to be presented In
ordinary criminal cases it is necessary to secure the consent of the
court in order to use wiretaps at least a warrant has to be issued
Now would you handle national security eases in the same way I
wonder if you could be a little more specific in connection with that
general argument

Mr DORSENWhen I used burden of proof I used it in two senses
first burden of proof to conduct any kind to justify any kind of
program of infiltration of any sort the general burden of proof and
second as you point out Mr Chairman the burden of proof in a
particular case

Now first what should be the standard The standard shouldibe
probable cause to the greatest extent possible That is the conven
tional criminal standard and it should apply in national security
cases as well as in all other cases The court of appeals in the 7,wieban
case said that no warrant is needed or no warrant may be needed if an
individual is an agent or collaborator of a foreign power It seems
to suggest although this was dictum that the usual rules would not
apply in such cases It seems to me that at a minimum there should
be probable cause before that rule is invoked that a particular person
is an agent or a collaborator of a foreign power One cannot accept that
as such Second the case itself may even be wrong in drawing that
distinction I want to litigate that issue now The Supreme Court
hasn't spoken on that issue Third to whom the showing must be made
My strong preference is that it must be a court the court is where
warrants are approved The problem with that of course is logistic

There may be tens of thousands of such cases and it may not be
possible to get more than a pro forma approval which would have the
consequence of legitimating in other words if there were an ex
pa.rte almost automatic approval of a surveillance of the kind we
are talking about that would have the effect of a later court decision
perhaps legitimating the kind of surveillance that took place There
fore I am unclear in my own mind about whether to invoke a court
at the early stages of an infiltration if an infiltration is to take place
The Attorney General certainly must approve such an infiltration
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But to try to deal with all your questions at once the national se
curity label should not itself be an excuse for an exception There
must be some concrete whether one calls it probable cause or not 
concrete evidence that a crime has occurred or that there is a sub
stantial likelihood of a crime

The CH_ lR3rAx Under existing practices as they have been ex
plained to this committee any wiretap or any electronic bugging de
vices in the so-called national security area needs the approval of the
Attorney General Now that doesn't apply so far as I know to in
formants in the national security field or in any other field Neither
a court order nor the approval of the Attorney General is required in
connection with the use of informants whether they are used in crim
inal cases or in national security cases I believe that is the present
state of the law and practice How would you alter the practice

Mr DoRSEy I certainly would require the Attorney General's ap
proval of the informants in both national security and non-national
security cases I am inclined to think subject to a comment I will
make in a moment that I would also require a court approval of in
formants and treat the informants just like what they are They are
eavesdropping through human means The only question I have about
that is that if the situation deteriorated to the point where the volume
was so great in terms of requests that the approval would become
automatic by courts it would thereby tend to legitimate the process
and diffuse the responsibility But I think in principle there is no
doubt in my mind that the use of informants in these situations is
equivalent as I said before to a general warrant And for general
warrants you need court approval

The CHAIRMANI wonder if either Mr Ruckelshaus or Mr Peter
sen have any response to the same question

Mr PETERSENI think first of all that the problem of being an in
formant is indeed a difficult one I think most people in law enforce
ment recognize that And the immediate question at the outset is can
the informant be corroborated to determine whether or not Govern
ment action should or should not be taken on the information But I
think first of all you have to distinguish Informant is a very very
general category It includes all of us It includes every citizen of the
United States It is a process that the citizenry should be encouraged
to participate in Support your local police Call us if you see a
suspicious act in your neighborhood We have to be careful what we
are about So let's distinguish between the unpaid and the paid in
formant

The CHAIRMANThat is what I was going to suggest that I believe
our concern relates to the paid informant who is actually a target to
penetrate a given group

Mr PETERSEN I share Mr Dorsen's concerns in this area And I
think most people in law enforcement do As soon as you pay an in
formant for information you open up questions as to his credibility
It is all the more important that he be corroborated and documented
It is an area of widespread abuse There are two controls there First
there are the budgetary controls that ought to be imposed and
frankly have not been imposed by the Budget Bureau of the Fed
eral Bureau of Investigation Second there is control by the criminal
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process itself The lawyers that I know in the Federal system are
professionally concerned lest those payments impair the credibility
of the witness and jeopardize the Government's cases And we have
seen ample instances of that in the recent past

Now those things I think are built-in restraints not only the ex
penditure of money but the criminal process itself Do I go so far as
to suggest that there should never be paid informants No I do not
The reason is that in many instances there is a great risk involved And
that risk is purchaseable. In many cases there is no other way to obtain
the information The risks are so high in an assassination attempt or
threat the risks are very high in terms of economic impact I refer
you to the recent truckers strike the wildcat strike where literally the
Congress was up in arms to do something about infiltrate use in
formants And the Bureau was subjected to a great deal of pressure
I think it is perfectly justifiable to use paid informants provided those
controls are intelligently exercised by the supervisory people in the
Bureau in the Department of .Justice and ultimately in the court
room when the case comes to trial

The CHAIRMAN Do you think it would be impractical to require
some kind of court approval before informants were used

Mr PETERSENYes I do
The CHAIRMANDo you think that the restraint is going to have to

be exercised within the Bureau or mainly within the Department of
Justice

Mr PETERSENYes But I am not satisfied with the way that restraint
has been exercised in the past And I think that this committee's in
sistence that further oversight within the Justice Department and
within the Congress is necessary

The CHAIRMANDo you think that an oversight committee properly
empowered to supervise the operations of the FBI and the CIA and
other'intelligence agencies would be helpful

Mr PETERSENI recommend it now and I have recommended it in
the past But I do think Senator that it ought to be a single over
sight committee Nothing is more debilitating from a law enforcement
and efficiency standpoint than to have the agency responsible respond
ing to the same charges time and time again It is inefficient And Con
gress has the responsibility to be efficient too

The CHAIRMANYes Mr Ruckelshaus
Mr RrcKErsHAUS Let me try to comment on one aspect of inform

ants that I think could provide an added check I think that we
should look ahead of time both in the executive branch and in the
Congress at the nature of the individual or group against whom in
formants might be used and that the burden of proof should be di
rected to those who would use informants to show the likelihood of
the individual or the group to commit violence of some kind We could
greatly restrict the use of informants simply by restricting the tar
geted individuals or groups What we have seen in the past over and
over again is that organizations and individuals were targeted with
informants who really had nothing but peaceful aims and entirely
proper goals in mind So that if ahead of time either by statute but
probably more by the use of guidelines and congressional oversight we
could carefully restrict the kinds of organizations and the process
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by which a decision was made that there was a likelihood that there
would be violence we could greatly restrict the use of informants

I think at that point you then look to the techniques not only of
informants but others that can be used that should be permitted And
again as I said in my statement there is no reason that in given
classes of cases these techniques should not be discussed and agreed
upon with the Congress prior to their use by the FBI or any other

intelligence gathering agency of the Government
Then I think we need to look at the function that the informant

himself plays What kind of information are we really seeking what
kind of restrictions should be placed on the information that the in
formant gathers and brings back to the FBI Then if the informant
brings back certain information to the FBI or any other agency of that
kind what should the FBI do with it Should it be disregarded
should it be stored or what kind of restriction should be placed on its
dissemination All those kinds of questions can be answered I think
through the use of guidelines and very careful coordination with the
Congress

I think then we should also look at the distinction between the pre
liminary investigation between an individual and a group to deter
mine whether or not what they are saying and whether what others
have said about them turns out to be true in terms of their being vio
lence prone and distinguish that from an ongoing investigation If
the FBI decides that because of the evidence of the violent nature of
an individual or group that an ongoing investigation is necessary
there must be built into the process a review Because organizations
evolve they change over time And again we have seen this happen
where once an investigation is launched against a given group in the
society there is no mechanism built in to stop that investigation All of
those things I think can greatly increase the likelihood of better con
trols being placed over informants and greatly minimize the potential
for abuse and at the same time adequately protect the society

Mr PETERSENMr Chairman may I suggest that while I agree with
Mr Ruckelshaus and I applaud the Attorney General's attempt to
draw guidelines with respect to types of investigation from what I
have seen I think it is really quite good but that is an extraordinarily
difficult task to draw guidelines that are sufficiently broad to encom
pass all that needs to be investigated and yet sufficiently narrow to ex
clude that which should not be investigated And while I would hope
that that process would continue I think it is a step in the right direc
tion The greatest restraint is going to come in the course of ongoing
review of the investigations being conducted by the Federal Bureau of
Investigation by an outside force that is lawyers in the Justice De
partment You see there is always the problem perhaps you see it in
this committee I certainly saw it with lawyers when people get im
mersed in an investigation they take on its coloration however fine
they may be and however bright they begin to lose their perspective
and they see that which they want to see Once you step aside and sub
mit that product to someone who is not so immersed all sorts of prob
lems evolve Why are you doing this why are you paving that infor
mant why are you in this case at all who said this is an organized
crime case or an espionage case aren't you wasting your time all
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those questions arise And they are difficult questions and they are cur
ative questions I think that that is the type of process that is going
to have to be employed rather than any total reliance on guidelines or

statutory guidelines
The CHAIRMANBefore I turn to Senator Schweiker let me just ask

you this Is there any review mechanism in the Department of Justice

today or was there when you were there any of you that filled the role
of overseeing ongoing investigations by the FBI in the way that you
have described

Mr PETERSENCertainly in organized crime investigations there is
such a program There certainly is in the run-of-the-mill criminal case
where the case is submitted for the approval of an Assistant United
States Attorney But in the security area no

The CHAIRMANIn the security area no
Mr PETERSENIn the security area no The internal security divi

sion historically has been a reactive force They were called upon liter

ally only when the Bureau wanted them And that is I think a
difficult thing

Mr DORSENMay I just make one very brief comment
The CHAIRMANYes sir
Mr DORSENI think that Mr Petersen's penultimate comment about

taking on the coloration of an investigation is a very important and
valid one But it also relates to a point on which I disagree with him 
that there should be only one committee I think there should be two
committees I think sure it would be more efficient to have one com
mittee but I don't think efficiency is the highest goal here We are

dealing here with the very collection process in which many wrongs
have been committed And I think it is very important that the com
mittee if there is one committee not also take on the coloration of the

people that they are investigating And I think it would be a very use
ful thing in this field to have two different groups reporting to two
somewhat different constituencies looking into this matter

The other thing relates to a comment of Mr Ruckelshaus And that
has to do with the guidelines and as he pointed out the difficulty of
setting down precise guidelines This issue of investigating individuals
as distinguished from investigating groups is a very tricky business
Groups do not act Individuals act Now obviously if a lot of people
in one group are accused or in fact are doing something unlawful or
improper it is very easy to say that the group is doing it But a group
does not act And therefore it is very difficult it seems to me to try
to come to grips and it is not an easy assignment and I would hate
to have to do the drafting right here with this problem and not allow
an easy movement away from what people are doing to what people
who are in a group but may not be aware of or part of any particular
activity And finally very quickly the guidelines that Mr Levi is pro
posing I was just told about them in a very general way I think it
may be deficient and if I am wrong about this of course I will stand
corrected by the record are not clear that crimes which are being
investigated are crimes that are alleged to be imminent in some way
that you can't or shouldn't be able to infiltrate and the thought that
sometime in the far future a particular individual or group is likely
to conduct an illegal activity the essence of mediocracy of the clear
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and present danger ideal which the Supreme Court on many occasions
most recently in Brandenburg v Ohio has relied on is one that I
think should not be lost sight of

The CHAIRMANI think that an illustration is that in the Socialist
Workers investigation there was no case of violence or tendency toward
violence but there was a thought that maybe 5 6 or 7 or 8 or 10 years
down the track the organization might grow violent

Mr DORSENThat is exactly what I am talking about Senator
Mr PETERSEN Senator may I suggest in fairness to the Bureau

I think it is fair to say that they were ambiguously charged with a
responsibility Their charter if you like was I would suppose a his
torically drafted memorandum for the President of the United States
in the late thirties

The CHAIRMANThat brings up of course the point that there is no
generic law where the FBI is concerned Its authority rests on Presi
dential directives And it seems to me that at the very least we ought
to establish some basic statutory law for the FBI which will be much
more explicit in connection with powers and procedures

Mr PETERSENI don't really disagree with much of what Mr Dorsen
said But I do disagree with the implication if it is there that that
responsibility for nonfeasance if you like or inaction in affairs which
touch upon the security of the United States should rest upon the
Federal Bureau of Investigation That ought to rest with the Congress
of the United States If it does not want an organization investigated
that says today in the year 2000 we are going to overthrow the Gov
ernment then the Congress of the United States ought to say that
and not leave the responsibility to the Director of the FBI or Attorney
General for that matter

The CHAIRMANYes Which brings up another question that I would
like to pursue But I have taken my time and I want to turn to Senator
Schweiker

Senator SCHWEIKERThank you Mr Chairman Mr Petersen when
you were head of the interdepartmental committee to study the FBI
COINTELPRO activities were you given full access to the FBI files
in that capacity

Mr PETERSENThat is not an easy question to answer yes or no Let
me trace the development of that Attorney General Saxbe called and
said this is one of the things that Bill Ruckelshaus suggested be done
It hasn't been done Would you do it. And with a modesty that is
unbecoming I said why me Why not Kelley He is head of the FBI
He is new there he ought to undertake this responsibility Well Saxbe
said he is busy he doesn't know what is going on over there either
and I would like you to do it for both of us I said fine Since I couldn't
wiggle out I agreed But I said call Director Kelley and tell him
what you have told me and tell him that there is no way that I can
do this without access And I am going to need your help and assist
ance to do it He did indeed do that I know because thereafter Mr
Kelley called me And I reiterated to him what I had said to the
Attorney General

Mr Kelley assigned a number of people And because I and nobody
else in the Department of Justice had any idea where the information
was and because I reasoned that if the Federal Bureau of Investiga
tion were part of it when you give them a responsibility they dis
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charge it to the best of their ability if they were part of the inquiry
it would tend to guarantee the integrity of the inquiry

So the summaries were prepared by Bureau personnel at my direc
tion The summaries were spot checked by representatives of the Crim
inal Division of the Department of Justice for accuracy 'We did not
examine all underlying documents It was not part of the task to con
duct an investigation in the sense a criminal investigation is conducted
The task was to advise the Attorney General of the nature of the prob
lem so that he as Attorney General could determine what action ought
to be taken And it was for that reason that we gave two legal opinions
not because we are trying to carry water on both shoulders but be
cause the committee while it as a committee did not feel the agents
who did these things ought to be investigated recognized that they
could possibly be charged criminally Nonetheless that was a decision
for the Attorney General and we pointed out the law with respect to
it and the contrary point of view in the event he decided to take
further action That was the nature of the study

When the Attorney General Mr Saxbe got it he determined that
the best thing that he could do to curtail it would be to publicize it
And as a consequence he made a decision to make it available to the
Congress to the oversight committee and ultimately to the Congress
generally and to the press And that was the sum and substance of
the entire proceeding

Senator SCHWEIKERYOU were given summaries of the FBI files
and the raw files were spot checked for accuracy as to the summaries
by whom again

Mr PETERSENBy the attorneys on the group who were assigned to
the Criminal Division It was not done by FBI personnel that is
what I am saying

Senator SCHWEIKERAnd what was the rationale for not giving you
people the raw files

Mr PETERSENI don't think there was any rationale We are doing
a survey rather than conducting an investigation One of the things
that was involved I mentioned the responsibility for participation-
the other was available manpower

Senator SCHWEIKERDid your survey uncover the kind of things
that this committee just uncovered in terms of COINTELPRO activi
ties Were you aware of the things that had been going on that this
committee just recently disclosed

Mr PETERSENSenator I am not sure that I can answer that The
summaries were prepared without respect to the name of an indi
vidual So that I can't tell you at this moment whether X or Y was or
was not included I am aware from the newspapers since I have left
there that subsequently the Bureau turned over additional informa
tion

Senator SCIIWEIKER One of the informants for example in CO
INTELPRO said that part of his job was to sleep with the wives of the
Klan leaders Was that the kind of thing that was deleted from the
summaries or were you aware of that kind of thing

Mr PETERSENI don't recall that to be perfectly honest with you
Senator SCIIwEIIcER I respect what you said But I don't see how

anyone can properly oversee it or approve it or rectify it in some way
without getting the flavor of some of the things that come out here
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I guess it leads me to my next question
Mr PETERSENMay I interject Senator I think the flavor was there

I think the report pointed out that there were apparent violations of
first amendment rights that there was conduct that the committee
found abhorrent The recommendation was that it should be absolutely
prohibited and standards and guidelines set up There was not if you
are suggesting such any rationalization for the Bureau's conduct

Senator ScxwEIKER The other part for example which wasn't
brought out was that there were a number of cases where material
about possible violence came to the attention of someone further down
the chain of command and no action was taken and that informers
alerted the fact that action could be taken to prevent it but no action
was taken Did you get into the summaries

Mr PETERSENI am not sure Senator I can't answer that
Senator SCHWEIKERIt leads me to my next question about setting

up an inspector general for the FBI I know you are on record and
I even have a memo here indicating that you strongly favor an inspec
tor general procedure Is that still your position

Mr PETERSENYes sir I do Senator But may I add that I am not
sure at least in my concept of an inspector general's responsibilities
that this type of detail would be picked up I think that that type of
detail has to be picked up in a more routine fashion if you like by
day-to-day supervision bring attorneys in the Department of Justice
into ongoing investigation so that actions which appear questionable
can either be curtailed or justified

Senator SCHWEIKERBut if access to the raw files isn't given and if
that isn't a standard situation then they wouldn't have that oppor
tunity

Mr PETERSENSenator it is also my opinion that in the course of
their duties contrary to the practice in the past that attorneys of the
Department of Justice in the discharge of their responsibilities ought
to have access to the raw files And there are instances when frankly
one of your staff while employed in the Department of Justice was
embarrassed by what the Bureau said was an oversight Now that
oversight would not have occurred had the attorney had access to the
entire file

Senator SOHWEIKERI think you also went on to recommend that the
Inspector General's office shouldn't be limited just to the FBI I be
lieve you suggested that it should cover the whole range of activities

Mr PETERSEN I think it ought to cover the whole range of the
activity of the Department of Justice for this reason first of all that
is an ongoing responsibility of the Attorney General and the Deputy
Attorney General at this time And second either the Attorney Gen
eral or the Deputy Attorney General rally have the opportunity to
give that task the time and attention that is needed So they need some
sort of a staff

On the other hand the staff should not be so large that it becomes
a bureaucracy that has to feed upon itself That staff I think ought to
be relatively small so that it can accept the responsibility with man
power drawn from whatever investigative agency seems appropriate
at the time to conduct the necessary investigations I do not think that
that Inspector General's responsibility ought to entail administrative
review of the manner in which responsible officials discharged their
functions
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In other words I don't think you ought to go in and say well Mr
Director we have bought too many pencils That is a function of in
ternal management and perhaps a function of the Budget Committee
But I don't think that that type of responsibility ought to be assigned
to the Inspector General

Senator SCHWEIKERMr Ruckelshaus what is your position on an
Inspector General from your experience

Mr RUCKELSHAtisSenator I was in charge of that committee that
was investigating the setting up of the Inspector General when I left
the Government My own feeling is that you have got to again be
careful about what functions you are giving the Inspector what is it
that you want him to do The idea of the establishment of the Inspector
General when Elliot Richardson was the Attorney General was to
provide within the Department the capacity to look into outside allega
tions of corruption within the Department itself and set the Inspector
General's office apart from the Department so as to insure that what
ever investigation took place had public credibility that the public
would believe there was a complete and thorough investigation and
particularly if the allegations proved to be false

This was the result of many many charges that had been brought
against the Department of yJustice during the preceding several
months before Mr Richardson was appointed Attorney General And
I think there is an example within the Department of Justice of a first
rate inspection division that is as good as any I have ever seen at inves
tigating its own agency and that is the Inspection Division in the
FBI When I was the Director of the FBI I gave them the charge to
find out what happened to the records involving the 17 wiretaps of
newsmen and public officials They launched a complete thorough and
highly professional investigation and found the records eventually in
the White House I think that if that division is given a clear charge
by the Director and given the kind of authority to discover derelic
tions within the Bureau without any restraints being put on it it dis
charges its function well There are a number of restraints set up
within the Inspection Division to insure its objectivity and to insure
that the functions assigned to it are properly carried out

Senator SonWEIKER You have a lot more faith in it you might say
Mr Ruckelshaus than I as a member of this committee have Just a
week or so ago we came across wording in the FBI manual to pro
ceed on an investigation unless it was embarrassing to the Bureau and
then some other procedure was automatically set up which the FBI
explained as something different than how I would have read it but
that was the fairness in this recommendation that the criteria proceed
unless it would embarrass the Bureau

Second I guess you are not familiar with the "black bag memoran
dum in which the Inspection Division was instructed during its annual
inspection procedure to go into a safe of a special agent in charge and
destroy any legal memos that the special agent might have filed about
"black bag jobs

So I have a hard time comprehending how you can say that theyhave done that kind of job or should be utilized in this iob when the
evidence we found is just the contrary Maybe this wasn't available to
you in the position you held and if it wasn't that is the fault of the
system
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Mr RLCKELSHAUSSenator you misunderstood what I said 'What
I said was that we have an excellent example of an Inspection Division
in terms of the process by which it works I also said that if it were
given clear instructions it would carry them out And that includes
wrong instructions as well as proper instructions That Division was
very responsive to the Director and if the Director told them to do
something wrong they were just as inclined to do that as something
else And the examples you cite were those of such instructions being
given When I was there in the example I gave you they were in
structed to find out what those wiretap records were and find out
what had happened to them And they did it thoroughly and profes
sionally And I think that what we need is to distinguish between
bad processes and bad people not only running those processes but
giving instructions to those who do

Senator SCHWEIKER But don't we have institutionalized safeguards
so that if we get a bad process or a bad situation or a poor administra
tor in this regard that we have some checks and balances And to
leave it all to the FBI after what we have seen in 30 years I think
would be the wrong way to proceed I understand FBI agents knew
about COINTELPRO And yet we used agents to do more than that

Mr RUCKELSHAUSSenator I did not suggest that we make the in
spection function internal to the FBI I said we had an example of a
good process established in the FBI that could be used by the Depart
ment as a whole Even the Department as a whole might get some bad
instructions from the Attorney General which is where the Congress
comes in in terms of its oversight responsibility There is no process
that I can think of that we can set up that will avoid human nature
that will avoid every bad person that comes along to be in charge of
it And what I am suggesting is that the model if properly used in
the FBI is not a bad one

Mr DoxsEN May I comment just very briefly on that
There is another model I spent 2 years in the Office of the Secretary

of the Army and I thought that the Inspector General model in the
Army had at least one advantage over what I understand to be the
process that Mr Ruckelshaus was describing and that was complete
independence from orders of the kind that led to the misfortunes that
he and you were just discussing I think it is very important whoever
is the Inspector General that that person be given broad and inde
pendent authority of the kind that Mr Petersen was describing and
not be subject to "bad orders. Now obviously there has got to be one
person at the top and that is the Attorney General But I would hate
to see any Inspector General set up in the subject of the direction of the
Director of the FBI I think the person has to be independent and able
to get access to raw files and be able to do the job untrammeled by
"bad orders

Senator SCHWEIKERThank you Mr Chairman
The CHAIRMAN Thank you very much Senator Schweiker Mr

Schwarz do you have questions
Mr SCHWARZI would like to pick up on something Mr Dorsen

said and ask both Mr Ruckelshaus and Mr Petersen about it And this
goes to the issue of the value of domestic intelligence And if you
would leave out the consideration of catching Soviet spies and lust
concentrate on the domestic intelligence function of the Bureau Can
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you from your experience come up with any cases where clearly useful
results were obtained through a domestic intelligence investigation that
could not have been obtained by investigating an actual criminal act
or a planned criminal act

Mr RL CKELSHAUSHenry you may have more examples than I do I
am not sure I understand your distinction If there was an informant
system set up on an organization say the Weathermen or something
of that nature and out of that informant system came information in
the possession of the FBI or the Justice Department that certain
crimes were planned short of that kind of avenue of information I
don't know where else the information would come from It may well
come from some voluntary disclosure by an individual concerned about
the crime that was planned

Mr SCHWARZI am not thinking of technique But the justifica
tion put forward by the Bureau for general intelligence doesn't turn
on a predicate of a crime having been committed or planned And they
say there is a necessity to have general intelligence about subjects
with broad labels like subversion and extremists What I am driving
at is whether from the experience of either of you you know of any
instances where useful information relating for example to violence
was obtained from a domestic intelligence investigation that could not
have been obtained if the standard for such investigations was actual
cause or probable cause that a crime had been committed or was being
attempted

Mr PETERSENFirst of all I have to say and I think in this re
spect I speak for Mr Ruckelshaus too we in the Justice Department
and perhaps he in his brief tenure as Acting Director of the FBI did
not have an opportunity to scrutinize the domestic intelligence investi
gations Only when they were developed to the point of probable cause
was the Department of .Justice prosecutorial force brought in So we
speak not as experts But I do suggest. Mr Schwarz that the Weather
men is a classic example If you speak about a reasonable basis for
suspicion to initiate an investigation or a more stringent standard
which I happen to think is unreasonable as a predicate for initiating
an investigation of probable cause you would have to wait until the
laboratory at the University of Wisconsin was blown up Now it is
true enough that the Bureau's actions in investigating the Weathermen
could not prevent that any more than they could prevent the bomb
being placed in the Capitol But they did not start the investigation at
that point with the explosion they started with the self-proclaimed
intention of a group and the members of that group and they further
determined what members of that group espoused acts of violence
and they determined from their infiltration where members of the
group happened to be at the time So there was a process of elimina
tion as a process of focus And I think the Weathermen is a classic
example of an instance where you cannot rely wholly upon the act
itself There has to be and it is indeed being very shortsighted if
there is not some responsibility to look forward particularly when
von deal with crimes of violence

Mr SCUWARZIt seems to me though that you haven't answered
the question of whether you can think of an example where some use
ful result was in fact obtained that you couldn't have obtained by
using as a predicate the likelihood of violence
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Mr PETERSEN I am suggesting the Weathermen indictment
Mr RUCKELSHAUSWhat do you mean by that
Mr SCrIWARZPreventing something from happening How about

you Mr Ruckelshaus can you think of an example where something
was prevented as a result of a domestic intelligence investigation that
could not have been prevented by having as a predicate not only a
bomb going off but some predicate that says picking up Mr Dorsen's
concept present and clear likelihood that the group is going to engage
in such conduct criminal conduct

Mr PETERSENI can cite you two instances which I have informed
about in the organized crime program where x was targeted for a
killing And the Bureau's response was to go 1 to the individual
and 2 to the local police and suggest that preventive action might
be taken stationing guards around the man's house or forcing the
man to move or something of that nature

Mr SCHWARZBut what was the predicate for the investigation
Was the predicate not in that case the likelihood of violent action

Mr PETERSEN The predicate was the existence of a group who
earned for themselves the right to be called members of organized
crime who were engaged in all types of illegal activity But the sig
nificant thing is it is not illegal to be a member of an organized crime
group it is only illegal when they do something in violation of a spe
cific statute

Mr RucnErsIAUS I think your question is difficult to answer
And that doesn't mean it isn't a good one I think what you
are driving at is that there ought to be a very strong standard burden
of proof on the individual or the person in the Government who
would suggest that certain investigative techniques be used And I am
questioning that the validity of the assumptions behind the use of
the given techniques is something that very much needs to be deter
mined And that is one of the chief functions I think that an investi
gative oversight committee of the Congress could perform and that
is where the FBI would say we need x number of agents to engage
in surveillance of group A or group B of these individuals There
should be systematic if you assume at the outset that this investi
gation is undertaken pursuant to investigative techniques approved
by the Congress there ought to be a review of the results of that
investigation Are you really getting something for that invasion of
individual liberty Because there is an invasion of time it takes place
And so I think that the difficulty in answering your question is that
in our minds there are organizations like the Weathermen and so
many groups that existed in the late sixties and the early seventies
who used the rhetoric of violence and often didn't carry it out and
how you distinguished between those who are simply talking about it
and those who intend to do something about it in some form of
surveillance

Mr SCHWARZMr Chairman there are in the books nine examples
of real cases or hypothetical cases which are susceptible of reaction
And rather than putting the nine cases to the witnesses I would like
with your permission to ask the witnesses to respond in writing to these
nine cases and give their reactions on whether the predicate in the
cases was sufficient to open an investigation
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The CHAIRMANVery well Are you gentlemen willing to do that
to respond in writing

Mr RUCKELSHAUSYes
Mr PETERSENYes
Mr DORSENMay I make one comment on an aspect of the answer

Mr Ruckelshaus gave which I thought was correct in connection with
the oversight Once again I think it is very important to button these
things down And it has been suggested that this committee ought to
recommend to the Congress as a whole that it be a crime for a Gov
ernment official willfully to deceive Congress and the public about
activities which violate the kind of rules that are set up because one
thing we have learned is that not everybody has told the truth and
sometimes it has not been under oath And there is another which has
been one step further and that is it should be a crime for a public
official not to report violations of law that he or she may have seen
in the course of this area

Mr RUCKELSIIAITSNot to be an informant
Mr DORSENYes that is right. The problem of course is how do

you get into the process And as Mr Petersen and also Mr Ruckels
haus I suppose have both explained even though they were senior
officials it was hard for them even to get into it in detail and in depth
And therefore there has got to be some pressure put on people not
to close one eye or both eyes to things that are being done and not to
deceive Members of Congress and the public about some of these
matters

The CHAIRMANYour suggestion might be make a report to a court
of crime To whom is the report to be made

Mr DORSENThat could be part of the investigation
The CHAIRMANTo the New York Times
Mr DORSENThat would certainly do the iob
The CHAIRMANTo your immediate superior
Mr DORSEN Certainly that It is admittedly a remedy that has

problems with it But at the same time the difficulty of getting these
things out into the open is clear

The CHAIRMAN What about if this Office of Inspector General
would be created let's say in the Justice Department would that be
the logical place to put

Mr DoRSEN That is the idea of course
The CHAIRMAN[continuing] Unlawful activities by the FBI and

other subsidiaries in the Department What do you think about that
Mr RFCKELSHAUSAren't we by law Mr Chairman establishing a

system of informants in the Federal Government if we do that
The CHAIRMAN I am not endorsing it I am just trying to figure

out what it is that is being recommended
Mr PETERSENMay I suggest something I don't mean to be unduly

elementary but times have changed and may I suggest that in what
ever procedure this committee decides to set up by statute they incor
porate a provision for ratification contemporaneous a reasonably con
temporaneous ratification With all deference to this committee I
charge the committee with no more than I myself have indulged in as
a result of all these exposures I am sometimes fearful that there is
a touch of revisionism involved in all this Perhaps not But the only
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way that criticism could have been answered is if these matters in
which the Bureau took action which now all think to be immoral had
been submitted to a ratifying group at or about the time And I sug
gest Senator that in many instances their conduct might have been
approved by the Congress And there are some who suggest that the
oversight committee did indeed approve it. But whether they did
or did not it would certainly prevent an agent who acts in good faith
from being charged 10 years hence with covering up an illegal activity

Now that is I think a terribly important point And of course
from the viewpoint of the Federal Bureau of Investigation they feel
I think badly put upon because they feel that they were doing what
they were charged to do what nobody else was interested in doing

The CHAIRMAN I take it what you really suggest Mr Petersen is
that had there been an adequate congressional surveillance at the time
it would have acted to protect those engaged in those activities if they
had been thought by such a committee at the time to be necessary and
proper

Mr PETERSENI don't want to point the finger at Congress Senator
No President ever supported any Attorney General up until 2 years
ago with respect to supervision of the Federal Bureau of Investigation

The CHAIRMANI think that the remarkable thing is that this com
mittee has conducted the only serious investigation of either the FBI
or the CIA since their creation one-half a century ago and the other
one 30 years ago And we ought not to be astonished that abuses have
crept into the system when no one has been looking at it And I think
that it might even be said that in the Department of Justice itself there
was precious little oversight of the FBI

Mr PETERSENThat is right
The CHAIRMANSo that everyone stands guilty looking back over

the years of a failure to do the proper supervisory work But for the
free press we would never have had this investigation because it was
the direct result of the charges that were surfaced in the press fol
lowing Watergate that the Congress finally decided that the time had
come to investigate the FBI the CIA and these other highly prestig
ious agencies I suppose I am agreeing with you that there has been a
failure of proper oversight in the executive branch at the White House
at the Justice Department and in the Congress

Mr PETERSENLet me add one thing more And it is an endorse
ment of what Mr Ruckelshaus said earlier Even if this committee
enacts a statute in its wisdom which is capable of imposing the neces
sary restraints unless the political base which in my judgment stems
from the activities of the Federal Bureau of Investigation with the
White House unless that is curtailed it will build up again It is aw
fully awkward for an apparent superior to be unwilling to take on
his subordinate because he knows he will not be supported by the Pres
ident of the United States And I am sure it is very unlikely that you
will have former Attorneys General coming up and saying the FBI
was beyond my control But that was the fact It seems to me to be
improper for the Congress to mandate by statute that type of adminis
trative control But it certainly has to be imposed in some fashion

The CHAIRMAN I just have one further question for Mr Dorsen
He first brought up the importance of informants and the danger of
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abuses with respect to the overuse of informants Has this question
ever been tested against the fourth amendment in the courts

Mr DORSENMr Petersen says that the consentual cases are the only
ones There are cases for example the Panther 21 case in New York 
where there were informants in the Black Panther organization which
was a case where I think it was raised That case involved an acquittal
and therefore it never got to a judicial opinion

The CHAIRMANIn other words you are telling me that as far as ju
dicial review of the use of informants is concerned as a possible viola
tion of the fourth amendment of the Constitution the question has
hardly been raised nor has it been tested adequately There are cases
going back to the early thirties involving entrapment involving peo
ple sometimes who were closely associated with groups allegedly lead
ing individuals or groups to commit a crime and there has been a very
sharp division in the U.S Supreme Court about what the correct
standard is to determine whether people voluntarily committed a
crime or whether they were led to do it by someone they were relying
on who was secretly a Government informant But the fact is that the
law is not at all developed in this area

Perhaps one of the reasons is that the national court cases never
get into court

Mr DORSENRight
Mr PETERSENMay I add that in the consentual cases the Court was

led to the conclusion that a listening device worn by one of the partici
pants in the conversation was not impermissible it was predicated on
the fact that eavesdropping unadorned eavesdropping was not a
constitutional violation So there is some authority in the Supreme
Court decisions for that proposition

Mr DORSENIncidentally however this of course is a very tough
question Congress of course has not attempted to deal with this If
Congress attempted to deal with it the court would then be responding
to a specific legislative act and I would think to a large extent be
guided by that because the words of the fourth amendment unlike
the first amendment talk about unreasonable searches and seizures
and what Congress decides are unreasonable

The CHAIRMANCongress has never really attempted to define that
by statute

Mr DORSENExactly That is correct
The CHAIRMANWell this has been very helpful to the committee

gentlemen And I appreciate your appearance this morning And also
we will look forward to the written answers you supply This hearing
is adjourned

[Whereupon at 1 :05 p.m. the hearing was adjourned subject to call
of the Chair.]
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U.S SENATE
SELECTCOMMITTEETo Si uvY GOVERNMENTALOPERATIONS

WITH RESPECTTO INTELLIGENCEACTIVITIES
Washington D.C

The committee met pursuant to notice at 10:10 a.m in room 318
Russell Senate Office Building Senator Frank Church (chairman)
presiding

Present Senators Church Hart of Michigan Mondale Huddleston
Hart of Colorado Baker Goldwater and Mathias

Also present William G Miller staff director Frederick A O
Schwarz Jr. chief counsel and Curtis R Smothers counsel to the
minority

The CHAIRMAN The committee's witness this morning is the Honor
able Clarence M Kelley the Director of the Federal Bureau of
Investigation

Mr Kelley was appointed Director in July of 1973 in a troubled
time for the FBI His experience as an innovative law enforcement
administrator in charge of the Kansas City Police Department for
over 10 years and his previous work as a special agent of the FBI
have made him uniquely qualified to lead the Bureau

The select committee is grateful for the cooperation extended by
Director Kelley in the course of its inquiry over the past months
The committee is also impressed by the openness of the FBI's witnesses
before this committee and their willingness to consider the need for
legislation to clarify the Bureau's intelligence responsibility

It is important to remember from the outset that this committee is
examining only a small portion of the FBI's activities Our hearings
have concentrated on FBI domestic intelligence operations We have
consistently expressed our admiration and support for the Bureau's
criminal investigative and law enforcement work and we recognize
the vital importance of counterespionage in the modern world But
domestic intelligence has raised many difficult questions

The committee has also concentrated on the past rather than on
present FBI activities The abuses brought to light in our hearings
occurred years and even decades before Director Kelley took charge

The staff has advised the committee that under Director Kelley the
FBI has taken significant steps to rethink previous policies and to
establish new safeguards against abuse The FBI is now placing
greater emphasis on foreign-related intelligence operations and less
on purely domestic surveillance The FBI is working more closely
with the Justice Department in developing policies and standards
for intelligence These are welcome developments

('281)



282

Nevertheless many important issues remain unresolved Therefore
we have invited Director Kelley to share with the committee his views
on some of the considerations the Congress should take into account
in thinking about the future of FBI intelligence Among these issues
are whether FBI surveillance should extend beyond the investigation
of persons likely to commit specific crimes whether there should be
outside supervision or approval before the FBI conducts certain
types of investigations or uses certain surveillance techniques whether
foreign-related intelligence activities should be strictly separated from
the FBI's domestic law enforcement functions and what should be
done to the information already in the FBI files and that which may
go into those files in the future

The committee looks forward to a constructive exchange of views
with Director Kelley this morning with Attorney General Levi
tomorrow and with both the FBI and the Justice Department in
the next months as the committee considers recommendations that
will strengthen the American people's confidence in the Federal Bu
reau of Investigation That confidence is vital for the effective enforce
ment of Federal law and for the security of the Nation against for
eign espionage

Director Kelley we are pleased to welcome you and if you would
have a prepared statement you would like to lead off with please
proceed

TESTIMONY OF HON CLARENCE M KELLEY DIRECTOR FEDERAL
BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION

Mr KELLEY Thank you very much Senator Church and gentlemen
I welcome the interest which this committee has shown in the FBI

and most particularly in our operations in the intelligence and in
ternal security fields

I share your high regard for the rights guaranteed by the Constitu
tion and laws of the United States Throughout my 35-year career
in law enforcement you will find the same insistence as has been
expressed by this committee on programs of law enforcement that
are themselves fully consistent with law

I also have strongly supported the concept of legislative oversight
In fact at the time my appointment as Director of the FBI was
being considered by the Senate Judiciary Committee 21/2years ago I
told the members of that committee of my firm belief in congressional
oversight

This committee has completed the most exhaustive study of our
intelligence and security operations that has ever been undertaken
by anyone outside the FBI other than the present Attorney General
At the outset we pledged our fullest cooperation and promised to be
as candid and forthright as possible in responding to your questions
and complying with your requests

I believe we have lived up to those promises
The members and staff of this committee have had unprecedented

access to FBI information
You have talked to the personnel who conduct security-type inves

tigations and who are personally involved in every facet of our day
to-day intelligence operations
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You have attended numerous briefings by FBI officials who have
sought to familiarize the committee and its staff with all major areas
of our activities and operations in the national security and intel
ligence fields

In brief you have had firsthand examination of these matters that
is unmatched at any time in the history of the Congress

As this committee has stated these hearings have of necessity
focused largely on certain errors and abuses I credit this committee
for its forthright recognition that the hearings do not give a full or
balanced account of the FBI's record of performance

It is perhaps in the nature of such hearings to focus on abuses to
the exclusion of positive accomplishments of the organization

The counterintelligence programs which have received the lion's
share of public attention and critical comment constituted an in
finitesimal portion of our overall work

A Justice Department committee which was formed last year
to conduct a thorough study of the FBI's counterintelligence programs
has reported that in the five basic ones it found 3,247 counterintel
ligence programs were submitted to the FBI headquarters from 1956
to 1971 Of this total 2,370 less than three-fourths were approved

I repeat the vast majority of those 3,247 proposals were being de
vised considered and many were rejected in an era when the FBI
was handling an average of 700,000 investigative matters per year

Nonetheless the criticism which has been expressed regarding the
counterintelligence programs is most legitimate and understandable

The question might well be asked what I had in mind when I stated
last year that for the FBI to have done less than it did under the
circumstances then existing would have been an abdication of its
responsibilities to the American people

What I said then in 1974 and what I believe today is that the
FBI employees involved in these programs did what they felt was
expected of them by the President the Attorney General the Con
gress and the people of the United States

Bomb explosions rocked public and private offices and buildings
rioters led by revolutionary extremists laid seige to military indus
trial and educational facilities and killings maimings and other
atrocities accompanied such acts of violence from New England to
California

The victims of these acts were human beings men women and chil
dren As is the case in time of peril whether real or perceived they
looked to their Government their elected and appointed leadership
and to the FBI and other law enforcement agencies to protect their
lives their property and their rights

There were many calls for action from Members of Congress and
others but few guidelines were furnished The FBI and other law en
forcement agencies were besieged by demands impatient demands
for immediate action

FBI employees recognized the danger felt they had a responsibility
to respond and in good faith initiated actions designed to counter
conspiratorial efforts of self-proclaimed revolutionary groups and
to neutralize violent activities

In the development and execution of these programs mistakes of
judgment admittedly were made
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Our concern over whatever abuses occurred in the counterintelli
gence programs and there were some substantial ones should not ob
scure the underlying purpose of those programs

We must recognize that situations have occurred in the past and
will arise in the future where the Government may well be expected to
depart from its traditional role in the FBI's case as an investigative
and intelligence-gathering agency and take affirmative steps which
are needed to meet an imminent threat to human life or property

In short if we learn a murder or bombing is to be carried out now
can we truly meet our responsibilities by investigating only after the
crime has occurred or should we have the ability to prevent I refer to
those instances where there is a strong sense of urgency because of an
imminent threat to human life

Where there exists the potential to penetrate and disrupt the Con
gress must consider the question of whether or not such preventive
action should be available to the FBI

These matters are currently being addressed by a task force in the
Justice Department including the FBI and I am confident that De
partmental guidelines and controls can be developed in cooperation
with pertinent committees of Congress to insure that such measures
are used in an entirely responsible manner

Probably the most important question here today is what assurances
I can give that the errors and abuses which arose under the counter
intelligence programs will not occur again First let me assure the
committee that some very substantial changes have been made in key
areas of the FBI's methods of operations since I took the oath of of
fice as Director on July 9 1973 Today we place a high premium on
openness openness both within and without the service

I have instituted a program of open frank discussion in the decision
making process which insures that no future program or major policy
decision will ever be adopted without a full and critical review of its
propriety

Participatory management has become a fact in the FBI
I have made it known throughout our headquarters and field divi

sions that I welcome all employees regardless of position or degree
of experience to contribute their thoughts and suggestions and to
voice whatever criticisms or reservations they may have concerning
any area of our operations

The ultimate decisions in the Bureau are mine and I take full re
sponsibility for them My goal is to achieve maximum critical analysis
among our personnel without in any manner weakening or undermin
ing our basic command structure

The results of this program have been most beneficial to me person
ally to the FBI's disciplined performance and to the morale of our
employees

In addition since some of the mistakes of the past were occasioned
by direct orders from higher authorities outside the FBI we have
welcomed Attorney General Edward Levi's guidance counsel and hip
continuous availability in his own words "as a `lightning rod to de
flect improper requests.

Within days after taking office Attorney General Levi instructed
that I immediately report to him any requests or practices which in
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my judgment were improper or which considering the context of the
request I believed presented the apprearances of impropriety

I am pleased to report to this committee as I have to the Attorney
General that during my nearly 21/2years as Director under two Presi
dents and three Attorneys General no one has approached me or made
overtures directly or otherwise to use the FBI for partisan political
or other improper purposes

I can assure you that I would not for a moment consider honoring
any such request

I can assure you too in my administration of the FBI I routinely
bring to the attention of the Attorney General and the Deputy At
torney General major policy questions including those which arise in
my continuing review of our operations and practices These are dis
cussed openly and candidly in order that the Attorney General can
exercise his responsibilities over the FBI

I am convinced that the basic structure of the FBI today is sound
But it would be a mistake to think that integrity can be assured only
through institutional means

Integrity is a human quality It depends upon the character of the
person who occupies the office of the Director and every member of
the FBI under him

I am proud of the 19,000 men and women with whom it is my honor
to serve today Their dedication their professionalism their stand
ards and the self-discipline which they personally demand of them
selves and expect of their associates are the Nation's ultimate assurance
of proper and responsible conduct at all times by the FBI

The Congress and the members of this committee in particular have
gained a great insight into the problems confronting the FBI in the
security and intelligence fields problems which all too often we have
been left to resolve without sufficient guidance from the executive
branch or the Congress itself

As in all human endeavors errors of judgment have been made But
no one who is looking for the cause of our failures should confine his
search solely to the FBI or even to the executive branch

The Congress itself has long possessed the mechanism for FBI over
sight yet seldom has it been exercised

An initial step was taken in the Senate in 1973 when the Committee
on the Judiciary established a Subcommittee on FBI Oversight Hear
ings had been commenced and we were fully committed to maximum
participation with the members of that subcommittee

I laud their efforts However those efforts are of very recent origin
in terms of the FBI's history

One of the greatest benefits of the study this committee has made
is the expert knowledge you have gained of the complex problems
confronting the FBI But I respectfully submit that those benefits are
wasted if they do not lead to the next step a step that I believe is ab
solutely essential a legislative charter expressing congressional deter
mination of intelligence jurisdiction for the FBI

Action to resolve the problems confronting us in the security and
intelligence fields is urgently needed and it must be undertaken in
a forthright manner Neither the Congress nor the public can afford
to look the other way leaving it to the FBI to do what must be done
as too often has occurred in the past
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This means too that Congress must assume a continuing role not in
the initial decisionmaking process but in the review of our
performance

I would caution against a too-ready reliance upon the courts to do
our tough thinking for us Some proposals that have been advanced
during these hearings would extend the role of the courts into the
early stages of the investigative process and thereby would take over
what historically have been executive branch decisions

I frankly feel that such a trend if unchecked would seriously un
dermine the independence of the judiciary and cast them in a role
not contemplated by the authors of our Constitution Judicial review
cannot be a substitute for congressional oversight or executive decision

The FBI urgently needs a clear and workable determination of our
jurisdiction in the intelligence field a jurisdictional statement that
the Congress finds to be responsive to both the will and the needs of
the American people

Senators first and foremost I am a police officer a career police
officer In my police experience the most frustrating of all problems
that I have discovered facing law enforcement in this country Fed
eral State and local are when demands are made of them to perform
their traditional role as protector of life and property without a clear
and understandable legal bases to do so

I recognize that the formulation of such a legislative charter will be
a most precise and demanding task

It must be sufficiently flexible that it does not stifle the FBI's effec
tiveness in combating the growing incidence of crime and violence
across the United States That charter must clearly address the demon
strated problems of the past yet it must amply recognize the fact that
times change and so also do the nature and thrust of our criminal and
subversive challenges

The fact that the Department of Justice has commenced the formula
tion of operational guidelines governing our intelligence activities does
not in any manner diminish the need for legislation The responsibility
for conferring jurisdiction resides with the Congress

In this regard I am troubled by some proposals which question the
need for intelligence gathering and suggest that information needed
for the prevention of violence can be acquired in the normal course
of criminal investigations

As a practical matter the line between intelligence work and regu
lar criminal investigations is often difficult to describe What begins as
an intelligence investigation may well end in arrest and prosecution
of the subject Brit there are some fundamental differences between
these investigations that should be recognized differences in scope in
objective and in the time of initiation In the usual criminal case a
crime has occurred and it remains only for the Government to identify
the perpetrator and to collect sufficient evidence for prosecution Since
the investigation normally follows the elements of the crime the scope
of the inquiry is limited and fairly well defined

By contrast intelligence work involves the gathering of information
not necessarily evidence The purpose may well be not to prosecute but
to thwart crime or to insure that the Government has enough informa
tion to meet any future crisis or emergency The inquiry is necessarily
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broad because it must tell us not only the nature of the threat but also
whether the threat is imminent the persons involved and the means
by which the threat will be carried out The ability of the Government
to prevent criminal acts is dependent on our anticipation of those crim
inal acts Anticipation in turn is dependent on advance information
that is intelligence

Certainly reasonable people can differ on these issues Given the
opportunity I am confident that the continuing need for intelligence
work can be documented to the full satisfaction of the Congress We
recognize that what is at stake here is not the interests of the FBI
but rather the interests of every citizen of this country We recognize
also that the resolution of these matters will demand extensive and
thoughtful deliberation by the Congress To this end I pledge the
complete cooperation of the Bureau with this committee or its succes
sors in this important task

In any event you have my unqualified assurance as Director that we
will carry out both the letter and the spirit of such legislation as the
Congress may enact

That is the substance of my prepared statement
I would also like to say extemporaneously that I note that on this

panel are some gentlemen who were on the Judiciary Committee which
heard my testimony at the time I was presented to them for candidacy
as Director of the FBI At that time I took very seriously the charge
which may possibly result in the deliberation of this committee and of
the full Senate I have been well aware of the problems of the FBI
since that time I have also been well aware of the capabilities of the
FBI to discharge those responsibilities I don't take them lightly I am
of sufficient experience and age that I have pledged myself to do what
is good and proper I say this not as a self-serving statement but in
order that we might place in context my position within the FBI I
could seek sanctuary and perhaps a safe sanctuary by saying during
the period these things occurred I was with the local police department
in Kansas City Mo Prior to that time however I was in the FBI

During the time I was with the FBI and during the time I was with
the police department I continued throughout that period a close
acquaintance with and a strong affection for the FBI

I only want to point out that based on those years based on those
observations we have a very fine and very sensitive and a very capa
ble organization I feel that there is much that can still be done I
know that we are not without fault I know that from experiences I
have had We will not be completely without fault in the future But
I assure you that we look upon this inquiry we look upon any man
date which you may feel you have as good and proper I only want to
place in your thinking the fact that you have here a matchless orga
nization one which I continue to say was motivated in most of these
instances I cannot justify some but the motivation was of the best I
am not pleading as does a defense attorney I am only putting in your
thinking my objective observations as a citizen who is somewhat con
cerned about the future of this organization It is too precious for us
to have it in a condition of jeopardy

Thank you very much
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The CHAIRMANThank you Director Kelley
I want to turn first to Senator Hart who won't be able to remain

through the whole morning I think he has one question he would like
to ask

Senator HART of Michigan Thank you Mr Chairman Senator
Mathias and I have Judiciary Committee hearings at 10:30

I have several questions and I'm sure they'll be covered by others
but the one that I have as a result of reading your testimony and listen
ing to it this morning relates to your comment at the foot of page 10
and at the top of 11

There you indicate that you caution us about extending the court's
role in the early stages of investigations suggesting that this might
take us beyond the role contemplated for the courts under the Consti
tution

Now as you have said aside from the so-called national security wire
tap problem the main focus of our discussions and concern has been
on the possibility of requiring court approval for the use of informants
informants directed to penetrate and report on some group

One of the witnesses yesterday Professor Dorsen pointed out that
really those informants are the most pervasive type of an eavesdrop
ping device It is a human device An informant is really more intru
sive on my privacy than a bug or a tap because he can follow me any
where He can ask me questions to get information the Government
would like to have

Now we certainly involve the courts in approval of the wiretaps for
physical searches with the intent of the drafters of the Constitution to
have a neutral third party magistrate screen use of certain investiga
tive techniques And the informant is such a technique He functions
sort of like a general warrant and I don't see why requiring court ap
proval would violate the role envisaged for the courts

And as I leave I would like to get your reactions to my feelings
Mr KELLEY I do not feel that there is any use of the informant in

intrusion which is to this extent objectionable The concept of the
informant has been approved by numerous court decisions Let us now
go to the moral connotation of the use of the informant

I think as in many cases it is a matter of balance You have only
very few ways of solving crimes one of which is the use of the in
formant I think the protection of the right of the victim to be vic
timized You have within the Constitution certain grants that are
under ordinary circumstances abrogation of rights The right to search
and seize which of course can't be unreasonable but nonetheless
you have the right

I think that were we to lose the right of the informant we would
lose to a great measure our capability of doing our job

Now I'm not arguing with you Senator that it is not an unusual
procedure I'm not even going to say that it is not an intrusion because
it is But it has to be one I think in which virtue of the benefits must
be counted

We don't like to use it We don't like the problems that are at
tendant We take great care

Now you mention the court possibly having jurisdiction over them
I think that possibly we could present the matter to the court but
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what are they going to do insofar as monitoring their effort Are they
going to have to follow it all the way through

Also there is of course urgency in the other contacts Must the
court be contacted for each and approval of the court given for each
contact

There are a great many problems insofar as administration of it
I frankly feel and again all I can do is give you my idea that

there is a satisfactory control over the informants as we now exercise
it today Yes there are going to be some who will get beyond our
control but this is going to happen no matter what you do

Senator HART of Michigan I appreciate your reaction I was not
suggesting that there is consideration here to prohibit informants I
was reflecting a view that I felt and hold that the use of an informant
does require some balance as you yourself said and I would be more
comfortable with a third party making a judgment as to whether
the intrusion is warranted by the particular circumstance But I do
understand your position

Thank you Mr Chairman
The CHAIRMANThank you Senator Hart
(Senator Hart of Michigan leaves the hearing room.]
The CHAIRMANSenator Baker do you have questions
Senator BAKER Mr Chairman thank you very much
Mr Kelley I have a great respect for you and your organization

and I personally regret that the organization is in political distress
but we've both got to recognize that it is along with other agencies
and departments of the Government

I think you probably would agree with me that even though that
is extraordinarily unpleasant and in many respects unfortunate it
also has a plus side That is it gives us an indication of our future
direction and the opportunity at least to improve the level of com
petency and service of the Government itself

With that hopeful note would you be agreeable then to volunteering
for me any suggestions you have on how to improve the responsiveness
of the FBI or indeed for any other law enforcement agencies of the
Government to the Congress to the Attorney General to the Presi
dent Beyond that would you give me any suggestions you have on
how you would provide the methods the access the documents the
records the authority for the Congress to perform its essential I
believe essential oversight responsibility to see that these functions
these delicate functions are being undertaken properly

And before you answer let me tell you two or three things I am
concerned about

It hasn't been long ago that the FBI Director was not even confirmed
by the Senate of the United States I believe you are the
first one to be confirmed by the Senate of the United States I think
that is a movement in the right direction I think the FBI has taken
on a stature and additional importance that requires it to have closer
supervision and scrutiny by us At the same time I rather doubt that
we can become involved in the daily relationship between you and the
Attorney General Therefore I tend to believe that the Attorney
General needs to be more directly involved in the operations of the
FBI I would appreciate any comments on that
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Second I rather believe that major decisions of the intelligence
community and the FBI ought to be in writing so that the Congress
can if it needs to in the future take a look at these decisions and the
process by which they were made to decide that you are or you are
not performing your services diligently

I don't think you can have oversight unless you have access to
records and in many cases records don't exist and in some cases the
people who made those decisions are now departed and in other cases
you have conflicts

How would you suggest then that you improve the quality of serv
ice of your agency How would you propose that you increase the
opportunity for oversight by the Congress of the United States
What other suggestions do you have for improving the level of law
enforcement in the essential activity that is required

Mr KELLEY I would possibly be repetitious in answering this
Senator but I get a great deal of pleasure from telling what I think
is necessary and what I hope that I have followed One which is
beyond my control but which I think is very important is that the
position of Director is one to which great attention should be paid
in choosing the man who will properly acquit himself

I feel that the Judiciary Committee at least in going over me did
a pretty good job I feel that it is most necessary that care be taken
that his philosophy his means of management hi. facility to adapt
to change his tendency toward consulting with other members of the
official family that he be willing to for example go through over
sight with no reticence and that I think that he should be chosen very
carefully

I think further that he should be responsible for those matters which
indicate impropriety or illegality

Senator BAKER Could you stop for just a second Who does he work
for Does the Director in your view work for the President of the
United States for the Attorney General for the Justice Department
for the executive branch

Who is the executive of the FBI the Director of the FBI respon
sible to Who should he be responsible to

Mr KELLEY Jurisdictionally to the Attorney General but I think
this is such an important field of influence that it is not at all unlikely
that we can expand it to the judiciary the legislature and of course
we are under the Attorney General

Senator BAKER Do you have any problems with the idea of the
President of the United States calling the Director of the FBI and
asking for performance of a particular task Does that give you any
difficulty Or do you think that the relationship between the FBI
Director and the President is such that that is desirable or should
it be conduited through the Attorney General

Mr KELLEY I think it should be in the great majority of the cases
conduited through the Attorney General There has been traditionally
some acceptance of the fact that if the President wants to see and
talk with the Director he may call him directly

It has been my practice in such an event to thereafter report to the
Attorney General whoever it might be that I have been called over
and what I discussed and was told And this was revealed in full to
them
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Senator BAKER I suppose we could pass a statute that says the
President has to go through the Attorney General although I rather
suspect it would be a little presumptuous

But to go the next step do you think it is necessary for the pursuit
of effective oversight on the part of the Congress to have some sort of
document written or at least some sort of account of a Presidential
order or an order of the Attorney General given to a Director of the
FBI

Do you think that these things need to be handled in a more formal
way

Mr KELLEY Personally it would be my practice in the event I re
ceive such an order to request that it be documented This is a pro
tection as well as a clarification as to whether or not it should be placed
as part of legislation I frankly would like to reserve that for some
more consideration I don't know whether it would be but I think that
it can be worked very easily

Senator BAKER Mr Kelley Attorney General Levi I believe has
already established some sort of agency or function within the De
partment that is serving as the equivalent I suppose of an Inspector
General of the Justice Department including the FBI Are you
familiar with the steps that Mr Levi has taken in that respect I
think he calls it the Office of Professional Responsibility

Mr KELLEY Yes sir I'm familiar with it
Senator BAKER Do you have any comment on that Will you give us

any observations as to whether you think that will be useful helpful
or whether it will not be useful or helpful how it affects the FBI
how you visualize your relationship to it in the future

Mr KELLEY I don't object to this which is to some extent an over
sight within the Department of Justice under the Attorney General

Frankly it just came out I have not considered it completely but
to the general concept yes I very definitely subscribe

Senator BAKER How would you feel about extending that concept
of government-wide operation a national Inspector General who is
involved with an oversight of all of the agencies of Government as
they interface with the constitutionally protected rights of the in
dividual citizen Would you care to comment on that or would you
rather save that for a while

Mr KELLEY I would like to reserve that one
Senator BAKER I'm not surprised Would you think about it and

let us know what you think about it
Mr KELLEYI will ISee Appendix B p 992.]
Senator BAKER All right Mr Chairman thank you very much
The CHAIRMAN Senator Huddleston
Senator HIIDDLESTONThank you Mr Chairman
Mr Kelley in your statement you describe the conditions that

existed when much of the abuse that we have talked about duringthis inquiry occurred indicating that the people within the Bureau
felt like they were doing what was expected of them by the President
by the Attorney General the Congress and the people of the United
States

Does not this suggest that there has been a reaction there to pre
vailing attitudes that minht have existed in the country because of
certain circumstances rather than any clear and specific direct in
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structions that might have been received from proper authorities
And if that is the case is it possible in developing this charter this
guideline to provide for that kind of specific instruction

Mr KELLEY I think so yes I think that they can logically be
incorporated and that

Senator HVDDLESTONYou can see there would be a continuing
danger if any agency is left to simply react to whatever the attitudes
may be at a specific time in this country because

Mr KELLEY Senator I don't contemplate it being a continuing dan
ger but there certainly could be a very acceptable guidepost whereby
we can in the event such a need seems to arise know what we can do

Senator HUDDLESTONWell in pursuing the area which Senator
Hart was discussing whether or not we can provide sufficient
guidelines which would replace a decision by the court in determin
ing what action might be proper and specific in protecting individ
ual's rights can't we also provide the restrictions and guidelines and
the various techniques that might be used

For instance supposing we do establish the fact as has already
been done that informants are necessary and desirable How do we
keep that informant operating within the proper limits so that he in
fact is not violating individual rights

Mr KELLEY Well of course much of the reliance must be placed
on the agent and the supervision of the FBI to assure that there is no
infringement of rights

Senator HUDDLESTONBut this is an area with which we've had some
difficulty in the past We have assumed that a particular action was
necessary that there was a present threat that some intelligence pro
grams should be initiated but in many cases it has gone beyond what
would appear to have been necessary to have addressed the original
threat How do we keep within the proper balance there

Mr KELLEY 'Well actually it's just about like any other offense
It is an invasion of the other individual's right and it is by an officer
and an FBI agent is an officer There's the possibility of criminal
prosecution against him This is one which I think might flow if he
counsels the informant

Now insofar as his inability to control the informant I don't sup
pose that would warrant prosecution but there is still supervisory
control over that agent and over that informant by insisting that
control is exercised on a continuing basis

Senator HTDDLESTOYIt brings up an interesting point as to
whether or not a law enforcement agency ought to be very alert to
any law violations of its own members or anyone else

If a White House official asks the FBI or someone to do something
unlawful the question seems to me to be whether or not that is a
violation that should be reported by the FBI

Mr KELLEY I think that any violation which comes to our atten
tion should either be handled by us or the proper authority

Senator HUDDLESTONBut that hasn't been the case in the past
Mr KELLEY Well I don't know what you're referring to but I

would think your statement is proper
Senator HUDDLESTONWell we certainly have evidence of unlawful

activity taking place in various projects that have been undertaken
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which certainly were not brought to light willingly by the FBI or by
other law enforcement agencies

The question that I'm really concerned about as we attempt to
draw guidelines and charters that would give the agency the best
flexibility that they may need against a wide range of threats is how
we control what happens within each of those actions to keep them
from going beyond what was intended to begin with

Mr KELLEY You're still speaking of informants
Senator HUDDLESTONNot only informants but the agents them

selves as they go into surveillance wiretaps or other intelligence
gathering techniques

The original thrust of my question was even though we may be
able to provide guidelines of a broad nature how do we control the
techniques that might be used that in themselves might be a serious
violation of the rights

Mr KELLEY Well first I don't know whether it's germane to your
question but I do feel that it should be pointed out that the association
to the relationship between the informant and his agent handler is a
very confidential one and I doubt very seriously whether we could
have any guidelines where there might be an extension of any moni
tors here because thereby you do have a destruction of that relation
ship Insofar as the activities of agents informants or others which
may be illegal we have on many occasions learned of violations of the
law on the part of informants and either prosecuted ourselves
through the reporting of it to the U.S attorney or turned it over to the
local authority We have done this on many occasions Insofar as our
own personnel we have an internal organization the Inspection Divi
sion which reviews this type of activity and if there be any viola
tion yes no question about it we would pursue it to the point of
prosecution

Senator HUDDLESTONBut it could be helped by periodic review
Mr KELLEY We do on an annual basis review the activities of our

59 offices through that same Inspection Division and they have a clear
charge to go over this as well as other matters

Senator Ht"DDLESTONMr Kelley you pointed out the difference in
the approaches in gathering evidence after a crime has been committed

Would there be any advantage or would it be feasible to attempt
to separate these functions within the Agency in the departments for
instance without mixing gathering intelligence and gathering evi
dence Are the techniques definable and different

Mr KELLEY Senator I think they are compatible I see no objec
tion to the way that they are now being handled on a management
basis I think as a matter of fact it is a very fine association whereby
the intelligence stemming as it does from a substantive violation is
a natural complement

Senator HUDDLESTONNow another area the FBI furnishes infor
mation to numerous government agencies Is this properly restricted
and controlled at the present time in your judgment as to just who
can ask the FBI for information what kind of information they can
ask for and probably even more important what restrictions can be
put on the use of that information once it has been supplied by the
FBI
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Mr KELLEY I think so Senator
Senator HUDDLESTONYou think there are proper restrictions now
Mr KELLEY I don't know that we can ourselves judge in all cases

whether or not there is good and sufficient reason for an agency to

inquire I think that there should be a very close delineation by the

agencies as to what they're going to ask for but I think that we do have
sufficient rules that are satisfactory to us

Senator HUDDLESTONYou're confident that the information your
agency supplies is not being misused to the detriment of the rights
of any individuals

Mr KELLY Senator I'm only confident in what I do myself I
would say that I am satisfied

Senator HTDDLESTONI was wondering whether some inclusion

ought to be made in whatever charter is made as to who specifically
can request what limits ought to be placed on the request and what

they can do with it after they get it
Mr KELLEY Yes
Senator HTDDLESTONI have some concern about the fact that in in

telligence gathering one is bound to gather a great deal of informa
tion about some individual that is useless as far ,as the intent of the

intelligence gathering is concerned but might be in some way embar

rassing or harmful to the individual whether or not there's any effort
to separate this kind of information out of a person's file that is really
initiated for a purpose for a specific purpose unrelated to this infor
mation

Is there any effort or could any direction be given to doing that
Mr KELLEY We would be very happy to work under the guidelines

or rules or anything else to purge material which is extraneous ir

relevant or for any other reason objectionable
Senator HUDDLESTONAnd how about the length of time that these

files are kept in the agency
Mr KELLEY We ,are willing to work within that framework too
Senator HUDDLESTONI thinkthat might be done
I think in developing the chain of command so to speak it cer

tainly would be very difficult to prevent the President of the United
States from calling up the head of the FBI or anyone else and dis

cussing any law enforcement problem he might so desire and perhaps
even give direction to the agency

But how about that What about White House personnel who might
also be inclined to call the Director and ask him to do specific things
Could there be some clear-cut understanding as to whether or not the
Director would be obligated to undertake any such project that just
anybody at the White House might suggest

Mr KELLEY It's very clear to me that any request must come from
Mr Buchen's office and that it be in any case wherein it is a request
for action followed with aletter so requesting

This has come up before during the Watergate hearings and I think
it has been placed very vividly in our minds that is take care that
you just don't follow the request of some underling who does not truly
reflect the desire of the President

Senator HfDDLESTOX Just one more question about techniques
aside from the guidelines of authority on broad projects undertaken
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Would it be feasible from time to time in a congressional oversight
committee to discuss with the Department and with the Bureau various

techniques so that they could have some input as to whether or not
these actions are consistent with the overall guidelines to start with
and consistent with 'the very protections

Mr KELLEY Senator I have already said to the Oversight Com
mittee of the Senate that so far as I can now see the only thing that
would be withheld is the identity of informants We'll discuss tech
niques we'll discuss our present activities I think this is the only way
that we can exchange our opinions and get accomplished what you
want to accomplish and what I want to accomplish

Senator HUDDLESTONI feel that is an important aspect of it because
even though you have a charter which gives broad direction for all the

guidelines and to the types of projects that you enter into it if we
don't get down to specifics such things as how intelligence is to be col
lected how evidence is to be collected what is done after it is collected
that type of thing it seems to me we are leaving a wide gap again for
the Bureau to assume that it has total instruction and total permission
to move in a certain direction and go beyond what is intended or what
was authorized

Thank you Mr Chairman and Mr Director
The CHAIRMANSenator Goldwater
Senator GOLDWATERMr Kelley as part of the FBI electronic sur

veillance of Dr King several tapes of specific conversations and later
a composite King tape were produced Are these tapes still in the
possesion of the FBI

Mr KELLEY Yes sir
Senator GOLDWATERHave they been reviewed by you
Mr KELLEY No sir
Senator GOLDWATERHave they been reviewed by any of your staff

to your knowledge
Mr KELLEY Senator I think that they have been reviewed I know

that at least some have reviewed it within the area of this particular
section There has been no review of them since I came to the FBI I
can tell you that

Senator GOLDWATERWould these tapes be available to the committee
if 'the committee felt they would like to hear them

Mr KELLEY This Senator Goldwater is a matter which is of as I
said before some delicacy and there would have to be a discussion
of this in an executive session

The CHAIRMANI might say in that connection that the committee
staff gave some consideration to this matter and decided that it would
compound the original error for the staff to review the tapes because
that would be a still further invasion of privacy and so the staff re
frained from insisting on obtaining the tapes believing that it was
unnecessary and quite possibly improper in order to get at what we
needed to know about the King case

So the staff did refrain and for that reason the issue never came to
a head I just wanted to lay that information before the Senator

Senator GOLDWATERI realize that's a prerogative of the staff but
it's also the prerogative of the committee if and I'm not advocating it
if we wanted to hear them ourselves to determine whether Mr Hoover

66-0770 76 20
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was off on a wild goose chase or whether there was in effect some rea
son Again I am not advocating it I am merely asking a question
They would be available if the committee took a vote to hear them and
decided on it

Mr KELLEY I don't think it would be within my jurisdiction to re
spond to this Senator It would have to be the Attorney General

Senator GOLDWATERI see Now are these tapes and other products
of surveillance routinely retained even after an individual ceased to
be a target of inquiry

Mr KELLEY They are retained usually for 10 years
Senator GOLDWATERTen years
Mr KELLEY Yes sir
Senator GOLDWATERWhat is the future value if any to the Bureau

of retaining such information
Mr KELLEY If there be guidelines that set out a destruction or

erasure we will abide by it We will on those occasions where we think
that matters might come up within that period of time which may need
the retention of them we will express our opinion at that time but
other than that we would be guided by guidelines

Senator GOLDWATERIs it your view that legitimate law enforcement
needs should outweigh privacy considerations with respect to reten
tion of such information or do we need the clear guidelines on the
destruction of these materials when the investigative purposes for
which they were collected have been served

Mr KELLEY We feel that there should be a good close look at the
retention of material and we would of course like to have an input
But we welcome consideration of this

Senator GOLDWATERThat is all I have Mr Chairman Thank you
very much

The CHAIRMANThank you Senator
Senator Mondale
Senator MONDALEMr Director it seems to me that the most crucial

question before the Congress is to accept the invitation of the FBI to
draw congressionally imposed lines limits of authority so the FBI
will know clearly what you can and cannot do so you will not be
subject to later judgments The question is where should that line be
drawn

As you know in 1924 when the FBI was created and Mr Stone later
became the Chief Justice he drew the line at criminal law enforce
ment He said that never again would we go beyond the authority im
posed upon us to get into political ideas We would stay in the area
of law enforcement

Would you not think it makes a good deal of sense to draw the
guidelines in a way that your activities are restricted to the enforce
ment of the law investigations of crime investigations of conspiracies
to commit crime rather than to leave this very difficult to define and
control area of political ideas

Mr KELLEY I don't know whether I understand your last state
ment of involving the area of political ideas I say that I feel that
certainly we should be vested and should continue in the field of
criminal investigations as an investigatory objective These are con
clusions of course which are based on statutes in the so-called security
field national or foreign
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These are criminal violations I feel that they should be in tandem
I feel having worked many years in this atmosphere that you have
more ears and eyes and you have more personnel working together
covering the same fields I do not think there should be a separation
of the intelligence matters because it is a concomitant It naturally
flows from the investigation of the security matters and the criminal

Senator MONDALEMr Kelley what Mr Stone said was that the
Bureau of Investigation is not concerned with political or other opin
ions of individuals It is concerned only with such conduct as is for
bidden by the laws of the United States When the police system goes
beyond these limits it is dangerous to proper administration of justice
and human liberty

Do you object to that definition
Mr KELLEr I think that life has become much more sophisticated

and we have added to the so-called policeman's area of concern some
matters which were probably not as important at that time I think
that the fact that the FBI has been in touch with the security inves

tigations and the gathering of intellige-nce is something which has

proved to be at times troublesome and given us great concern but it is
a viable productive procedure

I don't know what Mr Stone was thinking of entirely of this course
but I can tell you about the procedure today

Senator MONDALEI think you recognize if that further step is

taken as you're recommending here at that point it becomes so dif
ficult to guarantee In fact in my opinion it becomes impossible to

guarantee that we won't see a recurrence of some of the abuses that
we've seen in the past and I don't know how you establish any kind
of meaningful oversight on a function as nebulous as the one you've
just defined

If the FBI possesses the authority to investigate ideas that they con
sider to be threats to this Nation's security how on earth can stand
ards be developed that would provide any basis for oversight We
have seen how that definition can be stretched to include practically
everybody including moderate civil rights leaders war dissenters
and so on

How can you from among other things be protected from criticism
later on that you exceeded your authority or didn't do something that
some politician tried to pressure you into doing

Mr KELLEY It might well be Senator that 10 years from now a
Director of the FBI will be seated here and will be criticized for doing
that which today is construed as very acceptable

Senator MONDALECorrect And I have great sympathy for the
predicament in which the FBI finds itself

Mr KELLEY And the Director
Senator MONDALEAnd the Director especially That is why I think

its in the interest of the FBI to get these lines as sharply defined as
possible so that when you are pressured to do things or when after
the fact people with good 20/20 hindsight can criticize you or the
Bureau you can say here are the standards that you gave us and they
specifically say this and that is your answer We have to live by the
law If we don't define it specifically it seems to me that these excesses
could reoccur because I don't think it's possible to define them and the
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FBI is inevitably going to be kicked back and forth depending on

personal notions of what you should have done Don't you fear that
Mr KELLEY Not too much Senator I think we learned a great les

son by virtue of Watergate the revelations that have come up as a
result of this committee's inquiries the fact that I think that we have
a different type of spirit today in the Bureau the fact that as I said
before you came in that I think the Bureau is a matchless organiza
tion and they are eager to do that which is vital and proper and the
fact that we are getting a number of very fine young people in the

organization people of the other ethnic backgrounds than we had

years ago I think there is a greater understanding in the Bureau

today of what is the proper type of conduct
We may not be able to project this on all occasions because we must

equate this with the need and with our experience but if precise
guidelines are the goal you're going to have trouble If on the other
hand there is flexibility I think that we can work very well within
those guidelines

Senator MONDALEAs you know I don't think there is a better
trained or professionally higher qualified law enforcement organiza
tion in the world than the FBI I think we all-agree it is superb But
the problem has been from time to time that when you go beyond
the area of enforcing the law into the area of political ideas in fact

you leave the criminal field you get into politics That is where it
seems to me the great controversy exists and where you are almost

inevitably going to be subjected to fierce criticism in the future no
matter how you do it Once you get into politics you get into trouble

Mr KELLEY I agree to that and I point out that in almost every
branch of the Government and in every part as a matter of fact every
segment of our society there are some who deviate from the normal
course I feel that within the Bureau there is less likelihood of this

happening and I think that working with you we can at least make
some achievements that will be significant

Now whether it will be lasting I don't know,but I think we've made
a good start

Senator MONDALEIn your speech in Montreal on August 9 you
said we must be willing to surrender a small measure of our liberties
to preserve the great bulk of them Which liberties did you have in
mind

Mr KELLEY Well of course this speech has been misunderstood
many many times

Senator MONDALEWell I want you to have a chance to clear it up
Mr KELLEY All that was intended here was a restatement of the

approach which the courts historically have used in resolving most
issues of constitutional importance and its recognition that rights are
not susceptible to absolute protection It's a matter of balance Even in
the fourth amendment for example which protects the right of
privacy it does not prohibit searches and seizures As I mentioned it
only refers to those that are unreasonable

I came from the police field What is more restrictive to more people
than traffic regulation But what would be more chaotic is if you did
not have traffic regulation 'We do in order to live in the complexities
and intricacies of today's life have to give up some of our rights Some
may construe this as an extravagant statement If it is so I wish to say
that I was only pointing out that there has to be a balance
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Senator MONDALESo when you say we have to give up some liber
ties or as you just said some rights which rights would you have
us give up

Dir KELLEY Under the fourth amendment you would have the
right for search and seizure

Senator MMONDALE1On wouldn't give up the fourth amendment
right

Dir KELLEY Oh no not the right
Senator MOND.ILE What right do you have in mind
Mr KELLEY The right to be free from search and seizure
Senator MONDALEThere's no such right in the Constitution You

can have such seizures but they mustbe reasonable under court war
rant Did you mean to go beyond that

Mr KELLEY That's right
Senator MONDALEYou should be able to go beyond that
Mr KELLEY No no I do not mean that we should ever go beyond

a constitutional right guarantee
Senator MONDALEWell would you say Mr Kelley that that

sentence might have been inartful in your speech
Mr KELLEY I said that if it was misunderstood I made a mistake

because I should never make a statement which yes it was inartful
Senator MONDALEI think I know about your record in law enforce

ment well enough to tell you that I think you were saying something
different that it was taken to mean something different than I think
you intended

What you are saying is that in the exercise of your law enforcement
powers the rights of individuals are determined by the laws and the
courts but the courts in the handling of those issues have to balance
rights and other values

That's what you're essentially saying is that correct
Mr KELLEY Senator I ought to have you write my speeches so that

I don't have any misunderstandings I didn't intend that to be at the
time anything that was unusual I have to admit that maybe I made a
mistake

Senator MONDALEWhat you are saying in effect is that the rights
of the American people can be determined not by the Director of the
FBI but by the courts and by the law You meant that

Mr KELLEY Indeed yes sir
Senator MONDALEAll right Thank you
The CHAIRMANSenator Hart
Senator HARTof Colorado Mr Kelley in response to a question by

Senator Mondale one of his first questions about laying down guide
lines it seems to me what you were saying was we could work together
That is to say the Bureau and the Congress lay down guidelines that
would not unreasonably hamper you from investigations of crime con
trol in the country

But I think implicit in his question was also an area that you didn't
respond to and that is what kind of guidelines do you lay down to
protect you and the Bureau from political pressure the misuse of the
Bureau by political figures particularly in the White House

And we've had indications that at least two of your predecessors if
not more obviously were corrupted and Mr Gray was under great
pressure from the White House to use the facilities of the Bureau and
their capabilities to accomplish some political end
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It seems to me you were arguing in favor of fewer restrictions so
you could get on with your job but that is not what Senator Mondale
and the rest of us are interested in

 'hat kind of restrictions can we lay down to protect you from
political pressures I'd be interested in that side of the coin if you
would

Mr KELLEY I would welcome any guidelines which would protect
me or any successor from this type of thing I think that would be
splendid I have not reviewed the guidelines as prepared to the present
date by the Department It might he that they are well defined in
there But I welcome any consideration of such directives

Senator HAirr of Colorado I)o you think this is a problem
Mr KELLEY No sir not with me
Senator HARTof Colorado Do you think that it has been a problem

for the people that preceded you
Mr KELLEY I think so
Senator HART of Colorado And that's a problem the Congress

ought to address
Mr KELLEY I think so
Senator HARTof Colorado The committee received a letter from the

Department of Justice a couple of days ago in which the Assistant At
torney General asked our cooperation in carrying out the investiga
tion or their efforts to review the investigation conducted by the FBI
into the death of Martin Luther King Jr. in order to determine
whether that investigation should be reopened They asked our co
operation they asked for our transcripts the testimony before the com
mittee all material provided to the committee by the FBI which re
lates to Dr King and the Southern Christian Leadership Conference

I guess my question is this Why is the Justice Department asking
this committee for FBI files

Mr KELLEY I don't think they're asking for files I think they're
asking for what testimony was given by witnesses whose testimony
has not been given up I don't know

Senator HARTof Colorado I'll quote it "And all material provided
to the committee by the FBI which relates to Dr King and the South
ern Christian Leadership Conference.

I repeat the question Why is the Justice Department asking this
committee for material provided to us by the FBI

Mr KELLEY Frankly I don't know Do you mind if I just ask
[Pause.]
Mr KELLEY [continued] I am informed and I knew this one

Everything that was sent to you was sent through them I)id they have
a copy also Yes they had a retained copy I don't know why

Senator HART of Colorado So there's nothing you provided us
that's not available to the Justice Department

Mr KELLEY That's right
Senator HART of Colorado And you can't account for why an of

ficial of the Justice Department would ask this committee for your
records

Mr KELLEY No sir
Senator HAirr of Colorado You released a statement on Novem

ber 18 1974 regarding the FBI's counterintelligence program and
you said you made a detailed study of COI\TELPRO activities and
reached the following conclusions and I quote
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"The purpose of these counterintelligence programs was to prevent
dangerously and potentially deadly acts against individuals organiza
tions and institutions both public and private across the United
States.

We had an FBI informant before this committee and he stated he
told the FBI on a number of occasions that he planned violent acts
against black people in groups And yet he said there were few if

any instances in which the FBI actually prevented violence from tak

ing place How does his testimony square with your statement that
I have quoted

Mr KELLEr It doesn't and I don't know if any of his statements
contrary to what we have said are the truth 'We don't subscribe to what
he said 'We have checked into it and we know of no instances where
for example the 15 minutes story and that type of thing has been
substantiated

Senator HARTof Colorado You're saying the testimony he gave us
under oath was not accurate

Mr KELLEr Right
Senator HART of Colorado You also said in that statement and I

quote
I want to assure you that Director Hoover did not conceal from superior au

thorities the fact that the FBI was engagedin neutralizing and disruptive tactics
against revolutionary and violence-pronegroups

Now the committee has received testimony that higher authorities
the Attorney General and Congress were not informed of New Left
COINTELPRO activities I)o you have any information in this re

gard
I know in that statement you cite one or two instances but in terms

of the bulk of COINTELPRO activities the record seems to indicate
that there was not systematic information flowing upward through
the chain of command to Director Hoover's superiors

Mr KELLEr May I ask that I be given the opportunity to sub
stantiate that with documentation

Senator HARTof Colorado Sure
Mr KELLEr Or respond to it [See Appendix B p 992.]
Senator HARTof Colorado Director Kelley just in passing do you

agree with the statement made by President Ford that those respon
sible for harassing and trying to destroy I)r King should be brought
to justice

Mr KELLEY Those who were directly responsible and upon whose
orders the activities were taken are responsible I don't know if he
intended to say that but if he did not I would say that it would be
more proper Insofar as my own opinion is concerned that it should be
centered on those who said to do it those who are responsible

I took the responsibility for any such program and I don't expect
that those under me would be not acting in accordance with what they
think is proper and may even have some reservation but they do it on
my orders I accept that responsibility I think that it should rest on
those who instructed that that be done

Senator HARTof Colorado But you agree that the people who give
the orders should be brought to justice

Mr KELLEY I do
The CILAIRMANAren't they all dead
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Mr Kw.Ey No
The CitAiiiatax Not quite
Mr KEI LEv Not quite
Senator HARTof Colorado That's all Mr Chairman
The CII.1II:lt1x Thank you Senator
Director Kelly in the committee's review of COINTELPRO and

other political involvements of the FBI it seems to me that we have
encountered two or three basic questions

Since the investigation is over insofar as the committee is con
cerned we're now turning our attention to remedies for the future
what I would think would be our constructive legislative work It is
very important that we focus on what we learned in that investiga
tion

One thing that we have learned is that Presidents of the United
States have from time to time ordered the FBI to obtain for them cer
tain kinds of information by exercising the necessary surveillance to
obtain and to have a purely political character that they simply
wanted to have for their own personal purposes I think that you would
agree that that is not a proper function of the FBI

Yet it's awfully difficult for anyone in the FBI including the Di
rector to turn down a President of the United States if he receives
a direct order from the President It is always possible of course to
say no and if you insist I will resign But that puts a very hard bur
den on any man serving in your position particularly if the Presi
dent puts a good face on the request and makes it sound plausible or
even invents some excuse It is always easy for him to say you know
I am considering Senator White for an important position in my ad
ministration and I need to know more about his activities particularly
of late I've had some cause for concern and I want to be certain that
there is nothing in his record that would later embarrass me and I
just want you to keep careful track of him and report to nie on what
he's been doing lately

It's difficult for you to reply to the President "Mr President
that's a very questionable activity for the FBI and I frankly don't
believe that you've given me the real reason why you want this man
followed I think his opposition to your current policy is politically
embarrassing to you and you want to get something on him.

I mean you know the Director can hardly talk back that way and
I'm wondering what we could do in the way of protecting your of
fice and the FBI from political exploitation in this basic charter
that we write

I want your suggestions but let's begin with one or two of mine
I would like your response

If we were to write into the law that any order given you either by
the President or by the Attorney General should be transmitted in
writing and should clearly state the objective and purpose of the re
quest and that the FBI would maintain those written orders and that
furthermore they would be available to any oversight committee of
the Congress If the Joint Committee on Intelligence is established
that committee would have access to such a file

So that the committee itself would be satisfied that orders were not
being given to the FBI that were improper or unlawful What would
you think of writing a provision of that kind into a charter for the
FBI
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Mr Kn;r.r.r,Y I would say writing into the law any order issued by
the President that is a request for action by the Attorney General
should be in writing is certainly in my opinion a very plausible
solution I'm sure that in contemplation of this there would be some
that will say yes or some that will say no but I think we could define
an area where you are trying to cure the abuses and we could do that

Now as to the availability to any oversight committee of Congress
I would say generally that I certainly would have no objection to this
but again there maybe some request for something of high confiden

tiality that the President might put in writing such as some national
or foreign security matter

I would like to have such a consideration be given a great deal of

thought and that the oversight committee review be conditioned with
that possibility I don't think it would present a problem

I have said previously that I feel I can discuss everything except the

identity of the informants to the oversight committee I welcome that
The CIIAIRJMANWell that has been of course the way we proceeded

with this committee It has worked pretty well I think
Now Senator Goldwater brought up a question on the Martin Lu

ther King tapes I would like to pursue that question If these tapes do
not contain any evidence that needs to be preserved for ongoing
criminal investigations and since I)r King has long since been vio

lently removed from the scene why are they preserved Why aren't

they simply destroyed Is there a problem that we can help through
new law to enable the FBI to remove from its files so much of this
information that it has collected that is no longer needed or may never
have connected the person with any criminal activity And yet all of
that information just stays there in the files year after year

What can we do How can a law be changed If that's not the prob
lem then what is Why are these tapes still down there at the FBI

Mr KELLEYWell of course we do have the rule that they are main
tained 10 years Now why the rule is your question and why right
now are they maintained Since we do maintain everything since the

inquiry has started and until that's lifted we can't destroy anything
I would say that this is a proper area for guidelines or legislation

and again as I have said there should be some flexibility and I know
that's a broad statement but there might be some areas wherein that
the subject of the investigation himself may want them retained be
cause it shows his innocence I think you have to deliberate this very
carefully but it can be clone and we are willing to be guided by those
rules

The CHAIRMANLet me ask you this The FBI is conducting thou
sands of investigations every year on possible appointees to Federal

position As a nnatter of fact the only time I ever see an FBI agent
is when he comes around and flashes his badge and asks me a ques
tion or two about what I know of Mr so and so who's being considered
for an executive office And we have a very brief conversation in which
I tell hint that as far as I know he's a loyal and patriotic citizen and
that is about the extent of it

Then when this file is completed and the person involved is either ap
pointed or not appointed what happens to that file I know it's full of
all kinds of gossip because it is in the nature of the investigation to go
out to his old neighborhoods and talk to everybody who might have
known hint What happens to the file Is that just retained forever
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Mr KELLEY We have some capability of destroying some files and
they are rather lengthy insofar as retention We have some archival
rules which govern the retention of material which is developed in
cases involving certain members of the executive branch of the Gov
ernment I see no reason why this would not be a proper area for con
sideration of legislation

The CHAIRMAN Can you give me any idea of how much do you
have records that would tell us how much time and money is being
spent by the FBI just in conducting these thousands of routine in
vestigations on possible Presidential appointments to Federal offices

Mr KELLEY I feel confident we can get it I do not have it now
but if you would like to have the annual cost for the investigation of
Federal appointees

The CHAIRMAN Yes Plus any other information that would in
dicate to us what proportion of the time and effort of the FBI was
absorbed in this kind of activity

Mr KELLEY I can tell you it is relatively small but I can get you
I think the exact amount of time and the approximate expense

The CHAIRMANI wish you would do that because this is a matter
we need more information about And when you supply those data to
the committee would you also supply the number of such investiga
tions each year You know I don't expect you to go back 20 or 25
years but give us a good idea of the last few years For example
enough to give us an idea of how much time and how broad the reach
of these investigations may be

Mr KELLEY Through 1970
The CHAIRMANThat would be sufficient I would think
The other matter that is connected to this same subject that I would

like your best judgment on is whether these investigations could not
be limited to offices of sensitivity That is to say where legitimate na
tional security interest might be involved so that there is a reason to
make a close check on past associations attitudes and expressions of
belief

I have often wondered whether we couldn't elminate routine Fed
eral offices that are not particularly sensitive in the national security
sense from the reach of these FBI checks And so when you respond
to the series of questions I wish you would include the offices that are
now covered by such checks and give us an idea of how far down into
the Federal bureaucracy this extends Could you do that

Mr KELLEYYes sir [See Appendix B p 992.]
The CHAIRMANFine Now there is a vote The vote always comes

just at the wrong time but Mr Schwarz wants to ask you some addi
tional questions for the record and there may be other questions that
would be posed by the staff after which I will ask Mr Schwarz to
adjourn the hearings It looks like we're going to be tied up on the
floor with votes

But before I leave I want to thank you for your testimony Mr
Kelley and to express my appreciation to you for the way you have
cooperated with the committee in the course of its investigation dur
ing the past months

Mr KELLEY Thank you
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The CHAIRMANAnd I hope as you do that as a result of the work
of the committee we can write a generic law for the FBI that will
help to remedy many of the problems we'll encounter in the future

Thank you
Mr ScHwARZ Mr Kelley I'll try to be very brief
In your statement you said the following and I would like then

to question about what you said
We must recognize that situations have occurred in the past and will arise

in the future where the Government may well he expected to depart from its
traditional role in the FBI's case as an investigative and intelligence-gathering
agency and take affirmativesteps which are needed to meet an imminent threat
to human life or property

Now by that you mean to take what kind of steps in what kind of
situation And can you give some concrete examples under your gen
eral principles statement !

Mr KELLEY I think that Mr Adams addressed himself to that the
other day where you have an extremist who is an employee at the
waterworks and he makes a statement that he's going to do something
which is devastating to the city and you have no way to attack this
under the ordinary pro:'edures and so therefore you must take some
steps to meet that imminent threat to human life or property

Mr SCHWARZSo let us take that case as a test of the principle You
are saying the extremist has said he is going to do something to the
waterworks poison it or something and he is on the way down there
with the poison in his car Is that the presumption

Mr KELLEY We hadn't gone that far but all right you can extend
it

Mr SCHWARZAll right now in that case you have the traditional
law enforcement tool which is the power of arrest

Mr KELLEY Not under probable cause where he has not gone down
there The hypothetical we gave was one where he had not taken any
overt acts in perpetration of this

Mr SCHWARZIf he hasn't taken any overt acts are you then in
what you would call an imminent threat of human life or property

Mr KELLEYI think so
Mr SCHwARZ How so Unless he has taken an overt act to buy the

poison or to get in the car with the poison there is not by definition
any threat to life or property

Mr KELLEY Mr Schwarz I've been around in this business a long
time I've heard a number of threats which were issued and they there
after materialized into actions I don't take these threats as being
empty ones because so many times they have been acted upon

I was criticized one time when there was a threat made to kill me
and it was said later on it's not rhetoric it's not rhetoric to me be
cause when they say they're going to kill me that just means one
thing

Mr SCHWARZBut I'm not disagreeing with you
Mr KELLEY But you are disagreeing with me You're saying on

the basis of experience that you cannot detect a possible threat That's
the whole area of concern that we have here losing the capabil
ity of doing something We don't say we should initiate it our
selves We say that we should go to the Attorney General We do not



1Seep 284

306

subscribe to the idea that we should act independently because maybe
we don't have the judicial review the capability of determining but
we do think that we should report it and thereafter see what can be
done

Mr SCHWARZHave you changed in the course of our discussion the
standard you refer to in your opening statement, where you're talking
about an imminent threat

Mr KELLEYYes
Mr SCHWARZAnd I hear you now as saying a possible threat
Mr KELLEYAn imminent possible threat
Mr SCHWARZAn imminent possible threat
Would that be a fair standard for either action other than arrest

I don't know what you have in mind but something to prevent the
person from carrying out his activities other than arrest for instance
what is an example of what you have in mind

Mr KELLEY Removing him from his position or whatever is neces
sary in order to make it impossible or at least as impossible as pos
sible to perpetuate this thing

Mr SCHWARZYou mean have him lose his job or
Mr KELLEYI don't know what it would be
Mr SCHWARZIsolate him in some fashion
Mr KELLEYIn some fashion perhaps
Mr SCHWARZNow for such activity and for opening an investi

gation into a domestic group could you live with a standard which said
you would have to have an immediate threat that someone was likely
to commit a serious Federal crime involving violence

Mr KELLEY I think that this thing could be worked out so that
there could be an adequate basis for an evaluation

Mr SCHWARZSo those words without trying to commit you en
tirely to them do not seem to you to depart far from what you think
would be an acceptable standard

Mr KELLEY Well an imminent immediate threat might be by
virtue of the word "immediate that he's going to do it the next min
ute In that case it may be necessary for you to not with the presence
or the possibility not be able to do anything except put him under
arrest

Mr SCHWARZOf course of course And nobody would at all dis
agree with that kind of action

Mr KELLEYI don't think they would either
Mr SCHWARZBut on the question let's take the opening of an

investigation into a domestic group Is it basically consistent with
practicality to make the test immediate threat of a serious Federal
crime involving violence

Mr KELLEYTo open a domestic security case
Mr ScTiwARZYes
Mr KELLEY It appears to me that this is a terrorist activity in

effect We certainly have terrorist activities under our jurisdiction as
a threat against the ITnited States

Mr SCHWARZNow are there other circumstances where it is justi
fiable to open an investigation of the domestic group where you do
not have an immediate threat of serious Federal crime involving
violence

Mr KELLEY Oh I think there are other criteria and they have been
well defined as to what is the possible opening the basis for a possible
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opening We haven't been discussing that we have been discussing
particular instances but there are other criteria that are used yes

Mr SCHw_1RZWhat would the other criteria be
Mr KELLEY Well the possible statutory violations over which we

have jurisdiction are generally speaking the most used of the bases
And then you have of course some intelligence investigations which

should of course be of short duration if there is no showing of this

leading to action or a viable intent
Mr SCHWARZSo that's what you're looking for in the intelligence

investigation
Mr KELLEY By intelligence investigation yes you are looking to

prevent
Mr SCHWARZWhat you are looking to prevent and what you're

looking to find is a likelihood of action combined with an intent to
take an issue

Mr KELLEY And the capability
Mr SCHWARZAnd the capability I just have two other lines Mr

Kelley and I appreciate very much your time
Mr KELLEYThat's all right
Mr SCHWARZAssuming a legitimate investigation has been started

into a domestic intelligence matter is it legitimate for the FBI in
addition to obtaining information that relates to what we've just been

talking about the likelihood of violent action is it also legitimate for
the FBI to collect retain and disseminate information concerning
on the one hand the sex life of a person and the political views of a
person on the other

Mr KELLEY I think Mr Schwarz that this is just what many of
our problems are perhaps the guidelines can define this type of thing
I think probably you will agree that within the determination of the
deviations possibly of sex lives there might be something that is
relevant I would say ordinarily it's not And so far as political views
yes I think that this could be if he is espousing some cause or some
view that advocates violence or the overthrow of the government

Mr SCHWARZWould those be the only limits on political views
that you think are OK to collect advocates of violence or of overthrow

Mr KELLEY Well I don't think because he's a Democrat or a
Republican it would be anything that would be damaging but it might
on the other hand counter the report that he's a member of some other
organization

Mr SCHWARZIs the standard you used on collection of sex life
information relevant I suppose anything might be relevant but
don't you think that as a function of balance it has to have a high
degree of relevance before it's justifiable to collect that kind of infor
mation on American citizens who are not suspected of having com
mitted crimes

Mr KELLEY Insofar as doing it presently it has been included in
some reports as a result of the requirement that that is what is required
by our rules that when a person reports something to us we do a
report of the complaint Insofar as a determination by guidelines that
might be prepared later I think that we can certainly deliberate on
this to see whether or not this is something we should retain and we
would not object to anything reasonable in that regard

Mr SCHWARZI just have one final question
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Taking the current manual and trying to understand its applicabil
ity laid against the facts in the Martin Luther King case under sec
tion 87 permission is granted to open investigations of the infiltration
of nonsubversive groups and the first sentence reads "When informa
tion is received indicating that a subversive group is seeking to
systematically infiltrate and control a nonsubversive group or organi
zation an investigation can be opened.

Now I take it that is the same standard that was used in opening
the investigation of the Southern Christian Leadership Conference in
the 1960's so that investigation could still be open today under the
current FBI manual

Mr KELLEY We are interested in the infiltration of clearly sub
versive groups into nonsubversive groups inasmuch as this is a ploy
that is used many times and having infiltrated they then get control
and they have a self-laundered organization which they can use and
not certainly to the benefit of the country

Mr SCHWARZBut is the answer to my question yes that under that
standard the SCLC investigation could still be opened today

Mr KELLEY I think so
Mr SCHWARZAll right then just one final question
Do you agree that special care needs to be taken not only of the

standards for initially opening an investigation of a group but per
haps extra care needs to be taken when the investigation goes beyond
the initial target group to individuals or people who come into contact
with it

Mr KELLEY I don't know if I agree with that entirely If you mean
that we go into the nonsubversive group that we then investigate
people in that nonsubversive group not the infiltrators but the non
infiltrators that we conduct a lengthy investigation of them without
any basis for doing so other than that they are in an infiltrated group
I would say probably that's not necessary

Mr SCHWARZThank you very much
Mr SMOTHERSJust a couple of very brief lines of inquiry Mr

Kelley I think that one of the questions that the chief counsel was
raising is one that goes further into your statement. when you talk
about the difficulty of setting out the line between intelligence gather
ing and law enforcement kinds of functions Nevertheless though I
think that you have made an effort indeed the Bureau's organiza
tional scheme reflects an effort to distinguish some of this

Putting aside for one moment the counterespionage effort and look
ing strictly at what we have been calling domestic intelligence is it
your view that the retention of this function in the Bureau is critical
to the Bureau's law enforcement position

Mr KELLEY My personal opinion is that the Bureau does a splendid
job in this area I feel further that the background of criminal investi
gatory activities and experiences which all counterintelligence people
have is very helpful It is helpful not only in gathering knowledge and
the experience it also enters in the field so that you have a person with
a broad understanding of rights and privileges and you don't have
so much that spy or cloak-and-dagger type that very very secret type
of operation

I subscribe to the present system heartily
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Mr SMOTHERSWould it be of assistance to your mission if within
the Bureau guidelines were established that effectively limited access
or controlled dissemination of the intelligence product In other
words if we had a situation where the intelligence product is critical
to assist the law enforcement effort I don't think there's any question
that there should be access to it

Isn't our problem one of controlling the use of that intelligence
product and preventing the kind of murky crossing of lines there
with the information legitimately needed for law enforcement

Mr KELLEY There is always a problem when there is wide dissemi
nation because that just numerically increases the possibility of mis
use abuse or slander libel or anything of that matter and I think
that it would be well worthwhile to review the dissemination rules
to make them subject to close guidance in the guidelines that we're
speaking of

Mr SMOTHERSLet me just raise one final area with you A question
was raised about the investigation now being conducted by the Justice
Department regarding the improper actions of COINTELPRO and
the King case in particular As we look at allegations of impropriety
by your personnel I think it would be helpful for our record here
to have some insight into the procedure the Bureau would normally
follow What does the Bureau do when it gets an allegation that an
agent or administrative official in the Bureau has behaved improperly
Is an investigation conducted internally or is it routinely referred to
the Justice Department

Mr KELLY There may be a revision in this type of procedure as a
result of the establishment of the Council for Professional Responsi
bility At present it would be in the great majority of the cases turned
over to our Inspection Division for investigation There might be
on some unusual occasion a designation of a special task force made
up perhaps of division heads That is most unlikely but it is handled
internally at present

Mr SMOTHERSWould these internal determinations be reviewed by
the Justice Department or do you think that is a necessary step

I guess what we are searching for here is first to what extent
does the Bureau police itself and second is the Department of Justice
involved in the policy determinations For instance what if the At
torney General disagreed with the assertion that only the higher-up
officials who ordered the action against King should be the subject of
investigation and maybe prosecution How does the interplay work
there between you and Justice

Mr KELLEY We do report to the Attorney General those activities
which we construe as improper or possibly illegal There is a possibil
ity that the Department having been advised of the situation might
take it on their own to do their own investigating and this is some
thing that we feel is a decision to be made only rather rarely because
we feel we have within our own organization sufficient capability to
handle that But we do not protest it It is handled independently of
us

Mr SMOTHERSThank you
Mr SCHw1RZ Thank you
[Whereupon at 12:12 p.m. the committee recessed subject to the

call of the Chair.]
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U.S SENATE
SELECTCOMMITTEETo STUDYGOVERNMENTALOPERATIONS

WITII RESPECTTOINTELLIGENCEACTIVITIES
Washington D.C

The committee met pursuant to notice at 10:10 a.m. in Room 318
Russell Senate Office Building Senator Frank Church (Chairman)
presiding

Present Senators Church Hart of Michigan Mondale Morgan
Hart of Colorado Baker Mathias and Schweiker

Also present William Miller staff director Frederick A O
Schwarz Jr. chief counsel Curtis Smothers counsel to the minority

The CHAIRMAN Our-witness this morning is the Honorable Edward
H Levi Attorney General of the United States Mr Levi has appeared
before this committee on previous occasions and this committee is
most happy to welcome him back again this morning

He has been asked to testify today about the future of the Federal
Bureau of Investigation and especially its domestic intelligence
operations

This morning's hearing marks both an end and a beginning for the
select committee It is the end of a series of hearings on domestic intel
ligence which began in September with an examination of the so-called
Huston plan Those original hearings explored the relationship of the
White House to the FBI and other intelligence agencies in the devel
opment of a specific plan for using illegal techniques against domestic
groups

At that time the committee learned the details of FBI "black bag
jobs against domestic targets which continued at least until 1968 We
learned of a "do not file procedure in the FBI for destroying the
records of these operations and the committee was told that the FBI
expanded its intelligence investigations along the lines of the Huston
plan even after the President withdrew his approval

Our next hearings in this area dealt with improper activities that
overlapped foreign and domestic intelligence operations The Direc
tor of the National Security Agency testified that the sophisticated
surveillance operations of that Agency had been targeted against the
international communications of American citizens for domestic intel
ligence purposes This was done in direct cooperation with the FBI
which supplied names of citizens for the NSA watchlist Present and
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former FBI officials also testified that until 1966 the Bureau undertook
programs for illegally opening the mail of innocent citizens in the
search for espionage agents and foreign intelligence The FBI used
the CIA's mail opening program after 1966 for domestic intelligence
purposes again sending over lists of names of American citizens who
were to be watched

The committee's recent hearings on the FBI itself have raised some
of the most fundamental questions that any democracy must face We
have placed on the record deeply disturbing information about the
FBI's COINTELPRO activities over a period of 13 years the at
tempts to discredit 1)r Martin Luther King Jr. the broad surveil
lance of law-abiding citizens and lawful activities the practices of
infiltration and disruption by informants and the political use of FBI
resources by Presidents of both parties

The conunittee's work in this area has been aided substantially by
the cooperation of the Justice I)epartnrent I would like to take this
opportunity Mr Attorney General to express the appreciation of
the entire committee and the staff for your assistance in nuking avail
able the materials needed for this investigation Our experience has
demonstrated that the constitutional principle of separation of powers
has enough flexibility to allow close cooperation between the Congress
and the Executive in a matter of the greatest public concern

While our investigation is coming to an end the task of making
constructive recommendations is beginning We have heard this week
from former officials and from Director Kelley We are exploring a
wide range of proposals including those being developed by the Jus
tice Department And we look forward to working closely with you
on these issues

One of the 'best statements of the problems we confront was made
last summer by Philip Kurland professor of constitutional law at
the University of Chicago Professor Kurland spoke of the threats
to an open democratic society from what he called the perversion of
our intelligence agencies into political police forces He rejected the
proposition that we should be satisfied that these agencies will exercise
self-restraint Professor Kurland did not deny the importance of the
individual qualities of the officeholder But he stressed the greater
importance of confining our intelligence and counterintelligence agen
cies to the limited functions they were created to deal with

The crucial responsibility lies with the Congress "If oversight by
Congress is not to be the answer, Professor Kurland declared "it is
hard to conceive of an answer. The essential requirement for con
gressional oversight is information about intelligence operations and
the greatest barrier is executive secrecy Consequently Professor Kur
land and others have urged that we establish procedures which re
quire the Executive to provide this information to the Congress This
may be the only way to insure the responsibility of the executive
branch to the people through the Congress

Therefore we especially hope that you Mr Attorney General can
help this committee and the Congress develop not only standards for
the FBI but also procedures for effective congressional oversight to
assure regular accountability
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TESTIMONY OF HON EDWARD H LEVI ATTORNEY GENERAL OF
THE UNITED STATES

Attorney General LENI Thank you Mr Chairman
Before I begin let me say that I don't suppose that your statement

is meant to indicate that I am committed to agree with my friend
Professor Kurland who may not be wrong as often as many people
are but occasionally is not correct

The C ru. ;RmAx No it was only meant that I agree with him
Attorney General Li:vn Then I hope the matter can be explored in

more depth
Senator AhTiiI s Mr Chairman I think that's one of the most

graceful declarations of independence I have ever heard
Attorney General Li:vr _Mr Chairman the committee has asked

inc to talk with you today about the future of the FBI I thought it
might be helpful if I outline quite briefly some of the points I would
like to remake some of the problems I think ought to be considered
and some of the steps we have taken

The first point is that the statutory base for the operations of the
Bureau cannot be said to be fully satisfactory The basic statutory
provision is 28 U.S.C 533 which provides that the Attorney General
may appoint officials

(1) to detect and prosecute crimes against the United States (2) to assist
in the protection of the President and (3) to conduct such investigations regard
ing official matters under the control of the Department of Justice and the
Department of State as may bedirected by the Attorney General
There are other statutes such as the Congressional Assassination
Kidnapping and Assault Act which vest in the Bureau special respon
sibilities to investigate criminal violations In addition there are
Executive orders and Presidential statements or directives which place
investigatory responsibilities upon the Bureau

A number of questions are often asked about this statutory base It
has the virtue of simplicity but the Executive orders which deal with
Government employee investigations are complicated and confusing
and Presidential memoranda or perhaps oral instructions from a
President may be difficult to collate I think it is important in any
case to separate out the kinds of questions which are asked about the
Bureau's authority base Some questions are constitutional in nature
relating to the inherent power of the President others go to the inter
pretation of the statutes and the relationship between the statues and
Presidential directives others go to the failure of the statutes to define
sufficiently the areas of the Bureau's jurisdiction or to spell out suffi
ciently and this is partly constitutional the means and methods
which the Bureau is permitted to use in carrying out its assigned
tasks

The second point related to the first is a continuing discussion of
the role of the Bureau in intelligence investigations or domestic secu
rity investigations The argument is sometimes made that the Bureau's
proper role at least innpurely domestic matters should be limited to
Investigations of committed crimes The basic statute for the Bureau
is broader than this as have been Executive orders and Presidential
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mandates to the Bureau The basic statute is broader since it refers to
investigations regarding official matters under the control of the De
partment of Justice and the Department of State as may be directed
by the Attorney General A disparity is sometimes seen among the
different roles of the Bureau in crime detection in ongoing domestic
security matters and in foreign intelligence or foreign counterintelli
gence matters

In recent days a statement by then Attorney General Harlan Fiske
Stone who reorganized the Bureau and chose J Edgar Hoover as its
Director has been quoted as a relevant warning Stone warned

There is always the possibility that a secret police may becomea menace to
free government and free institutions becaure it carries with it the possibility
of abuses of power which are not always quickly apprehended or understood It
is important that its activities be strictly limited to the performance of those
functions for which it was created and that its agents themselves be not above
the law or beyond its reach The Bureau of Investigation is not concernedwith
political or other opinionsof individuals It is concernedonly with their conduct
and then only with such conductas is forbidden by the laws of the United States
When a police system passes beyond these limits it is dangerous to the proper
administration of justice and to human liberty which it should be our first
concern to cherish

I should like to suggest that Stone's warning always must be con
sidered relevant to the proper conduct of the Bureau's duties but it
does not necessarily follow that domestic security investigations are
therefore outside the Bureau's proper functions The detection of
crime in some areas requires preparation and at least some knowledge
of what is likely to be going on What is at issue I think is the proper
scope the means and methods used the attention paid to conduct and
not views and the closeness of the relationship of the conduct and
that which is forbidden by the laws of the United States

Third I realize that some proposals since I was asked about this
when I last appeared before this committee might separate out in
some fashion domestic and foreign intelligence functions from the
FBI or from one another within the FBI This is of course an issue
to be looked at I assume it is recognized that there may be some
relationship between that intelligence which is involved in foreign
counterintelligence work One may lead to the other And there may
be a relationship between foreign counterintelligence and foreign in
telligence If the work were separated out into different agencies I do
not know if the decision about when an investigation should pass from
one agency to another always could be made easily Moreover even so
information presumably would pass from one agency to the other I
know that one consideration has been that it might be decided that
information collected by some permitted means in intelligence investi
gations under some circumstances should not be used in criminal
prosecutions But if there is an exchange of information this must
always be a consideration whether there are separate agencies or not
and the basic question then is one of use and not organization The
more active concern I believe is that there is a risk that conduct
proper for one area may be improper for another and that the combi
nation can work a contamination My view on this is that in any case
we must decide what conduct is appropriate and is inappropriate for
each of the areas and we must take steps to make sure that proper
conduct is lived up to My hope is that the fact that the FBI has
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criminal investigative responsibilities which must be conducted within
the confines of constitutional protections strictly enforced by the
courts gives the organization an awareness of the interests of indi
vidual liberties that might be missing in an agency devoted solely to
intelligence work I know the argument can be run the other way
I believe the dangers are greater if there is separation

Fourth there is a question as to the proper role of the FBI in crime
prevention and whether or not it should be considered authorized to
take steps under some circumstances to reduce the likelihood that
crimes will be committed or that serious injury to persons or property
will occur Preventive action has raised serious questions and these
must be dealt with I suppose an initial question is whether it should
be allowed at all Yet I believe under special circumstances and with
proper controls most would believe this to be a proper function

Fifth the problem of proper controls supervision and accountabil
ity is all-embracing By statute the FBI is in the Department of
.Justice and also by statute the Attorney General is the head of the
Department of Justice The history is mixed of course and we all
have a tendency to oversimplify but it is a fair statement that there
have been times in the past when the supervision by Attorneys Gen
eral granted that the Bureau must have considerable autonomy has
been sporadic practically nonexistent or ineffective

I hope that is not the case now The responsibility is a heavy one
But in any event the problem of proper controls supervision and

accountability goes beyond the Director of the Bureau and the Attor
ney General I have already mentioned that in my view the statutory
base for the operations of the Bureau cannot be said to be fully satis
factory I think that better controls and performance can be achieved
through statutory means Executive orders guidelines and reporting
to appropriate congressional committees

Sixth before I come to a resume of some of the steps which have
been taken let me say I know we all realize that in the past there have
been grave abuses I am uncomfortable with a kind of writing of his
tory however which sees it only in terms of the abuses and not in
terms of past and present strength It is very difficult to be fair to the
past in which many institutions of government carried a share of
responsibility But more than unfairness is involved if we are not
careful we will turn to solutions of the moment which'a better reading
of history might indicate are not the best solutions

I know we must seize the moment if I may use such a phrase in
this setting I know also that this committee realizes that a very
important agency with dedicated highly professional greatly dis
ciplined Government servants is involved The importance is to the
security and domestic tranquility of the United States Stone's warn
ing was given in an act of creation He was proud of his creation In
spite of the abuses there is a proper place for pride I take it our
mutual work should be to nurture that pride and the conditions which
justify it

I turn now to a review of some of the steps which have been taken
or are in progress We have tried most diligently under safeguards to
protect the privacy of individuals and with an awareness of the unfair
ness of instant history to give a great deal of information to con
gressional committees
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Attorney General Saxbe made public and Deputy Attorney General
Silberman and Director Kelley testified about the so-called
COINTELPRO When the FBI discovered evidence of several more
COINTELPRO projects after I 'became Attorney General these were
revealed One of my first acts as Attorney General my third week in
office was to testify before a congressional committee about possible
incidents of political misuse of the FBI by the 'White House in the
past and about the nature of FBI filekeeping systems particularly the
files kept by Director Hoover in his officesuite

Director Kelley has spoken publicly and before congressional com
mittees about incidents in the past in which FBI agents engaged in
break-ins to gather or photograph physical evidence in intelligence
investigations On a number of occasions most recently in testimony
before this committee I have described the history of the use of elec
tronic surveillance by the FBI We have welcomed such opportunities

On February 26 1975 I instructed Director Kelley to report to me
any requests made of the Bureau or practices within the Bureau which
he deems improper or which present the appearance of impropriety
On February 28 1975 Director Kelley ordered FBI personnel to
report such requests or practices to him In July 1975 I reaffirmed
my February directive and also asked for a report of all sensitive
investigative practices

The Director promptly complied Director Kelley has regularly
provided information on conduct by Bureau agents and programs
underway within the Bureau that could raise questions These matters
have been reviewed and discussed with the Department so that a con
sistent and appropriate policy can be achieved

This is a continuing process I do not assert that we are aware of
everything about the Bureau Nor do I suggest that we ought to know
everything Appropriate communication consultation and supervision
at this level has to be selective I make this point which I think may
sound disconcerting not in any way to minimize the responsibility of
the Bureau to keep the Department informed nor to minimize the
Department's duty to find out Rather I want to be realistic about a
learning and organization problem which requires realism if it is to
be understood and perfected

With respect to possible legislation the Department has in prepara
tion various drafts of possible bills which may be of assistance in the
area of what is now warrantless electronic surveillance Although ob
taining a judicial warrant does not automatically eradicate the possi
bility of abuse it is perceived to be an important safeguard of indi
vidual privacy interests and we are exploring as we said we would
do various possibilities and alternatives

Finally a committee within the Department of Justice chaired by
Mary Lawton Deputy Assistant Attorney General in the Office of
Legal Counsel and composed of representatives of my office the
Criminal and Civil Rights Divisions the Office of Policy and Plan
ning and the FBI has been working for 8 months reviewing FBI
procedures in many areas and drafting guidelines to govern those
procedures in the future The committee has produced draft guide
lmes coverng White House inquiries congressional and judicial stair
appointment investigations unsolicited mail and domestic security
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investigations It is currently at work on guidelines covering counter
espionage investigations and will later consider the use of informants
the employee loyalty program organized crime intelligence investi
gations criminal investigations and other aspects of FBI practice
The committee's work has been extensive and time-consuming It has
involved not only questions of proper safeguards but also of efficiency
in the proper functioning of the Bureau It has been an effort to trans
late into words the complicated and important mechanisms for con
trolling the FBI I hope the committee's efforts at articulation will be
of use to this committee and others as it considers drafting legislation

You have received copies of the latest drafts of the guidelines that
have been substantially completed by the committee These guidelines
do not yet represent I)epat:tment policy There is disagreement within
the Department on some aspects of these guidelines I have disagreed
with the committee recommendations from time to time and the FBI
has raised substantial questions about other recommendations par
ticularly with respect to the treatment of unsolicited mail Some of the
proposals in the guidelines could be promulgated as departmental
regulations Congress may feel some ought to be enacted into statutory
law Other provisions would require implementation by executive
order

I would be glad to discuss these draft guidelines with you in detail
in response to your questions but a brief discussion of the guidelines
on domestic security may be useful at the outset

The guidelines begin by attempting to impose some order and
definiteness to the domestic security field To begin with these guide
lines do not deal with FBI efforts to counteract the work of foreign
intelligence services operating within the United States Standards
for determining when there is foreign involvement sufficient to place
a subject in the category of foreign counterintelligence investigation
are now being debated within the guidelines committee The domestic
security guidelines also are not meant to cover security or background
investigations of Federal appointees or investigations of ordinary
crimes -Under the draft guidelines domestic security investigations
are only to be authorized when there is a likelihood that the activities
of individuals or groups involve or will involve the use of force or
violence in violation of Federal law Domestic security investigations
are to be limited to activities of individuals or groups intended to
accomplish one of five purposes overthrowing the Government of the
United States or of a State interfering with the activities within the
United States of foreign governments or their representatives in
fluencing Government policies by interfering by force or violence with
Government functions or interstate commerce depriving individuals
of their civil rights and creating domestic violence or rioting when
such violence or rioting would necessitate as a countermeasure the use
of Federal armed forces There is also a provision for limited investi
gation when there is a clear and immediate threat of domestic violence
which is likely to result in a request by a State for Federal armed
assistance

Currently there is no procedure requiring the review outside the
FBI of all domestic intelligence investigations conducted by the FBI
though the FBI has a long-standing policy of reporting its investiga
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hive findings to the Criminal Division Under the draft guidelines
there would be a comprehensive program of reporting to the Attorney
General or his designee of all preliminary and full domestic intelli

gence investigations The Attorney General would be required under
the draft guidelines to put a stop to any full investigation whose

justification did not meet an established standard The standard would
be that there mush be specific and articulable facts giving reason to
believe that the individual or group under investigation is engaged in
the activities I have just listed

Another feature of the draft guidelines is to place strict controls
upon the use of any technique by the FBI which goes beyond the

gathering of information COINTELPRO was the name given the use
of some such techniques As I have said before some of the activities
in COINTELPRO were outrageous and the others :were foolish None
theless there may be circumstances involving an immediate risk to
human life or to extraordinarily important Government functions
that could only be countered by some sort of preventive action The

guidelines require that any such preventive action proposal be sub
mitted to the Attorney General He could authorize the preventive
action only when there is probable cause to believe that the violence
is imminent and when such measures are necessary to minimize the

danger to life or property The preventive action would_in all cases
have to be nonviolent The Attorney General would be required to

report to Congress periodically and no less often than once a year on
the use of preventive action by the FBI

I make no claim that during this rather difficult but interesting and
I must trust promising period we have achieved all that might have
been possible In many ways the work has been disappointingly slow
But I do think we have made advances in nurturing and helping to

improve a structure which will be supportive of the best efforts of the
men and women in the Department of Justice and in the FBI No pro
cedures are fail-safe against abuse The best protection remains the
quality and professionalism of the members of the Bureau and of
the Department

The CHAIRMANThank you very much Mr Attorney General It's
a very helpful statement and does summarize the efforts that you are
making to give greater put greater order into the work of the FBI

One thing that leaves me somewhat baffled is the difference between
domestic security action for which you have set forth the proposed
guidelines which seem to me to be good ones and what you call pre
ventive action You state "Nonetheless there may be circumstances
involving an immediate risk to human life or to extraordinarily
important government functions that could only be countered by some
sort of preventive action. In that case why can't the preventive action
take the form of an arrest if there are circumstances involving im
mediate risk to human life or to extraordinarily important government
functions

Attorney General LEVI If it can then that would have to be done
because the guidelines specifically require that the preventive action
is necessary and it can't otherwise be handled

Now one can think of incidents
The CIHAIR_MAyCan you give us some incidents
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Attorney General LEVI If there is the likelihood of a violent con
frontation between two marching groups on a State capitol it is con
ceivable that blocking off some streets or directing signs to some other
direction in an emergency situation of that kind might be useful and
I take it that is a preventive action and I would not think unusual
by the way for people who are properly trained in work of that kind

The CHAIRMANThat is a good kind of preventive action
Suppose that there were two caravans instead of two marching

groups and that you had reason to believe that they were headed to
ward one another and there would be a violent confrontation once
they met Would permissible preventive action in those circumstances
permit putting sand in the gas tanks of the automobiles so that neither
caravan could move I have to ask that kind of a question after what
we found out what the FBI was up to in the COINTELPRO

Attorney General LEVI The answer is "No. Certainly there's no in
tention to permit that Although the guidelines do not spell it out
and we have had discussions about what kind of precise preventive ac
tion alight be possible or might not be possible under special circum
stances

The CHAIRMANThis is all very vague and suppose you had reason
to believe that a prominent figure of some kind in a movement was
about to or of a mind to incite his followers to violence Then in that
case could you undertake to give him a drug that would prevent him
from speaking for 3 weeks

Attorney General LEvI No of course not but I have to add that
what the guidelines do say is that the Attorney General has to give
permission not only does he have to give permission but he will have
to report to the Congress and since quite naturally this committee be
lieves that reports to the Congress are the most important thing that
any agency can do then it seems to me you must also agree that that is
some safeguard

The CHAIRMANWell that depends upon your view as to the kind of
committee that can do the job of surveillance

Attorney General LEVI Well I don't think this really was my
suggestion before It takes a combination of control and what we have
attempted to do here is to have a guideline which strictly limits maybe
it should limit more preventive action but admits that there is an
area for it Now maybe we should not admit

The CHAIRMANWhy couldn't you do it this way Mr Attorney Gen
eral Why couldn't you say that when preventive action is necessary
it must be an open and public kind of action

Attorney General LEVI I don't think that telling people
The CHAIRMANNow understand what I mean You gave an open

public way of preventing two groups from meeting and clashing Well
when that is the case the means used are likely to be reasonable ones
But when there are secret methods of preventive action undertaken
that's when you get into potential problems real troubles that we have
seen

Attorney General LEVI Well we have to talk that through It may
very well be that no secret ones at least beyond the immediate moment
of doing would be required It may be that one can put it that way
but I think one of the virtues of guidelines should be that they are
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sufficiently realistic so that they don't have to be violated under emer
gency circumstances

There is a question then of how detailed one can make them but
it may be that the line about secrecy beyond a certain point would be
good

I should also say that the Privacy Act would itself prohibit dissem
ination of lies and deception I think to a considerable extent if one
goes back to the old COINTELPRO So I think we are in somewhat
of a different statutory situation for the moment anyway But we have
tried in the guidelines in any event to very much limit the field Now
whether we have limited it enough I'm not sure

The CHAIRMANDid you say that with respect to the domestic secu
rity activities of the FBI that before such a project is undertaken the
Attorney General must give his consent or that he might be informed
of prospective ongoing projects in order that he can call a given project
that he doesn't find fully justified to a halt

I didn't quite understand your question
Attorney General LEVI Well he has to give he has to be informed

of I think of all the investigations He can terminate them all The
problem is whether he he doesn't have to authorize the full investi
gation but he has to be informed about it and he can terminate it

The CHAIRMANNow well you have to authorize wiretaps and elec
tronic devices in such cases Why shouldn't why wouldn't it be well
for the Attorney General to authorize the initiation of programs in
this particular field new investigatory programs

Attorney General LEVI Well I'm trying to protect. if not myself at
least my successors I'm not sure that it makes much difference It
makes some difference If the Attorney General has to authorize all
full investigations he will have quite a lot of work to do If he has to
authorize all of the preliminary investigations his desk is going to be
covered with a great many things which he doesn't know a great deal
about

The CHAIRMANDon't you think there should be some outside check
in this area particularly where we are not dealing with criminal law
enforcement as such but we are dealing with potential violence which
you referred to as surveillance of citizens and groups of citizens for
purposes of domestic security That's a pretty fuzzy field and we have
seen how great the abuses were for a long period of time and don't
you think there should be some outside check perhaps not with every
case the Attorney General himself but some outside check on the
agency in this general field to be sure that they are following these
guidelines

Attorney General LEVI But I've already said that I think that there
ought to be reports to Congress I don't want to word the scope of the
domestic security investigations however quite the way you have
worded them because these guidelines which could be in part put into
statute strictly limit them For preliminary investigations they limit
them to where there is a likelihood that the individuals and groups
involved would use force and violence in violation of laws in particular
areas

They are to be authorized for 90 days and then perhaps another 90
days and the kind of investigation which can be done in a preliminary
investigation is also restricted When you go beyond that to the full
investigation then we really have the stop-and-frisk standard so
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that we really have come I think as close as is feasible And maybe it
is too restrictive in any event as close as is feasible to the violation of
law kind of penumbra so that it would seem to me that that was some
safeguard

Now whether that is sufficient I don't suppose anything is fully suf
ficient but I would assume that in addition there can be reports to
Congress and there will have to be reports to the Attorney General
and I would think that that and the lessons of history would provide
quite a lot of safeguards If the suggestion is that one should go to a
commission or to a court I must say that I have grave doubts as to
whether that is the proper solution but if that were the case it would
be a statutory matter and I would hope that my participation in mak
ing that decision would not be viewed as having as heavy responsibili
ties as those who would have to vote for it

The CHAIRMAN Doii't you think given the past history you have
referred to that it might be a very good idea to take these guidelines
which represent to me a good faith effort on your part to bring order
into this general chaos and write them into the law

Attorney General LEVI I think that undoubtedly parts of the
guidelines should be made statutory I think that the problem is and
I am sorry for this that it has taken so long to draft these guidelines
although I think it has been an extraordinary effort And the way
the guidelines are written one has to at least it is better to see them
all at once because they do relate to each other But there may not be
time for that

As I said I know we have to seize the moment but I do not know how
long the moment is In any event I agree that part of the guidelines
at least ought to be in statutory form

The CHAIRMAN Well at the moment this committee has until Feb
ruary 29 1976 And we would solicit from you as much cooperation as
I know you will give based upon your willingness in the past to see
what kind of recommendations the committee can make because
clearly the FBI does need a generic statute which it has lacked
through the years and that would be the appropriate place for guide
lines at this time

Senator Hart do you have questions
Senator HARTof Michigan Mr Attorney General good morning
First for a number of years in the Judiciary Committee we have

been huffing and puffing with a whole line of Attorneys General in
an effort to catch them and it is against that long period of effort that
I want this morning to first of all thank you for developing to the
degree that you now have exactly the kind of thing we have been talk
ing about And even as we on the committee in those days were urg
ing guidelines and while we might not have sounded it we under
stood how incredibly difficult it is to put down in black and white
chapter and verse how you respond to a whole variety of problems
And for the first time the Attorney General has come in with a very
solid piece of work that all of us appreciate

Now in your statement you indicate that you are working on guide
lines as they relate specifically to informants and you relate that to
the Department's general guidelines on intelligence that permit the
use of this Now yesterday as you know we discussed with the FBI
Director the possibility of getting judicial approval for informants
by you
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I think all of us understand the importance in an investigation of
informants But we have heard some stories some hair-raising stories
about the way that technique can be abused And I and I am sure

others suggested informants are an extremely intrusive form of

eavesdropping in terms of what can be reported I know that the Su

preme Court has not said that informants are unconstitutional per se
under the fourth and first amendments unless you get a court war

rant but that does not prevent Congress from requiring that kind of

procedure in order to fully safeguard the rights of privacy and ex

pression Now what are your thoughts on such a requirement the re

quirement of a neutral detached third party rather than the investi

gating branch of the Government deciding when to use targeted
informants

Attorney General LEVI Well I am sorry to say Senator Hart that
I do not think that the suggestion on 'balance is a good one And that
does not mean that I have a better suggestion There is no doubt that
informants or paid informants can be misused because there is an
area where if that is done the courts can step in and one can have

guidelines or statutory restrictions on that if you think of again re

porting But the notion that a court would have to authorize the use
of each informant and how the informant was to be used to continue
to pass on that I think would make for maladministration It would

impose an enormous burden on the court and while I think we always
keep looking these days for a third impartial objective person I do
not really believe that it can be the court

Now one could think of a board or a committee After all the Con

gress set up I think a Subversive Activities Board did you not So
I suppose you might set up an Informers Permission Board But my
impression is that you would not get very good people to be on that
board and that it would not really provide the kind of knowledgeable
review that you would want

So I recognize the problem and I recognize why one might turn to
that suggested solution I do not want to take away from your time
but it is sort of interesting that special devices and protections were
developed for electronic surveillance because they were said to be dif
ferent from the use of informants And now we are running the ar

gument in the other direction and saying well they are even more

dangerous than electronic surveillance because you have the human ear

right there
So it is just an interesting point
Senator HART of Michigan Well maybe in defense of our earlier

attitude we did not know about the abuse with respect to the human
technique the number of occasions on which it has been used

Attorney General LEVI I rather think that the fourth amendment
knew more about that than it did about electronic surveillance

Senator HART of Michigan The fourth amendment drafters did
But people around now

Attorney General LEVI I feel for the objective but I do not think 
I just think it would not work

Senator HARTof Michigan We are agreed that it is a difficult bal
ance The national security concern here and the individual's civil
liberties there and to balance these claims is tough You say you think
the court is inappropriate
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Attorney General LEvt I think that would be a mistake I think it
would also be a mistake to have the court pass on the activities of the

agents of the Bureau's own agents who have ears and listen and so on
I think we have to trust someone

Senator HARTof Michigan But is the Director of the FBI the fel
low to trust

Attorney General LEVI He is certainly one of the persons that has to
be trusted very much and he has to be put in a position where it is
known that he is being trusted and what his obligations are

And I think if the congressional mandate and the guidelines and
whatever else are clear enough I have enough faith in human nature
to think that that would be abided by I do not think the history of the
abuses shows that that kind of a thing really was abused There was
not that kind of spelling out There was not that kind of direction
There were directions in the other way really so that I do not think
the problem while I do not mean to minimize the prior abuses which
were terrible but I do not think the problem requires the solution
of the interposition at every stage

Senator HARTof Michigan If we leave the discretion with the Di
rector of the Bureau you would agree that there should be we always
use the word effective even though we cannot define how you make it
effective an effective system under which somebody other than the
Bureau's Director would be reviewing the decisions he is making as
he affects this balance

Attorney General LEvI I think there have to be frequent reviews
and I think one has to have a situation in the Department of Justice
where the Attorney General or his designee can be in a position to
make that review I think one also would hope and require that there
be adequate presentation to congressional committees You do not want
to impose so many duties on the Attorney General so that he is so
that he loses some sense of distance and objectivity on the Bureau
That is one reason I said one has to realize that there is not full
knowledge and they are different offices But I do think the Attorney
General I hope is some protection and the Department is and con
gressional committees would be too

Senator HART of Michigan The earlier hearings which reviewed
some of the excesses found some citing in the FBI handbook regula
tions which directs field offices and their informants to find out and re
port all contacts and cooperation between a group under investiga
tion and other groups even if the other groups are not suspected of
being either extremists or subversives

Now suppose we have a standard for investigating a group using
informants and suppose a particular group meets the test and the FBI
does penetrate Now that targeted group begins to participate in con
ferences that we have heard on amnesty ABM women's rights and
other things How would you suggest controlling the traditional
vacuum cleaner approach of the informant reporting on the activities
of the other groups of participants and the plans of the coalition the
conference or the association of groups seeking to prevent the ABM
How do you safeguard against them being drawn in

Attorney General LEVI Well assuming that one has met the re
quirements of the guidelines either do a preliminary investigation 
one would have to go beyond that to really go to the full investiga
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tion so that one does have facts which give you a reason to think
that there are violations involving force and violence That is when
the informants are going to be there or the infiltrators as you call
them

If the activities if the sole activities are those that you describe
I do not think he belongs there and I do not think the investigation
is appropriate I have worried about the more difficult aspect of the
problem namely that if you have an organization which is really
properly investigated because of its intention and ability to use force
and violence in violation of the law and one has reason to think that
they are deliberately using their influence to co-opt other groups I
would think that part of the investigation would be to put that down
And that is really what you are talking about And I do not know that
one should want to limit that

Senator HART of Michigan Well maybe there is not any happy
solution to this but what we would be doing would be reporting on
first amendment activities of the other groups that would not be eligi
ble to be targeted

Attorney General LEvI I think the report should not be on that It
should be rather on the effort of the group properly being investigated
to gain control And we do have a problem as to what one does with
the dissemination or keeping of information and the guidelines
attempt to address that question whether they have done so sufficiently
or not

One reason the guidelines are not all finished is that when one gets
to the counter or foreign-intelligence guidelines and has to deal with
organizations which are under active collaboration with foreign gov
ernments and the question is whether they have extended their in
fluence in such a way as to impose a real threat of force and violence
I do not know how effectively one can impose restrictions We try to
do it The proposed guidelines have not been worked out One has to
remember that if one goes back to the period when I was first in the
Department of Justice there was considerable concern as to the abil
ity of the Japanese and the Nazis to gain control beyond those agen
cies which were clearly collaborating with them of other agencies And
I just do not know that I want to say to the United States Government
that that is the kind of information that you may not get

The CHAIRMAN Senator Mathias
Senator MATIIIAS If Senator Hart has any question which follows

right along at this point I would be glad to yield
Senator HART of Michigan No
Senator MATHIAS Thank you Mr Chairman I want to join with

Senator Hart in thanking the Attorney General for all the help he
gives to this committee Whether we call on him for philosophical
treatises or for practical advice he is always available I think that
is a very real contribution And the way in which he helps us leads me
almost to regret that I did not go to the University of Chicago law
school

Attorney General LEVI Senator you are going to go far
Senator MATHIASYou have talked a little about the Smith Act and

about the seditious conspiracy clause in connection with the responsi
bilities of the FBI And I wonder if you think there is sort of a dated
aspect to these
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Attorney General LEN-I Oh of course there is and I want to say
that when one talks about the looseness of the guidelines one ought
to read the statutes which came out of Congress That is why I say
that it is sort of amusing as we go around flattering each other we all
bear I mean all of the institutions bear responsibility

Senator MATHIaS I could not agree with you more and I think I
have said repeatedly that I think a lot of the problems that are dumped
in the courts and a lot of the burdens that the courts bear have begun
right here on Capitol Hill because we have not carefully sculpted the
laws to make it clear what the legislative intent was And in fact per
haps they have been carefully sculpted to obscure the legislative in
tent in some cases And the courts then are left with the burden of
finally administering the law rather than either the legislature pre
scribing it or the executive enforcing it

Attorney General LEVI Not only that you draft statutes that quite
clearly say one thing and the Attorney General is then asked for his
opinion which he is required to give as to what it means to a Govern
ment department He gives it Another House of this Congress then
proceeds to make motions to hold the man in contempt for following
the opinion of the Attorney General And Professor hurland my good
friend says do not listen to the Attorney General he is only a lawyer

There is a responsibility in Congress for having statutes clear and
for abiding by what they say and if they do not like them change
them I agree with you

Senator MATHIIASI would hope that with all the admonitions that
we are giving to other people these days that we take that one our
selves that the laws need to be more carefully written

Attorney General LEVI Yes it is easier to see abuses by others I
know

Senator MATHIIASLet me say that I think we need some help in
this endeavor that there are many cases in which the actions taken by
Congress are criticized later when the errors might have been avoided
by some cooperative action in the process

Attorney General LEVI I meant that to be clear when I was refer
ring to all parts of the Government

Senator MATIIL S But specifically in relation to the seditious con
spiracy laws in the Smith Act the courts have talked about the advo
cacy provisions of the law so strictly as to require incitement of immi
nent lawless action as a test and I think that does really date these
acts

Attorney General LEVI I think so And while I want to say that in
the guidelines we tried to emphasize that there is a question of how
much one ought to spell out the nature of the evidence in part because
I think that even spelling it out might have a chilling effect

Senator MATHrAS NOWyou have led me right to my next question
which is whether we should pat any limitations on the type of infor
mation that is to be gathered in a purely domestic intelligence
investigation

Attorney General LEVI Well it may be that one has to try one's
hand at drafting them I have

Senator MATirins It is a tough one I think but we have seen as a
result of this investigation of family matters Is that proper Can
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you prescribe it in a general way that sexual activities purely legal
activities but perhaps not within the mainstream of what most Amer
icans are thinking of doing personal relationships all of this kind of
thing

Attorney General LEVI Well one can try What we did was as I
say to provide a very tough and maybe too tough standard because
it is specific And articulable facts giving reason to believe that an
individual is engaged in activities described in the paragraph which is
force and violence to do the following things

Nov that may be too restrictive Nov if one starts to say what kind
of things can one look at which might suggest and lead you to see
these things I do not know And I suppose we all have to admit that
public attitudes about activities and therefore maybe the activities
themselves wean different things at different times And maybe one has
to have a different set of rules created from time to time and one of the
notions of the guideline would be I think to do that

I am not in favor of Congress every year deciding whether it is
against homosexuality or particular other aberrant sexual conduct
And therefore this can be included or not included as the winds blow
I think that would be probably not legislatively very desirable

Senator MATHIASLet us suppose however just for the sake of dis
cussion that these activities are the proper scope of a domestic intelli
gence investigation and that that investigation is conducted and its
object is obtained and the investigation is closed then what should
happen to this material given the infinite capacity of the Govern
ment today to store and retrieve information

Attorney General LEVI Well the guidelines attempt to go in the
direction that after a period of time material should be done away
with

Senator you have often posed questions for me to think about and
this is another one that I think we ought to think about together that
is the destruction of information It is also the destruction of evidence
which might be used to show abuses by the Bureau

Senator MATHIASIf I knew the answer I would not ask the question
Attorney General LEVI If I knew the answer I would give it
But I am saying because I think it is a very important question
Senator MATHIASI think what you suggest is a very pertinent very

current consideration that if you destroy all the files you can do more
than all the perfumes of Araby in washing out the blood

Attorney General LEVI The guidelines do move in that direction
There is an argument about the time for the destruction of
information

Senator MATHIAS There is a concurrent question If files are re
tained for any period of time are they open for the purpose of name
checks during that period which is a related but really a separate
question for background checks for employment checks that kind
of thing

Attorney General LEVI Well you could have selective sealing of files
and I suppose selective destruction of items But it is a very difficult
thing

Senator 'MATHIASI would like to explore briefly your thoughts on
a subject we have discussed with other witnesses at some length And
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that is whether you believe that a warrant requirement for beginning a
domestic intelligence investigation would meet the standards iii the
fourth amendment if it required less than probable cause for the issu
ance of a warrant probable cause to believe that a crime has been or
was about to occur

Attorney General Lr:vi I think the question really would be what
the warrant would enable the obtainer to do

Under the guidelines just opening a preliminary investigation
what can be done is not very much It is so much less than a full in

vestigation So I think I would turn the question around
I think the court would really wonder why you want the warrant

And it certainly would clog the courts
Senator MuTnl.us The intrusion of an informant for example into

a political discussion or any other activities is a much greater intru
sion than a bug or a wiretap in that same conversation

Now would this be would the placement of an informant be that
kind of activity

Attorney General LEVI Well you see the preliminary investiga
tion does not really allow new informants so as I say it is quite
limited

And I did respond that I understand there is a problem about the
human ear the human eye which we discussed last time But I doubt
that going for a warrant in each of those cases is feasible

And I think we have to be grown up enough not to feel that we al

ways have to go to the courts Now that may make us feel that there
is a lack of protection But I think a greater protection is to curtail the

scope of the investigations to make sure that they are held to a high
standard and to control dissemination of the information

Senator MATHHIASWell I think that is the proper test whether
you can embark upon what are obviously immature reactions to events
I do not think the fourth amendment itself is subject to a test of ma
turity or immaturity but

Attorney General LEVI No I do not think the fourth amendment
requires a warrant

But I understand the argument that it is better it is sometimes
better to put a man on the Moon because he will know more than a
machine So you are saying the same thing in terms of informers

Senator MATHIAS Finally let me just return to the Smith Act for
a minute which as I understand it requires incitement to imminent
action to overthrow the Government by violence If a domestic intelli
gence investigation can begin with far less only a theoretical advocacy
of some change

Attorney General LEvI I do not think it should begin with a theo
retical advocacy of change Now if you asked me whether it ever
does my answer is I (10not know But I do not think it should begin
with that

Senator M_1THIASWell I think that between those two positions
there is a danger of first amendment violations And I like your posi
tion I am not arguing with you

Attorney General LEVI Well we rewrote this domestic security
investigation guideline because I was disturbed by the prior draft as
not being tough enough and I think that I may now have come out

66-0770 76
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with something that is too restrictive I am not sure And this is a
proper process of discussion back and forth not only here but with
the Bureau and I hope that one can get something from it that is
useful

Senator MATHIASThank you very much
The CHAIRMANSenator Mondale
Senator MoNDALEThank you Mr Chairman
Mr Levi I think the most fateful question that this committee our

Congress and our Government must face is whether we are going to
step beyond the Stone line and permit investigative agencies to go
beyond matters of law enforcement matters of so-called "internal
security.

If we decide that we must then I am persuaded we should only do
so based upon unarguable evidence that an exception is needed and
then to grant such an exception only under the severest and most
closely defined standards and if possible under court supervision

If we fail to do that I am convinced that this committee has failed
and that in another 50 years there will be hearings just like this in
which the excesses that we have uncovered will have been repeated

I say that because I think anything we do has to stand the test
of what we have learned And what we have learned is that the power
to use the police for politics is a seductive and irresistible one No Pres
ident no Attorney General can resist it Few have

But we have now found that it is not a partisan issue The Presi
dents of both political parties and a Director who served under Presi
dents of both political parties were absolutely unable to resist the right
to snoop into the private affairs of Americans not to enforce the law
but in order to gain some political advantage If you look at human
history this has haprened everywhere which is why we adopted the
Bill of Rights The FBI was set up precisely because it happened in
World War I and we had the scandal of the Palmer Raids and all the
rest

When I look at these vaguely defined guidelines I have to ask
would they stand up under the direct orders to the contrary from a
President of the United States Would they stand up in the face of a
willful Director who is angry or hostile or suspicious about some of
these political ideas or about the next Martin Luther King My feel
ing is that based upon what we have learned without any doubt theywould be swept away as quickly as a sand castle being overrun by a
hurricane they would mean nothing

What we decide to do cannot be tested by the words but by our
notions of how human nature works when empowered in this way to
play God with the American people That is the test and it has got to
be tested by what happens when the Nation is in frenzy and in fearand it has got to be tested by what people do when they do not think
they are going to be caught And for that reason I see the step beyondthe Stone line namely beyond the enforcement of the criminal lawas not a step forward but a step off a cliff right back into the morassthat we find ourselves in today

If you look at this record it is a horrible one The way Martin Luther
King was hounded and harassed is a disgrace to every American Thatthis country once took all the Japanese and put them in internment
camps we now know is one of the blackest pages in American historyIt is that kind of record that whatever we do has to be tested against
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For that reason I think we have to draw a line the line that Judge
Stone suggested If we do grant exceptions they have to be specifically
and rigidly and unquestionably drawn because there is no point in

talking about oversight if the standards are not understandable And
these laws have to be so clear that the Attorney General and the Direc
tor of the FBI would have to say when the President calls "I am

sorry Mr President but we cannot do it it is against the law. If they
are not able to say that I am convinced we will be right back here
someone will those who follow us 50 years from now holding hear

ings similar to these
Would you respond to that
Attorney General LEVI Well I think like the Stone statement it is

a good admonition As I tried to say in my statement I do not think
the Stone standards indicate that there should not be domestic secur
ity investigations because the Stone standard talks about items within
the proper jurisdiction of the Bureau and violations of law and if you
are going to have an investigating agency which is going to be at all
responsible in those areas they have to know some things which are
related closely related to violations of particular kinds of law And
I do not believe that the standards that have been drawn up are as
vague as your statement perhaps suggests because when one uses the
standard of the stop and frisk case that is the standard very close and
perhaps too close

So I think in terms of the Stone standard it probably meets it I
am not sure that there is this big gap because this says specifically
"specific and articulate facts giving reason to believe that an individ
ual or individuals acting in concert are engaged in activities described
in that paragraph Those are activities of force and violence in viola
tion of the criminal statutes

So and I should remind you as I know I do not have to that as
we said before Congress has passed some rather broad criminal
statutes

Senator MONDALEOh yes
Attorney General LEVI And the Stone standard is not very mean

ingful if you do that
Senator MONDALEThe question now is once we know what has hap

pened and we know the abuse that arises when people have this un
limited ill-defined power what do we do if possible to try to prevent
its recurrence That is the issue that faces you That is the issue that
faces me and I am convinced that guidelines written by the executive
can be rewritten by the executive and if not by you by those who fol
low And they will mean absolutely nothing against the will of a will
ing President a willing Attorney General or a willing Director 
absolutely nothing because they do not have the force of law

Attorney General LEVI There's no disagreement I don't think I
should apologize for having ventured into the drafting into havingthe guidelines drafted It seems to me that that had to be done I cer
tainly do not take the position that parts of them should not be put in
statutory form and I certainly do not take the position that some of
them should not be put in Executive order form I think we ought to
use all the devices those devices where more permanence is wanted
and those devices where there might have to be changes from time to
time
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Senator MONDALENow Mr Levi are you persuaded that you have

personally reviewed the specific instances of abuses by enforcement

agencies particularly the FBI Are you personally confident that your
guidelines fit and meet and prevent a recurrence of those abuses

Attorney General LEVI The guidelines are not completed
Senator MONDALEHave you personally looked through those mate

rials
Attorney General LEVI At all the abuses Certainly not
Senator MONDALEWell certainly not you say Mr Schlesinger

confronted with a similar problem sent a wire to all of his CIA facili
ties and said "Give us all the examples that you know of in which our
laws and our authority have been abused. Have you done anything
like that

Attorney General LEVLI have done several things
Senator MONDALEHave you done anything like that
Attorney General LEVI I am trying to answer
Senator MONDALEAll right proceed
Attorney General LEVI We have an investigation going on of the

COINTELPRO and COINTELPRO-like activities We have several
communications from me to the Director directing that he report to
me what he thinks are sensitive or irregular requests or practices So
that I think that we have done both things that were done by Mr
Schlesinger

I assume that Mr Schlesinger's behavior has purified the CIA I
really do not know

Senator MONDALEWell let us take the most celebrated case of abuse
Dr King Has someone in your Department read the FBI's whole file
on this

Attorney General LEVI I cannot answer that question Three people
now are going through the entire file

Senator MONDALEFBI file
Attorney General LEVI Yes
Senator MONDALEThe entire FBI file
Attorney General LEVI So far as I know yes
Senator MONDALEAre you sure of that
Attorney General LEVI So far as I know yes If the question sug

gests that they cannot get at the file that is really not the problem
The problem might be that there are so many files which may be in a
variety of other files and references that it may be difficult but there
is not a problem about their getting access to the files and they tell
me they are doing it. I have not myself done it

I have some feeling myself that I do not want to read the Martin
Luther King file I wanted to regard it in fact out of the sense of
proprieties and privacy as sealed because it seems to me that it was
appropriate for the sake of the privacy of Dr King to have that ma
terial disposed of and I saw no point in my personally reading it

Senator MoNDALE In other words you are of the understanding
that all of the FBI and other investigative Justice Department files
of Dr King have been reviewed

Attorney General LEVI No I am saying that I was sufficiently
disturbed about it so that I am having them all reviewed

Senator MONDALEYou said you asked the Director of the FBI
Mr Kelley for improprieties Have you gotten a report on that
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Attorney General LEVI We have had some reports on where he
thinks there are sensitive matters

Senator MONDALEI)o you have a complete report on improprieties
Attorney General LEvI I do not know that I would put it that way

because there is a problem of what is an impropriety where there
are sensitive issues which he thinks may raise a question my belief
is that he now brings them to me

Senator MONDALEWhat was your request to him
Attorney General LEVI Well I do not have the precise statement
Senator MONDALEI mean what were you trying to get from

him Evidence of FBI improprieties A record of what had
happened

Attorney General LEVI Well there are problems of misbehavior
of what I would regard as misbehavior or might regard as misbe
havior and when one deals with matters of this kind it is a learning
process because the words do not always carry the same meaning

I was told when I came to the Department that the COINTELPRO
project had been completely reviewed and exposed After I was in
the Department I discovered and I think partly as a result of mis
communication to the Director that they had found other items in
the COINTELPRO project and those were reported to this commit
tee and to other committees but the point is that you might have
projects which go beyond the confines of COINTELPRO which
might still involve similar behavior

Senator MONDALEWas it your testimony if I heard you correctly
just now that this committee has received the reports given you by
Director Kelley in response to your request

Attorney General LEVI No I did not say that I said that this
committee received I believe a letter from me describing the addi
tional COINTELPRO projects

Senator MOyDALENot just COINTELPRO As I understand your
statement "I instructed Director Kelley to report to me any re
quests made of the Bureau or practices within the Bureau which
he deems improper or which present the appearance of impropriety,
and then "on February 28 Director Kelley ordered FBI personnel
to report such requests or practices to him, and I think you indicated
that you have received some in response to that inquiry

Attorney General LEvI I say here the Director promptly replied
he has regularly provided information on programs underway within
the Bureau which could raise questions

Senator MONDALEI)id you get a report to him in response to that
request

Attorney General LEVI I have gotten reports from him That is
what this sentence says He has provided information on conduct
that could raise questions

Senator MONDALEOrdered FBI personnel to report such requests
or practices to him Now has that been done

Attorney General LEVI Yes he did report them
Senator MONDALEHe ordered it Did he get the report
Attorney General LEVI Well I believe he did because I think

that was one of the reasons that the additional COINTELPRO items
surfaced
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Senator MONDALEWas this just limited to COINTELPRO
Attorney General LEVI No
Senator MONDALECan we have those reports
Attorney General LEVI I do not think there are very many of

them but I assume you can have them The only thing is that it is
hard to it is a continuing process and there are I would probably
not think they would raise questions of misconduct but more be a
matter of sensitive questions

Senator MONDALEWell I would like to have the reports that came
to Director Kelley in response

Attorney General LEVI Well that I do not know about
Senator MoxDALE I am asking you as the head of the Justice

Department if we could get those reports
Attorney General LEVI Well I do not know if you can or not

but we will certainly consider it
Senator MONDALEWhy not
Attorney General LEvi Because I think that it is one thing to give

reports of that kind in confidence to a committee of this kind and
another thing to make them public

Senator MONDALEThe CIA gave theirs to us Why can't you
Attorney General LEVI Well I am not in the CIA I do not care

to be I do not wish to be
Senator MONDALEDo you consider that a good answer
Attorney General LEVI I yes I consider the answer as good as

the question
Senator MONDALEWell I think that kind of arrogance is why we

have trouble between the executive and the legislative branch Thank
you Mr Chairman

The C11AIRMAy I understood Senator Mondale's question to be
whether you would furnish certain documents to the committee not
if you wished them to be made public or not that he was asking that
the committ.ec make them public I do not know that we had any
problem in the past with the Department in getting information of
this kind

Attorney General LEVI I apologize to Senator Mondale if I ap
peared arrogant I thought that somebody else was appearing ar
rogant but I apologize

The point is that if you ask agents to report on what they may think
is misconduct if they think that that is going to be made public
that would I believe be very chilling I personally have no reason
to not want to give it to a committee if it is to be kept in confidence
I do not know what the Bureau's position on that would be and my
relationship with the Bureau is that I like to discuss these matters
with them before giving a definitive answer because I am not that
arrogant

The CHAIRMAN Well leaving all personal references aside I think
that you know that when this committee has asked and received infor
mation in confidence it has kept the confidence

Attorney General LEVI And we have tried very hard to give
you information

The CIIAIR_1LANSo that ought not to be any problem and I would
appreciate your following up Senator Mondale's request because I
regard it as an important one and not a frivolous one and iii that
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connection let me say just before we move on to further questions
that some time ago in early August you sent a letter to me in which
you requested from the committee this seems appropriate now be
cause it is a request in reverse you requested of the committee in
formation that was contained in our files transcripts and testimony
which might bear upon investigations currently being conducted by
this Department You (lid not get a written reply to that letter but
as I think you will recall we met shortly later and I think Judge
Tyler was present and I was present at the time and this subject
was touched upon and I said that the committee wanted to cooperate
in making available whatever information we could that would be
helpful to the Department and that there would be a followup in
which Mr Schwarz and Mr Smothers would collaborate with repre
sentatives of your Department to find out the best way for proceeding
to implement the Justice Department's request

Since then you have sent several more letters Just recently we have
received more letters relating to more targeted matters including
the I)r Martin Luther King matter and the Chilean matter

I simply want to assure you as a matter of public record that the
committee having considered this earlier request is fully willing to
cooperate in any way and we will see to it that procedures are now
worked out so that there will be no further delay Our preoccupation
with the assassination investigation and the issuance of the committee's
report has preempted our time but we think that these requests are
important and we stand ready to work with the Justice Department
in making all relevant information available

Attorney General LEVI I am delighted to have that assurance
The CHAIRMANNow Senator Schweiker
Senator SCHWEIKERThank you very much Mr Chairman
Attorney General Levi I am pleased to see that you have announced

this week the establishrnent of the Office of Professional Responsibility
to aid in the oversight of the investigations or allegations of miscon
duct by different employees within the Department of Justice I have
been interested in something along this line for some time and I com
mend you for taking the lead in this area I would just like to really
ask you a few questions about the kind of concept that this is

Originally Attorney General Saxbe had something that at one
point was labeled the Office of Special Review I just wonder briefly
how it differs and what the difference might be in terms of structure or
organization

Attorney General LEVI Well the differences may not be as great as
I thought they were when I drafted out this new order but there are
I think these differences In the first place the Counsel would be in the
Office of Special Responsibility and unlike the person who would be
in the Office of Special Review he would be in a position to directly
receive complaints and then to directly refer them or to make a recom
mendation to me about them

As I read the Office of Special Review the holder of that officewould
not have been in a position to receive complaints unless the complaint
was given to him by the Attorney General or the Deputy Attorney
General

Now I thought that additional channel while I hope it will not be
the major channel was an important thing to keep open and there
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fore I wanted to make that clear I also wanted to embody in this new
order the experience that we have had We have called in special
groups to do investigating as we did with the DEA when we organized
a special team and I wanted to reflect in this order that there would
be occasions when the ordinary investigative practices would not be
sufficient I wanted to have the Counsel put in the position where he
could recommend that a special kind of review would be necessary
through a different kind of a group perhaps through a group as
sembled by him perhaps going outside of the Department

I think this spells it out better although my belief now is that one
could have found that probably in the prior order It was not as clear
to me

Finally I wanted to be sure that there was a memory in the Depart
ment and a continuation and a continual review of practices and
procedures and ability to get the material from any part of the Depart
ment I wanted to spell that out and frequent reporting and I also
wanted to have an advisory committee from the whole Department
to this Counsel

Now as I say as I have thought about it since I wonder is it that
different I think it is different In some respects it is stronger and
I felt we should make it stronger

Senator SCHWEIKERWill this office have the authority to go into a
program review like the GAO program audit or will it be primarily
focused on allegations of misconduct or both

Attorney General LEVI Well I think it will be focused on allega
tions of misconduct and it will also focus on the procedures and effec
tiveness of review but it is set up so that it can recommend beyond
that and if it wishes to recommend for the Department such other
kinds of review then it is within the Counsel's prerogative to do that

Senator SCHWEIKERAnd what kind of staffing is anticipated
Attorney General LEVI I anticipate a small staff because I do not

want to build up another bureaucracy with a large investigative staff
I think that by and large if the Counsel makes such suggestions we
will then have to find out where to go and how to deal with it I do
not want to set up another large investigating staff which will have
to be investigated

Senator SCHWEIKEROne of the things that came out this week and
I am not sure that this would be subject to this new committee or office
procedure or not but there has been a lot of discussion about the
personal files of Mr Hoover that Helen Gandy had and I would just
like to read one paragraph from the latest issue of Time magazine that
seems to show a little bit of a twist if I understood it because up until
now there were mainly personal files that Miss Gandy went through
This latest edition says

Before secretary Gandy could look at Mr Hoover's office the files the most
sensitive papers were carried off in an FBI truck to west Virginia's Blue Ridge
Mountain Club a Shenandoah Mountain hideaway used by innermost FBI
officialsfor regular poker games with the CIA and other cronies The papers
were burned in the club's large fireplace Precisely who ordered this destruction
and carried it out has not been disclosed The three-story club worth $300,000
was burned down in a fire of unknown cause December23 No evidenceof arson
has been discovered

This indicates to me if it is true and I do not know if it is true at
all some FBI participation in terms of separating out files so that
even Miss Gandy could not see some of these files and obviously if the
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story is accurate they were destroyed Can you shed any light on that
and is this something that the Office of Professional onduct would
be looking into

Attorney General LEVI I have asked the Criminal Division to inves
tigate any and all of the items relating to the Department of Justice
which have come before this committee And of course they are rather
anxious to get this material and this certainly will be part of it

Senator SCIIWEIIKERCan you give us any indication whether this
account is accurate at this point

Attorney General LEVI Well I really cannot because I have to say
that it does not it does not conform to my memory of the documents
that I have seen But I cannot really answer that question

Senator SCHWEIKER On the matter of the Office of Professional
Conduct will it have the right to go in anywhere it feels it should go
in terms of pursuing its job as I understood what you said Would
there be any restraints

Attorney General LEvr I think it will not be subject to restraints
I think it may have to be subject to negotiation

Senator SCIIwErKER And it would have access to all of the material
in its original form if need be

Attorney General LEVI I think the negotiation might be whether
if need be I can understand that there might be some sensitive infor
mation which there would be resistance to giving and so on But I
think that anything it needed it would get

Senator ScIiwEIKER Would you envision that a new joint committee
of Congress charged with overseeing intelligence activities might have
access to information such as their reports

Attorney General LEVI Well I think that is going to be dependent 
that is a touchy subject because if it is going to be public then the way
the material is obtained and the way it is written about will be in a
certain way If it is going to be kept confidential and we know it is
going to be confidential then there are less problems I am not sure

Senator SCHWEIIKERSo as far as you are concerned that is open to
negotiation at this point in terms of working something out that would
meet the guidelines you have in mind

Attorney General LEVI 'Well I think so There is no joint commit
tee at present and of course that is one of the problems Certainly
one would hope that a reasonable exposure to what was being done
would be available But I do not really believe I do not really think
that it is appropriate for a joint committee to be on top of exploring
the files of the Bureau

Now I know there is a great difference of opinion between some mem
bers of the committee at least on that I think that is close to the line
of managing the Bureau and I think its management really is not a
legislative function But certainly to be advised to have that kind
of appropriate oversight to be helpful on that I think would be fine

The CHAIRMANWould the Senator yield
Of course it is not an appropriate function of the Congress to man

date the FBI or to second guess their investigation of ongoing cases
But assuredly it is part of the responsibility of the Congress to in
vestigate wrongdoing and if we have reason to believe that there is
wrongdoing within the Bureau it may be necessary to get to the raw
files in order to ascertain that If that does not go to the heart of the
oversight function I do not know what does
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Attorney General LEVI Well it is like many of the questions that we
have discussed earlier One has to be very sensitive to the limitations
because if you have an open investigation and there is the possibility
of any political influence either to act or not act then I get very upset
at the notion of those going to a congressional committee

And I think everyone can understand that kind of problem So it
has to be balanced

Senator SCHWEIKERWell Mr Attorney General I can understand
protecting informants and protecting raw files I think that is legiti
mate That is something that we would have a responsibility in the
Congress to do But I do have trouble assuming that can be worked
out and I think that is a very important point particularly from the
administration of the Department of Justice and the FBI But as
suming that can be worked out I do not see how you can possibly be
protected that what we just saw happen in the last 30 years will not
happen again and that your inspection force will work or that any
oversight committee will work unless we do have that kind of
prerogative

On the basis that I outlined it just seems to me we are sort of
deluding ourselves in view of what has happened not to have that
access first for you but secondarily for some responsible element of
the Congress that would be guided by certain restrictions protecting
that

Attorney General LEVI My only suggestion is that it may be that
the Attorney General should be able to see things which the congres
sional committee ought not to see And I just think we have to think
that through There are stages They are all problems of privacy They
are all problems of exposing individuals to obloquy I think we have
to take all that into consideration

Senator SCHWEIKERThat is all I have
The CHAIRMANIf we had not had access to the raw files we would

never have discovered the FBI's plan to discredit Dr King and pick
his successor And you recognize the responsibility of this committee
and we have worked out procedures which have enabled us to reach
this basic evidence in ways that did not reveal informants or did not
reveal agents And I think that guidelines of this kind could be worked
out between a permanent oversight committee and Attorneys General
so that the committee could get its job done So I really do not believe
that the problem is insuperable and the fact that we have been able to
get to the raw files when we needed to demonstrate that it can be done

Senator Hart
Senator HART of Colorado Mr Attorney General I would like to

pursue this last question 1 minute further and that has to do with
raw files It is my understanding that in the recent GAO inquiry into
Bureau activities they worked almost exclusively if not totally ex
clusvely from Bureau or Departmental summaries Is that correct in
their investigation

Attorney General LEVI Well that is what I understand
Senator HARTof Colorado And what you are saying here today is

that in the future if there is established an oversight a permanent
oversight congressional committee that your recommendation would
be that raw files reporting under some restrictions would be available
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that it would be the same guidelines and the same kinds of investiga
tion that the GAO does

Attorney General LEVI I did not mean to assert that it would have to
be based on summaries No I did not I just think we have a problem
as to the proprieties of what the joint committee if there is a joint
committee would want and what we should appropriately give

I have to say that there might be a temptation on the part of our
Department of Justice to give more than it wanted to and in later
years that might be a problem So one has to balance that

Your committee this committee did not ask for all of the King
files And I rather suspect that this committee had the same to some
extent at least the same feelings of sensitivity and propriety which I
had when I said I did not want to look at them because there are ma
terials there which I really think should be regarded as secret And
that is the kind of problem one has to get into

Senator HARTof Colorado But as a basic proposition you are wil
ling to go beyond that to some degree

Attorney General LEVI Yes I am Of course the Bureau might not
like the idea

Senator HARTof Colorado Oh I am sure they will not
Yesterday I asked Director Kelley about the letter we received from

one of your assistants Mr Pottinger in connection with investiga
tion of the King case internally And he asked us for FBI records and
documents "all materials was the phrase I think he used The Di
rector seemed somewhat puzzled by that but I guess my question is
Why is the Justice Department contacting this committee for FBI
records

Attorney General LEVI Well I cannot imagine why unless you were
given the only copies

Senator HARTof Colorado I would be surprised if that happened
Attorney General LEVI But if the suggestion is that he can only get

them that way and not directly from the Bureau I think that is
really incorrect because it just happens that I have specifically asked
Mr Pottinger whether he had access to all the materials and he said
yes But it may be that our form of record keeping is such that you
have things where we do not know where the copies are and you have a
great deal of material

Senator HARTof Colorado But you have no doubt that you will get
everything the FBI has on this matter

Attorney General LEVI I have no doubt that people investigating
it for me will get everything the FBI knows that it has As you know
it is possible that there are materials in other files somewhere

Senator HART of Colorado Well I am talking about conscious
withholding

Attorney General LEVI I do not believe there will be conscious
withholding

Senator HARTof Colorado If or when you depart from the Depart
ment of Justice will you so do with any degree of fear of an overly
independent FBI in the future Leaving aside the question of the re
lationship that exists now but is it a matter of concern to you about
your successors that the Bureau is too independent of the Attorney
General
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Attorney General LEVI Well I have already said that I think that
there is a certain amount of distance and independence It is probably
desirable But of course I am concerned of course I am concerned I
am concerned not only about the future but of today

Senator HART of Colorado And therefore you would suggest that
Congress ought to also be concerned about that

Attorney General LEVI I have said so I agree
Senator HARTof Colorado In connection with these guidelines that

we are talking about one of the very puzzling areas that this commit
tee is engaged is the Huston plan Operation CHAOS and so on back
in the 1960's and early 1970's the tendency on the part of both the
Department and the Bureau and many in the White House to fear
that domestic protest groups particularly in connection with matters
of race or the Vietnam war had some outside or foreign domination or
guidance or direction or support

What do you think these guidelines should say for the future about
separating genuine domestic domestically oriented and controlled
protest that is legitimate and constitutional from the kind of official
governmental harrassment that did in fact go on with very very little
substantial support for the proposition that it was foreign dominated
What can be done about that in the future

Attorney General LEVI It is terribly difficult for the very reason
of your last phrase in which you correctly emphasized that we do
not have the guidelines on the foreign dominated organizations The
question is how close one can come to barring evidence of that domi
nation when the purpose of the investigation in some sense has to be
to obtain that very data So I suppose what one would try to do is to
use some kind of a likely standard or something of that sort as one
approaches it and then a reason to believe or some such thing which
we have come to temporarily on the domestic security ones the stop
and frisk standard which is a pretty stringent standard for investi
gation

But I think there is a problem
Senator HARTof Colorado But not with judicial approval I think

that is your strong recommendation
Attorney General LEVI I do not know whether it is strong or not
Senator HARTof Colorado It is consistent
Attorney General LEvI I just do not think that is the most desira

ble path I think it puts an enormous burden on the court I do not
know how the court will exercise it I doubt if it is the best way But
it may be one way

Senator HARTof Colorado In a hypothetical situation where you
are the ultimate decision-maker as to whether a wiretap should be
implanted and the rights of the individual would be jeopardized
the constitutional rights of that individual or that group would be
clearly jeopardized by the proposed surveillance wiretapping or
whatever what would be your own personal judgment on that where
there was an absolutely even question there was no question consti
tutional rights would be infringed upon and yet the balancing con
sideration was that there might be some evidence of criminal activity
or subversion or whatever

Would you come down on the individual or group's side or the
other way
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Attorney General LEVI Well I must believe that there is a mis
understanding between us because I do not authorize anything where
I think there is a violation of constitutional rights So I think I must
be misunderstanding

Senator HART of Colorado Well I am trying to get inside the
mind of an individual who is going to have this authority that you
do not want an officer of the court to have about what outweighs
what where you do not know what information you are looking for
and the Bureau agent is recommending a wiretap or a mail search and
he is just saying I think there may be some evidence here that we
might need and so on and so forth

So I have to put it in a hypothetical
Attorney General LEvr You see
Senator HART of Colorado Do you resolve differences in favor of

the individual
Attorney General LEVI I do want to say something about the hypo

thetical In this first place under title III the wiretaps require judi
cial approval and the legislation that we are drafting concerns
electronic surveillance which is not a title III matter We are sug
gesting because of reasons which I think I stated before to the com
mittee our view that judicial approval might be desirable

As to mail openings it seems to me that at the present time at least
that would require a warrant so that

Senator HART of Colorado Well I am talking about a national
security area where there is no judicial

Attorney General LEVI I do not know of any national security au
thorization I do not want to get into that area But I do not know of
a present authorization which would permit me to without a warrant
authorize the opening of mail So I think one has to weigh the individ
ual rights very seriously and obviously give them emphasis But I
do not like to be suggesting by my answer that in those particular
hypotheticals that the decision would be made without or could
be made or would be made without judicial review because I think in
those particular examples there would be a warrant there would
have to be a warrant

Senator HART of Colorado Well I am talking about the area
where there are no warrants But I cannot frame the hypothetical
clearly enough

Attorney General LEVI Well it has been framed in terms of the
use of informants and where I do not think there should be a war
rant and there is not a warrant as far as I know and there does not
have to be in terms of constitutional requirements at least at the
present time I think one does have to be very sensitive I think Stone
was correct and if you are going to have an agency of this kind and
it is going to survive with the proper discipline and so on it has to
be extremely sensitive to individual rights

The CHAIRMAN Senator Hart do you have further questions
Senator HARTof Michigan Yes Mr Chairman on specifics really
On this business of congressional oversight we have been going

back and forth with you and with others earlier on the standards and
guidelines of investigations This morning you indicated that some
of the guidelines might well be in statute and others in regulation
and you suggested executive orders and that gets to the point that
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even in the area where statutory definition of guidelines is appropri
ate no matter how skilled the drafter it will leave unanswered cer
tain things So it also will have to be implemented by departmental
orders and guidelines making even more explicit the do's and dont's
and safeguards

Should not those regulations which you or you and the Bureau
or the Bureau issue to implement or elaborate on whatever we do by
statute be subject to debate and approval at least by the Oversight
Committee which everybody assumes we will have if not by the Con
gress Is not that really the starting point for a useful oversight

Attorney General LEVI Well I think a useful oversight can in
volve debate and hopefully it will involve approval but if you mean
by that formal approval by a committee as a new form of additional
legislation I think it raises constitutional questions and I really do
not know why one would want to raise those questions because it does
not seem to me essential

Senator HART of Michigan Well it may be unconstitutional to
require the elections commission to come in and tell us what they pro
pose to do to implement the rules of criminal procedure

Attorney General LEVI Well Senator Hart I had been asked how
constitutional I am in various ways and I think the Constitution
applies and should be followed and I think there is a constitutional
question It may be that we should change the Constitution and have a
form of subsequent legislation through congressional committees

I think there is a problem There is an abuse I happen to think that
the affirmative action legislation if you trace affirmative action legis
lation by the Congress to Executive orders and then to the Labor
Department you have a horror story It happens to be a horror story
that some people like but I regard it as a horror story because the
deviations are quite great So it is possible that here if you have very
general legislation and then you have Executive orders and then you
have other orders the deviation may be very great I understand the
problem and I would hope that an oversight committee could look
at it but to have the oversight committee then have a veto power or
a new subsequent enactment power seems to me to be a strange
creation of a subhouse of I do not know what the Congress and I
regard it as probably not legislation but rather an Executive
function

If it is going to be legislation I think it should be legislation
Senator HART of Michigan I am not wise but I am wise enough

not to pursue a constitutional issue with you I am almost tempted to
have you ask the Department and the Bureau who does those things
to give us a memo on why it might be unconstitutional with respect to
the point I am suggesting reviewing and approving guidelines inter
preting statutory direction with respect to the Bureau but not un
constitutional for us to claim as we do and have the right to veto
rules of criminal procedure but the Director has been burdened
enough

Attorney General LEvI We could put it back and require enactment
You could have a procedure in which after the statute the regulations
would be put before the Congress and require enactment in order to be
effective
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Senator HARTof Michigan That would certainly be oversight This
follows up an earlier point of discussion When we do pass a statute we
can see how the courts and the agencies are applying them because of
the agencies actions and the courts decisions are public It would not
really affect safeguards in this area require that the oversight com
mittee be able to see the kind of documentation that had been given to
you or if it is a case of going to a court seeking a warrant that under
lying material really would be the best basis for an oversight com
mittee making the judgment as to whether the Attorney General ap
propriately was supplying what was intended

Do you agree that oversight how the statute or your guidelines or
others guidelines requires that kind of access I know this looks way
down the road

Attorney General LEVI Yes I think it does Well the facts of life
are that you cannot look much because you will not have the time and
the facts of life are that at least I do not think it is good administra
tion to have congressional investigators plowing through an agency
So I think one has to think about those questions I do believethat
with proper safeguards of confidentiality a committee could get such
material

Senator HARTof Michigan As my question implied it would seem
to me that unless we knew the kind of argument and evidence that
an Attorney General is finding adequate to meet that standard we
would not know whether our standards were

Attorney General LEVI That is right There might be some problems
Every once in awhile 'there is something of such sensitivity that it
might be in a special category I am sure

Senator HARTof Michigan On the matter of electronic surveillance
you said some weeks ago the standards to be used with a citizen with
an American citizen would be would depend on whether he is here or
overseas Perhaps that does not fairly summarize what you said

Attorney General LEvI 1\o it does not
Senator ~HARTof Michigan All right I will be a little bit more fair

You said the different standards would apply when the citizen was an
agent of a foreign power which is what you said Is it your view that
the same standard which really is to say does the fourth 'amendment
apply equally to an American Citizen whether he is operating at home
or abroad in terms of the electronic surveillance that can be used by
our Government. or at the request of our Government

Attorney General LEVI I do not think it is absolutely clear but my
answer would be yes but I do not think it is clear in the decisions

Senator HARTof Michigan What are the present policies regarding
dissemination of the product of electronic surveillance when it is
targeted on an embassy or a foreign diplomat but the device picks up
noncriminal communications as to Americans Specifically suppose an
American is talking on the phone to an embassy of a Middle Eastern
country and he is discussing plans for political activities to lobby
Congress for support of action which he and other Americans plan
They might even be discussing legislative plans of Senators who dis
agree with the administration

If you have a national security tap on an embassy and pick up that
conversation is that fair game for sending to the White House simply
because the tap was legal
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Attorney General LEVI The answer is no
Senator HART of Michigan On the matter of future deterrence of

unauthorized activity we have been talking about what should be
authorized and how to set up procedures No matter how brilliantly
we draft our statutes and guidelines the problem of human frailty will
be there The best system will not eliminate temptation or occassional
succumbing to temptation or transgression Should there be specific
criminal penalties for Government officers who take or approve un
authorized action in this area

Attorney General LEVI In the areas of what
Senator HART of Michigan A Government official who ignores

averts or violates a guideline
Attorney General LEVI Well there are all kinds of penalties now

and all kinds of threats of damage suits and whatnot I think it is a
question of how serious the violation is how willful it is I think I
would have to know more about it

Senator HARTof Michigan Would a good stiff penalty on the books
serve as a deterrent for possible abuse

Attorney General LEVI It depends upon the kind of abuse one is
talking about and as I indicated before the privacy statute in itself
imposes penalties now If we are talking about the grosser acts of some
Presidents let us say or others making illegal unauthorized opera
tions or uses well I do not know what the penalty would be on the
President and somehow or other I have a feeling that I am not sure
that is where a great penalty would make a difference

Senator HARTof Michigan Let us look at it from the point of view
of the fellow whose privacy has been invaded and violations notwith
standing statutory or guideline rule should he be given standing to
sue for damages

Attorney General LEVI Well as to Whether he has standing and
should be able to sue where the conduct is illicit there is no doubt that
there will be suits There are suits

Senator HART of Michigan But my notes say that the court has
held that unless you can show specific damages which is a tough thing
under the first amendment that you are barred from challenging in
vestigation

Attorney General LEVI But I think that were there is not really is
not any real damage I am not sure that damages should be given I
really do not think that is the way one can

Senator HARTof Michigan How about standing to seek an injunc
tion Even though there is not reason for damages

Attorney General LEVI An injunction so that the court would be
operating that segment I would think that would be another problem
as to the separation of powers really an injunction related to that
particular person maybe I do not think a class action telling the De
partment of Justice that they could never use this that or the other
device toward this group

Senator HARTof Michigan Well there is nothing novel about seek
ing injunctions against the Attorney General or other departments
from doing something so I am curious about what we do about some
one who isbeing tailed

Attorney General LEVI Well I thought that you were not thinking
about the problem of damages so much as to the problem of controls
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on the operation of the Department and I was looking at it from that
standpoint I think there is a problem about damages There is a
problem about the rights of people who may have been injured and
whether they should be notified and I frankly do not know the answer
to that question

Senator HARTof Michigan And you do not know the answer yet on
that one

Attorney General LEVI I think it is a very mixed question and it
may be that they should be notified I do ndt know how they would
be notified what the basis would be It is not something about which
I care to express myself

Senator HARTof Michigan Well the mechanics of notifying some
body whose mail has been opened that is not complicated

Attorney General LEvi I am not talking about mail openings Lam
talking about such things as in the COINTELPRO possibly

Senator HART of Michigan Let me read you the full question to
make sure we have covered this I really thought that you had under
study methods which might respond to the abuses in terms of at least
alerting American citizens whose privacy had been invaded upon

Attorney General LEVI We do but I am just saying that I do not
know what the answer is

Senator HARTof Michigan You are studying and seeking the right
answer

Attorney General LEVI Yes
Senator HARTof Michigan Well why is there a problem Why is

the search for the right answer so complicated in terms of those who
have the subject of COINTELPRO files Now maybe they will read
about it through these hearings but there are a whole slew of them

Attorney General LEVI There has been a lot of reading about it
There are Freedom of Information Act requests which obviously re
flect a knowledge on the part of some people but all I am really saying
is that that is one of those matters which I think one has to explore
The first reaction and certainly my reaction is that in some way they
should be notified Then I come to the question of how do we know
who they are Suppose nothing actually occurred Is then the person
to be notified Or suppose it is the kind of case where if the person
is notified there might be embarrassment to the person which is con
ceivable and so on Is it appropriate for the Department itself to
make a tentative judgment as to whether there was any injury or not
or is that inappropriate

There are lots of questions in there and my own inclination is that
they should be notified in some way but I think it is worth some
thought

Senator HARTof Michigan And that thought is being given
Attorney General LEVI Oh yes
Senator HART of Michigan So that Martin Luther King who

would have known about a lot of things that were going on and a
lot of people whose names will never surface in connection with this
committee who have had similar well not similar but experiences
which might very well give rise to a claim how soon do you have
to be able to figure out what if anything the Department's obligation
is toward them

66-0770 76 23
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Attorney General LEVI Senator I really do not know I have called

together a group on that in fact two groups I think whatever answer
is given by the Department may well have to be the same answer that
is given by other parts of the Government That seems to me to require
some further discussion And one has to try to think through as I

say the consequences To notify a person that he or she was the

subject of COINTELPRO at this time many years later may actually
cause perhaps it is strange to think this but it might actually cause
embarrassment to that person now who would rather not know it and
if they had no consequence if it had no consequence is that a good
thing to do

Let me tell you I was told when I came down to the Department 
I do not know if you believe this or not but I was the recipient of a
COINTELPRO letter but more recently since I have ordered a
review of all the COINTEIPRO files I have had this letter confirmed
to me

When I was president of the University of Chicago apparently an

anonymous letter was written I gather claiming that some professor
was a Communist and I do not know what was supposed to follow
from that but in any event there was and I do not know whether
the letter was anonymous but it probably was If I got the letter I
would have thrown it away It would have had no consequence and
I have no recollection of it Now if there is such a letter and persons
exist then notification of that person is that desirable I just do not
know

Senator HART of Michigan I would suggest that the Department
ought not to make the judgment as to whether to use your expression
it had no consequence to the subject I think that that would be a deci
sion that more correctly should be made by the subject in his mind and
not the Department of Justice as you go through that file

I would hope there could be a resolution of which you would say
to be the right answer

Attorney General LEY I have thought of suggesting the Congress
establish some kind of a claims division But in any event it is some

thing we are thinking about
Senator HART of Michigan Well I hope we can come out of this

with some teeth in what we do because you suggested perhaps criminal

penalties would not be very effective and you describe the difficulties
that attach to civil remedies and you suggest that no matter how care
fully drafted

Attorney General LEvI Well there are civil penalties now but I
hate to think that if guidelines are drafted and if there is a violation
of one of the guidelines that the consequence is a criminal penalty
Somehow or other that seems to me an inappropriate way

Senator HARTof Michigan It would not be a criminal penalty un
less the person knowingly took action in violation of the guidelines
And if you are paid by the taxpayer why should you not be subject
to sanctions of that kind

Attorney General LEVI I do not really see why payment by the
taxpayer

Senator HART of Michigan Well why should you not be subject
to sanctions if you knowingly break the rule

Attorney General LEvI I think my problem is that I think you have
problems of discipline in any organization and I think one ought to
be careful not to cover the field of administrative discipline in a gov
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ernment with criminal penalties which I think is self-defeating So
that is the only reason

The CHAIRMANJust two subjects Mr Attorney General and then
I am finished and I will conclude the hearing

Yesterday I asked Director Kelley about the amount of time and
money and general imposition on the overall resources of the FBI that
was represented in the many investigations they routinely make that
deal with appointees or nominees and people being considered for
Federal employment And he said he would supply those figures and
give us some idea of how much of the workload this represented

It is my understanding that the FBI does these investigations only
for sensitive civilian jobs and wherever a name check digs up informa
tion from FBI files indicating a possible security risk In other words
the FBI name check is there if there is an allegation in the FBI files
that a person might have once been associated with a subversive or ex
tremist organization or something like that or if the position to which
the nominee is to be appointed is regarded as sensitive Then the FBI
does the investigation of the nominee Otherwise it is done by the
Civil Service Commission

I am wondering if when it comes to guidelines that not ought to be
a good place to look pretty carefully to see how much of this is really
necessary My impression in the past has been that there are many
FBI checks being done for positions that could not possibly be regarded
as sensitive as far as national security is concerned and maybe we just
have overdone this back in the period when we were terribly fright
ened in the McCarthy years and it has never been looked at sufficiently
since to see if it still is all that necessary

Attorney General LEVI Well I agree and a good place to begin is
with executive order that has been modified many times on suitability
for employment

The CHAIRMANI do not know whether it is feasible to try to legis
late here or whether there could be a way that legislation might be
helpful as a part of the basic or generic FBI law that we hope to draw
up concerning this phase of the FBI's activities But I wish you would
give some thought to that would you please

Attorney General LEvI Surely
The CHAIRMANThe other matter that I want to deal with is that

time and time again in our investigation of the intelligence agencies
including the intelligence aspect of the FBI's work and the counter
intelligence aspects we are up against the problem of accountability
And with the FBI of course we have had the additional question of
the President putting the agency to his personal or political use and a
difficulty which I think Senator Mondale rightly referred to--the diffi
culty no matter what the regulations may be and even perhaps con
trary to positions of the law of refusing to do the President's bidding
You know the order of the President or the desire of the President
can be easily rationalized or some kind of plausible excuse can be given
for it that sounds like it might fall within the purview of the law And
neither an Attorney General or a Director of the FBI is in very much
of a position to argue with the President And then there is a feeling
of who is going to find out about it anyway

I asked Director Kelley yesterday if he thought that orders should
be transmitted to him from the President through the Attorney Gen
eral and second if orders are transmitted to him to undertake an
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investigation in which the President has expressed some interest they
ought to come in writing and a permanent file be kept so that the
accountability is there for review of a congressional committee or for
whatever

He said that he thought that such directives should be in writing
and that a file a permanent file of them should be kept I would like
to ask you how you would respond to those questions And I put the
questions in this order First do you think that if the President wants
the FBI to go out and make an investigation for him and report back
to him that that order should be transmitted through the Attorney
General And second whether you think orders of that character
coming from the President should take the form of a written order and
permanently maintained in the files of the Bureau

Attorney General LEvr Well I think the orders probably should be
written Now as to the first part of your question the hypothetical case
might be that the President has decided that he wishes to appoint a
certain person to the Cabinet and he wishes a full field investigation
Under the guidelines the President the counsel to the President or
associate counsel could ask the Bureau to do that I would think unless
there is some particular reason that the Attorney General should be
notified as to what is going on I think any suggestion of any other
kind of investigation of an organization or something of that sort
which I thought you were suggesting should not come from the Presi
dent to the Director in any case and if it did come it certainly should
come in writing and the Attorney General should be notified

I certainly do not want to say that the President cannot speak to
anybody he wants to speak to argil-there is no reason why he should
not be talking to members of the Department/of Justice I do think it
is a desirable thing when that occurs unless it is discussing the
criminal activity of the Attorney General that the Attorney General
be notified

Now I think in fact at the present time and maybe I would be the
last one to know but I think the communications are through the
Attorney General except for the kind of investigations for appoint
ments which might or might not come to me

The CHAIRMANBut it is possible that that too might be the subject
of that kind of procedure the very kind you have outlined can be
the subject of a statute And if it were do you think the President
would be bound by it

Attorney General Lxvi Oh he might not be but in fact he would I
would think wish to adhere to it and it would make it easier for
others to suggest that there was kind of a propriety about it

The CHAIRMANBefore you leave and I want to express the grati
tude of the committee for your testimony today and for your con
tinued cooperation in this joint endeavor but I also want to say that
Michael E Shaheen Jr. who has been the liaison with the committee
staff has done an excellent piece of work and the staff wishes for me
to express its appreciation to him

Attorney General LEvi I would thank the committee and thank
you and I hope that you can tell Senator Mondale that I am not
half as arrogant as he thinks I am

The CHAIRMANThank you Mr Levi
[Whereupon at 1 p.m. the committee adjourned subject to the

call of the Chair.]
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Under criteria determined'by the Committee in consultation with the Federal
Bureau of Investigation certain materials have been deleted from these
exhibits some of which were previously classified to maintain the integrity of
the internal operating procedures of the FBI Further deletions were made with
respect to protecting the privacy of certain individuals and groups These
deletions do not change the material content of these exhibits



COUNTERINTELLIGENCE

PERSONNELCOMPLEMENT NOVEMBER6 1975

I

IS-1

BLACKNATIONALISTAND
WHITEHATE-CENTRAL UNIT

BLACKNATIONALISTAND
WHITEHATE EAST UNIT

BLACKNATIONALISTAND
WHITEHATE WEST UNIT

BLACKNATIONALIST SOUTH
KLANAND EXTREMIST
INFORMANTUNIT

CIVILDISORDERREPORTING
UNIT

IS-2

TROTSKYISTUNIT

COMMUNISTPARTY UNIT

SECURITYINFORMANTUNIT

EXTREMIST WEST UNIT

EXTREMIST EAST UNIT

L

INTELLIGENCE DIVISION

ASSISTANT DIRECTOR

INSPECTOR
DEPUTYASSISTANT DIRECTOR
INTERNALSECURITYBRANCH

PERSONNELCOMPLEMENT

IS-3

PERSONNELCOMPLEMENT

AUTHORIZED
PERSONNEL COMPLEMENT

CLERICAL
AGENT SECRETARIAL

IS 1

IS 2

IS 3



60,000

55,000

50,000

45,000

40,000

35,000

30,000

25,000

20,000

15,000

10,000

5 000

1,000

0

INVESTIGATIVE-'ATTERSRECEIVED
SUBVERSIVEINVESTIGATIONS

15 56 57 58 59 60 61 62 63 64 65 66 67 68 69 70 71 72 73 74



-4

55 56 57 S6 59 80 61 62 63 64 65 66 67 G3 6,'~7] ~ '4_-71

000

000

000

000

000

^

000

_

000

000

_

,000

,000

,000

,000_

80

55

50

45

40

35

30

25

20

15

10

5

1

INVESTIGATIVEMATTERSRECEIVED
EXTREMISTINVESTIGATIONS

+.



351

EXHIBIT5
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UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT UF JUSTICE

FEDERALBUREAUOF INVESTIGATION

WASHINGTONU.C10535

July 16 1975

UNITED STATES SENATE SELECT COMMITTEE
TO STUDY GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

WITH RESPECT TO INTELLIGENCE ACTIVITIES

RE "OFFICIAL AND CONFIDENTIAL FILES

Reference is made to memorandum from captioned
Committee dated May 14 1975 and the request of staff member
Mark Gitenstein on June 5 1975 requesting certain information
pertaining to the "official and confidential files

In response to the aforementioned request we are
attaching a copy of the results of an FBI Inspection Division inquiry.
into the "official and confidential files matter entitled "Inquiry
Into Disposition of Files Maintained in the Office of Former Director
J Edgar Hoover dated 'July 3 1975

A list of individuals who were contacted (luring this
inquiry and have some knowledge relating to this matter has been
prepared and is available for review by staff members of the Senate
Select Committee in FBI space

Enclosure

XV ):1(J
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July 3 1975

JNQUIF FT'.!' DJaPC_ITICN OF ii1L::S LIAR AJNL''DIir
OFFICh OF FOi ia DmECTC:'t J LL'G 1 iloovElt

Oa Juno 4 1975 ?Jr Dou Ias R i arvin f cial Assiut lnt to

the P toriicy 0Ji.:'r::). 'iJ:C'iao;tict11ycont ctoii ]Jr'J D Adams 1.;::o'ty
Associate Director stating that te Attorney C r rai dosirod that

active ino.oiriC: co:::actcd as t0 t7;1tJ?e:iany otiic_`.l tiles r,er( re

moved from 1.lr )..00ler'n to his ro iidc:co fnJJ.ov,1Chis do:.ih
< rccand may have boon :;'.L'i~CC"leliilyr.:110 1from that at:dross J.bllowin
the,c1:att of Clytio A 'moioon iJoon 1000ii';` roe oot the J.i?ti`73C

tion J2iv!3io:1 i'ull:1L'(i.t':_CinUuiry t.tutior-thedi:':.f,;l'ionof Deputy
Assistant Directors

This inquiry tthi(h'::an concluded on Jane 27 1975 invol ed

interview with over IC6))ir,:Jivid 11s Aino those intorview-ed v'ere

former soi:ita nt to ;Ilo 'Dirootor .Iehn P i..c.ir .iiu. i!3n ii Candy
\',ho \;:i. Pr ) oo:'cr': i:::ecti ivo Assistant and aJ.1caner persona31
aosign2 to _.i.'. _;GCVUI''soflic...t tho time Ci his tieaiJJ Inch.:!_ J in

these Jntorviel S wore over t);.iirnividtr'.is who were in any way involved

in l)lct:in nrd iaovi ..._serial from idr Hoover's office to his rosi
dence subsequent to his death

T)io inquiry dovc'_Cpedno information to choir that any official
files were removed from '.!r iscover's office to his residence following
his death

In summary our in(lrtry developed the following information

)'.ir hoover s "Offici'.J Confidential or "CC files to;other
with some official i'nrc:iu files maintained in r.iiss Candy's offic were
transferred very shortly alter his &oath to the office of iisstctant
Director Deputy Associate i)ircctor 1! ;:lark Felt %Yelocated a .,
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Inquiry into Disposition of Files Maintained in
the Office of Former Director J Edgar Hoover

typewritten note dated May 5 1972 prepared by Mrs Erma Metcalf
Mr Hoover's Administrative Assistant wpich includes information
indicating that the "Official Confidential files had been turned over
to Mr Felt on May 4 1972 two days after the death of Mr Hoover
Mr Felt has confirmed receipt of these files

Also located was a "List Of Official Confidential Files In
Director's Office, dated October 20 1971 which \v;asprepared by
Mrs Metcalf Whenthe "Official Confidential files were inventoried
by the Inspection Staff in January 1975 all of the folders listed on the
October 20 1971 inventory prepared by Mrs Metcalf were physically
located with the exception of three folders captioned with the names of
three present or former FBI officials We have been unable to account
for the disposition of these three folders It can be speculated that these
folders may have contained copies of communications the originals of
which were maintained in the normal personnel files of these individuals
and which may have been of particular interest to Mr hoover The
reason these folders were removed from the "Official Confidential
files could not be determined

The "Official Confidential files listed on the October 20 1971
inventory with the exception of the three folders mentioned above con
tinue to be maintained at FBI Headquarters

Since their inception the maintenance of the "Official Confi
dential files was the responsibility of either Miss Gandy or Mrs Metcalf
Mrs Metcalf has stated that these files were "very inactive and it was
"very very seldom that anyone needed anything from them Miss Gandy
described these files as "not active and stated they were referred to
only on rare occasions Both-stated that to their knowledge these files
were never used for other than,official purposes

Miss Gandy advised that Mr Hoover told her the "Official
Confidential files should be turned over to whoever was running the
Bureau when he left

She stated that she alone was responsible for designating material
to be removed from Mr Hoover's office after his death and nothing of an
official nature Bureau files or otherwise was sent to Mr Hoover's house

`?Ctn..'2 5a 1i ~~

X 'a 1915
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Inquiry into Disposition of Files Maintained in
the Office of Former Director J Edgar Hoover

or elsewhere outside the Bureau To emphasize this she said "not
even his badge.

According to Miss Gandy there were about 35 file cabinet
drawers of Mr Hoover's personal correspondence which were packed in
cardboard boxes and moved to his home shortly after his death After
her retirement Miss Gandy spent about two months reviewing this per
sonal correspondence for subsequent destruction She reviewed each
item and said she found nothing of an official Bureau nature contained
therein

In addition to the personal correspondence two 3-drawer and
two 2-drawer file cabinets containing folders of material pertaining to
Mr Hoover's personal business affairs were removed from his office
and moved to the recreation room in the basement of his home The
material in these file cabinets included such things as copies of every
income tax return filed by Mr Hoover and separate folders on each of
his stock and oil well investments These file cabinets with their con
tents are still at Mr Hoover's residence plus two other file cabinets
containing similar material relative to the personal business affairs of
Clyde A Tolson which were also brought to Mr Hoover's residence
shortly after Mr Hoover's death

Mr John P Mohr stated "There were never any Buie au files
taken to Mr Hoover's house after Hoover's death He participated
in an inventory for tax purposes of the entire contents of Mr Hoover's
home in July 1972 and pointed out that if there had been such files
lucre he would have seen them and he observed none

During this inquiry we interviewed over 20 persons who had
been at Mr Hoover's house within a short time after his death None
of the persons could furnish any information indicating the presence of
any official Bureau files at his residence

It was the recollection of a Bureau truck driver that
shortly after Mr Hoover's death he delivered a total of 20 to 25 file
cabinets to Mr Hoover's home and placed them in the recreation room

-3
fair

r,,,;%1
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Incfuiry into Disposition of Files Maintained in
the Office of Former Director J Edgar Hoover

in the basement He said these cabinets were full and that during the
moving a drawer came open on one of the cabinets and he observed light
colored folders inside with the contents of each folder roughly one inch
thick IIe is unable to say where these file cabinets came from as they
were already on his truck when he received his instructions to lake
them to Mr Hoover's residence Inasmuch as no other persons inter
viewed could corroborate that such ,a large number of file cabinets were
delivered to Mr Hoover's house, was reinterviewed on two further
occasions in an effort to develop anything which would assist in sub
stantiating or disproving that this occurred At this Point Smith remains
adamant that he did in fact bring 20 to 25 file cabinets to the house

Of more than 20 persons interviewed who were at Mr Hoover's
house subsequent to his death none ever recall seeing such a large num
ber of file cabinets the caretaker at Mr Hoover's
house for many years and -z his cook and maid who
were at the house daily are emphatic that there were never more than
six file cabinets in the recreation room of Mr Hoover's house at any
time and that Smith has to be wrong

n s
It is the feeling of those who have interviewedv that he

believes he actually did deliver as many file cabinets a'he has indicated
but he is in fact confusing a number of instances We have determined
that a large number of cardboard boxes containing Mr Hoover's per
sonal effects and memorabilia were taken to Mr Hoover's sidence
from his office within about one week after his death participated
on a number of occasions in hauling this material to the house and into
the recreation room where most of it was stored We have also deter
mined that Icewas present and assisted in moving some of the six file
cabinets previously mcntioned,,and have determined that at the time they
were moved some of these cabinets did contain light colored folders the
contents of which are approximately one inch thick

Of the nearly 40 persons interviewed nho were involved in moving
material none has any recollection of participating in the movement of
20 to 25 file cabinets to Mr Ioover's residence or of seeing such a
number there We can only conclude that while honest in his belief
Smith has a jumbled recollection of the facts due to the passage of over
three years since Mr Hoover's death ( c

I I '!I~i .0

4 ,lilt i;r~

r
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Inquiry into Disposition of Files Maintained in
the Office of Former Director H Edgar Hoover

Part of the request of the Attorney General was to determine
whether any official files had been removed from Mr Hoover's resi
dence following the death of Mr Tolson Inasmuch as our inquiry has
shown that there were no such files at Mr Hoover's home it follows
that none were removed after Mr Tolson's death However we did
make inquiry into the movement of anything which might be construed
to be files from Mr Hoover's house after Mr Tolson's death on
April 14 1975 and found no such evidence

It was determined however that shortly after Mr Tolson's
death a number of empty cardboard boxes were taken to Mr Iloger's
residence by a Bureau employee These boxes were utilized by

the caretaker to pack pictures which had been layingc"Ioose
in the attic and also to dispose of some old canned goods The boxes

_with the canned goods were placed in the garbage outside

In connection with the removal of material from Mr Hoover's
home it was determined that during the period of approximately the
middle of May to the middle of July 1972 cardboard boxes containing
the personal correspondence of Mr Hoover which had been reviewed
by Miss Gandy at his residence were picked up at the house on several
occasions and destroyed by personnel of the Washington Field Office

Also in connection with the removal of material from Mr Hoover's
house it was determined that on two occasions in 1974 numerous card
board boxes containing books were removed from Mr Hoover's home
loaded onto trucks and delivered to the library at the FBI Academy
Quantico Virginia These books had been purchased by the J Edgar
Hoover Foundation and donates to the library
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EXHIBIT6

t t)''NI11.1):.,I,\ Iis C,C) 't i ")I 1
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r-'1
C D BeLoach DAII July 19 19G6

W C Sullivan ,~

A //
"DLACKBAG JOBSL)

DO NOT FILE

The following is set forth in regard to your
request concerning what authority we have for "black bag
jobs and for the bachground of our policy and procedures
in such matters

We do not obtain authorization for "bl::cic._beg
buch a technique involves

tre-Spass and is clearly illegal therefore it would be
impossible to obtain any legal sanction for it Despite
this "black bag jobs have been used because they represent
an invaluable iecilnique in combating subversve
of a clandestine nature aimed directly at undermining and
Oestrnyioz 0111 nation

The present procedure followed in the use of this
technique calls for the Special Agent in Charge of a field
office to nape his request for thc use of the technique
to the appropriate assistant Director The Special Agent
in Charge :.nest completely justif; the need for the use of
the techei.-jue and at the same time assere that it can be
safely used WitOout any danger or eme reaesment to the
Bureau The eets arc incorporaeed in a eemorandum which
in accordance with the Director's iestruetio:e is sent to
Mr Tolson or to the Director for approval
this memorandum is filed in the Assistant Direeter's office
under a "Do hot File procedure

In the field the Special Ageet in Cha-ge prepares
an informal memorandum showing that he obtaince Dnreau
authority and this memorandum is filed in his :,.,re until
the nest inspection by Bureau Inspectors at which time it
is destroyed

CON'fl;MJED OVEa
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.Ier..ora:hia to rr C D JlcLoach
Re "aLACKL',1G JOBS

We have used this techoi c..e oe a 'ci hly selective
basis but with wide-range effectiveness our AwcraLions
Ye have several cases in the espionage iied

Also through the use of this technique we have of
numerous occasions been able to obtain material held highly
secret and closely guarded by subversive_ groups and organiza
tions which consisted of membership lists and mailing lists
of these organizations

This applies even to our investigation or the` You nay recall that recently through a
"black bag job we obtained the records in the possession of
three hi h-ranking officials of a or;;-anizat.ion in

These records gave us i'ce caccnlete membership
and financial inioraation concerning tit, operation
which we have been using most e1icctively Lo.disr"upt the
organization and in fact to bring about its near disintegration
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to Br C Ji DeLoach
re i3:.AC:.BAG JWS

In short it is a very valuable weapon which wo have
used to combat the highly clandestiue 01fori: of subversive
elements scaking to undermine our Nation

R%C(YgNDATTON

For your information

66-0770 76 24
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B3 100-25323

the United States was not recornended
fcr the AI or SI in B.ltino;e report dated 8/21/69

The SA who observed the 1"il:ddemonstration on 8/1/69 was

1172o.0z . DATA
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At Bnitinore I:arvland

Will continue to follow and report the
aci;ivitios of the Uoxen's Liberation Movement
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DETAILS PREDICATION

Information was received from on
1968 indicating that a Group of women

affiliated with the Baltimore Defense Committee
(BDC)had recently been meeting to discuss various
aspects of women's liberation

NOVIi 1915
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Riponel
Date

Field011ieFileFr BureauFileU

SA oni:. BALTIMORE
May11 1970

BA

A characterization of

Thadocumentennt.ineneitherretontmtn.t.ti.ntnnrromluuv astobedi.trthutedealeidtyouroutcry

I^"70!1C.u7.7.59)
or.

UN..EDSTATESDEPARTMENTOF_JSTIGE
FEDERALBUREAUOFINVESTIGATION

1 OSI Baltimore (RLGIS MAIL)
1 NISO Baltimore (REGIS i"'AIL)
it 109th MI GP Baltimore (REGIS MAIL)

WOMEN'SLIBERATIONMOVEMENT

Charactett INTERNALSECURITY MISCELLANEOUS

synoptic  TheWomen'sLiberation Movement(WI1),in
Baltimore Maryland began during the summerof 1968
with a group of womanaffiliated with the Baltimore
Defense Committee (BWCl a Baltimore based anti-war
anti-draft organization meeting to discuss various
aspects of women's liberation Meetings are generally
held in the homes of those active in the `LM The
WIl4has an office at BDCHeadquarters 2525 Maryland
Avenue Baltimore where literature is available The
WI14receives aid and support from the BDC In 3/70
a mailing of pledge letters for funds was made by the
WIll The WMpublishes a magazine quarterly which is
self-supporting from subscriptious,The WIllhas conducted
demonstrations and held meetings on behalf of women's
rights Since 2/70 the WLt"iin conjunction with the
BDC has been attempting to establish a free medical
clinic in Baltimore Information concerning leadership
finances and activities set forth

P.^_  ('"c1vr FROM

GiCUP1
the BDCis appended

Eia':d frotaaam'.

yoftheFBIenditlopedtoyr.epentyitenditsfoliate
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BA100-25323

I OPIGIN AI:1SA:^) PURFOSE

The Women's Liberation Movement MI) in
Baltimore ?iaryland began during the suer of 19o8
There was no structure or parent organization There
were no rules cr plans to ;o by It started out as
a group therapy session with young wcmenwho were either
lonely or confined to the home with small children
getting together to talk out their problems Along
with this they wanted a purpose and that w to
free womenfrom the hum-drum existence of eein only
a wife and mother They wanted eaal opportunities
that men have in work and in society They :.anted
their husbands to share in the housework and in rearing
their children They also wanted to go out and work
in whatever kind of .ions they wanted and not be
discriminated against as woman All of the women
 perti ipat_ne in t oss .irrt ceeion2 ^e effiiisted
with the PLC

 on !0)
A leaflet dated February, F 1969 issued by

the BDCcontained the follcwing paragraph

'i,'O1"TEii'SLh._n.`"IOt .'C`.':-._._iT The
 Ieoren ...a:_.. altio re.rcep la
aims to free womenf r m tr=oi ticnal ideas
of their roles as self-sacrificing wives
and mothers and raises in wcmenccncciou,Hess
of :Hale supremacy as it exists in cur
society and in everyday life Wedie:nee
radical alternatives womencan demand now
for themael'ves and changes in hi an
relaticnshits which must come with a new
society r action r ._"ramis pre,iacted
The group meets every ther Tour dey and
is planning a weekend retreat at '_ono
Catoctin on ;larch 111-15.

 or 70)
A leaflet issued by the ROCcontains the following

-p aragraY
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III LEADERSHIP

The WIllhas no officers Sore of those
present at the initial meetings and who are considered
leaders are /..

All of the above are also affiliated with the
BDC

'BA 100-25323

"MIEN'S LISA.RAT e v[ __sia  ~'i .,0+ Thile
distinct frcn-rie e3e,oEi ,qu was
organized by womanwho wor also in
the Defense Committee The aim of
the group is to examine the subordinate
role of womenin our society and try
to change the stereot3p's that both
men and womenhave about females
Our group is open to ant womeninterested
in examining this problem with us

on 7O)

II LOCATION

Meetings are generally held  n the various
homes of those active in the '.!L'"1 `1-21has an
office at BDCHeadquarters 2525 Mar,,?. ::dAvenue
Baltimore Maryland where literature is available

en 70)

 on 70)

IV FINAIICES

Originally there was no plan for dues or
regular contributions However in February 1970 the
WIlldecided to collect bi-monthly pledges of $1 from
those with the ability to contribute

 rnrrF!V.1) Fh ~IVI
on TO)

huv s 1915
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:'BA 100-25323

on 70)

V PAMPHLETSANDPUBLICATINS

During March 1970 the WLMof Baltimore distributed
a leaflet describing the WLbIpublication "WOMdENA JOURNAL
OF LIBERATION

on 70)

The leaflet mentioned above is as follows

'rfl

1975

t31



cs for all issues of nextyear bedecided by June -s i
h65

366

WOMENA JOURNALOF LI .:RATION
3011Guilford

Baltimore Md 21218

.SCRIPTIONWOMENA JOURKALOF Lil3ERATIONis a quarterly magazine
iftshcduy asgroupof womenit Baltimore Maryland Subscriptionis.S5 per year

Thenewsstandprice is $1 25 Thejournal is intendedto be of use towomenengaged
in struggle strugglefor greeter awarenessandstruggle to changeconditions The
journal serves as a iorum of opinionandexpressionvital to a growingwomen's
liberationmovement Themagazineattemptsto pushbeneaththe generalizations
andto foster the creation of an ideology Eachissue centers ona specific theme
relevant to the xaovement tie solicit articles as well as poetry short stories and
art which:dater In the specific theme Inmovingbeyondthe general descriptions
ofproblems wehavetried to establishnewapproachesto the manyintellectual
disciplinesand to findnewapproachesto action

Subscriptionto C.O?viENA .TOURNALOF LIBERATIONis slightlydifferentfrom
most ma eatces Subscriptionsare for the fullyear This meansthat youwill
receive backissues if yousubscribe in themiddleof the year This is necessary
becausewecen:..otaf_fordtohandlesubscriptionsby a subscriptionfulfillmenthouse
This makes it persible to serve our readers withoutgoingbankrupt

THEMES Weare part cf a movementofwomenwh havebecomeawareof our
oporeas>.onat tide:tometir^e time that wehave as _'mericans becomecor.ccinus
throughthe wet L i'ictn_imof the realities of Americanpower_t honk andabroad
Wefindour hooteminentandits eceno::aicsystem3uiityof expl,eiting'esat hornsand
anddesecr:.. .i peoplesof the third worldfor the economicl._..efilof the is-c
Weknowthat to :his :aimedcor.te erecannever be free Marxismshowshootan

'oilive ':coy:-: c~s stem arises out of the familystructure the suppressionof
wenis ncc :.,: to remmaintenanceof sucha system Aswomen weare a key

b upin thecrises of exploitedpeoples
Throughthe use of a separate themef-r eachissue of themagazine a deeper

explorationof tae ideas within'thewomensmovementhas beenpossibleFall 1969 ":icunen'InherentNaturecr CulturalConditioning Throughan exp!oratioaof biologiceldata the magazineshowsthere is nobasis in :act for a theoryabort the
"inherentnature ofwomen rite issue thengoeson to eplore howwomenhavebeenconditionedto r -.:opta secondaryrole by schools booksandsocietyWinter1970 ",7hotie Liberation Througha considerationof the issues ofbirth
control e :catir:a daycare jobs andfamily the questionofwhatwomen'sliberationinvolvesis diecuesed
Spring1970 . o:-on in Ilistorv a Recreationof Our Past Througha considerationofofoutstandingwomenlike lOagret SangerandHarriet Tubmar. the issue pointstothenecessityfor et.theriagthe materials ofv:omenin historySummer1970(uca???Ocfor articles ilia I) "WomenandRevolution Socialistrevolutionsare anecOSt:".ryprerequisite for the liberation ofwomen Butfull liberationdoesnotaulornatic:,ityLornewithrevolution 'lie wantto stud'/the role that
organizationsof '::onionhaveplayedin revolutions 'diealso wentto studytheconditionofwomenin existingsocialist countries ,that mistakeshavebeer madeWhatpositivea hievemen.chavebeenacco:r.piished. t-.r"j,t-) , rp i sIWeplanta publishthe journal for anothe year andwehave selectedthettir2 .efor the first isscc :h :imageofComer in the Arts. Thede-diinefor amides is!.u-ust I If ':oul:o r_,dear for the remainingthree themes plcasct 'e~8I'rgrr The
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EXHIBIT8

INTELLIGENCE COLLECTION TECHNIQUES

FREQUENCY

Informants 83%

Police Confidential Sources 74%

State Motor Vehicles Division 50%
Confidential sources in utilities
educational institutions and
State employment agencies

One or more interviews 40%

Subject interviewed 20%

Physical surveillance and pretext 18%
contacts

Electronic surveillance 5%

Surreptitious entry or mail openings 1%

* * *

Source Report by General Accounting
Office to House Judiciary Committee
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EXHIBIT9

SAC Albany November 26 1969

DireEtor I 1

1'131I1ITI:1,),IC'!?:CE

COrr
Iu::,).,a`(..1-.,.1'1ELLiTL

Captioned letter has been initiated at the Lareau
to ;urnieh high-level intelligence data in the security field
to the Presicnt end t 4:ttorne) Qi cral ca a continuing
basie This letter will not be a vehicle for routine
diene:.linatioa _ether it will be comrr r;cd of information
obtained in ceneCCticn with our \!!lich -Iles ti!c
lllaliticn of importance enn 1:.melinoes neccssery to :secure
the Prel:..%!ent'e aMare st and to provieo him with can :l'~:1?l
intclli nce for his guidance i:ere rumors or nebulous infor
naiion t,'il1 have no place in this letter

Iti\"all he the re ronsibil'ty cf each field office
to furnish the .a_c1u co a coatir.ui.n ca ,is -.:te1li::encc
itc;a suitable for this letter :Inca office must in the
course of iii normal bnei;, ss and .._-:is _cps of il_ .._::at_on

_ to ti;e iJurcau alert to fl specific items for this
;urpon .!or your :ui .ance the fo11.^ in.^ are ested tyres
I'i information (toss all-inclusive) that would be appropriate

or this intelligence letter

Information of national or international
aignificance.\.hich is security related

Important current or pending developments
in major security cases

.(3) _Current information which is representative
of or calls attention to :'significant uweiopifl intelligence
trend

(4) 1:aterial which has a bearing on national security
particularly that from sensitive and/or penetrative coverage of
foreign establishments which could affect American relations
with foreign countries or assist in formulating United States
policy
2 All other offices
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Letter to Albany
1*11117:T:LL:=C: =I=

T::

InAn.-2:1-5A'.1i::LLIT11=TM

(5) "Inside information ccncorniw* demonstrations
disorders or othcr civil disruptions which is of morothin

local siLhilicnnco

(G) Itcms vith nn unusual tt;ist or concernincT

prominent personalitics which may bo of special interest to

tho Vrcoidcnt or alc J.ttorney General

All information submitted to the Eurcau by your
office in investi:ations concurnin old-line subversive

i::ft rcusS rcciaL mattcrs,.bite
and esoion,fe nnu eonnterintelii!-:c!)ce natters should be

cnrofully rivicwod o.ally for nny item Cncmeu nertincnt to

this into:ncc Icter Ccmmunicntichm containinl such

items shoulki b runmittcd by tho most _=editions Liar:11s
warralr:;ca ;:nd b 11:7:cd with tha cot: nnma "ihict
nftcr no title and c::arnczer in those instnnecs where an

nirtcl or lotzor is uscd an additiopal copy should bofurnzished

tha EurCau

instructions are to be imolcmented immadiatcly
It is absolutnly cssentinl that a stcndy ..!.r::! of quality
intelli!:csco ehtn ii rcccivcd frcm nil field offices to rani:a

this Icttcr a success ...our bo closely
followed nt the ::urcan to insure this matter is rocuiving

propor emphasis nhd ntten,ion

IiLGL

OJ!4. 1.!1;I
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EXHIBIT12

t L%i10;W)M7,G l UNITED STATES GOVERNMENT

To ,mr L V Boardman DATEAugust 28 ,195E

[luau A H Belmont

SUBJECTCP U3A CCUiTiIPi =LIG :CE PRCGRAN
INTERNALSI UHITY C

During its investigation of the Communist Party
USA the Bureau has sought tc capitalize on incidents
involving the mart; and its leaders in order to fosder
factionalism brine the Cc: un_ Pert (CP) and its leaders i
into disrepute cefCre the American public end cause confusion
and dissatisfaction among rank-and-file meshers of the CF

Generally the above acticn has constituted
harrassnent rather then disruption since fcr the most tart
,the Bureau has set up particular incidents end the att:.c has
been free the outside At tr "e present time hewever there is

:existing within tre G a situation resuiti, from .the CeJC.Io_e
ments at the ;_U;hCcngrea_ Cf ..a CP of the Soviet Union and
the nmen_'7 e art re,i ri-ally t .ro_a"a
.prosecutions uneer the -aitn Act of 19'e and the internal
Security Act cf 1950 which is wade to order for an ail-cut
disruptive aty against the U frc:a within In ether I:orosthe Bureau is in

.
position to initiate on a broader scale

than heretofore actemoted a counterinteUli.;:ance troran ainst
the CP not by herrass=nt from the outside Aleut only
serve to Grin the various factions together but by,weed`_.^._
.and fostering frem within the internal fight currently raging

We have been.censidering possible courses to implement
such a program end at the present time we are actively working-ion the following for

1) The Socialist Workers Party C31P) is aohth an all
out effort to t n over CP Memberswho have eece:ce cisillueionei
 with ...tali-et ccm :zi , members are distributing cc iesof "The Ei.ii ent (SID peblieeoicn) at C rallies and meetinee
and are coitecting individual C members in an attempt tc sell

knclosurcs
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Memorandurpfor Mr Boardman

them the SlP philosophy This SWPprogram could very definitely
benefit the Bureau provided we can achieve through our infc:'mant
coverage in the S:1Psome degree of control and direction over it
The ultinate goal would be to continue and intensify pressure en
the CP from the left Since the Party is already under pressure
,from the right the combined pressure would contribute materially
to distracting the CP from its primary goes

ACTION A memorandum together with a letter to the
15 offices having Sr.T activity in the U S. is attached sounding
out these offices through their Sr,P infornants as to the possibility
of initiating several specific steps ..aimed at the Eureauls
furthering assisting and possibly adding to the current SWP
disruptive program

2) The CP national convention is scheduled to be held
during February 1957 At the present time there appoar to be 4
separate views within the CP leadership as to the decree of change tc
he made in the organization and program of the G USA The Fnrty
has publicly announced that the theory of democratic centralism
:has Leon medi:ied and that each CP member has the right to
erepress his views as to the past mistakes and future path of
communismin the U S Preliminary material for the draft
resolution for the national convention has been prepared and is
being discussed on a national level prior to being sent to the
various districts for preconvention discussions on a iccal level

ACTION A memcrandua together with a letter to 12 key
offices is being prepared requesting these offices to submit to
the Bureau the identities cf certain informants who will be
briefed and instructed to embark on a disruptive program within
their own clubs sections districts or even en a nati.onalee el
Those informants will raise objections and doubts as to the success
of any proposed plan of action by the CP 1eadership They will
noize"every opportunity to carry out the disruptive activity not
only at meetings conventions et cetera but also during sc:cial
and other contacts with C.Pmembers ana leaders It is noted that



374

Memorandumfor Mr Boardman

a letter has been sent to 12 key offices (dated August 27 1956)
roque ting information as to the view points of the national and
district leaders relative to the faction within the CP that each
appears to fever Ibis 'information can be used by the various
offices in briefing the informants who will carry out the
d:i.sra;;,lve prcram It is pointed out that the informants chosen
end unmoved for tnis program should not be endangered since
as pointed out above the Party has publicly encouraged all
members to participate in the current discussions

3) lecently a national CP leader
and convi.ctcd Smith Act suoject was assigned by the Party to
eonta c of the Fellowship oi tee c'.lictiori
Lta e..'1'a.L1gieue eoc.Lalisa-pacuI1st organization
:.i'g;e"i.ed that/ prepare and distribute a docuaent ceiling for
,.n c ehenge of opinions by individuals interested in fanning a new
goe:.'_ t organization This is the first step taken by the GP in
Soils e a new socialist coalition in which it hopes to na:rticipate

has prepared a docunent which criticizes the absence cf
I.i.berties free trade unions and outlets for di.ssenti.n;

opinions in toe Soviet Union It further-urges that European
neto],J.:i.conaticns be free from Soviet domination The GP mores

f

to pa: uede / to mollify his criticism of the Soviet Union
before the document is released At the same time the GP feels
t ha', :cue mild criticism of the Soviet Union and the GP U,;, will
t.a beneficial in gaining noncommunist support for 'proposal

,.CTION: This plan of the CP may create a situation
n:aich ".:ould lenu itself to a disruptive operation by the bureau
IL appears that it is too early to actually make a move but we
ere e'a sting certain offices to this plan of the GP and are
instleeting that this operation be closely watched so that if a
eltuai._on does present itself we will be in'a position to make
Amyiao;u which appears logical and workable
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Memorandumfor Mr Boardman

4) When the CP underground was put in operation on a
large scale in 1951 CP leaders decided after extensive study
that underground personnel should either disregard their tam
obligations or file under false names

 ACTION Wehave obtained from the field the names and
current addresses of former underground leaders with a view toward

'furnishing
them to the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) for

appropriate action A memorandumhas gone through (August 2$
1956) recd nending that the names and current address of 102
such leaders all of whomhave Smith Act ramifications be
transmitted to the Lepartment and the Department be requested
to advise if there is any objection to the bureau furnish.in this
material to IRS If there is no objection the bureau proposes
to trenemit the _es ,nd ^ ees to IRS via Limisen fete
appropriate action Wewill then follow IRS very closely wince
IRS action should (1) uncover the aliases and whereabouts iron
1951 to 1954 of these subjects who actually filed returns ender
aliases and admit such action or (2) result in possible
prosecution of those subjects who did not file returns cr who
refute to furnish details if they did file It is be.lievcci that
action by IRS at this time would deal a further devastating blow
at the CP and would certainly reflect very uniavcrably on the
Party leadership for the instructions issued in 1951 .

OBSERVATICS

We are going ahead with the 4 courses of action listed
in this memorandum A detailed memorandumis attached covering
the SWPangle a memorandumhas gone through separately coveringtho first phase of the IRS angle and a detailed eeuorendua
covering the disruptive program by confidential infornauta is
being prepared as is a memorandumcovering the phase

For the present our disruptive tactics vi].]. of
necessity be general in nature that is along the line of
"keeping the pot boiling. The time may cone ho".:ever whenit will be desirable to direct our disruptive tactics toward a

66-0770 76 25
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Jemorandu i for '_r Loardman

specific ,:oal national committee has been set up to work
exclusively on t';e resolution fcr the forthcoming CP national
conventic = resolution may be that the CP be dissolved
and rocon::i.tu under a new name a coalition be effected

.with cort.r.i.n a''::: al and right-wing elements or that the CP
remain as re:::2+. grad but that several drastic changes be made
in its co l :t t:"::n When this resolution has been drawn up
and the receives a copy of it serious consideration
wiill t e to i;hetner it will be of benefit to the
Burreauus ot.a.:" ! us and to the ,security of the country for
us to set a spa ;1ic goal in this disruptive program

Tlx Internal Security Section is giving this program
~`n rmr.alWinouViibilWVC:a hhd ."a.iV..Nn and v4 AIATI fcr

situations .tight afford additional opportunities for
further di_nup',:'.:a of the CP USA

This naorandum has been prepared for your
information a.. to advise you of the initiation of this
program

if
7
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EXHIBIT13

SAC ;;cw York October 12 1"61

Director I sI

Sc^IAi TS% S P:i Y
+11.1 '.1 .~-h .lei S..t
DIS:;:'l i :L

The Soci::,.: Workers Party (S.ir') has over
the past sever::l openly cs,a_Jsiii its lino
on local and l;c _ oasis taroa^:1 ru:.nin candidates
for public o_ `_ ;t~o -:ly dirccti -:d/or ,oupporling
such causes as C ,'s C and il:tc ction probica
arisil in t:n3 a:... Tile has also been in f rcrl:4_ t
contact wit) it ai"rats:y i tc ^rau7s Sta 11 ^
short of open and dttet

inc!
yco3.-iact with those The

gout) ^rota) of . as also been o;icrating on this
:iujls i.0 C.Jj:i:C awu ..11.1+.)..r iO11CYCS

Offices n_:civin caoics of this letter arc
participati.. in "th ";:_e3u's Coca:unist cart; USA

our.terintcliir ;'o';r it is felt 1-)at a jisru;tion
prozran aloi: si ii^r i::_s could be initiated a'"ainst tae
Sigh on a very select:.v^ basis One of tnc purposes of this

ro"ra
would he to art the public to t a :act that the

 is not just a_stn .i socialist but foilov:s the
revolutionary 'laid'.;  of Lan Leliin and EnzolS as
interpreted by i.eon Trotsky

It is poi .1out Lo^ever that this proryrc:l
is not intondCd to hi a  crash Only care .ill
thot^at-out opar ;:1C:. with tiiC nii St~ possible -weed'
and hens-fit to .t.:C '.:1,:=should be snnitted It  5

be
^--";:"`.-1 `~._ the c:-_acis +1k"

en
c,esi

cvaircuulac
to

iPI1 'i3i ,f
Each o _i.cc ..c _.,c:"a;=arc rcc::c'-ted to-carefully

evoluate such a ,ra rc add suoni their vicr:s .to t c..:;-lrcau
rc,^,ardin initiatis;. a S disruption proErar on;;a l titcd
oasis

2 Caica^"o
2 ^ctroit
2 Los .'.n ales

1?)~' 4 (/.!L:_1



'1:ffootivo ia=odiately tiio Bureau is institutiir
a coordinated Ccnnt:erintcll_~cncc _%c^ (Cointoip.o)
directed araii;::z =tr:n a::! l:ae':u1i.atiocs C ficns
rcceivir.r copies of this letter arc instructed to ininodiately
open an active control file captioned an above and to
nuoinn roopcnsibii:it for tail n_ocras to en enporioaced
and itoginative 5 ccial %r;cnt who is tell vorccd in
investigation of ::ate and racist-typo organizations and
their ecnbership

1g
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EXHIBIT14

SAC Atlanta September 2 Ind

Director FBI PERSONALA?:DCC_771?_i:il.'.L

I=Al S_c: :'i r i
-

D'.SrJ1T1C:1Cc 1'_AiiG.^.OUPS_

The purpose of this program is to c::peso disrupt
and other,,i o nout alizo the activitio Hof the various iiae.^
and :ate organi::ationo their leadership and achercnts
The activitica of those r;oo's most uc followed on a
contirmoc.h__.._ co r::ty taho advantngo cf all opeor
tunitics for co'_utcrintclii;cnce and ol:,o inspire action
in instances  :o circa.-stances warrant 'ihC dovic:. !-.
cancuvors and c?licity o_ t:..so groups runt bo coposod
to public scootin,/ tcroug,h too coopora2ion of rcliahio
.noon media ::oared Loth locally and at the Boat of
Govern: ont e must irmstr acc any cifort of t:u grows
to conSolidatc their forces or to roeruit now or yo tu_ul \
adherents In every instance coesicioration soouid be
given to di r ptin the or-;anizcd .Iota ity of these groups
and no oo:ortunity should be re.cacd to ea-,italize rpon 11organizational and poreonal conflicts of their lc:,dorchip

2 Baltinoro MAIL oophic <c

~._.~.,~
2 Birr.in,;cao / '"2 :a:::i '",,~ J c2. Charlotte SEp1r 19Gr12 ;:ohilc li SEP 4 1642 C;ri ^ o __ :! Crlcaim f

.2 Jac non / 2 l ."`
"

.2 ::no::ville ;r 2 Savanna:
.2 Little Doak / 2 Ta=pa '') I

 1 (CPTSA Cointolpro) . `~
 / i t

i'OfE~ _Sse nemn_L"'aur..gardoerto Sulliyan 2/27/6,,1 sa o caption
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Lotter to Atlanta
RH COUKTEflIL:..LLICE`;CEPP.OJfl:1

I.NTERiiAL EC;:i:ITY
DISF.UPTIONOF IATEGROUPS

Tho following Stan orr, ninatio;:.^. currently
under active investigation s:iouid be co:;:Jidercd for
countorintelligenco action

1

2
3

4

5

E

7
8

0
10
11
12
13
14
15

1G

17

Tho following Hato organ. at ^rn currently being
afiordod active iavesii;,ation are '_l,ci':ced in this pro;;r ui

1
2
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Lottor to ttlanta
En COU1;17=777,7,n7l:Cn?2.03RAn

r7277ffr.clu:iCr 4ATZ=UPS
)

On or boforo 10/15/C particiT;avin7 officoo
tiro instructed to .:.:nit to Eorcau a 0o,:a17.odnnrlysis
of potential Goaotoriotolli7onoo action coaioot rartioont
orcnniaatiors and infividoals aotivo within their roo7ootivo
torritorics and ocific rocoondations o:Oold bo inoludod
for any loT:Ial iato countorintollico action
Roco:Aocadation3EInto:iittod nndor tOis nroT:rao Kiust inelodo
all noocosary,facto to cna'plo tno Euroau to intollir:cntly
pass upon tno fonolirilitT of tllo proonood acrloa in
inotancoo wr000 a roliablo and coo7oativo 000s
roproscatntivo or ot!er sourco ootsido tno uronu is to
bo contactod or ooiliood 1:1 connection wita a pro:sod
countorintoili!Ionoo O1 ration it will bo ineulll:ont ucc'n
tho rcoor.nonoinr (:::ico to furnisil aounraocoo tno nonroo
uill rot rcvoal tin) UJroaa's intost or 11tray our
confidonco

Offices narticinatinl In tnis pro::rom w:10how)
invostirativo rco.)oaslOility ior ;Ian Wmnld
specifically c00000t in tllo initial lottor o
roardin: 6roul:s. t:lcoo oZficol aro awnro
thoso Gro-po oavo :cen doocrii:od as t;:o rolativoly fon
individnnlo in cads Orranisation -wn000c otroo,m tactics
and violent aoti000 to aoniovo 'thoir on Oftootn000
Groups act witnodt the approval of tin K.IanorGani.nation
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Letter to Atlanta
RE COU1=11==ROE PROGRAU

CUR::T1
Cl7.IjVfRGROUPS

or roehoreh!n The Bureau conetdors it vital that we
oxpoee tho i(ontiics nd notivtics of such rrounn and
rboro rooe.',Io din ...'it their ofoorts Those groups seould
be subjoccod to continuing coun,;orintelligcnco action

ro roentoriniell2eenoo action ray be initiated
by the 2o_,--r. '72--7-7--n,:7:775... 77)riaacioe

(eetnncing 1/1/G5 aud every 3 months thereafter
each pnrVtiating should sub ,lt to the Bureau e
statue ocvcraeg the prior 3-ronth period including
commontsender .,%ofollowing ca;tions

2. Potential Countcrintolligenco Action

2 Ponding Countorintolligenco Action

Tangible Rcsults

nocnesary n 4th caption "Hiscollaneoun
may be utiized for additional cements

Focommendations for counterintolligence action
should ca: 1included in 90-Cey status letters to the
Eurce,bo ::ollowing tho initial analysis duo 10/15/Gd
should be sohnittod individually by separnto lcttor

I,11:Speoial Agent peenonnel resnonsiblo for
the intoetigation of Klan-typo and hate organizations
and Their moeeorship ehouid no alerted to our coonter
intolligenoo Plaas rely tirr to thoso groups Counter
intolligonoo action diecoted at thcso t roe is intended to
complpnent and atimolato n:. accelerated y tclli;;cnce
invoetigatloos I;acn invcstigativo Agont has a rceponsi
Unity to call to he attention og the counterintolligonco
coordinator suggestions and poesibilitios for inplenontingtho ptogroe You are caetioeod that tho nature of thie
now ondoavor is sech that undor no circueztanccs soould
the caistonoo of the progrem be :..ads hno'::noutside the
Euroau and oppropriate within-ogieo security should be
afforded this sonsitivo oporation
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Lotter to Atlanta
RE COUITEBII?'i`_.LIGF:iCEPn:XZ:.ALt

-IIiTEfl!LLSECU:lI'I
DISi:UPrIO OF BATE.GrOUr9

 Tho Bureau is pleased with cast successes
achioved by our counterintoli!Cuco cisorts in other
phases of our investigative responsibilities To
insure our sncccao in this now endeavor tho Agent to
whop the pro^,ran is assirncd in each oiiicc must havo
a detailed lino:;ledge of tho activities of tho racist
groups in the territory and that I;nowled;e nest be
coupled with interest initiat_:"o and imagination
The Agent most bo alert for _ ior;'ation `rich has a
dioruptivo poLCntial T::c rcatisn will not como
to him ho must look for it The most effectivo
my of being assured of hocnin; cn tog of the situation
is to maintain close contact with those Ar;onto who :land.io
tho investigation of the racial and hato groups and thoir
uemborshij and also to periodically review rclovant files

If an enthusiastic a;,proach is made to this
now ondcavor thoro is so reason way the results
:cbievcd under this p_ogracic;iil not equal or surpass
our aehievencnts in similar typo rrograis directed
against subversives
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SAC Albany

Director FBI

August 25 1067

PEIIBOMLATT=103J TOALLC7FCE,!

I( 1
i

B!AC: . GI;O'JIDS
11,I.;CUl ITY

'.
Offices rcceivinfr conics of this "Letter are instructed

to immediately establish :c control file captioned no above and
to assi;n resPonsi;:ility for followin,7 pod coordinntin this now
counterintelli,ionce prornm to an c..:perionocd and imaginnti'vo
ST:ecinl Lrent well versed in invostigltions relatin to blac%
nationalist hate-tyco cr-.nninaticnc Thc 1131(1office control
file used undor this pre:-:ran nay be trnintained in a pending
inac.tive status until _._- t' on  Cc::. ration or
technique is placed under consideration for impiementation

The purposo of this now conntorintellisenco ondonvor
is to e':noao disrupt misdirect c!nnredit or onor Viso
neutralize till activitics of blac% nationnlict hate-type
organinntions and f:ronsins tiloir lnadornnio si7o.:es:nen
vemilerchip nsu supporters and to counter tilerprop o::'Jity for
violence and civil disordor The activities o1 all snnh r:roups
of intelli,L;cnoe interest to thiS :.:urcau bo on a
continuous basis co co will be in a position to nrori?tiy
ndvantageoi all osportunitico for connterintelli7c000 and to
inspire action in instnn000 whero circnt'.stances warrant T
pernicious backsronnd of such croups thuir duplicity and devious
maneuvers must be oneosed to nllblic ocrutiny c'ncre must publicity
 pill bave a neutralising of.;oct Bffer::n o'l'tho varicu,s L;rcuno

/2
II 2 P:;onnix

ti 2 Pittsburgh Jlch:cond
 'J.0K10=i St. I,ouin 2 ,in Francisco

2 Vachington Field

2 Atlanta
2 En1ticore
2 Boston
2 Culfalo
2 Charlotto
2 Chicago
2 Cincinnati
2
2

2
2
2
I
2

Clovelana
Dotrolt
Jacson
Los An7eles
Bci'phio
Nowar:c I

Orlcano.
;kw ?fork /

' ,/

PT;f'?C:',AM

...AUG29 SE

o2zice
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'Lotter to SAC Albany
PC COuhTRIl1TLLIG ;Cx PPOORA11

ULACiCML1'fiO:ULl:if EAT'dGROUPS

to consolidate their forces or to recruit new or youthful
adherents must bo iruat.rated i.'o opportunity should bo missed
to exploit through countcrintelliennco tcchnicucs tho
organizational and norsanal ccnflieto of tho leader hips of the
Croups and whore poasiblo an effort should be made to capita11zo
upon existing conflicts bcl:wc.oncompeting black nationalist
organizations dhen an opportunity is anoarent to dieruot or
neutralise black nationalist hate-typo orrranizatlon! threedh the
cooperation of cotai,ii ,lied local news media contact] or throe;h
ouch contact with sources available Lam.the Scat of Governuent
?n every inatnnco careful attention must be diver to the nropeoaa
to in_uro tho tarroted croup in disrupted ridiculed or
discredited through the publicity ana not neroly publicized
Conoidoration uhould bo"given to techninue3 to preclude violonco
prone or rabble-rouser leaders of hate groups from s-nreaciing their
philosophy publicly or througn various mass communication media

Manyindividuals currently active in black nationnli.st
organizations havo backgrounds of immorality subversivo nctivi.tw
and criminal records Through yonr invedtigation of hey agitators
you should cncicavor to establish their unsavory back.^,rounde
Co alert to dotermino evidence of rlinanuroori.ation of iuhdd or
other type of 7ornonal misconduct on tho part of militant
nationalist leadore no any practical or warranted counter
iutoll:lgonco may bo instituted

Intensified attention under this nronrnc should be
afforded to tIl^ activities of such ground au the

Particula ede e 3i3 snouiu ue r;ivcn to
i e;:trepi.etu via) direct-the cctivitica and oolicioa of

rovolutlou:avy or,,.n IJ.tant 'iron')d..asch ad
and

At this tieo the Muremcis setting up no requirement
for statue letters to bo poriodi.c.ally uhattted under this
program It will be iucunbont upon you to in'Jurc tho prorrdm
id being afforded necessary and continuing attentiod and 111%6
no opportunities will bo overlooked for counterintelligence
notion

Thin program should not bo confilsnd,:xi't'h ;th`e!,''O"+Cramentitled "Coeauniot.Partv._ U':\ Countcri.rtrill;;enco Pro^ran
Internal Security  C, ',:filch in directed



385

Letter to SAC Albany
EN COUNTEII;!'1SLL:.rich P:ZCGnA'.l

BLACKRAT10IAL1b'i RATEG::OUP3

against tho Coot'in:l.nt Party and related organizati.ons,or the
.progr"aia entitled "Conntcrint'll.i"r.ncc.i'ro,riri Internal Security
_Disrupti.on of Hate Group:,, which is dircctod

against Klan and hate-typo [ oupo"'pritaarily consisting o4 white
memborahipa

All Special Agent personnel resnonsiblo fcr the
investigation oI black nationalist Irate-typo organizations and
thoir memberships should be alerted to our counterintelligence
interest and oacli investigative Agent has a responsibility to
call to the attention of the counterintelligence coordinator
nuggentions cad r.essibilitics for implementing the program
You pro also cautioned that tho nature of this new endeavor
is such that under no circumstances should the c::_ntcn"ee of
the program be undo knownoutsido tho t_urcau and anpropriato
within-oi ice aoc.:rity should .._icnced to rtanOXiivo uperatious
and tcchniquoo conar.uorcd undor the program

No ronntcrielli^enr_e action n'u'sr this 'pro^r"?n may
be i.ni.tiatru r i it .c a .c .._ a r iu
nutho.ria.tt&u

You are urged to take an enthusi. ;tic and imaginative
approach to this new counterintelligence endeavor and toe 'bureau
will bo p.leascu to entertain any uul;gentioun or tecllniquea you
way rccomaend
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EXHIBIT16

JNIT"LDST:\TESt VERNMENT

Memorandum

TO Mr R C Sullivan nATE:Februaty2J1968

FROMt G C Moore

SUBJECTCOUNTERINTELLIGENCEPROGRAM
BLACKNATIONALIST-HATEGROUPS
RACIALIN'T'ELLIGENCE

PURPOSE
To expand the Counterintelligence Program desiguei

to neutralize militant black nationalist groups from 23
41 field divisions so as to cover the great majority of black
nationalist activity in this country

BACKGROUND
8y letter dated August 25 1967,23 field offices

were advised of a new Counterintelligence Pro:ram.designed
to neutralize ruillLani black LaLiolluii56a and prevent violence
on their part Goals of this program are to prevent the coalitipn
of militant black nationalist groups prevent the rise of a
leader who might unify and electrify these violence-prone
elements prevent these militants from gaining respectability
and prevent the growth of these groups amongAmerica's youth

CURRENTDE\ELOPMENTS
InviT oitthe tremendous increase in black nationalist

activity and the approach of summer this program should be
expanded and these goals should be reiterated to the field
Attached airtel also instructs the field to submit periodic,.-g )progress letters to stimulate th~~',ng in this area,.

,
. /

Attached airtel also reminds the f c idz 11 -ccuntdrinter
I ligence suggestions to expose these milit~ . :Y l,,ut>ali :c

them must be approved by the Bureau

AC'T'ION:3
That attached airtcl expanding tTl,ts,program,_defininggoals and instructing periodic progress letters be submittedbe sent Albany and the other listed field offices

Enclosur~..A ~j t-2_1 0
"d

`i Jd:.lOhl
_At

n~f
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FBI

Date 3/4/G8
Transmitthefollowingin

AIRTEL
Via

(Typeinp/oin'exioreaJel

(lbw.ig)

COUITERIITELLIGENCEPROGRAM
BLACKNATIONALIST-'.!I:TEGROUPS
RACIALINTELLIGENCE

Title is changed to substitute Racial Intelligence
for Internal Security for Bureau routing purposes

PERSONALATTETIONFORALLTHEFOLLO;LINGSACs

2 Atlanta 2 Minneapolis
2 Baltimore 2 Mobile
2 Birmingham 2 Newark
2 Boston 2 NewHaven
2 Buffalo n NewOrleans
2 Charlotte 2 NewYork
2 Chicago 2 Omaha
2 Cincinnati 2 Philadelphia
2 Cleveland 2 Phoenix
2 Denver 2 Pittsburgh
2 Detroit 2 Portland
2 Houston 2 Richmond
2 Indianapolis 2 Sacramento
2 Jackson 2 San Diego
2 Jacksonville 2 San Francisco
2 Kansas City 2 Seattle
2 Los Angeles 2 Springfield
2 Memphis 2 St Louis
2 Miami 2 Tampa2 Milwaukee 2 LTO

MUM) FV!
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Airtel to S.\C Albany
RE COUTERI?:TFLLIGECE PROGRAM
BLACKNATIO:v.\LIST-IIATEGROUPS

BACKGROIEM

By letter dated x/25/67 the following offices
were advised of the beginnin of a Counterintelligence
program against militant Black Nationalist-Hate Groups

Albany
Atlanta
Baltimore
Boston
Buffalo
Charlotte
Chicago
Cincinnati
CloveInnd
Detroit
Jackson
,CO3y nngeles

Memphis
Newark
New Orleans
NowYork
Philadelphia
Phoenix
Pittsburgh
Richmond
St Louis
San Francisco
l;ashin;,.on Field

Each of the nbov offices was to designate a
Special Agent to cosedi.nate this program Replies to this
letter indicated an interest in counterintelligence as_a-inst
militant black netio:miist .roues that foment violence and
several offices out]ined nrccedures which had been effective
in the past For ec::::;;le '.iashingIon yield Office had
furnished information nbont a
grade school to appreT into authorities in the District
of Columbia who inve,;Li.Oatcd to determine if the school
conformed to Distric.r..rceu?.rti.dn for private schools In
the process SiFOobtained bnckground information on the parents
of each pupil

The a pro
Chinese communist reap wns active in Philadelphia Pa.
in the summer of lOt~7 To^Pladelnhia Office alerted
local police who then nut leaders under close scrutiny
They were arrested oe every nossib) care until they could
no longer make bail e result leade_s_,pent host of the
summer in Jail and no violence trac'Pabie to took place

The Counterintelli"once Program is -now being
expanded to include ":) of:ice Each of the offices added
to this program soouW -designate an Agent familiar with,black
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Ai.rtel toMC Albany
RE COUNTERI?TELLIGENCEPROGRAM
BLACK]'ATIO:r'ALIST ILlTEGROUPS

nationalist activity and interested in counterintelligence
to coordinate this program This Agent will be responsible
for the periodic progress letters being requested but each
Agent working this type of case should participate in the
formulation of counterintelligence operations

GOALS

For maximum effectiveness of the Counterintelligence
Program and to prevent wasted effort long-range goals are
being set

1 Prevent the coalition of militant black
nationalist groups In unity tac~c is strength a truism
that is no less valid for all its triteness An effective
coalition of black nationalist groupsti ht be the first
step toward a real "Mau !,;au in America the beginning of
a true black revolution

Z Prevent the rise of a "messiah who could
nnify,_and electrify the nil.itant black cationalist movement

night have been such a "messiah he is the oarr.:r
of the_not,encnr._tgday
aril all aspire to this position

 is less of a threat because of his age could
'be a very real contender for this position should hc abandon

his supposed "obedience to "white liberal doctrines
(nonviolence) and embrace black nationalism
has the necessary charisma to be a real threat in this way

Prevent 'violence on the pnrt of black
nationalist groups This is of primary importance and is
of course a goal of our investigative activity it should
also be a goal of the Counterintelligence Program Through
counterintelligence it should be possible to pinpoint potential
troublemakers and neuc-alize them before they exercise their
potential for violence

Prevent militant black nationalist groups and
leaders from gaining resecctability by discrediting them
to three separate seegents urine comcunit The goal of
discrediting black nationalists oust be handled tacticallyin three ways You must discredit these groups and
individuals to first the responsible Negro community
Second they must be discredited to the white.comsaunity

3
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Airtel to SAC Albany
RE COUNTERINTELLIGENCEPROGRAM
BLACKNATIONALIST-1LITEGROUPS

both the responsible community and to "liberals who have
vestiges of sympathy for militant black nationalist simply
because they are ?negroes Third these groups must be

! discredited in the eyes of Negro radicals the followers
of the movement This last area requires entirely different
tactics from the first two Publicity about violent tendencies
and radical statements merely enhances black nationalists
to the last group it adds "respectability in a different
way

5 A final goal should be to prevent the long
range growth of militant black nationalist organizations
especially among youth Specific tactics to prevent these
groups from converting young people must be developed

Besides these five goals counterintelligence is
n valuable part of our regular investigative program as it
often produces positive information

TARGETS

Primary targets of the Counterintelligence Program
Black Nationalist-[late Groups should be the most violent
and radical groups and their leaders We should emphasize
those leaders and organizations that are nationwide in scope
and are most capable of disrupting this country These
targets should include the radical and violence-prone
leaders members and followers of the

offices handling these cases and those of

and of
, should be alert fore counterintclliipence-suggcstious".

INSTRUCTIONS

should
Within 30 days of the date of this letter each ofuce

1 Advise the Bureau of the identity of the
!Specia:1f!.',1,~Agent assigned to coordinate this program I;~_ L. ::;i ~~

CEP
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RE COLCTERI`iTELLIG;:?;CEPROGRAM

-BLACKNATIONALIST-HATEGROUPS

Submit a very succinct sunmary of the black
nationalist movement in the field office territory Include
name nunber of members and degree of activity of each black
nationalist group Also state your estimate of each groups
propensity for violence This is for target evaluation only
not for record purposes Second list Rabble-Rouser Index
subjects who are nilitant black nationalists and any other
militant black nationalist leaders who might be future
targets of counterintelligence action because of their pro
pensity for violence Include a minimum of background
i fo nation on each person listed A few descriptive sentences
should suilicc

List those organizations dnd individuals
you consider of such potential clanger as to be considered
for current counterintelligence action Briefly justify
each target

Submit any suggestion you have for overall
eounterintel1.1nenr.o nntinn or tl,n nrininictrntion of this
program Suggestions for action against any specific
target should be submitted by separate letter

5 Submit by separate letter suggestions for
counterintelligence action against the targets previously
listed as field-aide These should not be general such
as "publicize travel to communist
countries, but should by specific as to target what is
to be done what contacts are to be used and all other
information needed for the Bureau to approve a counter
intelligence operation

Thereafter 'on a ninety_day basis each office
is to submit a progress letter summarizing counterintelligence
operations proposed during the period operations effected
and tangible results Any changes in the overall black
nationalist movement should be summarized in this letter
This should include new organizations new leaders and any
changes in data listed under namber two above Suggestions
for counterintelligence operations should not be set out
in this progress letter Use the following captions

1 Operations Under Consideration 2 Operations
Being Effected 3 Tangible Results and 4 Developmentsof Counterintelligence Interest These 90-day progressletters are due at the Bureau the first day of March June
September and December excepting March 19GS

66-0770 76 26
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The effectiveness of counterintelligence depends
on-the quality and quantity of positive information
available regarding the target and on the imagination and
initiative of Agents working the program The response of
the field to the Counterintelligence Program against the
Communist Party US:\ indicates that a superb fob can be
done by the field on counterintelligence

Counterintelligence operations must he approved
by the Bureau Because of the nature of this program each
operation must be designed to protect the Bureau's interest
so that there is no possibility of embarrassment to the
Bureau Beyond this the Bureau will give every possible

.consideration to your proposals
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EXHIBIT17

U,,11Ei)STATESGC .RN\IENT

11 cmorandum "v:Py
y:.--~.K

F Nr_ ? S c_.r._
DATE5/763,_ "` "~/1

sUIJZCT -COU;TERIITI'ELLIGENCEPROGRAM
:INTERNALSECURITY
DISgUPI'IoNOF THE777LEFT 1

Obi`'Iratiou is undergoing an era of iisruption and
/ violence caused to a large extent by various individuals

i
generally connected with the NewLeft Some of these activists
urge revolution in America and call for the defeat of the
United States in Vietnam They continually and falsely allege
police brutality and do not hesitate to utilize unlawful acts
to further their so-called causes The NewLeft has on many
occasions viciously and scurrilously attacked the Director
gnd the Bureau in an attempt to hamper our investigation of it
and to drive us off the college campuses Frith this in mind
i'c is our recommendation that anew Counterintelligence Pro;rae
]Je designeu to neutralize i.iueNe  and tha .__ ^eti.vists
The Key Activists are those individuals who are the moving
forces behind the NewLeft and on whomwe have intensified our

:investigations

The purpose of this program is to expose disrupt and
otherwise neutralize the activities of this group and persons
connected with it. It is hoped that with this new program
their violent and illegal activities may be reduced if not
curtailed

General instructions are being furnished to all offices
relating to the purpose and administration of this new program
Briefly these instructions require all offices to submit an
analysis of possible counterintelligence operations on the New
Lc.t and on the hey Activists on or before 6/1/63 including
auy specific recommendations for action Thereafter all
offices will submit a 9O-day status letter setting forth a
Cummaryof their accomplisnments'and future plans Each
office will maintain a pending case and assign experienced j
Enclosure :cif 5 _ io =:"n'_'_

/;'`twi:ia

.ttY 21I58
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Memoto Mr Sullivan
Re COUNTERINTELLIGENCEPROGRAM

personnel to this program All proposed counterintelligence
gction_must__be_tpproxed at,tbe_Seat.oi_Govcrnment prior to
instituting it This new program will be supervised at the
eat of Government by a Special Agent supervisor in the

Internal Security Section

RECOMMENDATIONS

That the Domestic Intelligence Division be
authorized to immediately initiate a coordinated Counter
intelligence Program directed at exposing disrupting and
otherwise neutralizing the NewLeft and Key Activists

That the attacheG latter zctti_ *nrth
instructions for the administration and immediate enactment
of the program be forwarded to all offices
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17enforcementagcneies 16 JUL 159

4i The use of `articles from student newspaper--'''''
and/or the "underground press to show the depravity of

I,oft leadprs and nemeers thisconneetion articles
showing advoeation of tbo .s of narcotics and fre'e sox are
ideal to send to uni:el'sity officials wealthy donors
members of the and parents of students who are
active in NewLeft matters
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EXHIBIT18

SAC Albany

Direcor 1'DX

" coup.r.ernlNumnlo=.mos-InAa
INTI:::nI

NEWLE':T
(Coli;TLLp:io Nm Lul)

Dulot 5/10/53 requested suggestionS for counter
intelligence action against the New Loft The replies to
the i,ureau's reque.st have been analyzed and it is felt that
the following suf7gpstiolls for counterintolligence action cansbe utilized by alloffiees

1 Preparation of a leaflet-designed to counter
act the impression that Students for n honor title Seeiety
(Si:;;) and other minoVjity groups spoid for the majority of
students at universities The leailet should-contain photo
graphs of NewLoft leadership at the respective university
Naturally the most obnonions pictures should be used

.2 The instigating of or the tni:ing advantage of
personal conflicts or animosities existing between NewLcfi
leaders. ,..r

3 The creating of imnrcraelons that
LeCt'loaders are informants for the Bureau or other law

G ,Since the use of marijuana and other narcotics
is widespread ame-g memL,ersof the NewLeft you ebo'lld l:e
aleri to oppertwitics ,,o ha:c the.i arrcsi-ed
authorities on drug chares Any inforwycioRponeerning the

2 1.11 Field Offices 0 5-ta15

\IN_102.0 I 1
I.e SEE SOT, PAGETE3:E ,ti
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Lotter to P!C AlSnny

foot that in:l:'Iidoolo have mori:luo0a or arc in a
narootioo pal ohonld b3 . odiotol7 turn ohoi 'to local
outhoritics id thoy.shOuld So encouraged to take .oct.ion

G. .'.ho drowilr up of ononym000 letter regording
individual :c,, :o ;or NowLoft Those lottoro ohould
oot out the octivitios and should be oont to their parents
nojoohboro ond the porents employcro. Thin could hav'o tho
dffoct of foroin: the parents to !cotaaction

7 Anooymoilolottero or leaflets describing
faculty mombors ood graduate assiotonto in the vnrious
inotitutioos of :~ooroing who arc ootivj in RowLoft matter:3.4The activi'tioo 0000ciations of the individual ohoald bon
not out Anonym000 shond bo mode to university
of.7ioiOp momPoroof tho state logislatore board of
Th);:;ooto nod to tho Io:000 oo.lil 2, irnod
"A Concerned Alumni or "A Cor.corned Taxpayor.

3 rh000vcr NowLoft groapo on7o.go in disruptive
activities on colic:go compuoes cooporativo pros. contact:
should 3o onoourogod to emphosi',00 thot the disruptive
elomonts conotituto a minority of the students and do not

.rep.rosont tho conviction of the majority Tl,o press should
* domond no immodiato student r oforcn . on the ioouo in

question l000:iloh os the ovorwholming majority of students
is not aotivo in NowLoft mattero it is felt that this
techniquo uacd in carefully solooted cases could put an
end to lengthy domonotrations and could cause embarrassment
to NowLoft olomo.nts

0. shore is a definite J.tv among and
other Now*Loft foopupo toward tho Vorhprs ?arty

tho Young oOiolirt A]lionoo ( rA) and the
Progrosoivn LaSorT"orty (1,1,D) This hostility should he
exploited wherever posoiSlo

10 The field woo provi000ly advised that NowLoft
groupo ore ottemptiu;r to opon coffochouses ocorrilitasobr000 in oroor to in:Jan000 mon":orn of
Whorovor those cofocchousos oro frioud%iy moo m:.:oiashould
bo alerted to thoa and their porporo in oddition,gyDriouz
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Letter to SAC Albany
IRE COnTEdIRTELLIGEi:C.'.P:.CtijiAM
100-%4n6ba

'drugs such as marijuana will probably bo utilized by
.individual running the coffeehouses or frequenting thou
Local law enforce:::cnt authorities should be promptly ,advised
whenever you recoive an indication that this is being done

.Consider the use of.cartoons photorrr.phs and
anonymous lctlI:r^ which will have the effect o ridicuiin;
taro ire:: Left Ridicule in one of the most potent weapons
which we can use ngainst it.;

Io'alert :for opportunities to confuse and
disrupt NewLeft activities by misinformation. For a::aE1pin
when events are planned notification that the event has
boen cancelled or postponed cculd bo cent to various
indivi.dualc

You are reminded that rl't counterintelligence
aeLiun is to be tuiuu wiLhout bureau ip rovul Insure that
thin i'rogram in isii;ncn to an Agent with nn c>:eeii.ont
knowledge of both R;:, Left groups and individuals It must
bo approached with imagination and enthusiasm if it is to be

1=1

As an economy reasurc the caption "COIi;TLP3 ?.LW
should be used on all communications concerning this Program

NOTE

See memoC.D 'Drennan to V.C Sullivan dated
7/3/63 captioned ns above prepared by

RECEIVED FROM

s 5

kJi
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EXHIBIT19-1

6--t:0);'.'t"I:)tlNTIiL),TGKNCrPROGRAM
hi/(: NATI0)l/tLIST" )LATEGROUP
yt) ),1"Jf
NACIALINTELLIGENCE

)inclosed for the Bureau are two Xerox copies of
a letter prepared by the St Louis Division

B!;CI:G)IOUill)

is a

1
local NowLel i ii;;urc who is an officer in a local
Black activist ;;i'oup whose members have cn ar:cd in numerous
acts of civil Disruption and di,obedicnce and a loader
in the local branch of the

;Troup is active in
draft resistance anti-war ra-:Ilies and NowLeft activity

 n 5lr,,,v.1 remains aloof from h racial and
New).a:ft activities and is suspicious of her relationship
with the Negro males ins

U,SLcentIv advised that
 complained aL"UUIhcr_J3uzband's suspicions and
was airs Ed he o:."tht sevorely restrlci lie, activities,
 Onl/1%/70 reported that

h..) een discreetly zneui.ring as to whether
hio_wi fc might he beinc t'nfa.iUlrful to hire by sleeping

t with Nero males inl
1

St Louis propose to tins nynou:;ly scud a copy
of the enclosed letter in commercial envelope which would
confirm Air./ :suspicions about his wife The resulting
marital tcmpest could woll result in ACTlONlosing their3^')" oco.uf

7 41

1 _ * c9 p. FER2 19/U Sn 1
~fa',"'1

t

,`f 11 ,,1i

lily U.S SavingsBondsRrgulnrlyontheP,2prollSeriugfPlea '~
`(
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SL 157-5818

Corresponding Sccrntary and the losing a
valuable leader I:hus strihing a r;ajor blow against
both organizati.ono

Bureau authority is requostcd to initiate
this activity
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EXHIBIT19-2

Loaio

Raln
Director FBI /(;a -ri

2/17/7o

caum'snna'su.7rcy-,u mos.n;!
BLACK HAT GSAX;P
urv! Km-J.
RACIAL1HIT:LLIG.F.ilZi

Ileurlot 1/30/70

Vrovidod Fuch action will in no way jeopardize
yon are ;atthcrised to prepare and anonymously

'mail alto lottc as suggested in rclot

In ma:Ang thls mailing tako all steps necessary
to protect the Lurcau as its source

NOT).
ttru a white Zewalc and NewLeft figure \

is'an officer in a local blacl activist group She
also a leader -cTfthc local branch of the 1:omen's Inter

national League for Peace and Freedom Her husband remains
aloCf from her racial and NewLoft activities and is
suspicioun oC her relationship with Rcgro males in ACTION
Her husband has become suspicious and has complained
he may restrict her activities t Lonis suggests au
anonymous letter be scat to He indicating to him that
his suspicions are well founded Such a ictLer would be

Abeing restrtcleo from future activity it is being
authorized
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DATE 6-19-70

UNITEDSTATESGOVf,RNNIENf

liiemorauzduzzz

SAC ST LOUIS

SUBJECT  COUNTERINTELLIGENCEPROGRAM
BLACKNATIONALISTRATEGROUPS
RACIALINTELLIGENCE

The following information is submitted regarding
the counterintelligence activities (Black Extremists) by
the St Louis Division in the past 90 days

OPERATIONSUNDERCONSIDERATION

None

OPERATIONSBEINGEFFECTED

None

TANGIBLERESULTS

By letter dated 2-17-70 the Bureau authorized
the anonymou. mailing of a letter from a "soul sister to

the husband of She is an officer
in ACTIONa bi-racial Black Extremist group The letter
accused her of infidelity

On 6-12-70 advised that and
her husband had recently,separated following a series o
marital 'arguments 1 has taken an apartment during this
separation which might becomea permanent arrangement This
matrimonial stress and strain .,hiuuld cause ner to 'unction
much less effectively in ACTION

While the letter sent by"the St Louis Division
was probably not the sole cause of this sepa;,ntiopmi.it4p5r.tainly contributed very strongly ~"-

DEVELOPMENTSOF COUNTERINTELLIGENCEINTER
10//u-~

Factionalism has developed within the organizationcalled Black Nationalism Whenthe best way to c::pitalizeon this friction is determine separate Bureau authoritywill be requested fort such a counterintelligence operation
Bureau (R?.I)
St
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EXHIBIT20-1

NI'A'I'LNGO !AM-AT1

A/fentorandt.1,17z

.Z -DIRECTORFBI DATE 6/26/66
W

FROM SAC

mnUurc COUNTERINMLLIGMNCEPROGRAM
IHTERHALSECUHiTY..i., DISRUPTIONOF HATEGROUPS 1
1U4(Y.LftH)

The following letter is being submitted to the Burea.0
' for their consideraticr concerning counterintelligence action

against Grand Dragon of the URA
nontw

re
information in this ].otter would be mailed

to nd three other selected klan leaders in
The cd;wnication would be typed on plain paper in an

amateurish fashion and mailed from the situs
of klan activity in

Copies of this co:maunication bei.ng furnished Charlotte
for the purpose of their posing any objections they feel warranted

1 The letter rends as follows and would be mailed to
's.wife Mrs

"My'Dear Mrs

"I write this letter to you only after a IonG period
of praying to God I must cleanse my soul of these thoughts
I certainly do not want to create problems inside a family
 but I owe a duty to thQ lans"and,Us,principaco,astwells 1

,00.,,es-tomy?own-oMenfolk'who have cast their divine lot with
the klans

"Your husband came to about a yrnr ago and
'<smy menfolk blindly followed his leadership believing him

to be the saviour of this country They never believed the
q/0
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"stories that he :;tole u;oncy from the klans in
or that he is now making over $25,000 a year

They never believed the stories that your house in
has a new refrigerator washer dryer and yet

one year ago was threadbare They refuse to believe
that your husband now owns three cars and a truck in
cluding that new white car But I believe all these
things and I can forgive them for a man wants to do for
his family in the best way he can.

"I don't have any of those things and I don't grudge
you any of them neither But your husband has been
committing the greatest of the sins of our Lord for many
years Re has taken the flesh of another unto himself

"Yes Mrs , he has been conunitting adultery
Mymenfolk say they don't believe this but I think they do
I feel like crying I saw her with my own eyes They
call her Ruby Hcr last name is something like and
she lives in the 700 block of Street in I
know this I saw her strut around at a rally with her lust
filleu eye. and spurt aleck figure

"I cannot stand for this I will not let my husband
and two brothers stand side'by side with your husband and
this woman in the glorious robes of the klan I a% ... 
typing this because I am going to send copys to Mr
and some of the klnns leaders that I have faith in.` l  
will not atop until your husband is driven from
and back into the flesh-pots from wherein he came

,~, I,.ar  lo,;~1;!.,klapswomnn,anda"good.,'c'hurchgoce:'*4' '0i `
feel t}t:i"s$i"oolem affects the future of our great country
I hope I 6o not cause you harm by this and if you believe
in the Good Book as I do you may soon receive yourhusband back into the'fold I pray for you and your
beautiful little .children and only wish I could tell you
who I am I will soon but I am afraid my ownmen would
be harmed if .I do, e

i, '41 God-fearing klanswoman 
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EXHIBIT20-2

j?Fr J.
Director i.i a

(.':.T Ex.) 04

(
 rcco:-.1%ten:1.1r l;tt

N-;;,.fcof t!_.)
Grand 1)i"aA of tl:c U4itcd Zinn! of Ay....ricn Zezim
cn.pnsinr :1.. aetivity oi hPr fraTl:rmv.i

 tuti!ority ..rantod icr-!-rr rr,r,nn"c ,.-.Ill
 ::;.,$)4vt.:!,3iotter to !!:.s 7ntl.:.,

s4ottid 4.e frer4r.4 or  co ..
 'p.A.atio.:.ary a n,nuni typewn-itcr r n.:"tsi!cn..1c!.incluCc
a IiLoraI r;rn!:matical rnd tv!)i,!l Tt -?,cnld

..."J.3 e:,'!r!:;Incoptc!l of thc
.'.:cttr.r should be iorvas.0cO -1;:

rf.::&(ec _

P.4vinc tI!e7':"tren'riof nn trt-,  r.0 r..,7r11"!t7tl-,'
:c.i,::.e4.,au be alert to rccu:mn:nd iolia4-up coantcrintc1lic4La
action

(5)

 h.cy Klan leader i4 where
41an activity hns recently increased Las been advocating
a program ot violence aninst 111;1Agants The anonymous
Iettcr which will hc sent to his wife who resides in

points out the high living and
ir.i.iorality of The letter will he ior,arcled to

,iUnited Klar,n of Ar,crica.lmperial Wizard _jnan effort to discredit in the e:Ybsof Lis 1cuder

MAILLJ.s

 ;,''J J c,L411,LA. ..,')
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EXHIBIT21

S,'X Baltimore
n

Director FJI

pac,G'2vi
Do,'.C G:ZC;;PS
:1.',cL1i L=LLIal:cE (3L.,1c r..,umER .p.'arY)
(3UDZD12/2/63)

Fcr the information of recipient Offices a serious
struggle is taking place bcU:een the Panther Party
and the US organization Tke.struggle has ueached,such proportions
that it is taking on the aura of cano uarfare with attendant
_threats of a:urder and reprisals

In order to fully capitalle upon DPPand US
differences as ..ell as to exploit all avonues of oreatlnr
further dissensicn in the ranks of the :12P recipient office:3
are instructed to submit L123inative and bard-hitting
counterintelligence measures aired at crippling the 112P

Cornencing December 2 193 and every too-uee% period
thereafter each office Is instructad to submit a latter under
this caption containing countorintellignnco mo. :iron niuod
ngainst the 322 Te bi-weekly latter should also contain
accomplish:.Ients obtained during the praviorstoo-week period under
captioned program

connterintelligence actions must be approved
at the .3-art:auprior to taking steps to i9plement then

2 3oston
2
2

C)icago ',1AILED2
Cleveland f'.!0'1251058

2 Denver
2 Indianapolis

CO. .

2 Los Angeles
2 ilewark
2 :!eu York
2 Cooha
2 Sacramento
2 San Diego
2 San i'ranc.El'to
2 Seattle -jl

-n0i4)O.''i,"to"CJ
NAILWR)MI 1
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 titter to SAC halt:Lmorc
RC CCUiifii;.INT'LLICiiilC:iPROGI:Atl
100-448006

NCf.

See memorandumG C Poore to Air W C Sullivan
captioned as above dated 11/22/63 prepared by

-2
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EXHIBIT23

!!tCG:IFIDi:?I/.t December6 1939

SACATLANTA HOII*S
Dltell:GItAU DRrROIT
D0370N ELPASO
DUFIY'.LO GRANDRAPIDS
BUTTE HONOLULU
CANALEONS }iU1tTI1;SfOi
CHARLOTTE INDIAIIAPOLIO
CIIIC.IGO JUNEAU
CINCIID:ATI YAKS!S CITY
CLEVELAND XUO,iVILL
DALL/.G LI'TYLll:`)CN
DENVER LOS/.ASSLLG

LOl!'1.5VILLl

NIAI;I
MILWAUKEE

Ei:il
Ei:SiYCRK
ORLA.1;OIIACITY
OMAHA
P1IIL/.LLP11IA
Pl1Oli?Y
PITTSDURGR

PORTLAND
ltIC11L;OiiU
GALTLACCITT
SAILANTONIO
SANDIEGO
SARFRANCISCO
SANJUAN
SEATTLE
SIOU.iPALLS
'SPRI1iW?I3LD
ST LOUIS
ST PAUL
!WASHINGTONIt C

RE IIITERI:ALSECURITY

DearSir

Ti neeeed is at the present time preparing a'(list of individuals both
.liens an.'citisans of the Unite St.vtea on v.hemthere to Inrormaleenn,ailal"I to
ind'cate that their presence at liberty in this country in time of war or national
em nay could be dangerousto the public peace and the safety of the UnitedSt.eees

Goverment The information nowavailable relative to these individuals is however
incompletein most instance and it will be necessary to obtain additional information
relative to the affiliatieas business interests activities present address age
and citizenship status of each

TheBureauwill therefore in the near future commencereferring cases to
youby !otter requesting an appropriate confidential investigation to developfrom
confidential sources ane a di-erect mannerthe necessary informationto enable the
rendering of a decision as to the action to be taken relative to the individuals
concernedin the event .,r the outbreak of hostilities betweenthe UnitedStntee
Governmentand any other nation or nat ene

It will be incumbentuponyou to initiate the appropriate'-ITlVitlgation
immediatelyuponreceipt of the letters referred to end to issue.dpproprinte
instructions to the employeesassigned to your Field Division to makecertain
the fact that LY:eOureau r,asiag such investigations does not becomeknownto
individuals o~F:nF6lSilo.f.:the^3uroau..rtt lieS GEPA?iVL

Yotare advised 'at"it will be necessary in all instances to definitely
determinewhe~i'srtheiinai'iis:al about whominquiry is being made"is'a citizen of the
UnitedStater or an aiten and'?f an'alien it should be determined if possible.
7,:he.L

.l~h~Jt
b taken out-his first pipers unless the letter fromthe DuroauclearlyV I

Tin dotronn'ti.cprtnorcJi t'cs/:Mrse!o /ernrrque.ctrtnr.1is norfordisscnti~ i,i C 'n.r%t(lle,!'s rr.acis ! urird to offiriclioccfrlinesby]9r'rtaliMrnrrl.~i~/e !uu

r~
ietcrCnuiwi.!tcccadtherr.1.Ic~'Imarlnothedisclosedtounauthorizedperso+t

` A netwithouttheexpressap/:rusalof the !'BI
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eiasats that his citizenship state is known This informationis ease'itt,t in
each case because in time of ear alien enemiesarc placed in a status differir
entirely fromthat of citizens of the United States and the cases wouldbe handled
tifforently .

With reference to the investigation to bo conducted as previously
the purpose should be entirely confidential end it should be handled in the ;amen
Manneras any investigation for the purposeof determiningif the individual involve
has violated the Registration Act or is engagedin subversiveactivities
the color of authority under whichthese tatters are Dandledis of course the
Registration Act and if necessary inquiries an to the reason for the invostigeticn
;`couldbo answeredby reference to the Registration Act requiring agents of forcia
principals to register with the State Department It is Pointed out however that
the classification "Registration Act still exists and investigations conducted
under that classification should not be confusedwith those conductedunder the
classification "Internal Security.

It is believed that mostof the informationnecessaryabout each
individual mayb obtained frcm sources already knownto the Pureau such as public
and private records confidential sources of information confidential informants
newspapermorgues public libraries employmentrecords school records of cetera
but in cases wnerethese eve,eee -::.-i li investigation musthe complete
b onfidential It will be necos ary for you to supervise the investigation of
tIJ cases very carefully to makecertain that completeinformationis obtained
bec'se obviously a decision cannot be renderedas to tho action to be taken in
each case unless full and completeinformation uponwhicha decision can be based
is madeavailable

Youshould ascertain the present homeand business address of the subject
and all informationwhichwouldindicate the advisability of including himon the
list referred to such as current or past activities affiliation with organizaticnr
engagedin activities in behalf of a foreign nation participation in dangerous
subversivemovementsadvocacyof the overthrowof Governmentby force and violence
at cetera It is deemedinadvisable to set forth specific rules as to the in"cstig.e
tion to be conductedin all of these cases because the facts will differ in each
case but if you will bear in mindthe purposefor whichthese investigations are
being conducted it is believed.that little difficulty shouldbe experiencedin
determiningwhat investigation is to be madein each case

The title of the case should reflect the nameof the subject and all
aliases and whenit has been definitely determinedthat ha is an alien the word
"alien should foils the name Example John Doe Alien Whenthe status of
the subject is determinedat a time subsequentto the initial report the title
should be marked"changed and the word"alien added If the subject becomese
citizejj p uent to the initial report the title of the next report submitted
shculdIROUeeIrMArchrayed to showthe droppingof the word"alien therefrom The
c :cter of the ctadSfi~1in

all instances as previously indicated "Internal
S city. $EP,1
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For your information in cases where it in indicated that the inaividra,
mayhe an alien a checkwill he madewith the Bureauof Ivmigrstien and ;st.ur:'
t to determine if naturalization papers have been inarod before the case it r

~.% to the Field for investigation If however informationIe developed,i"::,
the course of the investigation whichindicates the possibility of the subject t  
an alien and a checkhas not been madeby the Bureau a lead maybe directed to the
WashingtonField Office to check the records of the Bureauof Immigrationand
Naturalization

Thesecases have been assigned Clasnification

very truly yours

John EdgarPoovor
Director

iftCHV[_U FROM
SEP26 1915
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Thindocumentiepreparedin responectoyeorrcgne.ctandi notJostTicscm
nationoute:de7m;nCemrii'lce Itsetecis limitedto officialp;oceedicgsbyyourCommitteea,attheeentcotmay'Putbedisclosedtouluurtborizcdycrsonnetwithouttheexpressapprovalof theFBI
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EXHIBIT24

(!ffirr of IlirfIBincu 6rurrat

111as Ilinogtait,l A

1=0FADTIFOR
HUGHB COXASSISTANTATTOPJflGENERAL

AND
J EDGARHOO1=DIRECTOR

 FECE BUREAUOFEIVFSTIGATION

I refer to Mr memorandumto me:datedJune 28
1943 whichrevie>:s inc history developmentand meaningof the Special
Caseworkand of the danger classifications that weremadeas a part of

.that work

After full re-consideration of these individual dangerclassifica
tions I amsatisfied that they serve no useful purpose Thedetention
of alien enemiesis being dealt aai.thunder the proceduresestablished
by the Alien EnemyControl.unit TheSpecial Caseprocedurehas been
found to be valueless and is not ti:ec in that connection Thereis no
statutory authorization or other present justification for keepinga
"custodial detention list of citizens TheDepartmentfulfills its
proper functions by investigating the activities of persons whonay have
violated the law It is not aided in this workby classifying persons
as to'dangerousness

Apart fromthese general considerations it is nowclear to =e that
this classification systemis inherently unreliable Theevidenceused
for the purpose of n hinI'the classifications wasinadequate the stand
ards applied to the evidencefor the purposeof makingthe classifica
tions were defective and firelly the notion that it is possible to
makea valid determination as to howdangerousa person is in the ab
stract and without reference to time environment and other relevant
circumstances is impractical unwise and dangerous

t IVLI! I 'F(r the foregoing reasons I amsatisfied that the adoptionof this
6;h classification systemwasa mistake that shouldbe rectified for the

Ste)^'future Accordingly I direct that the classifications heretofore made

6pFould
not be regarded as classifications of dangerousnessor as a



COX'AHDJ E_GARHOOVER).

413

2

deterrin<etionof fact in any sense In the future they should
not be used for en rurpose whatsoever Questionsraised as to
the status or activities of a particular person shouldbe dis
posed of by ccnsic'.erati^nof all available information but
without reference to any classification heretofore wade

A copyof this neaorancunshouldbe placed in the file
of each person whohas hitherto been riven a classification In
addition each card uponwhichq classification appears should be
stampedwith the folltwirg lan,uage

"THISCL_SSI?ICATICHIS LTRELT!2iZIT IS
HEREBYCJ.:'C?LLEDAi:DSHCULJITTBEUSED

.ASA DY.T?RHI:'.:TIO:iOFTA'':?Fcu'ESS OROF
A:!YOT''ERFACT.(SE rF-CJ = CFJULY16
1943FRO'iTEEAT^_Oy'YG=AL TOHUGSB

A1~A (A~x(

Attorney General

ZECEIVED FROM

SSEp2'a19(
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EXHIBIT25

PERSONALAT:-NTICN
STRICTLYCC:NFIDISTI

August14 1943
NO 336
SERIES1943

SACALBANY
ATLANTA
BALTIMORE
BIRMINGHAM
BOSTON
BUFFALO
BUTTE
CHARLOTTE
CILJCAGO
CINCINNATI
CLEVELAND
DALLAS
FEVERDESMOINES

DETLOIT
ELPASO
GRANDRAPIDS
hONOLULU
HOUSTON
HUNTINGTON
INDIANAPOLIS
JACKSON
JUNEAU
K?.':SASCITY
KNOXII..;._
LITTLEROOK
LOSANGEL=S
LOUISVILLE

MEMPHIS
MIAMI
MILWAUKEE
NEWARK
NEWHAVEN
NEWORLEANS
NAPYORK
NORFOLK
OKLAHOMACITY
OMAHA
PHILADELPHIA
PHOENIX
PITTSBURGH
PORTLAND

PROVIDCNCE
RICH!,OHO
ST LOUIS
ST PAUL
SALTLAKECITY
SANANTONIO
SANDIEGO
SANFRANCISCO
SANJUAN
SAVANNAH
SEATTLE
SIOUX,FALLS
SPRINGFIELD
WASHINGTOND C
QUANTICO

Re 5ANGERO,USNESSCLASSIFICATION
O7-GEOFCHARACTER
CUSTODIALDETENTION

Effective immediately the character of investigations of individuals
(other than alien enemies)whomaybe dangerousor potentially dangerousto :He
public safety or internal security of the United States shall b'Security !'titter
and note Custodial Detent_icn. Thephraseology "Custodial Detention, snail no
longer be used to designate the character of any investigation nor shall it be
used for any purpose in reports or other communications Investigations involving
organizations or "key figures in the CommunistParty will continue to bear the
character "Internal Security, as in the past but the dual character of
1teestodial Detention will be eliminated

!Henceforth the cards previously knownas Custodial DetentionCardswill
140.nownand referred to as Security IndexCards and the list composedof such
 aetdswill be knownas the Security Index

For your information the AttorneyGeneral on July 6 1943 ordered
 '''that tl~r dangerousnessclassifications previously madeby thej;pecial DefenseUnit-saili{s st.cce e"6nna+a1WarPolicies Unites:tea_not,used in the future for
 rit11Int senyaIsoeve.r

rrl~flur au)w l continue to investigate dangerousand potentially danger
.7 ,p Wyn1Ivl.3s3L3JAtherthan alien enemiesunder the characters of Security

+tier dLiNInternaiSecurity It will also continue to prepare and maintainL3sae,e
oyWy t?9 k"Cards Thefact that the Secuaity Indexanyfiecerity Index
JJ, rs'``:.p4red'and maintainedshould,'beconsidered as sl.rictlll con'.;

TineIactnnrulism7:parn1iu responselo ,tourrequestaril.s rat Jar
'warmoi star ;ro~~rC+nn;:d;lueIler+sci=ri;uitrJt++official1,rarrr"liu9sby
vousCuaeniitreandthernalcotMtyj'nutbedisclosedlu uuuathuiizedperson

FBI
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f.ial and should at no time be mentionedor alluded to in investigative reports
oa,/iscussdd with agencies or individuals outside the Bureauother than duly qua:i
fied representa tives of the Office of NavalIntelligence and the Military Intelli
genceService and then only on a strictly confidential basis

A revised Section of the National DefenseManualto replace the current
Section 16 is being prepared and will be available in thelimaediate future It is
desired that you discuss the contents of this letter with all investigative
personnel under your supervision

a

Verytruly yours

.r

"s John EdgarHoover
Director

RECEIVED FROM

SFp26 1975
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It does no~_prpuide,_Jor supen.s.ton_o_f the ;Trit
of Habeas Corpus

It is more res=rictiue in the_ standards set
up for determining_ who_shall be aaorehended

It does not orouide for apprehension of
dangerous_a_n_dividuals at a time_of t4rea~snedin acsion

It prousd_es for apprehension under individual
warrants obtained only ucon orobcb_1ecause
supported_b;j_oatR-_or affirmation

(1)

(2)

416

EXHIBIT26-1

O j ce Zvle~~a~,'~~ a~~1i

THEDIRECTOR

UNITED 51Aii:5 GOVERN~'MENT
i

DATENovember13 19
J
FROM D ll LADD r

suBJECT PROGRAMFO.SAP-REN.EI:SIONANIDDETEETIOII
OFPE.RSOIISC7i:%SID5.RFDPOTENTIALLY
DANIGE.ROUSTO195 .ATIONAfDEF'!i1.SFAIID
PUBLICSAFETYOF TilE UNITEDSTATES

SYIIOPSIS

At a staff -eeti.ni._on_1.'oucm.ber_6 1952 Deputy
(Attorney General ;'wlo_n_ebrought ,up.a memorandumfrom the
Bureau which inquired cs to whether the "Security Portfolio

+still controls our activities in the event.of a national
emer,,cncy At_the ceetir.o it was decir'ed__that ycu. and
1.!r L'urrc:u woulu loo, to o t_lc.e_na_ycr_t-o_ e_w,~et1{erany
change_ s1till oe_zffec e.d

Our entire Security Index program ar.d our plans
for the detention o-p_dan~~rous~individuals in 'the time of an
en-ergcncs ha'e-_.been set up_in conplicnce...with instructions

-1o fur_nzshect.to .the_Bureau_in a plan
drew_

n~ by tn_e Department
and furnished to the Bureau on august 3 1948 At'=er__the
passage of_the_ Internal Security Act of 1950.on September 23
1950,__i.he_Bureau felt that the Departrient would have to make
a decision cs_to whether we should coitinue,our plans to
operate under the Department's Portfolio or to change our
plans in order to meet the provisions of the.Internal Sccvrity
Act_of 1950 -This Act differs-from the.-l'epertnent's_Po! t_folio

Ion_seueral major points agonJj_which are the following

(5) It apparently does_n_otprouide,r/'or searches
~-I ; ;)nrl

or confiscation of contraband

^ ~,% (6) It provides that prejtmtnar. heaninss are ;obe held within 43 hours or t^S' b9oi!"s1.'tea-"~af;ier
1

NOYt '^~L
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as provision for such hearings may be made

It appears that_the-_r.u.les._o1J._euidence.,,sh_ail
apply under the_i!ct

Person.s_apprehended shall be entitled to
judicial review in the courts

The Bureau can_discarge_-itt_resnonsibiliti.es.,mcre
effectively under our uresent alan_t,ian_i:nce~,.,thc .In.ternal
Security Act In view of the cI.r._eregces it_is._imperative
thn'tue %iave_adefinite comnitnent trop-_the_.Pepartcient as_tQ
whether th,~.l)Cpartment wi11 follow its ownPortfolio or the
provisions of the Internal Security Act. Since thc_passar-e__of
the Internal Sccurity iict,tne IJc?artment has cons-tistentA,
hedged on whether the Act can be ignored completely and the
Bureau can proceed under-the _plans set forth in the Departments
Portfolio

The memor.sin.dur.:_krqughtt_oyouur..attenticn_by_Nr )(alone
~!yas our_mpmo.Candl?m_to,_theAttorney_Ceneral_dated..October.15
1 52 which rcgugs_ted advice_in th,is.matter It is not deemed

Th
aduisa le tl:atthe Bureau made recomendations to the Department
conccrn.il}g th-tos_mazter inasmuch as the__Ligh1yccntrouersial

\/ question involving the suspension of the Writ ofliabeas.Corpus
is inJua`ed in the )7coartment's Portfolio i1lso in the event
the

Depadditrtment
elects toproceed under the Internal Security

Act in ion to_reuising allof_our plans __manypeople whom
we feel constitute c danger to the.internal_security of-the
country will be dropped from our Security Index-in.-view of the
more Ztimited'prouiscons_for apprehension set forth inTthe
InternalySecE! y Act of 1950

Nonetheless to utew of the questions which--will.be
raised as to the necessity-of _the.-bepartmentproceeding under
app of its own~euice c_ntra to~an existing law it i_ not
felt me shoulc make any_r?cosrentations_tT-cJie Department with
respect t o this natter since the decision-,is_one which is solelythe responsibility of the.Departnen.t_.to-make There is attached
a letter to9eputp_A!ttorney General ilalone requesting an early--------------ci s _ion in uy.e$ of tae-_uryenc of~this:ma`tter
PURPOSS

To set forth_ thg_differe-aces between_the- Department's
plan for_ the apprehension of dangerous individuals in the time
of an emergency as_contracted with Title II of the InternalSecurity Act o 950,__an'',._to__adv-iseyou regard in the s tutus

5`P 26 1775
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of our request th,at._thc_Department make a decision as to_,whether
we wiLl proceed undo the Department's plan. or under the
prouisions_.af_the Ir.ter,z-C-aecurtitY ce in the event _.,ofan
emergency

DETAILS

In your memorandumof November 6 1952 recording
the Advisory Staff Meeting which took place on that date in
the Attorney General's Office you advised that hr llalone
brought up a memorandumwhich the Bureau directed to him
inquiring as to whether the "Security Portfolio still controls
our activity in the event of a national emergency At the
meeting it was decided that you and L'r Hurray would look
in,o'the matter to see whether there should be any changes
effected You stated that you would like to be advised as to
the status of this matter together with a memorandumto
Hr Malone as to our views

As early as lfarch 8 1946,,youu",suggested to the
Attorney Genera~Tthat lie might desire to initiate a study to
determine yieatT5T IE--_ion was availa ble or-what should be
sought to author_ ze'effective_a.ction.,_of:a general and precaution_
ar~ nat.ure_in._the._e_vert of  ..serious emergency After your
original memorandumto the_Attorney General on 'larch 8 1946
regarding this matter usecontinued to follow the Department

After a numberof conferences held between_Bureau
repro.senttativswitih'Lepartment_atto_r-ieys they drew up,a
plan with car_p1?ae~{nstructions from the Attorney General to
t4o._Auze_aua proposed Preenticl Proclamation anda proposedJoint P.esolution to be paused^by Gongressl-.n'support of the
President.~.s._Proclamat'on Th s nlan is_~enera1ly referred toas the Depert7e1t!s_Portf921o There are onlythree copiesofthis plan in existence The Bureau his tao.,__one..naintainedat the_Seat ofdvernment and one in the_,Omaha.fiald .Div.is.ionand the Attorney Generalmaintainsthe third copy The
Portfolio was submitted to snae~_.eBureau by tihe Deaartrc nt onAugust 3 19!8 Since thct~`tmc "our~~entirepZanninn and
operationalprocec.ure.o..cpprenend individuals contained inour Sew1i _

,lty..jnc:ex_has been based on tiie.,Depar_tne.nt's Portfolioand not upon the__detu.2,1tigj_pr9_Ris.ianeof_Title._II_.of .theI ncl Securitrl Pict o~ Z950 which became law on September 23195

t 'f n1At the time .the D_2artment's _Portfolio was ,furnished
Pe("'~rtto the Bureau on ,;ur tst 3 1948 there ua o,~" a "..I!~.ZGi1=?_}n.existence1 SEp26 1915
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"t i t.` '(4) The Port o '_o.-providesor the apprehension ofall subjects l_nthe Security Index_at the tire-of an

a
SEP"i bm nAttorney_Cenea.1 Under the Act apprehension
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which prou.L-IfI for _ir1.edetention of dangerous individuals
at the time of an emergency ,iiiel i Lite_passage_ of the
Internal Security Act of 1950 which did provide for such
action the Bureau felt tr.e_Dcpertrnert would have to make a
decision as_to_wka.t.:er kC_skou.sl o.oD.t.iRt(e_a.ur_plans__to_ope!_cte
unc''er the Dcnartaelt_'a._Porafol.io.,or to chance our.plans in
order to neet_the rovisi,orrs of_th.e_Inte.rnal $eour.,i y_Act,_of
1950

1..'a~jorDifference_ Between the Dc artrr:ent's Portfolio and the
internal Security ,;c oi. 1950

The reason that it is imoerat.i ve_that _the__Aepartnent
make this decision is beccuse.of the..diffe.rence.s.,betw.cen._the
Dcpartwent's Port,roltio ur ccr_which we are now operating,and
tie proyisi_o_nsof_1'itle II_oc thc...internel Secle_rity rlct of
1950 Some of the aigf points of diiZerence 5

Under the Department's Portfolio the Writ of
Habeas Corpus will be suspended The Internal
Security .lct of 1950 does not provide for the
suspension of the Writ of Habeas Corpus

The current standards vie use in determinin9_the
names of individual to ke_pieced in the Security
Index are based--oh the..provisions';)or'nppr'eiension
intir:e o on_emerrency as _oct..forth_in tne__Depertment's
Portfolio the pro_.r_e_Lans__se,tfo.r_th_i _.t2e-Interral
Sec~,ri.tl,.Ac,.t__Of_1:y50for pre _cctentti,on of cangerous
inJtiuilua s .in._.tible.,.of_sa,.energen.cy...ar.e..mor.erestricted
than those contain Pd in the Deeartrnent's _Portfolio.
Desica rly, the lnterral Secr r>ttr Act of .1950 provides
for the detention a i.ndiuidual_s who_have_been.active
in subucrsiue orcanizetions since Januar_1949
Under the _prouts ions':conto ine.d_ n_the._J)epartment's
Port olio tse nai.c._ncl4ded__in our .Seccrity_Indexindividuals whoilaue...no.t..been._knoun.__t.o_be_.actiuely
engaged in any .Luuersive actiui.ties suooeouert to
January 1 1949 but were cctive_previous to_th_at_date

The Portfolio~r~yi.des_for~pprchenaian of
dangerous jbRitviducls ct a time of threatened
invasion The Internal Securi __ilct_of 1950 restricts
tnr to actual invajjQn insurrrection or decicrat on
of war

_
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Iof

siibie taw _b-d_..effectetl_.by__in.dividualwarrants
ootaaned  only._upj.p.r bable cause supported by.oath
o"raffirmation

The Portfolio provides for searches and
confiscation of contraband whereas the Act
apparently does not contain such provisions

The Portfolio provides that hearings are to be
held within 45 days after the apprehension of the
subjects whereas the Act provides that preliminary
hearings will be held within /8 hours or as soon
thereafter as provision for such hearings may be
made

Under the Portfolio the Boards of Review to
be set up to hear the cases shall not be bound by
the rules of evidence It appears that the rules of
evidence shall apply under the Internal Security Act

Under the ortfolio persons apprehended will have
the right _of-apPpeal only to the President U~~certhe
Act he _all be entitled to icial review on any
U S Court of Appeals

There is no otCeS.t32n_butthat f,.h.eBurenu ul... dis
charpe its responsibil.i.tics_much,_more ef,l"ectively.u.nder_te
Department c Portfolio than unc+.erthe_Interne_1 Security Act
of 19-50T A'S &'a-nbe -seen'by~she major points of differencebetween the Portfolio and the Act it_.is_imperatiue_that we
know as soon aspossible in the_eve!tt__~?ie_Lepertment decides
that it wil1..,b_enece.sIary...t_o_follom_the_.provisions of the
Internal Security._Act 0.1x_entire_,planning_and_procedure
redat ye__ta_.preparat.ion,for._..an_.emer..<jency,hac_beendirected_ bythe instructjons...sontained__in..the_,TieparimertLS._8.rtf_o.0,o Our
planning has._bcen_se,t up in det i,_for action

to_be_taken
in

accorcance with the_~o,rtfol-Co 6'e cannot cr o~C.t.a lnait._ttntii
anemergency s_upon_u and then_ have_.tite..pepertment deride
that to would

.have
vo_o.ve_against_danger.ous_subuerSives__underthe literncl ,ecurit Awsctof1950 rather than under the

Depertment''sTtorffvlio Shoula_tais occur__our entire-.operationwould break down_inascuck..aS_it_would mean that our entire
procedure would have to be  altered

Correspondence With and_Advice Received From the DepartmentConcerning This Clatter
( l y t i

It was with these facts in mind that we called this
$EPz 1915 ~__ _
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matter to the Department_!s_attenti_on at the time of_the passage
of fhe_jntc.r_nai.Sccurity._1ct,01_1950 OnSeptember 25 1950
we directed a memorandumto the Attorney _General requesting
to be advised whether the detention provisions of Title II of
the Internal Security Act of 1950 would affect the detention
plans previously prepared by the Department Wealso requested
that the Attorney General advise whether he contemplated making
any changes in the program as previously planned by the
Department

At a conference between Jourself_and.former_Attorney
GenerlihJ llowltL Gr_ath__on_.the,mornin_gof September 27 1950
he informed you that he had received a memorandumfrgm_the
Bureau inquiring_as to whether the Internal Security Act of
1950 affected-in any way the Department's detention program
unaer`uiliich-the Bureau had been working in conjunction with
the Department Er L'cGrath_aduised.,you that he_did not
believe that the passage of the bill should in any way interfere
with`the Dcpart;nent'.s._detention arogranand_thathedesired.the
Bureau tooproceed with the program as outlined in the_ Department
Portfolio Du memorandumdated October 9 1950 !(r,.__James (
11cInerney former._21ssislant _tt_q ne.y_General in charge of the
Crininal Division replied to our ~,remoran_dumHe stated that
Title II of the Internal Security_Act of 1950_undnubtedly is
in conLIic_t uith teDe0artment oroposed_detent.ion,program
Ile said that if Title II remains in_effect at such-_time as
initia.t.ion,of__t,he program,_becomesnecessary appropriate
provisions for its repeal will be introduced in Congress along
with tn,e_pr000sedjoint_resolution inasmuch a the Internal
Spcuritj! ilct_o~ 1950 as enac5ed comains '.ien+ rouistions which
would be unworkable in the event o^ an emercency or outbreak
of hostiilJti_y anc that it was not anticipated that Title II
will permanently supersede the Department's Portfolio

In response to an inquiry by the Bureau of December 5
1950 as to the progress made by the Department in reviewing
our Security Index cases Deputy Attorney General Peyton Ford
advised on December 7 1950 that "in the event of occurrence
of an emergency which requires the use of the detention programall of the persons now or hereafter included by the Bureau on
the Security Index should be considered subjects for immediate
apprehension thus resolving any possible doubtful cases in favor
of the Government in the interests of the national security.

,_sN _j) i \;Q~till s
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At the concluding session of the U S Attorneys
Conference on May 25 1351 which was attended by Mr Belmont
Mr RaymondP iihearty of the Department outlined the detention
prouisions of the Internal Security Act of 1950 At that time
he pointed out that the Act is unwieldly and unworkable

OnMay 31 1951 Mr Whearty in conference with
Lir Belmontand Section Chief Baumgardner orally advised
that the standards being drawn up by the Department at that
time for persons to be apprehended in an emergency were to
be based principally on the Internal Security Act of 1950 but
that leeway had been added to the standards specified by the
Act to include persons we have on our Security Index who will
meet the requirements of the Act He stated that the epartment

not consider the detention provisions of tae..InteDrnal

`'does
Security_ot_of_1^SJ `as _worirable_andwi1l..contto operate
un-tie b_neryen_cyDetent i.on Program_as_drayn_up the
Department

OnMarch 14,1 952_7__1t,171ieerty_ was_informed in
conference with Mr Belmont and Mr Baumgardner that itcs
apparent t1 t the_J)epar tent was_attempting to interpret the
prouisions_op_-tby_nt.ernal-.Security,,Act_o1 1-950 zhroagh,._the
drawing up of-_the Department's_.pryposed..standard.s..,for
individuals to be included in the 5crarit.y_Zrrinr to hri_ngthem
within the argy one of the,Tn1epn,zl__.S.ec.uTity-_ActLfr iihearty
was informed that ,from the Barcau!s szandpo.int_it__wpuld appear
that the.Depar mentis hewing on_i.ts._previous_s and,_trat
apprelzens_i-Qnswoald_ge trade_under the Lmerr;encl_ne_tention
Program of th.e Department %ra-ther.._thanthe_.JnternaLSecui ity
Act_of 1950 and any attempt to bring the Department's program
within the prouisions of the Internal Security Act would require
extremely broad interpretation of the Act He ityka_asluised
that our:_position_ is that Le must he reams from an operative
stndooint_to implement the_apprei[eItsioll_.p]'o,gr_am_under._clear
aut_hortity_,froa..the_ritto.rne.y_Gene,ral and there cqn he.ra_ a ti on
of doubt as to-_whether we are op rating under standards
specifically authorised by theAttorney General It was pointedout that ~ a broad in erpretation by_the.,Denartment of .the
provision of -the rice_may_not stand up_in the event the
apprehension program islaunched under the Act and that the
Department! ntcZpre_tatfthe_.1Ct_-Ls a ,ratter of opinion
and notqL aqt At this conference yr uheaL-t:/ stated chat
it s the definite intent_of the Department to proceed under
its program rather titan under tneIneurnal Security jict of 1950
He said that if an emergency occurs the Presidential Proclamation

. SEP26 1j1̀
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will be issued and_brought..,inmediately before Congress for
ratification lie sard_tl_at_ut ttut c if it__has ri_Qt__been
accomplished before that time repeal.__of_the Act_will.__be
soughtin order that the Departacnt's program can.be..instituted
He ebtcd that_nt_ het_ tine_the unwo.rkability _of the Act will
again be brought _to _.the_attc.nti on_._of_Congress

OtrJuly 9,_1952 at which time Mr Belmont and Br
Hennrich were in confcrence with Mr hclnervteq 0_j the_-l)cpartment
regarding getting approval by the Department of the standards
used by us for placing persons in the Security Index and having
them review our Security Index cases ii McInerney stated
that the Department had,alrec_dy..nivcn the Burcett_written
authority to_apprenend anyone on ,the .Sec.;srizy.-Index_pend.ing
the_Dcnartment's docisti_on with re2qrd_to_the_-staadars The
Bureaurzresentae_insisted on the Attorney General's
specific_appro.val_of th e__s_tandaras _under .whi.cn_1ve._are-_operati ng
inasmuch_.as..we_are..an..invest.igat.ive__agency,._and ti;e,Policy as
to whom-sihould_be_apprehended under_apnydctenti.on..prAg .am
mush rest with~th,e~ltap.LlEe1!general

Frorr~tire to_ ti_":e the-Department while _m intaining

I

that_the plan gA set form to the Depar~rcn.t!~1'ort(oZ~a_vi11
be used in the event of an er^erency,_has intimated t/tat_the
Internal Securtty ct of_195O cannot be ignored The Department
last brott;itt_t'7.is-Luct_to tile ,3 reauts attention in a memorandum
dated October d 19.12 which stated_in part_thct while _it is
contemplated_ that in the..euent-of.war other legislation
relcting to_the apprehension and detention~of._potenticily
dangerous person o will bs speed,tly sought,_ nonetheless so long
as`he standard provided_ io he_lnternal Security Act of .1950
remain _tic guodi.ng_.Zegislatiue principle.,.for eppr.ebensionand detention of potentially dangerous individuals the
Deportment.mus_t consider_ this_ standard in reviewing the files
of individuals who_may,,be"_s.u.bject._to__apprehension and detention

Yfere Ljcg to this memorandumin a letter to the
Attorney General dated Octobe9._15,_1952 and pointed out,amongother things that all cuthority_foT Our_Se.cj it lnlxx program
including all preparations and plans made by_the Bureau t_o_e_ffectthe apprehensions are based solely._upon the planning._and
instructions contained_in.the.Department's_portfolio We
requested, in order that there wt11_be_a complete understandingthat the Attorney General glue us his as urance`-at'i.hes time

th_intends to proceed to an emergency-under-the program as
outlined_.in the Department's Portfolio and tke standardsto

r-d
ere those we a~~nou us ink Werezuested adiiice f

B

66-0770 76 28



R,c)'O\

CEP2s \91)

-9

424

the Attorney ,General,as to whether he is in agreement with,the
Durar s concepts of the detention program and Security Index
standards as outlined in our memorandumto Mr Peyton Ford
dated June 28 1951 The memorandumof October.] 5 1952 is the
memorandumwhich L'r Malone brought up at the staff meeting
in the Attorney General's Office on November 6 1952

OBSIPVATI01/

All 'of ou lans,_for an emergency which are extensive
1n conneC _RnJlLit1{the_detention O angeroaS__indiw.icualS .in
timed an emergency are_ oased__uon instructions co antined in
the.Department_..s..Portfo7ie There are.contained~.among the
19,577 individuals listed in our Security Index the names of
many~~ersons__uliomwe consiaer_ dangerous put_~uhDdo_not fall
withi_n_lOe_.Standards aet.forth_.in_ the intcrnal_Secur_ity Act
of 1950 If the Department sh,.o_u1d_e_lect_to_proceed.under_t/{is
Act it woule mean that in revising our plans manypeople
wire not inclueea it our=Secur,ity_IndeW_as potentially
dangerous to the internal e.curi.ty would_nccessarilyJta.ge to
be excludbd therefrom

The fact that the Internal ,S~curitrg Act o-r 19 0
does not pr_girde for_suspensi_or_of the._krit of ffabeas Corpus
would_,prow.e_a_tlef_lI te_h.indrnnce_to the-ere_rution_o_j necessary
measures_.t.o__be_taken__.in...the._eve.n.t__~an_emernency__becauseoflc c;tny 1itigation which would no doubt re ult and presentsthe posstioility thct,dangerous inaiv.icuals-might.obtain release
from confinement pending hearings in their cases The
Department's_Pnrtfoliopuides thct~these_persons shall be
continued in detention until t/e,.t.r__Casee are decided-by-theBodrds of-Re--u

- 

The lack o razEia_on__ __the_tic -for measures to be
taken in the_-euent_oft hreatened.invasion".precludes_thePresident from taking action against potentially dangerous
perjizi p"rior 't`o~anactual"injlasion insurrection or decl.cration
of war

The pry tis_7on}n the Act for apprehension of subjectsby individual.warrants .i.s,.a,factor which uiould.be a _detrimental
time-consuming procedure ascompared to the.use.of_one..masterwarrant of _arrest for all subjects apprehended as provided inthe 7lepart7rent 's Portfolio ~
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The apparent lack of provision in the Act for searches
and for confiscation of contraband would*be a definite deterrent
to our operations in that we would be unable to search the
headquarters of subversive organizations as well as premises
of iangcrcus individuals for contraband Such contraband
would under the Act apparently be left in the Control and custody
of persons who could use it against the interests of the
Government

The provision in the Act that_p~Zimi,nary,h_earirgs
are to be held within 16n urs__after the subjects aporeinension
or as soon thereafter as provisions for such hearings may be
made could lace a restrictive=time .element-ttlon_t?Le Government
which wou dnterfer e_with^o.uP~P.prehension efforts

The fa=t that s :b_jeC.7prehen under
wojld ha_ue_iAe ri'ha`oLap,l_eaL to the courts and si nce it
appears that the rules

r._o"f
evidence would anpZy_creates""a.rother

obstacle tin=ne_-Go __ent~c way n that_ in._orcer tD__9bvain
continued detention of persons considered dangerous we may
in mcn;~instences,_ nave _o _di_SCltise_tneidentities_oof pour
in orments a d con/ioer.ttiR~,.teCh:niques This of course would
be a fatal"610 to_ Qur s bsequert_e forts to maintain couerage
of subversive actiuit_l.es d_ur}gLq.,_tjs""_e.Reruen-ej/

While for the reasons outlined above I firmly
believe that the interr.cl ct:rit~o~the cg_u_ntryrnt ]~;_best
be_protected in the time of an er.ergencu if we proeed._under
the plans_se.,fortli i tiie_.Depar.tmient!s,_Port,fp1io,c ,do not
believe that it is desirable that the Bureau_gq-_on_record with
r co ^ zon` o the Jenartnen concern in y mctter.-'-The
Dep.gxtmeJlt!s_Portfolio^contcins a planJor the_.sysnension ofthe i'/rit o i.abeas_COrous"wrich without auestion_,yai11_be a
highly controversial subject_.and".wi11_undou.btedly-_causeconsiderable debate in the event it is ever openly proposedOther questions will be reased 21.2whi iz_i.snecessary to
proceed under aNplan aevi ed,.by th epertment of Justice
when there is a taw on the statute books whic_h._ostensibly
couers_th-epurpo.,e._for.jj cn tne_epar Tien's_.plan i;7cs-setup
to handle A decision as to procedure in the event oL an
eme~ency_Js,~~gr11/_= he_responsibilityg the_Uepartment
The_Dep._artr1n_ Portfolio_has,_been devised by tiie Deo tment

.and we have operated_unaea~taose instru.cv ons to d^ate. mydecis on-assn a ne_tltn.d-oPope~atioa__whe,tter it be_under the
De.eartment's Portfolio.-or_und-en..tlie_.Internal_Scctritf
of 1950 is ably ~._watter_ta_dc,e_decided by the Attorney
General because it is concerned with high_Gouernment policyv

10
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Obviously the ?Departmentdoes not want to be
planed in a ooeitior,,,_ol n_yving_,s.ated tha it  is,_not going
to pay attention to the Internal pecurity.Actof_1950 They
have redned in 'h ,-:otter in the past and it is to our
interest that we rece}ue,_._frcfn Er3ehrc posit ioe expression
of approval of .9llr.,_concepts of the J.neroenci Detention Program
and our concepts of the standards for including individuals
in the Security Index which is tantamount to scheduling these
persons for apprehension I believe that rv_es_hoeld continue
to calLfor a positiue statcment_fron the 1%eparvmentand that
we should under no circumstances araJceany commitments regaraing
the des irabi,i_i-tu_o,/_~ilWLeeting_uncierLnrery'enay Decent ion
Program or under 'tire Internal _Seca.rity-.Act of.1950

ACTIOJr

sr If you agree there is attached hereto a memorandum
to Depute Atjorrey-General Ross L..L!alone Jr. stctiiio`our
posjji"on and resuesti.nv-brat't..tlre_..Bur:eau..Jle._.aaul.sed__of"the
Departmentt! fiecJ..S.ivniri tJJ-,1slna,tter

nom''tXr%-

Z'O

n

"\

. wv~t~v~'4

SEP
Yg~~15
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EXHIBIT26-2

O11i~rce MeC',:Zur _v,.-_ Gil UNITEL

^J
1 =TheDirector Federal Bureauof Investigation

FROM TheAttotney General

Sun)ecr PRCG} FOPAPFC;E;Ei'SIONt_NDCETFNTIONOF
PERSONSCOSICLPDPOTENTIALLYCANCEROUS
TOTHE1ATICALDEiE'SEA''DPUBLICSAFETY
OFTHEUNITEDSTATES

Referenceis madeto mymerorandumof October8 1952
epprovi.nEthe_standards used by your Bureaufor the listing of

jrees of individuals in the Security index and to_your_subse
quent memorandumof October 15

Pursuant to the ouestions whichyou have raised in the
latter memorandun,_Iw sh to assure you that it is the L`epart
mentts intention in the event of emergencyto proceedunder the

'-,m.c o,;tliner in the renartment', Portfolio invoking the
standards nowused This approval of course ir^.ic.ates agree
mentwith your Bureau's concepts of the Detertion Programand
the Security index standards as outlined in your nnaorandumof
June 26 1951 to former Daputy4AttorneyGeneral
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EXHIBIT27

Director Federal Bureauof Investigation

~1FRU '.'4Taltor lcaglcy Accist;.uCACton:cyGeneral
~Internal Security Division

suBJSCNATIONOFIS?.&M
INTERNALSECURITYNOI

CONFID`';NTL!J

I
This is in reply to your memorandumto the AttorneyGeneral

dated September9 19G0 inquiring about the possibility of pro
secutive action against the leaders or designation of the captioned
organization underprovisions of ExecutiveOrderNo 10450

Theavailable evidenceconcerningthe activities of the
leaders andmembersof this organization falls far short of the
evidentiary,rep rementssufficient to meet the standards"ret~fortlj
"in-the."Y'atasd:c;.sio TRiile-Cheleadersof `the':;01 aE L'iiiesre=
sort to the use of virulent andvicious languagewhichwouldincite
the membersto individual acts of violence against the white race
it is morecalculated anddesignedto arousehatred and antipathy
against the white race as a race rather than against the Government
Thereis evidenceof languagewhichspeaksof the destruction of
America but is couchedmorein termsof prophecyand prediction
often referring to the "Garof Armageddon,than in termsof incite
mentto action Moreover the First Amendmentwouldrequire
somethingmorethan languagesof prophecyand prediction and implied
threats against the Governmentto establish the existence of a
clear andpresent dangerto the nation and its citizens

Regardingdesignation of the NOIpursuant to the provision
of ExecutiveOrder10450 it is our opinion that hale-languageem
ployedby the organization's leaders is not probativeof the criteria
of "subversive nor is it sufficient to establish the NOIto be an
organization seeking to alter the formof governmentby
unconstitutional means. .Althoughthere is substantial evidenceof
NOI'sadvocacyof future violent reprisals for alleged wrongscom
mitted against one or moreof its membersthe evidenceis
insufficient at this time to meet the criterion that it has adopted 1
a policy of advocatingor approvingthe conmissionof suchacts
of violence to denyothers_their constitutional.rights

/ceiva.e~ar/ SEP 1960
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Reviewandevaluation of the informationfurnished bythe Bureauis being continuedwith a view towardprosecutionor
designation Moreoverbecauseof the semi-secret andviolent
nature of this organization and the continuing tendencyon the

1
part of someof its leaders to use languageof implied threats
against the Governmentit is requested that the Bureaucontinue
its investigation of the Nationof Islamand its leaders

1,1 .Ci=.~..y~.~WY'

-2
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EXHIBIT28

I:ir
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1/13!C)

.. I .
! 0

11.i is

TOr
this I.ett..: that LineI.:..11117'is L'._.'.:.:.s.i
t.o sot::-e:2

'.r 'L_ t;J n cn,} results 0bIx.1 Lyth. above

a is the leader of the TIlaek!71J..le,o 17;.awrs,_a oiac: .in.icn
o.) h adviras r.s long as as Li le:..dcrc`e of ti.e Reng-s a working a:rro2.7ot t., PPP
1 8 and file 1:rs slay be e feccdcn Ranger trms--)

I Chicago has :.eeo7menLedthe anony,us r:,iling of tlie -...i-
f:o7flowingletLcr r_ ii that its receipt Ly 1 will intc.7.1sify the degrae of anio::it oxi:..tjng 1between these two blacl.7 e',zi;reiaist orunizations
1'Brother

"I've spent solue ti.,Aewit% soli. irienc's
west -sidelately cud :c wlJ,..L'sbeen f-.roi.y.13on~11.7~L'r0the '.7 tat-It con the Panth.:.rs ble-meyou for

PAG
I7LrrnL I
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EXHIBIT29

1'NI'1'liil.STA'fF GO\ f
r

l4C77R Tail aiJil

DATE 1/13/a9

,/ CHICAGO

iCUNTBRi}̂ LLrG

1:!:If:i. :LLii,1'
(BLACK1?'!I'id'CRJ,!1 Y) (13PP)

Re Bureau letter 1/6/(30 Chicago letter 12/lG/(.8
and Chica;'o airt.ul and L1Gi11/7/69

The first tc"o of tin above co;nnunicctFions were
captioned an above the la.$tcr under the B,J2caption

In the Chicago letter of December 16 1968 e
suggestion was made that an anon=I:cous wailing be sent

leader of the 131ackateee Largers advi.sir." of 1'Tip(:':oats
to discredit him and in effect to "tale o',er the Ranger. As
events hove subsequently developed :es set forth in refers eed
Chicago airtel and LII'S the N'_ngera and the BPI have not uuly
not been able to form any alliance but n:nli.ty and distrust na  a
arisen to the point who're e:'eh have been oreered to stay out cf
the others territory The BB.)has sire() decided to conduct no
activity or attempt to do any recruiting in Ranger territory

It appears therefore that the letter originallyintended at this point would nerve no useful pu:cposo The end
in view appears to have been very quickly arrived at in great
measure by virtue of the inherent inability or two such vo'i.tile
and power conscious groups to derogate any of their status or
assumed authority to the other

From information recently received it appears howeverthat the L'PPhas not entirely abandoned all hope of utilizingthe Ransere for their own purposes Somefeeling has been evident
that \nay not continue indefinitely in his position of leader
ship wit'R the Rangers most probably a reference to various
criminal charges facing him It is clear however that no
long as he is in this position any working arrangement between
the two groups will be on Ranger terms
2 Bureau (IOM) BA U2 Chicago

(1 (I:PP)
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CC

C0000moontly Chioogo ;lowrocromondo the fol Loris':letter be sent Landorit Lea on plain i:"::,,
"Brother

"1'V,^ opont 0000 too \.jth ;'on;: Foothor friordo oo
the vest side lal:oJy and I hoow 000::'o loon goiog on The
brothers that run the Panthers blood you Co blooking thoir
thing and there's supposed to ho o hit out for you I'm not
a Panther or a Feoaer jort blocb Pros whot see tl..00
Panthers are out ntor the oolvos no hinok peed c I t ok
you ought to know what thoir up to Ioiowthat I'd do tf I
was you You might hear from me agaio.

"A blade brother you don't know

The above would hi sent to io core of the First
Froobytorian Church 6401 ,'ouch Kimbark the widely poLlicizod
headquarters of the Rangoeo

It is believed Lbs above may intent;ify the dogroe of
animoo between the two groups and cocasirolo to ta%e
retalioory action which oould disrupt tha Uhl or lead to
reprisal against its loadcrship

Considoration has been given to a similar letter
to the BOP alleging a Bangor plot againot the loodorohip
however it is not felt this would be prodoetioosince the BPPat present is not bolioyod as violonce-prono at
the Rangers to whomviolout typo activity 'shooting and tho
like are second wature There is also the poostbility that
if a future contact between the two wore to ta!,o place and ih
bocamo apparent that both hod received such oommilnioationsthen an outside interest would bo somewhat obvious

Chicago will take no action regarding the above
pending Bureau authorization

,. it

bLi 16 1915

FBI
2



BuyU.S SavingsBondsRegularlyonthePaymllSavingsPlan

TOE DIRECTORFBI

434

EXHIBIT30-1

UNITEDSTATES( "ERNMENr

emoraizdwn

OnTe
0/3/GSl

It0m SAC, CINCINNATI (F) !'fp 5

1~ IECTCOUNTERINTELIGENCEPROGRAM
1).\ IS DISRUPT)N OF THENEWLEFT

R Iulet to Albany 5/10/6i

All SA personnel responsible for the investigation
of the NewLeft and Key Activists in the Cincinnati Division
have been alerted to the Bureau's Counterintelligence plans
relating to these groups and individuals

Detailed analysis of potential Counterintelligence
action against NewLeft organizations and key figures in the
Cincinnati Division has been initiated with the following
results

Primary areas of NewLeft activity in the Cincinnati
Division territory are Antioch College Yellow Springs Ohio
Ohio State University (OSU) Columbus Ohio and through the
Cincinnati Committee To End the War in Vietnam and Cincinnati

'Action for Peace at Cincinnati Ohio

ANTIOCHCOLLEGE

4
YELLOWSPRINGS OHIO

The center for NewLeft activity in the Cincinnati
Division area is believed to be Antioch College Yellow Springs
Ohio and the community of Yellow Springs itself For a number
of years individuals from the college and the town have been
a part of the NewLeft vanguard

t4CT
Antioch was among the first colleges to have a CP

USAspeaker on campus shortly after the party started this
program Other speakers have apoeared on campus on behalf

2) Bureab (aM)
~Z Cincinnati REC5

(4) 1 t2 JUN7 1303

)il:f

'00 ~r"'I :ys.1"c
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4Ct s i i5
CI r t

of the Socialist Workers Party (SWP) Young Socialist Alliance
"( (YSA) Fair Play For Cuba Committee (FPCC) Students For A

Democratic Society (SDS) as well as Black Power Antioch
students organized a draft resistance protest group following
SDS leadership This group led a demonstration at Cincinnati
Ohio on 12/7/67 during which large numbers of participants
brazenly defied law and order resulting in the arrest of
over 85 of their number and causing the disruption of the
orderly activities of the city for several clays In other
protest-type demonstrations of a national character Antioch
.and Yellow Springs have been represented by numbers exceeding
their enrollment and population

Antioch is a small privately endowed liberal arts
and science college with a total average enrollment of about
1,800 Yellow Springs home of the college is a village of
about 4,200 people 18 miles east of Dayton Ohio on Highway 42

Students attend college for three months after which they leave
the campus to work at one of a large number of agencies and
companies which cooperate with Antioch.in this program The
student body is purposely diverse In 1964 1965 students
came from 49 states Washington D.C. and 18 foreign countries
The current president of Antioch is .TAMESPAYSONDIXON JR.
born 3/15/17 at Portsmouth NewIlamphirc'l He is a mediC..i

'doctor receiving his degree in 1939 from Harvard and in 1943
an M.S degree at Columbia He interned,.at Boston City Hospital
during 1944 and for the most part since that time has held
administrative-type positions He has been connected with the
Rockefeller Foundation He served from surgeon to medical
director U.S Public Health Service 1952 to 1954 and was a
member of the National Advisory Council in 1960 He has been
president of Antioch College since 1959

As an example of-DIXON's attitude during 1967 two
Antioch College students were arrested attempting to smuggle
piarijuana into the U.S On public disclosure of these factsDIXONheld a convcation at the college during which as a
medical doctor he attacked narcotics control laws in generaland challenged the idea that use of marijuana was harmful
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Antioch prides itself greatly on a "highly intellectual
and "academic scholarly environment.

Actually the campus is most often run by a small
group of militants that are permitted by college authorities
to attack every segment of American society under the
semblance of being "highly intellectual.

Anyone visiting the campus doubts its "academic
scholarly environment because of the dirty anti-social appearance
and behavior of a large number of students can be seen to have
the fullest "beatnik image.

Yellow Springs follows the lead of Antioch It has an
overabundance of self-declared "intellectuals, whose morals
and habits are also anti-social

The college and Yellow Springs have-been virtually
earn oCf r.,. y _ __ _ azd ..
college newspaper protests the appearance on campus of a
representative of any investigative agency or military agency
Local newspaper editorializes against any logical support or
police agencies

RECOMMENDATION

Cincinnati recommends that Counterintelligence
action be taken to expose the pseudo intellectual image of
Antioch by the following

Review files at Cincinnati to identify 30 to 40
former students who were militant campus leaders

Set out leads to other offices to discreetly
determine the achievement of these individuals since leaving
Antioch

Continuing this method identify a significant
number who have attended Antioch and have a low achievement
record as shown by public source material

4 Furnish results to
"Cincinnati Enquirer, a newspaper of



437

[~ -In i (

CI

Lgeneral circulation at Cincinnati Ohio Is also an
SACcontact Agreement would be made with 'to use this
material in n article questioning whether Antioch is in fact
"highly intc_lectual and whether students are actually
receiving a quality education there

Following publishing df the article give
wide anonyn us circulation of copies to parents of current
students identified from student directories Also circulate
-copies of the article to members of the Board of Directors of
Antioch and to the personnel directors of all businesses that
are a part of the Antioch co-op plan

DESIREDRESULTOF ACTION

Force"Antioch to defen3 itself as an educational
institution Force attention on activities gn the Antioch
campus 'y T.neperenrw o are sending tnn_. `n c
college for an education Force the Antioch administrators to
curtail the activities of those students who spend most of their
time engaging in anti-social activity,protest demonstrations
and affiliation with subversive groups

Cincinnati will take no action on this recommendation
until it has been reviewed at the Bureau and authorization is
received
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EXHIBIT30-2

cep s niz

SAC Cincinnati

Director FBI

G/13/G3

COUT:T7..I LLIOE:CEREG.4u :AI
I AL
DI=PTION 02 LEI N:,WLEIT

Rcurlet 0/3/C3

Authority is granted for you to discreetly
determine the present whereabouts and accomplishments of
individuals who were militant leaders d rin^ their college
days at Aniioch After this has been determined you should
submit the material which you wish to furnish friendly news
media to the Eureau for approv;il

(G)

NOTE
Hulot 5/10/G3 instructed all offices to subr.it

suggestions regarding potential counterintelligence action
against the NewLeft CI O:fice tug,;csted that it do a
study on former militant students lenders who arc now no
longer in college to determine whether these students have
pi "S



66-0770 76 29

439

Lcttcr to CAC Cincinnati
RE C^:Ji i IiTILLIG::;C1 YiIOG111hl

done bcttcr than ordinary students If an a group their
achieve^outs a o by, CI proposes that this information be
furnished to friendly news media



440

EXHIBIT31-1

Airtcl

To SACS Newark
San F_ancis:~o

p Ch
From Director FZI

COX':T_EL?:..) T.L:.C:L::1'RLI:IST
RACIAL:i;ll 3

RcI :airtel 11/G/70

The ,.ureau cannot authorize t.sie troatin of
fruit to be -_ __ to Jersey City i:. Jersey i,e:aaae
of the lack of centrol over the treated fruit in transit

IIcr:over,}Nctar::'s prcpo_ed tcle:;ran rercrdin^
,food collected for the Fevolutionary'People's Constitutional
Convention has norit

Can Francisco's observations are-rcquestcd concernin3
this proposal.

NOTE

Newark stud countcrintclli,^,ence operation
to cause confusion c_rtr'at and suspicion within the
by inc:icatin' in a tele,:rcn a11e edly frcn C5P hers! :a tors
that scme ieo: culle from the Revolutionary ? C91t''5
Constitutional Convention had been poisoned and . :1d La
ccstroycd It su:;;cited that the Laboratory treat food
usius a nild 1a;ativo and that the food be.shipped to L'..,
headquarters in Jarscy City Neu Jersey

/
r;~w~r!~I .r r,rrrro urrr,_ J
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EXHIBIT31-2

., Iti#lallo.,n7In

A_IPTiI
(TypeInpitonrlorcode)

(Prwnty)
 A 1

TO DIRECTORF1,I

,FROM SAC R'LNAR;C

SUBJ COINT?LFPO
DLACii L"';:TPL:.:IST
8M

The following counterintelligence proposal is submitted
for consideration

It is preposed that a telegram be sent from Cal:land
California to the Jersey City NJ DPP i;cadquarters .,:..-.it
Ave. (and to all DPPII^a.dgc:artern) The text 63 the telegram
should read similar to the following

"Word received food donated to Party by anti
Liberation white pies contains poison Symptc :s cr -s
diarrhea severe stomach pain Destroy all food do a ted
for convention suspected d poisou however still required
you meet quota.)

"Ministry of Information

It is suggested that the Turenu then consider having
.the Lhboratory treat fruit such as trances with a mild laxative
type drug by hypodermic needle or other araropriate m_thccl
and ship fruit as a drnittion from a fictitious person in
Florida to Jersey City headquarters

12-3::reau (!:'.!)
1- '.n Francisco
1-W:O (I:;:J)
4-Newark

(1-S-2 D S:.)

nC.^n

-cam)

Approved
Sp~t'Jr'~acnt,nk;hcNe

.sent  M
1).G,\'r.Mw.1,\T1'111."1 wr"rr11 rrlr
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This plan will at fist cause confusion and suspicion
within the 1.pP ai:d :"ill cause a tine-con uninr search for the
sender of the tcl^r_"cs Lven after Oakland denies sending the
telcran cc-^ IT r:-shiers will fear poisoning by donated fcod
and t::c cr::cy Glee ::'ac:-:;:arters will Le hardpressed to r..ahe sure
donated fad is not r,ico::Cd so:.:c Jersey City a r:bers
react to the ic.:::;tip a and suspect poisoning C'.::land will
suspect that sc:r:aose at Jersey City is a spy since o'.tously
some forehnowled;e of the event was Tres^nt at Jersey City but
not at Cahiand Confusion intra-CPP distrust and hunger
nt the upconin con':antion would be the :asults It `_ voted
the Jersey City I!ea::auarters has been Civen so;:e re neonsibility
for food collection in connection with the convention
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EXHIBIT32

i'ttt it

In ;rCi'ClICCG:1 L-71 lohr
Coin.:v! Cain i h!el
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ExHIBIT33

OfFICEOFTHEDIRECTOR

62-116395

UNITEDSTATESDEPARTMENTOF JUSTICE

FEDERALBUREAUOFINVESTIGATION

WASHINGTOND.C20535

U S SENATESELECTCOLiiSITTEETOSTUDY
GOVERNiENTALOPERATIOiNSWITHRESPECT

TO INTELLIGENCEACTIVITIES(3i3C)

RE i.U?UEDTFORINFOR:IATIONCONCERNING
THIS BUREAU'SOPERATIONOF INFOP.IANTS
III THEINTERNALSECURITYFIELD

Reference is made to SSCletter dated November7
1075 requesting a meworandumon this Bureau's operation of
informants in the internal security field

An informant according to the dictionary is
"one who gives information. In light of this definition
it is clear that very sew persons if any have not at one
time or another been informants To give information is an

inseparable part of life To give accurate sound and

helpful information for a worthy cause is to make one's
life more useful and valuable to society

Informants of the FBI are persons who furnish
necessary and vital information--information which is used
as a means of attaining justice Informants clear the
innocent as well as convict the guilty They serve of their
own free will None are forced Informants are as old as
the humanrace Their use is international History is
studded with many and varied examples of the uses of informants
No government or organized society has been without them

Informants provide one of the best and most complete
forms of coverage to the law enforcement officer Sometimes

they are the only means of penetrating subversive or extremist

organizations Informants are valuable because they obtain
information more directly and thus save time and money
they are useful in checking on the accuracy of information
from other informants and have been used to help develop
other informants they give a better understanding of the

motives objectives and intentions of subjects which allows
law enforcement to plan its investigative operations they
prevent or minimize damage to property and injury to law
enforcement officers and innocent persons they further the

development of independent evidence to corroborate informants
testimony or alleviate the need for inforw n testiaouy

and they become witnesses when necessary
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U S SENATESELECTCOLTMITTEETOSTUDYGOVERN:1ENTAL
OPERATIONSWITHRESPECTTO INTELLIGENCEACTIVITIES(SSC)

The development of informants is one of the most
difficult unique and specialized assignments Despite
the obstacles encountered in informant development Bureau
Agents have met and are continuing to meet with steady and
remarkable successes They regularly demonstrate vision
daring and commendableresourcefulness in this work The
Bureau today we believe has the best informant coverage in
its history

Wheninformation is received or developed that a
person has background qualifications indicative of informant
potential in an area where coverage is needed a case is
opened Office and Headquarters indices are reviewed and
other logical discreet checks are made including canvass of
logical sources to preliminarily establish the individual's
background reliability stability and integrity If the
preliminary checks are favorable the individual would be
interviewed to establish a personal assessment by a
Special Agent as to the person's qualifications potential
and willingness to assist this Bureau If the interview is
positive additional background investigation is conducted
to establish the person's reliability stability and
integrity Upon satisfactory completion of this investigation
the individual begins a development period with the handling
Agent and after establishing a proven record of reliability
stability and productiveness becomes a Headquarters approved
informant

The Bureau's informants particularly in the internal
security field have many restrictions imposed upon their
relationship with the Bureau For example they are impressed
with the confidential nature of their relationship with the
FBI that their actions arc strictly voluntary and tithe/are not _emp]otees If they are connected in any way with a
labor union they are informed that the Bureau is not
interested in an employee-employer relationship or if
connected with an institution of learning they are specifically
advised that the Bureau is not interested in the legitimate
activities of educational institutions In particular all
informants are instructed to avoid knowledge of defense plans
and strategy or discussion thereof with attorneys subjects
or-other individuals in any prosecution arising from intelligence
or criminal investigations In the event an informant is
unable to avoid obtaining such information this information

2
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U S SENATESELECTCOLILIITTEETO STUDYGOVERNMENTAL
OPERATIONSWITIIRESPECTTO INT1LLIGENCEACTIVITIES(SJC)

is not to be reported to the FBI A signed statement if
possible is obtained from each informant so that the informant
is aware of the Duren 's position in these matters (A copy
of the signed statement appears herein as Attachment number
one.)

From the time Special Agents enter NewAgent's
Class they are indoctrinated and trained in the legal
aspects of the Bureau's work as well as the scope and
limits of their authority The Manual of Rules and
Regulations specifically addresses the conduct of Special
Agents in their investigative duties (See Manual of Rules
and Regulations Attachment number two.) Training
continues in their offices of assignment each office having
a Legal Officer available for training consultation and
guidance Frequent extensive In-Service retraining
programs further bolster the Special Agents knowledge and
utilization of the law in the conduct of their official
duties Specifically informant development and handling
are extensively discussed in the FBI's training programs
and there is no question as to Special Agents being aware
that informants cannot be directed to perform a function
that the Special Agent may not legally perform Special
Agents are particularly reminded of the need to be alert
to plants potential agent provocateurs to be used against
law enforcement in a variety of ways so as to avoid
unfounded allegations of impropriety which may jeopardize
investigations or prosecutions as well as result in highly
publicized contrived incidents reflecting adversely on
law enforcement

Manyof our informants furnish needed and valuable
information on a gratuitous basis Manyare also paid for
their services Payments to informants are one of the most
highly supervised areas within Bureau operations When
a payment is made to an informant the handling Agent must
make a realistic determination as.to the value of theservices
performed by the informant Established Bureau procedure
requires that payments made to informants upon recommendation
of handling Agent and approval of appropriate supervisory
personnel originate from the office Field Support Account
and are drawn from this account by check made out to the
handling Agent for the amount authorized The handling
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Agent cashes the check at a local bank and then pays the
informant the authorized amount in cash for which a receipt
is received from the informant and maintained in FBI
files Although there is no overall memorandumof instruction
or document dealing with cost effectiveness as it relates to
informants this factor is considered by the Spedal Agent
handling th9_informant his supervisor and the Special Agent
in Charge Payments to informants for services are made
commensurate-with the value of information furnished and
for actual expenses incur ed in connection with obtaining
information fer the FBI Recommendations concerning
payments to informants on a regular basis receive careful
consideration at Headquarters level After analysis and
comparison with payments currently being made to other
informants operated under similar circumstances and providing
similar-type information authority is extended at Headquarters
to pay informants for services and expenses within prescribed
limits Whenpayments are authorized by Headquarters it
is the personal responsibility of each Special Agent in
Charge to definitely assure that full value is being received
His review is on an individual basis wherein he evaluates the
information received and the amount being recommendedby
the handling Agent for payment for this specific information
Additionally instructions provide that each Special Agent
in Charge is to insure that all pending informant files
are reviewed personally by appropriate supervisory personnel
on a regular periodic basis not to exceed a period of 60 days
This review includes but is not limited to assurance that
full value has been received for all payments made to
informants Also the entire informant program is subject
to annual review by our Inspection Staff which physically
examines informant files to assure that they arc being
handled properly and that payments are being made
commensurate with the value of information received

( In addition to the above controls and restrictions
information furnished from informants is constantly
sifted analyzed recorded and disseminated.] The information
is verified where possible through other sources and
individual investigation A system of checks is constantly
involved to prevent an informant from producing erroneous
information by accident or design

d
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Concerning warrants a warrant requirement for
the use o informants appears impractical and may be
unconstitutional It is impractical because probable cause
usually is not available when the informant technique is
initiated and the submission of an affidavit in application
for a warrant would increase the hazard of exposure of the
informant's identity Such a limitation might be unconstitutional
because it would limit the First Amendmentrights of the
informant to communicate with the Government.) Existing legal
restrictions require guided informants to recognize the same
legal limitations as would be applicable in the same circum
stances to those directing the informants An informant can
legally do no more than an Agent is permitted to do

The Bureau in the domestic intelligence area has under
investigation organizations most of which have numerous districts
regions offices sections chapters and clubs These organiza
tions and their subdivisions total over 1100 which receive
investigative attention to some extent These investigations
are afforded coverage by less than 1100 internal security
informants It must be recognized however that there are
other individuals who are in various stages of development in
this field Concerning payments one-half of one percent (.5%)
of the Bureau's budget (fiscal 1975) was utilized to pay all
types of security informants including those in the foreign
counterintelligence field

As noted the Bureau's utilization of informants
involves a high degree of care and supervision It is a
specific Bureau policy that an informant may only be
targeted against individuals or organizations of investigative
interest to the FBI It must be recognized however
informants furnish a wealth of related information which
comes to their attention during the course of their assigned
duties While operating against assigned targets the
associations necessary to maintain credibility may lead to
information concerning proposed or actual bombings arsons
violent demonstrations assassination plots a variety of
criminal activities and even location of fugitives They
also serve as listening posts in high crime and violence
prone areas and have contributed information directly
responsible for the arrests of 176 persons during fiscal
year 1975 Of this number G1 individuals were arrested
by FBI Agents and 47 FBI fugitives were located and
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apprehended Additionally the FBI located 442 persons
and other federal agencies located 21 individuals
Local and state law enforcement authorities located 94
persons During the same time frame internal security
informants provided information which led directly to
the recovery of property valued at approximately one-half
million dollars It must be further recognized that a
warrant requirement for use of informants would virtually
eliminate access of law enforcement to this collateral
information resulting in many crimes going unsolved or
not prevented

The FBI believes the elements of close
supervision restraint latitude and judgment are
essential in an informant program and it is further
believed that the proper'balance of these elements is
being utilized by the FBI successfully in the operation
of informants in the security field

Enclosures 2
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PD.4801741-75)

ATTACHMENTNO 1

I have voluntarily
agreed to cooperate with the Federal Bureau of Investigation in
a matter affecting the security of the UnitedStates I consider
it a patriotic duty to so cooperate and agree to maintain this
relationship in strict confidence I understand that I am not
a Federal employeeand will not represent myself as such I
further agree not to,,makeany disclosure or exploit in any way
information whichI may obtain or any activity in which I may
engageon behalf of the Federal Bureau of Investigation both
while I am actively associated with the Federal Bureau of
Investigationand thereafter unless authorized to do so by
the Bureau Also I have been instructed and understand that
consistent with the necessity to maintain the confidentiality
of my relationship with the FBI I should avoid knowledgeof
defense plans or strategy or discussion thereof with
attorneys subjects or other individuals in any prosecution
arising from intelligence or criminal investigations In the
event that I am unable to avoid such discussion or obtaining
such information I will not report it to the FBI

(Signed)

Witnessed
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PARTI IA

SECTIONI CONDUCTANDACTIVI'PIESOFEMPLOYEES

ATTACHMENTNO 2

3 Illegal Activities
Illegal activities on the part of any employee in addition to being
unlawful reflect on the integrity of the FBIand betray the trust and
confidenceplaced in it by the Americanpeople Furthermore unlawful
activities can disqualify himfor employmentby the Governmentof the
UnitedStates It is therefore expectedthat employeeswill obeynot only
the letter of the lawbut the spirit of the lawas well whetherthey be
engagedin transactions of a personal or official nature Withrespect to
investigative activities this admonitionparticularly applies to entrap
mentor the use of anyother improper illegal or unethical tactics in the
procurementof evidence In this regard it shouldbe especially noted that
in securing informationconcerningmail matter the Bureauwill not
tolerate a violation of law (Title 18 USC  1702 1703 1708 and 1709)
Furthermore employeesmustnot tamperwith interfere with or openmail
in violation of lawnor aid abet or condonethe openingof mail illegally
by any employeeof the U S Postal Service
Asmembersof a Federal investigative agency FBIemployeesmustat all
times zealously guardanddefend the rights and liberties guaranteedto
all individuals by the Constitution Therefore FBIemployeesmustnot
engagein any investigative activity whichcould abridge in anywaythe
rights guaranteedto a citizen of the UnitedStates by the Constitution
and underno circumstancesshall employeesof the FBIengagein anycon
duct whichmayresult in defamingthe character reputation integrityor dignity of any citizen or organization of citizens of the UnitedStates

Employeesmustnot install secret telephonesystemsor microphoneswithout
Bureauauthority
Nobrutality physical violence duress or intimidation of individuals by
our employeeswill be countenancednor will force be used greater than
that necessary to effect arrest or for self-defense

3
10-29-74
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EXHIBIT34

FRANKLIND ROOSEVELTLIBRARY

Official File 10-B Box 14

5/21/40 MemorandumFor J Edgar Hoover from Stephen Early
Secretary to the President

"Dear Mr Hoover

On May 18th at the President's suggestion I forwarded
to you a number of telegrams which came to him following the
delivery of his address on the subject of national defense before
the joint session of the Congress As the telegrams all were
more or less in opposition to national defense the President
thought you might like to look them over noting the names and
addresses of the senders

The attached telegrams are forwarded to you for the same
reason Will you please return them to this office when you
have finished with them.

"Enclosure [Numerous telegrams opposing the President's request
for additional defense.]

5/18/40 Memorandumfor J Edgar Hoover from Stephen Early
Secretary to the President

"I am sending you at the President's direction a number
of telegrams he has received since the delivery of his address
on the subject of national defense before the joint session of
the Congress yesterday These telegrams are all more or less
in opposition to national defense

"It was the President's idea that you might like to go over
these noting the names and addresses of the senders

Whenyou have done this will you kindly return the
original messages to the White House.

5/21/40 "Memorandumfor S.T E.

"Here are some more telegrams to send to Edgar Hoover

F D R.



453

[Attached is the following mimeographed:]

May 23 1940

"Memorandumfor Honorable J Edgar Hoover

The President asked me to show the attached telegrams
to you

Rudolph Forster
Executive Clerk

Telegrams from the following protesting armament defense program
etc [list of 30 names and addresses]

5/29/40 '"Respectfully referred to Honorable J Edgar Hoover...

Stephen Early Secretary to
the President

[5 names and addresses]

5/31/40 [Mimeographed - 38 names and cities] [Library reference]

"The following people sent telegrams to the President more
or less in opposition to national defense as presented by President
to the Congress 5/16/40 The telegrams were referred to J
Edgar Hoover FBI,5/18/40 for his information and were returned
5/25/40 with comment and reports.

[same - 35 names]

[same - 41 names]

[same - 17 names]



[36 telegrams expressing approval of Col Lindbergh's address]
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8/20/40 Personal and Confidential J Edgar Hoover to Ear\
By Special Messenger

"I am returning herewith various telegrams forwarded by
you during the months of Mayand June which were received by
the President in response to his radio address on the matter of
the nation's defense

"The contents thereof have been noted with interest and
I desire to thank you for forwarding these telegrams to me for
the information of this Bureau.

fi/12/40 "Memorandumfor General Watson

Will you prepare a nice letter to Edgar Hoover thankinghim for all the reports on investigations he has made and
tell him I appreciate the fine job he is doing

F.D.R.

6/14/40 "Dear Edgar

I have intended writing you for some time to thank you for
the many interesting and valuable reports that you have made
to me regarding the fast moving situations of the last few months

"You have done and are doing a wonderful job and I want
you to know of my gratification and appreciation.

6/11/50 "Memorandumfor J Edgar Hoover

The attached telegrams are referred to you for your
information

Stephen Early Secretary to the
President
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EXHIBIT35-1

3Trbrral Vurrau of lhnnratigatinn
3initrb states fdrpartmentof alustire

U1astiingWni3 QI

January 11 1946
P.rRSONALANDCONFIDENTIAL

Brigadier General Harry HawkinsVaughan
Military Aide to the President
The White House
Washington D C

Dear General Vaughan

I wanted to inform the President and you or a report that the
United People's Action Con;aittee of Philadelphia Pennsylvania has
agreed with two other organizations in Philadelphia to "march onn the
Capitol in Washington D C. and to take part in a mass demonstration
in ashington on January 17 1946 The purpose of these activities
is to agitate for the passage of a bill establishing a permanent Fair
EmploymentPractice Committee

The other two organizations involved are the Bi-Partisan
Committee for a 1"EPCand the Philadelphia Chapter of the National
Association for the Advancementof Colored People It might be noted
that the United People's Action Committee is reported to have Communist
influence in it

vjith regard to the agitation for the passage of a bill estab
lishing a permanent Fair EmploymentPractice Committee information has
been received from various parts of the country where the CommunistParty
is active that Communistelements are actively engaged in agitating
pressure campaigns to have such a bill enacted

In the event additional pertinent details are received in this
regard they will be brought to the President's and your attention

With assurances of my highest esteem and best regards

Sincerely yours

66-0770 76 30
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JOHNEDGARHOOVER
DIRECTOR

3rbrral iiureau of 1Imrrstigannn
31nitrbbtatrs Brpariment of 3usttre

u3as4ingtnn B at PERSONALANDCONFIDENTIAL
January 17 1946 BYSPECIALMESSENGER

Brigadier General Harry HawkinsVaughan
Military Aide to the President
The iifhite House
Washington D C

Dear General

I wanted to furnish the President and you with
information which I have received that a delegation of the
National Association for the Advancementof Colored People
plans to visit the White House on January 18 1946 for the
purpose of presenting ideas and requests to the President

It is said that the delegation will be composed of
persons attending a national meeting of the National Associa
tion for the Advancementof Colored People in Washington
D C. on January 17 and 18 1946 The meeting is scheduled
to discuss the establishment of a permanent Fair Employment
Practices Committee and methods of obtaining additional
recognition of Negro war veterans In at least one area
information has been received that Communistelements-are
interested in attending the national meeting and desire
to send a delegate to it

In the event additional pertinent details are
received in this regard I shall bring them to the President's
and your attention

With expressions of my highest esteem and best
regards

Sincerely yours



~rAertti+Durrnuof Investigation
Initeh Mates Department of Hnstir

Washington 25 D ft

May29 1946

HonorableGeorgeE Allen
Director
ReconstructionFinanceCorporation
'!fashingtonD C

DearGeorge

Gf01+GEmeeteeo 44

MAY31 1946 4
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EXHIBIT35-3

OFFICEOFTHEDIRECTOR

I wantedto informthe President andyou of the followinginformation
received froma reliable sourceconcerninga meetingheld by the Philadelphia
Chapterof the IndependentCitizens Committeeof the Arts Sciencesand Pro
fessions and the Philadelphia Citizens political ActionCommitteeat the Academy
of Musicin Philadelphia on May26 1946

It is reported that BenjaminPanell ExecutiveSecretgrr of the
Philadelphia Chapterof the IndependentCitizens Committeeof the Arts Sciences
andProfessions originally desired to haveA F Whitneyas speakerfor this
meetingbut that SenatorClaudePepperwassubsequentlychosenas the speakei
Jsoell is alleged to have edited the speechof Senator Peepermadeat the
meeting panell is alleged to be closely affiliated with the Ccmnunistpaw

At the meetingin question it is reported that SenatorPepperstated
that the stubbornattitude of managementand of the Goverzsnent'wasa fault in
the railroad strike crises and farther that the Governmenthad:not net the union
half way Hedeclared accordingto the report that the prepgsedlegislation
gave the powerof life or death over everyonein the UnitedStates and that
under it business the unionor the union leaders couldbe ruined Hecalled
'the proposedlegislation not only an anti-strike but an anti-liberal anti
labor and anti-civil rights type of bill Healleged it is part of a pattern
of reaction and intolerance whichis sweepingthe country and he reportedly
expressedthe hopethat if the Senatecould hold up the bill until the middle
of the weekMay26 June1 1946 it mouldbe defeated by the assertion of
the people's desires Hesaid that labor was the greatest organizedmilitant
movementin existence and he expressedgreat approvalof it

Withregard to foreign policy SenatorPepperis said to havedeclared
that the UnitedStates is drifting towardwar and that the UnitedStates and
British coalition against the Soviet Unionhas resulted in Russianot being
given access to the rest of the worldand in being given improperconsideration
Heclaimedthere will be a war sooner than the time whichelapsed betweenWorld
Tar I and brld war II if somethingis not doneto break the present *impasse
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HonorableGeorgeS Allen

SenatorPepperis said to haveclaimedthat the foreign policy of this country
is not expressive of Americanfeeling and the present battle for powerin
Germanyis strengthening that country's position until it will again be a
dangerouspowerin Europe Headvocateda division of Germany

SenatorPepperis reported to have stated that the Soviet Union
shouldhavea $2,000,000,000loan regardless of the type of governmentin that
country so long as there is a probability of repaymentandpeaceful purpose
Hesaid that this countrymust endeavorto see the Soviet point of viewand
showthe Soviet Unionweare its friend andnot its enemyand further not
to operate diplomacyas if it werea chess game

RepresentativeHughDelacyof Washingtonalso spokeat the above
describedmeeting discussing the proposedlabor legislation and the present
Governmentattitude claimingit comparableto the attitude in GermanyItaly
and Spainat the time of the ascensionof *Fascists to power Hesaid the
present bill is the longest step taken in any countrytowardmilitant Fascism
since the era of Hitler liberals he claimed mustorganize and fight on a
national scale Hesaid accordingto the report that the present United
States policy is being dictated by Hoover VandenbergByrnesand Churchill

OrsonWellsalso spoke declaring that strike breakingis the
beginningof the road to Fascismandthe onlydefense against it is to organize
aroundlabor Hestated that the meetingin question wasan "anti-Fascfat
meetingand that "Fascism maycometo America not becausereaction is so
strong but becauseprogressives are so weak

Themeetingis said to havebeen endorsedby Senator JosephGuffey
and Congressmaniilliam Greenof Philadelphia Amotionwasp4ssedthat each
personpresent wire or write their Congressmanand Senators td wipeout "the
plot against Democracy. It wasalso recommendedthat wires be sent to the
President expressingsuch sentimentsconcerninghimas wouldbe permitted by
the telegraph office

I thought the foregoinginformationwouldbe of interest in viewof
the reliable report to the effect that the IndependentCitizens Committeeof
the Arts SciencesandProfessions is lookeduponbyFire~Communistparty as
oneof its successful organizational attempts

Sincerely yours
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5eberal Nurean of Investigation
lfnitr~  tutee Bepartment of ;native

Illastlington 25 B C
December13 1946

HonorableGeorgeE Allen
Director
ReconstructionFinanceCorporation
WashingtonD C

DearGeorge

Asa matter of interest I felt the President and youwouldwant...t
to knowthat informationhas beenreceived by this Bureauconcerninga
threatened nation-widestrike by membersof the NationalFederation of
TelephoneWorkers(NFTW)scheduledto begin at 6:00 AuApril 7 1947. A
reliable confidential informanthas furnished the followinginformationre
garding this threatened strike

OnNovember4 1946at a meetingof the NFTWin Denver Colorado
all affiliated unions agreed to a national bargainingprogramwhichwould
embracethe majority of telephoneworkerspresently operating under thirty
three separate contracts mainlyin the Bell Telephonesystem This national
bargainingprogrampurportedlywill be inauguratedabout January1 1947
with the submissionof written demandsby memberunionsof the NFTWaddressed
to the managementof telephonecompaniesthroughoutthe UnitedStates

Actual negotiations are scheduledto begin approximatelyFebruary1
1947 with the AmericanTelephoneand TelegraphCompanyand large independent
telephonegroups such as the GeneralTelephoneSystem Thesenegotiations
will be undertakenon behalf of the NFrYby a newlycreated seven-member
CoordinatedBargainingCommittee Thedemandswhichwill include ten national
bargaining items are

Unionshopand check-offof union dues
Generalwageincreases whichwill dependon the wage-price
relationship existing next spring whenthe contracts expire
and howfar out of line telephoneworkers+wagesare with
wagesin other industries
Areadifferentials disparities in wagesin different regions
of the country particularly in the case of transferred employees
Lengthof progression schedules
Townwagedifferentials wherean effort will be madeto formulate
a uniformwagestructure on the basis of populationlevels of
cities and towns
Job descriptions for service assistants suchas wasachievedfor
traffic operators acting as supervisors in Washingtonand Indiana
Auniformjurisdiction clause in contracts to formulatea Bell
Systempolicy on preventingcable pulling and telephonewiring
of newbuildings by the International Brotherhoodof Electrical
Workers(AFL)on the principle of "telephoneworkfor telephone
nen
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Leavesof absencefor union officers
Improvedvacations for all employes particularly for
those with longer service
Pensions

In the event the union fails in its negotiations to effectuate the
aboveprogram its leaders will call uponmemberunionsapproximatelythe
first of March 1947to file strike intent notices with the LaborDepartment
in compliancewith the WarLaborDisputesActs 30-day^cooling-off^period
At this point a referendumwill be taken throughthe entire membershipof the
NFTWunionswhichhave filed suchnotices with the LaborDepartmentand if a
vote favorable to a walkoutis returned the I Whas already appointeda
fifty-memberpolicy committeeto havefull and sole powerto call a nation
widestrike at 6:00 AMon April 7 1947 or at a later date if deemedmore
desirable This policy committeeis composedof one representative fromeach
memberunion

Theinformantstated that in the event this contemplatedstrike
actually takes place it would in his opinion cause a nation-widetie-up of
all communicationfacilities Hebasedhis statement on the fact that practically
all telephoneunionshaveaffiliated with the NFTWHeindicated that the
notable exceptionsare the UnitedTelephoneOperatorsof NewYork an independent
union the Chicago-LoopTelephoneWorkers an affiliate of the International
Brotherhoodof Electrical Workers AFL the telephoneworkersof the State of
Montanawhoare affiliated with the International Brctherhoodof Electrical
Workers AFLand about 10,000telephoneworkerson the WestCoastwhohave
beenorganizedby the CIO

I will immediatelyforwardto youany additional informationwhich
is received concerningthis situation

,Sincerely yours



OFFICEOFTHEDIRECTOR

.461

EXHIBIT35-5

yeberttl Nureau of Investigation
Ttniteb gtates Bepartment of 7ustire

Illus4ington 25,B-C
February 15 1947

PERSONALANDCONFIDENTIAL
BYSPECIALMESSENGER

MajoeNoneral Harry Hawkins Vaughan
Military Aide to the President
The White House
Washington D C

Dear General Vaughan

I thought you would be interested in the following informa
tion which has been received from a highly confidential source with
which you are familiar

ThomasCorcoran is actively engaged in a program to effect
the appointment of former United States Senator ,kert LaFollette
as the Chairman of the Atomic e,nery Commission Corcoran is
predicating his action upe"Ienatortal opposition to Mr
Lilientl~gl's approval and has proposed through various channels

a of ette be named as the Chairman of the Commission
suggesting that Air Lilienthal might be approved as a member even
though he could not be approved as Chairman

Hr Corcoran has also been suggesting the designation of
Mr.._Ber.nardBaruch as Ambassador to London and is also endeavoring
to secure the appointment of one Vince L_anahan(phonetic) to a
vacancy currently existing on the United states Court of Claims

Detailed information concerning these items will be
furnished to you in the near future but I thought you would be
interested in a prompt report on these three situations

:Pith expressions of my highest esteem

Sincerely yours

(:l
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EXHIBIT35-6

'EOFTHEDIRECTOR

jfr?frral iurrtzu of Investigation

Unite  t era Department of Justin

Washington 25 B C

June 25 1947

PERSONALANDCONFIDENTIAL
BYSPECIALMESSENGER

Major General Harry HawkinsVaughan
Military Aide to the President
The White House
Washington D C

Dear General Vaughan

As of possible interest to the President
and you information has cometo the attention of
this Bureau from a confidential source indicating
that a scandal pertaining to sugar is brewing and
undoubtedly will becomepublic in the near future
Our informant expressed the opinion that this
scandal will be very embarrassing to the Democratic
Administration

With expressions of myhighest esteem
and best regards

Sincerely yours
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EXHIBIT35 7

O'1ICEOFTHEDIRECTOR

jlrberul Bureau of Inuestigatian
Itnifeil  tufes Department of Jusfire

Washington 25 B C

January27 1950

HonorableMatthewJ Connelly i'y.SO!AL.I.kDC:,;G'ID3:TIAL
Secretary to the President 1YSPECIAL..2S3hCZ
Thewhite House
TashingtonD C

:asrdear Ian Connelly

I thought youwouldlike to havethe following informationreceived
by this Bureaufroma very confidential sourcerega:"dinga recent meetingof
newscanerrepresentatives at Chicago Illinois held to formulateplans forn
o t' city campaignagainst organizedgambling

Accordingto this Bureau's source this meeting whichwasheld
several days ago wasattended b representatives of several independent
newspapers and at the meetingplans werereportedly madeto publish a series
of copyrightedstories pertaining to organizedgamblingandother racketeering
activities A considerable numberof undercover:menare reported to have been
e.aoloyedby the newspapersrepresented at the conferencefor the purposeof
securing data to be used in these stories Theseundercovermanare to work
with the ChicagoCrimeCoro,issionandwill be sent to various cities throughout
the countryto developinformationfor these stories Strong emphasiswas
placed on the importanceof developinginformationshoring the connectionof
racketeers with corrupt politicians in eachof the c'.ties to be treated in
this series of stories }

Thefirst of these stories is retorted to s cued for release
ebruary 12 or 13 1950 it deal with organizec ,:ahlirg and ita .

necticn with corrupt oliticians and aceordin_gt the Cu'eau's inforna..nt
it will be critical of the :!:.torte.=;eaeral and :rill i:alcde infcraetion
relating to his supposedcescciaticn and contacts with :oe:.oersof the under 
world particularly in XFesasCity :_issouri andwiti the President's supposed
association nit these individuals andtheir contribuAons to the Presidential
ca;:paien

Fromthe abovesource it leesalso been learned that the newspaper
representatives whoattended the abovemeetinghad inicr.::ationthat the
American.unicioal Associationhad exerted pressure on the Attorney :1eaeralto
bring about the issuance of invitations to its representatives to attend the
AttorneyGeneral's conferencein shingtonnext .antt and that the American
.unicipal Association intends to give publicity to the formerassociates of
the President Padof the AttorneyGeneralandto publicize the supposedfoothold
of organizedcrime in national politics
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Honorable;:atthewJ Connelly
Secretary to the President

This informationis being :wadeavailable to you as a natter of
interest It is also being furnished to the AttorneyGeneral

Withassurancesof myhighest regards

Sincerely
+
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EXHIBIT35-8

The AttolT.eyOeneral April 1 1944

John Edgar Hoover Director Federal Bureau of Investigation

NICCU.IO REDIN1

I have recently been advised in connection with t2+eRicolai O Redid
investigation that the State Departmentrepresentatives of the
magazinehave prepared a eezerandus to their editors in Newlurk based upon
infcrnation received at the State Department The uenorandumis as follows

eThe Specific charge against Lieutenant Rodinis that he
was purchasing the blueprints o. the destroyer tender +Yallow
atoao.i Re paid $100for one net and $200for another The
youngand obvicualy inerienced lieutenant failed to ascertain
the identity of the seller an officer in Naval Intelligence

'Twodays before the arrest was madethe Justice Department
asked the State epartneat whether there wouldbe any diplomatic
objections o the arrest The Justice Departmentwas told in
effect Arrest him by all meansif you have the goods on him
it he is convicted on atrcng evidence the Russians will disown
him and there will be no international re;;ercussions If on
the other hand he is acquitted the Russians will charge a
frame-up and begin arresting Americansin Pusria on similar
charges The Justice Departmentthinks they have an air
tight case against Rodin but the ettorney 0eeeralos,00nfidence
is not shared by other Governmentceperteents

"That Rodin was spying is obvious but if all hmwas able
to obtain were blueor'_nts of the ITellaestone,l hie levelers
eight moll plead that destroyer tenders of the Yellowstonetype
had been fully described in published and unrestricted :oafs
ants thyt his offense was technical rather than real Thera is
also a chance that with one ur two ;cveenist sympathizers on the
jury he eight be acquitted altogether

"I believe that Redinos cameis unique in that it is the
first arrest is the U S or possibly anywhereelse of a unites-Jed
officer of a friendly poweree anespienage charge  

The memorandumalso contains information to the effect that the
Attorney General had conferred with Jean Achesonof the State Department
whoauthorised the prosecution
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EXHIBIT35-9

Xy dear Ifr President

'Iy"'hai'tese to r atteationthatthe rational Lawyers
coil& is preparing'a'report attacking theJldsdaistratiea and
the Department of Justice in particular on the basis of the
reports of the Federal AMMOof Investigation made -public at
the espionage trial ef Judith Coplon in Vashiugtoa P.C...in.
Wi.*ard Tune of 1949

The proposed report will attack certain alleged practices
of the Federal Zareau'of Investigation cal vill recommendthat you
issue Isnediate17-adireetive ordering the Federal Bureau of Investi
gation toceass-risetapping mail opening. and illegal searches In
which according to the report the Bureau engages The prosased
directive'vould limit the jurisdiction of the 721 in internal security
cases and will re-uest that you direct a thorough investition of the
pro;rame practices policton r_adpersonnel of the V21 Me report
gill suggest that this invastieation be conducted by a group of dis
interested private citizens having by executive authority full access
to the files of the Fedora&1 renu of Investigation end plenary ?over*
of Tntorrcgition

It bas leen-Iearai3 that the National LeuyereGuild oeatas
pI*tes:s stational nablieity tampaign is behalf of the-report It.hae
been suggested that the release of the report should follow its deliver
to you and to me and that an attewpt will be made to arrange a conforms
with both of us. "he atiensl Lawyers Guild will seek the cooperstlea at
other bar groups end will Attempt to"enlist the support of-several well
blown names la the legal field d recommendationhas alto been ands wttaia
the rational Lawyers Mild to consider the possibility of judicial Pr
ceedinga to stop the shio3ed illegal and improper precticea.of the
Bureau of Investigation

ja"connection with this proposal of the National Zevy+rs
..Guild you will recall that on Hay 21 1940 President Poesevelt
.directed the Attorney General to authorise agents of the Federal
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Bureau of Investigation to secure information by means of wire 
tapping in limited types of cases relating to the national defense
This directive reader

5Toa-arm therefore authorised and directed An
such cases as you ms .approve after Investigation
of the need in each case to-authorize the necessary
investigating sweats that they are at liberty to
secure information by listening devices direct to
the conversation or other Qomounicatipns of persons
suspected of subversive activities against the
Gozsrnseatof the United States .inclnding,suspects$
spi*s Yonare requested turthersore to limit these
investigations so conducted to a::s*ni*u end to><lia:it
them insofar as possible to alien,.s

 year later in writing to-Congressman T E llist at a time
when Congress was considering legislation regarding wiretapping
President Roosevelt stated that it is the duty of our people to tab
every single step to protect themselves and he added*

eI have no compunction in saying that wire 
tapping should be used against those persons
not citizens of the United States and those
few citizens who are traitors to their country
who today are engaged in espionage or sabotage
against the United States.*

In replying to a recant attack upon the rederal Bureau of
Investigation and the employee loyalty program in the lederal Govern
ment in general Kr J 3dgar Hoover writing is the Tale law Journal
denied that wiretapping was used in the employee loyalty "7rogzsn and
asserted that while it is no secret that the Bureau does tee telephones
in a limited type of case this is done only with the express approval
in each instance of the Attorney General cal only In cases involving
espionage sabotage grave risks to the internal security of the nation
or eases in which humanlives are in jeopardy In the few cases which
have arisen in these categories mypredecessors have from tine to time
authorized the installation of technical interception devices This
fact has Seen freely acknowledgedby the several Attorneys General and
by the Director of the 7oderal Bureau of Investigation It is the
invariable practice of course in accordance with Section 605 of the
CommunicationsAct to make no prohibited disclosure of such intercepted
information

The report of the National lawyers Guild will purportedly
criticize the practice of the 7ederal Bureau of Investigation in
opening sail It has been the long standing practice of investigative
agencies to utilise mail covers This is entirely authorized by law
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Begarding the criticism of the"Burean.I4 respect to the alleged
illegal searches it is the practice of the P3I whenesr'possible
to procure warrants in advance of arrest It is only in the
unusual eases such as the Coplon case that an individual is
apprehended and searched in advance of procuring a warrant This
power is granted by statute.

In tier of the fact that representatives of the rational
lawyers Cuild or certain persons speaking in their behalf will
undoubtedly attempt to confer with you in the near future in regard
y tha.proposed;in estigation of the practices of the Federal Bureau
of Investigation 1 thought you should have the benefit of the facts
set forth injthia letter

kispeetfully

The rresident
The White Jots
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EXHIBIT35 10

OFFICEOFTHEDIRECTOR

5eberal Bureau of Investigation
Unitrb *fates Bepartment of 7ustire

31ias1lington25 B C

January14 1950
PEPSCHAL"sCONFIDENTIAL
BYSPECIALLLSSENG

MajorGeneralHarryHawkinsVaughan
Military Aide to the President
TheMite House
'fashington D C

DearGeneralVaughan

I believe that the President and youwill be interested in
the following informationconcerningthe proposedactivities of the
NationalLawyersGuild

Youwill recall that by letter dated December7 1949 the
AttorneyGeneraladvised the President that the National Iacrjers Guild
waspreparing a report attacking the Administration and the Department
of Justice in particular on the basis of the reports of this Bureau
madepublic at the Espionagetrial of,Jgdith Coplonlin:'iashington 0 C
in Mayand June 1949 In his letter of December7 1949 the AttorneyGeneralalso advised the President that the Guildwouldpossibly makean
attempt to arrange a conferencewith the President and the Attorney
Generalfollowingwhichthe report of the Guildmouldbe released

A confioenti.al sourcehas nee advised that the veport of
the National LawyersGuild has been practically completedand that
Mr MobertSilberstein of the Guildhad scheduleda press conference
on January13 1950 in connectionwith the Guild's report but had
changedhis mindand is nowattempting to arrange an appointmentwith
the President This source reported that in the event that Mr
Silberstein does not obtain an appointmentwith the President by
Tuesday January17 1950 he plans to arrange a press conferenceto
be held on January20 1950 at whichtime the National LawyersGuild
report will be released

:1ith expressions of myhighest esteem

Sincerely yours
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EXHIBIT36

POLITICALABUSEANDTHEFBI

STAFFREPORT

Introduction

The political abuse of the FBI did not begin in the 1960's

Although this Committee has concentrated its investigations on

the events of the 60's and 70's the story cannot be fully

understood by looking at just the last fifteen years Therefore

the first objective of this report is to lay out some of the

historical context for more recent political abuses of the Bureau

The second objective is to describe some of the results of

our investigation which show the various types of political

abuse to which the FBI is susceptible Somehave been in response
of

to the desires/the Bureau's superiors Others have been generated

by the Bureau itself And there is the added possibility suggested

by some of the documents we have seen and some of the witnesses we

have interviewed that certain political abuses resulted from

the inexorable dynamics of the FBI's intelligence gathering

process itself In other words that the FBI intelligence system

developed to a point where no one inside or outside the Bureau

was willing or able to tell the difference between legitimate
national security or law enforcement information and purely

political intelligence

Whether any particular abuse resulted from outside demands
from the FBI's own desires or from the nature of the intelligence
process is a question for the Committee to answer when all the

evidence is in
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Historical Background

The historical background of political abuse of the FBI

involves at least three dimensions The first is the Bureau's

subsurvience to the Presidency its willingness to carry out

White House requests without question WhenL Patrick Gray

as Acting FBI Director destroyed documents and gave FBI reports

to Presidential aides whomthe FBI should have been investigating

after the Watergate break-in he just carried to the extreme

an established practice of service to the White House The other

side of this practice was the Bureau's volunteering political

intelligence to its superiors not in response to any specific

request And the third historical dimension was the FBI's

concerted effort to promote its public image and discredit its

critics

Early examples of the Bureau's willingness to do the

President's bidding occur under Franklin D Roosevelt In 1940

it complied with a request to run name checks open files and

make reports on hundreds of persons who sent telegrams to the

President that were - to quote the letter from the President's

secretary to J Edgar Hoover - "all more or less in opposition
to national defense, or that expressed approval of Colonel

Charles Lindbergh's criticism of the President

Another example came to light in recent years when Major
General Harry Vaughn who was President Truman's military aide
disclosed that President Roosevelt had ordered wiretaps on the
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home telephones of his closest aides Shortly after Hr

Truman had taken office someone had presented General Vaughn

with transcripts of the wiretaps He took them to President

Truman who said according to General Vaughn "I don't have

time for that foolishness. This story is generally confirmed

by the Committee staff's inquiry into J Edgar Hoover's

"Official and Confidential Files, where an index to the logs

of these wiretaps was located

Historical illustrations of the FBI's practice of volun

teering political intelligence to its superiors appear in

virtually every Administration President Roosevelt's Attorney

General Francis Biddle recalled in his autobiography how J

Edgar Hoover shared with him some of the "intimate details

of what his fellow Cabinet members did and said "their likes

and dislikes their weaknesses and their associations.

Attorney General Biddle confessed that he enjoyed hearing these

derogatory and sometimes "embarrassing stories and that Director

Hoover "knewhow to flatter his superior.

President Truman and his aides received regular letters

from Hoover labeled "Personal and Confidential and containing
tid-bits of political intelligence Sometimes they reported
on possible Communist influence behind various lobbying efforts
such as activities in support of civil rights legislation
On other occasions they reported allegations that a Communist

sympathizer had helped write a Senator's speech and inside
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information about the negotiating position of a non-communist

labor union Someof the letters were undoubtedly of political

value to the President One related the activities of a former

Roosevelt aide who was trying to influence the TrumanAdministration's

appointments Another advised that the FBI had learned from a

confidential source that a "scandal was brewing and that it

would be "very embarrassing to the Democratic Administration.

A third contained the report of a "very confidential source

about a meeting of newspaper representatives in Chicago to plan

publication of a series of stories exposing organized crime and

corrupt politicians The stories were going to be critical of the

Attorney General and the President The TrumanWhite !louse also

received a copy of an FBI memorandumreporting the contents of

an in-house communication ,from Newsweekmagazine renorters to

their editors about a story they had obtained from the State

Department

An example from the Eisenhower Administration shows how

White House requests and FBI initiative were sometimes mixed
Director

together President Eisenhower asked/Hoover to brief the Cabinet

on racial tensions in early 1956 What the Cabinet received

was a report not only on incidents of violence but also on

the activities of Southern Governors and Congressmen in groups

opposing integration as well as the role of Communists in

civil rights lobbying efforts and the NAACP'splans to push for

legislation No one appears to have questioned the propriety
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of the FBI reporting such political intelligence or Director

Hoover's competence to do so

The third source of abuse throughout the Bureau's history

was its concern for its image and hostility to any critics

One example each from the Truman and Eisenhower years shows

how the Bureau checked and reported on its critics In 1949

the National Lawyers Guild planned to issue a report denouncing

FBI surveillance activities revealed in a court case The FBI

provided the Attorney General advance information from its

sources about the Lawyers Guild plans as well as a full report

on everything about the group in Bureau files Attorney General

HowardMcGrath passed the reports on to the President and

J Edgar Hoover advised the White House directly about last

minute changes in the Guild's plans The FBI's inside infor

mation gave the Attorney General the opportunity to prepare a

rebuttal well in advance of the expected criticism

The second instance took place in 1960 when the Tennessee

Advisory Committee to the U.S Civil Rights Commission announced

it would investigate charges by the Knoxville Area Human

Relations Council that federal agencies including the FBI

were practicing racial discrimination The FBI conducted name

checks on the eleven membersof the Council's board of directors

The results were sent to Attorney General William Rogers

Deputy Attorney General Lawrence Walsh and Special Assistant

to the Attorney General Harold R Tyler Jr Derogatory
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information on four of these individuals included allegations

of subversive connections from as far back as the late 30's

and early 40's an allegation that one board memberhad "corrupt

political associates in 1946 and the characterization of

another as having "unorthodox attitudes and sending flowers

and "mash notes to a womanin his church The FBI's report

also made the flat statement "As you know this Bureau does

not practice acial segregation or discrimination. (The

Committee will recall that it has previously received information

as to the number of black FBI agents in the early 1960's.)

Thus the Bureau's more distant history shows the develop

ment of its political services for higher authorities and its

concern for its own political position

2 "NameCheck Abuses

The staff's investigation of alleged abuses in the 1960's

and 70's discloses a wide variety of questionable "name

checks sometimes for Presidents and sometimes

in the Bureau's own interest
An examination of these "name check reports shores the

peculiarly damaging nature of the Bureau's practice No new

investigation was done to verify the allegations stored away

for years in FBI files Anything anyone ever told the FBI

about the individual was pulled together including charges

that the Bureau may never have substantiated FBI files

inevitably include misinformation because people bear grudges
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or make mistakes Sometimes the Bureau verifies the charge

but frequently there is no reason to do so and it is just

recorded in the files Such charges can be retrieved by a

"name check and reported without further substantiation

The request by the Nixon White House for a "name check

on CBScorrespondent Daniel Schorr which the FBI turned into

a full field investigation has been examined extensively

elsewhere Tie staff has determined that President Johnson

asked for "name check reports on at least seven other journalists

including NBCcommentator David Brinkley Associated Press

reporter Peter Arnett and columnist Joseph Kraft

Another political abuse of FBI "name checks occurred in

the closing days of the 1964 Presidential election campaign

when Johnson aide Bill Moyers asked the Bureau to report on all

person's employed in Senator Goldwater's office Moyers has

publicly recounted his role in the incident and his account is

confirmed by FBI documents

Someof President Johnson's requests parallel those of

President Roosevelt twenty-five years earlier The FBI complied

with White House requests for name checks on dozens of persons

who signed telegrams critical of U.S Vietnam policy in 1965

The names of other Presidential critics were also sent to the

Bureau to be checked and reported on as were the names of
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critics of the Warren Commission The FBI also volunteered

reports on Presidential critics

The White House requests for "name checks are episodic

in comparison to the "name checks conducted as a matter of

systematic Bureau policy for the use of FBI Director Hoover

The Crime Records Division prepared "name check memoranda
Director

for/Hoover regularly on Congressmen other public officials

and prominent,persons of interest to the Director Manyof

these special memorandawere filed by the Crime Records Division
Director

Others found their way into/Hoover's "Official and Confidential

Files. The Committee staff has located in these "0 and C

files such special memorandaon the author of a critical book

about the FBI and on all the members of the Senate Subcommittee

chaired by Senator Long which threatened to investigate the

FBI in the mid-1960's Someof these "name check reports and

special memorandacontained derogatory information and in the

case of the author information from his income tax returns and

personal information about his wife The reports on membersof

the Long Committee were compiled in a briefing book with tabs

on each Senator

Therefore these incidents demonstrate the potential for
abuse inherent in the Bureau's unregulated "name check procedure
White House requests by-passed the Attorney General and the
FBI Director's own requests took place totally within the Bureau
The real meaning of the long-standing fear that the FBI had
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so-called "dossiers on Congressmen and other prominent persons

was that FBI officials could have "name check reports pre

pared for his use on anyone he desired to knowmore about

3 Abuse of FBI Investigative Powers

The next category is abuse of the

FBI's investigative powers There is a vivid example under the

Kennedy Administration involving the FBI's late night and early

morning inteririews of a Steel Companyexecutive and several

reporters who had written stories about the Steel executive

Former Assistant FBI Director Courtney Evans who was informal

liaison with Attorney General Kennedy has told the Committee

that he was given no reason for the request

Another example arises out of the Bobby Baker case

In 1965 the FBI declined a request of the Justice Department

Criminal Division to "wire avitness in the investigation of

former Johnson Senate aide Bobby Baker Although the FBI

refused on grounds that there was not adequate security the

Criminal Division had the Bureau of Narcotics in the Treasury

Department "wire the witness as a legitimate alternative

Whenthe Baker trial began in 1967 this became known Presi

dential aide Marvin Watson told the FBI that President Johnson

was quite "exercised and the FBI was ordered to conduct a

discrete "run-down on the head of the Criminal Division in

1965 and four persons in Treasury and the Narcotics Bureau

including specifically any associations with former Attorney
General Robert Kennedy

Another incident occurred in 1966 when Mr Watson re
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quested that the FBI monitor the televised hearings of the

Senate Foreign Relations Committee on Vietnam and prepare a

memorandumcomparing statements of Senators Fulbright and

Morse with "the CommunistParty Line.

At the request of President Johnson made directly to

FBI executive Cartha DeLoach the FBI passed purely political

intelligence about United States Senators to the White House

which was obtxained as a by-product of otherwise legitimate

national security electronic surveillance of foreign intel

ligence targets This practice also continued under the Nixon

Administration at the request of Mr H R Haldeman

It is more difficult to place the label "abuse auto

matically on Presidential requests for electronic surveillance

to investigate leaks of classified information Attorney

General Kennedy authorized wiretaps in 1962 on NewYork Times

reporter Hanson Baldwin and his secretary and they lasted for

about one month The wiretaps under the Nixon Administration

of journalists and current or former White House and other

Executive officials have been widely publicized The staff's

inquiry into this matter has determined that according to

available records at least one of these wiretaps had nothing
to do with "leaks and was conducted solely for personal infor

mation about the target Nevertheless the wiretapping to
and KAT?FN6p1C

investigate "leaks under Attorney General Kennedynand of

President Roosevelt's aides .were undoubtedly precedents J Edgar
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Hoover had in mind when he told President Nixon and Dr

Kissinger in 1969 that wiretaps had been used for these

purposes in the past

Another abuse of FBI investigative powers under the

Johnson Administration was the surveillance conducted at
I

1964 Democratic National Convention in Atlantic City The

most sensitive details of the plans and tactics of persons

supporting the Mississippi Freedom Democratic Party delegate

challenge went to the White House from the FBI's wiretap
on Dr King and other types of FBI surveillance The re

sponsible White House official at the time Mr Walter Jenkins

has told the Committee that he can recall no political use

made of these reports Nevertheless an unsigned document has

been located at the Johnson Library recording at least one

political use of Mr DeLoach's phone reports

As Theodore H White's account of the 1964 campaign makes

clear the most important single issue that might have disturbed

President Johnson at the Atlantic City Convention was the

Mississippi challenge And the FBI's own inquiry into the

Atlantic City events reports several FBI agents recollection

that one purpose of the Bureau operation was to help avoid

"embarrassment to the President. The Committee must weigh all

the evidence in deciding whether this abuse of the FBI resulted

from a White House request from FBI officials volunteering in

formation to serve and please the President or from a legitimate
civil disorders intelligence operation which got out of hand
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because no one was willing to shut off the political intel

ligence by-product

It should also be noted that an aide to Vice President

Hubert Humphreycontacted the FBI to request assistance at the

1968 Chicago convention Nothing appears to have come of this

request largely because Attorney General RamseyClark turned

down FBI requests for authorization to wiretap protest demon

stration leadcrs at the Chicago convention

Finally there are two additional examples of political

abuse of the FBI or by the FBI in the 1970's In July 1971

three months after the supposed end of FBI COINTELPROoperations

the FBI leaked to a newsmanderogatory public record informa

tion about Daniel Ellsberg's lawyer Copies of the article

were sent to the Attorney General the Deputy Attorney General

and Presidential aide H R Haldeman with the specific

approval of Director Hoover with no indication it was generated

by the FBI In May 1970 the FBI provided Vice President

Agnewat his request with derogatory public record information

and other allegations about Rev Ralph David Abernathy

the President of the Southern Christian Leadership Conference

This occurred following a telephone conversation

between Director Hoover and Mr Agnewduring which according
to FBI records the Vice President "said he thought
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to have to start destroying Abernathy's credibility.

Thus in summary political abuse of the FBI and by the

FBI has extended over the years through Administrations of

both parties
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ADDENDUMTOSTAFFREPORTONPOLITICALABUSEANDTHEFBI The

Johnson Administration and Mrs Anna Chennault

According to materials provided to the Committee by the

FBI President Johnson asked the FBI to conduct physical
PEONrh'i'r 'e'Cre(rC/''i/ ,L'. p/9DfQsurveillance of Mrs Anna Chennault/1on October 30 1968 in

the final days of the election campaign The FBI instituted

this surveillance to cover her activities in Washington,-D.C.
and NewYork City The results of this physical surveillance

were disseminated to J Bromley Smith Executive Secretary of

the National Security Council who had conveyed Johnson's

request to Cartha DeLoachof the FBI On November7 1968

Smith called DeLoach and stated that President Johnson wanted

the FBI to abandon its physical surveillance of Mrs Chennault

On November13 1968 at the instruction of President

Johnson the FBI checked the toll call telephone records in

Albv uerque NewMexico to determine if Vice Presidential

candidate Spiro Agnewhad called Mrs Chennault or the South

Vietnamese Embassy on November2 1968 when he was in Albuquerque
No such records were located President Johnson was furnished

with this information on November13 1968 Also the arrival

and departure times of Agnewin and out of Albuquerque on

November2 1968 were verified at the request of the White

House
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The FBI has reviewed its files on this matter and has

advised that the apparent reason the White House was inter

ested in the activities of Mrs Chennault and Spiro Agnewwas

to determine whether the South Vietnamese had secretly been

in touch with supporters of Presidential candidate Nixon

possibly through Mrs Chennault as President Johnson was

apparently suspicious that the South Vietnamese were trying

to sabotage his peace negotiations in the hope that Nixon

would win the election and then take a harder line towards

North Vietnam

The FBI also states that physical surveillance of Mrs

Chennault was consistent with FBI responsibilities to determine

if her activities were in violation of certain provisions of

the Foreign Agents Registration Act (Section 601 et seq.

Title 22 USC)and of the Neutrality Act (Section 953

Title 18 USC)

(Further details of these events involving electronic

surveillance remain classified "Top Secret".)
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SECONDADDENDUMTOSTAFFREPORTONPOLITICALABUSEANDTHEFBI

Additional Electronic Surveiallance

In addition to the wiretap on NewYork Times

reporter Hanson Baldwin in 1962 the Committee has

received materials from the FBI reflecting authorization

by Attorney General Robert Kennedy of a wiretap on a

reporter for Newsweekmagazine in 1961 during the investi

gation of another,leak of classified information9
Further materials reflect authorization by Attorney

General Nicholas Katzenbach of a wiretap on the editor

of an anti-Communist newsletter in 1965 also during the

investigation of a leak of classified information

The Committee has received materials from the

FBI reflecting authorization by Attorney General Robert

F Kennedy of wiretaps on at least six American citizens

including three Executive Branch officials a Congressional

staff member and two registered lobbying agents for

foreign interests The materials also reflect that these

wiretaps related to an investigation of efforts by

foreign interests to influence United States economic

policies
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EXHIBIT37

July 6 1971

Mr Mohr

Re LEONARDB BOUDIN
ATTORNEYFORDANIELELLSBERG

By memorandumR D Cotter to C D Brennan
dated June 28 1971 it was recommendedand approved that
pertinent information concerning Boudin's sympathyfor
communist causes be used in connection,withthe Mass MediaProgram i

Infozmationconcerning the sympathyof Boudinfor communist
causes his legal services in behalf of an accused soviet espionage agent
and his position as legal representative of the Castro CubanGovernment
in this countryfor a decade was called to the attention of Ray McHugh
Chier of the WashingtonBureau CopleyNewsService by the Crime
Records Division Attached is a copyof a release prepared by McHugh
dated July 1 1971 concerning Boudin This news release certainly puts
Boudinin his proper light as a communist and soviet apologist

ACTION

For information

Enc T E Bishop

REC"3

,22 JUL 1S71

'

7L.,J :Ail-MVP

r r .',o
_ .cf 'Pr \ I '! Ll(l31I
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CJ,rv3ELATIUNAL
BYRAYACHUGA
CHIEFWASHINGTONoOHEJ.0
COPLEYNEWSSERVICE

WAsII7JG'TON--THEATTORNEYFORDAVIDELLSoERGINTHECASEOF ...

u..:PU:iLOINEJPENTAGONPAPERSHASFIGUREDFORMORETHAN3uYEARSIN
OJVE,t:JNiiiTINVESTIGATIONSOFALLEGEDCoAiiNISTANDCONHUNIST-FHoNT
o:TGA:.IZATIUNS

NOVAVISITINGPROFESSORONCONSTITUTIUSALLA'SATHARVARD
D>.iVEREiTYLEONARDb bOUDINFOR20 YEARSHC;OEENGENERAL
CUUNHEL--bUT40T.AHEMSER--OFTHEEMERGENCYCIVILLIDERTIESCOHI:ITTEE
I %THASbLNCITEDASACUMUNISIFRONTORGANIZATIONoYTnEHOUSE
COi-,ITTEEONUNAAERICANACTIVITIESLIESENATEINTERNALSECURITY
oUoCU..,tIiEEEANDbyFbIDIRECTORJ EDGARHOOVii

30001S'SDAUGHTERKATHYIS WANTEDONANVI WARRANTINCONNEDTICA
l::'T.iINVESTIGATIONOFTHEACTIVITIES0! Tn:WEATHERAANFACTIONOFTN.
NADICALSTUDENTSFORAUZNOCHATICSOCIETYSHEWASAHHESTEODURING
a15TUJWANCESATTHEDEMOCRATICCONVENTIONINCHICAGOIN1966
AOJ:I2DURINGWEATYEHHEN'S"DAYSOFRAGEINCHICAGOINOCTOBER
OF1969 SHEHASbEENAISSI"NGSINCETHE&ARCH6 1970DOMD
EKPLuSIONINAGREENWICHVILLAGETOWNHU:JSEINWHICHTHREE+EATHERMEV

....ERsUIEO

'iI1 DAUGHTERALSOIS ONEOFTHECO-AUTHORSOFTHE"DUST
BOOK.,ALt;GALHANODOOKDESIGNEDTOHELPNEWLIFTACTIVISTS

UODUIN'SNEWYORKCITYLAWFIRNREPRESENT?FIDELCASTHO
ANJTnECUoAIJGOVERNMENTINALLLITIGATIONANDLEGALPRODLEASINSIDE
7. UNITEDSTATESANDbOUDINHASHADESEVERALTRIPSTOCUoA

rEHASDENIEDUNDEROATHINACONGRESSIONALHEARINGTHATHEISA
..iEDEHOFTEECU.(MUNISTPARTY

INHISDUOK"::ASTERSOFDECEIT,FDIJINECTORJ EDGARHOOVEN
oNTSTHELEtIONCYCIVILLIDERTIESCONNITTEETOOKOVERTHEWORKOFTHE
D:.0CIVILHIGHISCONGRESS"AWELL-KNOWN7RONT.

"4kUCTOHER1951 THEDAILYWuAKEROANNOUNCEDTHEFORMATIONOF
NE'LiNoINCYCIVILLIDERTIESCONHITTEEWITH15UiOONDEH4(FRO&

c o

'ti

~J~ 6f

E'l"O
,'nayaJ 1375 ETATES>INCLUDINGSOWHOWENSEDUCATORSCLERGYMENANDPROFESSIONALS

_ .NV:..tai<uIE
Irsl "ONEOFTHECuMAIfTEESFIRSTOFFICIAL4OVESWASTOPETITIONTHE

.,,.ii(DA'iECU.1AIUSIONER(iFEDUCATIONTO 'FONDIDTHENEWYORK
-i. i,Anuui EOUCATIUNFHOAENFGRCIRLIITSNEWLYENACTE:i..ANON

66-0770 76 32
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SUSrECiJ COi;.AUNISTTEACHE'RS....~~
"1N 1956TnESENATEINTERNALSECURITYS;UCOMAITTEEAFTER

IDENTIFYINGTHEEMERGENCYCIVILLIBERTIESCOMMITTEESTATED
'U:IENTHEC0.',WNISTPARTYITSELFIS UNDERFIRETHESEFRONTSOFFER.
AOULWAREOFPROTECTION.

"TEENAMES0 THEGROUP'SISOFOUNDERSNAVEBEENEXPLOITEDBY
TOEPARTYTOFIGHTITSbATTLES.

bOUJINOASDEFENSEATTORNEYINTHE1950 ESIONAGETRIALOFJUJIT11
COPLUNTHE"DAILYWuROER,ACO:IMUNISTNEWSPAt'ERIDENTIFIED
ni ASONEOFTHEATTORNEYSFORPAULRO0ESONINTEESINi;ER'S
1955Ul0FORAPASSPORTRObESONWASLONGREGARDEDASACOMMUNIST
SY.'?ATRIZEN

bOU:.iNALSOWASANATTORNEYFORTHEVETERANSOFTHEASRAHAN
LINCOLNbOIGADEINANUNSUCCESSFUL1FFORTTONAVETHATGROUP
RENOVEJFINSTOEATTORNEYE5GENERAL'SLISTOFSUUERVISIVE
ORGANIZATIONS

EISNA'SALSOHASBEENCONNECTEDWITHANUMBEROFOTHER
ALLEGEDCO00UNISTFRONTGROUPSINCLUDINGTHEAMERICANCOMMITTEE
FORTHEFOREIGNBORN1956;'TNEAMERICARUSSIAINSTITUTE1944
THEJEFFERSONSCHOOLOFSOCIALSCIENCETIENATIONALCOUNCILAi:EHICAN
SOVIETFHIENOSHIPANDTHENATIONALCOUNCILOFTOEARTSSCIENCESAND
?HOF'ESSIJNS

ONSEVERALOCCASIONSb0UDINHASPEENPUBLICLYIDENTIFIEDASAN
OFFICIALOFTHENATIONALLANYERSGUILDTHZHOUSECOTNITTEEUN
UA-AMENICANACTIVITIESIN1950CALLEDTHEGUIL)"THEFOAEAJST
LEGALSULUARXOFTHECOMMUNIST.,PARTY,ITSFRONTORGANIZATIONSAND
THECONTROLLEDUNIONS.

IN1968HISRAREAPPEAREDASASPONSOROFANADIATHENEU
YORXTINEDSOLICITATING.CONTRISUTIONSFORTAELEGALEXPENSESGF
uLACTPAA'in.RLEADERELDR(IDGECLEAVEi

ACCUIIOOiiOTOWASHINGTONSOURCESRISFIRSTIDENTIFICATION.ITH
LTTISICAUSESCAMEIN1938WHENHEPUBLISHEDANARTICLEIN "NEW
u,w.+ IN19'41HISNAMEAPPEAREDASASIGNEROFAPETITIONT3
eN,S!DENTeNANXLIND ROOSEVELTSUPPORTINGANDDEFENJINUTHE
COE'IUNISTPARTYUSA

7/1Pll-E:;"1(R:U--73:':1EDT

SALA?



DATE2/26/68
`vg}y

Attachedis a memorandumsettingforthpublicsource
informationconcerningBoudin'sactivitiesover the years TheWhite
HouseandAttorneyGeneralhavebeenadvised
RECOMMENDATION

Thatapprovalbe givento furnishingthe attachedinfor
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FROM M A./J6'r

TO Mr Bishtlp'`

UN711:1)S,IA1ESUO (NMMEN

Memorandum

SUBJECTLEONARDB BOUDIN
ATTORNEYFORDR BENJAMINSPOCK
INFORMATIONCONCERNING

LeonardB Boudinof the firm of Rabinowitzand
Boudin NewYorkCity is listed as Spock'sAttorneyof Recordin
connectionwithSpock'srecent indictmentfor conspiringto violate
the SelectiveServiceAct

L or.-WDBoudinis wellknownto the Bureau Heis

nr ^ }''-100

mationto oneof our friendlynewspapercontacts

SEP6
..~

'"-r1 "r1.r

1 Mr DeLoach

Enclosure
1 Mr Bishop Enclosure
1 Mr Gale Enclosure
1 Mr Sullivan Enclosure

(7)

A+'1"j .4
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EXHIBIT38-1

9:49All May 18 1970

M111,:023NDIPI FC:t 7'':_'-LSON
Ma I :3 WACH
MIL .:EN
MR VAN
MR IiIc.IICP

Vice rrcside:lt piro A:',,newcalled Ile said be v-antedto talk to
nie atcut to see couldbe of sore assistance f:e
said :;c was j ceneeraod the contlaukteIsfia-arnatory pro
rrour.ce:aeatsof Rar. b.-Aberntiti:y Tcoraeieated LIEShe is one of the
worst The Vice Prosldert said seen son:a of the I-acIt,yound:nelerial
oa hi_a aid Le at...orsw..at t is but it is terond the pale as far as executive
use iu colt:ere .i He a:lid In viewof c rat wet on in Augustaanti other ntaces
it is imrrortant to have the iafsrmation that revolved aroand this U...involl.e
ment of v.:at information we have whether fleeing from loottr.g
or wbat is ',:oinrun ;le as::eti if there 4s 2.'lyinformationavailale

I told hlol we arc worltial oa theae at Ciepresent time both in
Au:r,usta Atlanta.ad.iaeltson veretae recent derAo9strationohave taken
Place 6(t  L /2e /oar

7> /e,7c./,r r *4.,cei ;Gt.). ,exe;".r.'// e.o/ .44t"0

I sa:4 the aame is true at Saa::soaae there are allemtioas of a
at the trosea before ti"ry fired xis :ie.rsaia Weare tr.terviowlitzall

w;%ohad an :.t.e.owle,.""2.Lititylentset cetera d(:4,eTe0 /91 ''e.,LP-4.A.tj
7/7 oe /Pe) X ,77-c42 ?> r"0 7-. 4 f",ce.j/A 6 co,i.,a  

.iw;uleat :'.tLtata ant J=1c:son It will pro':ably
be another we: Lc:ere we will rave tse prolih-uriaryrteoorts , 

(;C'e 7-4 /.r -"Aj /en.) of"er X.e.4f 7r.t .7> 4c MA
~/JT.i It /j.f.,cis ic /17,J1.11'J 6'e''OK.0/4_

a-4
---

MAY20 1970
.TEH:edni(3)

 tic;,;rr 2 2 12 'il'f=
.-,::i'':TP:erO
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May 16 1970

Memorandumfor essrs Tolson Dol,oach Rosen :iullivaa Bishop
1).ce7"e0 /!J P 7 ,/. l 7'D 0/J c vsSon) /tie. /Le< ,--c

/ l AG,J / J7' .L e   ,. vJj/d.^~O (~een.s/,o

The Vice Presi:ient said whatlie wants to be able to do is bring
oat some f ct the media convenientlyoverlooked I :saidthey never give
the thincs that are Lein, done cot trucUvc_y manyti;e by students to
try to prevent ts:ia but they cr p:iasizs all the tiiinz,sthese jerks are doing

The Vice Pre ideet said he saw a picture about Auvsta shovdng
some of the '""cerc:es ju:nnir:gout c:`store r.'ineowsKith loot and booty and
flccin^ and you ::r+er an,-thin a :out that fle said whatever i can wive
hire that cal a-leliorate :;o.ne of ti}ei:~,ract teat hoeaderstanda some of
tllece thih"a are v:"rc> add we .ire ;:orvrto find some of t':c shootings
showedtoo o1uchforce but ::ore the less the people have to understand
the very thrust of Ue :1ev...spaperzrt:ciss is that a _uachof police shot down
six Ire^roes and v.:1,at l:?"?pencdbefore - whydid they shoot at them - not
just t.ccause they felt Ll:ekilUn people I said they were severely provoked

and we will finish Augusta Atlanta andJackson this week
bee.erc.J /J do e-n.,Nom_ _...IJlJE.""JJ'O-) -t,er Awec..reo

i

77  LAC/.AL ..Dfr.//t./S?-~~ J ,.v isf,JJ/J",)rrJ 0 he/LC/4

destroying .lbernat y's credibility so anythingI can give hiin wouldbe
The vice l'resident said he thou:^lithe was {aid to have to start

appreciated I told id:n f wouldhe clad to ewe ..,sJ 4~e< .7'0
D/rc 'De OA //Lea ; Obi E.-4eC cLtii /2(it.//frc

D  /4/2 r., C ./rye /</,vc
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..fay 18 1870

Memorandumfor Messrs Tolson Del ouch Posen iullivan Bishop

(7QACTci) .37,/
e/l.'lTe

J 7~i 2)i 1c .i1S io J 8)4.

p. 717,7/1 r L .irNC.a IGI.v .f~.

The Vice President s2id he wouldIiieeto be thnrowNy conversant
with all of tl.at because if the crisis cores where)we need to throw it i:e
will I told tin i v-o;adret it orcr in tho neat 2i to hours as to the Li .
lights The Vice i resit:lentthan!:edme

Very truly yours

John Edgar Hoover
Director
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EXHIBIT38 2

UNITEDSTATES:_)VI;RNMENT

Memorandum

Lo Mr W C Sullivan DATE5/18/70

rkum C C
Moore`-/

SUIJECrRALPHDAVIDABERNATHY
RACIALMATTERS

Pursuant to the request madeby t )e Director
today (5/18/70) there is attached information for the
Vice President regarding militant statements by Ralph
David Abernathy the President of the Southern Christian
Leadership Conference which statements invite violence

Information is also included to the Vice President
regarding an incident involving [dr,-.;a+,.y re,:,,{ v(c~nr,ti~~~

On 5/18/70 Abernathy announceda march against
violence brutality and killing at Atlanta Georgia on
Saturday 5/23/70 At this march the namesof the Nation's
"Ten Most UnwantedPoliticians will be revealed

ACTION

If you approve the attached letter will be sent
to the Vice President

Enclosures.!-c-:-L

&--'4-/.'24/
70JUN 3 -1OT(
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(8)
NOTE

See memorandumG C Moore to W C Sullivan dnted
5/18/70 captioned "Ralph David Abernathy Racial Flatter::,
repared by
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EXHIBIT38-3

May 19 1970

BYLIAISON

Honorable Spiro T L ew
The Vice President
Washington D C

Dear Mr Vice President

In response to your request there is attached
information regarding militant statements by Ralph David__
Abernathy who although he advocates nonviolence has
invited violence by some of his Ytatements The material
also includes infornntion about Ors {~w41-e1,fe,
`derc5nAc_y P,:n1tc recd<1 \n4crrn,:~o~

and his support of the Black Panther
Party

For your information Abernathy on May18 1970
annpunced a march against violence brutality and killing
to be held in Atlanta Georgia on Saturday Play 23 1970
Abernathy said that the names of the Nation's "Ten Most
Unwanted Politicians will be revealed during this march

IENCLOSURE

Enclosure

Sincerely yours

MAY20 1970
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EXHIBIT39

l;Nl'IEnSIA\'rESCt) LRN..ILNI

II/cinoraizdi,:;it

u Mr Mohr DATEAugust29 196'el

R ^ C D DeLoach

MUCCISPECIALSQUAD
ATLANTICCITY NEWJERSEY
DEMOCRATICNATIONALCONVENTION
AUGUST22 AUGUST28 1064

MAJORACCO?.IPLISIIMENTS

Liconnectionwiththe assignmentofthe special squadto AllanticCity
NewJersey 8/22-23/64at the directionof the President I Nrishto report the successA:i
r.osplctionof this assignment 13ymeansof informantcoverage byuse of various
confidentialtechniques by infiltrationof keygroupsthroughuse ofundercoveragents
ndthroughutilizationof agentsusingappropriatecover as reporters viewereaoie to

keepthe Whiterouse fullyapprised of all major developmentsdaringthe Convention's
coD"ce

For example throughinformantcoverageandbycontrollingthe
ailuation wewere able to preventa potentiallyexplosivestall-in andsit-in demon
,trationplannedbyACTand j BycounselingMessrs Jenkins Carter
indMoyers 'ae convincedthem that they must makemajor changesin controlling
almisstonsintothe ConventionHall andtherebyprecludeinfiltrationof tineillegal
MississippiFreedomDemocraticParty (MFDP)delegatesin large numbersintothe
pace reserved for the regular Mississippidelegates Throu,itour countcrinlelligence
.fforts Jenkins et al. were able to ad ise the Prrsideut in acv-anteregordinemajor
nailsof tinel'.il'DPdelegates The WhiteHouseconsideredthis ofgrime importance

Throughour highlyconfidentialcoverageof MarlinLutherICing1Lto^ether withsimilar coveraaeweeglahlichndontheheadquartersof
'ORE-SNCC,ve were in a positionto advise the WhiteHousein advanceof all plans
Hate y h e .hvosources in an effort to disrupt the orderlyprogress of the Converiioc
Phiscoveragewashighlyeffective

COVERAGEHIGHLIGHTS

}% I feel this squadoperatedvery effectively Squadmembersaveraged
a'exce$s,ofpigJllhours overtimedaily Theyapproachedeachassignmentas a

U4t Thislineamentisprrlmredinresponsetoyourrequest(1101isnotfoedimemi

~t flotiononl.4,trpoorCommillrrIt,:,':eis limitedtooffirinlp,oceeding.sby
E u YourCommitteeantithecontactmaynotbedisclosedlounauakoricdperson

?hel_withouttheexpress_approvaLohail _

CONTINUED-OVER
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DeLosacllto Mohr
R SpecialSquad AtlanticCity NewJersey

DemocraticNationalConvention
August22-28 l9u4

challengeandwithenthusiasm The Agentswere constantlyalert to exploit
opportunitiesfor penetrationof keydissidentgroupsin AtlanticCityandto suggest
counter measures for anyplans to disrupt the Convention

Our informantcoverageworkedparticularlywell WithBureauapproval
I institutedcoveragesimilar to that onKin onCORE-SNCCheadquartersa_
their AtlanticAvenuemeetinghall Our successfully
penetratedthe headquartersof the MFPDdelegationat the Gen Idiotelandthe head
quarters for their strategy meetings whichwas locatedin the basementof the Union
BaptistTempleChurch

Additionally weutilize l a hj,^,;hhvsuccessfulcover throughcooperation
ofthe furnishedus
credentials I selected

several
membersof the squadto utilizethis cover

As an c.,.:. o of c-_ t was able to gainthe __aritteae

Our "reporter was so successful in fact that
r 'offthe .."i d ii>fe-rrmlsien=forbackgroundpurposes whichhe requestedour
'.L,1orLernot to print

One,ofour successfullyestablishedcontact
with _ Saturdaynight August22nd andmaintainedthis relationship
j.brouehoutthe course ofthe entire Convention By midweek he hadbecomeoneof

confidants This of course provedto be a highlyvaluablesource of
intelligence since wasconstantlytrying to incite racial groupsto violence

^IC)S I[IA.I)N Or T..:.ZrORIATION

Duringour Conventioncoverage wedisseminated'14pagesof
intelligencedata to WalterJenkins Attachedfor your informationis a copyofthese
dailysummaries ~ccitiona ly I ept JenkinsandMoyersconstanhlti d by
.rglephoneof minuteby minuteclevelo~imentsThis enabledthemto makespot decisions
andto adjust-Conventionplans to meetpotentialproblemsbeforeserious trouble
developed

In connectionwithcommunicationsas youknow wearrangedfor a
leased line betweenthe Bureauandour controlpost in AtlanticCity Wealso
establisheda Olivateline for exclusiveuse by our informants
vy` informantsdispatchedfrom other cities andNewarkinformantscse_
lh phoneito'rcylbmittheir oral reports This post was of course mannedona
24=fiourbasis

2 CONTINUED-OVER
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DeLoachto Mohr
ItF Special Squad AtlanticCity NewJersey

DemocraticNationalConvention,Democratic
22-23 1964

Duringthe periodwhenthe Conventionwasactuallyin progress we
establisheda secondarycommandpost at the ConventionHallRotundaoperatedbyan
Agentusinghis "reporter cover As youknow the boardwalkwasthe center of
agitationbydissident elements Throughoutthe course ofthe Conventionpickets
were active inthe area immediatelyin front of the ConventionHallentrance We
necessarily kept these peopleunder close observation

PRELID9INARYPREPARATION

Prior to the squad's departure fenAtlanticCity wesecuredall
availablepertinentbackgroundinformationonthe dissidentgroupsandtheir leaders
whowere expectedto be present In addition wetookblindmemorandawithus which
were prepared andapprovedprior to our departure This provedmosthelpful On
Wedne`daymornimg,Jdr Jen'cie urgentlyrequestedbackgroundinformationof

whohet withinthe
PiFDPdelegation The WhiteHousealso requesteda blindmemorandumon

Within15minutesofthe request the
dO"\erihiiyvltme ,e"i,ri"iwe:4-fu-ratishedto Jenkins Hewashighlypleasedandsaid
th~~vas_ofvital inntortanceto their operation as youwill recall has an arrestreffrd

Wealso prepared thumbnailsketchesonall keydissidcAt.groups_expectedat the Conventionandwe maintainedseparate files onthe activitiesofKing Communist
Party groups area hoodlums informants the MEDIandother groups This was
donein order that wecouldmaintainseparate runningaccountsoneachmajordisruptive
organizationwhichwaspresent

,IAISON

Onarrival in AtlanticCitywe immediatelyestablishednecessary liaison
withthe Secret Service AtlanticCityPolice Department NevJersey SlateHighway
PatrQlandvith the mendirectingConventionactivities Wealso establishedcontacts
withi to arrange for courier service betweentheSealofGovernment
andour headquarters iiiAtlanticCity

DAILYCOUNTERMEASURESBYSPECIALSQUAD

As an exampleof the typeof problemsencounteredbythis special
qtrin AtlanticCity followingis a brief resume of someof the situationsuhiick

de( ivedduringthe Convention.
1 `~ 3 CONTINUED-OVER
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I)eLoachto Mohr
RE SpecialSquad AtlanticCity NewJersey

)emoc.ralicNationalConvention
August22-28 1969

MondayAugust24 1064

OnSundaymorning August23 1964 we locateda truck onPacific
Avenuecarrying a burned-outcar a hug burlap-wrappedcross anda large church
bell RumorssweptAtlanticCitythat the car was actuallythe oneusedbySchwernc
GoodmanandChancy Shortlyafter its appearancethis truck wasplacedona parkin
lot close by ConventionHall Wequicklyestablishedthe fraudulencyofthese rumors
andthroughpolicecontactswethwartedthe racial group'splansto paradethis burned
car throughAtlanticCity streets

OnMonday wefurnishedMr Jenkinsdetails regardingthe plansof
CORE the AmericanNaziParty the StudentNon-violentCoordinatingCommitteeand
initialplans of the lviFDP

Aonrouriateofficialsworenotifiedofthe intentionof the Negroracial
(groupsto establish a silent vigil on the boardweltat the mainentranceto Uonvent:on
Hall This vigilwas to be_jnaintaineduntil a report was issuedby the Credentials
Cornmi y*arttThgthe seatingof the MFDPdelegates

Tuesday August25 1964

Jenkinswas advisedthat MartinLutherKinghadprevailedupon/
to cometo AtlanticCitythat day Wealerted WhileRouserepresentatives

regardingcompromiseproposals for seatingof the IvIFDPandfurnishedthew intoraig:ta.
regardingplans of the Progressive Laborvtovcun,migroups !{CTandother dissident
organizations MartinLuther 1<inattemptedto arrange a rendezvouswitha

of PiiiladoOur sources reported that SNCCandCOREwere
attemptingto secure ickets to gin entrance to ConventionHall Througha hignly
confidentialsource it was learned that COREandSNCChadbeenadvisedthat the
President wasbringingpressure to bear onthe delegatesof 15states to precludetheir
supportof a moveto bring the Mississippidelegatesissue to the floor of the Convention

Wed day August_261064

/ Wesubmittedreports reflectingthat the militantmembersof IvIFDP
./ der the leadershipof were revoltingagainstthe leadershipof Martin
Luther Kingand WeadvisedJenkinsthat the MFDPdelegateshadflatly
rejected the conipi;omiseproposalto seat the MFDPdelegation Wereportedthat

'') qi.I 1 1'.la

1'l11

4 CONTINUED-OVER
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l)eLoachto Mohr
111' SpecialSquad AtlanticCity NewJersey

DemocraticNationalConvention
August22-28 1964

/as attemptingto promotea stall-in to blockaccess to
ConventionHall was instructedby to planthis
demonstrationandthroughour controlof himwewere ableto Cuip[etelythwart

Wealso alerted the WhiteHousein advanceregardingthe telegramprepared
byACTdemandingamnestyfor Harlem rioters andfor Federal registrars to police
Negrovotingin the South

Li consultationwithConventionplanners wepointedoutserious cars
in controllingadmissionto ConventionHallwhichhadpermittedentranceof dissident
elementsonthe Conventionfloor Jenkins immediatelyplacedthese recommendations
intoeffect

Thursday August27 1964

AtlanticCityearly Thursdaymorning andappropriateofficialswere advisedof this
.Wealsoreported efforts of CORE-SNCCleaders to secureuniformsof the Young
G :ens for Johnsonhroups tiTITtoutilize themfor gainingentranceintoConvention
111te Wewere able to report that the numberofparticipantsof the silent visit would
dwindlerapidly Althoughthe demonstrationsquieteddownThursdaynight wewere
heavilyinvolvedin chec;:ingout the reports that a four-mangroupofPuerto Rican
terrorists from'NewYorkwere in AtlanticCityin an attemptto assassinate the
President

MISCELLANEOUS

For the benefitof the DomesticIntelligenceandCenral Investigative
Divisions separate Incmorandaare beingsubmittedregardinginfomantcoverage I
am also recommendingletters of appreciationto cooperativeindividualswhoseefforts
facilitatedthe squad's workinAtlanticCity

INFORMANTACTIVI'T'IES

Inconnectionwithour Conventioncoverage the specialsquadutilized
the followingsources

Lv~   ,-It3hsymbolnumberinformantsfrom otheroffices
confidentialsources from other offices

06T 05 liaison source
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iiLoye to Mohr
E ecial Squad AtlanticCity NewJersey

mocraticNationalConvention
August22-28 1904

technicalsources
especialagentsworkingin an undercovercapacity
'Negro informants
:establishedsources in the AtlanticCityarea
AtlanticCity informant.- ex 4rP.. i
'AtlanticCitySecurityinformants

Our source from was in the innerplanningcircles
Anothersource the Progressive Labor Movementdelegates o

llantic City Althoughthe organization_wasinactive wehad sources in tile
coups A Newarkinformantserved ofSNCC-CORE

'IIGANIZATIONSINATLANTICCITY

There was ca 1.5 cparat rga,.za,tc,. act  
llantic Cityduringthe course of the Convention The leadinggroupsincluded

% MississippiFreedomDemocraticParty (MFDP)
Councilof FederatedOrganizations(COFO)
Congressof RacialEquality(CORE)
StudentNon-violentCoordinatingCommittee(SNCC)
ACT
IndependentCitizensCommittee
AmericanNaziParty
WhiteParty ofAmerica
W E B DuRots Clubs
CommunistParty USA
Women'sInternationalLeaguefor Peace andFreedom
TheProgressive Labor Movement

ECOMMENDATIONS

(1) The majorityof the followingpersonnelaveragedovereighthoursper
ayduringthe fivedays the special squadwashandlingits responsibilities They
perated in a very competentfashionandit is therefore recommendedthat letters
c{n1w~enatioi ov ,11qDirector's signaturebe consideredfor them If approved vies
1~4i~8in1lfdep iat1 l bythe AdministrativeDivision (Aseparate memorandum

) OCTl 1215
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DcLoachto Mohr
IUE,,1SpecialSquad AtlanticCity NewJersey

DemocraticNationalConvention
\dAugust 22-20 1964

beingfurnishedthe AdministrativeDivisionregardingthe specificdutieshandledby
these employees.)

(2) A numberof the followingemployeeshadonlyminorduties inasmuc:
as theyWerenotused full-time onthe special squad however in viewofthe quietand
efficientmannerin whichthey handledtheir responsibilities letters are believed
deserved

W,-"̀ _'ii_J FROM

~" ocr 1 nl;l
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L h to r,1o),r
li:`J(~ecialSquad AtlanticCity NewJersey

DemocraticNationalConvention
August22-28 1964

(3) It is recommendedthat letters from the Director be givento the
.,llowingpersonnelwhoassisted materially in the success ofthis operation

OGf1 1915
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EXHIBIT40-1
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Memorandum

MR CALLAIIAN non January 29 1975

FROM H N BASSETTI`a

suuJECrSPECIALSQUADAT DEMOCRATICNATIONALCONVENTION
ATLANTICCITY NEWJERSEY 8/22 28/64

Reference is mado to my previous.memorandumcaptionedas above
dated 1/28/75 (copyattached) That whichfollowselaborates somewhaton
various elements of our special coverage of the 1964Democratic National Con
vention (DNC)and amplifies certain aspects of our operations therein

A review of Bureau file on the Mississippi Freedom Demo
cratic Party (MFDP)indicates the file was openedto reply to a request from
Walter Jenkins Special Assistant to President Johnson for a name check on
MFDPand certain persons connectedtherewith Ile was advised "FBI has
never conductedan invest ation of the MFDPand its files contain no record
of it. Results of name checks on certain indivicbalswere set forth tetherwith public source data from the 7/21/64 edition of the WashingtonPost and

 an-inquiry matt by the Wash-in tonFieldOffice on 7/21/64 at the local office
ofthe MFDP on general information on its objectivesaid identity of its staff
members This mfonuationwas set forth in a blind memorandumto Mr
Jenkins dated 7/22/64

On 8/21/61 responding to a request dated 8/19/64 from Mr John
Doar of the Civil Rights Division of the Department memorandawere sent to
DeputyAttorney General Katrcnbach Door had requested name checks on 40
persons in the I\71'DPleadership and conventiondelegationmembers The
mennnnula slalom "'This O;:rau has at: (0thLteu:my investigill.ionconcerning
the lalissi:;sipg]ifreedom Deliacratic Hartynor has it taken ally steps to identify
party members.

= It should be noted that three civil rights workers whotraveled to
Mississippi were discovered missing on 6/22/64 and iheir autoniobile found
burned on 6/23/64 On 6/21/6.1Presides l Johnsonwas advised of these facts
and requested tote kept aware of all aspects of the investigationwhichhad
been requested by the Civil 11iyyirtsDivi::!onof the Departmentof Justice of the
FBI The three beAliesof these workers were foundIhereafter on 8/4/64
On 8/23/64 a'flat-bc:),Iru "Itwith a burned car on it appeared in Atlantic CityNewJersey and it wasA't'1IgOdto be the automobileof the three murdered

Enclosure A/rnrit.-!e~.1 Messrs. .'1
(7)

 ;/,!uoNTINui.,r) OVER
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Memorandumto Mr Callahan
Re Special Squadat Democratic National Convention

Atlantic City New Jersey 8/22 28/64

civil rights workers in Mississippi Furthermore information was received
that the parents of one of these individuals wouldappear at a rally during the
DNC

On 8/25/64 Assistant Director Cartha DeLoachtelephoneda memorandum
to Mr Mohr from Atlantic City to the effect information from Walter Jenkins
apd informants indicated the question of seating the MFDPdelegates was expected
to reach the floor of the DNCthe evening of 8/25/64 He said "The crucial point
of the conventionin so far as possible violence is concerned will occur between
4:30 p.m and 6:30 p.m this afternoon If the Mississippi Freedom Democratic
Party is not seated then the unruly elements within the Negro group will possibly
attempt to deinoustrate DeLoachindicated that every effort was being extended
to cover developmentspertinent to this possible violent situation

There followsunder appropriate caption in seminary form information
relative to our coverage at the DNC

COVERAGERELATIVETO POTENTIALCIVILUNREST
DFMO 11TRATIONSANDPOSSIBLEVIOLENCE

A review of the summaries furnished to Walter Jenkins by Mr DeLoach
during the DNCindicates over 25 separate entries dealing with demonstrations
insofar as their times places groups involved number of participants and
general nature thereof were concerned A great majority of the Bureau person
nel still on active duty whowere assigned to this special squad in Atlantic City
have indicated that the attaining of intelligence information relative to possible
violent civil disorders was the primary purpose of their efforts during the DNC

Our coverage in this regard was lia:elledthroughextei ive informant
coverage at Atlaidie City as a result of inform Lionreceived from informants
in other parts of the counti as well Additiu! ly we utilized Agents in various
undercover capacities to (h..elop such information Furthermore a great deal
of information in this regard was in fact received as a result of the technical
coverage ttilized Where appropriate the information obtainedwas disseminated
to the U S Secret Service and other intoreslctt law enforcement agencies as  

well

ACTIVITIESRELATIVETO '1'IIEl.'FO'1"ECT!0OF THE PRESIDENT

ql:,Areview of the interviews of the previously mentionedspecial squad
personnel still onactive dutyIns indicated thai a majority of them fell that their

tl 1).l 2 CONTINUED OVER
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Memorandumto Pdr Callahan
Re Special Squadat Democratic National Convention

Atlantic City New Jersey 8/22 213/64

assignment in part was related to.the augmentingof the U S Secret.Service in
sofar as the protection of the President was concerned One Agent indicated
that Bureau personnel did in fact actively assist in the protection of the
President and his family while they were at the DNC

A review of Bureau file Captioned"Disruption of Democratic
National Convention Information Concerning (Internal Security) did not reveal
any information directly relating to the prote,etionof the President

A review of the DeLoachsummaries to Mr Jenkins indicated one
instance where a demonstration was planned to take place upon the President's
arrival at conventionhall and another incident which revealed a breach of
security whichallowed an individual to enter the conventionhall and proceed
directly to the podiumarea This information was furnished immediately to
the U S Secret Service

Information is contained in the interviews of the former special squad
personnel that FBI Agents were utilized in supplementing U S Secret Service
personnel on the conventionhall floor

INI''OlZttfATIONDf L  VLC}PE-D-OFPOSSIBLEPOLITICALSIGNIFICANCE

A further review of the DeLoachsummaries revealed approximately
20 separate items whichdo not appear to relate directly with possible civil
unrest demonstrat ons or with the protection of the President These items
were developedas a result of the various types of coverage we had at the DNC
but a great number thereof were obtained through our technical coverage A
sampling of these items includes the following

2 Informant information received that Congressman Adam Clayton
Powell was carrying a revolver

Informant information relative to National Assdciation for the
Advancementof Colored People planninga meeting at a church

Informant relative to King's speaking before various state delegations

90 :t0liiI CONTINUED OVER
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Memorandumto Mr Callahan
Re Special Squadat Democratic National Convention

Atlantic City NewJersey 8/22 28/64

5 Information that the Congress of Racial Equality headquarters in
Atlantic City was attempting to have Congressman Charles Diggs office in
Detroit Michigan picketed claiming he was "shakey.

Allegations in the press that the coverage of the 113Iwas used to
followthe activities of Attorney General Robert F Kennedywere not substantiated
in any way by file reviews

A review of the statements furnished by the special squad personnel
includes various instances where they relate a portion of their overall purpose
was to insure that there was nothingwhichwould"embarrass the President.
One Agent indicated that DcLoachplaced emphasis on the fact that the
President did not wish to be euil;arrassed in any way and tliat,lnformation was
to be gathered whialiwouldassure that there ~ `

Two statements were furnished by
in this regard One states "I wouldlike to state that at no time did

I ever consider the above to be a political operation but it was obviousthat
DeLoachwantedlo impress Jenkins and Moyers with the Bureau's ability to
develop information whichwouldhe of interest to them Furthermore in
response to a question as to whether the Bureau's services were being utilized

ifor political reasons answered "No I do recall however that
on one occasi?.0I was present when DeLoachheld a lengthy telephone conversa
tion alilNWilltciaJenkins Theyappeared to be discussing the President's 'image.

4 CONTINUED OVER
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EXHIBIT40 2

Memorandumto Mr Callahan
Re Special Squadat Democratic National Convention
 Atlantic City NewJersey 8/22 28/64

At the end of the conversation DeLoachtold us something to the effect 'that
may have soundeda little political to you but this doesn't do the Bureau any
harm."

Other Agentpersonnel on the special squad indicated in the negative
insofar as the above question is concerned

DISSEMINATION

In addition to the summary memoranda furnished by DeLoachto
Mr Jenkins information is contained in Bureau file 100-442527 cited above
that some of the same informationwas included in daily letters to the White
Houseand the Attorney General on current Racial Developments There was
similar dissemination made to U S Secret Service military intelligence
agencies and local authorities on a selected basis

RECOMMENDEDACTION

For information It shouldbe noted the information contained
herein setting forth that the WhiteHouseand the Department made requests
in 1964for infornui^tinTi i Bureau files concerning the MFDPhas been

incorporated into a separate LIIMbeing prepared for the DeputyAttorney
General

f

0_0 fiII I
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Memorandumto Mr Callahan
Re Special Squadat Democratic National Convention

Atlantic City New Jersey 8/22 28/G4

The only information located in Bureau files concerning
the special squad in Atlantic City was an eight-page memorandum (copyattached)
with enclosure located in the file of DeLoach This is a memorandum from
DeLoachto Mohr dated 8/29/64 which sets forth that in connectionwith the
assignment of the special squad in Atlantic City at the direction of the President
DeLoacltwished to report the successful completionof this assignment He
states that by means of informant coverage use of various confidential tech
niques infiltration of key groups through use of undercover agents and through
utilization of Agents using appropriate cover as reporters we were able to

(keepthe WhiteHouse fully apprised of all major developments DeLoachalso
advised that 'immediate liaison was established in Atlantic City with Secret
Service as well as state and local police

This memorandum refers to highly confidential coverage of Martin Luther
i Kingand Bayard liustin along with similar coverage established on the lead

quarters of the Congress of Racial Equality (CORE) StudentNonviolent
CoordinatingCommittee (SNCC) DeLoachstates he was able to advise the

^White)lnjise in ar)vnnrr 9falLplans made by these two sources and coverage
was highlyeffective DeLoachadvises "with Bureau approval he instituted 1
coverage on CORE SNCCheadquarters at their meeting hall and out

penetrated the headquarters of the Mississippi Freeuom
Democratic Party (twoseparate factions were contesting seats for the Mississippi
delegation and was a highlight of the convention)and through cooperation with the
managementof news our Agentswere furnished press credentials
DeLoachreported that 44 pages of intelligence data was disseminated to Walter
Jenkins at the White !louse and to his memorandumhe attached a copy of these
daily summaries dated 13,24 25 26 27/t A. Tl:csa summaries are in effect
a running log of developments whichtook place at tiie convention DeLoachalso
states he arranged for a lease line betweenthe control post at Atlantic Cityand
the Bureau He concludes the memorandumby making recommendations that
personnel involved namely 27 Agents one radio maintenance technician and
two stenographers of the NewarkOffice be commended Mr Hoovernoted
DeLoachShouldreceive a meritorious award

Bureau file serial reflects a memorandum from Mr
Hooverwherein Walter W Jenkins Special Assistant to the President called
and stated the President wanted Jenkins to call the Director to express the

QCf,f

3G1275

J.~
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Memorandumto Mr Callahan
Re Special Squadat Democratic National Convention

Atlantic City New Jersey 8/22 28/64

thought the job the Bureau had done in Atlantic City was one of the finest the
President had ever seen According to this memorandum Jenkins told Mr
Hoover there were a lot of bad elements up there and because of the work
some of the Bureau people did they knewexactly where theywere and what

they were doing and consequently they were not able to be very effective

A thorough review of Bureau records includinga review of abstracts
of Mr Hoover Mr Tolson Mr Moiir.`as well as Mr DeLoach faded to
locate any memorandum or other documentpertaining to a request havingbeen
received from President Johnson or anyoneat the WhiteHouse instructing

 'tliat-mMrd specirt-coverace at the convention It should be noted that
at this time DeLoachwas responsible for liaison with the White Houseand had
a direct line at his residence to the President so it well may be that this request
was made directly to DeLoachwhoin turn discussed it orally with Mr Hoover
or Mr Tolson but for one reason or another the request was never put in
writing

STATEMENTSOF SPECIALSQUADPERSONNELSTILLONACTIVEDUTY

O 1/20/71:ithe Inspection Divisiondirected a teletype "iiicorporating
12 questions to the 19 Agents and one radio maintenance technician whoare
still on active duty and were withDeLoachat Atlantic City These questions
were designed to have the participating personnel furnish us with their recol
lection as to their duties and involvementat Atlantic City Detailed responses
were promptly received and all personnel acknowledgedtheir participation en
the special squad under DeLoach's leadership at the convention All responded
there was no question in their mind at the time but that they were in Atlantic
City to fulfill the FBI's jurisdictional responsibilities and they did not feel that
the purpose of the special squad was political in nature Basically the instruc
tions to the Agents v.ee to develop advance information regarding any acts cr
intended acts of violence pertaining to civil disturbances that could arise during

6 CONTINUED OVER
"F ii
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PERSONAL

HonorableWilliam D Moyers
Special Assistant to the President
The WhiteHouse
Washington D C 20501

Dear "Bishop

Thankyou for your very thoughtfuland
generous note concerning our operation in Atlantic City
Please be assured that it was a pleasure and privilege
to be able to be of assistance to the President and all
the boys that were with me felt honored in being selected
for the assignment

I think everything workedout well and
Pm c 4 at we were able to come through
wi vital tidb om time to time whichwere of
assis ance to youand Walter Youknowyou have only
to call on us whena similar situation arises

Thankyou again for taking time out of your
busy day to write to me and I hope we can get together
soon

Sincerely

510

EXHIBIT41

September 10 1964

COPY

LYNDON3AINESJOHNSONLIBRA
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Attached are summary memoranda setting forth pertincht

inforluatlon contained in 17E1files concerning tne following individuals 4

The files of the FDI contain no oert.inent data with
reoocct 'Lo _

)1V

&Index-6y yours

yA a

(8)

November 0 1966
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BY Ll=i,l

Honora!;le :Iarvinatsoa
.,:.,if 7,lt to Lie f';..c.:ident

The Ilem.,e

Viat..on

T:cfercnee-io rnzc.;cto your rm.1c,L;t iho authors
of books Coaling  ,ith tila---a_5j'siliaLion of f-'resident It"ennee-.Y _ .1

1
A copy of this communication has not been sent to the

.*-ActingAttorney General

1C
o Nov 1966

..::,nclosurcs (11)
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EXHIBIT43

AMERICANTELEPHONE ANDTELEGRAPp?3 trTf I1 57
2000 L STREETNORTHWEST:cILcrct:,J"i OUIIlLLJC ffcrr,'rria

ALLANC.9HARRCTT 202 466-5600
September 17 1975

Mr MikeEpstein
Staff Member
SenateSelect Committee

on Intelligence Operations
308Dirksen Senate OfficeBuilding
Washington D C Z0510

Dear Mike

This is in response to your inquiry regarding the installation of private
lines from Atlantic City NewJersey to the WhiteHouseduring the August 1964
Democratic NationalConvention

Private lines for security purposes were established from the F B.I
and Secret Service temporary communication'scenter in Atlantic City to the
F.B.I Headquarters in Washington D C and to the WhiteHouseP B X
Wehad no indicationof any improper or unlawfuluse of such service

Sincerely
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EXHIBIT44

The Attorney General Soptcmbor 2 1965

Director YI

Fr-er:'..T'TI^ AKZ)DTS^-LTP?'jC

I CI:,L~L:TTES

As yon Lnuv thra Bureau has solved a unmoor ol'onses
involving racial violence in the Soutn In this regard pwblic
attention particularir vas locusod on the FBI's role in the
solution of the brutal murders of Mrs Viola Liuzzo Lieutenant
Colonel Lemuel A i-cnn nod the tureo civil rights vuri:ers in
Y..tssissip pi forever se have achieved a nunoer of-ti T tangible
acconpiisuoents most of ihicu are not publicly rrno.a D.^,dI
thougut you night be interested in than

At the present tied for cr_amsle ncarlr
of our informants and sources are being operatcu to obtain
up-to-date intelligence cats cooccrning racial c ttc s rhich

_se disseminate on a continuing oasis Of those ,hai__beea
developed in just the past year--an average of zore"-ytor

for every any in the past trelve contras

Particularly significant has been the high-level
penetration we have achieved of Klan organizations At the
present tine there are 14 Man groups in existence Tic have
penetrated every one of thea throe h informants and currently
are operating informants in top-level positions oXleaucrship in

of then

Through ouch coverage much valuable information
relating to a variety of cases of violence and planned vtolenct
in ice civil rights field has been ootaiecd Just rccentl
for ezacple an informant secured and furnished to us the
weapon toed in a civil rights shooting incident iu North Carolina
Another informant proriucd t:ae information which led to the
recovery of a largo volume of harm greaaoes ammunition d:nanite
and other explosives vhich.had uecn etolcn from Fort ;:c%leilaa is
7tlacaara Still acotner strategica'llv placed iniornant era Sled
"ss to identify tho i;lansacn resnoaniolc toorthe Don ing of t-e
Itutoaooi.oj and a Negro mortuary in v Dora. Norta Carolina
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The Attorney General

The solution to the series Of beabincs and buraings of some 20
to 25 aooes in too i,1cCcaa Mississippi area last year slailarly
was based on iniornatiou supplies by of cur inior:ante

Equally important and something of which the public Is
totally unaware is tine extent to which we have peen ably to
forestall violence in certain racially explosive areas In ono
southern state for example toe governor on ono occasion
expressed his great concern and ice of an outoreak of racial
violence because of tae toase_situation

As a result we aave-been
successful to date in b raaa-ngKlan violence in the entire state
to an absolute ninianln

We also are seizing every opportunity to disrupt
the activities of 31an organizations Tynioal is the canner in
which we es used and thwarted a "kick back schone a Sian group
t".. :Loin in _n ___to___ _tat_ to help iinance its activities
One member of too group was selling insurance to other Klan
members and would acoosit a generous portion of the premium
refunds in the Klan treasury .is a result of action we took
the insurance conaaay learned of the scheme and cancelled all
the policies held o:+Klan members thereby cutting off a sianble
source of revenue which had been used to trance Klan activities

I have furnished these examples to illustrate to
you the approaca this huroau is taking to moot the challongo
of racial lawlessness in certain areas today

The abovo inforsation has also been furnished to
Sonorablo Marvin Watson Special Assistant to the President

r."r:r
r

tai_

,II,! Noi
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EXHIBIT45

Uffirr uf t[i~~ttlu iu'li (Grllrlul

in,jton  1 u

September 3 1965

MEMORANDUM FOR

Mr J Edgar Hoover Director
Federal Bureau of Investigation

Re Your memorandum of September 2
regarding penetration and disruptior
of Klan Organizations

I haw Loan a..ara in gono:a. .:ay of the
accomplishments of the Bureau in the area of Klan
pe avar;.,, b,,t I appr _ ha:_ .,._

detailed information on this sub)ect and I hope you
will continue to keep me up to date on it

May I take this opportunity to congratulate
you on the development of your informant system in t
Klan organizations and on the results you have obtained
through it It is unfortunate that the value of these
activities would in most cases be lost if too extensive
publicity were given to them however pe4 aps at some
point it may be possible to place these achievements ez
the public record so that the Bureau can receive its
due credit

I1

Attorney General

Nicholas deB
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EXHIBIT46

The Attorney General December 19 1967

Director,_FBI

KUKLUXKLANINVESTIGATIONS
FBI ACCOHPLISMIENTS

Pursuant.to your conversation with 1.1r C D
DeLoach of this Bureau concerning FBI coverage and
penetration of the Ku Klux Klan we have prepared the
attached memorandum AlsO attached are copies of my
statements and publications regarding the Ku Klux Klan
in the United States and'the FBI's role in investigating
Klan matters

While some of the information contained in the
attached memorandum is already a matter of pdblic record
there are matters dealing with extremely sensitive oper
ations of this Bureau and it is suggested that this be
handled on a strict need-to-know basis.,

Enclosures 7

1 The Deputy Attorney General (Enclosures. 7)

Attached copies of statements and publications.regarding the Ku Klux Klan in the United States and the-FBI'srole in investigatine Klan matters consist 'of



517

The Attorney General

NOTECONTINUED

"The Resurgent Klan, by J Edgar IIoover-
Reprint from July 1966 American Bar Association Journal

"The FBI's Secret War, Remarks of
Senator Karl Hundt"before U S Senate January 14 1966-
reprint from 1/14/66 :'Congressional Record.!

Page 28 of 1967 FBI Annum Report--Deals with
Klan investigations

Portion of Director's Appropriations Testimony
2/16/67 dealing with Ilan-type investigations

(5) Remarks of Hon.'George W GriCer of Tennessee
dealing with investigation of Klan--taken from "Congressional
Record, 5/3/65

(6) Remarks of Hon George W Grider of Tennessee
dealing with investigations of Man--taken from !'Congressional
Record, 5/4/65
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December 19 1967

KUKLUXKLANINVESTIGATIONS
FBI ACCONPLIS}INTS

BACKGROUND

Historically the problem of the Ku Klux Klan in
the United States has existed since the days of Reconstruction
following the Civil War The Invisible Empire is well known
for its terrorist nightriding activities and has been respon
sible since its inception for numerous racial atrocities
throughout the country The Klan reached its pea during the
1920s when it claimed millions of members and it became almost
defunct during World War It In 1954 with the historic
Supreme Court decision regarding desegregation of public
schools it became revit9lized In 1964 with the passage of
civil rights legislation by the Congress the Klan recruited
thousands of persons who feared the-rise of the Negro and
the threat to the "Southern way of life.

The Klan has usually been located in the South al
though there have been attempts to organize it in the North
Midwest and far V6st The Klan attracts individuals in the
rural areas who are poorly educated with limited incomes
The Klan exploits the fears hatred and ignorance'of people

(~ who feel they are threatened by the Negro the Jew the
Catholic and the immigrant

c10:1 PRESENTSTATUS

Presently there are 14 Klan organizations under
investigation with a membership of approximately 14,000 The

,largest of these groups the United Y1ans of America Inc.
Knights of the Ku Klux Klan with Headquarters in Tuscaloosa
Alabama has an estimated membership of about 10,000,.!



MAJORCASES

Murder of Three Civil Rights Workers

In June 1964 three civil rights workers were
murdered in Neshoba County Mississippi setting off an inten
sive FBI investigation In October 1967 7 of 18 defendants
were'convicted in Federal court in Meridian Mississippi for
violation of the victims civil rights An 8th defendant
pleaded guilty and a mistrial was declared as to three other
defendants Our investigations revealed that there was a brord
Ku Klux Klan plot lehind the abduction and murder of the victims

66-0770 76 34
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Ku Klux Klan Inestiigations

Since 1964 Klan membership has declined in
Mississippi Alabama and Louisiana and increased in North
and-South Carolina and Virginia The North Carolina Klan
has the largest membership of anv state Ln.the union under
the leadership of

The most secretive and vicious Klan organization
in recent years has ben'the 1,hite Knights of the Ku_Kiux
Klan of Mississippi under the leadership of

of Laurel Mississippi who was recently con
victed in connection with the murder of

FBI RESPONSIBILITY

This'Burcau has a-three-fold purpose in investigating
the Ku Klux Klan and individuals associated with Klan organi
zations First we investigate violations of Federal law
committed by the Klan with the view toward prosecution in
Federal court Second we conduct i-ntelligence investigations
with the view toward infiltrating the Ku Klux Klan with infor
mants neutralizing it as a terrorist organization and deterring
violence Third,'we provide the Department with the results
of our investigations for possible designation of Klan organi
zations under Ekecutive Ordsr 16450
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Ku Klux Klan Investigations

Klan informants were used as witnesses in this trial and
they unfolded a story of Klan violence and terrorism rarely
presented in any court

Murder of Vernon Dahmer

In January 1966 Vernon F Dahmer a leader of
the National Association for the Advancement of Colored
People in Hattiesburg Mississippi died as a result of
wounds received when his home was burned and shot into by
the Ku Klux Klan Twelve klansmenhave been indicted by
the Federal Grand Jury and the case is presently pending in
United States District Cdurt at Hattiesburg FBI informants
were instrumental in determining in the early stages of the
investigation that and the members of the
White Knights of the Ku Klux Klan of Mississippi were
responsible for Dahmer's death

Murder"of Lemuel Penn

In July 1964 Lemuel Penn an ArmyReserve
Lieutenant Colonel and Negro educator from ^dash"ington D C.
was killed by shotgun blasts near Colbert Georgia An exhaus
tive investigation by this Bureau resulted in the arrest of
four members of the Ku Klux pan Informants also played a
major role in this case In October 1964 a Federal Grand
Jury returned an indictment charging six men including the
four arrested for Penn's murder with conspiracy to injure
oppress and threaten to intimidate Negro citizens in the free
exercise of their Constitutional rights Two of the defendants
were convicted and four were acquitted

Murder of Viola Liuzzo

In March 1965 Mrs Viola Liuzzo was killed by gun
blasts near Selma Alabama and three members of the Ku Klux

ot-rl
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Ku Klux Ilan Investigations

Klan were arrested and charged with her slaying Gary Thomas
Rowe who subsequently testified against these defendants
was present at the time Mrs Liuzzo was murdered This case
dramatically emphasized our penetration of the Klan when it
was publically disclosed that Rowewas an FBI informant The
three defendants were indicted by a Federal Grand Jury and
convicted in Federal court for conspiracy

McComb Mississippi Bombings

From June through September 1964 a series of
bombings occurred in McCombMississippi After intensive
FBI investigation nine members of the Ku Klux Klan were
arrested and charged with bombing homes and churches at McComb
These nine klansmen entered pleas of guilty and nolo contendere
in local court FBI informants were instrumental in uncovering
the plot and identifying suspects `?(T```ke
NewBern North Carolina Bombings

In early 1965 a strategically placed informant
enabled us to identify klansmen responsible'for-the bombing
of two automobiles and a Negro mortuary"in NewBern
North Carolina This information was turned over to local
authorities Three defendants were convicted in State court

Bogalusa Injunction

In Bogalusa Louisiana during the height of the
racial disorder in that community in 1965 FBI investigation
led.to the obtaining of an injunction against the Anti
com;nunist Christian Association also known as Original Knights
of the Ku Klux Klan This was a major deterrent to further
Klan Violence in that community

Klan Terrorism Rowan and Cabarrus Counties North Carolina

In July 1967 FBI investigations led to the arrest
and indictment of 12 men in RowanCounty North Carolina
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Ku Faux Klan Investigations

for numerous acts of racial intimidation and violence

INFORMANTS

Informant coverage in Klan'groups has been an
important part of our program and our coverage is aimed at
both high-level and low-level penetration For example
recently the United IClans of America held its National
Klonvocation in Tuscaloosa Alabama to elect members of the
Imperial Board U' tr,owl Dr_,crT..o ,r c.o. /oe..+rfY

JO,aerj

Perhaps one of the most difficult p our assign
ments is the penetration of"iQan "action squads. An action
squad is a small group of klansmen within a.klavern or acting
independently whose purpose is to commit acts of terrorism
and violence lie have penetrated.a..number of these group
and..among the most notorious_are p LrT n A r /pr.. r,a,rf
KLove QNS n"vJ e/ 7l. OF /. f  ~  h J"t.+F. AO.2r

So.,/., -J

SPECTALPROJECTS

Florida

Through an intensive effort by Bureau Agents in our
Florida offices handling intelligence information and Bureau
informants within the Florida Ku Faux Klan we were able to
effect the removal of of the
United Klans o_f.America Realm of Florida Through Bureau
informants misuse of Klan funds mismanagement of
Klan affairs and personal misconduct were brought to the
attention of the iaan rank and file and was deposed as
~. R n ,f There has been no replacement and the Florida
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Klan has been slowly deteriorating Ve have found that by
the removal of top Klan officers and provoking scandal within
the state Klan organization through our informants the Klan
in a particular area can be rendered ineffective

is attempting to reorganize the Florida
Klan and we are following it closely

ALe^Dr4 of
Through our informant operations,the United Mans

of America the State of Iississippi has been
removed ,end discredited Further attempts by the United
Klans to enpand in Mississippi have been deterred

Tennessee

In the early stages of Klan rowth in the State
of Tennessee we were able to develop as a Bureau informant

,9 of the United Klans of .America Realm of
Tennessee Through this source we.vere able to
control the ezoancion of the }.fan Moro importantly In
were able to disccurhge violence throughout the state The
Klan in Tennessee has not expanded to the proportions it has
in other states and its lack of success can be attributed to
our highly placed informant.

Louisiana

In March of 1966 high-level informants in the
Louisiana Klan were responsible for the defeat of notoriously
militant incumbent Klan leaders Subsequentlyh e A4e of the United Klans of.America removed

n ,<L^. off  and to this date,TN
arf{ia's not been replaced

'his action contributed to the disorganization and disruption
of the United Klans in Louisiana

 !

c'1j
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Illinois

Attempts t".ere made to organize the Ku Klux_I:lan
in the States of Illinois and Wisconsin. o,t._,-<r ~J ~r~rvf e-s

In August 1966 a series of bombings occurred in-Milwaukee
Visconsin Through a high-level Ilan source of our Chicago
Office we learned that A  . v was responsible
for these bombings The pepartment ruled that there was
no prosecutable Federal violation However we pursued an
intelligence-type investigation and furnished local author
ities in Milwaukee with compete information coming from
our Chicago Klan informants %-//,r Oi-i nL was sub
sequently convicted and sentenced to 15 years The result

'has been that.the Ilan in Illinois and Uiscopoin has not
been able to effectively organize and its expansion in the
Midwest has been halted

Vir,,inia

In the Fall of 1965 the United Ilans of America began
an intensive organizational effort in the State of Virginia
re immediately began an all-out effort to penetrate the
Virginia Ilan contain its growth and deter violence Working
closely with local and state authorities we were able to
disseminate information on contemplated cross burnings
Several arrests were made based on FBI information furnished
to local police and in one situation a i:lansman as sentenced
to three years in local court for burning crosses a felony
under Virginia law While conducting official investigations
two Agents of this Bureau were assaulted by kla_nzmcnwho utre
later convicted on charges of Assault of a Federal Officer and
Obstruction of Justice in Federal Court in Richmond Virginia

In December 1966 the Special Agent in Charge of
our Richmond Office contacted Virginia Governor Mills Godwin
tb intensify cooperation between the Virginia State Police
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and the FBI in Klan matters Z'e provided the Governor with
information regarding Ilan activities in his state As a
result Governor Godwinpressed for more'effective enforcement
of Virginia cross burning laws and,publically repudiated the
Ku Ilux Klan Shortly after the Governor's public repudiation
the Ilan attempted to retaliate and we learned of plans to
burn crosses in the City of Richmond in defiance of the
Governor S.'efurnished this data to local authorities who
arrested five klansmen thus seriously dampening Klan enthu
siasm for such projects

In May 1966 we learned of Klan plans to "arrange
an accident for a civil rights worker working in
the State of Virginia Ve advised and local
authorities of tha plot against her life and alerted our in
formants to follow the plot closely To this date the Klan
has taken no action agai,nst This is just one of
mary"examvles of our notifying authorities and intended
victims of racial violence in order-that they could take
appropriate protective measures

"LIAISOiNtTITHLCCALAUTHORITIES

t'hen re receive intelligence information concerning
violations of local laws such as cross burnings bombings
or shootings to notify local authorities For example in
April of 1966 the Louisiana Klan planned to burn crosses
throughout the state tSa furnished this data to local author
ities and arrests were effected thus deterring further acts
of harassment intimidation and violence This is another
example of incidents which are handled in our day-to-day con
tacts with local police



526

Ku lux Ilan Investigations

KLANI'TILT7ATICNOFLW EITO CL''i?rT

Weare constantly alert for information concerning
klansmen who become members of local and state police
agencies and HI.an attempts to infiltrate-law enforcemnt
Law enforcement agencies have always been a prime target of
the Ku Klux Ilan In 1964 we furnished information to
Governor Paul Johnsen of Mississippi concerning klansmen who
were members of the P:iseissippi hIighwayPatrol These rkn
were subsequently fired Since that time relations have
greatly irproved,rcndcring more effective the fair exercise
of local law enforcement resnonaibilitics in Mississippi
It has been part of our established policy to notify
the head of the law enfdrec*sent agency involved of any mem
ber of his organization who has'been sworn into the Ku Klux
Klan In addition the Governor of the state is notified

ACQUISITIONOFT::JPONSAMIDDYil`IIT:i OFT1M101KI= KLAN

As part of our investigation of Kazingroups we
determine the extent to which they are acquiring and stock
piling weapons ammunition and dynamite During our inves
tigations we always endeavor to determine the numbers and
types of weapone.ard the amount of dynamite possessed by
klansmen In 1964 for example

was arrested by F$I Agents and local authorities
for possession of dynamite which according to our .l.an
sources he intended to use for bombing purposes

If it is determined that illegal tenons such as
automatic machine guns illegal rifles and shotguns are
being held by klansmen appropriate investigations under the
National and/or Federal Firearms Act are instituted
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ItdTErvr2r OF FiANST?.'IQ

One of the greatest attractions for klansmen is
the alleged cloak of secrecy which surrounds their an
membership Ue have found that"a program of seledtive inter
views of klansmen where they are made aware of oui knowledge
of their Ilan affiliatiop has done much to cause disillusion
ment of the members end disruption of the organization. In

'some instances klansmen volunteer information about the
organization and its activities These interviews also put
us in a position to assess each rnber with regard to his
potential as an informant Although our Agents in conducting
their interviews are frecuently"mat with hostility and threats
by militant klansmen our Ilan interview program has been most
effective in deterring violence and developipg informants

RECENTD::VELOPMgNTS

On December 7 1967 an informant of our Mobile
Division learned of Ilan plans to burn crosses in Montgomery
Alabama This information was disseminated to appropriate
local authorities id an effort to effect arrests during the
commission of these illegal acts

Only within the last week an informant of our
Jackson Office obtained information concerning possession
of 105_stic'.ks of dynamite by

This information was given to local authorities
who arrested and confiscated the dynamite was
charged with il1c.al possession of dynamite a felony in the
State of Mississippi

}ti_
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OMIT Dr Thr rturnrti rnr 1

3I1a5I;irJrunD.L

September 14 1967

Althcu._h the bulk of criminal .Offenses occurring
in the cc::r_e of recent riots have been local rather
+ii,c" f=e e in nature the Question as to whether
theta was ^ organization which (a) hau rr.^de dvan ee
plans for and (b) tees active during any of the riots
in the su:.rcr of 1967 is one that cannot always be
ruddily resolved by local authorities In view of the
se iousneee the riot activity across the country
it is most important that you use the maximumavailable
rescurcec investigative nd'intelliEence to collect
and report all facts bearing upon the question as to
whether there has been or is a scheme or conspiracy by
any group of whatever size effectiveness or affiliation
to Plan promote or 'ag ra':ate riot activity .__

Ir this connection the following federal statutes
could be applicable depending of ,course upon the factual
situation that develops

Title 18 USC Secticn'2383 which proscribes
the inciting or engaging in any rebellion or
insurrection against the authority of the
United States

Title 18 USC Sectbn 2384 which proscribes
conspiring to overthrow or to destroy by forte
the Government of the United States or to
oppose by force the authority thereof or by

.force to prevent hinder or delay the execution
of any law of.the Unit.~.'i~.lV States

.bl~.GZ null FORTNE DIRECTORFEDERAL
BUREAUOF INVESTIGATION
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Title 18 USC Section 2385 which proscribes
inter atl ia advocacy of o"-erthrowing the
Government of the United .Mates or the Govern
ment of any state territory District or
possession thereof or the Government of any
political subdivision therein by force or
violence

.Activities Affecting Armed Forces ,18 USC2388

Selective Service 50 USC (App )-462

Travel and Interstate Transportation
18 USC 1952 (Arson)
18 USC831-33 (Explosive)

Assault and Killing of Federal Officers and
Employees 18 USC 111 114 and 2231

Destruction of Government Property 18 USC1361 at al

Federal Firearms Act 15 USC901-909

Crimes on Federal Reservations 18 USC13 81 at al

I appreciate that the Bureau has constantly been
alert to this problem and is currently submitting intelli
gence reports to us about riots and about the activity o=
certain groups and individuals before during and after
a riot Indeed the President has said both publicly an
privately that the FBI is conducting extensive and comprehen
sive investigations of these matters

There persists however a widespread belief that
there is more organized activity in the riots than
presently kno:! about. We must recognize I believe that
this is a relatively-new area of investigation and inte'li
gence.reporting for the FBI and the Department of Justice
Wehave not heretofore had to deal with the possibility
of an organized pattern of violence constituting a
violation of federal law by a group of persons who a-:e
the urban Ehetto their base.of operation and whose
activities may not have been-regularly monitored by
existing intelligence sources

In these circumstances we must be certain that
every attempt is being made to get all information
bearing upon these problems to take every step possible
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to determine wyether the rioting is pre-planned or
organized and if so to determine the identity of
the people and interests-involved and to deter this
activity by prompt and vigorous legal action

As a part of the broad investigation which must
necessarily be conducted,"it is requested that all
available information be reported and analyzed regard
ing each sniper caught in any riotror eXtre:mist
activity and regarding tnoaa aTresed during the course

racialof a riot or significant ~disturbances whoh_o were
not".residents of the general area.0Moreover sources
or informants in black nationalist organizations S_iCC
and other less publicized groups should be developed
and expanded to determine the size and purpose of these
groups and their relationship to other groups and also
to determine `he_cereaboutso oerson5"._irha-night-s

CGeCS ~'"~ r'urener we need .LO_n;".ezigate fully
allegations of conspiratorial activity thatcome to our
attention from outside sources such as those reported
regarding Newark in Life 2:'agazine for Tiny 28 1967
and those regarding the Detroit riot which were furnished
to the Department by Walter Sheridan of the National
3roadcasting Company (summary of latter .is attached)

RANSUCLARK
Attorney General
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Levin T .t.Stro:.oy Nove:bcr .1
Tbor:.ss J .`.:cTi_rr:an
liel,h Neg. r
Jan. i T".. er
:iha 1_ttorney i;_eeral

I:at~bli~herent of t c'.eptrtnTeata]intelligence
enl'cin te "tint to civil c .:urcers

It is intuorative that the _cparo oni s":ek .,nd obtain the most
cor:'t',roh9nrivo i:tc.:1.il,i."..criX,ssib!u re, r:.ing or;.ni;:ed or ether

purposeful at.,hrclotior of 4c.r.,ot.lict.i.xensloo civil :;iaercars and
riots Te ccvey these Iva tr u_rAriai.efull ono of
and const::aily svor to iuct::."co aaa route tro intelli;eaco available
to ui, "Otti:cr internal 7.i.0t'i::nr0-.t sources. co.ccrni:tt organisations
end frt:itio::as tarot lout tcu country vwi:or.:4y play a ro]e either is
instigating or s;:rc:t:ci_,dt.isor(ic"r:hor in ihr :entire or c;:ccitir.gthem
Iior:avcr "e cc L:t ro:v ;t".c:nt,:.tciyt:::a tccu in:ciiiger_ce or ciavoloi and
Irnplarrartt''metl,caa cf i:rpro"ling icirlii;;rnce :Trot v:a cc not have any
ayMnn_atiCmeans at'i,ret:er-t cf co;z__:iiin, analysing the v:.lun'irous
i:aforr'otion scout various persons cr or;;:.r.isation furrtirl:ed to us by
tits and tvc rna;(e very Ii.:tineffort to obtetIt-infortr tiaraelcewltare

For t 'Tore ertcnaive discu"ltice of this subject I refer you
to a r.:etruranderr..rri:tca to :nc on _ ~tait t-or i7 16&7 by Assistant

l,ttoroey G.2n(:rt:i John L.c=r Mr Lear v.it.i the ctincarronce cf ."iessrs
Vinson and Yea"c1ey.:here reeon.rnenced the establiehn:ent of an ir.41

lig"oncc.mic within the 1--n;.rtri.nitt to a.csinilnte and arialluo the information

presently .t hans as wall as ih-.t con:ing to the  cr arnt rn~ in the future
from ti>ci'kiI and other so::rcca I havr ap;:rovec_tho recommendation

IYiyprrl:rcin Ibis memorandum is to constitute the :fdui of

you n con"rh'.ittce wits Mr :.iaror.ey acting a ch irn-:.n to accomplish
the following among ctLer things

1 A;ake reron:ntecdat! :a as to the location of tineI::te1li,,cnco
Unit'within. the 1's;.a.rtntei:t:.1or_ani.-.staid and rite offIcer cr officers to

which it slr 11he ic"n .o:istoly r_spoasii lo

( CCI::.' ?.L':L
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Recommend the heist iioai:o of collating and indexing relevant
Information rescrtly in t1.o l.cpartmcet

I cfti;:n:.to sources ovtsi-d the Dopartmcnt both in and out
of tho Govern ent L may provide ,sofal inlet :ration to the Unit and
methods for devclop;n raid obtaining ecc1 ir~r,rr.'.a[ioa

4 ] ccncnn".tncthe ty.ea of _tur.e-arioe sod reports tho Unit
c-.11 r or^ fife c tS_. t!':crrcf :n and out of thisF.,epartn'.ont and

5 Recnn-.n;endth".e::tent to which the Unit ohall draw con
clusions fru:-i t]'e n:,[cr:<1 is +rc:oosios zac motto proposals for intclligencc
investiga&iuncr other action by the flopartmont or others

'cu r.ro free to conrtflt with the FBI and other ictolligenco
\ Agencies In the Covert:mo t to draw on their experience in maintaining

oin'.imnrttnitt to explore Lhs;wssi'ailitios of obtaining infore a.tionwe do
not now rrccivc and to terry out other purposes relevant to this assignment
Planning and:crea_ion of t'ic unit most bo ltopt in atricteat confidence

i  ou r.hou.ldc:11 on ito or Sol Lin:loahoom for any aasistar.co you aced
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JNITEDSTATESCf ti ..MENT

1,L

John Doar
Fred M Vinson Jr
Roger W Wilkins
J Walter Yeagley 

:tThe AttorneyGeneral

SUBJECTCreation of InterdivisionInformationUnit

After considerationof the report of December6 1967 submitted
by KevinT Maroney ThomasJ McTiernan HughNugentandJames P
Turner pursuant to my memorandumof November9 1967 I have deter
mined to establish a permanentunit staffedwithfull-time personnel
to take over and extendthe activities of the so-called SummerProject
of the past twoyears The neworganizationshall be knownas the
Interdivision InformationUnit

The Unit shall functionfor the purposes and withinthe guidelines
expressed in my memorandumof November9 andthe report of December6
1967 It is enoughto state here that in the main it shall be responsible
for reviewingand reducingto quicklyretrievable form all information
that may cometo this Departmentrelating to organizationsand individuals
throughoutthe countrywhomay play a role whetherpurposefullyor not
either in instigatingor spreadingcivil disorders or in preventingor
checkingthem

The Director of the CommunityRelationsService andthe 1

Assistant AttorneysGeneral in charge of the Civil Rights Criminal and
Internal Security Divisions withthe last namedacting as chairman and
principal overseer shall constitute a SupervisoryCommitteeto guide
the Unit in carrying out its functions

Pendingthe selection of a head of'the Unit KevinT Maroney
shall serve as acting head and with the assistance of the Supervisory
Committeeand Messrs McTiernan NugentandTurner take action
to bring it into operationas soonas possible Necessary personnel
shall be obtainedfrom withinthe Departmentof Justice and arrangements
for office space supplies and equipmentcoordinatedwiththe Adminis
trative Division
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The SupervisoryCommitteeandUnit shall coordinatethe Unit's
activities with related activities carried on elsewherein the Department
of Justice to avoidunnecessary duplicationof effort

The SupervisoryCommitteeshall meet at least biweekly
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To

Fiore Lev 1111

COlNT):hr':tO nW

t;ovZ.rta rolenoo hnvo npponvnOin the local
ronrnluo oci.,ontrnonn in :titiono Ourit OnccVatic

t;onven,i,,ea v:noh tho C(`t ;:oon
by tHo :once fir I'. chnvr'.ono. polico
aro boin oa(hi nr,l it can be ant:iCintcd Lbol .
Onturc :row

'rho i;,.o.-oa :: ,oalO .,t to t:;io .1itnnton nc!
be in a ponitinn to ro:uto unfounned nllontiono whonovoi

t:honhl rite oi.oro ch,tnin ail
,:;!ntr.:L!oanet

10, 1,5
I nit r ~1 ol no et( evidoocc nootictt

c) Lho t, o0iLion on 'r-no thre tied
nu artio:io veporDnviot ouotod

"'-:. U.r'. 3:'uran  'et.l.inonn,l ntntit;L
thni :7:c phut .. ro'n *col

o p000etby pItoto;';rn.t.cres

1 ,q 1"^RYour:Oould intcirviow Attorney
tho 1notCon1 to':hicOt nc re.sorr . 'id ;n:iuctn vitn oi:tor

ronv in oind ,cw
;'tcrinl .,Il no pni'tolazIrly nncT'a in rofutinn thcr,'c charucs and you :c;houAd nIcrt.tothirt typo o inior:,tntion

AIoln thi,oan o lin yo :0:enactNino non:11(ton
mcoirntro h v'hioh cooporotIvc Itc,vnooOln ony he noed io nountur
aot Trt:c no otepo in th.t.o vithout
prior Uuronn uuthnrity

1',^.;lV 'O

66-0770 76 35
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D/3/G3

TNLTP721 Ul-:0ENT

DI wt.,,o ILLLIln

c:(NI-yy(

COINTELTI:0 i:L i

07 1-:ECEIITACCUGATIONSAGAINSTCNICAGOAUT11017.1TIES

RLLATINGTO =la RAMMINGOF D=NSTRATOSAT ME DENOCRATIC

1;ATIC:ALCONVENTIONTIEEBUREAUDESII= TO COLLECTALL

POSSICLE 1ITFORMTIONREGARDINGPROVOCATIONSOV POLICE

DR110111;TRATOESANDT"12 REACTIONC7 POLICE MEEETO RECIPIENT

07:0ICES =EDIATELY VEDR1:12SOUNCRSV10 COVEREDDENONCTRATION3

AT ME CONVENTIONTO OCTAINALL IN207t:LATION=CN W0JLDREAR

011TICCE ACTIVITI 11:CLI.IDNIII Dr:DT::711,G ALL 11:107r.lT421

11MICATING11:OID7::TGr:::3 VIM

l,';f,,.PA073 'ITO

'11.1%Al1UNITEl
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T r. : i L,
NE', LEZT

UNDUEFO_.CEANDANYIIT.^"Or:,L1TIOTIL1^ AUTir..,:IYZ)::i F:i.i BAITED
BY 7JILI'1'A;;'1`3II;TO USINGFC_^".Ci AL) a;:ilii A EVIDENCE:F %A_ __,a
P :sli L VIC :ZION Oa~ .._TII`*r"....!

1
7,1:':a '1D;_;1'1';"!ZLL.,:;) OF ALL

AGITATION.^.LACTIVI'TI.^,3INCLUDINGINOTI:uCTIO:;3X:;'J::D BY T!L''1
CITE ALL Ii:3 pi;C^.i ::'L.:: 0:(GP:i1Ia'.':TIUi'::i0 INDIVIDUALS
DISTI;IBUTED I:;FO:,,'.A`.CX'I LITEBATUBS

SUTiL 3 CLOSEOF BUSINESS S IJIi:.1;.ni FCU1 NEXT

NOTE
During the Coliventier news r.:,'rii;i nncic a ,,.rent deal-concerning pelite ._ .C'C_Oilto the I?':.:`J7.Oi ofdaonstratorsc_ offices enclu.i?o of Chicago to ..end

_ye autbood
y llil''L "'!^11'f^to CII~i T o to cover -.,y. atthi:

^
onvontint Theno sources should i:'vo Consider.^.h.I.e ::' oi'i.9i7t?.onrelating to tho nc./j i of c coil ;tr to In confronting thopolice ro.'.ctioa to 'i::ICdcilon:itr tovs and in`orli t o:l whichtit:) constitute violations .tof ccc.:ly c ":ct^ti :I;rtiriot 7.ccr:1These sources arc tin" cU r3 5" .. cd cxp.,:;itaa:f:;_ in or.;.lcr thatwe !light prepare all inioma;,';ve pa :r on this subject

Tcl."etype used in vice of urgent need of thisinforL aLion
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UNITEDSTATESDEPARTMENTOF JUSTICE

FEDERALI3UREAUOf INVESTIGATION

OA7HINCTOND.C2OS35

January 31 1975

SULLIVANMEMORANDATO JOHNDEAN
(SENATORBARRYGOLDWATER)

Reference is made to my letter of January 30 1975 setting
forth information in the "Sullivan memoranda. Your attention is invited
to specifically Item 3 of this letter This item is made up of two paragraphs
The first paragraph states that President Johnson asked the FBI to look
into members of Senator Goldwater's staff and give him the results A review
was made and results furnished some of which contains derogatory information
We have located a work copy of a memorandum to Mr DeLoach dated
October 26 '1964 captioned "NAMECHECKREQUESTFORWHITEHOUSE.
This copy states that Bill Moyers Special Assistant to.the President requested
a special chemkof the u''r._e..e.._'sfiles _c_._ern:n r nc employed in Sen t._,n ~.
Goldwater's office Using the UnitedStates Senate telephone directory 15
individuals were listed and a memorandum was attached reflecting the results
of the check The recommendation was that Mr DeLoach furnish the memo
randum to Mr Moyers ._

memoranda
We are unable to locate a record copy of the above-described

A record copy of a letter to Mr Moyers dated October 27
1964 is in file and was hand delivered by Mr DeLoach on October 28 196.1
This letter advised that there was no derogatory information in our files on
13 of the individuals mentioned
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The Aitorney General

Director FBI

SCOP)tOr rl3l JUI;IitDICTION
lh

G13XEINVi.tti'lCiATIONS ea_ ea

-August 7 1973

ApR251815

Durin,c our lactin2 on .Tv!y3G 1973 you referred to a discussion
you ha with Sanotor Charles il:ethias Jr of 1,iaryInnrldurieig your con
firmatioh livarin:,s oa to the etatutory enthority of the F and the J?epar.to of
Justicesin the itel(i ot doiaeatie invetoi,'otions Youthen aria:el

D ltuoitclohees to worit with the Fbl in weic,hinp the pros and cons
with le:erad to etatutery this aver I mentioned that research w!a

viii) lluvl;eieinus with re erd to this ioetter whoa we have completed
the re. alto of car ea:a:hi-a:at:ohend li Iii;nwithin the FBI

Actually a aft:0y has been going on in the FBIfor more than two
yearn as to the aeo)e of riti juriadielion and nuthority.in domelie intelligenco
inveati,jatioris li'llen 1.lr L Patrick Cray Ill wna designated es Acting
Director of the nil Pe inetruetod that a pooition paper be prepnred concern
ing the juriattietion and oui.horityof the FBI to eeeduct dOmo::ticinicn ::eneo
investitions A poeition paper was prepared which in csoeuce slated that
authority of the rBl in thin field is hued on let:ioletive enactmnts even
thour;lawe may have publicly robed heavily on Paeeidential directives as the
baais ouch authority .%IrGrey ordered an in-depth *lady madeof the
poaitioii coldin Alifto.st 1572 a dett,iled report woe furnished to him The
followiiruis a summary of that report

Over a period of several months there wore a number of public
atztealents queationiug authority and joriodiction of the Flit to conduct domestic
inteDi[-:enee-typeinveetieatione partieulerly where there is no dear-out
lugiel:,Iivc authority :Ilip:rent One of the most eearching inquiries wns con
tained in a paper prevented by Professor john rt!i,11.:9-deyconference
at Paii,caton Univcrany ia October 1971 aponaorcd by the Coeuamcefor public
Justice
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Tho Attorney General

A major thruot of Professor Elliff'e paper concerned FILMetithority
derived from 1c islaitvC enactments as opposed to that derived from I':"o_'identiol
directive: bct'i ;nine with a directive iesued by President 1:ooncvcltin
Septembcr 1539 Prof(odor Llliti in of the opinion that the ItJ3 citreetivc
which wu rcilneated tel three suboe ucnt occnr:iotls tvae ).,;::{:ified by the
FIJIfrom it: uriynial purpose to tt cn:initivc order to conduct inteilipenee-type
investigations

Senator SamJ Ervin as you know hod been probing .into C:c
nature and !:xt._atof 1'C;iintollipie co-type invt"elitiono ,.:.:,tutor17rviahad
even announced that he iutcndcd to proposo lo::i.:;lntlonto 1eohit.;ittho v1SI
from investi;;oting any port:on w'_li''_utthat it?Ci.iuCl )'t oonocut union the
Govvrnau:utlots runson to buliovu tie;t portion i::". coeueittcd tt crime cr is
about to c:nen;ita crinie Other Coareasnten indicated u 1"itoilarintern t
in Flit inv;uair utive aciivitios

Our rtudy revealed tl;et the FBIhod declared publicly over a
long period of thou that it respondn,i.litles in tbt demoot.ieletetligen:e i __d
tareauthuiis td under i,:r.Iii hivecook i onis c::LtetttiiI c'i ccii:es ;.;,ti
instruction: of the Iatoritny Genor ;l The Traci.:cnh tl d; eriives Iiooobviously
tho 1.)divt..itit'edated ::,1r;Laeher t I.'35 anti i itcratcd dai.uury 6
July 24 1.':;U t,nd Eoto.o4he 15 1:4;33and 2) L.:::cultvcc eer 104.f)doted
Aril 27 1353Gild oot:.oded but not yet iirpleu:or:tcdby 1 rcutivc O;'tior
1105 doled duly 2 1511)

In cnrcfolly ;tinly',in the lant;ua a of the fitot directive doted
September u 1039 we.!con:,idcti;r that the c.ideuuriit directives are 1.11
hinged on that 110 lac ),:"tievctlsa there is a i;.ioconcet_,iicaas to the c ::cut
of jurisdiction or autitcri y conveyed to the Pi:1by theta directive It
appears hint while the J. oPtJirc.chvofitted r nI,onaihilityon She1'1;1to l,ontlle
cnpiona<;u nubota;;c t i:d noutrolily matters it did not co 'c:yVttynu: city
or jurledit.tion which the 1,111did not uircuoy 1::;vefrom ii:,ic,lative w _ti:ents
It in diii't_ult to road ;too this dircclivo or in nay of those which fellotred arty
(uthority to conduct itlte)1i!;encot;;;;c inve.;ti" 1tionswino!)wouldor could
not be conchteiadunder on umbrella of lCbl.;Idive ennohncnts
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As a mattcr el historical fact Prssident Toouoveltin August
1.93Gdid request forr.,tr inrostor Ldrer 4-sow:rto conduct investIL!aticns
of subversive in llo.s con-Itcy inehitd,ig communiecaand far:elm
This recluet howovtr ta:s e etro:hictdial Ii.s:uest rind there ia dcubt
that any record of it Lduout .L This requcst or Pro idr-ntial
rcni':dto leas cd i.. a1:Lati s fa, thc 1:;:' provided that the
Ffa couitt celiouct each nivostiga;;ttti li the 1,r:rotary of i'ti,o should Co
rcquost

The study i2iicaled while 1;3:1ct :Jo directives did not
grant any special intolli'.:cncti-got ::uihi,iity.tp the we wcro respon
lble under thi:sc diroa:ivs to ce.;-q furnished

by local stato and law o!:1'cotoont an,:lratriotic citizens
and to sift ;aid co,ardiiiii_tic intilcatioriaof subversive
activity covered by licdirs!

The study conch:do:Ithat the Firi is. the rooig.:.i.bility io con
duct whatcvci-inveati:ina cro iiice aary to d.itcrtainc if ("t:itutcere)ati ig
to espiona;ie insurretaiAi or ro33ci:ion 2edition seditious con
spiracy acivoca,eyof ovorthrowiD iliti Govor!.icnt and u.''.1orsuch crimes
affecting lho r. surity ha o boon vioi:tcal th cc cctian we
note that in a icttcr 6:;;.o.dLaptonili,.-,v34 19C'i Dopart;mint Justiec.iu
advised that the rill is o(.ntinuatiy oi,irt to rccurring riots
and is subitling to Ilia CP u::tice concorn
ing ouch activity This iuttcr as;ovol i.cdcrai statutes ar:d
atated these could be p3ilt.caoloir to,inl masisnan inaii le rcsourccu
invcstigstive ..rut ItItc.diince to os,:lactand rorort all ft.. bearing on
the question of ucho,o,..sor eonspii%:sicsto plan prcaioto or aggravate riot
activity

In other worths the f:or,rtment wan requosthy all possible
IntolliEcnao-typoSrvc t: :dive sei:vity ...rc
utatutoa i".inc o i't.-C,,t isc,r.tomrintelli:nco-type
investigations relatit to tars of f1oups or individuals to overthrow
destroy il,tori'uro with or throeten the eurvival of oifective operation of
nutiulud state and local govertaachts
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llatcd on this study we believe that hod there never been a
sinflit one of the J"n,::itleutlaldirective: in o.,.it:ticn the F1l would have
eonduetcit tad will t!:vow:itI t;c :;ity continue to conduct tho spreeintellt
(iCfCa`."'t,'peI11VCt',ii.tL(P3 ea Nitc conducted f:"cie1939.to tho pI'cscnt date
Wealto believe i1',rever th,t in order to e'tinter U:or.I"iticismand ciccpti
cism Ofaueh incii,'::ioal.:.t10Pref.. .or liliu1..,:d Senator .i:UnJ Ervin that
an up-to-d-te 1::..;c::itve ..,:cudcibe i.,;nuc clearly c."tl;blishin1a need
for 111tc,11i^::nne tr:"cst.u..?i,.mtand ctrllneetini a clear authority for the
Flit to c duct r...1:..iti tilt ac based r ;ir.ielitn;3estalll_ialwdby the
Attori y Cicncrei^... 10coneiit.:tiunaf princiiiiea

The ciu:ty aon:;t,d": with t:-!obe::ic reconuncad:tions
1) Th:.t ta::.1, pt i 'i nt of .,n tic: he rc::iu:.,;tedto ";iionsorcctapl"chcnsive

::peiii cut the i:lvc.eti .eveauthority in the collceti.oltof
t'Vla.tl,/ .all I..'\il./.r seed ..at t. a ...v

Deparl...:itt of Jtt re a::a to so:'! c ctio:iprch^_nsivoExecutive order.1toohe
which :;a:.:.t cc . I uo:::. n bci. r.:tetatetory authority and L ccutive
nccun/ity in prclr '1of tho nrti, ictiacclivity

At fit et t';::nco ti,,!tie1t em!r,:::otistiousmays ,tear to cc.ctradlct
our pa'::tien t1:t._ . II12:ady ta.vi atetutc:y ihority to c'::i uct it.ceurity-type
illvcoi .:.tie,ns tIl.it !livebe2:'oinc core t dionot iicrrdadditional Itit.j:ittitive
matt; eats nor t. we need :1t,_,_cuti e order but bci reeli::tie v,e think
that the basic :;t.tttti.t upon ..rich we rev tar our r.r.cril_ to cclttll.:ot

f&':ic:;ii ".i:meneed to be updated to 1073Coeds
Title lb a.S.C a 25 ,..3J4 and 2335relate to the notion:,aacclivity
but the 1 i:i.:t.ali<::a :'"loryei 3 and 2Ji indicates that they were ctcei^'ned
for the (evil War not l'.c 7.n .:ticth Century mid Section 23i'5has been
redone:ctto a fr:''i'n by the Supreme Court These statutes arc unques
tlonattly atilt valid hut upc:,.t`:::its cc.t tidy indictted The bills introduced
as It .11 (tn i :ue) 1:01 in ti j 93rd Ce:.l:r'.raaeupperir to contain 1^,trt age which
t.1cu:1!.dlilt our ..1:..:to"y1:a...d except i,ohaps for thus group Fuel as the
Ku Mu: ;aril ;.!r :';t do not t;.... to overthrow the Government but never
thelen are tut iit:a:inn in nature and Clickto deprive constitutionally i'uarantced
rights
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Au to the need for an Executive orrier we think that two ironies
are involved Wohave :statutory i.uti:ority ,ta what we hoed is a cklit:itivc
requirement from the President oo to tho nr.tui:cand t,,po of inteli.if.enecdada
he rcc1uircain the pursuit of hie roaronsibitities bocce on our statutory
authority In other wordy there io u need from our at,....lp",int for both
authoritative and definitive uic?ell;rcr The oiatniea i'iv='itin the nuih:e1ty
The Executive order would define our natters.! :security .I4jeetive

FIcmber of Conrrese in_cludl:i _eh men noS"enotorI bent C
Byrd of roe::tVirginia have proposed lel*i:.l:.ti_onto spell out jur}:;;i'ctien end
authority of ti.+a1'i.:1in this field It would r". oor that no. i'reaide:it would
rather spit out his own require ..cats in i oe.:utiveu r inateuii ;:.:raved)
Congress toil him i:1o:tthe FBIn,i;;lit do to l 1p healtuiL I hi obli tie io and
real onsihii}acs as i"rc:;ident

The political climate of cuspicion end diot:"iet rosultintr from
disclosures comingo:it of theiert;atc lie of:;:Y:coupe:,rc":oaten a.^.::.t,clo
to i;ettin ony ouch I _actiliveorder sio,nedin toe ii rat.ti to future l )wcV"e.r
the rutiun.ae is neverii:_ vc*1:i.saidwhen ooutini;.:aioleo ply il:o k: ":rue,;e
in the 1:xecvtivcorder i"acherd ,oli r pror.otc vetobI!eh : c.oiinith,'e tii;clinc:a
which have horcieia;"abeen unclear It is illybelief th:,t we &hoult t:o .'erward
with tliio

Wetherefore propoeo !andreemot.,ondthat tot i'::ceutiv order
&longtho following*linos be sui.i.ritled to the WhiteJietsaewith a et on:.
rceommonnntionfor rppr oval ;.'lielamgu:%;uwhich feli:.. e i mere: to
illuotvate the typo coi.xocutive cider which the think would be uppeoprinto
arid deo: not neceenariiy repro:;eastan idea format or t"tylawhich a:hcalu
be submitted to the Whiteliouoo

1:}:IC:U'llVT.Q't1

"Moreno the Con::tituiionof the United States was ostobli hod to
insure tamingother things uooe,otietranquility to provide for the common
defenaae and to proc:ot lho general wclforo fur tho pccnlc of the t::a:iiedSlat::::
and
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"Whereas the President of the United States has the constitutionally
imposed responsibility of defending the Constitution and the existence of the
Governmentthereunder and

"Whereat)there have been continuing unlawful acts of violence
perpetrated ageiuet the Governmentof the United States or cninst citizens
of the United States or atti.nst pevoons entitled to the protection of the
United Statue thereby endangering the domestic tranquility threatening the
commondefense, and jeopardizing the general welfare of the people of the
United States and

"Whereas the Congress has enacted laws prohibiting acts such as
treason sedition srLotrex eapionaye insurreetion and rebellion seditious
c-tna.lurumy civil uil.ou oleuu:e rivtlut essusenaeloII Kidnaping aeprxval
of civil ri ;ate and cent:piracies to commitsuch acts and

"Whereas the Peeeideut of the United States as Chief Executive
in the nr:intcnance of the Governmentthereunder swat have intelligence
l.nfornn::tionfor epprol"riute decision: in the di.sei rl;cof his constitutionally
imposed resi;onsibilitics

"Nowby euihority vested in meby the Constitution and statutes
of the United States and in the interest of orderly eperntion of this Government
and in furtheae ncoof the domestic tren,uility commondefense and general
welfare of the people of the United States it is ordered that

"The Attorney General prepare and issue guidelines conforming
to the prinr:iplee of the Constitution and the Lill of Rights and outlining the
twee:wary direction caorcanation and guidance of investigations to assure
that the PectoralBureau of 1nvc,,ticsrlionprovide: on a continuing basis
intelligence Informat_"'enessential to the execution of laws pertaining to sub
veruive activity and other such activity effecting the national security
domestic tranquility end general welfare of the United SLdes.

The Nationhas been going through a Limoof terror The concept
of urban guerrilla terrorism has been edoptcll by various extremist elements
in the United Stotes Bombingsof public buildingh and national institutions
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killing of police offic:r; who by their unifo.ha are a symbol of the denhocrr.lic
celabliolimcnt iliiael.ir of airere t in furt1nr;:uce of revolutionary movements
terrorist on ;.e'cien dig,i.c.it;aicpursonaci and establislnnents and open
dccleraiiun of war Cr)c.",rterm or ;;uvrrnmcnt ito only a few of the violent acts
which been pet! :tentedby ens (:r;ticsubversives who seek to destroy or
seriously cripple our t..;vrAnne: 'Jerrori:it );-verrilla ticks which were
once Boniled to far e'.ey pleeem Ld related to lirobleni of no immediateeon
corn of our: ;:rc not ,ile in this count y foreign tc:rrori:;t g;roupain
collusion with denu:c;.tic'srrcri..t nave laid 1:1:iasfor nn airport massacre of
the lyre lraiel reccnt.v i _cur1 :e :(;;he.~ foreign terrorist elements
have laid phalli for l: ieeis[ oil Alp e.al soil Already one foreign
official Inn been as.e.:_...e;ted )_cs.eulyby t.. nri;t.

it wou;u ii. f.,lly to kai an in. i:i;;rove policy based on
the cone il.t of i11"if"";;,i_ "i.1on .,. .1 i.. nson to believe a crime
involving 1i nation. .,,.eerily i>een ;cd The i i;l n:uct
obviously .:t:cip "t t _ r:thee c gibed Webelieve that in
order for the C'overne s t to be i. iaition to 0-fend itoelf ;:.^ninstrevolu
tionary n1:dterrorist ''.e is to :it the must )rive t ui'ficicnt
investigative nutho:"i_yio conch.:: ioiellimene inverti.lations net
normally ;aoci,.tcrt :et enforce :.,;'t of the :r.itL.s In ether words we
think the i'i._uioe t Ir t! in:lc. rt .'.::ecntl'.c ;rowerto exp ud by furihcr
defining the F1:1's s t:icrity to r:t ,le it to ti^,"vclonadvance
information cin:ccrni ten plan r'.d tapir '. ... of tcrrcri:;ts end revolu
tionarieo 1:"liuseek ie ovi ethro: J destroy t:'o (:ovcrnat nt Tio.vevcr we
also believe that .anehc. rc.ncleJc:t;tl;orityI:"t`:-tire torrniiy sot forth in an
Executive order and this it .c..neendati,.nin responsive in the Attorney
Generals c;;pl'ceset ,eas.est ie I.:?)ar molt ie mal rl'aidclille.>to our work
in areas 1":hercdclii:l_';a is net i clom

Wecoi;l.;.:r the it:nuanceof a new Executive order delineating
our jurisdiction m;that".ity rut is::ponnibility to gather and report intelligence
information relatiu" it Olehate tl .;.icurily I.)1,oa very important and hired
priority a.;:ttor ritebelieve the issuance of t,iiidclines by the Attorney General
under Title 2S Seciion 5J3 UnitedStaten Code to be equally important
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ANANALYSISOFFBIDOMFSTICSECURITY
INTELLiGENCEINVESTIGATIONSAil'l'HIORITY

OFFICIALATTITUDESANDACTIVITIESINIIISTORiCPERSPECTIVE

Manypersons whoare currently examining the FBI's domestic
security ,n'.elligenceauthority and the parameters of this jurisdiction begin
their analysis at a mid-point in the history of this Nation's struggle against
the forces of subversion This approach tends to result in a mechanical
examinationof the subject without the benefit of an understanding of the
historical forces and necessities which brought about the need to conduct
domesticsecurity intelligence investigations In an effort to clarify the role
the FBIhas played in this field it is deemedappropriate to suhmit,this
concise review of historic events illustrating the evolutionof the problem
of domesticsubversion attitudes of Governmentofficials towards the problem
and how against this historic backdrop the FBI cameto he assigned domestic
security intelligence responsibilities

OnSeptember24 1789 the Officeof Attorney General of the
UnitedStates was created by Actof Congress Notuntil March 3 1871 was
there an effort to create an investigative force for the use of the Attorney General
in fulfilling his duties in that year Congress appropriated 50.000for the
use of the AttorneyGeneral "in the detectionand prosecution of crimes against
the UnitedStates. From1871to 1909 the various Attorneys General appointed
"SpecialAgents, "GeneralAgents and "examiners to assist himin the
letection of crimes In someinstances investigative personnel fromother
aderal agencies were borrowed for this purpose Their numbers were few
d administrationof their efforts was primitive in an effort to create an

effectiveinvestigative force Attorneys General Charles J Bonaparteand
GeorgeW Wickersham in 1908and 1909 issued orders which resulted in
the creation of the."Bureau of investigation, a division of the Department
which in March 1909 was ordered to be a separate unit of the Department
under the control and supervision of the "Chiefof the Bureau of Investigation.
This Bureau by 1910 was being referred for investigation all Federal crimes
not specifically assigned to other-Federal agencies

Manytoday assumeincorrectly that the FBIcommenceddomestic
security intelligence investigations within the last several years In fact
the Bureau of Investigation the predecessor of the modern FBI was given
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foreign and domestic security responsibilities during WorldWarI (WWI)
1917-1918 It will be made more apparent on review of the followingmaterial
that manyproblems and questions concerning domesticsecurity investigations
of that era parallel the problems and questions of today

Withthe outbreak of hostilities in Europe in 1914 and this
Nation's participation commencingin 1517 a floodof new responsibilities
faced the 300or so Agents of the Bureau of Investigation Previously their
responsibilities were limited to investigations of crimes on Governmentlands

.,bankand bankruptcy frauds forgery matters bribery and kindred offenses
Withthe comingof war concern over potential sabotage :activitiesand alien
propaganda grew within the Nation and the Bureau was assumed anew role
Nolonger were the Bureau's interests limited to th traditional areas of criminal
investigation but were no broadened to encompass matters concerning internal
security and national defense In 1917 Congress enacted the Selective
Service and Training Act the Espionage Act and the Trading*with the
EnemyAct followedin 1918 by the Sabotage and DeportationActs
Enforcementresponsibilities fcr the most part fell on the Bureau of
Investigation To meet the added burdens the Bureau was increased
to approximately 400Agents but nonetheless these were insufficient to
handle the task

To respond to the problem Attorney General ThomasW Gregory
and then Bureau Chief A Bruce Biclaski conceived what they felt might
suffice to answer the problem The American Protective League (API.)
composedof well-meaning private individuals was formedas a citizens
auxiliary to "assist the Bureau of Investigation In addition to the authorized
auxiliary ad hoc groups took it upon themselves to "investigate tvhr1tthey
felt were un-American activities Though the intentions of both groups^t;"ere
undoubtedly patriotic and in some instances beneficial the overall result
was the denial of constitutional safeguards and administrative confusion
To see the problem one need only consider the mass deprivation of rights
incident to the deserter and selective service violator raids in NewYork
and NewJersey in 1918 wherein 35Agents assisted by 2,000 APLoperatives
2,350 military personnel and several hundred police rounded tip some 50,000
men without warrants or sufficient probable cause for arrest Ofthe 50,000
arrestees approximately 1,500were inducted into the military service and
15,000were referred to draft boards

It becomeclear that using citizen auxiliary personnel was not
the answer to national defense manpowerproblems
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Secondly it was realized that there wnwno central control of
authorized agencies for coordinating such investigations and correlating
the resultant pronecutive and intelligence information AnAgent when
asked in 1938 what problems were experienced during investigations in
WWI stated

"Ilowdid we function with relation to other agencies
both federal and state In answering this quory I
might say that while our relationship with the Army
and Navy Departments was extremely cordial at all
times nevertheless there was at all times an enormous
overlapping of investigative activities amongthe
various agencies charged with the winning of the
war There were probably seven or eight such active
organizations operating at full force during war days
and it was not an uncommonexperience for an Agent
of this Tlurenuto call upon an individual in the
course of his investigation to find out that six or
seven other Governmentagents representing as many
other investigative agencies had been around to interview.
the party about the same matter .. The experience
had in those days v.-v.so convincing in the lesson it
taught as to mike it certain that in the event of
another WorldWar somecentral control should exist
to correct the old evils.

Twoprimary lessons were thus learned concerning investigations
of internal security matters which would play a great part in considerations
for such investigatons when the threat or potential of WorldWarlooingdin the
1930's It was evident that unprofessional and untrained citizens grourrs
authorized or vigilante could not be used as an official functioning auxiliary
to established investigative agencies Secondly even amongtrained
established agencies there was a necessity for centralized assignment and
control of investigation and correlation of the investigative product

The great "Red-Radical Scare followedclosely on the heels of
WW1 apparently the social reaction to the aftermath of the Warand the Russian
Revolutionof 1917 The violence and anarchism associated with the activities
of such "rndicnls were of concern to the Governmentand public alike In
an effort to counter the radicals and anarchists the Departmentand Bureau
in conjunctionwith the Departmentof Labor which hod primary jurisdiction

-3
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over immigrationmatters used the provisions of the "DeportationStatute
ns an answer The followingexcerpts are froma confidential letter to."all
Special Agents and Employees from Director W J Flynn dated August 12
1919

"The Bureau requires a vigorous and comprehensive
investigation of Anarchistic and similar classes
Bolshevism and kindred agitations advocating change
in the present formof Governmentby force or violence
the promotionof sedition and revolution bomb throwing
and similar activities In the present state of the federal
law this investigation should be particularly directed
to persons not citizens of the United States with a
view of obtaining deportation cases ..

"Whileyou are required to i-vestigate particularly
with regard to aliens you should also make full
investigation of similar activities of citizens of the
United States with a view to securing evidence which
may be of use in prosecutions under the present
existing state or federal laws or under legislation
of that nature Whichmay hereinafter be enacted ...

These investigations resulted in the much criticized "Palmer Red
Raids of 1919and 1920

In 1919 J Edgar Hoover a DepartmentalAttorney since 1917
was placed in charge of the General Intelligence Division Departmcnl,of
Justice The Division had the responsibility of correlating information
obtained by the Bureau for the purpose of preparing material for deportation
proceedings As a Departmentalattorney Mr Hoovernot only observed
the wartimeproblems but experienced the difficulties associated with
intelligence-type Investigations while with the Division

On October 5 1920 he prepared a report on the General
Intelligence Division which read in part

"Followingthe mailing of bombs to prominent
_ govcrnmcnt officers in !tiny 1979 and the bomb

outrages of June 2 1479 it became apparent that
;',there must be established a systematic and thorough

-4
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supervision over the unlawful activities of certain
persons and organizations in the United States whose
sole purposes were to commitacts of terrorism and to
advocate by word of mouth and by the circulation of
literature the overthrow of the Governmentof the
United States by force and violence On August 1
1919 there was formed as a part of the Departmentof
Justice a GENERALIN'T'ELLIGENCEDIVISIONto handle
the investigations connected with the radical activities
in the United States :. Whilethe work of the
General Intelligence Division was at first confined
solely to the investigations of the radical movement
it has now expanded to cover more'general intelligence
work including not only the radical activities in the
United States and abroad but also the stud in:t of
matters of an international nature as well as economic
and industrial disturbances incident thereto
...it was soon found that the federal statutes were
inadequate to properly handle the radical situation
from a criminal prosecution standpoint As is already
mentioned in this report there is need in the absence
of legislation to enable the fedora e er raa.. ad.^y^Latel
to defend and protect itself and its institutions of not
only aliens within the borders of the UnitedStates but
also of American citizens who are engaged in unlawful
agitation Consequently the efforts of the Bureau became
centered upon the activities of alien agitators with the
object of securing deportation of such of these persons as
were violating the provisions of the Act of October 16, 
1918 familiarly known as the "deportation statute.

Mr hoover further reported that within the overall operation an
indexing system was established for the retrieval of information that anarchist
societies other than pure communistwere investigated for "revolutionary
character, that evidence was discovered linking radicals to the Steel and Coal
Strikes of 1919 and Railroad Strikes 1920 that their propaganda had been
infiltrated into the labor movement that radical propaganda was directed at
the Negro to foster racial unrest that there were anarchists of various
ideologies practicing within the United States that various states had gained
convictions under local criminal syndicalism statutes and others and that the
General Intelligence Division of necessity had generated n library of radical
publications to study the various overall theories and histories of the radicals
and anarchists

!I5
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In summarizing Mr Hoovernoted in the report

"Muchor the work of the General Intelligence
Division has been cumulative in nature and the
collection of information has enabled this department
not only to achieve results in the more practical
application of the federal statutes to the unlawful
activities of the radicals in the United States but
has enabled the government to study the situation
froma more intelligent and broader view-point."

Mr Hoover in his summation stated very clearly that information
which the Bureau was collecting was being used by the General Intelligence
Division as pure and valuable intelligence information to assess internal domestic
radical activity as early as 1919

The "Led Raids generated a storm of criticism fromsuch legal
scholars as Dean RoscoePoundof Harvard Felix Frankfurter later Associate
Justice of the Supreme Court Charles Evans Hughes and Harlan Fiske Stone
both subsequently ChiefJustices In addition the Senate Judiciary Comniittec
launched an investigation of such practices

In 1924 Harlan Fiske Stone was appointed Attorney General of
/ the United States and his concept as to the Bureau's role was quite clear

The Bureau of Investigation is not concerned with
political or other opinions of individuals It is concerned
only with such conduct as is forbidden by the lawsof
the United States Whena police system goes beyond
these limits it is dangerous to"thcproper administration
ofjustice and to human liberty....

J Edgar Hoover who was appointed Director of the Bureau of
Investigation by Attorney General Stone in 1924 followedthis policy from its
inception In a letter of May 14 1925 he responded to an inquiry in point
by stating

"...you me advised that fromtime to time infor
mationconcerning communistactivities in the United States
is voluntarily furnished to field offices of the Bureau
by parties not connected therewith the information
is forwarded to this office However the Bureau is
making no investigations of such activities inasmuch

)!l  j as it does not appear that there is any violation of n
Federal Penal Statute involved. 

0;5
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Again on October 7 1925 he responded to ColonelJames 11
P.ceves General Staff WarDepartment as follows

"In reply thereto I beg to state that general
investigations into radical activities by our various
field offices were discontinued some time ago by reason
of certain changes in policy program procedure etc.
instituted upon instructions from the Department Such
investigations as are now made are only inaugurated
upon specific instructions ft;omthe bureau and are
directed upon definite reports of activities which may
involve violations of Federal laws or statutes.

To completethe picture of official FBIpolicy and attitude regarding
investigation of radical activities during the 1920'sand early I930's it mus
be noted that intelligence-type investir*alionsv.-eraconducted on a very limited
basis and for specific purposes when requested by the Attorney General and
Secretary of State under the provisions of the Appropriations Act 28U.S.C
533(3)

For example on December 31 1931 James G Rogers Assistant
Secretary of State telephonically contacted an Assistant Director to inquire as
to whether the FRIhad entered the investigation of the Cleveland Ohio and
Easton Pennsylvania bomb "outrages as an inquiry had been directed to
State fromthe Italian Ambassador regarding protection of the Italian Consuls
Ile was advised the matter violated postal laws and no investigation was underway
by the Bureau By letter of the same day the Assistant Secretary formally
requested the Departmentto direct the FBIto "cooperate to the fullest possible
extent with the Post OfficeDepartment as the "occurrence so soon after the
outrages in Faston indicates the possibility th;it a widespread plot againsl
Italian officials and subjects may exist. By January 2 1932 after conferring
with the Assiaant .AttorneyGeneral Mr Iioover had directed the initiation of
such investigation

It is.apparent that the FBIfrom 192.1to 1934 conducted general
domestic radical investigations where the activity inciicalcda violation of
Federal laws where investigations were specifically requested by State Depart
ment through the Attorney'General and otherwise obtained such intelligence
type informationonly when volunteered by someoutside source Thus as
of 1924 the Bureau had been changed.from a small force of criminal investigators
and because of duties performed regarding radical activities during and
shortly after 11'bI had becomethe recognized instrument of the Federal
Goveunteat for the investigation of such matters
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Even though general domestic security intelligence investigations
were not being conducted (luring this period other developments occurred with
in the organization which made the later assignment of that responsibility logical

Between 1923and 1935 the FBIbecame the repository for identi
fication records and fingerprints thus creating an Identification Division A
compactwas formedto exchange fingerprints with major nations uniform reporting
rules were madeapplicable to all personnel in FBI field offices which were
strategically placed across the country an organized program was initiated
to train new Agent personnel and was thereafter extended to other law officers
and the FBI Laboratory was created These and other growth factors greatly
broadened the FBI's inherent capability to perform future intelligence assignments

Ofequal significance was the passage by Congress in Mayand
June 1934 of numerous Federal crime hills which enlarged the FR1'sresponsi
bilities in the criminal field to include amongother things investigations of
bank robberies extortions kidnapping matters Fugitive Felon Act cases
Interstate Transportation of Stolen Property cases and assaults on Federal
officers

These factors of course created no explicit authority in the FRI
to conduct domesticsecurity intelligence investigations but they most deiiniteiy
created an organization with all the assets composition and capabilities
for conducting such investigations if so directed

Though the Departmentaland Bureau policy from 1924to 1934
was to not engage in general domestic security intelligence investigrtions
the communist-anarchist problem was ever present and of great concern-to the
public the Executive and Congress The "red radicals and anarchists
were no longer alone in the field however for in the early 1930's National
Socialism the Naziparty ideology of Adolf(litter grew to power in Germany
and anti-Semitic anti-racial propaganda was being peddled by Nazioperatives
aliens and pro-German Americans in the United States

During the early 1930's various elements in Congress were
anxious for the FBIto enter domestic intelligence investigations against both
communistradicals and the Nazi moventent

Commencingin 1930 HamiltonFish .Jr then Chairman of a
House Committeeinvestigating communistand radical activities contacted
and corresponded with the Department and the Bureau regarding proposed
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legislation which wouldallow the FBIblanket authority to investigate
"Communistand revolutionary activity. On December17 1931 House
Bill 5659 was introduced which read in part

"(The PI3I)is hereby authorized and empowered
to investigate the revolutionary propaganda and activities
of communistsin the UnitedStates and of all entities
groups or individuals who teach or advocate the
overthrow by force and violence the republican form
of government-=(the'FRI) is hereby also authorized
to cooperate in its investigation with the other depart
ments of the Governmentand with various state and
municipal authorities.

The Bureau's position in response to all inquiries and requests
through this period however can be summarizedin ."r ltoover's comments
madeJanuary 19 1931 wherein he advised the Congressman that he "thought
it better not to expand the power of the (FBI) since the Bureau has never
been established by legislation but operates solely on an appropriation bill and
further that "it wouldbe better to male it a crime to participate in such activities
ite continued "the Bureau operates under an appropriation net 'Detectionand
Prosecution of Crime, and all the l'ureau would need wouldhe legislation
making it a crime to participate in certain activities. Ile staled "If the
Bureau is given special power to investigate (activities not subject to the
penal law) it wouldbe in the position of having a mass of material with which
nothing could he clone because there is no legislation to take care of it. On
Jnntiary.2 1932 Mr Hooverdirected a memorandumto the Attorney General
in regard to the proposed legislation and noted

"The conditions (relative to investia_ation.sfor the
purpose of prosecution) will materially differ were
the Bureau to embark upon a policy of investigative
activity into conditions which froma Federal stand
point have not been declared illegal and in connection
with which no prosecution mightbe instituted 'rho
Departmentand the iturenu would undoubtedly he
subject to charges in the matter of alleged secret and
undesirable methodsin connectionwith investigative
activities :is well as to allegations involving charges
of the use of 'Agents Provocateur.

in October 1933 Director Hooversubmitted a memorandumto
WilliamStanley Assistant to the Attorney General, to advise of a meetingwith
ImmigrationService personnel representing the CommissionerGeneral of
lduv 1;16
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Immigrationwherein hoover was told by these persons that "the President
had indicated n desire that a joint investigation be madeby the Immigration
authorities and by this Divisionof the Nazi propaganda in this country.
Hooveradvised that he responded

"i informed (the meeting) that we had received
in this Departmenta number of requests for investi
gations of this character fromoutside parties but that
to date no violations of a Federal criminal statute
had been submitted and consequently no investigation
had been initiated i stated further that I had not
received any word fromthe Attorney General indicating
that any action should be taken in.this matter.

On October7 1933 CongressmanSamuelDickstein called a
subcommitteeof the Committeeon immirgrationto investigate the Nazimovement
and requested Agents fromthe Bureau to assist in the investigation The
rcqucst was denied through the Attorney General On the other hand when
a warrant was issued for HeinzSpanknoebel a Germanoperative for violation
of Section 233of Title 22 and CongressmanDickstein requested assistance
in locating the fugitive the Director's note on a memorandumof November20
1933 reacts "See that every effort is made to effect SpnnI:n ehcl's arrest if
he is still in U S. 12/5/33 4.E.11. Wherelaws were violated there was
no hesitancy to enter an investigation of Nazior communistactivity

On March28 1934 Mr Hooverattended an executive meeting
with the.liouse Committeeon Accounts CongressmanWarren Chairman
wherein he was queried as to what investigation the itureau had conducted
regarding "Naziactivities Communistactivities and other subversive
movements and further whether the carrying on of an investigation by the
Congressional Committeeunder the Dickstein Resolution (would interfere).
Hereported to the Attorney General that his response was that no such investi
gations were being conductedas no laws had been violated save in the
Spanknoebelcase Ile further reported to the Attorney General that a request
had also been madeby the Committeefor Agent assistance in the congressional
investigation and he had spoken against this procedure as it was not a "fact
finding investigation for the purpose of prosecution

It wouldappear that the policy of the Dcp:ir(rnontand the Bureau
wouldpreclude entry into any general or intelligcnce-type investigations of
the Nazior radical movements Ilowever events were soon to transpire which
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were to cause a departure fromprevious policy restricting investigations to
potential violations of laws relating to domesticsecurity Direct instructions
from the President formedthe basis for limitedintelligence-type investigation
of the Nazi movementin 1934and in 193l for broader investigation of sub
versive activities in the UnitedStates particularly Fascismand communism
The followingmaterial will explain this departure fromprevious policy
predicat_Oupon the issuance of Presidential instructions directly relating to
the ChiefExecutive's constitutionalresponsibilities

On May8 1934 Mr Hooverappeared at a conference at The
WhiteHouseattended by President Franklin H Roosevelt the Attorney
General the Secretary of the Treasury the Secretary of Labor and the
Chiefof the Secret Service The topic'of concern was the Nazimovementin
the UnitedStates As a result of the conference 1'looverrecorded on May10
1934

"...it is desired that a very careful and searching
investigation be madeof this movement with particular
attention to be given to activities indicating that either
the GermanFmbassyor the GermanConsulates through
out the UnitedStates mayhave connectionwith this
movement.

Mr Itoover continued

"It was agreed that it wouldhe desirable to have
one clearing house for informationupon this activity
and since the only Federal law that mightbe applicable
to it at the present timewouldbe the Immigration1.aw
it was decided by the President that ColonelMneCermack
Commissionerof immigrationand Naturalization would
confer with Mr Moran Chiefof the Secret Service
and myselfat an early date for the purpose of working
out the details of this investigative activity

"i nmdesirous that you immediatelyprepare
confidentialinstructions to all of our field offices
directing.them to initiate an intensive investigation
of activities of the Nazigroup with particular
reference to the anti-racial activities and any anti
Americanactivities having any possible connection
with officialrepresentatives of the Germangovern
ment in the UnitedStates

'%,.)V5 1915
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"The investigation should be considered as a so
called intelligence investigation that is to say the
reports should be prepared in one general summary
at specified intervals in order that the Attorney
General may have them made available and in turn
make them available to the President.

On niay 10 1934 instructions went to p11field offices to conduct an
'Intensive investigation of the Nazimovementwith particular reference to anti
racial and anti-American activities having any possible connection with official
representatives of the GermanGovernmentin the United States

It is readily reco;rnized that this Presidential instruction was not
a sweeping and general assignment to conduct domestic security intelligence
investigations but rather to conduct an intelligence investigation within
spacified guidelines Nonetheless here based upon a Presidential Directive
the Bureau departed frompast statutory policy and immediatelyinitiated an
intelligence investigation which by necessity involved aliens and t'nited"States
citizens and was conducted for the primary purpose of informing the Attorney
General and the President as to the general activities of the movement

This investigation of the Nazi movement conducted along the
specified guidelines set by the President was not expanded to include investi
gation of such communistor radical movementswhose purpose it was to over
throw the Government in a memorandumdated October 9 1935 for the
ActingAttorney General the Director noted in his response to a State
Departmentinquiry as to the feasibility of exchanging radical information
with foreign police sources

"At the present time the investigative activity
of this Bureau is restricted in matters of this kind
(communistand radical matters) to those activities
which constitute.a violation of some Federal statute
The only Federal statutes generally considered as
applicable to such matters are these relating to
treason sabotage espionage and the transportation
of munitions of warfare to those nations which are
the subject of a Presidential proclamation prohibiting
such shipment of munitions of war in the absence

1!i15
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Comnnnistic or other radiral activities aimedat
the overthrow of the Government no investigation
is conducted into such matters in view of the
absence of the necessary elements to establish a
violation of lire Treason statute

"Very little informationis obtained by this Bureau
relating to the activities of these radical organizations
which advocate the overthrow of the United States
Government It follows of course that information
of this kind is of no value when existing laws do not
permit a prosecution of the person engaged in
advocating the overthrow of the Government and
consequently if informationis received in foreign
countries concerning organizations having for their
purpose the overthrow of the Federal Governmentand
this informationis transmitted to this Bureau the
Bureau would of course be powerless to act upon
the informationfurnished unless it constituted some
violation of a Federal statute within the Bureau's
jurisdiction I will however be glad to receive
at any time inforn,n,innfromany forcgn police
department which pertains to organizations established
for the purpose of attempting to overthrow this
Government and will in the event the Bureau can
take no action upon the informationfurnished transmit
the informationto those Governmentalagencies who
maybe interested in the material obtained.

As late as July 13 1936 correspondence with various parties
reveals that the Bureau was conductingno general intelligence investigations
concerning communismand radicals

Onceagain however",as in 1934 a specific Directive fromthe
President changed the investigative policy towards conducting intelligence
investigations of communistand radical activities OnAugust 21 1936
Director iloover representing the Departmentin the Attorney General's
absence was summonedto'The White!rouseby President Rnosevrlt As
reflected in twomemorandaby 11 llnr,ver dated August 24and August 25
1936 the President "was desirous of discussing the question of the subversive
activities in the UnitedStates particularly Fascismand Communism. hoover
recorded that the President stated he had been concerned about the communist
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and fascist movementsand "what he was interested in was obtaining a broad
picture of the general movementand its activities ns may affect the economic
and political life of the country as n whole. Hoovercontinued "f tole)him
that there is at the present time no governmental organization which is getting
any so-called 'general intelligence information upon this subject Ile inquired
what suggestions I might offer relative to this matter. Hoover recorded that
he responded to the President as follows

"I told him that the appropriation of the Federal
Bureau of Investigation contains a provision that it
might investigate any matters referred to it by the
Departmentof State and that if the State fepnrtm.ent
should ask for us to conduct such an investigation we
could do so under our present authority in the
nLpropri;;licmnlrendy crsnted. (EmphasisAdded)

Manywho have quickly read through this sentence and compared
it to the overall subject matter of the conference draw the immediateconclusion
that since the provisions of the Appropriations Act were relied on and since
the Secretary of State made the request it naturally followedthat State and
the President were interested in only foreign or foreign-controlled subversion
On careful rending and examination in light of the historic setting it is
apparent that the President and Hooverwere tnlhiie shout n.oncy not
jurisdictional limits The President wanted a broad intelligence investigation
conducted not for purposes of prosecution and inquired of Hooverif the FBI
could supply the product Hoover responded by informing the President that
moneyhad been appropriated by Congress under the Appropriations Act and
to activate the provisions for justifiably using the funds would require a
request from the Secretary of State The FIJIcould of course conduct no
investigations for WhichCongress had not provided appropriations The
final topic discussed at the August 24 153G meeting was the President's
desire that Hoovercoordinate the investigation with the "Military and Naval
Intelligence Services.

On August 25 the President Secretary of State and the Director
met at The White)louse The President related his concern over communist
and fascist activities gaol according to hoover stated that he was "very
desirous of having a survey madeof these conditions and informed the
Secretary of State that this survey could be madeby the Departmentof
Justice if the Secretary of State requested the Department to conduct the
inquiry under the FBIAppropriations Act. Ile further recorded that such a
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request from State would be fully justifiable and logical ns these movements
1particularly communism were international in scope and therefore fell
within the interests of forei'rn affairs "over which the State Department would
have a right to request an inquiry to be made.

It is clear that the involvement of the State Department in the initial

errangemcnt did not serve in some way to limit the scope of the investigation
to foreign or foreign-controlled activities to the exclusion of domestic The
President desired "a broad picture of the general movementand its activities
ns may affect the economicand political life of the country as a whole, and
there is nothing contained in his request to suggest the intent to exclude
domestic security intelligence coverage

T.1r Hoover's understanding of his assignment is illustrated in
n mcmorancumto one of his assistants dated September 10 1936 wherein he
stated he discussed the President's orders "to have investigation made of the
subversive activities in this country including Communismand Fascism
with the Attorney General and was given his concurrence The former
Director's understanding as to the scope of the President's instruction is
further reflected in a memorandumto FBI field offices dated September 5
1936 which states in part

"The Bureau desires to obtain from all possible
sources information concerning subversive activities
being conducted in the United States by Communists
Fascisti and representatives or advocates of other
organizations or groups advocating the overthrow
or replacement of the Governmentof the United States
by illegal methods Noinvestigation should be initiated
into cases of this kind in the absence of specific
authorization from the Bureau but you should forward
to the Bureau information obtained from all sources
and in those cases in which investigation is desired
the,Bureau will issue appropriate instructions to
you It is desired accordingly that you immediately
transmit to the Bureau any information relating to
subversive activities on the part of any individual
or organization regardless of the source from which
this information is received.

The entry of the Bureau into the new field of domestic security
intelligence investigations necessitated the creation of administrative procedures
to handle the inc9ming information By memorandumdated August 28 1936
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art assistant submitted a tentative outline for the manner in which it was
recommendedinformation concerning sr:hversive activities be maintained
at Headquarters llc outlined the following"general classifications"
MaritimeIndustry Governmentaffairs steel industry coal industry
newspaper field clothing garment and fur industry general strike
activities Armed Forces educational institutions general activities-
Communistand AffiliatedOrgnnizations Fascisti Anti-Fascisti movements
and activities in Organized Labor organizations Mr Hoovernoted on the
memorandumthat this was a good beginning

In this manner then the bureau entered fully into the field of
domestic security intelligence investigations

Ity letter of October 20 1933 Attorney General HomerCummings
forwarded to the President a memorandumfrom Director Hoover :herein Hoover
outlined for the President the general scone of the FBIintelligence effort and
the areas of coverage being afforded This memorandumreads in part

"The purpose of this memorandum:'ill be to
present the present purposes and scope of the three
phases of domestic intelligence handled by the three
intelligence services of the United States Government
namely the Military Intelligence Division the Office
of Naval Intelligence and the Federal Bureau of
Investigation together with suggestions for expansion
and such further coordination as may be effected
along this general line

"Section I

"The Present Set-l'n and Purposes

"Federal Bureau of Investigation

"In the Federal Bureau of Investigation as a
part of its Investigative Division there is a General
Intelligence Section The function of the General
Intelligence Section is'to collect through investi
gative activity and other contact and to correlate
for ready reference informationdealing with various
forms of activities of either a subversive or a so

.,Vi called intelligence type In addition to the limited
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personnel of the Bureau giving their full time to this
work each of the forty-five field divisions has
developed contact with various persons in professional
business and law enforcement fields for the purpose
of obtaining information along the lines above indicated

"In order that there may be a clear view of the
detailed information covered there is set forth the
followingbreak-up of the various subjects that
appear in the files of the Intelligence Section
Maritime government industry (steel automobile
coal mining and miscellaneous) general strike
armed forces educational institutions Fascisti
Nazi organized labor Negroes youth strikes
newspaper field and miscellaneous Any infor
mationof a subversive or general intelligence
character pertaining to any of the above is received
at the FP,1headquarters at the Seat of Governmentand
is reviewed summarized and placed upon editorial
cards which are filed by name of the subject matter
as well as by name of the individual so that it is
entirely possible to find in the index the collection
of names of individuals engaged in any particular
activity either in any section of the country or in
a particular industry or movement Indicative of the
present size of this index there are approximately
2,500 names now in the index of the various types
of individuals engaged in activities of Communism,
Nazism and various types of.foreign espionage

"In addition to the above informationthat has been
collected the F1;1has developed a rather extensive
library of general intelligence matters including
sixty-five_daily weekly and monthlypublications
as well ns many pamphlets and volumesdealing with
general inictligence activities All of these have been
indexed not only as to title and author but have been
classified as to name and subject and supply a fertile
field of informationon the subject of general intelligence
activities in this country

-17
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'From the material collected both fromno investigative
point of view as well as from the research angle of the
library various charts are prcpnrcd from time to
time to show the growth and extent of certain activities

i s s

"Section II

"Proposed Expansions

At the present time the three intelligence services
namely the ?lilitary Intelligence Officeof Naval t
Intelligence and the FBI l:.ive developed a close
and coordinated plan of cooperation not only at the
headquarters in Washington but in.many of their
Corps areas Naval District and Field Divisions
within the limitations of such personnel as is now
available .. Likewise information that is received
by any one of the three branches of the intelligence
service of interest to any of the other branches is
made immediatelyavailable so that there does exist
today a structure of coordination and cooperation that
has been in operation for many years and has been
working as satisfactorily as could be expected under
the limitations of personnel and appropriations as have
existed in the past

* * *

"(13),Lawand Funds

"Such expansion in the FBIas may be desired and
may becomenecessary can be covered it is believed
under present provisions existi" in the annual
appropriations bill of the Federal Bureau of Investi
gation in which the followinglanruagc appers
'...for such other investigations regarding official
matters under the control of the Departmentof
Justice and the Departmentof State as may be
directed by the Attorney General. Under this
provision investigations have been conducted in
;years past for the State Departmentof matters

i,which do not in themselves constitute n specific
violation of a Federal Criminal Statute such as

18



lfJ
19

566

subversive activities Consequently this pro
vision is believed to be sufficiently broad to cover
any expansion of the present intelligence and counter
espionage work which it maybe deemed necessary
to carry on

"In considering the steps to be taken 1,r the
expansion of the present structure of intelligence
work it is believed imperative that it be proceeded
with the utmost degree of secrecy in order to
avoid criticism or objections which mi,e_hthe
raised to such an cxpnnsion by either ill-informed
persons or individuals having sorre ulterior motive
The word 'espionage has long been a word that
has been repucmant to the American people and it
is believed that the structure which is already in
existence is much broader than espionage or counter
espionage but covers in a true sense real intelligence
values to the three services interested namely the
Navy the Army and the civilian branch of the
Government--the Departmentof .Justice Consequently
it would seem undesirable to seek only special legislation
which would draw attention to the fact that it was
proposed to develop a special counter-espionage drive
of any great magnitude.

Hoover thus confirmed in detailed and ostensive manner not only
the mechanicsand procedures established to complywith the President's
instructions but also revealed in his memoranduma clear insight into his
understanding of the scope of the investigation ordered by the ChiefExecutive
President Roosevelt on November2 193S personally advised the former
Director that he approved of Hoover's plan thus confirming that there was a
meetingof the minds amongthe primary participants Mr Hooverrecorded
on November7 193S that on November1 1P3S he was called by Mr Early
Secretary to the President who told hoover that the President desired that he
board the Presidential Special Train on November2 1938 for a conference
with President Roosevelt. Mr Early was unaware of the topic to be discussed
or whether Mr Hooverwas to accompanythe President to Hyde Park
Mr Hoover's memorandumrecording this conference reads in part



567

"Secondly the President advised me that he had
that day communicatedwith the Director of the Itudget
Mr hell and instructed him to include in the
Appropriation estimates 450,000for Military Intel
ligence ?50,000for Navalintelligence and
$150,000for the Federal Bureau of investigation
to handle counter-espionage activities Hestated
that he had approved the plan which i had prepared
and which had been sent to himby the Attorney
General except that he had not becanable to grant
the entire amountof moneyindicated as necessary
for each of the three agencies but had authorized 
the amountwhich he stated he advised *Jr Pell to
include .. The special train was held until the
conference with the President was concluded and I
left the train at NewYork.

The world situation steadily worsened during the 1930's Adolf
Hitler rose to power in Germany Italy turned to Fascism Russian communism
was threatening and Japan madeovertures of imperialistic expansion
Austria joined the Third Reich irnMarch 1938 and Czechoslovakiawas
occupied on September 30 The Moscow-BerlinNon-AggressionPact of
August 23 1939 aligned both the Naziand communistforces and on September 1
1939 Polandwas attacked by Germany Britain and France allied against
Germany declared war and on September 17 Russia also invaded Polish soil
Border nations toppled to either Russia or Germanyin succession Amidthis
chaotic world situation the UnitedStates attempted to stand neutral neverthe
less the danger of potential espionage sabotage and subversion was of paramount
concern

As the intelligence and law enforcementagencies both Federal
and state geared to meet the anticipated sabotage and subversive threats it
soon becameapparent tint the lessons of WorldWari were not well learned by
most Various Federal investigative agencies commenceduncoordinated and
decentralized investigation of reports of subversion Someeven prompted
local citizens groups to assist their efforts much reminiscent of the American
Protective Leagueand various ad hoc groups formedfor that same purpose
during ICorld1>`r I In response to this growing problem the ltnremr
recommendedremedial action through the Attorney General which resulted
in a letter dated February 7 1039 being directed to various Federal
department heads fromJoseph D Keenan Assistant to the Attorney General
which stilted in part
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"I take pleasure in informingyou that in cooperation
with the Military Intelligence Divisionof the Wm ncpart
ment the Federal Bureau of Investigationof the Department
of Justice has undertaken to investigate matters relating to
espionage and subversive activities

"In order that such matters he handled expeditiously
it will be appreciated if you will instruct your personnel
that in case any informationis received concerning the
above-mentionedmatters such informaticinshould be
promptly forwarded to the nearest.field officeof the
Federal Bureau of Investigation.

Ilene is the first effort of the Departmentand the FBi to prevent the
confusion delays and violationof personal rights incident to such investigations
diming the previous war The Departmentand th^ Bureau saw cold logic in
this approach as since WWi the FBIhad been the prime mechanismfor the
investigation of espionage sabotage and related statutory violations and
since 1936 in conjunctionwith the military and naval intelligence services
had been conducting domestic intelligence investigations Secondly the
Departmentwas responsible for prosecutions of such statutory violations and
liceAiiorncy General had been working closely in the field of intelligence
investigations 'thirdly the FIll's internal composition administrative
structure and capabilities were such as to make it the logical agency to
conduct nationwide effective centralized investigation of such matters

Nevertheless the letter of February 7 1939 was virtually ignored
by other agencies and a cumbersomecommitteesystem under the direction of
the Undersecretary of State was inaugurated The committeewas composedof
representatives of the War Navy Trcasu.y Post Office and Justice Departments
in addition to the State 1)epcnrtmentwhose function it was to receive informationof
n subversive nature makean ni alysis and then forward the matter to the agency
deemedmostsuited to handle the investigation The bulk of the matters were
referred to the FBIand the military and naval intelligence services The
previous arrangcnient based on the President's desires of 1936 was completely
ignored causing a waste of prior efforts and accumulatedinformation delays
in referral of cases and general confusion

The Departmentand Bureau prepared a memorandumdated
June 5 1939 containing ideas and recommendationsto he presented to the
President in an effort to resolve the controversy

;( ) 1015 21
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"For the reasons outlined above it is recommended
that two definite stops be taken--first that the inter
departmental committeedescribed in the fi 'st paragraph
of this memorandumbe abandoned and that in its place
the investigation of all espionage counter-espionage
and sabotage cases be controlled in the Intelligence
Divisions of the Warand wavy Departments and the
Federal Bureau of Investigation and that the directors
of these thrr rencies function in the capacity of a
committeeto c,,ordinate the activities of the three
agencies named Second that confidential instructions
should be issued by th'ePresident to the heads of all
government departments except t:ar Navy and
Justice instructing that absolutely no investigations
shall be conducted by the investigative agencies of
:hose departments into cases involving actually or
potentially espionage counter-espionege or sabotage
The heads of all government departments should be
instructed in this order to refer immediatelythrough
existing channels direct to the nearest officeof the
Federal Bureau of Investigation any data information
or material pertaining to cases of this type Formal
order on the part of the President would hardly he
needed in order to accomplish this result MI that
would be required from him would be a letter to each
department head

"If the above outlined plan is viewed with favor it
will mean that all intelligence work within the armed
forces will be handled by the G-2 Section of the War
Departmentand the Officeof Naval intelligence of the
Navy Departmentand that all investigative work in
espionage counter-espionage and sabotage cases
involving civilians will be centralized in the
Federal Bureau of Investigation This arrangement
will continue the closely coordinated methodof
operation now in existence and will enable the
Federal Bureau of Investigation to continue its
-workin this field with continued intensity.
(EmphasisAdded)

This recommendedprocedure concurred in by President Roosevelt
resulted in the confidential Presidential Directive of June 2G 1939 which reads
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"It is my desire that the investigation of all espionage
counterespionage and sabotage matters be controlled
and handled by the Federal Purenu of Investigation
of the Department of Justice the Military Intelligence
Division of the WarDepartment and the Officeof Naval
Intelligence of the NavyDepartment The directors
of these three agencies are to function as a committee
to coordinate their activities

"Noinvestigations should be conducted by any
investigative agency of the Governmentinto matters
involving actually or potentialiy any espionage
counterespionage or sabotage except by the three
agencies mentionedabove

"I shall be glad if you will instruct the heads of
of nil uther investigative agencies than the three named
to refer immediatelyto the nearest officeof the Federal
Bureau of Investigation any data information or
material that may cometo their notice bearing directly
or indirectly on espionage counterespionage or
sabotage.

The overall problem was not however totally resolved with the
Uirective of June 26 1939 Reports were frequently received in Washington
indicating that various local police authorities were forming*"sabotage squads
and the like and therefore further clarification was deemednecessary

The Departmentand FBIagain went to the President to rest:He the
question By memorandumto the Attorney General dated September 6 1939
former Director Hooverstated

"Confirmingthe suggestion which I transmitted
to you by telephone recently through Mr TammI
believe it Wouldbe well if the President would
issue n statement or request addressed to all police
officials in the United States and instructing them to
turn over to the nearest representative of the Federal
Bureau of Investigation any informationobtained
pertaining to espionage counterespionage sabotage
subversive activities and neutrality regulations I
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cannot urge affirmative action upon this suggestion
too strongly at this time I have learned today that
CommissionerValentineof the NewYork City Police
Departmenthas created a special sabotage squad of
fifty detectives of the NewYork City Police Department
and that this squad will be augmented in the rather near
future to comprise 150me-n Ofcourse as a result
of the creation of this squad considerable publicity
has appeared in the NewYork City newspapers and
consequently much informationin the hands of private
citizens concerning sabotage and saboteurs will he
transmitted to the NewYork City Police Department
rather than to the FBI In order fot intel.liccncework
in this field to be carried on in a comprehensive
manner on a nntionnlbasis all informationmust he
=refully correlated in order to avoid confusion and
chaos Consequently I believe i is highly desirable
for you to take the necessary steps to have such an order
issued by the President at the earliest possible moment.

At 6:20 p.m on September 6 1939 the Attorney General reached
Mr E A Tamm Assistant Director and advised him as is reflected in Mr Tamm's
memorandumdated September 6 1939

"The Attorney General called and stated that the
President issued the order today Ile stated it reads
in part as follows

"'President Roosevelt today requested all
local law enforcementofficers to cooperate
with the FIll in the (hive against espionage
sabotage subversive activities and violation
of the neutrality laws Mr Roosevelt issued
a formal statement requesting all police
officers sheriffs and other law enforce
ment officers to transmit'to the G-Menall
information bearing on such cases This
task mast be conducted in a comprehensive
and effective manner on a national basis and
all information mu;t be carefully sifted out
and co-related in order to avoid confusion
and irresponsibility To this end I request
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all police officers sheriffs and all other
law enforcementofficers in the UnitedStates
promptly to turn over to the nearest represent
ative of the Federal Bureau of investigation
any informationobtained by them relating to
espionage counter-espionage. sabotage
subversive 'activities and violation of the
neutrality laws.

"Mr Murphy stated that when he was preparing
this he tried to makeit as strong as possible ire
requested that I relay this to ^(r J'oover.as soon as
possible and stated he knew the Director wouldbey
very glad to hear this "r '1urphy stated he
prepared this on the basis of the memorandum
which the Director forv:;irdedto him.

The Presidential Directives of June 26 and September 6 1939 were
apparently not issued for the sole purpose of fully describing the scope of
FRIdomesticand foreign security intelligence investigative jurisdiction but
rather were issued to place and finalize investigative authority in the Fill end
the military intelligence services over those areas of jurisdiction where conflicts
were developing It should he noted however the subject matter of the
President's instructions regarding domesticsecurity intelligence investigations
of 1936 as reaffirmed in 1938 is also addressed in the Directive of September 6
1930 thus tending to confirm the President's intent that the FRiand military
services,handle all matters relating to foreign and domesticsecurit .intelligence
investigations To coordinate their efforts the FRIand the military Pntel
ligencc services formed the Interdepartmenta}intelligence Conference f1f(')
Regular meetings were held to discuss and resolve administrative problems
disseminate information and formulateplans both on headquarters and
operational levels

The manner in which the FP1and the military intelligence services
delineated their respective responsibilities is reflected in a series of Delimitation
Agreementsof .June 5 1910 February 9 1942 and February 23 1949 Fach
of these DelimitationsAgreements generally cites in the preamble that in
conformitywith the Presidential Directive of June 26 1939 as augmentedby
the Directive of September 6 1939 investigation of all "espionage counter
espionage sabotage and subversive activities (or subversion) will be delimited
as therein described

IVIY1
.1 .ISI5 -25
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The DelimitationsAgreements of 1940 1942 and 1949 state
that the FIJIshall investigate those matters involving citizens and foreign
nationals or foreign-directed activity in certain geographic areas including
the United States and amongother duties shall advise the military of "cases
of actual or strongly presumptive espionage or sabotage including the names
of individuals definitely known to be connected with subversive activities
(1940and 1942)or "developments concerning the strength composition and
intentions of civilian groups within its cognizance_which are classed as
subversive and whose activities are a potential clanger to the security of the
United 09 49)States

The IICas an independent committeeceased to exist as
pursuant to the NationalSecurity Act of 194 which formed the National
Security Council (`:`'C) it was absorbed and chartered by the `_SC presic'act
over by the President Tile 11Ccharter issued by NSCdated July 18, 1919,
-rends in part

"Pursuant to the-provisions of Section 101of the
NationalSecurity Act and NSC17/4 as approved by
the President the NationalSecurity Council hereby
authorizes and directs that the Interdepartmental
lntelll nee Conference effect the coordination of all
investigation of domestic espionage counterespionage
sabotage subversion and other related intelligence
matters affecting internal security

r s

"(1) The Interdepartmental Intelligence Conference
shrill be constituted as set forth in the Presidential
Directive of .June 26 1939 that is the Director
of the Federal Bureau of Investigation the Director
of the Intelligence Division of the Army the Director
cf Naval Intelligence and in addition the Director
Officeof Special Investigations [I S Air Force
which office has been created since the issuance of
the original Presidential Directive

* * s

"1) Nothingherein shall be construed ns modifying
or affecting the Presidential Directives issued to the
membersof the IIC relating to their individual responsi
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bilitics and duties The DelimitationsAgreement
amongthe membersof (lie IICrelating to the investi `

gative responsibilities and duties of the individual
membersand other agreements amongthese members
relating to the same matters shall remain in full force
and effect and shall continue to be amended changed
and supplemented at the discretion of the IIC.

Thus it was reaffirmed on Presidential authority through the
charter of the lit that the Presidential Directives of June 26 1939 as mentioned
in the charter and the DelimitationsAgreement and the Directive of September 6
1939 as contained in the DelimitationsAgreement were not to be modifiedor
affectedand through the agreement were to remain in full force and effect

The Presidential intent has also been manifestedand reaffirmed
through the issuan,,e of subsequent Directives by President Roosevelton
January 8 1943 President Truman on July 24 1950 and President Fisenhower
on December15 3953 Such reissuances appear to occur to reinforce and
remind interested parties of this intent during times of national peril--]943
during the height of WWIi 1950 during the Koreanconflict and ]953
during the ColdWarera and enactmentof the AtomicFnergy Aet

OnJune 9 1962 President John P Kennedyexecuted National
Security ActionMemorandum161 wherein he stated in part

"2 Accordingly i have directed that the two
interdepartmental committeesconcerned with internal
security--the Interdepartmental intelligence Conference
(IIC) and the Interdepartmental Committeeon Internal
Security (ICIS)--wh eh have been under the supervision
of the NationalSecurity Council will be transferred
to the supervision of the Attorney General The
continuing need for these committeesand their
relationship to the AttorneyGeneral will be matters
for the Attorney General to determine.

OnP1arct 5 1964 a timein conjunctionwith the expiration of
the ITCcharter issued by the NSC the Attorney General directed a charter to
the ltC which is identical to the charter issued by the NSCin 1949 save for
the issuing authority being the AttorneyGeneral in place of the NSC Since that
time the PRihas operated in the field of foreign counterintelligence and domestic
security Mstigations under the overall supervision of the Attorney General
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In addition to the reaffirmationof the Presidential intent the
Attorney Cencral has codified his instructions that the FIIIhandle such
matters in 28CPR Section 0.85(d)

"Carry out the Presidential directive of
September 6 1939 as reaffirmed by Presidential
directives of January 8 1943 July 24 1950 and
December15 1953 designating the (FBI) to take
charge of investigative work in matters relating to
espionage sabotage subversive activities and
related matters.

The FBI in addition is responsible for the investigation of
numerous Pederal statutory violations many inherently addressing the field
of domesticsubversion and extremist activities as well as for retaining
material and conducting such investigations as arc necessary and proper
under the Federal FmployeeLoyaltyProgram

As has been illustrated the FBI since WorldWarI has been
the recognized Federal agency to conduct investigations of a national security
nature and since 1936 has been authorized to engage in domestic security
intelligaree in stigations through a series of Presidential Directives as
reaffirmed Executive Branch charters and through the parallel interest
generated in the duty to investigate statutory violations in the field
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EXHIBIT54-1

UNITEDSTATESGO .:clar,liNT

Memorandum

DIRECTORFBI DATE MAY2 a 195$

FROM SAC NEWYORK F 3

SUBJECT  WOMEN'ShIP Jr:.'1fl >OVF.:,ENT
INFORI"IATIONCO?'(:'sltITIEG11ISCELLANEOUS

ReNYletto .13oo.-.oand Chicago dated 4/4/59

On 69 whohats furnished reliable information
in the past advised '.:'. li000n's Liborotion ilovor..ont
(WU.1),sofar as tho i.r.S'r'.nt '.n rxcro is not on organiza
tion as such but rs::'.^. a CaUr and philosophy She stated
she knowsof no fornn) headquarir_'s or officers on a local
or notional basis h :oa no information concerning the
finances within the tow ot:"but from her observation their
financial needs ere e;1c?1 "n:l ;ho fools that the individuals
within the separate l;r;.;ero ablo to supply the necessary
funds

Itao,aokor .tt t th t the philosophy of the WLMis
for complete equal rents of tho socio political
and economic life foe r) J'g3ically the movcnont
is madeup of liberaa -.","..;c or ::enan and redical groups of
womon The liberal r'r":n >rrh:s tho necossity of doing
awaywith male ch:ucin_. 'nomtoo coa:ploto ocuality of
womon but thoy fool t:h";is ould bo done within the
frameworkof exi:tiny',:c:!:`-ut'c': Th basic difference
between them and th 'o .._c i goo':) is that tho redico.ls state
that male chouvinion  ect rooelt of "the ostablish
ment end o;ioting irr .err and that thocs must bo torn
downbofore a.an :.ill 1~;'a h:"r ocuolIty 1NFsRN,Anrrstotod
that in the New'loco no 'ho ;nos Intornotionol Torrorist
Conspiracy FromNoll (.?:;''ir1if) is a radical croup octive
for 1'lomon'sLib"rretion c';bor croup which is on offshoot
of the NITC Sin the Nut York a?'oe is tho ."RodStockings 

rii:L-:.j~;r ~r1
rrl

;n
'=110JUN2 1909

.~
 A o59JUN 2719a ~

,n 39"JUII o G1969
BuyU.SSavirsrBoutsi;rsxlarRtc fhtPayrollSav, Plan___
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and they are considered to have split off from the
because of a noro radical approach to the problem

WITCHES
Another

pup bolioved to be forming in the NewYork area is the /!~/ "_
A"HollyMaguires. //

~+-
According to tho informant although there are

other WITCHgroups throughout the country thorn is no
centralized leadership end'thoy with other groups maintain
a loose connection vita corrnopondonce The informant ototod
that within the rndicol eroupa in the WLIIthe memborsoschow
positions of losdership and avoid elections or appointments
of people with titles or to fill specific posts on committees
bocause this typo of thing is roprosentutive of the establish
mont,.to the dostructionof which they ero dedicated From
time to time individuals ero choson to lead n meeting or
porforn o specific function such as taking up a collection
or writing letters

 On ,69 nor Aa1 whohas furnished
reliable information in ,ho past advisod that o WLMmeeting washold on 69 nt NowYork City
Each womanut this ir..otihc stated whyshe had cometo tho
mooting and howoho folt oppressed sexually or otherwise

According to thin informant those womennre mostly
concerned with libornting ;:-:::onfrom this "opproasive society.
They are mostly cgninot rarniago children and othor states
of oppression couoodby non Fewof thorn according to the
informant hevo hod political boc'rnrcunds Tho informant
stated that a moiling list ::.^.spnnsed around at this mootingfor WLMand the "RodStockings, anothor women'sgroup

 On 69 ItifCttl.lAnrr advised that FILMis
only interested in changing nbortion lows and birth control
They advocate froo abortions for everyone cnd widespread in
formation on birth control According to the informantwomanat this reotin;,on 69 stated they ore not rovolutionarius and wouldnot hol2.anvono in o revolution untilthe oppression of womanwas s6l4od first and completoly
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The same informant advised on 69 that a meot
ing.of WLHwas held at NewYork City on 69 Again os
in the previous meeting sat out above each womanpresent
discussed her personal problems Onegirl from the "Rod
Stockings said her group will nowbe attacking prostitution
and pornography

The "Guardian issue of 5/10/69 page five con
tained an article entitled "Reading AboutWomenby CVir"Y
CISLER This article contains a section hooded 'Hriip'Aor

..:Cindy Cislor's'Womer A Bibliography which lists a num
ber of ".today's lumen's writings.

For the assistance of Chicago it is noted that
one item therein is as follows

BROWNJUDTIHand JONESBEVERLY"TowardA
Female Liberation Novoment 40-pages;" Tho "Florida Pnoor
50 conts from Voice of Wc::en'sLiberation Movement 1940
Bissoll Chicago Illinois 60614 A second item in this
list of writings is thpIoice of the Women'sLiberation
HovemontNowsletter $3 a year from VWLM1940 Bissell
Chicago Illinois 60614

In viow of the information from establishod sonrcos
os set out in this and reforoncod communicationthat WITCH
and other woman'sgroups such os the "RodStockings and tho
"Molly t"far,uiros appear to be splinter groups of tho WL'.J
activity of those groups will ba reported undor the caption"Women'sLiboration Movement Information Concerning Miso
ollanoous and tho WITCHcase in the NowYork Offico is
being placed in a closed status
LEADS

CHICAGO
ATCHICAGO)ILLINOIS Will covor leads sot forthin refuroncod :rowYork lotto and other logical invostigof"ion

concerning WLM

NEWYORK

ATNEWYORKNEWYORK Will follow and report onactivities of captioned group and sub groups

-3
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EXHIBIT54-2

UNITEDSTATESDEPARTMENTOF JUI-ICE
FEDERALBUREAUOFINVESTIGATION

4 108th MI Group NYC(RM)
1 NISO NYC(RN)
1 OSI 2nd Air Force NYC(RM)

FieldOfficeFlleh BureauFlledl

Tula WOMEN'SLIBERATIONMOVEMENT

Cko,adert INFORMATIONCONCERNINGMISCELLANEOUS

Synapsis Women's Liberation Movement (WLM)reported to
have formed within the last two and a half years

with loose confederation of about 75 "sister chapters
spread across the USand Canada It has no national
structure but publishes a newsletter "Voice of the Women's
Liberation Movement from Chicago Illinois WLf.1described
as a "cause and philosophy 11LMaim is to gain corplete
equality and liberation for worsen Meetings and activities
of WLMand affiliated groups set forth Names of affiliated
groups set forth;list of writin;s set forth as reflected
in the "Guardian The+e'are no known elected officials
and financial needs are net through collections

l ocumenlcontainneither,,e mendallonnorconcluelonsaltheFBIItI theproperlyofth FBIandleLoanedIn
To penal.IIandIlecontentarenettobedlelrlbuledoutsideyouragency
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DETAILS

For the purpose of clarity persons mentioned in
this report will be described in Section VIII where
characterizations are available

This investigation was predicated upon information
reflecting that the 1omen's International Terrorist Conspiracy
from Hell (WITCFIcn) a splinter group of Women's Liberation
Movement MI) held a picket line demonstration at Felt Forum
Madison Square Garden New York New York February 1969

I ORIGIN

"The Nation issue of February 24 1969 Pages
241-244 contained an article by JO FREEMAN(described in
article as "a free-lance F"iriter and photographer is currently
compil1na a book of readings on the women's liberation
movement") This article entitled "The New Feminists (dateline
Chicago) states in part as follows

"And like the Negro womenhave once again begun
to revolt Two major feoiniat.organizationo have formed
within the last two and a half years In 1966 the National
Organization for Women(NC'.:')was created under the slogan
'full equality for wcien in truly equal partnership with men.
It is a top-darn structure with an office in Washington Its
some 2,500 members are pr:1marily career women womenwhose
families are grown and no longer occupy most of their time
and some sympathetic man

"The second feminist group is not exactly an
organization but a loose confederation of about seventy-five
'sister chapters spread across moot of the United States
and Canada It has no national structure but does mail a
newsletter from Chicago.,
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 According to there is no information
available concerning the fii nceo within the movement however
from the informant's observation their financial needs are
small and it is felt that the individials within the separate
groups are able to supply the necessary funds

 N PEP'l'InS A2) ACTIVITIESOF WLM

An article in "1:!"r7 supra issue of February 15
1969 Page 11 which article io eatitled "Women's Liberation
reflects in part as follows

"Last September lic;ien' Liberation was ready for
its first major action zapping the tliss America Pageaz t at
Atlantic City About 200 icaen descended on thin Wallace
country Tacky Town and stsed an all-day demonstration on
the Boardwalk in frcat of Cc__veation Hall (Where the Pageant
was taking place) singing chanting and performing guerilla
theater (they cro:.,;ed a live ahem as ass America fl".ng bras
girdles steno pads and dishcloths into a Freedom Trash Can
and mockauctioned off a ca:-iy of Mae America) Picket signs

,proclaimed solidarity with the P.1<<;cantcontestants ('sister
victims') while eo dennirg the Pageant itself as racist
(there has never been a bl::bk finalist) militaristic (Mies
America tours the troo2s m Vietnam each year) commercial
(the million-dollar Pa;as.nt Corporation in one Dig Sell for
the sponsoring prodn.otc) and degrading to women (for propagating
the Mindless Sex 0b;c:c Ira.;.) At night an 'inside squad
of 20 women disrupted the live telecast of the Pageant yodeling
the eerie Berber Yell (f"rsn Battle of Algiers) shouting
'Freedom for Women, and ::s.n.:;$nga huge banner reading
Women's Liberation from the balcony rail One womanwas
arrested for 'emittirr a moxaottv odor'--nprayi_`g Toni Hair
Conditioner (a sponsor of th:s ?Leant) near the Mayor's box
and rumor has it that the aauffl.ing of Bert Park's cue cards
was engineered by a sister-traveler among the contestants.

a
t.sO -.3)

-12 tom
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Square Garden iY IIY on February 15 1969 The
purpose of this emonatration according to
was to protest ie.ean's roll of submissiveness in
the institutioxe of marriage The demonstration was
held in connection with a Bridal Show being held at
Felt Forum on February 15 1969

"WIN! supra issue of February 15 1969
in an article 6:ii;i.tled "I;c:::en's Liberation on
page 12 states Jz part as follows

"Nat resting on any laurels after Atlantic
City Women's Lf.l:oration gave birth to W.I.T.C.H
(Women's lnt err.,,i..crat Terrorist Conspiracy from
Hell) which fi ":::t slenifested iteelf appropriately
enough at the ):VAC:i teh-hunt hearings about Chicago
The W.I.T.C.H hci;icn th re t'a3 led by Nancy Kurshan
Aware that witchea were the original guerilla fighters
against oppreeei.<:el ;._1 that any wee:an who was
intelligent r'c:icul -.te non-conformist aggressive
or sexually i s ee l el 1 es usually burned at the stake
W.I.'T.C.1 the: :':fs:" 'd its scco id action--on of
course Ii.^....cec .1 Ceetn :ed ea Nigh Priestesses
Guerilla Uii;ci",':n (co_=o1eto with broom and toy machine
guns) Gype:_es :.id ii;:0ihi.'. (hence Messages) a Coven
of witches hit ?.7 S>;:"eet at noon casting curses on
the Pew York Scock i.-t , r1j e (the market promptly went
dorm five Doi.nl::;) tlee-udin to see Satan at various
banks (sire t ,i c:h:. kn ;i they "Had a Fiend at
Chase I":ammatta:i ) 2.cc:ii.r,. the dread letters W.I.T.C.H
stenciled to ePei en the carets of investment-brokerage
houses and :;enere.11y freaking out the Daytime Ghetto
of the Fin^aciel ,.L,tr:!.et At dusk the procession
alighted of the Lc.ar i:2wt Side rapping with the
natives about r ;ehee the first scientists birth
control pueveye_s aboyvioaists heads trippers and
general brile arc of fr.;cdon and

deli"at.
;lei

;1
17 r~ .>
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'Here come the slaves off to their graves
the WITCHESsang to the tune of the traditional wedging
march Then the Picketers--both men and women---s `nod
i.tfa circle :end n:'.adged themselves to each other but
without the traditional promise to obey

"Audience Keeps Calm

"A few.minutes later several WITCHESwho
managed to sne(k petit the guards let loose 100 white
mice in the _Jell Foie before the bridal show begF":n 
Taut the girl in the audience instead of screa Lng end
panicking seemed sorry for the vice and tried to
gather them up co tney.r,-ouldn't be stepped on

. ~R(i`tarBTUrmer child actress `:;ho
helped organi tee eena xstration and who took part In
the picketing of h: 1iss America Pageant last Ser,temher
in Atlantic C_,ty said t protest was aimed at'the
commercialiGy of eh Br.`.n ;Pair and the institutien of
marriage as it esiets in is culture to dehumanize
both parti s--'eue e;pec:ially to oppress women

who erefe-n co ease her maiden name is married
and expects her fir,t chile in July

o 1969 furnished lnformetien
to the efi ec t that was in the forefront
of the prirci Dit o F,,_h:.eee of UITCHes and was very
instrumental in e euecess

The June 1 1969 "The New York Times meaeine
section pa 14 c::n1;<..::isan article entitled "Th re'a
A New-Time tteli :ien eh : ee)ua which states in part
as follows

"During a recent eipleasontness between the
University of Ciro c its Students for a Democratic
Society the nonea-1 decorous quiet of the Social
Science Build J i wee r :ht o;.c fine afternoon by ear
Piercing so':nd  S;IiC t (;;wen's International
Terrorist eerie fr'I hell) had come to put a curse an
the Sociolo-gi-lie, tmenc .-- :;-tl

reel

rrtx

 _,19
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EXHIBIT54-3

FEDERAL 3UREAU OF INVE ;TIGATION

REFERENCE Report of SA 4/20/70 at Kansas City 1

P*

ADMINISTRATIVE

Copies of this report are being furnished to MIG NIS OSI
1 Secret Service locally for -their information

ACCOMPLISHMENTSCLAIMED CAFEN"SBEER
.E,aDIMOOVEROREYEAROYES1WMOREMC.MGRROEECUTIOMOVERORYONTHE OvEE MO

VCO 1Cr.)/RECI"LAGENT
Y"ou 1
tureau _OM)

-sewYork (RM)
MIG Kansas City II{ssouri (RM)
NIS Kansas City Missouri (RM)
OSI Richards-Gebaur AFB(RM)
Secret Service Kansas City,Missouri
KansasiCity
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Will follow and report activities if any of subject
organization particularly based on information herein

AT LAWRENCEKANSAS

Will follow and report activities if any of subject
organization particularly based on information herein

AT KANSASCITY MISSOURI

Will follow and report activities if any of subject
"nization particularly based on information herein
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UNI ,ZDSTATESDEPARTMENTOF J JTICE
FEDERALBUREAUOFINVESTIGATION

1 RIG Kansas City Missouri
1 NIS Kansas City Missouri
1 OSI Ricfa rds-Gebaur AFB Missouri
1 Secret Service Kansas City Missouri

FieldOfficeFileI KC BureauFileI

WOMEN'SLIBERATIONMOVEMENT

INTERNALSECURITY MISCELLANEOUS

Synop.i. An inactive Women'sLiberation Movement (WLM)group
is indicated as a campus organization at University

of Missouri at Kansas City (UMKC)however no campus or
other significant activities were reported by sources from
4/20/70 to October 1970 No WLMgroup identified elsew:.ere
or on college campuses at Columbia Missouri and Lawrence
Kansas

DETAILS

I WOMEN'SLIBERATIONMOVEMENT(WLM) KANSASCITY MISSOURI
(GREATERKANSASCITY )

A Origin and Purpose

The Kansas City Times (daily Kansas City Missouri
newspaper) news article dated November 12 1969 announced
the holding of an organizational meeting November 11 1969
at University of Missouri at Kansas City (UMKC)to form a
"Women's Liberation Front (WLM) The article named[

students at UMKCrespectively
as discussion leader and organizer The article also
named a faculty memberof UMKCattending the
meeting as the President of the Greater Kansas City Chapter
of the National Organiza.t.i.on,.of_R'omen(NOW)

.li ii s
I,It

doonteott.nufnogeithorteotnmt.d.t.ononotroacte.,onooftheFBIItI thepeepertyoftheFBIonetoIronedtoyourecentyit.ndit teoteet.. ttetobedi.tritsuted...tie*your.acne
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Thereafter until the Summerof 1970 stated
that four students at UMKC,.wereindicated as WLMmembers in
he campus group namely

and

On 1970 exhibited the following
undated copy of "Constitution of the Women's Liberation
Movement at UMKCtogether with a petition by five students
filed with Student Activities authority at UMKCto recognize
WLMas a campus organization

i
i,T5
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cONSI1'.011Ul OF EWOlinN"SLIDERAI!. lIUYhAel.1

ARTICLEI NAME

1.enameof the organizationchap be the Nomen'sliberation Movement
U.M.K.C

ARTICLEII PURPOSE

Thepurpoceof the organizationshall be to eeeksolutions to the problems
womenface due to sexualdiscrimination.A+ih. ,nect,n51 ,~scntb.rs w.11 br
..blt to .ais cuss the iivehlcn,s 1h .1 j wc~ c;s ~) volc,sts I lv hi.L.Msail)
isro."irlcVO-e4se.,"c1 s?e.n<_or,c ec,kers,',ln.s r.l.suss,oAS10 ailu<,.rc a;he

4ARTICLEIIZ HI2iBEnSHIPwe 01c,s t ,.l ies+ecl rn&.n4-1aovr .t le.. Me5.ntny o
wwess.t.s'S ~1t7Cra +'1a1~

Membershipis opento ell women

ARTICLEIV MEETINGS

Meetingswill be held every twoweekset a time,convenientto aiI members

ARTICLEV OFFICERS

Achairmanwill be in elected every6 months All memberserr oligtble.,ri,10 eta ~wl)
t1nasioaevls In yoc *

Li'O.tdusJarccL,cy Ica

ARTICLEVI FACULTYADVISORS

-faculty
memberwill be selected bymajorityvote Shewill serve ac

isor to the groupwhenevernecessary

ARTICLEVII FINANCES

.Nodueswill be charged If moneyis needed memberswill be ask""1to donors
or the memberswill select someproject for ralcing funds

ARRTICLEVIII SPECIALFINANCES

1 This organizationo roes to complywith all provisionsof
the StudentActivities-FundAct

Thebooksof the accountswill b e kept up to date and they
will be opento the inspectionof the StudentAuditorat all times

It is further understoodthat if this organizationdesires at
any timein the future to changein anyway the provisionsof this
charter that before suchaction is taken the orRonizetionwill
submitto the StudentCounciland the Deanof Studentsevery
detail andcontainir. the desired changesto be rode This new

charter whencccepted will take precedenceover the tome charter and the
formerchartc,l shall be void

LhT --1 3
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4 rots charter or anyrobscrucnlchar:or i.oyht rY'^kedif anyof
the provisions the ix:sting char'-r are not fug Lied or if in thc
opinionof thc eper authorities it is of thc cc stageof the
entire student .ody that the charter be revokedah.. the organization_
dissolved

5 Theprovisionssot forth in this chaster shrill be bindinguponall
officers present and future andall officers will held office
subject to the provisionsherein contained

1
11.1:7
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According to the above Constitution informed
on 1970 that because of the constitution filed
with Student-Activities authority at UMKCthe WLMcampus
group is apparently considered a legitimate campus group and
is therefore eligible to receive money from Students
Activity Fees as well as to hold meetings if desired at
the Student Union Building free of charge however no such
WLMactivity has been indicated to date

B Location and Meetings

-informed that there has been no known or
indicated meeting location or actual meeting since the
organizational meeting in November 1969 indicates
members of WLMcampus group who are nn.venrolled as students
at UMKCin the Fall term of 1970 are

Of these five said
,are indicated to be at least potential

"NewLeft Radicals ,;noted that and
not currently students on the UMKCcampus

are reportadly roommates at _Kansas City
Missouri a graduate student in
indicated as having moved from to
J{anGa~.C.lty~._b11,55p~11'L _

Possible Leadership and Membership and Related Matters

Although any current actual officers and members
if any arp unknownand probably few in number and

;gave been indicated as the potential leaders
or spokesmen Other possible or potential members are
previously named as current UMKCstudents

according to

noted that its an Assistant
Professor of at UMKCbut no campus organization known
.as NOWhas ever existed or been approved on the UMKCcampus

informed that NOWand WLMhave reportedly exchanged
'literature in the past but NOWis reputed to be a more`moderate
group in their views on equal rights for womenthan WLM

informed nn 1970 that

was a member of Young Socialist Alliance (YSA)''in'the
Kansas City area
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informed in October 1968 that
was a member and officer of Students for a Democratic
Society (SOS) at the University of Missouri at Colwnbia
Missouri (UMC)during the academic school year of 1967-1968

SDSand YSAare characterized in Appendix pages

On 1970 informed that
UMKCstudent had not recently been observed at

YSAactivities She was known to still be in favor of
YSAand probably continued to be a member of YSA

A throwaway in Kansas City Missouri during
September 1970 purportedly a letter of the "Ecstatic
Umbrella conurittee for legal defense 3800 McGee Kansas
City Missouri telephone 561-4524 appeals for contributions
for legal defense fund for political prisou_ers and
specifically for the defense of 'Executive
Director of the Ecstatic Umbrella cl(arged with assaulting
a federal officer (FBI Agent)

Amongnine typed named committeemen listed'at the
bottom of the letter were

and informed from time to time during
1970 that the Ecstatic Umbrella 3800 McGee Kansas City
Missouri has in recent years been supported by some leaders
or agencies including "Young Adult Projects of the United
Methodist Church to reach and assist hippies and drug types
among others

7
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described as a middle class
housewife not further identified was named in January
1970 as a Kansas City contributor of literature or material
related to WLMaccording to

Another throwaway in Kansas City Missouri during
September 1970 listed

'Kansas y Missouri as a spokesman for the local chapter
of NOW

On .1970 informed that
and-that are neither currently

enrolled students or employees of UMKC

on 1970 informed that the
following nameQpersons have been indicated as associated
with WLMin Kansas City Missouri but no additional
information has been received to date concerning the nature
of their association

D 'Group Activities

informed on 1970 that no known
WLMgroup activity has actually occurred on or off campus at
UMKCsince the so called "organizational meeting on the campus
in November 1969

Articles in the Kansas City Star (daily Kansas City
Missouri newspaper) dated August 26 1970 reflect that
representatives of NOWand WLMcelebrated on August 26 1970
in Kansas City Missouri the 50th Anniversary of women's
suffrage in the United States The celebration consisted of
setting up nondisruptive discussion booths on the steps of
City Hall and peacefully picketing Macy's Cafeteria a
downtown Kansas City Missouri department store for baring
womendiners unaccompanied by men The article identified
only one person as c member or spokesman for WLMnamely

reportedly stated that the equal rights
amendment wIich had just past the U S House of 'Representatives
has opened avenues to true equality of womenfor'the'first
time in the nation's history identified Vietnam and
race problems as important issues She said she favored
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complete eradication of abortion laws One
was identified in the news article as spokesman and acting
chairman for NOW

II WOMEN'SLIBERATIONMOVEMENT(W11) ATCOLUMBIAMISSOURI

informed on 1970 that there
has been ba WLMgroup activity on the campus of the University
of Missouri at Columbia (UMC)during the current 1970-1971
school year and no such activity has been indicated elsewhere
at Columbia further stated that there is no indications
past"WLJ( leader or member-is presently attending UMCsince

moved some months ago from Columbia Missouri
Tb the state of Wisconsin

and informed on 1970
that no wL61group or activity is indicated as currently
existing at Columbia Missouri on or off college campus

III WOMEN'SLIBERATIONMOVEMENT(WLM)ATLAWRENCEKANSAS

informed on 1970 that no
known WLMgroup or activity has been indicated on the
University of Kansas (KU)campus at Lawrence Kansas
during 1970-1971 school year

said no such group has requested recognition
by KUauthorities on the campus

informed
that an off campus group in Lawrence Kansas appears to have
a philosophy similar to t:iat of the WLM This group is not
known as a Women's Liberation Movementbut is referred to as
WOMEN'SCOALITION(WC) WCreportedly works out of LAWRENCE
LIBERATIONFRONT(LLF) also a grant) that is not recognized
by KUas a campus organization observed that LLF
is described as a Revolutionary Communitygroup consisting
of a number of collectives and committees whose function is
to serve the people of Lawrence Kansas through various
programs and sponsors of cultural activities

9 I
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YOUNG..,t%'!ALISrALLIANCE

A sts,r -e advised on :Inv 15 1969 that the Young
Socialist Alliance (YSA)maintains its national headquarters
at 41 Union Square West MewYork NewYork and has.as its
official aubitcation the "Young Socialist. The YSAis the
youth organization of the Socialist Workers Party (SWP)and
has been described by the SWPas the main recruiting ground
for the S'.;P

The SNPhas been designated by the Attorney General
of the United States nersuant to Executive Order No 10450
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APPENDIX

STUDENTSFORA DEMOCRATICSOCIETY

A source has advised that the Students for a
Democratic Society (SOS) as presently regarded came into
being at a founding convention held Junc! 1962 at Port Huron
Michigan From an initial posture of "particinatory'democracy
the line of the national leadership has revealed a growing
Marxist-Leninist adherence which currently calls for the
building of a revolutionary youth movement Concurrently
the program of SDShas evolved from civil rights struggles to
an anti-Vietnam war stance to an advocacy of a militant anti
imperialist position China Vietnam and Cuba are regarded as the
leaders of worldwide struggles against United States imperialism
whereas the Soviet Union is held to be revisionist and also
imperialist

At the June 1969 SDSNational Convention Progressive
Labor Party (PLP) forces in the organization were expelled
As a result the National Office (NO) group maintained its
National Headquarters at 1608 West Madison Street Chicago
and the PLP faction set up headquarters in Cambridge Massachusetts
This headquarters subsequently moved to Boston Each group
elected its own national officers which include three national
secretaries and a National Interim Committee of eight Both
the NOforces and the PLP forces claim to be the true SDS Both
groups also print their versions of "NewLeft Notes which sets
forth the lire and the program of the particular faction The
NOversion of "NewLeft Notes was recently printed under the
title "The Fire Next Time to achieve a broader mass appeal

Twomajor factions have develoned internally within
the NOgroup namely the Weatherman or Revolutionary Youth
Movement (RYM)I faction and the RYMII faction Weatherman
is action-oriented upholding Castro's position that the duty
of revolutionaries is to make revolution Weatherman is re
garded by RYMII'as an adventuristic,elitist faction which
denies the historical role of the working class as the base for
revolution RYMII maintains that revolution although desired
is not possible under present conditions hence emphasizes
organizing and raising the political consciousness of thet'work
ing class upon whomthey feel successful revolution depends
Although disclaiming control and domination by the Communist
Party USA leaders in these two factions have in the past pro
claimed themselves to be communists and to follow the precepts
of a Marxist-Leninist philosophy along pro-Chinese communist
lines

-11
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APPENDIX

A second source has advised that the PLP faction
which is more commonlyknown as the Worker Student Alliance
is dominated and controlled by members of the PLP who are
required to identify themselves with the pro-Chinese Marxist
Leninist nhilosonhy of the PLP They advocate that an alliance
between workers and students is vital to the bringing about
of a revolution in the United States

SDSregions and university and college chanters
although operating under the outlines of the SDSNational
Constitution are autonomous in nature and free to carry oyt
independent nolicv reflective of local conditions Because
of this autonomy internal struggles reflecting the major
factional interests of SDShave occurred at the chapter level
since the beginning of the 1969-70 school year

APPENDIX



ec it et

599

LeP'.j (PLP)

"lee fe,e Plmee r;ty eo:Ition Tuesday April 20ttlot oee that d,eeJe ;.ty et wrevolUtionary
so %Ae1.:c'uoded Aptil 18 IOC'S ueder.the
name :h ,'.Jon has teen rrJm os the Progrescive Labor
MoveLen

Az ee ert.cle he Progre sive Labor
M-o:men 1 19e by Roeec end Morlimtr Scheer
a1+e1 -A.-y -t it,._ :rom :he Co menist Pert of the Jnited
3.atee ;':e JzoT e .o..owtep The Chiecs3 Comm,:pietline- 

re .luee ,!.166 that the PLP held
:. o,'ettrr.<.nticii 1no o ,..J :.tie 'ter* City May.31 to June 2,ete eJ JK J he p,f re._.,ol its ob?ee.Ive of the

c:teel,Tree l 7a 11:_.. working ..,.se movement based on
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Ut ill STATISLLI "IR.TAIENTu1 1STICL"
FEDERALBUREAUOFINVESTIGATION

Kansas City Missouri

October 20 1970

Title WOMEN'SLIBERATIONMOVEMENT

Character

Reference Kansas City report of SA" dated and captioned as above

All sources (except any listed below)whoseidentities
are concealedin referenced communicationhave furnished reliable
inforastion in the past

ThladocumentcontainsneltharrecommandaIlonanorconclusionselIncFBI'Itlatheproperlyofthere andlamoanedIpTearoganeritandIlecontentaranetto e ....Mutedoutsideyournanny
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EXHIBIT55-2

UNITEDSTATESGC ERNMENT

Memorandum

TO Mr H C Sullivan DATEAugust 27 106d

FROM Mr F J Baumgardner

surUECTCOLRTE1II'T1LIGC:;CGPROGRAM
INTEP.1IALSECUIIIT
DISRUPTIONOFHATEGROUPS

Memorandumfrom Mr J H Gale to Nr Tolson dated 7/30/64
captioned "Investigation of KuKlu: Klan and other (late Groups was
approved by the Director authorizing the Domestic Intelligence
Division to give consideration to the application of countcri.ntc
licence and disruptive tactics to into groups and to thereafter
makeappropriate recommendations It is our recommendationthat
we ir.r:ediately.initiate a hard-hitting closely supervised
coordinated counterintelligence program to e::pose disrupt and
otherwise neutralize the KuKlux Klan (lilt:) and specified other
hate groups

This new counterintelligence -effort will take advantage
of our experience with a variety of sophisticated techniques
successfully applied against the CommunistParty USA and related
organizations since 1056 Primarily we intend to e::woe to public
scrutiny the devious maneuversand duplicity of the :ate groups
til_fxustratc an,_ciierts or plans they mayhave to consolidate
their forces to discourage their recruitment of newor youthful
adherents and to disrupt or eliminate their efforts to circumvent
,or violate the law Our counterintelligence efforts against hate
groups will be closely supervised and coordinated to complement
our expanded intelligence investigations directed at these
organizations

Weare furnishing general instructions to 17 field
) offices (14 Southern offices responsible for active investigation
of 17 Klan groups and 6 hate organizations and HowYork Chicago
and Baltimore whohave active investigative responsibilities
for one hate organization each) relating to the administration
and prompt enactment of this newcounterintelligence progra::
Briefly these instructions renuire the 17 participating offices
to submit to the Bureau on or before 10/15/64 an analysis of
possible counterintelligence operations including anc specific

-recommendations for action Thereafter (commencing1/1/03) the
participating offices will.subuit a 00-day stmt:.> letter setting

 1--'3 6 ca-73 RECZO
Main

1 iuO-3-104-Hain (CPUSACointelpro)
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Memorandumto tlr Sullivan
BE COUITi33II1TILLIG1111CBPRCGRA61

INTCCNALSECURITY
DIS UPTIOPOFHATEGROUPS

forth a summaryof current possible and successfully achieved
counterintelligence activity during the prior 3-month period
Bich office will be instructed to open a.ndmaintain a pending
investigation relating to this program and to assign a Special
Agent on a part-time basis as the program coordinator responsible
for following and initiating counterintelligence action

As is the instance in our established counterintelligence
program against the CommunistParty USA,/and

all recommendedcounterintelligence action agains,
Klan-type and hate organizations will be required to be approved
at the Scat of Government

This newcounterintelligence program directed at Klan
and hate organisations will be supervised at the Scat of Government
by the Special Agent supervisor responsible for our similar programs
directed against the CommunistParty USA,rr.'lnd

his efforts will be closely coordinated with
supervisory personnel responsible for the intelligence investigations
of the Klaus and hate organizations and their membership An annual
memorandumjustifying continuance of the program will be submitted
and the participating field offices will be periodically apprised
of techniques which have been found to be most successttl At
such time as the program is considered to be successfully under
way a status memorandumwill be submitted which will include any
additional recommendationsrelating to manpoweror ether.administrative
requirements

BECOMMBNDATIONS

1 That the Domestic Intelligence Division be authorized
to immediately initiate a coordinated counterintelligence-program
directed at exposing disrupting and otherwise neutralizing the
17 active Klan organizations and 0 active racial hate organizations
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Memorandumto fdr Sullivan
RE COULifERIHTELLIG:,;;CEPROGRAM

IwrERt1ALSECURITY
DISRUPTIONOFMATEGROUPS

2 That the attached letter be forrarded to the 17
field offices slated to participate in this newcounterintelligence
program setting forth instructions for the administration and
immediate enactment of the program
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EXHIBIT55-3

UNITEDSTATES ERNNIENT

Memorandum

Mr W C Sulliva,p DATE 4/27/71

Mr C D Brennan

COUNTERINTELLIGENCEPROGRAMS(COINTELPROS}
INTERNALSECURITYRACIALMATTERS

Ir To afford additional security to our sensitive techniques
and operations it is recommendedthe COINTELPROSoperated by_I,lee
Domestic Intelligence Division be discontinued

At the present time this Division operates se s
COINTELPROSas follows

COINTELPROEspionage
COINTELPRONewLeft C1.:t Hate Csevps
COINTLLPROCo=uaist Party USA
Counterintelligence and Special Operations
COINTELPROBlack Extremists
Socialist Workers Party Disruption Program

These programs involve a variety of eensitivc ictgl
ligence techniques and disruptive activities which are afforded
close supervision at the Seat of Government They have been
carefully supervised with all actions being afforded prior
Bureau approval and an effort has been made to avoid engaging
in harassment Although successful over the yeas it is felt
they should now be discontinued for security reasons because
of their sensitivity

In exceptional instances where counterintelligence
action is warranted it will be considered on a highly selective
individual basis wi];h, ihht procedures to insure absolute security

L'nLli
ACTION REC J /5"//-I

If approved attached airtel will be sent to all field
offices discontinuing our COINTELPROS
Enclosure_ 1 /
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EXHIBIT56-1

UNITEDSTATESOOVEF1ENT

Memorandum

TO Mr A H Belmont DATEMarch30 1960

FROMF J Baumgardner

SUBJECTCO:wwir T PARTYMA
COUNTER IROGRAil
INTERNALSiCIFIiY C

There is every indication that the CommunistParty (CP) MA
under the optimistic leadership will
attempt to increase its activities in the mass organization field

TheFebruary 1960 issue of "Political Affairs, monthly
theoretical publication of the CP MA carries an article entitled
"Onthe Fight for Peace and the Struggle Against the .::onopolies.
This article mentions the following as one of the central political
tasks confronting the labor peace and democratic forces "To bring
the fight for peace up to the pace demandedby current developments
it is urgent to bring such issues as disarmamentand peaceful coex
istence before every community church labor union and other organi
ition of the people."(

It is felt we should take appropriate steps to disrupt the
plans of the CP WA to infiltrate legitimate mass organizations
wherever possible
RB'70Zz DATIa'I

It is recommendedthe attached letter ;.o the NewYorkOffice
(original on plastiplate) with copies to the 15 other offices engagedin our Counterintelligence Programbe approved This letter establishes
a newphase of counterintelligence adtivity designed to expose concoi :d
communistsworking in legitimate mass organizations so they will be u::,:bleto continue to es,:ouse communistpropaganda'in a subtle manner This
new technique is another counterintelligence weapondirected against
the C MA and should result in reducing the over-all effectiveness
of the Party in the massorganization field
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EXHIBIT56-2

tiarch 32

,';.--r.:..:-:tor::,.;f

C

roch o.fficc is inatructcd to adopt the followln
no.) toch:lul a: a regular phase of ito Counterintelligence

/qLIvitImig :^as Crannis..';tf$wn

rani off/cc chould be alert to the dcalre: i1ity of
tc,ing c4o,a io have cowaunista $31.1:codjro,l 1cgiti,:ato h'eab

co jaront-:icochor Associations civic
oronisoLion rcd racial crc.ireligious grovpa thei.
In!!.ea,ac:n:.juily in/il ire led .hencvor inforNotion
;ce-,civo,!chct act vo co,':hchiat inc joined a Icjiti,"ote
ornnia-tion olhoohling hia co:.cuhist bcchgroa$uiwith the
c:~jcctis of di;..acli,'atin:2 con:unzat propaganda in a svotic
ecnutr tho,'ollowing steps should be tc:cn

Louie:3the file on such individual very
carojully in order to detcrnlr:c if there
is any puolic source or other siNilor
tspc Naterial idontifyin2 this individual
with the conwunist wovc;wnt

Diocrectly ascertain the idbntity of the
$0ot Iogicol officer or proNinchtpernon
in the or2onization on ,,,:on there is no
dero_.dtory infomation Gi.ocould he ex
pected to.tahe or cause to be ta4en action
to ro;aoveCiteCONaunistfroa thc ory2nication

2 :hats 2 Mewl/awn
2-Buffalo 2 :7in:ark
2  Chicago 2  Philadelphia
2 Cleveland 2 Pittaourgh
2 -Detroit 2 .'t Louis
2 Loa Angelca 2 r;an.rrancisoo
2
2 Uihhcapolic

2 "t'atittIc

C -1P (37)
 SEE.LVTEOilYZ.7:,L0:7

rn..:1_3 .196 Ir.1.1!?YPEU,;TC=l
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Letter to SAC :lee York
l Cv:LIU'La t'SA

COLILT̀='1TELLrcr.vciP.40cPA.Y

3 Advise the Bureau of the pertinent fact^
and request Bureau authority to r..';  very
information discreetly available by anony
mouscoy.-untcations r.~,~rc;.riate pretext
telephone ,.all or someetnee effective
mcans.Keep in mind that ::e action a;:o:rld
be recoemendedwhich could c:ebarrees the
Bureau or jeopardize the cerity of our
informants source() of information or
opeclal inveatipetive techniques

In order to qualify for this connterintell:geece
operation the active cov:":u.aistmust be connected in so":
mannerwith the organization end not just epeculrati;:e n,`e%t
joining Ti or;aniration should be a legitimate u":zaerrgenl
zatlon and not a communistfront or left-wing t:-. or^.::::iea"
tion The irdivi_uel cor:vinict involved :;hoe:ldbe one r:;:oec
presence in the organization and suspected operations arc c
definite threat

Since it is rather difficult to draw up all
incluslve criteria for every once no office should hesitate
to submit its recommendationif it has a ceec it feels fc2ls
within the approximate criteria set f.,rth above

The regular monthly letters setting forth the
operet ions of the counterintelligence operet rs in saci
office should in the future contain a section setting forth
any tangible results obtained through this neweuurter
inteFligcnce operation

NOTEONZa''LL01Y

See memorandumBaumgardnerto Belmontcaptioned"CommunistParty USACounterintelligence Program IS-Cdated 3/30/60 Original prepared on plastiplate
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Nle'nior 71dum

ru Mr S C Sullivan DATEOctober 1 1964

1
FROM Mr F J Baumgardner 1

1
1

gun cT INTERNALSECURITYSECTION
DOMESTICIITELLIGENCEDIVISION
ADMINISTRATIVEMATTER

1

SYNOPSIS

In June 1964 a newspecial Deskwas created in the Interna
Security Section Domestic Intelligence-Division as a result of my
memorandumto you 5/20/64 to concentrate`ou'the investigation into
the communistinfluence in racial matters This investigation was to
be handled by two Supervisors one being separated from the Communist
Party Unit and one from the CommunistFront Unit To assimilate the
other work being left by those Supervisors it was necessary to obtain
an additional Supervisor This matter was looked into by the Inspect]
Division which recommendedand it was approved that an additional
Supervisor Special Agent b^ ,avinned on a temporary
basis with the thought that as soon as we could safely do so the two
Supervisors would be sent back to their respective Units The neces
sity for our intensification of the investigation of communistinfluen
in racial matters has not abated but has increased There is no-sign
of a-letup The CommunistFront Unit where the temporary Supervisor
assigned has also shownan increase in its case load The "temporary
nature of the situation is nowbelieved to be "permanent.

OBSERVATIONS

The necessity for the temporary Supervisor whomwe obtained
in early June 1964 is more than ever present Our work load in the
communistinfluence in racial matters which generated the necessity
for a temporary Supervisor has been steadily increasing with no sign
of a letup the work in the CommunistFront Unit where the temporary
Supervisor has been assigned has also increased The "temporary
nature of the situation is nowbelieved to be '.permal6Tit

RECOMMENDATION RCC4

That the one Spop,inl-Agent whowas assignc
to the Internal Security Section Domestic Intelligence0ivision on a
temporary basis be considered as permanently assigned_

FJD~
($

sgnrn

CONTINLsD OVER
y,r1J1dr
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Memorandumto M Sullivan
RE INTERNALSECURITYSECTION

DOMMESTICINTELLIGENCEDIVISION
ADMINISTRATIVEMATTER

DETAILS
Background

Mynanornnducito you 5/20/54 pointed out the increasing work
.oad growing out of our investigation of-the communistinfluence into
the racial ro;r r.nt and the importance of this problem to the Bureau
It was recoruesdod and approved that two Supervisors he separated
from their current assigomcnts one in the Co::i:unistParty Unit and
the other in the Conauaict Front Unit rind that they ho attached to a
newly created sooc.inl hook to conc.:-oorite Onthe invnstiration into
the ccc.aunistiniluonce in _;cial mat-torn. To ansinilate the other
work boinr left hy these two Supervisors it woouecassary to obtain
an addition Sun-rvisor It was .,pasted that the auditi000l Super
visor he nanjaned on a teuporary basis with too thought that soon as
we could r:aiely do so the two Superv.isors coauanirating on the coanu
nist influence in racial ratters would be sent_hook to their respective
Units .-.::i3matte_ sac looked into by the Ioapection Division which
reccancnoeu Andit was approved that an additional Supervisor be
assigned on a tomrorary oasis it wooalso ,0000meoeenono approyeu
that thin situation be re--evaluated 10/1/G4 rind a neieorinau.'asunmitted
by the Domestic I:tclligenco Division r::g:_rdi:r the ter.po.aiy Super
2-tsar The tcanorary Supervisor whohas been serving is Special Agent

assigned to tho Communist-FrontUnit

Current Situation

The nrcr_rsity for our irtennification of investigation of the
communistinfluence in racial matters has not abated rather it has
increased o i:s"o boon handling a hig.i volumeof priority wort in
this area dealing with suco major projects ._athe racial disorders and
demonstrations is NonYork City and too Mississippi SummerProject
(LISP) There I:uvs also been racial disturbances in Philadelphia
Pennsylvania Aochaster NewYork and NowJorswy all ocr.uiring
investigative etiert relative to possible snhvorsive influences
The LISPwork was originally handled in the CommunistInfluence in
Racial Matters (CIi:d) Unit only as respects subversive ramifications_
However with the ansber of certain of tho Civil Rights Section work
from the General Investigative Division tonthe DomesticIntelligence
Division we notehave absoroed all aspects of the USPin the CIRJUnit
This is presently taking the full time of ore Supervisor in addition
to a full-timeseeclerical employee In thin regard it should be noted
that whereas we originally started this special Unit with two Super
visors we nowh.wo three inen the new Unit was created there were
assigned to it apercxinately 120 cuacs .la of 10/1/G1 this fiCurc
has increased to 134 cases All indicators point to a continued heavy
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Memorandumto Mr Sullivan
RE INTERNALSECURITYSECTION

DOMESTICINTELLIGENCEDIVISION
ADMINISTRATIVEMATTER

work load relative to the communistinfluence in racial matters This
'as becomea big factor relative to the forthcoming national elections
sd in addition there are definite indications that the MSPwill be
a continuing thing There have also been someindications that activ
ities such as the NM)will extend into other states In addition
under date of 8/29/64 a letter was submitted to all offices instruct
ing a broadening of our investigation into the commnunistinfluence in
racial matters and the setting up of a newand more intensified report
ing procedure Due11/1/64 are comprehensiveinvestigative reports
from all field offices which will provide centralized reporting on this
matter

The CommunistFront Unit which is where the temporary Super
visor is assigned has also shownan increase in its case load As of
10/1/64 the CommunistFront Unit had 392 pending investigations as com
pared to 375 pending investigations as of 7/1/G1 The recent Supreme
Court decisions fuvoru:.i Lhe Farty u,mJ.;r. a facats

Security Act of 1950 have breathed newlife into the,Par
...
ty

The Party is nowtaking bolder steps to carry on its work in mass
organizations as well as creating newfront organizations One case
in point is that dealing with the W E D DuboisClubs of America
Inc. the newnational Party youth organization The formation of
this youth group was finalized at a National Convention in June 1964
which was held in San Francisco California and was attended by
approximately 450 youths Since that time several affiliates of this
group have comeinto existence One of the plans for action decided
upon by the group was to have affiliates of the group formed on college
campusesthroughout the United States therefore it can he expected
that in the immediate future after these various youths have returned
to their college campuses they will form such campusgroups This
will represent not only an increase in case load but will also
increase the work of the field in penetrating and following the
activities of such groups This will call for close supervision of
these groups due to the nature of the make-upof the clubs and the
fact that they are located on college campusesin order to avoid any
embarrassmentto the Bureau It is also anticipated that with the
advent of the fall and winter seasons the Party will step up its
activities in attempting to penetrate legitimate mass organizations
and in establishing newfront groups to carry on the Party's work on
issues in which the Party will havo an interest
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EXHIBIT56-4  8

10/9/GO

nirtol

To SAC Albany

From Director FBI

CCIEiTl-RIUTELLIGENCEPROGIIAU
INTEPNALF,ilCURITT
U1S;01l'lUROF1711NL,ILEFT

ne,3ulotn 5/10/08 and 5/23/03

The obovo comr.enication r.41vinedo1 the necessity
of taking iooedlate action to expose dincupt and W.1w:wino
neutralize the nctivitien of the Por Lori ,io
Pogram you were Ittutructed to remain alert for and to 'took
npecLflc data depicting the dopraved nature Andcoral loon:mono_
of the lieu Left Youwere further iastrueted to cow:1de 7'ays

use thin material lama vigorous and onthuslsntic approach
t i ueutrrilizing them

- T  r;ennito theme Inntructlonn and In the face of mounting
,idonce of thclr'moral depravity little evidence has reachedcn co Bureau to Indlcatu field officos are using this luformationt hest *advantage i

Cai, 
To nuke thin program more effective in thin regard

each offloo 15 1nntrueted to he particularly alert Joe thin
type ol data Micro a student in orronted davit 7 A dcmow;tratloa
or his participation in a demonstration in aeccuaoaniodUVthe
use of or cogageAent in an oh:cone dleplay this inlnrnallon
15 to be promptly Incorporated into an M110:17MOU'lletter 'which
can be directed to his parentn hhero a pholograoh or other
evidence in available to substantiate} in the letter
It should be rode a part of thd Youshould oleo
search for addttional'trays to bring the otudent's activltle

2  All Offices l

;vrIi:s nFimtOYCO
3i2 _JUN3

r tomLDt.:./U.. t J. j,J
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Airtcl to Albany
Countorintolli;;cnco Program

to tho at tenttc of hln parentu Whomahproerinto cayo should
bo devclopcd ti o loo rot this I forcatlou into the hand: of
school authorl iu :r,d tho local prior In thin regard you
should eon id f;Ivi.rt the pr000 auon-rcour advance ialoruation
concerning plr nod activity which might be immoral or obaceno
in nature 0i coeroo all mailings uudor this prournn me to
roccivo prior Morcauauthority

It Lr not the objective of this letter to roatrict
thin program lo the abovo ra";::entcd actloipcs 'lhe foregoing
in intended to drat your attention to one phase which can bo
used to.our advautago in neutralizing the DowLoft

Ao the current school year cor.uonccs it cnn be
o,pectod tlat the herr Lo"fr".'fl i_ ,,,, uuu anti-draft
entourafe 111 rah, every effort to conirout collero authorities
stifle wiltlar recruiting and lru;trnto tiro Felectivo ::e.rvLee
Syrter. Each office will tic expected therefore to afford
thin program cent tumour effective attention In order that no
opportunity vill ho missed to dostroy this insidious movement

11017:

Sec memorandumC D Brennan to Mr 11._C Sullivan
captioned as above dated 10/7/G8 prepared by
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EXHIBIT57-1

F [31

Dotc:8/168

10Ilovrl n
../ (Or( II

LILRT.2SL
---------------------------------------- -----

TO DIRECTORFBI

FROM SA  'cL.rc*,1e

RE COINXELPRO'NEWLE:7
IS

By routin clip 7/11/63 the Bureau for,rnrded to
(44-rcst cdj conies of the income tnx returns of PaoCcsSoa X

.(Socurit I:icx Kcy Activist) for the-yZara of 1060
and 19'67 In exsminatlon of these returns reflects that 'o.ore4segx
claimed deductions wnicn at the very 1cast 1)rovido a bnsiq
for questionin: by I::3 For excacle in tho year 1567 he
clai,,od total 6oductio.is of :6.565 from a total adjustod income
of 1:116,639 or over one-third of his adjusted r',ross income
Included in thtsecl2ductiomf were Putomooilo expenses other
gravel expenses

c_.pouO
h h. uffLoe -rrcc at h mdwebt 11niveroity

d the 0--a 6re.00p and zharitnh 3e

maimon-moo of office si ace in his home even

contributions Incluacd in the latter item were contributions
to the SPOOKPeace iund EALL's Counselic Service an //
draft operntioni,'hid,t-I'r
Student Non-Violedti-Cobi-diSatins Oommittde-and SDS / \

Bureau authority is requested to call 1''t,f03 returns
for r66 and 1967 to the attention of local IRS officials with 1
the vier of suor;estin' that that Service may wish to afford
his return0211Pr and exr,inntlon In Go d'oin

further'su ,ests tnnt local 155 be edvirca of L Lllc
source notorill eoncornlr!' Peor 4 activities in the Nstion-:1
Hobilization Co,mittoo of 'rhich ho is a 1.,,5101-hc,&O I
and the nnti-drnft movement with watch he has been puolicly
identified on numerous occasions If the Bureau concurs

C3-) Duronu (151)

(5) 0,-10

:;per-1,11 Ils
I er
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with this rose-L:cndation it is contemplated that info' ti.pn
nonournir e Profc would be called to the nttenti cn of

of the IRS office in midac$r coo( _nsractor
has wort:ed clo soly whit the m.dwast FMSoffice in

-'"rcineion to other matters and he has been extremely cooperative
discreet and reliable Burin the course of those relationships

f
In the event IRS dooms it feasible to proceed

with further excminntion of Pcorx 'returns the following
benefits could be expected to accrue therefrom

Due to the burden upon the ta::pe cr of p_ovin s
deduc tio:a cln_r:od Paof/ could be required to produce
docur.rntary c :idencc su: orting hi claiws This could
prove to be both difficult and emberra:cin] particularly
with respect to validatin3 the claim for home miainteronce
deduction: when in fact he doubtless ha only the usual

rtypo of study found in many hcees rather ten octual office
space Validations of co iti j-butions to Si.CC DS and the
Hail Counselin5 Service may also be productive of e:abarraasinG

Itseguonges

If PfdfXis unable to substantiate his claims
in the face of detailed scrutiny by_IiS it could of sours
result in financial loss to hire

Host inoortantly if IRS contact with 1'Rol>
can be arranged within the next two ::eeia their do::r.:wdtupon
.h+i way be a source of distraction durin^ the critical period
when he is end ed in r:uetin:s and plans for disruption of the
Democratic Pati owa7 Cenvcration .l~n drai.r;~ui?pn th .i:ir::n.and r+ s

.tpenmen'rat'iot~"f:"sf"1driifto lcadin fir;ure in Deacon piannin3
can brin to bear :non this activity can only accrue to the
benefit of the Government and General public

The Bureau is -requested to consider this su';restion
and afford (6uwesf c tae benefit of ite ce:wecats at tuc
earliest po::sib.le I.ir.:o No action will be ta;:un by :1:io
offico pcndin^ receipt of the Bureau's responce to this
COlhrELPROrecommehdatlon

2

66-0770 76 40
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DIRECTORrlll lt'rrED4PRIL 14 1964)

It in holioved that doorn tOvI cvcdltorn 0C
L;;o 11;rort-.11: :I,:'!

.iil to tn ,woln it n :n1 onto! .hot o! :J
c,,in or %:oInhto to.

lnn',a

t;Ino awl wt.!) IfornIH,o,l h.,
;:(;n.:;tctonttno 1.1boratory ror roorou.:tIon r00%.r.1o%illd n.!%ij:.In: tho donorn C;.:111111ornil  Ili

'llo0i.t'!o ohec:Ioi tnx ro0ran or hs:t
L)._.)0,h lhln ohano:, 00rrOnponoen ::1.ntnto nwIro ;h.donor ho r000rted h'n ,:Irtn In a00orin-0 oltn

1
jotornnl 1vont'2 r.ionlri::.00ln no Loat ho nn hooni,4

 Iwo.) ,o l 141,a a. i I.1iyi1Lon it In he 1oi.o I r!r:il I! le Lt,i1ioC thin 1"0 LC:;(Cailne 0onn)(kriihio oon-rn nn 1oIJIIInato fot0ro c ntriuLICnn 1.ru:l
Jt nppnrenL trat :rin% of thC:e con',,rIliltoln to ht:L,'jor:2dolt] ro In orni to cJairl tax ili.njactiona Jn oroi!r I. Iollf;Ihh ruih ,i.,ow:tIonn too contrJontlon In Iiaou toLh,.! .6;rivIcy eniiw) i:hnrt:n onlcn In t,rn In ror.:IrOuo to!dal Or Lhe :%oULoornUnrIaLlan bi21lderm1.
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EXHIBIT57-2

aiAIL.li)Ai

Lk[einoraIidltiil

fj

j

DIIRECTORFBI

SAC ST LOUIS

DAFE 2-14-GO

COUNTER-INTELLIGE,`NCEPROG:ND
BLACKNATIONALISTBITEGROUPS
(BLACKLIB tATORS)

Enclosed for the Bureau are two copies and for Springfield
one copy of a letter to "SISTER

The following counter-intelligence activity is being prope..ea
by the St Louis Division to be directed against He
former .of the BLACKLIL'E1l1TUiS(Bufile 157-10:;6)

The activity attempts to alienate
him from his wife and cause suspicion amongthe BLACKLIBERATORSthe.,
they have a dangerous troublemaker in their midst

BACKGROUND

is currently separated from his wife
-

who lives with their two daughters in He occasionally
~/'~Ushe moneyalto sue I Ulrs to be a faithful loving wife who is
X111arentlyy convinced that her husband is performing a vital service to
the Black world and therefore she must endure thi.i separation without
bothering him She is to all indications an intelligent respectable
youngmother who is active in the AIDEMethodist Church iu

2, Bureau (Encl 2) R'.I
2 -(Sprinrfie t '(Encl I) till

St Louis

45)

/furU.SS.nrn:rBondshr,{:,l.:rhnuthrI'.nr /I.A.nvgtirI'/,:u
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EXPLANATIONOFLETTER

The enclosed letter was prepared from a penmanship spelling
and vocabulary style to imitate that of the average Black Liberator
member It contains several accusations which should cause
wife great concern The letter is to be mailed in a cheap unmarked
envelope with no return address and sent from St Louis to

Since her letters to are usually sent via
the Black Liberator Headquarters any memberwould have access to
getting her address from one of her envelopes This address is
available to the St Louis Division

Her response upon receipt of this letter is difficult to
predict and the counter-intelligence effect will be nullified it she
does not discuss it with him Therefore to insure tha and the
Black Liberators are madeaware that the letter was sent the below
follow-up action is necessary

St Louis will furnish _ with a machine copy of the
actual letter that is sent Attached to this copy will be a neat

 eel n9te,Raying

"Amutual friend madethis available without
knowledge I understand she recently

recieved this letter from St Louis I suggest
you look into this matter

GodBless You

i'his"nbtc'1^duld give the impression that somenewone of
close friends probably a mini,_ter obtained a copy of the

letter and madeit.available to The above material is to be
mailed by the Division at anonymouslyin a
suitable envelope with no return address to
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ANTICIg'.`.T:D

Tire folio'.:ec results arc anticipated following the
execution of the above-counter-intelligence activity

Ill feeling and possibly a lasting distrust will be
brought about between and his wife The concern
over what to do about it maydetract from his time spent
in the plots and plans of He mayeven decide
to spend more time with his wife and children and less
time in Black rationalist activity
The Black Liberators will waste a great deal of tine
trying to discover the writer of the letter It is
possible that their not-too subtle investigation
will lose present membersand alienate potential ones

Inasmuchas Black Liberator strenth is ebbing at its
lowest level this action maywell be the "death-blow.

IECOi F5PliTION

Bureau authority is requested to initiate the above
described activity
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EXHIBIT57-3

SIC St Lewis 2/20/G9

REC44
Director IDI

''''' CCUS
Cl.'..L B''.

(i;L:Cl

Rnurlet 2/14/09

Bt Lou:. in nuthoricd to send nnonyoun luttQr
set out in rclet nd! :in nuthorindto nsLA t'le
c;:cond nn...nysus 1,2ttn rrwonod in rclot r. cr'Elcrci;111Y
pn::chnnod ntntion nnJ tal:o tho other p:cnuions sot out
to insure this cnnuot be traced to this Bureau

Tic Bucau feels there shculd be nn interval
the two lettcrn c nt lcnnt ten days 3t Louis should adviso

o i.:to second letter should he mailad

2 CC:,TIa= isc 1:`i~

St Louis and should advise tha Bureau
V .AV.fV.0



2

622

Letter to St Louis
F:IcGaAm

DL':C: HATEG::CUP3
RACIALI::i:.LLIG-:;CE
(BLAc LILTc:-;s)
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EXHIBIT58-1

l;Nl'lEnSTATEScovi;.RN\IENT

Aleinor(i, clam

u Mr Mohr DA August29 1964

icon+ C D DeLoach

unurcTSPECIALSQUAD
ATLANTICCITY NEWJERSEY
DEMOCRATICNATIONALCONVENTION
AUGUST22 AUGUST28 1964

MAJORACCOMPLISiiMENTS

In connectionwiththe assignmentofthe special squadto Atl:ttic City
NewJersey 8/22-23/64at the directionof the President I wishto report the successial
completionof this assignment By meansof informantcoverage byuse of various
confidentialtechniques by infiltrationof keygroupsthroughuse ofundercoveragents
andthroughutibzationof agentsusingappropriatecover as reporters we wereauie to
keepthe Whiterouse fully apprised of all major developmentsduringthe Convention's
course

For example throughinformantcoverageandby controllingthe
situation wewere able to preventa potentiallyexplosivestall-in andsit-in demon
stration plannedbyACTand BycounselingMessrs Jenkins Carter
andMoyers cc convincedthemthat they must makemajorchangesin controlling
idmisstonsintothe ConventionHall andtherebyprecludeinfiltrationof the illegal
MississippiFreedomDemocraticParty (MFDP)delegatesin large numbersintothe
',pacereserved for the regular Mississippidelegates Throughour counterintelligence
"f.[orts Jenkins et al. were able to advisethe President in advanceregerdig major
'tans of t.he'MFDPdelegates The WhiteHouseconsideredthis ofprime importance

Throughour highlyconfidentialcoverageof MartinLutherKing!
together withsimilar coverageweestablishedonthe headquartersof

CORE-SNCCwewere in a positionto advise the Whitehouse in advanceof all plans
madeby these twosources in an effort to disrupt the orcierlyQrogressof the Convention
This coveragewas highlyeffective

COVERAGEHIGHLIGI-ITS

I feel this squadoperatedvery effectively Squadmembersaveraged
in"excel̀of pigJlbhours overtimedaily Theyapproachedeachassignmentas a

^~NTINUED-OVER
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De oath to Mohr
FIT 'SpecialSquad AtlanticCity NewJersey

DemocraticNationalConvention
August22-28 I'Jti4

challengeandwithenthusiasm The Agentswere constantlyalert to exploit
opportunitiesfor penetrationof keydissidentgroupsin AtlanticCityandto suggest
countermeasures for anyplans to disrupt the Convention

Our informantcoverageworkedparticularly well WithBureauapproval_
I institutedcoveragesimilar to that onKin onCORE-SNCCheadquartersat
their AtlanticAvengemeetinghall Our successfully
penetratedthe headquartersof the MFPDdelegationat the GemMotelandthe head
quarters for their strategy meetings whichwas locatedin the basementof the Union
BaptistTempleChurch

Additionally weutilizeda hj.,;,hlysuccessfulcoverthroughcooperation
of the furnishedus
credentials I selected several of the membersof the squadto utilize this cover
As an sac of our "rah,:mere was able to gainthe cenfi.leero nf

Our "reporter was so successful in fact that was giving
et-information forbackgroundpurposes whichhe requestedour

"i.rorter not to print

Oneof our successfullyestablishedcontact
with Saturdaynight August22nd andmaintainedthis relationship
_throughoutthe course of tile entire Convention By midweek he hadbecomeoneof

zonfidants This of course provedto be a highlyvaluablesource of
intelligence since wasconstantlytrying to incite racial groupsto violence

D1SSC:iLNAIO .or IN,,rorr,:._lIoi:

Duringour Conventioncoverage wedisseminated44pagesof

1
intelligencedata to WalterJenkins Attachedfor your informationis a copyofthese
dailysummaries Additionally I kept JenkinsandMoyersconstantlyadvisedby
telephoneof minuteby minutedevelopments This enabledthemto makespotdecisions
andto adjust Conventionplans to meetpotentialproblemsbeforeserious trouble
developed

In connectionwithcommunicationsas youknow wearrangedfor a
]rased line betweenthe Bureauandour controlpost in AtlanticCity Wealso
establisheda phivateline for exclusiveuse by our informants
ry^k informantsdispatchedfrom other cities andNewarkinformantscs_
tl phone4to'tsuomittheir oral reports This post was of course mannedona
24-hourbasis

2 CONTINUED-OVER
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1)eLoachto Mohr
RlsSpecial Squad AtlanticCity NewJersey

DemocraticNationalConvention
August22-28 1964

Duringthe periodWienthe Conventionwasactuallyin progress we
establisheda secondarycommandpost at the ConventionlIall Rotundaoperatedby an

Agentusinghis "reporter cover As youknow the boardwalkwas the center of

agitationby dissidentelements Throughoutthe course ofthe Conventionpickets
were active inthe area immediatelyin front of the ConventionHallentrance We
necessarily kept these peopleunder close observation

PRELIMINARYPREPARATION

Prior to the squad's departure for AtlanticCity wesecured all
availablepertinentbackgroundinformationonthe dissidentgroupsandtheir leaders
whowere expectedto be present In addition wetookblindmemorandawithus which
were prepared andapprovedprior to our departure This provedmosthelpful On
Wedneday morning Mr Jen'cinsurgentlyrequestedbackgroundinformationo+

whoha withalthe
PhFDPdelegation The WhiteHousealso requesteda blindmemorandumon

Within15minutesofthe request tite
ilepiwrlblindp,mm~rlL}Jl~,en nishedto Jenkins HewashighlypleasedandsaidLhi .vasof vital importanceto their operation as youwilLrecall has an arrestrecord

Wealso prepared thumbnailsketchesonall keydissidentgroupsexpected
at the Conventionandwe maintainedseparate files onthe activities ofKing Communist
Party groups area hoodlums informants the I..IDP andother groups This was
donein order that wecouldmaintainseparate runningaccountsoneachmajordisruptive
organizationwhichwaspresent

JALSON

Onarrival in AtlanticCitywe immediatelyestablishednecessary liaison
withthe Secret Service AtlanticCityPolice Department NewJersey SlateHighway
Patrol andvilh the mendirectingConventionactivities Wealso establishedcontacts
with to arrange for courier service betweenthe Seatof Government
andour headquarters iiiAtlanticCity

DAILYCOUNTERMEASURESBYSPECIALSQUAD

As an exampleof the type ofproblemsencounteredbythis special
qt 'in AtlanticCity followingis a brief resume of someof the situationsNthich

det apedduringthe Convention

3 CONTINUED-OVER
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DeLoachto Mohr
RE SpecialSquad AtlanticCity NewJersey

')cmocratic NationalConvention
August22-28 1964

Monday August24 1964

OnSundaymorning August23 1964 welocateda truck onPacific
Avenuecarrying a burned-outcar a hugeburlap-wrappedcross anda large church
bell RumorssweptAtlanticCitythat the car was actuallythe oneusedbySchwerner
GoodmanandChancy Shortlyafter its appearancethis truck wasplacedona parking
lot close by ConventionHall Wequicklyestablishedthe fraudulencyofthese rumors
andthroughpolicecontactswethwartedthe racial group'splansto paradethis burned
car throughAtlanticCity streets

OnMonday wefurnishedMr Jenkinsdetails regardingthe plansof
CORE the AmericanNaziParty the StudentNon-violentCoordinatingCommitteeand
initial plans of the IvIFDP

Appropriateofficialswere notifiedofthe intentionofthe Negroracial
groupsto establish a silent vigil onthe boardwalkat the mainentranceto Convention
Hall This vigilwas to he_rnaintaineduntil a report was issuedbythe Credentials
Commj.tueregartiingthe seatingof the MFDPdelegates

Tuesday August25 1964

Jenkinswas advisedthat MartinLuther Kinghadprevailedupor
to cometo AtlanticCitythat day Wealerted WhiteHouserepresentatives

regardingcompromiseproposals for seatingof the MFDPandfurnishedtheminformatia
regardingplans of the Progressive Labor Movementgroups ACTandother dissident
organizations MartinLuther Kingattemptedto arrange a rendezvouswitha

?ofPhiladelphia Our sources reported that SNCCandCOREwere
attehipLingto secure tickets to gainentrance to ConventionHall Througha highly
confidentialsource it was learned that COREandSNCChadbeenadvisedthat the
President was bringingpressure to bear onthe delegatesof 15states to precludetheir
supportof a moveto bring the Mississippidelegatesissue to the floor ofthe Convention

WednesdayAugust26 1964

Wesubmittedreports reflectingthat the militantmembersof MFDP
underthe leadershipof were revoltingagainstthe leadershipof Martin
Luther Kinganth WeadvisedJenkinsthat the MFDPdelegateshadflatly
rejected the compromiseproposalto seat the MFDPdelegation Wereportedthat

()yia I 415 4 CONTINUED-OVER

1
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1 2+15 liaison source
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DeLoachto Mohr
R1*1SpecialSquad AtlanticCity NewJersey

''Democratic NationalConvention
August22-28 1964

as attemptingto promotea stall-in to blockaccess to
Conventionhall wasinstructedby to planthis
demonstrationandthroughour control of himwewere ableto cuuipietelythwart

Wealso alerted the WhiteHousein advanceregardingthe telegramprepared
byACTdemandingamnestyfor Harlem rioters andfor Federal registrars to police
'Negrovotingin the South

In consultationwithConventionplanners wepointedoutserious gaps
in controllingadmissionto ConventionHallwhichhadpermittedentranceofdissident
elementsonthe Conventionfloor Jenkins immediatelyplacedthese recommendations
intoeffect

Thursday August27 1964

AtlanticCityearly Thursdaymorning andappropriateofficialswere advisedof this
W~also reported efforts of CORE-SNCCleaders to secureuniformsof the Young
L ;ens for'Johnson6Toups1nift0 utilize themfor gainingentranceintoConvention

Wewere able to report that the numberof participantsofthe silent vigilwould
dwindlerapidly Althoughthe demonstrationsquieteddownThursdaynight wewere
heavilyinvolvedin checkingout the reports that a four-mangroupof PuertoRican
terrorists from'NewYorkwere in AtlanticCityin an attemptto assassinate the
President

MISCELLANEOUS

For the benefitof the DomesticIntelligenceandGeneralInvestigative
Divisions separate memorandaare beingsubmittedregardinginfomantcoverage I
am also recommendingletters of appreciationto cooperativeindividualswhoseefforts
facilitatedthe squad's workin AtlanticCity

INFORMANTACTIVITIES

In connectionwithour Conventioncoverage the special squadutilized
the followingsources

r
' 

!-!RW'~symbolnumberinformantsfrom otheroffices

5 CONTINUED-OVER
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Loh to Mohr
E:,.-ecial Squad AtlanticCity NewJersey

emociatic NationalConvention
August22-28 1964

technical sources
special agentsworkingin an undercovercapacity
'Negro informants
:establishedsources in the AtlanticCityarea
AtlanticCity informant e x 4r P. i
'AtlanticCitySecurityinformants

Our source from was in the inner planningcircles
Anothersource the Progressive LaborMovementdelegatesLo

ManticCity Althoughthe organizationwas inactive wehad sources in the
roups A Newarkinformantserved ofSNCC-CORE

,1IGANIZATIONSINATLANTICCITY

There was coveragco 15scparatc ga v.= activc
,ManticCityduringthe course of the Convention Theleadinggroupsincluded

MississippiFreedomDemocraticParty (MFDP)
Councilof FederatedOrganizations(COFO)
CongressofRacialEquality(CORE)
StudentNon-violentCoordinatingCommittee(SNCC)
ACT
IndependentCitizensCommittee
AmericanNaziParty
WhiteParty ofAmerica
W E 13 DuBois Clubs
Communist'Party USA
Women'sInternationalLeaguefor Peace andFreedom
TheProgressive Labor Movement

'ECOMMENDATIONS

(1) The majorityof the followingpersonnelaveragedovereighthoursper
'ayduringthe fivedays the special squadwashandlingits responsibilities They
 peratedin a very competentfashionandit is therefore recommendedthat letters (d
o,qinlc~i~1'itio}offs Director's signaturebe consideredfor them If approved
ed is i~titdep iaStrlbythe AdministrativeDivision (Aseparate memorandum
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DeLoachto Mohr
1tE SpecialSquad AtlanticCity NewJersey

democratic NationalConventionIIIAugust22-28 1964

beingfurnishedthe AdministrativeDivisionregardingthe specificdutieshandledb3
these employees.)

(2) A numberof the followingemployeeshadonlyminorduties inasmuc:
as theyWerenotused full-time onthe special squad however inviewofthe quietand
efficientmannerin whichtheyhandledtheir responsibilities letters are believed
deserved
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:hto Mohr
.,pecialSquad AtlanticCity NewJersey
DemocraticNationalConvention
August22-28 1964

(3) It is recommendedthat letters fromthe Director be givento the
,llowingpersonnelwhoassisted materially in the success ofthis operation

1"iit.)

ocr 1 1'1)f5

11)



MR CALLAHAN

On8/21/64.respondingto a requestdated8/19/64fromMr John fa_ y
DoaroftheCivilRightsDivisionofthe Department memorandawere sent tom, 2
DeputyAttorneyGeneralKatzenbach Doarhadrequestednamecheckson4Q.a
persons in the MFDPleadershipandconventiondelegationmembers The
memonn,.d:n:Matol '"Phis1).:ro:u;:a: se cuainted:toyinvestigationconcerning
the MississippiFreedomDcwoerul:cfait. nor has it takenanysteps to ideality
party members.

CuN'11NUi";DOVER
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EXHIBIT58 2

UN!LE1)STA.]S GOVERNMENT

Memorandum

DATE January29 1975

FROM H N BASSETT\` j

suuJECSPECIALSQUADATDEMOCRATICNATIONALCONVENTION
ATLANTICCITY NEWJERSEY 8/22 28/64

Referenceis madeto myprevious,memorandumcaptionedas above
dated1/28/75(copyattached) Thatwhichfollowselaboratessomewhaton
variouselementsofour special coverageofthe 1964DemocraticNationalCon
vention(DNC)andamplifiescertain aspects ofour operationstherein

AreviewofBureaufile ,onthe MississippiFreedomDemo
cratic Party (MFDP)indicatesthe file wasopenedto reply to a request fromE
WalterJenkins SpecialAssistantto President Johnson for a namecheckoathey'4
MFDPandcertain persons connectedtherewith Hewasadvised "FBIhas cino
neverconductedan investation ofthe MFDPandits files containnorecord 4 ng
of it. Resultsofnamechecksoncertain indivichalswere set forthtcgether
withpublicsourcedata fromthe 7/21/64editionof theWashingtonPost and b

r an inquirymathby the WashingtonFieldOfficeon7/21/64at the localoffice n n
y

ofthe MFDPongeneral informationonits objectivesad identityof its staff
members This informationwasset forth in a blindmemorandumto Mr
Jenkinsdated7/22/G4 e

\ ~J-t Itshouldbe notedthat three civil rights workerswhotraveledto
ftMississippiwerediscoveredmissingonG/22/64andtheir automobilefound

burnedon6/23/64 On6/23/61PrenideiitJohnsonwasadvisedof these [acts
andrequestedto}tekeptawareofall aspectsofthe investigationwhichhad
beenrequestedby the CivilRightsDivi:Honofthe Departmentof Justice ofthe
 FBI Thethree bodiesof theseworker, werefoundthereafter on8/4/64 2

LOn8/23/64 a'tlal-br.J~f~tii,"Iwitha burnedcar onit appearedinAtlanticCity em;
 NewJersey and it was/a1lI/gedto be the automobit ofthe three murdered a3

't )
l Enclosure`)f",,,,re Ĉ <%

1 Messrs

66-0770 76 41
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 ale SpecialSquadat DemocraticNationalConvention

AtlanticCity NewJersey 8/22 28/84

civil rights workers inMississippi Furthermore informationwas received
that the parents ofoneof these individualswouldappearat a rally duringthe
DNC

On8/25/64 AssistantDirector CarthaDeLoachtelephoneda memorandum
to Mr Mohrfrom AtlanticCityto the effect informationfromWalterJenkins
andinformantsindicatedthe questionofseatingthe MFDPdelegateswasexpected
to reach the floor ofthe DNCthe eveningof6/25/64 Hesaid "Thecrucial point
ofthe conventionin so far as possibleviolenceis concernedwill occurbetween
4:30p.m and6:30p.m this afternoon If the MississippiFreedomDemocratic
Party is notseatedthentheunrulyelementswithinthe Negrogroupwillpossibly
attemptto demonstrate DeLoachindicatedthat everyeffortwasbeingextended
to coyerdevelopmentspertinentto this possibleviolentsituation

There followsunderappropriatecaptionin summaryforminformation
relative to ourcoverageat the DNC

COVERAGERELATIVETOPOTENTIALCIVILUNREST
DEMOPSTRATIONSANDPOSSIBLEVIOLENCE

Areviewofthe summariesfurnishedto WalterJenkinsbyMr DeLoach
duringthe DNCindicatesover25separate entries dealingwithdemonstrations
insofaras their times places groupsinvolved numberofparticipants and
generalnature thereofwere concerned Agreat majorityof the Bureauperson
nel still onactivedulywhowere assignedto this specialsquadin AtlanticCity
haveindicatedthat the attainingof intelligenceinformationrelative to possible
violentcivil disorders was the primary purposeof their efforts duringthe DNC

Our coverageinthis regard wis t,ssttL"iithroughextensiveinformant
coverageat AtlanticCityandas a result tt1tithe-elationreceivedfrom informants
in otherparts ofthe countryas well Addition:ily weutilizedAgentsinvarious
undercovercapacitiesto developsuch inforniaii,m Furthermore a great deal
of informationin this regard was in fact re eked as a result ofthe technical
coveragetitillzed Whereappropriate the informationobtainedwasdisseminated
to the U S SecretServiceandother interestedlawenforcementagenciesas
well

ACTIVITIESRELATIVETO'1'IIEPRO'I'ECT1OOFTEE PRESIDENT

Of:1Areviewofthe interviewsof the pre tonslymentionedspecial squad
personnelstill onactivedutyhisindicatedUstia majorityofthemfelt that their

rU:i 2 CONTINUEDOVER
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Re SpecialSquadat DemocraticNationalConvention

AtlanticCity NewJersey 8/22 28/64

assignmentin part was related to the augmentingof the U S Secret.Servicein
sofar as the protectionof the Presidentwas concerned OneAgentindicated
that Bureaupersonneldid in fact activelyassist in the protectionof the
President andhis familywhiletheywere at the DNC

A reviewofBureaufile captioned"DisruptionofDemocratic
NationalConventionInformationConcerning(InternalSecurity) did not reveal
anyinformationdirectly relatingto the proleetionof the President

Areviewofthe DeLoachsummariesto Mr Jenkinsindicatedand
instancewherea demonstrationwasplannedto take placeuponthe President's
arrival at conventionhall andanotherincidentwhichrevealeda breach of
security whichallowedan individualto enter the conventionhall andproceed
directly to the podiumarea This informationwas furnishedimmediatelyto
the U S Secret Service

Informationis containedin the interviewsofthe former special squad
personnelthat FBIAgentswere utilizedin supplementingU S Secret Service
personnelonthe conventionhall floor

e  PCDOF POSSIBLEPOLITICALSIGNIFICANCE

Afurther reviewof the DeLoachsummariesrevealedapproximately
20separate items whichdonotappear to relate directly withpossiblecivil
unrest demonstratjonsor withthe protectionofthe President These items
were developedas a result of the various types ofcoveragewehadat the DNC
but a great numberthereofwere obtainedthroughour technicalcoverage A
samplingofthese items includesthe following

'2 Informantinformationreceivedthat CongressmanAdamClayton
Powellwas carryinga revolver

Informantinformationrelative to NationalAssdciationfor the
Advancementof ColoredPeopleplanninga meetingat a church

Informantrelative to King's speakingbeforevarious state delegations

QGl,:cl1a! CONTINUEDOVER
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5 Informationthat the Congressof RacialEqualityheadquartersin
AtlanticCitywas attemptingto haveCongressman officein
Detroit Michigan picketed claiminghe was "shakey.

Allegationsin the press that the coverageofthe FBIwas usedto
followthe activities ofAttorneyGeneralRobertF Kennedywere notsubstantiated
in anywayby file reviews

Areviewofthe statementsfurnishedby the special squadpersonnel
includesvarious instanceswherethey relate a portionof their overallpurpose
was to insure that there wasnothingwhichwould"embarrass the President.
OneAgentindicatedthat DeLoachplacedemphasisonthe fact that the
Pregiilentdidn'otwishto be emlarrassed inanywayandthat informationwas
to be gatheredwhichwouldassure that there wouldbe no suchembarrassment

Twostatementswere furnishedby
in this regard Onestates "I wouldlike to state thatat notime did

I ever considerthe abovetobe a politicaloperationbut it was obviousthat
DeLoachwantedto impress JenkinsandMoyerswiththe Bureau'sabilityto
developinformationwhichwouldbe of interest to them Furthermore in
responseto a questionas to whetherthe Bureau'sservices werebeingutilized
for politicalreasons Williamsanswered "No I do recall however that
ononeoccasiogI was presentwhenDeLoachhelda lengthytelephoneconversa
tionwhitWftltetJenkins TheyappearedJo bediscussingthe President's 'image

U 4 CONTINUE1OVER
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Atthe endof the conversationDeLoachtoldus somethingto the effect 'that
mayhavesoundeda little politicalto youbutthis doesn'tdo the Bureauany
harm."

Other Agentpersonnelonthe specialsquadindicatedin the negative
insofaras the abovequestionis concerned

DISSEMINATION

Inadditionto the summarymemorandafurnishedbyDeLoachto
Mr Jenkins informationis containediiiBureaufile citedabove
that someofthe same informationwas includedin daily letters to the White
Houseandthe AttorneyGeneraloncurrent RacialDevelopments Therewas
similar disseminationmadeto U S SecretService military intelligence
agenciesandlocalauthoritiesona selectedbasis

RECOMMENDEDACTION

For information It shouldbe notedthe informationcontained
herein settingforththat the WhiteHouseandthe Departmentmaderequests
in 1984for inforfilatiouIran Bureaufiles concerningthe MFDPhas been

incorporatedintoa separate LHMbeingpreparedfor the DeputyAttorney
General
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Theonlyinformationlocatedin Bureaufiles concerning
the special squadin AtlanticCitywasan eight-pagememorandum(copyattached)
withenclosurelocatedin the file ofDeLoach This is a memorandumfrom
DeLoachto Mohrdated8/29/64whichsets forththat in connectionwiththe
assignmentofthe special squadin AtlanticCityat the directionofthe President
DeLoachwishedto report the successfulcompletionof this assignment He
states that by meansof informantcoverage use ofvarious confidentialtech
niques infiltrationofkeygroupsthroughuse ofundercoveragentsandthrough
utilizationofAgentsusingappropriatecoveras reporters wewereable to
keepthe WhiteHousefullyapprisedofall majordevelopments DeLoachalso
advisedthat'immediateliaisonwasestablishedin AtlanticCitywithSecret
Serviceas wellas state andlocalpolice

This memorandumrefers to highlyconfidentialcoverageofMartinLuther
KingandBayardBustin alongwithsimilar coverageestablishedonthe lead
quarters ofthe CongressofRacialEquality(CORE) StudentNonviolent
CoordinatingCommittee(SNCC) DeLoachstates he wasable to advisethe
White,Hnhsein at{vanrepfalLplansmadeby these twosourcesandcoverage
washighlyeffective DeLoachadvises"withBureauapproval he ins tuted L.,c
coverageonCORE SNCCheadquartersat their meetinghall andour

penetratedtheheadquartersofthe MississippiFreedom
DemocraticParty (twoseparate factionswere contestingseats for the Mississippi
delegationandwasa highlightofthe convention)andthroughcooperationwiththe
managementofNBCnewsour Agentswere furnishedNBCpress credentials
DeLoachreportedthat 44pagesof intelligencedatawasdisseminatedto Walter
Jenkinsat the WhiteHouseandto his memorandumhe attacheda copyof these
dailysummaries'dated8/24 25 .26 27/64 Thesesummariesare in effect
a runninglogofdevelopmentswhichtookplaceat the convention DeLoachalso
states he arrangedfor a lease linebetweenthe controlpostat AtlanticCityand
the Bureau Heconcludesthe memorandumbymakingrecommendationsthat
personnelinvolved namely27Agents oneradiomaintenancetechnicianand
twostenographersof the NewarkOfficebe commended Mr Hoovernoted
DeLoachShouldreceive a meritoriousaward

Bureaufile 62-48771 serial 218 reflects a memorandumfromMr
HooverwhereinWalterW Jenkins SpecialAssistantto the President called
.andstated the President wantedJenkinsto call the Director to express the

QCTI301975 5 CONTINUEDOVER
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thoughtthe jobthe Bureauhaddonein AtlanticCitywas oneof the finest the
President hadever seen Accordingto this memorandum JenkinstoldMr
Hooverthere were a lot ofbadelementsup there andbecause ofthe work
some ofthe Bureaupeopledid theyknewexactlywherethey:wereandvilla
theyweredoing andconseouentlytheywerenotable to be very effective

Athoroughreviewof Bureaurecords includinga reviewofabstracts
ofMr Hoover Mr Tolson Mr Mohr `as wellas Mr DeLoach failedto
locateanymemorandumor other documentpertainingto a request havingbeen
received fromPresident Johnsonor anyoneat the WhiteHouseinstructing
that the Ftslaffordspecat euverageat the convention It shouldbe notedthat
at this time DeLoachwas responsiblefor liaisonwiththe WhiteHouseandhad
a direct line at his residence to the President so it wellmaybe that this request
was madedirectly to DeLoachwhoin turn discussedit orallywithMr Hoover
or Mr Tolsonbutfor onereason or anotherthe requestwas never put in
writing

STATEMENTSOF SPECIALSQUADPERSONNELSTILLONACTIVEDUTY

On 1/26/75-thehispectionDivisiondirecteda teletypeincorporating
12questionsto the 19Agentsandoneradiomaintenancetechnicianwhoare
still onactivedutyandwere withDeLoachat AtlanticCity Thesequestions
were designedto havethe participatingpersonnelfurnishus withtheir recol
lectionas to their dutiesand involvementat AtlanticCity Detailedresponses
were promptlyreceivedandall personnelacknowledgedtheir participationon
the special squadunderDeLoach'sleadershipat the convention All responded
there wasno questionin their mindat the timebut that theywere in Atlantic
Cityto fulfillthe F7BI'sjurisdictionalresponsibilitiesand theydidnot feel that
the purposeof the special squadwas politicalin nature Basically the instruc
tions to the Agentsvcioto developadvanceinformationregardinganyacts cr
intendedacts ofviolencepertainingto civildisturbancesthat couldarise duringu~r30.,11il

6 CONTINUEDOVER
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UNITEDSTATESDl It'l II NI ONJUSTICE

MinrIlALMOREAUOEINVESTIGATION
20,35

June4 1965

BYLIAISON

HonorableMarvinWatson
SpecialAssistantto the President
TheWhiteHouse
WashingtonD C

DearMr Watson

Referenceis madeto the President's request
to me earlier todaywhileI wasat theWhiteHousewith
respect to the telegramhe receivedfromthe artists
Accordingly attachedare memorandacontainingthe results
of an FBInamecheckofHannahArendtandtwentyother
individualsmentionedin that telegram

Whenthis letter of transmittalis detachedfrom
its enclosuresbearinga security classification this letter can
be declassified

Sincerelyyours
O~-v-aVL 

Enclosures(18)



July 15 1966

BYLIAISON
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UNI'fEI)$'I'ATI.SUEI'Ali'I'.\II:\'IUI )US"I'ICI
IA:A.111ALBUREAUIll I\\'I:SIIGA'1'If,5

4'A511IfTfly1~( 20.J5

Honorable MarvinWatson
Special Assistant to the President
The White House
Washington D C

Dear Mr Watson

OnJuly 12 1966 Mr Jake Jacobson
Legislative Counsel to the President requested name
checks on individuals whose namesappeared in the
"Congressional Record as signers of letters to
United States Senator WayneMorse expressing support
for Senator Morse's criticism of United States policy
toward Vietnam

There are enclosed eleven memorandaconcerning
individuals whomaybe identical with certain of the
individuals whose letters to Senator Morsewere printed
in the "Congressional Record of July 11 1966

Based on the identifying information available
our files contain no identifiable pertinent information
concerning the remainder of the individuals whose letters
appeared in that issue of the "Congressional Record.

Sincerely yours
~-artr/`t/Li

Enclosures 11
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Enclosures
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ST-105

V^ ;'y
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1
1
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EXHIBIT58-5

UNMET)s rxrES JVJI NMENF

Iviemorandum

o Mr W C Sullivan

1EKUwl C C
MoorA

i
sui cr RALPHDAVIDABERNATHY

RACIALMATTERS

Pursuant to the request madeby the Director
today (5/18/70) there is attached information for the
Vice President regarding militant statements by Ralph
David Abernathy the President of the Southern Christian
Leadership Conference which statements invite violence

Information is also included to the Vice President
Iregarding an incident involving Ld,":,5o.4..y bLcre,o:.t }u(~r,nnfo ~

On 5/18/70 Abernathy announceda march against
violence brutality and killing at Atlanta Georgia on
Saturday 5/23/70 At this march the namesof the Nation's
"Ten Most UnwantedPoliticians will be revealed

ACTION

If you approve the attached letter will be sent
to the Vice President
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EXHIBIT58-6

May]9 1970

BYLIAIS(Il

Honorable Spiro T Agnew
The Vice President
Washington D C

Dear Mr Vice President

In respoeae to your request there is attnched
infornaticn regardin,n,,militant atatceents by Ralph David
Abernathy who although he advocates nonviolence has
invited violence by someof his statements The material
also includes information about tha l>,acre_UFe,
Laerc..)<.At.ry,,v'bc re,cr<1 .n4c.rM lon_1l

and his support of the Black Panther
Party

For your information Abernathy on May18 1970
annc nced a march against violence brutality and killing
to be held in Atlanta Georgia on Saturday May23 1970
Abernathy said that the namesof the nation's "Ten Most
UnwantedPoliticians will be revealed during this march

ENCLOSLIRE

Sincerely yours

2 MAY20 1970
Enclosure

(8)
NOTE

See memorandumG C Mooreto W C Sullivan dated
5/18/70 captioned "Ralph David Abernathy Racial Platter:;,
prepared by
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EXHIBIT59-1

SAC Albany 12/26/72

For the Lctina nirector 1DI
clt

Acting Associate Director

FDI LET.=
1'02 T.!IL
CODE
RESEA1,01I

ReDulet 11/20/0

Referenced 1-Ater instructed all field offices to furnish
the Bureau c. to in the security field which
was to be laraicacci to the rcsicent and the Attorney C.:choralon a
coati uin basis i,11 cuci were to be flac,ect with
the code ''ialet ill the caption

Since the ince.;tion of this pro:ram as evolution in policies
and practiccs occurred and currentI7 :e iaiori . ation specitied.:n t
in rolcreces le:tor is luraisaad cy cacti iield oiiice in fern suitable
for teletype dicc.c:lli.:atiaa to 'i he alto 1:cuse ;mu the Attorney Ceneral
as well as cil.cr iatere:!.ea oi tao Accoroinly
the "Ialct f:r :`Taff cps ;.'or-cil aclical rarpoces been rcnaerod
obsolete ;lad t:.a Du:eau is now formally instructions set
forth in referenced Letter

l:e terhiinatioa of the 'Inlet pro'?razo does not relieve
the responsibility of all ciliecs to be alert 'or the i.itelli";encc rata
specified in rolcrencea Icz.1c;..and to st_binit taisinfornaitica in a
Wooly h-.a.inor lay teletype and in a Iorrn

2 All Field Caices

1.1..,
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UNI'II;U51,\'11:5Cf K.RNMENT

Memorandum

Mr E S Miller DATL 2/2/73

\n T J Smith

MGT FBI INTELLIGENCELETTER FOR
THE PRESIDENTCODENAME"INLET
RESEARCHMATTER

The FBI Intelligence Letter for the President was instituted
in November 1969 pursuant to then FBI Director J Edgar Hoover's
instructions to keen the President fully informed of significant intePigence
developments within the purview of the Bureau's security responsibilities
Dissemination was restricted to the President the Attorney General and
later the Vice President

By letter dated November 26 1969 all FBI field offices were
advised to flag information obtained in our investigations important enough

/ for the President's interest with the code word "INLET This was to
include

Information of national or international significance which
is security related

Important current or pending developments in major
security cases

Current information which is representative of or calls
attention to a significant developing intelligence rend

Material which has a beat ug-onnational security
particularly that from sensitive and/or penetrative coverage of foreign
establishments which cutdd nlfect American relaliu::s.wiSilforeign
countries or assist in formulating UnitedStates policy

5 FP 1G1973
"Inside information concerning demonstrations disorders

or other civil disruptions which is of more than IJ I  E uiiicance

Items with an unusual twist or concerning prominent
personalities which may be of special interest to the President or the
Attorney General
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Memorandumto Mr E S Miller
Re FBI Intelligence Letter for the President Code Name "INLET

The_FBI had through_several Achninistratioi s furnished
various Presidents and Attorneys General inmortnnt-intellieence mailers

on ;iii individual basis: 'The-Litelli ence Letter served to consolidate this
information into one document By August 1970 changes in our commun
ications capability including the ability to afford immediate teletype
dissemination of intelligence data to The White Houseand the c!eveiopment
of other reporting procedures such as the Summary of Extremist Activities
made the Intelligence Letter no longer necessary Items submitted for this
Letter by the field were disseminated in these other ways In December
1972 the use of the code word "INLET was discontinued and field offices
so advised The field was also advised however they had the responsi
hilily to be alert for this type intelligence data

ACTION

For information
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UNITED!S1\TICS(.U\,.1tNNIEN

Memorandum
1

" Mr E S Miller nri` S/29/72

FROM T J Smith T5-_S 1

scu)r:cr/\\DMINISTRATIVEINDEX 1
STREAMLININGMEASURES 1

T J Smith to Mr E S Miller memorandumdated S/11/71
captioned "Fiscal Year 1974 Budget Policy Guidance, referred
to the fact that wehave been conducting a seven-month's analysis
of the Bureau's Administrative Index (ADEX)and that it appears
that by implementing certain streamlining measures and altering
requirements for reporting and periodic verification of informa
tion somemanpowermight be available for reassignment to one
of the other critical areas of our work In this connection the
same memorandumpointed out that the Domestic Intelligence Division
has an urgent need for in excess of 500 Special Agents to handle
several areas of national security work which are not reccivirg
attention deserved

PACKGROUND 111
Bywayof background the ADEXis an outgrowth of the old

Security Index programwhich in itself was an integral part of
the EmergencyDetention Program The EmergencyDetention Program
in latter years derived its authority from Title II of the Internal
Security Act of 1950 (better knownas the EmergencyDetention Act)In the Fall of 1971 the EmergencyDetention Act was repealed by
Congress and we of course immediately discontinued the Emergency
Detention Program Since the Security Index was in actuality
an extension of an integral part of the EmergencyDetention
Program it was believed that the Security Index as was
structured should also be discontinued]

Froman administrative standpoint however it was
believed that the Bureau should be able to immediately identify
individuals whoconstitute a threat to the national security
particularly during time of national emergency The Security
Index enabled us to retrieve information pinpointing such
individuals Representatives of the Department during a meeting
following repeal of the EmergencyDetention Act pointed out that
even though Congress has nowprohibited a program for emergencyapprehension and detention circumstances might somedaybe such

"-YlSGP 1~1',7 r
e. J~ TinYa ,r I rr? I ,

(14) "t''" ,.,ICONTII,UG(DavOVERO1l~rcsub

e u1vu(uurt (hcr.ryacs>appraraloflach'L'1

Inspector's addendumpage8
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Memorandumto Mr C S Miller
Re Administrative Index

Streamlining Measures

that the Governmentmight have to defend itself from attack and
that it would be necessary at such time to quickly identify
persons whowere a threat to the national security so that
investigation could be intensified and if necessary the President
could go to a joint session of Congress and ask for emergency
legislation permitting apprehension and detention of personswhothreaten existence of the Government

The Departmentadvised after consultation that the FBI's
authority to investigate individuals engaged in subversive
activity had not been eroded by repeal of the EmergencyDetention
Act and that further repeal of this Act did not in any way
prohibit the FBI from maintaining an administrative index of
individuals whowere under investigation for subversive activity
Accordingly we devised the Administrative Index for the purposeof beinl1 able to quickly identify persons representing a threat
to the national security Since we already had the identities
of such persons contained in the Security Index we used the
Security Index as a basis for setting up the Administrative Index
The major difference of course was that whereas persons listed
in Security Index had been listed with a view of possible
apprehension and detention the persons being listed in ADEX
would not be subject to detention but would be listed for ready
identification purposes

Since persons listed in ADEXwould not be subject to
apprehension and detention the requirement for Departmental
concurrence in listing no longer existed Also since the

ldetention
factor was no longer a major issue persons could he

,listed irrespective of degree of threat they mayrepresent to
the national security

Criteria for listing in 'ADEXwere broken downinto four
categories Each category beginning with Category I contained
a listing of persons and Category I listed those considered most
dangerous to the national security, while Category IV listed
those least dangerous As of July 15 1972 there were 15,259
individuals listed in ADLX Of this total 1,334 were Category I
3,452 were Category II 8,560 were Category Ill and 1,913 were
Category IV
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Memorandumto Mr .. S Miller
Re Administrative Index

Streamlining Measures

ASSESSMENTOFADEX

ADEXhas nowbeen in operation about.8 monthsand we
have had a chance to evaluate its operation and effectiveness
Based on discussions with field personnel as well as our own
observations we believe that several major changes should be
madeat this time

While ADEXhas not been intended as an investigative
program it is somewhatof an extension of Security Index which
was an integral part of an investigative program and there are
vestiges of the investigative program apparent in our operationof ADEX ADEXmost be clearly separated from investigative
criteria and policy so that it represents a mere by-product or
administrative supplement to our investigations and not as a
guideline or controlling factor in !he investigation itself
The very'naturc of the criteria for inclusion of individuals in
ADEXare such to generate investigative activity which maynot
be necessary were it not for ADEX Reporting procedures for a
great bulk of our security cases are based on the category of
ADEXor the fact that the subject is listed in ADEX A great
deal of investigative activity is created because of the requirement
of periodic verification of residence and employmentaddresses
In other words existence of ADEXcreates investigative and
reporting activity which might not be necessary otherwise

It is believed that ADEXis needlessly complex
particularly from the standpoint of criteria for inclusion
of an individual in the ADEXand is administratively cumbersome

Most important it is believed that in light of the
conditions existing today particularly with respect to emphasis
on invasion of privacy and other First and Fourth Amendment
rights the current criteria for designating individuals for ADEX
arc too broad and all-encompassing As a result there are some
individuals nowincluded in ADEXeven though they do not realis
tically pose a threat to the national security For example
present ADEXguidelines cover individuals whoare not membersof
subversive or revolutionary groups but whohave "exhibited a
revolutionary ideology and are likely to seize upon the oppor
tunity presented by a national emergencyto commitacts of
espionage, etc Notime factor is included and as can Incseen
the language is subject to considerable interpretation It is

v 5
CONTINUEDOVER

6e-0770 76 42
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Memorandumto Mr Ii S Miller
Re Administrative Index

Streamlining Measures

believed that such broad terminology would leave is in a vulner
able position if our guidelines were to be scrutinized by
interested Congressional committees which has been threatened

PROPOSEDNEWADEXCRITERIA

If for no other reason but practicality it is believed
that ADEXshould be a list of individuals whorealistically represe.t
an immediate threat to the national seucrity as opposed to
individuals whomight theoretically pose a threat in the future
under a given set of circumstances Werecognize that anyone
whohas embraced a philosophy that includes an overthrow of the
Americanform of governmentis a potential enemyof the Government
However in manysuch instances an individual maybelieve in some
other form of governmentbut would he unwilling to engage in
activity more violent than philosophical discussions

On the other side of the coin is an individual whono
only embraces the philosophy of overthrow of the Government but is
actually engaged in someform of activity designed to bring about
that overthrow by force or violence or other unconstitutional means
It is this latter individual whowould seize upon any type of
national emergencyto exploit a weakness in Governmentalfunctions
in an effort to wrest control or whowould commitviolent acts
such as bombingsof public buildings which are symbolic of our
national institutions ambushkillings of police officers who
are the visible symbolof our democratic system attack water
supplies power systems or transportation facilities in an
effort to create a chaotic void into which a revolutionary force
might be able to supplant the Government This is the type of
individual whoshould be listed in the ADEX

It is thereforc'proposed that the existing ADEXwith four
categories representing an unrealistic concept of individuals
constituting a threat to the national security be revised so that
it will include only:one category This wouldbe a list of
individuals whorepresent an actual danger nowto the national
security It is believed that such a list would embracemost of
the individuals currently listed in Categories I and II of ADEX
or a total as of 7/15/72 of 4,786 individuals

CONTINUEDOVER
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Memorandumto Mr E S Miller
Re Administrative Index

Streamlining Measures

To do this the criteria would be changed to read as
follows

"ADEXshould be limited to those individuals whose
actions or statements have clearly established that they represent
a current threat to the national security

"Included are individuals whether affiliated with organ
ized groups or not whohave showna willingness and capability
for engaging in treason rebellion or insurrection seditious
conspiracy sabotage espionage terrorism guerrilla warfare
assassination of Governmentofficials or leaders or other such
acts which would result in interference with or a threat to the
survival and effective operation of national state ar local
government

"The foregoing would include leaders of organizatiorwhose aims include the overthrow or destruction of the United States
or the governmentof any State Territory district or possession
thereof or the governmentof any political subdivision therein
by unlawful means Individuals affiliated with such organizationswhohave demonstrated a willingness and capability of activitynet forth under criteria set forth above would be included but

'mere membershipin such organization is not sufficient to justifyinclusion in ADEX

"Individuals should be considered a 'current threat tc
the national security whenreliable information has been
developed that they have engaged in activity falling within
the above-described criteria during the past two years and
there is no indication that they have given up or ceased to
engage in such activity.

Adoption of these new criteria will probably result
in deletion from ADEXof numerousindividuals whoare connected
with subversive organizations For example there were 4501
Communistsin Categories III and IV of ADEXas of 7/15/72
Additionally there .arc membersof Socialist WorkersParty
Progressive Labor Party etc whowill not meet the revised
criteria of being dangerous now It is believed that the
Bureau should maintain a list of such individuals aside from
ADEXin the event we had to quickly identify knownsubversives
throughout the country Wewill therefore submit a separateI l^ proposal to establish a "CommunistIndex which will require a

r k-gnodicumof effort on the part of the field and Bureauheadquarters
5 CONTINUEDOVER
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Memorandumto Mr E S Miller
Re Administrative Index

'Streamlining Measures

Such a list would also be advantageous in quickly
identifying extremists whothough not posing a threat to the
national security do seek to deny constitutional rights of
others or arc white or black chauvinists or nationalists who
thrive on race hatreds and ethnic discord Wewill also
propose that a counterpart to the "CommunistIndex be established
to be knownas the "Extremist Index. Neither of these indexes
will constitute a programbut will merely be a listing which will
be computerized for ready retrieval at any time we need to quickly
identify persons of this type whowere involved in activity inimical
to the national interest Details concerning these indexes will
be included in the separate proposal
MANPOWERSAYINGS

It is difficult if not impossible to estimate a manpower
savingslas result of redefining ADEXand streamlining its operation
However based on the premise that the revised ADEXwould contain
primarily what is nowCategories I 1 II this would meanthat about
10,473 individuals would be dropped If these remained on ADEX
this manycases would be opened during a twelve-monthperiod due
to necessity to verify employmentand residence addresses and to
report any pertinent data developed to date Those cases wouldbe
in a closed status in the field and would be reopened on a
regular staggered basis

A canvass of ten field offices including NewYork
Newark Cincinnati Cleveland Milwaukee Minneapolis San Francisco
Los Angeles Chicago and Philadelphia resulted in an estimate
that roughly 89%of the above-described total of 10,473 cases
would be affected These offices could not give any realistic
estimate of manpowerinvolved However using purely a caseload
average of 40 cases per Agents as a guide using the 89%estinate
of the offices canvassed there would be 9,311 cases opened over
a 12-monthperiod or about 776 cases per month Whenrevision of
ADEXhas been approved and the new criteria have been furnished
to the field Domestic Intelligence Division will canvass each
Special Agent in Charge to determine specifically on the basis
of the revised criteria the manpowersavings which can be
directed to higher priority security work The Inspection
Division of course will be in the best position to evaluate
the impact of the revisions in their field audits of ADEX

CONTINUEDOVER
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Memorandumto Mr E S Miller
Re Administrative Indcv

Streamlining Measures

It is important to note that there will be no immediate
manpowersavings realized since it is anticipated that necessary
review of ADCscases will not he completed for at least 12 months
To avoid creating a sudden increase in workload in the fieldinstructions are being issued to review existing ADEXcases as the
would normally comeup on tickler during the next 12 monthsunder
the old ADEXrules In this mannerall cases nowlisted in ADEX
can be reviewed without creating an undue burden on the field
Wewill knowon a month-to-monthbasis at Headquarters from
computer print-outs as to progress being made

RECOMMENDATIONS

Attached for approval are detailed instructions
in memorandumfor all Special Agents in Charge Revisions will
be madein Manualof Instructions and submitted separately.

If proposed revision is approved investigativeand reporting requirements nowinterconnected with ADEXor
dependent on the existence of ADEXcriteria will be revised

If proposed revision of ADEXis approved we will
.1<Ptfurnish details to the Attorney General whohas been kept informed

Ih
regarding our ADEX
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ADDENDUM INSPECTOR 8/30/72

Duringthe inspection the ADEXProgramwasthoroughly
studiedandInspectorconcursin this revisionandin the recommenda
tion of the AssistantDirector



IV Chance additions and delctiono of data appearing in
section A of reserve index cards

ChangesIn data nppsaring on section A reserve
index cards should te submitted to"the Bureau byform F'0-122a
Deletions from section A of the reserve index
should he recommendedby letter The letter should
cet forth the basis for the reoonmcndation
Changesin office of origin are to be handled by
submission of form FD-120c Forward section A
cards to newoffice of origin

(b) Section B
I This section is to contain the nr.mesof all other indi

viduals inc)ud:d in the reserve index This section
is to be maintained only in the field office

II Changesin office of origin are t'o be handled by sub
mission of fond FD-128.a. Forwardsection B cards to
newoffice of origin

43
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(4) Content
(a) Each card in section A and section B should contain as

a minimumthe followingNameand aliases
Race
Sc:c
Organizational affiliation or nationalistic tendency
Citizenship
Residence
Employment
Birth data
Office file number

[X The letters J if dissesination has been made to
Secret Service in accordance with instructions in
section 63F item 2 volumeIII of this manual]

(b) In addition membershipand position or association in a
subversive group or groups together with the source and
date of the information maybe added

(5) Removaland deletion o` cards
Destroy cards on individuals whosubsequently becomesecurity
informants or sources or whosubsequently becomesubjects
of security inde cards
Advise the Bureau of the destruction only in the case of
section A cards

Security index
(1) Purpose

Security index cards arc prepared and maintained by the
Bureau to servo as operational guide for apprehension of
persons deemeddangerous or potentially dangerous to the
internal security of the country in the event of a national
emergency
It shall contain the namesof all rrsous whohave been
determined through investigation in be dangerous or poten
tially dangerous bccauso of their m::cabcrchipin or affiliation
with or.espousal of doctrines of basic revolutionary organ
izations and/or front organizations and uho will be
apprehendedupon receipt of instructions from the Attorney
General

(o) It shall include subjects of espionage investigations and
any other type of Bureau investigation provided their

-,'i activities bring themwithin the scope of the security index
i . criteria

(d) Action shall be taken against individuals included in the
security index only upon authorization of warrants of
arrest by the Attorney General Bowever in preparing and
maintaining the security index to all practical.effects
the Bureau is makingthe decision as to those persons who"s+illii
be apprehendedin the event of an emergency inasmuch as tee
Attorney General ha advised that be does not have funds or
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manpowerto reviee security index cases
(c) Vemesshall be included in the security index only when

investigation he established and reports[show) sufficient
faots and evidence to justify the inclusion of each subject
in the security index
The contents of the security index roust be accurate and
correct at all times Matters pertaining to its preparationand maintenancemust be given preferred expeditious con
tinuous and detailed attention
flatters pertaining to the security index are strictly con
fidential and are not to be mentioned or alluded to in
irr:stigative reports
The general operation and content pf the security index
must not be diseusced by field personnel of the Bureauwith 
out prior Bureauauthority
hatters pertaining to the security index maybe disoussed
with duly qualified representatives of other Federal intelli
gence agencies only on a strictly confidential basis and
only in instances in which an individual subject of primeinterest to one of those services isinvolvea

(2) Determination of dangerousness of an individual
(a) The dangerousness of a memberor affiliate of a subversive

organization does not necessarily depend entirely upon his
personal characteristics such as aggressiveness or a dis
position to violence Althoughthese factors must'be taken
into consideration in evaluating an individual's potential
dangerousness other factors are essential in makingthis
determination An individual's dangerousness also depends
upon the contribution be has madeor is making in_the advance
ment of the prinoiples and aims of the subversive movement
with which he is ccnnected or his subversive potentialitiesin the event of a national emergency Bear in mind that a
subject active in a subversive organization is not merelyan isolated individual but is a part of'an organization of
which the purposes are opposed to the best interests of the
U S An individual's loyalty to a subversive organizationand the principles thereof is a primary factor to take into
consideration in evaluating his potential dangerousness;(hoer
ever regardless of evidence of subversive affiliation all
evidence developed during the course of a security investigationmust be carefully weighedfor the purpose of determiningwhether the subject's activities depict him as a potentially
dangerous individual in time of a national emergency Factors

.having a bearing upon an individual's potential dangerousnessare numerousand will vary in each case in degree.]
Amongsuch factors are

Longcontinued membershipin a subversive organizationAffiliation with or attendance at training schools
especially leadership schools
Frequent or regular attendance at organizational meetingsand functions
Subscriptions to publications of a subversive organization

V Possession of or continued study of revolutionary liters
ture
Preparation or distribution of subversive propagandaand/or =
literature
Holding positions in the subversive organization or it
other organizations of a front oharactcr which indicate
confidence of such organizations in his loyalty
Espousal of a subversive doctrine exemplified in his ants
and utterances



The Attorney Ceccra]

Director FFBI

Lr.LmCii;CYbi:iLnllt),I rbouie(,h

September30 1971
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EXHIBIT60-2

In view of the fact the President has signed the Ac_
rencaling Tit] II of th Internal Security Act of 1950
which was coc,conlyreferred to as the i.r.uorgencyDetention Act
of 1950 your viccas are boi.nr r.olicited concerning F13I
authority to continec invcntigations of subversive activity
covered in part by this Act

F have discontinued all planning for erergency
ar, apprehension end ention oi tnurc stflieccs listed in the

Security In;cx which i.e a list of individuals whosehistories
shoalthey rii ht onee e in or conspire to engage in acts of

o espionage or sabota e during a national emergency Uehave
likewise di.scontinucd operation of the Security Index which
was an integral part of implep ntati.on of emergencyapprehension

EX j::EC25
In addition to stet,,ol 0 authority provided in the

mith Act of 1.940 'lithe I of the Internal Security Act of 1950
lie CommunistControl Act of 1954 and statutes relating to
sp.ior.ae sabota o rebellion and insurrection. sedition and
editious con,-piracy we feel that authority for the I'BI to
onduct investil.ati-ons of subversive activity and related activity
s clearly set forth in certain Presidential Directives For

Aeample on June 26 1939 the President issued a confidential
Directive to the heads of various GovernmentDepartmentswhich

_1 -6-estated It is mydesire that the investigation of all espionage
and sabotage matters be controlled and handled by the Federal
Bureau of Investi7ation of the Departmentof Justice.... On
September 6 1933 the President issued a Directive as follows
"The Attorney General has been reeucsted by meto instruct the
Federal Bureau of investigation of the Departmentof Justice

. to take charge of investigative matters relating to espionage
,.~.." ___saUotnge subversive activities and violations of neutrality
Z"--regulations. This Directive also pointed out that the invcs
a tigations"(by the [CI)";:rust be conducted in a comprehensiveand

"'effective rsnner on a national basis and all inforrati.on
car fully silted out and correlated in order to avoid confusion

yL~irrc sponsibility. V
1-c(110TE:...SeememoCotter to biller 9/29/71 re "IneP  racy.0ot'ntion:s,1
-OCr 4, .A1c "li ,1] Fl,ecurity Index Pror-ran, prepared i;y`TJS:pea~.. _

r yCJafs~anefiedSecret asi.i imm.'.-- ,j EmergencyDetention Program
,fl,i  _ nr,>nneouEJ TELF:ISPFuviT

117)so classified ,`,y- r
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The Attorney General

to j:uluery 1343 the President ieeutd a Directive
reiterating his urevioul Directive of Sepiesthcr 6 1939 end
subeeguently on del_ 24 15B the President iesued a third
Direetiv7 reitetttire er-tieet Pireetivee of Beeteneer 6 1932
and jarmary 1543 and broedoned the econc of inveetigative
activit h the 7TTte iet7e's 'ttbtetsive activities ted
releted tot'iere et well ae the sneciiic mattere involving

-e Leet s 1 19:;3 the Fesew.'et
issued a etatement in whic he set forth the language contained
in the combinedPrelidcntial Directives Cated.Septem;,er 6
1939 Jenuary 3 1943 end July 24 1350 concerning the
inveetigativl reeponeibility of the FBI in natters relating Lc
`espionage sabotege subvereive activities and _elated Totters.
The etateront then pointed out the UDIin alto charged with
inveetigatine ell violation's Lhc Atonic DesrgyAct and
rogueeted ccoectetion of all enforce eetofficers as in the
previous Directive e in reporting all inforncLion releting to
violation of the Atonic Utergy Act to the nearest repeeentetive
of the FBI

rased on interpretation of existing statutes and the
language set forth in the various Presidential Directives cited
above we feel that the repeal of the BmergoncyBoteidion le
of 19'50has not eroded the FBI's authoritv eel reepone?biliLy
to conduct invet,getion of subvereive activitlee and relacce
matters Likewise we fee] that the repeal of this Act doe not
limit the FBI's authority and restoneibility to keen end maintain
adAinietrative teeorde including various indices which nay be
necessary in fulfilling such responsibility and authority.

I strongly feel that irrespective of the repeal of the
emergencyCetention Act the Fedora] Goverment must trd.e
whatever steps are necessary within the law to plotect itself
frox all hostile forces bent on it destruction ,to therefore
feel that it is absolutely incerbent upon the FBI to continue
investigations of thoee whopose a throat to the internal security
of the country end to maintain an as1minietrative index of eucn
individuals as an oesential part of our investigative
responsibility Such an indax not only enables the Fill to pin
point individuals whohave ethibited a pronon;ity to condor:Lacts
inimical to national security but also serve. ee an e%treLely
valuable list of individuals whopose a continuing threat to the
safety of the President and thereby enable. Ire to provide current
data to U S Secret Service concerning bachgrounds and where
abouts of such individuals

-.LQVFn FROM

FBI
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The Attorney t3oorol

Youoro thorr foro iwoos;cO ro'oioo whothor ''1U
concur in cur oo:loion that the authority and rooponsibility
to ifIvosiooto ooOsooroLwooctivitioo onc rolot-,d r:attoro has not
boon orodod hu m-osl of tho I'.00roonoo!)atontion ,,_rt Youare
'furthor r nontr to odvioo if vou concur io etn opinion that
the r000al of tho tooroonoo Potootion 7.ot do.,, not nrchihit or

e'oo 000.oit ono iosio.o.ioiiit to hoop soOmointain
a,nriotrotioo vosto:'o ioo'orioo an o,ttoottotivo ir.7so of

u06ho invostinotion in connoctiomgild on v:riv=
notivitios and rolatod natter:. which arc nooesoary in fulfilling
our investigotive authority and responsibility

In the past we have furnished the Internal Security
Divinion on a meothly baoio current list of inti.vin:ual listed
oo tho Socority Innnu Mir has berm diooutinuod however
in the ovont you oprovo of our aintoining an odminiotrative
inde as d000ribod ahovo please advioc whothor the Internal
Soonrity nivioion .:.o.oirooa copy of ony current list in
might prepare in this regard

Yonare also rognosted to advioo what disposition should
be madoof warrants oealod onvolopoo captioned "Ddprtmont
of Justice Instructions to United Staten Attorsovs and
"beportnt of justico Instructions to Unitod States ,;.ua.hals
which have boon onintainod in can of our field offiocs in
connection with the LmergoncyDetention Program

In view of the urgonoy of the ratter and the critical
need to continua an uninterrutod progrnmof investigating
subvorsivo activities and related matters you are to-roosted to
furnish a reply to the foregoing questions at the earliest
possible time

1 The DeputyAttorney General
1 Assistant Attorney General

Internal Security Division

;EGE'(?iCn 111)1,1IV
:Ts.....

Ft
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EXHIBIT60-3

UNITEDSTATESE ERNMENT

Memorandum

Director
Federal Bureau of Investigation

SUBJECTEMERGENCYDETE,TIONPROGRAM

This will acknowledge your memorandumof September 30 1971
regarding the effect that the repeal of Title II of the Internal
Security Act of 1950 as amended has on the FBI's authority
"to investigat& subversive activities and related matters.

With respect to your initial inquiry I wish to advise you
that the FBI's authority to investigate violations of the
espionage sabotage Smith Act Atomic Energy Act and related

!statutes as well as subversive activities and related matters
 I,in accordance with its statutory responsibilities and the ,ry.Presidential directives cited in your memorandum remains

unaffected By the repeal of the Emergency Detention Act `4

Furthermore the repeal of the aforementioned Act does
of alter or limit the FBI's authority and responsibility"o record file and index information secured pursuant to ^,jits statutory and Presidential authority An FBI adminis

trative index compiled and maintained to assist the Bureau
in making readily retrievable and available the results of
its investigations into subversive activities and related "3'"matters is not prohibited by the repeal of the Emergency f~ iDetention Act

,0.\5 R(C"GQ I[ (,~
While the Department Les not desire a copy of any lists \Jthat you may compile on the basis of such records or indicesthe Internal Security Division should be furnished a monthly

!memorandum-reflecting the identity of government employeeswho by significant acts or membership in subversive organizations have demonstrated-a propensity to commit actsto our national security ~_
Q T--201971With regard to Department instructions to the united-States

!Attorneys and Marshals and related materials maintained La__sealed envelopes in each of the Bureau's field offices it isnoted that such emergency documents were prepared on the basisof authority other than the Emergency Detention Act A study
f tfSI,being"undertpiten within the Department as to the disposition

tb''beemademgft,tlipse pre-positioned sealed instructions Whei,uch a revrtekirhas been completed you will be appropriately
7

,l
Ti nrr/ rye

~ c ~al"rdin responseto?!onrrrgnrstn ~~l~J~lnrl eennino 1(/)f ifi ,~'n~nmiller /IcIlseis lA"ilrrl"e "~('`Ca`IiA " / I
'j;oy r 9 !r-~~ ti,t`nz r'Thrro,dr-ttwaynotbedtsclus~l'7otwuatnuri,.pdperswr'nc(niatult theer/rrrssapprovalof theFIJI
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EXHIBIT60-4

(C) SECURITYINVESTIGATIONSOF IURIVIDUALS RESERVEIUIDEX-
The presently constituted Communist Index will henceforth be known
as the Reserve Index

Institute a review of the Reserve Index In conducting
this review the following minimumsteps-are to be-taken in all
instances

Verify residence and employment

Conduct an indices search and file review to
determine whether investigation is warranted at this
time or whether an interview with the individual is
deemed desirable Interviews with the individuals will
be handled in accordance with current Bureau instructions
set forth in Section 67D of the i"Eanualof Instructions

If additional investigation is conducted or
if there is unreported information of a subversive nature
contained in the files a report must Le subwi'si:od

The re-examination of the Reserve Index may be made in
equal monthly divisions for one year Advise the Bureau quarterly
of your progress

Recognizing that some individuals included in the Reserve
Index represent a greater potential threat in time of an emergency
than do others this Reserve Index is being divided into two
sections Section A and Section B Each is discussed separately
herein

SECTIONA

Section A of the Reserve Index is designed to represent
a special group of individuals who should receive priority con
sideration with respect to investigation and/or other action fol
lowing the apprehension'of our Security Index subjects

Section A of the Reserve Index should include those
individuals whose subversive activities do not bring them within
the Security Index criteria but who in a time of national
emergency are in a position to influence others against the
national Interest or are likely to furnish material financial
aid to subversive elements due to their subversive associations
and Ideology Included In Section A will be those individuals
falling within the following categories

6/21/60
SACLETTERNO 60-30 2
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Professors teachers and educators
Labor union organizers or leaders
Writers lecturers newsmen entertainers
and others in the mass media field

11 Lawyers doctors and scientists
Other potentially influential persons-on
a local or national level
Individuals who could potentially furnish
material financial aid

burin the course of the re-examination of the Reserve
Index those individuals falling within the above criteria for
inclusion in Section A should be selected therefrom handled in
accordance with the above instructions and thereafter nominated
for inclusion in Section A of the Reserve Index Appropriate
forms for this purpose will be forwarded all offices in the
immediate future Attached to the form recommending the inclusion
of the individual's name in Section A of the Reserve Index should
be a succinct summary setting forth the basis for your recom
mendation If no further investigation is warranted in Lire ease
at this time or if no report is accompanying the recommendation
a statement to that effect should appear on the page containing
the surri.nct summary

Investigations of individuals listed in Section A of
the Reserve Index are to be brought up to date annually and
they are to be considered for Security Index status or retention
in the Reserve Index As a minimum the previously mentioned
investigative steps will be taken including the submission of
reports in the event additional subversive data is developed
Changes in residence and/or employment should be submitted to
the Bureau on forms to be furnished the field in the immediate
future The administrative handling of the reopening of these
cases should be similar to that in the case of annual reports
in Security Index cases

Section A of the Reserve Index will be maintained in
the field and at the Seat of Government in the same manner as
our Security Index except that this Index will be maintained only
alphabetically

To avoid confusion with the Security Index
however dlatinctise-colored cards and forms used in connection
therewith will be utilized

6/21/60
SACLETTERno 60-30 3
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SECTIOIIB

Section B containing the names of the remaining
individuals included in the Reserve Index will be maintained
in-the field in the same manner_in_ which the Communist Index
is now being maintained

Upon the deletion of a subject's name from the Security
Index based upon the application of the Security Index criteria
it will be necessary to consider whether his name should then be
placed in Section A of the Reserve Index If'his name should so
be included submit an appropriate recomr,endaclon If the facts
do not justify the inclusion of his name in Section A the
canceled Security Index card should be filed in Section B in
accordance with current practice

Standards for Inclusion of Names in the Reserve Index

The standards for inclusion of individual's names in
the Reserve Inde were discussed at the Internal Security
Espionage Conference composed of representatives from certain
field offices and Bureau supervisors and officials held at the
Bureau on Juno 9-10 1960 The Conference recommendedrevision
of our present standards for the inclusion of individual's names
in the Reserve Index to insure that it fully represents a list
of individuals who shculd be considered for investigation and/or
other action following apprehension of our Security Index subjects
The revised standards follow

Membership in a basic revolutionary organization sub
sequent to January 1 1919 together with some indication of
sympathy or association with such an organization or a subversive
front organization subsequent to the reported membership and
no reliable evidence of defection

Investigation has failed to substantiate allegations
of membership in a revolutionary organization within the past
five years coupled with sense evidence or information indicating
activity association or v_rrraa for the nubverhive cause within
the same period u ladle evidence of defection

The individual within the past five years by his as
sociations writings f_.nsncial support or conduct In relation
to and support of subversive organizations or the International
communist movement is in a position to influence ethers at the
time of a national emergency and no reliable evidence of defection

cC-JO
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Leadership or substantial activities in a major
subversive front group over three years ago together with
some evidence of continuing activity association or sympathy
for the subversive cause within three years and no reliable
evidence of defection

Membership in a subversive front organization within
the past three years and no reliable evidence of defection

It is not desired that a wholesale review of closed
security cases be conducted 'in efforts to identify additional
individuals whose names should be included in the Reserve Index
under the revised standards However such names should be
added as the cases come to the attention of Agents handling
security work

Very truly yours

John Edgar Hoover

Director

6/21/60
SACLETTERNO 60-30 5
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EXHIBIT60-5

-taster Warrant of Arrest

WA R R A NT

TOTHEDIRECTOROFTHEFEDERALBUREAUOFINVESTIGATION

In pursuance of authority delegated to the Attorney General of

the United States by Proclamation of the "President of the United

States dated 19 I hereby authorize

and direct you and your duly authorized agents to arrest or to cause

the arrest of the persons whosenamesare set forth on the attached

list and whomI deemdangerous to the public peace and safety of the

United States

These persons are to be detained and confined until further

order

I further authorize and direct you and your duly authorized

agents upon or subsequent to the arrest of any person set forth

on the attached list and without regard to the place where such

arrest maybe made to search any and all premises owned occupied or

controlled by such person as well as any and all premises where

such person is or during the preceding twelve monthsperiod has

been employedor engagedin any regular activity wherein it

ie believed that there maybe found contraband prohibited articles

or other materials in violation of the Proclamation of the President

of the United States dated 19 and as

aet forth in the Regulations issued pursuant thereto and to seize

and hold any such articles whichyou mayfind and makereturn

thereof to the Attorney General

I further authorize and direct that this warrant maybe executed

at any hour of the day or night

By order of the President

Attorney General

Dated

66-0770 76 43
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EXHIBIT60-6

Master Search Warrant

WA R R ANT

TOTHEDIRECTOROFTHEFEDERALBUREAUOFINVESTIGATION

In pursuance of authority delegated to the Attorney General of

the United States by Proclamation of the President of the United

States dated 19 I hereby authorize and

direct you and your duly authorized agents to make immediatesearch

of certain premises located and described on the attached list

wherein it is believed that there maybe found contraband pro

hibited articles or other materials in -violation of the Proclamation

of the President of the United States dated

19 and as set forth in the Regulations issued pursuant thereto

namely firearms weaponsor implementsof war or componentparts

thereof ammunition bombs explosives or material used in the manu

facture of explosives short-wave radio receiving sets 'transmitting sets

signal devices codes or ciphers caneras meansfor promotingbiological

warfare radioactive materials atomic devices or componentparts

thereof propagandamaterial of the enemyor insurgents propaganda

material whichfosters encourages or promotes the policies programs

or objectives of:the enemyor insurgents printing presses mimeograph

machines or other reproducing media on which such propagandaafore

mentionedhas been or is being prepared records including membership

and financial records of organizations or groups that have been declared

subversive or mayhereafter be declared subversive by the Attorney

General cash funds either in currency or coin promissory notes or

checks securities of any nature papers documents writings code

books signal books sketches photographs photograph negatives blue

prints plans maps models instruments appliances graphic repre

sentations papers documents or books on :;hick there maybe invisible

writing relating to or concerning any military naval or air post

No 2a
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camp station or installation or equipmentor of any arms ammunition

implementsof war devices or things used or intendod to be used in the

combatequipmentof the land naval or air forces of the United States

or of any military naval or air post camp station or installation

and any and all files dossiers records documentsor papers of am

kind whichrelate in any ::ay to the identity activities or operations

of any person whois or maybe enga,;edin espionage or sabotage against

the interests of the United States

I further authorize and direct you to seize and hold any such

articles whichyou mayfind and makereturn thereof to the Attorney

General

I further authorize and direct that this warrant maybe execu+

at any hour of the day or night

Dy order of the President

Attorncy Generai
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EXHIBIT60-7

12/17/63
SAC LETTER NO G3-61

(F) SECURITY INDEX - In connection with all security investigations
in the case of individual subjects the essential question for determination
is whether the subject's activities are such as to depict him to be a
potential danger to the national security of the United States in time
of an emergency In the event such a determination is made his name
should be included in the Security Index

The Security Index criteria have been found to afford
practical and workable guidelines in arriving at a conclusion as to
whether a subject represents a potential danger and are sufficiently
elastic so that when applied with the necessary judgment the complex
questions which may arise in connection with these cases can be
resolved

12/17/63
SACLETTER NO 63-61 5
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EXHIBIT60 8  / _

- l

,c;) SECURITY INVESTIGATIONSOF INDIVIDUALS - The emergence
of the new left .movement as a subversive force dedicated to the complete
destruction of the traditional values of our democratic society presents
the Bureau with an unprecedented challenge in the security field
Although the new left has no definable ideology of its own it does
have strong Marxist existentialist nihilist and anarchist overtones
While mere membership in a new left group is not sufficient to establish
that an individual is a potential threat to the internal security of the
United States it must be recognized that many individuals affiliated
with the new left movement do in fact engage in violence or unlawful
activities and their potential dangerousness is clearly demonstrated
by their statements conduct and actions

The Bureau has recently noted that in many instances
security investigations of these individuals are not being initiated
In some cases subjects are not being recommended for inclusion on
the Security Index merely because no membership in a basic revolutionary
organization could be established Since the new left is basically
anarchist many of the leading activists in it are not members of any
basic revolutionary group It should be borne in mind that even if a
subject's membership in a snhversive organization cannot be oroven
his inclusion on the Security Index may often be justified because of
activities which establish his anarchistic tendencies In this regard
you should constantly bear in mind that the public statements the
writings and the leadership activities of subjects of security investi
gations which establish them as anarchists are proper areas of
inquiry Such activity should be actively pursued through investigation
with the ultimate view of including them on the Security index It is
entirely possible therefore that a subject without any organizational
affiliation can qualify for the Security Index by virtue of his public pronounce
ments and activities which establish his rejection of law and order and
reveal him to be a potential threat to the security of the United States

It is equally important to understand that mere dissent and
opposition to Governmental policies pursued in a legal constitutional
manner are not sufficient to warrant inclusion in the Security Index You
are reminded that one of the four criteria in Section 87D ,Manualof
Lnstructions must apply Further in those cases requiring Bureau

4-2-68
SAC LETTER 63-21 5



668

,uthority to initial. investigations your requests must summarize
:-formation available to show the potential threat and not merely
show anti-Vietnam or peace group sentiments without also revealing
advocacy of violence or unlawful action which would justify an
investigation

Very truly yours

John Edgar Hoover

Director

Enclosures for (I3)

4-2-68
SAC LETTER 68-21 G
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EXHIBIT61

10/28/8

1i r iscl

'i'o ::,% Albany

Prot: Director FBI

..:Ov ,I.P.T

The ))ureen h:i noted i nct"r:::ai',g evidence of a
ccet_1;u_:;; ul;:..uC[,een the part of militant individuals and
orgen.;.^.^.tact,^to eepe'"::te t:;c,eeclvras from, lcr:itinete nr,i:c;I
eei:iviti... we) i t 'eie:et n .;from ...;t.i-United Jtetcs violuut
reyeInt'onery p' .'o: Thc:;e aciivi.tiea ere commonlyreferred
to as the Bev f..r'.C-imeeement The term "BowLeft dace not
rofer to a doi'i.n 8e or:;a;;izetion but to a movementwhich is
providing .ideolo'a: or platforms al.terneto to those_ of c: istinl
ee-,4ue,et ee0 "?ii r` ~:u r i'c_voi.ni:iouar.yo:'';alli.'zation'e the
:;o-called "010 L". The ?:e; Left movement i.e e loosely-pound

eel 1,:;;n-oriented movementspcerheeded by the
,.:udunte for a DCaccreti.e ^ociety and includes tha mo"c e: i see

'tnd miliiant anti.-V',rtn^.;: war and :;rtidr t protect u;";. ni.: i.;om
:he militant lc:;dcrahip of these organ!:rations apuon;dctero.ined
0:o confines to etaeo militant de,non':tretion activitics de:;'_Uned

c(,riiiarily to ei'fect cosirontation with authority particularly
c'`',ith i;he Federal Government

Althou:eh the field has conducted or i e"onducti.u;,
investigation of those individuals and organi<.ei..loee there is
a need to compile in a single investigative report a clear-cut
picture o.~ the entire Pro Left movementwhich will identify its
lenders ;ou'"cce of filed: and propaganda outlets and will show
the extent to which the NewLeft movementhas been influenced
by domestic and foreign subversive elements

uo F2Lel_6The ready ai ability of such information'in brief
topical form will enable the field and the Bureau as well to
make a self-analysidiof all facets 9f our investigation of the
Enclosures
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Airtel to SAC Albany cat al
L:OVI=:T

Bay Loft movomontco that we mnYenpond and intonoify oar
invcotigalion of n000 phaoes indicating n need thereof

w']1 also ocroo to alert G000rnmontofficinIs concornior
tho nature not eytont of this ropoot of oubvoroivo activitios
and rill provide a cooprehonsivo :Andy of the whulu movcmcn
from which its doocrousness to the notional security can Ira
nsnesod

In order to obtain this picture a program is being
inotitutod Imediotery to prepare quarterly reports on the
over-all Left novomont throuohoot the United State'
Chicago is being designated offico of origin and seven conies
of all reports ohoold bo onhqittod by each field office. The
iuitiai report which should bo submittud to roach the Soreau
by 12/I/6S rill covrr a0000nipately the poet two yoaro of the
fled Left movement It will Include information heretofore
reported under various tint's and of coerce thorn will continuo
to be a reportiw of this typo of information under various
other title; Aftur ouboiooion of the initial report future
reports will bo uuhattted on a quarterly basis according to
the enclosed schedule

The initial report in this matter and succeeding
reports will be deoigned to procisoly spell out the full extent
of the NowLoft movencot It will separate words and intentions
from actions mere participation from direct influence and the
bona fide activist from the mere "do-gooder. Offices which
have absolutoly no information to report either in the initial
report or tho quarterly reports thereafter will be permitted
to so advice the Bureau by Letter in lieu of a report

The encl000d roport outlino should be followed os to
the numbered and lettered items Whore further breakdowns by
numbers and letters aro practical it will be permissible to
do so Tho synopsis should be prepared for the purpose of
providing a complete monetaryfrom which the strength of the
movement in each field office torritory can be quickly dotermined
and n conclusion drawn by the reader as to the movement's over
all militancy and potential for violonco Makecertain the
synopsis is factual and supported by data in the details

Subfiles hnvo boon opened for each office and for
each topic All conununications and sections of the report
ohould rotor to the oporopolote subfilco which are shown in
the enclosed subfil.o breakdown
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Sco n'r,orandw) C D Drennan to V C Sullivan
dated 10/23/6 captioned as above as prepared by



ENCLOSI)RI)

672

UT'X ;iEnO;ITOnTLINE

To nocoroLoly and clearly ohow the troo not000 of
the NowLoft moromont 61Ln cant:conin tic follonion tonics
most ha fully ni nod roported natorinl contoi7o
infohmotion which nould ho lonicolly ronortoU oodoo none th-o
oao topic hooding but to do co ovoid m.iahctho ooporote :coo:zits
nointolliniblo r000rt .:1I tho raotoriol oodor tho 1i lording
and only refer to the information under the other breokl:own
Do not repeat tho como data under soporoto hendingn Al] offices
are to utilize time following breakdown in preparing quarterly
reporto on the NowLoft movonont Eooh oohfilo coption moot
strrt on P 000eneto nego

NEWLEFT MO'.7':!IE!'IT

A Organizations

(1) Or000;ootiono to be c000rod oro th000 which are
anti-U tod 3totem and whose loaders hove either
enroo . ea oo inplied tho use of civil disehodionce
onnroho unlowful activity and/or violence in
bringing shout tho overthrow of our political and
econ.a::n nanten abandoning our rorol inotitutions
and who have dincloimod loyalty to the United Stites
This would inclodo Ehtudontn for a Democratic Society
and tho more militant anti-Viotnou wnr and antidrnit
protest or anizations

(2) Under con orgonizotion include a pnrogroph coverizp
the following points when organized objective:
l000lity io which active whother port of a national
ornnoinotioo Includo wider each organization
information as to officers and others in position of
influence who havo presont or past subvorsive

',connections.

B Membership (Bureau Silo

(1) Estimated number of members and nympothizors In
preparing estimate: best nvailablo informants and
sources should be usod Explain in cover pages
reason for any substantial increaso or decrease in
momborshin Ttgnron noflylooslY sobmittod Thn nombor
of momhors notionally nua locally ohould be indiontod
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Recruiting activi.tlee I;c_:ull of memocreh p (rive

Iiembern11i.prequiremcni

Finance: (.,uroau ii.1e

I nco and uupond5.turca

Plan: anci result of fund drives

Largo coutributionu from known subversive l;:"oupe

Identity of "angels.

Ilecuipt of funds from foreign nourccn

Communist Influcnco (!1uronu file

Domestic (ties with Conwn;nict Pnrty UrA eed other
ba,ic revolut..ennry groups) Policy concereing
colaiup . t participation in organization's ati.vitics
end use and distribution of communist propaganda

Foreign (!.nclndo ties with foreign rcvolutionery
centers as indicated by travel ahrond contacts with
foroign embassies or other evidence)

Publications (Uurcau file

(1) Officer covering place of publication should describe
publication .'how circulation and principal member
of editorial stuff Au;:iiiary offices need only to
refer to the fact that the publication in circulated
in its territory and describe method ui circulation

(2) DoncripLi0n of New Left publications published abroad
and circulated in the United States

Violenco (i3uroau tile

Acts of violence or plans to commit same idontitics
of leaders and participants

Possession of wonpons and instruments of destruction

Statements advocating use of violence
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G Religion (Bureau file

.(1) folic relntin to approach to religion

(::) Vehc Font atal:cmontr =do ainst religious Lodica
by lcadcra

::ur o t of isovci.tcnt bv religious groups or
individuals

H race relations (bureau file

(1) Show if organization wns involved in racial 'lir:"rb_
antes and any proaceutivc action taken as a result

iiow extont of cooperation with militant rac:.ai groups

I Political Activities (bureau file

Political activities in which New Left loaders are
involved

Eclai.7a relnLln. to position taken on political
mai.tc-r inc)nriiag efforts to in'lucrce public opinion
the electorate and Government bodies

J Ideology (i urca u Pilo

(1) Etitemcnt of leaders attaching United States policies
including civil d.lst,'r anccs affinity for the aims
and rnruo"ea of revolutionary groups and show support
for I.iar::ia:a-Leninism

K Education (Bureau file

(l ) Informati.on rclat ug to material furnished mcaborship
which advocates use of violonco in obtaining objectives

(2) Information relating to education of both new and
exporicnccd members

(3) Courses given together with any educational outlines
and assigned or suggested ronding

L Social Reform (Buroau Lilo

(1) Activities in connection with demonstrntinnq n+'^^r!
^.t social reform Include organization's over-all
policy

3
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Labor Oluronu file

ln ormntion inciuding all activity in tho -labor
field

Public Appenroncoo of Lenders file

(I) lOcn. of Iondor who maro public rn)Poarrloo on
rodio onj tolovloion and oho appears .oforo group:
such a. lo boo church and minority groups

(2) unto and place of such oppoaranco identity of group
sponsoring Rrenkor end succinct summary of oubjoct
matter diucusnud

0 Factionalism (Bureau file

(1) Any unusual disooLos or argumonts between lenders

Security Menoores

(I) Unooual oeourity monoores token by organization to
protect identity of leaders and members

Intornntional Rolations (Bureau file

Information roloting to communication or contact
botwoon :ow Loft organio.ntions in tho United States
and Nov Loft organizations in foreign countries

Idontitioo Hew Left loaders who plan to travel i.n
foreign counLrios including the reason for their travel

10ontitico ol Now Left lenders from foreign countries
ybo travel in the United States including tho purposo
of their travel

(4) NowLeft movement strategy and tactics directed to
,attacks on United States foreign policy and support
of Soviet and satellite foreign policy

Mass Media (Bureau file

Influence of NowLeft on mass media

(2) Indications of support of NowLoft by macs modia

 4  
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EXHIBIT62

Al 87 $1:1UP..IYf111'>:5'il.~"'.'i_

(7)

4 Inni.iduals to bo in ootigated
li is not possiilo to formulate any I:arrl ;.d-f:r t ctaod:res by which the
dings:-ous::nryof in"ividual momhorooo ol'5l iatos of revolut.io:a`j orll.r.
irations m y be autmmr.Li:,a.11.ym000uooei IC uae or maoonrrr volrtiou'ry
orgcniaatio^. funr.tio:r and Lrc:_tsor"pc%ndv:r"iuLyof at i Sitier lure:_c
sound ju];,~.~ccS e l dis;retioo in crrltrat'r., ia;u:L;.noo aryl dan ^rousnuss
of irrdividu:,1 siemens or afiiliatos

Ana general policy inveniif iv the tivitics of any individual falling
within one or snoreof the foil eel r categories wholoss not corr. viShin
one of the restriction.: on invcst.igatious noted under 07D b bolos:
a Membershipin ba:ic rcvolulie cry organizations subsequent to 1-1-49
D lal"ousing line of rccoluliouary nova:.x"nts

AnyIeli:iduo:J oho since tho outbrroh of hoetilitics in Korea
(G-.25-'O) oonti:.ucd to oouoonothe line of one or sore of the
above-rncnttontdrovolution.nry org;:niraLionc or rciciod froupa
thereby definir his or her adherence to policies opposed to
Lost Intertz'tn of the U S
E.^"pouoalm_utionodabove creompoosesa wide variety and rongo
of activities Membershipin one or more of the basic revo
lutionary oryc:'rations is not prcrc,uisite to tic inooituLion
of an investigation of an individual r:ith:in this category
liopeooal o::presr.edby membershipor active particifatioe in
subvcr:ivc front group: (;:hothcr or not cited by tiro I.ttorney
Geucral.) moot t"e cvaluuLcdin cacti core Considor e,,turo and
typo of front organisation co eell as extent of indivir;u:rl's
activitiev on bci.rlf or the front org:ruinrationor in nupport o`
the basic revolution-r orge.rizatio Openinvcoti1rrtio in cooryinstance jr :hish information av_ilable indicates a sut,ject
actively eng;. ed in the :Hair of a subversive front or;;anization in a leador'v.ip soyr;eit:. or by active pxrticipotin:r in
the furtherance of the sine and purpoees of the front organizationDoon! open on iuve:til,ation on sac:"crcnoerchih alone in a front
organization Jr trueabsence of ;rllclj:rtions of .eli":c portici;ration or lcadc:s7rip in the croup Hole::: inform Lion is vails:Le
i ndioati r.g pact nrmhrrship at airy Lick in a basic revolution:,ry
organisation or cuff icic ut other dcrob;story i ofurrrr:rtiorrio &r.orru



677

(5) In ol oot in t t hi s tyo of c000 oorofully consider the nature
oot ocHoifi-o of tho root orgoolootlon 1.'5.1f of tho

Vaut or olhor rovolutionori orgaoinotions throughout
tic c000toy or in a contain ur,"a

c Spoio) Lroiolo: In ooh000,ivomovoloonL
(1 Tnoloio, in tho LonInSchool or in a onSv000ivorovc,oat abnoni
(2) hoo00000 Looining in one of the haste revolutionary organiza

tions mooionod above
'd rtlilory ocovioc

Soroioo in tho LhrohomLinooln hnigodo flombonohipin one of
tie b.oio rovolotloocry or!taniooLloos is not a prorccolsito
to initioting inoostigot'ono in Lhio cofcgory
S000ioo in L%omiliVnry of ;in/ coontry iooln,Io, the
U S ormol fore,...)or th OfTicc of Strategic Sorvicco whonovor
theft 1: an allogoLion 1:hot:tt Lns boon a mr1mborof
one of tbo boric rovoIntionary organ1notions at any time

f Othor vlth rc'.oluLicrn-)
IhO1,ld :,lo ,ho boonuooor onarchlot or rovcluiionary
likoly to solo LhoopT,oriooity Iroocnt-, 1 a notional ottorConoy
to (-Hong.r nohlic :oroty oolfaro ro.borohip or olfiliabion
in hoslo oovolo'iorory or front rrovps is not p olorcloioito
initi-tin,! it rosLigoticns of this typo Use sound judgmentand dis
crotion in this evaluation

lolling ,:ithin '.ho above eoLogoryoro mtmhcrsof lho
When11 13 knonl on b000rmnknoor that *tin ol,!onitotton in activc in
tbo field orfioc tonniloTy a sccnrity-typo .osti;'ation of all
indivIdools oho -lo_r(poriod to Lc (1) fore .arioo on 1(o.loos of
the or (2) active part;cii carrying nut fauaticnl
aoe .1 '.lm: of the orgoninotior :Ion Sni t Jnvostigo
tions should nub bo initiated based on more Sc-nshipclone

Luring tho couroo of :ccurity l0000tigntio individools offiliatcd
with the bu alert for any .rmation indicatin a
 possible violation of tho-Solcotivo Service .b

Thc obovo otondordo foo institutions of inaosLiLationo of in.'ividuols
are not in ho ioLorpootod as all-iocItsive dn2l.pan
indiv{dutl m%yin corroot threat to the inLoroo) Locority or the
nation t'o question mould resolved in the interest of securityand in000tlgation conducted
The caiugoriea specified as a through f above arc to be distinguishedfrom
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EXHIBIT63-1

(G) DEVELOPMENT OF SOURCES IN RACIAL 1',1AT'l'fNtS AMERICAN

LEGIONCONTACT I'ROGRA:.I PLANT INFOIL11ANTPROGRAM- In

our over-all current efforts to increase the quantity and quality Cl co".ora,e
of racial matters the use of the American Lemon Contact :uru 1'l::nt

Informant Programs has been given serious consideration The elfir,ir
utilr.:alion Ot the current Negro streg"',rtlefor civil rights is not re-tri::ed
to those individuals described as subversive because of alliliation wi a
the Communist Party USA or other left groups As an exampie hate

groups such as the Klans are exploiting the tension developed it the
South as the result of the passage of the Civil Rights Act of 1064 Appealing
to prejudice and bigotry the promotion of "white supremacy is he

primary goal or these right extremists witli specific targets incicdi is the
foreign-born Catholics and Jews Bearing in mind our resporaiii iliti s
In this field not only to get evidence and intelligence data but tr be aware
of all related data on preventive measures may be taken you s:ioulu
take the following steps

Where feasible and you consider it to the Bureau's advantage
contacts and informants included in these two programs should oe atialsed
of the Bureau's interest and responsibility in covering activities which
may be considered racial in nature This should be done during the neat
scheduled meeting A prerequisite to initiating this program is a thorough
knowledge of current instructions pertainin to racial flatters sources
and informants particularly those specific instructions concerning acts
of violence The individuals contacted should be math sufficiently
familiar with the Bureau's desires in tins matter so as to avoid the reecipt
of nebulous information Along this line you should take no steps that might
diminish our efforts of gathering intelligence data even though there is no
immediate and apparent Federal violation We have a definite responsibility
of advising appropriate governmental agencies on both a national and iacai
level of information relating to racial incidents Extreme care must be
exercised to insure there is no misunderstanding of the Bureau's position
and goal in the racial field .Of particuiar importance is the insurance that
there is no basis for misinterpretation resulting in a false in peession tint
our action infringes upon the freedoms of speech and asseniiila^:e of a per:;u,ror group To the contrary our concern includes the guarantee of civil right:and equality under 1aiv for all

Enclosure for (A)

2-23-65
SAC LETTER NO 65-6 6

Very truly y
John Edgar Hoover

Director
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EXHIBIT63-2

(C) IN-VES7IGATIONOF UNAFFILIATED WHITE RACIAI EXTREMISTS
RACIAL ?.TATTERS- Under existing instructions investigation of white
extremists is restricted to those individuals who are associated with the
Klan or other white hate-type organizations In view of the recent marked
increase in violent acts throughout the United States on the part of
viduals who arc not affiliated with the Klan other white hair-type
organizations it is necessary to modify existing instructions to broaden
the scope of our investigative responsibilities to include these unaffiliated
individuals

Investigation has established that many of the individuals
involved in these recent acts of violence although not currently members
of the Klan or other white hate-type groups did have precious affiliation
with such groups and still maintain their extremist tendencies

Hereafter investigation must be promptly instituted on these
unaffiliated white racial extremists and their activities closely followed

In conducting these investigations you should be guided by instruc
tions set out in Section 122A Volume IV Manual of Instructions which
apply to investigations of the Klan and white hate-type organizations and
associated individuals Appropriate manual and handbook revisions wilL
be forthcoming

Very truly yours

John Edgar Hoover

Director

11/10/69
SAC LETTER 69-67 3

66-0770 76 44
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EXHIBIT63-3

(B) \IlIIITE MILITANT GROl PS RACIAL MATTERS
(ORGANIZATION) - In view of increasing militancy in tie racial
field neighborhood groups whose members are of the white race
have been springing up throughout the United Status Some of these
groups appear to be militant in nature and some urge the white man to
arm himself as a means of protection against racial violence Some of
these groups are known to sponsor demonstrations against integration
and against the bussing of Negro students to white schools Others

appear to advocate more violent methods of opposition to integration
The appearance of these groups is noted mostly in the white ghetto
areas of the large cities which border on minority group living areas

In order to fulfill our responsibilities in the racial
intelligence field we must be cognizant of the groups and tieii aims
and purposes Upon receipt of information as to the formation or
existence of such a group a preliminary investigation should be
immediately initiated to determine the aims and purposes of the organ
ization its leaders approximate membership as well as any pertinent
background data which will assist in determining the militancy of the
group

From information presently available it appears that
many of these organizations have been founded on principles of fear
rather than hate and as such they cannot be classified as hate groups
Your investigations should therefore be discreet and most circumspect
You should limit your inquiries to a review of Bureau files contacts with
Bureau informants and established sources and the use of public
source information

Upon completion of your investigations a communication
in form suitable for dissemination should be lot-warded to the Bureau
together with a recommendation as to whether additional investigation
is warranted under Section 122Aof lire Manual of Instructions as it
pertains to the investigation of Klan and white hate groups

In addition to the above I wish to point out to you the
possibility of reactions by the Klan white hate groups and residents
of white ghetto areas to the recent wave of racial disorders resulting
from the assassination of Martin Luther King Jr You should remain
alert to this possibility Informant coverage of liie Klan white hate
groups and white ghetto areas must be intensified so dial plans of
retaliation or overt action are known to the Bureau prior to their taking _
place
4-30-68
SAC LETTER 68-25 2
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EXHIBIT63-4

(F) COMMUNISTINFILTRATION OF TILE CONGRESSOF RACIAL
EQUALITY - The Congress of Racial Equality under the leadership
of Floyd McKissick has steadily moved away from a legitimate civil
rights organization in recent months and is assuming a militant black
nationalist posture with some leaders in their public slatemonts
condoning acts of violence as a means of attaining Negro rignts It is
moving toward the exclusion of members of the white race from its
ranks Communist infiltration at this point is negligible Jn view of
the above this organization should be investigated in the future under
the Racial Matters character rather than under the Communist
Infiltration character

You should of course in your continuing investigation
of the Congress of Racial Equality be alert to the participation of
Communist Partv members in the organization or communiA influence
therein However your investigation should be directed toward
developing in detail intelligence information regarding the basic aims
and objectives of the organization its activities and programs on a
current basis and any information indicating that members thereof
advocate violence as a means of attaining their objectives or
participate in actual violence

3/12/68
SAC LETTER 68-1G 6
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EXHIBIT63 5

(13) REPORTPN'GOF PROTEST DEMONSTRATIONS The Bureau
has noted a trend toward incomplete and nonspecific croon lo.gof
disruptive anti-Government demonstrations and protest rallies It
is often necessary to go back to the reporting office for pertinent
details concerning these disorders which results in delayed
dissemination Details which have been negicctcd include failure to
report number of protesters present identities of organizations
and identities of speakers and leading activists

The necessity for full and complete reporting must be
impressed on all personnel handling these 'natters Existing
instructions require that communications reporting such incidents
are to be submitted under a substantive case caption with a brief
accurate description of the event for example Students for a
Democratic Society Demonstration Against ROTC University of
1Viscons'in 4/25/72 Where multiple organizations are involved
the group primarily resoonsihle for oruaniziar the demonstration
shouldbe utilized in the caption

When your original communication concerning a disruptive
demonstration does not contain all pertinent details you should set
forth what steps you are taking to obtain this information Make
certain that you submit recommendations for initiating investigation
of sponsoring organizations if warranted undo criteria set forth
in Section 8713 Manual of Instructions For proper routing of
information at the Bureau continre to use code words "VIDE"M
(VietnamDemonstration) and "STAG (Student Agitation) Persons
arrested should be identified since circumstances of an arrest in
some cases may indicate a propensity for violence In considering
whether a security investigation of an individual is warranted it
shouldbe noted that ,a mere arrest in connection with a demonstration
is insufficient basis in itself for investigation The arrest must be
coupledwith a demonstrated propensity for violence or with
subversive or revolutionary activity on the part of the individual
arrested

The above fuidelines are intended to reiterate and clarify
existing instnuctions and you must insure that in reporting these
matters you adhere to Bureau requirements

5-23-72
.:1 n1OR.ANDjj 1-72 -2
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EXHIBIT63-6

(C) DEMONSTFt_\TIONSPROTESTING UNITED STATES INTERVENTION
IN VIETNAM (VIDEM)- Current Bureau instructions require that all
information developed regarding such demonstrations be sub;nitted to
the Bureau bv teletype for immediate dissemination to the tVhi":eHouse
and other interested Government agencies followed by a letterhead
memorandum for routine dissemination to the intelligence community
In addition certain offices submit quarterly reports concerning
demonstrations which have occurred during the previous tnree months

Continue to submit teletypes as instructed however ef
fective immediately a separate letterhead memorandum regarding each
routine demonstration should be discontinued In the future each office
should transmit to the Bureau by the close of business each Monday a
letterhead memorandum reporting on demonstrations during the past
week

Offices submitting quarterly reports are to discontinue
them In order to facilitate handling at the Seat of Government all
communications reporting on antiwar demonstrations are to be furnished
the Bureau under the VIDEMcaption Discontinue the use of organi
zational captions Continue to include pertinent information concerning
activity in demonstrations in organizational and individual reports where
applicable

During your coverage of demonstrations you should be
particularly alert to violations of various federal laws such as the
Selective Service Act All criminal violations should be reported under
the appropriate caption

The Bureau will issue separate instructions concerning the
coverage of and the reporting on major demonstrations

3/26/68
SAC LETTER 68-20 7
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EXHIBIT63-7

(If) INVESTIGATIONOF THE NEW LEFT - There has been a marked
increase in recent months of bombings and burnings of public buildings
and other act of terrorism which could logically have been perpetrated
by extremist elements of the New Left New Left leaders have constantly
exhorted their followers to abandon their traditional role of "passive
dissent and resort to acts of violence and terrorism as a means of
disrupting the defense effort and opposing established authority Publi
cations of the New Left are replete with articles proposing the bombings
of draft boards and other Government installations and literature con
taining detailed diagrams and instructions for making incen.liary devices
has been widely disseminated among New Left groups

I have been appalled by the reaction of some of our field offices
to some of the acts of violence and terrorism which have occurred such
as those which have recently taken place in certain college towns and in
some instances on college campuses While it is recognized that many
of these acts do not constitute violatiohs of law within the primary
investigative jurisdiction of the Bureau it is essential where the strong
presumption exists that acts of violence have been perpetrated by New
Leftists or other subversive elements under investigation by the Bureau
that every logical effort should be made to resolve through contact with
established sources whether these elements are in fact responsible for
such acts Of course good judgment and extreme caution must be
utilized in this connection so as not to convey the impression to the
public or other investigative agencies that we are assuming jurisdiction
in those instances where there are not facts which would establish FBI
jurisdiction

It cannot be too strongly emphasized that positive results can
be achieved only through the development of adequate high duality informants
who are in a position to obtain detailed information regarding the activities
and future plans of individuals and organizations affiliated with the New
Left movement

When terroristic acts occur which by reason of the target
of the act or by reason of the locale would appear to fit into the objectives
of or could have been motivated by subversive elements particularly
New Leftists I expect an immediate and aggressive response from you

7/23/63
SAC LETTER 68-41 10
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in the form of alerting and directing all logical sources and informants
into activity to determine if subversive groups could have been responsible

I have reminded you time and again that the militancy of the
New Left is escalating daily Unless you recognize this and move in a
more positive manner to identify subversive elements responsible so
that appropriate prosccutive action whether federally or locally
initiated can lie taken this type of activity can be expected to mount
in intensity and to spread to college campuses across the country This
must not be allowed to happen and I am going to hold each Special Agent
in Charge personally responsible to insure that the Bureau's responsi
bilities in this area are completely met and fulfilled

Very truly yours

John Edgar Hoover

Director

7/23/G8
SACLETTER G8-41 11
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EXHIBIT63 8

(13) SECURITYAND EXTREMISTINFORMANTPAYMENTS SUB
MISSIONOF JUSTIFICATION LETTERS - As you are aware all
security and extremist informants receiving compensation from the
Bureau are paid on the basis of the value of information furnished
services rendered and expenses incurred

It is the responsibility of each Special Agent in Charge to
insure all expenditures for information are on a strict c.o.d basis
commensurate with the value of the information furnished In this
regard it has recently been noted that some justification letters do not
contain a complete detailed justification for monies paid to informants
In the future assure that these letters contain a complete detailed
justification in order that FBlHQ can make a reasonable determination
as to whether or not full value is being received for all monies ex
pended for payments to informants

In submitting your justification avoid using generalities
and in each instance set out under the summary w information fur
nished specific details of significant information furnished includ
ing examples In other words in addition to setting forth such infor
mation as the number of meetings attended and/or the number of
individuals reported on you must set forth specific information being
reported by the informant regarding activities of the organization
and/or individual which would warrant the payments recommended

This matter will continue to receive careful attention at
FBIHQand you will be held personally accountable to insure that all
payments are fully justified These instructions should be called to
the attention of all Special Agents in your ollice handling informants
and sources

Clarence M Kelley
Director

6/25/74
MEMORANDUM32-74
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EXHIBIT63-9

(B) INFORMANTSANT)fOIJRCES PAY;:IF.NTS- As you are aware
informants and sources receivin compensation from the gurcau are
reimbursed on the basis of the value of the information reported
services performed and expenses incurred An increasing tendency
has been observed in field submissions to request special payments or
justify regular payments for informants or sources seemingly based
onpersonal needs of the informant as disiinct from the value of infor
mationfurnished and to itimate and related expenses incurred The
personal needs of an informant such as repair of a vehicle illness
or other Ares ink necessity for funds do not meet the basic criteria
of information furnished or related expenses Informant should not
be influenced to believe we will pay for such personal needs The
basic corceot that the informant is selling information of value on a
c.o.d basis much as an independent contractor and is not an
employee must be.adhered to and understood by contacting Agents and
theinformants

This does not however preclude use of imagination and in
novationwhen a source of considerable ootentinl value needs financial
inducement to engage in gathering of inform on under conditions ^ich
will take time to reach fruition and may involve considerable risk and
hardship In such instances you should fully develop the facts and
present them to FBIriQ for approval prior to malting any commitment

This matter will continue to receive careful attention at FI3IIIQ
andyou will he held accountable to insure that payments are for value
received These instructions should be called to the attention of all
Special Agents in your office handling informants and sources

10X10"72
;,lEMORANT)U;,25 72 2
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(D) _SECURITYINFORMANTSANDSOURCES PAYMENTS- As you
are aware all security informants and sources receiving compensation
from the Bureau are paid on the basis of the value of information
furnished services rendered and incurred expenses Recently it has
been noted that some informants and sources have been paid consistently
the same amount each month with no variation in payments during
periods when the informants or sources were less productive which
leads to the illogical implication that information furnished or expenses
incurred or both seldom if ever vary This practice must be
discontinued Your informants and sources must understand they are
independent contractors remunerated on a C.O.D basis and they must
never be led to believe they are recipients of a fixed salary

This matter will continue to receive careful consideration
at the Seat of Government and you will be held accountable to insure
that payments are for value received and no fixed patterns continue to
develop These instructions should be called to the attention of all
Special Agents in your office handling security informants and
sources

6-11-68
SAC LETTER 68-34 2
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EXHIBIT63-11

(D) ACCESSTO RECORDSMAINTAI:tED BY 1_3i".::i:ING i.''liiTITUTIONS
The followinit legal analysis is being provided liuid:nte in respondin
to inquiries concerning FDI access to records Inaintainsd banking
institutions

Bank records generally are available in response to tile anti
of a Grand Jury subpoena or other appropriate order of a court In the
absence of such authority access to records upon request may be apprt
by the courts depending upon the nature of the inrestigal:on and the scup
of the request

Geherally the case decisions have divided ctothe distinctio
between requests for information needed to establish the elements of a
criminal offense or to aid in discharging essenttal governmental
responsibilities and requests having no such basis Access to records
baseci.en a request in the first category has been approved due to the
reasonableness 01 tne oank.s response a ptit-,ts ;lat. ts titsclsase the
information Requests of the latter type may be prompted by an agency
desire simply to monitor the existence and deguee of association of
individuals or groups Such review of bank records for intelligence
gatherine per may be difficult if not impossible to defend against"
claim of First Amendment violation

For example ill Pollard v Roberts 283 F Shop 248
(EDArk 1960) affirmed 3t-Y3--U.S14 a proseeutor conducting an
investigation of allegations of vote buying sought access to the bank
account of the.political group named The account data would have she
not only payments made by drafts upon the account but also the amount
of politieal contrihutions to the account and the identities of the contri
The court enjoMed procittction of the account data except for the record
expenditures and expressed the opinion that the information regarding
upon the account was appropriately ;:.vaiiabie to it e prosecntor lookin^

rote lwyttvt but that the other records of contributors account
protcctod by the First Amendment

The theory et work here is that the ris ht of people to asso
in troups to advocate and promote legitimate political social or ecor
action is protected even tliouuh such action mny be controversial If t
associated groups or their objectives are unpopular revelation of the

G-13-72
MEt.i0itANDUl.j 7;-'72 2
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identities of r entl)ers tray p rcl : ;'.1sfrom those opposed and fear
,ofsuch rcl is.,ls n,at d.acu-u :he lam e..crcise of cunsti.utional
rifltls Therefore !ioeernt:, ee.inn ei:.ch has the effect of impairing
enjoymentof the Fleet r.met;;.o. is c;ninny limited by the courts

The court noted l"':i ciisclos:.:'e of the ban!: ccords identifying
thecontributors to a political ..:c,oiatioe might be approved only where
there is a ;.hov:ing of e ration.: ;:unnect'_uei.atween the disc tosure of such
information and a lei.dimatc g eenment end and that the government
interest is cogent not ~.on;pe!iie Aloraov(:r even v:ten disclosure would
beapproved under sneh concih -,,a a sweeping and indiscriminate disclose
inexcess of the legili a to need would not be approved

A similar result occurred in The Fifth i.v..nnc Peace Parade
CommitIce et al v J Edna 11)over 70 CE:-.'de'ld S1)idY
(1972) (unreported)(;: Kcalp ea.hlh) where the plaintiffs sought an
injunctionprohibiting eecess to account information in the absence of a
clhpoc,,.. The ceart ;!ie d the suit on the ounde that the govern m
interests v.-ere legitimate and ;het the plaintiffs had not shown any basis
fortheir claim that the information obtained from the bank interfered with
theenjoyment of their First Amendment rights

In this case the Fi3f sought information concerning the numb
ofpersons who night be expected to attend protest activities at \;'aslungo
D.C. on November 1.5 15 and 16 1960 i.'urther information was
soughtas to any indication that acts of violence might occur One source
ofsuch information vats the ba:'.c account established 10provide transpor
tation for participants from Now York City The total of the deposits
wouldprovide an indication of the extent of the transportation required ai
therefore the rtupbere of participants that could be expected

Access to bank records in investigations of criminal offense
havingno First Anse d;ucnt implications provides fewer legal diflicultic
Agood e::;male is l;;tip"ciSieier v Croce 431(3F2d 1205 ("6thCir 1059)
cert dc,t 397 U S.--1613 in ,uclt a prosecution for mail and wire frill
arising out of a check lilting scheme was based on a review of bunk recd
The defenda.ncclaimed the recd:"ds were inadmissible because they ;err
private were obtained without the consent of the defendant and were the
product of an unlawful search and seizure The court disagreed and he

G-13-72
?.iEMOl?.AN.DU:.l a-72 -3
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thaLsuch receet'a aru pet 0 of the customer and the customer
h:mno stand i Fifth 'intendment grounds While
therecord: ii:a en c by sti!,peep.a the important principle
tobe observer. is Lhtit ee ::ore not belong to the depositor but to the
bank Therc:ti:e ti.e a'.y,t.ecti of a subpoena access to bank records

-pursuant to ap ti (Hest ie a aeimtnal case would not taint the
evidence

Co lsistea! . .h this ...salt is the decision in Iini;ed Slates v
Gerhart 275 F Supe .l Y. (Si) W Va 1907) in which the court approved
tipspractice o :!,i iit ,saniini:i checks presented to the bank for

payaieutby a n,eable w'-e !led at '.etathem from patroris of his gambling
establishmeet the eo;,.e's dceisien was based on the peinciple that once
thechecks had I eon liiired at the bent they became the property of the
bankand the gambler all legal interest in them

General 2u;seiine may be drawn from the above authorities to
describe the ibilitation en 1BI access and use of the information in bank
records They are ava::,ible principally by subpoena but also by request
wherethe need for than can be demonstrated in a criminal case or in a
security nitd.k,r invoiiieg inhlorLant !overnment interests such as those in
theFifth e1 t :n ^ case :.'vt t! e Foueth or Fifth Amendments but the 1.1rst
Amendment is the wa.t of unlimited review of bank records and the
rights it pro o may he :ouad to be mere important than the government
interest tat! reiiiiesi oven though the request is formaliZect in a
subpoena a:1y impertial judicial analysis of each case wherein such
conflictoccee: will resolve the issue whether disclosure by the bank is
necessary or proper

In the cou.-se of liaison contacts bank representatives may
expressa di!Thrent view in these matters because the banks stand in a
specialrelaLio ::hip With the account holders Some courts have recognized
animplied coatreetual eequireenent on the banks in favor of their depositors
tokeep acco:uu records tree from outside scrutiny until disclosure is
compelledby ceusi order Peterson v Idaho first National Beak 3G7P2d
:34(Idaho lf':(;A (individtetlTleposiforCT.ii:Cif v i;Irst National Beek of
ViemiSpriii-S .;;.2alSo 2d 759 (BisLeictCT;E.001--iiiTaii(T.7ida ii o
;corporate oeaesltor) v Smith 146 A2-4(Court of Chancery New
Jersey 192l) (class ac~ioih depositors protected were all members of the

.1-13-72
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Newark New Jersey Police Department) However it should be noted
that the court in the Fifth Avenue case also dismissed the suit against the
ban from which the recurd inter )ation had been obtaiMA on the grump
that by simply acceding to the FBI rcracst the bank did nothing to intrude
upon the constitutional rights of the plaintiffs

Review of bank records should ba requested on!y when needed
to meet a legitimate investigative objective Where such access is denie
or where established policy of denial makes such request unnecessary
andthe information is still desired advise the Bureau promptly

(Security pages attached)

C-13_72
.:01t ANDJ;J 5-72
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EXHIBIT64 1

00'1
s

Coverage of these 31ach and rew Left esctrclirts st
oso-ts,.'l that an office rill( learn adva-ce of or000rld P.blic

The office responsible for t'sel'a,.le
-cD ts-e s sco -coed-led arst olans for ,  

Z:5:1 1 tcoll.z 0 rc:ar.s tl:ro ca use of a caoccaled recorc:L
ctvioc 3y .s ch

_vice a ver':atia transcript will be roar-fly available
, ,a ao At of accessary cor-roboratin. evidence will be re co!

.::e of a ct,necalod recordior device appears to be .-arra tee
and ca. be rccolplished with E.1] sec rity f.rlis!l t'e rca
with details pertaL.Iiag to the appearance pl s data whic'I it in .11

will be obtained

laclzee also the roco,,--eneation of oLe
!:o recording device is to be tsed tntil,ispecific 3 rea l

thority Las been obtained
.

SEEMOTEPAG 1710
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Letter to SAC Albany
RE USE OF CONCEALEDRECORDINGDEVIL.S

Recording3 obtained are
to be handled a3 evidence and sho id be reviewed in the field
office responsible for oUta.iei ^ sa-ie lefla c:atory re-a:-he
are to be set forth verbatim and other pertinent d::to s n:;;.rued
in a letterhead memorandem A copy of the tape shot id then be
forwarded to the 3 reau

If it is not possible to cover p":blic appearances
through use of a concealed recording device or ot!:cr:r_se
recorded for evidentiary ',se the Duren. is to be advised in
the cover core ni cation tranrn itting the letterhead ncnorerd m
why such action wee 1:ot possible

In those instances where copies of taped record e
of s eec!.es by Mach and New Left estremiete are f reished by
police departments for c aep1c it will be necessary to _milnrly
review the material report ce o tilled aj,ve
and forward a copy to the 3 ten Ad:'itio ally :"rider t!:_se
circtststances yo shoeld advice in the cover coe enication of
the location of the original tore and the identity of the
individeal who can introdece it in a court of law

It is e::pccted that all Agent personnel e: ;aged in
Racial and New Left investigations will be familiar with the
contents of this coumenication

NOTE

See 'memorandumG C Moore to 1,hr U C Sillivandated 5/21/69 captioned as above and prepared by
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EXHIBIT64-2

SAC New''lork

Director PSI

COl . 111J.ST USA
nt '1.0 ( T

7. 1',!.C:ra'T
a;4..G C

Eelll7let 4/11./04 copy to Atlanta which set
out rn analysis and evaluation of the how Office's
aspects ci cauLiened invcstiation alcul with certain
rcco:r:cndati relative to luture activity
in this latter Laic:I was in response Lo a solicitation
raadc of receivin; offices by bulut

Instant coa,w.unication is for the pnrpose or
cc=entin:. upon 3:ei 'for%ro anali.sis.coneernia:5

an 'inelviral concernin:7 wac(i acw Lois
and who is a hey fiLwro in thc racial today

It is stated in referenced Con Sorb letter
it is not believed that

he i.e In coutact with other CP Icaears or that he is
sympstheic to the C2 cause. This r ,ervs Lo be a
conclusion el the ,.Cl nib 0;71ico ,hicil (scs)i Cietate
the coarse of invtsti':at5on rciatin: to hustin es well
as involve,-,:ant in cantioncO natter The Eureau
therefore desires to r:tho a ne::,her ohservations to

,) insure thrt tbere is no de-c!,ohasis of our interest in
Postin and that he is oroncrly evaluated in Ii ;ht of all cc

 I bnovlabont hi Jast rrior to the c mac ,noted sortion of
 al r referenced heo '4or2 lctter it is stat(.6 that there has noL

I
been any 1w,ica;ion that has contacted any Party
'coders cnacot told i Gl ah.ti

:Cvlcu:s io Loa lie could cCier:nzircn :2tauin.
a rally ':o: .tired oy the ! .ar':tney Ca Los lot Y''irst.cr
'.slid to Cu:)a It is eJaeaacw:( stated IA rcitrtnaed
Ea ...or%Letter that in the recent pact in
contact to !.ou :re a.:;.re

..as
is a hi, h

Party faaetionrry and Chalr:lan of tbo hationni
of the Party 'ihc fact t1 IJ\tu .c  tant

Ra-lil 
1 Atlanta

66-0770 76 45
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bettor to rew Ter!
LE CCTI-JIT P:1:TV USA

hTt'';:0
0C.:U1IST lh:L=:OE IN RLOIALEAfllh.S

firure in the Party is undoubtedly 1:sownto end the
fact that weold seek advice is believed to be
of prime

The Porceu does not hrree with the capressed
belief of the due (DrizOffico that in not syn2ethetic
to the Party camesic :halo there nay not be any direct
evidence that is a communist neither is there any
substential evidence 'Unit he is anticommunist helot
pointed cut in :hdnitantiation of tho belief that
is not aympnthutic to the Party causo that he as late
no /9/th.1 in od(is .. ing a meotih'l at HewYerk
said he wes c!r)esed to the co:ruhist sow:t.ICat 'This
the Ilurcon tekes os a self ocrrirr stotcoent on the part
of huotin and it is understandable that lie would make such

state:.h.at without we.,atd to %is trae h..
in 1I ht of the rceent acherse prblicity he received
particulecly in 1:ca York City nesenaners i'or his intolvesent
in the public sehool boycott in ;hawfork City earlier this
year eed subsequent ennosure of his contact with the Soviet
mission to the baited hationn

It is also desired to call seer attention to the
portion of relet Ccelin with your ofilce'o coternge in
connection with ceptioned matter It is stated at the top
of pege 2 of rclet "It io felt that this coverere is
adequato... In light of the extreoc importonce which tho
Lumen has attached to instant matter end the ever increasing
importance of the racial and civil ririlts issues tho
natichhl scene the Thet.eaucannot o0jeee as dequate any
coverogre which does let positively provide to the Lnrenu
100 per cent of the intelligence rointie to the ccaaaamist
influence in recial petters Chviously we ere not sucurin
all the infer;: lion that is pertincat and needs to be secured
Our coverae titer fore is nut deemed as adequate

The nutters Oiacusocd above are beina poiolcIlly brought
to your attention to inr.uro that

therys
icoenToPOs in the

inYostiroLion concernina and qhar,i.!las;ns.!one Is:tugleft unihlrnod in your efforts to incrte overe:;e in this area
both hs to ounlity or quantity the Parottle'es that yen
will rive this metter your closest personal ot,ye4aion to ieeure
the necessary attention is being given by LA,js,'liiL;d supervisel'Y
personnel
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EXHIBIT64-3

G/27/G3
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EXHIBIT64-4

NoYeEb 1770

true U1 ci.c Al

FBLACK-_51UO2bG'.0_UPSON
COLLOEC:dTU:
RACIALN_'.TTE.2A
BODED 12/4/70

YL11dUhAL.1TrEN'_10\

 ~( Increased campusdisorders involving black students
^co~ a definite threat to the Nation's stability and _security

land
indicate need for increase in both quality and altnti LyOf

~~'.11t:lll,epee infer oticn on Black Student Unions (B`iU)and
c'ieil reu7s vouch are terir;a-e.:cr influence and ccn_rc1 by

iolence-prone Black Panther Party (-B?) and cth_r ex re-ist -
he distribution of the 13P re""scaper cn colleee campusesand

speakers of the BFPand other black extremist ,grcups cn cerp"_se_
clearly indicate that cemp"teesare targets of extremists Advance
information on disorders and violence is of prime importance ''e
must target informants and sources to develop information raearr_nb
these groups on a continuing basic to fulfill our rospon_ibilitie_
and to develop such coverage where none exits

v.113 REC-'1Effective ir._oiately all ueUsand similar ortahizetiene
organized to project the demandsof black students which are not
presently under investigation are to be subjects of discreet
preliminary inquiries limited to established sources end care
fully conducted to avoid criticism tc determine the size aims
purposes activities leadership key activists and extremist

1 All Offices

>Nc'/1n 15;0
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Alrtel to ,1C .\lbony et al
BLACKSTUD':.NTG30L'PS0:1COLLEGECANPUCES

interest or influence in these groups Openindividual cases
on officers and key activists in each group to determine back
ground and if their activities warrant active investigation
-Submitresults-of preliminary inquiries in form suitable for
disseminaticn with recom*renaationsregarding active investi
gations of organization its leaders and key activists These
investigations to be conducted in accordance with instructions
in Section 87Dof the Manualof Instructions regarding investi
gations of organizations connected with institutions of learning

Each office submit by airtel to reach Bureau by
12/4/70 a list of BSUsand similar groups by nameand school
which are or will be subjects of preliminary inquiries This
programwill include junior colleges and two-year colleges as
well as four-year colleges In connection with this program
there is a need for increased source coverage and we must
develop network of discreet quality sources in a position
to furnish required information Bear in mind that absence
of information regarding these groups in any area might be
the fault of inadequate source coverage and efforts should be _
undertaken immediately to improve this coverage

A prior inquiry or investigation of a group or individual
is no bar to current inquiries and inquiries should not be post
poned until submission of airtel due 12/4/70 Initiate inquiries
immediately

I cannot overemphasize the importance of expeditious
thorough and discreet handling of these cases The violence
destruction confrontations and disruptions on campusesmake
it mandatory that we utilize to its capacity our intelligence
gathering capabilities

Aboveinstructions supersede instructions in Bureau
letter to all offices 1/31/69 same caption

NOTE See memorandumG C Mooreto Mr C D Brennan dated
11/3/70 captioned "Black Student Groups on College CampusesRacial Matters, prepared by
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EXHIBIT65

Toloon lu/29/70

The Li:ocutivoo Conforcnco

COI:TEEM3E 10/29/70

11-VIEST1CATICIIll T11E PIEL!)

Tnusc in attendance the Conference today included
Ile;ors rohr Oollivoo diohcp Br0000a Callahon Casper
Conrad 1'clt Gale Rosen Tavel Wnitcrs and Beaver

Tho Conforooco oxoninod tho question of whether the
coo:root oltoottoo dc0000do intcosificotioo of cortain security
ty;,o iovootigntl000 In particular reference woo Node to
(i) lifting of the coiotiog ;oorotorioo on roport writing and
iovooti;.otion an Priority XI and Priority Ill Security Index
c0000 (2) Lho intonoificatioo and oxponoico of invootigotloos
of bloo whito ond-ethnic group oxtroNiots and (2) dovolop!-loot

.of no ion c:l contact`: of iodivldoolo who coold ho targeted
Sooict intolllg0000 por00000l (co Theo

itcoo aro being iodividually convidcrcd below

Lifting of exiotiog Noratorlum on r000rt writing and
Cation an Priority II and Priority III Socurity Index cases

There arc opproximotoly 10,690 individual currently
iooXodod in Priority II and Priority Iii of tho Security Index
'Ii l'' :Illy no invootigotico hao hoc coodootod rogording
opp000iNotcly 6,13211of th000 individuolo oi000 tho:iNpooition
of the N000toriuo in Fohroory 10S: Ilony of 1;hco individu;11
have choof;od rooideoco ood/or r:AployNoot ood tholr vhoroabouto
avc ooh000n To folfill cur ourrot roop000ibilitios wo
ohOold Loov when they arc

C1

f:G
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If th r,orator nn In rooci ndcd th ['fold  ill
ho regn lrrd Lo i'capcu cplr,io;c meLciv :1,:'L9 PJ"ly :f II cases
fo,r report:i nlrl :.pproci,iu1I'ly 4,709 Pfl.ority Ill cane Lo
vori ry recidcuco and empio wont Opcnit:d of thene cases
would be cL:,I;f;cred with a proporLiounto nusbor'opened each
month to :insure all are reopened by June 90 1071

Black Scudeut Unionu and similar groups on collegn c%"5pu:es

In 1907 black students hogan forming t'leir own
groups to project their demr cic many of which IniicaLo a
cor:n,itr,,oi,t to binch nnticnal Lcmm Tlresr group :3 autonomous
and have a r Lyon; :Icic;e of cor,mnonpurpose The Black Panther
Party has made open efforts to crl;anLeo the black Student
Unions uai:ionnl1y and other black e:trcrmi:;t );roue have used
these or nnlcatLoan to project thoir cetrcral:,m anal scparatlsm

Caupur dir,orctc."r iinvolving black :itudeums increased
2: per cent in the 1999-70 cc:;oul o r over the previous year
bud cnt r.r thr.t there )r"rott;ia :""cpresent a real poLcntiai for
viol cute and di.u"upticu. In the past We have op_ucd canon on
thoro crrr"nirni.ion Cc~llc':,in cvider::c of black extremist
notiv:in. ,cccvcr in VLu, ci .1".e\"act ins ca o in violence
on co l ii eonnnoco it olt  otcry Slack Student Union
and siui.Pnr group rcrnrdlons of their pant or present
'involveucn in di.sondc"1 should he the subject of a discreet
preliminary inquiry through established courses and informants
to dcternine background stun and pu;.po cn lenders and key
activ).r;tc It in cr til.eticd that thin would cause the field
to open appro;:i.matoly 4,000 cane: involving organizations and
the key activists and loaders connected therewith

Student for a Democratic Society (SDS) and militant New Left
Campus organizations

At alto cod of tho 1999-70 ,cadce:tc year the various
factious of the SOS r'cc).udin,g the Pea timer an faction which has
bacomo Si organization in 'it: own 1-;.glut cocci tcd of a
nu:ctbor.;hip of aplrronir,t:rtely 2,500 1ad ividunls In addition
to no 111)9n1',rnrn 'ihcre are shoat 252 :e fn 11 i ndcpcndcu:t
groups on coil.! re c^'.'pucoa '''0ir:t ~i ^'n n '!.nslt'.i:tt Rowow~".^_c,r.~ hcf
typo n;;,i .trc followers of the i.deolo y It i s ccLi;aated

`r
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lIeit ,.nb:r:;hi.l of i;,;..,c con.* ts oL
about 1,OQJ i.cc;hcr:c AL Laa pre ;cnL ::ir..c arc col ducting
i!rveoti;a i.on of all a t!rcac or,;::u:;ci.on: but have not
in the part initiated :nvc;;i:i.r;ationa of t c Indivic,ual

/members o such orLanl ::t:iooa with the cxcepLion of thin
Ilkoy activists and individuals who arc known to be violence

prone

Major car,;puac across tho nation ;,avo loon completely
disrupted by vi.olcnL dcr:on:>t.c"ati.cn:3 bombin,}s arson: and
other terroristic acts porpctratcd by thcso or auiraL1ons
It is therefore proposed that cases lie opened on all
individuals bolonginr to such orf:aniz:tions to Uotcrninc
whothor they lravo a propensity for violence If this
proposal "c,cro ir.rpic:ien'Locl it is c;ti.iiatcd that i.ho field
would be required to open approxirr,atcly 6,500 new sus

3 CO;n:Il:UEr) OVER
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EXHIBIT66-1

Investigation
DALEOCtotcr2 2 1974lo Director

Tderal
Bureau of

FRC+~a1 "HenryE P^_tcr.sen
)i/ Assistant Attorney General

Criminal Division

SUBJECT'Gather ing
Regarding

( 1/ r

Reference is made to your memorandumto the Attorney
General dated August 6 1974 captioned as above which enclosed
a copy of a teletype crated July 31 1974 from your Baltimore
field office reporting a disturbance at the Glen Burnic Fair
Glen Burnie Maryland July 30-31 1974 You requested guide
lines with regard to gathering and reporting information con
cerning civil disturbances and suggested that your reporting be
limited to those particular situations which are of such a
serious nature that Federal military personnel may be called
upon for assistance

While the Donar.tment recognizes and appreciates that the
FBI expends a significant amount of manpower in gathering and
reporting data on civil disturbances it also feels that the
guideline suggested is not practical If such a criterion were
used it would place the burden on the Bureau of determining
at least initially wrhether military personnel may ultimately
be needed in connection with a particular disorder As you
know that responsibility legally rests with the President not
with the FBI and is based on the advice and information he
receives from the Attorney General One source of such infor
mation wan1d of course be the FBI In only rare and extreme
situations in the country's history have Federal military forces
been rcxluested to put down domestic disorders lore often
National Guard units have been activated by the state-to.seep.lc
matt local ,and state police forces in handling scri.ou disturb
ances

In that regacd the ConeciLoLiou;l-0rt.l,cto IV,+provides
that the Federal government woulqyprotcct t.{e states upon

 uDEC11 '?q
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application of the legislature or the executive against
domestic violence On April 1 1909 the President designated

.the Attorney General as chief civilian officer to coordinate the
Government's response to civil disturbances Without timely
information the President the Attorney General and other
interested Government officials and agencies could not adequately
meet the constitutional responsibility to protect the nation's
security Sec also 10 U.S.C 5331 ct seq While this power
is rarely used it is incumbent upon the Federal government to
remain abreast of potential situations where it may be requested
or invoked

It is our opinion that the FBI as the investigative arm
of the Department should continue to Bathe and report on
significant civil disorders throughout the country so that the
Attorney General and appropriate Government agencies may be
fully informed of all situations which may develop into major
incidents of violence This information should include all
significant incidents of civil unrest and should not be re
stricted to situations where in the judgment of the Bureau
military personnel eventually may be used On the other hand
the FBI should not report every minor local disturbance where
there is no apparent interest to the President the Attorney
General or other Gcr,crnment officials and agencies

The Bureau should continue to report all disturbances
where there are indications that extremist organi.2:ations such as
the Corimunist Party Ku Klux Klan or Black Panther Party are
believed to be involved in efforts to instigate or exploit them
These situations should be reported promptly and fully because
of the great potential for rapid nationwide exploitation As
Deputy Assistant Attorney General Kevin T N roncy testified
before the Conraittec on Internal Security of the House of
Representatives on I'caruary 20:1974 the y.io].c:ut nature of an
o gainization siap'lie'a sn.fici.cal Is is for investigating so that
the Attorney Genera may be apprised of potential civil di.sturb
ances Of course any possible violations of Federal law such
as tnc anti-riot statute 18 U.S.C 52101 should be investigated
fully



705

Regarding coverage of potential disorders the Bureau
through its liaison with local and state police departments and
other la'. enforcement agencies should be aware of disturbances
and patterns of disorder which would be of interest is the
President the Attorney General and other Government officials
and agencies and should make timely reports of significant

.disturbances even when no specific violation of I"'ederal law is

.indicated Such situations would cover but would not be limited

.to cases where (1) extremist groups or individuals are involved
or may attempt to exploit the situation (2) the disorder may
develop into a major disturbance (3) it may become a matter of
national attention (4) the disturbance or disorder is of obvious

;interest to the President Attorney General or the Department
or (5) the incident is of particular interest to the Secret

:Service in fulfilling its protective function You should also
:insure that copies of all such reports are disseminated promptly
to the Department's Tualysi.s and Evaluation Unit in the office

.of the Deputy Attorney General and where appropriate you
'should continue to keep local U.S Attorneys offices advised

The Department recognizes that assessing the need to re
port information regarding civil disturbances requires some
judgment in the initial stages on the part of the Bureau's field
divisions and Pill Qe.adcfuarters and it is urged that whenever
possible the Bureau focus its reporting efforts on those incidents
and patterns of disorders which may fit the above criteria rather
than reporting each and every relatively insignificant incident of
a 'strictly local nature coming to its attention

IliEC
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EXHIBIT66-2

E0 STATESWOVI.E.NMIT

A.fcM.o)-aii(,u2n
Clarence M Oclley
;i rector

-,e!rral Bureau of InvostigaLion
E Pommoroning

;t:;:;/:;tint Atlorncy General
roe Administration
Eodcral Employoc Security Program
::hecuLive .Order 10450

This is in responoo to your momoranda entitled as abbyo
dated Nay 0 1974 and inlgust 19 1074 diroctod to tho Doputy
Attorney General Criminal Divioion and referring to pro
blems which have arison as a result Of tho promgation of
Exccutive Order 11795 which amonds Ehocutive Order 10450 In
view of the involvement of my staff in these mattors I will
undertake to annwor your quostions with the concurrence of the
Criminal Division

As you hnow thio ma tee has been under continuing roview
both in the Tan) Force chaired by a roprosentativo of thio
office of worhing lovol ropr000ntativos of various a,;noios
in the security field and is now under study to a lancer degree
in Project 4?10of the "Domostic Council en Privacy

You ash that the Dn':artment (a) provido spocific instruc
tions to the Buroan to conduct intelligenoo-typo inyestiations
to identify and doter mino rho aotivitios of organizations no
described in thin amond:d Soction 0(a)(5) of d::cnti.'c Order
10450 (b) Turn': guidolincs to be used by the Eurcau in ini
tiating investgationn of individuals under the captionod mat:tor
pursuant to Enocutivo Order 10450 and opocificall., criteria `_o
be utilized in decor m ning whether available information is a
sufficient basis for investigation

Under tio amendment to Section 0(a)(5) of Erecut.ive Order
10450 we now have only two typoo of organioationo (1) Lo=;c
which unlaDillLi --,=aL or poached the coramiooion of acts
of force or violonco to prevent othero from exercising their
rights under the conoLitution or laws of the United States or
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any ;tats (2) 0 which to nc0Y hrow thr GOVCrnmcnt-Of
the United .`;tat..:: or any State or sui.:ciivioion thereof by
unl.atrft:] (L'r:phaoi oddcd)

Of course Lho ]:ry mortis which arc underlined indicate
that the i.n."coL.i:;arion should be initially based on a possible
violation of a iT t aal (s.u:it as the Smith Act) or state statute
Prohibiting unl.;-,:t""l advocacy or the commission of any unlawful
act of fotaa or Ic'l.coca IIo,/aver in order for the Bureau to
detect o:n":ii::nci.:"!s with I-,ot:cntial of the above nature it

..mpost .ot thi I.:.et).n ._".;'.:.gLron proceed co the basis of in
formation i.;ndi.c.. ;` that che organ .i.00Lion may be of dhe.ne,sure
ntcntion,,:.i It :i not epee:a;ary that a crime occur before the
invc:;l.i.,"oi.no .ia .ia:.t.iatcd but only that a reasonable evalcation
of 1hc ac-ei1.ablo or:natioQ suggest that the activities of the
organizati.r:a may all within the proscription of the Order The
most rocr"nt c n of the type of organization that you have
adv.i.Scd is cco;.".i more p:::`valcnt is the small but dedicated
to vio.lcnr:c Sy.," secs Liboration Ilrmy (SL:I) Oroani;:atirn ^c

.canary ai.t within the Order and should he
invesfi.5a c":las
potrn{.'.-tl.i foi
the

. as inter.:;-:lion is available indicating their
knee and of course if possible prior to

their purposes

at is true (h-;ecutl.i";cOrder .11705 eliminated the prior
co;nmunir total . alan faaci s L and subversive characterizations
and dc,fi.t:i irn there was no intention of restriction the
i.n",rc:;tigo i r c r -h organizations their programs call for
acts of foi:"a o, i;,l.cncc or ti:r_ unla:'ful advocacy of tec com
mission c1 acto or Iorce or violence in furtherance of these
programo

It in pest ),a:" b.1c to act 'definite parameters covering the
initiation of .irr:,'-::':igation: of uotcr,;tiai organizations falling
within ti;c Oder 'Oat once Liu investigation roaches a stags that
offers a baoi: fen determining that the activities are legal in
nature Own the i:r:c:ntieation should cease but if the investi
gation su;" :;tr P ctcrm;.netion that the organization is enraged
in illenjal activiti^: or potentially illegal activities it should
continuo

It follows in rns0cr to your second question that individ
uals who "arc active either as munbers of or as affiliates of
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organizations described above shoal( be investigated when
''iformation is received indicating their involvement The
;,ame ynrdsLicb -indicated nbo':c for organisations in deter
mining :whether the invCnti(Jnlion should continue should apply
conccrnincJ individuals and when a dctcrmination can rcacoably
be made that the individuals activities either within tine
organization or as an individual do not appear to be in vio
lation of any law then the investigation should cease
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EXHIBIT67

BLACKSTUDENTGROUPSON COLLEGECAdPUSE:

On October 29 1970 the Executive Conference
approved a program to conduct discreet preliminary inquiries
limited to established sources on Black Student Unions and
similar groups their leaders and key activists to determine
if the activities of these groups and individuals warrant
further active investigation On November 4 1970
instructions were sent to the field to implement this
program The number of campuses involved is about 500
representing approximately 750 black student groups The
officers will represent about 2,500 cases and the key
activists another 250 The potential for new cases in this
program will approximate 3,560 cases This program includes
junior colleges and two-year colleges as well as iuuL-yeac
colleges

DOMESTICINTELLIGENCEDIVISION INSPECTION
1/12/71



FROM The Attorney General

710

EXHIBIT68-1

.f4TCINI-RAL

April 12 1962

FOR The President
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The Attorney General April 12 1962

Director FBI

INCREASEIN THEPRICEOF STEEL

In connection with your rectuest of Anril 11 1962 that
this Bureau interview of Bethlehem
Steel Conp ny and reporters ccueeaninl statement
quoted in the press to the effect that there should not be any
price rise in steel even after the new labor contract goes into
effect on July 1 there is set forth below the result of our
investigation

recalled speaking to Associated
Press Philadelphia Pennsylvania and "The Wall
Street Journal, Philadelphia and possibly a reporter from
Wilmington Delaware after a Bethlehem Steel Companystockholders
meat .ncsin 1711.'ington on Aeai.l 7.0 1962 At the close of the
Moui:inr end spohe to him about eteol prices
Er said that he told than "I don't wish to make a statement
today about prices and I will give you the reason why Wedo not
have additional labor costs over what we have now until July first.
Ito also recalled that he told them "t7o are doing what we can to
hold the line.

Ur advised that he did not make the statement
attributed to him in the April 11 1962 edition of "The NowYork
Times in an article written by Robert Lletz"to the effect that
there sLeeld not be any price rise even after the new labor
contract goes into e_fect on July 1 Br also advised
that no press releases were medo or considered ey Bethlehem Steel
Companyon April 10 1962 and that Lho only release made relating
to this matter was made oa April 11 1962 It stated "Bethlehem
Stool Companyannounces new prices for its rolled stool products
Tho new prices which become effective April 12 represent an
average increase of approximately 3 1/2 per cent.

Robert Betz reporter -?or "The NewYork Times, advised
that he was not present when Br made the consents in
question and that he prepared his column from material furnished
by the Washington Bureau of the Associated Press
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Tho Attorney General

of the Associated Press in Philadoiphia:stated that Ti of "Tho Wilmington Evening Journal,end of "Tho Wall :;trcet Journal, Philadelphiatalked to Mr following the Bethlehem Stool Companystock
holders meeting on April 10 1062 and asked if that company
intended to raise stool prices Mr answered that he
could not comment on that at this timo and stated that tho labor
contract "does not go into offoet until July 1 I'm not going
to e.eplain it You can interpret it any way you want.

Whenquestioned further Mr remarked "We
shouldn't raise prices now Weare facing stiffer competition in
industry and foreign markets What we should bo doing is cutting
prices.

of "The Wall Street Journal in Philadolpl
declined to bo interviewed on this or any other matter in the
absence of a subpoena stating that this was in accordance with
his company's policy

of "The Wilmington Evening Journal recall
that Mr did not make the statement attributed to him in
the article written by Robert Metz He said that in connection
with the prico of stool Mr stated "tie should be trying
to reduce tho price of steel it at all pesuiblo duo to intensive
foreign competition. Whenquestioned spocifi.cally as to whether
Sethlchom Steel Companyintended to increase tho prico of steel
now or in the future Mr stated "Ttvowage increase doesn't
happen till the first of July Therefore we will have to
reserve corunent on prices until then.

public relations counselor Washington
D C. was interviewed concerning the intended press release whicl
wasreportedly cancelled at the last minute advised that
he had no knowledge of any press release other than tho one issued
on April 11 1962 announcing new prices for Bethlehem Steel
Company's rolled stool products He said he had no knowledge
of the withdrawal of any press releases

The results of our investigation were furnished orally
to Assistant Attorney General Ratzenbach by Assistant Director
Courtney A Evans of this Bureau on April 12 1962

1 Tho Deputy Attorney General
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EXHIBIT68 2

/t'-U

Dcac DeLoac.h_calledme this morning to say that his,informa
lion as that Kinghad been advised by Joe Rah that in this
mor ing's meeting youwere not going to let the group discuss
sea ing_ofthe "freedom party delegation but wouldtake the

iative 7'Kingwas last night pondering on whether to re
(-,,fuse to come to the meeting on the grounds of short notice

(Hardlya tenable position in view of the attached telegram of
the dLybefore yesterday)

Another interesting fact is that Bustin called me yesterday to
ask whether he was to attend the meeting I told him that so
far as I knewit was for the leaders only and that his informa
tion of yesterday was tthefi~si I knewabout his intentions to
attec& accompanyUr ,Kiln lie was a little unhappy but I
don't see how under afiycircumstances he could have been
included

Dear4zinformation was that if Kingdid show(and I have no
word either by telephoneor by telegram as of 9:30 this morn
ing indicating that he will not attend) he was instructed to
"speak up to the President

.Ii Flies 3s u 6 V

COP'S
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EXHIBIT68-3

[Retyped by SSC]

To Mr Walter Jenkins

From C D De Loach

August 25 1964

Subject MORNINGSUMMARYOF ACTIVITIES
DEMOCRATICNATIONALCONVENTION
ATLANTICCITY NEWJERSEY
AUGUST25 1964

The following information is a summary of data which
has come to our attention during last night and early this morn
ing August 25 1964

MARTINLUTHERKING

A highly reliable source advised at midnight last
night that Reverend King received a call from [
in New York City King said that he was very encouraged by the
way things were going that there had been no demonstrations by
the Mississippi Freedom Democratic Party (MFDP)and none were
expected from that source

As you were previously advised [.- ] had indicat
ed that he was not planning to come to Atlantic City however
King requested last night that [ ] should come to the Con
vention and [ ] said that he would be down and that he
would arrive in Atlantic City sometime during the morning of
August 25 1964 King then told [ ] that there were enough
minority votes to bring the seating of the MFDPto the floor of
the Convention

At 10:40 a.m. August 25 1964 we weie advised that
] was in Reverend King's suite in Atlantic City

[ ] contacted ( ] of the MFDPat
the GemHotel and [ ] inquired whomReverend King should
talk to this morning [ ] said she thought King
should see Governor Endicott Peabody of Massachusetts Mayor
Robert Wagner of New York City Governor Edmund G (Pat) Brown
of California Mayor Richard Daley of Chicago and Governor
John W King of New Hampshire The purpose of King's seeing
these individuals is to urge them to call the White House
directly and put pressure on the White House in behalf of the
MFDP
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MORNINGSUMMARYOF ACTIVITIES DEMOCRATICNATIONALCONVENTION
ATLANTICCITY NEWJERSEY AUGUST25 1964

At this same time [ ] from Reverend King's
staff spoke to [ ] of the MFDPand told her that
the MFDPdelegates should not think in terms of being a minority
but should regard themselves as the only representatives in
Mississippi [ ] then told [ ] that "Off the record
of course you know we will accept the Green compromise proposed.
This refers to the proposal of Congresswoman Edith Green of
Oregon

A [ ] of the Washington State Delegation
then spoke to [ ] of Reverend King's staff
[ ] apologized to [ ] because she was unable
to get her group to come to the forefront for the MFDP [

] commented that the Johnson Administration is putting
pressure on everybody and that people who were previously friend
ly are getting harder to find

BOARDWALKDEMONSTRATIONS

Approximately 120 demonstrators belonging to the
Congress of Racial Equality (CORE)and the Student Non-Violent
Coordinating Committee (SNCC)spent all night on the boardwalk
in front of Convention Hall This was a silent vigil and there
were no incidents

RALLYSCHEDULEDFORTUESDAYNIGHT AUGUST25 1964
8 P.M. PRICE MEMORIALCHURCHATLANTICCITY N.J

At last night's SNCCand COREvigil outside Convention
Hall handouts were being distributed announcing that a civil
rights rally presenting Dick Gregory and Caleb Peterson would be
held at Price Memorial A.M.E Church 525 Atlantic Avenue at
8 p.m Coverage of this rally has been arranged

PROGRESSIVELABORMOVEMENT

We have been informed by reliable New York sources
that a group of Progressive Labor Movement (PLM)members is
traveling to Atlantic City on Wednesday August 26 1964 Self
admitted Communist Party (CP) member [ ]
is heading this group [ ] was the leader of the stu
dent group which spent this past summer in Cuba defying the
State Department ban
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AFTERNOONSUMMARYOF ACTIVITY DEMOCRATICNATIONALCONVENTION
ATLANTICCITY NEWJERSEY AUGUST25 1964

REVERENDMARTINLUTHERKING

Shortly before 4 p.m this afternoon August 25 1964
[ ) of the California Delegation asked King to meet with
the California delegates at 7 p.m August 25 1964 Previously
King agreed to meet with the New York State delegates at 7:30
p.m tonight

MFDPleaders have asked Reverend King to call Governor
Egan of Alaska and Governor Burns of Hawaii in an attempt to
enlist their support According to the MFDPspokesmen the Negro
Mississippi Party needs these two states plus California and
New York for the roll call tonight

Source ELSUR

SYMPATHETICPICKETING

FBI sources report that COREhas been undertaking picketing
in several cities urging support for the MFDP A group of 25
demonstrators in Chicago for example picketed the Morrison Hotel
urging that the Illinois Delegation support the Negro Mississippi
delegates Similar picketing was conducted by COREin St Louis
yesterday

STUDENTNON-VIOLENTCOORDINATINGCOMMITTEE(SNCC)

At 1 p.m today the FBI office at Jackson Mississippi
reported that eight Mississippi summer workers left Mississippi
today headed for Atlantic City
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MORNINGANDEARLYAFTERNOONSUMMARYOF ACTIVITIES
SUPPLEMENTARYREPORT DEMOCRATICNATIONALCONVENTION
ATLANTICCITY NEWJERSEY AUGUST28 1964

press credentials to get into Convention Hall last night

It was also disclosed that they are going to be
watching to find out whether the staff of the Sergeant-at
Arms will be checking badge numbers with the names printed
on the badges and they are going to be sure that the
gatekeepers are not discriminating against Negroes If
such discrimination takes place they plan to make a strong
protest and demand that Convention officials check every
individual's badge as they enter the hall

Sometime this afternoon [ ] et al
plan to make some sort of public announcement regarding
their intentions but they were vague as to details

Source CONFSOURCE

MARTINLUTHERKING [ ]

Shortly after noon [ ] talked to a man who
was trying to get in touch with Martin Luther King
This man wanted King to talk to MFDPdelegates at the
Union Temple Baptist Church at 1 p.m. this afternoon
Congresswoman Green is supposed to make a talk there and
[ ] and a representative of the National
Council of Churches are scheduled to be present

According to the man who talked to [ ]
the MPDPdelegates are standing on their decision to reject
the findings of the Credentials Committee The delegates
want guidance from King

[ ] promised that Reverend King would be at
this meeting

[ ] then spoke to a representative of the National
Council of Churches and said that according to Hubert
Humphrey if the two delegates and two alternates of the
MFDPwould be seated elsewhere as a group on the
floor In a subsequent conversation [ ] was told that
the MFDPdelegates and alternates would be seated in the
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EXHIBIT68-4

UNITEDSTATESDEPARTMENTOF JUSTICE

FEDERALBUREAUOFINVESTIGATION
W,SSIIINCiONU.C20535

BYLIAISON

Honorable Marvin Watson
Special Assistant to the President
The White House
Washington D C

Dear Mr Watson

Reference is made to the President's request
to me earlier today whileI was at the WhiteHousewith
respect to the telegram he received from the artists
Accordingly attached are memoranda containingthe results
of an FBI name check of HannahArendt and twentyother
individuals mentioned in that telegram

Whenthis letter of transmittal is detached from
its enclosures bearing a security classification this letter can
be declassified

Sincerely yours

Enclosures (18)

LYNDON33AINESJOHNSONL
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July 15 1966

BYLIAISON
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EXHIBIT68-5

UNITEDSPATESDISI'AR'1'AlI:NTOF JUSTICE

FEDERALBUREAUOFINVESTIGATION

WASIIINCTONU.C20535

Honorable Marvin Watson
Special Assistant to the President
The White House
Washington D C

Dear Mr Watson

On July 12 1966 Mr Jake Jacobsen
Legislative Counsel to the President requested name
checks on individuals whose names appeared in the
"Congressional Record as signers of letters to
United States Senator WayneMorse expressing support
for Senator Morse's criticism of United States policy
toward Vietnam

There are enclosed eleven memorandaconcerning
individuals who may be identical with certain of the
individuals whose letters to Senator Morse were printed
in the "Congressional Record of July 11 1966

Based on the identifying information available
our files contain no identifiable pertinent information
concerning the remainder of the individuals whose letters
appeared in that issue of the "Congressional Record.

Sincerely yours

Enclosures 11

COP Y

LYNDON3AINESJOHNSON
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EXHIBIT68 6

UNITEDSTATESDEPAIITMENTOF JUSTICE

FEDERALBUREAUOFINVESTIGATION

WASHINGTOND.CSGS3$

January 31 1975

SULLIVANMEMORANDATO JOHNDEAN
(COVERAGEOF TELEVISIONPRESENTATION

SENATEFOREIGNRELATIONSCOMMITTEE)

Reference is made to my letter of January 30 1975 setting
forth information in the "Sullivanmemoranda. Your attention is specifically
invited to the allegation that on February 19 1966 Marvin Watson called
from the White Houseadvising the President wantedthe FBI to cover Senate
Foreign Relations Committee television presentation with a view toward
determining whether Senator Fullbright and the other Senators were receiving
information from Communists

We are unable to locate a memorandumof the telephone call
referrea to nowever tnere is a memoranaum on recora from Mr William C
Sullivanto Mr Cartha D DeLoachwhich refers to a memorandumfrom
Mr DeLoachto Mr Olsonon a ruary 18 1966 In this memorandum
of Mr Sullivan's dated February 26 1966 he advised that the Senate Foreign
Relations televised presentation of February 18 1966 was monitored He
attaches a memorandum drawing parallels betweenthe statements made by
Senators Fullbright and Morse and statements whichthe Communists have
been making He points out that we have received no indication that any
members of the Communist Party USA or any other subversive groups have
furnished either of the Senators with material whichprompted their statements
Mr Sullivan recommended that this attachment be delivered to Marvin Watson
Mr Hoover stated "No I want letter to Watsontransmitting it.

By letter dated February 24 1966 MarvinWatson was advised
"In io(poag.,--[oyli.: request :s enc.'vsed :i mernolbaciumWhichgets out
the Communist Party line concerning some of the issues raised during the
Senate Foreign Relations Committeehearings on U S policy on Vietnam.

In this memorandumdated February 24 1966 which had
originally teen dated February 21 1966 whichwas the memorandum
accompanyingthe above-described Sullivan to DeLoachmemorandum
parallels are drawn betweenthe television presentation and documented
Communist Pally publications or statements of Communist leaders

Thisdocumentis preparedin responseInyourrequestandisnotfordissemi
nationoutsideyearC+.r,nni;l,.,th a":ri: Iinr".dla ',Writ(p,oecedinpsby
yourCornrlitleeandtierremIca(vra!1.:o1(^ +l;rlvscdtocilia::LhOri<edperson
nclwithouttheexpressapprovalof theb'f:I
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EXHIBIT68 7

UNITEDSTATESGOVERNMENT

Memorandum

The DeputyAttorney General DATEFebruary 3 1975

FROM Director FBI

SUBJECTBACKGROUNDINFORMATIONCONCERNING
DEPARTMENT'SREQUESTFORBODYRECORDER
IN BOBBYBAKERINVESTIGATIONIN 1965

Pursuant to your,request of January 28 1975 for a complete
report on the BobbyBaker investigation the enclosed letterhead
memorandum contains backgroundinformation relative to this matter

Enclosure

Thisdoors^r+lis preparedin responseto .M"rrrgnr.ctandisnotfordissemi
nnfinuor?.:ii yner('nm,ii re f. rr cio limit"vlto offcinlpro(cedingsby
yourCsiniit-ea.althe !el noel;rotbr disclosedtounauthorizedperson
nelwithoutthe expressapprovalof theFBI

BuyU.S SavingsBondsRegularlyonthePayrollSavingsPlan
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EXHIBIT68-8

U.ITED STATESDEPARTMENTO 'JUSTICE

FEDERALBUREAUOFINVESTIGATION

WASBICTOND.CSoSSS

February 3 1975

BACKGROUNDINFORMATIONCONCERNING
DEPARTMENT'SREQUESTFORBODYRECORDER
IN BOBBYBAKERINVESTIGATIONIN 1965

In response to the request made by Deputy Attorney
General Laurence H Silberman for a complete report on the
Bobby Baker investigation in which it was mentioned that the
FBI turned down requests for a body recorder and also for the
contents of a communication from dir Hoover.to President Johnson
regarding this matter the following is submitted

By memorandumdated 3/25/65 Assistant Attorney General
(AAG)Criminal Division requested that the FBI take necessary
steps to place a body recorder on the person of WayneL Bromley
to record the conversations of Bromley with Clifford L Jones and
Bobby Baker This would have necessitated placing a recorder on
the person of Bromley prior to the time he left Washington D C.
as he was being net in Los Angeles by Jones upon his arrival
Bromley a Washington D C. Attorney and close associate of
Baker was cooperating with the FBI and had testified before
the Baker Grand Jury Jones is a former Lieutenant Governor
of the State of Nevada and is an Attorney as well as a member
of one of the corporations which was furnishing cash to Baker
for his assistance

By letter dated 3/26/65 from the Director to Mr Herbert
J Miller AAG he was informed the Department's request for
the use of the body recorder on the person of Bromley was
inadvisable in view of the fact that the maximumsecurity for
the equipment and Bromley's person could not be accomplished as
well as adequate security could not be accomplished at the_hotels

By 1':;tter dated l/T2/67'io the i.onorable Malvin Watson
Special Assistant to the President The White House the President
was advised of the circumstances regarding the request of the
Criminal Division of the Department to place a body recorder on
Bromley and the Bureau's declination to honor this request

Thistloeunrstis preparedin responseto ;lourrequestandisnotfordissemi
nationa.,/ii, '"iu ('a,nii' Its1 r is I'ni~d to officialproceedingsby
yourConlinticcan;!theeurMntmaynutI disclosedtounuutiwrizedpersonnelwithouttheeaqu"c.isapprovalof theFlit
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BACKGROUNDINFORMATIONCONCERNING
DEPARTMENT'SREQUESTFORBODYRECORDER
IN BOBBYBAKERINVESTIGATIONIN 1965

Included in the letter to Mr Watson was the fact
that Acting Attorney General Clark had advised an official of
this Bureau on 12/23/66 that after the FBI's refusal to monitor
the meeting in Los Angeles the Immigration and Naturalization
Service or the Bureau of Narcotics was contacted and that he
was certain it was the Bureau of Narcotics that handled the
monitoring No documentation of this conversation located

A note added 'on page three of the letter dated
1/12/67 sets forth information that the letter was submitted
to "advise the White House as to circumstances under which
this Bureau tape recorded on 3/25/65 two telephone calls
(deemed to be legal by Department) involving Baker but
refused to electronically monitor a meeting in Los Angeles
on 3/26/65 between Baker and two of his associates These
calls and the meeting were referred to in a 1/11/67 news
article in the "Washington Evening Star and undoubtedly
will receive much publicity when results are introduced as
evidence in present trial of Baker.

On 1/17/67 Assistant to the Director Cartha D DeLoach
was called to the White House by Marvin Watson and Watson
referred to the Director's memorandumto the President setting
forth the information that the FBI had refused a request to
utilize a recording device in the Baker case .Watson furnished
information that inasmuch as the Bureau of Narcotics had later
handled this matter for the Department of Justice the President
had demanded a summarymemorandumfrom the Secretary of Treasury
concerning the matter Watson also indicated the President was
quite exercised about the fact the FBI had properly,-,refused only
to have the Treasury honor the request of the Department of Justice

Mr 0anoW staz u tha the 1-resident wa.2:ed a complete
run-down on the following names and that any inquiry should be
made ec discreetly as possible

Narcotics Bureau
Treasury Department

Narcotics Bureau
Former AAG Criminal Division

Narcotics Bureau
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BACKGROUNDINFORATIONCONCERNING
DEPARTMENT'SREQUESTFORBODYRECORDER
IN BOBBYBAKERINVESTIGATIONIN 1965

He also requested that it should be specifically pointed out
whether any of the aforementioned individuals were close to
Bobby Kennedy Mr Watson further stated the President did
not want any record made of this request and wanted the informa
tion furnished to him in blind memorandumform Information Was
prepared in blind memorandumform regarding these individuals
and furnished to the President and with the exception of
former AAGMiller our file review and liaison representatives
did not develop any information indicating any association of
the individuals with Robert F Kennedy
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EXHIBIT68-9

January 12 1O 57

BY

Ronorable rarvin at as
Special Looimtant to the Pzonidon
The White Lour
VuOikgtca D C 20LOO

Pear 1;r Watcan

There in attached for randy reorencc a w '..l
ar1cle.carric:1 in t'ie iiaal c:iti::a the ";.achilk':ton
:..%'cai:.L :.tir, . ahi 11 I;.. iorth t:Jat t!Ao
Goveroent eleetrchically 11ciiterah a rentin :,;t7?aelt
:oort G.-L:nker Wnyaa 1;1c:Clay ai,a C1if;:w7d Jaeri c

Larch23 at tha Bevyrly Vilm:liro Kotol.:.n
Leo Ahre1co Clifornia Taih date in ti'a no'::
article io icce:::reot ho the a:obtinr actally
on i:arch 2G IL.;5 Ti;io article :.1s.: reicr3 to
the moajtorinf 0 tolephoma call preaed
meeting

to a :natter of omc;ible ircr--7 to the
 t::cre are out hlo 1.t.! c::.:thoceB

1.i...i: 1;ar,aa t I a A a
t:.:.T.:::.i.. .;ra::._:. I..c: r.n

I um 1,.:tar
3 hi :Tech r aLd

:: r.ar 1..:

 r.ornu4m ci 1:arch far;:.r
:::%'aal i...ro,.at
... . c. hi y %o

Li romli.y tu oiier tcnlimo:.y
jury be:. 'ii: the Laker alat..cr jeuc! url,odC.n

Bromley to tor: out arrangements Tith Baker for a
meeting later in the week with Jo .:e %a at.kea
:',-r%::.Iey la call him back r-r /
.. pab

 YOT 7AGE 3 --
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'! C-ILnoa

Sr :!:Ilnr n:!vi.:d that !lro-1c7 usl ,'na :.:vic..
1:11

bn-o t.Lo.loo ::17o:nI.I:t:an boe
;:i.l an coaitor7:o and

.".-:ozoea 1..y thio ...7oroaq

Mr ll l an::n1 that this r.7:ccu record thJee
telephone coo7l.baLinn and cnp:oono~ tho vio:l tbnt suob
action would it bo violativa of T.!oral orl:nionl
ntatnte would cot conatltato cnt.racaoht ndoulol not
violate azy o Vac i-ac;h;. of tho.partion
involved

Nrstalotto 1r..7111ler'r ecca to corvoa
[Mete= of fron h.nniton D C. ca :rob S5
1V55 ono to 1:1or and ono to Joa 7mro mon!toroa
tn;7.0 rocordin7 ando T: =ahlto
to tbo rininal Dfvialon Dopartc:ont of Jurtico

CT ror:orna;:hTa datxd !::o:ot S5 =55 Cillor
voluc:::toJ that a pro-ood ootin :...1::'.,.'1) 1ro:71.tov

Joneo to :co hold on tno ovonan o2 :arch 125 at
Loo Anr;nIon be nonitarod and tano rocordor;n of thei
comvornacionn wad adnoo that 1:n:;.h no aoca.:I..obo
IT n0:L=1 0: :=r!'77.''at;) i.:.:.,!ica
to the rcrson of 2ronloy Tho :51 t'o2onod to tozor
c000nd roquont ff'on tba I:apar-act

Actin7 Attornoy GonornlEarsoyClar:1 an
official of thia I;uz:.:au or D:comb23 1':33 ttat u-;:;n
tto F.DZIo roinnll to Llonitcr this ti;.
t! Cur:aA to cithr tho in.oi-.rtion and eatrn7ii::atO
Ccvvico tiro Lu.:oan and.ton !:aad ti_. '.o
rnn certain it ::an ttO Euronu of i:orcotio: th:.t btnolod
tI.w.)tatter

Tim fo7egon in fa yox inlo=ntion A co:o
Og thln lotto Lan not boon furni:;:;ad to no i.c ins Lttornoy
C=oral

C.tilooroly your:3
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NOTE

This is being submitted to advise the White
House as to circumstances under which this Bureau tape
recovc:ed on 3/25/65 two telephone calls (deemed to be
legal by Department) involving Baker but refused to
electronically monitor a meeti:n in Los tigelcs on
3/2G/65 between Baker and two of his associates Those
calls and the meeting were referred to in a 1/11/67
news article in Inc "Washington Evening star nnd undoubtedly
will receive touch publicity when results are introduced as
evidence in present trial of Baker
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:Treasury Department
 1 Narcotics Bureau wawa

3
Jack i1TIler iormer Assistant AG Criminal Division

 nl'aicotics Bureau

BOBBYBAKERcase
Refusal of FBI to honor
Departmental request for
usage of recording device
in Los Angeles
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EXHIBIT68-10

..10-1.
NC".~O
UNITEDSTATESGOVERNMENT

Memorandum

:Narcotics Bureau 1!t-nJAN-251961

-(..L
Department of j'Et''?:Ico

1/17/67

Request for name checks by President

Marvin Watson asked that I come to the White
House at 5:45 p.m. 1/17/67 Upon seeing Watson he
referred to the Director's memorandumto the President
setting forth the fact that the FBI in the Balser casehad refused a request from the Department of Justice
to utilize a recording device in Los Angeles 1Yatson
stated that inasmuch as Narcotics,had later handled
this matter for the Department of Justice the President
had demanded that Secretary Fowler of Treasury give :him
a summary memorandumconcerning this matter --,Watson
stated the President was quite exercised about the _fact
that the FBI had properly refused only to have Treasury
go ahead and honor the request of the Department

Watson while not handing me the memorandum-to
;read did point out several names in the rather lengthy
memorandumthat Secretary Fowler had sent the president
The following names were specifically mentioned

YEN !.1IWatsontold me that the President wanted a complete
rundown on the listed names 'He stated"thesechecks shoutbe madeas discreetly as possible and that we should

JJ^
CONTINUED o ER
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Mr Tolson

specifically point out whether any of these individuals
were close to Bobby Kennedy The President does not
want any regord_made of this request_ He wants the
memoranda in question to be blind memoranda Ife desires
that they be as thorough as possible and wants this done
on an expeditious basis

The Crime Records Division will handle the
coordination of this matter The Liaison Section of
the Domestic Intelligence Division (particularly the
liaison agent assigned to Treasury and Narcotics)
should discreetly ascertain as much information as
possible and furnish such information to Crime Records
so that a complete background memorandumcan be prepared
It may be that we already have considerable information
in Bureau files

The memorandabeing prepared should clearly
reflect that Jack Miller was formerly an Assistant AG
under Bobby Kennedy and is now a law partner of former
Bureau employee Courtney Evans Evans background should
be briefly set forth insofar as his lying defense of
Kennedy is concerned

ACTION 
These memorandawill be prepared on an expeditious

basis and submitted to the Director for consideration



M A
JPo)

lileq'

DATE1-19-0TO

FROM

Mr Wick
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EXHIBIT68 11

Lt: Ti:bSTATESCOVERNMLNT

Mciiioranc/um

suuuECTBOBBYBAKERcase
Refusalof FBIto honor
Departmentalrequest for
usageof recordingdevice
in Los Angeles

RequestFor NameCheckByPresident

BACKGROUND

The President throughhis SpecialAssistant Marvin
Watson has requesteda namecheckconcerningthe followingindividuals
whoapparentlywere involvedin the joint decisionby the Department
andthe NarcoticsBureauto utilizea recordingdevicein the Baker Case

NarcoticsBureau
Treasury Department

NarcoticsBureau
former AssistantAG CriminalDivision Departmentof

Justice
NarcoticsBureau

Accordingto Watson the President hagspecifically
instructedthat he wantsthis matter handledas discreetly as possible
that norecord be madeof his request and that the results shouldshow
whetheranyof the aboveindividualswere close to former Attorney
GeneralRobertF Kennedy

rM
INFORMATIONINBUFILES

,)NN̂R111
All references andmainfiles to the aboveindividuals

havebeenreviewed Attachedare separate blindmemorandaconcerffiTtg
eachof theaboveindividuals It is notedthat withthe asccptionof
Enclosures _rte"(SSIT 1

i 01 `.'yg1z 3

, ;thisdnr+nanrtispreps),: respnnsoto,rorhh+rr..'{{.q{{u~~.'{Stfind
isnotforaisoni

r nu rr,o,,to I's r es0
:TI1C:dj1 ninlIkeco colmoo ,f lavirm an r 1

f
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M A Jones to WickMemo
RE BOBBYBAKERcase

former AssistantAttorneyGeneralHerbert J Miller Jr. our file
reviewandour Liaisonrepresentativewiththe Narcotics Bureau
developedno informationindicating'ssociation of these individuals
withRobertF Kennedy

RECOMMENDATION

Thatthe attachedblindmemorandabe furnishedby
liaisonto the WhiteHousefor the President
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EXHIBIT68 12

I`NITED STATESDEPARTMENTOF JUSTICE

FEDERALBUREAUOFINVESTIGATION

WASHINGTOND.C20535

January 31 1975

SULLIVANtL t1O12ANDATO JOIDIDEAN
(Democratic Convention 1968)

The Sullivan memorandum to John Dean under Part 4
captioned "Re Democratic Convention 1968 contained the
following

"John Criswell National Treasurer Democratic
Party called the FBI and said he had dinner
with I.larvin Watson ?ostmaster General and
Watson had told him of the great services
performed by the FBI during the last
Ueutuutdii~ Cuiivetti.ivtt in Atlantic City
New Jersey He asked if the same services
could be performed at the Democratic
Convention in Chicago Some assistance
was given by the Chicago FBI Office but it
was not at all of the nature and scope of
the services rendered Johnson at Atlantic City.

The files of the Federal Bureau of Investigation
contain a memorandum dated August 22 1968 from C D De Loach
to Ir Tolson captioned "Democratic National Convention
Chicago Illinois. A carbon copy of this memorandumwas
designated for i"ir Sullivan This memorandum states

John Clswe, Nac.onal Treasurer
Democratic (arty called this afternoon to
indicate that he had had dinner with Marvin
Watson the Postmaster General last night
and Watson had informed him of the great
service performed by the FBI during the
last Democratic Convention in Atlantic City
New Jersey Criswell wanted to know if the same

Thisdocumentis preparedin responseto ?lourrequestandis notfor dissemi
nationoalsideyourCnnimil/rr Ic n i+ I"miti to afr,ial proceedingsby
yourCommitteeand thec"cIMntmaynot trr dis:loscdto unauthorizedper:.ounel withoutthe expressapprovalof the li/I
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Sullivan i'ietaoranda to John Dean

services could be performed this time
in Chicago He also asked if I could
personally go out and take charge as
was the case in Atlantic City

I told Criswell that Bill Connell
Executive Assistant to the Vice President
had already called regarding this matter
and had personally discussed the entire
matter with the Director I stated the
Director had made comolete arrangements
to have a topflight group of experienced
agents under the supervision of the
Special Agent in Charge of the Chicago
Office handle this assignment I told
Criswell I felt certain these men would
do an excellent job and the Vice President's
office would be kept fully advised at all
times of need-to-know information

Criswell expressed appreciation
and stated he did not know Connell had
already made the request in question.

By memorandum from C O De Loach to Mr Tolson
dated August 7 1968 captioned "Democratic National Convention
Chicago Illinois 8/26/68 with a copy to i"ir Sullivan
Mr De Loach advised "Bill Connell Executive Assistant to the
Vice President attempted to telephonically contact the
Director on August 7 1968 He was advised that the
Director was in a travel status
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Sullivan Memoranda to John Dean

According to this memorandum Mr Connell told
Mr De Loach that the President had some time ago advised
the Vice President that the FBI had sent a "special team
to Atlantic City during the last Democratic National
Convention The President allegedly told the Vice 'resident
that the FBI had been of great service to him and he had
been given considerable information on a timely basis
throughout the entire convention

Mr Connell stated according to the memorandum
that while hp aPRLrpd to discuss this with the Director
the Vice President hoped the Director would"extend to him
the same service during the forthcoming Democratic National
Convention in Chicago

The memorandum further states that Mr Connell
was told that while he desired to discuss this matter
with the Director he should know that our Chicago Office
is very well prepared to gather intelligence and pass such
intelligence onto appropriate authorities during the
convention Mr Connell stated he presumed this to be
true however he would call again next week and mention
this matter to the Director A handwritten notation by
Mr Hoover at the end of this memorandum stated "I talked
to Connell -_lso I talked to SAC and issued
appropriate instructions. Signed "H.

A memorandum prepared by Mr Hoover for Mr Tolson
Mr De Loach Mr Bishop and Mr Sullivan dated August 15
1968 reflects that at 10:09 a".m Mr Hoover talked to
Mr William Connell Executive Assistant to the Vice President
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Sullivan Memoranda to John Dean

Mr Hoover set forth the following information regarding
this conversation

"Mr William Connell Executive
Assistant to the Vice President returned
my call I told him I was out of town
when he called last week and I wanted
to return his call

Mr Connell thanked me for
calling and stated what he had called
about was that he had talked to the
Vice President about the team I sent
into the convention area in 1964 that
was so helpful He stated he was hoping
perhaps I might be able to do the same
thing for the Vice President out in
Chicago and have my men directly in
contact with him (Connell)

I advised Mr Connell that
I had already initiated that and that
he will be supplied by Soecial 'vent
in Charce it
t t an) t.ind o_iassIbzanct' e wZe s
to just let Fir Johnson know and he
will take care of it

Mr Connell thanked me and
said he will tell the Vice :resident.
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Sullivan Memoranda to John Dean

This memorandum also reflects that at 10:13 a.m
Mr Hoover talked to SAC in Chicago Mr Hoover
likewise set forth the results of this conversation

"I called SAC in
Chicago and told him I had just talked to
Lire William Connell Executive Assistant
to the Vice ''resident and what he wanted
to have done was an operation similar to
what we did down at Atlantic City at the
! !t Dcrccr tic C ;u--t.. . .~~..m ...,rai .ir Johnson
was running for renomination I explained
that he would like to have us furnish the
same type of information and be in contact
with him Connell on any so-called
intelligence we might get I stated I
told Mr Connell we would do that and
that SAC would be in contact with
Connell and anything he wanted to let

know I told Mr Johnson we are
not going to get into anything political
but anything of extreme action or violence
contemplated we want to let Connellrknow

eV
in touch with Mr Corinell promptly and
set it up I told iir that Connell
is presently in New York iir Johnson said
he would probably be out in Chicago early
next week.

Although prior information received indicated that
the Democrbtic National Convention to convene at Chicago
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Sullivan Memoranda to John Dean

Illinois on August 26 1968 offered the most potential*
platform for disruptive activities by racial and Viet Nam
dissident groups similar instructions were set forth for
both the niami Office in connection with the Republican
National Convention (August 5-10 1968) and for the
Chicago Office in connection with the Democratic National
Convention (convening August 26 1968)

These instructions stated that we had the
responsibility to keep high government officials and
other inteie.::c. a6zzcics advised of dc:c1cpm_ nt_c in
regard to disruptive activities and that it would be
necessary for each field division of the Federal Bureau
of Investigation to be acutely and continually aware of
developing situations All offices were instructed
to take the necessary steps to insure that we were
receiving all information available concerning plans
being made to carryon protest demonstrations at the
conventions or to otherwise carry on any disruptive
activities

The Federal Bureau of Investigation took the
initiative in planning for possible disruptions and
violence durin"r the two national conventions ;In addition
t'o our =cspon ibility to furnishlinfo_r ation to local
law enforcement agencies and Secret Service we also
had the responsibility to develop violations of Federal
laws within our jurisdiction that might occur during
the conventions Such laws as the Federal Anti-Riot Laws
Assaulting a Federal Officer statute Kidnapping statute
bombing and gun law violations Presidential and Congressional
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Sullivan Memoranda to John Dean

Assassination statute and Crime Aboard Aircraft violations
all come within the investigative responsibility of the
Federal Bureau of Investigation

We closely coordinated our activities regarding
the conventions with Federal and state agencies which
had the responsibility to keep the peace and protect
life and property ?;e disseminated all pertinent
information developed through on-the-scene observations
pertinent investigation and through informant coverage
to the appropriate agencies having an interest in the
conventions

No technical surveillances were utilized in
connection with the Republican Convention in Miami Beach
in 1968 or the Democratic Convention in Chicago in 1968

In connection with the Chicago Convention
because of the advanced information developed that
disruptive activities were to occur,"we requested
Attorney General authority for the installation of
technical coverage of the Mobilization Office for
Demonstrations at the Democratic National Convention
This authorization was requested by our memorandum to
the Attorney General at d i:ar,^ 19fjd~,. y.-.:f>mor~,nr~;un
March 12 1968 Attorney General Ramsey Clark declined
authorization for this requested installation By
memorandum for the Attorney General dated March 22
March 24 and June 7 1968 we renewed our previous
request however we received no reply The net result
was that we did not have technical coverage in connection
with either the Democratic or Republican Conventions
in 1968
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Sullidan Nemoranda to John Dean

In his I"Iarch 12 1968 memorandum declining
authority for a telephonic surveillance in connection
with the anticipated demonstrations iir Clark stated "other
investigative activities should be undertaken to provide
intelligence necessary to the protection of the national
interest.

Although extensive plans were made and instructions
issued from the Federal Bureau of Investigation Headquarters
in Washington regarding our coverage of these 1968 conventions
there were ILVLCUCLal Dureau-of`InveacigaLiun officials on
the scene at either the Republican or Democratic Convention

In connection with the 1972 Republican and Democratic
National Conventions held in Miami Beach Florida similar
coverage was instituted and carried out by the Miami Office
of the Federal Bureau of Investigation There likewise was
no technical coverage utilized in connection with either the
Republican or Democratic National Conventions in Miami Beach
in 1972

No Federal Bureau of Investigation Headquarters
officials were on the scene at either of these. Conventions
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EXHIBIT68-13

'UNITEDSKATESCOVER.,lENT

Memorandum

Mr W C Sullivan DATE3/8/68

C D Brenna

DEMONSTRATIONSATTHE
NATIONALDEMOCRATIC
CONVENTIONAUGUST1968

PURPOSE
To recommend the installation of a telephone

surveillance

on the National Mobilization Office for
Demonstrations at the`?:aTional-democratic-Convention Roo?a15--407 South Dearborn Stree.ti_Chicago,._Illinois

BACKGROUND
Information has been received that

has rented an office at Room31,,_407 South Dearborn Street
Chicago,_I_llinois which is to be known as the National

~1o"6iliation Office for Demonstrations at the National
Democratic Convc..t_ca is a former leader of `he
Students for a Democratic Society and is the of the

Chicago Illinois which is a

According to our informants the office is to be used
in connection with activities aimed at influencing the course
.Q,the National :Democratic_Conventi_on_to_ be held in Chicago
in August 1968 The office is to be occupied with a full-time
staff until the conclusion of the Convention

A news release to "The NewYork Times dated 12/10/67
quoted Dr Benjamin Spock the antiwar critic and James
Rollins as saying they were prepared to mobilize the largest
demonstration this couniry has ever seen to descend upon the
Convention as a reminder to the delegates of the strength of

-the opposition Rollins is a militant member of the Congress
of Racial Equality and in 1967 stated,:tie have got to stop
b eaking.into liquor stores and start breaking into gun stores
to arm ourselves to stop these v1A-Le_hunkie_cops_,rom_killing us.

Enclosurova,,r~ ,3-~~~u3

y
REC29

CONTINUEDOVER
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OemorandumC.D Brennan to W.C Sullivan
RE DEMONSTRATIONSATTHENATIONALDEMOCRATICCONVENTION

member of the National_Committee
CommunistParty USA has been appointed bye_ _ the
Party's( to coordin.te activity between the
Communist Party USA and the new left He is to assist in
setting up a coordinating office to be financed in part by the
Party and to recruit full-time personnel to man it

Otl ,mepps including the Mississippi Freedom
Democratic Party the National Mobilization Committee to End
the War in Vietnam students for a Democratic Society Student
Mobilization Committee and the National Conference for New
Politics all of which are intensely anti-administration
have indicated that they intend to participate in demonstrations
at the Convention

CURRENTDEVELOPMENTS
During the period 2/10-11/68 additional meetings

between peace and civil rights militants were held in Chicago
for the purpose of discussing their activities at the Convention
TbS group which ;ncltded a leader of the
National Conference for NewPolitics
and all members of the National Committee
Communist Party 0SA decided to hold a planning convention on

_3/_3/ ./68 Thesemeeting wereheld at the office at
Chicago Illinois

OBSERVATIONS
From information received it is apparent that the

'office at 407 South Dearborn Street is developing into a focal
point of activity surrounding demonstrations at the Convention
Our informant coverage of these organizations gives us long
range information on their plans to fully di$gbar.^.._aur
r esponsibil.i,..ics we must be in a position to._h;;vr day,=;q_day
and hour_-bv-hour coverage of those elements which,,can be
expected to attempt to disrupt the Convention A telephone
AUrYeUJ,ance of this newly-opened office will enhance our
Coverage and enable us to furnish the appropriate Government
officials with the plans of those groups which would try to
embarrass or even inflict bodily harm on the President or other
high Government officials We are submitting a request to the
Attorney General for technical coverage on this office

-RECOMMENDATION
That the attached memorandumfqr the Attorney

General be approved and sent
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EXHIBIT68-14

March 11 1968

MESiORANDUSIFORTIlEATTORNEYGENERAL

RE DE,IONSTRATIONSATTHENATIONAL
DEMOCRATICCONVENTIONAUGUST1968

Anoffice knownas the National Mobilization
Office for Demonstrations at the National Democratic
Convention has been established at Room315 407 South
Dearborn Street Chicago Illinois.

This office was rented by who
is a former leader of the Students for a Democratic Society
and is the of the
Chicago Illinois This latter organization was formed in
19GGto

This office is to be occupied with a full-time
staff until the conclusion of the Convention

During the period February 1963 a series
of meetings were held at this office between peace and
civil rights militants whodiscussed plans for demonstrating
and disrupting the Convention Included in the participants
were and all
membersof the National Committee CommunistParty USA

has been appointed by the
of the CommunistParty USA to coordinate

'the activity between the CommunistParty US. and other new
left forces He has been active in setting up the office
on South Dearborn Street The CommunistParty USA has

 agreed-to partially subsidize this office VREC107) ~

(14)
iJ

1_ TCLCTYPCUh
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A surveillance of this nature would greatly
enhance our coverage of those groups mhich join in the

'demonstrations at tho Convention and could possibly
forc-r.aro of ttoir fot000 r.otitity that may to dotri = =al

-Date
NOTE

See memorandumC.D Brennan to W.C Sullivan dated
'218/68 captioned as above as prepared by

86-0770 76 48
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It is apparent that this office is doveloping
into a focal point of activity surrounding demonstrations
at the Convention It aonoars that most of those
organizations which will be activoly engaged in
demonstrating during the period that the Convention is
in session will use this space to plan and coordinate
their activity

A telephone surveillance on this offico would
'.:provide extremely valuable information regarding the plans

of these groups to disrupt the National Democratic Convention
It would also furnish advance notice of any possible activity
by these groups which would endanger the safety of tho

...President or other Governmentofficials while in Chicago

,to the Govarament's interests

I recommend therefore the installation of a
.telephone surveillance on the Rational Nobilisotion Office
-'for Domonstrations at the National Democratic Convention

Room315 :07 South Dearborn Street Chicago Illinois or
manyother address to which this office maycove in tho future

,.:.
Very truly yours

1,
:John Edgar Hoover

Director

Approved

'HOTECOTINUEDPAGE3
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UEMORA1DU:dFORTHEATTORNEYGENERAL

. NOTECONTINULO

This memorandumrecommendsthe institution of a
.telephone surveillance in accordance with current policy

-:,'whichrequires approval by the Attorney General for the
,installation and continuation of all technical surveillances
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C D Brenna
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EXHIBIT68 15

.UNITEDSTATESGOV'EI.TENT

Memorandum

Mr W C Sullivan DATE3/21/68

JEcT DEMONSTRATIONSATTHIENATIONAL
DEMOCRATICCONVENTIONAUGUST1968

PURPOSE:
To recommendthe resubmission of a request to

the Attorney General for the installation of a telephone
surveillance on the N&t_.oxa1Mobilization Office for
Demonstrations at the National Democratic Convention
Room315 407 South Dearborn Street Chicago Illinois

BACKGROUND
By memorandumto the Attorney General dated 3/11/68,_

we requested authority to install a telephone surveillance at
the above-mentioned location which was recently opened to
_rt"e ^ ..f 'nat_icn for various ne left civil as a _ _ ^ ..,t 
~rights and subversive groups planning to stage massive
demonstrations in Chicago during the National Democratic
Convention By letter dated 3/12/63 the Attorney General

'declined to authorize this installation on the basis that
there has not been an adequate demonstration of a direct" threat to the national interest The Attorney General
indicated that other investigative activities should be

.undertaken to provide intelligence necessary to the protection
of the national interest

OBSERVATIONS
Wedo not concur with the Attorney General's state-1ment that there has not been an adequate demonstration of a

direct threat to the national security Various ,neti leftcivil rights and subversive organizations have Publicly
apnouncedplats to converge on the National Democratic

 idomclIqlrations :;.cI17-'57:en-toxt
Convention ii C5iSago duringAugust_and stage massive

nor is being

6 MAR271968
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MemorandumC.D r-Innan to H.C Sullivan
'RE DEMONSTRATIU..SATTHENATIONAL

DEMOCRATICCONVENTIONAUGUST1968

geA_0 as saying that demonstrations will begin in Chicago
at,_the_end of May,and-that so manyantiwar demonstrators
will be put on the streets that_ the Governmentwill be

.forced to bring the %myin

Organizations planning to participate in these
demonstrations include the Students for a Democratic Society
the National Mobilization Committeeto End the liar in Vietnam
the Student '.tobiliza'tion Committee and the CommunistParty
USA AU n these orzioizaJions have participated in prior
violent demonstrations such as the October 21-22 1967
MarchOn Washington v:hich culmina_t:Win a nhvsical assault

thePent,.gpn which had to be repelled by Federal troops
There appears to be ample evidence that these demonstrations
will represent a substantial threat to the national security

ACTIONTAKEN
Ye have prepared a memorandumfor the Attorney

General in accordance with the above-mentioned observations
and are resubmitting our reoucst for authority to install
a;telephone surveillance-at the office-of the National
Mobilization Office for Demonstrations at the National
Democratic Convention

RECOMMENDATION
That the attached memorandumto the Attorney

General be approved



SEE trE PAGE2
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EXHIBIT68-16

MEMORANDUMFORTHEATTORNEYGENERAL

RE DEMONSTRATIONSATTHE-NATIONAL
DEMOCRATICCONTENTIONAUGUST19GS

Reference is made to your memorandumdated
!larch 12 1036 in which you declined authorization of
a requested telephone surveillance on the national
Mobilization Office for Demonstrations at the National
Democratic Convention Room315 407 South Dearborn Street
Chicago Illinois because there has not been an adequate
demonstration of a direct threat to the national security

Information developed to date by this Bureau
indicates that a massive effort is being made by various
net left greens r.i-il rights organizations and subversive
organizations to mobilize from 200,000 to 500,000
demonstrators who will converge on the National Democratic
Convention in Chicago in August 1063 with the objective
of disrupting the Convention and forcing the Government to
utilize Federal troops to contain the demonstrators For
example the "Washington Post issue of March 20 1966
quoted Negro entertainer Dick Gregory as saying that so
many antiwar demonstrators will be put on the streets of
Chicago before the Convention that "the Government will be
forced to bring the Army in. Gregory indicated that
anti-Convention marches will begin at the end of May on a
12-hour basis and will later be conducted on a 24-hour basis

Organizations planning to participate in these
demonstrations include the Students for a Democratic
Society the National Mobilization Committee to End the
War in Vietnam the Student Mobilization Committee and
the Communist Party USA All of these organizations have
participated in prior antiwar demonstrations which resulted
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in violence such ns the October 21-22 1967 March On
Washington which culninatcd in a physical assault on the
pentagon by wevoral hundred dc:^onatratorn who wore
finally repelled by Fodoral troops

While every effort is being made to establish
.the covorao necessary to fulfill our responsibilities to
.keep the intelligence community advised regarding the

plans of these organizations it is apparent that a
telephone surveillance at the above-mentioned location

"-.would provide information regarding the plane and activities
,of the key organizers of these demonstrations which cannot
.be obtained from any other source

Accordingly I again recommend the installation
of a telephone surveillance on the national Mobilization

'Office for Demonstrations at the National Democratic
Convention goon 310 407 South Dearborn Street Chicago
Illinois or any other address to which this ofiicu ma
move in tho future

This memorandumrecommends the institution of a
-telephone surveillance in accoruance with current policy
which requires approval by the Attorney General for the
installation and continuation of all technical surveillances

VOTE
See memorandumC.D Bre nan to W.C Sullivan

`.-dated 3/21/63 captioned as above a prepared by
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EXHIBIT68-17

!DilIORANDU'4FORTHEATTORNEYGENERAL

RR DE1.ICNSTRATIONSATTILENATIONAL
DEMOCRATICCONYT.NTIOLAUGUST1963

Reference is made to mymemorandumdated
!larch 22 1908 captioned as above requesting authority
to institute telephone surveillance coverage on the
National '_'obilization Office for Demonstrations at the
National Democratic Convention Room315 407 South
Dearborn Street Chicago Illinois

In order that this Bureau may fulfill its
responsibilities in this important area of our work
It is requestea tnat you advise of your deeieioe i a
matter as promptly as possible

Very truly yours

CWT:jav (14)
NOTE~

0 By memorandumto the Attorney General dated 3/11/63authority was requested to install a technical surveillance at
the National mobilization Office for Demonstrations at the
National Decocratic Convention in Chicago Illinois cihich was
recently opened to serve as a point of coordination for various
groups planning to stage massive demonstrations and engage in
disruptive activities at the National Democratic Convention ib
August 1233 This request was denied by the'.ttoraev General
on 3/12/03 on'the grounds that there had not ...wenan adequate
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MEMORANDUMFORTHEATTORNEYGENERAL

NOTECO::Tl::Ur:1)

demonstration of a direct threat to the national interest
".The request was resubmitted on 3/22/63 at which time it
...was pointed out that militant civil rights and antiwar

leaders had publicly announced plans to disrupt the
National Democratic Convention and force the Governmentto
use Federal troops To date the Attorney General has rot
responded to this request
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EXHIBIT68-18

;UNITE[srxrES GOVERN.NT

MMlernorandum

Mr W C Sullivan DATE6/6/68

t C D Brenna

!.CrDEMONSTRATIONSATTHENATIONAL
-DEMOCRATICCONVENTIONAUGUST1968

PURPOSE

To recommendthat a follow-up memorandumbe
sent to the Attorney General in regard to a request
submitted on 3/22/68 for approval of a telephone surveil
lance on the National Mobilization Office for Demonstrations
at the National Democratic Convention

BACKGROUND
f

Cy memorandumto the Attorney General
3/11/68 authority was -requested to instala technical
surveillance at the National Mobilization Office for
Demonstrations at the National Democratic Convention in
Chicago Illinois which was recently opened to serve as
a point of coordination for various groups planning to stage
massive demonstrations and engage in disruptive activities
at the National Democratic Convention in August 1968 This
request was denied by the Attorney General on 3/12/3 on the

'grounds that there had not been an adequate demonstration of
a direct threat to the national interest The request was
resubmitted 3/22L63_at which time it was pointed out that

-militant civil rights and antiwar leaders had publicly
announced plans to disrupt the National DemocraticConventignand force the Governmentto use Federal troops On-s/24168 a
follow-up memorandumwas sent to the Attorney General requesting
a decision in this case and since then three general communi
cations have.been.sent to the Attorney General regarding this A
and-other cases requesting authorization for electronic surveil

_ lances To date the Attorney General has not responded._
Enclosure-d-2--c 6 /e' 6g

V
/ .CONTIUED OVER

6 JUN12 1968
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MemorandumC.D Brennan to W.C Sullivan
RE DEMONSTRATIONSATTf!ENATIONAL

DEMOCRATICCONVENTIONAUGUST1968

OBSERVATIONS

The assassinations of Martin Luther King Jr.
and Robert F Kennedyserve to illustrate the ugly atmosphere
of discontent which pervades the Americanpolitical scene
today It is reasonable to expect that the extremist
elements planning to disrupt the Democratic National
Convention may resort to violent acts to draw attention to
their causes and achieve their objectives at the Convention

Weare making every effort to develop adequate
informant coverage to enable us to keep the intelligence
communityadvised of the day-to-day plans and activities of
the leaders of the dissident groups planning to disrupt the
Convention Wecannot hope to fulfill our responsibilities
as an intelligence agency however unless we take full
av r`. all __,...s at our disposal to develop the
necessary information

The delay on the part of the Attorney General in
acting on the request for a telephone surveillance in this
case is inexcusable Wehave therefore prepared a follow-up
memorandumto the Attorney General expressing concern over
the delay and again requesting a decision in this matter

'RECOMMENDATION

That the attached memorandumto the Attorney
General be approved
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EXHIBIT68-19

UE1SORANDUYFORTHEATTORNEYGENERAL

RE DEMONSTRATIONSATTHENATIONAL
DEMOCRATICCONVENTIONAUGUST1968

Reference is made to mymemorandadated
}larch 22 1963 and April 24 1968 captioned as above
requesting authority to institute telephone surveillance
coverage on the National Kobilization Office for
Demonstrations at the National Democratic Convention
Room315 407 South Dearborn Street Chicago Illinois

As you were previously advised considerable
Information has been developed indicating that various

o .. c civil _.htm groups ..nd
'Organizations ~affiliated~vith the NewLett movementplan
to stage massive demonstrations at the National
Democratic Convention with the objective of disrupting
the Convention

The tragic events of the past several weeks
vividly illustrate the ugly atmosphere of discontent
which pervades the Americanpolitical scene today There
is every reason to believe that the extremist elenents
planning to disrupt the National Democratic Convention
inflamed by the recent assassinations of Dr ;:irtin Luther
King Jr. and Senator Robert Kennedy may resort to acts
,of violence to achieve their objectives at the Convention

In view of the foregoing it is absolutely
essential that we utilize every means at our disposal
to effect the coverage needed to enable us to keep the
intelligence communityadvised of the day-to-day plans
and activities of to leaders of these dissident groups
I feel ti;,;L '-^'-'r cerelict in myduty if I did not

1SE:0 FI:O-UD 0

DATE.
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UElOlAh'DU1FORTHEATTORNEYGENERAL

express myconcern over the delay encountered in
connection rvitn z o request for approval of a telephone
surveillance in this case This dolav has unquestion
ably caused a loss of valuable intelligence information
in a most critical area of our operations

Accordingly it is again requested that you
advise of your decision in regard to the aforementioned
request as soon as possible

Approved

Date

NOTE

See memorandumC.D Brennan to LC Sullivan
dated 6/6/G3 captioned as above as prepared by



Memorandum to Mr J Edgar Hoover Director
Federal Bureau of Investigation

From n~ Ramsey Clark

4 APR3 1963
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EXHIBIT68-20

dfftrr of tip \.ttarnry (hrnrrnt

} lasilingtan,t1 L 23533

March 12 1968

Re ODemonstrations at the_National Democratic _
Convention August 1968

our memo dated March 11,1968

I am declining authorization of the requested installation
of the above telephone surveillance at the present time There
has not been an adequate demonstration of a direct threat to the
national security Should further evidence be secured of such a
threat or re-evaluation desired please resubmit

RECJ00

Other investigative activities should be undertaken to
provide intelligence necessary to the protection of the national

;interest
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EXHIBIT68-21

` UN1-f!:1)ST,VI'ESCOVE \TENT

,A7emorandum

MR TOLSON DATE8/7/68

C D DeLoach

:uccr DEMOCRATICNATIONALCONVENTION
Chicago Illinois 8/26/68

Bill Connell Executive Assistant to the
(Vice President attempted to telephonically contact the
,Director at 9:48 a.m. 8/7/63 He was advised the Director
was in travel status and was referred to my office

Connell told me that the President had some time
ago advised the Vice President that the FBI had sent a
"special team to Atlantic-City during the last Democratic
National Convention The President allegedly told the
Vice President that the FBI had been of great service to

ltirnelybasis throughout the entire convention

Connell stated that while he desired to discuss
this with the Director personally the Vice President hopei
the Director would extend to his the same service during
the forthcoming Democratic National Convention in Chicago

I told Connell the Director would be back in his
office during the first part of the coming week Connell
stated he would attempt to contact the Director at that time

I'also told Connell that while he desired to
discuss this matter with the Director he should know that
our Chicago Office is very well prepared to Bathrr intelli
gence and pass sr,cn intelligence on to appropriate authorities
during the convention_ Connell stated !.n presumed this to

=libe
true 1,uvrover !:c w.e",idcall gait :,,-r week and r.:e.a;.;.or!

this matter to the Director

ACTION uf.. N
SACMarlin Johnson Chicago has made extensive plans

regarding cover e of the convention He has established space
_ lel,.;,r ''-1.o I nee t-' - n.nir er ne;1ou

;CONTINUED OVER
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Ur Tolson

special squad going to Chicago which would entail consider
able funds it is suggested the Director might desire to
advise Connell on the occasion of his calling again that
full preparations have been made by the Chicago Office to
handle the matter of passing intelligence to the vice

(President and his aides consequently there is no need
(for a "special team to proceed to Chicago

4



Lrtr Connell thanked mu and said he will tell the Vice President

10:j: a.m

1 called in Chic:o and told him I had just
-talkcd to iVir Connell -a. staet tc tiroVice Prt.oidt:lt

and t that ho wanted to have done was an c:er:;tio:1 similar to wiiatac c:ici

Cow at '-tlastla City ttt last Ioeoratic t cwcntion waca Joacson

.wan rtmam for mtoliaa.tisn I explained thst ho wo..iuIi.:e to have us

furntza Lie typo or ir-oirootsou 'r!1ITicm coata t wit: Coaac!l on

any so-calk intoill,;eace we rnlfj.:.t6et I stated 1 told lax Connellwe would

do that call that ....IC wouldus in coat )ct with Coast ii unCzayviin
ho wanted t" t ..::old 1tolti we are not ;jour; to zct into

-any :aid pr. LI:al 'tall::i,thtn: of cittcuie action or
7.tilt t.eanial i.at.tu L.'.-t .4 ;,t:' '.v

7- Johncoa :.tated its get in toscii

:Tron.ptly mi. set it u") I told Connell lo present.y Tr 
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EXHIBIT68-22

10:09 a m  August15 1903

MEI :OltAIIDUMFOR *+::i TOLSON

/ MIL LISIIOP
MIL DL LOACH

LW LULLPMN

Mr Vhlliaia Lxccutive Azsisttmt to the Vice
returned my call I told uinl I was out of towa whenhe called last

/w/ect.a.:/
icl

I wanted to return his call

I.5r Connell t'i.. lted me for and stated Thathe had called

about was that he had taiaed to the Vice Presiacnt about the team I Ltat into

the coiweMit-1area in :L-:t that helai iis stated he was b.s.-,tal

Krhaps I r1i t TieZvi t iaotae cat.:a te.M L.r the Vice .vi'o:.itient-oatin

anti i.:avemy moll tarot:U:7in contact rata i Tai(Coaaoll)

I advised Mr Connell that I had already initiated that aad that

he will be La::7.'!iedby t.:.y.:ctal Chari;e is

_ .at any aiaa ci zzsiscascc be %tantsto just let i...r i.now au will

taitecare o ii
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'en.orvn&u,nfor Messrs Tolson DeLoac.h Aupst 15 I3L3
kilonop van

I:uw Ir said he wouldprobably be out in ChIcau Car!7
as:A

 Mr :tentedthat tuns locksa little tense out there ant
I said I thin: wo are to:iI to cavesoiuo trou:.;s I et:itch -e:r:t to
thorou;;hly prcpurea U,at we phi CYCeypass tole hole we can plu:l to nave
cover ,e  wrttl isen:,o to the t.it:uoral( t1r.ney
yecter:;ay nOt.uthis faliurn to ay.)rovo wire tads out Lens but I
it sill have eilect Lt that we want to try to cover it as well no we can
that if nilyLih%rocs wrthi \re will ae bl .ea

 Mr otated we have what he believes is execli':tt
t;t.t arr:t a: h.:lieis a p,;s

the t:t 1:tit::oriticoLitz;.-t,,eat:::
tlie :....moocon:ih.. in a:t:l Le:re

dictn't hnowif Viz l-'residt'at L gotr there
ln:t if ha f.'_,t! that a:1.1t::to c.eit;v. !rat
ezree:lroo.1 till)nr as i.ecr:.:tr:.i.latlytense

 Mr cold he apirecistecl aiy call that he bo
touch with litr `onaU just as sooii uc c0 :es to (.1ii.cao

Very truly yours

J._

Jan ariico7r.i  _
Lirector .

jr 

66-0770 76 49
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'o"4 C D DeLoacti 'l(
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EXHIBIT68-23

UNITEDSTATES(oU\'F NMENT

Memorandum

Cr
Vf

nlccr i1^EMOCRATICNATIONALCONVENTION
Chicago Illinois Imo r e,'("..'% t<-C--'

John Criswell National Treasurer Democratic
Party called this afternoon to indicate that he had
had dinner with Marvin Watson the Postmaster General
.last night and Watson had informed him of the great
service performed by the FBI during the last Democratic
Convention in Atlantic City NewJersey Criswell
wanted to know if the same services could be performed
this time in Chicago He also asked if I could personally
,go but and take charge as was the case in Atlantic City

I told Criswell that Bill Connell Executive
ssistant to the Vice President had already called regara

ing this matter and had personally discussed the entire
atter with the Director I stated the Director.had made

complete arrangements to have a topflight group of
experienced agents under the supervision of the Special
!Agent in Charge of the Chicago Office handle this assign
ment I told Criswell I felt certain these men would do
an excellent job and the Vice President's office would
he kept fully advised at all times of need-to-know informa
tion

Criswell expressed appreciation and stated he
_ did not know Connell had already made the request in.question

1ACTION
,+

For record purposes

 yr "LL

1GAUG2G 19,58
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EXHIBIT69 1
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EXHIBIT69-2

Memorandum

T kr W C SullivanWC L DATE2-24-64

FROM Hr F J Baumg)MV

 suB(fGr-COl'.U1ISTPPS.TYUSA 1
COUNTERIt:T:LLIGENCEPROGRAM 1
 IRTLRNALSECURITYC 1
(NATIONALGUARDIAN)

On the evening of 2-18-64 the National Guardian sponsored
a public meeting at;"the TownHall in NewYork City featuring left
wing NewYork Attorney MarkLane and Mrs Marguerite Oswald mother V
of the alleged assassin At this meeting it was implied that Oswald
was not responsible for the assassination and the handling of the
investigation by the Governmentwas criticized

A reliable source of the NewYork Office identified
Alger Hiss convicted and identified espionage agent as

-,present in the audience

The NewYork Office proposes the following item be placed
with a cooperative news media source ui r:.o S f Govern cat

"Hail Hail the Gang's All Here

"Alger Hiss was with the rest of the gang
at the affair held in NewYork City on
February 18 1964 to beatify the assassin
Lee Harvey Oswald Hiss has already
achieved sainthood amongthis pro-Soviet
group and efforts were made to prevent
giving him a standing ovation for the
sake of security R ]1
"The affair was sponsored by the National
Guardian described by the House Committee
on Un-AmericanActivities as 'a virtual
official propaganda arm of Soviet Russia.".,,

RECOMMENDATION EX-103

~( That this memorandumbe referred to Mr DcLoachso the
item set out may be considered for release to a cooperative news
medi;a;source 1

J) ~" '.0 f V (/ 1~~/1J  ///~j~j~~
5 7 o 1251
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EXHIBIT69-3
".rte..

wJ~,''.~fl STATESCOVEKENT

MCI72Oia?2du m

TO Mr W C Sul an DATE 3/30/64
1

FROM Mr F J Baumgardncf 1
-*fit 1

1
SUBJECT COMMUNISZP!.TY USA 1

CoUTE INTEI-L1c.;CEPMOGRAM1
-INTE!;NALSECURITYC 1

(AMERICANINSTITUTEFOR 1
I1ARXISTSTUDIES)

The NewYprk Office has proposed that as a counterintelli
gence action publicity be afforded the American Institute for Marxist
Studies (AI:.:S) a Yeccntly organized educational-propaganda arm of
the CommunistParty/(CP) USA AILSis currently attempting to
enlist the sympathies of students and faculty membersthroughout the
country llerbert"Apthel:er National Coriaittee member CPUSAis

N
acting in the capacity of director of AIMS

To expose this educational-propaganda arm of the communists;'cr Office proposes a statement such as the following he
given the widest possible circulation through cooperative news media
sources at the Scat of Government

"The CPUSAin its constant effort to woo adherents to
its philosophy if not actually into its ranks is again forming a //propaganda organization this time a very subtle one under the name
of the American Institute for Marxist Studies better knownin CPcircles as 'AIM.S. The CPUSAhas placed enough importance in thie'.r
organization to take a leading spokesmanof they/

* CP away from his editorship of 'Political Affairs, the theoretical
'r. organ of the CPUSAto -;ork full time in setting up AIMS

has enlisted to assist in the AIZiSoperation on the
%west

coast is he ideal front manfor the CP (although he is
not trusted by the"CP leaders) since he is an Annapolis graduate and
thereby on the surface lends an air of respectability to AIMS

used to teach young Marxists at the University of Havana In
the October a 1961 issue of 'Bohemia, a magazine of the Cuban
Government was quoted as saying

(lo) t
~J

56 AP1 U964
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Memorandumto L!r W C Sullivan
RE CO.::,:UNISTPARTY USA

emir,-rrPTNELLIGENCEPROGRAM

"'The Cuban Revolution has brought forth
methods of its own in the manner 'whereby
Socialism can be arrived at At the same time
it demonstrated that the postulates.of Marxism
are indisputable scientific and social
truths...I wish to let it be known that in
my opinion the Cuban Revolution is of
universal importance I believe that it will
kindle and capture the enthusiasm of the masses
of the United States because the Revolution's
great accomplishments cannot be hidden from
them forever.

"The CP recently opened a headquarters for AILLSat
.20 East 30th Street NewYork NewYork Aptheker and his staff
with the assistance of communist dupes throughout the United Statesare preparing to spread the germs of Marxism in an-attempt to infect
,insuspecting and naive Americans who .are placed in contact with this
_communistpropaganda.

Publication of the above data will not jeopardize
sensitive Bureau sources

ACTION

That this memorandumbe routed to Mr DeLoach so informa
tion regarding AILMSmay be made available to cooperative news media
sources in an effort to expose this educational-propaganda effort
of the CP

i IIJ1~'~
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EXHIBIT69-4

SAC New York

Director FBI

CC=IUNISTPASTY USA
CGU;lr IIIT;J LIG3:SCLPEOGRAD!
IIITL^=iAL5.',CUNITY C
(A:IEaICANINSTITUTEBOBMARXISTSTUDIES)

SeNYlet 3/20/64

The Bureau vill endeavor to obtain publication
of the information submitted by you concerning the
American Institute for Larzist Studies (Ai:..3) through
cooperative news media sources at the Scat of Government
Your interest in forvardin.g this item is appreciated and
you are encouraged to be alert for such items in the

--future .. ._

Reference is made to your letter dated 3/23/64
captioned "American Institute for :.Iarxict Studies
Internal Security C r herein plans for a symposium
of this organization scheeuled to be held at the Sheraton
Atlantic Hotel in Nov York City on 4/2J/64 are set out
You should carefully follow developments regarding this
symposium.and submit ccunterintelligence recommendations
at the earliest possible date to expose the communist

.nature of the or,arization and symposium Specifically
consider releasing information to cooperative news media
sources locally exposing the communist nature of AI'_IS

Advise the Bureau in the.event the information
submitted c"ith'ycur letter dated 3/20/64 is published
in the local press

1 New York
3g

iO AYIi1:3 1904

NOTE .:,.,. firmr"( EX-1O3  

r"n".'The information referred totzs been relensed
by llr :DeLdach's Office and sets forth the communist
associations of AILS a new communist propaganda front



Mr W.C Sullib^n
--el

F.J
Baumgardnef'1~

OM

JBJECTCOMMUNISTPARTYUSA
COUNTERINTELLIGENCEPROGRAM
INTERNALSECURITY C
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EXHIBIT69-5

UNITEDSTATESGOVERNMENT

Memorandum

DATE8/9/A S

 wife of Communist
Party USA recently purchased a blue 1965 Oldsmobile 93 Holiday Sports
 Sedan for the use of her husband _ is presently in upstate
NewYork on his annual monthly vacation As a disruptive tactic
it is recommended the following or a similar statement be released to a
cooperative news media source preferably a nationally syndicates
columnist at the Seat of Government to expose the high living of
the leader of the alleged "Party of the working class

The top United States Red noes not
worry about the heat this summer He is being
cbauffered about in his e.xpepsive new 1965 air
conditioned,high-powerediiiIue sports sedan
Comrades of the self-proclaimed leader of the
American working class should not allow this
examble of prosperity to discourage their
continued contributions to the Party's coffers
Upon his return from his annual month's vacation
hall very likely may require additional dues
payments and contributions to cover his tabs
After all the of the Communist
Party USA cannot be expected to survive on the
salary he draws of $120 a week

ACTION

That this memorandumbe routed to the Crime Records Division
so the above information may be confidentially made available to a
cooperative news media source preferably a nationally syndicated
columnist

< 5

I AUG11 1965



un.Ircr COUNTERINTELLIGENCEPROGRAM
BLACKNATIONALIST HATEGROUPS
RACIALINTEL1;IGLINCE
(WASHINGTON;SPRINGPROJECT)

a cooperative news
that a story could be

FPR 9 "
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EXHIBIT69-6
UNITI:I) (;( :RNNIr:Nr

Memo?7dl fl

4o Mr W C Sullivan 22 uAnMarch 26 1968

Jico.m G C Moore I')P

PURPOSE

To recommend item be furnished cooperative national
news media source by Crime Records designed to curtail
success of Martin Luther King's fund raising for the Washington
Curing Project

BACKGROUND

Martin Luther King has now scheduled the Washington
Spring Project his "poor people's march on Washington D C.,
for the latter part of April 1968 King's organization the
Southern Christian Leadership Conference (SCLC) has sent out a
mailing to 70,000 potential financial contributors King
asked these 70,000 to contribute to the Washington Spring
Project for the feeding and housing of the marchers

At the same time churches in the Washington D C.
area have said they will feed and house King's marchers

SUGGESTION] ucr

That the above facts be given
;source by the Crime Records Division so

:FC

' r,Irl n,"nrn -)
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Memorandumto 1"'r Sullivan
I:L COU::T1;3Ii:Ti:L.LIG.iCh i n001:AM

given nation-wide circulation that King cbes not need
contributions from the 70,000 people he s:licitcd "Since
the churches have offered"supacrt no mornmoney is needed
and any contributed would only be used by1:0g for other
purposes This item would need nation-wile circulation
in order to reach all the potential contr5butcrs and
curtail their donations A sample item Ls attached

ACTIOrr

That the facts about King's sodcitation of
funds unnecessarily be given a cocperati news source
by the Crir.:a fccords Division
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Nartin Luther Ni ; Jr Frosidont of the Southern
Christian Loadoroh:) Conforohcc (SCC) today fir:do himoolg
in the onorr000io pooition of havio too much :coney or at
Icaot tho probability of too much moroy The L;CLCsont ont a
hur:o mailin to its conLributors ploading Cor funds for the
Washinon rojoet the "por pooplo s morch on
Washintoz. . sands of contributow woro urr7odto sneport
tho.maroh financially inordor to food and houne tho do.non
utratorr Ent tho churchos in the Uoohinton D C. area
have offered to house and food tho domonotrators

Nowthe ooutrihutiohs arc boc,.i in to roll in from
the mailin and Nin7 doosn't hood the toncy An ombarracmont
of richos has befallen 1:inwho will only use the nohoy for
other purposes The churches had better come through with
all the housinand support tho 6omonstrHier need tocause
there will be little money left for the "poor people by the
time the march rolls around

FlMni.tt

to Isi'J

f t)
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EXHIBIT69-7

UN1,II:1
.iPA'ILS(:O\'I:KNME\"1

.~f/~e ora;7ct?./in, `Jf
j E IN ENVELOPEJ

To ?ir V C Sullivan
%/"v

DATL?,lay 10 19GS
CJ

FkOM1 G C Moore 1, t
/

sumircr COU11TP^,?':;TRLLTG7:?:C:PI GRAM
.. C::^.Uf%S

-RACIALI:`i::.:i.J.G_i:CE
.f (POOPP:3PLR'S CA AIGN)

This is to recommend copy of docUnent showingCommunist Party LS: interest in the Poor People's
Campaign be f..rnici:ed a cooporetive nows media source on
a confidential basis by the Crime Records Division

DLCi'OROT;:O

The Poor People's Campaign (PPC) was initiated
by tho late Martin L.;t. f .i7 Jr ^ a macoivo civil
disobedience campaign toforcc passage of legislationfavorable to .:c,roc_ Wehave just reccivcd and disses:inrtcdto a1propriete intcresteci a;;cncies a Communist Party USA(CPUs,.) document concerning the PPC (Copy attached)

This document is signed byfor the Per "'s Negro Work Derr tment It is addressed to
all Districts of tho Party all rational Cosa:ittee (NC)
members l:onc;s of all negro Work Departments and
Chair;,:on of all commissions The first heading in the
document reads "All-out Support to the Poor People'sMarch.

The docum nt calls for "mobilization in supportof the PPC The CPUS:1wants to organize the unemployedand the South as a folloe;up to the P^C

Enclosure EEC.-.11G

l;rl/I 4`.IV D FROM t7 /,17 1;52

(;CONTIIIUED
OER



ADDENDUMCRIMERECORDSDIVISIO\ TED io 5/13/63
If approved this documentwouldbe given on a very

771

licmornndus C.C Moore to Hr T.C Sullivan
RE COU:"i'i.:;.i:;'fE'.LiGE,y PROG:1A'.i

t;L:?C i::::'iO:;r?Lib'i  HATEGi::)UPS

PROPOSAL

Tp s ow CPUs~>interest in the PPC it is
suggested a co of tIo nttrched C1,USAdocument be
furnished a co ,erative news media source on a
confidential b .is by the Crime Records Division

For the bac'.:;round information of the news
source an article in the 1/24/67 issue of The tort:er,
the cast cor.st communist newspaper .page two identified
William L Patterson the Chairman of the Communist
Party USA National Negro Commission

ACTION

That attached copy of CPUSAdocument
regarding PPC be furnished news source on confidential
basis by Crime 2ccords Division

confidential
basis

to
w 1.1150.1.1121111011

would be dr:n'Ynto the iac)iry,r ;n the January zr~'1907 issue of "The
Nor):er whois the person who issued this
document is publicly described as Chairman of the National Negro.~,Commission of the Communist Party USA

r
 "`a SEr .J `

 V
LB '5



The Poor Pcople'.s March on Washington has begun Evidenceof its great
power-tomobilize for the fight against poverty is emerging The evidenec should
be recognized and publicized

772

To all Districts and N.C Members .May 1 l GU
'leads of ell Negro Vcrl Depertmcnts
Chairmenof all Commissions

I All-out u^n;rt to the Poor Pcorle's March

Directed by Rev RalphD Abernathy leaders of the SouthernChristian
Leadership Council local progressive black leaders and far-sighted white sup
porters have headmeetings with President Johnson's Cabinet and Conggresionel
leaders

These meetings expose the hypocrisy of official governmentalleadership end
the role of governmentin maintaining millions especially block citizens in pov
erty and misery

What becomes obvious is that if poverty is to be abolished the people must
becomeabolitionists

The Pcor People's March can become an instrument for mobilizingend ectly
'zing millions against poverty

Everyphase of its developmentmakes for the enlargementof struggle the
unification of the people and the loosing of creative ideas of struggle

I1 Politicel Sicnificance Nigel

The encampmentin Washingtonis of historical sign?ficance politicclly In
awakeningthe Americanpeople ideologically in revealing the role of government
and the relation of forces needed to assure victory for the people Or enihati0.^.ill)
and progrem-atically in mappingout and projecting the historically necessary
folio throeoh

The project in its manyramifications impingeson-everycrisis problemcon
frontingthe country reveals the powerof Negroleadership the dire need for
unity and coordination in struggle The tragic picture of the polarization of
poverty and consequent degradation cicngside of unequalled wealth ruthless
rapacity and aiflucnce is presented

Butthe d'minent martorof it all is the de.'alooment shows the llmitl
-^"_Mnotentia.'ties for ruccrsrf l struecle :~

VY~1

(Sec MayFor:_IneMagazine for details of the polarization cf"'icelth end
usurpation of power)

f'l



awakenthe creative imaginationof black and white alike

The people are In motion The battle for their clarification unification and
direction is a challenge we can neither evade or avoid

;i
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lit imoactof ?.larchand the 'oliov Throunh

Reactionfears the impact of the March on labor black citizenry youth
women all decent people who dare think The impact can be strengthened by
the popularization of the March everywhere schools churches labor bodies
amongstudents everywhere That poPuisrizetion should take the formof mob
ilization in support Constructive support demands discussion of the i_1lo-i-c2
This is the essence o;'the case since the March Is not an end in itself

IV OurTasks

The NegroWorkDepartmentcalls on all district leadership to recognize and
throughaction acknowledge possibilities for deepening and sharpening the ctruggle
against poverty This can lead logically to the cuection of the organ!,cetior of the

,South of the unorgcnizedend the unemployed This step is not only vitally
portent in relation to a successful fight ege!nst poverty but in relation to every
major is___ bofere the netion

The logic of this step as a follow-up flows out of the association of the
March with the strike of Memphisgarbage v;orkersand the unity of white-bloc%
workers in struggle

Correct steps In publicizing the March and its massive ramifications can help

Lul ! t'.Vh .
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TO

,,/
That attached sua! ary be givs1i%rafve rm'gis

mcdia r,ource iiy the Crime Pecords Divlsfet::s sonifdontial
basis to puolicfac the number of you in
the 1-'P

RE
Enclosure

8

....y i

(a)
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EXHIBIT69-8

ILI)SIXILSCo !..RNNILNT

.l'VfCM ianeZLW

Br U C Sullivan I4 1063
1

I"Ro l C Loore/I 1
Ws s ,a)

1
PIICG!bl!1 .Adis)

ii HATdC-iCUPS1
RAC(1a

l,/ (Paid Pi:CU'S

This is to reconmenditem slsss ramber of teen-agers
in the Poor People's Campaighbo fuss:. uevisiledia seurce
on confidential basis by Crime Rocosds i.i.:iicn

BACHGRCUED

 ThePoor People's Campaign is the campaign
of massive civil Oissbodience initist,s! he :aste
Bartin Luther 1:in Jr. to force n..
favorable to :cgreos :e havo at .st
of the caravans moving tossrd 1issis arc
composedlargely of teen-gers and y.uL ;A in tefr early
twenties

 This is an unstable elemen:._ real potential
for violence The recent riot in . stasted
looting by teen-sgers and young men %.... :ion has
been disseminated to appropsiahe intes..'s 'agencies and it
is felt it should also be publfeised
 Attached is a su:aiary of these facts :irotects et O
sources

AC11-M

F Li1
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May14 1060

POOR'PO!'L's'SCAMPAIGN
OR"CIIILi;R:::il'SCdL'CSD::"

The Poor People's Campaignday be turning into
a "children's Crusade and the numberof teen-agers descending
on the Nation's Capital reminds officials that the recent
riot in \;aehinhton began with teen-age looting Of the 350
"poor people in one of the caravans r,.ovingNorth on
Washington there are 315 of school age Most of those
in the c;":;eztCaravan are teen-agers or young non in
their early twenties Ner.bers of a teen-ago group called
the "Invaders are in one caravan

Parents of these young people have protested
knowing the potential for trouble in this situation L'ut
the "children comeanywayand Washington D.C. faces an
explosive situation The presence of so manyteen-agers and
youngsters only adds another unpredictable element to the
Poor People's Campaign

41

StY j
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Enclosures 6

ACTION

That attached photon of PPCbe furnished cooperativenews media source on confidential basis by Crime Records
.Division

4/3)

(Mass Media)

7
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EXHIBIT69-9

Jiv iJ
I

TO Mr N C Sullivan n F May17 1963

FROM,G C Moorej 11/\/

SSA .cTCOUNTERINTELLIGENCEPROGRAM

J
BLACKNATIONALISTHATE'GROIIP;i
RACIALINTELLIGENCE
(POORPEOPI,.E'SCAli.PAIGN)

This is to recommendphotographs of demonstrators
on Poor People's Campaign(1'I't') be furnished cooperativenews media source on a confi,I.ntial basis by Crime Records
Division

Attached are six photographs of PPCparticipantstaken by :;;1...J in Cleveland Ohio at rally 5/14/63These show the militant aggronsive aonearance of the
participants ana argot oe or Interest to a cooperative news
source Furnishing the pictures to a newssource will not
Jeopardize our source

1r

REC25 i mAy26 m8

f)EC



To Mr W C Sullivan DATEMay32 1968

COUNTERINTELLIGENCEPROGRAM
BLACINATIONALIST-IRATEGROUPS
RACIALINTELLIGENCE
(POORPEOPLE'SCAMPAIGN)
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EXHIBIT69-10

UNEII.0STA'FSGOVERN~11\'t"-~J I:uJ̀

Memorandum

FROM Mr G C Moors

SUBJECT

This is to recommendan item regarding the
Poor People's Campaign be given a cooperative newsmedia

source on a confidential basis by the CrimeRecords Division
A source has advised that some leaders of the Poor People's
Campaign(PPC)feel that the AmericanFriends Service
Committee (AFSC) a Quaker group is trying to dominate the
PPCin Washington D C The AFSChas assisted the Southern
enristlan Leaaersnlp conference in various phases of iris
campaign This situation is so serious that Fred C Bennette
in charge of security for the PPC refuses to go to the
campaignoffice in Washingtonbecause of the presence of
AFSCrepresentatives

An item has been prepared copy attached to show
.this jealousy on the part of PPCleaders It is felt this
should be given a cooperative newsmedia source on a confidential
basis by the Crime Records Division

f
ACTION

That attached item regarding the Poor People's
Campaignbe furnished a cooperative newsmedia source on a

I)
ynAionfidential basis by Crime Records

Enclosure
f

(8) JUN5 1966

1,1
(MassMedia) 1

(MassMedia)
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ENCLOSURE 113/
 vVr

Ric 24

"FE17EPSTM IT.ITMDLYFOE
LEAD::RSOFPOC PFOi'L;i'GCAMPAIGN

Loaders of the Poor People's Campaign in
Washington P C. are not exactly Mrntclui for the assistance
of the Imericen Friends Service Cenaitteo on the campai.pn
They 1:ce1_this help is a subtle eifort to dominate the
campaign

Onecampaign loader is so irritated with the
"Friends that he refusca to go to the cr.upai.gnoffice at
1401 U Street N W Washington P C. because of tha
"Friends there Co claims the representatives of the
AmericanI'ri eds Service Committeethat are at the campaign
office are uncooperative
7
1
1
1
I Qise: Merlin)
1 Cr (i.:nts Cedia)

(9)

NOTE
See memoG C Mooreto Mr W C Sullivan captioned

as above dated May22 1968 prepared by

i'ROM

OEP i<')~j



Mr V C Sullivan

Mr G. C

To DATLG/5/GS

''rOl'c'r  PROGRAM
ATIONALISTMATE.GROUPS

RACIALINT:LLIGI::;Cll
(POO:PRDPLI:'SCAI,IPA16N)

This is to recommenditcn about the large nuchor of
cars bought by the Poor People's Campaignbe furnished a
cooperative 1':cwsmedia source by'Crime I:ocords on a coniidential
basis

etc

e JUN101;.';.,';a
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EXHIBIT69-11

II I) SlAII co IRNNtl
\ 11

11/ireniorand7m

 
The Poor People's Campaignhas purchased three bursa

and twelve cars to transport dcmonstrato::'sland AlLhougl
the campagn is to.dramatze alleged poverty the campaign hat
spenL uA   2

ACTION

That attached itcn about this c:travngance be
cooperative nows media source by the Crime Records Division on

a highly coniidentinl basis

Enclosure
mil)

1

1
1 .-L ,,,,as media)

Class Media)

117rF ",,y
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Rec.59
,..l(n

,.M=O :=:T::n:LA '.::n! 9= P:CTI (Er:ss

(Eacs

 Cr:!Ioair:ais ea !larch
not on :.:o)t .ao orli,p:1i is

now ht.yi:a! sos two.:.voeflis r..al I:roo buos

r,00 in:: it edf..os to ..;:10rarO wo:.':of
''tnrai(.:in tnLpoid Co:;n,' 'no

ot tao poot ac:lo 7.n7ost in
sevc,r.1 %;::i of r.utc::,oive ot!uipi%ont

9to to hnsss nsed to sl .:t to ,.,_o
dct!onstrato::o .as,linton ea

..!al to . cao do :10joO c:, tI=oottir
tiloir ql1artoro

at :;o itts hotoi. C coaro,) tlo
sn!-a'y ot..t to tho 17oto:z
to ::o:7 stay in t!lo
enrr, didact '-% til000

9.90 r.-fope's Ca:::ynir!rt!,on!;!;tt7o
mwo cars ot la=inl rt1ci

oot la :o rs d.f tho car eies in
T.orr nso:1Co.:rcial

tri -,s L:f'.alanJ t;r:ir
hotel t1=7ala;s c cars woal:ioLa a lot
Uti in :.tsare.etion Cit
"

1:ZITE

See,r.oftorandala isrert C.C rr,oreto 17.C.CnIlivarl,
captioned "Ce',,.atotinterilisoacao 7:.ro,!rn:1Ciao 1:tionalist
1'.r'.toGrc.ans nr:.cial ,rotellir.enco (::..:.-olPeople's Ca:.Tal u),
,dated 6/5/'C;G p2'cpare,. Oy TjD,Ist

..1 I,1 i iii%tilt
J
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EXHIBIT69-12

_UNITEDSTA'T'ESGO\'I:ItN"ENT

Memorandum

:Mr N C Sulliv4n'l !ATE May 21 1969

:G C Moor Lrjpd _

uecTCOUNTERINTELLIGENCEPROGRAM
BLACKNATIONALIST HATEGROUPS
RACIALINTELLIGE`:CE

) (BLACKPANTHERPARTY)

Attached is an article concerning the criminal
activities of the Black Panther Party (BPI)) for the Crime
Records Division to furnish a'cooperative news media source
on a"confidential basis

The extremist and.Nighly violent BPP has,been
involved in criminal activities since its inception The /(DPP has Lead LlIVV.LVCUla LVUUCLLCJaLLaak as puli e UlLlcer~ `~
and other serious crimes. Many individual members have long
criminal records Details of this activity have been compiled
in the attached article

Exposure of these activities by nationwide news
media would show the true nature of this extremist group

ACTION

That attached article be furnished a cooperative
(news media source on a confidential basis by the Crime Records
Division to expose the criminal nature of the BPP

Enclosure

E

1
1
1
1
1 (Mass Media)
1 1 (Mass Nedia) JUN G 159

.`I
~1 _
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EXHIBIT69-13

ONI"I'EDSTATESGO "tNMENT

-Memorandum

ro Mr W C Sullivan DATL 9/5/69

1
VROM C D Brennan /Y 1

1
1

tAUEC CCIII:TF.RINTELLIGENCEPROGRAM
IZE LEFT

This memorandumrecommends approval for distribution
under the Mass Media Program of a blind memorandumrevealing

lev dence of the growing dissatisfaction of militant blacks
with the NewLeft

At a recent conference of the United Front Against
Fascism hold in Oakland Calif. and sponsored by the Black
Panther Party (BPP) one of the resolutions adopted was that
a petition for community control of police departments should
he circulated in the black brown and white communities
Students for a Democratic Society (SDS) has balked at the
idea of white coanunity control of its police force This
has resultea in vitriolic attacks on SDSby leaders of the
BPP and SDShas ineffectively explained its position

Previous information has also been developed that
the NewMobilization Committee (NMC) which under the name
of the .rational Mobilization Committee sponsored demonstrations
during the Democratic National Convention and the Presidential
inauguration has made plans for a demonstration in
1;ashington D C. on 11/15/69 to protest the war The Black
United Front (BUF) in Washington D C. has demanded of this
group $25,000 in order to receive its support

In order to further split the black militants from
the NewLeft it appears that should this information be
publicized it will create dissension within both the New
Left and black militant groups A blind memorandumsetting
forth this information has been prepared which could be used
by a nationally syndicated columnist to ocus attention on this
developing situation RE li

% RECOMMENDATION a SAP11 1

")~ That the enclosed memorandumbe approved and forwarded
\

V to the Crime 4Iecords Division for use in the Stars liddia 'Prbgraa

\
nr

uclo$urELosL;E lrn/ED FRUJ)

,~
i

~~
S 1975

FDA
. 1 o196ali
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TIE WIDENINGRIFT

From all appearances the honeymoonbetween the
black militants and the NewLeftists is about over

An indication of this state of affairs is the
recent disclosure in "NewLeft Notes, the Students for a
Democratic Society (SDS) organ and "The Black Panther,the official publication of the Black Panther Party (BPP)that these two organizations have fallen out over the issue
of comsuaity control of the police A decision to call for
such control reached at a recent United Front Against
Fascism Conference held in Oakland California and
sponsored by the BPP was more of a hurdle than .SDScould
take SDSbalked at white community control of police In
a subsequent statement by a BPP official
printed in the Party's newspaper the rift between these
organizations was brought into the open Hilliard chargedSDSwith slogan hawking and not being revolutionaries In
the usual gutter vernacular he berated SDSas nationally
chauvinistic and nationally socialistic

 SDSsubsequently answered (if that is
what it could be considered) in a wishy-washy statement
printed in its publication "NewLoft Notes. In this
statement SDScalled the whole thing a misunderstandingbased on faulty information about SDS's position It
characterized itself as being dedicated to building a
revolutionary youth movementamongwhite youth of the
"mother country. This latter statement has not set well
with black militants

More recent evidence of this rift is indicated by
demands recently made by the Black United Front (BUF) in
Washington D C. on the NewMobilization Committee (NLC)
This latter group under the name of iational Mobilization
Committee sponsored such demonstrations as thoseFhich were
held in Washington D C. during the inauguration of
President Nixon and during the Democratic National
Convention in Chicago The NMChas been organizing a demon
stration which is to be held in the Nation's capital on
November 15 1969 which will protest the war in Vietnam.
The BU^ first notified NMCthat it would demand that NBC
pay BUF$1 per head for each demonstrator coming to

RECEIVED FROM

SEQ 5 05

 _ ~s~1'I()SURE  3l
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The Widening Rift

Washington D C. for this demonstration as a price for its
support of the dcnonstraticn It later modified this
demand to ask for a flat $25,000 for its support This
demand poses a real.problem for h::C since that organization
is still in debt from the demonstrations it has sponsored
in the past It also poses tricky ideological problems
Some Committee leaders feel this is out-and-out extortion
by the blacks ant that it should not be paid Others feel
that the funds should be paid if possible but the question
then arises what about other Negro organizations which might
be even more deserving of the funds than ISUF For instance
such an o geni.r-.tion as the Rational Welfare Rights Organi
zation which is;"coxpcsed of black welfare recipients might
have a bettor claim to these funds It also poses other
interesting possibilities which the NewLeftists are not
anxious tc face That is will this be a recurring demand
which can be enrectcd in the future from the blacks If
such is the case it would become an additional burden for
the protest mc c;'ent It is obvious that this situation
must be handled with kid gloves for if the blacks are
alienated hope ter success for any protest movement in
Washington D C. will be eliminated

It appo:_r, therefore that militant blacks are
becoming ir.erc:.a'_e ly unwilling to accept the leadership of
the whi c ;;ew heft movement but are ready to strike out on
their o'n to seek objectives which up to now have only
been secondary in the scheme of things as far as the leftists
are concerned

2

RECEIVED 'FROM

SEP 51975
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EXHIBIT69-14

RECEIVED t RQ

St_Pa 151

FBI

11/10/69
1

1
1
1
1

%To Logats London (Enclosure)
Tokyo (Enclosure)

/

it
From Director FBI

 COUNTERINTELLIGENCEPROGRAMNEWLEFT

Bureau has received information indicating that the
North Vietnamese have received reports Indicating majority of
Amori,eans actively participated in antiwar demonstrations
10/15/69 Attached is a draft of an article which presents
tho truepicturo

It posslolo sou should cuntdcL rat 5 Attache iik yvu
Embassy to determine if he has suitable contacts to have article
appear in local press If this is not practical review local
press for an article which gives figures for participants closest
to the actual cunt indicated in attached article Cut 'out the
article and mail it to the North Vietnam Peace Delegation in
Paris Prance using a commercial-typo envelope purchased
locally and take every precaution to insure that the action
taken cannot be traced back to you or the U.S Government
Advise Bureau of action taken on this matter j,,

1 Foreign Liaison Unite (Route through for review)

(12)

NOTE
Seo memorandumC D Brennan to Mr W C Sullivandated 11/7/69 captioned as above prepared by
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RECE E5 FROM

f r
DEMONSTRATIONPROTESTINGU.S PARTICIPATION

IN THEWARIN VIETNAM

On O'cober 15 1969 an organization known as the
Vietnam Moratc ium Committee sponsored nation-wide demonstra
tions in the .S to protest U.S participation in the war
in Vietnam he predominant theme of these demdnstrations
was to remov all U.S troops from Vietnam immediately
Demonstratio occurred in every state and at a majority of
the colleges in the U.S There have been conflicting claims
as to the number of individuals who participated in these
demonstrations In view of the fact that these claims vary
greatly depending upon the plitical viewpoint of the individual
making them some analysis is necessary

To begin with figures used by individuals involved
in the demonstrations and by the committee organizing it
appeared to be greatly exaggerated For example at
Washingt)n D C. the figure of 50,000 demonstrators is
claimed Actually individuals capable of estima~iu ::~~~
size placed the number at not over 25,000 In addition at
many of the demonstrations it was difficult to separate the
demonstrators from spectators in estimating numbers While
absenteeism ran high in colleges and high schools throughout
the coutltry the number of demonstrators on the campuses was
relatively small Obviously many of the students took the
opportunity to take the day off as most of the schools excused
anyone absent so they could take part in the Moratorium if
they desired

It is also well to note that many of the demonstrators
were pacifists based upon their religious belief and had as
their objective peace not the withdrawal of U.S troops from
Vietnam

Reliable sources in the news media in ,the U.S
estimate the total number of demonstrators as 500,000 the
majority of which were of high school and college age Inas
much as the population of the U.S exceeds 200,000,000
8,000,000 of which are college students it is obvious that
a very small part of the population took part in these
demonstrations Even utilizing the Vietnam Moratorium Committee's
claims of 1,000,000 demonstrators this would amount to only
1/200 of the population Utilizing the more reliable estimate
of 500,000 it would only amount to 1/400 of the population
Even if the entire 500,000 demonstrators were college students
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they would only amount to 1/1 of the youth presently
attending colleges in the U.S

Viewed in this light it is obvious that the
demonstrations were not a mass cry for immediate withdrawal
of U.S troops from Vietnam but rather an indication that
some'of the individuals who are obviously next in line for
military service in Vietnam object to having their lives
disrupted by participating in a war which they cannot understand

FBI
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EXHIBIT69-15

To recommend that attached news media item be
furnished to a cooperative news media source on a confidential
basis The item relates to open criticism by black extremist
Stokely Carmichael of the Black Panther Party (EPP) organiza
tion and ideology

Carmichael was formerly Prime Minister of the BPP
In that capacity he was a leading spokesman for the BPI)and
it was largely through his public statements that the 13PP
onjoyed such widespread success during its efforts to
recruit new members and expand its chapters ;across the Nation

Carmichael publicly resigned from the DPP in
July 1969 primarily because he felt that the RPP should
remain an exclusively black organization whereas other
leaders of the group favored cooperation with white radical
groups

Carmichael departed from the U.S in December
1968 and resided in Africa until his return to"1he U.S
on 3/16/70 for a brief stay During his stay he has made
a number of public appearances at universities and on
television programs It was during an appearance on 4/10/70
at the NewBethel Baptist Church in Washington D C that
ho expressed his criticism of the DPP

ACTION
.4 That the attached item be furnished to a cooperative

news media source on a confidential basis It is felt that
publication of Carmichael's utterances against the L'PPmay he
used in generating additional mutual animosity between him and
the Panthers to the benefit of the Bureau

m G C
Moore_

O
SECTCOUNTERINTELLIGENCIPROGRAM 1

*BLACKNATIONALISTILTE GROUPS_I__
RACIALINTELLIGENCE
(STOKELYCAEMICIIAEL)
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UTE IN ENVELOPE

April 10
1
1

ETOICELYCAI:'.IICIIAEL1_ 1

Vociferous Stokely Carmichael perennial exponent
of black extremism leit the United State: in December
190B and since that t'irae has been studying Pan-African
ideology at the feet of deposed Ghanaian Leader crane
Nkrwaah Pan-Africani.sm atresses the unification of
blacks and the cotablishment of a land base in Africa from
which to mount black revolution against white society
The Pan-African movement under Ukrunah's leadership and
with Carmichael's most eloquent backing does not allow
for participation in any form y the hated white whether
be be radical or racially moderate

Indeed Carmichael as the foremost exponent
of the black power movement publicly resigned from his
position of Prime liinister of the Black Panther Party in
July 1909 over the black Panther Party's decision to
enter into a coalition with elements of the radical white
NewLeft moyemeut

At a public appearance at the NewBethel Baptist
Church Ninth and S Street Northwest Washington P C. on
the evening of April 10 1970 Carmichael launched a vindic
tive attack on the Black Panther Party organization and
its black-and-white-revolution-together ideology Carmichael
labeled the Black Panther Party's id^ology false and stated
it is his view blacks are unable to understand or relate
to it As 11 fearful of what might ensue CarmichaO
called for the cessation of lilac: Panther Party attacks
on him and in defense of his own position stated that if
the Black Panther Party organization does not want to join
him they should refrain from attacks on his ideology
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Seo memorandumG C Moore to Mr W C Sullivan
pril 15 1970 captioned "Counterintelligence
) flinch Nationalist (ate Groups !facial Intelligence
l.y Carmichael), prepared by



Insure the I'urcc:a'a Interest iu this matter is
completely protected :?Your alertness and interest
in forwarding this eu ceu oi are appreciated byt.tae Bureau

REOr1=3
Dirc<"to IBI _r

2M/fa

a.

r.
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EXHIBIT69-16

c1.Jr.;T2.,T,.rT. .ICr:"^s r:.crr. !t
J7./cc)
! "CXAL
(irh'.Ic:J c LL.;:i)

1 Mr T ^ .^,'J.aIiap
J !
1

Beurlet 2/9/G8

Ycu are authorised to furnish dorc':?tortabout th Nrliion Xf !clam (NOI) o r tr.'';c a saltre

wit_ ~~"" lad of results of any prcgra.i using ii:t c:ial
you

Your sh;;gceticns concerning material to'furniuh
*re good itphasine to Ili:.+that the ?i0! predilection

r....e;ice preaching of race hatred and hypocrisy should
be co:posed Mate in. furnished should be either
public ;Yrurce or Lilo= to enough pcople as to protect your
sources

(6)

NOTE

 -Boston notes who
 Is reliable discreet ..Lsi.. of c!..

-1 dero:otory ... ^UL_

Jovcra i.:i . wr?:il _"^.t"q;tiO::;uUIc ..
~rrn a i!cgro pupalationei 20,000 A Program cxpeoing the NUI'"
should be particularly valuable outhis station

.A

66-0770 76 51
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EXHIBIT69-17

1 /
11;IG"//%Ui 7/.//Ct ~: ll

TD DIRECTOR FBI DATE 2/9/68

F,ROM SAC BOSTON

st)iitcrr COUi'TERI1TT7 .ICEITCEPROGRAM
-13LAC,'CIrJT:iO`_TLIST (HATEGROUPS
IITTEDUALSE! JBITY

ReBulet to Albany 8/25/6

In connection with captioned program the
Boston Division %sulyn1tting the follotling suggestion

pro
radioid.io p a .aam over which features a

controv rsial suodect 01 1n`uelast to i,he guttural
public The program features a guest who is involved
in some way will 1-hn tnn ^ under discussion

the Bor4t 7'Llv:i ix is thoroughly reliaole and discreet
and has a high regard for the FBI

Radio Station covers the State of Rhode\
Island and large areas o: S7iithern Massachusetts

()I  Throu * program it i'f ld be
possible to presen -tnc local leader of the I"TOIin
Providence and the minister of the IIOI in Boston Mass.
in a discussion of IIOI activities aims and policies
s.,l'rirt'itnt nubile source data would be furnished

enable him to discuss subjects which
-wotlld be em::arrassi.ng for the UOI to answptr on the one

hand or to avoid answering on the other

2) Bureau (RPi)
`2'. Boston

:77,-113 RN 7A

(4) t FEB12 i!':.3
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BS

Such questions could include efforts of NOI
members to stop a car in the Sumner Traffic Tvnncl
Boston Bass. on 6/14/611 under the impreer:ion that
the occupant was MALCOLX and for the purpose oX
assassinatij him Another subject "couls'i be the
beating of ITOTmember
from 11cwIlaven Conn. _

subsequently died to his hotel room on the
hatred this group bears for the white man could be
explored as we).l as questions on local administration
of the Temples anU their methods of financing them
selves by sales of MuhammadSpeaks and donations
Still another subject could be the escapades of
ELIJAH IU:A1111ADwith respect to his secretaries

It is believed that this program properly
developed cou)d portray the NOI in its true light
It is noted that the Providence R I. area has a
Negro population estimated at about 20,000 persons

The Bureau can be assured o
discreetness and the fact that the Bureau'S'interests
will be protected.
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EXHIBIT69 18

"SAC ra va

/ct`herl.` v In c-,;l̀ It I to furnish '7SrC(:'tata
ar Lead :!! iil. (:..!cer :'!'"cxtr%'ai:^,t t1. '.c:. Ra n i gr,r.:47js

:

c vial 'sis tie uarcau cannot tie
l evudic;U"c,iLUG!sourCC.

For your ar^ ti . ?n files conte:in no
in err at io:3 co:'.cernir.e and ro da o'izatory
i.pl,uatica ceoccrr:ir,7 ! 'f7.ci:.ureauai ireciat-5
your int,7rC in the directed
against oati Y.ai t e'i rou::s Neap the !)itrc u
advise o the result ,of tMs counterintelligence action

has expressed an irtel'est in exposing
hIacl c;-:list groups xncl:!din^ du.,"1;ena
tclevir:en ,'a to t e ~)resentcd as a c'',unity
service is a fri.e.:d of the Special Agent in
Choi ,, ":.. ,;1! occ ,icn '-"nresaco his
air:!iration for the Birec2or is a respected
e!cnbcrof the co-..:v:itr/r.n5 c, ,._ :;t files reveals
no derogatory in or(;aticn Corcerninr vin or his f4leJl;ioa
station .a , a rece :-ends he be fnrni;:hcO puhlicso:rrce data
and assures this will in no way cause er.:oarrass.;en to the Bureau

NOTECO: I:':J?DPAGETO
I (

I
^tAll i'I.I:TTIIUNIT[ J

P,) 15

1
i I

Wt.:10
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Lettrr to fz C T:,-o
! ! -:,7L.::11:r::uaCl7e:C2

.'..") is ladel bv'one v.bohas
been arceatod r .7:mtrOvIv.a illtbe'.City i.<;1 at
St P,::tciaOuFlori6a,::1.f Pct.:It ect.:n.0yal-rostod-ar s,ittirr
on a poice :.ice. has,to.i.e obr t l:it zt ''oina%
revolution as;i aj'l wflite !,,_:c.plewill Cii.c.
canc the i c.ectcecre the birst racists li Statc
ana claii:ed V:'il is re0 h'sil:le for the o';'_;ator :1hcr
I;enlloay wants to teach I.:erocIrilOuen his
piiiloso.,:,y Cl batih7white people Nis or7c1lization.claills it has

sccrct rt! (terror) sc;unfl Concl:r vith a that
should be jAnilicly-cnposej Reccht:-tiarli

Divisia:i was alitboF-iacdto assist a television station 111c:(70si1l
black natibnalis:ti-emiss ardeucelle;t reslilts were obtained
Ibis operation s!:Tld also serve to noutralize the-activities of
this e:itremist 1;roup

/

RECEIVED FROM

SIT 9 1.415

FBI



frnnomalliefolIrminoin

796

EXHIBIT69-19

I.,une 0/20/C4

Via AU:TEL___  AlliMAIL
 L

TO 11,1ZECTOlt,.FBI .1
FROM SAC T2V.:PA :01

(.1 ..:.
-COITN'MBINTELL:'=CEB31007:1M

HATIOI!AI.IST HATEGROUPS
IIACLI.L11q.:1,1eIGI!iNCE

IteBulet ('6 all offices 8/5/0EL

me ,/'r/SS

L.1i:L no is pone
staiiLly on the alort,for special I.ri presented
as a cre'Mmunityserv'ice et his station is viewed
by over 500,000 persons in the Tama St F:etersburg area
He stated that becauseo.the emplr.sis being placed on
racial matters in the area at this time he is very much
.interoste'd in preparing a"special program of any organiza
tions in the field at this time He stated that he was
aware of ihe Jeete of Filitant Organiv.ations (JOMO)and its

*leader of St Petersburg He stated that of
late the',..6 en..e neen many programs particularly of the news

;- typa whore WALL1.3has bean seen agttrltine ra7ie''?,re1tuations
particularly in St Petersburg Fla
further advised that he wondered :if tnore ee some
public source material that the FBI could direct him,to
which would assist him in determining whether such a TV

T:?special would be informative and worthwhile for tIN Tampa
!:-.ISt Petersburg area

Env REr.r.'T
It is to be not,e'd thatt is a friend1

!,,,of the SACof the Tampa,/Oifice atiu sevi:ra: e;,eets of the
f TampaDivision He ha6 eupressod on many occasions great

"  e" rn
;a63 -.Bureau (RM) .i ;V,l

1 Tampa 'er 1
Va 1'"-S

i\11G
(4)

!:--;--

Approved L)  Sera M Per  
Specialyient

inCharge
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TP

admiration for the PUTand its Director hr BOOVflt and
as a matter of iact explained on :1/2:':/O. that alien he

,graduated t'rom ebIle.a 119had cOnt3ldcred applying for
the 'FBI as a Speclaft,lient brit whbn Iv. toutak that it re
quired a 1 0 :e,.'Ie went into the onteit.tinmonL field
in',tcad be :..atcd hewover i.e has al%ays boon an-FOI
 buff and crested in tho,excollont r.r.nrd d by
iho FBI It 1111 ho noted f-orthcr tha is
a very Pespt ecd m:,I.-r of tIveeTtaunity,and ha! d
actively on ecg%ni-at)ors In the Tampa ;Inca h2
has been wit acid is in,a'
Pivotal position

'Tampa believes thgf !would beah
excellent source to whomto fu;0'':'!:1 eel en 1,.atorlal'for
an expose type TVil:_:acial on JC:,:O It woild appear that
within a re onable Li-9 such a progrVm encompassing inter
v,evs ierleher with n.rclIppjngsthnt are available to

already would certitinly sprve the Countorintelli
gk.nes rt gram It nay further ho noted that the leaders of
JO::0 in it Petersburg particularly nave
been.s.ager to have idle news media cover their activities
It is also believed that having an inflated ego
will eagerly consent to interviews and because of his
emotional state it may well anticipated that he will
make wfl,Oremarks and present 0= in a most unfavorable
light in the Negro and white communities It may well be
anticipated that since .s followers are mostly teenagers
and have been prone to make wild roman:a themselves that
they will likewise present themselves i :':;favorable
light It will be netted further that has
stated that in dealing with the FBI he at no ti .viii divulge
any relationship that he has with the FBI or the fact that
they cooperated in any presentation that he might make No
stated that he could not bring himself to do anything to any
organization such as the FBI which he has admired for so
many years

Trrra thareforc feels that furnishing source material
to .for aApecial TV program will in no way
cail:.b thn,..t...;"-ani to/ the Bureau and therefore recommends
to tbe Iia:.mauthat it authorize the TampAOffice to approach

with specific information which he might
utilize o-o4anyprogram he may prepare If the Bureau approves

-2
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TP

this surSustion 'Tarpa.as;uo Us r ... that it not
furnish any intormkion to Alich could bc
traced to the FBI or which 20ise any live infornants
being.ovurated by the
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ExmmT 69-20

UNITI:1)

_t~ is

t
TO

surf cr
 k..T. (.1:061'3

C

PeTPlo 1/23/nC

Co 2/7/69 I porsonally viowad
 vors:;,onof coio-w.lf
Thi 1.'j .,,an at

Viewing on the film 11'. r n~nr! V7T.LIANS SULLIVANand Spocial Sumrvmor e s at invi
 n or SLaLlon

Tampa Pla, wko has no knowledge of i.lurcau'sinvolvement in
prodwo-rion of th:.sfilm

Also ol,sont ti,7t of ,,iowing v-rc

The film is an oxoollont production fully exploit
ing tho Junta of !:ilitant Crganimation Stu4nts for a Pcmo
cratic Society and Studont Frotost ror.onti'a1 at Tampa
St Potorshur Fla and roprosonts.maximum results of this
program

At ond of viewing was asked i.f he would
make availablo the film for closer examination by Bureau
roproscntativos no adviod that ho was most receptive to
this idea and if the Snroau would iurnish him with one-half
hour of video TV tape he would roproduce the film for the
Bureau and thoy could retain tho copy as their own

2:-Bureau
N Tampa
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Tampa believes obiainin copy this pro:fram
will h of :n:celiont not ..oAyas an aid to 7 ..:a

hnt as.a%I nld io ot:'i:r fiold diyfsionJ
in prer.3i.in simAnr yT oi onuntoiinTotIce 1n.0 v

in :=on to showir film on 2/fqG9
and at su'lion o i;i rohroaccat Chin proram
once at ;t laio'. . %%.salso rcoc:ptivo To my

to this fi grd''..u.smuch
as dTAs Ai.,orican Lc iou Rotary ec by

Guroau is requested to furI2,tsh Tf'.T :awith-one-half
hour c TVvideo tap3 in order srn,e iTtrishod i.e 1;r
FAVC:lin order that a cony of tho prograli ca.ii
b3 obtained 1;uroau at 2ultiu is
requesjcd to authof-7fac TnmnaDi :_;r

%o
! irena,F;esame locally

 4
Subsequontly 2/7/GC iadvirod that

he will obtain for th3 Eurea.0 c::..( o ta!:en in
propa:ing ion not inc.iudod in tha
program for which no,video tape necessary

Bureau will note that lluroau's particieation in
producing this program has not bnon onposed b i and
there is no indication Lnreau's affiliation wiirdeo e Lnown

'at any 1tturo date

k

*N

h ,,.i.
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EXHIBIT69-21

UNITLDSTATESCOVERtI;NT

Memorandum

 JECTB̀LACKN1TIv'_:;.LI.ET1LATEGROUPS
RACIALINTELLIG̀;C
(NATIONOF ISLA1)

This is to advise of highly successful results of counter
intelligence exposing the black extremist Nation of Islam (NOI) in
Miami Florida

Wepreviously-authorized thei-"Division to cooperate
with an established source at ~whowas
preparing a television program exposing que iduI The FOI is a
pseudo-religious organization which preaches hatred of the white
race This documentary expose of the I'OI was "shownat 9:30 PM
10/9/69 and"the audience rating for this showwas in excess or
200,000

vas elated at the response The station received
more favorable telephone calls from viewers than the switchboard
could handle Communityleaders have commentedfavorably on the
program three civic organizations have asked to show the film

to/
their membersas a public service and th County
Sheriff's Office.plans to show the film to its'off ers and in
connection with its communityservice program

This expose showedthat NOIleaders are of questionable
.character and live in luxury through the large amount of money
taken as contributions from their members The extreme nature of
N0I teachings was underscored Miamisources advised the expose
has caused considerable concern to local NJI leaders whohave
attempted to rebutt the program at each open meeting of the NOI
since the program was presented Local NJI leaders plan a rebuttal
in ;he NJI newspaper Attendance by visitors at weekly NJI meeting
has dropped 50% This shows the value of carefully planned
counterintelligence action

'jl
None For information

'i :C
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EXHIBIT69-22

;UNITEDSTATESCON.t._ IENT

Memorandum

Mr W C Sullivan DATE1/22/70

1
tom Mr G C Moor( (~^ 1

O
V

1
INECT_COUNTERINTELLIGENCEMATTERS1 I

BLACKPANTHERPARTY
RACIALMATTERS

Recommendedthat selected offices handling major fchapters of the extremist Black Panther Party (CPP) be contacted
and their recommendationsobtained regarding reliable and ",I
trustworthy contacts in the television and/or radio media-) l
whomight be interested in the preparation of programs the BPP

Letters to the Attorney General dated 1/15/70 'ana--`_1/20/70 advised him of adverse reaction of the'IWP to the
ColumbiaBroadcasting System television program `'kixty Minutes

-which devoted a segment of its 1/G/70 program to the BPP.
NewYork has recommendedthat the Bureau maywish through its
liaison with national media to encourage programs wherein tn..
BPPcan be seen in its try^ light

k U 94
Tb flPPhas_been'gettingsupport and financial

'contributions
from misguided individuals who apparently are

unaware of the true nature and motives of this violence-prone
group Wehave been attempting to counteract this and to expos(
the BPPfor what it is through our mass media program in which
the true facts regarding this organization arc" madeknownto
selected newsmedia contacts In our counterintelligence
program we have been very successful in the Miami Florida area
having two television programs shown locally on the extremist
Nation of Islam and on white hate groups This was handled
by..our MiamiOffice through a reliable contact These programs
were favorably received by the viewing aui(ionco and showed
the extremist groups involved in their trtueFFlAglit{0;0

Rather than dealing with national ymedia contacts
it is believed we should check with sd.cctcd offices handling
BPPmatters and obta1n their observations and recommendations
regarding the preparation of television and/or radio programs
on the BPPthrough established contacts locally They will
be Instructed to makeno contact at this time without prior
Bureau authority Anyconcrete proposals set forth by the
offices will be madethe subject of separate memorandabefore
any action is initiated
Enclosur /.. I !"0
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Memorandum to Mr W C Sullivan
E COUNTERINTELLIGENCEMATTERS

ACTION

If you approve the attached letter will be
directed to each selected office in line with the comments
set forth abo
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EXHIBIT69-23

1-Mr

SAC Jackson -2-26-69

L,ferenced nir_tel requests authority to furrish
;"Jackson Daily hews, with

'additional material on the MewLeft and to aid him in the
preparation and writing of a panphlet.on the history aims
and purposes of the NewLeft

It i _not felt desirable that you furnish any
nssi^ta:_ce to is p_ iar ing this p _ilct nor should yhu
dircot.bin in its preparation

Youmay however furnish him with the additional
articles included herewith relating to SD3and the MewLeft
which he mayuse in the preparation of his pamphlet

On the occasion of contacting him in this re ard
you should advise of the fact that tho bureau's interest
in this natter is to be maintained in the strictest con
fice::co and t::.^.t the Eureau's assistance is not to be rote:_^
to in his Writings

Enclosures 13

(4)

NOTE

By reairtel Jac`-son advised that
had advised the Office that he desires to puhiish a ph::rniet
setting forth the history of the NewLeft This pcuphlet will
be published and dintri'_cted with the assistance of the
,AmericanLegion whowill finance it The pamphlet will be
distributed to major colleges and a numberof hihh schools
In oho State h hava pr.:vlc _;ly fhr hi '7i:% t s
documents on t::_IIc. L^ entitled "Students for a :'csocr:..

-_ ci tho :-.i o"_
1i n vJ7Columbia ih a warning to all Ahericcn dnivcr..itic...

used these docuucnts to write a series of articles
in his paper which was well received Jackson sug;vested ihul

NOTECG:!'TINVLD1'iGi ..v
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Letter to SAC Jackson
RE COI:;TE.TPI:O  NEWLEFT

NOTECC::TINUED

it be authorized to assist in the preparation and
'writing of a pa:.:,hlet on the New Left and that it ,.raked
with additional documents to be furnished to for his
use in this rccard We are furnishing the Jackson Office with
the below listed public source material to assist in this
project with the above noted restrictions

Jackson advises
 

has been discreet trustworthy
and-reliable in previous dealings with the Bureau and he has
been contacted on many occasions in the past concerning Klan
and Civil Rights matters

'1 An Analysis of the New Left A Gospel of Nihilism

2 Message From the Director Appearing in Sept 1
1968 Law Enforcenoit Bulletin

nick E^!onl Reform Toward a Student Movement by
Mark ,Kleiman (article by SAS)

 4 Smash the Military Machine in the Schools (A
National Winter Spring Offensive) article by SDS

The Hope of Democratic Survival (A Speech by
Sidney Hook  printed in The Georgia Alumni Record)

SDS Against the World by Jonathan Rubinstein
(New York Magazine 10 14 63.)

The Rebel iousers (an article by George Nobbe  
New York Sunday News 5 5 68)

8 SDS Sets Cut on Rndical Path (article by Jac%
7 15 67 National Guardian)

Carl Davidson Outlines Four pronged Strategy
(article in 11 11 67 edition of National Guardia::)

Towards a Revolutionary Youth Movement (an article
appearing in the 1 18 d9 Guardian)
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Letter to SAC Jackson
RE! COTTr! P O NEWLErr

NOTECONTINUED

,11 Viet Vets New Recruits Reshape SDS (an article
,by Carl Davidson Guardian 11-1G-G8.)

.DS An Introduction ( a pamphlet released by
Jational Office SDS)

Don't Mourn Don't Mourz Organize Organize
SDS guide to Community Organizing



Transmitthe followingin
t
Via AIRTEL

'advised that TITe American Legion in
Mississippi would be more than willing to finance and
distribute the publication of any such pimphlet

to publish a

an

FD"36IRv 12-64)

T2 DIRECTOR FBI

L_COINTELPRO
NEWLF T

Re Jackson airtel to Bureau 10/2/68
Bureau letter to Jackson 10/18/68
Jackson letters to Bureau 11/21,22/68 and 12/4/68

FROM SAC JACKSON

FBI

Date 2/11/69

(Typeinplain/cxrorcode)

 AIRMAIL
(Priority)

t
A

On 2/7/69
Jackson ~`iississippi advised that he has recently

been receiving inauirtes and references to the series of
articles in the Jackson Daily News from
11/19/68 through 11/26/68

advised that he desires
pamphlet setting forth history aims purposes et cetera
in order to ridicule the "New Left particularly in
Mississippi In his pamphlet he intends to set;,forth
subversive affiliations in the "New Left and tb shed
unfavorable light on "New Left activities

tc 1(44 L.)t 3 Bureau (It-1)
2 Jackson

66-0770 76 52
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advised that the pamphlet would be distributed
to major colleges junior colleges and a number of high sal:cis
in Mississippi

has been most cooperative in the past and
has been contacted on many occasions by Bureau Agents
regarding various matters in related investigations primarily
concerning the Ku Klux Klan and/or civil rights activities in
the State of Mississippi He is friendly discreet reliable
and is a loyal American

Reference is made to Bureau letter to Jackson dated
October 18 1968 in which the Bureau furnished material which
was extremely valuable to in providinn with back
ground information on the New Loft in the
series of artcles 11/19/68 through 11/26/63

REQUESTOF THE BUREAU

The Jackson Division recuests Bureau :,roval to
contact  to aid him in the preparation anu L_it_iag c
his proposed pamphlet

If above request approved additional material if
available m New Left be forwarded to Jackson

The Jackson Division desires to know if pamphlets or
other publications to ridicule the L:it hrv  

If so Bureau is requested to furnish thesgaparr h1.uts and
publications in order to exhibit them to to aid I:La
in his preparation of a pamphlet



Authority is granted to contact Or the
purpose of furnishing him copies of the material submitted as
enclosures to relet

809

EXHIBIT69-25

SAC San Francisco 7-2-70

Direct
o1

FBI
~~

REC
IINSTITUTEFOR POLICYSTUDIES
1520 Row Hampshire Avenuo N.N
Washington D C
IS MISCELLANEOUS
SF file _
Bufilo

COINTELPRO
NEWLEFT
SF fil
Bufilo

ReSFlot 6-15-70

On the occasion of your contact with
a4 iac aiiia tLat cir `. :ccc iz :'c t :go the
Bureau's interest in this uattor

Your interest in participating in the counterintelli
gence program is ayprociated and you should continuo to give
it close attention

I~igILED~
(7) XL2 1970

NOTE comm-Fer
By r let San irancisco submitted col es of eight

documents all of :public source nature Son I nooi -v
recorrendcd that this uatcrial b'C furnished to

an
established source ox tho San Francisco O_Iic with the
suggestion that heni^.ht wish to nr^nnro no .rtir_le on :'e
activities of the a ~.. :...)ft-typo
organization located in San Francisco and 'ad affiliate
of the Institutii;d for Policy Studios...

7 L



No =SING-S;?TEL IT13
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EXHIBIT69-26

Memorandum

TO DIRECTOR FBI DATE 6/15/70

molt  SAC SANFRANCISCO
ham ~ i

SUBJECT NSTITUTEFORPOLICYSTUDIES
1520 New Hampshire Avenue N.W
Washington D.C
IS FIISCELLANEOUS
SF file
Bufile

COINTELPRO
NEWLEFT
SF f" __
Bufile

Re Report of SA at San Francisco
dated 6/15/70

Enclosed for the Bureau are the following

A copy of an article in` "Barron's weekly
r^ega?i ne r:aptione"r i4adiel Think Tank"_ from
the 10/6AP issue

A copy of an article in "Barron's
captioned-Z--or Tower Activists, tom the
10/13/69 issue of "Barron's

r 11
A pamphlet concerning a meeting of the

Committee of Concerned Asian Scholars of
Stanford University to he held 4/3/70 at
Glide Memorial Church in San Franc co

A newspaper article from the ".regon
Dai meral.a issue of 4/10/7') ca cioned

e,0.ei sberg--Possible Ecology Not Ef.ective " .-; e
/Q 111C!tS v~ .
V

Bureau Cnc 3)
(2
(2

4 San Franci c.
(2 .fUN-1.91970
(2

(0)
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An article from the "Daily Californian
issue of 10/19/65 fitzenbach Protests SOS.

Article from th^ "Daily Californian
'issue of 11/4/65 cartior.ccl~VDC Uay 1lold

Legal March

An article from the "Daily Californian"
issue of 2/4/G6 captioned i>lrelan's office
Locked

(C) 'A Eilank page containing two tvperd
notices.of articles in the "Ann 'r'or :!ew.s
Ann Ari>or Michigan dated 3/24 and 25/65
concerning ALLANaAnER

Articles 4 through 7 contain characterizati9 of

It is rrrronwrnrind that a_coov of the enclosed he
furn Fhee to
_ who is an cstablisacc source o, ;Lhe
San Franckmo Office and has been used on prior occasions
under COI:3'r;:LProgram with the suggestion that
may wish to write an article concerning the activities of
the Bay Area Institute which is located in San rrancisco



r
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EXHIBIT69-27

SAC New Yorl 10/?8/G3

REC-123 1.
'Director FBI

COINTELPP.O NFWLEFT

r~ T'o
Reurlet 10/16/GSC.A_i.it

Authority is granted to send a letter signed with
a fictitious name to the editors of "Life magazine
Furnish the Bureau the results of your action

(7)

NOTE

A(

is the Editor of "Realist and is one of
the=.moving forces behind the Youth Intonational Party
commonly known as the Yippies is a spo::esman for
the New Left "Life magazine recently

.is
an article

favorable to bin New York's proposed letter takes -issue
with the publishing of this article a d points out that the
"Realist is obscene and that is a nub This
letter could if printed by "fife, cR'l attention to the

unsavory character of

MAILED21

OCT2u1S58



.DIRECTORFBI DA'#'E1(10/16/66

letter to the editors of "Life on an anonymousboats
is noted that the "Life article was favorable to

I c
(2' Bureau (m-)
1 NewYork

(3) Raytic t.:riot 13,:.!I;.rv!.rrh

RewardRasmussen
Nroo::1n College School of

'General Studies

813

EXHIBIT69-28

Memorandum

"I
PROM SAC NEWYGRK (P)

susjecr
3 a. COINTELP!J NEWLEFT

Thi 10/!t/Ea..issue_of .1rife mgc9zine"contained a three
page fe turo on  nS_9oRlist and sr.1
styled hippie _ TBuf310 Nyfile

/ia)
s carried on the RI of the WO

yBureau authority is requested to send the following

Sirs

Your recent issue eOctebev_'13th)which devoted
_three pages to the arrrnndizement of underground

was Leo too much Your..us;a
be hard up for material AmI asking the impossible
by requesting that and his ilk be left in
the sewers where they belong

That a national magazine of your fine reputation` (still nowthat is) wculd waste time and effort on
the cuckoo editor of an unimportant smutty little
rag is incomprehensible to mo Gentlemen you must
be aware that "Realist is nothing_more than blatant
obscenity

Your feature editor would Co well to read a
few back issues of "Realist Try thec.grticle in
1963 following the assassination of President Kennedy
which describes disc ting nec_rofhilism on the part
of LBJ To classify as somesort of "social
rebel is far too cute Hers a nut a raving unconfined
nut As for any possible intellectual rewards to La
gleaned from ""edlist muchhotter prccc maybe i'::""xi
on lavatory walls p r 53

If this article is n portent of thinks to come
 Life count no out gentlemen, count no outt$OCi~
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EXHIBIT69-29

6/25/70
1
1
1

Airtal 1

.X-11
1

To

From

SAC Los Angeles
Ra 1R

Director FBI 1

OOUtrfERIt:TSLLIGE:iCiPrccn J
BLACKHATIONALICTHATEGROUPS
RACIALI)+^,ELLIGE:ICE
BLACKPANTIIERPARTY

ReLAairtel 6/17/70

Youare authorized-'to-nrepare_a-letter as set
forth in relet and mail to the Hollywood
"gossip columnist Insure that nailing cannot tie traced
to the Bureau

(B)

NOTE\

Los Angeles proposed'that a letter from a fictitious
person be sent to Hollywood"gossip columnist of the
"Daily Variety in connection with his columnon 6/11/70
indicatins Jane Fonda noted film actress would attend a
Black Panther Party fund raising function on 6/13/70
The proposed letter states the writer attended the function
and was searched upon entering urged to contribute funds
for jailed Panther leaders and to buy guns for "4,ie comingrevolution. Also that Jane and one of the Panthers led
a refrain "Wewill kill Richard Nixon and any other M..:.-'F .. whostands in our way. It can be expected that
Fonda's involvement with the CPPcause could detract from
her status with the general public if reported in a
Hollywood'bossili column 1



TO DIRECTOR FBI

FROM SAC L0S ANGELES (P)

REC16
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EXHIBIT69 30

Date 6/17/70

'nsmitthefollowingin (Typeinplainteotorcode)

 AIRTEL AIR MAIL REGISTERED
(Priority)

RE COUNTERINTELLIGENCEPROGRAM
BLACK NATIONALIST-HATEGROUPS

RACIALINTELLIGENCE
BLACKPAJTHERPARTY(BPP)

Re Los Angeles teletype to Bureau 6/15/70
entitled "COMMITTEEUNITEDFOR POLITICALPRISONERS(CUPP)
IS-MISCELLANEOUSTHREATAGAINSTPRESIDENTNIXON

Bureau authority is requested in sending the following
letter from a fictitious person to "Hcllywood
"gossip columnist for the "Daily Variety who noted in his
V11/70 column that JANE FONDA noted film actress was to be
present at the 6/13/70 Black Panther Party fund raising
function sponsored by CUPPin Los Angeles It is felt that
knowledge of FONDA's involvement would cause her embarrassment
and detract from her status with the general public

"Dear

I saw your article about Jane Fonda in 'Daily
Variety last Thursday and happened to be present
for Vadim's 'Joan of Arc's performance for the
Black Panthers Saturday night I.hadn't been
confronted with this Panther phenomena before but
we were searched upon entering Embassy Auditorium
encouraged in revival-like fashion to contribute to
defend jailed Panther leaders and buy guns for
'the coming revolution and led by Jane and one of

 Bureau (KM)
2 San Francisco (RN)
2 Los Angeles

(6)

\paro d
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LA 15?-4054

the Panther chaps in a !we will kill Richard
Nixon and any ,other M F who stands
in our way refrain (which was shocking to say
the least!) I think Jane has gotten in over
her head as the whole atmosphere had the 1930fs
Munich beer-hall aura

"I also think my curiosity about the Panthers
has been satisfied

"Regards

/s/ "Morris

If approved appropriate precautions will be taken
to preclude the identity of the Bureau as the source of this
operation



Enc

1

'off ~ L!!!211
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EXHIBIT69-31

July 6 1971

Mr Mohr

Re LEONARDB BOUDIN
ATTORNEYFORDANIELELLSBERG

BymemorandumR D Cotter to C D Brennan
datedJune28 1971 it was recommendedandapprovedthat
pertinentinformationconcerningBoudin

beusedin connectionwiththeMassMediaProgram

IThis paragraph indicates that information about Boudin's
political and legal defense activities was "called to
the attention of a reporter for a national news service
The FBI believed this information would discredit Boudin

ACTION

For information

REC.3

T E Bishop 1571

c
 v"~ 1 1

1% 1~~_ i ,.7yt~"y~1,~cR"JI/'rn.:~.v
~

 l1 .~.,~~ ~.;"c~J
 ~ is ( \

 P JUL1.

 Vi" to !`;. l/(t~ oi... .(ii(IhYf+

. lq

1
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Documents Pertaining to the "Huston Plan
Cointelpro and Other Practices and Programs

Subsequent publication of the Klan's activities resulted in a number
of Klan officials ceasing their activities and no information was

developed indicating the Klan was able to expose informants through
the use of the polygraph

2 On February 29 1972 FBIHQ responded to a

request of the Louisville Field Office authorizing an anonymous
letter be forwarded to a Black Panther Party (BPP) office in
New York City This anonymous letter contained a newspaper clip
ping discrediting one _ :a black extremist

endeavoring to affiliate with the Cleaver Faction of the BPP Subse

quently it was determined that "seeds of doubt concerning Simmons

leadership qualities had been planted at the Cleaver Faction
Headquarters

Information relating to the above proposals and
authorizations did not appear in any Cointelpro-type file of this
Bureau The proposals and authorizations were handled in substan
tive organizational and individual files and no copies were placed
into a Cointelpro file The FBI communications approving the two
actions were reviewed by various officials at FBIHQ Office proce
dures in effect in Director J Edgar Hoover's office at the time
indicate both proposals were approved by Mr Hoover
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EXHIBIT70-1

TILEATTORhZTCB1d.Cr3AL Pay 8 1958

Director FBI

COIWWUIIISTPANTY USA
INTERNALSECURITY. C

I thought you would be Interested in .the following
information

In August of 1956 this Bureau initiated a program
designed'to promote disruption within the ranks of the
Communist Party (GP) USA In this connection we have
since capitalized on :any situations that have developed
within that organization For example following the
denunciation of Stalin by Ynrushchcv in February 1956 ero
the revelation of widespread anti-Semitism throughout the
Soviet Union the domestic communist organization ucs split
into divergent views which extended fro%: the rank-and-file
membership ,to the top leadership P.ecognzing the potential
offered by this situation we attempted to perpetuate this
discension since to do so would tend to prevent the CP from
concerted action in furtherance of their conspiratorial
activities

Several techniques have been utilized to accomplish
our objectives As an ezamAle we have,briefcd carefully
selected informants in the largest CT districts to engage
in controversial discussions around such issues as Soviet
intervention in the I:ungarian revolution and the cult of
Stalin as well as to be critical of certain leadership
factions both locally and nationally Acrimonious debates
ensued suspicions were aroused and jealousies fomented
In addition we resorted to anonymous mailings to active C 
members otherwise inaccessible who might be affected by
anticommunist material These mailings were directed
principally to those who had serious doubts regarding the
.competence of Party leaders and their ability to carr:r.~ou
'the stated aims of the organization and concerning whom
defection ups considered 'a:distirct possibility fccn
ouitablc cnticcraur.ist material uas unavailable for the
purpose we conducted research and preparedi documents o
meet our icmediatc.remlircaCrLtz.
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TITEATTORNEYGENERAL ./

In recent months we have received Indications of
tangible accomplishments achieved by this program in the
nature of disillusionment and defection among Party 7embers
and increased factionalism at cli levels of=the organization
The program itself has created consternation within the CP
Party leaders are unable to determine whether these operations
are Government inspired or represent activities of dissident
elements -inside or;outside'the Party

Aa a matter of information there is enclosed one
copy each of two pamphlets prepared by this Bureau and
utilized under this program in connection with anonymous
mailir.3s These docurients;have been particularly effective
To illustrate the degree of concern of the Party leadership
the most recent develcpnent_is noteworthy.

THIS 5C.oJe,v RAS BC(*) C/c s p h ,r Cet'LO /Onvr'fY
/NFeRnR,vrs P?av/O,ro6 Cc C-R/16! c"% Faat'.o.~J %N:c(c/~c,v,t"`
/7Arr6RS

The above data is also-being made available to
the Honorable Robert Cutler at the White P.oiuse for the
information of tho President

 "~

Enclosures (2)



?'onorablc Robert P I:enncdy
LoonsM-13
Department of Justice Cuildinn
ilasair.;ton A C

A copy of this letter and a copy of its
attccl:aent r.rc vein^ furnished to the honorable Byron R
suite The information in the attechment is also
bciil; furnished to the ;:ororablc Dean ;:us:
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EXHIBIT70-2

`~~nuary..10 1161

Dear Bob

Enclosed for your information is a
sean ry ne:aoru:::tal sotti fort: the over-all
activities of the Cc:-r.iu st Party L: (CL'CL.:)
and its threat to t::u internal security o the
Unite States 'ibis n:e_rorr.Cu.i clearly reveals
the CiUS.%as part of the international coLruutist
conspiracy end the Party's complete c'".oait:ation by
and su::servicnce to the Co;x:ur.ist i"arty of the
Soviet Union

Oar responsibiliticsiin the internal
security field an: our cats:teratt;;c a"ait:st the
Cl'U arc also set out. in Aids ii Eecause
of-the nature of sn:a of the material coi.t<i^c'i in
the enclosure it is re:!uestcd that its contents
be afforded careful security and its use restricted
to a raved-to-:.now basis

 I Sincerely
5[Nr UNoc 51CMAr dF
Or O,icc rc.=1 POI

Lndlosure
1 I'onorablc Byron R tihitc (Enclosure)
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January 1.0 1961

C0'"DIUNISTPARTYUSA

THETImEAT I

Tho Corrunist Party USA(CPUSA)prosents a greater
menace to the internal security of our Nation today than it
ever has since it was first fot;nded in this country it 1919
Tho dangerousness of the CI'USAcannot bo evaluated excent in
the light of its relationshin to the international communist
conspiracy and.its tiea to the Soviet Union In this-regard
it is well to note that the rate of progress achieved by the
international communist-offensive is unparalleled in history
In the past 43 years it has advanced steadily and surely
never varying its eventual goal of dominating the world
until today its c pire'cxtends from East Germany to China
This empire is so vast and sprawling that when night settles
on its riostern frontier datm already is breaking on its
eastern frontier This internatior.a.l communist conspiracy
controls one"fo:rth of the land area and approximately one
third of the inhabitants of the earth

Tho CPUSAis z vital lint in .this world-wido con
spiracy It utilizes elaborate security measures to conceal
its operations while vigorously promoting front groups as"well
as other concealed outlets in furtherance of its clandestine
pursuits It is completely dominated by ttnd is subservient
to the Comnulnist Party (CP of the Soviet Union This fact
has been made abundantly clear on a number of occasions some
of which are

TIfts PORrioN /iAi OZ'E. L1C/fEa Ac it Cc:iJ

WrNrirr SCN+ r,.'( 5oi.('CFs /VCY,OiC"i/Nis,Rnmriav CeAJ(CRn..No
e PUSH l--oNCri~,~,"4c.
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TI/is rcn r ,A ~-l1s OLkv Cp'e,5ca /JS rr r'CrcJ ruC.vrrvY
5-LN.5 .rr'ESu'i'.2ces 1'R V,nrn'v is Rn;Or,,n Cc//CCKN..~c~('~'~4
r6'Np.r C ANJ TRQYL Aa,ono 3Y cP s'q f1 V r ~n~'cs

^J _ >
In light of the above it can be readily seen that

the seriousness of the domestic threat from a Soviet-do.:inated
CP in the United States is in direct ratio to the world threat
posed by its nastecs in the Soviet Union

The CPUSAat its 17th National Convention held behind
closed doors in NewYork City in Deca7ber 1959 outlined a
vigorous program aired at ir.filtratiuo_everv_Lccaof American
life Intil.is_respect /7 cp i cnoc

/ declared "ilo want to participht-e in organize
and lead the broadest of united front novericnts--on every level-
in 1,000 ways in 10,000 places on 100,000 issues--if possible
with 1CO,000,000 people. Included in the principal targets for
infiltration are youth ninority groups Negro organizations
labor unions nass organizations education and American politics

Under the leadership o! a Moscow-trained
L-fnoc/ the Party is driving to increase its membership and

.influence on the American scenic

66-0770 76 53



824

FBI Re,SPOsrILITlLS

Our responsibilities in the internal security field
are twofold (1) to collect intelligence information and
disseminate it to appropriate Government agencies and (2) to
obtain legally admissible evidence for prosecution under
existing Federal statutes

By Presidential Directive dated September 6 1939
the FBI :,^s designated as the civilian intelligence agency
primarily responsible for protecting the 2;aiion'o internal
security Since that date it tas been the FBI s duty to
investigate subversion within the United States and to
correlate all information relating to America's internal
security and disseairato those data to interested Federal
agencies Federal laws within the FBI s jurisdiction aimed
primarily at the CPUSAare the Snith Act of 1940 the Internal
Security Act of 1950 and the Communist Control Act of 1954

FBI CCWTfl TTACI

The FBI's counterattack against the CPUSAis many 
pronged Some of our more effective proirzegs are penetration
of the Party at all levels with security informants use of
various techniques to keep the Party off balanco and disillusion
individual communists cpncernino cer<unist ideolog investiention
of every I:::c:n member of the CFJSAin order to determine whether
ho should be detained in the event_of a national emergency and
gathering evidence to be used in prosecutions of communists and
communist organizations

7F//t PCar/cJ/ 'us a It A fyc/5 v AS ,t t U
/o /Fr 5'E',,s r,V( Sr."5̂ GFj /",P.0V,Oin/F /~'~ %inrnr"~i

C:'NC~?N/NGC/'C5/1 ,rG'NO/NG
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THiS /'F rro,v //AS GCf,v  crsr,7 :9"~ i, .C~.cp
/OF,/ t SCvs vc Se vOCfs PRoV,Oid iai  "../A7r.c, 

eNCfin,v, G'"USA FG,vo ve /IN') 'Cr // rS i13"teftD

As an adjunct to our regular -investigative operations
wo carry or-fa-carefully planned program of countcrattacl against
the CPUSAwhich %ceps it off balance Our primary purpose in
this program is to bring about disillusiornen't on the part of
individual members which is'carried on from both inside and out
side the Party organization

In certain instances we have been successi'ul in areventin
communists from seizing control of legitimate mass organizations
and have discredited others who wero secretly operating inside
such organizations Por exannio during 1959 we were able to
prevent the CPUSAfrom seizing control of the 20,000-member
branch of the National Association for the Advancement of Colored
Pcoplo in Chicago Illinois
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Wearc keeping abreast of the activity of the CPUSA
which is attenpfinn through its programs to infiltrate Ancrican
institutions and groups and to increase its influence on the
American scene by intensive investigation into every facet of
its activity Over the years are have invustiated thousands of
individual nenbcrs of the CPUSAin order to determine whether
they might constitute a potential danger to the internal security
of the country in time of a national emergency Tho results of
these investigations are furnished various departments and
agencies of the 2necutive Branch of the Government when infor
mation is developed during the course of tiro investigations of
interest to then The dissemination of this information enables
these departments and agencies of the Government to t:d:c wi:at
over action is,necessary from a policy standpoint as it relates
to the security of their operations

Prosecution has been a najor weapon against the CPUSA
Tho Department of Justice first instituted prosecution against
loaders of the CPUSAi'n Nc1YYork City in 1943 Since that time
prosecution has boon instituted against numerous individual con

, munist functionaries against the CPUSAas an organization
against communist front organizations and against Libor unions
controlled and dominated by communist elements The primary
evidence in all of these prosecutions was furnished by our
security informants :e have made available approxinately 100
Security informants for testimony in these cases

Tho Supreme Court of the United States is presently
considering communist cases under the Internal Security Act of
1950 and the "Slith Act of 1940 As was e::uected CPUSAfunc
tionaries have indicated the Party will go underground if a
decision is rendered against then by the Supreme Court Should
this occur we will of course through our informants attempt
to go underground with them and thus keep advised of their
activities and whereabouts
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EXHIBIT70-3

Attoroey Conerol

W.reotor

5eptoTNbor17 1559

efctcnce is mode to by coromoication of S3i.e 13
1939 conccrhfh:c tho stcch3th of the Sion.'ti _1L

1 .'etou_7-htyou would be Lnterest3d in 1carnin
of thc sIniii.t.7roress we Love _..co by ouc L3 our
ihcstticn of t:c .3 :.au= ;arm L)crin the lost
:J.oral o.cnci.s oad yollsvario3s ootioel cod stotc

!Ns Isno of .corica 13=:of la prison
re L.ccL.c.. ottempce-1 to ne;ate.the octivitlus of tho
te7--porory lcoucrs of tLe MI ;du= ici i

t!%acor2ful us:a ood instruction of seloated
racial ihioln%owe hove b ca able to iaitlote o slit

the .:..::cc lono of .._erica in :orolioa
o;:lit cs cvlcocco hy a :Ion roily ...id in Concord

.c.tf.goser 15 1965 :ro:ti.motely
15 ;Ia c.00chio corOs .,re tcl:ocl to a cross Lod
burned to sinfly tlLls breach

"e rill cootinue tc give ull''sttentien re our
res:oasibiliLics In LI cffort to accoct,.l,tsa L13 zA.imu2
;o!::slola reutrolinctlon of tta Vla .1/ x

% T::o ;e;outy 4:ttorney Ceacral

a ;.ssistant i,ttorney Geoexal -;4.alaol DiVIslon

.:ss1stont .;ttorney Tnterrol Locurity Civlsiaa

1 ssiotont :.ttoroy lenernl Civim m,mvismon 1

'ii.gSbid .:,.141L
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EXHIBIT71-1

JNITEDSTATESGOVtRN".LENT

Alemoranalim
t

ov MR W C SJLLI4AN DATE October 2 1964

Rom M D. E J!OOR5/ c9

')LJECT

f the

ESPIONAGE

Prior memoranda have advised of the starting of the trial
illegal agents in this case Mr and Mrs Robert K

altch in the Eastern District of NewYork and motions by defense
ounsel regarding the nature of,evidence to be submitted in this
ase

The Judge originally denied the motions but Assistant At
orney General Yeagley has advised that USAHoey in answering questions
y the Judge gave answers which were too broad and which the Govera.^..en
anuot supt and therefore it is necessary for the Government to make
d"tional statements to Judge Dooling who is sitting in this case to
h astern District of NewYork Mymemorandumof September 30 1961
Nutted that while we were not aware of the contents of the conver
ations between USAHoey and Judge Dealing we had no objections to
eagley's proposed amending statement as it was correct

Subsequently on the afternoon of 10-1-64 Departmental At
orneys Thomas K Hall and Kevin Daroney advised Supervisor
nd myself that USAHoey's statement to Judge Dooling was un-orruna.o.
,ecausc it was too broad They believe that the Judge's query per
wined to any tainted source at the Baltch residence and '.:as con_ineo
.o eavesdropping devices but that Hoey in his answer had not confined
'he answer to the residence or to eavesdroppi":g either of which wouid
.erhaps have prevented the current problem ,No information obtained
rod wiretaps or microphones is contemplated co be used in this case
nd the only tainted source is a mail intercept which did not take

dace anywhere near the residence

Subsequently on the evening of 10-1-64 Mr Hall advised
hat he had just learned that apparently Hoey in his discussions
'ith the court had stated or at least indicated there
'as no microphone involved in:this case and of course this was
incorrect and the Department felt the record had to be corrected He
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asked if the Bureau had any objection and was advised in the negative
This morning Yr Hall called to advise that USAHoey had new requester
advice as to what answer could be given the court should he be asked
(1) if there was a wiretap involved in this case and (2) if there was
a mail intercept in this case After checking I called Hall back and
said that we would leave the answer to 1 up to the Department but
that if the Department saw necessary the Bureau would not object
However with regard to under no circumstances is the Bureau will
ing to admit that a mail intercept was utilized and Hall said he would
pass this information on to Hoey and Assistant Attorney General Yeagley
who is in NewYork

Hall advised that he had discussed this case with-Acting At
torney General Katzenbach this morning and Katzenbach was of the
opinion that the Department must be candid with the Judge He said
Katzenbach recognized the problems but felt that in view of the value
of the case an effort should be made to go ahead with the trial aven
if it might be necessary drop the overt act where our taited source
is involved and proceed on a.general conspiracy basis with the recog
ni'ion that the verdict might be against us but we would have revealed
Iv Soviet espionage activities to the people Hall said he was pass
ing on the Acting Attorney General's comments to Assistant Attorney
General Yeagley Hall said that the motions of defense counsel and the
complications with regard to the answers may eventually fo = he Govern
ment to drop the prosecution He said in view of the many facets in
volved he did not feel there was any reason to agree to a pre-tril
hearing on the issue of tainted source if this should be required by
the court and rather than do this they are prepared to drop the es
pionage charges and attempt to proceed on lesser grounds

ACTION
._A

SAC NYO was advised of the above developments and
requested to keep in close 'touch with Yeagley in New York and you will
be kept advised of developments
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EXHIBIT71-2

UNITEDSTATESU ERNNENT

Memorandum

Mr Tolson eAu,0_2/27/66

FROM A H Belmont

SUCJecrTHELONGCOMMITTEE

The Attorney General called on the morning
February 27 1965 to advise he wanted to consult with the
Bureau on certain problems raised by the LongCommittee which
is exploring the use of mail covers et cetera He noted there
was a po ble problem concerningchief Ins ectorM tague's
testimonyJand whether it was neces.;ry for!ontagueJ o change
his testimony Also he felt that Internal RevenueService had
been using inv stigative techniques which they should not use
and this could pose a problem He said 'chat the President had
asked him to coordinate with all executive agencies concerning
the problems raised by the LongCommittee

Inspector Mooreand I met with the Attorney General in
'his

office this afternoon Mr Courtney Evans was present I
told the Attorney General that in Llontague's testimon3+]hewas
told by Attorney Fensterwald that if ap.yof the questions had
national secur t,y implicationsEEontagueJshould not answer them
Consequently Montaguewas estopped from doing other than answering
in the negative whenasked questions touching on national
security With this interpretation it was questionable whether
an attemflt should be madeto change or exnlain/lontague's
teet.imnn_vL

1 t madeit cle r to the Attorney General that from our dealings
wt'th Montague he was a manof integrity andsacrificed his
personal desires for the welfare of the country and had cooperated'  f4flly with us The Atto ney General said he had no intention

"." of hanging one word of Montague's testimony but he was
considering advising Longand Fensterwald that there were

r.l extreme delicate national security matters touching on the areas
belag covered by the committee and there could be exceptions to
the answers given in the testimony whenthey touched on such
sensitive security matters He said further that lie contemplates
seeing Senator Longand impressing on him that the committee
wouldnot want to stumble by mistake into an area of extreme
interest to the national security as they nearly_did in_a matter_

1
2
1
1I=

AHB ~\\

CONTINUEDOVER
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Memorandumto Mt Tolson
Re The LongCommittee

nffrrtinn !`TA

Katzenbach contemplates
asking for a list of the witnesses whowill appear before the
committee together with a brief summaryof the expected testimony
On the basis of this he will be able to advise Senator Long
whenhe should steer clear of a sensitive area

I told Mr Katzenbach that I certainly agree that this
matter should be controlled at the committee level but that
I felt pressure would have to be applied so that the personal
interest of Senator Long becameinvolved rather than on any
ideological basis Mr Katzenbach said that he had already
talked to Vice President Humphreyabout Fensterwald

and that Humphreyhad promised to talk
to Long concerning Fensterwald Katzenbach said that in
addition to the Vice President he might have to resort to
pressure from the President himself although he would prefer
to work it out without resorting to the President He indicated
*here was no one on the committee itself.who could be heloful

Mr Katzenbach said that he expected troublefrom the
possible activities of IRS and the military in the investigative
field that if someof these matters are uncovered before the
committee they will tend to undermine the restricted and
tightly controlled operations of the Bureau I told him that
our operations are tightly controlled and particularly in the
delicate areas of concern we restrict ourselves to important
security matters

Mr Katzenbach said he was going to see Senator Long
Ion Mondayand wanted to knowif the Bureau would like someone

jto
go along with him I told him no

ACTION

Mr Katzenbach said he would advise us of the results
of his conversation with Long He also asked that I advise
the Director of our discussion and I told him I would
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Memorandumto Mr Tolson
Re The LongCommittee

I c led Mr DeLoachand briefed him on tkiis
problem in'rdWr that he might contact Senator Eastrlan4tinan
effort to warn the LongCommitteeaway from those areas whichwould be injurious to the national defense (Of couse I made
no mention of such a contact to the Attoxney General.)
Mr DeLoachadvised that Senator Eastrdan%liain Mississippi and
he will contact him upon his return Monday
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EXHIBIT71-3

March 2 154;5
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EXHIBIT72

OE VIETNAMVETERANSAG'.INSTTHEIWAR/".TINTERSOi.DIER
ORGANIZATION(VVA';i/'^S0)

In June 1967 of
the C ani,nist tarty (CPUSA)commented on the forth
coming i968 national elections stated t'.at the CPUS^
must devolou guidelines for the political campaieee and must
asset in the develoir:snt of any 166E car..?ainn which was
antiwur in character and not limited to either major
political party On September 10 1967 the C1USi publication
"The 1tioricer, announced that the organization VVAPhad been
forced in June 1967 as a nonmembership organization made
up of Vietnam veterans who were couosed to the war This
comneinist publication rovided the purpose of \O'f.7 as
opposition to the "unjustified war in Vietnam It announced
that VVAWhad joined "the dissent of millions of Americans
against the war.

An initial limited inquiry was begun by the
Federal Pure a of Investigation (FBI) in September 1967
to determine through incuiries with established sources
and pub] is source 'a teriol if the C 'USAwas directing or
conttollie the newly _nee limited -y
failed to estahlieh that the C=USP or any other subversive
organization er.crc_ser direction or control over VVA The
limited inquire die indicate that VV?` leadership ar-eared
before the Socialist ^:or::ers ='arty (S?SP)sponsored t.ilitant
Labor Forum in NowLori City but there was no indication of
any control by the Si';'_ With the absence of such direction
or control by any subversive organization the limited
inquiry of VVA was closed in October 1967 A similar
limited inquiry was conducted in 1968 resulting in a 
updated affirmation that VVAWwas not controlled or dominated
by any subversive group This second limited inquiry was
closed in nay 19:68 huri.ng the limited inquiries in
1967 and 1968 the National ilcadouerters of VVAWre's
located in New Vor:b City VVAWactivities were primarily
devoted to participation in and ar:anizetion of
demcnstretions a 'Dosin the par in Vietnam No full
investigation ers conducted or the II1 of \TAWuntil
August 167] when information from a vec cty of sources
dictated the need to determine the extent of control
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over VVAWby subversive groups and/or violence-prone
elements in the antiwar movement Sources had provided
information that VVAWwas stockpiling weapons VVAWhad
been in contact with North Vietnam officials in Paris
France VVAWwas receiving funds from former CPUSA
members and VVAWwas aiding and financing U.S military
deserters Additionally information had been received
that some individual chapters throughout the country
had been infiltrated by the youth groups of the CPUSA
and the SWP A trend of increased militancy developed
within the VVAWand the possibilities of violence
escalated within the organization During December
1971 VVAWmembers forcibly and illegally occupied or
surrounded public buildings and national monuments in
New York City Philadelphia Austin Texas and
Washington D C

During 1972 the FBI estimated that VVAWhad
approximately 1,800 members and 102 chapters throughout
the country VVAWclaimed 23,000 members and 283 chapters
In 1972 some leaders and activists in the VVAWmade
trips to Europe and Asia during which they participated
in conferences with representatives and/or officials of
the Soviet Bloc North Vietnam and the National
Liberation Front (NLF) of South Vietnam VVAWleaders
informed the membership that VVAWhad been asked to
cooperate on an international level with many organizations
including communist or Maoist groups describing these
groups as "our friends. When reporting on trips to
Paris Moscow and Hanoi VVAWleaders indicated the
organization was dedicated to ending imperialist
aggression and establishing a firm relationship with
the NLF

In June 1972 a delegation of fifteen VVAW
members and leaders attended a war crimes conference near
Paris The conference which included representatives
of North Vietnam and the NLF was sponsored by two
Trotskyist organizations in France One of the VVAW
national officers addressed this conference and it was
reported that the French Communist Party had paid for
the expenses of the VVAWcontingent at the conference

During October 1972 the National Steering
Committee (NSC) of VVAWmet and discussed the direction
of VVAWand the need to make it an anti-imperialist
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political group rather than "just another croup of war
veterans. :lost of the snea.cers participating at this
meeting enpressed their views indicating V"v7 was
utilizing a ::ar;:ist-oriented analysis of world problems
Additionally it was indicated that VV:_Iihad established
relations with the Irish epublican Army had contact
with tho Angolans and was attenpting to establish
liaison with the Peoples :Iepublic of China (P C)

In April 1072 the organization chanced its
name to V` :;l/:.inter Soldier Organization (VV J/W00)
The chance was made in order to absorb into the organi
zation individuals who were not veterans of military
service

ry April 1072 VVAg'/"01::0 leadership claimed
to have connections with over 003 foreign organl.nations
and maintained t VVAW/:1:,0was considered a credible
organization by these organizations In October 1073
representatives of.'V /'."SO attended and participated in
the world Peace Congress :Ioscow Ii.S.3.2

In 1073 an ideological split became evident
within the national lo ^,!;;n of VV.''/70 The split
arose between those espousing the ''ar;:ist-Leninist
doctrine and those espousing the .'argist-Leninist
doctrine as interpreted by ::.17 Tse tong During 1073
the anti :.'aoist ::artist-Leninist group seemed to be
dominant and e::presscdi deternination in educating the
VVAW/JS0membership in their doctrine 3y 1073 VVA:i/;";CO
was composed of approzi:aately 130 chapters with an
estimated nenbership of 2,000 The National Ileadnuarto s
was and still is located in Chicago Illinois

By April 1074 the NZCdevoted itself to the
theme of defining VVAh'/,153as a politically oriented
organization capable of uniting with as many people
as possible to combat U.S inperialion The hope was
eNprossed that VVAW/:,'SOwould become part of the vanguard
of the revolution within this country :7ithin the CC
dissatisfaction devcloned and vas o::pressed by some of
the chapters concerning the VV.:/:100 publication
",linter Soldier. the dissatisfied members claimed the
publication reflected communist propaganda rather than
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chapter activities news about the Third World and news
of activist groups dditional disenchantment with
Soviet-type communise rsnortedly manifest itself in the
sending of a letter of censure to the Soviet Union
protesting the rape of a female V9:1W/TS0delegate to the
World Peace Council held in ::oscow during 1075 VVA.?/
TSO repc_"tedly severed relations with the CPU= over
this incident

In October 1074 VVAJ/TSOheld a National GI
Organizing Conference designed to initiate the building
of a fighting anti-imperialist movement within the U.S
military for the purpose of creating disruption and
disorientation within the nilitary k;:hcn the revolution
occurred

In December 1074 the _'SC voted to align
VVAa/;SOwith the Uevolutionary union MT) Tihi'!
changed their political position from a largely Uar:fist
approach to one following a strict :'aoist line This
alignment with created internal strife within VV_T/
WOO Some chanters which refused to adopt the Maoist
line were severed from the national organization In
June 1075 none of the r /.:CO chapters which did not
support the rational Office held a meeting in which they
verified severance fron the national organisation and
agreed to set up an independent organization This
rival group was intended to be anti-imperialist in
nature but to date its future is not certain

The current National Office of V7:^/WOOis
strongly influenced by U and could develop into an
RU front

Throughout its history VVI.:7/:,LOhas not been
a well-disciplined theoretically consistent organisation
The various chapters never rigidly followed the dictates
and policies presented by the National Office There
have been instances of rejection of the national Office
concepts both on a chapter and a regional basis The
cessation of the involve ent in the war in 5o'thcast
-ria on.,tantia.11y decreased the neshorchip of VV. !/.:20
Numerous individuals and s:sn chapters withdrew from
the organization Chapters and regions were dissolved
or consolidated

4
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In 107/.. '2:11 field offices were instructed to
nnaly:Le the chapters and regions in their respective
terriories If the local organisation Cid not subscribe
to the policies of the :ational Office and wore not

ni.c:ist-Leninist groups advocating the overthrow of the
Covorn nt the investigation of the local organi . tion
was to be teroinated ::ost of the local chapteic anal
regions continued to be nosinally affiliated with the
nation-ride VV=/120 but the splintering and the internal
idoologicol disputes 6eandod close esaoination of the
local positions of each region and chapter any of the
investigations of the various chapters wore closed not
because they wore no longer active but because of their
apparent filuro to follow the
revolutionary posture of the ::ationnl Office ::o current
nationwide figures are available for VV::l:7::00
because 2:11 investigation is 1iited to specific chapters
which are revolutionary in nature Currently the .1ost
activo of those chapters osist in C;1icago 7:ilwau%oe

Yor! and San Diego
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APPENDIXA

Nicholas deB Katzenbach
OldOrchardRoadArmonkNewYork10504

December 15 1975

Dear Senator Morgan

This letter is in response to your request for me to submit
for the record documentation on several points which came up
during my testimony on December 3 1975 (See page 2133 of the
transcript.)

With respect to my testimony that the Klan took credit for
the murders of the three civil rights workers Chaney Schwerner
and Goodman this fact was reflected in Bureau memoranda at the
time One of many memoranda received by the Department in the
summer of 1965 concerning the investigation of the murders
specifically reported that at a meeting of Hinds County Klaverns
on June 26 1964 Billy Buckles the Grand Giant referred to the
disappearance of the three civil rights workers and stated "now
they know what we will do we have shown them what we will do
and we will do it again if necessary.

With respect to whether all (or substantially all) of the
members of certain Klaverns of the Klan participated in or
endorsed unlawful acts I call your attention to the following

The opinion of Judge Wisdom in United
States v Original Knights of the Ku
Klux Klan 250 F Supp 330 (E.D La
1965) (Attachment A)

Statement of Mr Hoover before the
National Commission on the Causes and
Prevention of Violence September 18
1968 especially pages 8 9 (Attachment
B)
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NOTE The request for documentation referred to above as appearing at
transcript page 2133can be found in this volume at page 244

The materials referred to above as attachments A B C and D can be foundin this volume as attachments 1 2 3 and 4 at pages 843 870 883 and 888
respectively

An "Imperial Executive Order issued by
Imperial Wizard Sam Bowers (who was later
convicted and sentenced for criminal acts
of violence) to "all officers and members
(emphasis added) instructing them on
methods "for effective combat against the
enemy. This was reprinted on pages 5 9
of Attack on Terror by Don Whitehead
(Attachment C)

A paper written by John Doar and Dorothy
Landsberg entitled "The Performance of
the FBI in Investigating Violations of
Federal Laws Protecting the Right to Vote
- 1960-1967 (Attachment D)

As I am sure you appreciate my own access to relevant
documentation concerning the connection of certain Klans or
Klaverns with unlawful activities is limited but I feel sure the
Committee staff could get volumes of similar information from
Bureau files

I have reviewed my testimony concerning the methods
used by the Bureau to disrupt Klan acts of violence (especially
pages 2099 2100) and am satisfied that it is accurate as reported
I believe that you misunderstood that testimony when you stated
that you believed that I had testified that "anything (I) could do
to disrupt the Klan was justifiable. (Page 2130) However in
responding to your question I did not mean to imply that I
thought that you had mischaracterized my testimony purposely
and to the extent my response could be so read I apologize

Sincerely

The Hon Robert Morgan
Room 4104
Dirksen Senate Office Building
First Street and Constitution Avenue
Washington DC 20510

cc Senator Frank Church Chairman
Select Committee on Intelligence Activities

NOTE The request of documentation referred to above as appearing at
transcript page 2133can be found in this volume at page 244

The materials referred to above as attachments A B C and D can be found
in this volume as attachments 1 2 3 and 4 at pages 838 865 878 and 883
respectively



ActionbyUnitedStatesagainstklan
for injunctionto protectNegrocitizens
seekingto assert their civilrights The
three-judgeDistrictCourt WisdomCir
cuitJudge heldthat evidenceestablished
that klan reliedon systematiceconomic
coercionintimidationand physicalvio
lencein attemptingto frustrate national
policyexpressedincivilrightslegislation
and that suchconductmustbe enjoined

Orderaccordingly

Injunction0114(3)
Private organizationsand private

personsare not beyondreach of civil
rights act authorizingAttorneyGeneral
tosueforinjunction CivilRightsActof
1957 131and (a) as amended42U.S
C.A 1971and (a) and   1983 1985
(3) 18U.S.C.A  241 242

InjunctionC=127
Evidenceastoklanactivitieswasad

missiblein suit byUnitedStatesagainst
a klan for injunctionto protect Negro
citizens seeking to assert their civil
rights U.S.C.A.ConstAmends14 15
CivilRightsActof 1957 131as amend
ed and CivilRightsActof 1964  201
21I67n1707 42U.S.C.A  197120t,ua
200t?a5 2000e2000e 6 VotingRights
Act of 1965  1 et seq. 42 U.S.C.A 
1973et seq. 28 U.S.C.A 1345

InjunctionC=128
Evidenceestablishedthat klan and

individualklansmenhad adoptedpattern
and practiceof intimidating threaten
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ATTACHMENT1

250FEDERALSUPPLEMENT

Stanton ConstructionCompanyis
the principaldebtorandits rightswillhe UNITEI)STATESof Americaby Nicho
adjudicatedin the within proceedings las deB KATZENBACHAttorneyGen
sothat it is an indispensablepartyplain Pralof the unitedStates Plaintiff
tiff v

Rockwood Equipment Laing ORIGINALKNIGHTSOFthe KUKLUX
Companyis allegedlythe assignorof the KLANan unincorporatedAssocia
claimsfor rentalof equipmentto West Bonet al Defendants

inghouseas assigneeand its rights will Civ A No 15793
beadjudicatedin the withinproceedings UnitedStatesDistrictCourt
so that it is an indispensablepartyplain E D Louisiana
tiff NewOrleansDivision

The whereforeclause in the motion Dec 1 1965
seeksa dismissalof the complaintor in
thealternativetocompelplaintiff west
inghouse to delete the Borough of
Nanty-Gloand Lower YoderMunicipal
Authorityas namedplaintiffs and join
Rockwoodand Stantonas parties plain
tiff

No affidavitswere submitted

In our opinion Westinghouseis
the real party in interest and therefore
the namesof the municipalitiesshould
be strickenfromthe captionof the case
Rules17(a) and21 Fed.R.Civ.P

Further in our opinionStanton
ConstructionCompanyis not an indis
pensableparty plaintiff An examina
tion of the bondsattachedto the com
plaint disclosesthat they are contracts
of suretyship Weare hotawareof any
authoritynor has the defendantbrought
anyto ourattentionin whichit hasbeen
held or evencontendedthat the prin
cipal as a matter of law is an indis
pensableparty plaintiff in an action
againstthe surety

Finally in our opinion Rock
woodEquipmentLeasingCompanythe
assignorof the leasesto Westinghouse
is not an indispensableparty plaintiff
An assignoris generallyneither ri 1
party in interest nor -in indispelliallle
party 2 Barronand lloltzoff Federal
PracticeandProcedure 482 pp 1 19
 512 pp 102 104  513.2 p 111 3
MooreFederalPractice 17.09p 12.39
Wright Federal Courts pp 257258
(1963)

An appropriateorder willbe entered
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 1973et seq. 28U.S.C.A

844

UNITEDSTATESv ORIGINALKNIG-ITSOPKUKLUXKLAN
Citeas260F.Supoaa ePnf~~

ing andcoercingNegrocitizensfor pur
poseof interferingwiththeircivilrights
U.S.C.A.ConstAmends 14 15 Civil
Rights Act of 1957  131as amended
andCivilRightsActof 1964  201 206
701 707 42 U.S.C.A   1971 2000a
2000a-52000e2000e-6 VotingRights

42 U.S.C.A
 1345

InjunctionC=l'28
Evidenceestablishedthat to attain

its ends klan exploitedforces of hate
prejudiceand ignorancereliedon sys
tematic economiccoercion varieties of
intimidationand physicalviolencein at
temptingto frustrate nationalpolicyex
pressedin civil rights legislation U.S
C.A.ConstAmends14 15 CivilRights
Actof 1957 131as amendedand Civil
RightsActof 1964  201 206 701 707
42 U.S.C.A   1971 2000a 2000a-5
2000e 2000e-6 VotingRights Act of
1965  1 et seq. 42 U.S.C.A  1973
et seq. 28 U.S.C.A 1345

InsurrectionandSeditionCy1
Legal toleranceof secret societies

mustceaseat pointwheretheirmembers
assumesupra-governmentalpowersand
takelawin theirownhands

Courts0262.3(8)
Where it appearedthat defendant

klan klan membersand klan's dummy
front associationhad interfered with
Negrocitizens rights derivedfrom or
protectedby Constitutionandrecognized
in variouscivil rights statutes defend
ants wouldbe enjoinedfrominterfering
with court orders and with civil rights
of Negro citizens I.S.C.A.Const
Amends 14 15 Civil Rights Act of
1957 131as amendedand CivilRights
Act of 1964   201 206 701 707 42
U.S.C.A  19712000a2000a-52000e
2000e-6 VotingRightsActof 1965 1
et seq. 42 U.S.C.A 1973et seq. 28
U.S.C.A 1345

CourtsC=2G2.3(8)
Federaldistrict court had jurisdic

tion of actionby UnitedStates against
a klan for injunctionto protect Negro
citizens seeking to assert their civil

rights U.S.C.A.Const.Amends14 15
CivilRightsActof 1957 131as amend
edand CivilRightsActof 1964  201
206 701 707 42U.S.C.A  19712000a
2000a-52000e2000e-6 VotingRights
Act of 1965  1 et seq. 42 U.S.C.A 
1973et seq. 28 U.S.C.A 1345

CourtsC262.3(8)
In its sovereigncapacitythe nation

hadproperinterestinpreservingintegri=
ty of its judicialsystem in preventing
interferencewith court orders and in
makingmeaningfulbothnationallycreat
edandnationallyguaranteedcivilrights
U.S.C.A.ConstAmends 14 15 Civil
RightsAct of 1957  131as amended
and CivilRights Act of 1964   201
206 701707 42U.S.C.A  19712000a
2000a-52000e2000e-6 VotingRights
Act of 1965  1 et seq 42 U.S.C.A 
1973et seq 28 U.S.C.A 1345

Injunctionx128
Evidenceestablishedthat defendant

associationwasnota bonafideindepend
ent organizationbut was the defendant
klan thinly disguisedunder respectable
title U.S.C.A.ConstAmends14 15
CivilRightsActof 1957 131as amend
ed and CivilRightsActof 1964  201
206 701 707 42U.S.C.A  19712000a
2000a-52000e2000e-6 VotingRights
Act of 1965  1 et seq. 42 U.S.C.A 
1973et seq. 28 U.S.C.A 1345

InjunctionC=I28
Evidenceestablishedthat defendant

klan had appearedin actionby United
States for injunctionto protect Negro
citizens seeking to assert their civil
rights contrary to contentionthat the
klandidnotexist hadceasedto exist or
had madeno appearancein cause U.S
C.A.ConstAmend14 CivilRightsAct
of 1957  131as amendedand Civil
RightsActof 1964  201 206 701 707
42 U.S.C.A   1971 2000a 2000a-5
2000e 2000e6 VotingRights Act of
1965  I et seq. "12U.S.C.A 1973et
seq. 28 U.SC.A  13-15

ConstitutionalLaw0311
Inasmuchasdefendantadmittedthat

klan'smethodswerelawlessadmissibili
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ty of list of officers and membersof
klan in actionfor injunctionto protect
Negro citizens in asserting their civil
rights was not precludedon basis that
rights of membersof an associationto
pursue lawfulinterest privatelyand to
associatefreelywithothersare protected
by the 14thAmendment U.S.C.A.Const
Amend14 CivilRightsAct of 1957  
.131and (a) as amended42 U.S.C.A 
1971and (a) and   1983 1985(3) 18
U.S.C.A  241 242

InjunctionC=128
Evidenceestablishedthat defendants

had intimidatedharassedandotherwise
interferedwith Negroesexercisingtheir
civilrights personsencouragingNegroes
to assert their rights public officials
policeofficersandotherpersonsseeking
to accordNegroestheir rights and that
actswerepart of patternandpracticeof
defendantsto maintaintotal segregation
of races in parish U.S.C.A.Const
Amends14,15 CivilRightsActof 1957
 131as amendedand CivilRightsAct
of 1964  201206 70170742U.S.C.A
  19712000a2000a-52000e2000e 6
VotingRightsAct of 1965  1 et seq.
42 U.S.C.A 1973et seq. 28 U.S.C.A
 1345

Courtsx262 4(11)
Acts otherwiselawfulmay become

unlawfuland be enjoinedunder Civil
RightsActof 1957if purposeandeffect
of acts is to interferewith right to vote
CivilRightsActof 1957 131as amend
ed42U.S.C.A 1971

CivilRightsC=1
Elections0319
CivilRightsAct of 1957appliesto

privatepersonsandappliestointerfering
withright to registerandprotectsNegro
citizens against coercion intimidation
and violence CivilRightsAct of 1957
. 131as amended42 U.S.C.A 1971

CivilRightsC=34
Provisionsof 1964CivilRightsAct

relating to places of accommodation
equalemploymentopportunitiesandpub
licfacilitiesreachanypersonandanyac

tion that interfereswith enjoymentof
civil rights securedby the Act Civil
RightsActof 1964   203 206(a) 301
701et seq. 707 42U.S.C.A  2000a-2
2000a--5(a)2000b2000eet seq.2000e-6

InjunctionC=127
Defendantsinterferencewithrights

of Negroesto use publicfacilitieswas
relevant to cause of action of United
Statesagainstklanand its membersfor
injunctionprotectingNegrocitizensseek
ing to assert their rights wherethat in
terferencewaspart of patternandprac
tice of total resistanceto Negroesexer
ciseof civilrights CivilRightsActof
1964  203206(a) 301701et seq.707
42 U.S.C.A   2000a-2 2000a-5(a)
2000b2000eet seq. 2000e-6

EquityC=55
The Nationhas a responsibilityto

supplya meaningfulremedyfor right
it createsor guarantees

ElectionsC=9
Statutethat is necessaryandproper

legislationtocarryoutpowerofCongress
to regulate electionsfor federaloffice
mayalsobeappropriatelegislationtoen
forceprovisionsof 15th 14th and 13th
Amendments U.S.C.A.ConstAmends
13 14 15

ElectionsC=4
Congresshas authority to legislate

concerninganyandallelectionsaffecting
federalofficers whethergeneralspecial
or primary as longas they are an in
tegral part of procedureof choiceor
primaryeffectivelycontrolstheir choice
U.S.C.A.Constart 1  4

ConstitutionalLawCa50
Under Constitution Congresshad

choiceof meansto executeits powers
U.S.C.A.Constart 1  8 cl 18

ElectionsC=4
Under constitutional provision

grantingCongressauthorityto regulate
mannerof holdingfederalelectionsCon
gress was authorizedto enact statutes
regulatingregistrationofvotersforsuch
elections U.S.C.A.Constart 1  4
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28 ElectionsC=317
Federalcorruptpracticelawsoper

ate on campaigningstage rather than
votingstageandapplyto privatepersons
having no part in electionmachinery
U.S.C.A.Constart 2  1
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ElectionsC=t4
Statute protectingagainst private

interferencebeforevotingstageis neces
saryandproperlegislationunderconsti
tutionwheneverit is reasonablyrelated
toprotectionof integrityof federalelec
toralprocess U.S.C.A.Constart 1  4

ElectionsC=11
Rightto vote in federalelectionis

privilegeof nationalcitizenshipderived
fromconstitution U.S.C.A.Constart
1, 4

U ElectionsC=4
Congresscan by lawprotectact of

votingplacewhereit is done and man
whovotesfrompersonalviolenceor in
timidationand electionitself from cor
ruptionor fraud eventhoughstate and
federalofficersare electedin the same
electionCivilRightsActof 1957 131
asamended42U.S.C.A 1971U.S.C.A
Constart 1  4

25Elections 4
Sectionof FifteenthAmendmentto

effectthat right of citizensto voteshall
not be deniedor abridgedby United
Statesorbyanystate onaccountof race
coloror previousconditionof servitude
clearlyestablishesconstitutionalbasis
forCongressto protectright of all citi
zenstovotein state electionsfree from
discriminationon accountof race U.S
C.A.Const..Amend15  1

2&ElectionsCa3
Protectionof purityof federalpolit

icalprocessmaybe extendedagainstin
terferencewithanyactivityhavinga ra
tionalrelationshipwiththefederalpoliti
calprocess CivilRightsActof 1957  
131as amended42 U.S.C.A  1971
U.S.C.A.Constart 1  4

27ElectionstS=4
Congressionalpower over voting

thoughlimitedto federalelectionsex
tendsto voterregistrationactivities in
cludingregistrationrallies votereduca
tionclassesandotheractivitiesintended
toencourageregistration CivilRights
Actof 1957  131as amended42 U.S
C.A 1971 U.S.C.A.Constart 1  4

UnitedStatesC='25
States power over mannerof ap

pointingpresidentialelectorsis similar
to states reserved power to establish
voting qualifications U.S.C.A.Const
art 2  1

ElectionsC=4
Congresshas impliedpowerto pro

tect integrity of processesof popular
electionof presidentialelectorsoncethat
modeof selectionhasbeenchosenby the
state U.S.C.A.Constart 2  1

CourtsC=262.3(8)
Actsof defendantklanand defend

ant memberofklanofeconomiccoercion
intimidationand violencedirected at
Negrocitizensin parishfor purposeof
deterringtheir registeringtovotestruck
at integrity of federalpoliticalprocess
andwerethereforeenjoinable U.S.C.A
Const art 2  1 CivilRightsAct of
1957  131as amended42 U.S.C.A 
1971 VotingRightsActof 1965 1 et
seq. 42 U.S.C.A 1973et seq

ElectionsC=98
Right to votein federalelectionsa

privilegeof nationalcitizenshipsecured
by UnitedStates Constitutionincludes
right to registerto vote U.S.C.A.Const
art 2  1

ElectionsCa98
Right to register to vote includes

right to be free from publicor private
interferenceof activitiesrationallyre
lated to registeringand to encouraging
others to register U.S.C.A.Constart
2  1

InjunctionC=114(3)
Publicaccommodationsprovisionsof

CivilRightsActof 1964maybeenforced
by injunctiverelief againstprivateper
sons seekingto frustrate statutory ob
jectiveof statute CivilRightsAct of
1964   201 206 701 707 42 U.S.C.A
  19712000a2000a-5 2000e2000e-6



847

250FEDERAL6U1'1'LEMENT

35 Evidencex265(2)
Defendantswhoadmittedthat they

beat and threatened Negro pickets to
prevent them from enjoying right of
equal employmentopportunitymust he
enjoinedfromsuchconduct CivilRights
Act of 1964   201 206 701 707 42
U.S.C.A  19712000a2000a-52000e
2000e-6

BeforeWISDOMCircuit Judge and
CHRISTENBERRYand AINSWORTIH
DistrictJudges

WISDOMCircuitJudge

Thisis anactionbytheNationagainst
a klan.*

The United States of Americaasks
for an injunctionto protectNegrociti
zens in WashingtonParish Louisiana
seekingto assert their civilrights The
defendantsare the "OriginalKnightsof
theKuKluxKlan anunincorporatedas
sociation the "Anti-CommunistChris
tian Association, a Louisianacorpora
tion and certain individualklansmen
mostof whomcomefromin and around
BogalusaLouisiana.

The defendantsadmit most of
the allegationsof the complaint Their
legalpositionis that a privateorganiza
tion and privatepersonsare beyondthe
reachof the civilrights acts authorizing
the AttorneyGeneralto sue for an in
junction Thereis nomerit to this con
tention

Seekingrefugein silenceandse
crecylthedefendantsobjectto theadmis
sionof anyevidenceas to klanactivities
We hold however that what the klan
is and what the klan doesbear signifi
*Althoughthisorderis east in theform

of an opinionit representsthe ('hurt's
findingsoffactandconclusionsoflaw

I Counselfor the individualdefendants
takethepositionthatthedefendantklan
doesnot exist Theproofshowsthat
theklancontinuesto existandto func
tionasa klaninthebenignnameofthe
"Anti-CommunistChristianAssociation
SeeSectionII Aof thisopinion

cantlyon the materialissuesand on the
appropriaterelief

1.3I In decidingto grant the injunc
tion prayedfor werest our conclusions
on the finding of fact that within the
meaningof theCivilRightsActsof 1957
and 1964 the defendantshave adopted
a pattern aed practiceof intimidating
tineateningandcoercingNegrocitizens
in WashingtonParish for the purpose
of interfering with the civil rights of
theNegrocitizens Thecompulsionwith
in the klan to engagein this unlawful
conductis inherentin the nature of the
klan This is its ineradicableevil

[4] Wefind that to attain its ends
theklanexploitstheforcesofhate preju
dice and ignorance We find that the
klan relieson systematiceconomiccoer
cion varietiesof intimidationandphysi
calviolenceinattemptingtofrustratethe
nationalpolicyexpressedin civil rights
legislation Wefind that the klansmen
whethercloakedandhoodedas members
of the OriginalKnightsof the Ku Klux
Klan or skulkingin anonymityas mem
bersof a shamorganization"TheAnti
CommunistChristian Association or
brazenlyresortingtoviolenceontheopen
streets of Bogalusaare a "fearful con
spiracyagainstsociety * * * [hold
ing] mensilent by the terror of [their
acts] and [their] powerfor evil"

Asearlyas 1868GeneralNathanBed
ford Forrest the first and onlyGrand
Wizardof the originalInvisibleEmpire
dismayedby mounting uncontrollable
violencelaidto theklan orderedtheklan
to disbandanddirectedklansmentoburn
their robesandhoods.3GeneralForrest
was a Confederatecavalryhero a man
withoutfearand certainlytomostSouth
erners it manbeyondreproach Hean

ltcpertof the JointSelectCommittee
to InquireintotheConditionofAffairs
inthe1,at InsurrectionaryStates(Wash
1872)p 24(MajorityReport.)
Testimonyof GeneralForrestbefore
theJointSelectCommitteeNote2 p
(1-14419-51
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nouncedthat he woulddissociatehim
selffromallklansmenandcooperatewith
publicofficialsand the courtsin enforc
ing law and order But the founders
of the InvisibleEmpirehad sowndrag
on'steeth

848

Theevil that led GeneralForrest to
disbandthe originalKu KluxKlanwas
itsperversionofpurposesbyundisciplin
ed klans led by irresponsibleleaders!
Theevilwefind in the OriginalKnights
ofthe Ku KluxKlanis an absoluteevil
inherentinanysecretorderholdingitself
abovethe law "the naturaltendencyof
allsuchorganizations * * * to vio
lenceand crime. a As historyteaches
andas the defendants admissionsand
theproofdemonstratein this case vio
lenceand crimefollowas the night the
daywhenmaskedmenconspireagainst
societyitself Wrappedin myths and
misbeliefswhichtheythinkrelievethem
of the obligationsof ordinarycitizens
klansmenpledgetheir first allegianceto
theirKonstitutionand give their first
loyaltyto a crossin flames

Noneof the defendantklansmenis a
leaderin his community As a group
theydonot appearto be representative
ofa cross-sectionof the community In
steadtheyappearto be ignorantbullies
callousof the harm they knowthey are
doingand lackingin sufficient under
standingto comprehendthe chasmbe
tweentheir own twisted Konstitution
andthe noblecharter of libertiesunder
lawthat is the AmericanConstitution

[5,6] Legal toleranceof secret so
cietiesmust cease at the point where
theirmembersassumesupra-governmen
tal powersand take the law in their
ownhands Weshallnot allowthe mis

4 InJanuary1869GeneralForrestissued
anordertodisbandwhichbegan'Where
as theorderof theKuKluxKlanis in
somelocalitiesbeingpervertedfromits
originalhonorablemid patriotie par
poses* ` DavisAuthenticHJis
t4ry Ku KluxKlan 125-28(N.Y
1928) Carter The AngryScar 216
(N.Y.1959)

S."Thereis nodoubtaboutthefactthat
greatoutrageswerecommittedbybands

guideddefendantsto interferewith the
rights of Negrocitizens.derivedfromor
protectedbytheConstitutionof theUnit
ed States and nowexpresslyrecognized
by Congressin variouscivilrights stat
utes Weenjointhe OriginalKnightsof
the Ku KluxKlan its dummyfront the
Anti-CommunistChristian Association
and the individualdefendantsfrom in
terfering with ordersof this Courtand
frominterferingwith the civilrights of
Negro citizens in WashingtonParish
Specificallytheserightsinclude

the right to the equaluse and
enjoymentof public facilities
guaranteedby the Fourteenth
Amendment
the right to the equaluse and
enjoymentofpublicaccommoda
tions guaranteedby the Civil
RightsAct 42 U.S.C  2000a

(3) the right to registertovoteand
to vote in all electionsguaran
teed by the Fifteenth Amend
ment by 42 U.S.C  1971and
by the Voting Rights Act of
1965 and

(4) the right to equalemployment
opportunitiesguaranteedbythe
Civil Rights Act 42 U.S.C  
2000e

[7 8] The UnitedStates sues under
authorityof 42U.S.C 1971 42U.S.C
  2000a-5and 2000e--6 Underthose
sectionsand-under28 U.S.C 1345this
Court-hasjurisdictionof the action We
resolveanydoubtas to thereachof these
sectionsin favor of the Government's
standingto suein a caseof thiskind In
its sovereigncapacitythe Nationhas a

of disguisedmenduringthoseyearsof
lawlessnessfledoppressionThenatural
tendencyof tillsuchorganizationsis to
violenceandcrime henceit wasthat
GeneralForrestfad othermenof in
fluencein the slide by the influence
of theirmorelpowerinduealthemto
disband Reportof the JointSelect
CommitteeNote2 p 463 (Minority
Report.)
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properinterestin preservingthe integri
ty of its judicialsystem in preventing
klan interferencewith courtorders and
in making meaningfulboth nationally
created and nationallyguaranteedcivil
rights!

II
We turn nowto detailedfindingsof

fact
A Background The invisiblerealm

of the OriginalKnightsof the Ku Klux
Klancoincideswith the Sixth Congres
sionalDistrict of Louisiana This dis
trict is composedof the "Florida par
ishes the area east of the Mississippi
Riverand north of LakePontchartrain
claimedbySpainuntil1810 Theevents
givingrise to this action tookplacein
WashingtonParishandcenteredin Boga
lusa the largestmunicipalityin the Par
ish Bogalusais on the Pearl Riverat
a pointwherethe riverformsthebound
ary betweenLouisianaand Mississippi
It hasa populationof about14,000white
personsand 7,500Negroes

The Grand Dragon of the Original
Knightsof the Ku KluxKlanand Presi
dent of the Anti-CommunistChristian
Associationis Charles Christmas of
Amite in TangipahoaParish Saxon
Farmer whoseemsto havean uncanny
capacity for being present whenever
there is racialtroublein Bogalusais the
secondincommandofbothorganizations
GrandTitanof the Klanand Vice-Presi
dent of the Anti-CommunistChristian
Association In February 19:55he was
electedto both offices simultaneously
He is alsothe ExaltedCyclopsof oneof
the BogalusaKlaverns(localunits) In

6 In UnitedStatesv Raines1959362
U.S 17 27 80S.Ct519 520 4 L.E.d
2d 524upholdingthe constitutionality
of the CivilRightsActof 1957in a
suitonbehalfofprivatepersonsagainst
puhlieofficialsthe Courtsaid "It is
urgr,lthat it is beyondthe powerof
Congressto authorizetheUnitedStates
to bringthisactioninsupportofprivate
constitutionalrights But thereis the
highestpublicinterestin the dueob
servanceofalltheconstitutionalgunrnn
tees includingthosethatbensthemost
directlyonprivaterightsandwethink

1960this Courtenteredan orderin the
caseof UnitedStatesv McElveepet ala
(C.A.No9146) against SaxonFarmer
andothersenjoiningthemfrominterfer
ing with the rights of Negrocitizensto
vote. That orderrestoredto voterreg
istrationrollsof WashingtonParish the
namesof 1,377NegrocitizensFarmer
and others then active in the Citizens
Councilhad unlawfullypurgedfromthe
rolls

The evidenceclearlyestablishes
that theAnti-CommunistChristianAsso
ciation is not a bonafide independent
organizationbut is the defendantklan
thinlydisguisedundera respectabletitle
At an earlier time the klan's dummy
organizationwascalledtheBogalusaGun
Club Thedefendantsefforts to appear
respectableby associationmay also be
reflectedin the locationof the klan's
principalofficein the DisabledAmerican
VeteransHall

Theofficers membersinternal
structure andmethodof payingduesof
the ACCAand the klan are identical
Thecorporatestructureof the ACCAin
cludesnothingbut a charter The gov
erning rules and by-lawsof the ACCA
are the KlanKonstitution The secret
oath for admissionand resignationin
both organizationsis the klan oath
Nothingis requiredof klanmembersto
becomemembersof the ACCA except
identifyingto the secretaryof the klan
unit their assignedsecretklan number
Klanmembersare thenfurnisheda small
greencard with the nameAnti-Commu
nist ChristianAssociationprintedthere
on ThisCourtfindsthat the defendant

it perfectlycompetentforCongresstoau
thorizethe UnitedStates to be the
guardianofant publicinterestina suit
forinjunctiverelief.
TheparishesofWashingtonTangipahoa
SI TammanySt HelenaLivingston
A~crnsiouEastFelicianaWestFelici
nnn Enst BatonRougeWestBaton
RougePointeCoupeeandIborville
.%ffdsubnomUnitedStatesv Thomas
19623(12U.S5880S.Ct6124L.Ed.2d
535
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klan has appearedin this cause The
pretensethat the klan does not exist
hasceasedto exist or has madeno ap

in this causeis a shampearance
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UntilrecentlyWashingtonParish was
segregatedfromcradleto coffin After
Congressadoptedthe 1964CivilRights
Act howeverthe Negroesin Bogalusa
begana broad scalecampaignto gain
recognitionof their rights Working
through the BogalusaVoters League
theyconductedvoterregistrationclinics
heldmassmeetingsto call attentionto
theirgrievancespicketedplacesof pub
lic accommodationsto protest racially
discriminatorypolicies and petitioned
the Mayorof Bogalusato accordequal
rightsinvotingpublicfacilitiesemploy
mentandeducation

The klan has been the center of un
lawfulactivityin WashingtonParishde
signedto interfere with the efforts of
Negrocitizensto gainequalrightsunder
the law Its objectivehas beento pre
servetotal racial segregationin Boga
lusa

B DefendantsAdmissions An un
usualfeatureof this litigationis the de
fendantsdamningadmissions The de
fendantsadmit that the klan'sobjective
istopreventWashingtonParishNegroes
fromexercisingthecivilrightsCongress
recognizedby statute In their plead
ings,'the defendantsconcedethat they
further their objectiveby

(a) assaulting threatening and
harassingNegroeswhoseektoex
ercise any of their civil rights
and assaulting threatening and
harassingpersonswhourge that
negroesshouldexerciseor be ac
cordedthoserights

0) committingthreateningto com
mit and urging others to com
mit cats of economicretaliation
against Negroeswhoseek to ex
ercise these rights and against
any personswho urge that Ne
groes shouldexerciseor be ac
cordedthese rights or who per
mit open free and publicdiscus
sionon the issue

250F.Supp 22

(c) threateningandintimidatingpub
licofficialsand businessmenwho
accordor seekto accordNegroes
theirrightswithoutregardto race
or color

Thereasonfor theadmissionswasevi
dent at the trial and is evidentin the
defendants brief The United States
subpoenaedover a hundred witnesses
and no doubt was preparedto prove
everyallegationin the complaint Be
causeof the defendantsadmissionsthe
disputedissueswerefewandonlya few
witnesseswerecalled As a result the
klan avoidedan airing of its activities
that necessarilywouldhaveoccurredhad
a large numberof witnessestestified
Not content with the successof this
maneuver the defendantsobjectedto
the introductionof "any evidenceper
taining to the activitiesof the Ku Klux
Klan on the groundsthat (a) the klan
had ceasedto exist and (b) "delv[ing]
into these unrelatedmatters was sole
ly "to expose the Ku Klux Klan an
invasionof the "privacyand individual
freedomsof all these defendants
As indicatedearlier howeverthe nature
of the klan'sactivitiesbearsdirectlyon
the existenceof a pattern and practice
of unlawfulconductand also on the
sortof decreethat shouldbeissued

The Governmentsubpoenaedmember
ship lists and recordsof the klan The
defendantsfailed to producethese rec
ords and at the hearingexplainedthat
all of the recordsof the klan had been
destroyedas a matterof klanpolicyaft
er suit was filed The Court ordered
ChristmasFarmer andJohnMageethe
treasurer to compilefrommemorylists
of officers and members Counselfor
the defendantsobjectedto the admissi
bility of the lists for the reasonsthat
(1) there wereno lists and recordsin
the custodyof the defendants (2) the
requirementwas an invasion of the
rights of privacyand association The
defendantsdid not rely on the Fifth
Amendmentprivilege against self-in
crimination they reliedon NAACPv
Stateof Alabama1958357U.S 449 78
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S.Ct 1163 2 L.Ed.2d1488 The Court
overruledthe objections

[11] NAACPv State of Alabama
does not support the defendants posi
tion In that caseJusticeHarlan speak
ing for a unanimousCourt heldthat the
rights of the membersof the NAACP
to pursuetheir lawfulinterestsprivately
and to associatefreelywith otherswere
protectedby the 14thAmendment Ac
cordinglythe NAACPwas relievedof
the necessityof turningoverits member
ship list to the State of Alabama In
reachingthat decisionthe Courtdistin
guishedPeopleof State of New York
ex rel Bryantv Zimmerman1928278
U.S 63 49S.Ct 61 73L.Ed 184 a case
involvinga NewYorkChapterof the Ku
KluxKlan A NewYorkstatute requir
ed any unincorporatedassociationwhich
demandedan oathas a conditionto mem
bershipto filewithstate officialscopies
of its "constitution by-laws * * *
a roster of its membershipand a list of
its officers In Zimmermanthe Court
found that the statutory classification
wasreasonablebecauseof the "manifest
tendencyonthepart ofoneclassto make
the secrecysurroundingits purposesand
membershipa cloakfor actsandconduct
inimicalto personalrights and public
welfare * * * 'It is a matter of
commonknowledgethat this organiza
tion [theklan]functionslargelyat night
its membersdisguisedby hoods and
gownsand doing things calculatedto
strike terror into the minds of the
people The SupremeCourtreaffirm
ed this distinctionin NAACPv State
ofAlabama JusticeHarlanpointedout

"[In Zimmerman]the Court took
care to emphasizethe nature of the
organization which New York
sought to regulate The decision
was based on the particular char
acterof the Klan'sactivities involv
ing acts of unlawfulintimidation
andviolence * * * of whichthe
Courtitselftookjudicialnotice.

Here the defendants admit that the
klan's methodsare lawless Albertson
v SubversivesActivities Board Nov

15 1965 86 S.Ct 194 pretermits the
question at issue in Zimmermanand
NAACPv State of Alabama

C Out of Their OwnMouths (1)
The Konstitutionof the Original Ku
KluxKlanembodies"the SupremeLaw
of the Realm ArticleI states that one
of the objectsof the organizationis to
"protectand defendthe Constitutionof
the UnitedStates" but anotherobject
is to "maintainforever Segregationof
the racesand the Divinelydirectedand
historicallyproven supremacyof the
White Race The preamblereaffirms
"theprinciplesfor whichourforefathers
mutuallypledgedand freely sacrificed
their lives their fortunes and their sa
credhonortwocenturiesago" but Ar
ticle II limits the membershipto "ma
ture Native-bornWhite GentileMen
* * * whoprofessand practicethe
ChristianFaith but who are not mem
bersof the RomanCatholicChurch

(2) PrintedwiththeKonstitutionis a
Proclamationstating that it must be
"STRICTLYADHERED TO. The
Proclamationstates that "ALLREALM
workis carriedon by a chain of com
mand establishes the organization
alongmilitary lines definesthe duties
of the variousofficersand committees
anddescribes"TheWayof the Klavern

"All Klavernswill have at least five
armed guards with flashlightsposted
during regular meetings. However
"No onewill be allowedto carry a gun
insidethe Klavernduringregularmeet
ingsexceptthe KnightHawk(Keeperof
the Klavern).
A Klokan's(KlavernInvestigator's)du
ty is "to investigateallquestionablemat
ters pertainingto the Klaverr. "Any
Klansmanwho is knownto violateour
rules especiallythosethat giveinforma
tion to any aliens [non-members]shall
be expelledimmediatelythen is to be
watchedand visited by the Wrecking
Crewif necessary (Emphasisadded.)
Moreovereach klan unit "will set up
at leastone teamof six mento beused
for wreckingcrew Thesemen should
be appointedby the Klokanin secrecy
As judges charged with the duty of
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drawinginferencesfrom the demeanor (4) The "BoycottRules givea good
of witnessesweobservedthat a former idea of the Klan'scoercivetactics For
klansmanexhibiteduneasinessfor fear
of klanreprisals whenquestionedas to
thefunctionoftheklan"wreckingcrew
The defendants testimonyrelating to
the purposeand functionsof the wreck
ingcrewwasevasive Thereis nodoubt
howeverthat the wreckingcrew per
formeddisciplinaryfunctionsand that
the disciplinecouldbe'severe
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(3) The Oath of Allegiancerequires
faithfulobedienceto the "Klan'sKonsti
tutionand Laws regulations "rulings
and instructionsof the GrandDragon
"PROVIDENCEALONE PREVENT
ING Klansmenmust swear"forever
to "keepsacredlysecret all

matters and knowledgeof the
[one asterisk.is Klanesefor

'Klan' four asterisks mean "Original
Knightsof the Ku KluxKlan]
[and]neverdivulgesamenorevencause
sameto bedivulgedto anypersonin the
wholeworld As if this were not
enoughthe Oathalsorequiresklansmen
to swearthat they "solemnlyvow and
mostpositivelyswear never "to yield
to bribe threats passion punishment
persecutionpersuasionnor any intice
ments(sic).whatever for the
purposeof obtaining a secret
or secret informationof the XXXX.
SectionIV on "XXXXISHNESS goes
a little further In this sectionof the
oaththe klansmenmust swearto "keep
secretto [himself] a secret of a man
committedto him in the sacredbondof
* manship Thecrimeof violatingthis
oath treasonagainst the UnitedStates
ofAmericarape and maliciousmurder
aloneexcepted. (Emphasisadded.) In
pureklanese the klansmanpledgeshis
"life property vote and sacredhonor
to uphold"untodeath the Constitution
and "constitutionallaws (Emphasis
added.) But he ends by swearingthat
he will "zealouslyshield and preserve
* * * free segregatedpublicschools
whiteSUPREMACY.
9 Ontwooccasionsthe Courtfoundit

necessaryto warnthewitnessesof the

example
"TheBoycottCommittee(onemem
ber from eachlocalunit appointed
by the ExaltedCyclops)shallhave
exclusiveinvestigativeauthorityand
it shallnotact at anytimewithless
than three memberspresent * *
(1 Nopersonor subjectuponwhom
a boycott shall have been placed
shallbe patronizedby any member

* Boycottsshall be imposed
uponsubjectswhoare foundto be
violating the Southern traditions
* * Boycottsshall be placed
uponall membersof the Committee
who publiclyserved with Bascom
Talky in his efforts to promotethe
Brooks Mays meeting Boycotts
shall be placeduponany merchant
using Negroemployeesto serveor
wait uponpersonsof thewhiterace
(ServiceStationsusing Negroesto
pumpgas are excluded.)
Boycottsshall be placedagainst a
subject who serves Negroes and
whiteson an integratedbasis
Boycottsshallbeplacedupona sub
ject who allows Negroes to use
Whiterest rooms * * *

No membershall be punishedfor
violationof the rulesby a member
of his family under twelve (12)
years of age
Anymemberwhoshallafter a hear
ing havebeenfoundguiltyof per
sonallypatronizinga subjectlisted
on the boycottlist shallbe wrecked
by the wreckingcrewwhoshallbe
appointedby the Committee (Em
phasisadded.) * * *
Secondoffense--If a member is
foundguiltyof personallyviolating
the boycottlist he shallbe wrecked
and banishedfromthe Klan.
It is not surprisingthat the attorneys

for the UnitedStates had difficultyex
tractingfromklansmenanswersto ques
t.ions.n

penaltyforperinryTheCourtrecessed
the bearingto allowtimefor the wit
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(5) In keepingwithits falsefrontand
as bait for the devoutthe Klanpurports
to performits dirtyworkin the nameof
Jesus Christ The first objectstated in
the "Objectsand Purposes clause of
the Konstitution of this anti-Roman
Catholicanti-Semitichate-breedingor
ganizationis to "fosterand promotethe
tenets of Christianity The Proclama
tion requiresthe Kludd(KlavernChap
lain) to "open and closeeach meeting
of the Klavernwith prayer Setting
somekindof a recordfor sanctimonious
cant the Proclamationdirectsthe Kludd
to "studyandbe preparedto explainthe
12thchapterof ROMANSat any time
as this is the religiousfoundationof the
InvisibleEmpire (Emphasisadded)

Saint Paul Apostleto the Gentiles
wrotehis Epistleto the Romansin Cor
inth midwaybetweenRomeand Jeru
salem Addressinghimselfto Jewsand
Gentiles he preachedthe brotherhood
of man "Glory honour and peace to
everymanthat workethgoodto the Jew
first and alsoto the Gentile For there
is no respectof personswith God. to
In the TwelfthChapterof RomansPaul
makesa beautifuland movingplea for
tolerancefor brotherlylove for return
inggoodfor evil

9 Let lovebewithoutdissimula
tion Abhor that which is evil
cleaveto that whichis good

10 Be kindly affectionedone to
anotherwithbrotherlylove inhon
ourpreferringoneanother * * *

14 Bless them which persecute
you bless andcursenot * * *

17 Recompenseto nomanevilfor
evil Providethingshonest in the
sight of all men

18 If it be possibleas muchas
lieth in you live peaceablywith all
men

19 Dearly beloved avenge not
yourselvesbut rathergiveplaceun

'lossesto refreshtheirrecollectionand
to findif possibleanymembershiplists
Ononeoccasiona witnesspleadedthe
5thAmendmentwhenina colloquywith
theCourtit wasapparentthathewas

to wrath for it is written Ven
geanceis mine I will repay saith
the Lord

20 Thereforeif thineenemyhun
ger feed him if he thirst give
him drink for in so doing thou
shaltheapcoalsof fire on his head

21 Be not overcomeof evil but
overcomeevil with good.

Thesewordsmust fall on stonyground
in the Klavernsof a Klan

D SpecificFindingsof KlanIntimi
ditionand Violence We selectthe fol
lowingexamplesof the defendantsacts
of intimidationandviolence

(1) January7 1965formerCongress
man BrooksHays of Arkansas at the
invitationof religiousbusinessandcivic
leaders of Bogalusa was scheduledto
speak in Bogalusa at St Matthews
EpiscopalChurchParish Houseon the
subject of communityrelations The
meetingwasto be opento bothNegroes
andwhitesandit wasplannedthat seat
ingwouldbeona raciallynon-segregated
basis After learningof the proposed
appearanceof Mr Haysandthearrange
mentsfor an unsegregatedmeetingthe
Klanand its membersprotestedto the
Mayorand the membersof the Commis
sionCounciland bymeansof threatsof
civil disorder and economicretaliation
againstlocalbusinessmenwhosupported
the meeting causedthe withdrawalof
the invitation to Mr Hays to speak
December18 1964beforethe Haysin
vitation was withdrawn the Mayorof
Bogalusaand PoliceCommissionerAr
noldSpiers in an effort to headoff pos
siblecivil disorder appearedat a Klan
meetingat the DisabledVeteransHall
The showof force at this meetingby
over 150 hoodedKlansmenunquestion
ablyintimidatedpublicofficialsin Boga
lusaand later hinderedeffect".a police
action against Klan violence On the
stand MayorCutrer admittedthat he

afraidof klnnreprisalfortestifyingas
toklanrecordshewithdrewhispleaof
privilegeandtestified

10 RomansChapII v 10-11



UNITEDSTATESv ORIGINALKNIGHTSOFKUKLUXKLAN
Citeas250F.Supp330(1065)

was"frightenedwhenhelookedinto150 oneother enteredthe restaurantbrand
pairsofeyes

(2) Sinceat least January 28 1965
thedefendantsincludingSaxonFarmer
RussellMageeDeweySmith RandleC
PoundsBillyAlfordCharlesMcClendon
JamesBurke and othermembersof the
defendantKlan havemadea practiceof
goingto placeswhere they anticipated
that Negroeswouldattempt to exercise
civilrights in orderto harass threaten
and intimidatethe Negroesand other
persons For this purpose membersof
the defendantKlanhavegoneto Frank
linton Louisiana when Negro citizens
of WashingtonParish wereexpectedto
applyto registeras voters havegoneto
restaurantsin Bogalusawhen Negroes
wereseekingor were expectedto seek
service and have gone to locationsin
downtownBogalusaand near the Boga
lusa LaborTemplewhenNegroeswere
attemptingor were expectedto demon
stratepubliclyin supportof equalrights
for Negroes
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WilliamYatesandStephenMiller
twoCOREworkerscameto Bogalusain
January1965 The GrandDragonand
Grand Titan of the Klan defendants
CharlesChristmasand Saxon Farmer
appearedat the'Mayor'sofficeto askthe
Mayorto send WilliamYates and Ste
phen Miller out of Bogalusa Mayor
Cutrerindicatedthat he coulddo noth
ing, The next day February 3 1965
three Klansmen James Hollingsworth
Jr. JamesHollingsworthSr. and Delos
Williamswith twoother persons Doyle
Tynesand Ira Dunaway attemptedto
insure Yates and Miller's departure
ThisgroupfollowedYatesandMillerand
assaultedYates

February15 1965defendantVir
gilCorkernKlansmanandapproximate
ly30otherwhitepersonsattackedbyNe
grocitizensanddamagedthecar inwhich
theywereriding Thisoccurredbecause
theNegroeshadsoughtserviceat a gaso
linestationin Bogalusa On that same
day Corkernandotherpersonsgathered
at Landry'sFine Foods a restaurantin
Bogalusato observeNegroes seeking
serviceat the restaurant Corkernand

ishingclubsorderedthe Negroesto leave
and threatened to kill Sam Barnes a
memberof the BogalusaVotersLeague
who had cometo the restaurant with
six Negrowomen

March29 1965 defendantsHar
die Adrian Goings Jr. Klansmanand
FranklinHarris Klansmanshortlyafter
meetingshad beenheldat the Bogalusa
LaborTemplethrewan ignitedtear gas
canisterat a groupof Negroesstanding
near theLaborTemple GoingsJr then
tried to disguisehis car by repaintingit
and removingthe air scoopfromthe top
to prevent detection of this crime
Goingsor otherKlansmenusedthis same
car in Mayof 1964toburna crossat the
homeof LouMajor editorof the Boga
lusa newspaper

April 7 1965 defendantsLatti
more McNeeseand E J (Jack) Dixon
Klansman threatened Negro citizens
during the courseof a meetingat the
Labor Templeby brandishingand ex
hibitinga gunat Negroesstandingout
sidethe LaborTemple

April 9 1965 defendantsBilly
Alford Klansman Randle C Pounds
KlansmanLattimoreMcNeeseCharles
McClendonandJamesBurke Klansman
withotherpersonswenttothedowntown
area of BogalusawhereNegrocitizens
were participatingin a march to the
BogalusaCity Hall to protest denialof
equal rights Pounds McClendonand
Burke in a group movedout to attack
the marchers Pounds assaulted the
leaderof the marchJamesFarmer with
a blackjack McClendonandBurkewere
temporarilydeterredfromthe threaten
ed assault but immediatelythereafter
assaulteda newsmanand an FBI agent
Alfordassaultedoneof the Negroespar
ticipatingin the march

May 19 1965 Virgil Corkern
Klansmantwo sons of Virgil Corkern
andotherwhitepersonswentto Cassidy
Park a publicrecreationarea maintain
ed by the Cityof Bogalusafor the pur
poseof interferingwith the enjoyment
of the parkby NegroesandwhiteCORE
workerswho were present at the park
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andusingthe facilitiesfor the first time
on a non-segregatedbasis TheCorkers
groupenteredthe parkanddispersedthe
Negrocitizenswithclubs belts andoth
er weapons

Negromembersof the Bogalusa
VotersLeague unableto exercisetheir
civil rights and also unable to obtain
frompoliceofficialsadequateprotection
from the Klan filed suit June 25 1965
in the case of Hicksv Knight Civ.Ac
No 15,727in this Court Thecomplaint
asksfor an injunctionrequiringofficers
of theCityofBogalusatoopenthe public
parksandto operatesuchparkswithout
racialdiscriminationand alsorequiring
law enforcementofficers of the City
Parish and State to protectthe Negro
plaintiffsandotherNegroesfromphysi
cal assaults beatings harassment and
intimidationat the handsof whiteciti
zens July 10 1965 this Court issued
an injunctionin Hicksv Knightenjoin
ing certaincity and parish lawenforce
mentofficersfromfailingto useall rea
sonablemeanstoprotecttheNegroplain
tiffs and otherssimilarlysituatedfrom
physicalassaultsand beatingsand from
harassmentand intimidationpreventing
or discouragingthe exerciseof their
rights to picket assemblepeaceablyand
advocateequalcivilrights for Negroes
Thepreliminaryinjunctionis still in full
forceand effect Evenafter this Court
issuedits orderJuly10 1965thedefend
ant Klansmencontinuedto interferewith
Negrocitizensexercisingcivilrightsand
interferedwith performanceof the du
ties of law enforcementofficialsunder
the injunctionin Hicksv Knight._

July 11 1965 during a Negro
marchin downtownBogalusadefendants
RandlePoundsKlansmanH A Goings
Jr., KlansmanFranklinHarris Klans
man andMiltonE Parkerwerepresent
Harris and Goingspassed out 25 30
2x2 clubsto youthsandPoundsstation
ed the youths along the march route
Parkerwasarrestedbya Citypoliceman
alongthe routeof marchfor disturbing
the peace

Includedin the exhibits are a
numberof handbillsbearingthe caption

66-0770 76 55

"PublishedbytheOriginalKuKluxKlan
of Louisiana Theseare crude scur
rilousattacks on certain Bogalusaciti
zenswhoadvocateda moderateapproach
to desegregation For examplein one
handbillan Episcopalministeris accused
of lyingfor havingsaid that he had re
ceived calls threatening to bomb his
church the minister'sson is said to be
an alcoholic to have faced a .morals
chargein court and to havebeencom
mitted to a mental institution The
handbilladds

"TheKu KluxKlanis nowin the
process of checkingon Reverend

  's [naminghim] moral
standards If he is clearedyouwill
beso informed If heis notcleared
youwillbe informedof any and all
misdeedsor moralviolationof his
in the past.

In the samehandbillthe Klanannounced
that it was"boycottingbusinesseswhich
cater to integrationsuchas MobileGas
Stations etc. MobileGas Stationis a
business competitorof the defendant
GrandTitan SaxonFarmer

Allof the handbillsattemptto intimi
date publicofficials the Governorof
Louisiana the Congressmanfrom the
Sixth District the Mayorof Bogalusa
and federal judges (by name) Some
times the attemptedintimidationis by
threat of violencesometimesby char
acterassassination Wequotefor exam
ple

(a) "On numerous occasionswe
havebeenaskedby localofficialsto
refrain from any acts of violence
uponthis outsidescumthat has in
vadedour city Beinga christian
organizationwehavehonoredthese
requestseachtime Howmuchlong
er canwecontinue?? Contraryto
whatthe liberalelementwouldhave
you think this memorandumis not
the workof racistandhate mongers
or troublemakersas Governor'Big
John McKeithencallsus We are
Godfearingwhite southernerswho
believein constitutionalgovernment
and the preservationof our Amer
icanheritage
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"If your governor would have
donetheright thingto start with he
wouldhaverefusedto protectthese
localand outsideagitators and did
just what one great southerngov
ernor did He refused to pro
tect this outside element (CORE
NAACPSNICKETC.) at the ex
penseof his state He chose in
stead to let LBJ and Katzenbach
protectthem Onlyafter thecity of
Bogalusahad spent $96,000did he
(Big John McKeithen)make,any
effort to ease the situationin this
city.
(b) "As the peopletried to pre
serveour Southernwayof life the
Mayorand Councilwereslowlysell
ing the peopleout at every turn
The Mayorhas repeatedlyGIVEN
in JamesFarmerdid nothavethe
supportof the localNegroes Mayor
Cutrer is not giving the city of
Bogalusato the negro citizens of
Bogalusa No He is giving the
cityto JamesFarmeranda handful
of Negro Teenagers NO PRES
SUREwas put on James Farmer
and DickGregoryto keepthemout
of Bogalusa Not by the Mayor
the State Representativethe State
Senator or CongressmanMorrison
Thiswas not so whenthe WHITE
CONSERVATIVESwantedto stage
a Rally Pressurewasexertedfrom
all levels even the invited guest
speakerswere'leanedon

"TheGovernorthe Congressman
Jimmy Morrison or his corn-rats
SukstyRaybornand Buster Sheri
dan JohnMcKeithenaskedfor our
vote and promised to serve the
PEOPLE We nowask Big John
isn't this TRUE Whatis happen
ingunderyouradministration

"Here is the list of electedoffi
cialswhoCOULD&ANDSHOULD
havehelpedthe Peopleof Bogalusa
All these should be tarred and
feathered

MAYORJESSIE CUTRER
REPRESENTATIVESHERIDAN
SENATORSIXTYRAYBORN
SHERIFFDORMANCROWE
CONGRESSMANJIMMY MORRI

SON
GOVERNORJOHNMcKEITHEN
SENATORRUSSELLLONG

"Now the QUESTION Why
have these men elected by the
WHITEpeopleturnedtheir backon
us in our timeof need

"Is Communismso close Who
bought them Who bought their
HONORand FOR HOWMUCH
(c) "TheKu KluxKlanis strongly
organizedin Bogalusaand through
out Washingtonand St Tammany
Parishes Beinga secretorganiza
tion we have KLANmembersin
every conceivablebusinessin this
area Wewillknowthe namesof all
whoare invitedto the BrooksHayes
meetingand we willknowwhodid
and did not attend this meeting
Accordinglywe take this meansto
urge all of you to refrain fromat
tending this meeting Thosewho
do attend this meetingwillbe tag
ged as intergrationists and will
be dealt with accordinglyby the
Knightsof the KUKLUXKLAN.
[12] E Summaryof theFacts We

find that the defendantshaveadmitted
and-the proof has shownthat they in
timidatedharassedandotherwiseinter
fered with (1) Negroesexercisingtheir
civil rights (2) persons encouraging
Negroesto assert their rights and (3)
publicofficialspoliceofficers andother
personsseekingto accordNegroestheir
rights Theseactsare part of a
patternandpracticeof the defendantsto main
tain total segregationof the races in
WashingtonParish Thepatterncreates
an effectextendingbeyondthe effectof
any particularact or practice A Negro
whois clubbedin a pubicparkmayfear
to ordercoffeein a segregatedsandwich
shopor he maydecidethat it is the bet
ter part of valornot to exercisevoting
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rights Theownerof the sandwichshop
who receivesthreateningcalls for hav
ing servedNegropatronsmay conclude
that taking care of his family comes
aheadof hiring Negroemployees The
intimidationor violencemaybeeffective
not onlyas to the particularindividual
against whomit is directedbut alsoas
to others who may be less courageous
than theNegroesbraveenoughto parade
in Bogalusaor registerto votein Frank
linton Theacts of terror and intimida
tionadmittedor provedin this case acts
characteristicof a masked secret con
spiracy can be haltedonlyby a broad
orderenjoiningthe defendantsfromun
lawfullyinterferingwith the exerciseof
civilrights by Negrocitizens

III
The defendantscontendthat the com

plaint fails to state a claimuponwhich
relief can be granted Theystart with
the doctrine that the 14th and 15th
Amendmentsapplyonlyto stateactionor
actionundercolorof state law A This
movesthem to concludeas a matter of
statutoryconstructionthat Congressdid
notpurporttoenforcecivilrightsagainst
private persons Moreoverso they ar
gue the 1957Actappliesto interference
with "voting not to interferencewith
"registering B And they say if civil
rights acts do authorize enforcement
against privatepersons(not ownersor

II SeeUnitedStatesv Cruikshank1875
92 U.S 542 23 L.Ed588 Slaughter
HouseCases187316Wall.'3621L.Ed
394

12 In 1894Congressrepealedmostofthe
provisionsdealingwithfederalsupervisionofelectionsTwogeneralprovisionsforcriminalsanctionswereleftstanding
42 U.S.C 241 (originallySectionG
of the CivilRightsActof 1870Inter
Section5508of the RevisedStatutes)
providingcriminalsanctionsagainstevil
spiraclesto depriveanycitizenof soy
rightsecuredbytheConstitutionandlaws
of the UnitedStates and42U.S.C 242 (originallySection2 of the Civil
RightsActof 1866laterSection5510
oftheRevisedStatutes(1873)asamend
edin 190935Stilt 1092byaddingthe
word"wilfully")providingcriminalsanc
tionsagainstthe deprivationof consti

managersof a placeof publicaccommo
dation) the statutes are unconstitution
al

A
(1) TheCivilRightsActof 1957 In

the field of civilrights the problemof
enforcementis more difficult than the
problemof legislativedefinition The
choice-ofremedydetermineswhetheran
act of Congresssimplydeclaresa right
or carries machinery for meaningful
performanceof the statutory promise
In the past an obvioushiatus has been
the lack of effectivesanctionsagainst
private personsinterferingwith a citi
zen'sexerciseof a civilright Thislack
may be explainedby a numberof rea
sons (a) Congresshas been reluctant
to assert affirmativelyby legislationits
responsibilityto protect the privileges
andimmunitiesof citizensof the United
States for fear of imperilingthe bal
ancedrelationshipbetweenthestatesand
the Nation. (b) Courtshavenarrowly
construedcriminalsanctionsavailablein
Sections241and 242of Title 18.12(c)
Congressand the courts have been se
verelylimitedby the doctrineof state
action in spite of the trend towardan
expansiveviewof whatis state action.12
(d) Congresshas beenwaryof usingan
equitableremedyin civil rights legisla
tion TheConstitutionguaranteesanac
cusedin a criminalcasethe right to in

tutionalrightsprivilegesandimmunities
undercolorof state law SeeUnited
Statesv Williams1951341U.S 7071 S.Ct 581 95 L.Ed 758restrictingSection241to thosecasesinwhichthe
rightallegedlyviolatedis an incidentto
nntionnlcitizenshipSeealsoScrewsv
UnitedStates1945325U.S9105S.Ct
10.3189L.Ed1495construingSection
242nsrequiringspecificintenttodeprivea personoftherightmadespecificbythe
ConstitutionorlawsoftheUnitedStates
Section211and242orenowbeforethe
SupremeCourtngnin UnitedStatesv
PriceNos59 60 OctoberTerm1965UnitedStatesv QuestNo 65 October
Term1905

13 SeeCivilItightsCases1883109U.S
3 3S.Ct1827L.Ed835 UnitedStates
v Reese187692 U.S 214 23 L.Ed
563
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dictmentby a grandjury and trial by a Administrationsubmitted an omnibus
jury of the vicinage Enforcementof civilrights bill in 1956.16The focalis
civil rights through the use of an in
junctionand the contemptpowerof the
courtswouldby-passthe jury system.
Howeverin communitieshostileto civil
rights and resentful against "outside
that is federal interference injunctive
reliefmaybe the mosteffectivemethod
of enforcingcivilrights

Congressconsideredthe prosandcons
of theseandmanyother issueswhenthe

Hencethe compromiseaffectingjury
trialsinthe1957Act criminalcontempt
casesarisingunderthenetmaybetried
bydistrictcourtswithoutjuriesexcept
wherea personconvictedis finedmore
than$300or imprisonedformorethan6
months71Stat 638(1957)42U.S.C

1995
PresidentTruman'sCommitteeonCivil

Rightssubmittedequallybroadrecom
mendationsSec Report To Secure
TheseRights151 161(1947)

15 In a hearingbeforethe HouseJudi
ciaryCommitteeontheCivilRightsBill
AttorneyGeneralHerbertBrownellex
plicitlyexplainedthepurposesandscope
of theproposedamendmentsto Section
1971ofTitle42

"Themostobviousoneofthesedefects
in thelawis that it doesnotprotect
the votersin Federalelectionsfrom
unlawfulinterferencewiththeirvoting
rightsby privatepersons inother
words1971appliesonlyto thosewho
net 'undercolorof law whichmeans
publicofficialsandthe activitiesof
privatepersonsandorganizationsde
signedtodisenfranchisevotersinFed
eralor Stateelectionson accountof
raceor rotorare notcoveredby the
presentprovisionsof1971 Andsowo
saythatthestatutefailstoaffordthe
votersfullprotectionfromdiscrimina
tionwhichwascontemplatedby the
Constitutionespeciallythe 14thand
15thamendments
"Alsothissection1971is defectivein
anotherrespectbecauseit fails to
lodge-intheDepartmentofJusticeand
theAttorneyGeneralanyauthorityto
-invokecivilremediesfor the enforce
mentof votingrights Andit is par
ticularlylackinginanyprovisionwhich
wouldauthorizetheAttorneyGeneral
toapplytothecourtsforpreventivere
liefagainsttheviolationof thesevot
ingrights
"Andwethinkthatthisisalsoa major
defectTheultimategoalof theCon
250F.Supp. 221'i

sues the contemptpowerthe jury sys
tem and the relationshipof the States
with the Nation produced one of the
great debatesin Americanparliamentary
hitsory By the time the bill was cut
downto a votingrights law as the Civil
Rights Act of 1957 71 Stat 634 Con
gress and the countrythorouglyunder
stoodthesignificanceof thelegislation.
Congresshadopenedthe door thennear

stituti"nandtheCongressis thesafe
guardingof the free exerciseof the
votingright acknowledgingof course
the legitimatepowerof the Stateto
proscribenecessaryand fair voting
qualificationsAndwe believethat
civilproceedingsbytheAttorneyGen
eral to stop any illegalinterference
anddenialof the rightto votewould
hefarmoreeffectivein achievingthis
goalthanthe privatesuitsfor dam
ageswhichare presentlyauthorized
bythestatuteandfar moreeffective
thahthe!eriminnlproceedingswhichare
authorizedunderotherlawswhichof
coursecanneverbeuseduntilafter
theharmhasbeenactuallydone
"Nopreventivemeasurescanbebrought
underthecriminalstatutes SoI think
 and I believeyouwillagreewith
me that Congressshouldnowrecog
nizethatin orderto properlyexecute
the Constitutionandits amendments
andin orderto perfectthe intended
npplientionof thestatutesection1971
of title42 UnitedStatesCodeshould
beamendedin threerespects
"First by the additionof a section
whichwillpreventanyonewhethernet
ins undercolorof lawor not from
Ihrenteninginthnidntingorcoercingan
individualin his rightto votein any
der/ion generalspecialor primary
conrirningcandidatesfor Federalof
fice
"Andsecondto authorizethe Attor
ney Generalto luringcivilproceed
ing onbehalfoftheUnitedStatesor
anyaggrievedscreenforpreventiveor
othercivilreliefin anycasecovered
bythe,t ntute
"Andthirdnnexpressprovisionthatall
Site administrativeandjudicialcome
diesniseinetbefirstexhaustedbefore
resorttoMeFederalcourts. [Hear
ingsbeforeSnhconunitteeNo 5 of
the Committeeon theJudiciary85th
Cons.1siSeesis570(1957)]
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ly shut tonationalresponsibilityfor pro
tecting civil rights created or guaran
teed by the Nation by injunctionpro
ceedingsagainst privatepersons

Part III of the Administration'sbill
as originallyproposedwouldhave au
thorizedthe AttorneyGeneralto filesuit
againstany personwhodeprivedor was
aboutto depriveany citizenof any civil
right Thecompromisethat becamethe
CivilRightsAct of 1957limitscivilac
tions to protectionof voting rights in
special general or primary elections
where federal officers are elected

Before the 1957 Act Section 1971
(now1971(a))wasenforcedeitherbyan
action for damagesunder 42 U.S.C  
1983and  1985(3)or by a criminalac
tion under 18 U.S.C 241 242 The
1957Actaddsfoursubsectionsto Section
1971 including17

Noperson whetheractingun
der colorof law or otherwiseshall
intimidate threaten coerce or at
temptto intimidatethreaten or co
erce any other personfor the pur
pose of interfering with the right
of such other personto vote or to
vote as he may chooseor of caus
ing such other personto vote for
or not to vote for any candidate
for the office of President Vice
PresidentpresidentialelectorMem
ber of the Senate or Memberof the
Houseof RepresentativesDelegates
or Commissionersfrom the Terri
toriesor possessionsat anygeneral
specialorprimaryelectionheldsole
ly or in part for the purposeof se
lecting or electingany such can
didate

Wheneverany personhas en
gaged or there are reasonable
.groundsto believethat any person

17 Section1971(a)derivedfromtheCivil
RightsActof1870definedvotingrights
as follows

"(a) Allcitizensof theUnitedStates
whoareotherwisequalifiedbylawto
voteat anyelectionby thepeoplein
anyState Territorydistrictcounty
city parishtownshipschooldistrict
municipalityor otherterritorialsub

is about to engage in any act or
practice which woulddepriveany
other personof any right or privi
lege securedby subsection(a) or

the AttorneyGeneralmay in
stitute for the UnitedStates or in
thenameoftheUnitedStates a civil
actionor otherproperproceedingfor
preventiverelief includingan ap
plicationfor a permanentor tempo
rary injunction restraining order
or other order In any proceeding
hereunderthe UnitedStates shall
be liable for costs the same as a
privateperson. (Emphasisadded.)
The HouseReporton the Act there

was no Senate Report clearly states
the purposeof the amendmentsto 1971

"[T]his section adds new matter
The provisionis a further declara
tionof the right to votefor Federal
offices It states clearlythat it is
unlawfulfor a privateindividualas
wellas oneactingundercolorof law
to interfereor attemptto interfere
with the right to vote at any gen
eral special or primary election
concerningFederal offices This
amendmenthoweverdoesnot pro
vide for a remedy Howeverthe
succeedingsubsectionof the amend
ment whichis designatedsubsection

doesprovidea remedyin the
form of a civilactioninstitutedon
the part of the AttorneyGeneral.
HouseReportNo 291 to accompany
H.R.6127U.S.CodeCongand Adm
News1966 1977(1957)(Emphasis
added)

AlthoughCongressnarrowedthe sub
ject matter of the statute to voting
rights there is nothingnarrowaboutthe
scopeof the Actas to interferencewith
votingrights Thestatuteis not limited

divisionshallbeentitledandallowedto
votent all suchelectionswithoutdis
tinctionof rice colororpreviouscon
ditionof servitudeanyconstitution
lads customusageor regulationof
anyStateor Territoryor byor un
derits authorityto thecontrarynot
withstanding



"intimidate threaten coerceor at
tempt to intimidate threaten or
coercefor thepurposeof interfering
with the right of such person to
vote.
Thereis no doubtthat this language

appliestoprivateindividuals Andthere
is verylittle doubtthat the Actprotects
theright to regiserandto engagein ac
tivitiesencouragingcitizensto register
Asdiscussedmorefullyelsewhereregis
trationis an integral indispensablepart
ofthevotingprocess.tsIt is alsoa stage
that is vulnerableto abuseby the regis
trar onto unlawfulconductby private
persons Ever sincethe SupremeCourt
outlawedthe "white primary it has
beenapparentthat themainbattleground
in the war over Negrosuffrage would
be the registration office.ta See for
examplethe descriptionof the activities
oftheCitizensCouncilsandparishregis
trars in UnitedStates v State of Lou
isiana E.D.La.1963225 F.Supp 353
37$-380 Congresswaswellawarethat
a majormischiefto be combattedin the
1957Act was economiccoercionand
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to physicalacts or to direct interference threats of intimidationby private per
withthe act of votingbut appliesto sons that woulddenyor interfere with

"any act or practicewhich would the Negro'saccessto registrationYe
deprive any other person of any Moreoften than not the economicco
right or privilegesecuredby subsec ercionand intimidationby privateper
Lion(a) or (b) * * *. sonsare triggeredbyaneducationalcam

Thestatute appliesto "any person who paignto encourageregistration United
shall States v Beaty 6 Cir 1961 288 F.2d

653is a casein point Thecasearosein
HaywoodCountyTennesseea countyin
which no Negroes were registered to
vote In the spring of 1959 a newly
formedCivicand WelfareLeague ap
parentlysimilarto the BogalusaVoters
Leagueinitiateda campaignin Haywood
and in Fayette Countiesto encourage
Negroesto register Thisled to the in
stitutionof a "white primary in Fay
ette laterprohibitedbya consentdecree
in April1960 In the faceof a renewed
registrationdrive whitebusinessmenin
bothcountiesretaliatedby circulatinga
"blacklist containingthe namesof the
Negroeswho registeredand white citi
zenswho assistedthem The business
men inducedlocalmerchantsto boycott
anyonewhosenameappearedonthe list
by denyingcredit and the right to buy
necessitiesthrough the usual business
relations White landownersevicted
sharecroppersand tenant farmers who
had registeredor whosenamesappeared
on the blacklist The AttorneyGeneral
sued the businessmenand landowners
under Section1971 for immediatein
junctive relief.'( The district judge

SeeSectionIII B (1) (b)ofopinion
SeeKeySouthernPolitics555(1949)

CivilRightsCommissionReport133-38
(1961)
In a note BeattyPrivateEconomic

Coercionand the CivilRightsActof
195771Yale?..Jour536 543(1962)
theauthorpointsout

"TheCircuitCourt'sconstructionof
the1957actto applyto economicco
ercionin generaland to economic
coercioninvolvingcontractandprop
ertyrightsinparticularseemscorrect
In requestinglegislationtoprotectvot
ingrightsPresidentEisenhowernoted
'It is disturbingthatin somelocalities
allegationspersistthat Negrocitizens
arebeingdeprivedoftheirrighttovote
andarelikewisebeingsubjectedto un
warrantedeconomicpressures.Sen

atorDouglasn sponsorofthebillas
sertedhint the legislationwas di
rectedut denialsof votingrights'by
eco'', it prec.vareaswellasbyother
tnemrgAndllepresent.itiveColtera
Housesponsorindientcdthat if 'the
millidealertheeenldealerthebutcher
the linkerandthe cnn,llestickmaker* * * ngrcc * r to boycott
personswhotry lovotethengreement
wouldviolatetheproposedlaw.
TheAttorneyReneralbroughtnsimilar

'wit to enjoin"intimidationthreatand
eoercienin Fun-Ito_(`amity United
Statesv Atkinsonit als Civ.Ae4121
6 R.Rel.L.Rep200(1962)SeeMendel
sonDiseriminntion(Pren.IInll1962)21
AndseeUnitedStatesv EllisW.D.S.C
194213F.Supp321321
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granteda restrainingorderenjoiningthe
businessmenfrom "interferingthrough
intimidationand/or coercion but re
fused to enjoin the landownerson the
groundthat the CivilRightsActdidnot
vestthecourtwithauthority"toadjudge
contractsand propertyrights 6 Race
ReLL.Rep200 The Sixth Circuit af
firmedthe judgmentas to the business
menand extendedthe injunctionto the
landlords22

In East CarrollParish Louisianacot
tongrowersrefusedto gincottonfor Ne
grofarmerswhohadattemptedto regis
ter to vote TheAttorneyGeneralagain
suedunderthe 1957Act askingfor pre
ventiverelief againstownersoperators
and managersof cottongin businesses
and certain other businesses"refusing
to gin * * * refusingto sell goods
or servicesandto conductordinarybusi
nesstransactionswith anypersonforthe
purposeof discouragingor dissuading
suchpersonfromattemptingto voteand
* * * engaging in any attempted
threats intimidationsor coercionof any
nature whethereconomicor otherwise
JudgeDawkinsenteredan order agreed
to bytheparties stayingproceedingsfor
oneyear pendingfull complianceby the
defendantswith the terms of the pro
posedrestrainingorder UnitedStates
v Deal W.D.La.19616 RaceRel.L.Rep
474

[13] The parallel betweenthe de
fendants intimidationby economiccoer
cion in Beaty and in Deal and the de
fendants boycottand other'activitiesin
this caseis too patent to be spelledout
Beaty and Deal also illustrate a prin
cipleof enormousimportancein the en
forcementof civilrights actsotherwise
lawfulmaybecomeunlawfuland be en
joinedunderSection1971if the purpose
22 TheSixth-Circuitsaid

"If sharecropper-tenantsin possession
of real estate under contractare
threatenedintimidatedor coercedby
theirlandlordsforthepurposeofinter
feringwiththeirrightsof franchise
certainlythefactthatthecoercionre
latestolandorcontractswouldfurnish
noexcuseordefensetothelandowners

andeffectof the actsis to interferewith
the right to vote

In UnitedStates v Boardof Educa
tionof GreeneCountyMississippi1964
332F.2d 40 the Fifth Circuitaffirmed
the holdingbelowthat the government
failedto provethat the allegedintimida
tion was for the purposeof interfering
with the right to vote But as Judge
Tuttle explainedin United States v
Bruce(decidedNov 16 1965 353 F.2d
474) the Court in the GreeneCounty
caseassumed

"Whereasa schoolboardmight un
derthecircumstancespresentinthat
case havelegallyfailedto renewa
teacher'scontractfor any reasonor
for no reasonat all if it in fact de
clinedto renewthe [teacher's]cer
tificate as a meansof coercingor
intimidatingthe teacher as to her
right to vote suchconductwouldbe
prohibitedunder the Act.
In UnitedStatesv Brucetwenty-eight

white persons in WilcoxCounty Ala
bama notified-LonnieBrown a Negro
insurancecollectorto stayoff landown
ed or controlledby them As a result
Browncouldnotreachmanyofhispolicy
holders Brownhad beenactivein urg
ing his Negroneighborsand friendsto
registertovotein WilcoxCountya coun
ty where no Negroeswere registered
TheCourtheldthat the trial courterred
in dismissingthe complaint

"Thebackgroundallegationsmakea
strong case upon which the trial
court couldinfer the correctnessof
the conclusionaryallegationsthat
thesedefendantsdid in fact 'intimi
date and coerce the Negrocitizens
of WilcoxCounty throughthe per
son of LonnieBrown for the pur
poseof interferingwith their right
to vote!

forviolatingthelaw. 288F.2d653
Gr'B

23 JudgeTuttleadded
"Thusnithoughthe defendantshere
mayhavehailan almostunrestricted
rightto invoketheAlabamatrespass
lawto keepallpersonsfromentering
upontheirpropertyafterwarningin
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We hold that the CivilRights
Act of 1957appliesto private persons
includingthe defendantsimpleadedin
this case Weholdthat the Act applies
to interferingwith the right to register
as wellas interferingwith the right to
vote that-the 'ActprotectsNegrociti
zensagainst the coercionintimidation
and violencethe defendantsadmittedor
.wereprovedto havecommittedin this
case

(2) The Civil Rights Act of 1964
The '64 Act creates new categoriesof
civilrights andextendsthe authorityof
the Attorney General to protect such
rightsbya civilsuit for injunctiverelief
againstany person publicor private

Forpurposesofthisproceeding
the most.pertinentprovisionsare those
relatingto (a) placesof publicaccommo
dation (b) equal employmentopportu
nities and (c) public facilities As
.clearlyas words can say these provi
sionsreach any personand any action
that interferes with the enjoymentof
civilrights securedbysthe Act Thus
42 U.S.C  2000a 2of Title II is not
limitedto prohibitingdiscriminationor
'segregationby the owneror managerof
a placeof publicaccommodationThe
sectionprovides \

"Nopersonshall(a) withholddeny
or attempt to withholdor deny or
depriveor attempt to deprive any
personof any right or privilegese
curedby section-2000aor 2000a 1
of this title or (b) intimidate
threaten or coerce or attempt to
intimidate threaten or coerceany
personwiththe purposeof interfer
ing with any right or privilegese
curedbysection2000aor 2000a-1of
thistitle or (c) punishorattemptto
punishany personfor exercisingor
attemptingto exerciseany right or
privilegesecuredby section2000a
or 2000a 1of this title"

theexerciseofndesiretoexerciseex
elusiveownershipandproprietaryin
terestintheirpropertytheycouldnot

-legallyinvokethe rightof excluding
LonnieBrownwhohadpreviouslybeen
givenfreeaccessto thepropertyasa

Andto enforcethe law Section2000a 5
(a) allowsthe AttorneyGeneralto sue
"any personor groupof persons"

"Wheneverthe AttorneyGeneralhas
reasonablecauseto believethat any
person or group of personsis en
gagedin a patternor practiceof re
sistanceto the fullenjoymentof any
of the rights securedby this sub
chapter and that the pattern or
practiceis of sucha nature and is
intendedto denythe full exerciseof
the rights hereindescribedthe At
torney Generalmay bring a civil
action * * * requestingsuchpre
ventiverelief includingan applica
tion for a permanentor temporary
injunction restraining order or
other order against the person or
personsresponsiblefor suchpattern
or practice as he deemsnecessary
to insure the full enjoymentof the
rights hereindescribed. [Empha
sis supplied.]

Section2000e-6of TitleVII relatingto
equal employmentopportunitiestracks
the languageof Section2000a-5(a)

This suit is not oneto desegre
gate publicfacilitiesunder Title VII of
the Act However Section2000 b is
relevant sinceit demonstratesagainthe
broadCongressionalobjectiveof author
izingthe AttorneyGeneralto sueas de
fendants"suchadditionalparties as are
or becomenecessaryto the grant of ef
fectiverelief Thedefendantsinterfer
encewith the right of Negroesto use
publicfacilitiesin Bogalusais relevant
to the causeof action for that interfer
encewas part of a pattern and practice
of total resistanceto the Negroesexer
cise of civilrights

(3) In sum in theCivilRightsActsof
1957and 1964Congressrecognizedthat
whena Negrois clubbedor coercedfor
havingattemptedto register or for hav
ingentereda "white restaurant the ac

threator mean*of coercionfor the
purposeof interferingwithhisright
or the rightof otherswhomherep
resentedin exercisingtheirright to
registerandrole.
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tion mostlikelyto produceeffectivere
lief is not necessarilyfor the Negroto
complainto the localpoliceor to sue for
damagesor to makechargesunder 18
U.S.C   241 242 The mosteffective
relieffor himandfor allothersaffected
by the intimidationmaybean injunction
by the Nation against the private per
sonsresponsiblefor interferingwith his
civilrights

[17] Effectivenessof remedyis not
the only reason for the Congressional
grant of authorityto the AttorneyGen
eral of the UnitedStates The Nation
hasa responsibilityto supplya meaning
ful remedyfor a right it createsor guar
antees As Justice Storywrote in sus
tainingtheconstitutionalityof the Fugi
tive SlaveActof 1793

"If indeed the constitutionguar
anteesthe right and if it requires
the delivery[of the fugitiveslave]
upontheclaimoftheowner * *
the natural inferencecertainly is
that the national government.is
clothed with the appropriate au
thority and functionsto enforceit
The fundamentalprincipleapplica
ble to all casesof this sort would
seemto be that whenthe endis re
quired the meansare given * *
Priggv CornofPennsylvania1842
41 U.S (16Pet.) 539 614 10L.Ed
1060

It is one thing whenacts are mete in
vasionsof privaterights "it is quite a
different matter whencongressunder
takes to protectthe citizenin the exer
ciseof rights conferredby the constitu
tionof theUnitedStates essentialto the

TheSupremeCourthasaffirmedthe
constitutionalityofvariousprovisionsof
the1957Actonothergroundsthanthose
at issuehere fartedStatesv Thomas
]!1113113f S 5S SOS.Ct6124 1,.Ed
2d535 CulledSlnteav Raines1960
302U.S17SOS.Ct5194I,.hdr'a524
HannahVLarehe1960363U.S42080
S.Ct15024L.Ed.2d1307

Althougha statutethat is "necessary
midproper legislationto carryoutthe
powerof Congressto regulateelections
for federalofficemayalsobe "appro
priatelegislationto "enforcethepro

healthyorganizationof the government
itself Ex parte Yarbrough1884 110
U.S 651 666 4 S.Ct 152 159 28 L.Ed
274 We turn now to the defendants
constitutionalarguments

B
The defendants constitutionalargu

mentsrest ona misunderstandingof the
constitutional sources for the Civil
RightsActsof 1957and 1964.24

(1) The Civil Rights Act of
1957 ProtectionofRight to VoteFront
UnlawfulInterference (a) In uphold
ing the constitutionalityof the voting
provisionsof the 1957Act we neednot
considerthe Civil War Amendments.
Section 1971(h) here enforcedunder
1971(c) islimited to prohibitinginter
ferencewiththe right tovotein elections
for federaloffice ArticleI Section4
of theConstitutionis anexpressgrantof
authorityto Congressto regulatefederal
elections

"The Times Placesand Mannerof
holdingElectionsfor Senatorsand
Representativesshallbe prescribed
in each State by the Legislature
thereof but the Congressmay at
anytimeby Lawmakeor alter such
Regulationsexceptas to the Places
of chusingSenators.

As the HouseCommitteepoint
ed out in its report on the law United
Statesv Classic1941313U.S 299 61
S.Ct 1031 85 L.Ed 1368 "establishes
the authority in Congressto legislate
concerninganyandallelectionsaffecting
Federal officers whethergeneral ape

visionsofthe15th14thand13thamend
ments ThepredecessorofSection1971
(n) withstoodnttnekon constitutional
gronn,lsIn re EngleC.C.D.Md.1877
S p 7111No4,483It washeld
lo hr a (slidexerciseof congressional
powerenderthe15thAmendmentChap
manv King. t'ir 1946154F.2d4G0
cert 4ceied327U.S80066S.Ct905
90 L.Et 1025 Kelloggv Warmonth
C.C.I,.l.n.1S7214Fed.Cnsp 257 No
7.11(,7

TheVotingRightsActof 1965rests
inpnrl."nSection2 ofthe15thAmend
ment
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cial or primary as longas they are 'an States v Munford 1833 C.C.E.D.Va.
integralpart of the procedureof choice 16F 223 TheSupremeCourthas said
or where in fact the primaryeffective
ly controls their choice. U.S.Code
Cong and Adm.News85 Cong.1957p
1977 The Supreme Court said in
Classic

"While in a loosesense the right
to vote for representativesin Con
gress is sometimesspokenof as a
right derivedfromthe states [cita
tionsomitted]this statementis true
onlyin the sensethat the statesare
authorizedby the Constitutionto
legislateon the subjectas provided
by  2 of Art I to the extent that
Congresshas not restricted state
actionby the exerciseof its powers
to regulateelectionsunder  4 and
'itsmoregeneralpowerunderArticle
I  8 clause18of the Constitution
'To makeall Laws whichshall be
necessaryand proper for carrying
into Executionthe foregoingPow
ers.

864

[20] (b) Under the "sweeping
clause ArticleI Section8 Clause18
Congressmayenact all laws"necessary
andproper to carry out anyof its pow
ers including of course its power to
regulatefederal elections This provi
sionleavesto Congressthe choiceof the
meansto executeits powers "Let the
endbe legitimate let it be within the
scopeof the Constitutionand all means
whichareappropriatewhichare plainly
adaptedto that end whichare not pro
hibitedbut consistwith the letter and
spirit of the Constitutionare constitu
tional M'Cullochv Maryland1819 4
Wheat316 421 4 L.Ed 579

"Thereis little regardingan election
that is not includedin the terms time
placeandmannerof holdingit United

26 "Anabundanceof judicialdictaand
holdingsin analogoussituationsmake
clearthatthefederalpowerto regulate
electionsextendsequallyto theregistra
tionprocess Anymatteraffectingthe

'characteror choiceof the federalelec

"It cannot he doubtedthat these
comprehensivewords embraceau
thority to providea completecode
for congressionalelectionsnot only
as to timesand places but in rela
tion to notices registration super
visionofvotingprotectionofvoters
preventionof fraud and corrupt
practices countingof votes duties
of inspectorsand canvassers and
makingand publicationof election
returns in short to enact the nu
merousrequirementsas toprocedure
and safeguards which experience
showsare necessaryin order to en
force the fundamental right in
volved. Smileyv Holm 1932285
U.S 355 366 52 S.Ct 397 399 76
L.Ed 795

[21] Twofacts makeit appropriate
forCongressto reachregistrationaspart
of the "manner of holdingelections
First registering is a prerequisiteto
voting .Secondregistrationis a process
for certifyinga citizenas a qualified
voterin bothfederaland state elections.
A lawprotectingthe right to votecould
hardlyheappropriateunlessit protected
the right to register.2e In Classiclan
guage registeringis a "necessarystep
and "integral in votingin "elections
In Classic"interferencewith the effec
tive choiceof the voters in a Louisiana
Democraticprimarywasinterference"at
the onlystage of the electionprocedure
when their choiceis .of significance
Here in termsof a meaningfulright 'to
vote interferencewith Negro citizens
registering is interferenceat the most
criticalstage of the electionprocedure
It is true of coursethat the framersof
the Constitutiondid not knowaboutthe
registration process but neither did
theyhavein mindthe selectionof sena

torateissointegrallyrcintedtotheelec
tionultimatelyheldas to comewithin
'the'holdingof theelectionunderarticle
I section4. VanAlstyneAnti-literacy
TestLegislation61Mich.L.Itev805815
(1963)



tors and representativesby the direct Lion4 wheneverit is reasonablyrelated
primary In UnitedStates v State of to "protectionof the integrity of the
LouisianaE.D.La.1963225F.Supp353 federal electoralprocess Classic 313
359 aff'd on other grounds 1965 380 U.S at 316 61 S.Ct at 1038
U.S 145 85 S.Ct 817 13 L.Ed.2d709 Ex parte Sieboldinvolveda conviction
this Court said of state electionofficersfor ballot-stuff

"Congressionalauthority[underAr ing in a federalelection TheCourthad
title I  4] extendsto registration before it the EnforcementAct from
a phaseof the electoralprocesstin which Section1971was derived The
knownto the FoundingFathersbut statute containeda numberof extensive

todaya critical inseparablepart of votingand registrationregulationsin
theelectoralprocesswhichmustnet eludinga provisionfor the appointment
essarilyconcernthe UnitedStates of federal electionsupervisors These
sinceregistrationto votecoversvet supervisorswere authorized"to cause

ing in federalas well as in state suchnamesto be registeredas theymay
elections. think properto be so marked In sus
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tailing thevalidityof the legislationun
In United States v Manning W.D.La der ArticleI Section4 the Courtcom
1963215F.Supp 272 oneof the consti mented
tutionalattackson the CivilRightsAct "It is the dutyof the Statesto elect
of 1960wasdirectedat the provisionfor

representativesto Congress The
federal registrars In the opinionup dueandfair electionof theserepre
holdingthe act the Courtconsideredit sentativesis of vital importanceto
importantthat the UnitedStates Thegovernment

"For purposesof accomplishingthe of the UnitedStates is no lesscon
constitutionalobjectivethe electoral cernedin the transactionthan the
processis indivisible The act of Stategovernmentis It certainlyis
casting a ballot in a voting booth not boundto stand by as a passive
cannotbecut awayfromthe rest of spectator whenduties are violated
the process It is the last step in a and outrageousfrauds are commit
processthat starts withregistration ted It is directlyinterestedin the
Similarlyregistrationis an indivisi faithfulperformancebytheofficers
blepart ofelections * * * There ofelectionof theirrespectiveduties
is no separateregistrationfor fed Thosedutiesare owedas wellto the
eral elections Any interference UnitedStatesas to the State. 100
with the qualifiedvoter's right to U.S 388
register is therefore interference
with a federal election. 215 F [23 24] In YarbroughtheCourthad

Supp at 283 beforeit the questionwhetherCongress
couldprotectcivilrights againstprivate

[22] (c) Classicreliedon three im interferencespecificallyklanaggression
portant cases that construethe nature in the form of intimidationof voters
and extent of the powerof Congressto Yarbroughandeightothermembersofa
regulatefederalelections Ex parte Sie Georgiaklanwereindictedforconspiring
bold.1880 100U.S 371 25 L.Ed 717 to intimidatea Negroin the exerciseof
Ex parte YarbroughThe Ku KluxKlan his right to votefor a congressionalrep
cases 1884110U.S 651 4 S.Ct 152 28 resentatice It wasshownthat theyused
L.Ed 274 and Burroughsv United physicalviolenceand that they wentin
States 1934290U.S 534 54 S.Ct 287 disguiseuponthepublichighways They
78 L.Ed 484 485 Thesecasespointto wereconvictedunder the sectionof the
the principlethat a congressionalstatute EnforcementAct of 1870RevisedStat
protectingagainst private interference utesSection5508that wasthe predeces
beforethe votingstageis necessaryand sor of 18U.S.C  241 and alsounder
proper legislationunder Article I Sec Section5520 Theseare thecriminallaw
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powerto protectthe electionson which
its existencedependsfrom violenceand
corruption 110U.S at 658 4 S.Ct at
155 This impliedpowerarises out of
governmentalnecessity TheCourtsaid

"Thepowerin eithercasearisesout
ofthecircumstancethat thefunction
in whichthe party is engagedor the
right whichhe is 'aboutto exercise
is dependenton the laws of the
UnitedStates
"In bothcasesit is the dutyof that
governmentto seethat hemayexer
cisethis right freely and to protect
himfromviolencewhilesodoingor
on accountof so doing This duty
doesnotarise solelyfromthe inter
est of the partyconcernedbut from
the necessityof the governmentit
self that its serviceshall be free
from the adverseinfluenceof force
and fraud practicedon its agents
andthat thevotesbywhichits mem
bers of congressand its president
are electedshallbe the freevotesof
the electors and the officers thus
chosen the free and uncorrupted
choiceof thosewhohavethe right
to take part in that choice.

Sinceit'is thepurityof thefederalpoliti
cal processthat must be protected the
protectionmaybeextendedagainstinter
ferencewith any activityhavinga ra
tional relationship with the federal
politicalprocess Thus the "rationale
of Yarbrough indicates congressional
powerovervoting thoughlimitedto fed
eral electionsextendsto voter registra
tion activities includingregistration
rallies votereducationclassesandother

allcitizenstovoteinstateelectionsfree
fromdiscriminationonaccountof race
Giventhatbasisn congressionalstatute
protectingcitizrn"~fromslateor private
interferencewill therighttoparticipate
in anypartof the totingpriesss (reg
is(amtionprimary pre.pritnaryetc.)
wouldseemtobeas"appropriateforpia
teeLionofvotersin stateelectionsunder
Section2 of the 1GthAmendmentas
it is "necessarynodproperforprotee
tinsof votersin federalelections

866

counterpartto42U.S.C 1971 TheAct
forbadetwoor morepersonsto "conspire
to injure oppressthreaten or intimidate
anycitizenin the free exerciseor enjoy
mentof anyright or privilegesecuredto
him by the Constitutionor lawsof the
UnitedStates or to "go in disguiseon
the highway or on the premisesof an
other with intent to preventor hinder
[suchcitizenin] his free exerciseor en
joyment of any suchright or to "con
spire to preventby force intimidation
or threat anycitizenwhois lawfullyen
titledto vote fromvotingfor presiden
tial electorsor membersof Congress
JusticeMiller in a powerfulopinionfor
the Court sustainedthe convictionand
heldthe statutevalid Theopinionmade
it clearthat the right to votein federal
electionsis a privilegeof nationalciti
zenshipderivedfrom the Constitution
Congresstherefore"can by law protect
the act of voting the placewhereit is
done,.andthe man whovotesfrom per
sonalviolenceor intimidationand the
electionitself'fromcorruptionor fraud.
Nordoesit matterthat stateandfederal
officesare electedin the sameelection
The congressionalpowersare not "an
nulledbecausean electionfor state of
ficersis heldat thesametimeandplace
110U.S at 662 4 S.Ct at 157

[25 $7] The heart of the Yarbrough
decisionis the Court'semphasison the
transcendentinterestof the federalgov
ernmentzt The violenceand intimida
tion to whichthe Negrowas subjected
wereimportantbecausethey alloyedthe
purity of the federal politicalprocess
Thefederalgovernment"must havethe

27 Oursilencewithrespectto the 15th
Amendmentcarriesno impliedcomment
asto thescopeof thatarorndan"ntWe
foundit unnecessarytoconsiderthe15th
Amendmentls"enusoftheNation'smail
featinterestin the integrityof federal
electionsand the SupremeCourt'srip
potentof a constitutionalbasisfor that
interestOnitsfacehoweverSection1
of theFifteenthAmendmentclearlyes
tablishesa constitutionalbasis-TorCon
groatto protecttheunabridgedrightof

250F,SupD-23
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activitiesintendedtoencourageregistra
tions

[28] Burroughsis oneofa numberof
casesdealingwithcorruptelectionprac
ticeswhichgofar beyondthe act of vot
ing in an election The Federalcorrupt
practicelawsoperateonthecampaigning
stage rather than the votingstage and
applyto privatepersonshavingno part
in the electionmachinery In Burroughs
the contentionwasmadethat underAr
ticle II Section1 the states controlthe
mannerof appointingpresidentialelec
tors Congressis limitedto prescribing
the timeof choosingelectorsandthe day
on whichthey cast their votes In up
holdingthe validityof the FederalCor
rupt PracticesActof 1925theCourt re
lyingon Yarbroughsaid

"Whilepresidentialelectorsare not
officersor agentsof thefederalgov
ernment * * * theyexercisefed
eral functionsunder and discharge
duties in virtue of authority con
ferred by the Constitutionof the
United States The president is
vestedwith the executivepowerof
the nation The importanceof his
electionandthevitalcharacterof its
relationshipto and effect uponthe
welfareandsafetyof the wholepeo
ple cannot be too strongly stated
To say that Congressis without
powertopassappropriatelegislation
to safeguardsuchan electionfrom
the improperuse of moneyto in
fluencethe result is to denyto the
nationina vitalparticularthepower
of self-protection Congress un
doubtedlypossessesthat power as
it possessesevery other poweres
sentialto preservethe departments
and institutionsof the generalgov
ernment from impairmentor de
struction whether threatened by
force or by corruption. 290 U.S
at 545.54 S.Ct at 290

[29 :101 The states powerover the
mannerof appointingpresidentialelec.

28 CommentFederalCivilActionAgainst
PrivateIndividualsforCrimesInvolving
CivilRights74YaleL.Jour14621470

tors is similarto thestates reservedpow
er to establish voting qualifications
Notwithstandingthis unquestionedpow
er in the stales "Burroughsholdsthat
'Congresshas the impliedpowerto pro
tect the integrity of the processesof
popularelectionof presidentialelectors
once that modeof selectionhas been
chosenby the state. There is an ob
viousparallelbetweencorruptionof the
federal electoralprocessby the use of
moneyand corruptionof the sameproc
ess by acts of violenceand intimidation
that preventvotersfromgettingon the
registrationrolls or indeed from ever
reachingthe registrationoffice

Classic involvedfederal indictments
againststate electioncommissionersfor
falselycountingballotsin a Democratic
party primary TheCourtheldthat un
derArticleI Section4andthe necessary
and properclauseCongresshad the im
pliedpowerto regulateparty primaries
The "interference[was] with the effec
tivechoiceof thevotersat the onlystage
of the electionprocedurewhen their
choiceis of significance* * * The
primaryin Louisianais an integralpart
of the procedurefor the popularchoice
of Congressmen The right to choose
is a right "securedby the Constitution
313U.S at 314 61S.Ct at 1037 More
over "sincethe constitutionalcommand
is withoutrestrictionor limitationthe
right unlike those guaranteedby the
Fourteenthand Fifteenth Amendments
is securedagainst the actionof individ
ucnlsns tt'Lllns of states. Ib at 31561
S.Ct at 1038Mr Justice Stone for the
Court spelledout the rationale

"The right to participate in the
choiceof representativesfor Con
gress * * is protectedjust as
is the right to voteat the election
wheretheprimaryisbylawmadean
integral paintof the electionma
chincry ` * * Unlessthe con
sl.it.nlioualprotectionof the inte
grity of 'elections extendsto pri

(1961) Andsee MaggsandWallace
CongressnodLilenu'yTests 27 Duke
t &CootProb510517-521(1962)
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mary elections Congress is left the wholestructuremaycrumbleand
powerlessto effectthe constitutional fall even before the occupantsbe

comeawareof their peril Eradica
tion et politicalternlilcr or at least
checking!heir :uticitics is neces
sary t.opissent irreparabledamage
to our Government.
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purpose * * *. 313U.S at 318
319 61S.Ct at 1039
The innumerablecasesin this Circuit

involvingcivil rights speak eloquently
againstthe useof economiccoercionin
timidation and violenceto inhibit Ne
groes from applying for registration
This interferencewith nationallyguar
anteedrights whetherbypublicofficials
or private personscorrupts the purity
of the politicalprocesson whichthe ex
istenceand healthof the NationalGov
ernmentdepend No onehas expressed
this better than Judge Rivesin United
Statesv Wood5 Cir 1961295F.2d772
cert denied369U.S 850 82 S.Ct 933
8L.Ed.2d9 (1962).29In Woodthe inter
ferencewas in the form of groundless
prosecutionof a Negro organizerwho
hadset upa registrationschoolin Walt
hallCounty Mississippiwhereno Ne
groeshad ever registered He was not
evenqualifiedtovoteinthecountywhere
the intimidatoryacts occurred he was
a residentof anothercounty In revers
ing'the district judge's refusal to stay
the state prosecutionthe Fifth Circuit
notedthat the allegedcoercionwas of
the kind the 1957Act was intendedto
reach JudgeRivesfor the Court said

"Thefoundationof our formof gov
ernmentis the consentof the gov
erned Wheneverany personinter
feres with the right of any other
personto voteor to voteas he may
choosehe acts like a politicalter
miteto destroya part of that foun
dation A single termite or many
termitesmay pass unnoticed but
'eachdamagesthe foundationandif
that processis allowedto continue

29 TnthateaseItardr a Negroresident
ofTennesseea memberof the"Student
Non-ViolentCoordinatingCommittee
wasinWalthallbountyMississippifor
the purposeof organizingNegroesof
thatcountyto registerandvote Hardy
engngedin an argumentwiththe regis
trar Theregistrarorderedion toleers
theoffice Ashegotto thedoor the
registrarstreet(himonthebock-ofthe
headwitha revolver!lardy-wasarrest
edacidchargedwith 1,reae1iof the

01-33] Weholdthat thedefendants
rats of economicrocrriInt intimidation
and eioleercdirer( d at Negro citizens
in WashingtonParishfor thepurposeof
deterringtheir registeringto votestrike
et the intee)itypof the federalpolitical
process 7'tt.rright to vote in federal
electionsa p:ivilegeof nationalcitizen
ship seemedby the UnitedStates Con
stitution includesthe tight to register
to vote The right to register to vote
includesthe right to befree frompublic
or privateinterferencewithactivitiesra
tionallyrelatedto registeringand to en
couragingothers to register

The Civil Rights Act of 1964
Public Accommodatiin The Supreme
Courthasupheldthe constitutionalityof
TitleII as it appliesto motelsandrestau
rants Heartof AtlantaMotelv United
States 1964379U.S 241 86 S.Ct 348
13L.Ed.2d258 Katzcnbachv McClung
1964379U.S 29185S.Ct 377 13L.Ed
2d290

[34] The defendantsare left there
fore onlywith the contentionthat the
Act for reasonsnot articulatedshould
net reachprivatepersons

The defendants are really arguing
againstthe judgmentof Congressin se
lectinginjunctiverelief against private
personsas onemethodof enforcingcon
gressionalpolicy Onceit is conceded
that Congresshas the power underthe
commerceclauseto folbiddiscrimination

peace The('on"( hurtled(1) thefact
that Hardywasnoteligibleto register
andtheaforehis rightto votewasnot
interferedwith (2)theappealwasfrom
ndenialofa requestfit n temporaryre
strainingordergenerallyanunappealable
orderend"'r2.tif'.S.Cfit 121(11292

tie prnneretinnwasa stydecriminal
"nurtProreedhg preteens!by thedoc
trineofvomitandSolion2283severely
r"striell0gnder:iliniuurLnnsof state
proerrd!ngr
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in publicplacesthere is little doubtthat
injunctivereliefagainstanypersonseek
ingto frustratethestatutoryobjectiveis
appropriate

In this Circuit relyingon In re Delis
1895 158 U.S 564 15 S.Ct 900 39
L.Ed 1092 the courts have held that
whenprivate personsburdencommerce
to the detrimentof the nationalinterest
the Nationmayenjoinsuchpersonseven
withoutenablinglegislation Ontwooc
casionscourts have issued injunctions
against klansand klansmenengagedin
intimidationandviolenceburdeningcom
merce United States v U S Klans
M.D.Ala.1961194 F.Supp 897 Plum
mer v Brock M.D.Fla.19649 R.Rel.L
Rep 1399 SeealsoUnitedStatesv City
of Jackson 5 Cir 1963318F.2d1

(3) The Civil Rights Act of 1964
EqualEmploymentOpportunities Title
VII likeTitleII is baseduponthe com
merce clause The term "industry af
fecting commerce used in Title VII
parallelsthe definitionof "industryaf
fecting commerce in the LMRDA(29
U.S.C 402(c)) This in turn incorpo
rates the definitionof "affectingcom
merce in the NLRA(29 U.S.C  152
(7)) TheNationalLaborRelationsAct
representsan exerciseof congressional
regulatorypowerto "the fullestjurisdic
tionalbreadthconstitutionallypermissi
ble underthe CommerceClause, NLRB
v RelianceFuelOilCorp.1963371U.S
224 226 83 S.Ct 312 313 9 L.Ed.2d
279 PolishNationalAllianceof United
Statesv NLRB1944322U.S 643 647
64S.Ct 119688L.Ed 1509a conclusion
equallyapplicableto TitleVII

Thesweepingregulationsin theNLRA
and LMRDAcoveringthe terms condi
tions andpoliciesof hiringandbargain
ing donotdiffer in anyessentialrespect

30 Thefinal findsthatontheadmis:ums
andonthrccideneraddneedat theI,ear
iug a preliminaryinjunctionshouldnot
issuenoinstCharlesRayWilliamsuLolds
ApplewhiteandWillisBlackwellThe
Courtdoesnotentera judgmentofdis
missalas to thesedefendantsbecause
theUnitedStatesexpresslyreservedthe
rightto introduceadditionalevidenceat
the tearingfor permanentreliefas to
theseandotherdefendantsAtthetime

from this legislationprohibiting dis
criminationin hiring practicesand on
the job assignments Theemployer-em
ployeerelationshiphas of course direct
effect uponthe productionof industries
which are in commerceand upon the
practicalutilizationof the labor force
and the power of Congressto regu
late these activitiescannotbe doubted
NLRBv 'Jones& LaughlinSteelCorp.
1936301U.S 1 57 S.Ct 615 81 L.Ed
893 NLRBv Fainblatt 1939306U.S
601 606 307U.S 609 59 S.Ct 668 83
L.Ed 1014 Mabeev WhitePlainsPub
lishingCo. 1946327U.S 178 66 S.Ct
511 90 L.Ed 607

[351 Defendantsadmitthat theybeat
and threatenedNegropicketsto prevent
them front enjoyingthe right of equal
employmentopportunity The effectof
courseis to preventNegroesfromgain
ing free accessto potentialemployers
Such acts not only deter Negroesbut
intimidateemployerswho might other
wise wish to complywith the law but
fear retaliationandeconomicloss This
is preciselywhattheklan'sBoycottRules
ere designedto do

TheUnitedStateshasallegedthe de
fendantshave admitted and the proof
has shownthat the defendantshavein
timidated harassed and in other ways
interferedwith the civil rights of Ne
groessecuredby the Constitution The
admissionand proofshowa patternand
practiceof interference

Protectionagainst the acts of terror
and intimidationcommittedby the Orig
inalKnightsof theKuKluxKlanandthe
individualdefendantscanbe haltedonly
by a broad injunctivedecreealongthe
linesof the ordersuggestedbythe Unit
edStates TheCourtwillpromptlyissue
all appropriateorder.ao

if thehraringItlaekwellhadnotbeen
errr Ily -.erns! Wefindthat .Tames

EllisSidney.\ugnstWarnerandAlbert
Applewhileere membersof the klan 
Ai'I'A"r  rte membersuntilrecently
andttereforcshouldbe enjoinedThe
defendantsrequestfordismissalof the
m"ti"uas to thesenameddefendantsand
theirream^:tfie attorneysfeesarede
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INCREASEIN VIOLENCE

Violence is a reality in America today In'the
light of events in recent years it has become the most
serious domestic problem confronting the United States

Crimes of Violence

Every indicator available to the FBI from its inves
tigative responsibilities in both the criminal and security
fields emphasizes that violence is a rapidly growing malady
This is clearly shown in the statistics compiled by the FBI in
its Uniform Crime Reporting program Of an estimated 3 and
3/4 million serious crimes reported to law enforcement
agencies in 1967 484,900 were violent crimes in the classifi
cations of murder forcible rape robbery and aggravated assault
This represented a substantial increase over the 421,000 such
crimes reported in 1966

The violent crime rate in the United States for 1967
reached 250 victims per 100,000 population This is more than
double the 1940 rate 88 per cent higher than the 1950 rate
and 57 per cent above the 1960 rate

Over-all crime in the United States rose 21 per
cent during the first six months of 1968 over the corresponding
period in 1967 The violent crimes of murder forcible rape
robbery and aggravated assault increased 21 per cent as a
group Armed robberies increased 34 per cent and aggravated
assaults with firearms 28 per cent in the first six months of
1968 as compared to the same period of 1967

These statistics represent an epidemic of crime and
violence which has affected virtually every segment of American
society The mugger the rapist the hoodlum stalk our streets
in frightening numbers Fear of venturing outside the home at
night has become a fact of urban life

Guns are far and away the most commonweapon used
in murders and nonnegligent homicides Of the 12,090 murders
reported in the United States in 1967 over 7,600 were com
mitted with firearms They were also used in over 73,000
armed robberies and over 52,000 aggravated assaults It is
significant in these times when we know too well the tragic
stories of senseless sniper killings and the shooting of
innocent people by crazed gunmen that murder by firearms has
increased 47 per cent since 1964 Armed robberies and aggra
vated assaults with firearms have increased 58 and 76 per cent
respectively since 1964

66-0770 76 56
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The Crime Clocks as contained in the FBI's
Uniform Crime Reports for 1967 show that last year these
offenses occurred at these time rates

Serious Crimes 7 each minute
Violent Crimes One each minute
Murder One every 43 minutes
Forcible Rape One every 19 minutes
Aggravated Assault One every 2 minutes
Robbery One every 2 minutes
Burglary One every 20 seconds
Larceny One every 30 seconds
Auto Theft One every 48 seconds

Violence against Law Enforcement Officers

The violence of the criminal often cold-blooded
and calculated is especially felt by law enforcement
officers In 1967 76 officers were killed in the United
States while performing their official duties This raised
the total of these deaths to 411 for the eight-year period
beginning in 1960 In 96 per cent of these murders fire
arms were used

A study of the criminal histories of the 539
offenders involved in these police murders since 1960
reveals that 77 per cent had been arrested on some prior
criminal charge before they took an officer's life .In
fact 54 per cent of those offenders with prior criminal
arrests had been previously taken into custody for such
violent crimes as murder rape robbery and assault with
intent to kill

Of the offenders previously convicted two
thirds had been granted leniency in the form of parole or
probation Three of every ten of the offenders were on
parole or probation when they murdered an officer

Physical assaults against officers are also
increasing A heavy toll of injuries among police officers
has resulted from enforcement action taken in connection
with riots and civil disobedience Nationally the rate
of assaults on law enforcement officers in 1967 was up
11 per cent and assaults per 100 officers increased to
13.5 per cent from 12.2 per cent in 1966
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Youthful Criminality

A particularly tragic facet of the crime and
violence problem in this country is the increasing involve
ment of young people A disproportionate share of national
crime is committed by persons under 18 years of age In
1967 for example 49 per cent of those arrested for
serious crimes were in this age bracket and arrests of
persons under 18 increased a startling 69 per cent from
1960 to 1967 while the number of persons in the age group
10 through 17 increased just 22 per cent

The majority of juvenile crimes are against
property (62 per cent of all persons arrested for car
theft in 1967 for example were under 18 years of age)
However youthful violence has been steadily rising
Arrests of individuals in this age group for violent crimes
showed the following percentage increases in 1967 over
1960 murder 56 per cent forcible rape 38 per cent
robbery 96 per cent and aggravated assault 121 per
cent

Violence is particularly prevalent today among
young people in large metropolitan areas Vicious juvenile
gangs terrorize the slum sections which spawn them using
weapons easily made or come by to commit crimes of violence
which all too frequently leave their victims killed or
maimed This youthful criminality too often establishes
a career in crime

Organized Crime

Although violence is an integral part of the
operations of organized crime--whose major syndicate is
known as La Cosa Nostra--it is a coldly calculated tactic
to maintain the group's dominance over its own members
and over the members of the society in which it operates
rather than terror for terror's sake The peculiar evil
of this type of "corporate violence is not the individual
sadism and brutality of the "enforcers and "strong-arm
men, but the monopolistic position it enables racket
leaders to gain and hold in their legitimate as well as
their illicit activities
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Force and threats of force are employed to
eliminate rivals collect on gambling and loan-sharking
debts frighten potential witnesses enforce internal
discipline and gain possession of various business chattels
In the greater Chicago area alone there have been more than
1,000 gangland slayings since 1919 only 17 of which have
been solved in the greater Boston area there have been more
than 50 during the past four years only 11 of which have
been solved

Careers in Crime

The FBI's Careers in Crime program a study of
criminal careers made possible by the cooperative exchange
of criminal fingerprint data among law enforcement agencies
has produced the following profile of 12,026 perpetrators
of violent crimes who were arrested in 1966 and 1967 For
the murderers of whomthere were 922 the average criminal
career was 11 years and 7 arrests For the felonious
assault offenders of whomthere were 4,538 the average
career was 10 years and 8 arrests For the rapists of
whomthere were 925 the average career was 8 years and
7 arrests and for the robbers of whomthere were 5,641
the average career was 9 years with 8 arrests

Seven per cent of the murderers had previously
been charged with homicide during their criminal careers
and 18 per cent of the rapists were repeaters of this
violation With respect to the felonious assault offenders
30 per cent had previous arrests for serious assaults
and 37 per cent of the robbers had repeated that crime
This is of key interest because it shows a tendency toward
the commission of violent crimes by repeaters

Cost of Crime and Violence

The enormous cost in money and ruined lives which
the statistics of American crime represent touches almost
every citizen in some manner The cost in dollars and
cents is staggering--estimated at over $27 billion a year
The damage inflicted by the riots in our cities in recent
years has added materially to this figure The rioting
her in Washington D C. following the murder of
Martin Luther Xing on April 4 1958 caused damage estimated
at $24 million Losses sustained during the April rioting
in Baltimore amounted to $14 million
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The cost to society of the fear and anguish
resulting from violence cannot be assessed monetarily
There is no way to determine accurately the damage to
the Nation or to individual lives resulting from the
harrowing experiences of criminal attacks which maim
or mutilate nor the price of personal grief and
suffering for families of those struck down by killers
The corrosion of fear which violence brings saps our
strength as a Nation and weakens the social fabric of
our communities

ORGANIZATIONSADVOCATINGVIOLENCE

There are in the United States today a number
of subversive and extremist organizations which advocate
force and violence They strive in every possible way to
disrupt law and order and to inculcate hatred and bigotry
that breed violence

Communist Party USA

Prominent among these is the Communist Party.
USA (CPUSA) Communist statements for public consumption
to the contrary material furnished for study within the
CPUSAclearly reveals that the use of force and violence
is--as it has always been--the primary technique for the
communist seizure of power

Communists are in the forefront of civil rights
antiwar and student demonstrations many of which ultimately
become disorderly and erupt into violence As an example
Bettina Aptheker Kurzweil 24-year-old member of the CPUSA's
National Committee was a leading organizer of "free speech
demonstrations on the campus of the University of California
at Berkeley in the Fall of 1964 There protests culminating
in the arrest of more than 800 demonstrators during a massive
campus sit-in on December 3 1964 were the forerunner of the
current campus upheaval

In a press conference on July 4 1968 the opening
day of the CPUSA's special national convention G'Is Hall the
Party's General Secretary stated that there were communists
on most of the major college campuses in the country and that
they had been involved in the student protests
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Mike Zagarell CPUSAyouth leader claimed that
the Party had played a leading role in student rebellions
and antidraft demonstrations across the country during
the past year For example he claimed that GOof the
300 marshals used during "Stop the Draft Week demonstra
tions in New York City during December 1967 were CPUSA
members

These statements are amply supported by the
evidence of such communist participation in student unrest
and antidraft protest demonstrations which FBI investigations
have disclosed The Students for a Democratic Society
for example has played a key role in many of these demon
strations and some of its members as well as some of its
national leaders have publicly admitted that they are com
munists In addition members of the CPUSA-controlled
W E B DuBois Clubs of America and other communist splinter
youth groups such as the Young Socialist Alliance the
Youth Against l'ar and Fascism and the Progressive Labor
Party have been very active in these demonstrations

Communists labor ceaselessly to exploit the
racial situation and to incite racial strife and violence
in this country They have been active in exploiting
propa ;andawise the riots of recent years One main com
munist goal is to alienate Negroes from established authority

It has long been communist policy to charge and
protest "police brutality wherever possible--particularly
in racial situations--in a calculated effort to discredit
law enforcement and to accentuate racial issues The
cumulative effect of this continuing smear campaign proves
that it has been immensely successful This campaign
popularized the cry of "police brutality to the point
where it has unfortunately been accepted by many non
communists especially militants among minority groups and
students The net effect of the charge of "police brutality
is to provoke and encourage mob action and violence by
developing contempt for constituted authority
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Other Coaanuni_stOrgnni_nations

Other communist organizations in this country
dedicated to the use of force and violence include the
Trotskyite Socialist Workers Party and the pro-Rod Chinese
Progressive Labor Party (PLP) The activities of William
Epton Negro vice president of the PLP in connection
with the 1964 Harlem riot resulted in his arrest by New
York authorities IIe was subsequently found guilty of
conspiracy to riot advocacy of criminal anarchy and
conspiracy to advocate criminal anarchy

Students for a Democratic Society

The emergence of the so-called "new left move
ment in this country in recent years has attracted much
public attention because of its flagrant resort to civil
disobedience The new left is composed of radicals
anarchists pacifist E crusaders socialists commaunists
idealists and malcontents It is predominantly a campus
oriented movement A largo proportion of the new leftists
was reared in affluent homes

This movement which is hest typified by its
primary component the Students for a Democratic Society (SDS)
has an almost passionate desire to destroy the traditional
values of our democratic society and the existing social
order The SDS has been described by Gus Hall General
Secretary of the CPUSA as part of the "responsible left
which the Communist Party has "going for us.

In recent months student disturbances have
exploded on college and university campuses throughout
the United States initiated by student activists many
of whomare affiliated with the SD3 or campus-based black
extremist groups The riotous activity at Columbia
University was spearheaded by ;dark Rudd Chairman of the
SDS Chapter at this university In an open letter to
President Kirk which appeared in the public press in
May 1968 Rudd stated "Your power is directly threatened
since we will have to destroy that power before we take over.
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The SD3 held a national convention at Michigan
State University in June 1963 At this convention
methods to disrupt selective service facilities and law
enforcement mere discussed in a "sabotage and e::plosives
workshop Suggestions included flushing bombs in toilets
to destroy plumbing using sharp tripod-shaped metal
inctrumontc to belt vehi.cics firing Molotov cocktails
from shot guns jamming radio equipment and dropping
"thermite bombs down manholes to destroy communications
systems

The protest activity of the new left and the
SDS under the guise of legitimate o pression of dissent
has created an insurrectionary climate which has con
ditioned a number of young Awericans".-especially college
students--to resort to civil disobedience and violence
Because activists of the new left are committed to the use of
direct action and violence to achieve their objectives the
now left movement is becoming more and more anarchistic mili
tant and violent As an ca:mple a June 1963 issue of "The
Hat, a new left underground nenspaper published in Ilcw York
City carried an article and diagraa describing the manufacture
of a homemade bomb out of ammoniumnitrate and a length of
pipe This particular article concluded by noting that a
subsequent issue mould contain plans for making thermite bombs

White Kate Organizations

In addition to communist and new left groups there
are a number of organizations which are basically terrorist
and hoodlum by nature These groups are chiefly of a hate
or "anti variety anti-Negro anti-white anti-Semitic or
anti-minority Their commondenominator is a distrust for
law and order and a belief in force and violence

White hate groups include more than a dozen Klan
organizations lineal descendants of the Ku Klux Klan which
was founded over a century ago The Klan has a tradition
of and a penchant for violence Over the years murder
arson bombings and beatings of Negroes have boon perpetrated
in many areas by Klansmen
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The National States Rights Party is a white,hato
group which is composed of forcer members of P.lan organi
zations as well as notorious anti-Semites It too has
consistently and pointedly advocated a policy of violence

The National Socialist White People's Party
formerly known as the Pnerican Nazi Party is another organi
zation that espouses a lino of hatred against Negroes and Jews

The Llinutemen is a group of "suporpatriots who
ostensibly are preparing and training to engage in guerrilla
warfare in the United States following a communist take-over
which they believe is inevitable Its members have an
obsession for weapons .of all kinds

Black Nationalist Organizations

The whole problem of violence in American
society has been intensified by the recent growth of
black extremist organizations These organizations contain many
vicious hate-filled individuals whose objective is anarchy
whose symbol is the Molotov cocktail whose slogan of
defiance is "burn baby burn" whose manifesto is Frantz
Fanon's "The Wretched of the Earth" and whose preachers
of the gospel of hate include Stokely Carmichael H Rap
Brown and Robert Franklin Williams

The Nation of Islam the largest of these Negro
hate organizations is in both the e:;tremist and the non
extremist camp It has achieved a respectability of sorts
because it has shrewdly used the shield of religion and
has insisted that its members avoid racial disorders and
live moderately Nevertheless its meetings are replete
with condemnations of the white race and vague references
to the physical retribution that will be meted out to
oppressors

The Student Nonviolent Coordinating Committee
(SNCC) whose militant top leaders have included Stokely
Carmichael and N Rep Brown is one of the most publicized
of the black extremist groups Cars.iichaol,who was recently
expelled from SNCC has stated that black power signifies
"bringing this country to its knees and "using any force
necessary to attain objectives He has also urged the
blacks in this country to "prepare for a bloody revolution.
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The impact of extremist spokesmen on the black
community and their ability to incite the youth in particular
cannot be underestimated These spokesmen are extremely
vocal and dedicated to the destruction of the United States
They have a large audience because of the widespread dis
semination given to their inflammatory statements by the
news media

Consider the following statements Carmichael
said in A1gier in September 1957 "Revolution is the only
solution for the American Negroes. In August 1963 he
asserted that the black revolution is entering "the period of
armed struggle just before there is guerrilla warfare Last
summer in Cambridge Uarylend U Rap Brown reportedly said
"It's time for Cambridge to explode--black folks built
America if America don't come around we're going to burn
it. Earlier this yeer Brown wrote "We must move from
resistance to aggression from revolt to revolution... May
the deaths of '63 signal the beginning of the end of
this country.

Take the violence in Cleveland Ohio in ].ate July
1966 There member: of the militant black nationalist group
New Libya e changed gunfire with police resulting in the
deaths of three officers and eight civilians

Representatives from several Negro universities
and colleges attended a black student conference sponsored
by the SiCC and held in mid-April 1963 in a southern
state Reportedly the majority of the men and women
at this conference were armed with pistols

Among the items discussed at a "defense workshop
at this conference were the following preparation of
maps showing the locations of the homes of mayors chiefs
of police and similar authorities co they can be eliminated
by Llau Mau-type tactics distribution of forces in several
sections of a city to prevent law enforcement agencies
from couceetrating in one are:. location of snipers along
travel reutes of National Guard units and police forces
use of Vietnam 'iar veterans to train black people in
demolition use of booby traps location of vulnerable spots
on armored vehicles and guerrilla warfare and use of
black college students to instruct black people in adjacent
communities in the care and use of firearms preparation
of Molotov cocktails and reloading of spent cartridges



881

The Revolutionary Action Rloverent (RAIL)in a
nilitant blucl e::tre.-tint pro-Chir.eno co:".:unint organization
dedicated to the overthrow of the United Stnto Goverano:lt
by force and violence R.^.1has organinod rifle clubs in
order to engage in fircarnn practice and to obtain erns
and ar uniiioa On Juan 15 1033 two RAMnenbnre v;ere
convi.ctcd in ile,i York City of eonnpiring to murder Roy
17i1L"innand Whitney Young Jr. two coderato Negro civil
rights leaders

The D1ac! Panther Party in an organization which
advocates tin) use of guerrilla tactics and guns to cud the
oppression of the blac race and the drafting of gegroen to
fight in Vietnau On May 2 1037 2 net.thern of thin group
invaded the California State An;cnbly nt Sacram.tento while
it was in session The invndern rare nrnnd with rifles
shotguns and pistols and c1ai::od they were there to protest a
gun registration Inn On tno cccanions during October 1967
and April 7063 ncnbern of this group engaged iu gun battles
with the polio_ renniting in this murder of one policenan as
well as the death of one group neither and the wounding of
another

Within the pact year there have been nuificient
contacts bet:;een Ini itant b1ae nationalists and representA
tiven of unfriendly or hostile countries to indicate a
degree of forci n involve::snt participation and influence
in the activities of blacl extrenists in the United Staten
These foreign contacts nerve to increase the potential for
violence by giving inspiration encouragement and support
to the revolutionary aias doctrines and activities of
black estrenints in this country

Stoc?.piling of Arno by Dlec Ilationalists

Reports of the stoc'_:p&.ling of firenrrs And other
weapons by base'. nationalist groups are of g.eat concern
to the IDI and law enforce::ent Such stockpiling is of
course a distinct possibility in vie of the ea:ie with
which firearn can be obtained in this country and in the
light of the infinanatory urgin s of such agitators as
Sto'.:ely Carnich:'.el N flap Bro".rt :Ind Janes Fornan
Director of International relations for the Student
Nonviolent Coordinating Coniittee
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At a meeting of black nationalists in Los Angeles
in February 1933 for instance Forman told the audience
that every :Negro should be armed for the eventual revolution
of the black people Brown quoted from Lao Tse-tung that
"Political power grows out of the barrel of a gun. He
added that Ilegroes should acquire guns because America only
understands force Carmichael exclaimed that all blacks
must unite militarily

FBI investigations of black extremists have uncovered
innumerable allegations that these individuals have obtained
firearms and are encouraging residents of ghetto areas to
procure weapons T1.e incidents I previously mentioned in
California and Ohio arc graphic example: that this is being
done Black extremists have also distributed newspapers and
leaflets describing method, of raking firebombs for use in
riots The "Inner City Voice, a newspaper in Detroit with
a claimed circulation c 10,000 aimed at the ghetto reader
has published such information

CAUSESOF ANDREMEDIESFORVIOLRIiCE

The crime and violence that flourish in America
cannot be attributed to a single cause The causes are
many and interrelated for they are rooted in a number of
conditions and influences in contemporary life

Just as there is no one cause there is no single
remedy Crime and violence cannot be prevented or reduced
by concentrating on one or two phases of the problem to
the exclusion of the others A coordinated and many-sided
effort is required if effective results are to be achieved

Social and Economic

There are a number of vital social and economic
factors--such as poverty inequality of employment oppor
tunities inferior housing inadequate education dis
crimination and breakdown of the family--which breed
lawlessness and viollence. I shall not dwell on thew
It is sufficient to say that we must find ways to eliminate
the conditions which are causing us so :much grief and concern
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ATTACHMENT3

Excerpts from an "Imperial Executive Order
issued by Imperial Wizard Sam Bowers quoted
in "Attack on Terror The FBI Against the
Ku Klux Klan in Mississippi, by Don
Whitehead Funk and Wagnalls New York pages
5-9

"To All officers and members Subject Forthcoming
enemy attack and countermeasures to be used in meeting
same

"It is absolutely necessary that each and every member
of this organization stand fast and remain calm at this time
while he is working deliberately to prepare himself and his
unit for effective combat against the enemy

"The military and political situation as regards the enemy
has now reached the crisis stage Our best students of

enemy strategy and technique are in almost complete agree
ment that the events which will occur in Mississippi this
summer may well determine the fate of Christian civiliza
tion for centuries to come

"This organization is the physical spear upon which the

enemy will either impale himself and perish or sweep
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aside then to proceed almost unhindered in his evil work
of destroying civilization The manner in which we conduct
ourselves and ,use our strength this summer will determine
which of these fates our nation will follow....

"This summer within a very few days the enemy will
launch his final push for victory here in Mississippi This
offensive will consist of two basic salients which have been

designed to envelop and destroy our small forces in a

pincer movement of agitation force by Federal troops and
communist propaganda The two basic salients are as

follows listed in one-two order as they will be used
"One Massive street demonstrations and agitation by

blacks in many areas at once designed to provoke white
militants into counterdemonstrations and open pitched
street battles resulting in civil chaos and anarchy to pro
vide an `excuse for

"Two A decree from the communist authorities in charge
of the national government which will declare the State
of Mississippi to be in a state of open revolt with a com

plete breakdown of law and order and declaring martial
law followed by a massive occupation of the state by
Federal troops with all known patriotic whites placed
under military arrest If this martial law is imposed our
homes and our lives and our arms will pass under the com

plete control of the enemy and he will have won his victory
We will of course resist to the very end but our chance of

victory will undoubtedly end with the imposition of martial
law in Mississippi by the communist masters in Washing
ton...

"When the first waves of blacks hit our streets this

summer we must avoid open daylight conflict with them
if at all possible as private citizens or as members of this

organization We should join with and support local police
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and duly constituted law enforcement agencies with vol
unteer legally deputized men from our own ranks We
must absolutely avoid the appearance of a mob going into
the streets to fight the blacks Our first contact with the

troops of the enemy in the streets should be as legally
deputized law enforcement officers It must also be under
stood at this point that there are many different local police
situations Where we find corrupt and cowardly mayors
and police obviously our members can not submit to their

control but we should still try to work with them at arm's

length in every reasonable way possible to avoid being
labeled as outlaws

"In all cases however there must be a secondary group
of our members standing back away from the main area of

conflict armed and ready to move on very short notice who
are not under the control of anyone but our own Christian
officers This secondary group must not be used except in
clear cases where local law-enforcement and our own

deputized auxiliary first groups are at the point of being
over-whelmed by the blacks Only if it appears reasonably
certain that control of the streets is being lost by the estab
lished forces of law can the secondary group be committed
Once committed this secondary group must move swiftly
and vigorously to attack the local headquarters of the

enemy destroy and disrupt his leadership and communica
tions (both local and Washington) and any news com
munication equipment or agents in the area The action of
this secondary group must be very swift and very forceful
with no holds barred The attack on the enemy head

quarters will relieve the pressure on the first group in the
streets and as soon as this has been done the second group
must prepare to withdraw out of the area They will be

replaced by another secondary group standing at ready
It must be understood that the secondary group is an ex

tremely swift and extremely violent hit and run group They
should rarely be in action for over one-half hour and under
no circumstances for over one hour Within two hours of
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their commitment they should be many miles from the
scene of action....

"We must always remember that while law enforcement
officials have a job to do we as Christians have a responsi
bility and have taken an oath to preserve Christian civiliza
tion May Almighty God grant that their job and our oath
never come into conflict but should they ever it must be

clearly understood that we can never yield our principles
to anyone regardless of his position Respect for Christian
ideals can not yield to respect for persons nor statutes and

procedure which have been twisted by man away from its

original Divine origin..
"When the black waves hit our communities we must

remain calm and think in terms of our individual enemies
rather than our mass enemy We must roll with the mass

punch which they will deliver in the streets during the day
and we must counterattack the individual leaders at night
In our night work any harrassment [sic] which we direct

against the mass of the enemy should be of a minor nature
and should be primarily against his equipment (trans
portation and communications) rather than the persons of
the mass enemy Any personal attacks on the enemy should
be carefully planned to include only the leaders and prime
white collaborators of the enemy forces These attacks

against these selected individual targets should of course
be as severe as circumstances and conditions will permit
No severe attacks should be directed against the general
mass of the enemy because of the danger of hurting some

actually innocent person The leaders of course are not
innocent and they should be our prime targets but the
innocent must be protected..

"We must use all of the time which is left to us in these
next few days preparing to meet this attack Weapons
and ammunition must be accumulated and stored Squads
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must drill Propaganda equipment must be set up ready to
roll Counterattack maps plans and information must be
studied and learned Radios and communications must be
established And a solemn determined spirit of Christian
reverence must be stimulated in all members.
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ATTACHMENT4

ThePerformanceof theFBI
in InvestigatingViolationsof FederalLaws
ProtectingtheRightto Vote- 1960-1967

JohnDoar DorothyLandsberg

Muchhasbeenwrittenaboutwhethertie FederalBureauof

Investigationisan investigativeagencyora policeforce TheFBIwas

nevera nationalpoliceforce andsurelydidnotact assuchin civil

rightsmatters Itsrolewasthatofan investigctiveagency actingfor

theJusticeDeportmentrequiredby lawtoservetheCivilRightsDivision

whichwasin turnchargedwiththeresponsibilityofenforcingFederallaws

withrespectto civilrights

InJulyof 1960 the CivilRightsDivisionwasto enforcethe Civil

RightsActsof 1957and1960- a twinresponsibilitytogoafter(A)public

officialswhopracticedracialdiscriminationin registrationor voting and
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(B)anyone publicofficialor privatecitizen whointerferedwithregistra
1/

tionor votingbythreats intimidationor coercionbyanymeans

Inaddition thereweretwoReconstructioncriminallawsin force

18USC241and242 the firstdirectedagainstprivatepersonsorpublicofficials

conspiringto deprivecitizensof anyrightsorprivilegessecuredby the Constitu

tionor the lawsof theUnitedStates andtheseconddirectedagainstpublic

officialsandprohibitingdeprivationof thesamerights Thescopeof bothof

thesecriminallawshadbeenseverelylimitedby judicialdecision (theWilliams

andScrewscases) Untilthe passageofthe CivilRightsActof 1964 the Voting
2/

RightsActof 1965 andthedecisionsin the PriceandGuestcases protectionof
L

a citizen'scivil rightsthroughenforcementof thesecriminalstatutespresented

difficultlegalobstacles

Theperformanceof the FBIin servingthe CivilRightsDivisionof the

JusticeDepartmentis thesubjectof thispaper Thefirstsectiondealswithvoter

discriminationandthesecondwithvoterintimidation Wehavechosento treat the

casesinvolvingintimidationor interference(theb cases)togetherwiththe criminal

matters Althoughthe remediesprovidedwerenomorethancivil remediesSection(b)

representedtheonlyeffectivetoolavailubleagainstessentiallycriminalactivityby

privateindividuals

Weareawareof thepopularnotionthatstrainedrelationsbetweenthe

FBIandthe CivilRightsDivisionhaveexistedforyears andthat as a generalrule

mostagentsconsideredcivil rightsenforcementanodioustask Wehaveheard



890

it saidthatmostDivisionattorneysfelt the Bureaudida superficialjob in

interrogationsandinvestigationsoncivil rightscases Thereis little solid
3

writtendocumentationonewayor theother,/ whichmaybe frustratingbut

isnotsurprising

Thoseof uswhoworkedin the CivilRightsDivisionduringthe

period1957to 1967rememberthedifficultiesof lawenforcementoverthose

tenyears andthe complexitiesof theproblemsweencountered Eventsmoved

sofast theworkloadwassoheavy andthedemandsoneveryone'stimewereso

greatthat noonehadtheopportunitytosit backandmakea thoroughappraisal

of the FBI'sperformancenorevento reflectcarefullyon the lessonslearned

fromourexperience

DirectorHoover appearingbeforeCongressmanRooney's

AppropriationsSubcommitteein 1965 testifiedthat investigationof racial

discriminationinvotinghadinvolvedthegatheringofnumerousinterviewsthe

makingof nearlya millionphotographiccopiesof votingrecords andhad

frequentlymadeunusualdemandsonFBImanpower Hepointedout that

investigativeworkbytheFBIhadservedas thebasisforseventysuitsfiled
4

by theJusticeDcp..rtmcnt./

Ourpurposenowis to seeif anythingcanbe learnedfromthose

yearsto helpostoblishcriteriafordeterminingFBIinvestigativeresponsibilities

andformeasuringFBIinvestigativeperformancein theenforcementof federalcivil

rightslaws
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Severalthingsshouldbekeptin mind Thepaperisgenerallylimited

in timeto the periodJohnDoarwasin the CivilRightsDivision (July16 1960

to December31 1967)It iswrittenfromtheperspectiveof the CivilRights

Division- withoutexaminationof internalFBIfiles or of filesin the Attorney

General'soffice-and finally thepaperisbasedonpersonalrecollection(no

interviewshavebeenundertaken)in conjunctionwitha reviewof filesaccumulated

byJohnDoarduringhisyearsasa trial lawyerin the Department Thedocumentation

is in nosensecomplete Neverthelessweare confidentthata reliablemeasure

canbe madeof the FBI'spolicies proceduresandperformancein meetingits

investigativeresponsibilitiesin theenforcementof federallawsprotectingthe

rightto vote
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Registrationand Voting

TheCivil RightsAct of 1957created the Civil RightsDivision

and providedfor injunctiveaction againstpublicofficialspracticingracial

discriminationin connectionwith voting

WhenI entered the Divisionin July 1960 three voterdiscrimi

nation caseshadbeen filed (TerrellCounty Georgia 9/58 MaconCounty

Alabama 2/59 and WashingtonParish Louisiana 6/59) and twoof them

tried TheCivil Rights Actof 1960had justgiven the Divisionan important

.new tool - authorityto inspectand photographvoter registrationrecords

Once thisstatute waspassed the FBIwasaskedto inspectand
5/

photographrecordsin 16 counties Inmostcountiesthe registrarsand local

officialsrefusedto cooperate However severalcounties recordswere

photographed Indue course they arrivedvia the FBIinto the officesof the

Civil RightsDivision In Scptember 1960 forexample a dollywaswheeled

into myoffice loadedwith photostaticcopiesof all of the voter registration

recordsin LefloreCounty I's'.issihsippiTheserecordswereboundin volumes

and covereda spaceof 3 by 5 by 4 feet high

Therecantshad not been analyzed All the Divisionhodasked the

FBIto do wasto inspectand photograph'hose records and that is what it did
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It wcsnot rorptrsir i!oi ti o il Pi-;'tIsDi *el hodt't os'ed

for an om.1,isis ; Io..:sof usknoweoL el) (-but r,gistro ion records nor

about thoudetails r:;:s;rotio Louisie , Peiitissippior Alebomo to

direct one Na registryoffloss6.1 insociel and we were not

familiarwillstle mo) fc.e. a'..d'co! involved no the pro. lures or

practices the Icgisir s Asfor cs we con ki no one the. to as the

Bureauto most: the art recordsanalysis At that timewe didn'l suspectth;

romancehiddenin the records

TheBurcou'sOolocrophicworkwascomplete utilizing the best

type of photographicequipment and the copiesweresuperb althoughthe

paperwason the shinyside rns';ingit difficult to examineclosely if there

were 1,000 opplicotionsto examineand therewere tensof thousands

Severalsummerstudentsworkedin the Justice Doparlmontthat

summer Theywereput to the taskof lookingat the records Leila e's records

provedto be hold to analytic Thejob wastoo muchfor the summerstudents

We later figuredout II r reason A few Neg.00shodIcon per d regi,I,.

the registrarhadnot given hardsectionsof tho MississippiConstitutionlo

Negroes interpretand easyseclioosto wince shehoc)just helped the

whites and that wotnot es cosyto doloct fromOrorecordsclone

Mostof our moopc.verve. engajod in Hoys"oodand Fayette

Counties Tonnes o vor!.ingon economicintimidationcotes Asidefromthe
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preparation trial and post-trial workin the TerrellCounty Georgia registration

discriminationcases(wherea little recordsanalysiswasdone)nothingwas

accomplisheduntil after the changeof Administrationin January20 1961

On March19 1961 AssistantAttorneyGeneral BurkeMarshall

severalother attorneysfromthe Civil RightsDivisionand I metwith Attorney

General RobertF Kennedyand CourtneyEvansof the FBI to discussproblems

of votingin the South

At that meeting the AttorneyGeneral instructedthe Civil flights

Divisionto use the FBIfor extensiveinvestigationof votingcases Evanswas

told to be preparedfora largenumberof voter investigationrequests

At tlis meetingthere wasno discussionabout the importanceof record

analysis No one at that timeappreciatedthis InVictor Navasky'srecent book

"KennedyJustice he describesthe meeting but assumesthat we knewthen what

we learnedlater after severalyearsof hardwork that is that "Eachcase

dependedon painstakinginvestigation- analysisof votingrolls compilationof

demographicstatistics comparisonof handwritings careful interviewswith

registrars and witha statisticallysignificantsampleof black and white failed

registrants successfulregistrantsend others
6

A gigantic enforcementassignmentfacedus in fivestates/ and

AttorneyGeneral Kennedywantedto get somethingaccomplished

Withinthe next three months the Civil RightsDivisionrequested
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and the FBICNruJ.V:4 VGti ;Vc:StI,C;G`:O;,iIn 34S0Ut;,c;r1counties Each

requestwasbasedon a stetement by the Divisionthat G3rtainnamed Negroes

had tried to registerand . been refusedor rejected We asked the
7

Bureauto get full details

All but 8 of the investigationswere to be handled on an expedited basis

Theoverdo timebetweenthe date of the requestc:;d the date of the first

reportwas 15 days Sometimesthe Bureau'sworkwasvary fast Forexample

in DallasCounty Alabama the Bureauinterviewedabout 90 Negroes 13 days

elapsedbetweenthe date of requestand the date of the receipt of the report

The investigationsin al involvedinterviewswith 736 Negroesand

80 white personsof which694 Neg:oes.'cad72 whitescooperated Mostof the

invostigations containedan expansionclause Thatis the personinterviewed

wasaskedto furnishnamesof otherssimilarlysituated Insomecaseswe put

an upper limiton the numberof interviews A singular cheractcristic of

34 FBIreportswas that we got exactly the informationwe asked for - no

more no less In conductingthe interrogation the FBIagentsdid not

use their knowledgeof the registrationprocess althoughmostof themwere registered

votersin the stateswhere they woreconductinginterviews Thespecificity of the

requestitself and the ch ractoristic FBIpractice of confininginterviewsto items

requested causedtwodiscdvcntages First it was impossibleto predici and

thereforeto specifyin a request all the typesof practiceswhich Negroesmight

be subjected to in a given cour'. Insuchcasesthe Bureau'sinvestigation

V.euldfail :e rang out thesepractices
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Second often the rccieestcenteined itemswhichre!cted (es the interviewssubsequently

revee1ed)to prectice whichchidnot c,:ist in tee ;river coenry Yet by followioc

the specified rec;oest every personinterviewedwase.i.ed about those practices

whicha few interviewswouldreveal did nor exist Forexample in Dallas

County Alcoano a requestforone item related to whetheror not the interviewee

wasrec;uiredto hovea voucherwhenhe epplied for registration Aftera dozen

or so interviewswith pc:-sonswhotried to reoisterat different times it became

obviousthat the voucherrule viesnot used in DallasCounty Thesomawas

true as to the Cons;ituticnelreedingand writingtest Yet becauseour

requestinc.eded it every interview(c'_out93)wasaskedabout it In

fairness reeny emsof cjenis wereese:;:,ned compieteen expedited

so a ;;rentnumberof interviewscouldbe but up under the Bureauprocedure

before the interviewswere cnelyzed it seszests however that the only ~upervi shag

of the wee!of c3ents III, Cureeuwasto see if they carried out the sp

oss nr,;en1swhichwe cave themin our rce,uest

f-31field of:ices wet, supervisedby the

Civil ijhis Sectionof :he E,'Leeu a pert o the 3urece'sGeneral lnvcs-iCotive

Divisionl.t.ede.il.yAssistentD:esetorAl and loceted at the snot of

:Jove...m.30 Thisseance we cree,eLlin 19:9 :ere.  .rnea section for

civil ric;htswasestablishedin the Justice Depertroelr'sCr1minelDivisic In

1961 there wereabout 12supervisorsin the Lurecu'sCivil highs Section led
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by ClemMcGowan Thesemenhad the responsibilityfor supervising

civil rightsinvestigations Requestsfromthe Divisionwere funneledthrough

thisoffice to the field officesand reportsfromthe field containingresults

of the investigationswere reviewedby it beforesubmissionto the Civil

RightsDivision

Thereportswerenot uniformlyfirstclass DallasCountywasexcellent

YazooCounty Mississippiwasnotso good In that countythe interviewing

agent did not pressfor names datesand facts on intimidationand madeno

attemptto interviewone Negrowhoapparentlywasa messengerfromthe whites

to thoseNegroesinstructedto take their namesoff the rolls

At thy_end of June 1961a summaryof these investigativereports

wasmade

On July 11 AssistantAttorneyGeneral BurkeMarshallwrote
8

Mr HcoveV and sent him his summerysaying

"I wontto Ilion!you for thisWork Wearc tryingto be
as efficient and effective as possiblev:ilhnutundulyhoickning
the manpowerof the Fi;l If you haveany sus;;;esiionsas to how
the w,";Icon be irrdroved or howwe can nuke your job easier
1wouldorprecialc Loring fromyou.

Toour knowledge no suggestionswere ever received

At about the scnnctime Judge FrankJohnsondeterminedto test the

mettleof the Justice DepartmentunderRobertF Kennedy Earlyin February

1961 he set the MaconCounty Alabamacase for trial for February20th
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The registration records at the Macon County court house in Tuskegee had

been photographed on a December registration day in 1960 Although

countless Negroes had come that day to register all they found was a sign

on the door which read

"Registration Office Closed invasion by Department of Injustice

The case had been originally filed in February 1959 The

Justice Department had received complaints from Tuskegee Negroes long

before that but the Civil Rights Division had refused to investigate their
9

complaints./

Then in December 1958 the Civil Rights Commissionput

the Tuskegee Negroes on national television and the Justice Department sued

The pleadings were drafted right off the televised testimony Thereafter

there was much Iegaj maneuvering brought about by the resignation of the

registrars which was ultimately eliminated by the 1960Civil Right Act

Throughout this entire period no substantial FBI investigations had 'been

conducted Whether the Bureau had been asked to conduct one I don't know

When Judge Johnson called we found that we had no proof to

present at the trial We had the information that the Civil Rights Commission

had developed the unverified information furnished by William P Mitchell of

Tuskegee Alabama and the unanalyzed -gist-^`ion records This was not the

kind of proof that the Department of Justice needed to go to trial on the first
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votingdiscriminationcasein the MiddleDistrictof Aicbcma

Insteadof usingthe Bureauto shapeup the proof wewentinto

the fieldourselves On February12 anotherlawyerandI arrivedin

Tuskegoe Wehadwithusa setof registrationaecor<swhichhadbeen

photographedbythe Bureauin December Theywerenotorganized

or analyzed WilliamMitchell whowasin chargeof theTuskegeeRegistration

VotingLeoguegaveusa vbluntcystaffof Tuskegeewomento helporganize

andanalyzetherecords Westartedthe nextmorningto interviewNegroes-

professorsschoolteachers professionalsEachhadtriedto register

repeatedlyovertheyears Eachhad beenrejectedevey time Therejected
t

applicationsincludedtheirliteracytests whichwerebeautifullywritten

Threevolunteersandanotherlawyersat in anouterorriceorganizaingand

analyzingthe records Therecordsthemselvesrevealedthatscoresof

barelyliteratewhiteshadbeenregisteredontheirfirstapplication Wehad

comeupona goldmine]

Usingtheserecordsasa sourceof namesof potentialwhite

witnesseswebeganto usethe FBi Wesentthemout to interviewthewhites

Betweenthe 12thof Februaryandthe trial data fouror five

youngCivil Rightsotters-toysworkedaroundthe clockon the casequestioning

witnessesin thedaytimeandanalyzingrecordsendFBIreportsat nigh

Therewasromancein the records Forexample a record
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analyzedestablishedthat40somewhiteswereregisteredon March17 1958

yet only5 Negroeswerepermittedto applyonJune6 1960despitelonglines

of Negroeswaiting AndtheFBIreportsrevealedfor the firsttimethe tip of

the iceberg Therewas regardlessof literacy or intelligence universalwhite
10/

suffragein MaconCounty

At the trial RobertOwen oneof theCivilRightsDivision's

youngattorneysprovedthathighlyqualified educatedNegroeshadrepeatedly

appliedunsuccessfullyto registerandthateachtimetheywrotelongsectionsof

theConstitution Illiteratewhitepersons(whosenameswegot fromthe records

andwhohadbeeninterrogatedby theFBI)whodidnotevenunderstandwhatthe

word"registrationmeant testifiedthat the registrarcameto theirhomesand

registeredthem

On March17 1960 JudgeJohnsonorderedtheregistrationof64

Negroes requiredtheregistrarto filedetailedmonthlyprogressreportsandfixed

thestandardtobe followedin futureregistrationof Negroesin MaconCountyas

thatstandardwhichtheregistrarshadappliedto the leastqualifiedwhitevoterin

theCounty (Thiswasthe legislativestandardadoptedfouryearslaterwhen

CongresspassedtheVotingRightsActof 1965.)

LaterJudgeBenCameronof the5thCircuitsaidthata kindprovidence

hadsparedMr JusticeJacksonfromthespectacleof the invasionof thebrightyoung

menfromthe North- thesegroupsof highlytrainedrepresentativesof the central

GovernmentbroughtfromitsseatofpowerinWashingtonbackingtheirponderous

camerasupto thecounty
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courthousesin the ruralsectionof the South photographingthe recordsof the

sovereignstatesandhaulingelectedofficialsintocourtto answervariegated

charges

JudgeCameronhadreasontobe apprehensiveWecouldconvince

anybodywiththe recordsandwithunsuspectingwhitevotersasourwitnesses

Buttheworkassignmenttodo thiswasenormous

Forthenextthreeyears theCivilRightsDivisionsmallas it

was refinedtheseinvestigationtools Byanalyzingcountlessrecordsin

scoresofcountiesin MississippiAlabamaandLouisianatheDivisionuncovered

everyschemepractisedby theresourcefulSouthernregistrarswhohadspentfive

generationskeepingNegrocitizensfromthevote

Intime the Divisionwasoblettocategorizetheseschemesin

shorthandfashionas "selection 'assistance or "grading discrimination

Asa result theyoungmenandwomenwhocametoworkin the Divisionthough

inexperiencedasanalysistso documentswereable withdiligence to analyze

superbly Theywereshowninadvancewhatto lookfor inwhatwerevery

complicatedregistrationforms Intheprocesshowevertopgroduatesof the

prestigiouslawschoolslookedelsewhereforemploymentor foundthemselves

graduatedintotheviewbox ratherthanintotheappelatecourtroom

Oneof theproblemsofdevelopingprooffromtherecordswasthat

in manycases therewasnoraceidentificationin therecordsthemselves In
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orderto resolvethisgapin theproof weusedthe Bureau Herethe Bureauwas

exceptionallydiligentandeffective taking onmanyoccasionsupto 2,000

namesanddeterminingthe raceof eachof them sothat theirregistration
11

recordscouldbe usedin court./

Butinsomecasesthe registrarwouldnotsurrenderthe records and

somefederaljudgeswouldnotmakethemdoso

Withoutthe records theDivisionhadto finda waytoget the

namesof thewhitepersonstobe interviewedbythe Bureau InForrestCounty

MississippiCivilRightsDivisionattorneyswenttoa Catholicpriest a Jewish

rabbi anda Protestantministerfornamesof collegestudentswhomight away

fromhomebase givehonestrecollectionsof theirregistrationexperience This

.requireda greatdealofsifting Oftenwewouldgivethe Bureau200-300namesof
12

youngmenandwomenjustpasttheageof 21tobe interviewed TheBureaunever

objectedto thenumericalnumberof interviewsrequested Inmostcases whenthe

FBIreportcamein it wouldcomebackcontainingat leastseveralinterviewswith

personswhoprovedto be excellentgovernmentwitnesses
12a

TheBureauhadnodifficultyingettinga whitepersonto talk to them./

TheBureauwasa professionallowenforcementagency freeofpoliticsandother

improperinfluences

Howeversometimesthe interviewswouldbe unevenandit appeared
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to usthat little supervisionof the individualagentsworkwosbeingdone

inWashingtonThereforewedeviseda guaranteeofgoodperformancein

conductingthe interviews

Webecameverycarefulin draftingFBImemosrequestinginterviews

withwhitewitnesses TheChoctawCounty AlabamaApril1962FBIrequest

wenton in themostminutedetail for174pages explaininganticipating
13

cautioningandcoachingthe Bureauagents./ It epitomizestheguaranteed

performancetechniqueirreverentlyreferredtowithinthe CivilRightsDivision

as the "boxmemo

TheBureaudidan excellentjobon the ChoctawCountyinvestigation

inspiteof thepublicattemptsof theprobatejudgein that countyto stopwhites

fromgivinganyinformationto theagents TheBureauinterviewed64whites

andobtainedstatementsfromeach Twenty-fourpersonsgavesigned

statementsand45- all whomweresorequested- furnishedhandwriting

samples
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If the Divisionhadnotbeen occupiedwithotherdutiesaswell it

mighthavefocusedearlierthanthewinterof 1963-64onthe fact that the FBI

wasnotbeingfullyutilizedin its interrogationassignmentsandthat its agents

wereutilizedinan almostdemeaningfashionin inspectingandphotographing
14

voterregistrationrecords

Inlate 1963theDivisionprepareddetailedrequeststo the FBIto

makea completeanalysisof voterregistrationrecordsin threecountiesin the

South- ScottCounty MississippiBibbCounty AlabamaandEastBatonRouge

Parish,Louisiana InEastBatonRougetheFBIwasalsoaskedto preparecopies

of the registrationrecordsforuseasexhibits

Theserequestsreflectthesophisticatedtechniquesin analyzingrecords

whichhadbeendevelopedby Divisionattorneysandsetout ingreatdetail

exactlywhattheagentsweretodo attachingexamplesof charts statistical

analysesandcontrolcardswhichhadbeenpreparedby the Divisioninother
15

votingdiscriminationcases

InsteadofsendingtheserequestsoverformallyMr Marshall in

January1964 sentthemoverinformallyto Al Rosenwhowasinchargeof the

Generallnvcs'tigationsDivisionforthe Bureau Aninformalrequestnever

becomespartofan FBIfile Thus there
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was fromthestandpointof the Bureaunoeffortto embarrassthe Bureau

Mr MarshallaskedMr Rosento lookthemoverandsee if the Bureauwould

haveanydifficultyhandlingthem At that time the Bureauhadabout6,000

specialagentsandabout8,000clerksandtechnicalassistants Soonthereafter

Mr Rosencometo seetheAssistantAttorneyGeneralMarshallandsaidthat

theywerenotable todo this Themanpowerrequirementsof the Bureauwere

such hesaid that it hadnooneavailableto takeon thistask

Mr Marshallperhapsawareof theotherstrugglesthe Departmentwas

havingwiththe Bureauonothertypesof investigationsdecidednot to pressthe

point Hewithdrewthe investigativerequestandinstructedtheCivilRights
16

Divisionto continuetheirrecordsanalysisontheir own./ Therewere53

lawyersin the CivilRightsDivisionat that time andanother55clericalemployees

TheDivisionhadnodifficultyinacceptingMr Marshall'sdecision

Ifthe Bureauwereforcedto accepttheassignmentit wouldhavebeena

terriblerisktousethe Bureau

Wewerelitigators insistingthat theproofbe therewhenweentered

thecourtroomstubbornnnclcompetitiveenoughto proveourcasesourselves

Wewerenot"geewhiz lawyers

TheDivisionwasnotpreparedto takethe terrificriskof losinga

singlecasebecauseof lackofproof Wefacedtoughjudges Wewontedthe

prooftobe sooverwhelmingsoas to lockupthe trial judge if necessaryto
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persuadethe AppelateCourtto reverseandto convincethewholecountry

aswell

Mr Marshall'sdecisionratifieda treatywhichthe Divisionhad

alreadyworkedoutwiththe Bureau TheBureauwouldnothaveto analyze

the recordsbut it wouldconductall the interviewswerequesteddo it

thoroughlyandif inourjudgmentnecessaryonan expeditedbasis For

itspart theDivisionwouldanalyzetherecordsandwouldoperatein parallel
18

asan investigativeagencyinvotingmattersacrosstheSouth./

Soit continued TheDivisionanalyzedtherecords the Bureau

conductedasmanyoral interviewsas requiredthe Division'scareful

requestsinsuredexcellentperformancethe Civil'RightsDivisionlawyers

continuedto act as investigatorsaswellas lawyersin the field

Theresultof fouryearsorworkwasa tremendousaccumulation

of proofof racialdiscriminationof votingthroughoutthestatesof Alabama

MississippiandLouisiana IncaseslikeMontgomeryDallasandPerry

CountiesAlabamaForest TallhatchieandPonolaCounties MississippiBicnville

EastCarrollandOuchitaParishesLouisianatheDivisionpresentedoverwhelming
lEa

proofofdiscrimination./

InthegreatstatewidecaseofU.S v LouisianaandU.S v Mississippi

the Divisionprovedracialdiscriminationstatewide InU.S v Mississippi

amongotherelementsof itsproof the Divisionitemizedhundredsuponhundredsof
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specificincidentsof racialdiscriminationin votingoccurir:gin Mississippi

afterMarch24 1954

Finally after the Selma r:dgeincident the countryfacedup

to theneedforstrongerfcderolIcgislaticn InJuly 1965 theCongress

passedsweepingandre-Cleole,islotionthat removedif necessary
19

registrationforvotingfromt:hoFendsof localo`ficicls./

TheVotinglightsActof 1965enactedonAugust6 1965modea

dramaticchcingein themethodsavoiieblcto the JusticeDepartmentto
20

protectthe rightto vote/ It suspendedtheuseof literarytestsand

devicesasqucdificationsforvotingin AlobamaGeorgia Louisiana

A/,ississi;i SouthCcra,ina Virginiaand o countiesin NorthCarolina

Itprovidedfortheassignmentof federalexaminersto listvotersin countiesso

c sirnetcdby the AttorneyGeneral andforpollwi;tc:ersto oserve voting

andthe countingof ballots Tiles(:cc: ~n:iJ:llticscouldhavebeengivento the

FM but thebill proposedby the Adninistruricnandthe finalActprovidedthat the

examinersandtheobserverswereto be appointedbytheCivilServiceCommission

Wi-.enAttorneyCe;ee.Nie:-.oio du. Ket:en:e:ehtestifiedon March19 1955

beforeC:l.:,lri.l::flEteii.;uelCciI:. Judie rySui:commit e ,!5 he wasasked

whythe CivilServiceCr:,.,r.iun wass..,eeted

ITwasselectedbec;.uscthe CivilServiceCowr.issionisa bi
partisonbodye,.dt- cc..,sei:te:-eere employeesof the CivilServiceCo-,,,lisian
in virtuallyeveryecu.;:yof thecacntry I wetshopedthat if it becamenecessary
to appointfederalexaminersthat the Civil.ServiceCommissioncould in a
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neutralnon-politicalway useemployeesof theCommissionin thosecounties or
if necessaryappointsomeoneelse I thinkit wasthe reputationof the Civil
ServiceCommissionforitshi-partisan fair non-politicalactivitiesthat led to
its choiceas theappointingbody.

TheVotingRightsActof 1965produceda significantincreasein black

registrationandresultedin substantialvoluntarycomplianceby local

officials ByJune 30 1966 localofficialshadregisteredmorethana quarter

ofa millionnewNegrovotersin AlabamaGeorgia LouisianaMississippiand

SouthCarolina ByJune30 1966 44countieshadbeendesignatedforthe

appointmentofexaminersandmorethan115,000blockshadbeenlistedby

examiners

TheFBIhadnomajornewresponsibilitiesunderthisAct They

didagreeto collectregistrationstatistics(ona weeklybasis)fromlocal

officialsin the fiveDeepSouthstates andFBIofficescontinuedto be opened

onelectiondayto receivecomplaints Butat thepollingplace it wasthe

CivilServiceCommissionnottheFBI who if needed waspresentand

protectedtherightto vote
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VoterIntimidation

Intimidationwasoneof theweaponsusedin the Southto keep

Negroesfromvoting Foryears a partialcontrolof racialviolence

in the DeepSouthwaseffectedbyconsciousmaintenanceof the castesystem

on thepartof stateandlocalofficials whomisusedlaws andcorruptedtheir

authority

Asthe Departmentof Justicebeganto crowdthe countyregistrars

the inevitableconsequencewasan increasein the levelofviolence Thiswas

especiallytruein Mississippi

Controlof intimidationwasnotan easyassignmentforthe Civil

RightsDivisionnor forthe FBI Therewire severalproblems

First the 18USC241 242criminaljurisdictionalbasisfrom

Reconstructiondayswasnotsolid It neverbecamesolidagainstprivate

persons Itwasnotuntil thepassageof theVotingRightsActthat Congress

extendedthecriminallowfarenoughto reachprivatelawlessnessin theSouth and

thenonlyin thematterofvoting (OFcourse theJusticeDepartmenthadan

amplejurisdictionalbasein Section1971(b)but the Bureauneverlikedcivil

investigation.)

Second the Bureauwasrequiredtoprovethepurposeof the personor

personswhocommittedtheact of intimidation Thatis thathispurposewasto
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deprivesomeoneofdueprocessof laworsomeother14thAmendmentright This

madethe investigationassignmentmuchmoredifficultthana straightforward
21

criminalinvestigation./

Third the territorywaslarge stilla frontierandthe Bureauwas

badlyundermanned

Neverthelessthe responsibilitywasthere andthe Department

undertookto performitsresponsibility

Duringthe 50'sand60'sDeepSouthNegroeswhowantedto
22

votewereunquestionablyefrcid./ Theyfelt thatanyefforttowardthat

endwouldbe metbyeconomicretaliationfromthewhitecommunityand

if retaliationwerenotsuccessfulbyovertviolence Toovercomethisfear

NegroorganizationssentfieldworkersintoMississippito encourageregistration

andto lendsupportto thoseNegroesalreadywillingto register Theseworkers

metadamantresistancenot tosayhostility in thewhitecommunityLocal

officials trueto theircommitmentusedstatecriminalprocessto retaliateagainst

Negroregistrationworkers Insomecounites therewasviolence

Thefollowingincidentsare a fewof the typesof intimidationthat

occurredin Mississippiduringtheearly60's

InJeffersonDavisCountywherewebroughta voterdiscrimination

suit a localschoolboarddecidednotto rehiresixschoolteacherswhosenames

hadbeenpublishedin the localnewspaperasgovernmentwitnesses Wewerenot

.able to preventthsefirings
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InGreeneCounty Mississippia teacherhadnotbeenrehired

after furnishing an affidavitrelatingherexperiencesattemptingto

register Allofoureffortsto prevailupontheschoolboardto rehirethe

teacherfailed Asuit wasbroughtin the SouthernDistrictwhichresulted

inan unfavorabledecisionthe casewasappealedandsubsequentlylostin the

FifthCircuit Intwoothercounties TallahatcheeandForrest schoolbus

driversinvolvedin litigationofa registrationsuitwerenot rehired

SincerelativelyfewNegroesweretryingto registerin Mississippi

wheretheireconomiclifewascontrolledexclusivelyby localwhitepersons the

bulkof the intimidationin Mississippicenteredagainstthe registrationworkers

themselves

Againtheprincipaltechniquewas misuseof statecriminal

processorstateauthorityagainstregistrationworkersforthepurposesandwith

the effectpf intimidatingunregisteredNegroes In thefall of 1961 a Negro

registrationworkernamedJohnHardyaccompaniedtwoNegroesto the court

housein TylertownMississippi Hewasorderedoutof the registrar'sofficeand

whileleaving washit on thebackof theheadwitha gunby theregistrar

Anhourlater hewasarrested confinedandchargedwith breachof the

peace

InSunflowerCounty MississippifiveNegroeswerearrestedand

convictedfordistributingliteraturewithout_apermit InGreenwood



AftertheFBIreportswerereceivedby the CivilRightsDivis a&the

.24
allegationswerespecific/ somewerereportedbyseveralBlacksto the FBI

apparentlyindependentlyof eachother andif true werein violationof

912

Mississippieightregistrationworkerswerearrested 'whileprotestingthe lack

of properpoliceprotectionto cityofficials

Inaddition inSunflowerLeflore Amite RankinandWalthallCounties

Mississippitherewereextremelyseriousincidentsof violenceagainstNegro

votersregistrationworkers

Inexaminingtheworkof the FBIin casesof thissort
23

webegir/withthe Bureau'sinvestigationof economicintimidation

againstBlackswhoregisteredto vote or triedto registerto vote in
23a

HaywoodCounty Tennessee./

Inthesummerof 1959the HaywoodCountyCivicandWelfareLeague

wasformedto encourageblackregistrationandforthe firsttime in many

years blacksin that countybeganto applyforregistration Atfirst no Blacks
allowedto register

at all were/ theycomplainedto the JusticeDepartmentand the Bureay

wasaskedto interviewtheunsuccessfulapplicants Inadditionto describing

theirfruitlessregistrationattempts theseBlackstoldthe FBIagentsabout

economiccoercionagainstmembersof theCivicandWelfareLongue The

federallow TheBureaudidnotpursuethesepossibleviolationsbut limited
25

its investigationto interviewsof theunsuccessfulapplicants./
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BureauwasrequestedonMarch31 1960 to conductadditionalinvestigations

Therequestinpart noted that the informationcontainedin the reports

(of12/24/59and2/9/60) indicatesthe variousNegroesin HaywoodCounty

havebeensubjectedto economiccoercionandotherwiseintimidatedbecause

of theirattemptsto registerandbecauseof theirmembershipin the Haywood

CountyCivicandWelfareLeague Pleaseinterviewthe victimsnamed.

fordetailsof theirexperiences Alsopleaseinterviewthesubjectsnamed

fortheirversionof theseincidents. TheFBIwasalsoaskedto interview

a certainnamedblack"foranyinformationhe hadconcerninga petition

circulatedamonglandownersandmerchartin HaywoodCounty. In addition

to theaboverequestedinvestigationpleasepursueanddevelopanypertinentleads

providedbyanypersonsinterviewed.

On April6 the Directorsenta memoquestioningaspectsof the

3/31 request Regardingthe requestedinterviewswithallegedvictimsof

economicintimidationthe Bureaustatedthat "a reviewof thestatement

failsto revealanyallegationthat the,namedvictimswerebeingsubjectedto

coercionandintimidationbecauseof theirattemptsto register Theallegations

are made of course that theyweresubjectedto coercionandintimidation

becauseof theirmembershipin the HaywoodCountyCivicandWelfareLeague

Thisisbeingbroughttoyourattentionforyourfurtherconsiderationandno

investigationwillbe conductedconcerningthisphasein theabsenceof a further
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requestfr,,myou. Regardingthe petitionandthe list reportedlycirculated

the Bureaustatedthat "youradviceis requestedas towhethersuchactivity

wouldcomewithinthepurviewof theCivilRightsActof 1957orwhetherit

constitutesa violationof anycriminalstatutewithinthe jurisdictionof this

Bureau.

TheCivilRightsDivisionrespondedbymemodatedApril12 that thestate

mentofoneof the chartermemberstakenby the FBIleaveslittle doubtthat a

major if notprincipal objectiveof the Leagueis to securevotingrights

forBlacks "Thereissubstantialbasis therefore forassumingthat the

allegedactsof intimidation relatedwholly or in significant.partto the

victimseffortsto registerto votein HeywoodCounty Please therefore proceed

withthe investigation.
26

On April20 the FBIsentan interimreport/in responseto the

3/31request Theoriginalblackcomplainantwasinterviewedbyagents

aboutcurrentregistrationattempts andthisreportdealsprimarilywiththe

(a)aspectof thecase Thelastparagraphof the Bureau'sreportstated

"DuringthisinterviewBoydvolunteeredthat Negroesof Haywood

County whoare membersof the HaywoodCountyCivicandWelfareLeague

continuetobe subjectedto variousformsofeconomicpressurein thecounty

Hesaidthat it isunderstoodbyhimthat in manyinstanceswherethe Negroes

operatestores softdrinkstandsandsimilarbusinessesthat theycannotpurchase
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Soft drinks or other supplies for resale except with considerable

difficulty He said the members of this League were not able

at the present time to secure credit particularly from the

banks in Brownsville under the same conditions as they had

formerly been able to secure such credit. End of interview

end of report

In the next three months several additional

requests were sent to the FBI by the Civil Rights Division

some dealing with the (a) aspect and some with the (b) violations

On May 18 the Civil Rights Division sent a request asking for

an immediate investigation into reported discrimination in

connection with the current registration in HaywoodCounty

The next day one of the supervisors in the Civil Rights Section

in Washington headquarters called a department attorney and
t

stated that it would be very difficult at this late date for

the Bureau to make the requested investigation and that in

any event it would not be desirable to have Bureau agents on

the scene at the registration place as observers while regis

tration was in progress The agent calling indicated that another

blow up could occur like the one in Webster Parish Louisiana

in April 1958

On June 15 Mr Rosen of the FBI called AAGTyler

and said that in light of the publicized altercation which took

place the day before in Brownsville between the Deputy Sheriff

and a representative of the Civil Rights Commission the FBI

was reluctant to conduct any investigation in HaywoodCounty

for the next week or so Mr Tyler suggested that the

FBI would not be prejudiced in pursuing all



916

27
linesof investigationotherthaninterviewingtheregistrarimmediately./

Anotherrequestto the FBIregardingHaywoodCountywassentout on

June13 thisonespecificallyrequestinga full invesigation AFBIreportfrom

MemphisdatedJune17th wastransmittedto the CivilRigltsDivisionon June23 The

Divisionthensentoutanotherrequest onJuly I referringto theJune17report and

askingthe Bureauto pursuethe leadsfurnishedbythepersonsthe FBIhadinterviewed

Forinstance oneblackreferred in hisstatementto the FBI towhitelandlordswho

wrotedownnamesof Negroeswhowerewaitingin lineat the Courthouse "He

shouldbe askedto supplythenamesofotherNegroeswhoobservedthe landlords

andthosepersonsshouldbe interviewedto ascertainthe namesof the whitepersons

engagedin thisactivity Thewhitepersonsshouldbe fullyinterviewed. Another

black in hisstatementto FBIagents reportedhewasread"somekindof paper

bya lawenforcementorficer Inthe7/1 requestthe FBIwasaskedto obtaina copy

of this"paper anda copyof the "papers hewastoldto signat the Brownsville

courthouse

On July13 anotherrequestwassentto the FBI referringto its

7/5/60 Memphisreport TheBureauwasaskedtoget registrationstatisticsfor

the recentregistrationperiod Thelastparagraphof thisrequestisespecially

interesting

"Wenotefromthereferencedreportin theabovecase aswellas fromthe

report in the FayetteCountycase referenceto thecurrentinvestigationsas
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'limited investigations Inaccordancewithourpreviousrequests the investigation

in HaywoodandFayetteCountiesare tobe full investigationsandall logical

leadsare tobe pursuedwithreferenceto whetheror notdiscriminationhasoccurred

in the registrationprocessin thosetwocountiesandwhetheror not Negroeswho

haveregisteredor triedto registertherehavebeensubjectedto intimidation.

TheFBIproduced voluminousreportsin JulyandearlyAugust

andnumerousagentsconductedinterviews Butthe investigationwassuperficial

Thereis nootherwayto describeit At leastasearlyas March 1960therewere

allegationsthat listswerebeingcirculatedthroughoutHaywoodCountyof blacks
28

whohadeitherlinedup to register or hadregistered/ Theselistswere of crucial

importancein demonstratinga connectionbetweeneconomicintimidationandthe

registrationactivityof the Blacksan. thisconnectionwasessentialto provea

violationof federallaw TwoFBIagentsweregiventwolists(whichhadbeen

circulatedin thecounty)bya sympatheticwhi,e Mrs SaraLemonson July22 1960

Theagentsreturnedone list to herandkept thesecondonein the Bureaufiles they

werecontentin theirrerort to theCivilRightsDivisionto merelynotethe

existenceof the lists TheCivilRightsDivisionhadto specificallyrequestthe Bureau

to makecopiesof the list theyhadgotten to re-contactMrs Lemonsandget the

otherlistandto furnishcopiesof anyother"listsyouhavein yourpossession.

Alsothe Bureauwastold"if youhaveknowledgeof anyotherlistsin existence

in thepossessionofpersonsinterviewedpleasere-contacttheseindividuals
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forthepurposeof obtainingphotostaticcopiesof the listandif possible the
29

liststhemselvesforsafekeeping."/

Duringthissomeperiod AttorneyGeneralWilliamRogerswaspushing

the Division In late Junehewrote "I amanxiousto moveasquicklyas possible

inbringinga civil rightscaseagainstthosewhohaveretaliatedagainstNegroes

whohaveattemptedto vote Mentionthisagainto Tyler.

Soin AugustandSeptemberwepouredthroughthe FBIreportsand

developedwhatwecouldintothefirst1971(b)case ItwasfiledonSeptember13th

charging29defendantsincludingtwobanks withviolatingtheCivilRightsAct

of 1957(42U.S.C 1971(b))byusingeconomicreprisalsandthreatsagainst

Negroeswhoregisteredor triedto registeic!

OnOctober23rd NickFlanneryandI leftWashingtonfor Haywood

Countyto takethedepositionsof thedefendants

HaywoodCountyTennesseealmostbordersthe MississippiDelta It

isa countyof redclay oaktrees erodedland cottonfieldsandcountrystores

Themajorityof its citizenswereNegro

Wemodeourheadquartersat Brownsvilleandtookthedepositionsat the

postoffice Allof thedefendantstooktheFifthAmendment

Wemeta NegroschoolteachernamedCurrieBoydandhismotherand

wesoonlearnedthat the economicsqueezewasmuchworsethanhadbeenreflected

in the Bureaureports
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Wewereaskedtogo to severalruralchurchesformeetingsto talk

withthe Negropeople I will neverforgetthosemeetings Theywereheldat

nightin Negrochurchesalongruralbackroads Wewouldcomeintothe church

whichwouldbe dimlylighted andgo to the front I wouldtell thosepoor

honest wearyruraltenantfarmersthatwewerefromtheDepartmentof

Justiceandwerethereto helpthem

Outof curiosity andwithoutexpectingwhattheanswerwouldbe

I asked"howmanyofyouhovereceivednoticestoget offthe land Instantaneously

thehandsofalmosteveryonein the churchwentup Uponinquiry we learned

thatsomeof thefamilieshad livedat oneplacein the countyall their livesand

eithertheyor some.memberof theirfamilyhadtriedto registerto vote

Weobtainedwrittenaffidavitsfromoverfiftysharecropperswho

hadbeenevictedfromthe land Weobtainedall butoneor twoof twenty-eight

lettersfromtheir landownersdatedbetweenMay12 1960andSeptember28 1960

Eachcontaineda noticeof eviction Twenty-fourof theselettersweredated

withinthe22-dayperiodbetweenJune18thandJuly9th 1960 Theletters

werefrom14differentlandowners Eachlettergavenoticeto a Negrotenant

thatbeginningwiththefollowingyear heno longerwouldhavethe landto

rentonshares Mostof the lettersrequestedthe sharecropperto moveat the

endof thecropyeor

66-0770 76 59
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On thebasisofourinvestigationan amendedcomplaintadding

36defendantsincludinganotherbankanda wholesalefooddistributorwas

filedon November18th On December1 a virtuallyidenticalactionwas

broughtagainst10additionaldefendantsandthe twocaseswereconsolidated

InDecembertheGovernmentmovedto preventa largescaleevictionof

tenantfarmersscheduledforJanuary1 1961

A hearingwasheldjustbeforeChristmasat the federalcourthouse

in Memphis Ourfirstwitnesswasa marvelous78-year-oldwhiteSouthern

landownernamedKatherineRawlinsDavis WhenI firstsawher in October

shehadalreadybeeninterviewedby the Bureautwoor threetimes Nevertheless

shestill had,andwaswillingto turnoverto me a document- a copyof the charter

of the HaywoodCountyCivicandWelfareLeague- whichoneof thedefendants

hadbroughtto her in Marchor earlyApril At that timehe toldhersomeof her

handshadgoneto Brownsvilleto register Later shetestified anotherdefendant

cameto seeherwiththeproposalthatanytenantor employeewhowasa member

of the league bedismissed Mrs Davistestifiedsherefusedtodismissher

workers- at leastoneofwhomwasa memberof the league- andwasplaced

onthe non-cooperativelist Shealsorelatedhowan attorneynamedGray

anotherof thedefendantshadspokenat a meetingofwhitesandsaidthat the

bestthingto dowiththe Negrosharecropperswastowaituntil lateron

andthentell themtheywouldhaveto moveforotherreasons Little if any
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of thistestimonyhadbeendevelopedduringthe FBIinvestigations

TheCourtof Appealsandlater theDistrictCourt issuedan

injunctionagainstthemassevictions Thiscasewaseventuallydecidedby

a consentdecreeenjoiningmorethan50of thedefendants Manytenantsstayed

on creditchannelswerereopenedanda schoolbusdriverwasrehired

Anotherexampleof the Bureau'searlyperformanceoccurredin

SouthwestMississippiduringthesummerandfall of 1961 TheStudentNonviolent

CoordinatingCommitteeleadbyRobertMoseshadgoneto SouthwestMississippi

to teachthe ruralMississippiNegroaboutvoting

Thegroupof civilrightsworkersheadedbyMosesbeganoperating

voterregistrationschoolsinAmite WalthallandPikeCounties- threerural

countiesin thesouthwestcornerof Mississippi- countiesthat retainedthecharacter

of the17thCentury

Ina sixweekperiod betweenAugust15thandSeptember25th

fiveincidentstookplaceinvolvingthesecivil rightsworkers OnAugust15 1961

in AmiteCounty MississippiRobertMoseswasarrestedbya Mississippihighway

patrolman(accompaniedbya Libertytownmarsholl)afterMoseshadaccompanied

threeNegroesto the AmiteCountycourthousein Libertyto register On August29

1961RobertMoseswasbeatenonthestreetin Libertyas heaccompaniedtwo

Negroesto the courthouseto register OnSeptember5 1961TravisBrittwas

assaultedon therearstepsof the Libertycourthousewhilehe andRobertMoseswaited
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forfourNegroesattemptingto registerinside

On September7 1961JohnHardywasassaultedby RegistrarWoodin

TylertowninWalthallCountyashe accompaniedtwoNegroesto register And

'onSeptember25 1961HerbertLeewaskilledbya localwhitemanat a cotton

gin in Liberty

TheBureauwasaskedto investigatethesefiveincidentsunder1971(b)

Atthe time therewasnoFBIfieldofficein thestateof Mississippi
30

Thesix/ residentagenciesin NorthernMississippireportedto the MemphisTennessee
30

fieldoffice theseven/ residentagenciesin SouthernMississippito the NewOrleans

Louisianafieldoffice Mostof theseofficeswereoneor two-manoperationssome

of theresidentagentsworkedin theirhometowns

Inthe firstinvestigationinvolvingthearrestof Mosesthe Bureau

interviewedthe threeblackswhomMoseshadaccompaniedto theregistrar's

office All threestatedthat therewasa patrolmanin theregistrar'soffice when

theyworefillingout the registrationforms TheFBIagentsfailedto havethe

threeblocksidentifythepatrolmanin the registrar'sofficeas thesamepatrolman

wholatersloppedthem Thiswouldhovebeenimportantindemonstratingthe

connectionwithvoterregistration It wasclearfromMosesandthepatrolman's

statementsthat it wasthesomeman but thoroughinvestigationswouldsurelyhave

gottenall of thewitnessesto pin it down if thewitnessescoulddoso Akeyrole

hadbeenplayedby theCountyAttorneyin thechargingandconvictionof Moses
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forinterferencewithanofficerin thecourseof hisduties TheFBIdid not
31

interviewCountyAttorneyPiggot,/ althoughtheydidinterviewTownMarshall

Bates whomtheywerenotspecificallyrequestedto interview

OurattorneyslateracquiredadditonalinformationfromBobMoses

whichconfirmedthe importanceof Piggot'srole Accordingto Moses the patrol 

manandPiggotfirstpreparedan affidavitchargingMoseswithinterferingwithan

arrest butthiswasdiscardedafter the patrolmantoldtheattorneynoarrest

hadbeenmade Theattorneythenstartedthumbingthrougha bookto findsomething

to chargeMoseswith Hereadsomethingbuttheyagreedit wasnogood

Finally theattorneyfoundan entryaboutattemptingto impedean officerdoing

hisduties Moseswasthencharged tried andconvictedof impedingor

attemptingto impede anofficerin the courseof hisduties Thediscussion

betweenthepatrolmanandPiggotandthepreparationanddestructionof the

firstaffidavitwouldI)everyimportantinshowingpurpose TheFBIinterviews

withRobertMosesdidnotcoverthis

ThesecondFBIinvestigationdealtwiththebeatingof Moseson the

streetin Liberty TheBureauinterviewedMosesas requestedbut failedto

notethatMoseshadthreecutswhichrequireda totalofninestitches or even

that Moseshadbeentoa doctor Furthermoreit wasBureaupolicyto take

photographsof victimswounds Thiswasnotdone InearlySeptemberI
32

interviewedMesasin McCombMississippiandlearnedtheextentof hiswounds./



924

ThethirdFBIinvestigationdealtwiththeassaultof Britt Britt

andMoseswerethreatenedbya whitebald-headedman about5'6 or 57 who

workedacrossthe hall fromtheregistrar'soffice Theoriginaltelephonicrequest

andthe confirmingmemorandumbothdescribedthisman Intheirstatementsto

FBIagents MosesandBrittmentionedthewhitemanwhothreatenedthemand

cameoutof hisofficedirectlyacrossfromtheregistrar'soffice It wouldhave

beeneasyforthe FBIto identifythisman andyetthe/waitedtwomoreweeks

until theCivilRightsDivisionmodea specificrequest mentioningthe possible

nameof theman beforetheyidentifiedhim

TheFBIinvestigationin theassaultonJohnHardywasreasonably

satisfactory Thecontentionwithvoterregistrationwasclear andthe conduct

of theofficials blatant Hardywasassaultedbythe registrarin the registrar's

office andthenarrested

TheDivisiondidnot leavethe investigationto theBureau When

the civil rightsorganizationsprotestedthisassaultby theWalthallregistrar

to the Departmentof Justiceanddemandedprotectionforregistrationworkers

we immediatelysenttwoyounglawyers- BudSatherandGeraldStern- to

thatcounty Whentheyreturnedin fouror fivedays theynotonlyhadenough

factsto causetheDepartmentto sueimmediatelytoenjointhestatecriminal

prosecutionof JohnHardy but theyreportedwidespreadtenorandintimidation

of NegroesthroughoutWalthall,PikeandAmiteCounties MississippiIna
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matterof days theseyoungattorneysrecognizedthat the MississippiBureau

wasundermannedandthat thesizeof the jobinSouthwestMississippidemandeda

far largerfederalinvestigativeeffort

Thefinalincidentwhichthe Bureauinvestigatedin Southwest

Mississippiin 1961wasthe killingof HerbertLeeonSeptember25 1961bya

StateLegislatornamedHurst LeehadbeendrivingMosesaroundrural

Mississippiin connectionwithhisvoteractivity AnFBIinvestigationwas

requestedthedayof Lee'sdeath by telephone Aconfirmingrequestwassent
33

September26thandanotheronSeptember26th/ whenadditionalinformation

becameavailableto the Department AthirdrequestwassentonOctober19th

TheBureauwasaskedto obtaina copyof the transcriptof the coroner's

juryproceedingsor-tointerviewthe presidngofficerfora resume Mr McGowan

of theCivilRightsdeskphonedandobjectedto thisrequest Thenextdaya memo

appearedon mydeskfromthe Bureaustatingthat "upondiscussionwithMr Door

headvisedthatnoeffortshouldbe madeto interviewthepresidingofficer the

countyattorneyor the jurymembers. Later the Bureaudidinterview

the Justiceof thePeace whowaspresidingofficer Herevealedthathe had

takennotesat the inquest but theFBIdidnotoskto see them eventhoughthis

wasexactlywhatthe Divisionwanted

AcrucialfactwaswhetherIlerbertLeehada tire ironat the timehe

wasshot howthe tire irongotunderhisbody andwhenit wasdiscovered In

the thirdrequest(10/19)the FBIwasaskedto "Pleasereinterview'BuddyAnderson
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Otherthanthesubject he is theonlywitnessto suggestthat Leeraisedhisarm

justbeforehewasshot Obtainfulldetails. TheBureaudidreinterview

Anderson Inthissecondinterview Andersonsaidhe didnotactuallysee

the ironbarpriorto the timeit wasremovedfromunderLee'sbody This

is repeatedfourtimesin thepageanda quarterinterviewbutat no timedid

the FBIaskhimwhoremovedthe ironfromunderthebody

TheOctober19threquestalsostatedthat 'SheriffGastonclaimed

to havefoundthe tire ironunderLee'sbody afterthe coroner'sinquest Town

MarshallBatestoldLewisAllen beforethe inquest theyhadfoundthe tire iron
34

underLee'sbody./ LymanJonessays thatsomeonewhosenamehedoesnot

know- notGaston.- movedthebodyand'pickedupa tire ironwhenthe inquest

started. Pleasere-interviewBates Gaston AllenandJonestoobtainfull

details. Thoroughinvestigatorswouldnothavemerelyreportedsuchdifferences

withoutdoingsomereinterviewingontheirown

WehadinformationthatLewisAllen anAmiteCountyNegrooperator

of a loggingtruckhadbeenpressuredby thewhitelawenforcersto testifyas he

didaboutthe tire iron

Willirespectto thegunwoundis Lee'shood thesecondrequest

(September261h)to the FBIstaledthat "ourpresentunderstandingof theassault

is that HurststruckLeeat orabovethe lefteyewithsomeportionof thegun
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Simultaneouslythegunfiredandthebulletenteredat Lee'sleft temple

PleaseexamineLee'sbodyandphotographthewoundsbeforeburial Ifpossible

it shouldbe determinedon thebasisof theexaminationandphotographswhether

theblowandshotoccurredasdescribed Perhapstheangleof thebullet's

entry andthe natureandlocationof powderburnswill confirmor refute

thewitnesses descriptions. TheBureaudidnotreportinformationfromsuch

onexaminationif indeed anyexaminationevertookplace Neitherdid

theagentsinterviewthedoctor'whohadexaminedthebody Inthe third

request(October19th)the Bureauwasaskedto "interviewDr Delaneyof

Liberty Mississippiwhoarrivedat thescenewithSheriffCostonandimmediately

examinedthebody Obtainfulldetailsof hisexaminationincludingtheangle

thebulletenteredLee'shead the extent if any of burnsonLee'sheadaround

thewoundcausedby thedischargeof theweapon . and"fromyourown

examinationof Lee'sbody pleasefurnishus if possible informationas to

theangletheshotenteredthe head onethedistancefromwhichit wasfired.

NeitherwenortheBureauwereable tosatisfactorilyestablish

a federalcriminalviolationin the Herbert Leecase Wetriedto develop

a broad1971(b)complaintsimilarto the HaywoodCountycasebutwedidnot

file it It wasnotjusttheproblemofproofofpurposeit wasalsothe matter

of effectiverelcifforthe Negrocitizenswhohadtocontinueto livein the southwest

cornerof MississippiSeveralyearslaterourfailurewasmadeall theworse
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whenLewisAllenwaskilledin the nighttimebyunknownassailantsafter

beingcalledfromhishousein ruralAmiteCounty

During1961to 1963the Bureauinvestigatedmanyintimidationcases

Thefact that it hadconductedan investigationdidsomegoodbut it madefew if any

casesanditsperformance--for the Bureau- wasfarfromadequate Thiswasdue

inpart to the limitedsizeandscaleof the Bureau'soperationin Mississippipart

dueto theattitudeofsomeof the Mississippiagents andpartwascertainlydueto

the fact that the Bureau'scivil rightssectionat the seatofgovernmentdidnot

understandtheproblemof intimidationin Mississippinorthe inefficiencyand

corrosionof some- butnotall - of the Misssissippiresidentagents

Duringthe sameperiodin otherruralareasof theSouth the

Divisionprovidedverylimitedcontrolof intimidationthroughitsown

investigationsandbyfiling1971(b)suits Weworkedhardin suchcounties

as TerrellCounty Georgia HolmesandRankinCountiesin MississippiDallas

andWilcoxCounitesin Alabamabut it wasnot thekindof federallawenforcement

effortrequiredto cleanoutsuchwidespreadunlawfulactivity

In late 1963theblackandwhileIbribersstudentsbeganlo increase

thepressure Aroundthe Novemberelectionsin 1963therewerea rennarkcible

numberof violentinstanceswhensomaYalestudentswentdownto Natchez

toworkon thatelection

Bythe springof 1964 racialviolencein Mississippiwasassuming



929

alarmingproportions FBIletterheadmemosbeganto describetheseincidents

InPikeCounty betweenApril1standJune30th threeblackhomesanda

barbershopwerefirebombedthreereportersandtwolocalblackswerebeaten In

AdamsCountya blackchurchwasvandalizedtwocivil rightsworkerswere

pursuedandshotat fourblackswerewhippedanotherwasseriouslywounded

byshotgunfire anda localblackmanwaskilled InMadisonCountythe Freedom

Housein Cantonwasshotat twiceandbombeda blackhouseanda blackchurch

usedbycivil rightsworkerswerebombedanda civil rightsworkerwasassaulted

Throughoutthestatesevenotherblackchurchesweredamagedor destroyed

eightblackhomesor storeswerebombedorshotinto numerousblacksand

civil rightsworkerswereharassedor threatened On June21 threecivil rights

workersSchwcrnerChancyandGoodmandisappearedafterbeingheldfor

sixhousein the NeshobaCountyjail

SeveralKlangroupswithheadquartersinotherslateshadbeenactive

in MississippiOn February15 1964a newKlancomposedentirelyof Mississippians

theWhiteKnightsof the KuKluxKlan wasorganized Thestatedgoalof the

WhiteKnightswasto protectandpromotewhitesupremacyandsegregationof

the races withviolenceif necessary ThenewKlangroupgrewquickly Four

stale meetingswereheldbetweenFebruaryandJune 1964withfrom100to 300

personsattendingeachmeeting Klavernsor localchapters wereorganized

in at least29countiesin MississippibyJune On April24 crosseswereburned
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in 61locationsacrossthestate Klanliteraturewasopenlydistributed and

sometimesleft at thesceneof a racialincident Severalof thewhippingsof

blacksnotedabovewereadministeredbymeninhoods Agroupwithsimilar

aims Americansforthe Preservationof theWhiteRace wasorganizedin

SouthwestMississippiinJune1963 Thesematterswerereportedto usby the

Bureau

Webelievethe firstFBIletterheaddealingwiththeWhiteKnights

wasdatedFebruary21 1964 sixdaysaftertheorganizationwasformed We

believethefirstFBIletterheaddealingwiththeAmericansForthePreservation

of theWhiteRacewasdatedApril2 1964 somemonthsafterthegroupwas

organized ThroughouttheSpringof 1964approximately40memoranda

weresentto theDepartmentof Justicebythe FBI Mostof thesewere short

letterheadmemosdescribingstatemeetingscrossburningsdistributionof Klan

literatureandtheactivitiesof localchapters especiallythe LaurelKlavern

About10memoscontainedtheresultsofpreliminaryinvestigationsof Klan-type

incidentsrequestedby tilerivision suchasbeatingsanddamageto blackhomes

andstores On June2 theBureausubmitteda summaryreporton theWhiteKnights

andtheAmericansforthe Preservationof theWhileRace

CivilRightsDivisionattorneysbegantosensea build-upof Klan-type

incidentsin theSpringof 1964 On May19 a reportwasfurnishedMr Marshall

summarizingKlan-typeincidentsandpoliceactivityagainstNegroesin Mississippi
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sinceJanuary 1964 On June2-4 Mr MarshallWalterSheridanand I wentto

SouthwestMississippiandintervieweda numberofpeopleaboutthe increased

vilence On June5th the AttorneyGeneralassigneda unitof nine lawyersfrom

theCriminalDivision(underWalterSheridan'sdirection) to investigateterrorist

activityin SouthwestMississippiTheseattorneyswereexperiencedin organized

crimework andtheirassignmentswere 1) to verifyreportedactsof terrorism

2) to determineif theseactt weretheworkof Klangroups3) to determinethe

extentof Klanmembershipanditsorganization4) todeterminewhatweaponsthe

Klangroupshadand5) to determinethe extentof Klaninfiltrationof law

enforcement

Duringthat firstweekin June AttorneyGeneralKennedysent

a memorandumto thePresidentexplainingthe lawenforcementproblemin Mississippi
35

andsuggestingthat the Bureaushouldconsiderhowtodealwithit./

AttorneysfromSheridan'sunitbeganto moveintothe fieldabout

June11th andsoonthereafteranofficewasopenedin Jaclson

Aboutthemiddleof June twolawyersfromSheridan'sunit

contactedClarenceProsper.the respidentagentin Natchez Theyreportedthat

Prosperewasvaryuncooperative Hestatedthat inmanymattersthe FBI

consideredthe JusticeDepartmentattorneys"outsiders Headvisedthat no

reportwouldbe sentto Sheridan'sunitunlesshewasspecificallyinstructedto

dosofromthe NewOrlcunsfieldoffice Hewouldnotagreeto telephone



932

if violencebrokeout unless again hewasspecificallyinstructed

fromNewOrleans Hewouldgivenobackgroundinformationon the area
36

andon the identityof knownextremists."/

On June15 1964 AssistantAttorneyGeneralMarshallsenta

lengthyrequestto the FBI attachinga listof FBImemoson theWhiteKnights

the AmericansforthePreservationof theWhiteRace andon Klan-type

incidents TheFBIwasrequestedto checkits filesandto furnishtheCivil

RightsDivisionwithadditionalinformationTherequestalsolisteda numberof

Klan-typeincidents whichhadnotbeenpreviouslyreportedonby the FBI

andaskedthe FBIforanyinformationit hadon theseterroristactivities

Inaddition theJusticeDepartmentalertedthepressin an extralegal
36a

attemptto maximizelocalandfederalpreventativelawenforcement./

AboutJune16 1964 interferencefilesforeachcountyin

MississippiandLouisianawereestablishedin theCivilRightsDivision

InformationfromFBIletterheadsandicports regardinganyinterferenceswithcivil

rightsactivitieswasplacedin eachcountyfile inordertospotlightthe trouble

areasanddetermineif therewasanypatternto the interferenceactivity A

reportonKlangroupsandterroristactivityin Mississippiwasprepared Notebooks

onKlanmembershiporganisationandvigilanteactivityweresetupforMississippi

andLouisiana BeginningJune19 theCivilRightsDivisionhadat leastfour

of its experiencedMississippilawyerstravelingin thestate
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OnTuesdayevening June16 threeblcekswerebeaten

followinga meetingat the Mt ZionChurchin the Longdalecommunityof

NeshobaCounty andthatnightthe churchwasburned Twodayslater

FBIagentsin JacksonandMeridianlearnedof theassaultandburningand

reportedthe caseto the FBIin NewOrleans TheFBIagentswereinstructed

by the NewOrleansofficetoopenan investigationtodetermineif any

Federallowshadbeen violated OnJune19 twoagentsdroveto Longdale

to interviewtheblackswhohodbeenattacked

OnSunday June21 threecivil rightsworkersMichaelSchwerner

JamesChaneyandAndrewGoodmandrovefromMeridianto Longdaleto find

outaboutthe assaultandburning SchwernerandChaneyhadbeenmeeting

withthe leadersof Mt Zionchurchin MayandJunetosee if theycoulduse

it as aCOFO centerduringthesummer Theytalkedto theblacksin Longdale

werestoppedby DeputySheriffPriceforspeedingconfinedin jail in Philadelphia

andhelduntilabout10:30P.M whentheywerereleased COFOworkersin

Meridianwereworriedwhenthe threedidn't returnandbeganto call local
37

stateandfederalofficials./ The"missingpersoni'reportreachedthe FBI

at 10:03P.M Sundayeveningaround2 o'clockthenextmorningI asked

the FBIto notifythe MississippiHighwayPatroland Ned-loboCountyofficersof

thedisappearanceandgivethema descriptionof Iheirstationwagonandto report

backto meall the informationit coulddevelop Sometimeafternoon Director
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HooverorderedtheFBIofficein Meridianto mekea search ResidentAgent

JohnProctorgot thenamesof fiveMad whoSchwernersaidhewasgoingtosee

andProctorandanotheragentwentto Longdaleandthento Philadelphia

NeshobaCounty At6:20P.M. Iv"ondc A.G Kennedyinstructedthe

FBIto treat thedisappearnce asa kidnapping

OnTuesdayJune23 fiveagentsandan inspectorarrivedin

MeridianfromNewOrleans andagentsfromotherofficesweresentin Inspector

JosephSullivanarrivedto directthesearch Sullivanisa 6'2 square-jawed

Irishmanwhojoinedthe Bureauin 1941 Hewasbroughtintothe Ins?eetion

DivisioninWashingtonin 1963andhasa welldeservedreputationas a top

troubleshooterforthe Bureau Thatdaytheburnedoutstationwagonwaslocated

bysomeIndians Latethenextnight WednesdayJune24 AssistantDirector

AIRosenwe alsosentto thescene

OnTuesdayJune23rd thePresidentannouncedthathe was

sendingMr AllenDullesto Mississippitoconferwithstateofficio`.scivicand

businessleaders andblackleadersaboutthe lawenforcementsituationin

MississippiAfterconferringwithAttorneyGeneralKenncdyDirectorHoover

andotherJusticeocfir:iclsonWec!nc;c!aymorningMr Dullesflewto Jackson

ThatafternoonhemetwithGovernorJ":hnsonandGeneralBirdsongacknowlec'ged

the infiltrationof localpoiic.ein runnycountiesby the Klan
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Mr DullesmetwithJacksoncivicbusinessleadersthat

eveningwithwhiteandblackreligiousleaders withblackleadersandcivil

rightsworkersandwithcivic leadersfromotherpartsof thestate onThursday

Mr Dullesflewto WashingtonThursdayevening

FollowingadditionalconferenceswithDepartmentof Justice

officials he metwiththePresidenton Fridaymorning Herecommended

thata substantialincreasebe madein thenumberof FBIagentsin Mississippi
38

Whileit is reportedthat Mr Hooverinitiallyadvisedthe Presidentthat/

eithermarshalsor soldiersshouldbe sentto Mississippito dealwiththesituation

(seeJosephKraft'sFebruary1965articlein Commeniar>he finallyagreed

nodoubtbecausemenwhomhe trustedwithinthe Bureausuchas Joe Sullivan

hadtoldhimMississippiwasbadlyundermannedandthatWashingtonwasoutof

touchwiththeresidentagentsin Mississippiandthat the agentsthereworetoo

closeto localMississippiofficials

Mr Hooverdid on thatday decideto openan FBIfieldofficein
39

Jackson/ I havenodoubtthat Mr Dullesrecommendationwastheproximate

causein changingthe Bureau'soperationin theSouth

On July 10 DirectorHooverflewto MississippiHeannouncedthat

thenumberof FBIagentsin Mississippihadbeenincreasedto 153men

Obviouslya largepartof those153ogcnlswereworkingon the Neshobacase

Mr HoovermetwithGovernorJohnsonwhilehewasin Jackson
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TheDirectorgavetheGovernora listof Klanmembersin Mississippiincluding

severallawenforcementofficials Two ofthe KlansmenwereState Highway

Patrolmen TheGovernorsaidtheywouldbe dismissedimmediately

RoyMoorewasappointedtheSpecialAgentin Charge(SAC)of

the newJacksonoffice

Sheridan'sunit interviewednumerousblacksandsympathetic

whites includingchurchmenin SouthwestMississippiTheycontactedfederal

personnelinSouthwestMississippiandNortheastLouisiana (Forexample all

DepartmentofAgriculturepersonnelwerealertedto reportanyinformation

aboutsuspectedterrorists)r tet.orismto Sheridan'sgroup.) Afterit was

learnedthat the Klanwasusingshortwaveradios arrangementsweremadewith

the FCCto sendtwomento Mississippito monitorcitizens bandandamateur

radiolicenses ContactwasestablishedwithDefenseDepartmentintelligence

agentsin MississippiandLouisiana ByearlyAugusttheBureau'sforcehad

increasedtosuchan extentthatSheridan'soperationwaswithdror+n

Allof theseevents- thebuildupofviolencein Mississippithe

resurgenceof the Klan thedisappearanceofSchwcrnerChancyandGoodmanthe

competitionfromSheridan'sunit Mr Dullestripto Mississippithe additional

manpowerof thenewJacksonoffice andM Hoover'spersonalvisit- combined

to producea magnificentchangein the Bureau'sperformancein Mississippi
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casewereappalledby thebreakdownin locallawenforcementandtherisein

terroristactivity Theywereashamedof the Bureau'spriorperformanceand I

suspect reportedtheirdismayto Mr Hoover WithleadershipfromJoe

Sullivan RoyMooreandothers theFBIinMississippireallyperformed Roy

Mooreundertooka speechmakingcampaignacrossthestateto alert the publicto

theriseof terroristactivity andremindit of thenecessityof enforcingthe law

Anaggressivecampaignwasundertakenagainstthe Klanwiththe following

objectives(1)to solvethe Neshobacase (2)to identifyKlanmembersandofficers

to identifyKlansmenwhowerelawenforcementofficials stateand local and

toobtainasmuchinformationas possibleaboutKlanactivitiesandplans

ThismeansadoptedagainsttheKlanincludedaggressiveinterviewing

of knownorsuspectedKlansmenandinfiltrationof the Klanwithpaidinformants

Throughoutthe longhotsummerFBIagentsmovedthroughNeshobaCounty methodically

interviewingandreinterviewingKlansmenandothersinaneffortto solvethe Neshoba

case NewYorkTimesdated.December6 1964reportedthe FBIinterviewedmore

than1,000Mississippiresidentsincluding480KKKmembersin theSchwemerChaney

andGoodmaninvestigation

OnJuly17 1964 Mr HooversentAttorneyGeneralKennedyo memo

enclosinga listof MississippiStateHighwayPatrolofficers sheriffsand deputy

sheriffswhowereknownorsuspectedKlai.menand listofknownKlansmenin

thestate whichhadbeenfurnishedbyBureauinformants Henotedthat
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"intensiveactiveinvestigationisbeingconductedconcerningall Klangroups

inordertodeveloppertinentinformationconcerningthe identityof membershipand

officers aimsandpurposesandpossibleinvolvementin violencein connectionwith

racialsituationin Mississippi.

Knownor suspectedKlansmenacrossthestatewereidentified,re

interviewedandcloselywatched

Informantsplayedan importantrolein the FBI'ssolutionof the Neshoba

case Thebodiesof the threeyoungmenwerefoundburiedin a damonAugust2

1964throughinformationfurnishedbyan informant Atthe October1967federal

conspiracytrialof the 1BKlansmenchargedin connectionwiththe deathof

SchwernerChaneyandGoodmantwopaidFBIinformantstestified Sgt Miller

(a Meridianpoliceman)hadjoinedthe Klanin April1964andwasrecruitedas an

FBIinformantin September Atthe trial he testifiedthathe hadreceived$3,400

fromtheFBIforsalaryandtravelexpenses Rev DelmanDennishadalso joined

the Klanin theSpringof 1964andin Novemberhebeganservingasan FBI

informant Fietestifiedat the trial thathe hadbeenpaid$15,000by the FBI

Miller Dennisandotherinformannswereveryimportantin identifyingKlanmembers

activitiesandplans

Inmyclosingstatementat the federaltrial I saidto the jury.
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".. muchhasbeenandwillbe saidaboutthe
extraordinarymethodsusedindiscoveringtheguilty
Shouldit havebeenotherwise Wasthisa caseto
be forgotten Wasthisnota caseforthemaximum
effortof the FBI Couldthe FederalGovernment
havesucceededinany .. wayotherthanrewards
paymentforinformationtendingtoexposetheband
of murderousconspiratorsthemidnightkillers to
bringthemto thebarof justice...

"Therecouldbe no justificationforthe FederalGovern
mentnothavingtriedto solvethiscrime TheFBIdid
try A thousand.eyesexploredeverycornerof Neshoba
County

"Allof youprobablyhavean initialresentmentagainst
paidinformers Butbeforeyoufinallydecide examine
thesemen Theyare nativesonsof MississippiThey
are menof convictionbothaboutstate'srightsandabout
lawenforcement

"Thesemenwerenotcriminals Theyplayednopart in
thisor anyothercriminal conspiracy Andforthe FBI
therewasnootherwayto establishthecontacttheyhadto
makebeforetheycouldsolvethiscase.

Similarmethods aggressiveinterviewingobtainingtwosignedcon

fessionsandoneoraladmissionofparticipationandtheuseof informants were

usedby theFBIto solvetheDahmarfirebombingVernonDahmara blackfarmer

in ForrestCounty Mississippia leaderin the NAACPandactive in voterregis

trationactivity waskilledthe nightof January9 1966whenhishousewasfire

bombed RoyMooreanda groupofagentswereon thescenequicklysettingup

anFBIfieldpostina motelin nearbyHattiesburg Significantphysicalevidence

wasfoundat thesceneinclu.iinga revolver a gas-filledjug shellcasingandtire

tracks Anabandonedcar turnedupa fewmilesaway Accordingto Whitehead
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within72hoursof Dahmar'sdeaththeFBIhadcompileda listof suspects

whowereKlansmenOneof the Klansmen(whohadbeeninvolvedin

planningtheattack)gavetheFBIa signedstatement Otherswhoparticipated

madeoraladmissionsOn March28 1966 fourteenKlansmenwerearrested

onfederal241chargesgrowingoutof the firebombing

Whenan investigativeagencyis functioningeffectively it is

hard byspecificexamplesto communicateall the lawenforcementworkit is

doing Withthisin mind otherexamplesof superiorinvestigativeperformance

are the following

On June25 1964in Itta Bena (westof Greenwood)Mississippi

threecivil rightsworkersweredistributing4eafletsannouncinga voterregistration

meetingto be heldthateveningat the HopewellBaptistChurch Threelocal

whitementhreatenedtheworkersandassaultedoneof them Thenextdaythe

whiteswerearrestedbythe FBIforviolationof 18USC241

OnJuly 16 1964 SilasMcGeeofGreenwoodblack wasbeaten

whenhe triedtoattendthe LefloreTheatrein Greenwood Threelocalwhite

menwerearrestedby the FBIonJuly23under.. ection241 Thethreewereindicted

bya federalgrandjuryonJanuary6 1965

InPikeandAdornsCountiesin the fallof 1965andin BogalusaLouisiana

in thesummerof 1965 the FBIperformeda tremendousjobin helpingto curtail

terroristactivity Thiswasin theSouthwestMississippiterritorywherethe law
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enforcementproblemsweretheworst

Violencein PikeCountyincreasedin thesummerandearlyfall

of 1964 DuringJuly twochurcheswerecompletelyburnedfiredamaged

another andanattemptwasmadeto burna fourthone Bombswerethrown

at a houseownedbya blackaswellasat the COFOhouseshotswerefired

intothe houseof a black a COFOworkerwasassaultedin McComb During

August thebuildingwhere"NAACPmeetingswereheldanda Negro

homewerebombeda churchwasburnedanda localwhitewas

whipped Inthe firstthreeweeksofSeptembersevenNegrohomeswere

bombedonechurchwasbombedandthreeCOFOworkerswereasaultedin the

streetsof McCombTerroristactivityincludedthedestructionof the Society

HillBaptistChurchandseveredamageto theQuinnhousethe nightof

September20th ThechurchhadbeenusedforvoterregistrationclassesandMrs

Quinn'scafewasa meetingplaceforCOFOworkers InFebruary1965 Sheriff

Warnerof PikeCountytestifiedbeforetheCivilRightsCommissionthat Mississippi

HighwayPatrolmenandFBIagentsaidedin theirinvestigation "Andabout

twentyor thirtyFBIagentswereworkingat all times alongwithmyselfandmy

deputiesandthe McCombPoliceDepartment

McComl7PoliceChiefGcotgcGreytestifiedthat "Well wemore

or lessturnedthe investigationpertof it overtb the FBIandhighwaypatroland

Sheriff'sDepartmentTheycameintoMcCombandsetupofficesthereand
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theyhadspecialmenthatknowhowtodo it probablya lotbetter thanmymen

did.

WhenSheriffWarrenwentto investigatetheQuinnbombingon

September20 hewasaccompaniedbyFBIAgentFrankFord Blacksin the

vicinitywereriotingwhentheyarrivedat thesceneandaccordingto Sheriff

Warren "Mr Fordtalkedto the Negroes triedto quietthemdown I-Iewas

cursedandhisflashlightknockedoutof hishandbya rock. On September30

elevenlocalwhitemenwerearrestedbyFolcndstatepatrolmenandten

of thesemenwereindictedin Octoberbya localgrandjuryforthreeof the

bombingsof Negrohomes includingthe Quinnhouse Attheir trial on

October24 sixof themenpleadedguiltyto illegaluseof explosivesandall

of themnolocontendereto chargesof conspiracy

In lateOctoberandearlyNovembertherewerefivemoreacts

of violenceagainstblacks InPikeCounty onewasassaultedtwowere

shotat anda storewasvandalized Sixwhitemenwerearrestedin November

fivepleadguiltyandweresentencedto oneyear withnosuspendedsentences

It is clear that theFBIwasthe lawenforcementbehindthese

arrests

Eventsiu BogalusaLouisianaaddto thepicture Bogalusa

wasa tough depressedlumberandpnpermilltownof 22,000peoplein Northeast

LouisianajustbelowWalthallCounty MississippiThirty-fivepercentof its
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populationwasNegro

InApril1965 severalcivil rightsorganizationsselectedBogalusa

as the targetforan intensivecivilrightscampaignto securerightsto public

accommodationsprovidedby the 1964CivilRightsActaswellas to urge

additionaleconomicopportunitiesforNegroes

Thiscampaignledto picketing marchescountermarchespolice

failureandviolence

On June2nd thefirsttwoNegrolawenforcementofficersto serve

WashingtonParishwereambushedwhileona policecarpatrolnorthwestof

Bogalusa O'Neal Moore a Negrodeputysheriffwaskilled andanotherNegro

deputywaswounded

Laterthatnight ErnestIvcElveena whiteresidentof Bogalusa

wasarrestedinTylertownWalthallCounty Mississippiandchargedwithmurder

Althoughfederaljurisdictionwasveryquestionablethe FBI

immcdiolelyenteredthecase Atthe time InspectorSullivan RoyMooreand

theiragents had1:-.nworkinghardin theareabetweenNatchezand the Louisiana

borderon Klaninvestigations Natchezanditsenvironshadbeenan intimidation

troublespotforyears

InspectorSullivansetupa fieldofficein the ChoctawMotelin

Bogalusaandstaffedit withabouttwentyagents

Thedemonstrationsandincidentscontinuedandconditionsgrewworse
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Duringthe middleof July I wassentto Bogalusa Aninjunctionhadjustbeen

issuedby the FederalCourtin NewOrleansrequiringlocalpoliceauthorities

in Bogalusato protectcivil rightsdemonstrators

On July 16and17 picketswhoappearedat the PineTreePlaza

ShoppingCenterin Bogalusawereharassedandphysicallyattackedbywhiteby

standers 1wasthereon the 17thandsowit all Sodid JoeSullivan Iwill

neverforgetInspectorSullivanmovingin dressingdownthe localpoliceauthorities

fortheirfailuretodo theirduty andineffect keepingthepeaceat the shopping

centerthatday

Withina matterof days (July19 1965)workingwiththe FBI we

filedan actionforcivil contemptagainstthe localauthoritiesallegingviolationof the

injunction

On thesamedaywefileda civilsuitsimilarto the 1971(b)type

in FederalDistrictCourtin NewOrleansagainsttheOriginalKnightsof the Ku

KluxKlan theAnli-CommunistChristianAssociationand38 individualsinand

aroundBogalusaLouisianaincludingtopleadersof theOriginalKnightsof the

KuKluxKlan Wesoughtinjunctiverelieftopreventthedefendantsfrominter

feringwithpersonsseekingto exerciseconstitutionalrights

Thefactualinformationnecessarytosupportthesuitwasfurnished

to the Divisionby theFBI ThucomplaintwaspreparedinWashingtonby Robert

Owenworkingfromscoresof 11)1letterheadreportswhichtheDivisionhad
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receivedfromtheFBIresidentagentsin BogalusaandMcCombovera period

of manymonths Thecomplaintwasrefinedwithdirectinformationfurnished

to meby InspectorSullivanin the field

InspectorSullivanandhisagentsworkedcloselywithusin

selectingthedefendantsandin developingtheproofrequiredto provethe illegal

actionsof 37differentindividuals

On thatoccasionthe Bureaushowedit appreciatedthe valueof

a broadcivil injunctivesuitasonemeansof controllingintimidation- especially

wherelocallawenforcementhadbrokendown

Inpreparationforthehearingof the contemptcase wehad withthe

helpof the Bureaucollectedlotsof filmstripsof the Bogalusademonstrations

DivisionAttorneysRobertOwen KennethMcIntyreandJohnRosenbergput together

a filmstriponwhathappenedat thePlazaShoppingCenter Asnarratorof the

film andas thepersonwhoidentifiedthoseresponsibleforthe failureof the local

police ourwitnesswasan FBIagent Histestimonymadeourcase Thedefendant

publicofficialswereheldin contempt

Althoughthe BureauworkedsteadilyintoSeptemberwewere

neverable toget n criminaljurisdictionalhandleen theO'Neal Moorecase

Bythat timewehadreceived25volume-sizeFBIreportsaveragingin excess

of 100[:.Ig,seach Theinfoenlionconteincdin thereports howeverwasused

byusto proveourcivil casein FederalCourt
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AgaintheFBIwasofgreathelpto OwenandMcIntyreat the

trial Weneededa witnessto authenticatea copyof the rulesof the Klan

anda membershiplist TheBureaupersuadedthe localcountyprosecutorto

talk to Owenandthento appearasa Governmentwitness Throughhistestimony

weauthenticatedthedocuments

On December1 1965a threejudgeFederalCourtissueditsopinion

Fittingly the Courtbeganitsopinion

"Thisisanactionby the Nationagainsta Klan .

TheCourtstatedthat thedefendanthadadopteda patternand

practiceof intimidatingthreateningandcoercingNegrocitizensinWashington

Parishforthe purposeof interferingwiththecivil'rightsof Negrocitizens The
t

Courtfoundthat the Klanexploitsthe forcesof hate prejudice and ignorance

andreliesuponsystematiceconomiccoercion varietiesof intimidationand

physicalviolenceto frustratethenationalpolicyexpressedin the civil rights

legislation TheAntiCommunistChristianAssociationwasfoundto be onlya

disguiseforthe Klan

TheCourtconcludedbysayingthatprotectioncgainstheartsof

tenorandintimidationcommittedbytheOriginalKnightsof the KuKluxKlanand

the individualdefendantscouldbe haltedonlybybroadinjunctivedecreeand

it issuedthat injunction

During1966and1967otherevidenceof the Bureau'sworkcometo
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lightin thesuccessfulprosecutionin FederalCourtin the LiuzzoandPenncases

andin the Dahmercasein theStateCourtof Mississippiin andforForrestCounty

Inthesecases the Bureauunderthedirectionof the Division

(nodoubtimpressedby the caliberandleadershipof RobertOwen)performedits

investigativeassignments

Whilesomeof thesecasesdidnotdirectlyrelate to voting their

successfulprosecutionundoubtedlyled to a climatein theSouthwhichwenta

longwaytowardfullyguaranteeingtherightofall ofourcitizensto register

andvote
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Conclusion

ThechallengeforAmericain 1960wasthedestructionof the

castesystemitself Attheoutset fewmenhadfullyperceivedthisfact

Inthepast whena revolutionarygoalwassought revolution

wasnecessaryto achieveit Afewcitizens operatingindependently

undertookto eliminatethe castesystemwithinthe frameworkof the law

Thelawsof 1957and1960protectingtherightto votewere

not aimedat thecastesystem- butratherat whatthemajorityunderstood

at the timetobe necessary- that is theprotectionof the rightof certain

extraordinaryintelligentNegrocitizenswho underanystandard wereentitled

to vote Sometimeduring1960and1961.44it didn'thappenall at once nordid

it happento eachmemberof the Divisionat thesametime- the CivilRights

Divisionseizedthesestatutesas theirweaponagainstthecastesystem

It fell to the FBI byvirtueof its responsibilitiesas the investigative

armof theDepartmentof Justice to becomeunwittingsoldiersof theCivil

RightsDivision Whata situationforthe Bureau!It mustbe rememberedthat

at the timenoone waswiththeDivision NeitherCongressFederalJudges

UnitedStatesAttorneysthe DepartmentofAgricultureandHEWnorindeed the

Americanpeoplethemselveshadyet signedun andyet the FRIliedbeen

involuntarilyenlisted
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TheBureauwasill-preparedforitspredicament Isit anywonder

it deliveredsucha lacklusterperformance FBIfieldofficesin the Southwere

neglectedandunder-mannedTherewerenoBureaumanualson thedetectionof

discriminatoryselectionof voters Voterdiscriminationitselfhadnotyet been

clearlyor specificallydefined TheBureausupervisorsestablishedin highposts

at theseatofgovernmentknewonlythemythspublishedby the disciplesof the

solidsouth themselvesestablishedat thescatofgovernment Beyondthat the

FBI'sstrengthandvirtuemayhavebeenerodedby itssuspicionof the Department

of Justice

Thus theBureaufounditselflockedina situationit did not-

couldnot- understand It knewlittle aboutthe realitiesof life in theSouth

(Neitherdidalmostanyoneelse.) Thefact that the Bureaurepresented

thefederalgovernmentwithall itsbcreaccraticpower shouldnotblind

itsto theveryrealdifficultiesit facedoperatingin thecomplexlegalnetwork

of thecastesystem Thesestateswerelargelystill a partof the Americon

frontier riddledwithbewilderingruralpatternsofsecrecyandsilence almost

designedtomaketheworkof anyinvestigativeagencydifficult if not

impossibleThattheFt;)neededguidence that it movedhaltingly that

it falteredonmanyoccasionbetween1960and1964shouldcome
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as nosurprise Thatit madea limitedcontributionin the votingcasesas

theprofessionaluncommittedneutral investigatoris to its credit

In1964whena deep-seatedchangecameuponAmerica a

changebroughtaboutbymanyindividualsgroupsandforces the Bureau

changedaswell

Fromthat timeon underthe leadershipof agentslike

InspectorsJoe Sullivan JohnProctor andRoyMoore the Bureau

demonstratedin someof the toughestlawenforcementassignments

imaginableexactlyhowandwhyit hadearnedits reputationforthoroughness

persistenceandtoughmindednessin responsiblelawenforcement

Perhapsin retrospect therewerewaysto havemadethe

Bureaudobetter But inevaluatingthe FBI'sperformancein protectingthe

rightto vote let usbe surewedonottransferourimpatiencewithAmerica

itself ontotheFBI simplybecauseof itsvisibility- orourprejudices-

orbecausewefeel morecomfortablecriticizinga bureaucracythan

erifici::ingowselves
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FOOTNOTES to Attachment 4

42 USC1971(a) 42 USC1971(b)

In the Priceand Guestopinions the SupremeCourtreversed
dismissalsby the DistrictCourtof indictmentsarisingout of the
killings of the three civil rightsworkersin NeshobaCounty
Mississippiand.ofIt Col Pennin Georgia TheGuest opinion
is quite technical Thereare fourseparateopinionswithsix
Justicesconcurringin part and dissentingin part for different
reasons But in effect these decisionsgave a broadconstruction
to Section241 Thecourtheld that "Section241 mustbe read as it
is written and that its "languageincluderightsor privilegespro
tected by the 14thAmendment In the Guestcase the Courtfound
that the indictmentstateda crimewithinthe reach of 241 in alleg
ing a conspiracyto interferewith the righton on individualto
travel in interstatecommerce In the Pricecase the crimealleged
by the indictmentwas"that the State withoutthe asemblanceof
due processof law as requiredby the 14thAmendmentusedits
sovereignpowerand office to release the victimsfromjail so that
they werenot chargedand tried as requiredby law but instead
couldbe interceptedand killed TheSupremeCourtunanimously
upheldthe constitutionalvalidityof the indictment In Price the
Courtalso held that privatepersonschargedwithacting with local  
police officialswereacting "undercolorof law
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Harry Allen and Benaro Overstreet in their
very pro-FBI book The FBI in Our Open Society
(1969) devoted much attention to the Bureau's
performance in civil rights Near the end
of their book they state that "to turn from
a report like that of John Doer (in the
Attorney General's 1965 Annual Report) to
almost any one of the colurtns and articles
which brand as deplorable the FBI's record
in the civil rights field is to realize how
little can be learned from the latter about
the specifics of federal law We have not
found even one such piece that has based its
charges on well-authenticated discrepancies
between the FBI's assignment as defined by
law and departmental policy and its
performance.

Each year between 1961 and 1967 Director Hoover
testified before Congressman Rooney's sub
committee In 1961 besides noting the train
ing programs in civil rights conducted for
FBI personnel for local officals and discussing
the communist exploitation of the sit-ins the
Director devoted four brief paragraphs to civil
rights matters He noted there wore 1,398
alleged civil rights violations during fiscal
1960 and mentioned a number of bombings
attempted bombings and bombing threats lie
commented briefly on the Civs_ Righ..s Act cf
1960 and the Attorney General's authority to
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bring suit "when there is a pattern Ofevents denying the right to votebecguseof race or color. Mr Hoover did nbt
describe the FBI's role in investigating
these denials

In 1962 the Director devoted three and a
half pages to civil rights setting out in
some detail the procedures the Bureau
follows in investigating police brutality
and other complaints and also the Bureau's
jurisdiction This testimony appears to be
in response to the Civil Rights Commission's
1961 Justice report which was somewhat
critical of the FBI's performance Mr
Hoover testified that 'some sources have
inferred that we might be reluctant to
investigate personnel of other law
enforcement agencies This assumption is
completely unfounded. Mr Hoover also
asserts therewas no delay in furnishing
complaints directly to the Civil Rights
Division another area where the Commission
found fault with the FBI's record Mr
Hoover made no specific mention of FBI
investigations of denials of the right to
vote

In 1963 the Director devotes less than a
page to civil rights in his testimony with
no discussion of voting investigations. He
does mention the FBI's solving of two church
burnings near Albany Georgia in the fall of
1962

Mr Hoover's 1964 testimony contains five
pages dealing with civil rights matters
including mention of several civil rights
prosecutions such as the Hedger Evers case
an Indiana police brutality case and one of
the same church burning in Georgia in 1962
"Extensive work has also been carried on
under the Civil Rights ace of 19GO --eaarding
discrimination in voting matters For
example in Bullock County Alabama we made
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an investigationinto voter registrationproceduresat
the instructionof the Departmentof Justice On
September13 1961a federalcourtorderwasissued
to regulateregistrationproceduresand eliminatedis
crimination Asa result morethan 1,000 Negroes
haveregisteredthusfar

Inhis 1965testimony nine pagesof whichdeal with
civil rights Mr Hooveralso noted forthe first time
the intelligenceactivitiesagainstthe Klan "Indicative
of ourworkin thisarea is the fact that we are currently
investigating14 Klan-typeorganizationshavinga member
shipof approximately9,000 individuals. Mr Hoover
thenwent to namethe majorKlangroups their leadersand
estimatedmembership

In1966 the Directordiscussedin great detail the Bureau's
successesin the big criminalcases Penn Neshobaand
Luizzoand the FBI'sresponseto suchcrisessituationsas
Selmaand Bogalusa

Shortlyafter the Civil RightsActof 1960went into effect
recorddemandsweremadefor 15countiesin fourstates-

McCormickHamptonand ClarendonCounties South
Carolina Webster Fayetteand EarlyCounties Georgia
Wilcox Sumterand MontgomeryCounties Alabama East
Feliciano Ouachitaand EastCarrollParishes Louisiana
and Boliva Leflore and ForrestCounties Mississippi



4-6-61

955

C6) In 1960 the Department of Justice believed that
there was massive widespread racial discrimination
in voting in five Deep South States (Alabama Georgia
Louisiana Mississippi and South Carolina) and in
some counties in Florida North Carolina and
Tennessee The Best registration statistics
available for 196Q indicated that 14% of the
500,000 voting age Negroes (and 63% of the Whites)
were registered to vote in Alabama 301 of the
500,000 Negroes (and 77% of the Whites) were
registered in Louisiana and 6% of 400,000 Negroes
(and at least 50% of the Whites) in Mississippi
were registered We Believed there Were_27 counties
with substantial Black populations where no Blacks
were registered These counties were called cipher
counties and were located as follows 2 in Alabama
6 in Georgia,.4 in Louisiana, 14 in Mississippi and
1 in South Carolina These five states had 98 (but
of 419) counties with less than 5% of the Blacks
registered

Our conclusion after 4 years of hard work was
that we had underestimated the size of the problem

(7) A typical FBI request might read as follows

Director
Federal Bureau of investigation

John Doar
Acting Assistant Attorney General
Civil Rights Division 72-41-20

Discrimination in Registration and Voting
Jefferson Davis County Mississippi
-------------------------------------------

Listed below are the names of Negroes in Jefferson
Davis County who have attempted to register to vote
Some have been successful We do not have the
addresses of some of them but Mr John C Burnes
a farmer who lives approximately 6 miles north of
Prentiss will be able to help you locate the
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the individuals His house can be reached by going
5 miles north of Prentice on Highway 13 and turning
west on a dirt road and following the dirt road for
about a mile The Burnes farm is on the south side
of the road Please interview these persons

John C Burnes

Jenora M Holloway Mt Carnal Voting District
Prentiss Mississippi

Casson Holloway Prestiss Mississippi

Mabel W Armstrong Prentiss Mississippi

John H Lewis Prentiss Mississippi

John Harris Williams Prentiss Miss

Waddell Gray Carson Miss

J.H Armstrong 5 miles east of Prentiss Miss

Lewis Warren Pasterling Prentiss Miss

Juanita Pasterling Prentiss Miss

Johnny Hartzog

Jim Hartzog

John F Barnes

Scott Barnes

Johnny Goodlaw

Mather Herron

Larkin Sims

Irvin Lucas

Cable Terroll

Martin Sullivan



957

Nallie Ward

James Ward

Seaulab Rose

Rudolph Ward Mt Zion Community

James Ward Mt Zion Community

Fred White Mt Zion Community

Bailey Jones Mt Zion Community

Charlie Thompson Route 2 Box 80 Prentiss Miss

Daniel Sims Ross Route 2 Box 137 Prentiss Miss

Fred Ross Route 2 Box 296 Prentiss Miss

Sane Phillips Route 3 Box 122 Mt Olive Miss

-Dadley Lewis Hawthorne Route 2 Box 11 Prentiss Miss

Dorothez Howthorne Route 2 Bos 11 Prentiss Miss

Willie P White Route 2 Box 111 Prentiss Miss

Roscoe Otis lives near Willie P White

C.L Powell Carson Mississippi (also obtain
information on Mr Powell's son's attempts
to register and his present location.)

Certain of these people were previously interviewed in
March 1958 Re-interview is requested to bring the
matter up to date and to obtain the specific information
requested

In addition to obtaining the usual background
information including education business or farming
experiences property ownership military record
arrest record obtain the following specific information

a Each time he attempted to register
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Date an date

Where he attexp ted to register

What other Negroes were with him when he
attempted to register

Name or person or persons to whom he
applied for registration (Circuit clerk
or deputy)

Full details of conversation with clerk

'Full details of any conversation with
other white persons or officials when he
attempted to register such as the Sheriff
or Deputy Sheriff

What was required of him when he attempted
to register such as filling out the
application forms copying and interpreting
a provision of the Constitution Ascertain
whether any part of the qualifying examinationwas oral If he was required to copy and
interpret a provision of the Constitution,
ascertain what provision or what it was about
and its length

Whether he passed or .failed Include here
any details of the conversation with the
registrar

Whether he received any assistance in filling
out the form from the registrar and whether
or not he requested-such assistance

Whether or not he has paid his poll tax
regularly if so obtain all original poll
tax receipts in his possession

i;hether any white person in the County has
talked to hir: about registering if so :.:",o
weer. atd ____ details of the con.vors:tion
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Obtain from each person interviewed the names of other
Negroes who have also attempted to register to vote
Interview each of these persons for full details

Obtain from each person interviewed the names of any
Negroes who have been reluctant to attempt to register
because of a conversation with a white person in the
community

Interview Carl Meyers white who lives in Voting Dis
trict 5 near Prentiss Mississippi and who is a
registered voter for full details as to what transpired
when he registered to vote including the date what
assistance he was given either by the circuit clerk or
by other persons when he attempted to register and the
length of time it took him to register Obtain full
information as to interviewee's educational background
and whether interviewee can read and write

Interview Garland Lane a registered white voter in the
County as to what transpired when he registered to
vote including the time it took him to register and
what assistance he received in completing the qualifying
examination Obtain full information as to inter
viewee's educational background and whether interviewee
can read and write

Kindly conduct this investigation on an expedited basis

A copy of the Mississippi summary follows on the next
three pages

As an example of pre 1960 machinations consider the
following

On May 1 1958 Renry,Putzel Chief of the Voting and
Elections section wrote the Assistant Attorney General
for Civil Rights

'At .least until a final decision is made as to our
course with respect to the situation in Tuskegee I feel
it is desirable to confine investigations of Mr Gomilian's
complaint to persons outside existing or previous
boundaries of Tuskegee therefore at least for the
time being we are asking that the present or former
residents of Tuskegee not be included among those to be
interviewed"by the FRI,
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COUNTY
DATE

REQUESTED
DATE

RECEIVED
EXPEDITED

BASIS

INTERVIEWS
SPECIFICALLY

REQUESTEDANDMADE
INTERVIEWS
EXPANDED

RESPONSIV=
STATEMENT

Simpson 5/1/61 5/10/61 Yes 19 N 18 N 9 N 23 N

Sunflower 4/3/61 4/24/61 Yes 7 N 6 N 12 N 16 N

Tallahatchie 5/1/61 5/11/61 Yes 9 N 9 N 6 N 12 N

Tunica 5/23/61 6/5/61 Yes S N S N 3 N 7 N

Walthall 4/3/61 4/24/61 Yes 10 N 10 N 3 N 14 N
1 W 1 W

Yazoo 5/25/61 6/13/61 No 33 N 28 N 4 N 31 N
1 W 1 W



COUNTY
DATE

REQUESTED
DATE

RECEIVED
EXPEDITED

BASIS

INTERVIEWS
SPECIFICALLY

REQUESTEDANDMADE
INTERVIEWS
EXPANDED

RESPONSI
STATEMEN

Lauderdale 6/21/61 Pending No 12 N Pending Pending Pending

LePlore 4/28/61 5/15/61 Yes 11 N 12 N 4 N 16 N
8 Unknown

Lowndes 6/20/61 Pending -No 4 N Pending Pending Pending

Madison 4/4/61 4/21/61 Yes 6 N 6 N 63 N 67 N
1 M 1 W 1 W

Marshall 4/26/61 5/11/61 Yes 12 N 12 N 13 N 20 N

Panola 4/26/61 5/11/61 Yes 9 N 9 N 4 N 12 N

Pike 5/19/61 6/2/61 Yes 7 N 7 N 12 N 18 N
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COUNTY
DATE

REQUESTED
DATE

RECEIVED
EXPEDITED

BASIS

INTERVIEWS
SPECIFICALLY

REQUESTEDANDMADE
INTERVIEWS
EXPANDED

RESPONSIV=
STATEMENT

Simpson 5/1/61 5/10/61 Yes 19 N 18 N 9 N 23 N

Sunflower 4/3/61 4/24/61 Yes 7 N 6 N 12 N 16 N

Tallahatchie 5/1/61 5/11/61 Yes 9 N 9 N 6 N 12 N

Tunica 5/23/61 6/5/61 Yes S N S N 3 N 7 N

Walthall 4/3/61 4/24/61 Yes 10 N 10 N 3 N 14 N
1 W 1 W

Yazoo 5/25/61 6/13/61 No 33 N 28 N 4 N 31 N
1 W 1 W
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Putzel continued that on July 9 1957 Dr Gomilian
a black Tuskegee leader had conferred with Mr Barett
and Mr Hubbard two lawyers in Civil Rights - and
since that time no FBI investigation had been made
though the FBI had been following developments
Putzel said there would likely be a furor created by
any extensive investigation in Macon County He anti
cipated that State Senator Samuel Englehardt Executive
Secretary of the Alabama Association of Citizens
Councils and the person mainly responsible for the
gerrymandering of Tuskegee and for steps toward aboli
tion of Macon County would be very vocal in opposition
to any extensive FBI investigation

On March 19 1958 the Director of the FBI sent a
memorandum to the Attorney General

"In light of the recent developments in Webster Parish
Louisiana which arose while this Bureau was conducting
an investigation of the alleged denial of the right to
register [local district attorney alleged that FBI
agents intimidated the registrar and threatened to
subpoena the agents before a local grand jury] I want
to bring to your attention the following information with
respect to similar cases which might arise in the State
of Mississippi.

Mr Hoover noted that a campaign had been announced
by black leaders to increase black voters in Mississippi
and letters had been sent to local officials in 31
counties in the State Mr Mitchell of the Washington
NAACPhad furnished to Governor Coleman of Mississippi
and to the Justice Department a list of instances in
which blacks in 30 counties had been denied the right
to register solely because of their race To date the
FBI has received "three requests from the Civil Rights
Division requesting investigation in three different
counties in the State of Mississippi based upon informa
tion originally received by the Civil Rights Division.

"In view of the feeling of the officials and people in
the states involved as indicated in the Webster Parish
situation and in light of the announced plans of various
groups to redouble efforts to increase registration
immediately it would appear any inquiries desired
should be based upon substantial merit.
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(10) In U.S v MaconCounty there were75 exhibits"YntroducedPrimarily
for the Purposeof EstablishingThatA DoubleStandardwasUsed. Following
ore samples

Exhibit
Number

 1 Fiveapplicationsof MarieWilliams July 5 1957 July 10
1958 September1 and September15 and November10 1958

Education 3 1/2 yearsof college

Thefirst applicationcontainsminorerrors Thesecondapplication
con;:::nsa minorerror in question1 and the error discussed
below whichshe repeatedin her next twoapplications The
thirdand fourthapplicationsare perfect except that in answer
to the question"whendid youbecomea bonafideresident
of MaconCounty sheanswered "November1948 On the
5th application sheanswered "November15 1948 and it
is otherwiseperfect

writing test Article 11(5 times)

Raceof Applicant ActionbyBoard

NEGI)
IstApplication REJECTED
2ndApplication REJECTED
3rdApplication REJECTED
4th Application--- -----REJECTED
5th Application REJECTED

 4 Fiveapplicationsof Carrie E White May19 June 16
July 7 August15 and October6 1958

Educarron 11thgrade

Thefirst fourapplicationscontainminorerrors Thefifth
applico"ionis perfect

writingtest ArticlesV III II I1 and II respectively
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Raceof Applicant Actionby Board

NEGRO IstApplication REJECTED
2ndApplication REJECTED
3rdApplication REJECTED
4th Application REJECTED
5th Application ACCEPTED

31  Forty-eightapplicationsof personsapplyingin Octoberand
November1957

Education 7th grade 1
8thgrade 3
9th grade 2
10thgrade 4
11thgrade 2
HighSchool 21
1 year college 4
2 yearscollege 2
3 yearscollege
CollegeDegree 4
PublicSchool 1
College 1
BusinessCollege 2

Writingtest None

Raceof Applicants Actionby Board

ALLwHITE ALLACCEPTED

42 Applicationof DavidHaywoodJuly 4 1960

Education 3rdgrade

Theapplicationwasfilled out by himwithassistancefromthe
registrar

writing test Partof A disle II

Raceof Applicant Actionby Board

WHITE ACCEPTED
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Therewere74 exhibits"IntroducedPrimarilyfor the Purposeof Establishing
the SlowdownProcedures. Followingore samples

6chibit
Number

 11 1960appearancesheet forcourthouseregistration Beat1
Thefollowingnumbersof persons mostlyNegroes appeared
and signedup to applyfor registrationon the datesshown

June 20 1960 45

July 18 1960 17

August15 1960 20

October17 1960 28

December19 1960 290

 55 Twoappearancesheetsand fourapplicationsdated June 6 1960 for B2
(LittleTexas) .01

Applicationsshowthat 3 whitepersonsand 1 Negrowere registered
on that date

Backlogof 15persons mostlyNegroes

 60 Appearancesheet forBeat6 (Hardway)

Listdated October3 1960 has namesof 21 persons

One whitepersonwasregisteredcnd 3 Negroesappliedand
were rejected Backlogof 17 Negroes

 57 Appearancesheet forBeat9-2 (WestEnd)

Listhasnamesof 5 whitepersonswhoappliedandwe'e registered
on July 6 1960 Nobacklog

 40 Appearancesheet for Beat9-3 (Notasulga)

Listhasnamesof 8 whitepersonswhoapplied forregistrationon
July 7 and 8 1960 Nobacklog
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For example in the Lynn case involving discrimination
in Forrest County Mississippi the FBI was asked to
identify the race of 387 applicants for voter registra
tion At least 3 other race identification requests
were also sent The information was to be established
through someone's personal knowledge (such as post
mastersl or through public records (such as poll tax
receipts) The Bureau did a speedy accurate job in
determining the race of these applicants This was
just one of our 70 cases

On 2/18/65 Mr Marshall testified at the Commission
on Civil Rights hearings in Jackson "Two attorneys
were in Hattiesburg for almost three weeks sifting
through newspapers graduation yearbooks city
directories and other documents in order to identify
and locate white persons who were placed on the rolls
by the Mississippi registrars Thereafter other
attorneys again with the help of clerical help analyzed
application forms control cards and other records
during a 16-week period Interviewing of prospective
witnesses took four attorneys well over two weeks and
as many as five attorneys at a time were engaged for a
period of ever one month in preparing proposed finding
of fact and conclusions of law. The interviewing was
of Negro witnesses

(12a) However the Division attorneys were very effective
in interviewing potential black witnesses and almost
all of this work was done by Civil Rights Division
lawyers

What follows is a resume of the'April 1962 Choctaw
County Alabama investigation

"The purpose of this investigation is to establish the
standards requirements and procedures which have
been applied to white applicants for registration to
vote in Choctaw County Alabama since January 1960
This information sought generally related to what aid
and"assistance was offered
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white applicants in completing their application
forms how did the white applicants learn when and
where to register where and with whom did they
apply for registration under what circumstances
did they obtain their supporting witness when

.and how were they notified of their registration
and whether or not they have voted since their
registration

***

This investigation is based upon an analysis of
application forms submitted by white applicants
Attachment A lists prospective interviewee and it
is requested that sixty responsive statements be
obtained whenever possible The interviewees
should be selected from the first 65 persons
listed in Attachment A and if additional
interviews are needed to obtain the requisite
number of responsive statements they should
be taken from the Supplemental List to
Attachment A in the order in which the interviewees
are listed The first 65 interviewees are
grouped chronologically according to the date
of their application Where practical the same
agent should interview the persons listed as having

.applied for registration on the same day

Attachment A sets forth the name and address
of each interviewee and the FBI photo identification
number of his application These names are followed
by comments which are based on our records
analysis and are included to enable the interviewing
agents to obtain specific information The
handwriting and answers on some of the applications
have been compared to those found on applications
filed by other applicants The results
are indicated by the commerits If it is deemed
necessary in"or.der to verify information given by
interviewees additional interviews may be made of
the persons listed in he comments or whose names
arise from information given dy the _..terview'.s
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In,these cases tha persons should be.i,nterviewed
for all the information requested of the interviewees
herein Many of the comments request that
hand-writing samples be obtained from the interviewees
The statements which the interviewees should
write are set forth in the comments

***

Each interview should cover the details of the
procedures and requirements that these white
applicants.experienced The following should be
included in the information obtained

Obtain background information..

How did the interviewee find out when and where
he could apply for registration to vote Obtain
specific details as to who he talked to
where interviewee talked to this person when
interviewee talked to him and the details as
to their conversation

Did the interviewee have to fill out an
application form If so from whom and where
did he get the application form

***

Did the interviewee have to sign the application
form (Note that on practically all of the
applications there are check marks by
signatures in the Oath and Supplemental Oath
in page 3 of the form.)

***

If the interviewee did not personally fill out
an application form did he furnish any
information to anoaher persor to enable the
form to be co;pleb ;: If anothor person filled
out the form obtain the specific details as
to where they were and the procedures followed
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particularly whether a registrar was present
or had knowledge of the procedure followed
If a registrar was present determine the
proximity of the registrar to the
interviewee at this time and whether any
conversation were had with the registrar
while the interviewee's from was being
completed

What conversation took place between the
interviewee and the person who gave him the
application or the registrar if one was
present

a Was the interviewee asked any oral questions
about who he was where he worked how long he had
lived in the State or County or whether he had
ever been convicted of any crimes

Who else was present when the interviewee filled out
his form

***

Prior to exhibiting the interviewee his application
form determine whether he was told that he would
be required to have a supporting witness to
identify the interviewee and fill out part of
page 4 of the application form If so who told
this to the interviewee

Did the interviewee ask someone
to vouch for him If so who was this person
and how long has the interviewee known him
Did this person vouch in the presence of the
interviewee and if so what procedures were
followed (Who was present where were they
and whether registrar witnessed the voucher's
signature.)

If the interviewee did not asx anyone
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to vouch gOr hint* does he knout 1.f Any other
person for example a registrar asked soma

one to fill out the supporting witness
portion of his form If so did the
registrar or another person tell the inter
viewee who would vouch for him did that
person vouch for him in his presence who
was the voucher and how long has the
interviewee known him

c if the interviewee does not know who vouched
for him. determine if he knows the person who
signed as the supporting witness on page 4 of
the form and how long he has known this person

Where did the interviewee sit when his
application form was filled out

***

What parts of the form did the interviewee have
difficulty understanding

a When the interviewee is shown his application
if he has difficulties remembering whether he
needed any help with understanding portions of
the application parts of"the form should be
reviewed with him to refresh his memory
For example he may be asked what the words
"bona fide mean in question 5 or what
"priority and secular mean in question 20a
and what he thinks question 19 referring to
"aid and confort to enemies asks and why he
answered it as he did..

(14) The Bolivar County Mississippi records deman is
an example of another time consuming assignment
On August 11 1960 the Justice Department made a
formal demand persuant to the 1960'Act for
the registration records in Bolivar County Mississippi
The registrar refused and the Department filed suit
On November 15 1962 after p 'ceed'ncja which lasted
just under two years Judge Clayton issued an order
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allowing the inspection of records relating to
persons accepted for zeg:.stration However he
excluded rejected applications and limited the
inspection of records received prior ta'the
date of the demand letter The Department
immediately appealed On December 6 1'963 the
Court of Appeals modified Judge Clayton's order to
allow the inspection of rejected applications and
records obtained after the date of the demand
In January 1964 Judge Clayton then issued an order
granting the inspection and photographing of the
records. The defendant registrar then petitioned
the Supreme Court for a writ of certiorari and
Judge Clayton stayed his order during the
pendency of the petition Certiorari was denied
May 18 1964 The records were inspected and
photographed on June 24 1964 almost four years
after the demand letter was first filed

(15) Scott County Mississippi was a sparsely populated
county with less than 12,000 people of voting age
and an estimated 5,400 whites and 16 Negroes
registered in 8/63 0 'he FBI was requested to
obtain information from the registration records
in five areas (1) ascertain race identification
for all currently registered voters and rejected
applicants (2) obtain accurate registration
statistics by date (3) analysis reflecting the
incidence of each section of the Constitution
given to applicants to interpret (4) analysis of
application forms to determine what assistance was
given applicants as applicants as demonstrated by
standard or patterned answers and different ink
or handwriting and (5) standards used by the
Registrar in grading the forms

Bibb County Alabama had less than 8,000 persons
of voting age and in 6/62 an estimated 100%
of the Whites and 100 of the Negroes were registered
The FBI was asked to analyze the records and
obtain registration st..tistics and information on
errors and ommissions appearA..g on ch accept
application form



973

East Baton Rouge Pdr7:Sh( Loui,siAna has about 124,000
Persona 04 voting age about 65,000 whites and 10(000
Negroes were registered in 3/63 The FBI had
photographed only 10% of the accepted applications
forms and All the rejected forms The FBI request
dealing with East Baton Rouge Parish was extremely
detailed Much background information was set out
including a detailed description of the registration
procedure and what the records were used for The
FBI was asked (1) to determine the chronological
periods during which each test or procedure has been
used (2) to obtain detailed statistical data
(3) to ascertain with great specificity the
standards used in grading each test (4) to compile
evidence of aid and assistance to applicants and
(5) to assemble evidence of the quality of
applicants who are accepted and rejected The request
concluded "In this request we have endeavored to
anticipate most of the useful data which you will
find in the East Baton Rouge Parish voter registration
records However in examining these records closely
you may find other items which will requre further
analysis It is not our intention to restrict the
analysis to the items covered in this memorandum.

(16) In Mr Marshall's testimony-before Congressman
Rooney's Subcommittee on January 28 1964 he
testified as follows

Mr Rooney In connection with all of this you
have the services of the FBI do you not

Mr Marshall Mr Chairman in connection with
this budget I took up and discussed with the FBI
whether they could relieve some of the burden on
the Division involved in analyzing records They
photographed during the last year 250,000 pages
of records for analysis which is the analysis work
currently dons completely within the Division
I discussed with the Bureau whether they could
take on that burden ane they amid that they did
not have the personnel to do it Of the 250,Gv0
pages of records -
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Mr Rooney Are you telling us that the FBI does
not make the investigations for you in this area
of civil rights

Mr Marshall I am telling you Mr Chairman
that they do not make the analysis of the voting
records

Mr Rooney Do they make the investigation

Mr Marshall They make investigations for us yes
sir They do Mr Chairman They do a very good
job of interviewing a good number of witnesses
and they investigate completely criminal matters

nr

Mr Marshall We first determine upon the basis
of the complaints received and the statistical
analysis in the particular county whether or not
there appears to be a problem of discrimination
If there is then we request permission to
photograph the records...either upon the basis of
a voluntary compliance by the registrar or upon
the basis of a court order we go into photograph
the records ,That is mechanically done by
agents of the Federal Bureau of Investigation
who are accompanied by a lawyer from my Division
at the time That takes maybe two or three days
depending on how large the volume of records is in
the particular county which in turn depends on
its population

After that the films of the records are brought
back to Washington and they are blown up and analyzed
by lawyers and clerks working under lawyers in my
Division

None of the actual work of the analysis is now done
by the Federal aure;u of Investigation As I said
Mr Chairman an effoi is being made to see if
we could relieve the burden oa the division a...1
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took i.t up with the aure.au the question of whether
they could do that work and was informed they
cound not

***

Mr Bow Just a minute "Obtaining statistics
from registration books and poll books. Is that
or is.that not something that the FBI does by
photographing

Mr Marshall Congressman if I could draw a
distinction between snapping the shutter on a
camera and looking at the picture that is taken
that is the distinction The FBI snaps the shutter
on the camera That is all they do Then somebody
had to take what they photographed and draw
conclusions from it One of the things they draw
from it is statistics It is not always possible
to get statistics from poll books and registration
books In some case the race of the registered voter
is not shown or those books and we have in other
ways to seek that out That is the distinction
I want to make Congressman that the FBI only
snaps the shutter on the camera and that that is
not the major effect that is involved in these
matters

***

Mr Marshall The FBI has the camera We do not
have the camera The FBI has a technician who is
skilled in photographing things We do not have
a technician who is skilled in photographing things
As far as the physical photographing that is done
which may take two days or so in a particulpr
county that is acme by agents of the FBI who are
skilled camermen plus a lawyer from the Civil
Rights Division that tells him what to photograph
That is a small part of the work involved When
these 30,000 photograp s (in 11 Alabama counties)
are taken they are put on reels ana t..e reels are
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among 20 textile companies which were referred
to the Justice Department by Equal Employment
Opportunity Commission on the basis of terrible
statistics Each company operated one or more
plants which had less than 1% black male employees
no black female employees or no black employees
at all

On April 29 the Bureau was asked to investigate
such things as the methods of job recruitment
selection and training accepted and rejected
applicants since the effective date of Title VII
company structure and promotional policies and
whether employee facilities were desegregated

On May 2 the Director send the Division a memo
declining to conduct the investigations His
reasons were that no complaint had been received
against any of these companies that in the
absence of any complaint the requested investi
gations amounted to "statistical surveys which
are not a proper function of the FBI The Bureau
suggested "that inquiries of this type can most
appropriately be handled by the Equal Employment
Opportunity Commission...

On May 5 1957 I sent a meno to the Director
explaining our position and requesting that the
investigations be conducted I pointed out that
the receipt of a complaint is not a prerequisite
for investigation or suit under Title VIII that
the statistics showing virtually no blacks
employed were indicative of a probable violations
and that the purpose of investigating was not a
statistical survey but the development of proof
for a possible suit

On May 9 the Director again refused to conduct
the investigations He felt there was no provision
in the law authorizing EEOCto refer matters to
the Department for investigation only to refer
for suit and EEOCshould conduct the necessary
investigations
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brought back to Washington and every one is gone
over by lawyers in the Division and clerks in the
Division working the lawyers This is the major
work and I cannot accept the suggestion it is
misleading

(18) In June 1964 Mr Mally came to see me about
Sheridan's forces impersonating Bureau agents in
Mississippi During the course of the conversation
he complained that Sheridan was investigating and
the FBI was the investigatory arm of the Department
of Justice To this I replied "What are you talking
about I've been investigating in the South for
years. To this Mally replied "You don't
investigate John people just talk to you.

(18a) Tocppreciatethe amountof proof (and the workrequired)see the
answerto interrogatoriesfiled by the Divisionor the Division's
proposedfindingsof fact in anyof its votingcases
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 Inthe workof the Civil RightsCommissionand in the legisla
tion hearingsbetween1957and 1964therewasexpressedmuch
scholarlydoubton howfar Congresscouldgo in superceding
registrationprocessin the sovereignstates I haveno doubtthat
the Division'smonumentalcollectionof facts iswhat caused
Congressto go as far as it did withoutcausinga constitut'onal
problem On 3/7/66 the SupremeCourt in SouthCarolinav
Katzenbachupheldthe constitutionalityof the 1965Voting
RightsAct Theopinionsummarizesin somedetail the volu
minouslegal historyof the Actand demonstratesthat the massive
recordof case-by-caselitication againstvotingdiscrimination
establishedby the Justice Departmentwasthe basisfor the 1965
Act Boththe legislativehistory and the SupremeCourt'sopinion
are filled with referencesto the votingcasesbroughtby Justice
"Discriminatoryapplicationof votingqualificationshasbeen found
in all eight Alabamacases in ali 9 Louisianacases and in all
nine Mississippicaseswhichhave comeunderfinal judgment.
ThisrecordenabledCongressto concludethat "the unsuccessful
remedieswhichit hadprescribedin the pastwouldhave to be
replacedby sternerand moreelaboratemeasures Becauseof the
specificknowledgeof discriminatorytechniquesin usegained from
this record Congresswasable to deviseverydetailed and sweep
ing remedieswhichgot at the heart of the problemandwhichhad
ampleprecedentin the votingcasesthemselves "Congresshad
learnedthat widespreadand persistentdiscriminationin voting
duringrecent yearshas typicallyentailed the misuseof testsand
devices and thiswasthe evil forwhichthe newremedieswere
specificallydesigned.

 Thispattern mayhave to be repeated In 1967the FBIdeclined
to conductinvestigationsintoemploymentdiscriminationin six
textile companiesin Northand SouthCarolina Thesecaseswere
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About the same time the Bureau also refused to
conduct certain investigation in an employment
case in Birmingham involving the H.Y Porter Company
The Division asked the FSI on May 11 to obtain
information regarding the organization and internal
function of 2 plants in the North which were engaged
in operations similar to the Porter plant in
Birmingham The purpose was to try to show the
distinction between separate departments in the
Birmingham mill to be artificial and discriminatory
The Director on May 17 declined to conduct''the
investigation because no complaint had been
received as to these Northern plants and the Birming
ham plant was being investigated by EEOC

The Division appealed to Attorney General Clark
who sent a memo to the FBI again requesting them
to conduct these investigations On June 13 the
Bureau finally agreed

The oft repeated statement that the Bureau does not
police elections is not adequate to explain its
reluctance to fully perform"in employment discrimina
tion investigations

Attorney General Katzenbach testified in 1965 this
difficulty "the litigation cases amply demonstrate
the inadequacy of present statutes prohibiting voter
intimidation...perhaps the most serious inadequacy
result from the practice of District Courts to require
the Government to carry a very onerous burden of
proof of 'purpose since many types of intimidation
particularly economic intimidation involves subtle
forms of pressure This treatment of the purpose
requirement has rendered the statute larqely
ineffective

But in 1961 Director Hoover write to Mr Bernhard
of the Civil :nights Commission that "we know of
no instances of any individual being fearful to
bring complaints to th attention of the FBI.
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(231 Heywood County Tennessee is a rural county
located near the Mississippi border its
majority is black Resgistration in Tennessee
was a fairly simple matter applicants were not
required to pass a literacy test nor to interpret
a section of the Constitution But no Blacks
were registered to vote in Heywood County until
1960 none had been for at least 50 years The
first attempts by qualified blacks to register
began in 1958 but no Negroes was registered to
vote before May 1960 because from November of 1958
to February 1960 there was no functioning election
commission or register of voters in the county

(23a) No one can overlook the Mack Charles Parker
investigation Mack Charles Barker a black
was indicted in April 1959 by the Pearl River
County grand jury and charged with raping a
white woman He was confined in the county jail
in Poplarville Mississippi on April 13 awaiting
trial scheduled for April 27 During the night
of April 24 a group of masked men abducted
Parker from jail They beat him dragged him
down the stairs put him in a caz'and sped out
of town A nurse in the hospital next to the court
house heard his cries for help and called local
officials Parker's body badly beated and with
bullets in it was found in the Pearl River on
May 4

According to Time Magazine within a few hours of
the abduction Governor Coleman called the FBI and
asked for their assistance The Bureau immediately
began to investigate.The investigation was extensive
and a large number of agents took part headed
by the SACfrom New Orleans

Justice Department officials said the investigation
was one of the most intensive in FBI history and
cost about $80,000 Time 6/8/59 reported that a
temporary field office was established in Poplarville
and for four weeks a 50-man FHI task force roamed
Pearl River County
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TheFBIidentifiedmanyof the membersof the lynchmob
and turnedthe resultsof their investigationover to state
authorities

Followinga Justice Departmentrulingthat the FBIinves
tigationhad clearly establishedthat the personsresponsible
hadnot violatedFederalkidnappingstatutesand noother
successfulfederalprosecutioncouldbe maintained the
AttorneyGeneral instructedthe FBIto give Governor
Colemana summaryof the factsand evidence

DirectorHooverannouncedthat agentswouldbe available
to testify in state court On November2 a state grand
jurywasempaneledin Poplarvilleto hear the case After
three daysthe jurywenthomewithoutreturningany indict
mentsin the Parkercase Thelocal prosecutorrefusedto
read the FBIreportto the jury sayingit couldbe considered
only hearsayevidence Thejurydeclinedto hear FBIagents
whoofferedto appearwithoutbeingsubpoened At:orney
General Rogerstermedthe handlingof the case "a travesty
on justice- flagrantand calculated A federalgrand jury
wasempaneledto hear the case on January4 1960
Evidencein the FBIreportwaspresented FBIagentstestified
and the jurywasaskedto returnan indictment Theyfailed
to do so

TheFBIdid an excellent jobon the Parkercase TheBureau
carefullyinterviewedthe other bla;'.s in the jail developed
a white trusteewhoidentifiedseveralof the menwhoentered
the jail cell learnedthe locationof the farmwhere
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the men gathered to plan the lynch got
admissions from three of the participants and
established that the abduction occurred with the
cooperation of an official who had the duty
to protect Parker The Parker case demonstrates
that the FBI was willing to commit the necessary
resources to solve a civil rights case and that they
could solve one with an aggressive investigation

One League charter member told the agents that
five blacks who were all affiliated with the
League were told by their five respective
landlords that "they either had to move or
withdraw their membership in the (League) He
named the five blacks and the landlords Another
black allegedly was fired when he refusedi to
withdraw from the league another was reportedly
denied credit on account of his membership

Here the FBI was asked to investigate allegations
under (a) and possible 1971 (b) violations were
reported by the persons they interviewed

The cover sheet of the report notes that "the
investigation is continuing and you will be
furnished copies of reports as they are received.

On 6/23 Mr Tyler noted that he had a very
satisfactory talk with Mr Rosen about Heywood
and Fayette Counties and was informed that the
Bureau has already started to expand its
investigations back to where we requested them.

See the 3/31/60 request to the FBI mentioned above

(291 Request to the FBI 9/14/60
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InJanuary 1962 theseresidentagenciesexistedin
Mississippi

NorthernMississippi
Reportedto Memphis)

Oxford
Clarksdale
Tupelo
Greenwood
Columbus
Greenville

SouthernMississippi
(Reportedto NewOrleans)
Biloxi
Gulfport
Hattiesburg
Laurel
Meridian
Natchez
Jackson

 ThePatrolmantold the FBI".. I called the CountyAttorney
Joe Piggotand he cameover I told Piggotwhathad
happenedand he handledthe matterfromthere

 Myinterviewof Moss conductedin September1961at
McCombMississippistates In McCombthe doctorstitched
up the woundsin myhead Thebig one at the top of the head
near the back tookfive stitches Anotherone behindthe right
eye tookthree stitches Anotherone on myforeheadtookone
stitch Thedoctorwroteout a statementthat therewere
multiplelacerationscausedby a blunt instrument...
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Or soon thereafter

On 1964 Lewis Allen was gunned down in
the driveway of his home in rural Amite County

"This week at my request Burke Marshall spent
some time in Southwestern Mississippi and Jackson
to get some first-hand impressions of the
possibilities for this summer and the future
He has reported the following general conclusions
to me

There has unquestionably been as you know an
increase in acts of terrorism in this part of
Mississippi As a result the tensions are very
great not only between whites and Negroes but
among whites This is not as true in Jackson as
in the outgoing areas

Law enforcement officials at least outside
Jackson are widely believed to be linked to
extremist anti-Negro activity or at the very
least to tolerate it...For example groups have
been formed under the auspices of the Americans
for the Preservation of the White Race to act
as deputized law enforcement officials in some
counties...These groups appear to include
individuals of the type associated with Klan
activities..

The area is characterized by fear based upon
rumor In Jackson rumors of organized Negro
attacks on whites appear to be deliberately
planted to spread in organized fashion through
pamphlets leaflets and word of mouth..
It seems to me that this situation presents new
and quite unprecedented problems of law enforcement

As one step I am directing some of the personnel
here in the Department who have had organized
crime experience to make a more detailed survey
of the area to try to substantiate the details
concerning acts of terrorism which are at least
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generally believed to have taken place ..11the
last few wee.:ca

Mn addition it seems to me that consideration
should be given by the Federal Bureau of

Investigation to new procedures for identification
of the individuals who may be or have been
involved in acts of terrorism and to the possible
participation in such acts by law enforcement
officials or at least their toleration of terrorist
activity In the past the procedures used
by the Bureau for gaining information on known
local Klan groups have been successful in many
places and the information gathering techniques
used by the Bureau on Communist or Communist
related organizations have of course been spectacularly
efficient

The unique difficulty that seems to me to be
presented by the situation in Mississippi(which is
duplicated in parts of Alabama and Louisiana at
least) is in gathering information on fundamentally
lawless activities which have the sanction of
local law enforcement agencies political
officials and a substantial segment of the
white population The techniques followed in the
use of specially trained special assignment
agents in the infiltration of Communist
groups should be of value If you approve it
might be desirable to take up with the Bureau the
possibility of developing a similar effort to meet
this new porblem

(36) A very different reception was given Walter
Sheridan when he met with Al Rosen at the FBI
office in Jackson on July 2 Sheridan and Rosen
discussed how Sheridan's unit and the FBI could
be of mutual help The FBI agreed to furnish
copies of FBI reports in urgent cases Sheridan
was authorized to make oral requests locally or
by phone to the New Orleans office or written

requests on local basis the results would
he furnished directly 'o Sheridan in Jackson
Sheridan agreed to furnish their intelligence
information to :31 and they would work together
to obtain good prosecutable case as a starting
point for calling a grand jury
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(36a) Thefollowingcolumnby JosephAlsopappearedin theWashingtonPost
of June 17 1964 Its headlineread "Murderby Night

"A great stormis gathering- and maybreakverysoonindeed-
in the Stateof Mississippiand someother regionsof the South
Thesouthernhalf of Mississippito be specific hasnowbeen
powerfullyreinvadedby the KuKluxKlan whichwasbanished
fromthe state manyyearsago Andthe Klangroupshave in turn
mergedwith or adheredto a newand veryuglyorganizationknown
as Americansfor the Preservationof the WhiteRace

"SenatorJamesEastlandhasmanagedto preventinfiltrationof the
northernpartof the state wherehis influencepredominates But
southernMississippiis nowknownto containno lessthan60,000
armedmenorganizedin whatamountsto guerrillaunitsdedicatedto
terrorism

'Acts of terrorismagainstthe local Negropopulationare alreadyevery
clayoccurences Justice Departmentinvestigatorsbelieve - but
cannotabsolutelyprove- that five Negroeshavealreadybeen killed
by terroriststo date Themostprobablerecent casewasthe death
of LewisAllen an AmiteCountyNegroleader whowasambushed
and shota fewnightsago

"Allenhad invitedreprisalsby complainingto the Justice Department
that he hadbeen beatenby oneof the DeputySheriffsof Amite
County Shortlybeforehe wasambushed the wifeof anotherNegro
leader in the county Mrs W R Steptoe warnedhimthat he wasin
danger

"'Well, saidAllen 'if theyget me theywon'tget a scaredman

"Despitethe murderof Allen Mrs Steptoeis still preparingto give
boardand lodgingto severalof the northernstudentswhoare beingsent
into Mississippiby the StudentNon-ViolentCoordinatingCommittee
better knownas Snick Eventhoughshe hasrefusedto take any but
Negrostudents shehasalreadypredictedthat her farmhousewill be
bombed

"Thesevividfragmentsof informationreachingthe Justice Department
are worthsettingdown becausethey makean importantpoint The
point is that the local Negroleadersare not readyto yield to the
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mountingcampaignof intimidation

"In Jackson Mississippithe officesof COFO- the Council
of FederatedOrganizationswhichincludesSnick- had their
windowsbrokenalmostnightly ButnowNegroarmedguards
are postedat the officeeverynight Other casesof this sort could
alsobe cited

"This in Mississippitoday the twosidesalreadyconfronteach
othergun in hand Beforelong moreover the situationwill be
enormouslycomplicated- and envenomed- by the arrival of
severalhundredNorthernwhiteand Negrostudentsrecruitedby
Snickto open"FreedomSchools in Mississippithissummer

"Thefirst contingentof thesestudentshasnowbeguna training
program sponsoredby the FederationCouncilof Churches at
the WesternCollegeforWomenin Oxford Ohio Exceptfor
lessonsin howto registerand vote the curriculumof the 'freedom
school will be the oppositeof inflammatory Butthe students
simplepresencein Mississippiwill be highlyinflammatoryand it
will be close to miraculousif a goodmanyof themdo not fall victim
to the terrorists

"Whatcan be doneto dampdownthis horrifyinglyexplosivesituation
is alreadybeingdoneby bothstate and federalauthorities The
twoMississippiSenators- Eastlandand John Stennis have thrown
the wholeweightof their influenceagainstviolence

"ThenewGovernorof MississippiPaulJohnson hasalso let it be
knownthat he will not tolerate violence Since the Governorcannot
dependon the Sheriffsand DeputySheriffsin the counties he has
powerfullyreinforcedhishighwaypolice and semi-alertedhis
NationalGuard Becauseof GovernorJohnson another Negro
student ClevelandDonald wasjustadmirtedto the University
of Mississippiwithoutany rioting

"TheJustice Departmenthasalsostrengthenedthe FBIin Mississippi
byassigningto investigationof the undergroundterroristgroupsthe
crack teamof menwhotriumphantlygot the factson JamesHoffa
Yet the Governor the Senatorsand the Justice Departmentare all
confrontedby the sameproblem
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"Guerrillawar in Mississippiis no easier to win thanguerilla
war in SouthVietnam Guerilla war  rather than the kindof
openmassoutbreakthat broughtthe troopsto Little Rock Arkansas-
is nowthe danger

"Thereal aimof Snickand the other moreextremeNegroorganizations
is to securethe militaryoccupationof Mississippiby federal troops
Buteven if worstcomesto worst will militaryoccupationsecurethe
desiredresult Thatis the problemPresidentJohnsonmayhave
to solvebeforelong.

TheJune 16 1964editionof the Louisville KentuckyCourier-Journal
carrieda storyby RichardHarwoodheadlined"In Mississip Federal
Officials,FaceRaceCrisis

"Washington- TheJohnsonAdministrationis filled withdeep
forebodingsovereventsthat will unfoldin Mississippiin the
weeksjustahead

'rAmajorracial crisisseemsimminent Armsare beingshippedinto
the state 'Auxiliary police forcesof whitesegregationistsare
beingdrilledand trainedforriot duty in rural countiesby the
state TheKuKluxKlanis showingsurprisingnewstrength
and is rallyingwhitesto resist 'thoseblacksavagesand their communist
leaders

"Negroes the Justice Departmenthasrevealed alreadyare being
stalkedin the poor pineywoodssectionof southeasternMississippi
Therehavebeen nearlyfifty floggings murdersand other acts of
violence- manyby 'hoodedmen - sinceJanuary1

"Thespiritof violence the Administrationreports is beingfanned
by inflammatorystatementsmadeby integrationleaderswhowill
moveinto Mississippiin forcebeginningSunday John Lewis the
nationalchairmanof the StudentNonviolentCoordinatingCommittee
haspredicteda crisisof suchmagnitudethat 'the FederalGovernment
will have to take over the state Lewishassaid that 'somekind
of conflict somekindof violence is inevitable

"AnotherNegrostudentleader ClaudeL Weaverof Howard was
quotedrecentlyas havingsaid 'the Negroesmightstart killing the
whitepeoplein Mississippiverysoon
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"Statementsof this sort a Governmentsourcerevealed have
been reproducedand widelycirculatedamongthe Whitesin
Mississippi

"Thefull weightof the storm the administrationbelieves could
comemuchsoonerthan the public isgenerallyaware Thecatalyst
maybethe Mississippisummerproject

"Thisprojectwill bringto Mississippi800to 1,000 volunteerintegration
workersfromall sectionsof the UnitedStates- students lawyers
housewivesand ministers Theywill set up workshopsin sixteen
Mississippicommunitiesto encourageand prepareNegroesfor a
massivevoter registrationcampaign

"Theproject is sponsoredby all the majorcivil rightsorganizations
in the country- NAACP CORE SNCCand othergroups The
volunteersare being trainedat week longseminarsat Western
CollegeforWomen Oxford Ohio Thefirstclassof 225volunteers
and 125staffmembersfromCivil Rightsorganizationswill complete
their trainingthisweekand moveinto Mississippiimmediately

"Asecondclassof 350volunteerswill begintrainingnext weekand a
thirdclassof 150the followingweek

"Theyhavebeenwarnedthat violenceand bloodshedmay
result fromtheir work Indeed manybelieve it is inevitable

"TheCrimsonstudentnewspaperat Harvard wheremanyvolunteers
have been recruited said in an editorial that the summerprojectwill
be a 'massive daring probablybloodyassaulton the racial powersof
Mississippi. .For the first time active self-defenseand nctual
retaliation (byNegroes) thoughnot officiallyadvocated are
beingopenlydiscussed The(project)plannersreasonthat massive
nonviolencewill precipitatea crisisof violencewhichthey consider
prere:iuisitefor furtherprogress.

"Justice DepartmentofficialsfromAttorneyGeneral RobertKennedy
on downare moredisturbedover the situationthan they havestated
publicly

"Theirconcernis basedon theseconsiderations
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"Whiteresistancet. integrationeffortsin Mississippiis
usingand is reflectedin increasedactivity by the Klan
TheMay10thissueof TheKlanLedger,publishedin Mississippi
predictsa 'nervewracking long hot summerand calls for the
formationof 'a largeand adequateauxiliarypolice forceor
deputysheriffforce in each communityto resisttheseCommunist 
led Negromobs

"Whitesare urgedto armthemselves to refuseto
give uptheir weapons 'Donot go out lookingfor trouble,
TheLedgeradvises 'Armyourselfwell and stayat home Donot
fire unlessyourhome yourperson or yourfamilyis attacked.

"The'auxiliary police forcesdemandedby the Klan it hasbeen
learned are nowbeingorganizedin severalMississippicounties
includingWalthall Clayand Pikein the southwesternpart of the
state

"TheMississippiclimatehasbeen aggravatedby the increasing
militantpostureof certain integrationleaderswhoseemdetermined
one highGovernmentofficial said to precipitateviolenceand force
the WhiteHouseto order troopsinto the state.

On July 24 1964 I wroteMr Marshallas follows "AnFBIinvestigation
into the churchburningwas requestedby the CRDon 6/19 after the
NewOrleansoffice reportedthe incident Sofar as we can tell in the
threedaysbetore the three civil rightsworkersweremissing the
Bureauonly interviewedthe threeblackswhowerebeaten and
perhapstalked to a civil rightsworkerin Meridian Before6/21
the Bureauapparentlymadeno inspectionof the churchforphysicalevidence
and no contactwithstate or local authoritiesas to what investigation
theywerea,nducting.

See JosephKraft's2/65 article in Commentary



991

(39) Thefollowingappearedin the NewYorkTimesof Saturday
June 27 1964headlined"DullesRequestMoreFBIAgentsfor
Mississippi- "UrgesPresidentto expandforce in state to control
'terroristicactivities

AllenW Dullesrecommendedto PresidentJohnsontoday
that moreagentsof the FederalBureauof Investigationbe
sent to Mississippito help "controlthe terroristicactivities.

Mr Dulles talking to reportersafter hisconferencewith
PresidentJohnsondid not specifyhowmanymoreagentshe
thoughtshouldbe assignedto Mississippi Hesaid that
wouldbe up to J EdgarHoover Directorof the Bureau

Aspokesmanforthe Bureaudeclinedto sayhowmany if
any additionalagentswouldbe sent to Mississippi They
alsodeclinedto say howmanyagentswerealreadystationed
there Thestepped-upFBIactivity wasthe principalrecom
mendationmadeto the Presidentby Mr Dulles..

***

Mr Dullessaid that the Presidentappearedto favorhis
recommendationand hodindicatedthat it wouldbe imple
mentedveryshortly

Thatsamedate June 27 1964 TheWashingtonPost'sstoryheadlined
"DullesSeesJohnsonon RacialIssue - "MississippiReportUrges
BolsteredFBIForcein State, includedthe following

AllenW Dullesrecommendedto PresidentJohnsonyesterday
that the FBIforcein Mississippibe increasedto help halt
"terroristactivities in that state

TheformerDirectorof the Central IntelligenceAgencyreported
to the Presidentfornearly twohourson his two-dayfact-finding
missionto Mississippiwherethree youngcivil rightsworkers
havebeen missingsince Sunday

Dullessaid he haddiscussedwith FBIDirectorJ EdgarHoover
hisproposalto increasethe FBIstrengthin Mississippi He
notedthat the FBIhad "greatlyaugmentedits staff there to work
on the caseof the three missingworkersand did not have 'a lot
of extra people easilyavailable to movein "But, said
Dulles "I thinkit will be done.

A FBIspokesmansaid he wouldnot comment

66-0770 76 63
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APPENDIXB

UNITEDSTATESDEPARTMENTOFJUSTICE

FEDERALBUREAUOFINVESTIGATION

WASHINGTOND.C20535

January 12 1976

U S SENATESELECTCOMMITTEE
TO STUDYGOVERNMENTALOPERATIONS

WITHRESPECTTO INTELLIGENCEACTIVITIES(SSC)

Reference is made to the testimony of FBI Director
Clarence M Kelley before the SSCon December 10 1975 During
this testimony certain questions arose on which answers were
deferred Set forth hereinafter are the unanswered questions
along with the responses thereto

Senator HowardH Baker Jr. inquired as to Director
Kelley's feeling concerning an Inspector General concept
extending Governmentwide Senator Baker asked the Director to
think about the question and furnish his thoughts at a later
date Upon reflection and consideration of the question
Director Kelley has decided it would be inappropriate for him
as Director of the FBI to commentconcerning the need for a
national Inspector General as it would affect any agency other
than the FBI

Senator Gary Hart stated that although higher
authorities had been alerted to the existence of Counterintel
ligence Programs (COINTELPROS)in one or two instances in
terms of the bulk of the Programs there was no systematic
information flowing upward through the chain of commandto
former Director Hoover's superiors Specifically Senator Hart
indicated the SSChad received testimony that the existence of
the COINTELPROeffort against the NewLeft had not been made
known to higher authorities and asked if Director Kelley had
any information in this regard Director Kelley asked for an
opportunity to substantiate the notification provided by former
Director Hoover to higher authorities

NOTE The inquiry by Senator Baker referred to above can be found at
page 291 of this volume The question of Senator Hart can be found at page
301of this volume
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While no systematic report was made on a regular basis
by former Director Hoover regarding COINTELPROactivities
information regarding the COINTELPROSwas periodically provided
to his superiors in the Executive and Legislative Branches FBI
files contain considerable documentation clearly establishingno effort was made by Director Hoover to conceal from superiorauthorities the fact the FBI was engaged in neutralizing and
disruptive tactics against revolutionary and violence-prone
groups This documentation is as follows

Briefing of the President On November6 1958
Director Hoover presented to President Dwight Eisenhower and the
Cabinet an oral briefing entitled "Current CommunistSubversion
and Espionage in the United States 1958. Included in the
presentation material was a description of the Bureau's effort to
'intensify any confusion and dissatisfaction among its (Communist
Party USA)members. Use of informants was cited as a techniqueto further this goal This particular effort was referred to as
one of several programs to counteract resurgence of Communist
Party influence in the United States In November 1974 former
Assistant to the Director Cartha D DeLoach advised he recalled
very clearly briefing President Lyndon B Johnson regarding the
Bureau's activities against black militants

Notification of White House In 1958 a letter was
sent to Presidential Aide Robert Cutler at the White House
specifically advising that our COINTELPROdirected against the
CommunistParty had been initiated in August 1956 and citing
examples of techniques utilized In 1965,a letter was directed
to Presidential Aide Marvin Watson at the White House advisinghim this Bureau was seizing every opportunity to disrupt the Klan

Notification of Secretary of State In 1961a letter enclosing a memorandumsetting forth examples of
COINTELPROactions directed against the CommunistParty was sent
to Secretary of State Dean Rusk
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Notification of Attorneys General A letter was
directed to Attorney General William ogeesrsin 1958 specifically
advising him our COINTELPROhad been initiated against the
CommunistParty in August 1956 and citing examples of techniques
utilized In 1961 a letter was directed to Attorney General
Robert Kennedy enclosing a memorandumciting examples of COINTELPRO
actions directed against the CommunistParty In 1965 a letter
was sent to Attorney General Nicholas Katzenbach advising him
the FBI was seizing every opportunity to disrupt the Ku Klux Klan
Attorney General Ramsey Clark was furnished in 1967 a letter which
enclosed a detailed memorandumoutlining our efforts to neutralize
and disrupt the Ku Klux Klan In September 1969 Attorney
General John Mitchell was advised of our efforts to disrupt the
Klan Additionally former Assistant to the Director DeLoach
advised in November 1974 he had briefed former Attorney General
Ramsey Clark regarding the various COINTELPROSand he also
expressed the opinion that former Assistant to the Director
Alan H Belmont or former Assistant to the Director William C
Sullivanhad briefed Attorney General Katzenbach

Notification of Con ress Bureau files reveal that
detailed information concerning t e TELPROSwas prepared for
off-the-record use by former Director Hoover in connection with
several appearances before the House Subcommittee on
Appropriations Material concerning the COINTELPROSwas prepared
for the Director's use in connection with Appropriations testimony
for the fiscal years 1958 1959 1960 1961 1963 1966 and 1967
All this material was clearly marked for off-the-record discussion
Published transcripts of hearings by the House Subcommittee on
Appropriations contain notations that on at least six occasions
between 1958 and 1966 off-the-record discussions took place at
those points in Mr Hoover's prepared remarks dealing with the
COINTELPROSFormer Assistant to the Director John P Mohr
advised in November 1974 he recalled the Director on several
occasions had furnished details to the House Subcommittee on
Appropriations relating to FBI COINTELPROSIn November 1974
Assistant to the Director Nicholas P Callahan advised he too
recalled several instances involving off-the-record discussion
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by the Director with members of the House Subcommittee regardingthis Bureau's efforts to neutralize groups and organizationsinvolved and that there was no critical commentmade in regardthereto

An FBI Headquarters supervisor who was assigned
responsibility for COINTELPROmatters during the period 1964
to 1967 recalls that on a number of occasions he was requiredto prepare informal memorandaand summaries relating to COINTELPRO
actions It was his understanding this material was to be
utilized by Director Hoover in connection with briefings of
various Government officials

A review of FBI files has not located any document
indicating higher authority was formally advised of the existence
of the COINTELPROeffort directed against revolutionary NewLeft
elements It should be pointed out the program that targetedthe NewLeft was only in existence during the period 1968 to
1971 (35 months) and only 285 actions were approved which
represent approximately 12 percent of all actions approved in the
basic COINTELPROSAdditionally during the time period of the
NewLeft program this Bureau was engaged in extensive reportingand dissemination of information relating to activities and
violence perpetrated by revolutionary elements including the
so-called NewLeft

The Chairman Senator Frank Church inquired as to how
much time and money is being spent by the FBI in conducting
investigations on possible Presidential appointments to Federal
offices plus any other information which would indicate what
proportion of the FBI's time and effort was absorbed in this kind
of activity Senator Church also asked the Director to supplythe number of such investigations conducted each year beginningwith 1970 and also information as to what offices are now
covered by such investigations

NOTE The inquiry by Senator Church referred to above can be found at
page 304of this volume
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The FBI conducts investigations under the Federal
Employee Security Program pursuant to Executive Orders 10450
and 10422 Executive Order 10450 became effective May 28 1953
and sets forth security requirements for employment in the
Executive Branch The purpose of the Federal Employee Security
Program is to insure that the employment and retention in
employment of any civilian in the Executive Branch is clearly
consistent with the interests of the national security

At the request of the White House investigations are
conducted concerning Presidential appointees and White House
personnel At the request of Cabinet officers investigations
are conducted concerning certain personnel

Upon request investigations are conducted concerning
staff personnel of seven Congressional Committees These are
handled by agreement with the Department of Justice and include

Senate Foreign Relations Committee
Senate Committee on Judiciary
House Committee on Judiciary
Joint Committee on Atomic Energy
Senate Appropriations Committee
House Appropriations Committee
Senate ArmedServices Committee

At the request of the Department of Justice investiga
tions are conducted concerning Departmental Applicants for
Presidential appointments and professional positions such as
Federal Judges United States Attorneys and other legal positions
In addition investigations are conducted for the Administrative
Office of the United States Courts concerning applicants for the
positions of United States Magistrate Federal Public Defender
Referee in Bankruptcy Federal Court Executive and Probation
Officer Also investigations are conducted concerning persons who
have applied for pardons after completion of sentences upon being
convicted of felonies in the United States District Courts

ran  a MS
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Investigations are also conducted of personnel who
have sensitive positions with the Nuclear Regulatory Commission
and the Energy Research and Development Administration (formerly
the Atomic Energy Commission)

In connection with all of these investigations we
report the facts developed and furnish the results to the
requesting agency without any commentor recommendation or any
evaluation of the facts developed

The costs involved concerning investigations on behalf
of the White House Congressional Staff Committees Department
of Justice and Applications for Pardon After Completion of
Sentence as well as cases referred to the FBI under various
public laws are included in the overall FBI budget In all other
investigations charges are made The current rates for these
charges which became effective on October 12 1975 are listed
below For Fiscal Year 1975 expenditures for these investigations
amounted to approximately $6,760,000 of which slightly over
$3,000,000 was reimbursed from other agencies It is to be noted
the costs of these investigations fluctuate from year to year
dependent upon changes in salary travel and other expenses

Atomic Energy Commission Investigation:* Newrates eff 10/12/75
*Namechanged eff 1/20/75 $ 834.00

Energy Research and Development
Administration

Nuclear Regulatory Commission
Library of Congress

Full-Field Loyalty Investigations 2,117.00

Civil Service Commission
(United Nations Personnel)
State Department (Ambassadorial
and Ministerial Appointees)
All Agencies (Administration
Appointees)
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Preliminary_Inquiries 410.00
Civil Service Commission (CSC)
(United Nations Personnel)

There follows a tabulation listing the number of
investigations conducted by the FBI for other Government agencies
for the period from Fiscal Year 1970 through Fiscal Year 1975

1970 1971 1972 1973 1974 -1975

Federal Employees Security
Program-Executive Order
10450 1235 1296 993 985 943 591

United Nations Loyalty
Program-Executive Order
10422 36 31 31 31 8 14

Referrals from CSCunder
various Public laws 339 242_196 160_ 95 68^

Energy Research and Develop
ment Administration/Nuclear
Regulatory Commission (ERDA/
NRC)(formerly Atomic Energy
Commission) 1648 1529 1615 2083 1982 2346

Reinvestigation Program
of ERDA/NRC 348 553 485 467 381 203

Departmental Applicant/U S
Courts Applicant 4737 4964 5835 3576 1492 1224
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Where possible steps have been taken to insure that these cases
are kept to an absolute minimum It is noted prior to July
1973 the FBI conducted investigations concerning nonprofessional
positions in connection with Departmental applicant/U S Court
applicant investigations such as general clerical personnel
It was determined and agreed upon that these investigations could
be handled by the Civil Service Commission and therefore they
were transferred to that agency

A manpowerutilization survey conducted during March
1975 disclosed that 2.3% of field investigative time by FBI
personnel was being devoted to these applicant-type investigations
conducted for other Government agencies This low percentage
is indicative of the Bureau's efforts to hold down applicant
type work to that essential and necessary to meet our various
commitments in this field Wehave and will continue to oppose
legislation seeking to involve the FBI in routine applicant-type
investigations
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